

Baseball's Longest Games

A COMPREHENSIVE WORLDWIDE RECORD BOOK

PHILIP J. LOWRY

Baseball's Longest Games This page intentionally left blank

Baseball's Longest Games

A Comprehensive Worldwide Record Book

Philip J. Lowry



McFarland & Company, Inc., Publishers *Jefferson, North Carolina, and London*

LIBRARY OF CONGRESS ONLINE CATALOG DATA

Lowry, Philip J. Baseball's longest games : a comprehensive worldwide record book / Philip J. Lowry. p. cm. Includes bibliographical references and index.

> **ISBN 978-0-7864-4263-8** softcover : 50# alkaline paper ∞

Baseball – United States – History.
 Baseball – Records – United States.

 Title.

GV863.A1 L69 2010 796.3570973 - dc22 2009037410

British Library cataloguing data are available

©2010 Philip J. Lowry. All rights reserved

No part of this book may be reproduced or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic or mechanical, including photocopying or recording, or by any information storage and retrieval system, without permission in writing from the publisher.

Cover images ©2010 Shutterstock

Manufactured in the United States of America

McFarland & Company, Inc., Publishers Box 611, Jefferson, North Carolina 28640 www.mcfarlandpub.com

Contents

Preface 1 Triple Crown Games by Decade 5

ONE : LONGEST GAMES BY INNINGS

I. Highlights, Analysis and Predicting Extra Innings 9

II. Game Records 32

Games of 20 Innings or More 32
Longest Games, by Decade 50
Longest U.S. Amateur Games, by State 68
Scholastic Divisions, Worldwide 73
Longest Games, by Country 76
Minor League Games, by League 79
Major League Games, by League and Team
87

Evolution of Records for Longest Game by Innings 89 Doubleheaders and Other Multiple-Game Situations 119 Planned Games of 20 Innings or More, Chronological by Decade 131

TWO : LONGEST GAMES BY TIME

I. Highlights and Conclusions 133

II. Game Records 136

Games Lasting 5 Hours or More by Game	Major League Games, by League and Team
Time 136	200
Longest Games by Game Time, by Decade	Evolution of Records for Game Time 208
159	Games Lasting Seven Hours or More by
Longest U.S. Amateur Games, by State 182	Elapsed Time 255
Scholastic Divisions, Worldwide 184	Doubleheaders Taking Seven Hours or More
Longest Games, by Country 188	by Game Time 259
Minor League Games, by League 192	Doubleheaders Taking Eight Hours or More
	by Elapsed Time 265

THREE : LATEST GAMES BY FINISH TIME

I. Highlights and Analysis 272 II. Game Records 277

Games Finished After 1 A.M 277	Minor Leagues, by League 323
Finishes After 1 A.M., by Decade 297	Major Leagues, by League and Team 328
Latest Finish, U.S. High School and College	U.S. Amateur, by State 336
317	Evolution of Records for Latest Finish 339
Latest Finish, by Country 321	

Epilogue 353 Bibliography 355 Index 357

Preface

This work examines in detail the length of baseball games at all levels, in all countries, and all eras. If a game lasted 20 or more innings, or five or more hours, or ended after 1 A.M., you will find it here. This effort represents 46 years of work, begun in 1963. I am very thankful for the tremendous assistance along the way by fellow baseball researchers, many of whom are members of the Society for American Baseball Research (SABR).

Those most helpful have included David Black, Patrick Gallagher, Karl Knickrehm, Tim Copeland, Richard Musterer, John Thorn, Miles Wolff, Lloyd Johnson, Tom Kayser, Branch Rickey, Miwako Atarashi, David Skinner, Yuyo Ruiz, Yogo Suzuki, Jon Clark, Tito Rondon, Mike Welsh, Paul Wendt, Eddie Almada, Cuqui Cordova, Jorge Colon Delgado, Eric Dickey, Carlos Fragoso, Kit Krieger, Kensuke Okutani, Charlie O'Reilly, Doug Raynie, Ken Tazawa, Tim Hayburn, Joanne Hulbert, Maseru Ikei, Marty Kuehnert, Brian Larson, Angus Macfarlane, Alexandre Nita, Tom Perry, Stephan Reifenberg, Bill Selnes, Kevin Seldana, Hidehiro Shinkoi, Wayne Subica, Alain Usereau, Beto Villa, Matt Wall, Bill Young, and Chunwei Yu.

Following the Preface is a list of the 69 "triple crown" games, so-called because they meet all three minimum criteria for marathon games: they lasted 20 innings or longer, they took five hours or more, and they finished after 1 A.M. In the chapters that follow, each of the triple-crown components receives similarly comprehensive coverage. Chapter One analyzes games lasting 20 or more innings; Chapter Two, games lasting five or more hours; and Chapter Three, games ending after 1:00 A.M. local time.

My interest in marathon games stems from baseball experience I had on August 9, 1963. On that day my father and I attended a 26-inning twi-night doubleheader at Forbes Field in Pittsburgh. After a long rain delay, the first game went 15 innings. Roberto Clemente's RBI single ended the second game in the bottom of the 11th at 2:30 A.M. The next day, we discovered that nobody at KDKA Radio or any Pittsburgh newspaper could answer the question, "Is that the longest-ever night of baseball?"

To my knowledge, nobody has ever before explored such questions as: What is the probability a game will go 10 innings, or 20 innings, or 30 innings, or 40 innings, or X number of innings? How often might we expect a marathon game of 20 or more innings? Of 40 or more innings? What is the probability the 26inning major league record will be broken this year? What is the probability the 33-inning minor league record will be broken in the next ten years? What is the probability the 45-inning "other" category (which includes any number of kinds of amateur contests) record will be broken in the next 75 years?

How long a wait would give us a 50 percent chance to see the 26-inning major league record broken, or a 95 percent chance to see the 33-inning minor league record broken, or a 99 percent chance to see the 45-inning "other" category record broken? Which is rarer, the 26-inning major league record, the 33-inning minor league record, or the 45-inning "other" category record? As you read further, we will answer all these questions.

Research Methodology: In All Nations and at All Levels

One of my research goals is to treat all levels of play and all countries equally. Most baseball research has unfortunately failed to consider the various levels and countries in which the game is played, focusing almost entirely on major league baseball in the United States.

If you ask baseball historians who hit the most triples in a season, they will reply Chief Wilson of the Pirates, with 36 triples in 1912, because they automatically assume you are asking about the major leagues. However, when it comes to all of baseball, including Negro Leagues, minor leagues, high schools, colleges, American Legion, Babe Ruth League, town ball, Cuba, Japan, Italy, and all other nations, I would guess no one has ever even asked the question, much less answered it.

I believe we should ask and answer such questions. It is hoped that my research is one small contribution towards taking a global approach to baseball research, in which all levels of competition and all nations of the world are given equal treatment.

Joe DiMaggio's 56-Game Hitting Streak

There are important — and, admittedly, surprising — parallels between this research on the probability that marathon games will occur and published research concerning the probability that a batter will ever break Joe DiMaggio's 1941 56-game major league or Joe Wilhoit's 1919 69-game minor league (Western League) hitting streaks.

The 56-game major league streak is considered the prime example of a baseball event that defies the laws of probability. The late Stephen Jay Gould once wrote that DiMaggio's streak is the "most extraordinary thing that has ever happened in sports." These parallels should be further explored in the future.

I have been very fortunate to experience many fantastic and fun times while conducting research on baseball marathons at every major league park, a little over half the existing minor league fields, and many overseas diamonds in Latin America, Europe, Africa, Asia, and Australia.

I especially treasure my "Croix de Candlestick." This may be the most innovative baseball marketing device ever devised by the mind of man. Trapped in Candlestick Park, a frigidly cold ballpark nicknamed the "Cave of the Winds," with shivering fans huddled under blankets amidst swirling foggy mists and blustery arctic winds, manager Dusty Baker brilliantly convinced Giants players their ballpark gave them a unique advantage over visiting teams, and Giants management awarded the "Croix de Candlestick" pin to all fans still shivering in the ballpark at the conclusion of any night extra-inning contest at the 'Stick.

Other great moments included watching the Yakult Swallows play through a monsoon in beautiful ancient Meiji Jingu Stadium in Tokyo, without the slightest thought of a rain delay; freeing a beautiful yellow moth which got stuck in my scorebook down the third base line in Erie, Pennsylvania, at a Sailors game; taking the subway to Yankee Stadium after hearing on the radio at midnight that a rain-delayed game was then only in the fifth inning and getting my picture taken with the scoreboard clock by a visiting group from Raynelle, West Virginia, as the game concluded at 1:23 A.M.; roaming around Fenway Park in the snow in the dead of winter; finding autographed baseballs in the bullpen at Dodger Stadium, also in the middle of winter; getting lost in 12-foot high bushes where Shibe Park used to be, before a church was later built on the site; being imprisoned during a family vacation in an empty Candlestick Park as a teenager after I easily climbed over two fences to get into the outfield but discovered barbed wire preventing me from climbing back over the same two fences to get out again; and having the good fortune to be present when the St. Paul Saints, trailing with two outs in the bottom of the ninth, and down to their last out, scored seven consecutive runs, climaxed by Marc Mirizzi's walk-off grand slam to win the Northern League championship 10-6 over the Schaumberg Flyers September 19, 2004, only the second season-ending walk-off grand slam ever hit in

the history of baseball, the first being on September 20, 1999, when Milton Bradley's grand slam for the Harrisburg Senators defeated the Norwich Navigators 12–11 for the Eastern League title. I hope that this work will contribute to the wealth of baseball knowledge being created by SABRmetricians and baseball historians throughout the world. To all who have helped me, I am very appreciative and grateful. This page intentionally left blank

Triple Crown Games by Decade

(The following is a list of 69 games lasting 20 or more innings, taking five or more hours to play, and finishing after 1 A.M.)

1930s (2)

20—Hook Ball Park, Paducah, Kentucky—7/8/ 1938—Kentucky-Illinois-Tennessee (Kitty) League— Fulton Eagles 14 Paducah Indians 9 in 5:28, rhubarb delay top 15th when Fulton Manager Ray Clonts unsuccessfully requested umpires to allow 15-minute delay so players could eat some steaks for strength, vote delay top 19th when Paducah Manager Pete Mondino successfully asked umpires to have remaining fans vote whether the game should continue or not—fans voted unanimously that game should continue—finished at 1:45 A.M. in the early morning of 7/9.

21— Clintonville, Wisconsin — 6/15/1939 — Northern State League — Clintonville Four Wheel Drive Truckers 1 Two Rivers Polar Bears 0 in 5:15 — finished at 1:45 A.M. in the early morning of 6/16.

1940s (1)

21—Municipal Park, Sanford, Florida — 5/27/ 1948 — Florida State League — Sanford Giants 8 Palatka Azaleas 7 in 5:15 — finished at 1:15 A.M. in the early morning of 5/28.

1950s (4)

20—Golden Park, Columbus, Georgia—4/24/ 1954—South Atlantic (Sally) League—Macon Peaches 7 Columbus Cardinals 5 in 5:13—finished at 1:13 A.M. in the early morning of 4/25.

20— Disch Field, Austin, Texas — 9/7/1956 — Texas League — Austin Senators 4 Dallas Eagles 3 in 5:01— 2157 fans — finished at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 9/8.

20—Jacksonville Ball Park (later Municipal Stadium, then Wolfson Park), Jacksonville, Florida — 5/21/1958 — South Atlantic (Sally) League — Savannah Redlegs 6 Jacksonville Braves 6 in 5:00—902 fans —finished at 1:00 A.M. in the early morning of 5/22. 21—Jacksonville Ball Park (later Municipal Stadium, then Wolfson Park), Jacksonville, Florida — 4/22/1959 — South Atlantic (Sally) League — Jacksonville Braves 3 Knoxville Smokies 2 in 5:01—1814 fans, 200 fans at end —finished at 1:01 A.M. in the early morning of 4/23.

1960s (13)

24 - Mission Stadium, San Antonio, Texas - 4/29/1960 - Texas League - Rio Grande Valley Giants 4 San Antonio Missions 2 in 5:42, scoreboard fire delay bottom 23rd - 820 fans - finished at 1:27 A.M. in the early morning of 4/30.

21—Fairground Park, Fond du Lac, Wisconsin— 7/31/1963—Fox River Valley League—Little Chute-Kimberly Papermakers 11 Fond du Lac 5 in 6:01 finished at 2:01 A.M. in the early morning of 8/1.

21— Dunn Field, Elmira, New York — 6/25/1965 — Eastern League — Pittsfield Red Sox 1 Elmira Pioneers 1 in 5:33 — called off at 1:03 A.M. in the early morning of 6/26, then rhubarb delay top 22nd, Pioneers owner argued there was no curfew rule, by the time the league president told the umpires the owner was correct and the game should continue, all the players had showered and gone home, called off at 1:xx A.M. for the second time — 530 fans — finished at 1:03 A.M. in the early morning of 6/26.

24 — Sioux Falls Stadium (later Howard Wood Field), Sioux Falls, South Dakota — 8/3/1965 — Basin League — Pierre Cowboys 5 Sioux Falls Packers 3 in 6:15 - 421 fans — finished at 1:45 A.M. in the early morning of 8/4.

29 — Al Lang Field (I), St. Petersburg, Florida — 6/14/1966 — Florida State League — Miami Marlins 4 St. Petersburg Cardinals 3 in 6:59 — 740 fans, 175 fans at end — finished at 2:29 A.M. in the early morning of 6/15.

23 – Lawrence Hardball Park, Lodi, California – 8/31/1966 – California League – Reno Silver Sox 6 Lodi Crushers 5 in 6:00–502 fans, 20 fans at end – finished at 2:00 A.M. in the early morning of 9/1.

20— Frank Lawrence Stadium, Portsmouth, Virginia — 4/18/1967 — Carolina League — Kinston Eagles 5 Tidewater Tides 5 in 5:50— 526 fans, 25 fans at end — finished at 1:21 A.M. in the early morning of 4/19.

22 - DC (later RFK) Stadium, Washington, D.C. - 6/12/1967 - American League - Senators 6White Sox 5 in 6:38 - 7236 fans, 2000 fans at end finished at 2:44 A.M. in the early morning of 6/13.

20— Metropolitan Stadium, Bloomington, Minnesota — 8/9/1967 — American League — Senators 9 Twins 7 in 5:40—16,901 fans, 4000 fans at end finished at 1:44 A.M. in the early morning of 8/10.

20—Yankee Stadium (I), New York, New York— 8/29/1967—American League—Red Sox 2 Yankees 1 in 2:10, then Yankees 4 Red Sox 3 in 6:09—40,314 fans—finished at 1:57 A.M. in the early morning of 8/30.

21—Crosley Field, Cincinnati, Ohio -9/1/1967 — National League — Giants 1 Reds 0 in 5:40—13,745 fans, 200 fans at end —finished at 1:45 A.M. in the early morning of 9/2.

24 — Astrodome, Houston, Texas — 4/15/1968 — National League — Astros 1 Mets 0 in 6:06 — 14,219 fans, 3000 fans at end — finished at 1:37 A.M. in the early morning of 4/16.

22 — Parque Deportivo del Seguro Social (Social Security Stadium), Mexico City, Distrito Federal (Federal District), Mexico — 7/14/1969 — Mexican League — Reynosa Broncos 5 Mexico City Diablos Rojos (Red Devils) 3 in 5:38 — 3895 fans — finished at 1:08 A.M. in the early morning of 7/15.

1970s (13)

21- RFK Stadium, Washington, D.C. -6/4/1971-American League – rain delay 0:17 at start, Athletics 6 Senators 3 in 5:19 -6159 fans –finished at 1:36 A.M. in the early morning of 6/5.

22 — Recreation Park, Visalia, California — 6/19/ 1971 and 6/20/1971 — California League — Visalia Mets 11 Bakersfield Dodgers 9 in 7:00, suspended after 4:50 and 15 innings, called a tie, however league president later reversed tie game ruling and ordered game to be continued — 867 fans on 6/19, 449 fans on 6/20 suspended at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 6/ 20.

20—Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California—7/9/1971—American League —Athletics 1 Angels 0 in 5:05—22,938 fans—finished at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 7/10.

22 — Ray Winder Field, Little Rock, Arkansas — 7/21/1971— Dixie Association — Arkansas Travelers 5 Dallas-Fort Worth Spurs 4 in 5:56 — 7030 fans, 600 fans at end —finished at 1:26 A.M. in the early morning of 7/22.

20-Cleveland Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio and RFK

Stadium, Washington, D.C. -9/14/1971 and 9/20/1971 – American League – Indians 3 Senators 1 in 1:54, then Senators 8 Indians 6 in 6:15, suspended after 5:00 and 16 innings in Cleveland, completed 9/20 in Washington -2639 fans on 9/14 in Cleveland, 100 fans at suspension, 1743 fans on 9/20 in Washington, 333 fans top 17th – suspended at 1:00 A.M. in the early morning of 9/15.

22 - Metropolitan Stadium, Bloomington, Minnesota - 5/12/1972 and 5/13/1972 - American League- Brewers 4 Twins 3 in 5:47, suspended after 5:35and 21 innings - 8628 fans on 5/12, 7871 fans on5/13 - suspended at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of5/13.

21— Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois -5/26/1973 and 5/28/1973 — American League — White Sox 6 Indians 3 in 6:03, rain delay 0:17 top 14th, suspended after 4:39 and 16 innings -19,486 fans on 5/26, 17,419 fans on 5/28 — suspended at 1:01 A.M. in the early morning of 5/27.

24 — Regional Park, Midwest City, Oklahoma — 7/??/1973 — American Legion — Post 170 Midwest City 2 Post 170 Choctaw 1 in 6:06 — 50 fans, 15 fans at end — finished at 2:06 A.M. in the early morning of 7/??.

23 — Estadio (Stadium) Alberto Hoeffer, Nogales, State of Sonora, Mexico — 7/29/1973 — Liga (League) Norte de Sonora — Cananea Mineros (Miners) 4 Nogales 2 in 6:23 — 1800 fans — finished at 1:53 A.M. in the early morning of 7/30.

21—Danville Stadium, Danville, Illinois—6/4/ 1974—Midwest League—Waterloo Royals 7 Danville Warriors 5 in 5:35—722 fans, 94 fans at end finished at 1:10 A.M. in the early morning of 6/5.

25 — Shea Stadium, New York, New York — 9/11/ 1974 — National League — Cardinals 4 Mets 3 in 7:04 —13,460 fans, 1000 fans at end including Commissioner Bowie Kuhn —finished at 3:13 A.M. in the early morning of 9/12.

23 - Estadio (Stadium) Cordoba, Cordoba, State of Veracruz, Mexico - 4/28/1977 - Mexican League -Aguascalientes Rieleros (Railroadmen) 6 Cordoba Cafeteros (Coffee Growers) 2 in 6:30-4000 fans, 800 fans at end --finished at 3:00 A.M. in the early morning of 4/29.

21—Stade Olympique (Olympic Stadium), Montreal, Province of Quebec, Canada — 5/21/1977 — National League — Padres 11 Expos 8 in 5:33—16,892 fans, 8000 fans at end —finished at 1:15 A.M. in the early morning of 5/22.

1980s (18)

22 — MacArthur Stadium, Syracuse, New York — 7/30/1980— International League — Richmond Braves 12 Syracuse Chiefs 6 in 5:55 — 3117 fans, 1000 fans at end —finished at 1:28 A.M. in the early morning of 7/31.

20—San Diego (later Jack Murphy, then Qualcomm) Stadium, San Diego, California—8/15/1980National League — Astros 3 Padres 1 in 6:17 — 14,177 fans — finished at 1:26 A.M. in the early morning of 8/16.

22—Estadio (Stadium) Quisqueya, Santo Domingo, Dominican—1/12/1981—Winter League— Orientales Estrellas (Oriental Stars) 4 Licey Tigres (Tigers) 3 in 5:40—finished at 3:30 A.M. in the early morning of 1/13.

33 – McCoy Stadium, Pawtucket, Rhode Island – 4/18/1981 and 6/23/1981– International League – power failure delay 0:30 at start, Pawtucket Paw Sox 3 Rochester Red Wings 2 in 8:25, suspended after 8:07 and 32 innings –1740 fans, 150 fans Midnight, 100 fans top 21st, 60 fans 1 A.M., 27 fans top 27th, 19 fans at suspension, 5756 fans on 6/23 – suspended at 4:07 A.M. in the early morning of 4/19, dawn was at 5:00 A.M., finished at 6:18 P.M. on 6/23.

20— Disch-Falk Field, Austin, Texas — 5/15/1981 and 5/16/1981— National Collegiate Athletic Association — University of Texas Longhorns 7 Rice University Owls 6 in 6:07, rain delay 2:00 top 13th, suspended after 3:10 and 12 innings — 4700 fans on 5/15, 300 fans at suspension, 3000 fans on 5/16 — suspended at 1:15 A.M. in the early morning of 5/16, finished at 3:02 P.M. on 5/16.

20—Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts -9/3/1981 and 9/4/1981—American League — Mariners 8 Red Sox 7 in 6:01, suspended after 5:39 and 19 innings -13,355 fans on 9/3, 1000 fans at suspension, 20,836 fans on 9/4—suspended at 1:16 A.M. in the early morning of 9/4.

20—Anaheim Stadium (later Edison International Field, then Angels Stadium), Anaheim, California— 4/13/1982 and 4/14/1982—American League—Angels 4 Mariners 3 in 6:06, suspended after 5:24 and 17 innings—33,574 fans on 4/13, 23,905 fans on 4/14 suspended at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 4/14.

23 — Smith-Wills Stadium, Jackson, Mississippi — 7/6/1982 — Texas League — Tulsa Drillers 11 Jackson Mets 7 in 6:39 —1105 fans, 200 fans at end —finished at 2:09 A.M. in the early morning of 7/7.

25 – Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois – 5/8/ 1984 and 5/9/1984 – American League – White Sox 7 Brewers 6 in 8:06, suspended after 5:29 and 17 innings –14,754 fans on 5/8, 17,715 fans on 5/9 – suspended at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 5/9.

27 — MacArthur Stadium, Syracuse, New York — 6/19/1985 and 6/20/1985 and 6/21/1985 — International League — Pawtucket Paw Sox 3 Syracuse Chiefs 1 in 7:07, suspended after 5:36 and 22 innings, continued 6/20, rain delay 0:13 top 23rd, 2nd rain delay 0:50 bottom 24th, suspended again after 6:07 and 23½ innings, finally completed 6/21—1233 fans on 6/19; 200 fans when suspended after 22 innings; 3020 fans on 6/21— suspended at 1:12 A.M. in the early morning of 6/20, suspended again at 9:05 P.M. on 6/20, finished at 7:31 P.M. on 6/21.

21—V.J. Keefe Stadium, San Antonio, Texas—5/ 21/1987—Texas League—Shreveport Captains 4 San Antonio Dodgers 3 in 6:04 –1144 fans –finished at 1:04 A.M. in the early morning of 5/22.

21— Riverside Sports Complex, Riverside, California — 5/22/1988 — California League — San Jose Giants 8 Riverside Red Wave 5 in 6:19 — finished at 1:19 A.M. in the early morning of 5/23.

20—Al Lang Field (II), St. Petersburg, Florida and Holman Stadium, Vero Beach, Florida — 4/29/1988 and 5/28/1988 — Florida State League — Vero Beach Dodgers 6 St. Petersburg Cardinals 5 in 5:59, suspended after 5:29 and 18 innings, completed in Vero Beach — suspended at 1:04 A.M. in the early morning of 4/30.

27 — Burlington Athletic Stadium, Burlington, North Carolina — 6/24/1988 — Appalachian League — Bluefield Orioles 3 Burlington Indians 2 in 8:15 — 2204 fans, 84 fans at end — finished at 3:27 A.M. in the early morning of 6/25.

26 - V.J. Keefe Stadium, San Antonio, Texas – 7/14/1988 and 7/16/1988 – Texas League – San Antonio Missions 1 Jackson Mets 0 in 7:23, suspended after 7:10 and 25 innings – 3792 fans on 7/14, 3260 fans on 7/16 – suspended at 2:15 A.M. in the early morning of 7/15.

21—Estadio (Stadium) Emilio Ibarra, Los Mochis, State of Sinaloa, Mexico —11/26/1988 — Mexican Pacific League — Los Mochis Caneros (Sugar Cane Growers) 4 Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2 in 7:14 finished at 2:44 A.M. in the early morning of 11/27.

22 — Astrodome, Houston, Texas — 6/3/1989 — National League — Astros 5 Dodgers 4 in 7:14 — 34,425 fans — finished at 2:50 A.M. in the early morning of 6/4.

22 — Stade Olympique (Olympic Stadium), Montreal, Province of Quebec, Canada — 8/23/1989 — National League — Dodgers 1 Expos 0 in 6:14 — 21,742 fans — finished at 1:25 A.M. in the early morning of 8/24.

1990s (11)

20—Municipal Stadium, Phoenix, Arizona—6/ 23/1990—Pacific Coast League—Calgary Cannons 12 Phoenix Firebirds 9 in 6:39—finished at 1:49 A.M. in the early morning of 6/24.

22 – Billy Hebert Field, Stockton, California – 9/5/1990 and 9/6/1990 – California League playoffs – Bakersfield Dodgers 5 Stockton Ports 4 in 6:20, suspended after 5:53 and 21 innings –1497 fans on 9/5; 175 fans when suspended; 1559 fans on 9/6 – suspended at 1:27 A.M. in the early morning of 9/6; finished at 6:25 P.M. on 9/6.

20- Greer Stadium, Nashville, Tennessee -9/7/1990 – American Association playoffs – Omaha Royals 8 Nashville Sounds 7 in 6:25, rain delay 1:46 bottom 11th -14,482 fans, 500 fans top 12th, 300 fans at end -finished at 3:50 A.M. in the early morning of 9/8.

20-Tim McCarver Stadium, Memphis, Tennessee - 6/17/1991 and 6/18/1991-Southern League - Huntsville Stars 9 Memphis Chicks 7 in 6:32, suspended after 5:33 and 16 innings — 6845 fans on 6/17, 2349 fans on 6/18 — suspended at 1:12 A.M. in the early morning of 6/18, finished at 7:40 P.M. on 6/18.

21— Mulcahy Stadium, Anchorage, Alaska — 6/23/ 1992 — Alaska League — Anchorage Glacier Pilots defeated Kamloops in 6:39 —12 fans at end —finished at 2:00 A.M. in the early morning of 6/24.

20— Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania—7/7/1993— National League— Phillies 7 Dodgers 6 in 6:10—41,730 fans—finished at 1:47 A.M. in the early morning of 7/8.

22 — Hubert H. Humphrey Metrodome, Minneapolis, Minnesota — 8/31/1993 — American League — Twins 5 Indians 4 in 6:17 —17,968 fans, 1500 fans at end — finished at 1:22 A.M. in the early morning of 9/1.

22 — Estadio (Stadium) Teodoro Mariscal, Mazatlan, State of Sinaloa, Mexico —10/26/1993 — Mexican Pacific League — Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2 Guasave Algodoneros (Cotton Pickers) 1 in 7:02 —finished at 2:32 A.M. in the early morning of 10/27.

20—Al Lang Field (II), St. Petersburg, Florida— 4/14/1994—Florida State League—St. Petersburg Cardinals 8 Lakeland Tigers 7 in 7:07—1021 fans—finished at 2:42 A.M. in the early morning of 4/ 15.

20—Estadio (Stadium) Angel Flores, Culiacan, State of Sinaloa, Mexico—10/27/1995—Mexican Pacific League—Culiacan Tomateros (Tomato Growers) 3 Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2 in 6:01—finished at 1:31 A.M. in the early morning of 10/28.

20— Estadio (Stadium) Teodoro Mariscal, Mazatlan; State of Sinaloa, Mexico —10/19/1997 — Mexican Pacific League — Culiacan Tomateros (Tomato Growers) 5 Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2 in 6:55 —finished at 2:25 A.M. in the early morning of 10/20.

2000s (7)

20—Estadio (Stadium) Tetelo Vargas, San Pedro de Marcoris, Dominican—10/19/2002—Winter League—Orientales Estrellas (Oriental Stars) 4 Escogido Leones Rojos (Red Lions) 3 in 6:41—finished at 3:17 A.M. in the early morning of 10/20.

20— Frank Myers Field at Tointon Family Stadium, Manhattan, Kansas— 4/9/2004— National Collegiate Athletic Association— University of Texas Longhorns 10 Kansas State University Wildcats 6 in 6:28—874 fans—finished at 1:35 A.M. in the early morning of 4/10.

21—Wolff Stadium, San Antonio, Texas — 8/14/2004 — Texas League — Midland RockHounds 7 San Antonio Missions 5 in 6:40—4286 fans, 90 fans at end —finished at 1:46 A.M. in the early morning of 8/15.

20—Whataburger Field, Corpus Christi, Texas— 6/1/2005—Texas League—Wichita Wranglers 7 Corpus Christi Hooks 2 in 6:09—6609 fans, 325 fans at end—finished at 1:19 A.M. in the early morning of 6/2.

22 - Falcon Park, Auburn, New York -7/7/2005and 8/14/2005 - New York-Pennsylvania League -Auburn Doubledays 6 Batavia Muckdogs 5 in 6:34,suspended after 6:02 and 20 innings <math>-3242 fans on 7/7, 250 fans left at suspension, 1871 fans on 8/14 suspended at 1:09 A.M. in the early morning of 7/8, finished at 5:35 P.M. on 8/14.

24 – Greer Stadium, Nashville, Tennessee – 5/5/ 2006 and 5/6/2006 – Pacific Coast League – New Orleans Zephyrs 5 Nashville Sounds 4 in 8:07, suspended after 6:23 and 18 innings – 9124 fans on 5/5, 300 fans at suspension; 10,016 fans on 5/6 – suspended at 1:25 A.M. in the early morning of 5/6; finished at 7:44 P.M. on 5/6.

22—Petco Park, San Diego, California—4/17/ 2008—National League—Rockies 2 Padres 1 in 6:16—25,984 fans—finished at 1:21 A.M. in the early morning of 4/18.

Longest Games by Innings

I. HIGHLIGHTS, ANALYSIS AND PREDICTING EXTRA INNINGS

Baseball is thankfully free of artificial boundaries of time which confine other sports. This freedom helps to shape the unique magical charm that is an evening at the ballpark. Fans never know whether it will be a two-hour squeaker or whether they may be enchanted until past sunrise by the first-ever wild 12-hour 46inning slugfest.

In the bottom of the seventh, baseball fans worldwide stand up to sing Albert von Tilzer's music and Jack Norworth's lyrics for the 1908 baseball anthem, "Take Me Out to the Ball Game." When games go into extra innings, the song is sung again, with much more meaning, in the bottom of the 14th, bottom of the 21st, bottom of the 28th, etc.:

> Take me out to the ball game, Take me out with the crowd, Buy me some peanuts and Cracker Jack, I don't care if I *Never* get back.

Marathon Extra-Inning Games

In my research since 1963, I have identified 540 baseball marathons lasting 20 or more innings, at all levels of the game, in all nations of the world. These games are hard to discover. Leagues either keep no records, or keep track only of their longest game. The only minor league which keeps exact records of all marathons is the Texas League. If you know of a marathon not listed here, please let me know via e-mail at plowryl176@aol.com.

Rewriting the Record Books

This research has resulted in rewriting four records in three different record books on marathons by innings. Since 1964, the NCAA record for most innings had been recorded as 22 innings. However, this research uncovered a 23-inning game played in Lafayette, Louisiana on March 27, 1971, between McNeese State and Southwestern Louisiana (now called Louisiana-Lafayette). And since 2003, the NCAA record for most innings in a doubleheader had been 29 innings, but the McNeese State-SW Louisiana 23-inning game was the opener of a 30-inning doubleheader.

Since 2005, the NAIA record was also 22 innings, but I discovered a second 22-inning NAIA game played in Arkadelphia, Arkansas April 28, 1970, between Harding and Henderson State.

Since 1976, the National Federation of State High School Associations (NFSHSA) record for most innings in the U.S.A. had been recorded as 28 innings. However, there was never a 28-inning game played; it was actually three games: a 10-inning 2–2 tie, an 11-inning scoreless tie, and a 7-inning 5–2 game. The U.S.A. high school record properly belongs to two 25inning games, played March 25, 1967, at Honolulu Stadium (aka the Termite Palace) in Hawaii between the Kamehameha Warriors and McKinley Tigers; and April 9 and May 2, 1975, at Farmers Field, Hayward (first 17 innings) and Rebels Field, San Lorenzo (last eight innings) in California between the Hayward Farmers and San Lorenzo Rebels.

Longest Marathon Never Played: 54 Innings in Iowa

The record for longest game has been increasing ever since the first baseball game was played. But the record has unfortunately been cluttered with games that were never played.

At the Delaware County Fairgrounds in Manchester, Iowa on September 25, 1925, or so the story goes as told in the *Des Moines Register*, the Cascade Reds and Ryan Shamrocks (also referred to in local papers as the Micks and Fighting Irish respectively) town ball teams started a game they never dreamed would last two years! Called on account of darkness after 16 innings with the score knotted at 1, the game continued nine days later on October 4 in Ryan, but was again called due to darkness with the score tied 6–6 after another 15 innings, for a total of 31 innings. It was then scheduled to be continued at Legion Park in Cascade, but was rained out and snowed out respectively the next two weekends. Because of cold weather and snow, it was decided to continue the game the next summer. On July 1, 1926, after a delay of some nine months, the Reds and Shamrocks got together again to finally settle matters in Cascade.

Incredibly, for the third time, the game was called on account of darkness after another 14 innings, for a total of 45 innings, still tied 8–8. Three months later, on September 26, this time back in Ryan, Cascade finally emerged victorious by a score of 9–8 after another 9 innings, for a total of 54 innings. Both pitchers, Heinie Featherstone for Cascade and J.B. "Highball" McAreavey for Ryan, were spitballers. The final totals of 367 days over two years and 54 innings were thought to be incredible all-time baseball records which would never be broken. This great 54-inning Iowa game served as inspiration for the 2,614-inning game in W.P. Kinsella's novel, *The Iowa Baseball Confederacy*, probably the greatest baseball novel ever written.

On May 8–9, 1984, the Chicago White Sox hosted the Milwaukee Brewers and set the current AL record of 25 innings. Shortly thereafter, on May 21, sports columnist Maury White recalled the 54-inning game in the *Des Moines Register*, and wondered what all the fuss was about for a mere 25-inning game in Chicago, when Iowa had hosted a 54-inning game? White partially based his column on Tait Cummins' "Tait's Scrapbook" columns in the November 5 and November 12, 1970, *Cedar Rapids Witness*.

As I attempted to track down elusive microfilm records from local papers in Cascade, Dubuque, and Cedar Rapids, I discovered that, alas, as is so often the case, all is not as it seems! Thanks to SABR member R.J. Lesch of Adel, Iowa, the mystery was unraveled when we obtained original newspaper accounts from the *Cascade Pioneer*, *Dubuque Telegraph-Herald*, and *Cedar Rapids Gazette*.

What we discovered was documentary proof that the supposed 54-inning game was actually four separate games. When Cascade scored twice and Ryan scored once in the first inning played on the supposed second day of the game, the game continued, which proves it was a separate second game. Were it the 17th inning of the earlier 1–1 game called after 16 innings, then the game would have been over at that point, with Cascade winning 3–2 in 17 innings.

Newspaper accounts also proved that the supposed fifth day of the game (the third and fourth days were rainouts) was a separate third game and not a continuation of the second game. Cascade scored a run in the first inning and Ryan did not score, but the game continued, which it could not have done were it the continuation of an earlier game. And lastly, the events of the supposed sixth day of the game were a separate fourth game and not a continuation. Cascade scored a run in the sixth and Ryan did not score, but the game continued.

Although the 1970 *Cedar Rapids Witness* columns by Tait Cummins had the dates correct, the 1984 *Des Moines Register* column by Maury White had the dates wrong for three of the four games. The first game was September 4, 1925, not September 25. The second game was September 13, 1925, not October 4. The third game was July 4, 1926, not July 1. The *Register* did get the date of the fourth game correct: September 26, 1926.

So here's what really happened. On September 4, 1925, Cascade and Ryan played to a 1–1 tie in 16 innings in Manchester. On September 13, 1925, they played to a 5–5 tie in 15 innings in Ryan, and were then rained out September 27 and snowed out October 4 in Cascade. On July 4, 1926, the two teams played to a 2–2 tie in 14 innings in Cascade. And lastly, on September 26, 1926, Cascade defeated Ryan 1–0 in 9 innings at Ryan. If you add it all up, you *do* have Cascade scoring 9 and Ryan scoring 8 in a total of 54 innings spread out over 388 days, but it was most definitely four separate games and *not* one 54-inning game.

On August 22, 1948, a reunion was held at Cascade's Legion Park for players who had participated in this remarkable "game," and the oldtimers played a 7inning game, "for old times sake." Won by Cascade 18–11, the game was broadcast over the radio, and Tait Cummins was the broadcaster. During the radio broadcast, it was discovered that the first portion of the "game" had actually *not* been called on account of darkness. Umpire Fritz McPartland of Cedar Rapids admitted he called the game so he could get back home in time to do his farm chores!

Cascade is the birthplace of Urban "Red" Faber, who pitched for the White Sox 1914–33. Built in 1921, Legion Park is still used today for baseball by American Legion Post 528 and Cascade High School. In center field stands Iowa's very own "Green Monster," which used to be Cascade's old drive-in movie screen until 1988, when it was painted green and placed in center field to help batters see the ball better.

So how did generations of baseball historians get misled? Local newspaper accounts clearly indicated that four *separate* games were played. One misleading headline in the September 17, 1925, *Cascade Pioneer* stated, "No Decision Reached at End of 31 Innings." But the text of the story clearly stated there were separate games.

The columns by Tait Cummins in the November 5 and November 12, 1970, *Cedar Rapids Witness* also clearly indicated there were four separate games. But when Maury White's column in the May 21, 1984, *Des Moines Register* mistakenly referred to the four separate games as a "54-inning game," the seed was planted for the "great myth" of the 54-inning Iowa game.

Longest High School Marathon Never Played: 28 Innings in Indiana

The longest high school marathon "never played" was a supposed "28-inning 6-day long" contest in Highland, Indiana on May 7, two unknown rainout dates, then May 17, 25, and 26, 1976, between the Highland Trojans and Griffith Panthers. For 28 years, from 1976 through 2004, this game was incorrectly listed by the Indiana High School Athletic Association, Indiana High School Baseball Coaches Association, and National Federation of State High School Associations as the longest high school game ever played.

But there was never any final score given, and it was always listed simply as "1976," with no month and no date. For over a decade, I became increasingly interested in the fact that despite dozens of letters, phone calls, and e-mails to high school coaches and principals in Highland and Griffith, and to sports editors in nearby Gary, Hammond, and Chicago, nobody could tell me either the exact date of the game or the final score.

The only facts discovered during this long decade of unsuccessful research were that neither the Griffith nor Highland high school yearbooks nor school newspapers mentioned the game; the two schools were supposed to play June 5, 1976, according to the *Hammond Times*, but the June 6 *Gary Post-Tribune* stated they played other teams on June 5; issues of the June 5 *Gary Post-Tribune* and June 6 *Hammond Times* were missing from all microfilm archives; and on November 1, 2003, Highland baseball coach Dan Miller found four former Highland players who played in the game but all they could remember was "the game was real long."

After I contacted David Zandstra, President of the Highland Historical Society, he finally solved the puzzle by finding a scrapbook owned by Bill Helmer, a former Highland player who played in the game. This scrapbook contains articles from the *Lake Suburban Sun Journal* and *Gary Post-Tribune*.

So here's what really happened. The first three days of the "game" were rainouts. The May 7 game was rained out at Highland's Hilltop Park, along the Little Calumet River. It was rescheduled, but rained out a second and third time on two unknown dates between May 7 and May 17. On May 17, the fourth day, the game was called due to darkness after 10 innings with the scored tied 2–2.

In both the May 18 *Lake Suburban Sun Journal* and May 18 *Gary Post-Tribune* newspaper articles, authors Rich Lindsey of the *Sun Journal* and Al Hamnik of the *Post-Tribune* stated neither the Indiana High School Athletic Association nor Lake Suburban Conference had any rules on whether a 10-inning tie game should be continued with play commencing in the top of the 11th, or an entirely new game should be started. Griffith Athletic Director Jim Bartlett stated, "Nothing like this has ever happened before, so we have nothing to go by."

Between May 18 and May 25, an unknown person

decided a new game would be started. However, when on May 25, the fifth day of the supposed "game," the two teams played a second game to a scoreless tie in 11 innings before 225 fans, the "myth" was created that they had played 21 total innings and were still tied. The next day, May 26, the sixth day of the supposed "28-inning six-day" game, Griffith won the third game 5–2 in 7 innings.

The May 26 box score provides documentary proof that three separate games were played rather than one 28-inning game. Griffith scored twice in the top of the second to take a 2–0 lead. Highland did not score in the bottom of the inning, but the game continued. Had it been the bottom of the 23rd inning rather than the bottom of the 2nd, the game would have been over. The fact the game continued proves there were three games played: a 10-inning 2–2 tie May 17, an 11inning scoreless tie May 25, and a 7-inning 5–2 Griffith victory May 26.

Here's another example of how some people could not help but think instinctively of the whole 6-day series of events as one long 28-inning marathon. Jack Moorman of Griffith pitched the entire 10-inning 2–2 game May 17, and also the first 10 innings of the 11inning scoreless tie May 25. Jack told me that in a locker room team meeting after Griffith won the 7inning May 26 game 5–2, Griffith head coach Dave Price awarded him two official "saves" for his 20 innings of pitching, although his 20 innings were pitched in two games which officially had nothing to do with the May 26 game.

On August 7, 2004, I sent these facts to the following people responsible for editing the record books: John Gillis, Assistant Director, National Federation of High School Associations; Lance Patterson, Record Update Coordinator, Indiana High School Baseball Coaches Association; and Bill Jones, Executive Director, Indiana High School Athletic Association. On November 15, 2004, Mr. Gillis wrote back to confirm that the error has been corrected for all future editions of the National High School Sports Record Book.

So how did generations of baseball historians get misled a second time? Many people, remembering earlier newspaper articles, believed the game lasted 10 + 11 + 7 = 28 innings, even though May 27 newspaper accounts of the May 26 game clearly indicated three separate games were played. One such person sent in official notification to those who back then kept records for Indiana high school baseball. Thus began the chain of events which led to Indiana and national high school baseball records being wrong for almost three decades.

Other Marathons Never Played: Knickerbockers and Killer Tomatoes

On July 18, 1951, Harman Nichols wrote a sports column for the *Washington Post* which discussed a 33-

inning game in the Illinois-Indiana-Iowa (3-I) League. The game supposedly took place in 1906 between the Decatur Commodores and Davenport Knickerbockers.

After 17 innings of scoreless ball July 28, 1906, in Davenport, the game was suspended due to darkness and continued August 24 in Decatur with another 16 innings of scoreless ball, resulting in a 33-inning scoreless tie. However, with the help of public library reference librarians in Decatur and Davenport, I discovered that these were clearly referred to in the newspapers of the time as two separate games.

So how did generations of baseball historians get misled a third time? Mr. Nichols' article stated, "And you talk about the longest game on record. You think it was the 26 innings Brooklyn and the Boston Braves played a few years back. It wasn't. The Davenport team in 1906 fought tooth and nail with Decatur July 28 for 17 innings without a score being made. The game was called when the sun disappeared. On August 24, the same two teams picked up where they had left off. Sixteen more innings, and still no score. Again came darkness. One game with 33 innings — and not a run."

Another supposed "28-inning" game which was never actually played occurred in South Dakota July 19 and 26, 1948, between Bonesteel and the Platte Killer Tomatoes. Supposedly, the game was suspended in Platte at 2 A.M. in the early morning hours of July 20 with the score 1–1, and concluded in Bonesteel a week later, with Bonesteel winning 4–3. Winning pitcher Spud Grosshuesch supposedly had 62 strikeouts in the game. During my effort to find the box score, I enlisted the help of Ralph Nachtigal, editor of the *Platte Enterprise*. After digging out the old 1948 newspaper accounts, we discovered the game did not actually last 28 innings.

On July 19, 1948, the two teams met in Platte, and the game was called after 15 innings, tied 1–1. When the teams met a week later in nearby Bonesteel on July 26, however, they started all over again and played an entirely separate game, which went 13 innings. Bonesteel took an early 3–0 lead. The Killer Tomatoes, back then known as the 5-Milers, scored one in the 8th to cut the lead to 3–1, and two in the 9th to send the game into extra innings. Bonesteel won 4–3 with a run in the bottom of the 13th. Winning pitcher Spud Grosshuesch did pitch all 28 innings for Bonesteel, and he did have 62 strikeouts, but 34 of them were in the first game, and 28 in the second game.

How did generations of baseball historians again get misled, for a fourth time? Just as in the Indiana case, someone confused the facts, and reported to the South Dakota Amateur Baseball Association that Bonesteel had defeated Platte 4–3 in 28 innings.

The fifth longest game never played was a supposed "22-inning" game July 3, 1932, in the Mississippi Valley League. The Keokuk Indians and Burlington Bees "played" to a scoreless tie cited many times in baseball literature on longest games. During my research, I always wondered how this game could be so similar, in so many ways, to another game also played in Burlington, Iowa 17 years earlier in the Central Association June 27, 1915. In both games, Keokuk visited Burlington, the game was scoreless, it lasted 22 innings, and the time of game was 3:50. The only difference was the date.

Although I wrote dozens of letters over the last decade to sports editors and journalists in Keokuk, Burlington, and Des Moines, I had no answer to the dilemma until Tim Rask of Iowa City solved the puzzle by researching the *Burlington Hawk-Eye* newspaper archives at the Iowa Historical Library in Iowa City.

How did generations of baseball historians once more get misled, for a fifth time? *Hawk-Eye* sports editor Ed Dent thought it was very interesting that Larry Brown, a player in the 22-inning 1915 Keokuk at Burlington game was umpiring in the Mississippi Valley League in 1932, which included teams from both Keokuk and Burlington. So Dent ran a copy of the June 29, 1915, *Hawk-Eye* article about the June 27, 1915, game in his July 3, 1932, edition, with an accompanying article about Brown. What is most interesting is that the date ascribed to the phantom game was July 3 rather than July 2, since the July 3 article should reasonably have been expected to concern a game played the previous day on July 2.

Another marathon never played was a supposed "20-inning" 2–2 tie in just 2 hours 50 minutes in the Cotton States League in Greenville, Mississippi July 11, 1904, between the Greenville Cotton Pickers and Vicksburg Hill Billies. Just as in the case of the Keokuk at Burlington game, baseball literature on longest games makes numerous mentions of this game.

Dave Black, from Highlands Ranch, Colorado, discovered an article in the July 12, 1904, *Chicago Daily Tribune* which proves this game was called due to darkness after only 19 innings.

How did generations of baseball historians get misled for a sixth time? The mistaken belief the game lasted 20 innings derived from the *Daily Tribune*'s headline writer. Knowing the game had been called as the top of the 20th was about to begin, he wrote the following headline, "Play Twenty Innings to a Tie." Reflective of sports writing in the early 20th Century era, the article concluded, "The game abounded in brilliant ball playing."

Longest Massachusetts Rules Marathon: 172 Innings in Worcester

During the Nineteenth Century, many teams played under Massachusetts Rules requiring the winning team to score a minimum number of runs or "tallies," sometimes 25, sometimes 50, sometimes 65, sometimes 100. Sixteen such games have been identified as having taken 20 or more innings. Massachusetts Rules were established at Dedham, Massachusetts, and the first game played using these rules was the first "marathon" ever played: On May 31, 1858, on the Boston Common, the Holliston Winthrops defeated the Boston Olympics 100–27 in 33 innings.

Games played under Massachusetts Rules established records for numbers of innings which have never been equaled. However, these records must be considered differently than other records, since one inning was defined not by three outs, but rather by one out. Other rules were also different. It was only 60 feet between the bases, and only 35 feet from the plate to the pitcher's rubber.

One could argue a Massachusetts Rules game of 27 innings was actually a game of only 9 innings, because it only had 27 outs per team. But a baseball historian can't choose arbitrarily to rewrite history based on data from subsequent times. When a game was played under Massachusetts Rules, and it took 27 innings, it was definitely *not* a 9-inning game.

On July 28, 1859, in Ashland, Massachusetts, the Medway Unions defeated the Upton Excelsiors 100–78 in 106 innings. The next year, in Worcester, the same two teams played the longest game ever played in the history of baseball, and one of the greatest games of alltime: 172 innings over seven days!

The game was scheduled to begin September 25, 1860. Play continued through September 26, 27, 28; October 1, 4, and 5 until finally it was called a complete game with the score Upton 50 Medway 29. The game took a record 21 hours 50 minutes of actual game time. On its first, third, fourth, fifth, sixth, and seventh days, we do not know the attendance, but we know 4000 fans attended on its second day, September 26.

Total elapsed time also set an all-time record of something in excess of 25 hours 0 minutes, with a dinner and rain delay of 20 minutes in the bottom of the 13th September 25, a second rain delay of 2 hours 30 minutes in the bottom of the 13th September 26, a lunch delay of 20 minutes September 27, a third rain delay of unspecified duration in the top of the 173rd October 4, and a fourth and final rain delay, again of unspecified duration, and again in the top of the 173rd on October 5.

The game was suspended for the first time September 25 after 12½ innings with game time at 2:40 and Upton ahead 5–4, suspended for the second time September 26 after 34½ innings with game time at 5:40 and Upton ahead 8–7, suspended for the third time September 27 after 83½ innings with game time at 12:50 and Upton ahead 23–15, suspended for the fourth time September 28 after 136½ innings and game time at 17:20 with Upton ahead 38–25, and then scheduled to resume October 1 in Springfield.

However, it was decided to resume the game instead October 4 back in Worcester. It was suspended for the fifth time October 4 after 172 innings with game time at 21:50 and Upton ahead 50–29. Rain on October 5 prevented the game from ever resuming, and the umpire and both teams finally agreed to call it a complete game, despite the fact the rules required a team to score 100 runs to win and Upton had scored only 50.

Longest Spoof Marathons: Moonlight and the Firefly

During my research, I came across some games that seemed unbelievable, and then I would later discover that they were in fact "spoofs," or just made-up fictional "pretend games." On October 2, 1884, the *Oregonian* newspaper of Portland, Oregon printed a story stating that a recent issue of the *Denver Opinion* had printed a story purporting to be a summary of an 11-year-old newspaper article in the *Portland Oregonian* about the 39-inning "Moonlight Game" played in 1873 between printers union teams of two Portland newspapers, the *Oregonian* and its bitter rival, the *Daily Bulletin*.

The game began at 12:30 P.M. After 22 innings, the teams were still locked in a scoreless tie, when the umpire called the game due to darkness. However, vigorous disagreement from fans and players caused the umpire to reconsider. Lanterns and locomotive head-lights were found to light the field. A dinner delay was taken from 7:00 P.M. to 7:30 P.M.

At 1 A.M., in the bottom of the 39th, the Bulletin's George Good lofted a long fly to right, which was dropped and booted by the Oregonian's right fielder Estabrook for a 4-base error. Final score: Bulletin 1 Oregonian 0. Asked about his error by reporters after the game, Estabrook stated the moon had been shining in his face and he couldn't see the ball.

It appears perfectly clear that this is a spoof, a game that never actually happened; just a fictional story invented by the newspaper writer. However, might there have been a real game in 1873 between the printers of the two newspapers? Yes, there might have been, although we have no actual evidence that there was.

The Oregonian actually did print an article on July 26, 1873, stating that the employees of an Oregon City newspaper had issued a baseball challenge to the employees of the Oregonian and that the game would take place. So there is a precedent for games between rival Oregon newspapers in 1873. And it is a fact that during 1873 there was an intense and bitter rivalry between the two Portland newspapers, the Oregonian and the *Bulletin*.

The papers squabbled fiercely and angrily that year over such issues as whom had provoked whom in the April 11 gun battle between the Peace Commissioners and the Modoc Native American tribe, the May scandal over whether Oregon's newly elected Senator John H. Mitchell was a fraud and a bigamist (the Oregonian broke the story while the Bulletin supported Senator Mitchell), and over whether the August "Great Fire" which destroyed twenty downtown blocks in Portland was an arsonist plot (according to the Oregonian) or not a plot at all (according to the Bulletin).

Thirty-four years later, on July 7, 1907, the spoof innings record was raised from 39 to 50 innings in Munchausen, Pennsylvania, as the Lyerhelms and Fakenhursts played a 50-inning scoreless tie. The teams were named after their respective pitchers. Lyerhelm had a no-hitter, struck out 93, and gave up only one walk. Fakenhurst had a perfect game and struck out 89. The "Liars" and "Fakers" played in a town named after the Baron von Munchausen (1720–97), the famous German storyteller whose fictional tall tales were so outrageous and ridiculous that the medical condition for compulsive lying, Munchausen's Syndrome, is named after him.

The next year, the spoof innings record was raised from 50 to 57 when the May 17, 1908, *Washington Post* recounted the "Firefly Game" of 1907 at Jones County Eye, Ear, and Tongue Infirmary. Although the state is not mentioned, it can be presumed to be New York, since Schenectady is prominently mentioned. The Lightfoot Lilies downed the Ringtail Roarers in 57 innings. The game was called a tie at dusk after 17 innings, but just as in the Portland "Moonlight Game" of 1873, vigorous disagreement from fans and players caused the umpire to reconsider. A farmer drove his horse-drawn wagon to a nearby university's chemistry lab to obtain phosphorus, which was smeared on the baseball to make it highly visible, enabling the game to be continued after only a 23-minute delay.

As dawn approached, the Lilies took a 1–0 lead in the top of the 57th on a mammoth home run by Bull Thompson. In the bottom of the 57th, Bruiser Brown was at bat with a full count, runners on 2nd and 3rd, and only one out. The Lilies pitcher picked the Roarers runner off 2nd: "Like a flash, he shot the ball over to second, catching the runner off base by a good three yards. At almost the same instant, an innocent firefly started up out of the grass and flitted across the plate. 'Swish.' Nervous and overstrung, Bruiser Brown had struck viciously at the firefly. Three strikes and out. Double play. Side out. Just then, clear and triumphant, through the clear night air sounded the crowing of a cock in some distant barnyard. Dawn was breaking." Final score: Lilies 1 Roarers 0.

After another two decades, another spoof came along, this time a 33-inning game in the August 1, 1926, *Washington Post:* "St. Louis Insects defeated the Georgetown nine, 5–4, in a 33-inning ball game, according to a report made by Manager Tastle of the winners, who stated pitcher Tastle went the full route. Slornoi of the losing team pitched only 20 innings before being relieved." A detailed search has revealed no evidence a team named the St. Louis Insects ever existed.

The last major spoof occurred in October 2003, authored by espn.com. The Cubs, hoping to finally win a World Series after waiting patiently since 1908, and the Red Sox, then waiting since 1918, met in the 2003 World Series to determine the answer, once and for all, to the question, "Whose curse is worse?" The Red Sox led 1–0 as the Cubs came to bat in the top of the ninth of Game 7 at Fenway.

With Fate desperately looking for a way to allow neither team to win, Sammy Sosa came to the plate with two outs, two strikes, nobody on, and the Cubs down to their last strike. He promptly hit the first home run to ever bounce off the distant Citgo sign in left center, sending the game into extra innings. As the game entered the 13th, fire and brimstone rained down from the sky, but Red Sox manager Grady Little stayed with Pedro Martinez and Cubs manager Dusty Baker stayed with Kerry Wood. After each inning thereafter, Little stayed with Pedro and Baker stayed with Wood.

Finally, as dawn approached in the 28th, with the score 34–34, a meteorite struck the home of soon-tobe Governor Arnold Schwartzenegger in Sacramento, floods covered the globe, a dust cloud encircled the planet, and temperatures dropped precipitously by 30 degrees worldwide, killing most crops. The result of all this chaos was mass starvation, near-extinction of the human race, and suspension of Game 7 of the World Series with the score still tied in the 28th. Final score: Cubs 34 Red Sox 34, with both teams still waiting to win the Series. Little then did the Red Sox know that they would wait only one more year!

Year of the Marathon: 1907

The spoofs of Munchausen and Jones County were spawned by the unique "Year of the Marathon" in 1907, a season which saw three record-breaking marathons come along in rapid succession within only 27 days. The W.P. Kinsella novel, *Iowa Baseball Confederacy*, also took place in the same general time period, the next year in 1908. The total of 20 marathons in the year 1907 is still today more than in any other year. Since 1877, when the first marathon took place, the only years when no marathon has occurred are 1879, 1881–90, 1893–97, 1899, and 1961.

There were four major league marathons in two years (1967, 1971), whereas there have been none in long stretches of time (21 years 1871–91; 15 years 1947–61; nine years 1994–2002). We've had only six since 1984 (two in 1989, two in 1993, one in 2003, and our last one, April 17, 2008).

On June 8, 1907, a 28-inning game was played at Dorchester Franklin Field Diamond #5 in Boston. Henry L. Pierce Grammar School of Dorchester defeated Bennet Grammar School of Brighton 4–3 in 5 hours 50 minutes.

Less than a month later, there was a 30-inning game played July 4 at Brookside Park in Cleveland. The Brooklyn Athletic Club defeated Cleveland's East End All Stars 4–1, again in 5 hours 50 minutes.

And then the very next day, July 5, again in Ohio at Recreation Park in Columbus, there was a 36-inning game. The Heintz Victors and Columbus Selects played to a 2–2 tie in 3 hours 50 minutes. Heintz was also referred to in Columbus papers as Heints, with an "s" instead of a "z."

Unfortunately, although a century later this 36-inning game is still tied for the longest game by innings ever played in the U.S., we know almost nothing about it. The only article on the game is in the July 6 *Columbus Citizen* on page 5. The headline states, "Here's a World's Record." But then the article takes up only five sentences, telling us only that it was a morning game called due to players' exhaustion rather than darkness, Victors pitcher Decker struck out 20 while Selects pitcher Robins struck out only 19, each team got 8 hits, the Victors scored in the 5th and 31st while the Selects scored in the 6th and 31st, and the Victors made 5 errors while the Selects made 7.

We also know almost nothing about the only other 36-inning game, played August 28, 1880, at North End Grounds in Stoneham, Massachusetts. Before 350 fans, Zouaves downed the Benecia Boys 21 to 15.

Why would there be many more marathons in the 1900s (71) and 1910s (79) than in any other decades, ranging from lows of one in the 1880s, two in the 1870s, and five in the 1890s to respectively 30, 36, 41, 56, 45, 56, 47, 30, and 41 from the 1920s through the 2000s? Because to become long marathons, games must maximize the chance that both teams score equal numbers of runs, which happens most easily when both teams go scoreless for many innings, such as would happen during the Deadball Era of 1901–1919.

Using such reasoning, one might also argue that a larger number of marathons should have happened during the Huge Strike Zone era of 1963–68, and this does appear to be the case. In the 1960s, there were 45 marathons, ten during the four years when the strike zone was normal or 2.5 marathons per year, and 35 during the six years when the strike zone was enlarged or 5.8 marathons per year.

Longest Czech Game and the Beatles: Strawberry Fields Forever

On May 10, 2003, the longest Czech extra-inning game ever played was decided in Blansko. Arrows Ostrava defeated Olympia Blansko 5–4 in 15 innings at the best-named ballpark in the world, Strawberry Fields Forever, named in honor of John Lennon and the Beatles. The second-best-named and third-bestnamed ballparks, the Big Egg domed stadium in Tokyo, Japan, and the Eagle's Nest in Mexicali, Mexico have thus far not distinguished themselves in any way with marathons.

Famous Players in Marathons: Iron Man, Cy, the Say Hey Kid, & Yaz

Hall of Famer Joe "Iron Man" McGinnity owed his major league career to a marathon in the Western Association. Iron Man went the distance for the Peoria Blackbirds as they defeated the visiting St. Joseph Saints 8–4 in 21 innings June 27, 1898. His pitching was so impressive that day that the Orioles signed him for the 1899 NL season.

Hall of Famers Cy Young of the Red Sox and Rube Waddell of the A's faced off in a 20-inning marathon in the P.M. game of a morning/afternoon doubleheader July 4, 1905, at Huntington Grounds in Boston. Both teams scored two in the 9th. Then in the 20th, with two on, Young broke A's batter Jack Knight's arm with a brushback pitch on the inside corner. With the bases now full, Young induced the next batter to hit a double play grounder, but his infielder made an error, allowing the A's to win 4–2. These two greats faced each other previously May 5, 1904. Young pitched a perfect game that day, with the Red Sox winning 3–0.

Another pitcher named Jacob Jung, was nicknamed "Cy Young VII." A graduate of the University of Wisconsin, he pitched 17 innings of no-hit ball but then gave up 7 hits over the last four innings while going the whole way in a losing cause for the Milwaukee White Sox July 19, 1908. The visiting Sox lost the 21-inning Lakeshore League game to the hometown Sheboygan Chairmakers 1-0. This "Cy" was signed soon thereafter by the Cubs on August 10, 1908, but he never pitched for them. A third fellow nicknamed "Cy" Young had a 2-3 record for the Federal League Balt-Feds in 1915. In deference to the Hall of Famer, almost every pitcher named Young was nicknamed "Cy" in the early 1900s. There was a Cy the Second, Irv Young, and a Cy the Third, Harley Young, who were traded for each other by the Braves and Pirates June 18, 1908. Irv pitched 172 innings in the majors in 1908, while Harley pitched 75.

Hall of Famer Willie Mays, the "Say Hey Kid," played center field *and* shortstop May 31, 1964, for the Giants as they defeated the Mets 8–6 in 23 innings in the second game of a doubleheader at Shea. In the bottom of the seventh, with two on and the Mets trailing 6–3, Joe Christopher hit a long fly to right center. Mays raced back, leaped high above the 8-foot high fence, and caught the ball, but as he collided with the fence, the ball dropped out of his glove and over the fence for a 3-run homer. This ended the scoring until Del Crandall hit the game-winning RBI in the 23rd.

Hall of Famer Carl Yastrzemski played in the memorable 20-inning Red Sox-Yankee marathon at Yankee Stadium August 29, 1967. In the second game of a twinighter, Yaz had six putouts in left, and went 0 for 6 with 3 walks. Both teams scored in the 11th. The Yanks won 4–3 after the Sox loaded the bases but failed to score in the 20th.

First-Ever Games of (X) Innings

Baseball was possibly played as early as 1791 in Pittsfield, Massachusetts. The next mention of a baseball game is April 26, 1823, at Mr. Jones's Retreat in Broadway in New York City. This was a pick-up game, meaning there were no organized teams. Rules called for a team scoring 21 runs first to be declared the winner. It would not be until May 1857 the winner would be the team with the most runs after nine innings, and then only if the teams were not playing by Massachusetts Rules.

A game played nine years later in 1832, again in New York City at Madison Square, may have been the first game ever between two relatively organized teams. A team representing 1st Ward of Lower Manhattan played a team representing the 9th and 15th Wards of Upper Manhattan. Just four years later, in 1836, at the Baseball Grounds in Canton, China, the Boston Union Club played the English Club. In all three of these groundbreaking games, we have neither a record of the number of innings nor a final score.

The first-ever 3-inning game may have been at Elysian Fields in Hoboken, New Jersey October 6, 1845, as the New York Knickerbockers played an intrasquad game. The final scorve was 11–8, with seven players on each side. The first-ever 4-inning game may have been at Elysian Fields later that month, on October 21. The New York Base Ball Club beat the Brooklyn Base Ball Club 24–4, with eight players on each side. The firstever 5-inning game may have been another Knickerbocker intrasquad game at Elysian Fields in October 1845, with the final score 33–26.

The first-ever game to last more than 9 innings may have been the 10-inning game November 18, 1845, at Elysian Fields. William R. Wheaton's Team beat William H. Tucker's Team 51–42. The 21-Rule called for a team scoring 21 runs first to be declared the winner, so these two teams must have either had several ties at the end of innings, or they must have both exploded offensively in the tenth inning.

The record for longest game stood at 10 innings for seven years, until June 24 or 27, 1852 when the Gothams took 16 innings to beat the Knickerbockers 21–16 at Red House Grounds in New York City. The firstever 6-inning game may have occurred the next year, July 16, 1853, at Red House Grounds, as the Knickerbockers beat the Gothams 21–12 in the first-ever game with a box score.

The first-ever 9-inning game under the new rules establishing 9 innings as the normal length of the game unless tied, may have been at Madison Square in May 1857 in a Knickerbocker intrasquad game. The firstever extra inning game under new 9-inning rules may have been in Brooklyn June 6, 1865. The Gothams scored in the 9th to tie Enterprise at 17. In the 13th, Enterprise scored one, but Gothams then scored two to win, 19–18.

Longest Planned Marathons: Gray Birds and Red-Eyed Nites

Some games have been planned as marathons, usually as a fundraiser for a charitable cause. There have been many such games. The Women's Marathon 24 Hours for Africa lasted 65 innings October 18–19, 2003, at Tucson Electric Park in Arizona, and raised \$60,000 to assist AIDS victims in Africa. The African Gray Birds defeated the Red-Eyed Nites 127–110. Seventy-two players from Japan, Australia, and 18 U.S. states participated, ranging in age from 13 to 80. Official time of game was 24 hours 12 minutes. There were 100 fans at the start at eight minutes after Noon, 50 fans at 6 P.M., 25 fans at Midnight, 0 fans the next morning at 6 A.M., and 12 loyal fans there when the game ended at 12:20 P.M.

Many other planned baseball marathons are known to have taken place. One involved the Portland State University team playing 102 innings in Oregon. Another involved the Augusta College and University of South Carolina-Aiken teams playing 105 innings. One involved Springbrook High School in Silver Spring, Maryland for 100 innings. Another occurred at Fort Sheridan, Illinois, with two high schools playing 100 innings to raise funds for a trip to Australia. There were fundraisers for the Friends University baseball team in Wichita, Kansas which took 79 and 100 innings respectively. Numerous games have been sponsored by Curt Schilling and the Boston Men's Adult Baseball League (MABL), one lasting 101 innings. One involved two amateur teams playing 84 innings in Alliance, Nebraska. The highest number of innings reported for such planned marathons are 325 innings in Appleton, Wisconsin August 18-20, 1972, and 320 innings in Burlington, Wisconsin June 10-11, 1972, both raising funds for medical research.

Longest Military Marathons: 23 Innings in Virginia and 21 Innings in Guam

The longest game ever played by Air Force and Army teams is the 23-inning game at Langley Flying Field in Hampton, Virginia in 1923 when the Fort Monroe Army Artillerymen and the Langley Air Force Birdmen played to a 2–2 tie. The longest game ever played by a Navy team is the 21-inning game played May 6, 1945, at the Third Marine Division Field in Guam. Before 1000 fans, the 41st Construction Battalion Navy Seebees defeated the U.S. Navy Base Rinkeydinks 2–1.

Possibly an even longer game may have been played by two Army teams October 20, 2003, in occupied Iraq by teams from the 101st Airborne Division at Delta Company Desperados Field, a makeshift ballpark in the desert near Tell 'Afar. The teams were managed by Captains Hunter Marshall and Adam Kumann. The game supposedly started after Midnight and lasted until almost Dawn. Unfortunately, nobody kept records of the score or number of innings.

Longest Women's Marathons: 22 Innings in Racine and Muskegon

On July 31, 1947, at Horlick Field in Racine, Wisconsin, the South Bend Blue Sox defeated the Racine Belles 4–3 in 22 innings. This women's record was tied two years later at Marsh Field in Muskegon, Michigan as the Muskegon Lassies downed the Rockford Peaches 1–0. The All-American Girls' Professional Baseball League was organized during World War II, and continued with teams from the midwestern part of the country from 1943 through 1954. The league was the subject of the movie "A League of Their Own" starring Geena Davis, Madonna, and Tom Hanks.

Longest High School Marathons: 27 Innings in Obe City

When the supposed "28-inning" 1976 game in Indiana was proven in 2004 to have actually been three separate games, the record for longest high school game reverted to 27 innings. In Ube City, Japan, Matsue-sho defeated Shimonoseki-sho 2–0 May 13–14, 1973.

Ballparks & Cities in Marathons: The Bee Hive

The ballpark which has hosted the most marathons lasting 20 or more innings is Braves Field in Boston, now known as Boston University's Nickerson Field. This is appropriate, since Braves Field hosted the longest major league game ever played, 26 innings. Braves Field hosted five marathons, two held between April 17, 1936, and April 23, 1941, when the Braves were officially named the Bees and the ballpark was known as the Bee Hive.

Old Comiskey Park hosted four marathons, including an American Giants game in the Negro American League and three White Sox games in the AL, one of which was the longest AL game ever played, 25 innings. Korakuen Stadium in Tokyo also hosted four. Wrigley Field and Baker Bowl each hosted three.

Boston has hosted 15 marathons: five by the Braves, four amateur games, three by the Red Sox, two grammar school games, and the first one ever played, a scoreless 24-inning tie between a professional team from Manchester, New Hampshire and the Harvard College Crimson on May 11, 1877. This is the most by any city. Chicago has hosted nine, San Antonio and Tokyo seven, Philadelphia six.

Major league marathons come in seemingly irrational spurts. There have been 49 major league marathons. The American League has had 18. The Negro Leagues had two. The National League has had 27 during the regular season, and two more during spring training, hosted by the St. Louis Browns in 1898 and by the Philadelphia Phillies in 1921.

The Philadelphia Phillies and Boston Braves have each hosted five marathons lasting 20 or more innings, the most by any major league teams. The Red Sox, White Sox, Twins, Cubs, and Padres are next, having hosted three. The Orioles, Royals, Mariners, Rays, Rangers, Blue Jays, Diamondbacks, Rockies, Brewers, Giants, and Nationals have never hosted such a game.

Longest Major League Marathon: 26 Innings at Braves Field

At old Comiskey Park on May 8–9, 1984, the White Sox downed the Brewers 7–6 in 25 innings and 8 hours 6 minutes, the American League record for innings. Suspended after 17 innings at 1:05 A.M. by the AL curfew, the game was won the next evening in the 25th by Harold Baines' homer which just barely cleared the bullpen fence in center. The White Sox scored two in the 9th, and three in the 21st to keep the game tied, and would have won in the 23rd except that Dave Stegman was ruled out for coach's interference when third base coach Jim Leyland helped him to his feet after Stegman tripped rounding third.

This game is rich in "might-have-been's." Had it been an NL game with no curfew, it would have ended at 3:42 A.M. Had it been played between 1910 and 1948 or 1976 and 1980 when old Comiskey had no inner fence in cencter, Baines' drive would have been caught and the two teams might have broken the major league record of 26 innings. Best of all, had the game been the nightcap of the foggy September 24, 1971, Astros at Padres twi-night doubleheader which began at 12:01 A.M., it would have finished at 8:07 A.M., and the last few innings could have been covered live by Bryant Gumbel and Jane Pauley on the "Today Show."

On September 11, 1974, Ken Reitz's two-run homer for the Cards with two outs in the 9th tied up the Mets 3–3 at Shea. The pitchers then took total control for 15 innings. Only a hardy thousand of the original crowd of 13,460 remained to see Bake McBride score all the way from first in the 25th when Mets pitcher Hank Webb's pickoff throw to first was wild, and the relay to the plate from the outfield was dropped by catcher Ron Hodges to give the Cards a 4–3 win.

As home plate umpire Ed Sudol ruled the sliding McBride safe at the plate, he couldn't help but remember he had also been behind the plate during two other Mets marathon losses: 23 innings to the Giants in 1964, and 24 innings to the Astros in 1968. At the end, after 7 hours 4 minutes of baseball, the huge right field scoreboard clock read 3:13 A.M. Amazingly, the first base umpire had called a balk on the wild pickoff throw. Under a rule recently changed, which had balk calls superceding advances on wild pickoff throws, McBride would have been required to return to second base. He might never have scored, and the game might never have ended.

There were two 20-inning marathons in the Negro Leagues (1920–63). Both were played in Chicago and involved the hometown American Giants. The first came in a Negro National League (1920–31, 1933–48) game at Schorling's Park August 16, 1922, as the American Giants defeated the Atlantic City Bacharach Giants 1–0. The second came in a Negro American League (1937–63) game at old Comiskey Park May 12, 1946, as the American Giants tied the Indianapolis Clowns 3–3. In front of a crowd of 10,000, pitchers Gentry Jessup of the American Giants and Peanut Davis of the Clowns both went the distance. The Clowns were leading in the bottom of the 9th when McCurrine tripled to score Young, and send the game into extra frames.

Nine major leagues never had a marathon: National Association (1871–75), Union Association (1884), American Association (1892–91), Players League (1890), Federal League (1914–15), Eastern Colored League (1923–28), American Negro League (1929), Negro East-West League (1932), and Negro Southern League (1932).

When nine innings was established as the first major league record for longest game is a matter of dispute. On April 22, 1871, the Washington Olympics and Washington Nationals, both fledgling members of the new National Association, baseball's first professional major league, met at Olympics Grounds for the firstever major league game. The Olympics prevailed 36–12 in nine innings, thus setting the first major league record for longest game by innings. However, the Nationals subsequently were dropped from the league because they failed to pay their \$10 league dues, and their five official games were dropped from league standings in July 1871.

The honor of "first major league game," and with it the honor of establishing the first major league record for longest game by innings, thus went "after-the-fact" to the Fort Wayne Kekiongas and Forest City's of Cleveland, who met twelve days later on May 4, 1871, at the Grand Duchess in Fort Wayne, Indiana. The Kekiongas won 2–0, before 200 fans. Although this is considered the first major league game ever played, if one believes history cannot and should not be altered "after-the-fact," then it is really the second major league game.

There is absolutely no dispute whatsoever as to the longest major league game ever played. On May 1, 1920, the Boston Braves hosted the Brooklyn Robins at Braves Field. The game took 26 innings and lasted 3 hours 50 minutes, but ended as a 1–1 tie when called at 6:50 P.M. on account of darkness by Umpire Barry McCormick. Two thousand fans saw starting pitchers Joe Oeschger of the Braves and Leon Cadore of the Robins go the whole way. This feat could never happen now, with all the emphasis on specialized relief pitchers, but starting pitchers commonly pitched entire marathons in the early part of the Twentieth Century.

According to the next day's *New York Times*, "In the matter of thrills, the oldest living man can remember nothing like it, nor can he find anything in his granddad's diary worthy of comparison. Heart disease was the mildest complaint that grasped the spectators as they watched inning after inning slip away and the row of ciphers on the scoreboard begin to slide over the fence and reach out into the Fenway. Nervous prostration threatened to engulf the stands."

At the end of the game, Robins shortstop Ivy Olson implored McCormick to allow the game to continue for one more inning so he could tell his grandkids he played three entire games in one afternoon. McCormick's reply was, "Not without a miner's lamp!," perhaps based on those spoofs a decade earlier which would have us believe a 39-inning game in Portland, Oregon, was made possible by lanterns and locomotive headlights, and a 57-inning game in Jones County, New York, was made possible by rubbing phosphorus on the baseball.

Longest Consecutive Games

The Robins' next two games were in Philadelphia May 2 against the Phils and then back in Brooklyn May 3 vs. the Braves. They took 13 and 19 innings respectively to lose both. So in just three games, they played 58 innings, losing two and tying one, a threegame record for futility which will probably never be equaled.

You would think that the Robins would hold the record for most innings in two consecutive games, with 26 innings on May 1 vs. the Braves and then 13 innings on May 2 vs. the Phils for a total of 39 innings. But you would be wrong! This record is 40 innings, held by the Cubs and Braves. At Braves Field, on May 14 and May 17, 1927, the Cubs beat the Braves 7–2 in 18 innings, and then 4–3 in 22 innings. The AL record is 37 innings, held by the Brewers and Twins. At Met Stadium, on May 12 and May 13, 1972, the Brewers won 4–3 in 22 innings; then the Twins won 5–4 in 15 innings.

Longest Separate Games to Reach One Decision

You would also think the Braves and Robins must hold the record for combined innings for two separate games to reach one decision, when the first game was tied and had to be replayed in its entirety. And the September 20, 1945, *Sporting News* would back you up, because it states on page 18 that the make-up of the 26-inning game was the 19-inning game in Brooklyn on May 3, for a total of 45 innings.

But both you and the *Sporting News* would be wrong! The May 3 game was on the original sched-

ule. The make-up game was actually the second game of a doubleheader on June 25 at Braves Field. By adding the nine innings and 1:40 played in that game to finally have the Braves win 4–2 once and for all what had began May 1, to the 26 innings played May 1, you have 35 innings in 5 hours 30 minutes over two days. Surely, you say, this 35 innings must be the major league record?

But you would be wrong a second time! The A's and Tigers hold the professional and major league record: 40 innings, in 7 hours 57 minutes over two days. On July 21, 1945, they played a 1–1 tie in 24 innings and 4:48 at Shibe Park. When they met on September 12 in the second game of a doubleheader, again at Shibe Park, to finally come to a decision, the A's took 16 innings and 3:09 to win 3–2.

However, if you measure it by elapsed time rather than by innings, then the Phillies and the Cubs hold the record, at 9 hours 35 minutes, in 37 innings over four days. On May 5, 1930, at Wrigley Field, the Cubs led the Phils 1–0 after 30 minutes, 1 inning, and a 50minute rain delay in the top of the 2nd, when the game was washed out after an elapsed time of 1:20. On August 16, in the second game of a doubleheader, they tied 3–3 in 2:15 and 11 innings. On August 19, they tried a third time and tied again, once again in the second game of a doubleheader, this time 6–6 in 3:38 and 16 innings.

Finally, on August 20, in their fourth try, they finally arrived at a conclusion, the Phils winning 10–8 in 2:22 and only 9 innings! The two teams played 20 innings in the August 16 DH, 9 innings on August 17, 9 innings on August 18, 25 innings in the August 19 DH, and 9 innings on Aug 20. The 72-inning 5-day series decimated the Cubs' pitching staff, and probably cost them the 1930 pennant.

Baseball Digest published an article in February 1968 trying to sort this all out. Here is an illustration of how complicated it all was. The article contains seven (7) errors. For the Robins and Braves in 1920, they called the Robins the Dodgers. For the Phillies and Cubs in 1930, they gave August 18 rather than August 19 as the date for the third of the four games, August 19 rather than August 20 as the date for the fourth of the four games, and the August 19 crowd as 26,000 rather than 36,000. For the Athletics and Tigers in 1945, they listed the combined time as 7:56 rather than 4536, and the time of game as 4:47 rather than 4:48.

The *Chicago Tribune* also had trouble sorting it all out. In their discussion of the July 21, 1945, Tigers at A's 24-inning game, they stated the record-long 26-inning May 1, 1920, Robins at Braves had taken 5 hours 19 minutes, when in fact it took only 3 hours 50 minutes. The Dodgers at Braves 20-inning July 15, 1940, game is the game that took 5 hours 19 minutes.

And of course we can't forget the two marathons mentioned earlier. The high school "separate-gamesto-reach-one-decision" record is held by the 28-inning "game that was never played" over six days in 1976 between Griffith and Highland High Schools in Indiana, and the all-time "separate-games-to-reachone-decision" record is held by the 54-inning "game that was never played" over six days in 1925–1926 between Cascade and Ryan in Iowa.

Most Interesting Discovery: Montana Reports the News from Wisconsin

The research process involved in discovering these marathon games has taken me to the Hall of Fame Libraries in Cooperstown, New York, and the Big Egg in Tokyo, Japan, and just about everywhere in between, including hundreds of ballparks and libraries.

The most unusual discovery was the June 15, 1939, 21-inning 5 hours 15 minutes marathon in Clintonville, Wisconsin which finished at 1:45 A.M. The Clintonville Four-Wheel-Drive (FWD) Truckers defeated Two Rivers Polar Bears 1–0. This game was discovered in a small article found in the June 29, 1939, *Daily Independent* of Helena, Montana, adjoining a story I had found on the Kansas City Monarchs barnstorming visit to Helena. Helena resident H.E. Danner reported the game from two weeks prior because his home town was originally Clintonville.

Longest College Marathon: 32 Innings in Bradenton

College baseball in the U.S. is due for a "breakout" marathon game. The record for 4-year colleges is held by a recent 25-inning National Collegiate Athletic Association (NCAA) playoff game held May 30, 2009, at UFCU Disch-Falk Field in Austin, Texas. The Texas Longhorns defeated the Boston College (BC) Eagles 3–2 in 7 hours 3 minutes. Given the large number of 4-year college games, we should be expecting a much longer marathon some day soon.

The record for a junior college game was set April 4, 1987, at Robert C. Wynn Field in Bradenton, Florida. The Hillsborough Hawks defeated the Manatee Lancers 6–4 in 32 innings, over seven and a half hours. The original crowd of 200 had dwindled to just 45 loyal fans when the end came at 9:30 P.M.

Longest Minor League Marathon: 33 Innings in Pawtucket

On May 16, 1891, at 11th Street Grounds in Tacoma, the home town Tacoma Daisies downed the Seattle Blues 6–5 in 22 innings. According to the Tacoma newspaper, the 900 fans could be heard all the way to Seattle during the game. Just two months later, on July 18, 1891, the Grand Forks Forkers and Fargo Graingrowers took the train to Devil's Lake, North Dakota for a 4 P.M. Red River League game at the North Dakota State Militia Training Grounds. After 25 scoreless innings, the umpire called the game at 8:10 P.M. to allow both teams to catch the last train of the night to Grand Forks.

On June 14, 1966, at Al Lang Field in St. Petersburg, Florida, the Miami Marlins eked out a 4–3 win over the host St. Pete Cards, managed by future Reds and Tigers manager Sparky Anderson. A 2:00 A.M. announcement by umpires and managers stating the game would not continue past the 30th inning was greeted with jeers and cries of "More! More!" from the 150 night owls remaining from the original crowd of 750. The 29-inning record would stand for 15 years until broken in Rhode Island.

At 4:07 A.M. on Easter morning, April 19, 1981, just 51 minutes before sunrise, seventeen freezing and very fortunate souls huddled in the 28 degree pre-dawn chill of Pawtucket, Rhode Island's McCoy Stadium, having just watched their beloved Paw Sox fail to break a 2–2 tie with the Rochester Red Wings in the bottom of the 32nd. When the umpires suspended the game, these brave 17 fans could look back on 8 hours 7 minutes of baseball, preceded by a half-hour power failure delay.

The game resumed two months later on June 23, and the mercury had risen to 80 degrees. McCoy was packed to capacity, and because the major leagues were on strike, the eyes of the entire baseball world were focused on Pawtucket. The Paw Sox won 3–2 in the 33rd on Dave Koza's bases-loaded single. The final totals of 8 hours 55 minutes elapsed time, and 8 hours 25 minutes game time are modern baseball records, and 33 innings is still the all-time professional record.

Momentoes of this historic game are now buried in a time capsule beneath the field, where they join the 5ton truck that in 1942 sank without a trace into the swampy outfield while McCoy was being built by Franklin Delano Roosevelt's Works Progress Administration.

Longest Doubleheader Marathon: 34¹/₂ Innings in North Carolina

The most interesting doubleheader marathon was a 30-inning extravaganza held at San Diego's Jack Murphy Stadium September 24, 1971. Houston took the opener 2–1 in 21 innings, and the second game began at one minute after Midnight. At 2:15 A.M., with the score tied 4–4 and one aboard in the bottom of the ninth, swirling soupy fog engulfed Mission Valley as Nate Colbert hit a fly ball right to Astros center fielder Cesar Cedeno, who promptly lost the ball in a fog bank. With two on base, and the remaining 100 fans of an original crowd of 6339 going berserk, even though they could hardly see the field, the Padres stood on the brink of victory, but the umpires halted play, hoping the fog would lift.

After a 14-minute delay, during which it became

apparent the fog was not going anywhere soon, the umpires resumed play. Ollie Brown promptly brought an end to the evening's festivities by hitting the first pitch for an RBI single to right. Right fielder Jim Wynn told reporters later that not only did he never see the ball, he couldn't even see his own infielders. Radio listeners back in Houston, where it was 4:29 A.M., could not believe their ears!

The longest major league doubleheader was the 32inning day-into-night affair described earlier in which Willie Mays played center *and* shortstop for the Giants at Shea May 31, 1964. The Giants swept the Mets, 5–3 in the opener and 8–6 in the nightcap in 23 innings. Eight thousand fans from the original crowd of 57,037 stayed until the bitter end at 11:25 P.M. WOR-TV broadcast all 32 innings, in the process attracting the highest number of viewers in the station's entire history.

The longest doubleheader ever played was a North Carolina State League twinbill July 5, 1915, in Durham and Raleigh. The Raleigh Capitals downed the Durham Bulls 3–2 in 14 innings in the A.M. game at Raleigh. Then the two teams bussed over to Durham for the P.M. game.

Dayton, the first batter for the Bulls in the bottom of the 21st, hit a long fly ball down the line into the right field corner. As Capitals right fielder Chief Myers caught the ball, he stumbled and umpire Dooley ruled that he had dropped it. Dayton ended up on third with a triple, but a furious argument ensued, with Myers and all of the Capitals stating Myers had not dropped the ball. Myers was ejected, but the rhubarb continued unabated. Finally, seemingly to end the argument, Dooley called the game a 2–2 tie after 20½ innings on account of darkness, making a total of 34½ innings for the doubleheader.

Two other minor league doubleheaders have gone 30 or more innings. On May 6, 1928, the Sacramento Senators and Oakland Oaks split a 31-inning PCL doubleheader at Oaks Park in Emeryville, with the Senators taking the opener 5–2, and the Oaks grabbing the nightcap 7–6 in 22 innings. And just as our nation prepared to celebrate its 200th birthday, on May 30, 1976, the Burlington Bees swept a 30-inning Midwest League doubleheader from the hometown Waterloo Royals. Both games went extra innings, with the Bees taking both the lidlifter 4–3 in 22 innings, and the late game by an identical score in 8 innings.

A 29-inning long NAIA college marathon for the Mesa State Mavericks of Grand Junction, Colorado almost became a 38-inning tripleheader. On May 2, 1981, Mesa State defeated New Mexico Highlands 9–8 in 20 innings in a morning Rocky Mountain Athletic Conference (RMAC) tournament game in Cedar City, Utah. That put Mesa State, with one loss, into the finals against Southern Utah State, with no losses. If Southern Utah State won, it would be all over. However, if Mesa State won, then they would be tied with one loss apiece, and another game would need to be played immediately afterwards to determine the RMAC champion. Trailing 4–1, Southern Utah State scored four in the 8th inning to win, 5–4, thus preventing Mesa State from playing 38 innings in one day.

Longest Triple/Sextupleheaders: 47 Innings in Manchester

I have come across 72 occasions involving three or more games in one day: 59 tripleheaders, 11 quadrupleheaders, one quintupleheader, and one sextupleheader. The three major league ones were in the NL, and two were sweeps. In Brooklyn, September 1, 1890, the Dodgers swept three from Pittsburgh, 10–9, 3–2, and 8–4, a total of 27 innings. In Baltimore, September 7, 1896, the Orioles swept three from Louisville, 4– 3, 9–1, and 12–1 in 8 innings, a total of 26 innings. And in Pittsburgh, October 2, 1920, the Pirates lost 2 out of 3 to Cincinnati, losing the first two 13–4 and 7– 3, and winning the third 6–0 when it was called due to darkness at 6 P.M. after 6 innings, a total of 24 innings.

There were two tripleheaders September 22, 1902, in the American Association, across town from each other. The Louisville Colonels swept three from the Millers in Minneapolis at Nicollet Park by 9–0 (a forfeit because the Millers showed up late), 4–0, and 4–3; while across town, the Indianapolis Indians swept three from the Apostles in St. Paul at Lexington Park.

There has never been a major league quadrupleheader or longer. There has been just one sextupleheader, a sweep! In Manchester, New Hampshire, September 4, 1899, in the New England League, the home town Manchesters swept six from the Portland Phenoms by 14–7, 12–8, 12–2, 8–4, 9–1, and a 9–0 forfeit. They played two games before lunch, and four afterwards. Portland walked off the field and forfeited after two innings in the sixth game to protest the umpire's decision to eject one of their players, but the first five games lasted nine innings each, a total of 47 innings for the sextupleheader. The six losses in one day constituted over 15 percent of the Phenoms' losses for the year, as they won the league title with a 61–39 record.

Longest Marathons Which Broke No Records: Don't Wreck Everything!

Two 27-inning minor league games, although tied for third longest minor league game ever, have received no attention whatsoever because they were played after the Pawtucket 33-inning marathon in 1981 and therefore broke no records.

The first one was a three-day long thriller at Mac-Arthur Stadium in Syracuse, one of only three minor league parks which hosted at least three marathons. On June 19, 1985, the Pawtucket Paw Sox and Syracuse Chiefs played 22 innings. The game was suspended at 1:07 A.M. after the Chiefs loaded the bases in the bottom of the 22nd but failed to score.

The next night was rainy. After a 13-minute rain delay in the top of the 23rd, and another lasting 50 minutes in the bottom of the 24th, the game was suspended a second time at 9:05 P.M. due to rain after $23\frac{1}{2}$ innings. After $3\frac{1}{2}$ more innings June 21, the Paw Sox finally won 3–1 at 7:31 P.M., and the regularly scheduled game was rained out. Total game time: 7 hours 7 minutes.

What makes this game even more amazing is it was the second time in just over a week the Syracuse Chiefs had lost a three-day marathon! On June 10, just nine days earlier, the Chiefs-Clippers game in Columbus was suspended after 20 innings. It was rained out June 11, and the Chiefs lost 8–7 in the 21st June 12.

Three years later, June 24, 1988, at Athletic Stadium in Burlington, North Carolina, the Bluefield Orioles (Baby Birds) came to town for an Appalachian League game against the hometown Indians. When the Orioles finally won by a score of 3–2, the game had taken 8 hours 15 minutes, it was 3:27 A.M., and the crowd of 2204 fans had dwindled to just either 84 or 50. Why the uncertainty on remaining fans at the end?

Apparently, the sportswriters were sleepy because they had remarkably different accounts. Craig Holt of the *Burlington Times-News* counted 84 fans at the end, but wrote incorrectly that the finish had been at 3:37 A.M. rather than at 3:27 A.M. Dale Mullins of the *Bluefield Daily Telegraph* counted 50 fans at the end, and got the finish time correct as 3:27 A.M., but wrote incorrectly that the game had taken place in Raleigh rather than in Burlington.

As for whether such games should be suspended or played to completion, I wholeheartedly agree with the sentiments of Baby Birds manager Glenn Gulliver on late-night marathons. After the game he told reporters, "I do not favor suspending games, no matter how long they take. That would wreck everything. Once the game gets so far along, and you still have a chance to win, you don't want to quit. You want to go until somebody wins." *Amen!* Suspension will always be a bad idea that wrecks everything. Let the ballplayers play on to a conclusion!

Longest Marathon: 45 Innings for the Emperor's Cup in Mito

Outside the U.S. there have been 91 marathons lasting 20 or more innings played. Latin America has the most, with 40: 17 in Mexico, nine in Cuba, five in Puerto Rico, four in Nicaragua, two in the Dominican, and one each in Brazil, Colombia, and Venezuela. Asia has 27: 25 in Japan and two in Taiwan. Canada has 17. Oceania has five: four in Australia and one in Guam. Europe has two: one each in France and Germany. Africa has yet to experience a marathon. The longest game in Africa thus far was 14 innings between Ghana and Togo.

Neither polar region has yet experienced a marathon. On March 25, 1960, the Arctic innings record was set at 90 Degrees North Latitude as two U.S. Navy Seadragon Nuclear Submarine teams played nine innings at the North Pole. On New Year's Day 1997, the Antarctic innings record was set at 77 Degrees 55 Minutes South Latitude as two McMurdo Sound teams played 10 innings on the North Cargo Staging Area Ballpark Pad. Both polar record games were played on the ice, and sliding was for everyone not just baserunners.

On May 24, 1942, just 11 days before the Battle of Midway (June 4–7) began, Taiyo and Nagoya of the Japanese Professional Federation struggled to a 28-inning 4–4 tie, setting a new organized baseball record. Seventeen years later, May 2, 1959, Nippon Pharmaceuticals defeated Kurashiki Rayon 2–1 in a 29-inning industrial league game. So Japan had some experience with marathon games.

But when play began September 20, 1983, in the title game of the 38th annual Emperor's Cup Nanshiki Tournament at Ibaraki-Mito Prefectural Stadium in Mito, Japan, nobody had the least idea what lay ahead! The game between Light Manufacturing (Raito Kogyo) of Tokyo and Tanaka Hospital (Byouin) of Miyazaki was to begin at 9 A.M. The first pitch came ten minutes early at 8:50 A.M. The local Mito Band was to play at the award ceremony after the game, and was asked to be ready at 11 A.M. As Noon came and went, the teams were locked in a scoreless tie. After the 25th, plate umpire Choshu told the teams to take a 30-minute break.

The players refused. Choshu joined his fellow umps Igari, Sakurai, and Suzuki for a short 6-minute break, and then the game moved on to the 26th. In the 35th inning, both teams pushed across one run, so the marathon continued. Finally, the game concluded at 5:15 P.M. after Light Manufacturing scored in the top of the 45th to win 2–1. Final totals: 1029 pitches and 8 hours 19 minutes of baseball! Including the 6-minute delay in the 26th, the game actually lasted 8 hours 25 minutes.

Excluding Massachusetts Rules games and games planned as marathons to raise funds for charity, this is the longest game by innings in the history of baseball. The Mito Band finally got to play after waiting around for over six hours.

How Many Games Go into Extra Innings?

How many games go into extra innings? My detailed research into lengths of major league games indicates a little less than 6 percent went into extra innings in the 1800s, when late afternoon 4 P.M. starting times resulted in many games being called due to darkness before they ever had the opportunity to go into extra innings, and between 9 percent and 10 percent have gone into extra innings in the 1900s and 2000s.

To get a good empirical estimate of the percentage of extra-inning games before the current night-ball era, I began with the first two decades of major league baseball, from 1871 to 1889. For these 19 years, in the National Association (1871-75), National League (1876-89), American Association (1882-89), and Union Association (1884), there were 10,790 regular season games, plus 50 World Series games (1884-89), a total of 10,840 games in 1871-89. 126 of these games or 1.2 percent were ties. Because of darkness or weather, 662 or 6.1 percent of these games were official games taking less than 9 innings: 43 were forfeits, 55 went 5 innings, 114 went 6 innings, 200 went 7 innings, 250 went 8 innings. 307 games went 10 innings, 158 went 11 innings, 69 went 12 innings, 43 went 13 innings, 24 went 14 innings, 8 went 15 innings, 6 went 16 innings, and one went 18 innings. A total of 616 or 5.68 percent out of 10,840 went extra innings.

Many more games in this period would have gone extra innings had they had the time to do so, but lack of ballpark lights and late afternoon starting times conspired to limit the number of extra-inning contests. So the fact that a little less than 6 percent of major league games went extra innings could be expected to apply only until either starting times were advanced to earlier in the afternoon or until lights were placed in ballparks.

Before I became aware of Dave Smith's database on extra-inning games, to get a good estimate of the percentage of extra-inning games in the recent night-ball era, I decided to do a 100 percent inventory of every major league game in the 1980s. In that decade (1980-89), in the American and National Leagues, 20,337 regular season games were played, plus 19 League Division Series (LDS) games, 99 League Championship Series (LCS) games, and 59 World Series games, a total of 20,514 games played in the 1980s. 866 games went 10 innings, 471 went 11 innings, 274 went 12 innings, 150 went 13 innings, 88 went 14 innings, 39 went 15 innings, 29 went 16 innings, 19 went 17 innings, 10 went 18 innings, 3 went 19 innings, 4 went 20 innings, one went 21 innings, two went 22 innings, and one went 25 innings. A total of 1,957 or 9.54 percent out of 20,514 went extra innings.

I then discovered Smith's work with Retrosheet major league data. In Table 2 of his 2004 article entitled "Coming from Behind: Patterns of Scoring and Relation to Winning," Smith took data for 73 seasons (1901, 1904, 1909–10, 1912–13, 1918, 1936, 1938–42, and 1944–2003), and created a database of 1,129,558 innings in 122,906 games. 413 or 0.3 percent were ties. Because of darkness or weather, 1209 or 1.0 percent were official games taking less than 9 innings: 183 went 5 innings, 295 went 6, 384 went 7, and 347 went 8.

The number of ties and the number of official games lasting less than 9 innings are both significantly less relative to the 1870s and 1880s, both because starting times had advanced to earlier in the afternoon, and because a majority of games in these 73 seasons were played in ballparks with lights. Both factors allowed games to continue to a decision that back in the 1800s would have been called due to darkness. 5060 games went 10 innings, 2843 went 11, 1588 went 12, 881 went 13, 521 went 14, 268 went 15, 163 went 16, 88 went 17, 43 went 18, 25 went 19, 13 went 20, 8 went 21, 6 went 22, 2 went 23, 2 went 24, and 2 went 25. The recordlength 26-inning Dodgers at Braves game in 1920 occurred in a year that was not included in Smith's database. 11,513 or 9.37 percent out of 122,906 went into extra innings.

This database spans both the period before lights and the period after lights, so it would be inappropriate to use the 9.37 percent figure to predict the percentage of extra-inning games either before or after lights were installed in ballparks. To do this, we need to break down Smith's database year-by-year and make a judgment call on what year to use as the dividing point between the day-ball and night-ball eras.

This is a difficult judgment because lights were introduced into major league parks gradually from 1935 to 1948, were infrequently used at first, and were hardly ever used during World War II (1942–45). Night games were introduced in 1935 by the Reds; in 1938 by the Dodgers; in 1939 by the Athletics, Phillies, Indians, and White Sox; in 1940 by the Giants, Browns, Pirates, and Cardinals; in 1941 by the Senators; in 1946 by the Braves and Yankees; in 1947 by the Red Sox, and in 1948 by the Tigers. The Cubs did not introduce night games until 1988. I chose to use 1948 as the dividing line and as the last year of the day-ball era, with the night-ball era beginning in 1949.

Smith's data was thus broken down into two eras. During the day-ball era through 1948, there are 18 seasons, with 2005 extra-inning games of a total of 21,884 games, or 9.16 percent extra-inning games. Lowest data-points are 7.1 percent in 1948 and 7.2 percent in 1901. Highest data-points are 12.3 percent in 1918 and 11.9 percent in 1942. This is considerably higher than 5.68 percent for 1871–89. The difference can be attributed to the fact games started later in the 1800s than in the 1900s. In the 1800s, games usually started at 4 P.M., whereas starting times in the 1900s gradually moved up from 4 P.M., at first to 3 P.M., and then later on to 2 P.M. and 1 P.M.

The night-ball era for Smith's data extends 1949– 2003. There are 55 seasons, with 9508 extra-inning games of a total of 101,022 games, or 9.41 percent extra-inning games. Lowest data-point s are 7.9 percent in 1950 and again in 1999. Highest data-points are 13.1 percent in 1957 and 11.3 percent in 1960. This compares very well with the 9.54 percent I had for 1980–89.

Based on this data, it seems clear that night ball did not make a very big difference in the number of extrainning games after all! What made the difference was moving starting times up from 4 P.M. to 3 P.M. and then to 2 P.M. and then to 1 P.M., eliminating most of the chances a game would be called due to darkness before it had the opportunity to go into extra innings.

An interesting fact is the average for extra-inning games is going down. The number of extra-inning games has been declining steadily since the 1960s when it was at 9.9 percent: 1970s 9.7 percent, 1980s 9.7 percent, 1990s 9.0 percent, 2000s 8.2 percent. This decline in extra-inning games can probably be attributed to the fact we have been having significantly higherscoring games since the early 1980s.

Based on this research, the best empirical estimate for the percentage of extra-inning games is: 5.68 percent in the 1800s, 9.17 percent in the 1900s through 1948 day-ball era when all or most games were played in daytime, and 9.41 percent during the night-ball era from 1949 through the present. The best theoretical estimate, given by our mathematical model, is that 10.3 percent of all games should go into extra innings.

Visiting Team Advantage in Marathon-Land?

One of the most surprising facts about marathon games is that a statistically significant majority have been won by the visiting team. There have been 71 ties, and for 155 of the games, it is unclear whether the visitor or home team won, either because the game was played at a neutral site or because we do not know where the game was played. In the remaining 314 games, 174 or 55 percent were won by the visiting team, and only 140 by the home team. There seems to be a hidden "visiting team advantage" lurking somewhere in the Kingdom of Marathon Base-ball.

In the major leagues, the home team wins 54 percent of the time. But in extra-inning contests, the home team only wins 52 percent of the time. And in extra-inning games lasting 20 or more innings, the home team advantage disappears altogether and home teams win only 45 percent of the time.

What actually happens is that the home team advantage begins to slip away increasingly from the 9th inning to the 15th inning, when a visiting team advantage begins to assert itself increasingly as games move beyond the 15th inning. Why does the advantage for the home team begin to dissipate as games move further into extra innings, disappear altogether at the 15inning point, and then actually shift to the visiting team in a big way, for marathons lasting 20 or more innings? The answer is elusive.

That the visiting team wins 55 percent of all marathons needs to be considered in light of Dave Smith's aforementioned study. Smith asserts, based on data from 73 major league seasons, that the home team scores more than the visiting team in each of the first 8 innings, but visiting teams score more than the home team in the ninth inning and in each extra inning, since as soon as the home team scores enough to win in these innings, the game is over and the home team stops batting with less than three outs.

Although visiting teams score more runs per inning than home teams from the ninth inning on, Smith is *not* implying visiting teams win more often than do home teams. But my finding that 55 percent of marathons lasting 20 innings or more are won by the visiting team and only 45 percent are won by the home team is a statistically significant finding.

If we break down over time, by decade, this tendency for visiting teams to win 55 percent of marathons lasting 20 or more innings, we can see if there is a trend, although we should expect some random fluctuations. Here are the results of this analysis:

1860s and earlier: no sample

10000	a cumer no sumple
1870s	visiting team wins 100% of time
	(sample size too small to be
	meaningful)
1880s	no sample
1890s	visiting team wins 0% of the time
	(sample size too small to be
	meaningful)
1900s	visiting team wins 64% of the time
1910s	visiting team wins 58% of the time
1920s	visiting team wins 74% of the time
1930s	visiting team wins 39% of the time
1940s	visiting team wins 44% of the time
1950s	visiting team wins 42% of the time
1960s	visiting team wins 57% of the time
1970s	visiting team wins 55% of the time
1980s	visiting team wins 52% of the time
1990s	visiting team wins 40% of the time
2000s	visiting team wins 64% of the time
Overall	visiting team wins 55% of the time

As expected, there are random fluctuations. Home teams win more often in the 1930s, 1940s, 1950s, and 1990s. But there is no trend indicating either that this phenomenon is accelerating or decelerating. There were significantly more marathons lasting 20 or more innings in the 1900s and 1910s than in any other decades, probably because those two decades saw the high point in town ball played in small towns. This was the heyday of baseball, when there were more teams and more games being played than in any other decades.

Over a period of almost 150 years, there has been a consistent tendency indicating that visiting teams consistently win marathons lasting 20 or more innings significantly (10 percent) more often than home teams.

The evidence suggests that this tendency has little or anything to do with causes which have changed the game over the decades, such as increased usage of specialized relief pitchers.

My hypothesis is that visiting teams, not knowing how many runs they need to score to win, score as many as they can, while home teams, knowing how many runs they need to score to tie, limit their strategies to scoring only enough runs as they need to tie. This is my conjecture as to why visiting teams win 10 percent (55 percent vs. 45 percent) more often than do home teams in marathons lasting 20 or more innings.

Longest Rain Delay: 8 Hours 12 Minutes

If one loves long marathon baseball games lasting 20 or more innings, what better to accompany them than a long, long rain delay! The most time due to rain delays in a Massachusetts Rules marathon was 2 hours 50 minutes, plus some, in the 172-inning 1860 game cited earlier. The game endured two delays in the bottom of the 13th, 20 minutes September 25 and 2 hours 30 minutes September 26. Then there were two more delays of unknown duration on October 4 and 5, both in the top of the 173rd, which was never played.

The longest rain delay to ever accompany a non-Massachusetts Rules marathon was 2 hours in the top of the 13th on May 15, 1981, at Disch-Falk Field in Austin. The Texas Longhorns defeated the Rice Owls 7–6 in 20 innings in a game suspended due to the long rain delay at 1:15 A.M., and then finished the next afternoon. The second longest rain delay in a marathon was 1 hour 46 minutes in the bottom of the 11th September 7, 1990, at Greer Stadium in Nashville. The Omaha Royals defeated the Nashville Sounds 8–7 in 20 innings at 3:50 A.M. Old Comiskey saw the longest rain delay in a major league marathon, as the top of the 14th was delayed 17 minutes in a 21-inning game May 26, 1973.

Two marathons were delayed for reasons other than rain. At San Antonio, the April 29, 1960, 24-inning game vs. Rio Grande Valley was delayed by a scoreboard fire in the bottom of the 23rd. And the April 18, 1981, start of the epic 33-inning Rochester at Pawtucket struggle was delayed for a half hour by power failure in the outfield lights.

Old Comiskey holds the record for the longest major league rain delay ever — seven hours 23 minutes on August 12, 1990. The game vs. the Rangers never even got started. It was finally called off at 8:58 P.M., and then played five days later on August 17 in Texas. The minor league record is held by Yogi Berra Stadium in Little Falls, New Jersey, where the start of the August 14, 2000, Northern League game was delayed by rain for seven hours 6 minutes. The Catskill Cougars eventually downed the New Jersey Jackals 6–1, finishing up at 11:06 P.M.

Yankee Stadium holds the record for the most controversial rain delay in history. On July 27, 1951, the White Sox played the Yankees before 50,125 fans in the middle of a heated pennant race between the two clubs. With the Yankees leading 3–1 and rain clouds swirling in the sky above the Bronx, the White Sox came to bat in the top of the ninth. After the first two batters reached base on a single and a walk, it began to rain and Yankee third baseman Gil McDougald went to the mound to confer with pitcher Tom Morgan.

Umpire Bill McGowan ejected McDougald for de-

laying the game, and White Sox manager Paul Richards protested the game because of Yankee delaying tactics. Yankee manager Casey Stengel then also protested the game, saying McDougald's ejection was unwarranted. A single narrowed the Yankee lead to 3-2, and then a 26-minute rain delay was called by the umpires from 10:49 P.M. to 11:15 P.M. When the game resumed, the Yankees made three pitching changes but the White Sox managed to take a lead 4-3 on a basesloaded two-run single before another rain delay was called at 11:30 P.M. After a 62-minute wait, the umpires called the game, with the final score reverting to the score at the end of the final completed inning, giving the Yankees a 3-1 victory. The White Sox appeal of the game was denied, and the White Sox fans were less than pleased.

The longest rain delay ever recorded occurred during the NCAA tournament at MacKenzie Field, Holyoke, Massachusetts on May 24, 1978. In the top of the seventh, with the Delaware Blue Hens leading the Harvard Crimson 1–0, the umps waited eight hours twelve minutes, from 1:50 P.M. until 10:02 P.M., before calling the game off.

Empirical Results for Major League Marathons

Since major league baseball began in 1871, and continuing through 2005, there were 46 regular season major league marathons lasting 20 or more innings out of a total of 199,906 games played: 26 in the NL, 18 in the AL, one in the Negro National League, and one in the Negro American League. The empirical statistical probability therefore that a major league game will take 20 or more innings is 46 / 199,906 = 1 / 4346, or 0.02301 percent. This indicates a marathon should take place roughly every 4346 games.

Picking a random year, 2005, with each of 30 teams playing 81 home games, there were 2430 regular season games, plus 30 (it could have been anywhere from 24 to 41) post-season games, so there were 2460 games. Assuming 2460 major league games per season, a major league marathon taking 20 or more innings can empirically be expected to come along roughly every 4346 / 2460 = 1.77 seasons. So we should empirically expect a marathon in the future a little more often than once every other season.

What have we actually experienced recently in the major leagues? Over the past 28 years, from 1981 through 2008, we have three separate eras. For 1981 through 1992, before the Rockies and Marlins existed, we should have expected a marathon to occur every 2.0 seasons; for 1993–96, before the Diamondbacks and Rays existed, it was every 1.9 seasons; and since 1997, it has been every 1.7 seasons. Over the entire past 28 years, the weighted average is 1.8, so we should expect 28 / 1.8 = 15 marathons, but we have had only 12.

Extra-Inning and Marathon Scoring Records

For 47 years, the highest scoring major league extrainning game was the 18-inning Athletics 18–17 win over the Indians in Cleveland July 10, 1932, when Jack Burnett got nine hits and Eddie Rommel relieved in the 2nd for the A's and went the rest of the way for the win, still the longest-ever relief effort in major league history. On May 17, 1979, however, the 10-inning Phillies 23–22 win over the Cubs at Wrigley Field broke that record.

The most runs scored by both teams in extra innings of a major league game is 13, both in games won by New York NL teams. On June 15, 1929, at Forbes Field, the Giants and Pirates were tied at 11 after 9 innings, both scored one in the 11th, then the Giants scored 8 in the 14th while the Pirates only scored 3. Final score: New York 20 Pittsburgh 15. On July 4, 1985, at Atlanta Stadium, the Mets and Braves were tied at 8 after 9 innings, both scored two in the 13th, and both scored one in the 18th. Then the Mets scored 5 in the 19th, while the Braves scored only 2. Final score: New York 16 Atlanta 13 at 3:55 A.M. The postgame Fourth of July fireworks show was faithfully carried live back to New York viewers from 4:01 A.M. to 4:12 A.M. by the Mets WOR-TV broadcast team, which included Tim McCarver, who was no doubt recalling his lack of lightning speed at 3:15 A.M. in Philadelphia a decade before on September 25, 1975, which allowed Rusty Staub of the Mets to throw him out at the plate, thus ending another game that had been threatening to go until dawn!

The Vanorsdale Athletic Club and the Shalala Athletic Club scored the most combined number of runs in one extra inning July 25, 1934, in Connellsville, Pennsylvania when Shalala scored 5 in the top of the 25th, and Vanorsdale scored 7 in the bottom of the 25th to win 13–11.

The PCL Edmonton Trappers scored the most runs ever in one extra inning by one team in a minor league game July 27, 2004, in Memphis, when they defeated the Redbirds 15–3 with 12 runs in the 12th. The Rangers scored the most runs ever in one extra inning by one team in a major league game July 3, 1983, in Oakland, when they defeated the A's 16–4 with 12 runs in the 15th. One hundred years earlier, on September 6, 1883, the Cubs scored the most runs ever in one inning in a major league game when they scored 18 in the 7th inning to defeat Detroit 18–0. Joseph City High School of Arizona scored 28 runs in one inning while defeating Ash Fork High School 46–4 April 15, 1974.

The highest scoring doubleheaders saw 54 runs scored, on August 21, 1894, as the Beaneaters (later named the Braves) defeated the Reds in Boston 18–3 and 25–8, and July 4, 1939, when the Red Sox defeated the A's in Philadelphia 17–7 and 18–12.

The highest scoring major league marathon is the 21-

inning Padres 11–8 win over the Expos in Montreal May 21, 1977. The record for the highest scoring minor league marathon was set July 8, 1938, when the visiting Fulton Eagles of the Kitty (Kentucky-Illinois-Tennessee) League scored five in the 20th to defeat the Paducah Indians 14–9 at Hook Park.

The record for the highest scoring "other" category marathon was set August 1, 1932, when the Knights of Pythias's A Team and the K of P's B Team battled through 23 innings to a 19–19 tie at the Schultheiss Farm in Elyria, Ohio.

Of course we could also count games played under Massachusetts Rules. Then our highest scoring marathon would be Medway's 100–78 victory over Upton in Ashland, Massachusetts July 28–29, 1859. But if we're going to count that game, we might as well count planned marathons too. So the record for highest scoring marathon is the African Gray Birds' 127–110 victory over the Red-Eyed Nites in the Women's Marathon 24 Hours for Africa in Tucson October 18–19, 2003.

Databases on Run Production Per Inning

To predict how many games will go into extra innings, and how many extra innings they will last, we first have to determine how many runs are scored in each inning. I went through every available box score for all games taking 20 or more innings, and recorded the number of runs scored in the 10th inning, 11th, 12th, etc. through the 45th inning. This created a database of 5298 innings in 206 games. I did the same for every major league extra-inning game played during the 1980s. This created an additional database of 8952 innings in 1957 games.

I then discovered Dave Smith's much larger database, mentioned earlier, with 1,129,558 innings in 122,906 games. It soon became obvious Smith's database is much more thorough than mine for innings 1–19. However, since my database on 20 and more inning games is 100 percent complete for innings 20–45 and Smith's is not, it is also obvious my database for innings 20–45 is much more thorough than Smith's.

We now have two valuable databases. In the first, we have a complete database for all games lasting 20 or more innings. In this database, one sees what one would expect intuitively. Run production in marathons going 20 or more innings is very low in innings 10–19, which is why these games tend to stay tied and last until at least the 20th inning. The second database, consisting of Smith's data for innings 1–19 and my database for innings 20–45, is the best available database to predict how many runs teams will score in any given inning. Here are the two databases:

Runs scored per inning for all games, tabulated by inning for innings 1–45, based on Smith's major league data for innings 1–19 and Lowry's data for innings 20– 45:

Inning	Inning	Runs Per
	Datapoints	Inning
Smith		
1	245,812	0.561
2	245,812	0.431
3	245,812	0.491
4	245,812	0.497
5	245,812	0.491
6	245,446	0.507
7	244,856	0.493
8	244,088	0.486
9	243,394	0.433
10	23,026	0.399
11	12,906	0.398
12	7,220	0.385
13	4,044	0.396
14	2,282	0.397
15	1,240	0.392
16 17	704 378	$0.380 \\ 0.384$
17	202	0.302
18	116	0.302
19	110	0.440
Lowry		
20	412	0.279
21	254	0.319
22	156	0.314
23	96	0.250
24	62	0.145
25	48	0.167
26	32	0.156
27	24	0.250
28	18	0.111
29	14	0.143
30	10	0.300
31 32	8 8	0.250 0.250
33	6	0.250
33 34	0 4	0.000
35	4	0.500
36	4	0.000
37	2	0.000
38	2	0.000
39	2	0.000
40		0.000
41	2 2 2 2 2 2 2	0.000
42	2	0.000
43	2	0.000
44	2	0.000
45	2	0.500

Runs scored per inning for just those games lasting 20 or more innings, tabulated by inning for innings 10–45 based on Lowry data for all games which have gone 20 or more innings *and* which have a box score:

Inning	Inning Datapoints	Runs Per Inning
Lowry		
10	412	0.019
11	412	0.039
12	412	0.024
13	412	0.019
14	412	0.010

15	412	0.029
16	412	0.005
17	412	0.015
18	412	0.034
19	412	0.063
20-45	see above	see above

Parts of this database are less valid than others simply because of a lower number of existing data-points. Smith's database has a total of 2,259,116 datapoints. It starts with 245,812 inning data-points (representing 122,906 games) in the first inning and remains there through the fifth inning. As games start to get called due to weather and darkness, the number of datapoints falls gradually to 243,394 in the ninth inning. That number then falls off dramatically to 23,026 in the tenth inning, 12,906 in the eleventh, etc. By the time it gets to the 19th inning, it has fallen to only 116 datapoints.

My database on all games that have lasted 20 or more innings which have a box score has a total of 5298 datapoints. It starts with 412 inning data-points (representing all 206 games lasting 20 or more innings for which box scores exist) in the tenth inning and remains there through the 20th inning. Then it falls off to 254 data-points in the 21st inning, and by the 28th it is down to only 18 data-points, meaning that we only have box scores for 9 games, or 18 inning datapoints, which have gone 28 or more innings.

As the Smith data for runs per inning approaches inning 20, and as the Lowry data approaches inning 30, we begin to see significantly higher variability in runs per inning, simply due to a smaller number of datapoints. The Smith data shows 0.384 in the 17th inning, then plummets down an unrealistic 27 percent to 0.302 in the 18th, and then zooms up an unrealistic 46 percent to 0.440 in the 19th. Similarly, the Lowry data shows 0.156 in the 26th inning, then zooms up an unrealistic 60 percent to 0.250 in the 27th, and then plummets down an unrealistic 56 percent to 0.111 in the 28th. However, this is the very best database available. For innings 20–45 it is 100 percent complete data, based on every single box score in existence for games lasting 20 or more innings.

The data shows that run production is 0.000 for innings 34 and 36–44 because we have no box scores showing any team ever scoring in those innings. Only six teams have ever played a 36th inning; and two of those teams played a game with no existing box score. Only two teams have ever played innings 37 through 45.

Six very interesting facts arise out of these two databases.

First, run production is significantly higher in the first inning than in any other inning. Whereas teams score 0.487 runs per average inning, the visiting team scores 0.514 and the home team scores 0.607 runs in the first inning. Higher scoring in the first inning is expected because this is the only inning during a game in which teams are assured their best batters, at the top of the order, will all bat together. Second, the often cited "home field advantage" is true for innings 1–8, with the home team scoring an average of 0.048 runs more per inning than the visiting team. As cited above, this home field advantage is by far most prominent in the first inning, when the home team scores on average 0.093 runs more than the visiting team.

Third, what appears to be a "visiting team advantage" exists from the ninth inning on, with the home team scoring an average of 0.051 runs less than the visiting team in innings 9–45. After some reflection, this is reasonable because after the home team scores enough runs to win the game from the bottom of the ninth inning on, the game is over and so the home team stops batting. An interesting variation shows that this difference is much less in the 9th inning (0.035 runs) than in innings 10–45 (0.124 runs). Whereas in extra innings, the teams are always tied at the start of the inning, things are different in the 9th inning since the home team may be way behind at the start of the inning and so therefore may score many runs to catch up before winning in the bottom of the 9th.

Fourth, run production is much lower in extra innings than in innings 1–9. This makes sense because extra-inning games are usually low scoring contests. High scoring games rarely go into extra innings, whereas there are many 1–0 and 2–1 extra-inning games. It is statistically much less likely for the Philadelphia Athletics 49–33 NA victory over the Troy Haymakers June 28, 1871 (highest scoring major league game ever), or the Cubs 26–23 win over the Phillies August 25, 1922 (highest scoring NL game ever), or the Red Sox 22–14 win over the Athletics June 29, 1950 (highest scoring AL game ever), to remain tied and go into extra innings.

Fifth, my data limited to only games going 20 or more innings shows dramatically lower run production in innings 10-19 than does Smith's data based on all games. For example, Smith's data shows runs per inning of 0.392 in the 15th inning, vs. my data showing 0.029 in the 15th. Smith's data for innings 10 and 12-17 is more than ten times higher than my data for these same innings. Smith's data averages out to 0.387 runs per inning for innings 10-19. My data, on the other hand, averages out to only 0.026 runs per inning for innings 10–19. We can conclude marathons lasting 20 or more innings produce 93 percent fewer runs during innings 10–19 than do extra-inning games in general. In other words, games that last 20 or more innings are most often very low scoring games. If many runs are scored, the game probably will not remain tied very long, and will therefore probably not last 20 or more innings.

Sixth, other than higher scoring in the first inning, all scoring variations, both between visiting and home teams, and also between different innings, are so minor they may be ignored statistically in terms of creating a mathematical model to predict how long games will last. An average game involves each team scoring 0.487 runs per inning. Assuming the visiting and home teams each win roughly half the time, there will be an average of 8.75 innings (17.5 half-innings) per game in a game that does not go into extra innings, or a total of $0.487 \times 17.5 = 8.52$ runs per game. Variations such as the home team scoring 0.048 more runs per inning in innings 1–8, while interesting, are statistically insignificant. When evaluating the possibility of whether an average game, involving between 8 and 9 runs, will go into extra innings, this 0.048 runs per inning is only 0.048 / 8.52 = 0.0056, a statistically irrelevant half of one percent of the total runs in the game.

Mathematical Model of Extra Innings

Based upon this data, Dr. Darren Glass, Professor of Mathematics at Gettysburg College, and I have constructed a mathematical theory of extra innings. We begin by assuming there are no meaningful statistical differences between offensive production from the tenth inning forward in an extra-inning game. Our assumption that offensive production in any given inning, starting with the 10th, is independent of offensive production in any other inning allows us to use the statistical definition of independent events. If two events are statistically independent, then the probability of both occurring is equal to the probability of one event occurring times the probability of the other event occurring.

To establish our model, we made some definitions. Let n = the number of innings in an extra-inning game. Let P(n) = the *P*robability an extra-inning game will last n innings. Let T = the probability a game is *T*ied after 9 innings = the probability a game will go into extra innings.

We previously determined empirically that T was 5.68 percent in the 1800s, 9.17 percent in 1900–48, and 9.41 percent in 1949–2004. Our theoretical model predicts this should be 10.3 percent. There are most likely several factors contributing to this small discrepancy between our predicted theoretical value and the actual empirical data. The biggest factor is that to build our model we assumed both teams are average, whereas in the real world one team may be above average and the other team may be below average, which would decrease the probability of a game going into extra innings, perhaps from our estimated 10.3 percent to the current real-world 9.4 percent. For predictions regarding future games, we use T = 0.103.

Let k = the probability both teams will score the same number of runs in one inning. This is where we use the extensive databases mentioned earlier. My database results in the value of k being 0.5841. We checked additional databases (see Bibliography) from which it is possible to obtain an empirical value for k, including G.R. Lindsey's 0.5696 for all innings in 1958, Lindsey's 0.5895 for just extra innings in 1958, Lindsey's 0.5552 for all innings in 1959, Lindsey's 0.5479 for just extra innings in 1959, and Kevin Woolner's 0.5606 for 1980–98.

Having made the required definitions, now let's separate an extra-inning baseball game into three separate events. The *First* part is the beginning, or first nine innings. The *Second* part is the middle, from the tenth inning through the next-to-the-last inning, the (n-1) th inning. The *Third* part is the last inning, the n th inning. Since these three events are statistically independent, P (n) = the probability of a game going n innings will be the probability of the first part occurring times the probability of the second part occurring times the probability of the third part occurring times the probability of the third part occurring.

The probability of the first part of a future game occurring, as we have already discussed, is empirically T = 0.0941, and theoretically T = 0.103. For predictions regarding future games, we use T = 0.103.

The probability of the second part of the game occurring is k, the probability both teams will score the same number of runs in one inning, times itself for as many times as there are innings in the middle part of the game, from the tenth inning through the (n - 1) th inning. The number of innings in this middle part of the game is (n - 1) - 9 = (n - 10). We have to multiply k times itself (n - 10) times, so the probability of the second part of the game occurring is k (n - 10).

The probability of the third part of the game occurring is trickier than the previous two probabilities. If k = the probability both teams score the same number of runs in an inning, then (1-k) has to be the probability both teams do *Not* score the same number of runs in an inning, because the combined probability that they do and they do Not score the same number of runs in an inning must add up to one. Now all we need to do to get our theoretical model is to string together the three different probabilities of our three independent events, and multiply them together:

 $P(n) = T k^{(n-10)} (1-k)$.

Looking at our model, it is important to do sensitivity analysis. If k increases, P (n) also increases. As the probability increases that both teams score the same number of runs in the same inning, extra-inning games tend to go longer. That makes sense. How does changing k change the possibility a game will go exactly 20 innings? Let's look at the different possible values for k cited above. The lowest value for k cited was 0.5479, using Lindsey's work on extra-inning games in 1959. Using this value for k, P (20) = the probability of a game going 20 innings, is 0.011 percent. The highest value for k cited was 0.5895, using Lindsey's work on extra-inning games in 1958. Using this value for k, P (20) = the probability of a game going 20 innings, is 0.021 percent, or double the probability for the lowest value of k. So we need to be very careful to get the correct value of k, since the probability of a game going n number of innings is very sensitive to the value of k. This is why I took all the time to gather all the data on runs scored per inning.

Getting the correct value of k is crucial to success of

our model. Another important example of sensitivity analysis for the value of k is examining how k varies as offensive strength changes. Data gathered by Woolner, as well as common sense, suggests offensive powerhouse teams have a different scoring distribution than teams scoring few runs. One of the key features of our model is that it takes as an input the average number of runs per inning that each team scores. As we would expect, the model agrees with Woolner's data showing the probability that two teams score the same number of runs per inning goes down as offensive production increases, since one team is more likely to have a "breakout" inning and score a high number of runs. This also indicates the number of extra-inning games and their lengths should increase during eras when scoring is low, such as the Dead Ball Era of 1900-19, which did in fact happen.

If we assume teams are of equal offensive strength, the value of k varies from 0.373 when both teams score 1.0 run per inning, to 0.553 when both teams score 0.5 runs per inning, up to 0.866 when both teams score only 0.1 runs per inning. From now on, it will be assumed both teams score 0.487 runs per inning, based on Smith's data, the best available empirical data. This choice yields a value of k of 0.5559.

Predictions Based on the Mathematical Model

Our theoretical model can be used to predict several things. First, it predicts the theoretical probability a game will take x number of innings to play. What are the odds a game will go exactly 26 innings, or it will go 26 or more innings? Second, it predicts the theoretical probability a game of x number of innings will take place in the next y number of years. Does a 26-inning major league game come along every 50 years, or every 100 years, or how often? What is the probability of a record-breaking 27-inning major league game taking place in the next 25 years? What are the odds of a record-breaking 34-inning minor league game taking place before 2050?

To accomplish this task, we have to make some decisions. Do we count ties, fake ties, thrown out games, forfeits, playoffs, World Series? I have done so. How many major league games have ever been played? I have calculated this number through 2005 as 199,906. This includes all games in the Negro Leagues, which I count as major leagues. How many minor league games have ever been played? Using the Sumner and Johnson/Wolff books as my guideline (see Bibliography), I have calculated this number from 1877, the first year of minor league play, through 2005 as 1,418,902. How many games in the "other" category have been played, including school games, amateur games, international games, and women's games? I have estimated this number as ten times the number of minor league games, or 14,189,020.

Thus, my estimate of the total number of baseball games ever played through 2005, at all levels and at all locations world-wide, is 199,906 + 1,418,902 + 14,189,020 = 15,807,828. It should be noted many "other" category games are scheduled for only 6 or 7 innings, and some minor league games are scheduled for only 7 innings. Interestingly, the minimum number of innings for a game to be "official," whether scheduled for 6, or 7, or 9 innings, seems to have always been 4 ½ or 5, with the losing team required to have had at least five innings in which to bat.

I believe 100 percent of all major league marathons taking 20 or more innings have been discovered. The only possible exception to this may be that there could be one or more Negro League marathons yet to be discovered. For the purposes of this research, however, I assume all major league marathons have been found.

This is definitely *Not* the case for games in the minor leagues and the "other" category. For minor league games, despite intensive research over a 46-year period, I have perhaps found only 50 percent of the minor league marathons which have actually been played, due to incomplete and missing league records. And for the "other" category, due to lack of media coverage, I have perhaps found only 5 percent. Therefore, the empirical statistical probabilities for marathons developed in this article for all games at all levels are based on major league data, which is the only data which is complete.

Assuming the percentage of marathons in the majors, minors, and "other" categories is the same, which is a reasonable assumption, we can estimate the number of marathons missing from my research. A good estimate of the number of minor league marathons would be 1,418,902 times 0.02301 percent, the percentage of such games in the majors, or 326. Since I have only found 184, that means I may be missing 142 minor league marathons. This would indicate I have found 56 percent of minor league marathons, and am still missing 44 percent.

Certain aspects of baseball strategy affect the length of an extra-inning game. These aspects include such managerial strategies as going for a tie at home and a win on the road, frequency of using relief pitchers, cold vs. warm weather which can depress or elevate the average of 0.487 runs scored per inning, temperatures getting colder and colder as a night game progresses, and eras such as the Dead Ball Era when offensive production has been significantly different.

Using our model, we have calculated the theoretical chances of major league games going x innings. The fit between our theoretical data and actual empirical data is very good. For example, our theoretical model predicts the probability of a major league game going exactly 10 innings should be 4.57 percent; actual data from 1871–2005 indicates it is actually 4.12 percent. Our model has predicted reality to within 0.45 percent, which is good.

Similarly, our model predicts the probability of a

major league game going 16 innings to be 0.135 percent; actual data shows it is actually 0.133 percent. Our model has predicted reality to within 0.002 percent, which is very good. Our model predicts the probability of a major league game going 22 innings to be 0.00398 percent; actual data shows it is actually 0.00405 percent. The fit between our model and the real world is surprisingly good! Now let us look at our theoretical probabilities of a major league game going x innings as compared to actual empirical data.

On the following page are the statistical probabilities that any given major league game will take 10 innings, 11 innings, etc. all the way up to 50 innings. The empirical data is based on the 199,906 major league games played 1871–2005. It is assumed that each team will score 0.487 runs per half inning, and that the value of k, or the probability that both teams will score the same number of runs in any given inning, is 0.5559, or 55.59 percent.

Another method of evaluating how closely our theoretical model corresponds to empirical data is to determine T and k from the empirical data of how many major league games have gone x innings. Our formula for P (n) is a negative binomial distribution. Summing up the actual empirical probabilities for games going into extra innings gives us T = 9.36 percent, rather than the 9.41 percent we used above.

The mean number of extra innings from the empirical data is 2.26623 (meaning a game of 11.26623 innings). In a negative binomial distribution, the mean = 1/(1-k). Solving this equation for k gives us k = 0.5587 rather than the 0.5559 we used above.

Using T = 9.36 percent and k = 55.87 percent, we can calculate the fitted probabilities. These are also shown below. The fit between these fitted probabilities and empirical data is significantly better than the fit between our theoretical probabilities and the empirical data. For example, if we compare the 4.12 percent fitted probability for 10-inning games to the actual 4.13 percent experienced in the major leagues from 1871 to 2005, our model has predicted reality to within 0.01 percent, which is very close.

Conclusions on the Relative "Rarity" of Record-Long Games

So how "rare" are record-long marathons: Boston's 26 innings in the major league category set in 1920, Pawtucket's 33 innings in the minor league category set in 1981, and Mito, Japan's 45 innings in the "other" category (schools/amateur/international/women) set in 1983? Our theoretical model predicts that the 26-inning major league record game is not as rare as empirical data would indicate, but that the 33-inning minor league record game and 45-inning "other" category record game are significantly more rare than empirical data would indicate.

According to our theoretical model for the period 1871, the beginning of the major leagues, through 2005, we should expect 57 major league marathons for the period. In fact, there were only 46.

We should expect a 50 percent chance to experience a major league game of 20 or more innings in any given season. We should expect 0.939 major league games, or almost one, to have gone 27 or more innings by now. In fact, we have not yet had such a game. We should expect a 10.9 percent chance to see a major league game of 27 innings or more in any given decade. Since we have been waiting almost fourteen decades now, it is not at all unrealistic to expect we could very soon have a major league game last 27 or more innings. So the 26-inning Boston game may be *NOT SO rare.* So far, so good. Our model is realistic, and fairly consistent with empirical data.

We should expect 6.68 minor league games to have gone 27 or more innings. In fact, we have had six such games, further indication our model is doing a good job of predicting reality. We should expect 0.087 minor league games to have gone 33 innings. In fact, we have had one such game, which means our actual count is 1 / 0.087 = 11.5 times the expected count. So the 33-inning Rochester at Pawtucket game may be *VERY rare* indeed.

We should expect a 99.3 percent chance we will have a minor league marathon of 20 or more innings in any given season, a 0.13 percent chance we will have a minor league game of 34 or more innings in any given season, a 1.32 percent chance of seeing a minor league game of 34 innings or more in any given decade, and a 9.4 percent chance of seeing a minor league game of 34 innings or more in 75 years.

We should expect 0.000954 "other" category games to have gone 45 innings. In fact, we have had one game of 45 or more innings, which means our actual count of one is 1 / 0.000954 = 1048 times the expected count. We should expect 0.00000366 "other" category games to last 45 or more innings in 75 years. So the 45-inning Mito game may be *EXTREMELY rare* indeed!

Our model allows us to estimate the probability of games lasting a certain number of innings or longer in each of our three categories. This is an alternative method, and perhaps a more easily understood way to express how "rare" are marathons of a certain length. Let's use this approach to compare relative probabilities of breaking the current records for major league, minor league, and "other" category games.

There is a 50 percent chance we will see a major league game break the record of 26 innings, and go 27 innings or more in the next 60 years. There is a 95 percent chance we will see a major league game go 27 innings or more in the next 260 seasons. So the 26-inning major league record set in Boston in 1920, while rare, is not so rare that we should not expect to see it possibly broken some day soon.

There is a 50 percent chance we will see a minor

Innings	Actual Games Probability	Empirical Probability	Theoretical Probability Percentage	Fitted Percentage
4.5–9	181,466	90.77566	N/A	N/A
10	8106	4.05491	4.57423	4.13185
11	4561	2.28157	2.54281	2.30863
12	2549	1.27510	1.41355	1.28992
13	1413	0.70683	0.78579	0.72073
14	831	0.41569	0.43682	0.40270
15	426	0.21310	0.24283	0.22500
16	259	0.12956	0.13499	0.12572
17	140	0.07003	0.07504	0.07024
18	69	0.03451	0.04171	0.03925
19	40	0.02001	0.02319	0.02193
20	20	0.01000	0.01289	0.01225
21	10	0.00500	0.007163	0.00685
22	8	0.00400	0.003982	0.00383
23	2	0.00100	0.002214	0.00214
24	3	0.00150	0.001230	0.00119
25	2	0.00100	0.0006839	0.00067
26	1	0.00050	0.0003802	0.00037
27	0	0	0.0002114	0.00021
28	0	0	0.0001175	0.00012
29	0	0	0.00006531	0.00007
30	0	0	0.00003631	0.00004
31	0	0	0.00002018	0.0000203
32	0	0	0.00001122	0.0000113
33	0	0	0.000006236	0.00000634
34	0	0	0.000003466	0.00000354
35	0	0	0.000001927	0.00000198
36	0	0	0.000001071	0.00000111
37	0	0	0.0000005954	0.000000618
38	0	0	0.000003309	0.00000345
39	0	0	0.0000001839	0.000000193
40	0	0	0.0000001023	0.000000108
41	0	0	0.0000005685	0.000000602
42	0	0	0.0000003160	0.000000336
43	0	0	0.0000001757	0.000000188
44	0	0	0.00000009765	0.0000000105
45	0	0	0.00000005428	0.0000000587
46	0	0	0.00000003018	0.0000000328
47	0	0	0.00000001677	0.0000000183
48	0	0	0.000000009324	0.0000000102
49	0	0	0.000000005183	0.00000000572
50	0	0	0.000000002881	0.00000000320

league game break the record of 33 innings, and go 34 innings or longer in the next 523 years. There is a 95 percent chance we will see a minor league game go 34 innings or more in the next 2257 years. So the 33-inning minor league record set in Pawtucket in 1981 may be very rare, and although it could be broken at any time, we should not expect to see it broken anytime soon.

There is a 50 percent chance we will see an "other" category game break the record of 45 innings, and go 46 innings or more in the next 59,975 years. There is a 95 percent chance we will see an "other" category game go 46 innings or more in the next 259,207 years, or just two-thirds the age of mankind (about 300,000 years old). So the 45-inning "other" category record set in Mito, Japan in 1983, seems to be extremely rare indeed. Although it could be broken at any time, it seems very conceivable it may never be broken.

Summary

As long as there is a "hot stove league," baseball fans will argue whether somewhere back in the murky uncharted depths of undocumented baseball history there may perhaps be a game that lasted longer than the 45inning game in Mito, Japan, which is the longest baseball game by innings ever played, excluding Massachusetts Rules and planned marathon games.

Could I have spent 46 years searching for the longest game by innings, and missed one lasting more than 45 innings? I don't think so, but anything is possible. It took me 40 years 11 months of searching before July 23, 2004, which is when, thanks to Mr. Masaru "Massy" Ikei of Yokohama, Japan, I found the 45-inning game in Mito. So who is to say a game longer than 45 innings may not be found in some dusty archive next month?

Some day in the future, a major league game will

probably break the 26-inning barrier set on May 1, 1920, by the Dodgers and Braves at Braves Field in Boston. And some other day, perhaps in the far future, a minor league game may break the 33-inning record set on April 18 and June 23, 1981, by the Red Wings and Paw Sox in Pawtucket's McCoy Stadium. But will a game ever break the 45-inning record set September 20, 1983, in Mito, Japan by Light Manufacturing and Tanaka Hospital? Just think about that: 45 innings! That's five full regular-length 9-inning games. Only time will tell.

II. GAME RECORDS

Games of 20 Innings or More

45 Innings (1)

Ibaraki-Mito Kenei (Prefectural) Kyujo (Stadium), Mito, Japan — 9/20/1983 — Amateur Industrial Emperor's Cup Nan-shiki Tournament — Tokyo Raito (Light) Kogyo (Manufacturing Company) 2 Miyazaki Tanaka Byouin (Hospital) 1 in 8:19, umpire snack break delay 0:06 top 26th, players refused 0:30 break top 26th —100 fans at end —finished at 5:15 P.M.

37 to 44 Innings (0)

No game, thus far, has been identified as having gone more than 36 but less than 45 innings.

36 Innings (2)

North End Grounds, Stoneham, Massachusetts – 8/28/1880 – Zouaves 21 Benecia Boys 15 – 350 fans.

Recreation Park (I), Columbus, Ohio — 7/5/1907 — Amateur — Heintz Victors 2 Columbus Selects 2 in 3:50.

35 Innings (1)

Matsue Kyujyo (Stadium), Matsue, Japan — 7/20/ 1935 and 7/21/1935 — Japan Junior High School League — Oota Chu 2 Matsue Chu (later Matsue Kita Koto-gakko) 1 in 6:58, suspended after 4:48 and 23 innings.

34 Innings (0)

No game, thus far, has been identified as having gone 34 innings.

33 Innings (1)

McCoy Stadium, Pawtucket, Rhode Island — 4/18/ 1981 and 6/23/1981— International League — power failure delay 0:30 at start, Pawtucket Paw Sox 3 Rochester Red Wings 2 in 8:25, suspended after 8:07 and 32 innings —1740 fans, 150 fans Midnight, 100 fans top 21st, 60 fans 1 A.M., 27 fans top 27th, 19 fans at suspension, 5756 fans on 6/23 — suspended at 4:07 A.M. in the early morning of 4/19, dawn was at 5:00 A.M., finished at 6:18 P.M. on 6/23.

32 Innings (1)

Robert C. Wynn Field, Bradenton, Florida – 4/4/ 1987 – National Junior Collegiate Athletic Association — Hillsborough Community College Hawks 6 Manatee Community College Lancers 4 in 7:30—200 fans, 45 fans at end —finished at 9:30 P.M.

31 Innings (0)

No game, thus far, has been identified as having gone 31 innings.

30 Innings (3)

Van Wert, Ohio —?/??/1904 — Amateur — Independent Team A with Hay of Kankakee pitching 3 Independent Team B 2.

Brookside Park, Cleveland, Ohio – 7/4/1907 – Amateur – Brooklyn Athletic Club 4 East End All Stars 1 in 5:50.

Tokyo, Japan — 8/30/1951— Japan Junior High School League — Takefu Junior High School 0 Kohama Junior High School 0 in 5:45 — finished at 2:45 P.M.

29 Innings (4)

South Side Playgrounds, San Francisco, California—10/12/1929—Amateur—Regulars 9 Yannigans 8 in 5:00—finished at 6:00 P.M.

Nishi-Kyogoku Kyujo (Stadium), Kyoto, Japan — 5/2/1959 — National Municipal League Championships — Nippon Shinyaku (New Pharmaceuticals) Company 2 Kurashiki Reiyon (Rayon) Company (later Kuraray Company) 1 in 6:14.

Al Lang Field (I), St. Petersburg, Florida – 6/14/ 1966 – Florida State League – Miami Marlins 4 St. Petersburg Cardinals 3 in 6:59 – 740 fans, 175 fans at end –finished at 2:29 A.M. in the early morning of 6/15.

Providence, Rhode Island – 6/17/1978 – Sunset League – Mooseup Valley 4 Sports Enterprises 2 in 6:45; 2nd game cancelled.

28 Innings (6)

Dorchester Franklin Field Diamond #5, Boston, Massachusetts — 6/8/1907 — Boston Grammar School League Championship Game — Henry L. Pierce Grammar School of Dorchester 4 Bennet Grammar School of Brighton 3 in 5:50 — finished at 3:50 P.M.

Columbus Avenue Grounds, Boston, Massachusetts — 9/11/1912 — Amateur — Willow Athletic Club 5 St. Philips' All-Stars 4 in 4:30 — finished at 2:30 P.M. Delaware City, Ohio – 7/18/1914 – Amateur – Columbus Champions 1 Delaware Stars 0.

Korakuen Kyujyo (Stadium), Tokyo, Japan — 5/24/ 1942 — Japanese Federation — Taiyo 4 Nagoya 4 in 3:47 — finished at 6:27 P.M.

Tokyo Kyujyo (Stadium), Tokyo, Japan – 9/8/ 1951 – Industrial League – Marubeni Trading Company 2 Kajima Coal Company 1.

Vic Kapsner Memorial Park, Lastrup, Minnesota — 7/23/2005 — Minnesota Town Team League — Lastrup Lakers 1 Pierz Brewers 0 in 5:50—100 fans; 300 fans at end — finished at 7:25 P.M.

27 Innings (7)

Monarch Field, Houston, Texas - 8/??/1934 -Negro Texas-Oklahoma League - Austin Black Senators 3 Newgulf Black Buffs 2.

Managua, Nicaragua – late 1940s – Nicaraguan Second Division Amateur League – Manta Nica defeated Schumann in 6:13.

Estadio (Stadium) Domingo Santana, Leon, State of Guanajuato, Mexico — 7/17/1960 — Mexican Center League — Aguascalientes Tigres (Tigers) 5 Leon Diablos Rojos (Red Devils) 4.

Dunn Field, Elmira, New York — 5/8/1965 — Eastern League — Elmira Pioneers 2 Springfield Giants 1 in 6:24 — 386 fans, 400 fans at end — finished at 9:24 P.M.

Ube City Kyujyo (Stadium), Ube City, Japan — 5/ 13/1973 and 5/14/1973 — Japan High School League — Matsue Sho 2 Shimonoseki Sho 0, suspended after 18 innings.

MacArthur Stadium, Syracuse, New York – 6/19/ 1985 and 6/20/1985 and 6/21/1985 – International League – Pawtucket Paw Sox 3 Syracuse Chiefs 1 in 7:07, suspended after 5:36 and 22 innings, continued 6/20, rain delay 0:13 top 23rd, 2nd rain delay 0:50 bottom 24th, suspended again after 6:07 and 23½ innings, finally completed 6/21–1233 fans on 6/19; 200 fans when suspended after 22 innings; 3020 fans on 6/21– suspended at 1:12 A.M. in the early morning of 6/20, suspended again at 9:05 P.M. on 6/20, finished at 7:31 P.M. on 6/21.

Burlington Athletic Stadium, Burlington, North Carolina — 6/24/1988 — Appalachian League — Bluefield Orioles 3 Burlington Indians 2 in 8:15 — 2204 fans, 84 fans at end —finished at 3:27 A.M. in the early morning of 6/25.

26 Innings (8)

Bloomington Grounds, Bloomington, Illinois – 5/31/1909 – Illinois-Indiana-Iowa (Three-I) League – Decatur Commodores 2 Bloomington Bloomers 1 in 4:20, rain delay 0:15 bottom 5th, 2nd game postponed –1200 fans – finished at 6:35 P.M.

Athletic Park, Dixon, Illinois – 6/25/1909 – Semi-Pro League – Dixon Browns 3 Muscatine Independents 2 in 4:00–150 fans, 1000 fans at end – finished at 7:20 P.M. Braves (later Nickerson) Field, Boston, Massachusetts – 5/1/1920 – National League – Robins (later Dodgers) 1 Braves 1 in 3:50 – 4000 fans – finished at 6:50 P.M.

Oakland City Park, Atlanta, Georgia — 7/26/ 1922 — Amateur — Oakland City 3 West End 2 — 500 fans.

Estadio (Stadium) Nacional (later Estadio Dennis Martinez), Managua, Nicaragua — 7/10/1949 — Nicaraguan First Division Amateur League — Navarro Cubs 4 Escuelas Internacionales 3 in 6:30—finished at 4:30 P.M.

Belleville, Province of Ontario, Canada – 6/7/ 1975 – Ontario League – St. Catherine's Jackets 8 Belleville 2; 2nd game postponed –finished at 12:00 Midnight.

V.J. Keefe Stadium, San Antonio, Texas — 7/14/1988 and 7/16/1988 — Texas League — San Antonio Missions 1 Jackson Mets 0 in 7:23, suspended after 7:10 and 25 innings — 3792 fans on 7/14, 3260 fans on 7/16 suspended at 2:15 A.M. in the early morning of 7/15.

KeySpan Park, Brooklyn, New York—7/20/ 2006 — New York-Pennsylvania League — Oneonta Tigers 6 Brooklyn Cyclones 1 in 6:40 — 9004 fans; 190 fans at end — finished at 6:45 P.M.

25 Innings (20)

North Dakota State Militia Training Grounds, Devils Lake, North Dakota — 7/18/1891— Red River Valley League — Grand Forks Black Stockings 0 Fargo Red Stockings 0 in 4:10—finished at 8:10 P.M.

Prosperity, Missouri – 5/31/1908 – Interstate (Kansas/Missouri/Oklahoma) League – Mineral 8 Prosperity 6 in 4:18 – finished at 6:18 P.M.

Green Bay, Wisconsin – 4/12/1915 – Amateur – White Sox 2 Fox Stars 1.

Pacific Junction, Iowa — 8/14/1926 — Amateur — Folsom 7 Pleasant Valley 4 in 5:00.

Dallas or Wichita Falls, Texas — 8/10/1931— City League — Sullivan Grocery 3 unknown opponent 3.

Koshien Kyujyo (Stadium), Osaka, Japan – 8/ 19/1933 – Koshien National High School Tournament Semifinal – Chukyo-shogyo 1 Akashi-chugaku 0 in 4:55 – finished at 6:05 P.M.

Connellsville, Pennsylvania — 7/25/1934 — Amateur — Vanorsdale Ac 13 Shalala Ac 11.

Hoolulu Park (later Wong Stadium), Hilo, Hawaii – 2/20/1938 – Hawaii Japanese League – Papaikou Paps 5 Shinmachi Shins 5 in 4:55.

Yuanshan Qiuchang (Stadium), Taipei, Taiwan — 7/28/1941—Taiwan High School League — Jiayi Agriculture and Forestry Institute (Jianong) 2 Taipei Industrial School 1 in 5:29.

Japan -7??/1948 — Koshien National High School Tournament Regional Qualifier — one high school team defeated another high school team.

Shikoku Kyujyo (Stadium), Shikoku, Japan — 4/28/1958 — Japan High School League — Takamatsushogyo 2 Tokushima-shogyo 0 in 5:47. Turnpike (later Arlington) Stadium, Arlington, Texas - 6/17/1965 - Texas League - Austin Braves 2 Dallas-Fort Worth Spurs 1 in 5:10- 2546 fans finished at 12:40 A.M. in the early morning of 6/18.

Honolulu Stadium (later Termite Palace), Honolulu, Hawaii — 3/25/1967 — Hawaii High School League — Kamehameha High School Warriors 9 McKinley High School Tigers 7 in 6:12.

Municipal Stadium, West Palm Beach, Florida — 8/8/1967 — Florida State League — West Palm Beach Braves 3 Leesburg Athletics 2 in 5:35, 2nd game postponed — finished at 11:35 P.M.

Shea Stadium, New York, New York — 9/11/1974 — National League — Cardinals 4 Mets 3 in 7:04 — 13,460 fans, 1000 fans at end including Commissioner Bowie Kuhn — finished at 3:13 A.M. in the early morning of 9/12.

Farmers Field, Hayward and Rebels Field, San Lorenzo, California – 4/9/1975 and 5/2/1975 – California High School League – Hayward High School Farmers 2 San Lorenzo High School Rebels 1, suspended after 17 innings in Hayward, completed in San Lorenzo –15 fans at San Lorenzo; then Hayward 5 San Lorenzo 4 in 7 innings.

Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois – 5/8/1984 and 5/9/1984 – American League – White Sox 7 Brewers 6 in 8:06, suspended after 5:29 and 17 innings –14,754 fans on 5/8, 17,715 fans on 5/9 – suspended at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 5/9.

Waterloo Stadium, Waterloo, Iowa and Riverview Stadium (later Alliant Energy Field), Clinton, Iowa — 7/6/1989 and 8/17/1989 — Midwest League — Waterloo Diamonds 4 Clinton Giants 3 in 7:37, suspended after 5:46 and 19 innings in Waterloo, completed 8/17 in Clinton — 876 fans on 7/6 in Waterloo, 809 fans on 8/17 in Clinton — suspended at 12:51 A.M. in the early morning of 7/7.

Memorial Stadium, Everett, Washington and Civic Stadium, Eugene, Oregon – 8/18/1989 and 8/24/ 1989 – Northwest League – Eugene Emeralds 6 Everett Giants 5 in 7:13, suspended after 5:50 and 19 innings in Everett, completed 8/24 in Eugene – 2998 fans on 8/24 – suspended at 12:50 A.M. in the early morning of 8/19.

Parque (Park) Yldefonso Sola Morales, Caguas, Puerto Rico —11/23/1994 and 12/10/1994 — Puerto Rican Winter League — Mayaguez Indios (Indians) 4 Caguas Criollos (Natives) 3, suspended after 16 innings.

24 Innings (24)

South End Grounds (I), Boston, Massachusetts — 5/11/1877 — International Association at Inter-Collegiate Association — Manchester Professionals 0 Harvard College Crimson 0 in 3:30.

Huntington Grounds, Boston, Massachusetts — 9/1/1906 — American League — Athletics 4 Americans (later Red Sox) 1 in 4:47, 2nd game postponed — 18,084 fans — finished at 6:47 P.M. Wehrle Park, Newark, Ohio – 8/23/1907 – Ohio-Pennsylvania League – Sharon Giants 3 Newark Newks 2.

McClelland, Iowa – 6/14/1908 – Amateur – Lee-Glass-Amdressen Originals 2 McClelland 2 in 4:35.

Freeman's Park, Oakland, California — 6/8/1909 — Pacific Coast League — San Francisco Seals 1 Oakland Oaks 0 in 3:35.

Ashmont Playground, Boston, Massachusetts — 7/18/1909 — Amateur 14-Year Old League — Norfolks of Dorchester 6 Rosemonts of Ashmont 5.

Union Park, Clarksburg, West Virginia — 7/3/1910 — West Virginia League — Mannington Drillers 1 Clarksburg Bees 1 in 3:00— 500 fans.

Sanatoga (later Tumbling Run) Park, Pottsville, Pennsylvania — 6/18/1911 — Amateur — Reading Ruth Athletic Club 1 Pottsville Alerts 0 in 4:00.

Buffalo Park, Sacramento, California — 9/10/1911— Pacific Coast League — Portland Beavers 1 Sacramento Sacts 1 in 3:45.

Baltimore, Maryland -7/26/1913 – Amateur – White Lilies 4 Locust Point Junior All-Stars 2 in 5:00-finished at 3:00 P.M.

Glendon, Pennsylvania — 7/3/1916 — Professional at Amateur — Reading Kolbs' Professionals 3 Glendon 3.

Shibe Park (later Connie Mack Stadium), Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 7/21/1945 — American League — Tigers 1 Athletics 1 in 4:48 — 4526 fans.

Riverside Park, Shakopee, Minnesota — 8/13/1950— Minnesota River League — Shakopee Indians 4 St. Peter Saints 3 in 5:00—finished at 7:30 P.M.

Japan — 7/??/1951 — Koshien National High School Tournament Regional Qualifier — Morioka Number One High School vs. Aomori High School, final score 1–0.

Mission Stadium, San Antonio, Texas — 4/29/1960 — Texas League — Rio Grande Valley Giants 4 San Antonio Missions 2 in 5:42, dog-on-the-field delay 15th, scoreboard fire delay 20th, light failure delay 22nd — 820 fans; 700 fans at end — finished at 1:27 A.M. in the early morning of 4/30.

Sioux Falls Stadium (later Howard Wood Field), Sioux Falls, South Dakota — 8/3/1965 — Basin League — Pierre Cowboys 5 Sioux Falls Packers 3 in 6:15 — 421 fans — finished at 1:45 A.M. in the early morning of 8/4.

Astrodome, Houston, Texas - 4/15/1968 – National League – Astros 1 Mets 0 in 6:06 - 14,219 fans, 3000 fans at end —finished at 1:37 A.M. in the early morning of 4/16.

Flamingo Park, Miami Beach, Florida — 4/23/1970 — Florida High School League playoffs — Miami High School Stingarees 1 Hialeah High School Thoroughbreds 0 in 5:16, then Miami Coral Park High School Rams 9 Miami High School 0 in 2:44 and 7 innings — 250 fans; 500 fans at end of 1st game —1st game finished at 8:16 P.M.; 2nd game finished at 11:44 P.M.

Regional Park, Midwest City, Oklahoma - 7/??/

1973 — American Legion — Post 170 Midwest City 2 Post 170 Choctaw 1 in 6:06 — 50 fans, 15 fans at end finished at 2:06 A.M. in the early morning of 7/??.

Owen Fish Park, Fairfield, Connecticut — 8/14/1992 and 8/15/1992 — Northeast Regionals, National Amateur League — New Rochelle Robins 2 Worcester Warriors 1 in 6:10, suspended after 10 innings.

Matanzas or Estadio (Stadium) Nelson Fernandez, San Jose de Las Lajas, Cuba —12/8/1993 and 12/9/1993

Serie Nacional — Matanzas vs. Habana, suspended. Rebels Field, Norridge, Illinois — 4/23/2004 and 5/25/2004 — Illinois High School League — Evergreen Park High School Mustangs 2 Ridgewood High School Rebels 1 in 4:40, suspended after 2:00 and 12 innings — 40 fans on 4/23; 80 fans on 5/25 — suspended at 6:15 P.M. on 4/23; finished at 6:55 P.M. on 5/25.

Greer Stadium, Nashville, Tennessee — 5/5/2006 and 5/6/2006 — Pacific Coast League — New Orleans Zephyrs 5 Nashville Sounds 4 in 8:07, suspended after 6:23 and 18 innings — 9124 fans on 5/5, 300 fans at suspension; 10,016 fans on 5/6 — suspended at 1:25 A.M. in the early morning of 5/6; finished at 7:44 P.M. on 5/6.

23 Innings (44)

Goodwater Grove (later Oak Park, then Billy Hebert Field), Stockton, California – 7/2/1905 – California State League – Stockton Millers 1 Lodi Crushers 0 in 3:26.

Cook Athletic Park, Hutchinson, Kansas — 5/29/ 1907 — Western Association — Oklahoma City Mets 2 Hutchinson Salt Packers 1 in 3:10 — 900 fans, 1500 fans at end — finished at 7:10 P.M.

Green Bay, Wisconsin – 7/14/1907 – Wisconsin Association – Green Bay Orphans 2 La Crosse Badgers 1 in 4:05 –1800 fans.

Mount Holly, New Jersey — 8/4/1907 — Amateur — Ex-Philadelphia 3 Harrison of Mount Holly 2.

Kingfisher, Oklahoma — 5/11/1908 — Oklahoma State League — Crescent 0 Kingfisher 0.

North Corry Fairgrounds, Corry, Pennsylvania – 7/25/1908 – Semi-Pro – Falconer (NY) 3 Corry (PA) 1 in 3:50–1000 fans.

Fond du Lac, Wisconsin – 8/4/1908 – Wisconsin-Illinois League – Oshkosh Indians 4 Fond du Lac Cubs 2 in 3:40.

League Park, San Antonio, Texas — 7/5/1910 — Texas League — Waco Navigators 1 San Antonio Bronchos 1 in 4:14; 2nd game postponed —finished at 6:44 P.M.

Bangs, Texas — 5/23/1913 — Amateur — Antioch 1 Live Oak 1.

Cook Athletic Park, Hutchinson, Kansas — 7/3/1914 — Kansas State League — Hutchinson Salt Packers 4 Great Bend Millers 3.

Brewster Park, New Haven, Connecticut — 7/14/ 1914 — Eastern Association — Hartford Senators 2 New Haven White Wings 1 in 3:55, 2nd game postponed. Wehrle Park, Newark, Ohio – 7/4/1915 – Amateur – Knights of Columbus 2 Athletics 2.

League Park, Norfolk, Virginia — 8/14/1915 — Virginia League — Suffolk Tigers 2 Norfolk Tars 2 in 3:40.

Andrews Field, Chattanooga, Tennessee — 6/13/1919 — Southern League — Atlanta Crackers 2 Chattanooga

Lookouts 2 in 3:40.

Pershing Park, Santa Barbara, California — 7/11/ 1920 — Amateur Championship Series — Santa Barbara 2 Ventura 1.

North End Park, Belleville, Illinois – 9/11/1921 and 9/18/1921 – Amateur – St. Louis Keen Kutters 5 Belleville B's 3, suspended after 3:54 and 20 innings.

Douglas Park, Rock Island, Illinois—8/4/1922— Mississippi Valley League—Ottumwa Cardinals 4 Rock Island Islanders 2 in 4:10.

Langley Flying Field, Hampton, Virginia—?/??/ 1923 — US Army at US Army Air Force — Fort Monroe Artillerymen 2 Langley Field (later Air Force Base) Birdmen 2.

Schultheiss Farm, Elyria, Ohio - 8/1/1932 - Knights of Pythias's Team A 19 Knights of Pythias's Team B 19.

Kansas City, Missouri — 7/30/1933 — Amateur — Kansas City 48th Street Merchants 16 St. Joseph Bottling Works 10 in 5:00.

St. Louis or Tenbrook, Missouri – 5/??/1934 – Amateur – St. Louis Red Sox vs. Tenbrook Athletic Club in 6:30.

Bee Hive (later Braves Field, then Nickerson Field), Boston, Massachusetts -6/27/1939 – National League

– Dodgers 2 Bees (later Braves) 2 in 5:15 – 2457 fans. Groton, New York – 9/19/1948 – Southern Tier

League – Homer Braves 0 Groton 0 in 4:30–3000 fans.

Municipal Stadium, Hagerstown, Maryland — 9/3/1949 — Connecticut/Delaware/Maryland/New Jersey/Pennsylvania (Inter-State) League — York White Roses 3 Hagerstown Owls 2 in 4:25, 2nd game postponed — 560 fans.

Royal Athletic Park, Victoria, Province of British Columbia, Canada — 5/5/1951— Western International League — Salem Senators 1 Victoria Athletics 0 in 4:36 in afternoon game, then Salem 3 Victoria 1 in 2:01 in evening game — 1200 fans for afternoon game; 2800 fans for evening game — afternoon game finished at 7:06 P.M.

Osaka Kyujyo, Osaka, Japan —10/10/1954 — Pacific League — Kintetsu 1 Toei 0 in 4:30.

Shea Stadium, New York, New York — 5/31/1964 — National League — Giants 8 Mets 6 in 7:23 in 2nd game, Giants 5 Mets 3 in 2:29 in 1st game — 57,037 fans, 8000 fans at end — 2nd game finished at 11:25 P.M.

Lawrence Hardball Park, Lodi, California— 8/31/1966—California League—Reno Silver Sox 6 Lodi Crushers 5 in 6:00—502 fans, 20 fans at end finished at 2:00 A.M. in the early morning of 9/1.

All-Sports Stadium, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma —

5/28/1970 and 5/29/1970 – American Association – Indianapolis Indians 10 Oklahoma City 89'ers 7 in 6:37, suspended after 4:53 and 17 innings – 3118 fans on 5/28, 2836 fans on 5/29 – suspended at 12:53 A.M. in the early morning of 5/29.

Clark Field, Lafayette, Louisiana — 3/27/1971— National Collegiate Athletic Association — University of Southwestern Louisiana (now University of Louisiana-Lafayette) Ragin' Cajuns 6 McNeese State University Cowboys 5 in 5:03, then McNeese State 13 Southwestern Louisiana 10 in 2:30 and 7 innings — 1st game finished at 6:33 P.M., 2nd game finished at 10:03 P.M.

Grayson Stadium, Savannah, Georgia — 4/14/1973 — Southern League — Columbus Astros 10 Savannah Braves 4 in 6:14 in 1st game, 2nd game postponed — 827 fans — finished at 12:45 A.M. in the early morning of 4/15, post-game fireworks finished at 1:10 A.M.

Newtown, Pennsylvania — 6/3/1973 — Pennsbury/ Bucks County Senior Babe Ruth League — Newtown Lions 2 South Bristol Hawks 1 in 5:30—finished at 7:30 P.M.

Estadio (Stadium) Alberto Hoeffer, Nogales, State of Sonora, Mexico — 7/29/1973 — Liga (League) Norte de Sonora — Cananea Mineros (Miners) 4 Nogales Internacionales (Internationals) 2 in 6:23 — 1800 fans finished at 1:53 A.M. in the early morning of 7/30.

Camaguey, Cuba—1/4/1975—Serie Nacional— Camaguey Granjeros (Grain Workers) vs. Camaguey Ganaderos (Cattle Raisers), suspended.

Estadio (Stadium) Cordoba, Cordoba, State of Veracruz, Mexico -4/28/1977 – Mexican League – Aguascalientes Rieleros (Railroadmen) 6 Cordoba Cafeteros (Coffee Growers) 2 in 6:30 – 4000 fans, 800 fans at end – finished at 3:00 A.M. in the early morning of 4/29.

Fort Lauderdale Stadium, Fort Lauderdale, Florida -5/24/1981 and 5/25/1981—Florida State League— Fort Lauderdale Yankees 1 Tampa Tarpons 0 in 5:32, suspended after 5:23 and 22 innings—717 fans, 200 fans at suspension—suspended at 12:53 A.M. in the early morning of 5/25.

Smith-Wills Stadium, Jackson, Mississippi — 7/6/1982 — Texas League — Tulsa Drillers 11 Jackson Mets 7 in 6:39 —1105 fans, 200 fans at end —finished at 2:09 A.M. in the early morning of 7/7.

Leon or Rivas, Nicaragua — 12/18/1983 — Nicaraguan First Division — Leon 5 Rivas 4.

Parque (Park) Yldefonso Sola Morales, Caguas, Puerto Rico –1/8/1989 and 1/9/1989 – Puerto Rican Winter League – Mayaguez Indios (Indians) 4 Caguas Criollos (Natives) 3, suspended.

Legion Field, Downers Grove, Illinois – 4/28/1995and 5/3/1995 and 5/8/1995 and 5/12/1995 – Illinois High School League – Downers Grove North High School Trojans 12 Elmhurst York High School Dukes 11 in 7:00, suspended after 3:00 and 8 innings, suspended a 2nd time after 6:00 and 20 innings – 75 fans on 4/28, 75 fans on 5/3, 250 fans on 5/12 – suspended at 7:15 P.M. at 4/28, suspended 2nd time at 7:15 P.M. on 5/3, rained out on 5/8, finished at 5:15 P.M. on 5/12.

Municipal Stadium, Greenville, South Carolina — 8/6/1998 and 8/7/1998 — Southern League — Greenville Braves 10 Huntsville Stars 7 in 6:26, suspended after 5:25 and 20 innings — 4098 fans — suspended at 12:13 A.M. in the early morning of 8/7, finished at 6:01 P.M. on 8/7.

Estadio (Stadium) Veracruz, Veracruz, State of Veracruz, Mexico – 6/30/2001– Mexican League – Mexico City Diablos Rojos (Red Devils) 2 Veracruz Aguila (Eagle) 1.

Fukuoka Dome, Fukuoka, Japan —10/26/2002 — Kyushu College League Semifinal — Nihon Bunri University 2 Kyushu Kyoritsu (Community College) 1 in 6:00.

Dust Devils Stadium, Pasco, Washington — 8/16/ 2004 and 8/17/2004 — Northwest League — Spokane Indians 2 Tri-City Dust Devils 1 in 6:37, suspended after 5:46 and 20 innings — 919 fans on 8/16 — suspended at 12:52 A.M. in the early morning of 8/17, finished at 6:53 P.M. on 8/17.

22 Innings (66)

11th Street Grounds, Tacoma, Washington — 5/16/ 1891— Pacific Northwest League — Tacoma Daisies 6 Seattle Blues 5 in 3:35 — 900 fans — finished at 7:05 P.M.

Park, Frostburg, Maryland – 8/12/1905 – Amateur – Frostburg Champions 1 Lonaconing 0.

Cooperstown Diamond, Cooperstown, North Dakota — 7/19/1907 — Amateur — Hannaford 2 Binford 1 in 3:10.

Ringwood Park, Clinton, Iowa — 7/25/1907 — Illinois-Indiana-Iowa (Three-I) League — Peoria Distillers 3 Clinton Infants 0 in 3:10.

Greenwood, South Carolina – 4/26/1908 – South Carolina High School League – Anderson Boy's High School Yellowjackets 5 Greenwood High School Eagles 4 in 3:45 – finished at 7:15 P.M.

Schaller, Iowa – 6/4/1908 – Amateur – Sac City 3 Schaller 3 in 3:30 – finished at 6:00 P.M.

Adelaide Park, Providence, Rhode Island – 7/4/ 1908 – Tim O'neil League – Red Hooks of Providence 5 Olneyville 4 in 3:30–finished at 2:35 P.M.

Sodality Park, San Jose, California – 6/26/1909 – Amateur – Junior Outlaws 11 Sodality Stars 9.

Recreation Park, Vancouver, Province of British

Columbia, Canada — 7/31/1909 — Northwestern League — Portland Colts 3 Vancouver Beavers 0 in 3:08.

Danville, Ohio – 6/16/1910 – Amateur – Amity 6 Danville 6 in 5:00.

Riverside Park, Sioux City, Iowa -7/19/1914 -Western League - Wichita Wolves 3 Sioux City Indians 2 in 4:48.

Athletic Park, Burlington, Iowa – 6/27/1915 – Central Association – Keokuk Indians 0 Burlington Pathfinders 0 in 3:50 – finished at 6:10 P.M.

League Park, Norfolk, Virginia – 9/4/1915 – Virginia League – Norfolk Tars 3 Suffolk Tigers 3. Douglas Park, Rock Island, Illinois—7/9/1916— Illinois-Indiana-Iowa (Three-I) League—Hannibal Mules 8 Rock Island Islanders 3 in 4:00.

Ebbets Field, Brooklyn, New York — 8/22/1917 — National League — Robins (later Dodgers) 6 Pirates 5 in 4:15 in 1st game, Pirates 0 Robins 0 in 2 innings in 2nd game, called off—1st game finished at 5:45 P.M.

Birch Hills, Province of Saskatchewan, Canada – 8/2/1919 – Northern Saskatchewan League – Melfort 1 Birch Hills 1.

Washington Park, Los Angeles, California—4/10/ 1921—Pacific Coast League—Seattle Rainiers 12 Los Angeles Angels 8 in 4:46, 2nd game postponed— 13,000 fans.

Stonewall Jackson Park, Danville, Virginia – 7/9/1921 – Piedmont League – High Point Furniture Makers 7 Danville Tobacconists 6 in 4:07.

Braves (later Nickerson) Field, Boston, Massachusetts — 5/17/1927 — National League — Cubs 4 Braves 3 in 4:13.

Oakland Baseball (later Oaks) Park, Emeryville, California – 5/6/1928 – Pacific Coast League – Oakland Oaks 7 Sacramento Senators 6 in 4:00 in P.M.

game, Sacramento 5 Oakland 2 in 1:45 in A.M. game. Ozona, Texas — 7/11/1933 — West Texas Independent League — Abilene 3 Ozona 3.

Griffith (later Crockett) Park, Charlotte, North Carolina — 9/7/1942 — Piedmont League — Charlotte Hornets 4 Asheville Tourists 3 in 3:30.

Horlick Athletic Field, Racine, Wisconsin – 7/31/ 1947 – All-American Girls' League – South Bend Blue Sox 4 Racine Belles 3 in 4:30–1456 fans.

Marsh Field, Muskegon, Michigan —?/??/1949 — All-American Girls' League — Muskegon Lassies 1 Rockford Peaches 0 in 3:02, then Rockford 3 Muskegon 1 in 6 innings.

Red Wing (later Silver) Stadium, Rochester, New York – 8/13/1950 – International League – Rochester Red Wings 3 Jersey City Giants 2 in 5:15 – 5863 fans – finished at 6:45 P.M.

Texas League (later Oiler) Park, Tulsa, Oklahoma — 8/16/1952 — Texas League — Tulsa Oilers 6 Houston Buffalos 5 in 4:43 — 2200 fans — finished at 12:45 A.M. in the early morning of 8/17.

Korakuen Kyujyo, Tokyo, Japan — 6/25/1953 — Pacific League — Daiei Stars 4 Kintetsu 4 in 4:33.

Seals Stadium, San Francisco, California – 8/5/ 1953 – Pacific Coast League – Portland Beavers 4 San Francisco Seals 2 in 4:20–1394 fans.

Texas League (later Oiler) Park, Tulsa, Oklahoma — 5/13/1954 — Texas League — Tulsa Oilers 3 Dallas Eagles 2 in 4:41—finished at 12:41 A.M. in the early morning of 5/14.

Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan – 6/24/1962 – American League – Yankees 9 Tigers 7 in 7:00 – 35,638 fans, 20,000 fans at end –finished at 8:30 P.M.

Korakuen Kyujyo (Stadium), Tokyo, Japan — 7/29/1962 — Tokyo Industrial League — Nippon Beer Company 1 Denden Kinki Company 0 in 5:27. North Balwyn, State of Victoria, Australia —?/??/ 1963 — Amateur — North Balwyn Third Nine vs. Ormond.

Kentucky Wesleyan Field (now Panther Park), Owensboro, Kentucky — 4/20/1964 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Kentucky Wesleyan College Panthers 8 Oakland City College Mighty Oaks 7 in 6:30, 2nd game postponed — 200 fans — finished at 11:30 P.M.

Glenmont, Ohio – 7/4/1965 – Triple Counties League – Glenmont 8 Loudonville 7 in 5:00.

Municipal Stadium, Waterbury, Connecticut — 7/31/1966 — Eastern League — Waterbury Giants 9 York White Roses 8 in 6:13 — finished at 12:46 A.M. in the early morning of 8/1.

MacArthur Stadium, Syracuse, New York—8/24/ 1966—International League—Syracuse Chiefs 5 Richmond Braves 4 in 4:54—1469 fans—finished at 12:39 A.M. in the early morning of 8/25.

D.C. (later R.F.K.) Stadium, Washington, D.C.— 6/12/1967 — American League — Senators 6 White Sox 5 in 6:38 — 7236 fans, 2000 fans at end — finished at 2:44 A.M. in the early morning of 6/13.

New York, New York — 6/24/1967 — Atlantic Collegiate League — Mount Vernon Generals 2 Defiance Indians 0.

Parque Deportivo del Seguro Social (Social Security Stadium), Mexico City, Distrito Federal (Federal District), Mexico -7/14/1969 - Mexican League - Reynosa Broncos 5 Mexico City Diablos Rojos (Red Devils) 3 in 5:38 - 3895 fans - finished at 1:08 A.M. in the early morning of 7/15.

Reddie (later Berry) Field, Arkadelphia, Arkansas — 4/28/1970 — National Association of Intercollegiate Athletics — Henderson State College (later University) Reddies 3 Harding College (later University) Bisons 2.

Shively Field, Lexington, Kentucky – 6/3/1970– Kentucky High School League – Madisonville High School Maroons 12 Lexington Lafayette High School Generals 11 in 6:03.

Recreation Park, Visalia, California -6/19/1971 and 6/20/1971— California League — Visalia Mets 11 Bakersfield Dodgers 9 in 7:00, suspended after 4:50 and 15 innings, called a tie, however league president later reversed tie game ruling and ordered game to be continued -867 fans on 6/19, 449 fans on 6/20— suspended at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 6/20.

Ray Winder Field, Little Rock, Arkansas -7/21/1971—Dixie Association — Arkansas Travelers 5 Dallas-Fort Worth Spurs 4 in 5:56 — 7030 fans, 600 fans at end — finished at 1:26 A.M. in the early morning of 7/22.

Metropolitan Stadium, Bloomington, Minnesota — 5/12/1972 and 5/13/1972 — American League — Brewers 4 Twins 3 in 5:47, suspended after 5:35 and 21 innings — 8628 fans on 5/12, 7871 fans on 5/13 suspended at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 5/13.

Estadio (Stadium) Teodoro Mariscal, Mazatlan, State of Sinaloa, Mexico – 10/26/1973 – Mexican Pacific League — Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2 Guasave Algodoneros (Cotton Pickers) 1 in 7:02 — finished at 2:32 A.M. in the early morning of 10/27.

Husker Diamond (later Buck Belzer Field), Lincoln, Nebraska – 4/26/1974 – National Collegiate Athletic Association – University of Colorado Buffaloes 2 University of Nebraska Cornhuskers 1 in 4:45.

Waterloo Stadium, Waterloo, Iowa — 5/30/1976 — Midwest League — Burlington Bees 4 Waterloo Royals 3 in 5:33 in 1st game, then Burlington 4 Waterloo 3 in 2:09 and 8 innings in 2nd game — 603 fans — 1st game finished at 8:33 P.M., 2nd game finished at 11:12 P.M.

Pinar del Rio or Santiago, Cuba —1/25/1977 — Series Nacionales — Vegueros vs. Santiago Mineros (Miners).

MacArthur Stadium, Syracuse, New York -7/30/1980—International League — Richmond Braves 12 Syracuse Chiefs 6 in 5:55 -3117 fans, 1000 fans at end —finished at 1:28 A.M. in the early morning of 7/31.

Estadio (Stadium) Quisqueya, Santo Domingo, Dominican —1/12/1981— Dominican Winter League — Orientales Estrellas (Oriental Stars) 4 Licey Tigres (Tigers) 3 in 5:40—finished at 3:30 A.M. in the early morning of 1/13.

Parc (Park) Victor Gadbois, Montreal, Province of Quebec, Canada — 8/30/1981—Ligue Montreal Junior (Montreal Junior League) — St. Leonard Cougars 2 Sud-Ouest (Southwest) 1 in 5:30—finished at 7:30 P.M.

American Legion Ballfield, Mobridge, South Dakota — 8/4/1987 — South Dakota Amateur Association — Mobridge 7 Redfield Merchants (later Pheasants, then Dairy Queen) 6 in 5:47.

Parry Field, Belmont, State of Western Australia, Australia — 3/17/1989 — Western Australia Grand Final Series — Melville Braves 6 Morley Eagles 2 in 5:35 — 1500 fans — finished at 12:50 A.M. in the early morning of 3/18.

Astrodome, Houston, Texas - 6/3/1989 - National League - Astros 5 Dodgers 4 in 7:14 - 34,425 fans - finished at 2:50 A.M. in the early morning of 6/4.

Stade Olympique (Olympic Stadium), Montreal, Province of Quebec, Canada — 8/23/1989 — National League — Dodgers 1 Expos 0 in 6:14 — 21,742 fans finished at 1:25 A.M. in the early morning of 8/24.

Billy Hebert Field, Stockton, California -9/5/1990and 9/6/1990—California League playoffs—Bakersfield Dodgers 5 Stockton Ports 4 in 6:20, suspended after 5:53 and 21 innings—1497 fans on 9/5; 175 fans when suspended; 1559 fans on 9/6—suspended at 1:27 A.M. in the early morning of 9/6; finished at 6:25 P.M. on 9/6.

Ojiyama Kyujo (Stadium), Otsu, Japan – 5/4/ 1993 – Kansai Gakusei (Osaka University) League – Kwansei Gakuin (University) 3 Ritsumeikan University 2 in 4:45.

Hubert H. Humphrey Metrodome, Minneapolis,

Minnesota — 8/31/1993 — American League — Twins 5 Indians 4 in 6:17 —17,968 fans, 1500 fans at end finished at 1:22 A.M. in the early morning of 9/1.

Estadio (Stadium) Teodoro Mariscal, Mazatlan; State of Sinaloa, Mexico —10/19/1997 — Mexican Pacific League — Culiacan Tomateros (Tomato Growers) 5 Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2 in 6:55 —finished at 2:25 A.M. in the early morning of 10/20.

Cougar Field, Houston, Texas – 2/21/1999 – National Collegiate Athletic Association – Baylor University Bears 8 University of Houston Cougars 2 in 6:43–1225 fans – finished at 10:48 P.M.

Estadio (Stadium) Roberto Clemente, Carolina, Puerto Rico —11/4/2001— Puerto Rican Winter League — Carolina Gigantes (Giants) 2 Caguas Criollos (Natives) 1 in 6:30—finished at 12:30 A.M.

Blacktown Olympic Park, Sydney, State of New South Wales, Australia — 4/19/2003 — New South Wales Under 23 Tournament — Queensland 4 New South Wales/Victoria/Capital Territory Combined Academy 3 in 5:33 — 120 fans, 200 fans at end finished at 8:33 P.M.

Wilson Field, Georgetown, Kentucky — 4/29/2005 — National Association of Intercollegiate Athletics — Lambuth University Eagles 8 Pikeville College Bears 5 in 6:15 — 200 fans, 150 fans at end —finished at 4:45 P.M.

Falcon Park, Auburn, New York -7/7/2005 and 8/14/2005 – New York-Pennsylvania League – Auburn Doubledays 6 Batavia Muckdogs 5 in 6:34, suspended after 6:02 and 20 innings -3242 fans on 7/7, 250 fans left at suspension, 1871 fans on 8/14 – suspended at 1:09 A.M. in the early morning of 7/8, finished at 5:35 P.M. on 8/14 – author sat behind first base for the last two innings.

FirstEnergy Park, Lakewood, New Jersey – 4/26/2006 and 5/7/2006 – South Atlantic (Sally) League – Lakewood BlueClaws 8 Hagerstown Suns 7 in 7:47, suspended after 17 innings and 6:03 - 5487 fans on 4/26, 150 fans top 12th, 31 fans top 17th; 7449 fans on 5/7 – suspended at 12:42 A.M. in the early morning of 4/27, finished at 2:49 P.M. on 5/7.

Petco Park, San Diego, California — 4/17/2008 — National League — Rockies 2 Padres 1 in 6:16 — 25,984 fans — finished at 1:21 A.M. in the early morning of 4/18.

21 Innings (123)

Girard Field, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania – 6/29/ 1878 – Amateur at High School – Yeager 10 Girard College High School Orphans (later Cavaliers) 7 in 4:00.

Lake View Park, Peoria, Illinois — 6/26/1898 — Western Association — Peoria Blackbirds 8 St. Joseph Saints 4 in 4:00.

League Park, Pittsburg, Kansas — 7/7/1903 — Missouri Valley League — Pittsburg Coal Diggers 5 Joplin Miners 4; then Joplin vs. Pittsburg, called after 4 innings.

League Park, Princeton, Indiana-6/27/1905-

Kentucky-Illinois-Tennessee (Kitty) League — Hopkinsville Hoppers 4 Princeton Infants 2 in 3:10—200 fans —finished at 6:10 P.M.

Hardin, Ohio – 7/16/1905 – Amateur – Hardin Champs 5 Portsmouth 4.

The Bronx Ballfield, New York, New York – 9/3/ 1905 – Amateur – Exchange 4 Fultons 3 in 3:25.

Columbus, Ohio — 6/10/1906 — Amateur — Mitchel Specials 0 West Side Nationals 0.

Washington, Pennsylvania — 7/3/1907 — Amateur — Juniors 7 Imperials 6.

Millerville (later Millville), Massachusetts — 5/25/ 1907 — Woonsocket Mill League — Taft-Pierce Mill of Woonsocket 4 Alice Mill of Woonsocket 2 in 3:18.

League Park, Jacksonville, Illinois -6/26/1907 -Iowa State League - Jacksonville Lunatics 3 Burlington Pathfinders 2 in 3:05 - 419 fans.

Gilmore Ground, Gilmore City, Iowa — 6/26/1907 — Amateur — Humboldt Colts 1 Gilmore City Midgets 0 in 5:00—finished at 8:05 P.M.— Humboldt batter Arch Wilder singled in top of 21st, stole second, was safe at third when comebacker to pitcher was thrown to third even though throw beat him by six feet, then stole home and was called safe even though throw beat him by eight feet; umpire Harve Clark was from Humboldt.

Denton, Texas — 6/30/1907 — Amateur — Root Beers 1 Dinkelspeil Sluggers 1.

Point Grounds, Johnstown, Pennsylvania – 8/8/ 1907 – Delaware/New Jersey/Pennsylvania (Tri-State) League – Johnstown Johnnies 4 Reading Pretzels 3 in 2:45.

Castroville, Texas – 8/11/1907 – Amateur – Medina Stars 3 Lone Stars 2.

Vincennes, Illinois — 7/18/1908 — Eastern Illinois League — Charleston Evangelists 4 Vincennes Alices 3.

Athletic Grounds, Sheboygan, Wisconsin — 7/19/ 1908 — Lakeshore League — Sheboygan Chairmakers 1 Milwaukee White Sox 0 in 3:40—finished at 6:25 P.M.

Midlothian, Texas — 8/15/1908 — Amateur — Arkansaw 4 West End 4.

McPherson, Kansas – 7/27/1909 – Kansas State League – Lyons Lions 2 McPherson Merry Macks 1 in 2:50.

Athletic Grounds, Sheboygan, Wisconsin – 6/5/ 1910 – Lakeshore League – Sheboygan Chairmakers 2 Port Washington 1–1000 fans – finished at 7:05 P.M.

Springbrook (later Playland) Park, South Bend, Indiana — 7/13/1910 — Central League — South Bend Bronchos 1 Zanesville Potters 0 in 3:35, 2nd game postponed.

Ironwood, Michigan — 8/6/1911 — Upper Peninsula League — Cary Empires 4 Ironwood Tigers 2 in 4:05, 2nd game between Ironwood and Temple Theatre postponed —finished at 6:10 P.M.

Washington Park, Los Angeles, California – 9/15/

1911— Pacific Coast League — Sacramento Sacts 4 Los Angeles Angels 4 in 3:10.

Beaumont Mill Field, Spartanburg, South Carolina — 6/15/1912 — South Carolina Textile League — Beaumont Mill 1 Inman Mill 0.

St. Cloud, Minnesota – 6/??/1912 – Amateur – Collegians 5 Abeles 2.

Desmet (later De Smet), South Dakota – 6/1/1913 – Amateur – Desmet (later De Smet) 4 Lake Preston 3.

Kankakee, Illinois — 5/25/1914 — Illinois-Missouri League — Streator Boosters 2 Kankakee Kanks 2.

Forbes Field, Pittsburg (later Pittsburgh), Pennsylvania — 7/17/1914 — National League — Giants 3 Pirates 1 in 3:42.

21— Camp Vincent Fairgrounds, Watertown, New York —?/??/1914 — Negro League at Amateur — Harrisville Adirondacks defeated Havana Red Sox.

Arapaho, Oklahoma —?/??/1915 — Amateur — Elk City 0 unknown opponent 0, Cot Deal's father Roy B. Deal pitched the whole way for Elk City.

High School Grounds, Dallas, Texas — 5/1/1915 — Amateur — Revico 11 Rounders 10.

Rowells Field, Salem, Massachusetts — 7/22/1915 — Salem Playground League — Rowells Field 3 Bridge Street Nine 2 in 3:15.

Rock Island Park, Owatonna, Minnesota -7/25/1915 — Mankato 1 Owatonna Gray Sox 1 in 3:57 in 2nd game, Mankato vs. Owatonna in 7 innings in 1:15 in 1st game -2nd game called at 5:57 P.M.

Antelope Park, Lincoln, Nebraska — 8/12/1917 — Western League — Lincoln Links 2 Joplin Miners 1 in 3:38.

South Side Playgrounds, San Francisco, California – 9/16/1917 – Amateur – Jeffersons 10 Mission Merchants 9.

Weeghman Park (later Cubs' Park, then Wrigley Field), Chicago, Illinois – 7/17/1918 – National League – Cubs 2 Phillies 1 in 4:00–finished at 7:00 P.M.

Braves (later Nickerson) Field, Boston, Massachusetts — 8/1/1918 — National League — Pirates 2 Braves 0.

Lake Shore Grounds, Dunkirk, New York – 6/7/ 1919 – Amateur – Ramblers 2 White Eagles 1.

Savin Road Park, New Haven, Connecticut — 8/31/1919 — Eastern League — Worcester Boosters 4 New Haven Weissmen 3.

Oxnard Armory (later Community Center), Oxnard, California — 5/26/1923 — Amateur Oxnard Indoors League — Hueneme Sea Lions/Turtles/Longshoremen 8 Hueneme Sunkist/Citrons/Lemons/ Packing House Workers 7.

Prepatera Diamond, Fullerton, California – 4/9/1927 – National Collegiate Athletic Association at California High School League – Pomona College Sagehens 4 Fullerton High School Indians 3 in 3:00.

Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois — 5/24/1929 — American League — Tigers 6 White Sox 5 in 3:31.

Miami Athletic Field, Oxford, Ohio – 5/30/1930 –

National Collegiate Athletic Association – Miami University Big Reds (later Redskins, then RedHawks) 2 University of Cincinnati Bearcats 1 in 3:30.

Standard Field, Connellsville, Pennsylvania — 6/18/ 1932 — Amateur — Firestones 7 Standard Cardinals 6 in 3:30.

Charleroi, Pennsylvania — 8/6/1933 — Amateur — Book Shoe 8 Monongahela Speedway Mushers 7 in 2:00.

Wauchula, Florida — 9/20/1933 — Orange Belt League — Wauchula 7 Frostproof 4 in 4:00 — finished at 7:00 P.M.

Tech Field, San Antonio, Texas -6/2/1935 – Texas League – San Antonio Missions 4 Dallas Steers 3 in 3:50 in 1st game, 2nd game called after 2 innings – 5000 fans.

Brownsville, Pennsylvania – 8/23/1938 – Amateur – Melrose 3 West Bend 2 in 5:00.

Clintonville, Wisconsin — 6/15/1939 — Northern State League — Clintonville Four Wheel Drive Truckers 1 Two Rivers Polar Bears 0 in 5:15 — finished at 1:45 A.M. in the early morning of 6/16.

Ellsworth, Pennsylvania — 7/4/late 1930's — Amateur All-Star Game — pitched by Joe (Foggy) Petro.

Texas League (later Holland) Park, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma — 9/5/1940 — Texas League — Dallas Rebels 2 Oklahoma City Indians 1 in 3:58 — finished at 12:13 A.M. in the early morning of 9/6.

Council Bluffs, Iowa – early 1940's – Southwest Iowa Tournament – Marian defeated Harlan.

Oriole Park (III), Baltimore, Maryland – 4/23/ 1943 – International League – Toronto Maple Leafs 2 Baltimore Orioles 2.

Third Marine Division (later Trimble) Field, Guam – 5/6/1945 – 41st US Navy Construction Battalion Seabees 2 US Navy Air Base Rinkydinks 1– 1000 fans.

Artillery Park, Wilkes-Barre, Pennsylvania — 5/9/ 1946 — Eastern League — Binghamton Triplets 5 Wilkes-Barre Barons 4 in 4:35 — finished at 12:20 A.M. in the early morning of 5/11.

Hartwell Field, Mobile, Alabama – 8/8/1946 – Southern Association – Atlanta Crackers 4 Mobile Bears 4 in 4:30—finished at 1:30 A.M. in the early morning of 8/9.

McKeta Field, Van Voorhis, Pennsylvania – 6/22/ 1947 – Pigeon Creek League – Bentleyville 4 Van Voorhis 4 in 5:00 – finished at 7:00 P.M.

Sturgeon Bay, Wisconsin — 5/16/1948 — Northern State League — Sturgeon Bay 3 Menominee Indians 2 in 4:50.

Municipal Park, Sanford, Florida — 5/27/1948 — Florida State League — Sanford Giants 8 Palatka Azaleas 7 in 5:15 — finished at 1:15 A.M. in the early morning of 5/28.

Shullsburg, Wisconsin – late 1940's – amateur – Blanchardville Farmers defeated Shullsburg in night game.

Waterloo, Province of Ontario, Canada-9/25/

1950— Ontario Senior Inter-county League — Waterloo Tigers 7 Brantford Red Sox 6.

Legion Park, Eastman, Georgia – 5/27/1952 – Georgia State League – Eastman Dodgers 6 Jesup Bees 5, 2nd game called after 4 innings.

Japan – 7/??/1952 – Koshien National High School Tournament Regional Qualifier – Tsuru (Otsuki) High School defeated unknown high school.

Nishinomiya Kyujyo (Stadium), Nishinomiya, Japan — 7/3/1952 — Central League vs. Pacific League — Central League All-Stars 2 Pacific League All-Stars 2 in 4:30.

Gindorff Field, Stuart, Florida — 5/24/1953 — South Florida Coast-Glades League — Jupiter Pennocks 1 Stuart Sailfishes 1 in 4:00—finished at 7:00 P.M.

Gilmore Field, Hollywood, California — 5/12/ 1954 — Pacific Coast League — Oakland Oaks 5 Hollywood Stars 1 in 4:52 — 2559 fans — finished at 1:10 A.M. in the early morning of 5/13.

Clemons, Iowa — 5/10/1955 — Iowa High School League playoffs — Roland High School Rockets 3 Clemons High School 2 in 4:35.

Minster, Ohio – 7/18/1956 – American Legion – St. Mary's 4 Lima 3 in 5:30 – finished at 1:05 A.M.

Estadio (Stadium) 11 de Noviembre (November 11th), Cartagena, Colombia —1/13/1957 — Winter League — Indios 4 Kola Roman 3, Willard 7 Vanytor 4 in 1st game.

Tingley Field, Albuquerque, New Mexico — 5/3/ 1957 — Western League — Albuquerque Dukes 5 Colorado Springs Sky Sox 3 in 4:55 — 2116 fans —finished at 7:55 P.M.

Montello, Wisconsin - 6/30/1957 – Central State League – Montello 3 Redgranite Quarriers 2 – finished at 7:00 P.M.

Jacksonville Ball Park (later Municipal Stadium, then Wolfson Park), Jacksonville, Florida — 4/22/1959 — South Atlantic (Sally) League — Jacksonville Braves 3 Knoxville Smokies 2 in 5:01—1814 fans, 200 fans at end —finished at 1:01 A.M. in the early morning of 4/23.

Sicks' Stadium, Seattle, Washington - 5/8/1959 -Pacific Coast League - Seattle Rainiers 6 Phoenix Giants 5 in 5:56, 2nd game cancelled -1787 fans finished at 12:56 A.M. in the early morning of 5/9.

Russwood Park, Memphis, Tennessee – 6/21/1959 – Southern Association – Memphis Chicks 6 Chattanooga Lookouts 5 in 5:38 – finished at 7:10 P.M.

Dunn Field, Elmira, New York — 6/19/1962 — Eastern League — Elmira Pioneers 4 Williamsport Grays 3.

Fairground Park, Fond du Lac, Wisconsin — 7/31/ 1963 — Fox River Valley League — Little Chute-Kimberly Papermakers 11 Fond du Lac 5 in 6:01—finished at 2:01 A.M. in the early morning of 8/1.

Paramus High School Field (I), Paramus, New Jersey – 6/?/1965 – Bergen County League (later merged with Passaic County League to form Met League) – Spring Valley Bengals 0 Paramus Barons 0. Dunn Field, Elmira, New York - 6/25/1965 - Eastern League - Pittsfield Red Sox 2 Elmira Pioneers 2 in 5:33 - called off at 1:03 A.M. in the early morning of 6/26, then rhubarb delay 0:?? top 22nd, Pioneers owner argued there was no curfew rule, by the time the league president told the umpires the owner was correct and the game should continue, all the players had showered and gone home, called off at 1:?? A.M. for the second time - 530 fans.

College Stadium (later Russell Diethrich Park), Jamestown, New York—8/14/1965—New York-Pennsylvania League—Binghamton Triplets 4 Jamestown Tigers 4 in 6:13, 2nd game postponed—386 fans finished at 12:43 A.M. in the early morning of 8/15.

Rox Park, St. Cloud, Minnesota -7/25/1966 and 8/28/1966 – Northern League – Huron Phillies 8 St. Cloud Rox 2 in 5:39, suspended after 4:20 and 16 innings, originally decided to play entire game over, but then decided to complete game from point of suspension – 951 fans on 7/25, 343 fans on 8/28 – suspended at 11:50 P.M. on 7/25.

Delano High School Diamond #4 and Delano High School Varsity Field, Delano, California — 3/23/1967 — California High School League — Fresno McLane High School Highlanders 3 Fresno High School Warriors 2 in 6:15, diamond switch delay from Diamond #4 to Varsity Field 0:15 top 8th — finished at 10:30 P.M.

Crosley Field, Cincinnati, Ohio -9/1/1967 – National League – Giants 1 Reds 0 in 5:40–13,745 fans, 200 fans at end –finished at 1:45 A.M. in the early morning of 9/2.

Estadio (Stadium) Angel Flores, Culiacan, State of Sinaloa, Mexico –10/22/1967 – Mexican Pacific League – Obregon Yaquis 3 Culiacan Tomateros (Tomato Growers) 1 in 6:22 – 5000 fans – finished at 11:22 P.M.

Knowles Field, Martinez, California — 5/9/1968 — California High School League — Alhambra High School Bulldogs 4 San Ramon Valley High School Wolves 3 in 6:00—finished at 9:30 P.M.

Field Park, Mukwonago, Wisconsin — 5/15/1969 — Wisconsin High School League — Mukwonago High School Indians 5 Burlington High School Demons 4 in 5:00 — 65 fans — finished at 9:30 P.M.

R.F.K. Stadium, Washington, D.C. -6/4/1971-American League – rain delay 0:17 at start, Athletics 6 Senators 3 in 5:19 – 6159 fans – finished at 1:36 A.M. in the early morning of 6/5.

Wakefield High School Field, Arlington, Virginia — 7/24/1971— Clark Griffith League — Martz Insurance 10 Post #130 9.

San Diego (later Jack Murphy, then Qualcomm) Stadium, San Diego, California - 9/24/1971 – National League – Astros 2 Padres 1 in 5:25 in 1st game, then Padres 5 Astros 4 in 2:14 in 2nd game, fog delay 0:14 bottom 9th - 6339 fans - 1st game finished at 11:31 P.M., 2nd game finished at 2:29 A.M. in the early morning of 9/25.

Mt. Olive, Illinois - 5/23/1973 - Illinois High

School League — Staunton High School Bulldogs 0 Mt. Olive High School Wildcats 0 in 4:05, scheduled to resume 5/29 but instead they decided to play a new game — finished at 8:05 P.M.

Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois – 5/26/1973 and 5/28/1973 – American League – White Sox 6 Indians 3 in 6:03, rain delay 0:17 top 14th, suspended after 4:39 and 16 innings –19,486 fans on 5/26, 17,419 fans on 5/28 – suspended at 1:01 A.M. in the early morning of 5/27.

Danville Stadium, Danville, Illinois — 6/4/1974 — Midwest League — Waterloo Royals 7 Danville Warriors 5 in 5:35 — 722 fans, 94 fans at end —finished at 1:10 A.M. in the early morning of 6/5.

Estadio (Stadium) Hiram Bithorn, San Juan, Puerto Rico —12/26/1975 — Winter League — Santurce Cangrejeros (Crabbers) 5 Bayamon Vaqueros (Cowboys) 2 in 4:00—finished at 2:00 A.M. in the early morning of 12/27.

Stade Olympique (Olympic Stadium), Montreal, Province of Quebec, Canada — 5/21/1977 — National League — Padres 11 Expos 8 in 5:33 — 16,892 fans, 8000 fans at end — finished at 1:15 A.M. in the early morning of 5/22.

Foothills Stadium, Calgary, Province of Alberta, Canada – 6/4/1977 – Southern Alberta Junior League – Calgary Spikes 4 Medicine Hat Tigers 3.

Engel Stadium, Chattanooga, Tennessee — 7/29/ 1978 — Southern League — Chattanooga Lookouts 3 Savannah Braves 2 in 5:32.

Municipal Qiuchang (Stadium), Taipei, Taiwan — 9/15/1979 — Taiwan University League — Weichuan Foods/Chinese Culture University 1 Putaowang (Grape King) Biotechnology/Fu Jen Catholic University 0 in 6:06 — finished at 10:11 P.M.

Hickey Park, Russellville, Arkansas — 5/14/1980— Arkansas High School League — Hazen High School Hornets 8 Tuckerman High School Bulldogs 7.

War Memorial Stadium, Greensboro, North Carolina — 8/12/1982 and 8/13/1982 — South Atlantic (Sally) League — Greensboro Hornets 3 Gastonia Cardinals 2, suspended after 17 innings.

Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois – 8/17/1982 and 8/18/1982 – National League – Dodgers 2 Cubs 1 in 6:10, suspended after 5:10 and 17 innings – 26,576 fans on 8/17, 27,429 fans on 8/18 – suspended at 6:45 P.M. on 8/17, finished at 12:05 P.M. on 8/18.

Community Field (II), Burlington, Iowa – 8/10/ 1983 and 8/11/1983 – Midwest League – Burlington Rangers 7 Clinton Giants 6 in 5:44, rain delay 0:06 bottom 11th, 2nd rain delay 0:01 bottom 18th, suspended after 4:54 and 17½ innings – suspended at 12:35 A.M. in the early morning of 8/11.

J.C. Love Field, Ruston, Louisiana -2/16/1985 – National Association of Intercollegiate Athletics at National Collegiate Athletic Association – Louisiana Tech University Bulldogs 2 Southern Arkansas University Muleriders 1 in 4:54 –150 fans; 75 fans at end – finished at 6:24 P.M. Cooper Stadium, Columbus, Ohio – 6/10/1985 and 6/11/1985 and 6/12/1985 – International League – Columbus Clippers 8 Syracuse Chiefs 7 in 5:37, suspended after 5:18 and 20 innings, rained out 6/11, finally completed 6/12 –12,616 fans on 6/10, 400 fans at suspension, 2000 fans on 6/12 – suspended at 12:53 A.M. in the early morning of 6/11.

V.J. Keefe Stadium, San Antonio, Texas -5/21/1987– Texas League – Shreveport Captains 4 San Antonio Dodgers 3 in 6:04 –1144 fans –finished at 1:04 A.M. in the early morning of 5/22.

Riverside Sports Complex, Riverside, California — 5/22/1988 — California League — San Jose Giants 8 Riverside Red Wave 5 in 6:19 — finished at 1:19 A.M. in the early morning of 5/23.

J.P. Riddle Stadium, Fayetteville, North Carolina — 7/10/1988 — South Atlantic (Sally) League — Charleston (Wv) Wheelers 7 Fayetteville Generals 5 in 5:22 — 843 fans — finished at 12:52 A.M. in the early morning of 7/11.

Estadio (Stadium) Emilio Ibarra, Los Mochis, State of Sinaloa, Mexico —11/26/1988 — Mexican Pacific League — Los Mochis Caneros (Sugar Cane Growers) 4 Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2 in 7:14 —finished at 2:44 A.M. in the early morning of 11/27.

Ed Smith Stadium, Sarasota, Florida and Dunedin Stadium at Grant Field (later Knology Park), Dunedin, Florida - 4/24/1989 and 5/17/1989 - Florida State League - Dunedin Blue Jays 8 Sarasota White Sox 3 in 6:29, suspended after 5:48 and 20 innings - 525 fans on 4/24, 45 fans at suspension, 307 fans on 5/17 - suspended at 12:48 A.M. in the early morning of 4/25.

Diamond, Richmond, Virginia - 8/7/1989 – International League – Toledo Mud Hens 4 Richmond Braves 1 in 5:01, then Richmond 3 Toledo 0 in 2:23 and 7 innings –100 fans at end –finished at 1:57 A.M. in the early morning of 8/8.

Mulcahy Stadium, Anchorage, Alaska — 6/23/1992 — Alaska League — Anchorage Glacier Pilots defeated Kamloops in 6:39—12 fans at end —finished at 2:15 A.M. in the early morning of 6/24.

Municipal Stadium, San Jose, California — 5/12/ 1995 and 5/13/1995 — California League — San Bernardino Spirit 1 San Jose Giants 0 in 5:56, three rain delays, suspended after 11½ innings — suspended at 11:16 P.M.

Estadio (Stadium) Isidoro "Cholo" Garcia, Mayaguez, Puerto Rico –12/22/1995 and 12/23/1995 and 1/19/1996 – Puerto Rican Winter League – Mayaguez Indios (Indians) 2 San Juan Senadores (Senators) 1 in 6:22, suspended, suspended a second time.

Blue Valley District Activity Center, Overland Park, Kansas — 5/20/1997 — Kansas High School League — Blue Valley Northwest High School Huskies 1 Shawnee Mission North High School Mustangs 0 in 5:50 finished at 10:50 P.M.

Judy Johnson Field at Frawley Stadium, Wilmington, Delaware – 7/5/1998 – Carolina League – Wilmington Blue Rocks 3 Danville 97's 2 in 6:23 – 3441 fans – finished at 8:28 P.M.

Heart of Florida Medical Regional Center Field, Babson Park, Florida – 2/19/1999 and 2/20/1999 – National Association of Intercollegiate Athletics – Nova Southeastern University Knights 9 Webber College (now Webber International University) Warriors 5 in 6:00, suspended after 3:43 and 13 innings – 50 fans – suspended at 6:28 P.M., finished at 1:17 P.M.

Carson Center Field, Evansville, Indiana — 3/7/ 1999 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — University of Memphis Tigers 4 University of Evansville Purple Aces 4 in 5:00 — 205 fans, 75 fans at end —finished at 4:00 P.M.

John O'donnell Stadium, Davenport, Iowa — 5/19/ 1999 — Midwest League — Clinton Lumber Kings 3 Quad-City River Bandits 2 in 5:49.

Dawson Field, Depew, New York – 7/16/2000 and 7/17/2000 and 7/19/2000 – American Legion – Depew Post 1528 4 Orchard Park Post 567 3, rain delays on 7/16, suspended after 8 innings on 7/16, suspended again after 20 innings on 7/17.

Rotary Field, Brunswick, Ohio – 5/9/2001 and 5/10/2001– Ohio High School League – Brunswick High School Blue Devils 11 Elyria High School Pioneers 10, suspended after 18 innings –100 fans.

Byron High School Field, Byron and Eckstein Field, Plainview, Minnesota — 6/22/2003 and 7/6/2003 — Twin Rivers League — Byron Braves 4 Plainview Bucks 3 in 7:15, suspended after 5:00 and 15 innings on 6/22 in Byron, resumed 7/6 in Plainview —15 fans in Byron, 20 fans in Plainview — suspended at 6:00 P.M. on 6/22, finished at 9:45 P.M. on 7/6.

Dwyer Stadium, Batavia, New York -7/9/2003 -New York-Pennsylvania League - Staten Island Yankees 5 Batavia Muckdogs 2 in 5:48 -1073 fans finished at 12:58 A.M. in the early morning of 7/10.

Wolff Stadium, San Antonio, Texas — 8/14/2004 — Texas League — Midland RockHounds 7 San Antonio Missions 5 in 6:40 — 4286 fans, 90 fans at end finished at 1:46 A.M. in the early morning of 8/15.

Fieldcrest Cannon Stadium, Kannapolis, North Carolina — 9/7/2005 — South Atlantic (Sally) League playoffs — Kannapolis Intimidators 4 Charleston (Sc) RiverDogs 3 in 5:09 — 749 fans; 300 fans at end finished at 12:14 A.M. in the early morning of 9/8.

Estadio (Stadium) Jose Garcia Mendoza, Ojinaga, State of Chihuahua, Mexico – 8/13/2006 – Amateur – Madera Venados (Deer) 11 Ojinaga Soles (Suns) 9 in 7:55 – finished at 6:58 P.M.

20¹/₂ Innings (2)

Hanes Field, Durham, North Carolina — 7/5/1915 — North Carolina State League — Raleigh Capitals 2 Durham Bulls 2 in 3:11 in P.M. game, called due to darkness with Durham batting in bottom of 21st; Raleigh 3 Durham 2 in 3:05 and 14 innings in A.M. game at League Park, Raleigh, North Carolina —1500 fans for P.M. game; 700 fans for A.M. game. Daisytown, Pennsylvania -9/20/1931 – Monongahela Valley League playoffs – California Eagles 3 Daisytown Moose 1 in 4:00 – after a long fly ball hit by a California Eagle batter down the left field foul line was ruled by the umpire to be a 2-run homer in the top of the 21st, the Daisytown Moose team vehemently protested the call and then walked off the field – the umpire awarded the game (and the league championship with it) to California 3–1.

20 Innings (227)

League Park (I), Cincinnati, Ohio – 6/30/1892 – National League – Colts (later Cubs) 7 Reds 7 in 3:20 –1300 fans.

Sportsman's Park (III), St. Louis, Missouri — 4/10/ 1898 — Western League at National League spring training exhibition — St. Louis Browns 12 Milwaukee Brewers 11 in 3:20.

Richmond, Indiana — 7/1/1900 — Amateur — Covington All-Kentuckians 3 Richmond 0.

Lake Benton or Pipestone, Minnesota – 9/12/1901– Amateur – Lake Benton 3 Pipestone 2 in 3:45.

Old Fair Grounds Park, Springfield, Missouri — 7/19/1902 — Missouri Valley League — Springfield Reds 2 Nevada Lunatics 1 in 5:00 — 3500 fans, 3500 fans at end — finished at 8:30 P.M.

Driving Park, Kingston, New York – 8/10/1903 – Hudson River League – Hudson Marines 2 Kingston Colonials 2 in 3:10.

West Fitchburg (later Fitchburg), Massachusetts — 8/17/1904 — Amateur — Cleghorn 9 Hill Tops 8.

Fairgrounds, Henderson, Kentucky – 8/11/1904 – Kentucky-Illinois-Tennessee (Kitty) League – Cairo Egyptians 4 Henderson Blue Birds 2.

Huntington Grounds, Boston, Massachusetts — 7/4/1905 — American League — Athletics 4 Americans (later Red Sox) 2 in 3:31 in P.M. game, Athletics 5 Americans 2 in 1:52 in A.M. game —12,666 fans for P.M. game, 8797 fans for A.M. game.

Huntingdon Street Grounds (later National League Park (III), then Baker Bowl), Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 8/24/1905 — National League — Cubs 2 Phillies 1 in 4:00 — 5457 fans.

Pitman, New Jersey — 7/4/1906 — Amateur — Camden West End 2 Pitman 1 in A.M. game; Camden West End 7 Pitman 1 in P.M. game.

Chester, Pennsylvania — 7/4/1906 — Amateur — Fifth Ward Travelers 3 Shinnecock 2.

Athletic Park, Monessen, Pennsylvania — 8/11/1906 — Glassport Athletic Club 5 Monessen East End Athletic Club 4.

Miners Park, Joplin, Missouri — 9/4/1906 — Western Association — Joplin Miners 0 Webb City Gold Bugs 0 in 3:15 — 150 fans.

Washington (later Roberto Clemente) Park, Lowell, Massachusetts — 4/27/1907 — New England League — Haverhill Hustlers 1 Lowell Tigers 1 in 3:25 — 3200 fans.

Clerks' Field, Bethlehem, Pennsylvania – 6/11/1907 – Amateur – Never Works 13 Never Sweats 12. Graham, Texas — 7/10/1907 — Amateur — Gainesville 2 Graham 1.

Webb Park, Marion, Ohio – 7/20/1907 – Ohio-Pennsylvania League – Mansfield Pioneers 2 Marion Drummers 1 in 2:18 – 800 fans.

Arcadia, California – 3/15/1908 – Southern California State League – Santa Anita 4 Arcadia Eagles 3 in 3:00.

Dorchester Franklin Field, Boston, Massachusetts — 4/25/1908 — Boston Grammar School League — Lauriat Grammar School of Dorchester 5 Norfolk Grammar School of Dorchester 4.

Electric Park, Aberdeen, Washington — 5/6/1908 — Northwestern League — Butte Miners 3 Aberdeen Black Cats 3 in 3:45.

Athletic Park, Newton, Kansas — 5/26/1908 — Central Kansas League pre-season exhibition — Newton Railroaders 3 McPherson Merry Macks 2 in 3:15 finished at 6:45 P.M.

School Playgrounds, Lawrenceville, New Jersey — 5/29/1908 — Mid-Atlantic Prep League — Lawrenceville School Big Red 3 Mercersburg Academy Blue Storm 2 in 3:00.

New Straitsville or Shawnee, Ohio - 6/19/1908 -Amateur - New Straitsville 6 Shawnee 5 in 3:30.

Opportunity (later Recreation, then Burkart, then Aces) Park, Saginaw or Fairgrounds-Keeley Park, Jackson, Michigan — 6/30/1908 — Southern Michigan Association — Saginaw Wa-wa's 5 Jackson Convicts 4.

Canistota, South Dakota — 7/25/1908 — Amateur — Emery 1 Canistota 1.

Vaughn Street Ballpark (later Lucky Beaver Stadium), Portland, Oregon — 8/2/1908 — Pacific Coast League — San Francisco Seals 6 Portland Beavers 5 in 3:40.

League Park, Jacksonville, Illinois — 9/3/1908 — Central Association — Jacksonville Lunatics 4 Ottumwa Packers 1 in 2:50.

Ballinger, Texas – 6/26/1909 – Amateur – Granbury 3 Ballinger 2 in 2:20, 2nd game postponed.

Edgerton, Indiana — 8/9/1909 — Amateur — Woodburn 5 Edgerton Browns 4 — 300 fans.

Palmer, Iowa — 6/28/1910 — SemiPro — Pocahontas 2 Pomeroy 2.

Hippodrome, Bridgeton, New Jersey — 7/20/1910— Amateur — Roxboro Talmage 2 Bridgeton 0.

Mercer Park on Tattnall Square, Macon, Georgia — 4/15/1911—College at High School — Hall's School 4

Georgia-Alabama Business College 3 in 2:45. Kirksville, Missouri – 5/25/1911 – Missouri State

League — Kirksville Osteopaths 2 Macon Athletics 1. East Berlin, Pennsylvania — 8/5/1911— Amateur — New Oxford 5 East Berlin 4.

Norman, Oklahoma -4/25/1912 - College - Ok-lahoma A&M College (later University) Aggies (later Tigers, then Cowboys) 1 University of Oklahoma Sooners 1 in 3:00.

Kansas City, Missouri – 8/2/1912 –17-Year Old Junior League – Yale Blues 22 Buddie Blues 11–Yale Blues scored 20 runs in top 20th; Buddie Blues scored 9 runs in bottom 20th.

Marysville, California – 8/4/1912 – Amateur – Hammonton 4 Marysville 3.

Honolulu, Hawaii — 5/31/1913 — Amateur — Honolulu Stars 3 Punahou Athletic Club (Ac) 1.

League Park, Champaign, Illinois – 6/19/1913 – Illinois-Missouri League – Champaign Velvets 6 Kankakee Daffydils 5 in 3:37 – finished at 7:07 P.M.

Franklin Park, Adrian, Michigan — 7/17/1913 — Southern Michigan Association — Battle Creek Crickets 1 Adrian Champs 1.

West Side (later Skeeters) Park, Jersey City, New Jersey – 8/12/1913 – International League – Toronto Maple Leafs 0 Jersey City Skeeters 0 in 3:20.

Washington Park, Los Angeles, California – 5/27/1914 – Pacific Coast League – Oakland Oaks 4 Venice Tigers 2 in 4:02 – finished at 7:02 P.M.

Nicollet Park, Minneapolis, Minnesota – 6/9/1914 – American Association – Minneapolis Millers 3 Louisville Colonels 2 in 3:31–1500 fans.

Bertram Field, Salem, Massachusetts — 6/10/1914 — Massachusetts High School League — Salem High School Witches 6 Haverhill High School Hillies 5 in 4:20—finished at 7:40 P.M.

Dugdale Park (II), Seattle, Washington — 7/19/1914 — Northwestern League — Spokane Indians 6 Seattle Giants 1 in 3:03.

Ellsworth Park, Ellsworth, Pennsylvania — 8/15/ 1914 — Amateur — Vandergrift 4 Scottdale Independents 3.

western part of Oklahoma —?/??/1910's — Amateur — Elk City 4 unknown opponent 2, Cot Deal's father Roy B. Deal pitched the whole way for Elk City, and hit 2-run homer to win game in 20th.

Cuba — 5/9/1915 — Amateur National League — Progressos 8 Athletics 7.

Wehrle Park, Charleston, West Virginia – 6/27/ 1915 – Ohio State League – Lexington Colts 5 Charleston Senators 2 in 3:25.

Hannibal, Missouri – 7/2/1915 – Negro League Amateur – Hannibal Browns 5 Hannibal Eagles 5 in 3:20.

Medford, New Jersey – 7/10/1915 – Burlington County Semi-Pro League – Mount Holly 0 Medford 0.

Bridgewater, South Dakota – 7/31/1915 – Amateur – Salem 1 Bridgewater 1.

Gulfview Park, Galveston, Texas — 8/13/1916 — Texas League — Waco Navigators 4 Galveston Pirates 1.

Berthold, North Dakota — 8/27/1916 — Amateur — Minot defeated Berthold.

Goat (later Yerba Buena) Island, San Francisco, California — 9/15/1917 — Amateur — Oakland Naval Training Station Sailors 1 Oakland Vampires 0 in 3:10.

Sixth Street Park, St. Joseph, Missouri – 8/26/ 1917 – Western League – Des Moines Boosters 4 St. Joseph Drummers 3 in 4:00. Exeter, Pennsylvania — 9/9/1917 — Amateur — Nanticoke W.S. 2 Exeter Stars 2 in 3:20.

Panther Park, Fort Worth, Texas — 5/8/1918 — Texas League — Shreveport Gassers 1 Fort Worth Panthers 1.

Sixth Street Park, St. Joseph, Missouri – 6/1/1918 – Western League – Joplin Miners 3 St. Joseph Saints 1.

San Francisco, California—11/24/1918—Amateur — Colma 4 San Carlos 3.

Base Section One U.S. Army Base, Giverny, France – sometime in 1918 or 1919 before 6/18/1919 – U.S. Army Base Section One League – Camp Number Four Base Section 6 Camp Dodge 5.

National League Park (III) (later Baker Bowl), Philadelphia, Pennsylvania – 4/30/1919 – National League – Robins (later Dodgers) 9 Phillies 9 in 4:00.

Sulphur Dell (I), Nashville, Tennessee – 7/12/ 1919 – Southern League – Chattanooga Lookouts 6 Nashville Volunteers 5 in 3:31.

Latta Park, Charlotte, North Carolina — 8/30/ 1919 — South Atlantic (Sally) League — Columbia Comers 5 Charlotte Hornets 5.

Hamilton Athletic Association (H.A.A.) Grounds, Hamilton, Province of Ontario, Canada – 6/17/1920 – Michigan-Ontario League – London Cockneys (later Tecumsehs) 5 Hamilton Tigers 4.

Hampden Park (II), Springfield, Massachusetts – 8/28/1920 – Eastern League – Albany Senators 5 Springfield Ponies 5 in 4:04.

Baker Bowl, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania —1/30/1921 — National League Philadelphia Phillies intrasquad spring training exhibition — Mutts 0 Jeffs 0.

Hanlan's Point (III), Toronto, Province of Ontario, Canada — 6/2/1921—International League — Buffalo Bisons 3 Toronto Maple Leafs 2 in 4:05.

Media, Pennsylvania — 7/3/1921— Professional at Amateur — Media Athletic Association (A.A.) 13 Northwest Professionals 12.

Parkesburg, Pennsylvania — 7/30/1921— Amateur — Cressona Tigers 2 Parkesburg Iron Company Ironmen 1 in 3:45.

Schorling's (later American Giants) Park, Chicago, Illinois — 8/16/1922 — Negro National League — Chicago American Giants 1 Atlantic City Bacharach Giants 0 in 3:38.

General Field, Akron, Ohio – 8/20/1922 – Ohio Industrial League – Firestone Non-Skids 0 General Tire Generals 0.

Central High Stadium, Washington, D.C.—6/18/ 1923—District of Columbia Grammar School League Championship—Monroe Grammar School vs. Buchanan Grammar School in tie game.

Hamlin, Texas — 4/28/1924 — Texas High School League — Anson High School Tigers 2 Hamlin High School Pied Pipers 1.

Chadwick Park, Albany, New York — 5/30/1924 — Eastern League — Pittsfield Hillies 9 Albany Senators 8 in P.M. game, Pittsfield 6 Albany 0 in A.M. game — 5000 fans. Andrews Field, Providence, Rhode Island — 6/7/ 1924 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Providence College Friars 1 Brown University Bears 0 in 4:05.

Ace Park, Saginaw, Michigan — 7/12/1924 — Michigan-Ontario League — Flint Vehics 3 Saginaw Aces 2, then Flint 4 Saginaw 2 in 7 innings.

Aurora or Yorkville, Illinois — 6/7/1925 — Semi-Pro League — Montgomery Pirates 1 Yorkville Helpers 1.

Gowdy Field, Fort Benning, Georgia — 7/30/1927 — Fort Benning Army League — 24th Infantry Blues 3 Ist Battalion 29th Infantry 2 in 4:00.

Knauertown High School Diamond, Knauertown, Pennsylvania – 6/2/1928 – Tri-County League –

Boyertown 9 Warwick Athletic Association 8 in 3:30. Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois — 8/28/1930 — Na-

tional League – Cardinals 8 Cubs 7 in 4:10. Hill Park, Cedar Rapids, Iowa – 5/22/1931– Mis-

sissippi Valley League – Cedar Rapids Bunnies 5 Dubuque Tigers 4 in 3:25.

Hamburg, Iowa – 6/26/1932 – Amateur – Hamburg 13 Fairfax (Missouri) 13.

East Hartford, Connecticut – 5/14/1933 – Amateur – East Hartford Red Sox 5 New Britain Ramblers 4 in 5:15.

Salinas Rodeo Grounds, Salinas, California — 5/14/ 1933 — Amateur — San Francisco Chronicle 1 Salinas Colts 0.

Kobe, Japan —?/??/1934 — Kobe Junior High School League — Akaishi-chuugaku vs. Kobe-ichi-chuugaku. Florida Athletic Club Field, Florida, New York —

9/8/1935 — Amateur — Florida Reds 3 St. Joseph's 3. Albemarle Field, York, Pennsylvania — 7/25/1936 —

York-Adams League — Albemarle Black Cats 3 New Oxford 2 in 3:35 — finished at 6:15 P.M.

Swarthmore Grounds, Swarthmore, Pennsylvania — 9/7/1936 — Amateur — Lenni 2 Swarthmore Hornets 2 in P.M. game; Swarthmore Hornets 9 Linwood F.C. 8 in A.M. game.

Stroudsburg, Pennsylvania or Mount Vernon, New York —?/??/1936 — Amateur — Mount Vernon Scarlets vs. Stroudsburg —finished at 6:30 P.M.; 2nd game postponed.

Bulkeley Stadium, Hartford, Connecticut – 5/9/ 1937 – Negro League – Hartford Savitt Gems 5 Philadelphia Giants 4.

Estadio (Stadium) de Maracaibo, Maracaibo, Venezuela – 6/5/1938 – Venezuelan League – Pastora 1 Gavilanes 0 in 6:30.

Municipal Stadium, Trois-Rivieres, Province of Quebec, Canada – 7/5/1938 – Provincial League – Three Rivers Renards (Foxes) 4 Quebec City Athletiques 3 in 4:45 – finished at 2:15 A.M. in the early morning of 7/6.

Hook Ball Park, Paducah, Kentucky — 7/8/1938 — Kentucky-Illinois-Tennessee (Kitty) League — Fulton Eagles 14 Paducah Indians 9 in 5:28, rhubarb delay top 15th when Fulton Manager Ray Clonts unsuccessfully requested umpires to allow 15-minute delay so players could eat some steaks for strength, vote delay top 19th when Paducah Manager Pete Mondino successfully asked umpires to have remaining fans vote whether the game should continue or not — fans voted unanimously that game should continue — finished at 1:45 A.M. in the early morning of 7/9.

Crofton or Laurel, Nebraska —?/??/1938 — Northeast Nebraska League — Crofton vs. Laurel.

La Grave Field (I), Fort Worth, Texas – 5/31/1939 – Texas League – Fort Worth Cats 4 Oklahoma City Indians 3 in 4:26 – finished at 12:41 A.M. in the early morning of 6/1.

Engel Stadium, Chattanooga, Tennessee — 6/21/ 1940—Southern Association — Little Rock Travelers 7 Chattanooga Lookouts 4 in 4:20, 2nd game postponed.

Bee Hive (later Braves Field, then Nickerson Field), Boston, Massachusetts — 7/5/1940— National League — Dodgers 6 Bees (later Braves) 2 in 5:19—3881 fans—finished at 8:19 P.M.

Nishinomiya Kyujyo (Stadium), Nishinomiya, Japan—7/13/1941—Japanese Federation—Taiyo 1 Hanshin 0 in 2:43.

Camp McCoy or Whitehall, Wisconsin – 5/10/ 1942 – US Army vs. Amateur – Camp McCoy 5 Whitehall 4.

Swayne Field, Toledo, Ohio – 7/11/1942 – American Association – Louisville Colonels 6 Toledo Mud Hens 6 in 4:25 – finished at 1:00 A.M. in the early morning of 7/12.

Estadio (Stadium) Gran Cerveceria Tropical, Havana, Cuba—12/2/1943—Cuban League—Cienfuegos Elefantes (Elephants) 6 Marianao Frailes Grises (Gray Friars) 5 in 4:25.

Ogden Field, Chicago, Illinois — 8/12/1944 — National Association of Intercollegiate Athletics — George Williams Ymca College Collegians 6 Illinois Institute of Technology TechHawks (later Scarlet Hawks) 6.

Seals Stadium, San Mateo, California —10/1/1944 — Amateur — Bay Meadows 5 Owl Drug 4.

Cartier Field, South Bend, Indiana — 7/14/1945 — United States Army Air Force at NCAA — Notre Dame University Fighting Irish 1 Indianapolis Stout Army Air Field Airmen 0.

Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois — 5/12/1946 — Negro American League — Indianapolis Clowns 3 Chicago American Giants 3 — 9000 fans.

Recreation (now Rotary) Field, Naugatuck, Connecticut - 6/15/1946 - Naugatuck High School Garnet and Grey (later Greyhounds) 3 Waterbury Leavenworth (later Croft, then Kennedy) High School Engineers 2.

Lucky Beaver Stadium, Portland, Oregon – 5/7/ 1947 – Pacific Coast League – Portland Beavers 1 Sacramento Solons 0 in 3:25 – finished at 11:45 P.M.

Newtown or Bryant, New York — 5/15/1947 — New York High School League — Newtown High School 3 Bryant High School 2.

Empalme or Santa Ana, State of Sonora, Mexico -

5/18/1947 — Liga (League) de Sonora — Empalme Rieleros (Railroadmen) 2 Santa Ana Santos (Saints) 1 in 4:13 — 854 fans.

Thetford Mines, Province of Quebec, Canada – 9/7/1947 – Quebec Eastern Townships Independent Intermediate League playoffs – Drummondville Forestiers Catholiques (Catholic Foresters) 3 St-Maurice de Thetford Mines Mineurs (Miners) 3 in 4:50 – finished at 7:20 P.M.

Ritchie Route One Ballfield, College Park, Maryland – 4/2/1948 – National Collegiate Athletic Association – Dartmouth College Big Green 10 University of Maryland Terrapins 10 in 3:25 – finished at 7:25 P.M.

Frank Lawrence Stadium, Portsmouth, Virginia — 6/16/1948 — Piedmont League — Portsmouth Cubs 1 Lynchburg Cardinals 0 — 73 fans.

Playland Park, South Bend, Indiana — 9/10/1948 — All-American Girls' League — South Bend Blue Sox 3 Grand Rapids Chicks 2.

Municipal Stadium, San Jose, California – 8/7/ 1949 – California League – Ventura Yankees 4 San Jose Red Sox 4 in 4:20.

Redbird (later Jets, then Franklin County, then Cooper) Stadium, Columbus, Ohio-9/3/1949 – American Association – Columbus Redbirds 4 Louisville Colonels 3 in 3:58 – 5079 fans –finished at 11:28 P.M.

Spudder Park, Wichita Falls, Texas – 7/13/1950 – Big State League – Wichita Falls Spudders 2 Sherman-Denison Twins 1.

Watertown or Mansfield, South Dakota —?/??/1951 — South Dakota Amateur Baseball Association — Watertown Lakers 10 Mansfield 9.

Sherman Field, Lincoln, Nebraska — 7/19/1951— Western League — Wichita Indians 2 Lincoln Athletics 1 in 4:22, 2nd game postponed.

Municipal Stadium (I), Phoenix, Arizona — 8/18/ 1951—Southwest International League — Bisbee-Douglas Copper Kings 2 Phoenix Senators 2 — called at 12:00 Midnight.

Bourne Dormitory Field, Pomfret, Connecticut – 5/10/1952 – Independent School League – Pomfret School Mannymen (later Griffins) 4 St. George's School Dragons 3 in 4:55.

Triplets (later Johnson) Field, Johnson City, New York – 5/18/1952 – Eastern League – Binghamton Triplets 4 Scranton Miners 3 in 5:10 in 1st game, then Scranton 4 Binghamton 0 in 2nd game.

Civic Center, Drummondville, Province of Quebec, Canada – 7/8/1952 and 8/12/1952 – Provincial League – Three Rivers Yankees 3 Drummondville Cubs 2, suspended after 19 innings.

East Texan Park, Tyler, Texas — 7/15/1952 — Big State League — Texarkana Bears 3 Tyler East Texans 2 in 4:21—1163 fans, 500 fans at end — finished at 12:26 A.M. in the early morning of 7/16.

Golden Park, Columbus, Georgia – 8/1/1952 – South Atlantic (Sally) League – Jacksonville Tars 2 Columbus Cardinals 2 in 4:55 – called at 12:55 A.M. in the early morning of 8/2.

Mabel, Minnesota — 8/10/1952 — Fillmore County League — Spring Grove Grovers 13 Mabel 9 — finished at 1:30 A.M. in the early morning of 8/11.

Nishi-Kyogoku Kyujyo, Kyoto, Japan — 9/7/1952 – Central League — Shochiku 2 Taiyo 1 in 3:13.

Memorial Ball Park, Atwater, California -8/4/1953- National Congress - Fort Ord Warriors 2 San Diego Naval Air Station Skyraiders 1 in 4:40-3100 fans - finished at 12:55 A.M. in the early morning of 8/5.

Korakuen Kyujyo, Tokyo, Japan – 8/9/1953 – Pacific League – Kintetsu 5 Toei 4 in 4:46.

Golden Park, Columbus, Georgia -4/24/1954 – South Atlantic (Sally) League – Macon Peaches 7 Columbus Cardinals 5 in 5:13 – finished at 1:13 A.M. in the early morning of 4/25.

Jennings Stadium, Augusta, Georgia — 7/15/1954 — South Atlantic (Sally) League — Macon Peaches 3 Augusta Rams 3 in 4:40.

Macomb's Dam Park, New York, New York— 8/9/1954—City Youth Federation Semi-Final Game —Hudson Guild Neighborhood House 3 Immaculate Conception of the Bronx 2 in 5:47.

Parichy Stadium, Chicago, Illinois -9/14/1954 – National Girls League – Bluebirds 6 Bloomer Girls 4 in 4:30, then Queens 5 Jewels 0 in 7 innings – 2nd game finished at 1:00 A.M.

Lucky Beaver Stadium, Portland, Oregon — 4/24/ 1955 — Pacific Coast League — Portland Beavers 3 San Diego Padres 2 in 4:14 in 2nd game, Portland 9 San Diego 5 in 2:06 in 1st game — 4760 fans.

Centennial Field, Burlington, Vermont — 5/30/ 1955 — Provincial League — Thetford Mines Mineurs (Miners) 4 Burlington Athletics 3 in 4:54 — finished at 7:36 P.M.

Paterson Field, Montgomery, Alabama — 4/27/1956 — South Atlantic (Sally) League — Augusta Tigers 6 Montgomery Rebels 4 in 4:24 — finished at 12:09 A.M. in the early morning of 4/28.

Blue Lake, California – 6/24/1956 – Redwood League – Blue Lake Chicks 8 Crescent City Merchants 7.

Placitas, New Mexico -7/3/1956 – Bernalillo County SemiPro League – Los Ranchos de Albuquerque 5 Placitas 3 in 5:00.

Edo Miller Park, Brunswick, Georgia — 8/??/1956 — Georgia-Florida League — Brunswick Pirates defeated Albany Cardinals by one run —1500 fans; 1200 fans at end.

Disch Field, Austin, Texas – 9/7/1956 – Texas League – Austin Senators 4 Dallas Eagles 3 in 5:01–2157 fans – finished at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 9/8.

Dallas, Texas — 4/17/1957 — Texas High School League — Adamson High School Leopards 3 Sunset High School Bison 2; then Hillcrest High School Panthers 3 Thomas Jefferson High School Patriots 2 in 13 innings — 2nd game finished at 11:59 P.M. Watt Powell Park, Charleston, West Virginia — 7/21/1957 — American Association — Wichita Braves 8 Charleston Senators 6 in 4:10 in 2nd game, Charleston 6 Wichita 5 in 1:47 and 7 innings in 1st game —1943 fans — finished at 12:27 A.M. in the early morning of 7/22.

Lloydminster, Province of Saskatchewan, Canada – 6/18/1957 and 7/28/1957 – Western Canada League – Lloydminster Meridians 4 North Battleford Beavers 3, suspended after 9 innings.

Jacksonville Ball Park (later Municipal Stadium, then Wolfson Park), Jacksonville, Florida – 5/21/1958 – South Atlantic (Sally) League – Savannah Redlegs 6 Jacksonville Braves 6 in 5:00–902 fans – finished at 1:00 A.M. in the early morning of 5/22.

Greenwood, South Carolina — 7/15/1959 — American Legion — Clinton 5 Post 20 Greenwood 3 in 5:45.

Hoolulu Park (later Wong Stadium), Hilo, Hawaii — 4/15/1962 — Hawaii High School League — Ka'u High School Trojans 3 St. Joseph High School Cardinals 2 in 4:00.

Pyncheon Park, Springfield, Massachusetts – 6/8/ 1963 – Eastern League – York White Roses 2 Springfield Giants 1 in 4:57.

Pony-Colt Stadium, Galveston, Texas – 7/27/1963 – Colt League – Galena Park 6 Beaumont 5 in 5:00.

Memorial Stadium, Sanford, Florida — 4/17/1964 — Eastern League at New York-Pennsylvania League spring training exhibition — Williamsport Mets at Auburn Mets.

Henderson Stadium (I), Lethbridge, Province of Alberta, Canada – 7/25/1964 – Western Canada League – Saskatoon Blues 6 Lethbridge Cardinals 5 in 5:25–150 fans.

Fans Field, Decatur, Illinois – 8/20/1965 – Midwest League – Decatur Commodores 1 Fox Cities Foxes 0 in 4:25 – 411 fans, 100 fans at end – finished at 11:55 P.M.

Estadio (Stadium) Augusto Cesar Sandino, Santa Clara or Estadio (Stadium) Guillermon Moncada, Santiago, Cuba—12/28/1965—Serie Nacional—Centrales vs. Orientales.

Frank Lawrence Stadium, Portsmouth, Virginia — 4/18/1967 — Carolina League — Kinston Eagles 5 Tidewater Tides 5 in 5:50 — 526 fans, 25 fans at end finished at 1:21 A.M. in the early morning of 4/19.

Ohiopyle, Pennsylvania — 7/16/1967 — Fay-West (Fayette County-Westmoreland County) League — Ohiopyle 11 Breakneck 10 in 6:10 — finished at 8:10 P.M.

Metropolitan Stadium, Bloomington, Minnesota – 8/9/1967 – American League – Senators 9 Twins 7 in 5:40–16,901 fans, 4000 fans at end – finished at 1:44 A.M. in the early morning of 8/10.

Yankee Stadium (I), New York, New York— 8/29/1967—American League—Yankees 4 Red Sox 3 in 6:09 in 2nd game, Red Sox 2 Yankees 1 in 2:10 in 1st game—40,314 fans—finished at 1:57 A.M. in the early morning of 8/30. Siler City or Bethel, North Carolina — 6/17/1969 — American Legion — Siler City Post defeated Bethel Post.

Sicks' Stadium, Seattle, Washington — 7/27/1969 — American League — Red Sox 5 Pilots 3 in 5:52 — 9670 fans.

Hi Corbett Field, Tucson, Arizona – 6/3/1970 – Pacific Coast League – Hawaii Islanders 6 Tucson Toros 5 in 4:58 – finished at 12:58 A.M. in the early morning of 6/4.

Meiji Jingu Kyujo (Stadium), Tokyo, Japan — 6/24/1970 – All-Japan University League Semi-Final – Kansai University 3 Hosei University 2 in 4:54.

Mount Prospect, Illinois — 5/31/1971 — Mount Prospect Pony A League — Braves 6 Orioles 5 in 4:15.

Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California -7/9/1971– American League – Athletics 1 Angels 0 in 5:05 – 22,938 fans – finished at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 7/10.

Bom Retiro (Good Place to Rest) Stadium, Sao Paulo, Brazil — 9/7/1971— National Championships — Sul-Brasil 6 Presidente Venceslau 5 in 6:00—2000 fans—finished at 5 P.M.

Barney Tadsen Field, Brownton, Minnesota — 9/9/1971—Minnesota Town Team League—Hector Flyers 4 Stark (later Stark Longhorns) 2 in 5:30, rain delay 0:20 at start—200 fans, 150 fans at end finished at 11:50 P.M.

Cleveland Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio and R.F.K. Stadium, Washington, D.C. — 9/14/1971 and 9/20/ 1971—American League — Senators 8 Indians 6 in 6:15 in 2nd game, suspended after 5:00 and 16 innings in Cleveland, completed 9/20 in Washington; Indians 3 Senators 1 in 1:54 in 1st game — 2639 fans on 9/14 in Cleveland, 100 fans at suspension, 1743 fans on 9/20 in Washington, 333 fans top 17th — suspended at 1:00 A.M. in the early morning of 9/15.

Perry Field (later McKethan Stadium at Perry Field), Gainesville, Florida – 4/22/1972 – National Collegiate Athletic Association – Auburn University Tigers 7 University of Florida Gators 6 in 4:35 – 350 fans.

Coleman Field (now Goss Stadium at Coleman Field), Corvallis, Oregon -5/6/1972 – National Collegiate Athletic Association – University of Washington Huskies 2 Oregon State University Beavers 1 in 4:38, then Oregon State 7 Washington 1 in 1:45 and 7 innings -250 fans.

University Field, Amherst, Massachusetts -5/13/1972 – National Collegiate Athletic Association – University of Connecticut Huskies 9 University of Massachusetts Minutemen 3 in 5:10.

Estadio (Stadium) Augusto Cesar Sandino, Santa Clara or Camaguey, Cuba –1/21/1973 – Serie Nacional – Azucareros (Sugar Workers) vs. Camaguey.

Blair Field, Long Beach, California — 3/30/1973 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — California State University at San Jose Spartans 1 California State University at Long Beach 49ers (later Dirt Bags) 1 in 3:35-225 fans.

Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania – 5/4/1973 – National League – Phillies 5 Braves 4 in 5:16–10,158 fans – finished at 12:51 A.M. in the early morning of 5/5.

Estadio (Stadium) Torreon, Torreon, State of Coahuila, Mexico – 5/8/1973 – Mexican League – Cordoba Cafeteros (Coffee Growers) 2 Torreon Mineros (Miners) 1.

Estadio (Stadium) Cordoba, Cordoba, State of Veracruz, Mexico — 5/16/1973 — Mexican League — Cordoba Cafeteros (Coffee Growers) 2 Gomez Palacio 1.

Olympians Field, Olympia Fields, Illinois —?/??/ 1975 — Homewood-Flossmoor High School Vikings vs. Olympia Fields Rich Central High School Olympians in 4:00—finished at 8:00 P.M.

Mount Prospect, Illinois – 6/6/1976 and 6/13/1976 – Mount Prospect Pony B League First Half Championship – Braves 2 Mets 0.

Arlington, Minnesota — 8/26/1976 — Minnesota Town Team League — Cyrus 2 Fairfax Cardinals 1 in 4:35 — finished at 10:05 P.M.

Fairfax City, Virginia -4/8/1977 – National Collegiate Athletic Association – Brockport State College (later State University of New York – Brockport) Golden Eagles 2 George Mason University Patriots 2 in 5:30, umpires Warner and Madeiros walked off the field at the end because they were too cold (it was 40 degrees), without even telling the coaches, who might have told them umpires did not walk off the field due to cold weather during baseball games played 3/25/1960 at the North Pole and 1/1/1997 at McMurdo Sound in Antarctica –0 fans at end in stands, but 50 fans at end in cars with heaters on –finished at 8:50 P.M.

V.J. Keefe Stadium, San Antonio, Texas -6/28/1977 – Texas League – San Antonio Dodgers 4 El Paso Diablos 3 in 4:37; 2nd game postponed -762fans; 200 fans at end -finished at 11:10 P.M.

Estadio (Stadium) Manuel "Ciclon" Echeverria, Navojoa, State of Sonora, Mexico —1/2/1979 — Mexican Pacific League — Navojoa Mayos 1 Mexicali Aguilas (Eagles) 0 in 5:20 in 2nd game, Mexicali vs. Navojoa in 1st game.

Moss Field, Meridian, Mississippi – 3/9/1979 – Mississippi High School League – Meridian High School Wildcats 4 Corinth High School Warriors 3 in 3:30–250 fans – finished at 5:30 P.M.

Three Rivers Stadium, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 7/6/1980 — National League — Pirates 5 Cubs 4 in 5:31 — 25,994 fans — finished at 6:36 P.M.

San Diego (later Jack Murphy, then Qualcomm) Stadium, San Diego, California – 8/15/1980 – National League – Astros 3 Padres 1 in 6:17 –14,177 fans – finished at 1:26 A.M. in the early morning of 8/16.

Estadio (Stadium) Jesus Carranza Limon, Guasave,

State of Sinaloa, Mexico —11/11/1980 — Mexican Pacific League — Mexicali Aguilas (Eagles) 3 Guasave Algodoneros (Cotton Pickers) 1.

Thunderbird Park, Cedar City, Utah -5/2/1981-National Association of Intercollegiate Athletics – Mesa State College Mavericks 9 New Mexico Highlands University Cowboys 8 in 5:20, then Southern Utah State College Thunderbirds 5 Mesa State 4.

Disch-Falk Field, Austin, Texas — 5/15/1981 and 5/16/1981—National Collegiate Athletic Association — University of Texas Longhorns 7 Rice University Owls 6 in 6:07, rain delay 2:00 top 13th, suspended after 3:10 and 12 innings — 4700 fans on 5/15, 300 fans at suspension, 3000 fans on 5/16 — suspended at 1:15 A.M. in the early morning of 5/16, finished at 3:02 P.M. on 5/16.

Corinto or Leon, Nicaragua — 5/17/1981— Nicaraguan First Division — Corinto 5 Leon 4.

McCoy Stadium, Pawtucket, Rhode Island — 7/26 /1981—International League — Pawtucket Paw Sox 4 Richmond Braves 2.

Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts -9/3/1981and 9/4/1981—American League—Mariners 8 Red Sox 7 in 6:01, suspended after 5:39 and 19 innings— 13,355 fans on 9/3, 1000 fans at suspension, 20,836 fans on 9/4—suspended at 1:16 A.M. in the early morning of 9/4.

Anaheim Stadium (later Edison International Field, then Angels Stadium), Anaheim, California — 4/13/ 1982 and 4/14/1982 — American League — Angels 4 Mariners 3 in 6:06, suspended after 5:24 and 17 innings — 33,574 fans on 4/13, 23,905 fans on 4/14 suspended at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 4/14.

Estadio (Stadium) Augusto Cesar Sandino, Santa Clara or Estadio Guillermon Moncada, Santiago, Cuba — 3/21/1984 — Serie Selectiva — Las Villas vs. Orientales.

Mayo Field, Rochester, Minnesota — 5/10/1986 and 5/20/1986 — Minnesota High School League — Rochester Mayo High School Spartans 3 Mankato East High School Cougars 2 in 6:15, rain delay 1:30 bottom 10th, suspended after 3:00 and 9½ innings, then Rochester Mayo 11 Mankato East 10 in 2:30 and 7 innings —125 fans on 5/10— suspended at 3:30 P.M. on 5/10, 1st game finished at 8:15 P.M. on 5/20; 2nd game finished at 11:00 P.M. on 5/20.

Owen Bush Stadium, Indianapolis, Indiana – 8/17/1986 – American Association – Buffalo Bisons 6 Indianapolis Indians 5 in 5:35 –1507 fans – finished at 12:05 A.M. in the early morning of 8/18.

Estadio (Stadium) Victoria de Giron, Matanzas or Estadio Latinoamericano, Havana, Cuba—11/23/ 1986—Serie Nacional—Henequeneros vs. Industriales.

Al Lang Field (II), St. Petersburg, Florida and Holman Stadium, Vero Beach, Florida - 4/29/1988 and 5/28/1988 — Florida State League — Vero Beach Dodgers 6 St. Petersburg Cardinals 5 in 5:59, suspended after 5:29 and 18 innings, completed in Vero Beach — suspended at 1:04 A.M. in the early morning of 4/30.

Community Field (II), Burlington, Iowa — 5/15/ 1989 — Midwest League — Rockford Expos 4 Burlington Braves 2 in 5:04.

Keehi Lagoon Park, Honolulu, Hawaii — 4/13/ 1990 — National Association of Intercollegiate Athletics — Hawaii Pacific College (later University) Sea Warriors 5 College of Idaho (later Albertson College) Coyotes 4 in 2nd game, Hawaii Pacific 3 Idaho 0 in 7 innings in 1st game.

Municipal Stadium (II), Phoenix, Arizona – 6/23/1990 – Pacific Coast League – Calgary Cannons 12 Phoenix Firebirds 9 in 6:39 – finished at 1:49 A.M. in the early morning of 6/24.

Sunnyside Park, Decatur, Illinois — 7/16/1990— Central Illinois Collegiate League — Decatur Blues 5 Champaign County Colts 4 in 4:50—25 fans finished at 11:50 P.M.

Greer Stadium, Nashville, Tennessee — 9/7/1990— American Association playoffs — Omaha Royals 8 Nashville Sounds 7 in 6:25, rain delay 1:46 bottom 11th —14,482 fans, 500 fans top 12th, 300 fans at end —finished at 3:50 A.M. in the early morning of 9/8.

Tim McCarver Stadium, Memphis, Tennessee – 6/17/1991 and 6/18/1991 – Southern League – Huntsville Stars 9 Memphis Chicks 7 in 6:32, suspended after 5:33 and 16 innings – 6845 fans on 6/17, 2349 fans on 6/18 – suspended at 1:12 A.M. in the early morning of 6/18, finished at 7:40 P.M. on 6/18.

Al Lang Field (II), St. Petersburg, Florida – 6/8/ 1993 – Florida State League – St. Petersburg Cardinals 4 Lakeland Tigers 3 in 5:11–1229 fans – finished at 12:46 A.M. in the early morning of 6/9.

Ed Smith Stadium, Sarasota, Florida - 6/17/1993 -Florida State League - Sarasota White Sox 3 Clearwater Phillies 2 in 4:47 - 932 fans - finished at 12:06 A.M. in the early morning of 6/18.

Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania – 7/7/1993 – National League – Phillies 7 Dodgers 6 in 6:10 – 41,730 fans – finished at 1:47 A.M. in the early morning of 7/8.

Al Lang Field (II), St. Petersburg, Florida – 4/ 14/1994 – Florida State League – St. Petersburg Cardinals 8 Lakeland Tigers 7 in 7:07 –1021 fans – finished at 2:42 A.M. in the early morning of 4/15.

Oakes Oval, Lismore, State of New South Wales, Australia —12/31/1994 — AAA Asian Under 19 Series — Australia 9 Chinese Taipei 8 in 6:17, 2nd game postponed — 300 fans, 300 fans at end —finished at 9:47 P.M.

Estadio (Stadium) Angel Flores, Culiacan, State of Sinaloa, Mexico –10/27/1995 – Mexican Pacific League – Culiacan Tomateros (Tomato Growers) 3 Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2 in 6:01–finished at 1:31 A.M. in the early morning of 10/28.

Kyoto or Kobe, Japan —?/??/1997 — Kinki District High School League — Kyoto Heian-koukou 8 Kobe Ikuei-koukou 7. L.P. Frans Stadium, Hickory, North Carolina — 8/13/2000 — South Atlantic (Sally) League — Asheville Tourists 4 Hickory Crawdads 3 in 5:16 —1959 fans finished at 12:16 A.M. in the early morning of 8/14.

Jack Horenberger Field, Bloomington, Illinois — 7/30/2002 — Central Illinois Collegiate League — Decatur Blues 11 Twin City Stars 4 in 5:44 — 259 fans finished at 10:44 P.M.

Estadio (Stadium) Tetelo Vargas, San Pedro de Marcoris, Dominican —10/19/2002 — Dominican Winter League — Orientales Estrellas (Oriental Stars) 4 Escogido Leones Rojos (Red Lions) 3 in 6:41—finished at 3:17 A.M. in the early morning of 10/20.

Pro Player Stadium, Miami, Florida — 4/27/2003 — National League — Cardinals 7 Marlins 6 in 6:07 — 10,075 fans — finished at 7:12 P.M.

Eldredge Park, Orleans, Massachusetts - 8/4/2003- Cape Cod League - Harwich Mariners 3 Orleans Cardinals 2 in 5:52, umpire crew chief called it a tie game after 17 innings a little after Midnight, but both managers and players from both teams successfully changed his mind to allow the game to continue -4615 fans, 125 fans at end - finished at 12:58 A.M. in the early morning of 8/5.

Frank Myers Field at Tointon Family Stadium, Manhattan, Kansas — 4/9/2004 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — University of Texas Longhorns 10 Kansas State University Wildcats 6 in 6:28 — 874 fans — finished at 1:35 A.M. in the early morning of 4/10.

Estadio (Stadium) Jesus Caranza Limon, Guasave, State of Sinaloa, Mexico –12/9/2004 – Mexican Pacific League – Guasave Algodoneros (Cotton Pickers) 3 Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2.

Reiterstadion (later Circle Wood Stadium), Koln (Cologne), Germany – 4/6/2005 – Bundesliga Nord (North German League) – Bonn Capitals 9 Koln (Cologne) Cardinals 7 in 5:50; then Bonn 4 Cologne 0 in 2:05 and 7 innings, rain delay 0:13 – 600 fans; 500 fans at end of 1st game; 250 fans at end of 2nd game —1st game finished at 6:50 P.M.; 2nd game finished at 9:38 P.M.

Whataburger Field, Corpus Christi, Texas -6/1/2005 – Texas League – Wichita Wranglers 7 Corpus Christi Hooks 2 in 6:09 – 6609 fans, 325 fans at end –finished at 1:19 A.M. in the early morning of 6/2.

Hammond Stadium, Fort Myers, Florida - 4/13/2006 – Florida State League – Clearwater Threshers 4 Fort Myers Miracle 3 in 5:02 –1544 fans; 94 fans at end – finished at 12:07 A.M. in the early morning of 4/14.

Hooks Stadium, Winston-Salem, North Carolina — 5/6/2006 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Florida State University Seminoles 4 Wake Forest University Demon Deacons 3 in 5:02 —1711 fans; 850 fans at end —finished at 6:05 P.M.

Baseball Grounds, Jacksonville, Florida – 8/12/2006 and 8/13/2006 – Southern League – Jacksonville Suns 5 West Tennessee Diamond Jaxx 2 in 5:22, rain delay, 2nd rain delay top 4th, suspended after 0:55 top 4th; then West Tennessee 4 Jacksonville 1 in 1:44 and 7 innings – 6280 fans on 8/12; 2907 fans on 8/13 – finished at 7:32 P.M.; 2nd game finished at 9:46 P.M.

Nishi-Kyogoku Kyujyo (Stadium), Kyoto, Japan — 10/22/2006 — Kansai University League — Doshisha University 2 Ritsumeikan University 1 in 4:59 — 2000 fans — finished at 8:20 P.M.

Sancet Stadium, Tucson, Arizona —1/27/2007 — National Collegiate Athletic Association/University of Arizona Wildcats intrasquad game — Team A vs. Team B.

Legends Field, Tampa, Florida — 4/17/2007 — Florida State League — Clearwater Threshers 4 Tampa Yankees 1 in 5:14 — 706 fans — finished at 12:14 A.M. in the early morning of 4/18.

Nash Park, Kenosha, Wisconsin -4/24/2007 -Wisconsin State High School League – Kenosha Tremper High School Trojans 3 Racine Horlick High School Rebels 2 in 5:05 – 65 fans; 20 fans at end – finished at 9:35 P.M.

Arnold Klaers Field, Loretto, Minnesota -6/27/2007 – North Star League – Buffalo Bulldogs 4 Loretto Larks 2 in 4:15 – 98 fans; 27 fans at end – finished at 11:45 P.M.

Yanez Field, Downey, California — 5/13/2008 — California Interscholastic Federation (Cif) Southern Section Division III Playoffs Wildcard Round — Downey High School Vikings 3 Harvard-Westlake Upper School Wolverines 2 in 7:20 — 200 fans including Tommy Lasorda; 125 fans at end — finished at 10:35 P.M.

Jubilee Field, Yorkton, Province of Saskatchewan, Canada – 6/19/2008 and 6/22/2008 – Western Major League – Sherwood Park Dukes 5 Yorkton Cardinals 3 in 5:16, rain delay 0:20 top 12th, suspended after 3:13 and 11 innings – 475 fans on 6/19; 225 fans when suspended; 316 fans on 6/22 – suspended at 10:38 P.M.; finished at 4:08 P.M.

Hanover Insurance Park at Fitton Field, Worcester, Massachusetts -6/26/2008 – Canadian American (CanAm) League – New Jersey Jackals 5 Worcester Tornadoes 4 in 6:06 –1434 fans – finished at 12:11 A.M. in the early morning of 6/27.

Joker Marchant Stadium, Lakeland, Florida – 6/29/2008 – Florida State League – Lakeland Flying Tigers 3 Daytona Cubs 2 in 6:06 – 469 fans – finished at 12:06 A.M. in the early morning of 6/30.

Longest Games, by Decade

1870's (2)

24 — South End Grounds (I), Boston, Massachusetts — 5/11/1877 — International Association at Inter-Collegiate Association — Manchester Professionals 0 Harvard College Crimson 0 in 3:30.

21 — Girard Field, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 6/29/1878 — Amateur at High School — Yeager 10 Gi-

rard College High School Orphans (later Cavaliers) 7 in 4:00.

1880's (1)

36 — North End Grounds, Stoneham, Massachusetts — 8/28/1880 — Zouaves 21 Benecia Boys 15 — 350 fans.

1890's (5)

22—11th Street Grounds, Tacoma, Washington — 5/ 16/1891— Pacific Northwest League — Tacoma Daisies 6 Seattle Blues 5 in 3:35 — 900 fans —finished at 7:05 P.M.

25 — North Dakota State Militia Training Grounds, Devils Lake, North Dakota — 7/18/1891— Red River Valley League — Grand Forks Black Stockings 0 Fargo Red Stockings 0 in 4:10—finished at 8:10 P.M.

20—League Park (I), Cincinnati, Ohio— 6/30/1892—National League—Colts (later Cubs) 7 Reds 7 in 3:20—1300 fans.

20—Sportsman's Park (III), St. Louis, Missouri— 4/10/1898 — Western League at National League spring training exhibition — St. Louis Browns 12 Milwaukee Brewers 11 in 3:20.

21— Lake View Park, Peoria, Illinois — 6/26/1898 — Western Association — Peoria Blackbirds 8 St. Joseph Saints 4 in 4:00.

1900's (71)

20— Richmond, Indiana — 7/1/1900 — Amateur — Covington All-Kentuckians 3 Richmond 0.

20— Lake Benton or Pipestone, Minnesota — 9/12/ 1901— Amateur — Lake Benton 3 Pipestone 2 in 3:45.

20—Old Fair Grounds Park, Springfield, Missouri—7/19/1902—Missouri Valley League— Springfield Reds 2 Nevada Lunatics 1 in 5:00—3500 fans, 3500 fans at end—finished at 8:30 P.M.

21— League Park, Pittsburg, Kansas — 7/7/1903 — Missouri Valley League — Pittsburg Coal Diggers 5 Joplin Miners 4; then Joplin vs. Pittsburg, called after 4 innings.

20 – Driving Park, Kingston, New York – 8/10/1903 – Hudson River League – Hudson Marines 2 Kingston Colonials 2 in 3:10.

30—Van Wert, Ohio—?/??/1904—Amateur—Independent Team A with Hay of Kankakee pitching 3 Independent Team B 2.

20—Fairgrounds, Henderson, Kentucky— 8/11/1904—Kentucky-Illinois-Tennessee (Kitty) League—Cairo Egyptians 4 Henderson Blue Birds 2.

20 – West Fitchburg (later Fitchburg), Massachusetts – 8/17/1904 – Amateur – Cleghorn 9 Hill Tops 8.

21—League Park, Princeton, Indiana—6/27 /1905—Kentucky-Illinois-Tennessee (Kitty) League— Hopkinsville Hoppers 4 Princeton Infants 2 in 3:10— 200 fans—finished at 6:10 P.M.

23 — Goodwater Grove (later Oak Park, then Billy Hebert Field), Stockton, California — 7/2/1905 — California State League – Stockton Millers 1 Lodi Crushers 0 in 3:26.

20—Huntington Grounds, Boston, Massachusetts — 7/4/1905 — American League — Athletics 4 Americans (later Red Sox) 2 in 3:31 in P.M. game, Athletics 5 Americans 2 in 1:52 in A.M. game — 12,666 fans for P.M. game, 8797 fans for A.M. game.

21—Hardin, Ohio — 7/16/1905 — Amateur — Hardin Champs 5 Portsmouth 4.

22 — Park, Frostburg, Maryland — 8/12/1905 — Amateur — Frostburg Champions 1 Lonaconing 0.

20—Huntingdon Street Grounds (later National League Park (III), then Baker Bowl), Philadelphia, Pennsylvania—8/24/1905—National League—Cubs 2 Phillies 1 in 4:00—5457 fans.

21— The Bronx Ballfield, New York, New York— 9/3/1905 — Amateur — Exchange 4 Fultons 3 in 3:25.

21—Columbus, Ohio — 6/10/1906 — Amateur — Mitchel Specials 0 West Side Nationals 0.

20— Pitman, New Jersey — 7/4/1906 — Amateur — Camden West End 2 Pitman 1 in A.M. game; Camden West End 7 Pitman 1 in P.M. game.

20— Chester, Pennsylvania — 7/4/1906 — Amateur — Fifth Ward Travelers 3 Shinnecock 2.

20— Athletic Park, Monessen, Pennsylvania — 8/11/ 1906 — Amateur — Glassport Athletic Club 5 Monessen East End Athletic Club 4.

24 — Huntington Grounds, Boston, Massachusetts — 9/1/1906 — American League — Athletics 4 Americans (later Red Sox) 1 in 4:47, 2nd game postponed — 18,084 fans — finished at 6:47 P.M.

20— Miners Park, Joplin, Missouri—9/4/1906— Western Association—Joplin Miners 0 Webb City Gold Bugs 0 in 3:15—150 fans.

20—Washington (later Roberto Clemente) Park, Lowell, Massachusetts -4/27/1907 – New England League – Haverhill Hustlers 1 Lowell Tigers 1 in 3:25-3200 fans.

21— Millerville (later Millville), Massachusetts — 5/25/1907 — Woonsocket Mill League — Taft-Pierce Mill of Woonsocket 4 Alice Mill of Woonsocket 2 in 3:18.

23 — Cook Athletic Park, Hutchinson, Kansas — 5/29/1907 — Western Association — Oklahoma City Mets 2 Hutchinson Salt Packers 1 in 3:10 — 900 fans, 1500 fans at end —finished at 7:10 P.M.

28 — Dorchester Franklin Field Diamond #5, Boston, Massachusetts — 6/8/1907 — Boston Grammar School League Championship Game — Henry L. Pierce Grammar School of Dorchester 4 Bennet Grammar School of Brighton 3 in 5:50—finished at 3:50 P.M.

20— Clerks' Field, Bethlehem, Pennsylvania — 6/11/ 1907 — Amateur — Never Works 13 Never Sweats 12.

21—League Park, Jacksonville, Illinois— 6/26/1907—Iowa State League—Jacksonville Lunatics 3 Burlington Pathfinders 2 in 3:05—419 fans.

21— Gilmore Ground, Gilmore City, Iowa—6/26/ 1907—Amateur—Humboldt Colts 1 Gilmore City Midgets 0 in 5:00—finished at 8:05 P.M.—Humboldt batter Arch Wilder singled in top of 21st, stole second, was safe at third when comebacker to pitcher was thrown to third even though throw beat him by six feet, then stole home and was called safe even though throw beat him by eight feet; umpire Harve Clark was from Humboldt.

21— Denton, Texas — 6/30/1907 — Amateur — Root Beers 1 Dinkelspeil Sluggers 1.

21—Washington, Pennsylvania—7/3/1907—Amateur—Juniors 7 Imperials 6.

30—Brookside Park, Cleveland, Ohio—7/4/ 1907—Amateur—Brooklyn Athletic Club 4 East End All Stars 1 in 5:50.

36 – Recreation Park (I), Columbus, Ohio – 7/5/1907 – Amateur – Heintz Victors 2 Columbus Selects 2 in 3:50.

20 – Graham, Texas – 7/10/1907 – Amateur – Gainesville 2 Graham 1.

23 – Green Bay, Wisconsin – 7/14/1907 – Wisconsin Association – Green Bay Orphans 2 La Crosse Badgers 1 in 4:05 – 1800 fans.

22 — Cooperstown Diamond, Cooperstown, North Dakota — 7/19/1907 — Amateur — Hannaford 2 Binford 1 in 3:10.

20—Webb Park, Marion, Ohio—7/20/1907— Ohio-Pennsylvania League—Mansfield Pioneers 2 Marion Drummers 1 in 2:18—800 fans.

22 — Ringwood Park, Clinton, Iowa — 7/25/1907 — Illinois-Indiana-Iowa (Three-I) League — Peoria Distillers 3 Clinton Infants 0 in 3:10.

23 — Mount Holly, New Jersey — 8/4/1907 — Amateur — Ex-Philadelphia 3 Harrison of Mount Holly 2.

21—Point Grounds, Johnstown, Pennsylvania — 8/8/1907 — Delaware/New Jersey/Pennsylvania (Tri-State) League — Johnstown Johnnies 4 Reading Pretzels 3 in 2:45.

21— Castroville, Texas — 8/11/1907 — Amateur — Medina Stars 3 Lone Stars 2.

24 — Wehrle Park, Newark, Ohio — 8/23/1907 — Ohio-Pennsylvania League — Sharon Giants 3 Newark Newks 2.

20 — Arcadia, California — 3/15/1908 — Southern California State League — Santa Anita 4 Arcadia Eagles 3 in 3:00.

20— Dorchester Franklin Field, Boston, Massachusetts — 4/25/1908 — Boston Grammar School League — Lauriat Grammar School of Dorchester 5 Norfolk Grammar School of Dorchester 4.

22 — Greenwood, South Carolina — 4/26/1908 — South Carolina High School League — Anderson Boy's High School Yellowjackets 5 Greenwood High School Eagles 4 in 3:45 — finished at 7:15 P.M.

20—Electric Park, Aberdeen, Washington— 5/6/1908—Northwestern League—Butte Miners 3 Aberdeen Black Cats 3 in 3:45.

23 – Kingfisher, Oklahoma – 5/11/1908 – Oklahoma State League – Crescent 0 Kingfisher 0.

20—Athletic Park, Newton, Kansas — 5/26/1908 — Central Kansas League pre-season exhibition — Newton Railroaders 3 McPherson Merry Macks 2 in 3:15—finished at 6:45 P.M.

20— School Playgrounds, Lawrenceville, New Jersey — 5/29/1908 — Mid-Atlantic Prep League — Lawrenceville School Big Red 3 Mercersburg Academy Blue Storm 2 in 3:00.

25 — Prosperity, Missouri — 5/31/1908 — Interstate (Kansas/Missouri/Oklahoma) League — Mineral 8 Prosperity 6 in 4:18 — finished at 6:18 P.M.

22 -Schaller, Iowa - 6/4/1908 -Amateur -Sac City 3 Schaller 3 in 3:30-finished at 6:00 P.M.

24 — McClelland, Iowa — 6/14/1908 — Amateur — Lee-Glass-Amdressen Originals 2 McClelland 2 in 4:35.

20—New Straitsville or Shawnee, Ohio-6/19/1908—Amateur—New Straitsville 6 Shawnee 5 in 3:30.

20—Canistota, South Dakota — 7/25/1908 — Amateur — Emery 1 Canistota 1.

21— Midlothian, Texas — 8/15/1908 — Amateur — Arkansaw 4 West End 4.

20—Opportunity (later Recreation, then Burkart, then Aces) Park, Saginaw or Fairgrounds-Keeley Park, Jackson, Michigan—6/30/1908—Southern Michigan Association—Saginaw Wa-wa's 5 Jackson Convicts 4.

22 – Adelaide Park, Providence, Rhode Island – 7/4/1908 – Tim O'neil League – Red Hooks of Providence 5 Olneyville 4 in 3:30–finished at 2:35 P.M.

21—Vincennes, Illinois — 7/18/1908 — Eastern Illinois League — Charleston Evangelists 4 Vincennes Alices 3.

21—Athletic Grounds, Sheboygan, Wisconsin— 7/19/1908—Lakeshore League—Sheboygan Chairmakers 1 Milwaukee White Sox 0 in 3:40—finished at 6:25 P.M.

23 — North Corry Fairgrounds, Corry, Pennsylvania — 7/25/1908 — Semi-Pro — Falconer (NY) 3 Corry (PA) 1 in 3:50—1000 fans.

20—Vaughn Street Ballpark (later Lucky Beaver Stadium), Portland, Oregon—8/2/1908—Pacific Coast League—San Francisco Seals 6 Portland Beavers 5 in 3:40.

23 — Fond du Lac, Wisconsin — 8/4/1908 — Wisconsin-Illinois League — Oshkosh Indians 4 Fond du Lac Cubs 2 in 3:40.

20—League Park, Jacksonville, Illinois— 9/3/1908—Central Association—Jacksonville Lunatics 4 Ottumwa Packers 1 in 2:50.

26 — Bloomington Grounds, Bloomington, Illinois — 5/31/1909 — Illinois-Indiana-Iowa (Three-I) League — Decatur Commodores 2 Bloomington Bloomers 1 in 4:20, rain delay 0:15 bottom 5th, 2nd game postponed —1200 fans —finished at 6:35 P.M.

24 — Freeman's Park, Oakland, California — 6/8/1909 — Pacific Coast League — San Francisco Seals 1 Oakland Oaks 0 in 3:35.

26 — Athletic Park, Dixon, Illinois — 6/25/1909 — Semi-Pro League — Dixon Browns 3 Muscatine Independents 2 in 4:00—150 fans, 1000 fans at end finished at 7:20 P.M. 20— Ballinger, Texas — 6/26/1909 — Amateur — Granbury 3 Ballinger 2 in 2:20, 2nd game postponed.

22 — Sodality Park, San Jose, California — 6/26/ 1909 — Amateur — Junior Outlaws 11 Sodality Stars 9.

24 — Ashmont Playground, Boston, Massachusetts — 7/18/1909 — Amateur 14-Year Old League — Norfolks of Dorchester 6 Rosemonts of Ashmont 5.

21—McPherson, Kansas—7/27/1909—Kansas State League—Lyons Lions 2 McPherson Merry Macks 1 in 2:50.

22 — Recreation Park, Vancouver, Province of British Columbia, Canada — 7/31/1909 — Northwestern

League — Portland Colts 3 Vancouver Beavers 0 in 3:08. 20 — Edgerton, Indiana — 8/9/1909 — Amateur — Woodburn 5 Edgerton Browns 4 — 300 fans.

1910's (79)

21—Athletic Grounds, Sheboygan, Wisconsin—6/5/ 1910—Lakeshore League—Sheboygan Chairmakers 2 Port Washington 1—1000 fans—finished at 7:05 P.M.

22 – Danville, Ohio – 6/16/1910 – Amateur – Amity 6 Danville 6 in 5:00.

20 – Palmer, Iowa – 6/28/1910 – SemiPro – Pocahontas 2 Pomeroy 2.

24 — Union Park, Clarksburg, West Virginia — 7/3/ 1910 — West Virginia League — Mannington Drillers 1 Clarksburg Bees 1 in 3:00 — 500 fans.

23 — League Park, San Antonio, Texas — 7/5/1910 — Texas League — Waco Navigators 1 San Antonio Bronchos 1 in 4:14; 2nd game postponed — finished at 6:44 P.M.

21— Springbrook (later Playland) Park, South Bend, Indiana—7/13/1910— Central League— South Bend Bronchos 1 Zanesville Potters 0 in 3:35, 2nd game postponed.

20— Hippodrome, Bridgeton, New Jersey — 7/20/ 1910— Amateur — Roxboro Talmage 2 Bridgeton 0.

20—Mercer Park on Tattnall Square, Macon, Georgia — 4/15/1911—College at High School — Hall's

School 4 Georgia-Alabama Business College 3 in 2:45. 20— Kirksville, Missouri — 5/25/1911— Missouri State League — Kirksville Osteopaths 2 Macon Athlet-

ics 1. 24 — Sanatoga (later Tumbling Run) Park, Pottsville, Pennsylvania — 6/18/1911— Amateur — Reading Ruth Athletic Club 1 Pottsville Alerts 0 in 4:00.

20—East Berlin, Pennsylvania—8/5/1911—Amateur—New Oxford 5 East Berlin 4.

21— Ironwood, Michigan — 8/6/1911— Upper Peninsula League — Cary Empires 4 Ironwood Tigers 2 in 4:05, 2nd game between Ironwood and Temple Theatre postponed —finished at 6:10 P.M.

24 — Buffalo Park, Sacramento, California — 9/10/1911 — Pacific Coast League — Portland Beavers 1 Sacramento Sacts 1 in 3:45.

21—Washington Park, Los Angeles, California— 9/15/1911—Pacific Coast League—Sacramento Sacts 4 Los Angeles Angels 4 in 3:10.

20—Norman, Oklahoma — 4/25/1912 — College — Oklahoma A&M College (later University) Aggies

(later Tigers, then Cowboys) 1 University of Oklahoma Sooners 1 in 3:00.

21— Beaumont Mill Field, Spartanburg, South Carolina — 6/15/1912 — South Carolina Textile League — Beaumont Mill 1 Inman Mill 0.

21—St. Cloud, Minnesota—6/??/1912—Amateur—Collegians 5 Abeles 2.

20—Kansas City, Missouri — 8/2/1912—17-Year Old Junior League — Yale Blues 22 Buddie Blues 11— Yale Blues scored 20 runs in top 20th; Buddie Blues scored 9 runs in bottom 20th.

20— Marysville, California — 8/4/1912 — Amateur — Hammonton 4 Marysville 3.

28 — Columbus Avenue Grounds, Boston, Massachusetts — 9/11/1912 — Amateur — Willow Athletic Club 5 St. Philips' All-Stars 4 in 4:30 — finished at 2:30 P.M.

23 — Bangs, Texas — 5/23/1913 — Amateur — Antioch 1 Live Oak 1.

20— Honolulu, Hawaii — 5/31/1913 — Amateur — Honolulu Stars 3 Punahou Athletic Club (Ac) 1.

21— Desmet (later De Smet), South Dakota — 6/1/ 1913 — Amateur — Desmet (later De Smet) 4 Lake Preston 3.

20— League Park, Champaign, Illinois — 6/19/1913 — Illinois-Missouri League — Champaign Velvets 6 Kankakee Daffydils 5 in 3:37 — finished at 7:07 P.M.

20—Franklin Park, Adrian, Michigan— 7/17/1913—Southern Michigan Association—Battle Creek Crickets 1 Adrian Champs 1.

24 — Baltimore, Maryland — 7/26/1913 — Amateur — White Lilies 4 Locust Point Junior All-Stars 2 in 5:00—finished at 3:00 P.M.

20—West Side (later Skeeters) Park, Jersey City, New Jersey—8/12/1913—International League— Toronto Maple Leafs 0 Jersey City Skeeters 0 in 3:20.

21–Kankakee, Illinois–5/25/1914–Illinois–Mis-

souri League – Streator Boosters 2 Kankakee Kanks 2. 20 – Washington Park, Los Angeles, California – 5/27/1914 – Pacific Coast League – Oakland Oaks 4 Venice Tigers 2 in 4:02 – finished at 7:02 P.M.

20— Nicollet Park, Minneapolis, Minnesota—6/9/ 1914—American Association—Minneapolis Millers 3 Louisville Colonels 2 in 3:31—1500 fans.

20—Bertram Field, Salem, Massachusetts— 6/10/1914—Massachusetts High School League— Salem High School Witches 6 Haverhill High School Hillies 5 in 4:20—finished at 7:40 P.M.

23 – Athletic Park, Hutchinson, Kansas – 7/3/1914 – Kansas State League – Hutchinson Salt Packers 4 Great Bend Millers 3.

23 — Brewster Park, New Haven, Connecticut — 7/14/1914 — Eastern Association — Hartford Senators 2 New Haven White Wings 1 in 3:55, 2nd game postponed.

21—Forbes Field, Pittsburg (later Pittsburgh), Pennsylvania — 7/17/1914 — National League — Giants 3 Pirates 1 in 3:42 — mythical account of game ending with Giant outfielder Red Murray being knocked unconscious by lightning as he caught a fly ball barehanded for the final out is untrue, Murray actually did make "the Catch" here barehanded, illuminated by lightning, five years earlier on 8/16/1909 in the bottom of the 8th with two on and two out, thus preserving a 2–2 8-inning tie game, since rain washed out the game after his catch, but he was not struck by the lightning bolt nor was he knocked unconscious.

28 – Delaware City, Ohio – 7/18/1914 – Amateur – Columbus Champions 1 Delaware Stars 0.

22 – Riverside Park, Sioux City, Iowa – 7/19/1914 – Western League – Wichita Wolves 3 Sioux City Indians 2 in 4:48.

20—Dugdale Park (II), Seattle, Washington—7/19/ 1914—Northwestern League—Spokane Indians 6 Seattle Giants 1 in 3:03.

21— Camp Vincent Fairgrounds, Watertown, New York —?/??/1914 — Negro League at Amateur — Harrisville Adirondacks defeated Havana Red Sox.

20—Ellsworth Park, Ellsworth, Pennsylvania— 8/15/1914—Amateur—Vandergrift 4 Scottdale Independents 3.

20—western part of Oklahoma—?/??/1910's—Amateur—Elk City 4 unknown opponent 2, Cot Deal's father Roy B. Deal pitched the whole way for Elk City, and hit 2-run homer to win game in 20th.

21—Arapaho, Oklahoma —?/??/1915 — Amateur — Elk City 0 unknown opponent 0, Cot Deal's father Roy B. Deal pitched the whole way for Elk City.

25 – Green Bay, Wisconsin – 4/12/1915 – Amateur – White Sox 2 Fox Stars 1.

21—High School Grounds, Dallas, Texas— 5/1/1915—Amateur—Revico 11 Rounders 10.

20—Cuba—5/9/1915—Amateur National League—Progressos 8 Athletics 7.

20—Wehrle Park, Charleston, West Virginia— 6/27/1915—Ohio State League—Lexington Colts 5 Charleston Senators 2 in 3:25.

22—Athletic Park, Burlington, Iowa—6/27/ 1915—Central Association—Keokuk Indians 0 Burlington Pathfinders 0 in 3:50—finished at 6:10 P.M.

20—Hannibal, Missouri—7/2/1915—Negro League Amateur—Hannibal Browns 5 Hannibal Eagles 5 in 3:20.

23 — Wehrle Park, Newark, Ohio — 7/4/1915 — Amateur — Knights of Columbus 2 Athletics 2.

20¹/₂— Hanes Field, Durham, North Carolina — 7/5/1915 — North Carolina State League — Raleigh Capitals 2 Durham Bulls 2 in 3:11 in P.M. game, called due to darkness with Durham batting in bottom of 21st; Raleigh 3 Durham 2 in 3:05 and 14 innings in A.M. game at League Park, Raleigh, North Carolina — 1500 fans for P.M. game; 700 fans for A.M. game.

20— Medford, New Jersey — 7/10/1915 — Burlington County Semi-Pro League — Mount Holly 0 Medford 0.

21—Rowells Field, Salem, Massachusetts— 7/22/1915—Salem Playground League—Rowells Field 3 Bridge Street Nine 2 in 3:15.

21— Rock Island Park, Owatonna, Minnesota — 7/25/1915 — Mankato 1 Owatonna Gray Sox 1 in 3:57 in 2nd game, Mankato vs. Owatonna in 7 innings in 1:15 in 1st game – 2nd game called at 5:57 P.M.

20—Bridgewater, South Dakota—7/31/1915— Amateur—Salem 1 Bridgewater 1.

23 — League Park, Norfolk, Virginia — 8/14/1915 — Virginia League — Suffolk Tigers 2 Norfolk Tars 2 in 3:40.

22 — League Park, Norfolk, Virginia — 9/4/1915 — Virginia League — Norfolk Tars 3 Suffolk Tigers 3.

24 – Glendon, Pennsylvania – 7/3/1916 – Professional at Amateur – Reading Kolbs' Professionals 3 Glendon 3.

22 — Douglas Park, Rock Island, Illinois — 7/9/1916 — Illinois-Indiana-Iowa (Three-I) League — Hannibal Mules 8 Rock Island Islanders 3 in 4:00.

20—Gulfview Park, Galveston, Texas—8/13/ 1916—Texas League—Waco Navigators 4 Galveston Pirates 1.

20— Berthold, North Dakota — 8/27/1916 — Amateur — Minot defeated Berthold.

21—Antelope Park, Lincoln, Nebraska— 8/12/1917—Western League—Lincoln Links 2 Joplin Miners 1 in 3:38.

22 — Ebbets Field, Brooklyn, New York — 8/22/-1917 — National League — Robins (later Dodgers) 6 Pirates 5 in 4:15 in 1st game, Pirates 0 Robins 0 in 2 innings in 2nd game, called off—1st game finished at 5:45 P.M.

20—Sixth Street Park, St. Joseph, Missouri — 8/26/ 1917 — Western League — Des Moines Boosters 4 St. Joseph Drummers 3 in 4:00.

20— Exeter, Pennsylvania — 9/9/1917 — Amateur — Nanticoke W.S. 2 Exeter Stars 2 in 3:20.

20—Goat (later Yerba Buena) Island, San Francisco, California—9/15/1917—Amateur—Oakland Naval Training Station Sailors 1 Oakland Vampires 0 in 3:10.

21–South Side Playgrounds, San Francisco, California – 9/16/1917 – Amateur – Jeffersons 10 Mission Merchants 9.

20— Panther Park, Fort Worth, Texas — 5/8/1918 — Texas League — Shreveport Gassers 1 Fort Worth Panthers 1.

20—Sixth Street Park, St. Joseph, Missouri— 6/1/1918—Western League—Joplin Miners 3 St. Joseph Saints 1.

21—Weeghman Park (later Cubs' Park, then Wrigley Field), Chicago, Illinois—7/17/1918—National League — Cubs 2 Phillies 1 in 4:00—finished at 7:00 P.M.

21—Braves (later Nickerson) Field, Boston, Massachusetts — 8/1/1918 — National League — Pirates 2 Braves 0.

20— San Francisco, California—11/24/1918— Amateur— Colma 4 San Carlos 3.

20— National League Park (III) (later Baker Bowl), Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 4/30/1919 — National League — Robins (later Dodgers) 9 Phillies 9 in 4:00.

20— Base Section One U.S. Army Base, Giverny, France — sometime in 1918 or 1919 before 6/18/1919 — U.S. Army Base Section One League — Camp Number Four Base Section 6 Camp Dodge 5. 21—Lake Shore Grounds, Dunkirk, New York— 6/7/1919—Amateur—Ramblers 2 White Eagles 1.

23 – Andrews Field, Chattanooga, Tennessee – 6/13/1919 – Southern League – Atlanta Crackers 2 Chattanooga Lookouts 2 in 3:40.

20—Sulphur Dell (I), Nashville, Tennessee—7/12/ 1919—Southern League—Chattanooga Lookouts 6 Nashville Volunteers 5 in 3:31.

22—Birch Hills, Province of Saskatchewan, Canada—8/2/1919—Northern Saskatchewan League—Melfort 1 Birch Hills 1.

20— Latta Park, Charlotte, North Carolina — 8/30/ 1919 — South Atlantic (Sally) League — Columbia Comers 5 Charlotte Hornets 5.

21— Savin Road Park, New Haven, Connecticut — 8/31/1919 — Eastern League — Worcester Boosters 4 New Haven Weissmen 3.

1920's (30)

26 — Braves (later Nickerson) Field, Boston, Massachusetts — 5/1/1920 — National League — Robins (later Dodgers) 1 Braves 1 in 3:50 — 4000 fans finished at 6:50 P.M.

20—Hamilton Athletic Association (H.A.A.) Grounds, Hamilton, Province of Ontario, Canada— 6/17/1920—Michigan-Ontario League—London Cockneys (later Tecumsehs) 5 Hamilton Tigers 4.

23 — Pershing Park, Santa Barbara, California — 7/11/1920 — Amateur Championship Series — Santa Barbara 2 Ventura 1.

20— Hampden Park (II), Springfield, Massachusetts — 8/28/1920— Eastern League — Albany Senators 5 Springfield Ponies 5 in 4:04.

20—Baker Bowl, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania— 1/30/1921—National League Philadelphia Phillies intrasquad spring training exhibition—Mutts 0 Jeffs 0.

22 — Washington Park, Los Angeles, California — 4/10/1921— Pacific Coast League — Seattle Rainiers 12 Los Angeles Angels 8 in 4:46, 2nd game postponed — 13,000 fans.

20— Hanlan's Point (III), Toronto, Province of Ontario, Canada—6/2/1921— International League— Buffalo Bisons 3 Toronto Maple Leafs 2 in 4:05.

20— Media, Pennsylvania — 7/3/1921— Professional at Amateur — Media Athletic Association (A.A.) 13 Northwest Professionals 12.

22 — Stonewall Jackson Park, Danville, Virginia — 7/9/1921— Piedmont League — High Point Furniture Makers 7 Danville Tobacconists 6 in 4:07.

20—Parkesburg, Pennsylvania—7/30/1921—Amateur—Cressona Tigers 2 Parkesburg Iron Company Ironmen 1 in 3:45.

23 — North End Park, Belleville, Illinois — 9/11/1921 and 9/18/1921 — Amateur — St. Louis Keen Kutters 5 Belleville B's 3, suspended after 3:54 and 20 innings.

26 — Oakland City Park, Atlanta, Georgia — 7/26/ 1922 — Amateur — Oakland City 3 West End 2 — 500 fans.

23-Douglas Park, Rock Island, Illinois-8/4/

1922 — Mississippi Valley League — Ottumwa Cardinals 4 Rock Island Islanders 2 in 4:10.

20— Schorling's (later American Giants) Park, Chicago, Illinois— 8/16/1922— Negro National League— Chicago American Giants 1 Atlantic City Bacharach Giants 0 in 3:38.

20 — General Field, Akron, Ohio — 8/20/1922 — Ohio Industrial League — Firestone Non-Skids 0 General Tire Generals 0.

23 — Langley Flying Field, Hampton, Virginia — ?/??/1923 — US Army at US Army Air Force — Fort Monroe Artillerymen 2 Langley Field (later Air Force Base) Birdmen 2.

21— Oxnard Armory (later Community Center), Oxnard, California—5/26/1923—Amateur Oxnard Indoors League—Hueneme Sea Lions/Turtles/Longshoremen 8 Hueneme Sunkist/Citrons/Lemons/ Packing House Workers 7.

20— Central High Stadium, Washington, D.C.—6/ 18/1923 — District of Columbia Grammar School League Championship — Monroe Grammar School vs. Buchanan Grammar School in tie game.

20— Hamlin, Texas — 4/28/1924 — Texas High School League — Anson High School Tigers 2 Hamlin High School Pied Pipers 1.

20—Chadwick Park, Albany, New York— 5/30/1924—Eastern League—Pittsfield Hillies 9 Albany Senators 8 in P.M. game, Pittsfield 6 Albany 0 in A.M. game—5000 fans.

20—Andrews Field, Providence, Rhode Island — 6/7/1924 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Providence College Friars 1 Brown University Bears 0 in 4:05.

20—Ace Park, Saginaw, Michigan—7/12/1924— Michigan-Ontario League—Flint Vehics 3 Saginaw Aces 2 in 1st game, then Flint 4 Saginaw 2 in 7 innings in 2nd game.

20—Aurora or Yorkville, Illinois—6/7/1925— Semi-Pro League—Montgomery Pirates 1 Yorkville Helpers 1.

25 — Pacific Junction, Iowa — 8/14/1926 — Amateur — Folsom 7 Pleasant Valley 4 in 5:00.

21— Prepatera Diamond, Fullerton, California— 4/9/1927 — National Collegiate Athletic Association at California High School League — Pomona College Sagehens 4 Fullerton High School Indians 3 in 3:00.

22 — Braves (later Nickerson) Field, Boston, Massachusetts — 5/17/1927 — National League — Cubs 4 Braves 3 in 4:13.

20—Gowdy Field, Fort Benning, Georgia—7/30/ 1927—Fort Benning Army League—24th Infantry Blues 3 1st Battalion 29th Infantry 2 in 4:00.

22 — Oakland Baseball (later Oaks) Park, Emeryville, California — 5/6/1928 — Pacific Coast League — Oakland Oaks 7 Sacramento Senators 6 in 4:00 in P.M. game, Sacramento 5 Oakland 2 in 1:45 in A.M. game.

20— Knauertown High School Diamond, Knauertown, Pennsylvania— 6/2/1928 — Tri-County League — Boyertown 9 Warwick Athletic Association 8 in 3:30. 21—Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois—5/24/ 1929—American League—Tigers 6 White Sox 5 in 3:31.

29 — South Side Playgrounds, San Francisco, California — 10/12/1929 — Amateur — Regulars 9 Yannigans 8 in 5:00 — finished at 6:00 P.M.

1930's (36)

21—Miami Athletic Field, Oxford, Ohio— 5/30/1930—National Collegiate Athletic Association— Miami University Big Reds (later Redskins, then Red-Hawks) 2 University of Cincinnati Bearcats 1 in 3:30.

20—Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois—8/28/1930— National League—Cardinals 8 Cubs 7 in 4:10.

20— Hill Park, Cedar Rapids, Iowa — 5/22/1931— Mississippi Valley League — Cedar Rapids Bunnies 5 Dubuque Tigers 4 in 3:25.

25 – Dallas or Wichita Falls, Texas – 8/10/1931– City League – Sullivan Grocery 3 unknown opponent 3.

 $20\frac{1}{2}$ — Daisytown, Pennsylvania — 9/20/1931 — Monongahela Valley League playoffs — California Eagles 3 Daisytown Moose 1 in 4:00 — after a long fly ball hit by a California Eagle batter down the left field foul line was ruled by the umpire to be a 2-run homer in the top of the 21st, the Daisytown Moose team vehemently protested the call and then walked off the field — the umpire awarded the game (and the league championship with it) to California 3–1.

21— Standard Field, Connellsville, Pennsylvania — 6/18/1932 — Amateur — Firestones 7 Standard Cardinals 6 in 3:30.

20—Hamburg, Iowa—6/26/1932—Amateur— Hamburg 13 Fairfax (Missouri) 13.

23 — Schultheiss Farm, Elyria, Ohio — 8/1/1932 — Knights of Pythias's Team A 19 Knights of Pythias's Team B 19.

20—East Hartford, Connecticut — 5/14/1933 — Amateur — East Hartford Red Sox 5 New Britain Ramblers 4 in 5:15.

20— Salinas Rodeo Grounds, Salinas, California— 5/14/1933— Amateur— San Francisco Chronicle 1 Salinas Colts 0.

22 — Ozona, Texas — 7/11/1933 — West Texas Independent League — Abilene 3 Ozona 3.

23 – Kansas City, Missouri – 7/30/1933 – Amateur – Kansas City 48th Street Merchants 16 St. Joseph Bottling Works 10 in 5:00.

21— Charleroi, Pennsylvania — 8/6/1933 — Amateur — Book Shoe 8 Monongahela Speedway Mushers 7 in 2:00.

25 — Koshien Kyujyo (Stadium), Osaka, Japan — 8/19/1933 — Koshien National High School Tournament Semifinal — Chukyo-shogyo 1 Akashi-chugaku 0 in 4:55 — finished at 6:05 P.M.

21—Wauchula, Florida — 9/20/1933 — Orange Belt League — Wauchula 7 Frostproof 4 in 4:00—finished at 7:00 P.M.

23-St. Louis or Tenbrook, Missouri-5/??/

1934 – Amateur – St. Louis Red Sox vs. Tenbrook Athletic Club in 6:30.

25 — Connellsville, Pennsylvania — 7/25/1934 — Amateur — Vanorsdale Ac 13 Shalala Ac 11.

27 — Monarch Field, Houston, Texas — 8/??/1934 — Negro Texas-Oklahoma League — Austin Black Senators 3 Newgulf Black Buffs 2.

20—Kobe, Japan —?/??/1934 — Kobe Junior High School League — Akaishi-chuugaku vs. Kobe-ichichuugaku.

21— Tech Field, San Antonio, Texas — 6/2/1935 — Texas League — San Antonio Missions 4 Dallas Steers 3 in 3:50, then 2nd game called after 2 innings — 5000 fans.

35 — Matsue Kyujyo (Stadium), Matsue, Japan — 7/20/1935 and 7/21/1935 — Japan Junior High School League — Oota Chu 2 Matsue Chu (later Matsue Kita Koto-gakko) 1 in 6:58, suspended after 4:48 and 23 innings.

20—Florida Athletic Club Field, Florida, New York—9/8/1935—Amateur—Florida Reds 3 St. Joseph's 3.

20—Albemarle Field, York, Pennsylvania— 7/25/1936—York-Adams League—Albemarle Black Cats 3 New Oxford 2 in 3:35—finished at 6:15 P.M.

20—Swarthmore Grounds, Swarthmore, Pennsylvania—9/7/1936—Amateur—Lenni 2 Swarthmore Hornets 2 in P.M. game; Swarthmore Hornets 9 Linwood F.C. 8 in A.M. game.

20—Stroudsburg, Pennsylvania or Mount Vernon, New York—?/??/1936—Amateur—Mount Vernon Scarlets vs. Stroudsburg—finished at 6:30 P.M.; 2nd game postponed.

20—Bulkeley Stadium, Hartford, Connecticut— 5/9/1937—Negro League—Hartford Savitt Gems 5 Philadelphia Giants 4.

25 — Hoolulu Park (later Wong Stadium), Hilo, Hawaii — 2/20/1938 — Hawaii Japanese League — Papaikou Paps 5 Shinmachi Shins 5 in 4:55.

20—Estadio (Stadium) de Maracaibo, Maracaibo, Venezuela—6/5/1938—Venezuelan League—Pastora 1 Gavilanes 0 in 6:30.

20—Municipal Stadium, Trois-Rivieres, Province of Quebec, Canada—7/5/1938—Provincial League— Three Rivers Renards (Foxes) 4 Quebec City Athletiques 3 in 4:45—finished at 2:15 A.M. in the early morning of 7/6.

20—Hook Ball Park, Paducah, Kentucky— 7/8/1938—Kentucky-Illinois-Tennessee (Kitty) League—Fulton Eagles 14 Paducah Indians 9 in 5:28, rhubarb delay top 15th when Fulton Manager Ray Clonts unsuccessfully requested umpires to allow 15minute delay so players could eat some steaks for strength, vote delay top 19th when Paducah Manager Pete Mondino successfully asked umpires to have remaining fans vote whether the game should continue or not—fans voted unanimously that game should continue—finished at 1:45 A.M. in the early morning of 7/9. 20—Crofton or Laurel, Nebraska—?/??/1938— Northeast Nebraska League—Crofton vs. Laurel.

21—Brownsville, Pennsylvania — 8/23/1938 — Amateur — Melrose 3 West Bend 2 in 5:00.

20—La Grave Field (I), Fort Worth, Texas — 5/31/ 1939 — Texas League — Fort Worth Cats 4 Oklahoma City Indians 3 in 4:26 — finished at 12:41 A.M. in the early morning of 6/1.

21— Clintonville, Wisconsin — 6/15/1939 — Northern State League — Clintonville Four Wheel Drive Truckers 1 Two Rivers Polar Bears 0 in 5:15 — finished at 1:45 A.M. in the early morning of 6/16.

23 — Bee Hive (later Braves Field, then Nickerson Field), Boston, Massachusetts — 6/27/1939 — National League — Dodgers 2 Bees (later Braves) 2 in 5:15 — 2457 fans.

21—Ellsworth, Pennsylvania — 7/4/late 1930's — Amateur All-Star Game — pitched by Joe (Foggy) Petro.

1940's (41)

21—Council Bluffs, Iowa—early 1940's—Southwest Iowa Tournament—Marian defeated Harlan.

20—Engel Stadium, Chattanooga, Tennessee— 6/21/1940—Southern Association—Little Rock Travelers 7 Chattanooga Lookouts 4 in 4:20, 2nd game postponed.

20— Bee Hive (later Braves Field, then Nickerson Field), Boston, Massachusetts — 7/5/1940— National League — Dodgers 6 Bees (later Braves) 2 in 5:19— 3881 fans — finished at 8:19 P.M.

21— Texas League (later Holland) Park, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma — 9/5/1940— Texas League — Dallas Rebels 2 Oklahoma City Indians 1 in 3:58 — finished at 12:13 A.M. in the early morning of 9/6.

20—Nishinomiya Kyujyo (Stadium), Nishinomiya, Japan—7/13/1941—Japanese Federation—Taiyo 1 Hanshin 0 in 2:43.

25—Yuanshan Qiuchang (Stadium), Taipei, Taiwan—7/28/1941—Taiwan High School League— Jiayi Agriculture and Forestry Institute (Jianong) 2 Taipei Industrial School 1 in 5:29.

20—Camp McCoy or Whitehall, Wisconsin— 5/10/1942—US Army vs. Amateur—Camp McCoy 5 Whitehall 4.

28 — Korakuen Kyujyo (Stadium), Tokyo, Japan — 5/24/1942 — Japanese Federation — Taiyo 4 Nagoya 4 in 3:47 —finished at 6:27 P.M.

20 — Swayne Field, Toledo, Ohio — 7/11/1942 — American Association — Louisville Colonels 6 Toledo Mud Hens 6 in 4:25 — finished at 1:00 A.M. in the early morning of 7/12.

22 — Griffith (later Crockett) Park, Charlotte, North Carolina — 9/7/1942 — Piedmont League — Charlotte Hornets 4 Asheville Tourists 3 in 3:30.

21— Oriole Park (III), Baltimore, Maryland — 4/23/ 1943 — International League — Toronto Maple Leafs 2 Baltimore Orioles 2.

20—Estadio (Stadium) Gran Cerveceria Tropical, Havana, Cuba –12/2/1943 – Cuban League – Cienfuegos Elefantes (Elephants) 6 Marianao Frailes Grises (Gray Friars) 5 in 4:25.

20—Ogden Field, Chicago, Illinois—8/12/1944— National Association of Intercollegiate Athletics— George Williams Ymca College Collegians 6 Illinois Institute of Technology TechHawks (later Scarlet Hawks) 6.

20— Seals Stadium, San Mateo, California— 10/1/1944 — Amateur — Bay Meadows 5 Owl Drug 4.

21— Third Marine Division (later Trimble) Field, Guam — 5/6/1945 — 41st US Navy Construction Battalion Seabees 2 US Navy Air Base Rinkydinks 1— 1000 fans.

20—Cartier Field, South Bend, Indiana— 7/14/1945—United States Army Air Force at NCAA—Notre Dame University Fighting Irish 1 Indianapolis Stout Army Air Field Airmen 0.

24 — Shibe Park (later Connie Mack Stadium), Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 7/21/1945 — American League — Tigers 1 Athletics 1 in 4:48 — 4526 fans.

21—Artillery Park, Wilkes-Barre, Pennsylvania— 5/9/1946—Eastern League—Binghamton Triplets 5 Wilkes-Barre Barons 4 in 4:35—finished at 12:20 A.M. in the early morning of 5/11.

20—Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois— 5/12/1946—Negro American League—Indianapolis Clowns 3 Chicago American Giants 3—9000 fans.

20— Recreation (now Rotary) Field, Naugatuck, Connecticut — 6/15/1946 — Naugatuck High School Garnet and Grey (later Greyhounds) 3 Waterbury Leavenworth (later Croft, then Kennedy) High School Engineers 2.

21—Hartwell Field, Mobile, Alabama— 8/8/1946—Southern Association—Atlanta Crackers 4 Mobile Bears 4 in 4:30—finished at 1:30 A.M. in the early morning of 8/9.

20—Lucky Beaver Stadium, Portland, Oregon— 5/7/1947—Pacific Coast League—Portland Beavers 1 Sacramento Solons 0 in 3:25—finished at 11:45 P.M.

20— Newtown or Bryant, New York — 5/15/1947 — New York High School League — Newtown High School 3 Bryant High School 2.

20—Empalme or Santa Ana, State of Sonora, Mexico — 5/18/1947 — Liga (League) de Sonora — Empalme Rieleros (Railroadmen) 2 Santa Ana Santos (Saints) 1 in 4:13 — 854 fans.

21—McKeta Field, Van Voorhis, Pennsylvania— 6/22/1947—Pigeon Creek League—Bentleyville 4 Van Voorhis 4 in 5:00—finished at 7:00 P.M.

22 – Horlick Athletic Field, Racine, Wisconsin – 7/31/1947 – All-American Girls' League – South Bend Blue Sox 4 Racine Belles 3 in 4:30–1456 fans.

20—Thetford Mines, Province of Quebec, Canada—9/7/1947—Quebec Eastern Townships Independent Intermediate League playoffs—Drummondville Forestiers Catholiques (Catholic Foresters) 3 St-Maurice de Thetford Mines Mineurs (Miners) 3 in 4:50—finished at 7:20 P.M.

20-Ritchie Route One Ballfield, College Park,

Maryland — 4/2/1948 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Dartmouth College Big Green 10 University of Maryland Terrapins 10 in 3:25 — finished at 7:25 P.M.

21—Sturgeon Bay, Wisconsin—5/16/1948— Northern State League—Sturgeon Bay 3 Menominee Indians 2 in 4:50.

21—Municipal Park, Sanford, Florida— 5/27/1948—Florida State League—Sanford Giants 8 Palatka Azaleas 7 in 5:15—finished at 1:15 A.M. in the early morning of 5/28.

20—Frank Lawrence Stadium, Portsmouth, Virginia—6/16/1948—Piedmont League—Portsmouth Cubs 1 Lynchburg Cardinals 0—73 fans.

25 — Japan — 7/??/1948 — Koshien National High School Tournament Regional Qualifier — one high school team defeated another high school team.

20—Playland Park, South Bend, Indiana— 9/10/1948—All-American Girls' League—South Bend Blue Sox 3 Grand Rapids Chicks 2.

23 — Groton, New York — 9/19/1948 — Southern Tier League — Homer Braves 0 Groton 0 in 4:30— 3000 fans.

22 — Marsh Field, Muskegon, Michigan — ?/??/1949 — All-American Girls' League — Muskegon Lassies 1 Rockford Peaches 0 in 3:02, then Rockford 3 Muskegon 1 in 6 innings.

26 — Estadio (Stadium) Nacional (later Estadio Dennis Martinez), Managua, Nicaragua — 7/10/ 1949 — Nicaraguan First Division Amateur League — Navarro Cubs 4 Escuelas Internacionales 3 in 6:30 finished at 4:30 P.M.

20— Municipal Stadium, San Jose, California— 8/7/1949— California League— Ventura Yankees 4 San Jose Red Sox 4 in 4:20.

23 — Municipal Stadium, Hagerstown, Maryland — 9/3/1949 — Connecticut/Delaware/Maryland/New Jersey/ Pennsylvania (Inter-State) League — York White Roses 3 Hagerstown Owls 2 in 4:25, 2nd game postponed — 560 fans.

20— Redbird (later Jets, then Franklin County, then Cooper) Stadium, Columbus, Ohio-9/3/1949— American Association— Columbus Redbirds 4 Louisville Colonels 3 in 3:58—5079 fans—finished at 11:28 P.M.

21— Shullsburg, Wisconsin — late 1940's — amateur — Blanchardville Farmers defeated Shullsburg in night game.

27 – Managua, Nicaragua – late 1940's – Second Division Amateur League – Manta Nica defeated Schumann in 6:13.

1950's (56)

20—Spudder Park, Wichita Falls, Texas— 7/13/1950—Big State League—Wichita Falls Spudders 2 Sherman-Denison Twins 1.

22 — Red Wing (later Silver) Stadium, Rochester, New York — 8/13/1950 — International League — Rochester Red Wings 3 Jersey City Giants 2 in 5:15 — 5863 fans — finished at 6:45 P.M. 24 — Riverside Park, Shakopee, Minnesota — 8/13/1950 — Minnesota River League — Shakopee Indians 4 St. Peter Saints 3 in 5:00 — finished at 7:30 P.M.

21—Waterloo, Province of Ontario, Canada— 9/25/1950—Ontario Senior Inter-County League— Waterloo Tigers 7 Brantford Red Sox 6.

23 — Royal Athletic Park, Victoria, Province of British Columbia, Canada — 5/5/1951— Western International League — Salem Senators 1 Victoria Athletics 0 in 4:36 in afternoon game, then Salem 3 Victoria 1 in 2:01 in evening game — 1200 fans for afternoon game; 2800 fans for evening game — afternoon game finished at 7:06 P.M.

20—Watertown or Mansfield, South Dakota —?/??/ 1951—South Dakota Amateur Baseball Association — Watertown Lakers 10 Mansfield 9.

20—Sherman Field, Lincoln, Nebraska— 7/19/1951—Western League—Wichita Indians 2 Lincoln Athletics 1 in 4:22, 2nd game postponed.

24 — Japan — 7/??/1951 — Koshien National High School Tournament Regional Qualifier — Morioka Number One High School vs. Aomori High School, final score 1–0.

20— Municipal Stadium (I), Phoenix, Arizona— 8/18/1951— Southwest International League — Bisbee-Douglas Copper Kings 2 Phoenix Senators 2 — called at 12:00 Midnight.

30— Tokyo, Japan — 8/30/1951— Japan Junior High School League — Takefu Junior High School 0 Kohama Junior High School 0 in 5:45 — finished at 2:45 P.M.

28 — Tokyo Kyujyo (Stadium), Tokyo, Japan — 9/8/ 1951— Industrial League — Marubeni Trading Company 2 Kajima Coal Company 1.

20—Bourne Dormitory Field, Pomfret, Connecticut — 5/10/1952 — Independent School League — Pomfret School Mannymen (later Griffins) 4 St. George's School Dragons 3 in 4:55.

20—Triplets (later Johnson) Field, Johnson City, New York — 5/18/1952 — Eastern League — Binghamton Triplets 4 Scranton Miners 3 in 5:10, then Scranton 4 Binghamton 0.

21— Legion Park, Eastman, Georgia — 5/27/1952 — Georgia State League — Eastman Dodgers 6 Jesup Bees 5, 2nd game called after 4 innings.

21—Nishinomiya Kyujyo (Stadium), Nishinomiya, Japan—7/3/1952—Central League vs. Pacific League — Central League All-Stars 2 Pacific League All-Stars 2 in 4:30.

21—Japan — 7/??/1952 — Koshien National High School Tournament Regional Qualifier — Tsuru (Otsuki) High School defeated unknown high school.

20— East Texan Park, Tyler, Texas -7/15/1952 — Big State League — Texarkana Bears 3 Tyler East Texans 2 in 4:21—1163 fans, 500 fans at end —finished at 12:26 A.M. in the early morning of 7/16.

20—Golden Park, Columbus, Georgia— 8/1/1952—South Atlantic (Sally) League—Jacksonville Tars 2 Columbus Cardinals 2 in 4:55—called at 12:55 A.M. in the early morning of 8/2. 20—Mabel, Minnesota—8/10/1952—Fillmore County League—Spring Grove Grovers 13 Mabel 9 finished at 1:30 A.M. in the early morning of 8/11.

20—Civic Center, Drummondville, Province of Quebec, Canada—7/8/1952 and 8/12/1952—Provincial League—Three Rivers Yankees 3 Drummondville Cubs 2, suspended after 19 innings.

22 — Texas League (later Oiler) Park, Tulsa, Oklahoma — 8/16/1952 — Texas League — Tulsa Oilers 6 Houston Buffalos 5 in 4:43 — 2200 fans — finished at 12:45 A.M. in the early morning of 8/17.

20— Nishi-Kyogoku Kyujo (Stadium), Kyoto, Japan—9/7/1952—Central League—Shochiku 2 Taiyo 1 in 3:13.

21— Gindorff Field, Stuart, Florida — 5/24/1953 — South Florida Coast-Glades League — Jupiter Pennocks 1 Stuart Sailfishes 1 in 4:00—finished at 7:00 P.M.

22 — Korakuen Kyujo (Stadium), Tokyo, Japan — 6/25/1953 — Pacific League — Daiei Stars 4 Kintetsu 4 in 4:33.

20— Memorial Ball Park, Atwater, California — 8/4/ 1953 — National Congress — Fort Ord Warriors 2 San Diego Naval Air Station Skyraiders 1 in 4:40— 3100 fans — finished at 12:55 A.M. in the early morning of 8/5.

22 — Seals Stadium, San Francisco, California — 8/5/1953 — Pacific Coast League — Portland Beavers 4 San Francisco Seals 2 in 4:20—1394 fans.

20—Korakuen Kyujo (Stadium), Tokyo, Japan— 8/9/1953—Pacific League—Kintetsu 5 Toei 4 in 4:46.

20—Golden Park, Columbus, Georgia— 4/24/1954—South Atlantic (Sally) League—Macon Peaches 7 Columbus Cardinals 5 in 5:13—finished at 1:13 A.M. in the early morning of 4/25.

21— Gilmore Field, Hollywood, California — 5/12/ 1954 — Pacific Coast League — Oakland Oaks 5 Hollywood Stars 1 in 4:52 — 2559 fans — finished at 1:10 A.M. in the early morning of 5/13.

22 — Texas League (later Oiler) Park, Tulsa, Oklahoma — 5/13/1954 — Texas League — Tulsa Oilers 3 Dallas Eagles 2 in 4:41—finished at 12:41 A.M. in the early morning of 5/14.

20—Jennings Stadium, Augusta, Georgia— 7/15/1954—South Atlantic (Sally) League—Macon Peaches 3 Augusta Rams 3 in 4:40.

20— Macomb's Dam Park, New York, New York — 8/9/1954 — City Youth Federation Semi-Final Game — Hudson Guild Neighborhood House 3 Immaculate Conception of the Bronx 2 in 5:47.

20—Parichy Stadium, Chicago, Illinois— 9/14/1954—National Girls League—Bluebirds 6 Bloomer Girls 4 in 4:30, then Queens 5 Jewels 0 in 7 innings—2nd game finished at 1:00 A.M.

23 – Osaka Kyujyo (Stadium), Osaka, Japan – 10/10/1954 – Pacific League – Kintetsu 1 Toei 0 in 4:30.

20—Lucky Beaver Stadium, Portland, Oregon— 4/24/1955—Pacific Coast League—Portland Beavers 3 San Diego Padres 2 in 4:14 in 2nd game, Portland 9 San Diego 5 in 2:06 in 1st game—4760 fans. 21— Clemons, Iowa — 5/10/1955 — Iowa High School League playoffs — Roland High School Rockets 3 Clemons High School 2 in 4:35.

20—Centennial Field, Burlington, Vermont— 5/30/1955—Provincial League—Thetford Mines Mineurs (Miners) 4 Burlington Athletics 3 in 4:54 finished at 7:36 P.M.

20—Paterson Field, Montgomery, Alabama—4/27/ 1956—South Atlantic (Sally) League—Augusta Tigers 6 Montgomery Rebels 4 in 4:24—finished at 12:09 A.M. in the early morning of 4/28.

20—Blue Lake, California—6/24/1956—Redwood League—Blue Lake Chicks 8 Crescent City Merchants 7.

20—Placitas, New Mexico -7/3/1956 — Bernalillo County SemiPro League — Los Ranchos de Albuquerque 5 Placitas 3 in 5:00.

21—Minster, Ohio —7/18/1956 — American Legion — St. Mary's 4 Lima 3 in 5:30—finished at 1:05 A.M.

20—Edo Miller Park, Brunswick, Georgia — 8/??/ 1956 — Georgia-Florida League — Brunswick Pirates defeated Albany Cardinals by one run —1500 fans; 1200 fans at end.

20— Disch Field, Austin, Texas — 9/7/1956 — Texas League — Austin Senators 4 Dallas Eagles 3 in 5:01— 2157 fans — finished at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 9/8.

20—Estadio (Stadium) 11 de Noviembre (November 11th), Cartagena, Colombia —1/13/1957 — Winter League — Indios 4 Kola Roman 3, Willard 7 Vanytor 4 in 1st game.

20—Dallas, Texas—4/17/1957—Texas High School League—Adamson High School Leopards 3 Sunset High School Bison 2; then Hillcrest High School Panthers 3 Thomas Jefferson High School Patriots 2 in 13 innings—2nd game finished at 11:59 P.M.

21—Tingley Field, Albuquerque, New Mexico— 5/3/1957—Western League—Albuquerque Dukes 5 Colorado Springs Sky Sox 3 in 4:55—2116 fans finished at 7:55 P.M.

21—Montello, Wisconsin—6/30/1957—Central State League—Montello 3 Redgranite Quarriers 2 finished at 7:00 P.M.

20—Watt Powell Park, Charleston, West Virginia — 7/21/1957 — American Association — Wichita Braves 8 Charleston Senators 6 in 4:10 in 2nd game, Charleston 6 Wichita 5 in 1:47 and 7 innings in 1st game — 1943 fans — finished at 12:27 A.M. in the early morning of 7/22.

20—Lloydminster, Province of Saskatchewan, Canada—6/18/1957 and 7/28/1957—Western Canada League—Lloydminster Meridians 4 North Battleford Beavers 3, suspended after 9 innings.

25 — Shikoku Kyujo (Stadium), Shikoku, Japan — 4/28/1958 — Japan High School League — Takamatsushogyo 2 Tokushima-shogyo 0 in 5:47.

20—Jacksonville Ball Park (later Municipal Stadium, then Wolfson Park), Jacksonville, Florida— 5/21/1958—South Atlantic (Sally) League—Savannah Redlegs 6 Jacksonville Braves 6 in 5:00—902 fans finished at 1:00 A.M. in the early morning of 5/22.

21—Jacksonville Ball Park (later Municipal Stadium, then Wolfson Park), Jacksonville, Florida — 4/22/1959 — South Atlantic (Sally) League — Jacksonville Braves 3 Knoxville Smokies 2 in 5:01—1814 fans, 200 fans at end — finished at 1:01 A.M. in the early morning of 4/23.

29 — Nishi-Kyogoku Kyujo (Stadium), Kyoto, Japan — 5/2/1959 — National Municipal League Championships — Nippon Shinyaku (New Pharmaceuticals) Company 2 Kurashiki Reiyon (Rayon) Company (later Kuraray Company) 1 in 6:14.

21—Sicks' Stadium, Seattle, Washington— 5/8/1959—Pacific Coast League—Seattle Rainiers 6 Phoenix Giants 5 in 5:56, 2nd game cancelled—1787 fans—finished at 12:56 A.M. in the early morning of 5/9.

21—Russwood Park, Memphis, Tennessee—6/21/ 1959—Southern Association—Memphis Chicks 6 Chattanooga Lookouts 5 in 5:38—finished at 7:10 P.M.

20—Greenwood, South Carolina—7/15/1959— American Legion—Clinton 5 Post 20 Greenwood 3 in 5:45.

1960's (45)

24 - Mission Stadium, San Antonio, Texas - 4/29/1960 - Texas League - Rio Grande Valley Giants 4San Antonio Missions 2 in 5:42, dog-on-the-fielddelay 15th, scoreboard fire delay 20th, light failuredelay 22nd - 820 fans; 700 fans at end - finished at1:27 A.M. in the early morning of 4/30.

27 — Estadio (Stadium) Domingo Santana, Leon, State of Guanajuato, Mexico — 7/17/1960 — Mexican Center League — Aguascalientes Tigres (Tigers) 5 Leon Diablos Rojos (Red Devils) 4.

20—Hoolulu Park (later Wong Stadium), Hilo, Hawaii — 4/15/1962 — Hawaii High School League — Ka'u High School Trojans 3 St. Joseph High School Cardinals 2 in 4:00.

21— Dunn Field, Elmira, New York — 6/19/1962 — Eastern League — Elmira Pioneers 4 Williamsport Grays 3.

22 — Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan — 6/24/ 1962 — American League — Yankees 9 Tigers 7 in 7:00— 35,638 fans, 20,000 fans at end —finished at 8:30 P.M.

22 — Korakuen Kyujo (Stadium), Tokyo, Japan — 7/29/1962 — Tokyo Industrial League — Nippon Beer Company 1 Denden Kinki Company 0 in 5:27.

20— Pyncheon Park, Springfield, Massachusetts— 6/8/1963— Eastern League—York White Roses 2 Springfield Giants 1 in 4:57.

20—Pony-Colt Stadium, Galveston, Texas—7/27/ 1963—Colt League—Galena Park 6 Beaumont 5 in 5:00.

21—Fairground Park, Fond du Lac, Wisconsin— 7/31/1963—Fox River Valley League—Little Chute-Kimberly Papermakers 11 Fond du Lac 5 in 6:01 finished at 2:01 A.M. in the early morning of 8/1.

22 - North Balwyn, State of Victoria, Australia -

?/??/1963 — Amateur — North Balwyn Third Nine vs. Ormond.

20—Memorial Stadium, Sanford, Florida— 4/17/1964—Eastern League at New York-Pennsylvania League spring training exhibition—Williamsport Mets at Auburn Mets.

22 — Kentucky Wesleyan Field (now Panther Park), Owensboro, Kentucky — 4/20/1964 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Kentucky Wesleyan College Panthers 8 Oakland City College Mighty Oaks 7 in 6:30, 2nd game postponed — 200 fans — finished at 11:30 P.M.

23 – Shea Stadium, New York, New York – 5/31/1964 – National League – Giants 8 Mets 6 in 7:23 in 2nd game, Giants 5 Mets 3 in 2:29 in 1st game – 57,037 fans, 8000 fans at end – 2nd game finished at 11:25 P.M.

20— Henderson Stadium (I), Lethbridge, Province of Alberta, Canada—7/25/1964— Western Canada League— Saskatoon Blues 6 Lethbridge Cardinals 5 in 5:25—150 fans.

27 - Dunn Field, Elmira, New York -5/8/1965 - Eastern League - Elmira Pioneers 2 Springfield Giants 1 in 6:24 - 386 fans, 400 fans at end - finished at 9:24 P.M.

21—Paramus High School Field (I), Paramus, New Jersey — 6/??/1965 — Bergen County League (later merged with Passaic County League to form Met League) — Spring Valley Bengals 0 Paramus Barons 0.

25 — Turnpike (later Arlington) Stadium, Arlington, Texas — 6/17/1965 — Texas League — Austin Braves 2 Dallas-Fort Worth Spurs 1 in 5:10—2546 fans finished at 12:40 A.M. in the early morning of 6/18.

21— Dunn Field, Elmira, New York — 6/25/1965 — Eastern League — Pittsfield Red Sox 2 Elmira Pioneers 2 in 5:33 — called off at 1:03 A.M. in the early morning of 6/26, then rhubarb delay 0:?? top 22nd, Pioneers owner argued there was no curfew rule, by the time the league president told the umpires the owner was correct and the game should continue, all the players had showered and gone home, called off at 1:?? A.M. for the second time — 530 fans.

22 – Glenmont, Ohio – 7/4/1965 – Triple Counties League – Glenmont 8 Loudonville 7 in 5:00.

24 — Sioux Falls Stadium (later Howard Wood Field), Sioux Falls, South Dakota — 8/3/1965 — Basin League — Pierre Cowboys 5 Sioux Falls Packers 3 in 6:15 — 421 fans — finished at 1:45 A.M. in the early morning of 8/4.

21— College Stadium (later Russell Diethrich Park), Jamestown, New York— 8/14/1965— New York-Pennsylvania League— Binghamton Triplets 4 Jamestown Tigers 4 in 6:13, 2nd game postponed— 386 fans finished at 12:43 A.M. in the early morning of 8/15.

20—Fans Field, Decatur, Illinois—8/20/1965— Midwest League—Decatur Commodores 1 Fox Cities Foxes 0 in 4:25—411 fans, 100 fans at end—finished at 11:55 P.M.

20-Estadio (Stadium) Augusto Cesar Sandino, Santa Clara or Estadio (Stadium) Guillermon Moncada, Santiago, Cuba – 12/28/1965 – Serie Nacional – Centrales vs. Orientales.

29 — Al Lang Field (I), St. Petersburg, Florida — 6/14/ 1966 — Florida State League — Miami Marlins 4 St. Petersburg Cardinals 3 in 6:59 — 740 fans, 175 fans at end —finished at 2:29 A.M. in the early morning of 6/15.

22 - Municipal Stadium, Waterbury, Connecticut - 7/31/1966 - Eastern League - Waterbury Giants 9 York White Roses 8 in 6:13 - finished at 12:46A.M. in the early morning of 8/1.

22 — MacArthur Stadium, Syracuse, New York — 8/24/1966 — International League — Syracuse Chiefs 5 Richmond Braves 4 in 4:54 — 1469 fans — finished at 12:39 A.M. in the early morning of 8/25.

21—Rox Park, St. Cloud, Minnesota — 7/25/1966 and 8/28/1966 — Northern League — Huron Phillies 8 St. Cloud Rox 2 in 5:39, suspended after 4:20 and 16 innings, originally decided to play entire game over, but then decided to complete game from point of suspension — 951 fans on 7/25, 343 fans on 8/28 — suspended at 11:50 P.M. on 7/25.

23 — Lawrence Hardball Park, Lodi, California — 8/ 31/1966 — California League — Reno Silver Sox 6 Lodi Crushers 5 in 6:00 — 502 fans, 20 fans at end finished at 2:00 A.M. in the early morning of 9/1.

21— Delano High School Diamond #4 and Delano High School Varsity Field, Delano, California — 3/23/ 1967 — California High School League — Fresno McLane High School Highlanders 3 Fresno High School Warriors 2 in 6:15, diamond switch delay from Diamond #4 to Varsity Field 0:15 top 8th — finished at 10:30 P.M.

25 — Honolulu Stadium (later Termite Palace), Honolulu, Hawaii — 3/25/1967 — Hawaii High School League — Kamehameha High School Warriors 9 McKinley High School Tigers 7 in 6:12.

20— Frank Lawrence Stadium, Portsmouth, Virginia — 4/18/1967 — Carolina League — Kinston Eagles 5 Tidewater Tides 5 in 5:50 — 526 fans, 25 fans at end —finished at 1:21 A.M. in the early morning of 4/19.

22 - D.C. (later R.F.K.) Stadium, Washington, D.C. - 6/12/1967 - American League - Senators 6White Sox 5 in 6:38 - 7236 fans, 2000 fans at end finished at 2:44 A.M. in the early morning of 6/13.

22 — New York, New York — 6/24/1967 — Atlantic Collegiate League — Mount Vernon Generals 2 Defiance Indians 0.

20—Ohiopyle, Pennsylvania—7/16/1967—Fay-West (Fayette County-Westmoreland County) League—Ohiopyle 11 Breakneck 10 in 6:10—finished at 8:10 P.M.

25 — Municipal Stadium, West Palm Beach, Florida — 8/8/1967 — Florida State League — West Palm Beach Braves 3 Leesburg Athletics 2 in 5:35, 2nd game postponed — finished at 11:35 P.M.

20—Metropolitan Stadium, Bloomington, Minnesota — 8/9/1967 — American League — Senators 9 Twins 7 in 5:40—16,901 fans, 4000 fans at end finished at 1:44 A.M. in the early morning of 8/10.

20-Yankee Stadium (I), New York, New York-

8/29/1967 — American League — Yankees 4 Red Sox 3 in 6:09 in 2nd game, Red Sox 2 Yankees 1 in 2:10 in 1st game — 40,314 fans — finished at 1:57 A.M. in the early morning of 8/30.

21— Crosley Field, Cincinnati, Ohio — 9/1/1967 — National League — Giants 1 Reds 0 in 5:40—13,745 fans, 200 fans at end — finished at 1:45 A.M. in the early morning of 9/2.

21—Estadio (Stadium) Angel Flores, Culiacan, State of Sinaloa, Mexico—10/22/1967—Mexican Pacific League—Obregon Yaquis 3 Culiacan Tomateros (Tomato Growers) 1 in 6:22—5000 fans—finished at 11:22 P.M.

24 - Astrodome, Houston, Texas - 4/15/1968 -National League - Astros 1 Mets 0 in 6:06 - 14,219 fans, 3000 fans at end - finished at 1:37 A.M. in the early morning of 4/16.

21—Knowles Field, Martinez, California— 5/9/1968—California High School League—Alhambra High School Bulldogs 4 San Ramon Valley High School Wolves 3 in 6:00—finished at 9:30 P.M.

21—Field Park, Mukwonago, Wisconsin— 5/15/1969—Wisconsin High School League—Mukwonago High School Indians 5 Burlington High School Demons 4 in 5:00—65 fans—finished at 9:30 P.M.

20—Siler City or Bethel, North Carolina— 6/17/1969—American Legion—Siler City Post defeated Bethel Post.

22 — Parque Deportivo del Seguro Social (Social Security Stadium), Mexico City, Distrito Federal (Federal District), Mexico — 7/14/1969 — Mexican League — Reynosa Broncos 5 Mexico City Diablos Rojos (Red Devils) 3 in 5:38 — 3895 fans — finished at 1:08 A.M. in the early morning of 7/15.

20—Sicks' Stadium, Seattle, Washington— 7/27/1969—American League—Red Sox 5 Pilots 3 in 5:52—9670 fans.

1970's (56)

24 — Flamingo Park, Miami Beach, Florida — 4/23/ 1970 — Florida High School League playoffs — Miami High School Stingarees 1 Hialeah High School Thoroughbreds 0 in 5:16, then Miami Coral Park High School Rams 9 Miami High School 0 in 2:44 and 7 innings — 250 fans; 500 fans at end of 1st game —1st game finished at 8:16 P.M.; 2nd game finished at 11:44 P.M.

22 — Reddie (later Berry) Field, Arkadelphia, Arkansas — 4/28/1970 — National Association of Intercollegiate Athletics — Henderson State College (later University) Reddies 3 Harding College (later University) Bisons 2.

23 — All-Sports Stadium, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma — 5/28/1970 and 5/29/1970 — American Association — Indianapolis Indians 10 Oklahoma City 89'ers 7 in 6:37, suspended after 4:53 and 17 innings — 3118 fans on 5/28, 2836 fans on 5/29 — suspended at 12:53 A.M. in the early morning of 5/29.

22 – Shively Field, Lexington, Kentucky – 6/3/1970 – Kentucky High School League – Madisonville High School Maroons 12 Lexington Lafayette High School Generals 11 in 6:03.

20—Hi Corbett Field, Tucson, Arizona— 6/3/1970—Pacific Coast League—Hawaii Islanders 6 Tucson Toros 5 in 4:58—finished at 12:58 A.M. in the early morning of 6/4.

20— Meiji Jingu Kyujyo (Stadium), Tokyo, Japan — 6/24/1970 — All-Japan University League Semifinal — Kansai University 3 Hosei University 2 in 4:54.

23 – Clark Field, Lafayette, Louisiana – 3/27/1971 – National Collegiate Athletic Association – University of Southwestern Louisiana (now University of Louisiana-Lafayette) Ragin' Cajuns 6 McNeese State University Cowboys 5 in 5:03, then McNeese State 13 Southwestern Louisiana 10 in 2:30 and 7 innings –1st game finished at 6:33 P.M., 2nd game finished at 10:03 P.M.

20— Mount Prospect, Illinois — 5/31/1971— Mount Prospect Pony A League — Braves 6 Orioles 5 in 4:15.

21-R.F.K. Stadium, Washington, D.C.– 6/4/1971–American League – rain delay 0:17 at start, Athletics 6 Senators 3 in 5:19–6159 fans–finished at 1:36 A.M. in the early morning of 6/5.

22 — Recreation Park, Visalia, California — 6/19/1971 and 6/20/1971— California League — Visalia Mets 11 Bakersfield Dodgers 9 in 7:00, suspended after 4:50 and 15 innings, called a tie, however league president later reversed tie game ruling and ordered game to be continued — 867 fans on 6/19, 449 fans on 6/20— suspended at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 6/20.

20— Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California—7/9/1971— American League— Athletics 1 Angels 0 in 5:05—22,938 fans—finished at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 7/10.

22 — Ray Winder Field, Little Rock, Arkansas — 7/21/1971— Dixie Association — Arkansas Travelers 5 Dallas-Fort Worth Spurs 4 in 5:56 — 7030 fans, 600 fans at end —finished at 1:26 A.M. in the early morning of 7/22.

21—Wakefield High School Field, Arlington, Virginia—7/24/1971—Clark Griffith League—Martz Insurance 10 Post #130 9.

20—Bom Retiro (Good Place to Rest) Stadium, Sao Paulo, Brazil—9/7/1971—National Championships—Sul-Brasil 6 Presidente Venceslau 5 in 6:00—2000 fans—finished at 5 P.M.

20—Barney Tadsen Field, Brownton, Minnesota — 9/9/1971—Minnesota Town Team League — Hector Flyers 4 Stark (later Stark Longhorns) 2 in 5:30, rain delay 0:20 at start — 200 fans, 150 fans at end finished at 11:50 P.M.

20—Cleveland Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio and R.F.K. Stadium, Washington, D.C.—9/14/1971 and 9/20/1971—American League—Senators 8 Indians 6 in 6:15 in 2nd game, suspended after 5:00 and 16 innings in Cleveland, completed 9/20 in Washington; Indians 3 Senators 1 in 1:54 in 1st game—2639 fans on 9/14 in Cleveland, 100 fans at suspension, 1743 fans on 9/20 in Washington, 333 fans top 17th – suspended at 1:00 A.M. in the early morning of 9/15.

21—San Diego (later Jack Murphy, then Qualcomm) Stadium, San Diego, California — 9/24/1971— National League — Astros 2 Padres 1 in 5:25 in 1st game, then Padres 5 Astros 4 in 2:14 in 2nd game, fog delay 0:14 bottom 9th — 6339 fans —1st game finished at 11:31 P.M., 2nd game finished at 2:29 A.M. in the early morning of 9/25.

20—Perry Field (later McKethan Stadium at Perry Field), Gainesville, Florida — 4/22/1972 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Auburn University Tigers 7 University of Florida Gators 6 in 4:35 — 350 fans.

20—Coleman Field (now Goss Stadium at Coleman Field), Corvallis, Oregon — 5/6/1972 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — University of Washington Huskies 2 Oregon State University Beavers 1 in 4:38, then Oregon State 7 Washington 1 in 1:45 and 7 innings — 250 fans.

22 — Metropolitan Stadium, Bloomington, Minnesota — 5/12/1972 and 5/13/1972 — American League — Brewers 4 Twins 3 in 5:47, suspended after 5:35 and 21 innings — 8628 fans on 5/12, 7871 fans on 5/13 — suspended at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 5/13.

20—University Field, Amherst, Massachusetts— 5/13/1972—National Collegiate Athletic Association—University of Connecticut Huskies 9 University of Massachusetts Minutemen 3 in 5:10.

20—Estadio (Stadium) Augusto Cesar Sandino, Santa Clara or Camaguey, Cuba—1/21/1973—Serie Nacional—Azucareros (Sugar Workers) vs. Camaguey.

20—Blair Field, Long Beach, California— 3/30/1973—National Collegiate Athletic Association—California State University at San Jose Spartans 1 California State University at Long Beach 49ers (later Dirt Bags) 1 in 3:35—225 fans.

23 — Grayson Stadium, Savannah, Georgia — 4/14/ 1973 — Southern League — Columbus Astros 10 Savannah Braves 4 in 6:14 in 1st game, 2nd game postponed — 827 fans — finished at 12:45 A.M. in the early morning of 4/15, post-game fireworks finished at 1:10 A.M.

20—Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 5/4/1973 — National League — Phillies 5 Braves 4 in 5:16 — 10,158 fans — finished at 12:51 A.M. in the early morning of 5/5.

20—Estadio (Stadium) Torreon, Torreon, State of Coahuila, Mexico—5/8/1973—Mexican League— Cordoba Cafeteros (Coffee Growers) 2 Torreon Mineros (Miners) 1.

27 – Ube City Kyujo (Stadium), Ube City, Japan – 5/13/1973 and 5/14/1973 – Japan High School League – Matsue Sho 2 Shimonoseki Sho 0, suspended after 18 innings.

20— Estadio (Stadium) Cordoba, Cordoba, State of Veracruz, Mexico — 5/16/1973 — Mexican League — Cordoba Cafeteros (Coffee Growers) 2 Gomez Palacio 1.

21– Mt. Olive, Illinois – 5/23/1973 – Illinois High School League – Staunton High School Bulldogs 0 Mt. Olive High School Wildcats 0 in 4:05, scheduled to resume 5/29 but instead they decided to play a new game —finished at 8:05 P.M.

21—Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois— 5/26/1973 and 5/28/1973—American League— White Sox 6 Indians 3 in 6:03, rain delay 0:17 top 14th, suspended after 4:39 and 16 innings—19,486 fans on 5/26, 17,419 fans on 5/28—suspended at 1:01 A.M. in the early morning of 5/27.

23 — Newtown, Pennsylvania — 6/3/1973 — Pennsbury/Bucks County Senior Babe Ruth League — Newtown Lions 2 South Bristol Hawks 1 in 5:30 — finished at 7:30 P.M.

24 — Regional Park, Midwest City, Oklahoma — 7/??/1973 — American Legion — Post 170 Midwest City 2 Post 170 Choctaw 1 in 6:06 — 50 fans, 15 fans at end finished at 2:06 A.M. in the early morning of 7/??.

23 — Estadio (Stadium) Alberto Hoeffer, Nogales, State of Sonora, Mexico — 7/29/1973 — Liga (League) Norte de Sonora — Cananea Mineros (Miners) 4 Nogales Internacionales (Internationals) 2 in 6:23 —1800 fans — finished at 1:53 A.M. in the early morning of 7/30.

22 — Estadio (Stadium) Teodoro Mariscal, Mazatlan, State of Sinaloa, Mexico —10/26/1973 — Mexican Pacific League — Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2 Guasave Algodoneros (Cotton Pickers) 1 in 7:02 —finished at 2:32 A.M. in the early morning of 10/27.

22 — Husker Diamond (later Buck Belzer Field), Lincoln, Nebraska — 4/26/1974 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — University of Colorado Buffaloes 2 University of Nebraska Cornhuskers 1 in 4:45.

21—Danville Stadium, Danville, Illinois— 6/4/1974—Midwest League—Waterloo Royals 7 Danville Warriors 5 in 5:35—722 fans, 94 fans at end—finished at 1:10 A.M. in the early morning of 6/5.

25 — Shea Stadium, New York, New York — 9/11/1974 — National League — Cardinals 4 Mets 3 in 7:04 —13,460 fans, 1000 fans at end including Commissioner Bowie Kuhn —finished at 3:13 A.M. in the early morning of 9/12.

23 — Camaguey, Cuba — 1/4/1975 — Serie Nacional — Camaguey Granjeros (Grain Workers) vs. Camaguey Ganaderos (Cattle Raisers), suspended.

20—Olympians Field, Olympia Fields, Illinois— ?/??/1975—Homewood-Flossmoor High School Vikings vs. Olympia Fields Rich Central High School Olympians in 4:00—finished at 8:00 P.M.

25 — Farmers Field, Hayward and Rebels Field, San Lorenzo, California — 4/9/1975 and 5/2/1975 — California High School League — Hayward High School Farmers 2 San Lorenzo High School Rebels 1, suspended after 17 innings in Hayward, completed in San Lorenzo —15 fans at San Lorenzo; then Hayward 5 San Lorenzo 4 in 7 innings.

26 — Belleville, Province of Ontario, Canada — 6/7/ 1975 — Ontario League — St. Catherine's Jackets 8 Belleville 2; 2nd game postponed —finished at 12:00 Midnight.

21-Estadio (Stadium) Hiram Bithorn, San Juan,

Puerto Rico —12/26/1975 — Winter League — Santurce Cangrejeros (Crabbers) 5 Bayamon Vaqueros (Cowboys) 2 in 4:00—finished at 2:00 A.M. in the early morning of 12/27.

22 — Waterloo Stadium, Waterloo, Iowa — 5/30/1976 — Midwest League — Burlington Bees 4 Waterloo Royals 3 in 5:33, then Burlington 4 Waterloo 3 in 2:09 and 8 innings — 603 fans — 1st game finished at 8:33 P.M., 2nd game finished at 11:12 P.M.

20— Mount Prospect, Illinois—6/6/1976 and 6/13/1976—Mount Prospect Pony B League First Half Championship—Braves 2 Mets 0.

20—Arlington, Minnesota — 8/26/1976 — Minnesota Town Team League — Cyrus 2 Fairfax Cardinals 1 in 4:35 — finished at 10:05 P.M.

22 — Pinar del Rio or Santiago, Cuba —1/25/1977 — Serie Nacional — Vegueros vs. Santiago Mineros (Miners).

20—Fairfax City, Virginia — 4/8/1977 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Brockport State College (later State University of New York — Brockport) Golden Eagles 2 George Mason University Patriots 2 in 5:30, umpires Warner and Madeiros walked off the field at the end because they were too cold (it was 40 degrees), without even telling the coaches, who might have told them umpires did not walk off the field due to cold weather during baseball games played 3/25/1960 at the North Pole and 1/1/1997 at McMurdo Sound in Antarctica — 0 fans at end in stands, but 50 fans at end in cars with heaters on —finished at 8:50 P.M.

23—Estadio (Stadium) Cordoba, Cordoba, State of Veracruz, Mexico—4/28/1977—Mexican League—Aguascalientes Rieleros (Railroadmen) 6 Cordoba Cafeteros (Coffee Growers) 2 in 6:30—4000 fans, 800 fans at end—finished at 3:00 A.M. in the early morning of 4/29.

21—Stade Olympique (Olympic Stadium), Montreal, Province of Quebec, Canada - 5/21/1977 - National League — Padres 11 Expos 8 in 5:33—16,892 fans, 8000 fans at end —finished at 1:15 A.M. in the early morning of 5/22.

21— Foothills Stadium, Calgary, Province of Alberta, Canada — 6/4/1977 — Southern Alberta Junior League — Calgary Spikes 4 Medicine Hat Tigers 3.

20–V.J. Keefe Stadium, San Antonio, Texas– 6/28/1977–Texas League–San Antonio Dodgers 4 El Paso Diablos 3 in 4:37; 2nd game postponed–762 fans; 200 fans at end–finished at 11:10 P.M.

29 — Providence, Rhode Island — 6/17/1978 — Sunset League — Mooseup Valley 4 Sports Enterprises 2 in 6:45; 2nd game cancelled.

21—Engel Stadium, Chattanooga, Tennessee — 7/ 29/1978 — Southern League — Chattanooga Lookouts 3 Savannah Braves 2 in 5:32.

20— Estadio (Stadium) Manuel "Ciclon" Echeverria, Navojoa, State of Sonora, Mexico —1/2/1979 — Mexican Pacific League — Navojoa Mayos 1 Mexicali Aguilas (Eagles) 0 in 5:20 in 2nd game, Mexicali vs. Navojoa in 1st game. 20—Moss Field, Meridian, Mississippi— 3/9/1979—Mississippi High School League—Meridian High School Wildcats 4 Corinth High School Warriors 3 in 3:30—250 fans—finished at 5:30 P.M.

21—Municipal Qiuchang (Stadium), Taipei, Taiwan — 9/15/1979 — Taiwan University League — Weichuan Foods/Chinese Culture University 1 Putaowang (Grape King) Biotechnology/Fu Jen Catholic University 0 in 6:06 — finished at 10:11 P.M.

1980's (47)

21—Hickey Park, Russellville, Arkansas — 5/14/1980—Arkansas High School League — Hazen High School Hornets 8 Tuckerman High School Bulldogs 7.

20— Three Rivers Stadium, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania—7/6/1980— National League— Pirates 5 Cubs 4 in 5:31—25,994 fans—finished at 6:36 P.M.

22 — MacArthur Stadium, Syracuse, New York — 7/30/1980— International League — Richmond Braves 12 Syracuse Chiefs 6 in 5:55 — 3117 fans, 1000 fans at end —finished at 1:28 A.M. in the early morning of 7/31.

20—San Diego (later Jack Murphy, then Qualcomm) Stadium, San Diego, California—8/15/1980— National League—Astros 3 Padres 1 in 6:17—14,177 fans—finished at 1:26 A.M. in the early morning of 8/16.

20—Estadio (Stadium) Jesus Carranza Limon, Guasave, State of Sinaloa, Mexico—11/11/1980—Mexican Pacific League—Mexicali Aguilas (Eagles) 3 Guasave Algodoneros (Cotton Pickers) 1.

22—Estadio (Stadium) Quisqueya, Santo Domingo, Dominican—1/12/1981—Winter League— Orientales Estrellas (Oriental Stars) 4 Licey Tigres (Tigers) 3 in 5:40—finished at 3:30 A.M. in the early morning of 1/13.

33 – McCoy Stadium, Pawtucket, Rhode Island – 4/18/1981 and 6/23/1981– International League – power failure delay 0:30 at start, Pawtucket Paw Sox 3 Rochester Red Wings 2 in 8:25, suspended after 8:07 and 32 innings –1740 fans, 150 fans Midnight, 100 fans top 21st, 60 fans 1 A.M., 27 fans top 27th, 19 fans at suspension, 5756 fans on 6/23 – suspended at 4:07 A.M. in the early morning of 4/19, dawn was at 5:00 A.M., finished at 6:18 P.M. on 6/23.

20—Thunderbird Park, Cedar City, Utah— 5/2/1981—National Association of Intercollegiate Athletics — Mesa State College Mavericks 9 New Mexico Highlands University Cowboys 8 in 5:20, then Southern Utah State College Thunderbirds 5 Mesa State 4.

20—Disch-Falk Field, Austin, Texas — 5/15/1981 and 5/16/1981—National Collegiate Athletic Association — University of Texas Longhorns 7 Rice University Owls 6 in 6:07, rain delay 2:00 top 13th, suspended after 3:10 and 12 innings — 4700 fans on 5/15, 300 fans at suspension, 3000 fans on 5/16 — suspended at 1:15 A.M. in the early morning of 5/16, finished at 3:02 P.M. on 5/16.

20—Corinto or Leon, Nicaragua—5/17/1981— First Division—Corinto 5 Leon 4. 23 - Fort Lauderdale Stadium, Fort Lauderdale, Florida - 5/24/1981 and 5/25/1981 - Florida State League - Fort Lauderdale Yankees 1 Tampa Tarpons 0 in 5:32, suspended after 5:23 and 22 innings - 717fans, 200 fans at suspension - suspended at 12:53 A.M. in the early morning of 5/25.

20— McCoy Stadium, Pawtucket, Rhode Island — 7/26/1981— International League — Pawtucket Paw Sox 4 Richmond Braves 2.

22 — Parc (Park) Victor Gadbois, Montreal, Province of Quebec, Canada — 8/30/1981— Ligue Montreal Junior (Montreal Junior League) — St. Leonard Cougars 2 Sud-Ouest (Southwest) 1 in 5:30—finished at 7:30 P.M.

20—Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts— 9/3/1981 and 9/4/1981—American League—Mariners 8 Red Sox 7 in 6:01, suspended after 5:39 and 19 innings—13,355 fans on 9/3, 1000 fans at suspension, 20,836 fans on 9/4—suspended at 1:16 A.M. in the early morning of 9/4.

20—Anaheim Stadium (later Edison International Field, then Angels Stadium), Anaheim, California— 4/13/1982 and 4/14/1982—American League—Angels 4 Mariners 3 in 6:06, suspended after 5:24 and 17 innings—33,574 fans on 4/13, 23,905 fans on 4/14 suspended at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 4/14.

23 — Smith-Wills Stadium, Jackson, Mississippi — 7/6/1982 — Texas League — Tulsa Drillers 11 Jackson Mets 7 in 6:39 —1105 fans, 200 fans at end —finished at 2:09 A.M. in the early morning of 7/7.

21—War Memorial Stadium, Greensboro, North Carolina — 8/12/1982 and 8/13/1982 — South Atlantic (Sally) League — Greensboro Hornets 3 Gastonia Cardinals 2, suspended after 17 innings.

21—Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois—8/17/1982 and 8/18/1982—National League—Dodgers 2 Cubs 1 in 6:10, suspended after 5:10 and 17 innings—26,576 fans on 8/17, 27,429 fans on 8/18—suspended at 6:45 P.M. on 8/17, finished at 12:05 P.M. on 8/18.

21—Community Field (II), Burlington, Iowa— 8/10/1983 and 8/11/1983—Midwest League—Burlington Rangers 7 Clinton Giants 6 in 5:44, rain delay 0:06 bottom 11th, 2nd rain delay 0:01 bottom 18th, suspended after 4:54 and 17½ innings—suspended at 12:35 A.M. in the early morning of 8/11.

45 — Ibaraki-Mito Kenei (Prefectural) Kyujyo (Stadium), Mito, Japan — 9/20/1983 — Amateur Industrial Emperor's Cup Nan-shiki Tournament — Tokyo Raito (Light) Kogyo (Manufacturing Company) 2 Miyazaki Tanaka Byouin (Hospital) 1 in 8:19, umpire snack break delay 0:06 top 26th, players refused 0:30 break top 26th — 100 fans at end — finished at 5:15 P.M.

23 — Leon or Rivas, Nicaragua — 12/18/1983 — First Division — Leon 5 Rivas 4.

20— Estadio (Stadium) Augusto Cesar Sandino, Santa Clara or Estadio Guillermon Moncada, Santiago, Cuba — 3/21/1984 — Serie Selectiva — Las Villas vs. Orientales.

25 – Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois – 5/8/1984 and 5/9/1984 – American League – White

Sox 7 Brewers 6 in 8:06, suspended after 5:29 and 17 innings —14,754 fans on 5/8, 17,715 fans on 5/9 — suspended at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 5/9.

21—J.C. Love Field, Ruston, Louisiana— 2/16/1985—National Association of Intercollegiate Athletics at National Collegiate Athletic Association— Louisiana Tech University Bulldogs 2 Southern Arkansas University Muleriders 1 in 4:54—150 fans; 75 fans at end—finished at 6:24 P.M.

21—Cooper Stadium, Columbus, Ohio— 6/10/1985 and 6/11/1985 and 6/12/1985—International League—Columbus Clippers 8 Syracuse Chiefs 7 in 5:37, suspended after 5:18 and 20 innings, rained out 6/11, finally completed 6/12—12,616 fans on 6/10, 400 fans at suspension, 2000 fans on 6/12—suspended at 12:53 A.M. in the early morning of 6/11.

27 — MacArthur Stadium, Syracuse, New York — 6/19/1985 and 6/20/1985 and 6/21/1985 — International League — Pawtucket Paw Sox 3 Syracuse Chiefs 1 in 7:07, suspended after 5:36 and 22 innings, continued 6/20, rain delay 0:13 top 23rd, 2nd rain delay 0:50 bottom 24th, suspended again after 6:07 and 23½ innings, finally completed 6/21—1233 fans on 6/19; 200 fans when suspended after 22 innings; 3020 fans on 6/21— suspended at 1:12 A.M. in the early morning of 6/20, suspended again at 9:05 P.M. on 6/20, finished at 7:31 P.M. on 6/21.

20—Mayo Field, Rochester, Minnesota— 5/10/1986 and 5/20/1986 — Minnesota High School League — Rochester Mayo High School Spartans 3 Mankato East High School Cougars 2 in 6:15, rain delay 1:30 bottom 10th, suspended after 3:00 and 9½ innings, then Rochester Mayo 11 Mankato East 10 in 2:30 and 7 innings—125 fans on 5/10—suspended at 3:30 P.M. on 5/10, 1st game finished at 8:15 P.M. on 5/20; 2nd game finished at 11:00 P.M. on 5/20.

20— Owen Bush Stadium, Indianapolis, Indiana — 8/17/1986 — American Association — Buffalo Bisons 6 Indianapolis Indians 5 in 5:35 — 1507 fans — finished at 12:05 A.M. in the early morning of 8/18.

20—Estadio (Stadium) Victoria de Giron, Matanzas or Estadio Latinoamericano, Havana, Cuba—11/23/ 1986—Serie Nacional—Henequeneros vs. Industriales.

32 — Robert C. Wynn Field, Bradenton, Florida — 4/4/1987 — National Junior Collegiate Athletic Association — Hillsborough Community College Hawks 6 Manatee Community College Lancers 4 in 7:30— 200 fans, 45 fans at end —finished at 9:30 P.M.

21-V.J. Keefe Stadium, San Antonio, Texas -5/21/1987 — Texas League — Shreveport Captains 4 San Antonio Dodgers 3 in 6:04 —1144 fans —finished at 1:04 A.M. in the early morning of 5/22.

22—American Legion Ballfield, Mobridge, South Dakota—8/4/1987—South Dakota Amateur Association—Mobridge 7 Redfield Merchants (later Pheasants, then Dairy Queen) 6 in 5:47.

20—Al Lang Field (II), St. Petersburg, Florida and Holman Stadium, Vero Beach, Florida — 4/29/1988 and 5/28/1988 — Florida State League — Vero Beach Dodgers 6 St. Petersburg Cardinals 5 in 5:59, suspended after 5:29 and 18 innings, completed in Vero Beach — suspended at 1:04 A.M. in the early morning of 4/30.

21— Riverside Sports Complex, Riverside, California — 5/22/1988 — California League — San Jose Giants 8 Riverside Red Wave 5 in 6:19 — finished at 1:19 A.M. in the early morning of 5/23.

27 — Burlington Athletic Stadium, Burlington, North Carolina — 6/24/1988 — Appalachian League — Bluefield Orioles 3 Burlington Indians 2 in 8:15 — 2204 fans, 84 fans at end —finished at 3:27 A.M. in the early morning of 6/25.

21—J.P. Riddle Stadium, Fayetteville, North Carolina — 7/10/1988 — South Atlantic (Sally) League — Charleston (Wv) Wheelers 7 Fayetteville Generals 5 in 5:22 — 843 fans —finished at 12:52 A.M. in the early morning of 7/11.

26 - V.J. Keefe Stadium, San Antonio, Texas – 7/14/1988 and 7/16/1988 – Texas League – San Antonio Missions 1 Jackson Mets 0 in 7:23, suspended after 7:10 and 25 innings – 3792 fans on 7/14, 3260 fans on 7/16 – suspended at 2:15 A.M. in the early morning of 7/15.

21—Estadio (Stadium) Emilio Ibarra, Los Mochis, State of Sinaloa, Mexico —11/26/1988 — Mexican Pacific League — Los Mochis Caneros (Sugar Cane Growers) 4 Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2 in 7:14 finished at 2:44 A.M. in the early morning of 11/27.

23 — Parque (Park) Yldefonso Sola Morales, Caguas, Puerto Rico — 1/8/1989 and 1/9/1989 — Winter League — Mayaguez Indios (Indians) 4 Caguas Criollos (Natives) 3, suspended.

22 - Parry Field, Belmont, State of Western Australia, Australia - 3/17/1989 - Western Australia Grand Final Series - Melville Braves 6 Morley Eagles 2 in 5:35 -1500 fans -finished at 12:50 A.M. in the early morning of 3/18.

21—Ed Smith Stadium, Sarasota, Florida and Dunedin Stadium at Grant Field (later Knology Park), Dune-din, Florida -4/24/1989 and 5/17/1989— Florida State League — Dunedin Blue Jays 8 Sarasota White Sox 3 in 6:29, suspended after 5:48 and 20 innings — 525 fans on 4/24, 45 fans at suspension, 307 fans on 5/17 — suspended at 12:48 A.M. in the early morning of 4/25.

20—Community Field (II), Burlington, Iowa— 5/15/1989—Midwest League—Rockford Expos 4 Burlington Braves 2 in 5:04.

22 - Astrodome, Houston, Texas $- \frac{6}{3}/1989 -$ National League - Astros 5 Dodgers 4 in 7:14 -34,425 fans -finished at 2:50 A.M. in the early morning of 6/4.

25 - Waterloo Stadium, Waterloo, Iowa and Riverview Stadium (later Alliant Energy Field), Clinton, Iowa - 7/6/1989 and 8/17/1989 - Midwest League - Waterloo Diamonds 4 Clinton Giants 3 in 7:37, suspended after 5:46 and 19 innings in Waterloo, completed 8/17 in Clinton - 876 fans on 7/6 in Waterloo, 809 fans on 8/17 in Clinton — suspended at 12:51 A.M. in the early morning of 7/7.

21—Diamond, Richmond, Virginia—8/7/1989— International League—Toledo Mud Hens 4 Richmond Braves 1 in 5:01, then Richmond 3 Toledo 0 in 2:23 and 7 innings—100 fans at end—finished at 1:57 A.M. in the early morning of 8/8.

22 — Stade Olympique (Olympic Stadium), Montreal, Province of Quebec, Canada — 8/23/1989 — National League — Dodgers 1 Expos 0 in 6:14 — 21,742 fans — finished at 1:25 A.M. in the early morning of 8/24.

25 - Memorial Stadium, Everett, Washington andCivic Stadium, Eugene, Oregon - 8/18/1989 and8/24/1989 - Northwest League - Eugene Emeralds 6Everett Giants 5 in 7:13, suspended after 5:50 and 19innings in Everett, completed 8/24 in Eugene - 2998fans on 8/24 - suspended at 12:50 A.M. in the earlymorning of 8/19.

1990's (30)

20— Keehi Lagoon Park, Honolulu, Hawaii — 4/13/ 1990— National Association of Intercollegiate Athletics — Hawaii Pacific College (later University) Sea Warriors 5 College of Idaho (later Albertson College) Coyotes 4 in 2nd game, Hawaii Pacific 3 Idaho 0 in 7 innings in 1st game.

20— Municipal Stadium (II), Phoenix, Arizona— 6/23/1990— Pacific Coast League — Calgary Cannons 12 Phoenix Firebirds 9 in 6:39—finished at 1:49 A.M. in the early morning of 6/24.

20—Sunnyside Park, Decatur, Illinois— 7/16/1990—Central Illinois Collegiate League—Decatur Blues 5 Champaign County Colts 4 in 4:50—25 fans—finished at 11:50 P.M.

22 – Billy Hebert Field, Stockton, California – 9/5/1990 and 9/6/1990 – California League playoffs – Bakersfield Dodgers 5 Stockton Ports 4 in 6:20, suspended after 5:53 and 21 innings –1497 fans on 9/5; 175 fans when suspended; 1559 fans on 9/6 – suspended at 1:27 A.M. in the early morning of 9/6; finished at 6:25 P.M. on 9/6.

20—Greer Stadium, Nashville, Tennessee— 9/7/1990—American Association playoffs—Omaha Royals 8 Nashville Sounds 7 in 6:25, rain delay 1:46 bottom 11th—14,482 fans, 500 fans top 12th, 300 fans at end—finished at 3:50 A.M. in the early morning of 9/8.

20— Tim McCarver Stadium, Memphis, Tennessee — 6/17/1991 and 6/18/1991— Southern League — Huntsville Stars 9 Memphis Chicks 7 in 6:32, suspended after 5:33 and 16 innings — 6845 fans on 6/17, 2349 fans on 6/18 — suspended at 1:12 A.M. in the early morning of 6/18, finished at 7:40 P.M. on 6/18.

21— Mulcahy Stadium, Anchorage, Alaska — 6/23/ 1992 — Alaska League — Anchorage Glacier Pilots defeated Kamloops in 6:39 —12 fans at end —finished at 2:15 A.M. in the early morning of 6/24.

24 – Owen Fish Park, Fairfield, Connecticut – 8/14/1992 and 8/15/1992 – Northeast Regionals, National Amateur League – New Rochelle Robins 2 Worcester Warriors 1 in 6:10, suspended after 10 innings.

22 — Ojiyama Kyujo (Stadium), Otsu, Japan — 5/4/ 1993 — Kansai Gakusei (Osaka University) League — Kwansei Gakuin (University) 3 Ritsumeikan University 2 in 4:45.

20—Al Lang Field (II), St. Petersburg, Florida — 6/8/1993 — Florida State League — St. Petersburg Cardinals 4 Lakeland Tigers 3 in 5:11—1229 fans finished at 12:46 A.M. in the early morning of 6/9.

20—Ed Smith Stadium, Sarasota, Florida— 6/17/1993—Florida State League—Sarasota White Sox 3 Clearwater Phillies 2 in 4:47—932 fans finished at 12:06 A.M. in the early morning of 6/18.

20— Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania—7/7/1993—National League—Phillies 7 Dodgers 6 in 6:10—41,730 fans—finished at 1:47 A.M. in the early morning of 7/8.

22 — Hubert H. Humphrey Metrodome, Minneapolis, Minnesota — 8/31/1993 — American League — Twins 5 Indians 4 in 6:17 — 17,968 fans, 1500 fans at end — finished at 1:22 A.M. in the early morning of 9/1.

24 — Matanzas or Estadio (Stadium) Nelson Fernandez, San Jose de Las Lajas, Cuba —12/8/1993 and 12/9/1993 — Serie Nacional — Matanzas vs. Habana, suspended.

20—Al Lang Field (II), St. Petersburg, Florida— 4/14/1994—Florida State League—St. Petersburg Cardinals 8 Lakeland Tigers 7 in 7:07—1021 fans finished at 2:42 A.M. in the early morning of 4/15.

25 — Parque (Park) Yldefonso Sola Morales, Caguas, Puerto Rico —11/23/1994 and 12/10/1994 — Winter League — Mayaguez Indios (Indians) 4 Caguas Criollos (Natives) 3, suspended after 16 innings.

20—Oakes Oval, Lismore, State of New South Wales, Australia—12/31/1994—AAA Asian Under 19 Series—Australia 9 Chinese Taipei 8 in 6:17, 2nd game postponed—300 fans, 300 fans at end—finished at 9:47 P.M.

23 – Legion Field, Downers Grove, Illinois – 4/28/1995 and 5/3/1995 and 5/8/1995 and 5/12/1995 – Illinois High School League – Downers Grove North High School Trojans 12 Elmhurst York High School Dukes 11 in 7:00, suspended after 3:00 and 8 innings, suspended a 2nd time after 6:00 and 20 innings – 75 fans on 4/28, 75 fans on 5/3, 250 fans on 5/12 – suspended at 7:15 P.M. at 4/28, suspended 2nd time at 7:15 P.M. on 5/3, rained out on 5/8, finished at 5:15 P.M. on 5/12.

21— Municipal Stadium, San Jose, California— 5/12/1995 and 5/13/1995—California League—San Bernardino Spirit 1 San Jose Giants 0 in 5:56, three rain delays, suspended after 11½innings—suspended at 11:16 P.M.

20—Estadio (Stadium) Angel Flores, Culiacan, State of Sinaloa, Mexico—10/27/1995—Mexican Pacific League—Culiacan Tomateros (Tomato Growers) 3 Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2 in 6:01—finished at 1:31 A.M. in the early morning of 10/28. 21—Estadio (Stadium) Isidoro "Cholo" Garcia, Mayaguez, Puerto Rico —12/22/1995 and 12/23/1995 and 1/19/1996—Puerto Rican Winter League— Mayaguez Indios (Indians) 2 San Juan Senadores (Senators) 1 in 6:22, suspended, suspended a second time.

21—Blue Valley District Activity Center, Overland Park, Kansas—5/20/1997—Kansas High School League—Blue Valley Northwest High School Huskies 1 Shawnee Mission North High School Mustangs 0 in 5:50—finished at 10:50 P.M.

20— Kyoto or Kobe, Japan —?/??/1997 — Kinki District High School League — Kyoto Heian-koukou 8 Kobe Ikuei-koukou 7.

22 — Estadio (Stadium) Teodoro Mariscal, Mazatlan, State of Sinaloa, Mexico —10/19/1997 — Mexican Pacific League — Culiacan Tomateros (Tomato Growers) 5 Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2 in 6:55 —finished at 2:25 A.M. in the early morning of 10/20.

21—Judy Johnson Field at Frawley Stadium, Wilmington, Delaware — 7/5/1998 — Carolina League — Wilmington Blue Rocks 3 Danville 97's 2 in 6:23 — 3441 fans — finished at 8:28 P.M.

23 — Municipal Stadium, Greenville, South Carolina — 8/6/1998 and 8/7/1998 — Southern League — Greenville Braves 10 Huntsville Stars 7 in 6:26, suspended after 5:25 and 20 innings — 4098 fans — suspended at 12:13 A.M. in the early morning of 8/7, finished at 6:01 P.M. on 8/7.

21— Heart of Florida Medical Regional Center Field, Babson Park, Florida — 2/19/1999 and 2/20/1999 — National Association of Intercollegiate Athletics — Nova Southeastern University Knights 9 Webber College (now Webber International University) Warriors 5 in 6:00, suspended after 3:43 and 13 innings — 50 fans suspended at 6:28 P.M., finished at 1:17 P.M.

22 — Cougar Field, Houston, Texas — 2/21/1999 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Baylor University Bears 8 University of Houston Cougars 2 in 6:43 —1225 fans —finished at 10:48 P.M.

21— Carson Center Field, Evansville, Indiana— 3/7/1999— National Collegiate Athletic Association— University of Memphis Tigers 4 University of Evansville Purple Aces 4 in 5:00—205 fans, 75 fans at end—finished at 4:00 P.M.

21— John O'donnell Stadium, Davenport, Iowa — 5/19/1999 — Midwest League — Clinton Lumber Kings 3 Quad-City River Bandits 2 in 5:49.

2000's (41)

21— Dawson Field, Depew, New York — 7/16/2000 and 7/17/2000 and 7/19/2000 — American Legion — Depew Post 1528 4 Orchard Park Post 567 3, rain delays on 7/16, suspended after 8 innings on 7/16, suspended again after 20 innings on 7/17.

20—L.P. Frans Stadium, Hickory, North Carolina— 8/13/2000—South Atlantic (Sally) League—Asheville Tourists 4 Hickory Crawdads 3 in 5:16—1959 fans finished at 12:16 A.M. in the early morning of 8/14.

21-Rotary Field, Brunswick, Ohio - 5/9/2001 and

5/10/2001— Ohio High School League — Brunswick High School Blue Devils 11 Elyria High School Pioneers 10, suspended after 18 innings —100 fans.

23 — Estadio (Stadium) Veracruz, Veracruz, State of Veracruz, Mexico — 6/30/2001— Mexican League — Mexico City Diablos Rojos (Red Devils) 2 Veracruz Aguila (Eagle) 1.

22—Estadio (Stadium) Roberto Clemente, Carolina, Puerto Rico—11/4/2001—Winter League— Carolina Gigantes (Giants) 2 Caguas Criollos (Natives) 1 in 6:30—finished at 12:30 A.M.

20—Jack Horenberger Field, Bloomington, Illinois—7/30/2002—Central Illinois Collegiate League—Decatur Blues 11 Twin City Stars 4 in 5:44— 259 fans—finished at 10:44 P.M.

20—Estadio (Stadium) Tetelo Vargas, San Pedro de Marcoris, Dominican—10/19/2002—Winter League—Orientales Estrellas (Oriental Stars) 4 Escogido Leones Rojos (Red Lions) 3 in 6:41—finished at 3:17 A.M. in the early morning of 10/20.

23 — Fukuoka Dome, Fukuoka, Japan — 10/26/2002 — Kyushu College League Semifinal — Nihon Bunri University 2 Kyushu Kyoritsu (Community College) 1 in 6:00.

22 — Blacktown Olympic Park, Sydney, State of New South Wales, Australia — 4/19/2003 — New South Wales Under 23 Tournament — Queensland 4 New South Wales/Victoria/Capital Territory Combined Academy 3 in 5:33—120 fans, 200 fans at end —finished at 8:33 P.M.

20—Pro Player Stadium, Miami, Florida—4/27/ 2003—National League—Cardinals 7 Marlins 6 in 6:07—10,075 fans—finished at 7:12 P.M.

21—Byron High School Field, Byron and Eckstein Field, Plainview, Minnesota—6/22/2003 and 7/6/2003—Twin Rivers League—Byron Braves 4 Plainview Bucks 3 in 7:15, suspended after 5:00 and 15 innings on 6/22 in Byron, resumed 7/6 in Plainview— 15 fans in Byron, 20 fans in Plainview—suspended at 6:00 P.M. on 6/22, finished at 9:45 P.M. on 7/6.

21— Dwyer Stadium, Batavia, New York— 7/9/2003— New York-Pennsylvania League— Staten Island Yankees 5 Batavia Muckdogs 2 in 5:48—1073 fans—finished at 12:58 A.M. in the early morning of 7/10.

20—Eldredge Park, Orleans, Massachusetts — 8/4/2003 — Cape Cod League — Harwich Mariners 3 Orleans Cardinals 2 in 5:52, umpire crew chief called it a tie game after 17 innings a little after Midnight, but both managers and players from both teams successfully changed his mind to allow the game to continue — 4615 fans, 125 fans at end —finished at 12:58 A.M. in the early morning of 8/5.

20— Frank Myers Field at Tointon Family Stadium, Manhattan, Kansas— 4/9/2004— National Collegiate Athletic Association— University of Texas Longhorns 10 Kansas State University Wildcats 6 in 6:28—874 fans—finished at 1:35 A.M. in the early morning of 4/10.

24 – Rebels Field, Norridge, Illinois – 4/23/2004 and 5/25/2004 – Illinois High School League – Evergreen Park High School Mustangs 2 Ridgewood High School Rebels 1 in 4:40, suspended after 2:00 and 12 innings — 40 fans on 4/23; 80 fans on 5/25 — suspended at 6:15 P.M. on 4/23; finished at 6:55 P.M. on 5/25.

21—Wolff Stadium, San Antonio, Texas— 8/14/2004—Texas League—Midland RockHounds 7 San Antonio Missions 5 in 6:40—4286 fans, 90 fans at end—finished at 1:46 A.M. in the early morning of 8/15.

23 – Dust Devils Stadium, Pasco, Washington – 8/16/2004 and 8/17/2004 – Northwest League – Spokane Indians 2 Tri-City Dust Devils 1 in 6:37, suspended after 5:46 and 20 innings – 919 fans on 8/16 – suspended at 12:52 A.M. in the early morning of 8/17, finished at 6:53 P.M. on 8/17.

20—Estadio (Stadium) Jesus Caranza Limon, Guasave, State of Sinaloa, Mexico—12/19/2004— Mexican Pacific League—Guasave Algodoneros (Cotton Pickers) 3 Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2.

20— Reiterstadion (later Circle Wood Stadium), Koln (Cologne), Germany — 4/6/2005 — Bundesliga Nord (North German League) — Bonn Capitals 9 Koln (Cologne) Cardinals 7 in 5:50; then Bonn 4 Cologne 0 in 2:05 and 7 innings, rain delay 0:13 — 600 fans; 500 fans at end of 1st game; 250 fans at end of 2nd game — 1st game finished at 6:50 P.M.; 2nd game finished at 9:38 P.M.

22 — Wilson Field, Georgetown, Kentucky — 4/29/2005 — National Association of Intercollegiate Athletics — Lambuth University Eagles 8 Pikeville College Bears 5 in 6:15 - 200 fans, 150 fans at end — finished at 4:45 P.M.

20— Whataburger Field, Corpus Christi, Texas — 6/1/2005 — Texas League — Wichita Wranglers 7 Corpus Christi Hooks 2 in 6:09 — 6609 fans, 325 fans at end — finished at 1:19 A.M. in the early morning of 6/2.

22 - Falcon Park, Auburn, New York -7/7/2005and 8/14/2005 - New York-Pennsylvania League - Auburn Doubledays 6 Batavia Muckdogs 5 in 6:34,suspended after 6:02 and 20 innings <math>-3242 fans on 7/7, 250 fans left at suspension, 1871 fans on 8/14 suspended at 1:09 A.M. in the early morning of 7/8, finished at 5:35 P.M. on 8/14 - author sat behind first base for the last two innings.

28 — Vic Kapsner Memorial Park, Lastrup, Minnesota — 7/23/2005 — Minnesota Town Team League — Lastrup Lakers 1 Pierz Brewers 0 in 5:50— 100 fans; 300 fans at end — finished at 7:25 P.M.

21—Fieldcrest Cannon Stadium, Kannapolis, North Carolina—9/7/2005—South Atlantic (Sally) League playoffs—Kannapolis Intimidators 4 Charleston (Sc) RiverDogs 3 in 5:09—749 fans; 300 fans at end finished at 12:14 A.M. in the early morning of 9/8.

20— Hammond Stadium, Fort Myers, Florida — 4/13/2006 — Florida State League — Clearwater Threshers 4 Fort Myers Miracle 3 in 5:02 —1544 fans; 94 fans at end —finished at 12:07 A.M. in the early morning of 4/14.

20— Hooks Stadium, Winston-Salem, North Carolina — 5/6/2006 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Florida State University Seminoles 4 Wake Forest University Demon Deacons 3 in 5:02 —1711 fans; 850 fans at end —finished at 6:05 P.M.

24 – Greer Stadium, Nashville, Tennessee – 5/5/2006 and 5/6/2006 – Pacific Coast League – New Orleans Zephyrs 5 Nashville Sounds 4 in 8:07, suspended after 6:23 and 18 innings – 9124 fans on 5/5, 300 fans at suspension; 10,016 fans on 5/6 – suspended at 1:25 A.M. in the early morning of 5/6; finished at 7:44 P.M. on 5/6.

22 — FirstEnergy Park, Lakewood, New Jersey — 4/26/2006 and 5/7/2006 — South Atlantic (Sally) League — Lakewood BlueClaws 8 Hagerstown Suns 7 in 7:47, suspended after 17 innings and 6:03 — 5487 fans on 4/26, 150 fans top 12th, 31 fans top 17th; 7449 fans on 5/7 — suspended at 12:42 A.M. in the early morning of 4/27, finished at 2:49 P.M. on 5/7.

26 — KeySpan Park, Brooklyn, New York — 7/20/ 2006 — New York-Pennsylvania League — Oneonta Tigers 6 Brooklyn Cyclones 1 in 6:40 — 9004 fans; 190 fans at end — finished at 6:45 P.M.

20— Baseball Grounds, Jacksonville, Florida — 8/12/2006 and 8/13/2006 — Southern League — Jacksonville Suns 5 West Tennessee Diamond Jaxx 2 in 5:22, rain delay, 2nd rain delay top 4th, suspended after 0:55 top 4th; then West Tennessee 4 Jacksonville 1 in 1:44 and 7 innings — 6280 fans on 8/12; 2907 fans on 8/13 — finished at 7:32 P.M.; 2nd game finished at 9:46 P.M.

21—Estadio (Stadium) Jose Garcia Mendoza, Ojinaga, State of Chihuahua, Mexico — 8/13/2006 — Amateur — Madera Venados (Deer) 11 Ojinaga Soles (Suns) 9 in 7:55 — finished at 6:58 P.M.

20— Nishi-Kyogoku Kyujyo (Stadium), Kyoto, Japan — 10/22/2006 — Kansai University League — Doshisha University 2 Ritsumeikan University 1 in 4:59 — 2000 fans — finished at 8:20 P.M.

20—Sancet Stadium, Tucson, Arizona—1/27/ 2007—National Collegiate Athletic Association/University of Arizona Wildcats intrasquad game—Team A vs. Team B.

20— Legends Field, Tampa, Florida — 4/17/2007 — Florida State League — Clearwater Threshers 4 Tampa Yankees 1 in 5:14 — 706 fans — ended at 12:14 A.M. in the early morning of 4/18.

20—Nash Park, Kenosha, Wisconsin -4/24/2007 — Wisconsin State High School League — Kenosha Tremper High School Trojans 3 Racine Horlick High School Rebels 2 in 5:05 — 65 fans; 20 fans at end —finished at 9:35 P.M.

20—Arnold Klaers Field, Loretto, Minnesota— 6/27/2007—North Star League—Buffalo Bulldogs 4 Loretto Larks 2 in 4:15—98 fans; 27 fans at end finished at 11:45 P.M.

22 — Petco Park, San Diego, California — 4/17/ 2008 — National League — Rockies 2 Padres 1 in 6:16 — 25,984 fans — finished at 1:21 A.M. in the early morning of 4/18.

20–Yanez Field, Downey, California– 5/13/2008–California Interscholastic Federation (Cif) Southern Section Division III Playoffs Wildcard Round – Downey High School Vikings 3 Harvard-Westlake Upper School Wolverines 2 in 7:20–200 fans including Tommy Lasorda; 125 fans at end – finished at 10:35 P.M.

20—Jubilee Field, Yorkton, Province of Saskatchewan, Canada — 6/19/2008 and 6/22/2008 — Western Major League — Sherwood Park Dukes 5 Yorkton Cardinals 3 in 5:16, rain delay 0:20 top 12th, suspended after 3:13 and 11 innings — 475 fans on 6/19; 225 fans when suspended; 316 fans on 6/22 — suspended at 10:38 P.M.; finished at 4:08 P.M.

20—Hanover Insurance Park at Fitton Field, Worcester, Massachusetts—6/26/2008—Canadian American (CanAm) League—New Jersey Jackals 5 Worcester Tornadoes 4 in 6:06—1434 fans—finished at 12:11 A.M. in the early morning of 6/27.

20—Joker Marchant Stadium, Lakeland, Florida— 6/29/2008—Florida State League—Lakeland Flying Tigers 3 Daytona Cubs 2 in 6:06—469 fans finished at 12:06 A.M. in the early morning of 6/30.

Longest U.S. Amateur Games, by State Alaska (1)

21—Mulcahy Stadium, Anchorage -6/23/1992 — Alaska League — Anchorage Glacier Pilots defeated Kamloops in 6:39 —12 fans at end —finished at 2:15 A.M. in the early morning of 6/24.

California (13)

20—Arcadia — 3/15/1908 — Southern California State League — Santa Anita 4 Arcadia Eagles 3 in 3:00.

22 — Sodality Park, San Jose — 6/26/1909 — Junior Outlaws 11 Sodality Stars 9.

20— Marysville — 8/4/1912 — Hammonton 4 Marysville 3.

20—Goat (later Yerba Buena) Island, San Francisco—9/15/1917—Oakland Naval Training Station Sailors 1 Oakland Vampires 0 in 3:10.

21—South Side Playgrounds, San Francisco—9/16/ 1917—Jeffersons 10 Mission Merchants 9.

20 – San Francisco – 11/24/1918 – Colma 4 San Carlos 3.

23 — Pershing Park, Santa Barbara — 7/11/1920 — Championship Series — Santa Barbara 2 Ventura 1.

21—Oxnard Armory (later Community Center), Oxnard — 5/26/1923 — Oxnard Indoors League — Hueneme Sea Lions/Turtles/Longshoremen 8 Hueneme Sunkist/Citrons/Lemons/Packing House Workers 7.

29 — South Side Playgrounds, San Francisco — 10/12/1929 — Regulars 9 Yannigans 8 in 5:00 — finished at 6:00 P.M.

20— Salinas Rodeo Grounds, Salinas— 5/14/1933— San Francisco Chronicle 1 Salinas Colts 0.

20— Seals Stadium, San Mateo —10/1/1944 — Bay Meadows 5 Owl Drug 4.

20— Memorial Ball Park, Atwater — 8/4/1953 — National Congress — Fort Ord Warriors 2 San Diego Naval Air Station 1 Skyraiders in 4:40–3100 fans– finished at 12:55 A.M. in the early morning of 8/5.

20— Blue Lake — 6/24/1956 — Redwood League — Blue Lake Chicks 8 Crescent City Merchants 7.

Connecticut (2)

20—East Hartford — 5/14/1933 — East Hartford Red Sox 5 New Britain Ramblers 4 in 5:15.

24 — Owen Fish Park, Fairfield — 8/14/1992 and 8/15/1992 — Northeast Regionals, National Amateur League — New Rochelle Robins 2 Worcester Warriors 1 in 6:10, suspended after 10 innings; completed 8/15.

Florida (2)

21—Wauchula — 9/20/1933 — Orange Belt League — Wauchula 7 Frostproof 4 in 4:00—finished at 7:00 P.M.

21— Gindorff Field, Stuart — 5/24/1953 — South Florida Coast-Glades League — Jupiter Pennocks 1 Stuart Sailfishes 1 in 4:00—finished at 7:00 P.M.

Georgia (2)

26 — Oakland City Park, Atlanta — 7/26/1922 — Oakland City 3 West End 2 — 500 fans.

20—Gowdy Field, Fort Benning—7/30/1927— Fort Benning Army League—24th Infantry Blues 3 Ist Battalion 29th Infantry 2 in 4:00.

Hawaii (2)

20—Honolulu — 5/31/1913 — Honolulu Stars 3 Punahou Athletic Club (Ac) 1.

25 — Hoolulu Park (later Wong Stadium), Hilo — 2/20/1938 — Hawaii Japanese League — Papaikou Paps 5 Shinmachi Shins 5 in 4:55.

Illinois (7)

26—Athletic Park, Dixon—6/25/1909—Semi-Pro—Dixon Browns 3 Muscatine Independents 2 in 4:00—150 fans, 1000 fans at end—finished at 7:20 P.M.

20—North End Park, Belleville — 9/11/1921—B's 3 Keen Kutters 3 in 3:54.

20—Aurora or Yorkville—6/7/1925—SemiPro— Montgomery Pirates 1 Yorkville Helpers 1.

20 – Mount Prospect – 5/31/1971 – Mount Prospect Pony A League – Braves 6 Orioles 5 in 4:15.

20 — Mount Prospect — 6/6/1976 and 6/13/1976 — Mount Prospect Pony B League First Half Championship — Braves 2 Mets 0.

20—Sunnyside Park, Decatur — 7/16/1990—Central Illinois Collegiate League — Decatur Blues 5 Champaign County Colts 4 in 4:50—25 fans finished at 11:50 P.M.

20—Jack Horenberger Field, Bloomington — 7/30/ 2002 — Central Illinois Collegiate League — Decatur Blues 11 Twin City Stars 4 in 5:44 — 259 fans finished at 10:44 P.M.

Indiana (2)

20 — Richmond — 7/1/1900 — Covington All-Kentuckians 3 Richmond 0. 20 – Edgerton – 8/9/1909 – Woodburn 5 Edgerton Browns 4 – 300 fans.

Iowa (7)

21—Gilmore Ground, Gilmore City -6/26/1907 — Humboldt Colts 1 Gilmore City Midgets 0 in 5:00 finished at 8:05 P.M. — Humboldt batter Arch Wilder singled in top of 21st, stole second, was safe at third when comebacker to pitcher was thrown to third even though throw beat him by six feet, then stole home and was called safe even though throw beat him by eight feet; umpire Harve Clark was from Humboldt.

22 – Schaller – 6/4/1908 – Sac City 3 Schaller 3 in 3:30 – finished at 6:00 P.M.

24 – McClelland – 6/14/1908 – Lee-Glass-Amdressen Originals 2 McClelland 2 in 4:35.

20 — Palmer — 6/28/1910 — SemiPro — Pocahontas 2 Pomeroy 2.

25 – Pacific Junction – 8/14/1926 – Folsom 7 Pleasant Valley 4 in 5:00.

20— Hamburg — 6/26/1932 — Hamburg 13 Fairfax (Missouri) 13.

21—Council Bluffs—early 1940's—Southwest Iowa Tournament—Marian defeated Harlan.

Maryland (2)

22 — Park, Frostburg — 8/12/1905 — Frostburg Champions 1 Lonaconing 0.

24 — Baltimore — 7/26/1913 — White Lilies 4 Locust Point Junior All-Stars 2 in 5:00 — finished at 3:00 P.M.

Massachusetts (23)

33 – Boston Common Parade Ground, Boston, Massachusetts – 5/31/1858 – Amateur – Holliston Winthrops 100 Boston Olympics 27 in 3:28 – there was only one out for each team in an inning – 2500 fans – finished at 5:30 P.M.

64 - Foxboro, Massachusetts - 6/19/1858 - Ama-teur - South Walpole Rough and Ready's 99 Foxboro 99 in 6:00–100-Run Rule called for team scoring 100 runs first to be declared winner, there was only one out for each team in an inning, called when Rough and Ready catcher knocked unconscious by bat swung by Foxboro batter -finished at 7:30 P.M.

52 — Boston Common, Boston, Massachusetts — 10/15/1858 — Amateur — Boston Bay States 77 Charlestown Bunker Hills 56 — there was only one out for each team in an inning — finished at 5:30 P.M.

42 — Boston Common, Boston, Massachusetts — 10/23/1858 — Amateur — Boston Olympics 54 Waltham Mechanics 21 in 3:00 — there was only one out for each team in an inning — finished at 5:00 P.M.

33 — City Common, New Bedford, Massachusetts —11/25/1858 — Amateur — Union Club of New Bedford 103 Bristol County Club of New Bedford 18 in 2:15 — there was only one out for each team in an inning —1000 fans —finished at 12:15 P.M.

21–Petaluma, California – 5/17/1859 – Amateur – C.I. Robinson's Eleven Picked Men 21 M. Parker's Eleven Picked Men 6, then Robinson 8 Parker 6, then Robinson 8 Parker 6 — they played for an oyster and champagne dinner.

40—Petaluma, California — 5/18/1859 — Amateur — C.I. Robinson's Four Picked Men 21 M. Parker's Four Picked Men 18 — they played for a prize of \$50.

57 - Boston Common, Boston, Massachusetts - 5/21/1859 - Amateur - Natick Yankees 90 Boston Bay States 64 in 5:57 - there was only one out for each team in an inning - finished at 7:02 P.M.

61— Stone Park, Ashland or Fayville, Massachusetts — 6/18/1859 — Amateur — Ashland Alphas 101 Fayville 50, rain delay — there was only one out for each team in an inning.

22 — Natick, Massachusetts — 6/18/1859 — Amateur — Natick Yankees 36 Boston Bay States 7 in 1:00, rain delay top 23rd — there was only one out for each team in an inning —finished at 10:00 A.M.

26 — Young Ladies Institute Town Lot, Pittsfield, Massachusetts — 7/1/1859 — Inter-Collegiate Association — Amherst College Lord Jeffs 73 Williams College Ephs 32 in 3:30—150 fans — finished at 2:30 P.M.— rules called for team that scored 65 runs first to be declared the winner.

105½–Stone Park, Ashland, Massachusetts — 7/28/1859 and 7/29/1859 — Amateur — Unions of Medway 100 Excelsiors of Upton 78 in 14:10, dinner delay 0:20, suspended after 10:10 and 85 innings — 100-Run Rule called for the team that scored 100 runs first to be declared the winner, there was only one out for each team in an inning, Medway scored its 100 th run in the top of the 106 th inning and under rules then in effect Upton did not get a chance to even the score in the bottom of the 106 th, so the game lasted 105½ innings rather than 106 innings — 8000 fans on 7/28 — on 7/28 play began at 9:00 A.M., dinner delay began 12:00 Noon, play began again at 12:20 P.M., suspended at 7:30 P.M., on 7/29 play began again 8:00 A.M., finished 12:00 Noon.

80—Agricultural Grounds, Worcester, Massachusetts—10/11/1859 and 10/12/1859—Amateur—Excelsiors of Upton 100 Union of Medway 56 in 11:02, suspended after 6:02 with the score Upton 67 Medway 33—100-Run Rule called for the team that scored 100 runs first to be declared the winner, there was only one out for each team in an inning—4500 fans on 10/11 suspended at 5:00 P.M. on 10/11, finished at 3:15 P.M. on 10/12.

31—Moseley's Horse Track Park, Westfield, Massachusetts—7/4/1860—Inter-Collegiate Association— Amherst College Lord Jeffs 70 Williams College Ephs 40 in 3:40—finished at 1:00 P.M.—65-Run Rule.

30— Janesville, Wisconsin — 8/10/1860— Amateur — Croft's Team 50 Hogan's Team 34 — 50-Tally Rule.

172 - Agricultural Grounds, Worcester, Massachusetts - 9/25/1860 and 9/26/1860 and 9/27/1860 and 9/28/1860 and 10/1/1860 and 10/4/1860 and 10/5/1860 - Amateur - Excelsiors of Upton 50 Union of Medway 29 in 21:50, dinner and rain delay 0:20 bottom 13th on 9/25, suspended on 9/25 after 2:40

and 12½ innings with the score Upton 5 Medway 4, rain delay 2:30 bottom 13th on 9/26, suspended on 9/26 after 5:40 and 341/2 innings with the score Upton 8 Medway 7, lunch delay 0:20 on 9/27, suspended on 9/27 after 12:50 and 83½ innings with the score Upton 23 Medway 15, suspended on 9/28 after 17:20 and 1361/2 innings with the score Upton 38 Medway 25, scheduled to resume on 10/1 in Springfield, Massachusetts but then decided to resume instead on 10/4 in Worcester, rain delay top 173rd on 10/4, suspended on 10/4 after 21:50 and 172 innings with the score Upton 50 Medway 29, rain delay top 173rd on 10/5, game called after 21:50 and 172 innings-100-Run Rule called for the team that scored 100 runs first to be declared the winner but after five days of play and two days of postponements and much rain the game was finally declared over with the winner having scored only 50, there was only one out for each team in an inning – 4000 fans on 9/26 – on 9/25 play began 10:00 A.M., dinner/rain delay began 12:40 P.M., suspended 1:00 P.M.; on 9/26 rain delay began 10:30 A.M., play began 1:00 P.M., suspended 4:00 P.M.; on 9/27 play began 9:30 A.M., lunch delay began 12:40 P.M., play began again 1:00 P.M., suspended 5:00 P.M.; on 9/28 play began 11:30 A.M., suspended 4:00 P.M.; on 10/1 play scheduled to resume in Springfield but never did; on 10/4 play began 8:30 A.M., suspended by rain 12:00 Noon; on 10/5 play scheduled to resume but never did because of rain.

36 – North End Grounds, Stoneham – 8/28/1880 – Zouaves 21 Benecia Boys 15 – 350 fans.

20—West Fitchburg (later Fitchburg)— 8/17/1904—Cleghorn 9 Hill Tops 8.

21–Millerville (later Millville)–5/25/1907– Woonsocket Mill League–Taft-Pierce Mill of Woonsocket 4 Alice Mill of Woonsocket 2 in 3:18.

24 — Ashmont Playground, Boston — 7/18/1909 — 14-Year Old League — Norfolks of Dorchester 6 Rosemonts of Ashmont 5.

28 — Columbus Avenue Grounds, Boston — 9/11/1912 — Willow Athletic Club 5 St. Philips' All-Stars 4 in 4:30 — finished at 2:30 P.M.

21—Rowells Field, Salem — 7/22/1915 — Salem Playground League — Rowells Field 3 Bridge Street Nine 2 in 3:15.

20—Eldredge Park, Orleans — 8/4/2003 — Cape Cod League — Harwich Mariners 3 Orleans Cardinals 2 in 5:52; umpire crew chief called it a tie game after 17 innings a little after Midnight, but both managers and players from both teams successfully changed his mind to allow the game to continue — 4615 fans, 125 fans at end —finished at 12:58 A.M. in the early morning of 8/5.

Michigan (1)

21— Ironwood — 8/6/1911— Upper Peninsula League — Cary Empires 4 Ironwood Tigers 2 in 4:05, 2nd game between Ironwood and Temple Theatre postponed — finished at 6:10 P.M.

Minnesota (10)

20—Lake Benton or Pipestone—9/12/1901—Lake Benton 3 Pipestone 2 in 3:45.

21-St. Cloud - 6/??/1912 - Collegians 5 Abeles 2.

21—Rock Island Park, Owatonna — 7/25/1915 — Mankato 1 Owatonna Gray Sox 1 in 3:57 in 2nd game, Mankato vs. Owatonna in 7 innings in 1:15 in 1st game — 2nd game called at 5:57 P.M.

24 — Riverside Park, Shakopee — 8/13/1950 — Minnesota River League — Shakopee Indians 4 St. Peter Saints 3 in 5:00 — finished at 7:30 P.M.

20— Mabel — 8/10/1952 — Fillmore County League — Spring Grove Grovers 13 Mabel 9 — finished at 1:30 A.M. in the early morning of 8/11.

20—Barney Tadsen Field, Brownton—9/9/1971— Town Team League—Hector Flyers 4 Stark (later Stark Longhorns) 2 in 5:30, rain delay 0:20 at start— 200 fans, 150 fans at end—finished at 11:50 P.M.

20-Arlington - 8/26/1976 - Town Team League - Cyrus 2 Fairfax Cardinals 1 in 4:35 finished at 10:05 P.M.

21— Byron High School Field, Byron and Eckstein Field, Plainview -6/22/2003 and 7/6/2003 - Twin Rivers League - Byron Braves 4 Plainview Bucks 3 in 7:15, suspended after 5:00 and 15 innings on 6/22 in Byron, resumed 7/6 in Plainview -15 fans in Byron, 20 fans in Plainview - suspended at 6:00 P.M. on 6/22, finished at 9:45 P.M. on 7/6.

28 — Vic Kapsner Memorial Park, Lastrup — 7/23/ 2005 — Town Team League — Lastrup Lakers 1 Pierz Brewers 0 in 5:50—100 fans; 300 fans at end finished at 7:25 P.M.

20— Arnold Klaers Field, Loretto — 6/27/2007 — North Star League — Buffalo Bulldogs 4 Loretto Larks 2 in 4:15 — 98 fans; 27 fans at end —finished at 11:45 P.M.

Missouri (5)

25 — Prosperity — 5/31/1908 — Interstate (Kansas/Missouri/Oklahoma) League — Mineral 8 Prosperity 6 in 4:18 — finished at 6:18 P.M.

20—Kansas City—8/2/1912—17-Year Old Junior League—Yale Blues 22 Buddie Blues 11—Yale Blues scored 20 runs in top 20th; Buddie Blues scored 9 runs in bottom 20th.

20— Hannibal — 7/2/1915 — Negro League — Hannibal Browns 5 Hannibal Eagles 5 in 3:20.

23 — Kansas City — 7/30/1933 — Kansas City 48th Street Merchants 16 St. Joseph Bottling Works 10 in 5:00.

23 – St. Louis or Tenbrook – 5/??/1934 – St. Louis Red Sox vs. Tenbrook Athletic Club in 6:30.

Nebraska (1)

20— Crofton or Laurel —?/??/1938 — Northeast Nebraska League — Crofton vs. Laurel.

New Jersey (5)

20—Pitman—7/4/1906—Camden West End 2 Pitman 1 in A.M. game; Camden West End 7 Pitman 1 in P.M. game. 23 — Mount Holly — 8/4/1907 — Ex-Philadelphia 3 Harrison of Mount Holly 2.

20—Hippodrome, Bridgeton — 7/20/1910—Roxboro Talmage 2 Bridgeton 0.

20 – Medford – 7/10/1915 – Burlington County Semi-Pro League – Mount Holly 0 Medford 0.

21— Paramus High School Field (I), Paramus — 6/??/1965 — Bergen County League — Spring Valley Bengals 0 Paramus Barons 0.

New Mexico (1)

20—Placitas—7/3/1956—Bernalillo County SemiPro League—Los Ranchos de Albuquerque 5 Placitas 3 in 5:00.

New York (8)

21—The Bronx Ballfield, New York City— 9/3/1905—Exchange 4 Fultons 3 in 3:25.

21— Camp Vincent Fairgrounds, Watertown —?/??/ 1914 — Negro League at Amateur — Harrisville Adirondacks defeated Havana Red Sox.

21—Lake Shore Grounds, Dunkirk—6/7/1919— Ramblers 2 White Eagles 1.

20-Florida Athletic Club Field, Florida-9/8/1935-Florida Reds 3 St. Joseph's 3.

23 — Groton — 9/19/1948 — Southern Tier League — Homer Braves 0 Groton 0 in 4:30 — 3000 fans.

20—Macomb's Dam Park, New York City— 8/9/1954—City Youth Federation Semi-Final Game—Hudson Guild Neighborhood House 3 Immaculate Conception of the Bronx 2 in 5:47.

22 — New York City — 6/24/1967 — Atlantic Collegiate League — Mount Vernon Generals 2 Defiance Indians 0.

21—Dawson Field, Depew—7/16/2000 and 7/17/2000 and 7/19/2000—American Legion— Depew Post 1528 4 Orchard Park Post 567 3, rain delays on 7/16, suspended after 8 innings on 7/16, suspended again after 20 innings on 7/17.

North Carolina (1)

20— Siler City or Bethel — 6/17/1969 — American Legion — Siler City Post defeated Bethel Post.

North Dakota (3)

25 — North Dakota State Militia Training Grounds, Devils Lake — 7/18/1891— Red River Valley League — Grand Forks Black Stockings 0 Fargo Red Stockings 0 in 4:10—finished at 8:10 P.M.

22 – Cooperstown Diamond, Cooperstown – 7/19/1907 – Hannaford 2 Binford 1 in 3:10.

20 – Berthold – 8/27/1916 – Minot defeated Berthold.

Ohio (13)

30—Van Wert—?/??/1904—Independent Team A with Hay of Kankakee pitching 3 Independent Team B 2.

21—Hardin—7/16/1905—Hardin Champs 5 Portsmouth 4. 21—Columbus—6/10/1906—Mitchel Specials 0 West Side Nationals 0.

30—Brookside Park, Cleveland — 7/4/1907 — Brooklyn Athletic Club 4 East End All Stars 1 in 5:50.

36 – Recreation Park (I), Columbus – 7/5/1907 – Heintz Victors 2 Columbus Selects 2 in 3:50.

20— New Straitsville or Shawnee — 6/19/1908 — New Straitsville 6 Shawnee 5 in 3:30.

22 – Danville – 6/16/1910 – Amity 6 Danville 6 in 5:00.

28 - Delaware City -7/18/1914 - Columbus Champions 1 Delaware Stars 0.

23 — Wehrle Park, Newark — 7/4/1915 — Knights of Columbus 2 Athletics 2.

20—General Field, Akron — 8/20/1922 — Industrial League — Firestone Non-Skids 0 General Tire Generals 0.

23 — Schultheiss Farm, Elyria — 8/1/1932 — Knights of Pythias's Team A 19 Knights of Pythias's Team B 19.

21-Minster - 7/18/1956 - American Legion - St. Mary's 4 Lima 3 in 5:30-finished at 1:05 A.M.

22 - Glenmont - 7/4/1965 - Triple Counties League - Glenmont 8 Loudonville 7 in 5:00.

Oklahoma (4)

23 – Kingfisher – 5/11/1908 – Oklahoma State League – Crescent 0 Kingfisher 0.

20—western part of the state -?/??/1910's — Elk City 4 unknown opponent 2, Cot Deal's father Roy B. Deal pitched the whole way for Elk City, and hit 2-run homer to win game in 20th.

21—Arapaho —?/??/1915 — Elk City 0 unknown opponent 0, Cot Deal's father Roy B. Deal pitched the whole way for Elk City.

24 — Regional Park, Midwest City -7/??/1973 — American Legion — Post 170 Midwest City 2 Post 170 Choctaw 1 in 6:06 — 50 fans, 15 fans at end — finished at 2:06 A.M. in the early morning of 7/??.

Pennsylvania (26)

21—Girard Field, Philadelphia—6/29/1878—Amateur at High School—Yeager 10 Girard College High School Orphans (later Cavaliers) 7 in 4:00.

20-Chester - 7/4/1906 - Fifth Ward Travelers 3 Shinnecock 2.

20— Athletic Park, Monessen — 8/11/1906 — Glassport Athletic Club 5 Monessen East End Athletic Club 4.

20 - Clerks' Field, Bethlehem - 6/11/1907 - NeverWorks 13 Never Sweats 12.

21—Washington — 7/3/1907 — Juniors 7 Imperials 6. 23 — North Corry Fairgrounds, Corry — 7/25/1908 — SemiPro — Falconer (NY) 3 Corry (PA) 1 in 3:50—1000 fans.

24 — Sanatoga (later Tumbling Run) Park, Pottsville — 6/18/1911— Reading Ruth Athletic Club 1 Pottsville Alerts 0 in 4:00.

20—East Berlin—8/5/1911—New Oxford 5 East Berlin 4.

20— Ellsworth Park, Ellsworth — 8/15/1914 — Vandergrift 4 Scottdale Independents 3.

24 — Glendon — 7/3/1916 — Professional at Amateur — Reading Kolbs' Professionals 3 Glendon 3.

20— Exeter — 9/9/1917 — Nanticoke W.S. 2 Exeter Stars 2 in 3:20.

20 — Media — 7/3/1921 — Professional at Amateur — Media Athletic Association (A.A.) 13 Northwest Professionals 12.

20— Parkesburg — 7/30/1921— Cressona Tigers 2 Parkesburg Iron Company Ironmen 1 in 3:45.

20— Knauertown High School Diamond, Knauertown — 6/2/1928 — Tri-County League — Boyertown 9 Warwick Athletic Association 8 in 3:30.

 $20\frac{1}{2}$ — Daisytown — 9/20/1931— Monongahela Valley League playoffs — California Eagles 3 Daisytown Moose 1 in 4:00 — after a long fly ball hit by a California Eagle batter down the left field foul line was ruled by the umpire to be a 2-run homer in the top of the 21st, the Daisytown Moose team vehemently protested the call and then walked off the field — the umpire awarded the game (and the league championship with it) to California 3–1.

21—Standard Field, Connellsville—6/18/1932— Firestones 7 Standard Cardinals 6 in 3:30.

21— Charleroi — 8/6/1933 — Book Shoe 8 Monongahela Speedway Mushers 7 in 2:00.

25 — Connellsville — 7/25/1934 — Vanorsdale Ac 13 Shalala Ac 11.

20— Albemarle Field, York— 7/25/1936— York-Adams League— Albemarle Black Cats 3 New Oxford 2 in 3:35—finished at 6:15 P.M.

20—Swarthmore Grounds, Swarthmore — 9/7/1936 —Lenni 2 Swarthmore Hornets 2 in P.M. game; Swarthmore Hornets 9 Linwood F.C. 8 in A.M. game.

20—Stroudsburg or Mount Vernon, New York— ?/??/1936—Mount Vernon Scarlets vs. Stroudsburg finished at 6:30 P.M.; 2nd game postponed.

21—Ellsworth — 7/4/late 1930's — All-Star Game — pitched by Joe (Foggy) Petro.

21—Brownsville — 8/23/1938 — Melrose 3 West Bend 2 in 5:00.

21— McKeta Field, Van Voorhis — 6/22/1947 — Pigeon Creek League — Bentleyville 4 Van Voorhis 4 in 5:00—finished at 7:00 P.M.

20— Ohiopyle — 7/16/1967 — Fay-West (Fayette County-Westmoreland County) League — Ohiopyle 11 Breakneck 10 in 6:10—finished at 8:10 P.M.

23 — Newtown — 6/3/1973 — Pennsbury/Bucks County Senior Babe Ruth League — Newtown Lions 2 South Bristol Hawks 1 in 5:30 — finished at 7:30 P.M.

Rhode Island (2)

22 – Adelaide Park, Providence – 7/4/1908 – Tim O'neil League – Red Hooks of Providence 5 Olneyville 4 in 3:30 – finished at 2:35 P.M.

29 – Providence – 6/17/1978 – Sunset League – Mooseup Valley 4 Sports Enterprises 2 in 6:45; 2nd game cancelled.

South Carolina (2)

21— Beaumont Mill Field, Spartanburg — 6/15/1912 — Textile League — Beaumont Mill 1 Inman Mill 0.

20—Greenwood — 7/15/1959 — American Legion — Clinton 5 Post 20 Greenwood 3 in 5:45.

South Dakota (5)

20—Canistota—7/25/1908—Emery 1 Canistota 1. 21—Desmet (later De Smet)—6/1/1913—Desmet

(later De Smet) 4 Lake Preston 3. 20—Bridgewater—7/31/1915—Salem 1 Bridge-

20 - Bridgewater = 773171913 - Salem 1 Bridge-water 1.

20—Watertown or Mansfield —?/??/1951—Watertown Lakers 10 Mansfield 9.

22—American Legion Ballfield, Mobridge— 8/4/1987—South Dakota Amateur Association— Mobridge 7 Redfield Merchants (later Pheasants, then Dairy Queen) 6 in 5:47.

Texas (10)

21— Denton — 6/30/1907 — Root Beers 1 Dinkelspeil Sluggers 1.

20— Graham — 7/10/1907 — Gainesville 2 Graham 1. 21— Castroville — 8/11/1907 — Medina Stars 3 Lone Stars 2.

21—Midlothian—8/15/1908—Arkansaw 4 West End 4.

20—Ballinger—6/26/1909—Granbury 3 Ballinger 2 in 2:20, 2nd game postponed.

23 – Bangs – 5/23/1913 – Antioch 1 Live Oak 1.

21— High School Grounds, Dallas — 5/1/1915 — Revico 11 Rounders 10.

25 – Dallas or Wichita Falls – 8/10/1931– City League – Sullivan Grocery 3 unknown opponent 3.

22 — Ozona — 7/11/1933 — West Texas Independent League — Abilene 3 Ozona 3.

20—Pony-Colt Stadium, Galveston — 7/27/1963 — Colt League — Galena Park 6 Beaumont 5 in 5:00.

Virginia (2)

23 — Langley Flying Field, Hampton —?/??/1923 — US Army at US Army Air Force — Fort Monroe Artillerymen 2 Langley Field (later Air Force Base) Birdmen 2.

21—Wakefield High School Field, Arlington— 7/24/1971—Clark Griffith League—Martz Insurance 10 Post #130 9.

Wisconsin (9)

21—Athletic Grounds, Sheboygan — 7/19/1908 — Lakeshore League — Sheboygan Chairmakers 1 Milwaukee White Sox 0 in 3:40—finished at 6:25 P.M.

21—Athletic Grounds, Sheboygan—6/5/1910— Lakeshore League—Sheboygan Chairmakers 2 Port Washington 1—1000 fans—finished at 7:05 P.M.

25 – Green Bay – 4/12/1915 – White Sox 2 Fox Stars 1.

21— Clintonville — 6/15/1939 — Northern State League — Clintonville Four Wheel Drive Truckers 1 Two Rivers Polar Bears 0 in 5:15 — finished at 1:45 A.M. in the early morning of 6/16.

20—Camp McCoy or Whitehall — 5/10/1942 — US Army vs. Amateur — Camp McCoy 5 Whitehall 4.

21– Shullsburg – late 1940's – Blanchardville Farmers defeated Shullsburg in night game.

21— Sturgeon Bay — 5/16/1948 — Northern State League — Sturgeon Bay 3 Menominee Indians 2 in 4:50.

21—Montello—6/30/1957—Central State League— Montello 3 Redgranite Quarriers 2—finished at 7:00 P.M.

21—Fairground Park, Fond du Lac -7/31/1963— Fox River Valley League — Little Chute-Kimberly Papermakers 11 Fond du Lac 5 in 6:01—finished at 2:01 A.M. in the early morning of 8/1.

Scholastic Divisions, Worldwide

Grammar School (3)

28 – Dorchester Franklin Field Diamond #5, Boston, Massachusetts – 6/8/1907 – Boston League Championship Game – Henry L. Pierce Grammar School of Dorchester 4 Bennet Grammar School of Brighton 3 in 5:50 – finished at 3:50 P.M.

20— Dorchester Franklin Field, Boston, Massachusetts — 4/25/1908 — Boston League — Lauriat Grammar School of Dorchester 5 Norfolk Grammar School of Dorchester 4.

20—Central High Stadium, Washington, D.C.— 6/18/1923—District of Columbia Championship Game—Monroe Grammar School vs. Buchanan Grammar School in tie game.

Junior High School (3)

20—Kobe—?/??/1934—Kobe Junior High School League—Akaishi-chuugaku vs. Kobe-ichi-chuugaku.

35 – Matsue Kyujo (Stadium), Matsue – 7/20/1935 and 7/21/1935 – Junior High School League – Oota Chu 2 Matsue Chu (later Matsue Kita Koto-gakko) 1 in 6:58, suspended after 4:48 and 23 innings – another version says 23 – Shimane – Junior High School League –?/??/1935 – Taisha Chugakkou vs. Ota Chugakkou in tie game; replayed next day and Ota defeated Taisha in 12 innings.

30—Tokyo, Japan—8/30/1951—Takefu Junior High School 0 Kohama Junior High School 0 in 5:45—finished at 2:45 P.M.

High School (39)

21— Girard Field, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania— 6/29/1878— Amateur at High School — Yeager 10 Girard College High School 7 in 4:00.

22 – Greenwood, South Carolina – 4/26/1908 – Anderson Boy's High School Yellowjackets 5 Greenwood High School Eagles 4 in 3:45 – finished at 7:15 P.M.

20— School Playgrounds, Lawrenceville, New Jersey — 5/29/1908 — Mid-Atlantic Prep League — Lawrenceville School Big Red 3 Mercersburg Academy Blue Storm 2 in 3:00. 20— Mercer Park on Tattnall Square, Macon, Georgia — 4/15/1911— College at High School — Hall's School 4 Georgia-Alabama Business College 3 in 2:45.

20—Bertram Field, Salem, Massachusetts— 6/10/1914—Salem High School Witches 6 Haverhill High School Hillies 5 in 4:20—finished at 7:40 P.M.

20—Hamlin, Texas—4/28/1924—Anson High School Tigers 2 Hamlin High School Pied Pipers 1.

21— Prepatera Diamond, Fullerton, California — 4/9/1927 — National Collegiate Athletic Association at California High School League — Pomona College Sagehens 4 Fullerton High School Indians 3 in 3:00.

25 — Koshien Kyujo (Stadium), Osaka, Japan — 8/19/1933 — Koshien National High School Tournament Semifinal — Chukyo-shogyo 1 Akashi-chugaku 0 in 4:55 — finished at 6:05 P.M.

25 — Yuanshan Qiuchang (Stadium), Taipei, Taiwan — 7/28/1941— Jiayi Agriculture and Forestry Institute (Jianong) 2 Taipei Industrial School 1 in 5:29.

20 – Recreation (now Rotary) Field, Naugatuck, Connecticut – 6/15/1946 – Naugatuck High School Garnet and Grey (later Greyhounds) 3 Waterbury Leavenworth (later Croft, then Kennedy) High School Engineers 2.

20—Newtown or Bryant, New York — 5/15/1947 — Newtown High School 3 Bryant High School 2.

25 – Japan – 7/??/1948 – Koshien National High School Tournament Regional Qualifier – one high school team defeated another high school team.

24 — Japan — 7/??/1951 — Koshien National High School Tournament Regional Qualifier — Morioka Number One High School vs. Aomori High School, final score 1–0.

20—Bourne Dormitory Field, Pomfret, Connecticut — 5/10/1952 — Pomfret School Mannymen (later Griffins) 4 St. George's School Dragons 3 in 4:55.

21—Japan — 7/??/1952 — Koshien National High School Tournament Regional Qualifier — Tsuru (Otsuki) High School defeated unknown high school.

21— Clemons, Iowa — 5/10/1955 — playoffs — Roland High School Rockets 3 Clemons High School 2 in 4:35.

20-Dallas, Texas -4/17/1957 – Adamson High School Leopards 3 Sunset High School Bison 2; then Hillcrest High School Panthers 3 Thomas Jefferson High School Patriots 2 in 13 innings – 2nd game finished at 11:59 P.M.

25 — Shikoku Kyujo (Stadium), Shikoku, Japan — 4/28/1958 — Takamatsu-shogyo 2 Tokushima-shogyo 0 in 5:47.

20—Hoolulu Park (later Wong Stadium), Hilo, Hawaii — 4/15/1962 — Ka'u High School Trojans 3 St. Joseph High School Cardinals 2 in 4:00.

21– Delano High School Diamond #4 and Delano High School Varsity Field, Delano, California – 3/23/ 1967 – Fresno McLane High School Highlanders 3 Fresno High School Warriors 2 in 6:15, diamond switch delay from Diamond #4 to Varsity Field 0:15 top 8th –finished at 10:30 P.M.

25 — Honolulu Stadium (later Termite Palace), Hon-

olulu, Hawaii — 3/25/1967 — Kamehameha High School Warriors 9 McKinley High School Tigers 7 in 6:12.

21—Knowles Field, Martinez, California— 5/9/1968—Alhambra High School Bulldogs 4 San Ramon Valley High School Wolves 3 in 6:00—finished at 9:30 P.M.

21—Field Park, Mukwonago, Wisconsin— 5/15/1969—Mukwonago High School Indians 5 Burlington High School Demons 4 in 5:00—65 fans—finished at 9:30 P.M.

24 -Flamingo Park, Miami Beach, Florida - 4/23/1970 - Miami High School Stingarees 1 Hialeah High School Thoroughbreds 0 in 5:16, then Miami Coral Park High School Rams 9 Miami High School 0 in 2:44 and 7 innings - 250 fans; 500 fans at end of 1st game -1st game finished at 8:16 P.M.; 2nd game finished at 11:44 P.M.

22—Shively Field, Lexington, Kentucky— 6/3/1970—Madisonville High School Maroons 12 Lexington Lafayette High School Generals 11 in 6:03.

27 -Ube City Kyujo (Stadium), Ube City, Japan - 5/13/1973 and 5/14/1973 -Matsue Sho 2 Shimonoseki Sho 0, suspended after 18 innings.

21- Mt. Olive, Illinois -5/23/1973 – Staunton High School Bulldogs 0 Mt. Olive High School Wildcats 0 in 4:05, scheduled to resume 5/29 but instead they decided to play a new game – finished at 8:05 P.M.

20—Olympians Field, Olympia Fields, Illinois— ?/??/1975—Homewood-Flossmoor High School Vikings vs. Olympia Fields Rich Central High School Olympians in 4:00—finished at 8:00 P.M.

25 — Farmers Field, Hayward and Rebels Field, San Lorenzo, California — 4/9/1975 and 5/2/1975 — Hayward High School Farmers 2 San Lorenzo High School Rebels 1, suspended after 17 innings in Hayward, completed in San Lorenzo —15 fans at San Lorenzo; then Hayward 5 San Lorenzo 4 in 7 innings.

20—Moss Field, Meridian, Mississippi — 3/9/1979 — Meridian High School Wildcats 4 Corinth High School Warriors 3 in 3:30—250 fans —finished at 5:30 P.M.

21—Hickey Park, Russellville, Arkansas— 5/14/1980—Hazen High School Hornets 8 Tuckerman High School Bulldogs 7.

20—Mayo Field, Rochester, Minnesota— 5/10/1986 and 5/20/1986—Rochester Mayo High School Spartans 3 Mankato East High School Cougars 2 in 6:15, rain delay 1:30 bottom 10th, suspended after 3:00 and 9½ innings, then Rochester Mayo 11 Mankato East 10 in 2:30 and 7 innings—125 fans on 5/10—suspended at 3:30 P.M. on 5/10, 1st game finished at 8:15 P.M. on 5/20; 2nd game finished at 11:00 P.M. on 5/20.

23 – Legion Field, Downers Grove, Illinois – 4/28/1995 and 5/3/1995 and 5/8/1995 and 5/12/ 1995 – Downers Grove North High School Trojans 12 Elmhurst York High School Dukes 11 in 7:00, suspended after 3:00 and 8 innings, suspended a 2nd time after 6:00 and 20 innings – 75 fans on 4/28, 75 fans on 5/3, 250 fans on 5/12 – suspended at 7:15 P.M. at 4/28, suspended 2nd time at 7:15 P.M. on 5/3, rained out on 5/8, finished at 5:15 P.M. on 5/12.

21—Blue Valley District Activity Center, Overland Park, Kansas—5/20/1997—Blue Valley Northwest High School Huskies 1 Shawnee Mission North High School Mustangs 0 in 5:50—finished at 10:50 P.M.

20— Kyoto or Kobe, Japan —?/??/1997 — Kinki District High School League — Kyoto Heian-koukou 8 Kobe Ikuei-koukou 7.

21—Rotary Field, Brunswick, Ohio — 5/9/2001 and 5/10/2001—Brunswick High School Blue Devils 11 Elyria High School Pioneers 10, suspended after 18 innings —100 fans.

24 — Rebels Field, Norridge, Illinois — 4/23/2004 and 5/25/2004 — Evergreen Park High School Mustangs 2 Ridgewood High School Rebels 1 in 4:40, suspended after 2:00 and 12 innings — 40 fans on 4/23; 80 fans on 5/25 — suspended at 6:15 P.M. on 4/23; finished at 6:55 P.M. on 5/25.

20—Nash Park, Kenosha, Wisconsin — 4/24/2007 — Kenosha Tremper High School Trojans 3 Racine Horlick High School Rebels 2 in 5:05 — 65 fans; 20 fans at end —finished at 9:35 P.M.

20–Yanez Field, Downey, California – 5/13/ 2008–California Interscholastic Federation (CIF) Southern Section Division III Playoffs Wildcard Round – Downey High School Vikings 3 Harvard-Westlake Upper School Wolverines 2 in 7:20–200 fans including Tommy Lasorda; 125 fans at end – finished at 10:35 P.M.

College

Inter-Collegiate Association (3)

24 — South End Grounds (I), Boston, Massachusetts — 5/11/1877 — International Association at Inter-Collegiate Association — Manchester Professionals 0 Harvard College Crimson 0 in 3:30.

20— Mercer Park on Tattnall Square, Macon, Georgia — 4/15/1911— College at High School — Hall's School 4 Georgia-Alabama Business College 3 in 2:45.

20—Norman, Oklahoma—4/25/1912—Oklahoma A&M College (later University) Aggies (later Tigers, then Cowboys) 1 University of Oklahoma Sooners 1 in 3:00.

National Assn of Intercollegiate Athletics (NAIA) (7)

20—Ogden Field, Chicago, Illinois—8/12/1944— George Williams YMCA College Collegians 6 Illinois Institute of Technology TechHawks (later Scarlet Hawks) 6.

22—Reddie (later Berry) Field, Arkadelphia, Arkansas—4/28/1970—Henderson State College (later University) Reddies 3 Harding College (later University) Bisons 2.

20—Thunderbird Park, Cedar City, Utah—5/2/ 1981—Mesa State College Mavericks 9 New Mexico Highlands Univ. Cowboys 8 in 5:20, then Southern Utah State College Thunderbirds 5 Mesa State 4. 21—J.C. Love Field, Ruston, Louisiana— 2/16/1985—NAIA at NCAA—Louisiana Tech University Bulldogs 2 Southern Arkansas University Muleriders 1 in 4:54—150 fans; 75 fans at end—finished at 6:24 P.M.

20— Keehi Lagoon Park, Honolulu, Hawaii — 4/13/ 1990— Hawaii Pacific College (later University) Sea Warriors 5 College of Idaho (later Albertson College) Coyotes 4 in 2nd game, Hawaii Pacific 3 Idaho 0 in 7 innings in 1st game.

21—Heart of Florida Medical Regional Center Field, Babson Park, Florida—2/19/1999 and 2/20/1999—Nova Southeastern University Knights 9 Webber College (now Webber International University) Warriors 5 in 6:00, suspended after 3:43 and 13 innings—50 fans—suspended at 6:28 P.M., finished at 1:17 P.M.

22 – Wilson Field, Georgetown, Kentucky – 4/29/ 2005 – Lambuth University Eagles 8 Pikeville College Bears 5 in 6:15 – 200 fans, 150 fans at end – finished at 4:45 P.M.

National Collegiate Athletic Assn (NCAA) (20)

20—Andrews Field, Providence, Rhode Island — 6/7/1924 — Providence College Friars 1 Brown University Bears 0 in 4:05.

21— Prepatera Diamond, Fullerton, California — 4/9/1927 — NCAA at California High School League — Pomona College Sagehens 4 Fullerton High School Indians 3 in 3:00.

21—Miami Athletic Field, Oxford, Ohio— 5/30/1930—Miami University Big Reds (later Redskins, then RedHawks) 2 University of Cincinnati Bearcats 1 in 3:30.

20—Cartier Field, South Bend, Indiana— 7/14/1945—United States Army Air Force at NCAA—Notre Dame University Fighting Irish 1 Indianapolis Stout Army Air Field Airmen 0.

20—Ritchie Route One Ballfield, College Park, Maryland — 4/2/1948 — Dartmouth College Big Green 10 University of Maryland Terrapins 10 in 3:25—finished at 7:25 P.M.

22 — Kentucky Wesleyan Field (now Panther Park), Owensboro, Kentucky — 4/20/1964 — Kentucky Wesleyan College Panthers 8 Oakland City College Mighty Oaks 7 in 6:30, 2nd game postponed — 200 fans finished at 11:30 P.M.

23 – Clark Field, Lafayette, Louisiana – 3/27/1971 – University of Southwestern Louisiana (now University of Louisiana-Lafayette) Ragin' Cajuns 6 McNeese State University Cowboys 5 in 5:03, then McNeese State 13 Southwestern Louisiana 10 in 2:30 and 7 innings –1st game finished at 6:33 P.M., 2nd game finished at 10:03 P.M.

20—Perry Field (later McKethan Stadium at Perry Field), Gainesville, Florida — 4/22/1972 — Auburn University Tigers 7 University of Florida Gators 6 in 4:35 - 350 fans. 20—Coleman Field (now Goss Stadium at Coleman Field), Corvallis, Oregon — 5/6/1972 — University of Washington Huskies 2 Oregon State University Beavers 1 in 4:38, then Oregon State 7 Washington 1 in 1:45 in 7 innings — 250 fans.

20— University Field, Amherst, Massachusetts — 5/13/1972 — University of Connecticut Huskies 9 University of Massachusetts Minutemen 3 in 5:10.

20—Blair Field, Long Beach, California— 3/30/1973—California State University at San Jose Spartans 1 California State University at Long Beach 49ers (later Dirt Bags) 1 in 3:35—225 fans.

22 — Husker Diamond (later Buck Belzer Field), Lincoln, Nebraska — 4/26/1974 — University of Colorado Buffaloes 2 University of Nebraska Cornhuskers 1 in 4:45.

20—Fairfax City, Virginia—4/8/1977—Brockport State College (later State University of New York— Brockport) Golden Eagles 2 George Mason University Patriots 2 in 5:30, umpires Warner and Madeiros walked off the field at the end because they were too cold (it was 40 degrees), without even telling the coaches, who might have told them umpires did not walk off the field due to cold weather during baseball games played 3/25/1960 at the North Pole and 1/1/1997 at McMurdo Sound in Antarctica—0 fans at end in stands, but 50 fans at end in cars with heaters on finished at 8:50 P.M.

20- Disch-Falk Field, Austin, Texas - 5/15/1981 and 5/16/1981- University of Texas Longhorns 7 Rice University Owls 6 in 6:07, rain delay 2:00 top 13th, suspended after 3:10 and 12 innings - 4700 fans on 5/15, 300 fans at suspension, 3000 fans on 5/16- suspended at 1:15 A.M. in the early morning of 5/16, finished at 3:02 P.M. on 5/16.

21—J.C. Love Field, Ruston, Louisiana— 2/16/1985—NAIA at NCAA—Louisiana Tech University Bulldogs 2 Southern Arkansas University Muleriders 1 in 4:54—150 fans; 75 fans—finished at 6:24 P.M.

22 — Cougar Field, Houston, Texas — 2/21/1999 — Baylor University Bears 8 University of Houston Cougars 2 in 6:43 — 1225 fans — finished at 10:48 P.M.

21—Carson Center Field, Evansville, Indiana— 3/7/1999—University of Memphis Tigers 4 University of Evansville Purple Aces 4 in 5:00—205 fans, 75 fans at end—finished at 4:00 P.M.

20— Frank Myers Field at Tointon Family Stadium, Manhattan, Kansas—4/9/2004— University of Texas Longhorns 10 Kansas State University Wildcats 6 in 6:28-874 fans—finished at 1:35 A.M. in the early morning of 4/10.

20— Hooks Stadium, Winston-Salem, North Carolina — 5/6/2006 — Florida State University Seminoles 4 Wake Forest University Demon Deacons 3 in 5:02 — 1711 fans; 850 fans at end —finished at 6:05 P.M.

20—Sancet Stadium, Tucson, Arizona— 1/27/2007—University of Arizona Wildcats intrasquad game—Team A vs. Team B.

National Junior Collegiate Athletic Assn (NJCAA) (1)

32 — Robert C. Wynn Field, Bradenton, Florida — 4/4/1987 — Hillsborough Community College Hawks 6 Manatee Community College Lancers 4 in 7:30— 200 fans, 45 fans at end —finished at 9:30 P.M.

Japanese University League (4)

20—Meiji Jingu Kyujo (Stadium), Tokyo— 6/24/1970—All-University League Semifinal—Kansai University 3 Hosei University 2 in 4:54.

22 — Ojiyama Kyujo (Stadium), Otsu — 5/4/1993 — Kansai Gakusei (Osaka University) League — Kwansei Gakuin (University) 3 Ritsumeikan University 2 in 4:45.

23 — Fukuoka Dome, Fukuoka — 10/26/2002 — Kyushu College League Semifinal — Nihon Bunri University 2 Kyushu Kyoritsu (Community College) 1 in 6:00.

20— Nishi-Kyogoku Kyujo (Stadium), Kyoto — 10/22/2006 — Kansai University League — Doshisha University 2 Ritsumeikan University 1 in 4:59 — 2000 fans — finished at 8:20 P.M.

Longest Games, by Country

Australia (4)

22 — North Balwyn, State of Victoria —?/??/1963 — Amateur — North Balwyn Third Nine vs. Ormond.

22 — Parry Field, Belmont, State of Western Australia — 3/17/1989 — Western Australia Grand Final Series — Melville Braves 6 Morley Eagles 2 in 5:35 — 1500 fans — finished at 12:50 A.M. in the early morning of 3/18.

20—Oakes Oval, Lismore, State of New South Wales—12/31/1994—AAA Asian Under 19 Series— Australia 9 Chinese Taipei 8 in 6:17, 2nd game postponed—300 fans, 300 fans at end—finished at 9:47 P.M.

22 — Blacktown Olympic Park, Sydney, State of New South Wales — 4/19/2003 — New South Wales Under-23 Tournament — Queensland 4 New South Wales/Victoria/Capital Territory Combined Academy 3 in 5:33 — 120 fans, 200 fans at end — finished at 8:33 P.M.

Brazil (1)

20—Bom Retiro (Good Place to Rest) Stadium, Sao Paulo—9/7/1971—National Championships— Sul-Brasil 6 Presidente Venceslau 5 in 6:00—2000 fans—finished at 5 P.M.

Canada (17)

22—Recreation Field, Vancouver, Province of British Columbia—7/31/1909—Northwestern League—Portland Colts 3 Vancouver Beavers 0.

22 — Birch Hills, Province of Saskatchewan — 8/2/1919 — Northern Saskatchewan League — Melfort 1 Birch Hills 1.

20-Hamilton Athletic Association (H.A.A.)

Grounds, Hamilton, Province of Ontario – 6/14/1920 – Michigan-Ontario League – London Cockneys (later Tecumsehs) 5 Hamilton Tigers 4.

20— Hanlan's Point (III), Toronto, Province of Ontario — 6/2/1921— International League — Buffalo Bisons 3 Toronto Maple Leafs 2 in 4:05.

20 — Municipal Stadium, Trois-Rivieres, Province of Quebec, Canada — 7/5/1938 — Provincial League — Three Rivers 4 Quebec City Athletiques 3 in 4:45 finished at 2:15 A.M. in the early morning of 7/6.

20—Thetford Mines, Province of Quebec— 9/7/1947—Quebec Eastern Townships Independent Intermediate League playoffs—Drummondville Forestiers Catholiques (Catholic Foresters) 3 St-Maurice de Thetford Mines Mineurs (Miners) 3 in 4:50 finished at 7:20 P.M.

21—Waterloo, Province of Ontario — 9/25/1950— Ontario Senior Inter-County League — Waterloo Tigers 7 Brantford Red Sox 6.

23 — Royal Athletic Park, Victoria, Province of British Columbia — 5/5/1951— Western International League — Salem Senators 1 Victoria Athletics 0 in 4:36 in afternoon game, then Salem 3 Victoria 1 in 2:01 in evening game — 1200 fans for afternoon game; 2800 fans for evening game — afternoon game finished at 7:06 P.M.

20—Civic Center, Drummondville, Province of Quebec—7/8/1952 and 8/12/1952—Provincial League—Three Rivers Yankees 3 Drummondville Cubs 2, suspended after 19 innings.

20—Lloydminster, Province of Saskatchewan— 6/18/1957 and 7/28/1957—Western Canada League— Lloydminster Meridians 4 North Battleford Beavers 3, suspended after 9 innings.

20— Henderson Stadium (I), Lethbridge, Province of Alberta—7/25/1964— Western Canada League— Saskatoon Blues 6 Lethbridge Cardinals 5 in 5:25— 150 fans.

26 — Belleville, Province of Ontario — 6/7/1975 — Ontario League — St. Catherine's Jackets 8 Belleville 2; 2nd game postponed — finished at 12:00 Midnight.

21—Stade Olympique (Olympic Stadium), Montreal, Province of Quebec — 5/21/1977 — National League — Padres 11 Expos 8 in 5:33—16,892 fans, 8000 fans at end —finished at 1:15 A.M. in the early morning of 5/22.

21—Foothills Stadium, Calgary, Province of Alberta—6/4/1977—Southern Alberta Junior League— Calgary Spikes 4 Medicine Hat Tigers 3.

22 — Parc (Park) Victor Gadbois, Montreal, Province of Quebec — 8/30/1981— Ligue Montreal Junior (Montreal Junior League) — St. Leonard Cougars 2 Sud-Ouest (Southwest) 1 in 5:30—finished at 7:30 P.M.

22 — Stade Olympique (Olympic Stadium), Montreal, Province of Quebec — 8/23/1989 — National League — Dodgers 1 Expos 0 in 6:14 — 21,742 fans finished at 1:25 A.M. in the early morning of 8/24.

20—Jubilee Field, Yorkton, Province of Saskatchewan—6/19/2008 and 6/22/2008—Western Major League—Sherwood Park Dukes 5 Yorkton Cardinals 3 in 5:16, rain delay 0:20 top 12th, suspended after 3:13 and 11 innings – 475 fans on 6/19; 225 fans when suspended; 316 fans on 6/22 – suspended at 10:38 P.M.; finished at 4:08 P.M.

Colombia (1)

21— Estadio (Stadium) 11 de Noviembre (November 11th), Cartagena —1/13/1957 — Winter League — Indios 4 Kola Roman 3, Willard 7 Vanytor 4 in 1st game.

Cuba (9)

20— unknown city — 5/9/1915 — Amateur National League — Progressos 8 Athletics 7.

20—Estadio (Stadium) Gran Cerveceria Tropical, Havana—12/2/1943—Cuban League—Cienfuegos Elefantes (Elephants) 6 Marianao Frailes Grises (Gray Friars) 5 in 4:25.

20—Estadio (Stadium) Augusto Cesar Sandino, Santa Clara or Estadio (Stadium) Guillermon Moncada, Santiago—12/28/1965—Serie Nacional—Centrales vs. Orientales.

20—Estadio (Stadium) Augusto Cesar Sandino, Santa Clara or Camaguey—1/21/1973—Serie Nacional—Azucareros (Sugar Workers) vs. Camaguey.

23 – Camaguey –1/4/1975 – Serie Nacional – Camaguey Granjeros (Grain Workers) vs. Camaguey Ganaderos (Cattle Raisers), suspended.

22 — Pinar del Rio or Santiago —1/25/1977 — Serie Nacional — Vegueros vs. Santiago Mineros (Miners).

20—Estadio (Stadium) Augusto Cesar Sandino, Santa Clara or Estadio Guillermon Moncada, Santiago— 3/21/1984 — Serie Selectiva — Las Villas vs. Orientales.

20— Estadio (Stadium) Victoria de Giron, Matanzas or Estadio Latinoamericano, Havana—11/23/1986— Serie Nacional— Henequeneros vs. Industriales.

24 — Matanzas or Estadio (Stadium) Nelson Fernandez, San Jose de Las Lajas —12/8/1993 and 12/9/1993 — Serie Nacional — Matanzas vs. Habana, suspended.

Dominican (2)

22—Estadio (Stadium) Quisqueya, Santo Domingo—1/12/1981—Winter League—Orientales Estrellas (Oriental Stars) 4 Licey Tigres (Tigers) 3 in 5:40—finished at 3:30 A.M. in the early morning of 1/13.

20—Estadio (Stadium) Tetelo Vargas, San Pedro de Marcoris—10/19/2002—Winter League—Orientales Estrellas (Oriental Stars) 4 Escogido Leones Rojos (Red Lions) 3 in 6:41—finished at 3:17 A.M. in the early morning of 10/20.

France (1)

20—Base Section One U.S. Army Base, Giverny, France — sometime in 1918 or 1919 before 6/18/1919 — U.S. Army Base Section One League — Camp Number Four Base Section 6 Camp Dodge 5.

Germany (1)

20— Reiterstadion (later Circle Wood Stadium), Koln (Cologne)— 4/6/2005 — Bundesliga Nord (North German League)— Bonn Capitals 9 Koln (Cologne) Cardinals 7 in 5:50; then Bonn 4 Cologne 0 in 2:05 and 7 innings, rain delay 0:13 – 600 fans; 500 fans at end of 1st game; 250 fans at end of 2nd game —1st game finished at 6:50 P.M.; 2nd game finished at 9:38 P.M.

Guam (1)

21— Third Marine Division (later Trimble) Field, Guam — 5/6/1945 — 41st US Navy Construction Battalion Seabees 2 US Navy Air Base 1—1000 fans.

Japan (25)

25 – Koshien Kyujo (Stadium), Osaka – 8/19/1933 – Koshien National High School Tournament Semifinal – Chukyo-shogyo 1 Akashi-chugaku 0 in 4:55 – finished at 6:05 P.M.

20—Kobe—?/??/1934—Kobe Junior High School League—Akaishi-chuugaku vs. Kobe-ichi-chuugaku.

35 — Matsue Kyujo (Stadium), Matsue — 7/20/1935 and 7/21/1935 — Junior High School League — Oota Chu 2 Matsue Chu (later Matsue Kita Koto-gakko) 1 in 6:58, suspended after 4:48 and 23 innings — another version says 23 — Shimane — Junior High School League —?/??/1935 — Taisha Chugakkou vs. Ota Chugakkou in tie game; replayed next day and Ota defeated Taisha in 12 innings.

20—Nishinomiya Kyujo (Stadium), Nishinomiya—7/13/1941—Japanese Federation—Taiyo 1 Hanshin 0 in 2:43.

28 — Korakuen Kyujo (Stadium), Tokyo — 5/24/1942 — Japanese Federation — Taiyo 4 Nagoya 4 in 3:47 — finished at 6:27 P.M.

25 — unknown — 7/??/1948 — Koshien National High School Tournament Regional Qualifier — one high school team defeated another high school team.

24 — unknown — 7/??/1951 — Koshien National High School Tournament Regional Qualifier — Morioka Number One High School vs. Aomori High School, final score 1–0.

30—Tokyo—8/30/1951—Junior High School League—Takefu Junior High School 0 Kohama Junior High School 0 in 5:45—finished at 2:45 P.M.

28 — Tokyo Kyujo (Stadium), Tokyo — 9/8/1951— Industrial League — Marubeni Trading Company 2 Kajima Coal Company 1.

21— Nishinomiya Kyujo (Stadium), Nishinomiya — 7/3/1952 — Central League vs. Pacific League — Cen-

tral League All-Stars 2 Pacific League All-Stars 2 in 4:30. 21— unknown — 7/??/1952 — Koshien National High School Tournament Regional Qualifier — Tsuru

(Otsuki) High School defeated unknown high school. 20—Nishi-Kyogoku Kyujo (Stadium), Kyoto — 9/7/

1952 – Central League – Shochiku 2 Taiyo 1 in 3:13. 22 – Korakuen Kyujo (Stadium), Tokyo – 6/25/

1953 — Pacific League — Daiei Stars 4 Kintetsu 4 in 4:33. 20 — Korakuen Kyujo (Stadium), Tokyo — 8/9/1953 — Pacific League — Kintetsu 5 Toei 4 in 4:46.

23 — Osaka Kyujo (Stadium), Osaka —10/10/1954 — Pacific League — Kintetsu 1 Toei 0 in 4:30.

25 - Shikoku Kyujo (Stadium), Shikoku -

4/28/1958 — High School League — Takamatsushogyo 2 Tokushima-shogyo 0 in 5:47.

29 — Nishi-Kyogoku Kyujo (Stadium), Kyoto — 5/2/1959 — National Municipal League Championships — Nippon Shinyaku (New Pharmaceuticals) Company 2 Kurashiki Reiyon (Rayon) Company (later Kuraray Company) 1 in 6:14.

22 — Korakuen Kyujo (Stadium), Tokyo — 7/29/1962 — Tokyo Industrial League — Nippon Beer Company 1 Denden Kinki Company 0 in 5:27.

20— Meiji Jingu Kyujo (Štadium), Tokyo— 6/24/1970— All-University League Semifinal — Kansai University 3 Hosei University 2 in 4:54.

27—Ube City Kyujo (Stadium), Ube City— 5/13/1973 and 5/14/1973—High School League— Matsue Sho 2 Shimonoseki Sho 0, suspended after 18 innings.

45 — Ibaraki-Mito Kenei (Prefectural) Kyujo (Stadium), Mito — 9/20/1983 — Amateur Industrial Emperor's Cup Nan-shiki Tournament — Tokyo Raito (Light) Kogyo (Manufacturing Company) 2 Miyazaki Tanaka Byouin (Hospital) 1 in 8:19, umpire snack break delay 0:06 top 26th, players refused 0:30 break top 26th —100 fans at end —finished at 5:15 P.M.

22—Ojiyama Kyujo (Stadium), Otsu— 5/4/1993—Kansai Gakusei (Osaka University) League—Kwansei Gakuin (University) 3 Ritsumeikan University 2 in 4:45.

20— Kyoto or Kobe—?/??/1997— Kinki District High School League— Kyoto Heian-koukou 8 Kobe Ikuei-koukou 7.

23 — Fukuoka Dome, Fukuoka — 10/26/2002 — Kyushu College League Semifinal — Nihon Bunri University 2 Kyushu Kyoritsu (Community College) 1 in 6:00.

20— Nishi-Kyogoku Kyujo (Stadium), Kyoto — 10/22/2006 — Kansai University League — Doshisha University 2 Ritsumeikan University 1 in 4:59 — 2000 fans — finished at 8:20 P.M.

Mexico (17)

20—Empalme or Santa Ana, State of Sonora— 5/18/1947—Liga (League) de Sonora—Empalme Rieleros (Railroadmen) 2 Santa Ana Santos (Saints) 1 in 4:13—854 fans.

27 — Estadio (Stadium) Domingo Santana, Leon, State of Guanajuato — 7/17/1960 — Mexican Center League — Aguascalientes Tigres (Tigers) 5 Leon Diablos Rojos (Red Devils) 4.

21—Estadio (Stadium) Angel Flores, Culiacan, State of Sinaloa—10/22/1967—Mexican Pacific League— Obregon Yaquis 3 Culiacan Tomateros (Tomato Growers) 1 in 6:22—5000 fans—finished at 11:22 P.M.

22 — Parque Deportivo del Seguro Social (Social Security Stadium), Mexico City, Distrito Federal (Federal District) — 7/14/1969 — Mexican League — Reynosa Broncos 5 Mexico City Diablos Rojos (Red Devils) 3 in 5:38 — 3895 fans — finished at 1:08 A.M. in the early morning of 7/15. 20—Estadio (Stadium) Torreon, Torreon, State of Coahuila—5/8/1973—Mexican League—Cordoba Cafeteros (Coffee Growers) 2 Torreon Mineros (Miners) 1.

20— Estadio (Stadium) Cordoba, Cordoba, State of Veracruz — 5/16/1973 — Mexican League — Cordoba Cafeteros (Coffee Growers) 2 Gomez Palacio 1.

23 — Estadio (Stadium) Alberto Hoeffer, Nogales, State of Sonora — 7/29/1973 — Liga (League) Norte de Sonora — Cananea Mineros (Miners) 4 Nogales Internacionales (Internationals) 2 in 6:23 —1800 fans finished at 1:53 A.M. in the early morning of 7/30.

22 — Estadio (Stadium) Teodoro Mariscal, Mazatlan, State of Sinaloa — 10/26/1973 — Mexican Pacific League — Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2 Guasave Algodoneros (Cotton Pickers) 1 in 7:02 — finished at 2:32 A.M. in the early morning of 10/27.

23 — Estadio (Stadium) Cordoba, Cordoba, State of Veracruz — 4/28/1977 — Mexican League — Aguas-calientes Rieleros (Railroadmen) 6 Cordoba Cafeteros (Coffee Growers) 2 in 6:30 — 4000 fans, 800 fans at end — finished at 3:00 A.M. in the early morning of 4/29.

20—Estadio (Stadium) Manuel "Ciclon" Echeverria, Navojoa, State of Sonora—1/2/1979—Mexican Pacific League—Navojoa Mayos 1 Mexicali Aguilas (Eagles) 0 in 5:20 in 2nd game, Mexicali vs. Navojoa in 1st game.

20—Estadio (Stadium) Jesus Carranza, Guasave, State of Sinaloa—11/11/1980—Mexican Pacific League—Mexicali Aguilas (Eagles) 3 Guasave Algodoneros (Cotton Pickers) 1.

21—Estadio (Stadium) Emilio Ibarra, Los Mochis, State of Sinaloa—11/26/1988—Mexican Pacific League—Los Mochis Caneros (Sugar Cane Growers) 4 Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2 in 7:14—finished at 2:44 A.M. in the early morning of 11/27.

20—Estadio (Stadium) Angel Flores, Culiacan, State of Sinaloa—10/27/1995—Mexican Pacific League—Culiacan Tomateros (Tomato Growers) 3 Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2 in 6:01—finished at 1:31 A.M. in the early morning of 10/28.

22 — Estadio (Stadium) Teodoro Mariscal, Mazatlan, State of Sinaloa — 10/19/1997 — Mexican Pacific League — Culiacan Tomateros (Tomato Growers) 5 Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2 in 6:55 — finished at 2:25 A.M. in the early morning of 10/20.

23 — Estadio (Stadium) Veracruz, Veracruz, State of Veracruz — 6/30/2001— Mexican League — Mexico City Diablos Rojos (Red Devils) 2 Veracruz Aguila (Eagle) 1.

20—Estadio (Stadium) Jesus Caranza Limon, Guasave, State of Sinaloa—12/9/2004—Mexican Pacific League—Guasave Algodoneros (Cotton Pickers) 3 Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2.

21— Estadio (Stadium) Jose Garcia Mendoza, Ojinaga, State of Chihuahua — 8/13/2006 — Amateur — Madera Venados (Deer) 11 Ojinaga Soles (Suns) 9 in 7:55 — finished at 6:58 P.M.

Nicaragua (4)

27 - Managua - late 1940's - Second Division

Amateur League – Manta Nica defeated Schumann in 6:13.

26 — Estadio (Stadium) Nacional (later Estadio Dennis Martinez), Managua — 7/10/1949 — First Division Amateur League — Navarro Cubs 4 Escuelas Internacionales 3 in 6:30—finished at 4:30 P.M.

20—Corinto or Leon—5/17/1981—First Division—Corinto 5 Leon 4.

23 — Leon or Rivas — 12/18/1983 — First Division — Leon 5 Rivas 4.

Puerto Rico (5)

21—Estadio (Stadium) Hiram Bithorn, San Juan— 12/26/1975 — Winter League — Santurce Cangrejeros (Crabbers) 5 Bayamon Vaqueros (Cowboys) 2 in 4:00 finished at 2:00 A.M. in the early morning of 12/27.

23 — Parque (Park) Yldefonso Sola Morales, Caguas — 1/8/1989 and 1/9/1989 — Winter League — Mayaguez Indios (Indians) 4 Caguas Criollos (Natives) 3, suspended.

25—Parque (Park) Yldefonso Sola Morales, Caguas—11/23/1994 and 12/10/1994—Winter League—Mayaguez Indios (Indians) 4 Caguas Criollos (Natives) 3, suspended after 16 innings.

21—Estadio (Stadium) Isidoro "Cholo" Garcia, Mayaguez—12/22/1995 and 12/23/1995 and 1/19/1996—Winter League—Mayaguez Indios (Indians) 2 San Juan Senadores (Senators) 1 in 6:22, suspended, suspended a second time.

22—Estadio (Stadium) Roberto Clemente, Carolina—11/4/2001—Winter League—Carolina Gigantes (Giants) 2 Caguas Criollos (Natives) 1 in 6:30 finished at 12:30 A.M.

Taiwan (3)

25—Yuanshan Qiuchang (Stadium), Taipei— 7/28/1941—Taiwan High School League—Jiayi Agriculture and Forestry Institute (Jianong) 2 Taipei Industrial School 1 in 5:29.

21— Municipal Qiuchang (Stadium), Taipei—9/15/ 1979— Taiwan University League— Weichuan Foods/ Chinese Culture University 1 Putaowang (Grape King) Biotechnology/Fu Jen Catholic University 0 in 6:06 finished at 10:11 P.M.

20—Oaks Oval, Lismore, State of New South Wales, Australia—12/31/1994—AAA Asian Under 19 Series—Australia 9 Chinese Taipei 8 in 6:17, 2nd game postponed—300 fans, 300 fans at end—finished at 9:47 P.M.

Venezuela (1)

20—Estadio (Stadium) de Maracaibo, Maracaibo—6/5/1938—Venezuelan League—Pastora 1 Gavilanes 0 in 6:30.

Minor League Games, by League

American Association (7)

20— Nicollet Park, Minneapolis, Minnesota — 6/9/ 1914 — Minneapolis Millers 3 Louisville Colonels 2 in 3:31—1500 fans. 20—Swayne Field, Toledo, Ohio -7/11/1942 — Louisville Colonels 6 Toledo Mud Hens 6 in 4:25 finished at 1:00 A.M. in the early morning of 7/12.

20— Redbird (later Jets, then Franklin County, then Cooper) Stadium, Columbus, Ohio — 9/3/1949 — Columbus Redbirds 4 Louisville Colonels 3 in 3:58 — 5079 fans — finished at 11:28 P.M.

20—Watt Powell Park, Charleston, West Virginia—7/21/1957—Wichita Braves 8 Charleston Senators 6 in 4:10 in 2nd game, Charleston 6 Wichita 5 in 1:47 and 7 innings in 1st game—1943 fans—finished at 12:27 A.M. in the early morning of 7/22.

23 - All-Sports Stadium, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma - 5/28/1970 and 5/29/1970 - Indianapolis Indians 10 Oklahoma City 89'ers 7 in 6:37, suspended after 4:53 and 17 innings - 3118 fans on 5/28, 2836 fans on 5/29 - suspended at 12:53 A.M. in the early morning of 5/29.

20— Owen Bush Stadium, Indianapolis, Indiana — 8/17/1986 — Buffalo Bisons 6 Indianapolis Indians 5 in 5:35 — 1507 fans — finished at 12:05 A.M. in the early morning of 8/18.

20—Greer Stadium, Nashville, Tennessee— 9/7/1990—playoffs—Omaha Royals 8 Nashville Sounds 7 in 6:25, rain delay 1:46 bottom 11th—14,482 fans, 500 fans top 12th, 300 fans at end—finished at 3:50 A.M. in the early morning of 9/8.

Appalachian League (1)

27 — Burlington Athletic Stadium, Burlington, North Carolina — 6/24/1988 — Bluefield Orioles 3 Burlington Indians 2 in 8:15 — 2204 fans, 84 fans at end — finished at 3:27 A.M. in the early morning of 6/25.

Basin League (1)

24 — Sioux Falls Stadium (later Howard Wood Field), Sioux Falls, South Dakota — 8/3/1965 — Pierre Cowboys 5 Sioux Falls Packers 3 in 6:15 — 421 fans finished at 1:45 A.M. in the early morning of 8/4.

Big State League (2)

20—Spudder Park, Wichita Falls, Texas— 7/13/1950—Wichita Falls Spudders 2 Sherman-Denison Twins 1.

20—East Texan Park, Tyler, Texas -7/15/1952 — Texarkana Bears 3 Tyler East Texans 2 in 4:21–1163 fans, 500 fans at end —finished at 12:26 A.M. in the early morning of 7/16.

California League (6)

20— Municipal Stadium, San Jose, California—8/7/ 1949— Ventura Yankees 4 San Jose Red Sox 4 in 4:20.

23 — Lawrence Hardball Park, Lodi, California — 8/31/1966 — Reno Silver Sox 6 Lodi Crushers 5 in 6:00 — 502 fans, 20 fans at end —finished at 2:00 A.M. in the early morning of 9/1.

22 – Recreation Park, Visalia, California – 6/19/1971 and 6/20/1971 – Visalia Mets 11 Bakersfield Dodgers 9 in 7:00, suspended after 4:50 and 15 innings, called a tie, however league president later reversed tie game ruling and ordered game to be continued — 867 fans on 6/19, 449 fans on 6/20— suspended at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 6/20.

21— Riverside Sports Complex, Riverside, California — 5/22/1988 — San Jose Giants 8 Riverside Red Wave 5 in 6:19 — finished at 1:19 A.M. in the early morning of 5/23.

22 — Billy Hebert Field, Stockton, California — 9/5/1990 and 9/6/1990 — playoffs — Bakersfield Dodgers 5 Stockton Ports 4 in 6:20, suspended after 5:53 and 21 innings —1497 fans on 9/5; 175 fans when suspended; 1559 fans on 9/6 — suspended at 1:27 A.M. in the early morning of 9/6; finished at 6:25 P.M. on 9/6.

21— Municipal Stadium, San Jose, California — 5/12/1995 and 5/13/1995 — San Bernardino Spirit 1 San Jose Giants 0 in 5:56, three rain delays, suspended after 11½ innings — suspended at 11:16 P.M.

California State League (1)

23 — Goodwater Grove (later Oak Park, then Billy Hebert Field), Stockton, California — 7/2/1905 — Stockton Millers 1 Lodi Crushers 0 in 3:26.

Canadian American (Can Am) League (1)

20—Hanover Insurance Park at Fitton Field, Worcester, Massachusetts — 6/26/2008 — New Jersey Jackals 5 Worcester Tornadoes 4 in 6:06 —1434 fans finished at 12:11 A.M. in the early morning of 6/27.

Carolina League (2)

20— Frank Lawrence Stadium, Portsmouth, Virginia — 4/18/1967 — Kinston Eagles 5 Tidewater Tides 5 in 5:50— 526 fans, 25 fans at end —finished at 1:21 A.M. in the early morning of 4/19.

21— Judy Johnson Field at Frawley Stadium, Wilmington, Delaware — 7/5/1998 — Wilmington Blue Rocks 3 Danville 97's 2 in 6:23 — 3441 fans — finished at 8:28 P.M.

Central Association (2)

20— League Park, Jacksonville, Illinois — 9/3/1908 — Jacksonville Lunatics 4 Ottumwa Packers 1 in 2:50.

22—Athletic Park, Burlington, Iowa— 6/27/1915—Keokuk Indians 0 Burlington Pathfinders 0 in 3:50—finished at 6:10 P.M.

Central Kansas League (1)

20—Athletic Park, Newton, Kansas — 5/26/1908 pre-season exhibition — Newton Railroaders 3 Mc-Pherson Merry Macks 2 in 3:15 — finished at 6:45 P.M.

Central League (1)

21— Springbrook (later Playland) Park, South Bend, Indiana — 7/13/1910 — South Bend Bronchos 1 Zanesville Potters 0 in 3:35, 2nd game postponed.

Connecticut/Delaware/Maryland/New Jersey/Penn (Inter-State) League (1)

23 – Municipal Stadium, Hagerstown, Maryland – 9/3/1949 – York White Roses 3 Hagerstown Owls 2 in 4:25, 2nd game postponed – 560 fans.

Delaware/New Jersey/Pennsylvania (Tri-State) League (1)

21— Point Grounds, Johnstown, Pennsylvania — 8/8/1907 — Johnstown Johnnies 4 Reading Pretzels 3 in 2:45.

Dixie Association (1)

22 — Ray Winder Field, Little Rock, Arkansas — 7/21/1971— Arkansas Travelers 5 Dallas-Fort Worth Spurs 4 in 5:56 — 7030 fans, 600 fans at end finished at 1:26 A.M. in the early morning of 7/22.

Eastern Association (1)

23 — Brewster Park, New Haven, Connecticut — 7/14/1914 — Hartford Senators 2 New Haven White Wings 1 in 3:55, 2nd game postponed.

Eastern Illinois League (1)

21—Vincennes, Illinois—7/18/1908—Charleston Evangelists 4 Vincennes Alices 3.

Eastern League (11)

21— Savin Road Park, New Haven, Connecticut — 8/31/1919 — Worcester Boosters 4 New Haven Weissmen 3.

20—Hampden Park (II), Springfield, Massachusetts — 8/28/1920—Albany Senators 5 Springfield Ponies 5 in 4:04.

20— Chadwick Park, Albany, New York— 5/30/1924 — Pittsfield Hillies 9 Albany Senators 8 in P.M. game, Pittsfield 6 Albany 0 in A.M. game — 5000 fans.

21—Artillery Park, Wilkes-Barre, Pennsylvania— 5/9/1946—Binghamton Triplets 5 Wilkes-Barre Barons 4 in 4:35—finished at 12:20 A.M. in the early morning of 5/11.

20—Triplets (later Johnson) Field, Johnson City, New York—5/18/1952—Binghamton Triplets 4 Scranton Miners 3 in 5:10, then Scranton 4 Binghamton 0 in 7 innings.

21— Dunn Field, Elmira, New York — 6/19/1962 — Elmira Pioneers 4 Williamsport Grays 3.

20— Pyncheon Park, Springfield, Massachusetts— 6/8/1963— York White Roses 2 Springfield Giants 1 in 4:57.

20—Memorial Stadium, Sanford, Florida— 4/17/1964—Eastern League at New York-Pennsylvania League spring training exhibition—Williamsport Mets at Auburn Mets.

27 — Dunn Field, Elmira, New York — 5/8/1965 — Elmira Pioneers 2 Springfield Giants 1 in 6:24 — 386 fans, 400 fans at end —finished at 9:24 P.M.

21— Dunn Field, Elmira, New York -6/25/1965 — Pittsfield Red Sox 2 Elmira Pioneers 2 in 5:33 — called off at 1:03 A.M. in the early morning of 6/26, then rhubarb delay 0:?? top 22nd, Pioneers owner argued there was no curfew rule, by the time the league president told the umpires the owner was correct and the game should continue, all the players had showered and gone home, called off at 1:?? A.M. for the second time -530 fans.

22 - Municipal Stadium, Waterbury, Connecticut -7/31/1966 - Waterbury Giants 9 York White Roses 8 in 6:13 - finished at 12:46 A.M. in the early morning of 8/1.

Florida State League (12)

21—Municipal Park, Sanford, Florida — 5/27/ 1948 — Sanford Giants 8 Palatka Azaleas 7 in 5:15 finished at 1:15 A.M. in the early morning of 5/28.

29 – Al Lang Field (I), St. Petersburg, Florida – 6/14/1966 – Miami Marlins 4 St. Petersburg Cardinals 3 in 6:59 – 740 fans, 175 fans at end –finished at 2:29 A.M. in the early morning of 6/15.

25 — Municipal Stadium, West Palm Beach, Florida — 8/8/1967 — West Palm Beach Braves 3 Leesburg Athletics 2 in 5:35, 2nd game postponed finished at 11:35 P.M.

23 — Fort Lauderdale Stadium, Fort Lauderdale, Florida — 5/24/1981 and 5/25/1981— Fort Lauderdale Yankees 1 Tampa Tarpons 0 in 5:32, suspended after 5:23 and 22 innings — 717 fans; 200 fans at suspension — suspended at 12:53 A.M. in the early morning of 5/25.

20—Al Lang Field (II), St. Petersburg and Holman Stadium, Vero Beach, Florida—4/29/1988 and 5/28/ 1988—Vero Beach Dodgers 6 St. Petersburg Cardinals 5 in 5:59, suspended after 5:29 and 18 innings, completed in Vero Beach—suspended at 1:04 A.M. in the early morning of 4/30.

21—Ed Smith Stadium, Sarasota and Dunedin Stadium at Grant Field (later Knology Park), Dunedin, Florida – 4/24/1989 and 5/17/1989 – Dunedin Blue Jays 8 Sarasota White Sox 3 in 6:29, suspended after 5:48 and 20 innings – 525 fans on 4/24, 45 fans at suspension, 307 fans on 5/17 – suspended at 12:48 A.M. in the early morning of 4/25.

20—Al Lang Field (II), St. Petersburg, Florida— 6/8/1993—St. Petersburg Cardinals 4 Lakeland Tigers 3 in 5:11—1229 fans—finished at 12:46 A.M. in the early morning of 6/9.

20—Ed Smith Stadium, Sarasota, Florida— 6/17/1993—Sarasota White Sox 3 Clearwater Phillies 2 in 4:47—932 fans—finished at 12:06 A.M. in the early morning of 6/18.

20—Al Lang Field (II), St. Petersburg, Florida— 4/14/1994—St. Petersburg Cardinals 8 Lakeland Tigers 7 in 7:07—1021 fans—finished at 2:42 A.M. in the early morning of 4/15.

20— Hammond Stadium, Fort Myers, Florida— 4/13/2006— Clearwater Threshers 4 Fort Myers Miracle 3 in 5:02—1544 fans; 94 fans at end—finished at 12:07 A.M. in the early morning of 4/14.

20— Legends Field, Tampa, Florida — 4/17/2007 — Clearwater Threshers 4 Tampa Yankees 1 in 5:14 — 706 fans — ended at 12:14 A.M. in the early morning of 4/18.

20— Joker Marchant Stadium, Lakeland, Florida — 6/29/2008 — Lakeland Flying Tigers 3 Daytona Cubs 2 in 6:06-469 fans — finished at 12:06 A.M. in the early morning of 6/30.

Georgia-Florida League (1)

20— Edo Miller Park, Brunswick, Georgia — 8/??/ 1956 — Brunswick Pirates defeated Albany Cardinals by one run —1500 fans; 1200 fans at end.

Georgia State League (1)

21—Legion Park, Eastman, Georgia — 5/27/1952 — Eastman Dodgers 6 Jesup Bees 5, 2nd game called after 4 innings.

Hudson River League (1)

20—Driving Park, Kingston, New York—8/10/ 1903—Hudson Marines 2 Kingston Colonials 2 in 3:10.

Illinois/Indiana/Iowa (3-I) League (3)

22 — Ringwood Park, Clinton, Iowa — 7/25/1907 — Peoria Distillers 3 Clinton Infants 0 in 3:10.

26 – Bloomington Grounds, Bloomington, Illinois – 5/31/1909 – Decatur Commodores 2 Bloomington Bloomers 1 in 4:20, rain delay 0:15 bottom 5th, 2nd game postponed –1200 fans – finished at 6:35 P.M.

22 – Douglas Park, Rock Island, Illinois – 7/9/ 1916 – Hannibal Mules 8 Rock Island Islanders 3 in 4:00.

Illinois-Missouri League (2)

20—League Park, Champaign, Illinois— 6/19/1913—Champaign Velvets 6 Kankakee Daffydils 5 in 3:37—finished at 7:07 P.M.

21—Kankakee, Illinois—5/25/1914—Streator Boosters 2 Kankakee Kanks 2.

International Association (1)

24 — South End Grounds (I), Boston, Massachusetts — 5/11/1877 — International Association at Inter-Collegiate Association — Manchester Professionals 0 Harvard College Crimson 0 in 3:30.

International League (11)

20—West Side (later Skeeters) Park, Jersey City, New Jersey—8/12/1913—Toronto Maple Leafs 0 Jersey City Skeeters 0 in 3:20.

20— Hanlan's Point (III), Toronto, Province of Ontario, Canada — 6/2/1921— Buffalo Bisons 3 Toronto Maple Leafs 2 in 4:05.

21— Oriole Park (III), Baltimore, Maryland — 4/23/ 1943 — Toronto Maple Leafs 2 Baltimore Orioles 2.

22 – Red Wing (later Silver) Stadium, Rochester, New York – 8/13/1950 – Rochester Red Wings 3 Jersey City Giants 2 in 5:15 – 5863 fans – finished at 6:45 P.M.

22 — MacArthur Stadium, Syracuse, New York — 8/24/1966 — Syracuse Chiefs 5 Richmond Braves 4 in 4:54 —1469 fans — finished at 12:39 A.M. in the early morning of 8/25.

22 — MacArthur Stadium, Syracuse, New York — 7/30/1980 — Richmond Braves 12 Syracuse Chiefs 6 in 5:55 — 3117 fans, 1000 fans at end —finished at 1:28 A.M. in the early morning of 7/31. 33 — McCoy Stadium, Pawtucket, Rhode Island — 4/ 18/1981 and 6/23/1981— power failure delay 0:30 at start, Pawtucket Paw Sox 3 Rochester Red Wings 2 in 8:25, suspended after 8:07 and 32 innings —1740 fans, 150 fans Midnight, 100 fans top 21st, 60 fans 1 A.M., 27 fans top 27th, 19 fans at suspension, 5756 fans on 6/23 — suspended at 4:07 A.M. in the early morning of 4/19, dawn was at 5:00 A.M., finished at 6:18 P.M. on 6/23.

20—McCoy Stadium, Pawtucket, Rhode Island — 7/26/1981—Pawtucket Paw Sox 4 Richmond Braves 2.

21—Cooper Stadium, Columbus, Ohio— 6/10/1985 and 6/11/1985 and 6/12/1985—Columbus Clippers 8 Syracuse Chiefs 7 in 5:37, suspended after 5:18 and 20 innings, rained out 6/11, finally completed 6/12—12,616 fans on 6/10, 400 fans at suspension, 2000 fans on 6/12—suspended at 12:53 A.M. in the early morning of 6/11.

27 — MacArthur Stadium, Syracuse, New York — 6/19/1985 and 6/20/1985 and 6/21/1985 — Pawtucket Paw Sox 3 Syracuse Chiefs 1 in 7:07, suspended after 5:36 and 22 innings, continued 6/20, rain delay 0:13 top 23rd, 2nd rain delay 0:50 bottom 24th, suspended again after 6:07 and 23½ innings, finally completed 6/21—1233 fans on 6/19; 200 fans when suspended after 22 innings; 3020 fans on 6/21— suspended at 1:12 A.M. in the early morning of 6/20, suspended again at 9:05 P.M. on 6/20, finished at 7:31 P.M. on 6/21.

21—Diamond, Richmond, Virginia — 8/7/1989 — Toledo Mud Hens 4 Richmond Braves 1 in 5:01, then Richmond 3 Toledo 0 in 2:23 and 7 innings —100 fans at end —finished at 1:57 A.M. in the early morning of 8/8.

Iowa State League (1)

21—League Park, Jacksonville, Illinois— 6/26/1907—Jacksonville Lunatics 3 Burlington Pathfinders 2 in 3:05—419 fans.

Kansas State League (2)

21— McPherson, Kansas — 7/27/1909 — Lyons Lions 2 McPherson Merry Macks 1 in 2:50.

23 – Cook Athletic Park, Hutchinson, Kansas – 7/3/1914 – Hutchinson Salt Packers 4 Great Bend Millers 3.

Kentucky/Illinois/Tennessee (Kitty) League (3)

20—Fairgrounds, Henderson, Kentucky— 8/11/1904—Cairo Egyptians 4 Henderson Blue Birds 2.

21—League Park, Princeton, Indiana— 6/27/1905—Hopkinsville Hoppers 4 Princeton Infants 2 in 3:10—200 fans—finished at 6:10 P.M.

20—Hook Ball Park, Paducah, Kentucky— 7/8/1938—Fulton Eagles 14 Paducah Indians 9 in 5:28, rhubarb delay top 15th when Fulton Manager Ray Clonts unsuccessfully requested umpires to allow 15minute delay so players could eat some steaks for strength, vote delay top 19th when Paducah Manager Pete Mondino successfully asked umpires to have remaining fans vote whether the game should continue or not; fans voted unanimously that game should continue — finished at 1:45 A.M. in the early morning of 7/9.

Mexican Center League (1)

27—Estadio (Stadium) Alberto Romo Chavez, Aguascalientes, State of Aguascalientes or Estadio (Stadium) Domingo Santana, Leon, State of Guanajuato, Mexico—7/17/1960—Aguascalientes Tigres (Tigers) 5 Leon Diablos Rojos (Red Devils) 4.

Mexican League (5)

22 — Parque Deportivo del Seguro Social (Social Security Stadium), Mexico City, Distrito Federal (Federal District), Mexico — 7/14/1969 — Reynosa Broncos 5 Mexico City Diablos Rojos (Red Devils) 3 in 5:38 — 3895 fans — finished at 1:08 A.M. in the early morning of 7/15.

20—Estadio (Stadium) Torreon, Torreon, State of Coahuila, Mexico—5/8/1973—Cordoba Cafeteros (Coffee Growers) 2 Torreon Mineros (Miners) 1.

20—Estadio (Stadium) Cordoba, Cordoba, State of Veracruz, Mexico—5/16/1973—Cordoba Cafeteros (Coffee Growers) 2 Gomez Palacio 1.

23—Estadio (Stadium) Cordoba, Cordoba, State of Veracruz, Mexico—4/28/1977—Aguascalientes Rieleros (Railroadmen) 6 Cordoba Cafeteros (Coffee Growers) 2 in 6:30—4000 fans, 800 fans at end finished at 3:00 A.M. in the early morning of 4/29.

23 — Estadio (Stadium) Veracruz, Veracruz, State of Veracruz, Mexico — 6/30/2001— Mexico City Diablos Rojos (Red Devils) 2 Veracruz Aguila (Eagle) 1.

Mexican Pacific League (8)

21—Estadio (Stadium) Angel Flores, Culiacan, State of Sinaloa, Mexico —10/22/1967 — Obregon Yaquis 3 Culiacan Tomateros (Tomato Growers) 1 in 6:22 — 5000 fans —finished at 11:22 P.M.

22 — Estadio (Stadium) Teodoro Mariscal, Mazatlan, State of Sinaloa, Mexico —10/26/1973 — Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2 Guasave Algodoneros (Cotton Pickers) 1 in 7:02 —finished at 2:32 A.M. in the early morning of 10/27.

20— Estadio (Stadium) Manuel "Ciclon" Echeverria, Navojoa, State of Sonora, Mexico —1/2/1979 — Navojoa Mayos 1 Mexicali Aguilas (Eagles) 0 in 5:20 in 2nd game, Mexicali vs. Navojoa in 1st game.

20—Estadio (Stadium) Jesus Carranza Limon, Guasave, State of Sinaloa, Mexico—11/11/1980—Mexicali Aguilas (Eagles) 3 Guasave Algodoneros (Cotton Pickers) 1.

21—Estadio (Stadium) Emilio Ibarra, Los Mochis, State of Sinaloa, Mexico —11/26/1988 — Los Mochis Caneros (Sugar Cane Growers) 4 Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2 in 7:14 —finished at 2:44 A.M. in the early morning of 11/27.

20—Estadio (Stadium) Angel Flores, Culiacan, State of Sinaloa, Mexico—10/27/1995—Culiacan Tomateros (Tomato Growers) 3 Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2 in 6:01—finished at 1:31 A.M. in the early morning of 10/28.

22 — Estadio (Stadium) Teodoro Mariscal, Mazatlan, State of Sinaloa, Mexico —10/19/1997 — Culiacan Tomateros (Tomato Growers) 5 Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2 in 6:55 — finished at 2:25 A.M. in the early morning of 10/20.

20—Estadio (Stadium) Jesus Caranza Limon, Guasave, State of Sinaloa, Mexico—12/9/2004— Guasave Algodoneros (Cotton Pickers) 3 Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2.

Michigan-Ontario League (2)

20—Hamilton Athletic Association (H.A.A.) Grounds, Hamilton, Province of Ontario, Canada— 6/17/1920—London Cockneys (later Tecumsehs) 5 Hamilton Tigers 4.

20—Ace Park, Saginaw, Michigan—7/12/1924— Flint Vehics 3 Saginaw Aces 2, then Flint 4 Saginaw 2 in 7 innings.

Midwest League (7)

20—Fans Field, Decatur, Illinois—8/20/1965— Decatur Commodores 1 Fox Cities Foxes 0 in 4:25— 411 fans, 100 fans at end—finished at 11:55 P.M.

21—Danville Stadium, Danville, Illinois— 6/4/1974 — Waterloo Royals 7 Danville Warriors 5 in 5:35 — 722 fans, 94 fans at end —finished at 1:10 A.M. in the early morning of 6/5.

22 — Waterloo Stadium, Waterloo, Iowa — 5/30/1976 — Burlington Bees 4 Waterloo Royals 3 in 5:33, then Burlington 4 Waterloo 3 in 2:09 and 8 innings — 603 fans — 1st game finished at 8:33 P.M., 2nd game finished at 11:12 P.M.

21— Community Field (II), Burlington, Iowa — 8/ 10/1983 and 8/11/1983 — Burlington Rangers 7 Clinton Giants 6 in 5:44, rain delay 0:06 bottom 11th, 2nd rain delay 0:01 bottom 18th, suspended after 4:54 and $17\frac{1}{2}$ innings — suspended at 12:35 A.M. in the early morning of 8/11.

20— Community Field (II), Burlington, Iowa — 5/15/ 1989 — Rockford Expos 4 Burlington Braves 2 in 5:04.

25 — Waterloo Stadium, Waterloo, Iowa and Riverview Stadium (later Alliant Energy Field), Clinton, Iowa — 7/6/1989 and 8/17/1989 — Waterloo Diamonds 4 Clinton Giants 3 in 7:37, suspended after 5:46 and 19 innings in Waterloo, completed 8/17 in Clinton — 876 fans on 7/6 in Waterloo, 809 fans on 8/17 in Clinton suspended at 12:51 A.M. in the early morning of 7/7.

21—John O'donnell Stadium, Davenport, Iowa— 5/19/1999—Clinton Lumber Kings 3 Quad-City River Bandits 2 in 5:49.

Mississippi Valley League (2)

23 – Douglas Park, Rock Island, Illinois – 8/4/1922 – Ottumwa Cardinals 4 Rock Island Islanders 2 in 4:10.

20—Hill Park, Cedar Rapids, Iowa—5/22/1931— Cedar Rapids Bunnies 5 Dubuque Tigers 4 in 3:25.

Missouri State League (1)

20—Kirksville, Missouri — 5/25/1911—Kirksville Osteopaths 2 Macon Athletics 1.

Missouri Valley League (2)

20-Old Fair Grounds Park, Springfield, Missouri -7/19/1902 - Springfield Reds 2 Nevada Lunatics 1 in 5:00-3500 fans, 3500 fans at end - finished at 8:30 P.M.

21— League Park, Pittsburg, Kansas — 7/7/1903 — Pittsburg Coal Diggers 5 Joplin Miners 4; then Joplin vs. Pittsburg, called after 4 innings.

Negro League (2)

21— Camp Vincent Fairgrounds, Watertown, New York —?/??/1914 — Negro League at Amateur — Harrisville Adirondacks defeated Havana Red Sox.

20— Bulkeley Stadium, Hartford, Connecticut — 5/9/1937 — Hartford Savitt Gems 5 Philadelphia Giants 4.

Negro Texas-Oklahoma League (1)

27 — Monarch Field, Houston, Texas — 8/??/ 1934 — Austin Black Senators 3 Newgulf Black Buffs 2.

New England League (1)

20—Washington (later Roberto Clemente) Park, Lowell, Massachusetts -4/27/1907 – Haverhill Hustlers 1 Lowell Tigers 1 in 3:25 – 3200 fans.

New York–Pennsylvania League (5)

20—Municipal Park, Sanford, Florida—4/17 /1964—Eastern League at New York-Pennsylvania League spring training—Williamsport Mets at Auburn Mets.

21— College Stadium (later Russell Diethrich Park), Jamestown, New York—8/14/1965—Binghamton Triplets 4 Jamestown Tigers 4 in 6:13, 2nd game postponed—386 fans—finished at 12:43 A.M. in the early morning of 8/15.

21—Dwyer Stadium, Batavia, New York— 7/9/2003—Staten Island Yankees 5 Batavia Muckdogs 2 in 5:48—1073 fans—finished at 12:58 A.M. in the early morning of 7/10.

22 – Falcon Park, Auburn, New York -7/7/2005and 8/14/2005 – Auburn Doubledays 6 Batavia Muckdogs 5 in 6:34, suspended after 6:02 and 20 innings – 3242 fans on 7/7, 250 fans left at suspension, 1871 fans on 8/14 – suspended at 1:09 A.M. in the early morning of 7/8, finished at 5:35 P.M. on 8/14 – author sat behind first base for the last two innings.

26 – KeySpan Park, Brooklyn, New York – 7/20/ 2006 – Oneonta Tigers 6 Brooklyn Cyclones 1 in 6:40–9004 fans; 190 fans at end –finished at 6:45 P.M.

North Carolina State League (1)

20¹/₂—Hanes Field, Durham, North Carolina— 7/5/1915—Raleigh Capitals 2 Durham Bulls 2 in 3:11 in P.M. game, called due to darkness with Durham batting in bottom of 21st; Raleigh 3 Durham 2 in 3:05 and 14 innings in A.M. game at League Park, Raleigh, North Carolina—1500 fans for P.M. game; 700 fans for A.M. game.

Northern League (1)

21—Rox Park, St. Cloud, Minnesota — 7/25/1966 and 8/28/1966 — Huron Phillies 8 St. Cloud Rox 2 in 5:39, suspended after 4:20 and 16 innings, originally decided to play entire game over, but then decided to complete game from point of suspension — 951 fans on 7/25, 343 fans on 8/28 — suspended at 11:50 P.M. on 7/25.

Northwest League (2)

25 — Memorial Stadium, Everett, Washington and Civic Stadium, Eugene, Oregon — 8/18/1989 and 8/24/1989 — Eugene Emeralds 6 Everett Giants 5 in 7:13, suspended after 5:50 and 19 innings in Everett, completed 8/24 in Eugene — 2998 fans on 8/24 — suspended at 12:50 A.M. in the early morning of 8/19.

23 — Dust Devils Stadium, Pasco, Washington — 8/16/2004 and 8/17/2004 — Spokane Indians 2 Tri-City Dust Devils 1 in 6:37, suspended after 5:46 and 20 innings — 919 fans on 8/16 — suspended at 12:52 A.M. in the early morning of 8/17, finished at 6:53 P.M. on 8/17.

Northwestern League (3)

20— Electric Park, Aberdeen, Washington — 5/6/ 1908 — Butte Miners 3 Aberdeen Black Cats 3 in 3:45.

22—Recreation Park, Vancouver, Province of British Columbia, Canada—7/31/1909—Portland Colts 3 Vancouver Beavers 0 in 3:08.

20—Dugdale Park (II), Seattle, Washington — 7/19/ 1914 — Spokane Indians 6 Seattle Giants 1 in 3:03.

Ohio-Pennsylvania League (2)

20—Webb Park, Marion, Ohio—7/20/1907— Mansfield Pioneers 2 Marion Drummers 1 in 2:18— 800 fans.

24 – Wehrle Park, Newark, Ohio – 8/23/1907 – Sharon Giants 3 Newark Newks 2.

Ohio State League (1)

20—Wehrle Park, Charleston, West Virginia— 6/27/1915—Lexington Colts 5 Charleston Senators 2 in 3:25.

Pacific Coast League (15)

20—Vaughn Street Ballpark (later Lucky Beaver Stadium), Portland, Oregon—8/2/1908—San Francisco Seals 6 Portland Beavers 5 in 3:40.

24 — Freeman's Park, Oakland, California — 6/8/1909 — San Francisco Seals 1 Oakland Oaks 0 in 3:35.

24 — Buffalo Park, Sacramento, California — 9/10/ 1911— Portland Beavers 1 Sacramento Sacts 1 in 3:45.

21—Washington Park, Los Angeles, California— 9/15/1911—Sacramento Sacts 4 Los Angeles Angels 4 in 3:10.

20-Washington Park, Los Angeles, California-

5/27/1914 – Oakland Oaks 4 Venice Tigers 2 in 4:02 – finished at 7:02 P.M.

22 — Washington Park, Los Angeles, California — 4/10/1921—Seattle Rainiers 12 Los Angeles Angels 8 in 4:46, 2nd game postponed —13,000 fans.

22—Oakland Baseball (later Oaks) Park, Emeryville, California—5/6/1928—Oakland Oaks 7 Sacramento Senators 6 in 4:00 in P.M. game, Sacramento 5 Oakland 2 in 1:45 in A.M. game.

20—Lucky Beaver Stadium, Portland, Oregon— 5/7/1947—Portland Beavers 1 Sacramento Solons 0 in 3:25—finished at 11:45 P.M.

22 — Seals Stadium, San Francisco, California — 8/5/1953 — Portland Beavers 4 San Francisco Seals 2 in 4:20—1394 fans.

21— Gilmore Field, Hollywood, California — 5/12/ 1954 — Oakland Oaks 5 Hollywood Stars 1 in 4:52 — 2559 fans —finished at 1:10 A.M. in the early morning of 5/13.

20—Lucky Beaver Stadium, Portland, Oregon— 4/24/1955—Portland Beavers 3 San Diego Padres 2 in 4:14 in 2nd game, Portland 9 San Diego 5 in 2:06 in 1st game—4760 fans.

21—Sicks' Stadium, Seattle, Washington— 5/8/1959—Seattle Rainiers 6 Phoenix Giants 5 in 5:56, 2nd game cancelled—1787 fans—finished at 12:56 A.M. in the early morning of 5/9.

20—Hi Corbett Field, Tucson, Arizona—6/3/ 1970—Hawaii Islanders 6 Tucson Toros 5 in 4:58 finished at 12:58 A.M. in the early morning of 6/4.

20—Municipal Stadium (II), Phoenix, Arizona— 6/23/1990—Calgary Cannons 12 Phoenix Firebirds 9 in 6:39—finished at 1:49 A.M. in the early morning of 6/24.

24 — Greer Stadium, Nashville, Tennessee — 5/5/2006 and 5/6/2006 — New Orleans Zephyrs 5 Nashville Sounds 4 in 8:07, suspended after 6:23 and 18 innings — 9124 fans on 5/5, 300 fans at suspension; 10,016 fans on 5/6 — suspended at 1:25 A.M. in the early morning of 5/6; finished at 7:44 P.M. on 5/6.

Pacific Northwest League (1)

22—11th Street Grounds, Tacoma, Washington— 5/16/1891—Tacoma Daisies 6 Seattle Blues 5 in 3:35— 900 fans—finished at 7:05 P.M.

Piedmont League (3)

22 – Stonewall Jackson Park, Danville, Virginia – 7/9/1921 – High Point Furniture Makers 7 Danville Tobacconists 6 in 4:07.

22—Griffith (later Crockett) Park, Charlotte, North Carolina—9/7/1942—Charlotte Hornets 4 Asheville Tourists 3 in 3:30.

20— Frank Lawrence Stadium, Portsmouth, Virginia — 6/16/1948 — Portsmouth Cubs 1 Lynchburg Cardinals 0—73 fans.

Provincial League (3)

20-Municipal Stadium, Trois-Rivieres, Province of Quebec, Canada - 7/5/1938 - Three Rivers Re-

nards (Foxes) 4 Quebec City Athletiques 3 in 4:45 — finished at 2:15 A.M. in the early morning of 7/6.

20 – Drummondville, Province of Quebec, Canada – 7/8/1952 and 8/12/1952 – Three Rivers Yankees 3

Drummondville Cubs 2, suspended after 19 innings. 20–Centennial Field, Burlington, Vermont–

5/30/1955 — Thetford Mines Mineurs (Miners) 4 Burlington Athletics 3 in 4:54 — finished at 7:36 P.M.

South Atlantic (Sally) League (12)

20— Latta Park, Charlotte, North Carolina — 8/30/ 1919 — Columbia Comers 5 Charlotte Hornets 5.

20—Golden Park, Columbus, Georgia — 8/1/1952 — Jacksonville Tars 2 Columbus Cardinals 2 in 4:55 called at 12:55 A.M. in the early morning of 8/2.

20—Golden Park, Columbus, Georgia-4/24/1954—Macon Peaches 7 Columbus Cardinals 5 in 5:13—finished at 1:13 A.M. in the early morning of 4/25.

20— Jennings Stadium, Augusta, Georgia — 7/15/ 1954 — Macon Peaches 3 Augusta Rams 3 in 4:40.

20—Paterson Field, Montgomery, Alabama—4/27/ 1956—Augusta Tigers 6 Montgomery Rebels 4 in 4:24—finished at 12:09 A.M. in the early morning of 4/28.

20—Jacksonville Ball Park (later Municipal Stadium, then Wolfson Park), Jacksonville, Florida — 5/21/1958 — Savannah Redlegs 6 Jacksonville Braves 6 in 5:00—902 fans —finished at 1:00 A.M. in the early morning of 5/22.

21—Jacksonville Ball Park (later Municipal Stadium, then Wolfson Park), Jacksonville, Florida — 4/22/1959 — Jacksonville Braves 3 Knoxville Smokies 2 in 5:01—1814 fans, 200 fans at end —finished at 1:01 A.M. in the early morning of 4/23.

21—War Memorial Stadium, Greensboro, North Carolina — 8/12/1982 and 8/13/1982 — Greensboro Hornets 3 Gastonia Cardinals 2, suspended after 17 innings.

21—J.P. Riddle Stadium, Fayetteville, North Carolina — 7/10/1988 — Charleston (Wv) Wheelers 7 Fayetteville Generals 5 in 5:22 — 843 fans — finished at 12:52 A.M. in the early morning of 7/11.

20-L.P. Frans Stadium, Hickory, North Carolina -8/13/2000 Asheville Tourists 4 Hickory Crawdads 3 in 5:16 -1959 fans -finished at 12:16 A.M. in the early morning of 8/14.

21—Fieldcrest Cannon Stadium, Kannapolis, North Carolina — 9/7/2005 — playoffs — Kannapolis Intimidators 4 Charleston (Sc) RiverDogs 3 in 5:09 — 749 fans; 300 fans at end — finished at 12:14 A.M. in the early morning of 9/8.

22 — FirstEnergy Park, Lakewood, New Jersey — 4/26/2006 and 5/7/2006 — Lakewood BlueClaws 8 Hagerstown Suns 7 in 7:47, suspended after 17 innings and 6:03 — 5487 fans on 4/26, 150 fans top 12th, 31 fans top 17th; 7449 fans on 5/7 — suspended at 12:42 A.M. in the early morning of 4/27, finished at 2:49 P.M. on 5/7.

Southern Association (3)

20-Engel Stadium, Chattanooga, Tennessee-

6/21/1940—Little Rock Travelers 7 Chattanooga Lookouts 4 in 4:20, 2nd game postponed.

21—Hartwell Field, Mobile, Alabama — 8/8/ 1946 — Atlanta Crackers 4 Mobile Bears 4 in 4:30 finished at 1:30 A.M. in the early morning of 8/9.

21—Russwood Park, Memphis, Tennessee — 6/21/ 1959 — Memphis Chicks 6 Chattanooga Lookouts 5 in 5:38 — finished at 7:10 P.M.

Southern League (7)

23 — Andrews Field, Chattanooga, Tennessee — 6/13/1919 — Atlanta Crackers 2 Chattanooga Lookouts 2 in 3:40.

20— Sulphur Dell (I), Nashville, Tennessee — 7/12/ 1919 — Chattanooga Lookouts 6 Nashville Volunteers 5 in 3:31.

23 — Grayson Stadium, Savannah, Georgia — 4/14/ 1973 — Columbus Astros 10 Savannah Braves 4 in 6:14 in 1st game, 2nd game postponed — 827 fans finished at 12:45 A.M. in the early morning of 4/15, post-game fireworks finished at 1:10 A.M.

21—Engel Stadium, Chattanooga, Tennessee— 7/29/1978—Chattanooga Lookouts 3 Savannah Braves 2 in 5:32.

20- Tim McCarver Stadium, Memphis, Tennessee -6/17/1991 and 6/18/1991- Huntsville Stars 9 Memphis Chicks 7 in 6:32, suspended after 5:33 and 16 innings -6845 fans on 6/17, 2349 fans on 6/18- suspended at 1:12 A.M. in the early morning of 6/18, finished at 7:40 P.M. on 6/18.

23 - Municipal Stadium, Greenville, South Carolina - 8/6/1998 and 8/7/1998 - Greenville Braves 10 Huntsville Stars 7 in 6:26, suspended after 5:25 and 20 innings - 4098 fans - suspended at 12:13 A.M. in the early morning of 8/7, finished at 6:01 P.M. on 8/7.

20—Baseball Grounds, Jacksonville, Florida— 8/12/2006 and 8/13/2006—Jacksonville Suns 5 West Tennessee Diamond Jaxx 2 in 5:22, rain delay, 2nd rain delay top 4th, suspended after 0:55 top 4th; then West Tennessee 4 Jacksonville 1 in 1:44 and 7 innings—6280 fans on 8/12; 2907 fans on 8/13 finished at 7:32 P.M.; 2nd game finished at 9:46 P.M.

Southern Michigan Association (2)

20—Opportunity (later Recreation, then Burkart, then Aces) Park, Saginaw or Fairgrounds-Keeley Park, Jackson, Michigan—6/30/1908—Saginaw Wa-wa's 5 Jackson Convicts 4.

20—Franklin Park, Adrian, Michigan— 7/17/1913—Battle Creek Crickets 1 Adrian Champs 1.

Southwest International League (1)

20—Municipal Stadium (I), Phoenix, Arizona— 8/18/1951—Bisbee-Douglas Copper Kings 2 Phoenix Senators 2—called at 12:00 Midnight.

Texas League (17)

23 — League Park, San Antonio, Texas — 7/5/1910— Waco Navigators 1 San Antonio Bronchos 1 in 4:14; 2nd game postponed — finished at 6:44 P.M. 20—Gulfview Park, Galveston, Texas— 8/13/1916—Waco Navigators 4 Galveston Pirates 1.

20—Panther Park, Fort Worth, Texas — 5/8/1918 — Shreveport Gassers 1 Fort Worth Panthers 1.

21— Tech Field, San Antonio, Texas — 6/2/1935 — San Antonio Missions 4 Dallas Steers 3 in 3:50 in 1st game, 2nd game called after 2 innings — 5000 fans.

20—La Grave Field (I), Fort Worth, Texas—5/31/ 1939—Fort Worth Cats 4 Oklahoma City Indians 3 in 4:26—finished at 12:41 A.M. in the early morning of 6/1.

21— Texas League (later Holland) Park, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma — 9/5/1940— Dallas Rebels 2 Oklahoma City Indians 1 in 3:58—finished at 12:13 A.M. in the early morning of 9/6.

22 — Texas League (later Oiler) Park, Tulsa, Oklahoma — 8/16/1952 — Tulsa Oilers 6 Houston Buffalos 5 in 4:43 — 2200 fans — finished at 12:45 A.M. in the early morning of 8/17.

22 — Texas League (later Oiler) Park, Tulsa, Oklahoma — 5/13/1954 — Tulsa Oilers 3 Dallas Eagles 2 in 4:41—finished at 12:41 A.M. in the early morning of 5/14.

20—Disch Field, Austin, Texas—9/7/1956— Austin Senators 4 Dallas Eagles 3 in 5:01-2157fans—finished at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 9/8.

24 — Mission Stadium, San Antonio, Texas — 4/29/ 1960 — Rio Grande Valley Giants 4 San Antonio Missions 2 in 5:42, dog-on-the-field delay 15th, scoreboard fire delay 20th, light failure delay 22nd — 820 fans; 700 fans at end — finished at 1:27 A.M. in the early morning of 4/30.

25 - Turnpike (later Arlington) Stadium, Arlington, Texas - 6/17/1965 - Austin Braves 2 Dallas-Fort Worth Spurs 1 in 5:10 - 2546 fans - finished at 12:40 A.M. in the early morning of 6/18.

20–V.J. Keefe Stadium, San Antonio, Texas– 6/28/1977 – San Antonio Dodgers 4 El Paso Diablos 3 in 4:37; 2nd game postponed – 762 fans; 200 fans at end – finished at 11:10 P.M.

23 — Smith-Wills Stadium, Jackson, Mississippi — 7/6/1982 — Tulsa Drillers 11 Jackson Mets 7 in 6:39 — 1105 fans, 200 fans at end —finished at 2:09 A.M. in the early morning of 7/7.

21—V.J. Keefe Stadium, San Antonio, Texas — 5/21/ 1987 — Shreveport Captains 4 San Antonio Dodgers 3 in 6:04 —1144 fans — finished at 1:04 A.M. in the early morning of 5/22.

26 - V.J. Keefe Stadium, San Antonio, Texas – 7/14/1988 and 7/16/1988 – San Antonio Missions 1 Jackson Mets 0 in 7:23, suspended after 7:10 and 25 innings – 3792 fans on 7/14, 3260 fans on 7/16 – suspended at 2:15 A.M. in the early morning of 7/15.

21—Wolff Stadium, San Antonio, Texas— 8/14/2004—Midland RockHounds 7 San Antonio Missions 5 in 6:40—4286 fans, 90 fans at end finished at 1:46 A.M. in the early morning of 8/15.

20—Whataburger Field, Corpus Christi, Texas— 6/1/2005—Wichita Wranglers 7 Corpus Christi Hooks 2 in 6:09—6609 fans, 325 fans at end finished at 1:19 A.M. in the early morning of 6/2.

Virginia League (2)

23 – League Park, Norfolk, Virginia – 8/14/1915 – Suffolk Tigers 2 Norfolk Tars 2 in 3:40.

22 — League Park, Norfolk, Virginia — 9/4/1915 — Norfolk Tars 3 Suffolk Tigers 3.

Western Association (3)

21—Lake View Park, Peoria, Illinois—6/26/ 1898—Peoria Blackbirds 8 St. Joseph Saints 4 in 4:00.

20— Miners Park, Joplin, Missouri— 9/4/1906— Joplin Miners 0 Webb City Gold Bugs 0 in 3:15—150 fans.

23 — Cook Athletic Park, Hutchinson, Kansas — 5/29/1907 — Oklahoma City Mets 2 Hutchinson Salt Packers 1 in 3:10 — 900 fans, 1500 fans at end —finished at 7:10 P.M.

Western International League (1)

23 — Royal Athletic Park, Victoria, Province of British Columbia, Canada — 5/5/1951— Salem Senators 1 Victoria Athletics 0 in 4:36 in afternoon game, then Salem 3 Victoria 1 in 2:01 in evening game — 1200 fans for afternoon game; 2800 fans for evening game — afternoon game finished at 7:06 P.M.

Western League (7)

20—Sportsman's Park (III), St. Louis, Missouri— 4/10/1898 — Western League at National League spring training exhibition — NL St. Louis Browns 12 Wl Milwaukee Brewers 11 in 3:20.

22 — Riverside Park, Sioux City, Iowa — 7/19/ 1914 — Wichita Wolves 3 Sioux City Indians 2 in 4:48.

21—Antelope Park, Lincoln, Nebraska— 8/12/1917—Lincoln Links 2 Joplin Miners 1 in 3:38.

20—Sixth Street Park, St. Joseph, Missouri—8/26/ 1917—Des Moines Boosters 4 St. Joseph Drummers 3 in 4:00.

20— Sixth Street Park, St. Joseph, Missouri— 6/1/1918— Joplin Miners 3 St. Joseph Saints 1.

20—Sherman Field, Lincoln, Nebraska— 7/19/1951—Wichita Indians 2 Lincoln Athletics 1 in 4:22, 2nd game postponed.

21—Tingley Field, Albuquerque, New Mexico— 5/3/1957—Albuquerque Dukes 5 Colorado Springs Sky Sox 3 in 4:55—2116 fans—finished at 7:55 P.M.

West Virginia League (1)

24 — Union Park, Clarksburg, West Virginia — 7/3/ 1910 — Mannington Drillers 1 Clarksburg Bees 1 in 3:00 — 500 fans.

Wisconsin-Illinois League (1)

23 – Fond du Lac, Wisconsin – 8/4/1908 – Oshkosh Indians 4 Fond du Lac Cubs 2 in 3:40.

Wisconsin Association (1)

23 – Green Bay, Wisconsin – 7/14/1907 – Green Bay Orphans 2 La Crosse Badgers 1 in 4:05–1800 fans.

Major League Games, by League and Team

Negro American League (1)

Chicago American Giants (1)

20—Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois— 5/12/1946—Indianapolis Clowns 3 Chicago American Giants 3—9000 fans.

Negro National League (1)

Chicago American Giants (1)

20—Schorling's (later American Giants) Park, Chicago, Illinois—8/16/1922—Chicago American Giants 1 Atlantic City Bacharach Giants 0 in 3:38.

All-American Girls' Professional Baseball League (3)

22—Horlick Athletic Field, Racine, Wisconsin— 7/31/1947—South Bend Blue Sox 4 Racine Belles 3 in 4:30—1456 fans.

20— Playland Park, South Bend, Indiana— 9/10/ 1948— South Bend Blue Sox 3 Grand.

22 — Marsh Field, Muskegon, Michigan — ?/?/1949 — Muskegon Lassies 1 Rockford Peaches 0 in 3:02, then Rockford 3 Muskegon 1 in 6 innings.

National Girls League (1)

20—Parichy Stadium, Chicago Illinois— 9/14/1954—Bluebirds 6 Bloomer Girls 4 in 4:30, then Queens 5 Jewels 0 in 7 innings—2nd game finished at 1:00 A.M.

American League (18)

Boston Red Sox (3)

20—Huntington Grounds, Boston, Massachusetts — 7/4/1905 — Athletics 4 Americans (later Red Sox) 2 in 3:31 in P.M. game, Athletics 5 Americans 2 in 1:52 in A.M. game — 12,666 fans for P.M. game, 8797 fans for A.M. game.

24—Huntington Grounds, Boston, Massachusetts—9/1/1906—Athletics 4 Americans (later Red Sox) 1 in 4:47, 2nd game postponed—18,084 fans finished at 6:47 P.M.

20—Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts— 9/3/1981 and 9/4/1981—Mariners 8 Red Sox 7 in 6:01, suspended after 5:39 and 19 innings—13,355 fans on 9/3, 1000 fans at suspension, 20,836 fans on 9/4 suspended at 1:16 A.M. in the early morning of 9/4.

Chicago White Sox (3)

21—Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois— 5/24/1929—Tigers 6 White Sox 5 in 3:31.

21—Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois—5/26/1973 and 5/28/1973—White Sox 6 Indians 3 in 6:03, rain delay 0:17 top 14th, suspended after 4:39 and 16 innings—19,486 fans on 5/26, 17,419 fans on 5/28—suspended at 1:01 A.M. in the early morning of 5/27.

25 – Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois – 5/8/1984 and 5/9/1984 – White Sox 7 Brewers 6 in 8:06, suspended after 5:29 and 17 innings –14,754 fans on 5/8, 17,715 fans on 5/9 – suspended at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 5/9.

Cleveland Indians (1)

20—Cleveland Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio and R.F.K. Stadium, Washington, D.C.—9/14/1971 and 9/20/1971 — Senators 8 Indians 6 in 6:15 in 2nd game, suspended after 5:00 and 16 innings in Cleveland, completed 9/20 in Washington; Indians 3 Senators 1 in 1:54 in 1st game— 2639 fans on 9/14 in Cleveland, 100 fans at suspension, 1743 fans on 9/20 in Washington, 333 fans top 17th suspended at 1:00 A.M. in the early morning of 9/15.

Detroit Tigers (1)

22 – Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan – 6/24/1962 – Yankees 9 Tigers 7 in 7:00 – 35,638 fans, 20,000 fans at end – finished at 8:30 P.M.

Los Angeles/California/Anaheim/Los Angeles of Anaheim Angels (1)

20—Anaheim Stadium (later Edison International Field, then Angels Stadium), Anaheim, California— 4/13/1982 and 4/14/1982—Angels 4 Mariners 3 in 6:06, suspended after 5:24 and 17 innings—33,574 fans on 4/13, 23,905 fans on 4/14—suspended at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 4/14.

Minnesota Twins (3)

20 — Metropolitan Stadium, Bloomington, Minnesota — 8/9/1967 — Senators 9 Twins 7 in 5:40 — 16,901 fans, 4000 fans at end —finished at 1:44 A.M. in the early morning of 8/10.

22 - Metropolitan Stadium, Bloomington, Minnesota - 5/12/1972 and 5/13/1972 - Brewers 4 Twins3 in 5:47, suspended after 5:35 and 21 innings - 8628fans on 5/12, 7871 fans on 5/13 - suspended at 1:05A.M. in the early morning of 5/13.

22 — Hubert H. Humphrey Metrodome, Minneapolis, Minnesota — 8/31/1993 — Twins 5 Indians 4 in 6:17 — 17,968 fans, 1500 fans at end — finished at 1:22 A.M. in the early morning of 9/1.

New York Yankees (1)

20—Yankee Stadium (I), New York, New York— 8/29/1967—Yankees 4 Red Sox 3 in 6:09 in 2nd game, Red Sox 2 Yankees 1 in 2:10 in 1st game—40,314 fans finished at 1:57 A.M. in the early morning of 8/30.

Oakland Athletics (1)

20— Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California -7/9/1971— Athletics 1 Angels 0 in 5:05 -22,938 fans — finished at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 7/10.

Philadelphia Athletics (1)

24-Shibe Park (later Connie Mack Stadium),

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 7/21/1945 — Tigers 1 Athletics 1 in 4:48 — 4526 fans.

Seattle Pilots (1)

20—Sicks' Stadium, Seattle, Washington— 7/27/1969—Red Sox 5 Pilots 3 in 5:52—9670 fans.

Washington Senators I/II (2)

22 - D.C. (later R.F.K.) Stadium, Washington, D.C. - 6/12/1967 -Senators 6 White Sox 5 in 6:38 -7236 fans, 2000 fans at end -finished at 2:44 A.M. in the early morning of 6/13.

21-R.F.K. Stadium, Washington, D.C. -6/4/1971—rain delay 0:17 at start, Athletics 6 Senators 3 in 5:19-6159 fans—finished at 1:36 A.M. in the early morning of 6/5.

National League (29)

Boston Braves/Bees/Braves (5)

21—Braves (later Nickerson) Field, Boston, Massachusetts — 8/1/1918 — Pirates 2 Braves 0.

26 — Braves (later Nickerson) Field, Boston, Massachusetts — 5/1/1920 — Robins (later Dodgers) 1 Braves 1 in 3:50 — 4000 fans — finished at 6:50 P.M.

22 — Braves (later Nickerson) Field, Boston, Massachusetts — 5/17/1927 — Cubs 4 Braves 3 in 4:13.

23 — Bee Hive (later Braves Field, then Nickerson Field), Boston, Massachusetts — 6/27/1939 — Dodgers 2 Bees (later Braves) 2 in 5:15 — 2457 fans.

20—Bee Hive (later Braves Field, then Nickerson Field), Boston, Massachusetts — 7/5/1940—Dodgers 6 Bees (later Braves) 2 in 5:19—3881 fans—finished at 8:19 P.M.

Brooklyn Robins (1)

22—Ebbets Field, Brooklyn, New York— 8/22/1917—Robins (later Dodgers) 6 Pirates 5 in 4:15 in 1st game, Pirates 0 Robins 0 in 2 innings in 2nd game, called off—1st game finished at 5:45 P.M.

Chicago Cubs (3)

21—Weeghman Park (later Cubs' Park, then Wrigley Field), Chicago, Illinois—7/17/1918—Cubs 2 Phillies 1 in 4:00—finished at 7:00 P.M.

20—Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois—8/28/ 1930—Cardinals 8 Cubs 7 in 4:10.

21—Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois—8/17/1982 and 8/18/1982—Dodgers 2 Cubs 1 in 6:10, suspended after 5:10 and 17 innings—26,576 fans on 8/17, 27,429 fans on 8/18—suspended at 6:45 P.M. on 8/17, finished at 12:05 P.M. on 8/18.

Cincinnati Reds (2)

20—League Park (I), Cincinnati, Ohio—6/30/ 1892—Colts (later Cubs) 7 Reds 7 in 3:20—1300 fans.

21—Crosley Field, Cincinnati, Ohio — 9/1/1967 — Giants 1 Reds 0 in 5:40—13,745 fans, 200 fans at end —finished at 1:45 A.M. in the early morning of 9/2.

Florida Marlins (1)

20—Pro Player Stadium, Miami, Florida—4/27/ 2003—Cardinals 7 Marlins 6 in 6:07—10,075 fans finished at 7:12 P.M.

Houston Colt .45s/Astros (2)

24 — Astrodome, Houston, Texas — 4/15/1968 — Astros 1 Mets 0 in 6:06 — 14,219 fans, 3000 fans at end — finished at 1:37 A.M. in the early morning of 4/16.

22 — Astrodome, Houston, Texas — 6/3/1989 — Astros 5 Dodgers 4 in 7:14 — 34,425 fans — finished at 2:50 A.M. in the early morning of 6/4.

Montreal Expos (2)

21—Stade Olympique (Olympic Stadium), Montreal, Province of Quebec, Canada — 5/21/1977 — Padres 11 Expos 8 in 5:33—16,892 fans, 8000 fans at end —finished at 1:15 A.M. in the early morning of 5/22.

22 — Stade Olympique (Olympic Stadium), Montreal, Province of Quebec, Canada — 8/23/1989 — Dodgers 1 Expos 0 in 6:14 — 21,742 fans — finished at 1:25 A.M. in the early morning of 8/24.

New York Mets (2)

23 — Shea Stadium, New York, New York — 5/31/1964 — Giants 8 Mets 6 in 7:23 in 2nd game, Giants 5 Mets 3 in 2:29 in 1st game — 57,037 fans, 8000 fans at end — 2nd game finished at 11:25 P.M.

25—Shea Stadium, New York, New York— 9/11/1974—Cardinals 4 Mets 3 in 7:04—13,460 fans, 1000 fans at end including Commissioner Bowie Kuhn—finished at 3:13 A.M. in the early morning of 9/12.

Philadelphia Phillies (5)

20—Huntingdon Street Grounds (later National League Park (III), then Baker Bowl), Philadelphia, Pennsylvania—8/24/1905—Cubs 2 Phillies 1 in 4:00-5457 fans.

20— National League Park (III) (later Baker Bowl), Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 4/30/1919 — Robins (later Dodgers) 9 Phillies 9 in 4:00.

20— Baker Bowl, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania— 1/30/1921— intrasquad Phillies spring training exhibition — Mutts 0 Jeffs 0.

20—Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania— 5/4/1973—Phillies 5 Braves 4 in 5:16—10,158 fans finished at 12:51 A.M. in the early morning of 5/5.

20— Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania—7/7/1993—Phillies 7 Dodgers 6 in 6:10—41,730 fans—finished at 1:47 A.M. in the early morning of 7/8.

Pittsburgh Pirates (2)

21—Forbes Field, Pittsburg (later Pittsburgh), Pennsylvania—7/17/1914—Giants 3 Pirates 1 in 3:42.

20— Three Rivers Stadium, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania—7/6/1980— Pirates 5 Cubs 4 in 5:31—25,994 fans—finished at 6:36 P.M.

St. Louis Browns/Cardinals (1)

20- Sportsman's Park (III), St. Louis, Missouri-

4/10/1898 — Western League at National League spring training exhibition — St. Louis Browns 12 Milwaukee Brewers 11 in 3:20.

San Diego Padres (3)

21—San Diego (later Jack Murphy, then Qualcomm) Stadium, San Diego, California — 9/24/1971— Astros 2 Padres 1 in 5:25 in 1st game, then Padres 5 Astros 4 in 2:14 in 2nd game, fog delay 0:14 bottom 9th — 6339 fans —1st game finished at 11:31 P.M., 2nd game finished at 2:29 A.M. in the early morning of 9/25.

20—San Diego (later Jack Murphy, then Qualcomm) Stadium, San Diego, California—8/15/1980— Astros 3 Padres 1 in 6:17—14,177 fans—finished at 1:26 A.M. in the early morning of 8/16.

22—Petco Park, San Diego, California— 4/17/2008—Rockies 2 Padres 1 in 6:16—25,984 fans—finished at 1:21 A.M. in the early morning of 4/18.

Evolution of Records for Longest Game by Innings

3 – New All-Time Intra-Squad and Amateur Intra-Squad Records, First-Ever 3-Inning Game – Elysian Fields, Hoboken, New Jersey –10/6/1845 – New York Knickerbocker Club Team A 11 New York Knickerbocker Club Team B 8 – first-ever organized team intra-squad game, 7 players on each side.

4 – New All-Time and Amateur Records; First-Ever 4-Inning Game – Elysian Fields, Hoboken, New Jersey -10/21/1845 – New York Base Ball Club 24 Brooklyn Base Ball Club 4 – 8 players on each side.

5 – New All-Time Intra-Squad and Amateur Intra-Squad Records, First-Ever 5-Inning Game – Elysian Fields, Hoboken, New Jersey –10/??/1845 – New York Knickerbocker Club Team A 33 New York Knickerbocker Club Team B 26 – 7 players on each side.

10— New All-Time Practice and Amateur Practice Records, First-Ever Non-Official Extra-Inning Game, First-Ever 10-Inning Game — Elysian Fields, Hoboken, New Jersey — 11/18/1845 — William R. Wheaton's Team 51 William H. Tucker's Team 42 - 21-Run Rule called for the team that scored 21 runs first to be declared the winner, so the two teams must have had several ties at the end of innings, or they must have both exploded offensively in the tenth inning.

4 – Equaled All-Time and Amateur Records – Elysian Fields, Hoboken, New Jersey – 6/19/1846 – New York Base Ball Club 21 New York Knickerbocker Baseball Club Second Team 1–first-ever game between two organized teams.

?—New California Record — Plaza (later Portsmouth Square), San Francisco — 2/3/1851—Amateur — game involving some visiting members of the New York Knickerbocker Club.

8 — New All-Time and Amateur Records, First-Ever 8-Inning Game — Red House Grounds, New York, New York — 6/3/1851— New York Knickerbocker Baseball Club 21 Washington (later Gotham) Baseball Club 11. 10—New All-Time and Amateur Records; First-Ever Official Extra-Inning Game—Elysian Fields, Hoboken, New Jersey—6/17/1851—New York Knickerbocker Baseball Club 22 Washington (later Gotham) Baseball Club 20.

?— New Illinois Record — Lockport — 8/5/1851— Joliet at Lockport.

16 — New All-Time and Amateur Records; First-Ever 16-Inning Game — Red House Grounds, New York, New York — 6/27/1852 — Gotham Baseball Club 21 New York Knickerbocker Baseball Club 16.

6—First-Ever 6-Inning Game—Red House Grounds, New York, New York—7/16/1853—New York Knickerbockers 21 New York Gothams 12—firstever game with a box score.

16—Equaled All-Time and Amateur Records— Red House Grounds, New York, New York— 6/30/1854—Gotham Baseball Club defeated New York Knickerbocker Baseball Club.

12 — New All-Time Non-Decision and Amateur Non-Decision Records; First-Ever 12-Inning Game — Red House Grounds, New York, New York —10/26/ 1854 — Gotham Baseball Club 12 New York Knickerbocker Baseball Club 12 — first-ever tie game.

7 — First-Ever 7-Inning Game — Elysian Fields, Hoboken, New Jersey — 6/15/1855 — Empire Club 21 Eagle Club 19.

9 – First-Ever 9-Inning Game – Lee Avenue Grounds, Brooklyn, New York – 7/15/1856 – Amateur – Harmony Base Ball Club 21 Continental Base Ball Club 15 – 21-Run Rule called for the team that scored 21 runs first to be declared the winner.

3- New Oceania and Australian Records – Carlton Gardens Exhibition Grounds, Melbourne, State of Victoria – 2/21 or 28/1857 – Amateur – Collingwood 350 Richmond 230 – rules called for a run to be counted each time a baserunner reached a new base.

9 – New All-Time 9-Inning Rules and Amateur 9-Inning Rules Records – Madison Square, New York, New York – 5/??/1857 – Amateur – New York Knickerbocker Baseball Club intrasquad game – first-ever game played under new 3/7/1857 rules establishing 9 innings as length of game unless tied.

?—New Minnesota Record—Nininger— ?/?/1857—Amateur.

33 - New Massachusetts Rules Record - Boston Common, Boston, Massachusetts - 5/31/1858 - Amateur - Holliston Winthrops 100 Boston Olympics 27 - there was only one out for each team in an inning - 300 fans.

64 — New Massachusetts Rules Record — Foxboro, Massachusetts — 6/19/1858 — Amateur — South Walpole Rough and Readys 99 Foxboro 99 in 6:00-100Rule called for the team that scored 100 runs first to be declared the winner, there was only one out for each team in an inning, called when the Rough and Ready catcher was knocked unconscious by a bat swung by a Foxboro batter — finished at 7:30 P.M.

9-New Kentucky Record-Louisville-7/14/

1858 — Amateur — Louisville Base Ball Club Team A 52 Louisville Base Ball Club Team B 41.

9- New All-Star Record – Fashion Race Course, Flushing, New York – 7/20/1858 – Amateur – All New York Nine 22 All Brooklyn Nine 18 – 7800 fans – first-ever all-star game and first-ever game for which fans had to pay an admission fee.

9 — New Illinois Record — Chicago — 8/19/1858 — Amateur — Excelsiors vs. Unions.

?— New High School Record — Worcester, Massachusetts —?/??/1859 — Worcester High School vs. ????.

21— New Massachusetts Rules California Record — Petaluma, California — 5/17/1859 — Amateur — C.I. Robinson's Eleven Picked Men 21 M. Parker's Eleven Picked Men 6, then Robinson 8 Parker 6, then Robinson 8 Parker 6 — they played for an oyster and champagne dinner.

26 — New College Massachusetts Rules Record — Young Ladies Institute Town Lot, Pittsfield, Massachusetts — 7/1/1859 — Inter-Collegiate Association — Amherst College Lord Jeffs 73 Williams College Ephs 32 in 3:30—150 fans — finished at 2:30 P.M. — Massachusetts Rules called for the team that scored 65 runs first to be declared the winner.

9 – New Louisiana Record – Delachaise Estate, New Orleans – 7/??/1859 – Amateur – Louisiana Base Ball Club Team A vs. Louisiana Base Ball Club Team B intrasquad game.

105½— New Massachusetts Rules Record — Stone Park, Ashland, Massachusetts — 7/28/1859 and 7/29/1859 — Amateur — Unions of Medway 100 Excelsiors of Upton 78 in 14:10, dinner delay 0:20, suspended after 10:10 and 85 innings —100 Rule called for the team that scored 100 runs first to be declared the winner, there was only one out for each team in an inning, Medway scored its 100 th run in the top of the 106 th inning and under rules then in effect Upton did not get a chance to even the score in the bottom of the 106 th, so the game lasted 105½ innings rather than 106 innings — 7000 fans on 7/28 — on 7/28 play began at 9:00 A.M., dinner delay began 12:00 Noon, play began again at 12:20 P.M., suspended at 7:30 P.M., on 7/29 play began again 8:00 A.M., finished 12:00 Noon.

10—New National Association Record — Hoboken, New Jersey or New York, New York — 8/4/1859 — Amateur — New York Mutuals 19 Hobokens 15.

9 – Equaled Louisiana Record – New Orleans – 9/15/1859 and 9/23/1859 – Amateur – Empire Base Ball Club 77 Louisiana Base Ball Club 64, suspended after 6 innings.

9 – New California Record –17th and Bryant Streets Ballfield, near Centre's Bridge (later South of Market), San Francisco – 2/22/1860 – Amateur – San Francisco Base Ball Club 33 Red Rovers 33, rhubarb delay top 10th, game forfeited to San Francisco.

9 – New Indiana Record – Goose Pasture, South Bend – Spring 1860 – Amateur – South Bend Hoosiers Team A vs. South Bend Hoosiers Team B intrasquad game. 31— New College Massachusetts Rules Record — Moseley's Horse Track Park, Westfield, Massachusetts — 7/4/1860— Inter-Collegiate Association — Amherst College Lord Jeffs 70 Williams College Ephs 40 in 3:40—finished at 1:00 P.M. — rules called for team that scored 65 runs first to be declared the winner.

9 – New Michigan Record – Detroit – 7/17/ 1860 – Amateur – Detroit 25 Early Riser 22.

9 – New African-American Record – Hoboken, New Jersey – 9/28/1860 – Amateur – Weeksville Nine of New York 11 Colored Union Club 0.

172 - New Massachusetts Rules Record - Agricultural Grounds, Worcester, Massachusetts – 9/25/1860 and 9/26/1860 and 9/27/1860 and 9/28/1860 and 10/1/1860 and 10/4/1860 and 10/5/1860-Excelsiors of Upton 50 Union of Medway 29 in 21:50, dinner and rain delay 0:20 bottom 13th on 9/25, suspended on 9/25 after 2:40 and 121/2 innings with the score Upton 5 Medway 4, rain delay 2:30 bottom 13th on 9/26, suspended on 9/26 after 5:40 and 341/2 innings with the score Upton 8 Medway 7, lunch delay 0:20 on 9/27, suspended on 9/27 after 12:50 and 831/2 innings with the score Upton 23 Medway 15, suspended on 9/28 after 17:20 and 1361/2 innings with the score Upton 38 Medway 25, scheduled to resume on 10/1 in Springfield, Massachusetts but then decided to resume instead on 10/4 in Worcester, rain delay top 173rd on 10/4, suspended on 10/4 after 21:50 and 172 innings with the score Upton 50 Medway 29, rain delay top 173rd on 10/5, game called after 21:50 and 172 innings -100 Rule called for the team that scored 100 runs first to be declared the winner but after five days of play and two days of postponements and much rain the game was finally declared over with the winner having scored only 50, there was only one out for each team in an inning -4000 fans on 9/26 - on 9/25 play began 10:00 A.M., dinner/rain delay began 12:40 P.M., suspended 1:00 P.M.; on 9/26 rain delay began 10:30 A.M., play began 1:00 P.M., suspended 4:00 P.M.; on 9/27 play began 9:30 A.M., lunch delay began 12:40 P.M., play began again 1:00 P.M., suspended 5:00 P.M.; on 9/28 play began 11:30 A.M., suspended 4:00 P.M.; on 10/1 play scheduled to resume in Springfield but never did; on 10/4 play began 8:30 A.M., suspended by rain 12:00 Noon; on 10/5 play scheduled to resume but never did because of rain.

?— New Ice Record — Ice Pond, Union Springs, New York — one week or two weeks after 12/21/1860— Syracuse vs. Union Springs — game played on the ice with each player on ice skates.

?— New US Military and US Army vs. Professional Records — President's Park (later Ellipse), Washington, Dc - 7/?/1861—71st New York Regiment 41 Washington Nationals 13.

9 – New Colorado Record – Court House Square, Denver – 4/26/1862 – Colorado Base Ball Club Huff's Team A 20 Colorado Base Ball Club Team B 7; then Team A 9 Team B 8; then Team A vs. Team B in 7 innings.

?- New US Military and US Army vs. Professional

Records — President's Park (later Ellipse), Washington, Dc —?/??/1862 — Washington Nationals 28 71st New York Regiment 13 — some of the 71st New York Regiment's best players had been killed in action at the 7/21/1861 Battle of Bull Run just weeks after the 1861 game between these two teams.

?— New US Military and US Army Records — Drill Field, either Massachusetts or Pennsylvania —?/??/ 1862—13th Massachusetts Regiment vs. 51st Pennsylvania Regiment.

?— New US Military, US Army, and Confederate States of America (CSA) Records — along the Cickahominy River in Virginia, during General McClellan's march to Richmond —?/??/1862 —"Irish" Brigade Team A vs. "Irish" Brigade Team B — numerous Confederate sentries were the fans.

?— New US Military and US Army Records — unknown location —?/??/1862 — 57th New York Regiment vs. 69th New York Regiment — incoming Confederate artillery ended this game prematurely.

?— New US Military and US Army Records — unknown location —?/??/1862 — 2nd Brigade, 2nd Division, Army of the Potomac vs. Honey Run Club.

?— New US Military, US Army, and Confederate States of America (CSA) Records — Confederate Prisoner-of-War Camp, Salisbury, North Carolina — ????/1862 — Union Army Prisoners Team A vs. Union Army Prisoners Team B.

?- New US Military, US Army, and Confederate States of America (CSA) Records – Hilton Head, South Carolina –12/25/1862 –165th New York Volunteer Infantry Regiment Second Duryea's Zouaves vs. Other New York Regiments' All Stars – 40,000 fans (all Union troops).

?— New CSA Military, CSA Army, and Confederate States of America (CSA) Records — unknown location —?/??/1863 — 24th Alabama Regiment Team A vs. 24th Alabama Regiment Team B — while awaiting General Sherman's advance.

?— New US Military and US Army Records — unknown location —?/??/1863 — games involving four teams, 26th Pennsylvania Regiment, 22nd Massachusetts Regiment, 13th New York Regiment, and 62nd New York Volunteers Regiment — constant bickering about whether to use New York or Massachusetts Rules.

?- New US Military and US Army Records -unknown location --?/??/1863 --1st Rhode Island Light Artillery Regiment vs. 13th Massachusetts Regiment.

?— New US Military, US Army, and Confederate States of America (CSA) Records — near Chancellorsville, Virginia —?/??/1863 — Battery B, 1st New Jersey Artillery Team A vs. Battery B, 1st New Jersey Artillery Team B — before the Battle of Chancellorsville.

?- New US Military, US Army, and Confederate States of America (CSA) Records – near Alexandria, Texas –?/??/1863 – Union Army Team A vs. Union Army Team B – Confederate troops attacked during the game, capturing the ball and the center fielder. ?— New US Military, US Army, and Confederate States of America (CSA) Records — Yorktown, Virginia —?/??/1863 — 9th New York Regiment First Team 34 51st New York Regiment First Team 31.

?—New US Military, US Army, and Confederate States of America (CSA) Records—Yorktown, Virginia—?/??/1863 (a few days later)—9th New York Regiment Second Team 58 51st New York Regiment Second Team 19.

?—New Rhode Island Record—Providence— 8/29/1863—Amateur—Harvard College defeated Brown College Class of 1865.

?— New US Military, US Army, and Confederate States of America (CSA) Records—near Franklin, Louisiana—2/??/1864—8th Vermont Regiment 21 114th Vermont Regiment 9.

?— New US Military and US Army Records — unknown location —?/??/1864 — 2nd New Jersey Volunteers Regiment defeated 77th New York Volunteers Regiment All Stars by forfeit.

?— New US Military and US Army Records — Brandy Station, New Jersey —?/??/1864 —10th Masschusetts Infantry Regiment 15 1st New Jersey Artillery Regiment 13.

- New CSA Military, CSA Army, and Confederate States of America (CSA) Records – Union Prisoner-of-War Camp, Sandusky, Ohio –?/??/1864 –11th Mississippi Regiment Prisoner Confederates 19 11th Mississippi Regiment Prisoner Southerners 11.

?— New USA Military, US Army, CSA Military, and CSA Army Records — near Appomattox Courthouse, Virginia — 4/9/1865 — Union Army vs. Confederate Army — after General Lee's surrender to General Grant.

?— New US Military and US Army Records — unknown location —?/??/1865 — Championship of the Army of the Potomac — 20th Massachusetts Volunteer Infantry Regiment won.

5 — New US Military vs. Amateur Record — Northampton, Massachusetts — 8/1/1865 — Florence Eagles of Northampton 30 27th Massachusetts Volunteer Infantry Regiment/10th Massachusetts Regiment 3 — Massachusetts Rules were used.

13 — New National Association Record; First-Ever 13-Inning Game — Brooklyn or New York, New York — 6/6/1865 — Amateur — New York Gothams 19 Brooklyn Enterprise 18.

9 – New West Virginia Record – Wheeling – 8/1/ 1865 – Amateur – Union Base Ball Club of Washington (Pennsylvania) 45 Hunkidori Base Ball Club of Wheeling 12.

9 — New Connecticut Record — Hartford or New Haven — 5/26/1866 — Amateur — Charter Oak 18 Yale University 15.

9 – First-Ever Massachusetts Rules 9-Inning Game – Mr. Howard's Lands off Railroad Avenue, Elkton, Maryland – 7/17/1866 – Amateur – Elkton Eclipses 62 St. Georges of Delaware 37 in 5:50– finished at 6:50 P.M.

7-New College Record-Bower City Club

Ballfield, Janesville, Wisconsin—10/13/1866—Beloit College Olympians 61 Bower City 8.

9 – New Missouri Record – St. Louis – 5/9/1867 – Amateur – Union 36 Pickwick 20.

9 – New All-Time U.S. President-in-Attendance Record – National Base Ball Association Grounds, Washington, Dc = 8/26/1867 - New York Mutuals 40 Washington Nationals 16 – 6000 fans included 17th President Andrew Johnson.

7 – New Negro World Series Record – Satellite Grounds, Brooklyn, New York –10/3/1867 – Philadelphia Excelsiors 42 Brooklyn Uniques 37.

?— New Cuban Record — Matanzas —?/??/1868 — Amateur — Habana defeated USA Schooner Crew.

9 — New Maine Record — Portland — 6/13/1868 — Amateur — Eon of Portland 37 Pioneer of Westbrook 11.

?- New Idaho Record - Public Square, Boise -?/??/1869 - Amateur - Boise Pioneer Baseball Club vs. All Comers.

9 – New Professional vs. Amateur Record – Union Grounds, Cincinnati, Ohio – 4/17/1869 – Cincinnati Red Stockings 24 Field Nine 15 – first game ever played by a professional team.

9 – New Professional Record – Union Grounds, Brooklyn, New York – 6/14/1869 – Cincinnati Red Stockings 4 New York Mutuals 2 – first-ever game played between two professional teams.

9 – New West Virginia Record – Farmington – 6/26/1869 – Amateur – Excelsiors of Farmington 45 Franklin of White Rock 39.

9 — New Connecticut Record — Waterbury — 7/31/ 1869 — Washington Nine 16 Waterbury Club 12.

9 - Equaled Connecticut Record – Washington Green, Washington – 8/6/1869 – Washington Nine 34 Weantinaug Club 18 – 24 fans.

9 – Equaled Connecticut Record – Woodbury – 8/6/1869 – Washington Nine 71 Woodbury Club 15 in 3:20.

9 – New Caucasian-American vs. African-American Record – Philadelphia, Pennsylvania – 9/??/1869 – Olympics (Caucasian-American) 44 Pythians (African-American) 23.

4—New Asian and Hong Kong Records—Cricket-Ground, Hong Kong—11/20/1869—Amateur— Meig's American Squadron Team defeated Wilson's American Squadron Team by one or two runs.

9 – Equaled California Record – San Francisco – 4/9/1870 – Amateur – Eagles of San Francisco 32 Santa Clara 22.

9 – Equaled Professional vs. Amateur Record – Dexter Park, Chicago, Illinois – 6/8/1870 – Chicago White Stockings (amateur) 15 Forest Citys of Cleveland (professional) 0.

11— New Professional Record; First-Ever 11-Inning Game — Capitoline Grounds, Brooklyn, New York — 6/14/1870— Brooklyn Atlantics 8 Cincinnati Reds 7.

6 – New European and Swiss Records – Zurich – 6/between 19 and 26/1870 – Team A 35 Team B 13.

10-New Professional vs. Amateur Record - Troy,

New York – 6/8/1870 – Chicago White Stockings (amateur) 25 Troy Haymakers (professional) 21.

?— New US Military, US Army, and South Dakota Records — along the Missouri River in the Dakota Territory — during 1870 and 1871— General Custer's 7th US Cavalry Team A vs. General Custer's 7th US Cavalry Team B.

9- New Major League Record – Olympics Grounds, Washington, DC – 4/22/1871- National Association – Washington Olympics 36 Washington Nationals 12 – when played this was considered a league game, and would therefore have been the first major league baseball game ever played, however the Nationals subsequently were dropped from the league because they failed to pay their \$10 league dues, and their five games were dropped from the league standings in mid–July 1871.

9 – Equaled Major League Record – Grand Duchess, Fort Wayne, Indiana – 5/4/1871 – National Association – Fort Wayne Kekiongas 2 Cleveland Forest Citys 0 – 200 fans – first major league game ever played, or the second if you count the Olympics-Nationals game on 4/22/1871.

10— New Major League Record — Grand Duchess, Fort Wayne, Indiana — 5/23/1871— National Association — Rockford Forest Citys 17 Fort Wayne Kekiongas 13 — on Dec 1, 1871 this game was awarded to Fort Wayne as a 9–0 forfeit win because Rockford had used an ineligible player.

7 – First-Ever 7-Inning Game – Haymakers' Grounds, Troy, New York – 7/27/1871 – Washington Olympics 3 Troy Haymakers 3.

11—Equaled Professional Record — South End Grounds (I), Boston, Massachusetts —10/16/1871— National Association exhibition — Boston Red Stockings 5 New York Mutuals 4 — after the regularly scheduled game was awarded to Boston as a 9–0 forfeit win, the two teams decided to play this exhibition game, so it was not an official game.

9 – New South Dakota Record – Fort Dakota, Sioux Falls –?/??/1872 – Frank Pettigrew's Sioux Falls Team 36 Vermillion 32.

11—Equaled Professional Record, New Major League Record — Newington Park, Baltimore, Maryland — 4/25/1872 — National Association — New York Mutuals 13 Lord Baltimores 11.

9 – New Connecticut Record – Mansfield Club Grounds, Middletown – 5/2/1872 – National Association – Middletown Mansfields 8 Brooklyn Atlantics 2.

11—Equaled Professional and Major League Records—Union Grounds, Brooklyn, New York— 6/10/1872—National Association—Boston Red Stockings 3 New York Mutuals 2.

11—Equaled Professional and Major League Records—Capitoline Grounds, Brooklyn, New York—7/29/1872—National Association—Boston Red Stockings 17 Brooklyn Atlantics 12.

12 — New Professional and Major League Records — Union Grounds, Brooklyn, New York — 8/8/1872 — National Association — Lord Baltimores 12 New York Mutuals 8.

?— New US Military and US Army Records — First Regiment Encampment, Boston, Massachusetts — 8/9/1872 — First Regiment — Boiled Rice Associates of Company K 30 Hash Chewers of Company E 15.

12—Equaled Professional Record—Union Grounds, Brooklyn, New York—10/9/1872—National Association exhibition—Philadelphia Athletics 9 New York Mutuals 7.

?— New Arizona Record — Camp Grant —12/25/ 1872 — Camp Grant Team A vs. Camp Grant Team B —finished at 1:00 P.M. when the welcome call to dinner was wafted.

13 — New Professional and Major League Records, Equaled National Association Record — Jefferson Street Grounds (I), Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 5/14/1873 — Philadelphia White Stockings 5 Philadelphia Athletics 4.

13 — Equaled Professional, Major League, and National Association Records — Jefferson Street Grounds (I), Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 7/21/1873 — Lord Baltimores 12 Philadelphia Athletics 11.

9—New Asian, Japanese, and Japanese College Records—Kaisei Gakko (Tokyo University)— ?/??/1873.

14 — New Professional, Major League, and National Association Records; First-Ever 14-Inning Game — Union Grounds, Brooklyn, New York — 9/12/1873 — Philadelphia White Stockings 3 Brooklyn Atlantics 2.

10— New European and English Records — Edgehill Cricket Grounds, Liverpool — 7/30/1874 — National Association exhibition — Philadelphia Athletics 14 Boston Red Stockings 11.

9 – Equaled South Dakota Record – Black Hills – 8/?/1874 – US Army 7th Cavalry during General Custer's first expedition – Activities 11 Benteen's 7.

9 — Equaled South Dakota Record — Black Hills — 8/?/189 — 74 — US Army 7th Cavalry during General Custer's first expedition — Benteen's 17 Activities 10.

9 – New Irish Record – Cricket Grounds, Dublin – 8/24/1874 – National Association exhibition – Philadelphia Athletics 15 Boston Red Stockings 4.

9 – New Caribbean and Cuban Records – Palmar del Junco, Pueblo Nuevo, Province of Matanzas – 12/27/1874 – Amateur – Club Habana 51 Club Matanzas 9.

9 – New Game-on-A-Farm and National Association Game-on-A-Farm Records – Walte's Pasture, Keokuk, Iowa – 5/4/1875 – Chicago White Stockings 15 Keokuk Westerns 1– outfielders sometimes fell into the two lakes in center field.

5¹/₂ – New Hawaiian King-in-Attendance Record – Honolulu –?/??/1875 – Athletes 38 Pensacolas 33 in 3:00, called due to darkness – fans included 7th Hawaiian king David Kalakaua.

9 — New National League Record — Jefferson Street Grounds (I), Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 4/22/ 1876 — Boston Red Caps (later Braves) 6 Philadelphia Athletics 5.

10—New National League Record—South End Grounds (I), Boston, Massachusetts—4/29/1876— Hartford Dark Blues 3 Boston Red Caps (later Beaneaters, then Braves) 2.

12—New National League Record—Union Grounds, Brooklyn, New York—5/2/1876—New York Mutuals 3 Philadelphia Athletics 2 in 2:50.

9 – New All-Time 1–0, Professional 1–0, Major League 1–0, and National League 1–0 Records – Sportsman's Park (I), St. Louis, Missouri – 5/5/1876 – St. Louis Brown Stockings 1 Chicago White Stockings 0.

9 – New College Record – Cambridge, Massachusetts or Providence, Rhode Island – 5/13/1876 – Harvard College Crimson 10 Brown College Bears 7.

14 — Equaled Professional and Major League Records, New National League Record — Jefferson Street Grounds (I), Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 5/25/ 1876 — Louisville Grays 2 Philadelphia Athletics 2.

17 — New Amateur Record — Providence, Rhode Island — 6/7/1876 — Rhode Island 4 Taunton 2.

10— New All-Time 1–0, Professional 1–0, Major League 1–0, and National League 1–0 Records— Union Grounds, Brooklyn, New York—6/10/1876— New York Mutuals 1 Cincinnati Red Stockings 0.

15 — New Professional, Major League, and National League Records; First-Ever 15-Inning Game — St. James Court, Louisville, Kentucky — 7/8/1876 — New York Mutuals 5 Louisville Grays 5.

?—New US Military, US Army, and Montana Records — near the Battlesite of the Little Big Horn several days before the 6/25/1876 Battle of the Little Big Horn — Captain Frederick Benteen's H Company, 7th US Cavalry 51 another US Army Cavalry Company 3.

16 — Equaled All-Time Record; New Professional, Major League, and National League Records — St. James Court, Louisville, Kentucky — 7/10/1876 — New York Mutuals 8 Louisville Grays 5.

10— New Semi-Pro vs. Major League in-Season Exhibition Record — Columbus, Ohio — 8/28/1876 — National League at Semi-Pro — Cincinnati Reds 3 Columbus Buckeys 3.

10—Equaled Semi-Pro vs. Major League In-Season Exhibition Record — New Castle, Pennsylvania — 8/30/1876 — National League at Semi-Pro — Louisville Grays 3 New Castle Neshannacks 2.

10—New Minor League Record—Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania—4/23/1877—League Alliance at International Association—Allegheny 3 Syracuse Stars 2.

12 — New Minor League vs. Amateur Record — Lynn, Massachusetts — 4/23/1877 — Amateur at International Association — Lynn 4 Boston Our Boys 3.

15 — New All-Time 0–0, Professional 0–0, Minor League vs. Major League 0–0, and Spring Training 0–0 Records — Sportsman's Park (I), St. Louis, Missouri — 5/1/1877 — League Alliance at National League — Syracuse Stars 0 St. Louis Brown Stockings 0. 24 — New All-Time, All-Time 0–0, Minor League vs. College, and Minor League vs. College 0–0 Records; First-Ever 24-Inning Game — South End Grounds (I), Boston, Massachusetts — 5/11/1877 — International Association at American Collegiate Association — Manchester Professionals 0 Harvard College Crimson 0 in 3:30.

16 — New Minor League Inter-League Record; Equaled Professional Record — Erie, Pennsylvania — 5/24/1877 — International Association at League Alliance — Erie 5 Lynn 4.

19 — New Professional and Minor League Inter-League Records; First-Ever 19-Inning Game — Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 6/2/1877 — League Alliance at International Association — Memphis 3 Allegheny (later Pittsburgh) 2.

17 — First-Ever 17-Inning Game — Pittsburg (later Pittsburgh), Pennsylvania — 6/20/1877 — League Alliance at International Association — Indianapolis 2 Allegheny 2 in 3:00.

18 — New Minor League Record; First-Ever 18-Inning Game — Columbus, Ohio — 7/9/1877 — International Association — London Tecumsehs 1 Columbus Buckeyes 1.

10— New Minor League 0–0 Record — Providence, Rhode Island — 7/13/1877 — League Alliance — Lowell 0 Providence 0.

15 — New Minor League vs. Major League, All-Time 1–0, Professional 1–0, and Minor League vs. Major League 1–0 Records — Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 9/1/1877 — National League at International Association — Alleghany 1 St. Louis Brown Stockings 0.

21— New Amateur vs. High School Record; First-Ever 21-Inning Game — Girard Field, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 6/29/1878 — Amateur at High School — Yeager 10 Girard College High School Orphans (later Cavaliers) 7 in 4:00.

15 — Equaled All-Time 1–0 and Professional 1–0 Records; New Minor League 1–0 Record — Lynn, Massachusetts — 5/7/1878 — International Association — Lynn Live Oaks 1 Binghamton Crickets 0.

9 – New South Dakota Record – Flats, Sioux Falls – 7/4/1878 – Amateur – Union Base Ball Club of Washington (Pennsylvania) 45 Hunkidori Base Ball Club of Wheeling 12.

15 — New Amateur 1–0 Record; Equaled All-Time 1–0 Record — Elysian Fields, Hoboken, New Jersey — 8/19/1878 — Junior League.

9 – New Cuban League Record; Equaled Caribbean and Cuban Records – Havana – 12/29/1878 – Habana 21 Almendares 20 – rules called for ten players per team rather than nine, with a tenth position player called the "piten" or extra shortstop.

3 - New Ice Record – Ice Lake, Prospect Park, Brooklyn, New York – 12/30/1878 - Barnie's Side 32Denham's Side 7 - game played on the ice with each player on ice skates.

8 – New Ice Record – Ice Lake, Prospect Park, Brooklyn, New York – 12/31/1878 – Barnie's Side 26 Denham's Side 21 in 1:45 – game played on the ice with each player on ice skates.

9 - New Ice Record – Ice Lake, Prospect Park, Brooklyn, New York – 2/15/1879 - Smith's Side 11 Barnie's Side 7 in 1:30 – game played on the ice with each player on ice skates.

15 – Equaled All-Time 1–0 and Amateur 1–0 Records – Campello Grounds, Brockton, Massachusetts – 5/28/1879 – Brockton Campellos 1 Maldens 0 in 2:40.

9 – Equaled African-American vs. Caucasian-American Record – Cambridge, Massachusetts – 5/28/1879 – Boston Resolutes 30 Cambridge Brown Stockings 3.

5 – New Major League 0–0 and National League 0–0 Records – Lake Park (II), Chicago, Illinois – 7/21/1879 – Providence Grays 0 Chicago White Stockings 0.

16 — Equaled Major League and National League Records — Messer Street Grounds, Providence, Rhode Island — 6/4/1880 — Chicago White Stockings 1 Providence Grays 1.

9 – New Arizona Record – Phoenix – 12/25/1880 – Phoenix Club 13 Norvall Club of Mc-Dowell 9.

18 — Equaled Minor League Record — Eclipse Park (I), Louisville, Kentucky — 6/26/1881— Akron 6 Louisville Eclipse 5.

7 — New State Legislature Record — Riverside Park, Albany, New York — 6/29/1881— Democrats 58 Stalwarts 26 in 3:00.

16—Equaled Major League and National League Records—League Park (I), Cleveland, Ohio—6/29/ 1881—Cleveland Spiders 5 Worcester Brown Stockings 3.

9 – Equaled Caribbean, Cuban, and Cuban League Records –12/4/1881– Fe 8 Esperanza 7.

10— New Caribbean, Cuban, and Cuban League Records — 3/5/1882 — Fe 10 Almendares 9 in 2:45.

9 — New American Association Record — Oakdale Park, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 5/2/1882 — Philadelphia Athletics 10 Baltimore Orioles 7.

11— New American Association Record — Newington Park, Baltimore, Maryland — 5/18/1882 — St. Louis Browns 4 Baltimore Orioles 3.

12 — New American Association Record — Eclipse Park (I), Louisville, Kentucky — 6/10/1882 — Louisville Colonels 10 Philadelphia Athletics 5.

14 – New American Association Record – Bank Street Grounds, Cincinnati, Ohio – 6/22/1882 – Cincinnati Reds 5 Pittsburgh Alleghenys 2.

18 — New Major League, National League, All-Time 1–0, Professional 1–0, Major League 1–0, and National League 1–0 Records — Messer Street Grounds, Providence, Rhode Island — 8/17/1882 — Providence Grays 1 Detroit Wolverines 0 in 2:40.

19 — New Amateur Tie-Game Record — Grove, Pennsylvania or Camden, New Jersey — 8/22/1882 — Actives of Reading 3 Merrit Club of Camden 3. 9—New World Series Record—Bank Street Grounds, Cincinnati, Ohio—10/6/1882—National League at American Association—Cincinnati Reds 4 Chicago White Stockings 0 in 1:40.

9 – New Vatican Record – Intramural Baseball Field at Grottaferrata –?/??/1883 – Pontifical North American College Team A vs. Pontifical North American College Team B.

11— New College and ACA Records — Amherst, Massachusetts — 5/11/1883 — American Collegiate Association — Amherst College Jeffs 9 Brown College Bears 6.

14 — New Minor League Decision Record — Anthracite Park, Pottsville, Pennsylvania — 7/??/1883 — Interstate Association — Camden Merritts 7 Pottsville Anthracite Coal Crackers 6 in 2:30.

14 — Equaled American Association Record — Exposition Park (I) Lower Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 7/17/1883 — Alleghenys 7 New York Mets 6.

14 — Equaled American Association Record — Polo Grounds (II) Southwest Diamond, New York, New York -8/4/1883 — New York Mets 7 Pittsburgh Alleghenys 6.

?—New Italian, US Military, and US Navy Records—Campo d'Osservazione (Observation Field), Livorno—1/23/1884—U.S. Frigate Ship (USS) Lancaster Dufflecoat Sailors vs. U.S. Corvette Ship (USS) Quinnebaug Dufflecoat Sailors in 2:30 finished at 4:00 P.M.

9 – New Union Association Record – Keystone Park, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania – 4/17/1884 – Boston Reds 14 Philadelphia Keystones 2.

5—Equaled Major League 0–0 Record; New American Association 0–0 Record – League Park (I), Cincinnati, Ohio – 5/6/1884 – Indianapolis Blues 0 Cincinnati Reds 0.

11— New Union Association Record — Bank Street Grounds, Cincinnati, Ohio — 5/25/1884 — Cincinnati Outlaw Reds 8 Philadelphia Keystones 7.

13 — New Union Association Record — Columbia Park, Altoona, Pennsylvania — 5/27/1884 — Altoona Mountain Citys 3 Baltimore Monumentals 2.

15 — New American Association Record — Eclipse Park (I), Louisville, Kentucky — 7/10/1884 — Louisville Colonels 5 Baltimore Orioles 4.

11— New Union Association 0–0 Record — Belair Lot, Baltimore, Maryland — 9/19/1884 — Pittsburgh Stogies 0 Baltimore Monumentals 0.

10— New Major League 0–0 and American Association 0–0 Records — Washington Park (I), Brooklyn, New York—10/4/1884 — Toledo Blue Stockings 0 Brooklyn Bridegrooms 0.

16 — New American Association Record — League Park (I), Cincinnati, Ohio — 4/24/1885 — Pittsburgh Alleghenys 7 Cincinnati Reds 6.

6 – New National League 0–0 Record – South End Grounds (I), Boston, Massachusetts – 8/1/1885 – St. Louis Maroons 0 Boston Red Caps 0.

5-New Baseball-on-Roller-Skates Record-Ex-

position Rink, Milwaukee, Wisconsin – 5/6/1885 – Western League – Toledo 7 Milwaukee Grays 3.

5—Equaled Baseball-on-Roller-Skates Record— Exposition Rink, Milwaukee, Wisconsin— 5/13/1885—Western League—Milwaukee Grays 4 Cleveland 2; score also reported as 5–3.

14 – New College and ACA Records – Holmes Field, Cambridge, Massachusetts – 5/31/1886 – Harvard College Crimson 7 Princeton College Tigers 6.

11— New Major League 0–0 and National League 0–0 Records — Palace Park of America, St. Louis, Missouri — 9/20/1886 — Kansas City Cowboys 0 St. Louis Maroons 0.

7 – New Women's Record – Gilmore, Pennsylvania – week before 10/2/1886 – Marrieds 25 Singles 17.

10—New World Series Record — Sportsman's Park (II), St. Louis, Missouri —10/23/1886 — National League at American Association — St. Louis Browns AA 4 Chicago White Stockings NL 3 in 2:15, rain delay 5th — 8000 fans.

?—New African-American Professional Record— ?/?/1887—National Colored League.

?— New Native American, US Military, and US Army Records —?/??/1887 — Prison Ballfield, Fort Sill, Oklahoma — Geronimo's Apaches defeated U.S. Army Prison Guards.

13 — New World Series Record — Recreation Park, Detroit, Michigan —10/12/1887 — American Association at National League — Detroit Wolverines NL 2 St. Louis Browns AA 1 in 2:50 — 4509 fans.

11—Equaled Major League 0–0 and National League 0–0 Records — Polo Grounds (I) Southeast Diamond, New York, New York — 9/3/1888 — Philadelphia Phillies 0 New York Gothams 0.

0—Scheduled for Nine Innings—Almost A New Hawaiian Record—Makiki Park (later Cartwright Field), Honolulu—11/25/1888—Spalding World Tour—Chicago White Stockings vs. All-America— 1000 fans expected but ship delayed a day so game had to be moved from Saturday to Sunday and then was cancelled due to religious blue laws preventing sports on the Sabbath.

9 — New Oceania and New Zealand Records — Potter's Paddock (later Tranway Company's Grounds at Epsom), Auckland —12/10/1888 — Spalding World Tour — Chicago White Stockings 22 All-America 13 — 4500 fans.

9 – New Australian Record; Equaled Oceania Record – Sydney Cricket Association Grounds, Sydney –12/15/1888 – Spalding World Tour – All-America 5 Chicago White Stockings 4.

9 – Equaled Oceania and Australian Records – Sydney Cricket Association Grounds, Sydney – 12/17/1888 – Spalding World Tour – All-America 7 Chicago White Stockings 5.

9 – Equaled Oceania and Australian Records – Sydney Cricket Association Grounds, Sydney – 12/18/1888 – Spalding World Tour – All-America 6 Chicago White Stockings 2. 9 – Equaled Oceania and Australian Records – Melbourne Cricket Ground, Melbourne –12/22/ 1888 – Spalding World Tour – Chicago White Stockings 5 All-America 3.

9 – Equaled Oceania and Australian Records – Melbourne Cricket Ground, Melbourne – 12/24/1888 – Spalding World Tour – All-America 15 Chicago White Stockings 13.

9 — Equaled Oceania and Australian Records — Adelaide Oval, Adelaide — 12/26/1888 — Spalding World Tour — All-America 19 Chicago White Stockings 14.

9 – Equaled Oceania and Australian Records – Adelaide Oval, Adelaide – 12/27/1888 – Spalding World Tour – Chicago White Stockings 12 All-America 9.

9 — Equaled Oceania and Australian Records — Adelaide Oval, Adelaide — 12/28/1888 — Spalding World Tour — Chicago White Stockings 11 All-America 4.

9 — Equaled Oceania and Australian Records — Eastern Oval, Ballarat — 12/29/1888 — Spalding World Tour — All-America 11 Chicago White Stockings 7.

9 — Equaled Oceania and Australian Records — Melbourne Cricket Ground, Melbourne —1/1/1889 — Spalding World Tour — Chicago White Stockings 14 All-America 7.

9 — Equaled Oceania and Australian Records — Melbourne Cricket Ground, Melbourne —1/5/1889 — Spalding World Tour — Chicago White Stockings 5 All-America 0; then All-America 20 Expats 3 in 2 innings.

5 – New Ceylon (Later Sri Lanka) Record – Galle Face Green, Colombo, Ceylon (later Sri Lanka)–1/26/ 1889 – Spalding World Tour – Chicago White Stockings 3 All-Americans 3 in 2:00–finished at 6:00 P.M.

9 – New African and Egyptian Records – Great Sphinx Field, al-Jizah (Giza) – 2/9/1889 – Spalding World Tour – All-America 10 Chicago White Stockings 6.

9 – New Italian Record – Campo di Marte, Naples – 2/19/1889 – Spalding World Tour – All-America 8 Chicago White Stockings 2.

9 — Equaled Italian Record — Villa Borghese Piazza di Sienna, Rome — 2/23/1889 — Spalding World Tour — Chicago White Stockings 3 All-America 2.

9 – Equaled Vatican Record – Villa Borghese Piazza di Siena, Rome, Italy – 2/??/1889 – Pontifical North American College Team A vs. Pontifical North American College Team B.

9 – Equaled Italian Record – Cascine Park, Florence – 2/25/1889 – Spalding World Tour – All-America 7 Chicago White Stockings 4.

9 – New French Record – Parc Aerostatique, Paris – 3/8/1889 – Spalding World Tour – All-America 6 Chicago White Stockings 2.

9 – New Scotland Record – West of Scotland Cricket Club Grounds, Glasgow – 3/21/1889 – Spalding World Tour – All-Americans 8 Chicago White Stockings 4 – 4000 fans.

9 - New Northern Ireland Record - North of Ire-

land Cricket Club Grounds, Belfast — 3/24/1889 — Spalding World Tour — All-America 9 Chicago White Stockings 8 — 2550 fans.

9 – New Ireland Record – Landsdown Road Grounds, Dublin – 3/27/1889 – Spalding World Tour – All-America 4 Chicago White Stockings 3 – 4000 fans.

18 — Equaled Minor League Record — Canton, Ohio — 7/12/1889 — Canton 5 Springfield 3.

9 – New Players League Record – Brotherhood Grounds (later Congress Street Grounds), Boston, Massachusetts – 4/19/1890 – Boston Reds 3 Brooklyn Wonders 2.

12 — New Players League Record — Forepaugh Park, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 5/3/1890 — Philadelphia Quakers 8 Boston Reds 6.

12 — Equaled Players League Record — Brotherhood Grounds (later Congress Street Grounds), Boston, Massachusetts — 5/30/1890 — Boston Reds 8 Buffalo Bisons 7 in A.M. game, then Boston 10 Buffalo 3 in P.M. game.

14 — New Minor League 0–0 Record — Howard Avenue Grounds, New Haven, Connecticut — 5/30/1890 — Atlantic Association — Baltimore 0 New Haven 0 in 2nd game.

14 — New Players League Record — South Side Park (II), Chicago, Illinois — 8/4/1890 — Chicago Pirates 3 New York Giants 2.

10— New Players League 1–0 Record — Eastern Park, Brooklyn, New York — 9/9/1890— Philadelphia Quakers 1 Brooklyn Wonders 0.

9 — New Indoor Record — Farwell Avenue Battery Armory, Milwaukee, Wisconsin — 10/??/1890 — Milwaukee Indoor League — Social Circles 11 Battery Club 8 — 200 fans.

22 — New Professional and Minor League Records; First-Ever 22-Inning Game —11th Street Grounds, Tacoma, Washington — 5/16/1891— Pacific Northwest League — Tacoma Daisies 6 Seattle Blues 5 in 3:35 — 900 fans — finished at 7:05 P.M.

25 — New All-Time 0–0 and Amateur 0–0 Records; First-Ever 25-Inning Game — North Dakota State Militia Training Grounds, Devils Lake, North Dakota — 7/18/1891— Red River Valley League — Grand Forks Black Stockings 0 Fargo Red Stockings 0 in 4:10 finished at 8:10 P.M.

11—Equaled Major League 0–0 and National League 0–0 Records—West Side Park (I), Chicago, Illinois—8/31/1891—New York Giants 0 Chicago White Stockings 0.

14 — New Major League 0–0 and National League 0–0 Records — League Park (I), Cincinnati, Ohio — 5/6/1892 — Boston Beaneaters 0 Cincinnati Reds 0.

20—New Major League and National League Records; First-Ever 20-Inning Game—League Park (I), Cincinnati, Ohio—6/30/1892—Colts (later Cubs) 7 Reds 7 in 3:20—1300 fans.

2 – New Welsh Record – Cardiff –????/1892 – there are only 2 innings in Welsh baseball which is similar to rounders. 9 — Equaled English Record — Preston — 8/1?/ 1892 — Albert Lawson Expedition — USA vs. England.

11—New World Series 0–0 Record—League Park (III), Cleveland, Ohio—10/17/1892—Boston Beaneaters (National League First Half) 0 Cleveland Spiders (National League Second Half) 0.

16 — New College and ACA Records — Slag Pile Park, Birmingham, Alabama — 4/15/1893 — Vanderbilt University Commodores 2 University of Alabama Crimson Tide 2.

?— New Japanese High School Record — Dai-ichi Koto Chu Gakko (Upper Junior High School)— ?/?/1894.

?— New Native American, US Military, and US Army Records — 7/4/1894 — Prison Ballfield, Fort Sill, Oklahoma — Geronimo's Apaches vs. Duncan Town Team; winner played vs. U.S. Army Prison Guards.

?— New Puerto Rican Record —1/9/1898.

20— New All-Time Spring Training, Professional Spring Training, and Major League vs. Minor League Spring Training Records — Sportsman's Park (III), St. Louis, Missouri — 4/10/1898 — Western League at National League — St. Louis Browns 12 Milwaukee Brewers 11 in 3:20.

?— New US Virgin Islands, US Military, and US Navy Records; Equaled Caribbean Record — Charlotte Amalie, St. Thomas —?/??/1900 — Uss Dixie Auxiliary Cruiser First Division vs. Uss Dixie Auxiliary Cruiser Second Division.

17 — New American League and American Leagueas-A-Minor League Records — South Side Park (III), Chicago, Illinois — 8/19/1900 — Brewers 3 White Sox 2 in 3:10; then Brewers 1 White Sox 0 in 0:55 and 5 innings —10,500 fans.

10– New Minor League vs. Major League in-Season Exhibition Record – Norwich, Connecticut – 8/21/1900– National League at Connecticut State League – Brooklyn Superbas 5 Norwich Witches 4.

9—New American League-as-A-Major League Record — South Side Park (III), Chicago, Illinois — 4/24/1901—White Sox 8 Blues (later Indians) 2 in 1:30—9000 fans.

12 — New Semi-Provs. Major League in-Season Exhibition Record — Hoboken, New Jersey — 4/28/1901— National League at Connecticut State League — Brooklyn Superbas 4 Hoboken 1.

10— New American League-as-A-Major League Record — Columbia Park, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 4/30/1901— Americans (later Red Sox) 8 Athletics 6 in 2:20—2998 fans.

13 — New High School Record — Washington Park, Brooklyn, New York — 5/30/1901— English High School Outlaws 10 Mohawks 9.

9—Equaled US Military and US Navy Records; New US Army Record—Annapolis, Maryland— Spring 1901—Army 4 Navy 3.

14 — New American League-as-A-Major League Record — Columbia Park, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 6/24/1901— White Sox 7 Athletics 5. 16 — New American League-as-A-Major League Record — Lloyd Street Grounds, Milwaukee, Wiscon- $\sin - 7/3/1901$ — Tigers 7 Brewers 5.

9 — New American League 1–0 Record — Bennett Park, Detroit, Michigan — 7/27/1901— Tigers 1 Orioles 0.

16 — New Professional 0–0 and Minor League 0–0 Records — Baton Rouge, Louisiana or Vicksburg, Mississippi — 5/14/1902 — Cotton States League — Baton Rouge 0 Vicksburg 0.

17 — Equaled American League Record; New American League-as-A-Major League Record — South Side Park (III), Chicago, Illinois — 5/18/1902 — Browns 2 White Sox 2 in 3:22 — 15,819 fans; 10,000 fans at end.

19 — New Major League Decision and National League Decision Records — West Side Park (II), Chicago, Illinois — 6/22/1902 — Colts (later Cubs) 3 Pirates 2 in 3:07 — 10,000 fans — finished at 5:07 P.M.

17 — Equaled American League and American League-as-A-Major League Records; New American League-as-A-Major League Decision Record — Huntington Avenue Baseball Grounds, Boston, Massachusetts — 7/9/1902 — Athletics 4 Americans (later Red Sox) 2 in 2:57 — 3783 fans.

13 — New American League 1–0 Record — Bennett Park, Detroit, Michigan — 8/11/1902 — Athletics 1 Tigers 0 in 2:15 — 2300 fans.

18 — New Professional 0–0 and Minor League 0–0 Records — Baton Rouge or Monroe, Louisiana — 6/5/1903 — Cotton States League — Monroe 0 Baton Rouge 0.

18—New American League Record — South Side Park (III), Chicago, Illinois — 6/25/1903 — Highlanders (later Yankees) 6 White Sox 6 in 3:45 finished at 7:15 P.M.

15 — New American League 1–0 Record — Sportsman's Park (III) (later Robison Field), St. Louis, Missouri — 8/14/1903 — Senators 1 Browns 0, then Browns 7 Senators 2.

30—New Amateur Record; First-Ever 30-Inning Game—Van Wert, Ohio—?/??/1904—Independent Team A with Hay of Kankakee pitching 3 Independent Team B 2.

15 — Equaled American League 1–0 Record — Huntington Avenue Baseball Grounds, Boston, Massachusetts — 5/11/1904 — Red Sox 1 Tigers 0—4504 fans.

?- New Olympics, Olympics Demonstration Sport, and USA Olympics Demonstration Sport Records – Francis Field, St. Louis, Missouri – 5/18/1904 – Louisiana Purchase Exposition / Olympic Intercollegiate Competition – Indiana University Hoosiers at Washington University in St. Louis Bears – started at 3:00 P.M.

11—New American League 0–0 Record — American League Park (II), Washington, D.C.— 5/21/1904 — Tigers 0 Senators 0.

?- New Olympics, Olympics Demonstration Sport, and USA Olympics Demonstration Sport Records – Francis Field, St. Louis, Missouri – 6/5??/1904 — Louisiana Purchase Exposition /Olympic Amateur Competition — each of 12 teams to play six games each.

13 – New American League 0–0 Record – American League Park (II), Washington, D.C.– 7/22/1904 – Tigers 0 Senators 0.

10—New Junior World Series Record—Buffalo, New York—9/??/1904—American Association at Eastern League—Buffalo Bisons (El) 5 St. Paul Apostles (AA) 4.

?— New Korean Record — Ymca Woondong-jang (Stadium), Seoul —?/??/1905 — Rev. Gilbert Gillette's Ymca League.

15 — New High School 0–0 Record — Fullerton or Santa Ana, California —?/??/1905 — Fullerton High School 0 Santa Ana High School 0.

23 — New All-Time 1–0, Professional 1–0, and Minor League 1–0 Records; First-Ever 23-Inning Game — Goodwater Grove (later Oak Park, then Billy Hebert Field), Stockton, California — 7/2/1905 — California State League — Stockton Millers 1 Lodi Crushers 0 in 3:26.

20— Equaled Major League Record; New Major League Decision and American League Records — Huntington Grounds, Boston, Massachusetts — 7/4/1905 — Athletics 4 Americans (later Red Sox) 2 in 3:31 in P.M. game, Athletics 5 Americans 2 in 1:52 in A.M. game — 12,666 fans for P.M. game, 8797 fans for A.M. game.

20— Equaled Major League and National League Records; New National League Decision Record — Huntingdon Street Grounds (later National League Park (III), then Baker Bowl), Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 8/24/1905 — Cubs 2 Phillies 1 in 4:00—5457 fans.

16 — New High School Record — Stoneham, Massachusetts — 5/18/1906 — Massachusetts High School League — Saugus High School 8 Stoneham High School 5 in 3:00.

19 — New Professional 0–0 and Minor League 0–0 Records — Haines Park, Fort Worth, Texas — 7/23/ 1906 — Texas League — Cleburne Railroaders 0 Fort Worth Panthers 0 in 2:50.

24 — New Major League and American League Records — Huntington Grounds, Boston, Massachusetts — 9/1/1906 — Athletics 4 Americans (later Red Sox) 1 in 4:47, 2nd game postponed —18,084 fans finished at 6:47 P.M.

15 — New Major League 0–0 and National League 0–0 Records — Exposition Park (III), Pittsburg (later Pittsburgh), Pennsylvania — 9/11/1906 — Reds 0 Pirates 0 in 2:45.

?— New Chinese Record —?/??/1907 — Beijing Huiwen Academy vs. Tongzhou Xiehe Academy.

19 – New High School Record – Boston, Massachusetts – 5/25/1907 – Massachusetts High School League – Newton High School at Dorchester High School in tie game.

19 — New College and ACA Records — Hartford, Connecticut — 6/6/1907 — Trinity University Bantams 2 Wesleyan University Cardinals 2. 28 — New Grammar School Record; First-Ever 28-Inning Game — Dorchester Franklin Field Diamond #5, Boston, Massachusetts — 6/8/1907 — Boston Grammar School League Championship Game — Henry L. Pierce Grammar School of Dorchester 4 Bennet Grammar School of Brighton 3 in 5:50 — finished at 3:50 P.M.

16 — New Minor League vs. Major League in-Season Exhibition Record — Rocky Point Park, Warwick, Rhode Island — 6/13/1907 — American League at Eastern League — Providence Grays 3 Boston Red Sox 2 in 2:44 — 3075 fans.

21— New Amateur 1–0 Record — Gilmore Ground, Gilmore City, Iowa — 6/26/1907 — Humboldt Colts 1 Gilmore City 0 Midgets in 5:00—finished at 8:05 P.M.— Humboldt batter Arch Wilder singled in top of 21st, stole second, was safe at third when comebacker to pitcher was thrown to third even though throw beat him by six feet, then stole home and was called safe even though throw beat him by eight feet; umpire Harve Clark was from Humboldt.

30—Tied Amateur Record—Brookside Park, Cleveland, Ohio—7/4/1907—Brooklyn Athletic Club 4 East End All Stars 1 in 5:50.

36 — Equaled All-Time and Amateur Records — Recreation Park (I), Columbus, Ohio — 7/5/1907 — Heintz Victors 2 Columbus Selects 2 in 3:50.

50— New Spoof Record — Munchausen, Pennsylvania — 7/11/1907 — Semipro — Lyerhelms 0 Fakenhursts 0.

57 — New Spoof Record — Diamond of the Jones County Eye, Ear, and Tongue Infirmary, Jones County, New York —?/?/1907 — Lightfoot Lilies 1 Ringtail Roarers 0, phosphorus procurement delay 0:23 top 18th — ended at Dawn on the 2nd day.

22 – New High School Record – Greenwood, South Carolina – 4/26/1908 – Anderson Boy's High School Yellowjackets 5 Greenwood High School Eagles 4 in 3:45 – finished at 7:15 P.M.

23 — New Amateur 0–0 Record — Crescent or Kingfisher, Oklahoma — 5/11/1908 — Oklahoma State League — Crescent 0 Kingfisher 0.

20— New Minor League Spring Training Record; Equaled All-Time Spring Training and Professional Spring Training Records — Athletic Park, Newton, Kansas — 5/26/1908 — Central Kansas League spring training exhibition — Newton Railroaders 3 McPherson Merry Macks 2 in 3:15 — finished at 6:45 P.M.

20— New High School Record — School Playgrounds, Lawrenceville, New Jersey — 5/29/1908 — Mid-Atlantic Prep League — Lawrenceville School Big Red 3 Mercersburg Academy Blue Storm 2 in 3:00.

2—Equaled Welsh Record—Harlequins Ground, Cardiff—8/3/1908—Wales 122 England 118—there are only 2 innings in Welsh baseball which is similar to rounders.

9 – New Negro League vs. Cuban Record – Terrenos de la Avenida de la Independencia (Independence Avenue Grounds), Havana, Cuba – 10/10/1908 – Almendares 3 Brooklyn Royal Giants 2. 9 – New Caucasian Major League vs. Cuban Record – Almendares Park, Havana, Cuba – 11/12/1908 – Cincinnati Reds 3 Habana 1.

9 – New Negro League vs. Caucasian Major League Record – Almendares Park, Havana, Cuba –11/20/ 1908 – Brooklyn Royal Giants 9 Cincinnati Reds 1.

10—Equaled Caribbean and Cuban Records; New Caucasian Major League vs. Cuban Record — Almendares Park, Havana, Cuba—12/8/1908 — Cincinnati Reds 6 Almendares 6.

26 — New Professional and Minor League Records; First-Ever 26-Inning Game — Bloomington Grounds, Bloomington, Illinois — 5/31/1909 — Illinois-Indiana-Iowa (Three-I) League — Decatur Commodores 2 Bloomington Bloomers 1 in 4:20, rain delay 0:15 bottom 5th —1200 fans —finished at 6:35 P.M.

24 — New All-Time 1–0, Professional 1–0, and Minor League 1–0 Records — Freeman's Park, San Francisco, California — 6/8/1909 — Pacific Coast League — San Francisco Seals 1 Oakland Oaks 0 in 3:35.

26 – New Semi-Pro Record – Athletic Park, Dixon, Illinois – 6/25/1909 – Dixon Browns 3 Muscatine Independents 2 in 4:00–150 fans, 1000 fans at end –finished at 7:20 P.M.

7 — New Congressional Game Record — American League Park (II), Washington, Dc — 7/16/1909 — Democrats 26 Republicans 16.

18 — New Major League 0–0 and American League 0–0 Records — Bennett Park, Detroit, Michigan — 7/16/1909 — Senators 0 Tigers 0 in 3:15.

22 — New Canadian Record — Vancouver, Province of British Columbia — 7/31/1909 — Northwestern League — Portland Colts 3 Vancouver Beavers 0.

11— New Asian, Japanese, and Japanese College Records— Keio Kyujyo (Grounds), Tokyo— 9/22/1909— Keio University 3 University of Wisconsin Badgers 2.

19 — New Asian, Japanese, and Japanese College Records — Keio Kyujyo (Grounds), Tokyo — 9/26/1909 — Keio University 2 University of Wisconsin Badgers 1 in 3:05 — 7000 fans.

9 – New Philippines and US Marines Records; Equaled US Military Record – Manila –10/2?/1910– U.S. Marines of Manila 4 University of Chicago Maroons 0.

10—Equaled Caribbean, Cuban, and Caucasian Major League vs. Cuban Records — Almendares Park, Havana, Cuba — 11/21/1910 — Almendares 2 Detroit Tigers 2.

20— New College vs. High School Record — Mercer Park on Tattnall Square, Macon, Georgia — 4/15/ 1911— College at High School — Hall's School 4 Georgia-Alabama Business College 3 in 2:45.

24 — Equaled All-Time 1–0 Record; New Amateur 1–0 Record — Sanatoga (later Tumbling Run) Park, Pottsville, Pennsylvania — 6/18/1911— Reading Ruth Athletic Club 1 Pottsville Alerts 0 in 4:00.

11— New Caribbean, Cuban, and Caucasian Major League vs. Cuban Record — Almendares Park, Havana, Cuba—12/10/1911— New York Giants 6 Almendares 3.

20— New College Record — Norman, Oklahoma — 4/25/1912 — Oklahoma A&M College (later University) Aggies (later Tigers, then Cowboys) 1 University of Oklahoma Sooners 1 in 3:00.

 $5\frac{1}{2}$ – New Swedish and Swedish Olympics Demonstration Sport Records – Ostermalm Athletic Grounds, Stockholm – 7/15/1912 – USA Track 13 Sweden Vasteras 3.

?—New Swedish and Swedish Olympics Demonstration Sport Records—Ostermalm Athletic Grounds, Stockholm—7/16/1912—USA East 6 USA West 3.

19 – New US Military and US Navy Records – Wellington Park, Newport, Rhode Island – 8/4/1912 – Newport Trojans 5 USS Nebraska 4 in 3:10.

18 — New Interleague, Major League Spring Training, and Interleague Spring Training Records — Baker Bowl, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 4/5/1913 — American League at National League — Athletics 2 Phillies 2 in 2:58.

20— New Hawaiian Record — Honolulu — 5/31/1913 — Honolulu Stars 3 Punahou Athletic Club (Ac) 1.

25 — New Hawaiian Record — Hoolulu Park (later Wong Stadium), Hilo — 2/20/1938 — Hawaii Japanese League — Papaikou Paps 5 Shinmachi Shins 5 in 4:55.

20— New Professional 0–0 and Minor League 0–0 Records — West Side (later Skeeters) Park, Jersey City, New Jersey — 8/12/1913 — Toronto Maple Leafs 0 Jersey City Skeeters 0 in 3:20.

11—New Eastern Seaboard Series Record — Hartford, Connecticut — 9/??/1913 — New England League at Eastern Association — Lowell Grays (Nel) 5 Hartford Senators (Ea) 3.

9 – New Japanese Professional Record – Tokyo – 12/6/1913 – Charles Comiskey/John McGraw World Tour – Chicago White Sox 9 New York Giants 4.

9 — Equaled Japanese Professional Record — Tokyo — 12/7/1913 — Charles Comiskey/John McGraw World Tour — Chicago White Sox 12 New York Giants 9.

9—New Japanese Professional vs. College Record—Tokyo—12/7/1913—Charles Comiskey/John McGraw World Tour—Chicago White Sox/New York Giants 16 Keio University 3.

5 – New Hong Kong Record – Hong Kong – 12/14/1913 – Charles Comiskey/John McGraw World Tour – New York Giants 7 Chicago White Sox 4.

9 – Equaled Philippines Record – Manila –12/17/ 1913 – Charles Comiskey/John McGraw World Tour – Chicago White Sox 2 New York Giants 1.

9 – Equaled Oceania and Australian Records – Brisbane –1/1/1914 – Charles Comiskey/John Mc-Graw World Tour – New York Giants 2 Chicago White Sox 1.

9-Equaled Oceania and Australian Records-

Sydney —1/3/1914 — Charles Comiskey/John McGraw World Tour — Chicago White Sox 5 New York Giants 4.

9—New Australian Professional vs. Amateur Record; Equaled Oceania and Australian Records— Sydney—1/3/1914—Charles Comiskey/John McGraw World Tour—Chicago White Sox 10 New South Wales 1.

9 — Equaled Oceania and Australian Records — Sydney —1/5/1914 — Charles Comiskey/John McGraw World Tour — Chicago White Sox 10 New York Giants 5.

9—Equaled Oceania, Australian, and Australian Professional vs. Amateur Records—Sydney— 1/5/1914—Charles Comiskey/John McGraw World Tour—New York Giants 15 New South Wales 2.

9 — Equaled Oceania and Australian Records; New Australian Governor-General-in-Attendance Record — Melbourne Cricket Grounds, Melbourne — 1/7/1914 — Charles Comiskey/John McGraw World Tour — New York Giants 12 Chicago White Sox 8 fans included Governor-General Lord Thomas Denham — this game marked the first-ever playing of the Star Spangled Banner before the playing of a baseball game.

9 — Equaled Oceania, Australian, and Australian Professional vs. Amateur Records — Melbourne Cricket Grounds, Melbourne — 1/7/1914 — Charles Comiskey/John McGraw World Tour — New York Giants 18 Victoria 0.

11— New Oceania and Australian Records — Melbourne — 1/8/1914 — Charles Comiskey/John McGraw World Tour — New York Giants 4 Chicago White Sox 3.

9 — Equaled Australian Professional vs. Amateur Record — Melbourne — 1/8/1914 — Charles Comiskey /John McGraw World Tour — Chicago White Sox 16 Victoria 3.

5 – Equaled Ceylon (Later Sri Lanka) Record – Colombo, Ceylon (later Sri Lanka)–1/23/1914 – Charles Comiskey/John McGraw World Tour – Chicago White Sox 4 New York Giants 1.

10—New African, Egyptian, and Egyptian King (Khedive)-in-Attendance Records—Royal Polo Grounds, Heliosport (later Heliopolis)—2/1/1914— Charles Comiskey/John McGraw World Tour—New York Giants 3 Chicago White Sox 3—fans included Egyptian King Abbas II.

9—New French Record—Nice—2/16/1914— Charles Comiskey/John McGraw World Tour— Chicago White Sox 10 New York Giants 9.

11—New European, English, and King of Englandin-Attendance Records—Chelsea Football Grounds, London—2/26/1914—Charles Comiskey/John Mc-Graw World Tour—Chicago White Sox 5 New York Giants 4—fans included 62nd English Monarch/55th English King George V.

9-New Federal League Record - Terrapin Park (later Oriole Park (II)), Baltimore, Maryland - 4/13/1914 — Baltimore Terrapins 3 Buffalo Blues 2 in 2:32.

10— New Federal League and Federal League 1–0 Records — Exposition Park (III), Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 4/14/1914 — Brooklyn Tip-Tops 1 Pittsburgh Rebels 0.

11— New Federal League Record — Handlan's Park, St. Louis, Missouri — 4/17/1914 — St. Louis Terriers 5 Indianapolis Hoosier-Feds 4.

13 — New Federal League Record — Gordon and Koppel Field, Kansas City, Missouri — 4/17/1914 — Kansas City Packers 4 Chicago Whales 3 in 2:43.

15 — New Federal League Record — Gordon and Koppel Field, Kansas City, Missouri — 4/19/1914 — Kansas City Packers 7 Chicago Whales 6 in 3:15.

21—New National League Record — Forbes Field, Pittsburg (later Pittsburgh), Pennsylvania — 7/17/1914 — Giants 3 Pirates 1 in 3:42.

28 — New All-Time 1–0 and Amateur 1–0 Records — Delaware City, Ohio — 7/18/1914 — Columbus Champions 1 Delaware Stars 0.

18 — New Federal League Record — Washington Park (IV), Brooklyn, New York — 7/28/1914 — Brooklyn Tip-Tops 4 St. Louis Terriers 3 in 4:01; 2nd game postponed.

21— New Negro League and Negro League vs. Amateur Records — Camp Vincent Fairgrounds, Watertown, New York —?/??/1914 — Negro League at Amateur — Harrisville Adirondacks defeated Havana Red Sox.

16 — New Federal League 1–0 Record — Exposition Park (III), Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania —10/9/1914 — Buffalo Buf-Feds 1 Pittsburgh Rebels 0, then Rebels 3 Buf-Feds 0 in 6 innings.

20—New Caribbean and Cuban Records—unknown city—5/9/1915—Amateur National League— Progressos 8 Athletics 7.

22 — New Professional 0–0 and Minor League 0–0 Records — Athletic Park, Burlington, Iowa — 6/27/ 1915 — Keokuk Indians 0 Burlington Pathfinders 0 in 3:50—finished at 6:10 P.M.

20— New Negro League and Negro League Amateur Records — Hannibal, Missouri — 7/2/1915 — Amateur — Hannibal Browns 5 Hannibal Eagles 5 in 3:20.

20—New South Dakota Record — Bridgewater — 7/31/1915 — Amateur — Salem 1 Bridgewater 1.

7 – New US Army-in-Europe Records – Verdun Forest, France –?/??/1916 – Norton Red Cross Ambulance Section 17 American Ambulance Section 6.

16 – New National League 0–0 Record – Braves (now Nickerson) Field, Boston, Massachusetts – 6/13/1916 – rain delay at start, Reds 0 Braves 0 in 3:21.

24 — New Professional vs. Amateur Record — Glendon, Pennsylvania — 7/3/1916 — Reading Kolbs' Professionals 3 Glendon 3.

9 – New Congressional Game Record – American League Park (II), Washington, Dc – 8/10/1916 – Republicans 18 Democrats 13.

9 - New Swedish Record - Vasteras - 8/17/1916 -

U.S. All-American Soccer Team 21 Vasteras (Sweden) 15.

10-New Swedish Record-Olympic Stadium, Stockholm-8/22/1916-U.S. All-American Soccer Team 8 Vasteras (Sweden) 7.

14 — New World Series Record — Braves (later Nickerson) Field, Boston, Massachusetts — 10/9/1916 — National League at American League — Boston Red Sox 2 Brooklyn Robins 1 in 2:29 — 41,373 fans.

9 — Equaled Congressional Game Record — American League Park (II), Washington, Dc — 6/30/1917 — Democrats 22 Republicans 21—4500 fans.

22 — New National League Record — Ebbets Field, Brooklyn, New York — 8/22/1917 — Robins (later Dodgers) 6 Pirates 5 in 4:15, Pirates 0 Robins 0 in 2 innings, called off—1st game finished at 5:45 P.M.

20— New US Military and US Navy Records — Goat (later Yerba Buena) Island, San Francisco, California — 9/15/1917 — Amateur — Oakland Naval Training Station Sailors 1 Oakland Vampires 0 in 3:10.

9 — Equaled Northern Ireland Record; New US Army-in-Northern Ireland Record — Windsor Park Soccer Stadium, Belfast — 10/31/1917 — US Army vs. Canadian Army.

18—Equaled Major League 1–0 Record; New American League 1–0 Record — National Park (IV) (later Clark Griffith Park, then Griffith Stadium), Washington, Dc - 5/15/1918 — Senators 1 White Sox 0 in 2:47.

20— New US Army, European, and French Records; Equaled US Military Record — Base Section One U.S. Army Base, Giverny, France — sometime in 1918 or 1919 before 6/18/1919 — U.S. Army Base Section One League — Camp Number Four Base Section 6 Camp Dodge 5.

22 — New Canadian Amateur Record; Equaled Canadian Record — Birch Hills, Province of Saskatchewan — 8/2/1919 — Northern Saskatchewan League — Melfort 1 Birch Hills 1.

26—Equaled Professional Record; New Major League and National League Records—Braves (later Nickerson) Field, Boston, Massachusetts—5/1/1920— Robins (later Dodgers) 1 Braves 1 in 3:50—4000 fans—finished at 6:50 P.M.

9 — New Negro League Professional and Negro National League Records — West Washington Street Park, Indianapolis, Indiana — 5/2/1920 — Indianapolis Abc's 4 Chicago Giants 2.

20— Equaled All-Time Spring Training and Professional Spring Training Records; New Major League Intra-Squad Spring Training Record — Baker Bowl, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania —1/30/1921— National League Philadelphia Phillies — Mutts 0 Jeffs 0.

14 — New Interleague Spring Training Record — Houston, Texas — 3/5/1921— Athletics (AL) 2 Cardinals (NL) 1.

9 – New Two U.S. Presidents-in-Attendance Record – National Park (IV) (later Griffith Stadium), Washington, Dc - 5/22/1922 - White Sox 4 Senators 3 - fans included 29th President Warren Harding and future 31st President Herbert Hoover.

20—Equaled Negro League Record; New Major League 1–0, Negro League Professional, Negro Major League, Negro National League, and Negro National League 1–0 Records; Equaled Negro League Record — Schorling's (later American Giants) Park, Chicago, Illinois – 8/16/1922 – Chicago American Giants 1 Atlantic City Bacharach Giants 0 in 3:38.

23 — New US Military and US Army vs. US Air Force Records — Langley Flying Field, Hampton, Virginia —?/??/1923 — US Army at US Army Air Force — Fort Monroe Artillerymen 2 Langley Field (later Air Force Base) Birdmen 2.

9-New Eastern Colored League Record-4/??/1923.

16—New College Record—Wake Forest or Raleigh, North Carolina—?/??/1923—Wake Forest College Demon Deacons 6 North Carolina State University Wolfpack 6.

21— New Indoors Record — Oxnard Armory (later Community Center), Oxnard, California — 5/26/1923 — Amateur Oxnard Indoors League — Hueneme Sea Lions/Turtles/Longshoremen 8 Hueneme Sunkist/ Citrons/Lemons/ Packing House Workers 7.

20—New Playoffs and Grammar School Playoffs Records—Central High Stadium, Washington, D.C. -6/18/1923—District of Columbia Championship Game—Monroe Grammar School vs. Buchanan Grammar School in tie game.

9 – New Japanese Professional Record – 6/21/ 1923 – Japan Athletic Association vs. Tensho Club.

20—New College 1–0, NCAA, and NCAA 1–0 Records; Equaled College Record – Andrews Field, Providence, Rhode Island – 6/7/1924 – Providence College Friars 1 Brown University Bears 0 in 4:05.

?—New French Olympics Demonstration Sport Record—Stade (Stadium) Colombes (later Stade Olympique Yves-du-Manoir), Colombes—7/18/1924 —USA 5 Paris Ranelagh 0.

13 — New Junior World Series Record — Oriole Park (III), Baltimore, Maryland —10/4/1924 — American Association at International League — Baltimore Orioles (IL) 6 St. Paul Saints (AA) 6 in 2:05 — 4919 fans.

13 — New Negro World Series Record — Maryland Park, Baltimore, Maryland — 10/5/1924 — Game Three — Kansas City Monarchs (Negro National League) 6 Philadelphia Hilldales (Eastern Colored League) 6.

19 — New Interleague Record — Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois -10/7/1925 — NL at AL — Cubs 2 White Sox 2 in 3:03 -10,265 fans.

9 – New Central American and Central American Games Records – Mexico City, Mexico –10/12/ 1926 – Cuba defeated Mexico.

21— New College vs. High School Record — Prepatera Diamond, Fullerton, California — 4/9/1927 — National Collegiate Athletic Association at California High School League – Pomona College Sagehens 4 Fullerton High School Indians 3 in 3:00.

22 — Equaled National League Decision Record — Braves (later Nickerson) Field, Boston, Massachusetts — 5/17/1927 — Cubs 4 Braves 3 in 4:13.

20—Equaled US Army Record—Gowdy Field, Fort Benning, Georgia—7/30/1927—Fort Benning Army League—24th Infantry Blues 3 1st Battalion 29th Infantry 2 in 4:00.

??—New Planned Marathon Spring Training Record—Soldiers Home Park, Danville, Illinois— 3/??/1929—Illinois-Indiana-Iowa (3-I) League/St. Louis Cardinals Baseball School—Team A vs. Team B in 9:00—finished at 6:00 P.M.

9—New American Negro League Record— 4/??/1929.

15 — New College 0–0 and NCAA 0–0 Records — Lexington or Louisville, Kentucky — 5/10/1929 — University of Louisville Cardinals 0 University of Kentucky Wildcats 0.

29 — First-Ever 29-Inning Game — South Side Playgrounds, San Francisco, California — 10/12/1929 — Amateur — Regulars 9 Yannigans 8 in 5:00 — finished at 6:00 P.M.

9 — Equaled Scotland Record — Royal Air Force (Raf) Kirknewton Air Base, outside Edinburgh — early 1930's — US Army Air Force Team A vs. US Army Air Force Team B.

?— New Native American Record —?/??/1930's — Oklahoma — annual American Indian tournament.

?— New Native American Record —?/??/1930's — Denver, Colorado — annual Denver Post tournament.

21— New College and NCAA Records — Miami Athletic Field, Oxford, Ohio — 5/30/1930— University of Miami Big Reds (later Redskins, then RedHawks) 2 University of Cincinnati Bearcats 1.

14 — New American Legion Record — Houston, Texas —?/??/1931— American Legion — Post #493 Chicago (IL) 1 Post #6 Columbia (Sc) 0.

20½—New Playoffs and Amateur Playoffs Records — Daisytown, Pennsylvania — 9/20/1931— Monongahela Valley League playoffs — California Eagles 3 Daisytown Moose 1 in 4:00—after a long fly ball hit by a California Eagle batter down the left field foul line was ruled by the umpire to be a 2-run homer in the top of the 21st, the Daisytown Moose team vehemently protested the call and then walked off the field — the umpire awarded the game (and the league championship with it) to California 3–1.

9—New Negro Southern League Record— 4/??/1932.

9 – New Negro East-West League Record – Gus Greenlee Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania – 4/29/ 1932 – New York Black Yankees 1 Pittsburgh Crawfords 0.

9 — Equaled Congressional Game Record — Griffith Stadium, Washington, Dc — 6/4/1932 — Republicans 19 Democrats 5 in 3:30—13,500 fans. 23 — New Intra-Squad and Game-on-A-Farm Records — Schultheiss Farm, Elyria, Ohio — 8/1/1932 — Knights of Pythias's Team A 19 Knights of Pythias's Team B 19.

18 — Equaled Major League and National League 1–0 Records — Polo Grounds (V), New York, New York — 7/2/1933 — Giants 1 Cardinals 0 in 4:03, then Giants 1 Cardinals 0 in 1:25 — 50,000 fans — 2nd game finished at 8:00 P.M.

9 – New Major League All-Star Record – Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois – 7/6/1933 – NL at AL – American League All-Stars 4 National League All-Stars 2 in 2:05 – 49,200 fans – finished at 3:20 P.M.

25—New Asian, Japanese, High School, High School 1–0, and Japanese High School Records— Koshien Kyujyo (Stadium), Osaka—8/19/1933— Koshien National High School Tournament Semifinal—Chukyo-shogyo 1 Akashi-chugaku 0 in 4:55—ended at 6:05 P.M.

18 — New Caribbean and Cuban Records — Parque (Park) Almendares, Almendares-??/??/1934 — Winter League — Havana 4 Almendares 4 in 4:05.

20— New Japanese Junior High School Record unknown —?/??/1934 — Junior High School League — Akaishi-chuugaku vs. Kobe-ichi-chuugaku.

9 – Equaled Scotland Record – Bootle Stadium, Liverpool, England – 6/2/1934 – Scotland 24 England 3 – 5300 fans.

27 — New Negro League, Negro League Professional, and Negro Minor League Records; First-Ever 27-Inning Game — Monarch Field, Houston, Texas — 8/??/1934 — Negro Texas-Oklahoma League — Austin Black Senators 3 Newgulf Black Buffs 2.

25 — New Planned Marathon Record — Stockton, California — 1/31/1935 — Cincinnati Reds Tryout Camp — Team A vs. Team B — scheduled so long so all those trying out could be evaluated properly.

15 — New Oceania and Australian Records — Melbourne, State of Victoria — 7/?/1935 — Claxton Shield Championship — South Australia tied Victoria called due to darkness at 5:40 P.M.

35 — New Asian, Japanese, and Japanese Junior High School Records — Matsue Kyujyo (Stadium), Matsue — 7/20/1935 and 7/21/1935 — Japan Junior High School League — Oota Chu 2 Matsue Chu (later Matsue Kita Koto-gakko) 1 in 6:58, suspended after 4:48 and 23 innings.

10— New NBC Tournament Record — 8/??/1935 — Denver (Co) 5 Waukegan (IL) 4.

7 — New German, German Olympics Demonstration Sport, and German Chancellor-in-Attendance Records — Olympic Stadium, Berlin — 8/12/1936 — World Champions 6 U.S. Olympics 5 —125,000 fans, mostly there to see the track and field events, including 24th Chancellor Adolf Hitler.

10—Equaled NBC Tournament Record— 8/??/1936—Arkansas City (Ks) 11 Gadsen (AL) 8.

14 - New Dixie Series Record - Rickwood Field,

Birmingham, Alabama —10/5/1936 — Texas League at Southern Association — Tulsa Oilers (Tl) 6 Birmingham Barons (Sa) 4 in 3:25 — 3000 fans.

9 – New Negro American League Record – 4/??/1937.

11— New NBC Tournament Record - 8/??/1937 — Buford (Fa) 2 Duncan (Ok) 1.

12 – New NBC Tournament Record – 8/??/1937 – Wichita Water (Ks) 3 Fort Crook (Nb) 2.

12—Equaled NBC Tournament Record— 8/??/1937—Waverly (Ia) 6 Elgin (IL) 5.

25 — New Hawaiian Record — Hoolulu Park (later Wong Stadium), Hilo — 2/20/1938 — Hawaii Japanese League — Papaikou Paps 5 Shinmachi Shins 5 in 4:55.

20— New South American, Venezuelan, and Venezuelan 1–0 Records—Estadio (Stadium) de Maracaibo, Maracaibo—6/5/1938— Pastora 1 Gavilanes 0 in 6:30.

12—Equaled NBC Tournament Record— 8/??/1938—Mount Pleasant (TX) 3 Wichita Water (Ks) 2.

6 – New World Cup, English World Cup, and Olympic Qualifier Records – Leeds, England – 8/19/1938 – fifth and deciding game of Olympic Qualifier for 1940 Olympics in Tokyo, Japan which never happened due to World War II – England 5 USA 3, called early due to rain – as England wins series four games to one, England is declared first World Amateur Champion by International Baseball Federation (IbaF).

9 - New Puerto Rican Governor-in-Attendance Record -10/1/1939 - fans included 170th Puerto Rican Governor William Leahy.

6 – New Little League Record – Bowman Park, Williamsport, Pennsylvania – 6/6/1939 – Lundy Lumber 23 Lycoming Dairy 8.

13 – New NBC Tournament Record – 8/??/1939 – Golden (Co) 3 Wichita Civic (Ks) 2.

44 — New Planned Marathon Record — Town Field, Richford, Vermont — 9/17/1939 — Amateur — Richford Rabbits North 40 Richford Rabbits South 33 in 4:30.

19 — New Central American and Mexican Records — Mexico City or Monterrey — 7/21/1940 — Mexican League — Mexico City Reds vs. Monterrey Sultans.

20—New Japanese Professional Record — 7/13/1941—Japanese Federation — Taiyo 1 Hanshin 0 in 2:43.

9 — Equaled Northern Ireland and US Army-in-Northern Ireland Records — Soccer Field near Belfast — 4/25/1942 — US Army Northern Ireland Force (Usanif) 133rd Infantry Regiment, 34th Infantry Division — 3rd Battalion 14 2nd Battalion 4 —1100 fans.

28 — New Professional and Japanese Professional Records — Korakuen Kyujyo (Stadium), Tokyo — 5/24/1942 — Japanese Federation — Taiyo 4 Nagoya 4 in 3:47.

9 — Equaled Northern Ireland and US Army-in-Northern Ireland Records — Soccer Stadium, Belfast — 7/4/1942 — US Army Northern Ireland Force (Usanif) — Mid-West Giants/34th Infantry Division 3 Kentucky Wildcats/Ist Armored Division 2 in 2:07 — 7600 fans.

9 — Equaled Northern Ireland and US Army-in-Northern Ireland Records — Ravenhill Rugby Grounds, Belfast — 7/25/1942 — US Army Northern Ireland Force (Usanif) — Californian Eagles/34th Infantry Division 9 New York Lions/Ist Armored Division 6.

9—New Canadian Army-in-England and US Army-in-England Records—London—8/3/1942— Canadian Army 5 US Army 3.

9 – New India and US Army-in-India Records – Calcutta (later Kolkata) –11/1/1942 – US Army vs. Amateur – Negro US Army 11 Calcutta 3.

16 — New College 1–0 Record — New Haven, Connecticut — 8/28/1943 — Yale University Eli 1 Holy Cross University Crusaders 0.

14 — New NBC Tournament Record — 8/??/1943 — Wichita Cessna (Ks) 8 Portland (or) 6.

9 – New Moroccan, Algerian, and US Army-in-Africa Records – St. Eugene Municipal Stadium, Algiers, Algeria – 10/3/1943 – US Military North African World Series – Casablanca (Casablanca/Oran League in Morocco/Algeria) Yankees 9 Algiers (Algiers/Tunis League in Algeria/Tunisia) Military Policemen 0–4000 fans.

9 – New US Army-in-Australia Record – 10/10/1943 – US Military Southwest Pacific World Series – US Navy 11 US Army 5 –10,000 fans.

20—Equaled Caribbean and Cuban Records—Estadio (Stadium) Gran Cerveceria Tropical, Havana— 12/2/1943—Cuban League—Cienfuegos Elefantes (Elephants) 6 Marianao Frailes Grises (Gray Friars) 5 in 4:25.

9 — Equaled Northern Ireland Record; New US Navy-in-Northern Ireland Record — US Navy Base Field, Londonderry — 5/18/1944 — US Navy Naval Operations Base (Nob) — Beech Hill Marines 16 Lisahally Supply 0.

9 – New Three-Sided Record – Polo Grounds (V), New York, New York – 6/26/1944 – AL and NL at NL – Dodgers 5 Yankees 1 Giants 0 in 2:05 – 50,000 fans.

20—New NAIA Record — Ogden Field, Chicago, Illinois — 8/12/1944 — George Williams Ymca College Collegians 6 Illinois Institute of Technology Tech-Hawks (later Scarlet Hawks) 6.

15 – New NBC Tournament Record – 8/??/1944 – Wichita Cessna (Ks) 3 Wichita Coleman (Ks) 2.

9 – New US Naval Air Record – Naval Air Training Base (NATB) Field, Pensacola, Florida – 9/16/1944 – U.S. Navy – Pensacola NATB 1 Corpus Christi Natb 0.

19 — New US Naval Air Record — Naval Air Training Base (NATB) Field, Corpus Christi, Texas — 9/24/ 1944 — U.S. Navy — Corpus Christi Natb 5 Pensacola Natb 4. 12 – New US Army vs. Navy Record – Redlander Field, Fort Schofield (later Schofield Barracks), Hawaii – 9/25/1944 – 3rd of 11-game US Military Hawaiian Army vs. Navy Series – Navy 4 Army 3 – 14,000 fans – started at 2:30 P.M.

14 — New U.S. Army vs. Navy Record — Hoolulu Park, Hilo, Hawaii — 10/6/1944 — 10th of 11-game US Military Hawaiian Army vs. Navy Series — Navy 6 Army 6 — 8000 fans — started at 3:00 P.M.

14 — New Junior World Series Record — Parkway Field, Louisville, Kentucky — 10/8/1944 — International League at American Association — Baltimore Orioles (IL) 7 Louisville Colonels (AA) 4 in 2:25 — 12,065 fans.

10—New Japanese-American Internment Camp and Arizona High School Records—Gila River Internment Camp 28 Ballfield, Arizona—4/18/1945— Butte High School Eagles of Gila River Internment Camp 11 Tucson High School Badgers 10—2000 fans.

21— New Oceania, Guam, and US Navy Records — Third Marine Division (later Trimble) Field — 5/6/1945 — 41st US Navy Construction Battalion Seabees 2 US Navy Air Base 1—1000 fans.

9 – New US Army-in-France Record; Equaled French Record – Auxerre – 6/6/1945 – US Army 13th Airborne Division League –13th Airborne Black Cats 13 1343rd Engineer Battalion 0.

9—New US Army-in-Belgium and Belgium Records—St. Trond—6/12/1945—US Army 13th Airborne Division League—13th Airborne Black Cats 2 386th Bomb Group 1.

20—New US Air Force vs. NCAA Record— Cartier Field, South Bend, Indiana—7/14/1945— United States Army Air Force at NCAA—Notre Dame University Fighting Irish 1 Indianapolis Stout Field Airmen 0.

24—Equaled American League Record—Shibe Park (later Connie Mack Stadium), Philadelphia, Pennsylvania—7/21/1945—Tigers 1 Athletics 1 in 4:48—4526 fans.

25—New Taiwan High School and Taiwan Records—Yuanshan Qiuchang (Stadium), Taipei— 7/28/1941—Jiayi Agriculture and Forestry Institute (Jianong) 2 Taipei Industrial School 1 in 5:29.

9 – New US Army-in-Germany and Germany Records – Soldiers Field Stadium, Nuremberg – 8/7/1945 – US Third Army Championships – 76th Division 1 71st Division 0–5000 fans.

9—Equaled US Army-in-Germany and Germany Records—Augsburg—8/11/1945—US Third Army Championships—71st Division Red Circlers 7 76th Division Onaways 0.

12 — New US Army-in-Germany and Germany Records — Augsburg — 8/12/1945 — US Third Army Championships — 71st Division Red Circlers 2 76th Division Onaways 1.

9—Equaled US Army-in-France and French Records—Reims—9/5/1945—US Army World Series—Oise Base 2 Third Army 1. 9 – Equaled Italian Record – Leghorn – 9/22/1945 – US Army Mediterranean Theatre Championships – 92nd Division 8 Signal Group 1.

9 — New Northern Mariana Islands Record — Honolulu — 2/9/1946 — US Navy Central Pacific Championships — Saipan 2 Kwajalein 0.

9 – Equaled Northern Mariana Islands Record – Honolulu – 2/12/1946 – US Navy Central Pacific Championships – Saipan 4 Kwajalein 1.

17 – New National League Spring Training Record – Miami, Florida – 3/3/1946 – Braves 4 Giants 4 in 3:45 – 4668 fans.

20— New Negro American League Record; Equaled Negro Major League Record — Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois — 5/12/1946 — Indianapolis Clowns 3 Chicago American Giants 3 — 9000 fans.

9 — Equaled Japanese-Emperor-and-Empress-in-Attendance Record — Korakuen Kyujo (Stadium), Tokyo — 8/3/1946 — Inter-City Tournament — Dai Nippon Doboku 3 Toyooka Bussan 1— fans included 124th Japanese Emperor Showa (Hirohito), Empress Kojun (Nagako), and Prince Mikasa (Takahito), younger brother of the Emperor.

19 – New Women's Record – Peoria, Illinois – 8/20/1946 – All-American Girls' League – Racine Belles 1 Peoria Redwings 1 in 3:20 – called at 11:30 P.M.

17 — New Playoffs and Women's Playoffs Records — Horlick Athletic Field, Racine, Wisconsin — 9/??/1946 — All-American Girls' League — Racine Belles 3 South Bend Blue Sox 2 in 3:14.

19 — New Major League 0–0 and National League 0–0 Records — Ebbets Field, Brooklyn, New York — 9/11/1946 — Reds 0 Dodgers 0 in 4:40—15,078 fans.

9 — New Tiebreaker, Major League Tiebreaker, and National League Tiebreaker Records — Sportsman's Park (V) (later Busch Stadium (I)), St. Louis, Missouri —10/1/1946 — Cardinals 4 Dodgers 2 in 2:48 — 26,012 fans.

9 – Equaled Tiebreaker, Major League Tiebreaker, and National League Tiebreaker Records – Ebbets Field, Brooklyn, New York –10/3/1946 – Cardinals 8 Dodgers 4 in 2:44 – 31,437 fans.

20— New Central American, Mexican, and Mexican Amateur Records — Empalme or Santa Ana, State of Sonora, Mexico — 5/18/1947 — Liga (League) de Sonora — Empalme Rieleros (Railroadmen) 2 Santa Ana Santos (Saints) 1 in 4:13 — 854 fans.

18—Equaled Major League 1–0 and American League 1–0 Records—Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois—6/8/1947—Senators 1 White Sox 0 in 3:30, then White Sox 8 Senators 2 in 2:00—29,629 fans.

22 – New Women's Record – Horlick Athletic Field, Racine, Wisconsin – 7/31/1947 – All-American Girls' League – South Bend Blue Sox 4 Racine Belles 3 in 4:30.

20— New Playoffs Record — Thetford Mines, Province of Quebec, Canada — 9/7/1947 — Quebec Eastern Townships Independent Intermediate League — Drummondville Forestiers Catholiques (Catholic Foresters) 3 St-Maurice de Thetford Mines Mineurs (Miners) 3 in 4:50—finished at 7:20 P.M.

15 — New Panamanian Record —1/4/1948 — Carta Cieja Yankees 6 Chesterfield Smokers 5.

2 – Equaled Welsh Record – Castle Grounds, Cardiff – 7/31/1948 – Wales 133 England 122 – 16,000 fans – there are only 2 innings in Welsh baseball which is similar to rounders.

17 – New American League Spring Training Record – Al Lang Field (I), St. Petersburg, Florida – 3/29/1948 – Red Sox 2 Yankees 2 in 4:02.

9 – New Army vs. Navy U.S. President-in-Attendance Record – Lawrence Field, Annapolis, Maryland – 5/29/1948 – US Naval Academy Midshipmen 10 US Military Academy Black Knights 0 in 2:10– 7500 fans included 33rd President Harry Truman.

25—Equaled High School and Japanese High School Records—Japan—7/??/1948—Koshien National High School Tournament Regional Qualifier one high school team defeated another high school team.

15—Equaled NBC Tournament Record— 8/??/1948—Golden (Co) 2 New Holstein (Wi) 1.

27—New Central American and Nicaraguan Records—Managua—late 1940's—Second Division—Manta Nica defeated Schumann in 6:13.

15 — New Women's 1–0 and Women's Playoffs 1–0 Records — South High School Football Field, Grand Rapids, Michigan — 9/??/1948 — All-American Girls' League — Grand Rapids Chicks 1 South Bend Blue Sox 0.

20— New Women's Playoffs Record; Equaled Playoffs Record — Playland Park, South Bend, Indiana — 9/10/1948 — South Bend Blue Sox 3 Grand Rapids Chicks 2.

9—Equaled Tiebreaker and Major League Tiebreaker Records; New American League Tiebreaker Record—Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts— 10/4/1948—Indians 8 Red Sox 3 in 2:24—33,957 fans.

9 – New Caribbean World Series Record – Estadio (Stadium) Gran, Havana, Cuba – 2/20/1949 – Spur Cola (Panama) 13 Mayaguez Indios (Indians) (Puerto Rico) 9.

17 — Equaled American League Spring Training Record — Al Lang Field (I), St. Petersburg, Florida — 3/17/1949 — Tigers 2 Yankees 2 in 4:24 — 4516 fans.

12 — New NCAA World Series Record — Rosenblatt Stadium, Omaha, Nebraska — 6/24/1949 — Wake Forest University Deacon Demons 2 University of Southern California Trojans 1.

22 — Equaled Women's Record; New Women's 1–0 Record — Marsh Field, Muskegon, Michigan — ?/??/1949 — All-American Girls' League — Muskegon Lassies 1 Rockford Peaches 0 in 3:02, then Rockford 3 Muskegon 1 in 6 innings.

17 — New NBC Tournament Record — 8/??/1949 — South Amboy (Nj) 2 Mount Vernon (Wa) 1.

14-New Major League All-Star Record-

Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois -7/11/1950-National League at American League - National League All-Stars 4 American League All-Stars 3 in 3:19-46,127 fans - finished at 4:49 P.M.

12 — New Japan Series Record — Stateside Park, Tokyo —11/22/1950 — Central League at Pacific League — Mainichi Orions 3 Shochiku Robins 2.

9 - New Pan-American Games Record – Buenos Aires, Argentina – 2/27/1951– Cuba 3 Mexico 0-4500 fans.

23 — New Canadian Record — Royal Athletic Park, Victoria, Province of British Columbia — 5/5/1951— Western International League — Salem Senators 1 Victoria Athletics 0 in 4:36 in afternoon game, then Salem 3 Victoria 1 in 2:01 in evening game — 1200 fans for afternoon game; 2800 fans for evening game — afternoon game finished at 7:06 P.M.

9 — New Japanese All-Star Game Record — Koshien Kyujo (Stadium), Japan — 7/4/1951— Central League 2 Pacific League 1.

30— New All-Time 0–0 and All-Time Amateur 0–0 Records — Tokyo, Japan — 8/30/1951— Junior High School League — Takefu Junior High School 0 Kohama Junior High School 0 in 5:45 — finished at 2:45 P.M.

9 – Equaled Tiebreaker, Major League Tiebreaker, and National League Tiebreaker Records – Ebbets Field, Brooklyn, New York –10/1/1951–Giants 3 Dodgers 1 in 2:39 – 30,707 fans.

9 – Equaled Tiebreaker, Major League Tiebreaker, and National League Tiebreaker Records – Polo Grounds (V), New York, New York -10/2/1951– Dodgers 10 Giants 0 in 3:25 – 38,609 fans.

9 – Equaled Tiebreaker, Major League Tiebreaker, and National League Tiebreaker Records – Polo Grounds (V), New York, New York –10/3/1951–Giants 5 Dodgers 4 in 2:28 – 34,320 fans.

18 - New Venezuelan Winter League and Caribbean Winter League Records - 2/14/1952 - Magallanes 3 Cerveceria Caracas 3 in 3:10.

21— New Japanese All-Star Record — Nishinomiya Kyujyo (Stadium), Nishinomiya — 7/3/1952 — Central League All-Stars 2 Pacific League All-Stars 2 in 4:30.

?— New Finnish and Finnish Olympics Demonstration Sport Records — Olympic Stadium, Helsinki — 7/31/1952 — Finnish Pesapallo (Baseball) League 8 Workers' Athletic Federation 4 in 1:00—19,309 fans finished at 7:00 P.M.

9 — New Iraqi King-in-Attendance Record — Ebbets Field, Brooklyn, New York — 8/13/1952 — National League — Dodgers 5 Giants 4; then Giants 8 Dodgers 4 — fans included 3rd Iraqi King Faisal II who did not realize that in Ebbets Field it was considered bad form to cheer when Giant Bobby Thomson hit a home run.

?— New Finnish and Finnish Olympics Demonstration Sport Records — Helsinki Football Stadium, Helsinki — 8/?/1952 — USA 14 Venezuela 4, then USA 19 Finland 1— 4000 fans.

17 – New Puerto Rican Record – Ponce – 1/18/ 1953 – Puerto Rican Winter League – Caguas Criollos (Natives) 2 Ponce Leones (Lions) 1, then Ponce 6 Caguas 4.

9 — Equaled Vatican Record — Campo Sportivo at Via Gianicolo —?/??/1953 — Pontifical North American College Team A vs. Pontifical North American College Team B.

9 – New Semi-Pro U.S. President-in-Attendance Record – Grandview, Missouri – 6/3/1953 – fans included former 33rd President Harry Truman.

17 – New Dominican Record – Old Hippodrome (later Estadio (Stadium) Santiago), Santiago – 7/19/1953 – Summer League – Cibaenas Aguilas (Cibao Eagles) 3 Licey Tigres (Tigers) 2.

17 — New Little League Record — Memorial Park, Rutherford, New Jersey — 7/27/1953 and 7/28/1953 — Rutherford AL 3 Lyndhurst NL 2, suspended after 10 innings.

20— New NBC and US Army vs. Navy Records — Memorial Ball Park, Atwater, California — 8/4/1953 — Fort Ord Warriors 2 San Diego Naval Air Station 1 Skyraiders in 4:40— 3100 fans — finished at 12:55 A.M. in the early morning of 8/5.

17—Equaled NBC Tournament Record— 8/??/1953—Peoria (IL) 6 Robins Field (Ga) 3.

18 — New Mexican 1–0 Record — Estadio (Stadium) Poza Rica, Poza Rica, State of Veracruz —1/17/1954 — Veracruz Winter League — Poza Rica Oilers 1 Cordoba Coffee Harvesters 0.

14 — New NCAA World Series Record — Rosenblatt Stadium, Omaha, Nebraska — 6/12/1954 — Oklahoma A&M University Aggies 5 University of Arizona Wildcats 4.

17 — Equaled Dominican Record — Estadio (Stadium) Juan Pablo Duarte, Santo Domingo — 6/20/1954 — Summer League — Licey Tigres (Tigers) 5 Escogido Leones Rojos (Red Lions) 3.

9 – New European Amateur Championship Record – Antwerp, Belgium – 6/26/1954 – Italy 6 Belgium 1.

9 — New Asian Amateur Championship Record — Manila, Philippines —?/??/1954 — Philippines defeated Japan.

20—Equaled Playoffs and Women's Playoffs Records—Parichy Stadium, Chicago, Illinois— 9/14/1954—National Girls League—BlueBirds 6 Bloomer Girls 4 in 4:30, then Queens 5 Jewels 0 in 7 innings—2nd game finished at 1:00 A.M.

11— New Caribbean World Series Record — Estadio (Stadium) University, Caracas, Venezuela — 2/12/ 1955 — Santurce Cangrejeros (Crabbers) (Puerto Rico) 4 Magallanes (Venezuela) 2.

21— New Playoffs and High School Playoffs Records — Clemons, Iowa — 5/10/1955 — Roland High School Rockets 3 Clemons High School 2 in 4:35.

19 — New American Legion, Montana, and Montana Amateur Records — Billings — 8/15/1955 — American Legion Far West Regional — Billings Post 1 Lewis-Clark Post (Lewiston, Idaho) 0 in 4:10—1400 fans finished at 12:00 Midnight. 21—New American Legion Record—Minster, Ohio—7/18/1956—St. Mary's 4 Lima 3 in 5:30.

6 – New Australian Olympics Demonstration Sport Record – Olympic Stadium, Melbourne –12/1/1956 – US Military Far East Command 11 Australia 5 – 2000 fans at start; 114,000 fans at end, mostly there to see the track and field events – started at 12:30 P.M.

21— New South American and Colombian Records — Estadio (Stadium) 11 de Noviembre (November 11th), Cartagena — 1/13/1957 — Winter League — Indios 4 Kola Roman 3, Willard 7 Vanytor 4 in 1st game.

18 — New Spring Training 0–0 Record; Equaled Major League Spring Training and Inter-League Spring Training Records — Connie Mack Stadium, West Palm Beach, Florida — 4/1/1957 — Pirates 0 Athletics 0 in 3:53 — 432 fans — finished at 5:27 P.M.

25 — Equaled High School and Japanese High School Records — Shikoku Kyujyo (Stadium), Shikoku — 4/28/1958 — Takamatsu-shogyo 2 Tokushima-shogyo 0 in 5:47.

12 — New NCAA College World Series Record — Rosenblatt Stadium, Omaha, Nebraska — 6/19/1958 — University of Southern California Trojans 8 University of Missouri Tigers 7.

16 – New NJCAA Record – Lincoln Park Stadium (later Stocker Stadium, then Sam Suplizio Field), Grand Junction, Colorado – 5/23/1959 – Phoenix College Bears 6 Paducah Junior (now West Kentucky Community and Technical) College Indians 5 in 4:56 – finished at 7:56 P.M.

12 – New National Amateur Federation Record – Maple Avenue Field, Altoona, Pennsylvania – 8/22/1959 and 8/23/1959 and 8/24/1959 – Junior Tournament – Cincinnati Schiff's Shoes 0 Detroit Lundquist Insurance 0, rain delay top 8th, suspended after 7 innings on 8/22, rained out 8/23, rain delay top 13th, called off on 8/24.

9 – Equaled Tiebreaker, Major League Tiebreaker, and National League Tiebreaker Records – County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin – 9/28/1959 – Dodgers 3 Braves 2 in 2:40–18,297 fans.

12 — New Tiebreaker, Major League Tiebreaker, and National League Tiebreaker Records — Memorial Coliseum, Los Angeles, California — 9/29/1959 — Dodgers 6 Braves 5 in 4:06 — 36,853 fans.

102 — New Planned Marathon Record — Civic Stadium (later Pge Park), Portland, Oregon — early 1960's — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Portland State University Vikings Team A vs. Portland State University Vikings Team B in 23:30.

9 – New North Pole and Ice Records – Ninety Degrees North Latitude, Arctic Ocean – 3/25/1960– USS *Seadragon* Nuclear Submarine Team A vs. USS *Seadragon* Nuclear Submarine Team B.

27 — New Minor League, Central American, and Mexican Records — Estadio (Stadium) Domingo Santana, Leon, State of Guanajuato — 7/17/1960 — Mexican Center League — Aguascalientes Tigres (Tigers) 5 Leon Diablos Rojos (Red Devils) 4. 9 — New All-Time U.S. President-and-U.S. Vice-President-Both-in-Attendance Record — Griffith Stadium, Washington, Dc - 4/10/1961— White Sox 4 Senators 3 in 2:41—26,725 fans including 35th President John Kennedy and 37th Vice President (future 36th President) Lyndon Johnson.

10—New Game-on-A-Former-Farm and American League Game-on-A-Former-Farm Records— Metropolitan Stadium, Bloomington, Minnesota— 4/22/1961—Twins 5 Senators 4 in 3:17—17,445 fans.

9 — New Japanese-Professional-Game-in-Okinawa Record — Naha Kyujo (Stadium), Naha — 5/20/1961— Pacific League — Seibu Lions vs. Toei Flyers.

13—New Wisconsin High School State Tournament Record—unknown location—6/??/1961— Madison Central High School vs. Gresham High School.

17 — New Australian Record — Adelaide, State of South Australia — 7/?/1961— Claxton Shield Championship — West Australia defeated South Australia.

19 – New NBC Tournament Record – 8/??/1961– Fallon (Nv) 7 Langley (Va) 6.

9 — Equaled All-Time U.S. President-and-U.S. Vice-President-Both-in-Attendance Record — Dc (later Robert F. Kennedy) Stadium, Washington, Dc — 4/9/1962 — Senators 4 Tigers 1 in 2:47 — 44,383 fans including 35th President John Kennedy and 37th Vice President (future 36th President) Lyndon Johnson.

9 – Equaled Japanese-Professional-Game-in-Okinawa Record – Naha Kyujo (Stadium), Naha – 6/13/1962 – Pacific League – Hankyu Braves vs. Mainichi-Taiei.

9 — Equaled Japanese-Professional-Game-in-Okinawa Record — Naha Kyujo (Stadium), Naha — 6/14/ 1962 — Pacific League — Hankyu Braves vs. Mainichi-Taiei.

15 – New NCAA College World Series Record – Rosenblatt Stadium, Omaha, Nebraska – 6/16/1962 – University of Michigan Wolverines 5 University of Santa Clara Broncos 4 in 3:32 – 7395 fans.

19 — New Puerto Rican Record — Caguas or Santurce —1/28/1963 — Caguas Criollos 5 Santurce Crabbers 3.

19 — New Australian Record — Bannister Park, Brisbane, State of Queensland — 7/??/1963 — Claxton Shield Championship — New South Wales 1 Western Australia 1.

20— New Colt League Record — Pony-Colt Stadium, Galveston, Texas — 7/27/1963 — Galena Park 6 Beaumont 5 in 5:00.

17 — New American Legion Record — Keene, New Hampshire — week before 9/14/1963 — American Legion — Greensboro (NC) 8 Orangeburg (Sc) 6 in 5:05.

22 — New Oceania and Australian Records — North Balwyn, Province of Victoria —?/??/1963 — Amateur — North Balwyn Third Nine tied Ormond.

16 — New Panamanian Record — Novatos or Panalit — 1/13/1964 — Winter League — Novatos 6 Panalit 6 in 4:32. 20— Equaled All-Time Spring Training and Professional Spring Training Records; New Minor League Spring Training, Minor League Inter-League, and Minor League Inter-League Spring Training Records— Memorial Stadium, Sanford, Florida— 4/17/1964— Eastern League vs. New York-Pennsylvania League— Williamsport Mets vs. Auburn Mets.

22 — New College and NCAA Records — Kentucky Wesleyan Field (now Panther Park), Owensboro, Kentucky — 4/20/1964 — Kentucky Wesleyan College Panthers 8 Oakland City College Mighty Oaks 7 in 6:30, 2nd game postponed — 200 fans — finished at 11:30 P.M.

23 — New National League Decision Record — Shea Stadium, New York, New York — 5/31/1964 — Giants 8 Mets 6 in 7:23 in 2nd game, Giants 5 Mets 3 in 2:29 in 1st game — 57,037 fans, 8000 fans at end — 2nd game finished at 11:25 P.M.

15 — Equaled Game-on-A-Former-Farm and American League Game-on-A-Former-Farm Records — Metropolitan Stadium, Bloomington, Minnesota — 9/29/ 1964 — Kansas City Athletics 7 Twins 6 in 4:50 — 2999 fans.

?— New Japanese Olympics Demonstration Sport Record — Korakuen Kyujyo (Stadium), Tokyo — 10/11/1964 — USA College All-Stars 6 Japan Amateur All-Stars 2 — 51,000 fans.

16 – New Pony League/13 Record – San Diego, California – 8/??/1964 – Campbell-Moreland (CA) 4 Gadsden (AL) 1.

13 — New Dominican 1–0 and Venezuelan 1–0 Records — Estrellas, Dominican —12/14/1964 — Venezuelan League at Dominican League — Estrellas Elephants 1 Valencia 0.

12 — New All-Time Exhibition Indoor, Professional Exhibition Indoor, Major League Exhibition Indoor, National League Exhibition Indoor — Astrodome, Houston, Texas — 4/12/1965 — Exhibition — Astros 2 Yankees 1 in 2:34 — 47,876 fans including 36th President Lyndon Johnson.

9 – New All-Time Indoor, Professional Indoor, Major League Indoor, and National League Indoor Records – Astrodome, Houston, Texas – 4/12/1965 – Phillies 2 Astros 0 in 2:34 – 42,652 fans.

12 — New All-Time Indoor, Professional Indoor, Major League Indoor, and National League Indoor Records — Astrodome, Houston, Texas — 4/23/1965 — Astros 4 Pirates 3 in 3:35 — 25,399 fans.

27 — Equaled Minor League Record; New U.S. Minor League Record — Dunn Field, Elmira, New York — 5/8/1965 — Eastern League — Elmira Pioneers 2 Springfield Giants 1 in 6:24 — 386 fans, 400 fans at end —finished at 9:24 P.M.

14 — New All-Time Indoor, Professional Indoor, Major League Indoor, and National League Indoor Records — Astrodome, Houston, Texas — 5/19/1965 — Dodgers 4 Astros 2 in 4:04 — 30,885 fans.

15-Equaled NCAA College World Series Record-Rosenblatt Stadium, Omaha, Nebraska6/10/1965 — Ohio State University Buckeyes 1 Washington State University Cougars 0.

127 — New Planned Marathon Record — Basking Ridge, New Jersey — 6/18/1965 and 6/19/1965 — High School — Basking Ridge High School Seniors Team A 166 Basking Ridge High School Seniors Team B 155 in 24:22.

20— Equaled Caribbean and Cuban Records — Estadio (Stadium) Augusto Cesar Sandino, Santa Clara or Estadio (Stadium) Guillermon Moncada, Santiago —12/28/1965 — Series Nacionales — Centrales vs. Orientales.

29 — New Minor League Record — Al Lang Field (I), St. Petersburg, Florida — 6/14/1966 — Florida State League — Miami Marlins 4 St. Petersburg Cardinals 3 in 6:59 — 740 fans, 175 fans at end — finished at 2:29 A.M. in the early morning of 6/15.

21— New High School Two-Field Record — Delano High School Diamond #4 and Delano High School Varsity Field, Delano, California — 3/23/1967 — California High School League — Fresno McLane High School Highlanders 3 Fresno High School Warriors 2 in 6:15, diamond switch delay from Diamond #4 to Varsity Field 0:15 top 8th — finished at 10:30 P.M.

25 — Equaled High School and Hawaiian Records; New U.S. High School Record — Honolulu Stadium (later Termite Palace), Honolulu, Hawaii — 3/25/1967 — Hawaii High School League — Kamehameha High School Warriors 9 McKinley High School Tigers 7 in 6:12.

19 — New Major League Commissioner-in-Attendance Record — Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan — 6/17/1967 — American League — Tigers 7 Athletics 6 in 3:25, rain delay 0:15 top 7th, then Athletics 6 Tigers 5 in 5:40 and 19 innings —14,871 fans, 200 fans at end including 4th Commissioner of Baseball William Eckert — finished at 12:17 A.M. in the early morning of 6/18.

15 — New Major League All-Star Record — Anaheim Stadium (later Edison International Field, then Angels Stadium), Anaheim, California — 7/11/1967 — National League at American League — National League All-Stars 2 American League All-Stars 1 in 3:41—46,309 fans — finished at 7:56 P.M.

16 — New VFW Teener Record — Fisher Field, Easton, Pennsylvania — 8/11/1967 — West Allis (Wi) 6 Lebanon Valley (PA) 2 in 3:45 — 200 fans.

21— New Major League 1–0 and National League 1–0 Records — Crosley Field, Cincinnati, Ohio — 9/1/1967 — Giants 1 Reds 0 in 5:40—13,745 fans, 200 fans at end —finished at 1:45 A.M. in the early morning of 9/2.

24 — Equaled Major League Decision and Professional 1–0 Records; New All-Time Indoor, Professional Indoor, Major League Indoor, National League Indoor, Major League 1–0, National League 1–0, and National League Decision Records — Astrodome, Houston, Texas — 4/15/ 1968 — Astros 1 Mets 0 in 6:06 —14,219 fans, 3000 fans at end —finished at 1:37 A.M. in the early morning of 4/16. 21—Equaled US High School Record—Knowles Field, Martinez, California—5/9/1968—California High School League—Alhambra High School Bulldogs 4 San Ramon Valley High School Wolves 3 in 6:00—finished at 9:30 P.M.

11— Montana American Legion Record — Kindrick Legion Field, Helena — 8/??/1968 — state playoffs — Helena Senators 6 Great Falls Electrics 5.

21— Equaled US High School Record — Field Park, Mukwonago, Wisconsin — 5/15/1969 — Wisconsin High School League — Mukwonago High School Indians 5 Burlington High School Demons 4 in 5:00— 65 fans — finished at 9:30 P.M.

19 — New Japanese Minor League Record — Fujiidera Kyujyo (Stadium), Fujiidera — 8/2/1969 — Western League — Kintetsu Buffaloes 3 Chunichi Dragons 2 in 4:27.

17 – New Tennessee American Amateur Congress/Stan Musial Division State Tournament Record – Shelby Park, Nashville – 8/23/1969 – Tennessee Pride Eggs 1 Nashville Sporting Goods 0 in 4:06 – finished at 2:06 P.M.

9 – Equaled National League Championship Series Record – Atlanta Stadium, Atlanta, Georgia – 10/4/1969 – Mets 9 Braves 5 in 2:37 – 50,122 fans.

12 — Equaled Major League Playoffs Record; New American League Playoffs and American League Championship Series Records — Memorial Stadium, Baltimore, Maryland — 10/4/1969 — Orioles 4 Twins 3 in 3:29 — 39,324 fans.

9 — Equaled National League Championship Series Record — Atlanta Stadium, Atlanta, Georgia — 10/5/1969 — Mets 11 Braves 6 in 3:10 — 50,270 fans.

9 — Equaled National League Championship Series Record — Shea Stadium, New York, New York — 10/6/1969 — Mets 7 Braves 4 in 2:24 — 54,195 fans.

17 — New High School 0–0 Record — Alhambra, California — 5/19/1970 — Aaaa playoffs — Alhambra Keppel High School Aztecs 0 Anaheim Western High School Pioneers 0 in 4:35.

22—New NAIA Record; Equaled College Record—Reddie (later Berry) Field, Arkadelphia, Arkansas—4/28/1970—Henderson State College (later University) Reddies 3 Harding College (later University) Bisons 2.

24 — New Playoffs, High School Playoffs, and US High School 1–0 Records — Flamingo Park, Miami Beach, Florida — 4/23/1970 — Miami High School Stingarees 1 Hialeah High School Thoroughbreds 0 in 5:16, then Miami Coral Park High School Rams 9 Miami High School 0 in 2:44 and 7 innings — 250 fans; 500 fans at end of 1st game — 1st game finished at 8:16 P.M.; 2nd game finished at 11:44 P.M.

15—Equaled NCAA World Series Record— Rosenblatt Stadium, Omaha, Nebraska—6/19/1970— University of Southern California Trojans 2 Florida State University Seminoles 1.

20— New Japanese College Record — Meiji Jingu Kyujo (Stadium), Tokyo — 6/24/1970 — All-Japan University League Semifinal – Kansai University 3 Hosei University 2 in 4:54.

10— New National League Championship Series Record — Three Rivers Stadium, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 10/3/1970— Reds 3 Pirates 0 in 2:23 — 31,530 fans.

11— New World Cup Record — Cartagena, Colombia — 12/3/1970 — Cuba 3 USA 1.

23 — New College and NCAA Records — Clark Field, Lafayette, Louisiana — 3/27/1971— University of Southwestern Louisiana (now University of Louisiana-Lafayette) Ragin' Cajuns 6 McNeese State University Cowboys 5 in 5:03, then McNeese State 13 Southwestern Louisiana 10 in 2:30 and 7 innings — 1st game finished at 6:33 P.M., 2nd game finished at 10:03 P.M.

401— New Planned Marathon Record — unknown location — prior to 6/??/1971— Amateur — fundraiser for National Cystic Fibrosis Research Foundation.

20— New Pony League Record — Mount Prospect, Illinois — 5/31/1971— Mount Prospect Pony A League — Braves 6 Orioles 5 in 4:15.

20— Equaled Pony League Record — Mount Prospect, Illinois — 6/6/1976 and 6/13/1976 — Mount Prospect Pony B League First Half Championship — Braves 2 Mets 0.

20— New American League 1–0 Record — Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California — 7/9/1971— Athletics 1 Angels 0 in 5:05 — 22,938 fans — finished at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 7/10.

21— Equaled American Legion Record — Wakefield High School Field, Arlington, Virginia — 7/24/1971— Clark Griffith League — Martz Insurance 10 Post #130 9.

20— New Brazilian Record — Bom Retiro (Good Place to Rest) Stadium, Sao Paulo — 9/7/1971— National Championships — Sul-Brasil 6 Presidente Venceslau 5 in 6:00—2000 fans — finished at 5 P.M.

20—New Two-Site and One State/One District Records — Cleveland Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio and R.F.K. Stadium, Washington, D.C. — 9/14/1971 and 9/20/1971—Indians 3 Senators 1 in 1:54, then Senators 8 Indians 6 in 6:15, suspended after 5:00 and 16 innings in Cleveland, completed 9/20 in Washington — 2639 fans on 9/14 in Cleveland, 100 fans at suspension, 1743 fans on 9/20 in Washington, 333 fans top 17th — 2nd game suspended at 1:00 A.M. in the early morning of 9/15.

19 — New Oceania Decision and Australian Decision Records — Norwood Oval, Norwood, State of South Australia — 3/15/1972 — South Australian League Grand Final Game — Port Adelaide Magpies 4 Goodwood Indians 2 in 3:30 — finished at 11:40 P.M.

325 — New Confirmed Date Planned Marathon Record — Telulah Park, Appleton, Wisconsin — 8/18/1972 and 8/19/1972 and 8/20/1972 — Amateur — Dan Felton's Follies 154 Randy Haak's Hawks 142 in 30:30—fundraiser for National Cystic Fibrosis Research Foundation organized by Appleton High School West Key Kiwanis Youth Club—finished at 12:30 A.M. in the early morning of 8/20.

20— Equaled Caribbean and Cuban Records — Estadio (Stadium) Augusto Cesar Sandino, Santa Clara or Camaguey —1/21/1973 — Series Nacionales — Azucarerors (Sugar Workers) vs. Camaguey.

27 — New High School and Japanese High School Records — Ube City Kyujyo (Stadium), Ube City — 5/13/1973 and 5/14/1973 — Japan High School League — Matsue Sho 2 Shimonoseki Sho 0, suspended after 18 innings.

21— New High School 0–0 Record — Mt. Olive, Illinois — 5/23/1973 — Staunton High School Bulldogs 0 Mt. Olive High School Wildcats 0 in 4:05, scheduled to resume 5/29 but instead they decided to play a new game — finished at 8:05 P.M.

16 — New Wisconsin High School State Tournament Record — Sportsman's Park, Wausau — 6/8/1973 — Semifinal Game — Oconto Falls High School Panthers 5 Eau Claire Memorial High School Old Abes 1.

24 - New American Legion Record - Regional Park, Midwest City, Oklahoma - 7/??/1973 - Post 170 Midwest City 2 Post 170 Choctaw 1 in 6:06 - 50 fans, 15 fans at end - finished at 2:06 A.M. in the early morning of 7/??.

23 — New Mexican Amateur Record — Estadio (Stadium) Alberto Hoeffer, Nogales, State of Sonora — 7/29/1973 — Liga (League) Norte de Sonora — Cananea Mineros (Miners) 4 Nogales Internacionales (Internationals) 2 in 6:23 — 1800 fans — finished at 1:53 A.M. in the early morning of 7/30.

9 — New Inter-Continental Cup Record — Parma, Italy — 9/1/1973 — Japan 10 Taiwan 1.

12 — Equaled Major League Playoffs and National League Playoffs Records; New National League Championship Series Record — Shea Stadium, New York, New York — 10/9/1973 — Reds 2 Mets 1 in 3:07 — 50,786 fans.

6 – New Greek Record – Lamade Stadium, Williamsport, Pennsylvania – 8/20/1974 – Little League World Series – Talmadge Little League (Ohio) 8 Athenai Airport Little League/Athens (Greece) 0.

25 — New Major League Decision, National League Decision, and Major League Commissioner-in-Attendance Records — Shea Stadium, New York, New York — 9/11/1974 — Cardinals 4 Mets 3 in 7:04 — 13,460 fans, 1000 fans at end including 5th Commissioner of Baseball Bowie Kuhn — finished at 3:13 A.M. in the early morning of 9/12.

23 — New Caribbean and Cuban Records — Camaguey — 1/4/1975 — Series Nacionales — Camaguey Granjeros (Grain Workers) vs. Camaguey Ganaderos (Cattle Raisers), suspended.

25 - Equaled High School and U.S. High School Records – Farmers Field, Hayward and Rebels Field, San Lorenzo, California – 4/9/1975 and 5/2/1975 – Hayward High School Farmers 2 San Lorenzo High School Rebels 1, suspended after 17 innings in Hayward, completed in San Lorenzo —15 fans at San Lorenzo; then Hayward 5 San Lorenzo 4 in 7 innings.

26 — New Canadian Record — Belleville, Province of Ontario — 6/7/1975 — Ontario League — St. Catherine's Jackets 8 Belleville 2; then 2nd game postponed finished at 12:00 Midnight.

19 — New Pony League/Bronco Record — Washington, Pennsylvania — 8/??/1975 — San Pedro/Cabrillo Bay (CA) 1 Birmingham (AL) 0.

21— New Puerto Rican Record — Estadio (Stadium) Hiram Bithorn, San Juan — 12/26/1975 — Winter League — Santurce Cangrejeros (Crabbers) 5 Bayamon Vaqueros (Cowboys) 2 in 4:00—finished at 2:00 A.M. in the early morning of 12/27.

20—Equaled Pony League Record—Mount Prospect, Illinois—6/6/1976 and 6/13/1976—Mount Prospect Pony B League First Half Championship— Braves 2 Mets 0.

9 – New American League Indoor Record – King-Dome, Seattle, Washington – 4/6/1977 – Angels 7 Mariners 0 in 2:40–57,762 fans.

13 — New American League Indoor Record — King-Dome, Seattle, Washington — 4/13/1977 — Mariners 3 Twins 2 in 3:44 —11,635 fans.

9 — Equaled Canadian Prime Minister-in-Attendance Record — Exhibition Stadium, Toronto, Province of Ontario, Canada — 4/22/1978 — American League — Blue Jays 4 White Sox 2 in 2:08 — 44,327 fans included 20th and 22nd Canadian Prime Minister Pierre Trudeau.

20— New Mexican 1–0 Record — Estadio (Stadium) Manuel "Ciclon" Echeverria, Navojoa, State of Baja California, Mexico — 1/2/1979 — Mexican Pacific League — Navojoa Mayos 1 Mexicali Aguilas (Eagles) 0 in 5:20 in 2nd game; Mexicali vs. Navojoa in 1st game.

18 — New NJCAA Record — Lawson Field, Great Bend, Kansas or Midwest City, Oklahoma — 3/18/1979 — Barton County Community College Cougars 6 Oscar Rose Junior (now Rose State) College Raiders 4.

21— New Taiwan College Record — Municipal Qiuchang (Stadium), Taipei — 9/15/1979 — Weichuan Foods/Chinese Culture University 1 Putaowang (Grape King) Biotechnology/Fu Jen Catholic University 0 in 6:06 — finished at 10:11 P.M.

10— New Caribbean World Series 1–0 Record — Santo Domingo, Dominican — 2/?/1980— Licey Tigres (Dominican) 1 Bayamon (Puerto Rico) 0.

19 — New Michigan High School Record — Farwell or Clare-?/??/1980 — Farwell High School Eagles 5 Clare High School Pioneers 4.

13 — New Iowa High School State Tournament Record — High School Field, Marshalltown — 7/26/1980—1A State Championship Game — Lansing Kee High School Hawks 4 Bancroft St. John's High School Johnnies 3 in 3:27; then Des Moines East High School Scarlet 4 Charles City 2 High School Comets in X:Xx and 8 innings in 2A State Championship Game – 2300 fans –1st game finished at 3:27 P.M.

22 — New Dominican Record — Estadio (Stadium) Quisqueya, Santo Domingo —1/12/1981— Winter League — Orientales Estrellas (Oriental Stars) 4 Licey Tigres (Tigers) 3 in 5:40—finished at 3:30 A.M. in the early morning of 1/13.

20— New College Playoffs and NAIA Playoffs Records — Thunderbird Park, Cedar City, Utah — 5/2/1981— Mesa State College Mavericks 9 New Mexico Highlands University Cowboys 8 in 5:20, then Southern Utah State College Thunderbirds 5 Mesa State 4.

33 – New Professional and Minor League Records; First-Ever 33-Inning Game and

32 — New Professional Continuous and Minor League Continuous Records — McCoy Stadium, Pawtucket, Rhode Island — 4/18/1981 and 6/23/1981— International League — power failure delay 0:30 at start, Pawtucket Paw Sox 3 Rochester Red Wings 2 in 8:25, suspended after 8:07 and 32 innings —1740 fans, 150 fans Midnight, 100 fans top 21st, 60 fans 1 A.M., 27 fans top 27th, 19 fans at suspension, 5756 fans on 6/23 — suspended at 4:07 A.M. in the early morning of 4/19, dawn was at 5:00 A.M., finished at 6:18 P.M. on 6/23.

22 — Equaled Canadian Amateur Record — Parc (Park) Victor Gadbois, Montreal, Province of Quebec — 8/30/1981— Ligue Montreal Junior (Montreal Junior League) — St. Leonard Cougars 2 Sud-Ouest (Southwest) 1 in 5:30—finished at 7:30 P.M.

9 – New Major League Division Series and American League Division Series Records – Royals Stadium, Kansas City, Missouri – 10/6/1981– Athletics 4 Royals 0 in 2:35 – 40,592 fans.

9 – Equaled Major League Division Series Record; New National League Division Series Record – Astrodome, Houston, Texas –10/6/1981–Astros 3 Dodgers 1 in 2:22 – 44,836 fans.

9—Equaled Major League Division Series and National League Division Series Records—Stade Olympique, Montreal, Province of Quebec, Canada— 10/7/1981—Expos 3 Phillies 1 in 2:30—34,237 fans.

9 – Equaled Major League Division Series and American League Division Series Records – Royals Stadium, Kansas City, Missouri –10/7/1981– Athletics 2 Royals 1 in 2:50–40,274 fans.

11— New Major League Division Series and National League Division Series Records — Astrodome, Houston, Texas -10/7/1981— Astros 1 Dodgers 0 in 3:39 — 42,398 fans.

9—Equaled American League Division Series Record—County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin— 10/7/1981—Yankees 5 Brewers 3 in 2:57—35,064 fans.

9 – Equaled American League Division Series Record – County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin – 10/8/1981–Yankees 3 Brewers 0 in 2:35–26,395 fans.

9—Equaled American League Division Series Record—Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York—10/9/1981—Brewers 5 Yankees 3 in 2:39— 56,411 fans.

9 – Equaled American League Division Series Record – Oakland-Alameda County Coliseum, Oakland, California – 10/9/1981– Athletics 4 Royals 1 in 2:59 - 40,002 fans.

9—Equaled American League Division Series Record—Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York—10/10/1981—Brewers 2 Yankees 1 in 2:34— 52,077 fans.

9—Equaled American League Division Series Record—Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York—10/11/1981—Yankees 7 Brewers 3 in 2:47— 47,505 fans.

10—New South Korean and South Korean Professional Records—Dongdae-Mun (East Great Gate) Yagu-jang (Stadium), Seoul—3/27/1982—Korean Organization—Mbc (Munhwa (Culture) Broadcasting Company) Blue Dragons defeated Samsung Lions.

10—New Game-Involving-an-English-Team Record — Stamford Bridge, Chelsea —?/??/1982 — United Kingdom vs. United States Military —finished at 10:30 P.M.

8½— New Congressional Game Record — Four Mile Run Park, Arlington, Virginia — 7/27/1983 — Democrats 17 Republicans 17 in 3:45 — finished at 11:15 P.M.

16 — New Italian Record — Stadio (Stadium) dei Pirati di Rimini, Rimini — 9/?/1983 — Papa Barzetti Rimini 7 Parmalat Parma 6.

11— New South Korean Record — Chamsil Yagu-jang (Stadium), Seoul — 9/13/1983 — Asian Championship — Taiwan 3 South Korea 2 in 3:53, then Taiwan 1 Japan 0 in 2:44 — 2nd game finished at 10:12 P.M.

45 — New All-Time, Amateur, Asian, and Japanese Records; First-Ever 45-Inning Game — Ibaraki-Mito Kenai (Prefectural) Kyujyo (Stadium), Mito — 9/20/1983 — Industrial Emperor's Cup Nan-shiki Tournament — Tokyo Raito (Light) Kogyo (Manufacturing Company) 2 Miyazaki Tanaka Byouin (Hospital) 1 in 8:19, umpire snack break delay 0:06 top 26th, players refused 0:30 break top 26th —100 fans at end —finished at 5:15 P.M.

25 — Equaled Major League Decision Record; New American League Record — Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois — 5/8/1984 and 5/9/1984 — White Sox 7 Brewers 6 in 8:06, suspended after 5:29 and 17 innings —14,754 fans on 5/8, 17,715 fans on 5/9 — suspended at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 5/9.

9 — Equaled Olympics, Olympics Demonstration Sport, and USA Olympics Demonstration Sport Records — Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California — 7/31/1984 — Italy 10 Dominican 7 in 3:00, then USA 2 Taiwan 1 in 2:19 — 52,319 fans —1st game finished at 7:00 P.M.; 2nd game finished at 10:04 P.M.

12-New Olympics, Olympics Demonstration

Sport, and USA Olympics Demonstration Sport Records – Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California – 8/1/1984 – Nicaragua 4 Canada 3 in 3:02; then Japan 2 South Korea 0 in 2:48 – 39,120 fans –1st game finished at 7:02 P.M., 2nd game finished at 10:20 P.M.

14 — New South Korean, Olympics, Olympics Demonstration Sport, and USA Olympics Demonstration Sport Records — Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California — 8/7/1984 — Taiwan 3 South Korea 0 in 3:41 for Bronze Medal, then Japan 6 United States of America 3 in 3:00 for Gold Medal — 55,235 fans; 20,000 fans at end —1st game finished at 7:41 P.M., 2nd game finished at 11:26 P.M.

8 — New High School Playoffs Two-State Record — Hays Field, Lubbock, Texas; Ferguson Field, Jal, New Mexico – 5/1?/1986 – 4A best two-out-of-three playoffs - knowing that torrential rains made playing their second game of the best two-out-of-three series at Hays Field in Lubbock Texas at 1 P.M. and "if-necessary" third game at 7 P.M. totally impossible, both teams along with coaches, fans, and umpires set out at 7 A.M. on what ended up being a 510-mile long Odyssey from Lubbock, Texas to New Mexico in search of a dry field, fields were found in Artesia (2:00 wait) and Hobbs (2:30 wait) but the fields were too wet and it was raining in both places, in Hobbs they ran into two other Texas high schools, Pecos and Canyon, who were also in search of a dry field, when told that Eunice had a dry field the race was on between the Pecos/Canyon caravan and the Hereford/Andrews caravan, Pecos and Canyon won the race, and proceeded to begin their second game, Canyon had won their first game the night before so when Canyon got way ahead early in the second game, Hereford and Andrews decided to wait and play afterwards since there would be no need for a third game if Canyon won, but Pecos staged a big comeback to win, forcing a deciding third game, and leaving Hereford and Andrews still looking for a dry field, then they heard there was an old field in Jal that had not been used in two years, flickering light standards were fixed by taping two wires together with black electrical tape, outfield had knee-high weeds, foul lines were chalked using an old shoe box, finally after a 12-hour long change-of-field delay, they began play at 12:00 Midnight New Mexico time, 1:00 A.M. Texas time, Hereford High School Whitefaces 4 Andrews High School Mustangs 3 in 3:00 and 8 innings - 50 fans including Hereford mascot Red —finished at 3:00 A.M. New Mexico time; 4:00 A.M. Texas time.

17 — New San Marino and Italy Records — San Marino Stadium, San Marino, San Marino — 9/16/1986 — European Confederation Playoffs — Biemme Fortitudo Bologna 12 Chesterfield San Marino 10 in 5:45 — finished at 2:45 A.M. in the early morning of 9/17.

12—Equaled Major League Playoffs, National League Playoffs, and National League Championship Series Records—Shea Stadium, New York, New York— 10/14/1986—Mets 2 Astros 1 in 3:45—54,986 fans. 16 — New Major League Playoffs, National League Playoffs, Major League Championship Series, and National League Championship Series Records — Astrodome, Houston, Texas -10/15/1986 - Mets 7 Astros 6 in 4:42 - 45,718 fans.

32 — New College and NJCAA Records; First-Ever 32-Inning Game — Robert C. Wynn Field, Bradenton, Florida — 4/4/1987 — Hillsborough Community College Hawks 6 Manatee Community College Lancers 4 in 7:30 — 200 fans, 45 fans at end —finished at 9:30 P.M.

26 — New Professional 1–0 and Minor League 1–0 Records — V.J. Keefe Stadium, San Antonio, Texas — 7/14/1988 and 7/16/1988 — Texas League — San Antonio Missions 1 Jackson Mets 0 in 7:23, suspended after 7:10 and 25 innings — 3792 fans on 7/14, 3260 fans on 7/16 — suspended at 2:15 A.M. in the early morning of 7/15.

11— New World Cup, World Cup 11-Inning, and Italian World Cup Records — 8/26/1988 — Rimini, Italy — South Korea 2 Italy 1 in 3:49 — finished at 12:49 A.M. in the early morning of 8/28.

11—Equaled World Cup, World Cup 11-Inning, and Italian World Cup Records—8/27/1988—Reggio Emilia, Italy—Italy 6 Nicaragua 5 in 3:35—finished at 12:35 A.M. in the early morning of 8/28.

9 – New South Korean Olympics Demonstration Sport Record – 9/20/1988 – Chamshil Yagu-jang (Stadium), Seoul – Netherlands 6 Taiwan 1.

12 — New South Korean Olympics Demonstration Sport Record — 9/22/1988 — Chamshil Yagu-jang (Stadium), Seoul — Japan 4 Taiwan 3.

11— New Japan Series Record — Seibu Lions Kyujyo (Stadium), Tokorozawa — 10/27/1988 — Seibu Lions 7 Chunichi Dragons 6 — 32,304 fans.

23 — New Puerto Rican Record; Equaled Caribbean Record — Parque (Park) Yldefonso Sola Morales, Caguas — 1/8/1989 and 1/9/1989 — Winter League — Mayaguez Indios (Indians) 4 Caguas Criollos (Natives) 3, suspended.

16 — New Caribbean Series Record — Estadio (Stadium) Teodoro Mariscal, Mazatlan, Mexico — 2/?/1989 — Zulia Aguilas (Eagles) (Venezuela) 3 Escogido Leones Rojos (Red Lions) (Dominican) 2 in 5:23.

22 — Equaled Oceania and Australian Records — Parry Field, Belmont, State of Western Australia — 3/17/1989 — Western Australia Grand Series Final — Melville Braves 6 Morley Eagles 2 in 5:35 —1500 fans —finished at 12:50 A.M. in the early morning of 3/18.

21— New Two-Site Record — Ed Smith Stadium, Sarasota, Florida and Dunedin Stadium at Grant Field (later Knology Park), Dunedin, Florida — 4/24/1989 and 5/17/1989 — Florida State League — Dunedin Blue Jays 8 Sarasota White Sox 3 in 6:29, suspended after 5:48 and 20 innings — 525 fans on 4/24, 45 fans at suspension, 307 fans on 5/17 — suspended at 12:48 A.M. in the early morning of 4/25. 25 — New Two-Site Record — Waterloo Stadium, Waterloo, Iowa and Riverview Stadium (later Alliant Energy Field), Clinton, Iowa — 7/6/1989 and 8/17/ 1989 — Waterloo Diamonds 4 Clinton Giants 3 in 7:37, suspended after 5:46 and 19 innings in Waterloo, completed 8/17 in Clinton — 876 fans on 7/6 in Waterloo, 809 fans on 8/17 in Clinton — suspended at 12:51 A.M. in the early morning of 7/7.

25-Equaled Two-Site Record — Memorial Stadium, Everett, Washington and Civic Stadium, Eugene, Oregon — 8/18/1989 and 8/24/1989 — Eugene Emeralds 6 Everett Giants 5 in 7:13, suspended after 5:50 and 19 innings in Everett, completed 8/24 in Eugene — 2998 fans on 8/24 — suspended at 12:50 A.M. in the early morning of 8/19.

5¹/₂—New New Zealand Teams Record — Blockhouse Bay Reserve, Auckland —10/15/1989 — New Zealand Baseball Federation — Car Guard City Blues 3 East City Brewers 3, called due to lightning.

14 — New African, Ghana, and Togo Records — Accra, Ghana —1990's — Ghana defeated Togo.

18 — New Arizona and Arizona Amateur Records — 2/23/1990 — Nataional Collegiate Athletic Association — Packard Stadium, Tempe, Arizona — Arizona State University Sun Devils 6 University of California at Los Angeles Bruins 5.

14 — New Navy vs. Marines Record — 5/15/1990 — Pensacola, Florida — US Navy 5 US Marines 4 — 4000 fans.

10—New Canadian World Cup Record— 8/5/1990—Fry Park, Edmonton—Netherlands 9 Venezuela 8 in 3:30—finished at 5:30 P.M.

22 – New Minor League Playoffs Record and 21– New Minor League Playoffs Continuous Record – Billy Hebert Field, Stockton, California – 9/5/1990 and 9/6/1990 – California League – Bakersfield Dodgers 5 Stockton Ports 4 in 6:20, suspended after 5:53 and 21 innings –149775 fans when suspended; 1559 fans on 9/6 – suspended at 1:27 A.M. in the early morning of 9/6; finished at 6:25 P.M. on 9/6.

21— New NBC and Alaska Records — Mulcahy Stadium, Anchorage — 6/23/1992 — Alaska League — Anchorage Glacier Pilots defeated Kamloops in 6:39 —12 fans at end — finished at 2:15 A.M. in the early morning of 6/24.

10—New Spanish, Olympics Medal Sport, and Spanish Olympics Medal Sport Records—L'hospitalet Baseball Stadium, Barcelona—8/2/1992—Dominican 7 Italy 5 in 3:05—finished at 6:05 P.M.

24 — New National Amateur League Record — Owen Fish Park, Fairfield, Connecticut — 8/14/1992 and 8/15/1992 — Northeast Regionals — New Rochelle Robins 2 Worcester Warriors 1 in 6:10, suspended after 10 innings.

12 — New Japan Series Record — Meiji Jingu Kyujo (Stadium), Tokyo — 10/17/1992 — Yakult Swallows 7 Seibu Lions 3 - 34,767 fans.

19 – Equaled Michigan High School Record – Buchanan or Three Oaks – 4/22/1993 – Buchanan High School Bucks 3 Three Oaks River Valley High School Mustangs 2.

22 — New Japanese College Record — Ojiyama Kyujo (Stadium), Otsu — 5/4/1993 — Kansai Gakusei (Osaka University) League — Kwansie Gakuin (University) 3 Ritsumeikan University 2 in 4:45.

14 – New Babe Ruth/13 World Series Record – Clifton Park, New York – 8/??/1993 – Taylorsville (Utah) vs. Longview (Washington) in 4:38.

12 — New Taiwanese 0–0 and Taiwanese Professional Records — Municipal Stadium, Taipei — 8/29/1993 — Chinese League — Jungo Bears 0 Mercuries Tigers 0 in 4:26 — 6092 fans — finished at 10:26 P.M.

22 — New American League Indoor Record — Hubert H. Humphrey Metrodome, Minneapolis, Minnesota — 8/31/1993 — Twins 5 Indians 4 in 6:17 — 17,968 fans, 1500 fans at end — finished at 1:22 A.M. in the early morning of 9/1.

15 — New Australian League Record — Parramatta Rugby League Ground, Sydney —12/3/1993 — Canberra Bushrangers vs. Sydney Blues.

24 — New Caribbean and Cuban Records — Matanzas or Estadio (Stadium) Nelson Fernandez, San Jose de Las Lajas —12/8/1993 and 12/9/1993 — Series Nacionales — Matanzas vs. Habana, suspended.

7 — New Women's Team vs. Men's Team Record — Knights Castle, Fort Mill, South Carolina — 5/8/1994 — Northern League All-Stars 19 Colorado Silver Bullets 0 — 8179 fans.

11— New Tennessee High School State Tournament Record — Engle Stadium, Chattanooga — 5/2?/1994 — Bradley Central High School Bears 2 White Station High School Spartans 1.

7 — New Women's Team Victory Over Men's Team Record — Midway Stadium, St. Paul, Minnesota — 5/28/1994 — Colorado Silver Bullets 7 Richfield Rockets 2 - 3954 fans.

12 — Equaled Japan Series Record — Seibu Lions Kyujyo (Stadium), Tokorozawa — 10/26/1994 — Seibu Lions 6 Yomiuri Giants 5 — 31,838 fans.

25 — New Caribbean and Puerto Rican Records — Parque (Park) Yldefonso Sola Morales, Caguas — 11/23/1994 and 12/10/1994 — Winter League — Mayaguez Indios (Indians) 4 Caguas Criollos (Natives) 3, suspended after 16 innings.

16 – New Belgian Record –?/??/1995 – Sportpark Brasschaaat, Antwerp – Brasschaat Braves 5 Royal Greys 4 in 4:50 – 200 fans –finished at 8:20 P.M.

9—Equaled American League Division Series Record—Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York—10/3/1995—Yankees 9 Mariners 6 in 3:38— 57,178 fans.

13 — New Major League Division Series, American League Playoffs, and American League Division Series Records — Jacobs Field, Cleveland, Ohio -10/3/1995 — rain delay 0:39 at start, Indians 5 Red Sox 4 in 5:01, 2nd rain delay 0:23 top 8th — 44,218 fans finished at 2:08 A.M. in the early morning of 10/4. 15 — New Major League Division Series, American League Playoffs, and American League Division Series Records — Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York -10/4/1995 — Yankees 7 Mariners 5 in 5:13 — 57,126 fans — finished at 1:20 A.M. in the early morning of 10/5.

10—New National League Division Series Record—Atlanta-Fulton County Stadium, Atlanta, Georgia—10/6/1995—Rockies 7 Braves 5 in 3:16— 51,300 fans.

12 — Equaled Japan Series Record — Meiji Jingu Kyujyo (Stadium), Tokyo —10/25/1995 — Orix Blue Wave 2 Yakult Swallows 1 in 4:38 — 32,911 fans.

13 — New Men's Senior League Record — Tempe Diablo Stadium, Tempe, Arizona —10/??/1995 — 28+ Championship Game — Southern California Blue Jays 13 Arizona Angels 12 in 4:15.

15 — New Major League Neutral Site and American League Neutral Site Records — Cashman Field, Las Vegas, Nevada — 4/4/1996 — Tigers 10 Athletics 9 in 4:47 — 8346 fans — finished at 6:22 P.M.

9 – New USA Olympics Medal Sport Record – Atlanta-Fulton County Stadium, Atlanta, Georgia – 7/20/1996 – USA team bus delay 0:25 at start, USA 4 Nicaragua 1 in 10:00 A.M. game – 30,000 fans.

10—Equaled Olympic Medal Sport Record; New USA Olympics Medal Sport Record — Atlanta-Fulton County Stadium, Atlanta, Georgia — 7/21/1996 — Cuba 8 Japan 7 in 8:00 P.M. game.

12 – New Scottish Record – Jack Kane Sports Centre, Edinburgh – 8/4/1996 – Edinburgh Reivers (later Diamond Devils) 13 Glasgow Comets 12 in 5:45 – ended at 7:45 P.M.

9 — New Major-Leagues-in-Mexico Record — Estadio (Stadium) Monterrey, Monterrey, Mexico — 8/16/ 1996 — Padres 15 Mets 10 in 3:14 — 23,699 fans.

10— New Antarctica Record — North Cargo Staging Area Ball Park Pad, McMurdo Sound, Hut Point Peninsula, Ross Island, 77 Degrees 55 Minutes South Latitude — 1/1/1997 — Bernacchi Bay defeated Debenham Glacier.

13 — New South Korean Professional Record — Taejon Yagu-jang (Stadium), Taejon — 4/12/1997 — Korean Organization — Ob (Oriental Brewing) Bears 4 Hanhwa Eagles 2 in 5:21—finished at 11:51 P.M.

9 – New Major-Leagues-in-Hawaii Record – Aloha Stadium, Honolulu, Hawaii – 4/19/1997 – Cardinals 1 Padres 0 in 2:36; then Cardinals 2 Padres 1 in 2:34 – 37,382 fans.

14 — New Inter-League Record — Anaheim Stadium (later Edison International Field, then Angels Stadium), Anaheim, California — 6/13/1997 — NL at AL — Padres 8 Angels 7 in 5:03 — 24,664 fans finished at 12:08 A.M. in the early morning of 6/14.

12 — Equaled American League Championship Series Record — Jacobs Field, Cleveland, Ohio —10/11/ 1997 — Indians 2 Orioles 1 in 4:51—45,057 fans.

9 – New Cameroun Record – Omnisports Stade (Stadium) Annexe #3, Yaounde –?/??/1998 – Yaounde Mfandena Sky tied Douala Atlantic Warriors in 3:34 —125 fans.

15 – New Tennessee High School Record – Madison or Nashville –?/??/1998 – Goodpasture High School Cougars 8 Overton High School Bobcats 7.

17 — New Inter-League Record — Pro Player (later Dolphins) Stadium, Miami, Florida — 6/8/1998 — AL at NL — Marlins 4 Blue Jays 3 in 5:06 —17,414 fans.

12 — New Each-Team-Scored-in-Each-Extra-Inning-at-Bat Record — Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 7/24/1998 — Phillies 7 Marlins 6 in 3:40 in 2nd game, Phillies 6 Marlins 4 in 3:21 and 12 innings in 1st game — 30,622 fans — 2nd game finished at 12:36 A.M. in the early morning of 7/25.

11—New Little League World Series Record— Lamade Stadium, South Williamsport, Pennsylvania—8/23/1998—Toms River (New Jersey) 13 Jenison (Michigan) 9 in 3:11—13,800 fans.

12—Equaled American League Championship Series Record—Yankee Stadium, New York, New York—10/7/1998—Indians 4 Yankees 1 in 4:28— 57,128 fans.

11—New Major League Exhibition-in-Cuba Record — Estadio (Stadium) Latinoamericano, Havana — 3/28/1999 — Baltimore Orioles 3 Cuba 2 — 55,000 fans.

16 — New Arizona Professional Record -4/13/1999 — National League — Bank One Ballpark (later Chase Field), Phoenix, Arizona — Arizona Diamondbacks 7 Los Angeles Dodgers 6 in 5:14 — 31,197 fans finished at 12:19 A.M. in the early morning of 4/14.

9 – New Major League Exhibition-vs.-Cuba-in-USA Record – Camden Yards, Baltimore, Maryland – 5/3/1999 – Cuba 12 Baltimore Orioles 6.

9 — New Micronesia and Oceania Championships Records — Guam — 5/31/1999 — Guam 10 Micronesia 0.

12 – New National League Division Series Record – Astrodome, Houston, Texas – 10/8/1999 – Braves 5 Astros 3 in 4:19 – 48,625 fans.

11— New Inter-Continental Cup Record — Olympic Baseball Stadium, Sydney, Australia — 11/14/1999 — Australia 4 Cuba 3.

9 – New Major-Leagues-in-Japan Record – Big Egg, Tokyo, Japan – 3/29/2000 – Cubs 5 Mets 3 in 3:26 - 55,000 fans.

11—New Major-Leagues-in-Japan Record—Big Egg, Tokyo, Japan—3/30/2000—Mets 5 Cubs 1 in 3:55—55,000 fans.

19—Equaled Michigan High School Record— Grand Rapids or Hudsonville—6/10/2000—Grand Rapids South Christian High School Sailors 7 Hudsonville Unity Christian High School Crusaders 4.

9 – New St. Pierre and Miquelon Islands Record – St. John's, Province of Newfoundland, Canada – Summer 2000 – Newfoundland and Labrador Summer Games – St. Pierre and Miquelon participated.

7 – New Australian Olympics Medal Sport Record – Blacktown Olympic Baseball Stadium, Sydney — 9/17/2000 — Cuba 16 South Africa 0 in 2:15 — 3082 fans — finished at 1:45 P.M.

13 — New Olympics Medal Sport and Australian Olympics Medal Sport Records — Sydney Olympic Park Baseball Stadium, Sydney — 9/17/2000 — USA 4 Japan 2 in 3:33 — 13,404 fans — finished at 4:03 P.M.

13 – New National League Division Series Record – Shea Stadium, New York, New York – 10/7/2000 – Mets 3 Giants 2 in 5:22 – 56,270 fans.

9 — New Major-Leagues-in-Puerto-Rico Record — Estadio (Stadium) Hiram Bithorn — 4/1/2001— Blue Jays 8 Rangers 1 in 3:14 — 19,891 fans.

15 — New South Korean and South Korean Professional Records — Jamsil Olympic Yagu-jang (Stadium), Seoul — 5/6/2001— Korean Organization — Lg (Lucky Goldstar) Twins 3 Doosan Bears 3 in 5:45 finished at 7:45 P.M.

17 — New Dutch Record — Neptunus Family Stadion (Stadium), Rotterdam, Holland — 7/6/2001— World Port Tournament — Cuba 5 Netherlands 4 in 4:59, rhubarb delay 0:06 top 7th — 5000 fans, 4250 fans at end — finished at 12:35 A.M. in the early morning of 7/7.

11— New Lithuanian Record — Vilnius — 8/2/2001— National Championships — Juodasis Vikingus Vilnius 7 Lituanica Kaunus 6.

15 — New Canadian College Record — Lynx Stadium, Ottawa and Hamilton Yard, Nepean, Province of Ontario —10/21/2001— Canadian Interuniversity Baseball Association — rain delay 4:00 at start, game shifted from Lynx Stadium to Hamilton Yard during the delay, Laval University Rouge et Or (Red and Gold) 10 University of New Brunswick Cougars 6 in 4:55, 2nd rain delay 0:20 top 5th—100 fans—finished at 11:15 P.M.

11—Equaled World Cup Record—Taipei, Taiwan—11/16/2001—Cuba 3 Japan 1.

13 – New English Record – Coldham Common, Cambridge, Cambridgeshire –?/??/2002 – Cambridge Monarchs 5 Croydon Pirates 4.

26 — New Canadian Planned Marathon Record — Cairns Field, Saskatoon, Province of Saskatchewan — ?/??/2002 — Saskatoon Baseball Council Age 15/16 — Athletics 26 Reds 25 in 8:23 — finished at 4:53 P.M.

15 – Equaled Tennessee High School Record – Henderson or Hohenwald – 4/20/2002 – Chester County High School Eagles 9 Lewis County High School Raiders 5.

10—New German Record—Pulheim— 4/27/2002—Bundesliga Nord (North German League)—Strausberg Sun Warriors 4 Pulheim Gophers 3 in 2nd game; Pulheim 8 Strausberg 7 in 9 innings in 1st game.

9 – New Japanese-Professional-Game-in-Taiwan Record – Taipei Municipal Tianmu Stadium, Taipei – 5/14/2002 – Pacific League – Daiei Hawks 5 Orix Blue Wave 4 in 3:08 –11,000 fans – finished at 8:59 P.M.

9 – Equaled Japanese-Professional-Game-in-Taiwan Record – Taipei Municipal Tianmu Stadium, Taipei — 5/15/2002 — Pacific League — Orix Blue Wave 8 Daiei Hawks 7 in 3:37, delay 0:02 — 12,000 fans — finished at 9:24 P.M.

11— New Commissioner-in-Attendance All-Star Tie Game Record — Miller Park, Milwaukee, Wisconsin — 7/9/2002 — American League 7 National League 7 in 3:29, 0:10 managers/commissioner discussion delay bottom 11th — 41,871 fans including 9th Commissioner of Baseball Bud Selig.

10—Equaled German Record—Mannheim— 7/20/2002—Bundesliga Sud (South German League)—Mannheim Tornados 10 Mainz Athletics 9 in 2nd game; Mainz 6 Mannheim 0 in 7 innings in 1st game.

6—New St. Martin Record—Panama City, Panama—7/28/2002—Junior Little League Latin American Regional Tournament—Bahamas Little League 11 St. Martin Little League 1.

11—Equaled Little League World Series Record— Lamade Stadium, South Williamsport, Pennsylvania—8/21/2002—Louisville 2 Fort Worth 1.

10— New Finnish Record — Helsinki — 9/1/2002 — National Championships — Icebreakers 12 Athletics 9.

10—New Austrian Record — Vikings Field, Kufstein — 9/28/2002 — National Championships — Hard Bulls 6 Kufstein Vikings 5.

15 — Equaled Canadian College Record — Pierre Elliot Trudeau Field, Montreal, Province of Quebec — 10/5/2002 — Canadian Interuniversity Baseball Association — Concordia University Stingers 8 McGill University Redbirds 6 in 4:26 — finished at 4:26 P.M.

23 — New Japanese College Record; Equaled College Record — Fukuoka Dome, Fukuoka — 10/26/2002 — Kyushu University League — Nihon Bunri University 2 Kyushu Kyoritsu (Community College) 1 in 6:00.

10—Equaled German Record—Mainz— 4/5/2003—Bundesliga Sud (South German League)—Mainz Athletics 2 Mannheim Tornados 1 in 3:01 in 2nd game; Mannheim 6 Mainz 2 in 2:28 and 7 innings in 1st game.

10—New Major-Leagues-in-Puerto-Rico Record — Estadio (Stadium) Hiram Bithorn — 4/13/2003 — Expos 2 Mets 1 in 3:00—16,332 fans.

22 — Equaled Oceania and Australian Records — Blacktown Olympic Park, Sydney, State of New South Wales — 4/19/2003 — New South Wales Under-23 Tournament — Queensland 4 New South Wales/Victoria/Capital Territory Combined Academy 3 in 5:33 — 120 fans, 200 fans at end — finished at 8:33 P.M.

13 — Equaled English Record — Croydon, Surrey — 4/26/2003 — Rawlings National League — Croydon Pirates 14 Menwith Hill Patriots 13 in 5:02.

15 – New Czech Record – Strawberry Fields, Blansko – 5/10/2003 – Arrows Ostrava 5 Olympia Blansko 4 in 4:40–finished at 5:40 P.M.

12 – New German Record – Tubingen – 5/31/ 2003 – Bundesliga Sud (South German League) – Furth Pirates 10 Tubingen Hawks 6 in 3:38 in 2nd game; Furth 12 Tubingen 1 in 2:00 and 6 innings in 1st game.

14 — New Major-Leagues-in-Puerto-Rico Record — Estadio (Stadium) Hiram Bithorn — 6/5/2003 — Expos 8 Angels 7 in 5:05 —10,598 fans.

14 — New Spanish Record — Sant Boi Stadium, Barcelona — 6/21/2003 — European Cup Winners Cup — Minolta Pioniers (Netherlands) 8 Sant Boi 7.

17 - Equaled Inter-League Record - Camden Yards, Baltimore, Maryland - 6/27/2003 - NL at AL - Phillies 4 Orioles 2 in 5:41-46,405 fans - finished at 12:46 A.M. in the early morning of 6/28.

14 — New Pan-American Games Record — Estadio (Stadium) Quisqueya, Santo Domingo, Dominican — 8/9/2003 — USA 3 Mexico 2.

11— New Chinese Record; Equaled World Cup Record — Estadio (Stadium) Guillermon Moncada, Santiago, Cuba — 10/13/2003 — China 6 France 5 in 3:40—finished at 11:40 P.M.

65 – New Women's Planned Marathon Record – Tucson Electric Park, Tucson, Arizona –10/18/2003 and 10/19/2003 – American Women's League – African Gray Birds 127 Red-Eyed Nites 110 in 24:12 – 100 fans at start, 50 fans at 6 P.M., 25 fans at Midnight, 0 fans at 6 A.M., 12 fans at end –finished at 12:20 P.M. on 10/19.

18 — New German Record — Reiterstadion (later Circle Wood Stadium), Koln (Cologne) —?/??/2004 — Bundesliga Nord (North German League) — Koln Cardinals 2 Koln Dodgers 1.

14 — New Historically Black Colleges and Universities (HBCU) Record — Regional Park, Pine Bluff, Arkansas — 4/8/2004 — Prairie View Agricultural and Mechanical (A&M) University Panthers at University of Arkansas at Pine Bluff Golden Lions; then Pine Bluf 13 Prairie View A&M 12 in 5:15 — 85 fans — finished at 9:30 P.M.

17 — New Inter-League 1–0 Record; Equaled Inter-League Record — Angel Stadium, Anaheim, California — 6/8/2004 — NL at AL — Brewers 1 Angels 0 in 4:46 — 37,589 fans.

19 — New German Record — In den Fliesen (Sportsarea), Saarlouis — 6/19/2004 and 7/10/2004 — Bundesliga Sud (South German League) — Furth Pirates 10 Saarlouis Hornets 4 in 3:04 — finished at 4:04 P.M.; then Saarlouis 2 Furth 1 in 4:31, suspended after 4:16 and 18 innings — 250 fans on both days — suspended at 8:50 P.M.

9 – New Israeli Record – Yarkon Sports Complex, Petach Tikva – 6/28/2004 – National League – Kibbutz Kezer Dg Tech-Gezer 12 Israeli Junior National Team 11 in 4:00–finished at 11:00 P.M.

10— New Minor League All-Star Record — McCoy Stadium, Pawtucket, Rhode Island — 7/8/2004 — International League 4 Pacific Coast League 3—11,192 fans.

6 – New British Virgin Islands Record – Oranjestad, Aruba – 7/18/2004 – Little League Caribbean Regional Tournament – Virgilio Jiminez Little League/Santo Domingo (Dominican) 5 Bvi Little League/Tortola (British Virgin Islands) 3.

6—New Ecuador Record—Panama City, Panama—7/25/2004—Little League Latin American Regional Tournament—Comfanalco Little League/Cartagena (Colombia) 4 C. Unidas Miraflores Little League/Guayaquil (Ecuador) 0.

6 – New Kazakhstan and Romania Records – Field One, Kutno, Poland – 7/30/2004 – Little League European Regional Tournament – Almaty Little League (Kazakhstan) 14 Css-Electro '89 Botosani Little League/Botosani (Romania) 4.

11— New Austria and Ireland Records — Armin-Wolf-Arena, Regensburg, Germany — 8/3/2004 — European B-Pool Championships — Ireland 8 Austria 2 in 5:00—finished at 12:00 Midnight.

9 – New Greek Olympics Medal Sport Record – Helliniko Olympic Complex Field Two, Athens – 8/15/2004 – Cuba 4 Australia 1 in 2:33 – finished at 1:03 P.M.–1549 fans.

10—New Greek Olympics Medal Sport Record— Helliniko Olympic Complex Field Two, Athens— 8/21/2004—Japan 4 Taiwan 3 in 3:03—finished at 1:33 P.M.—2088 fans.

12 — New Iranian Record — Takhti Stadium, Isfahan — 9/17/2004 — Isfahan 10 Tehran 9 in 3:15.

12 — Equaled American League Championship Series Record — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 10/17/2004 — Red Sox 6 Yankees 4 in 5:02 — 34,826 fans — finished at 1:22 A.M. in the early morning of 10/18.

14 — New American League Championship Series Record — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 10/18/2004 — Red Sox 5 Yankees 4 in 5:49 — 35,120 fans — finished at 11:00 P.M.

20-New German Record; Equaled European Record – Reiterstadion (later Circle Wood Stadium), Koln (Cologne) – 4/6/2005 – Bundesliga Nord (North German League) – Bonn Capitals 9 Koln (Cologne) Cardinals 7 in 5:50; then Bonn 4 Cologne 0 in 2:05 and 7 innings, rain delay 0:13 – 600 fans; 500 fans at end of 1st game; 250 fans at end of 2nd game –1st game finished at 6:50 P.M.; 2nd game finished at 9:38 P.M.

16 — New Missouri High School Record — Vikings Field, Springfield — 4/16/2005 — Parkview High School Vikings vs. Webb City High School Cardinals in 4:55.

22—Equaled NAIA Record—Wilson Field, Georgetown, Kentucky—4/29/2005—Lambuth University Eagles 8 Pikeville College Bears 5 in 6:15— 200 fans, 150 fans at end—finished at 4:45 P.M.

15 — New Swedish Record — Oskarshamn Arena, Oskarshamn — 5/22/2005 — Oskarshamn Lost Boys 11 Goteborg Sharks 10 in 5:45; then Oskarshamn 11 Goteborg 5 in 3:25 — 1st game finished at 6:45 P.M.; 2nd game finished at 10:30 P.M.

15 – New Historically Black Colleges and Universities (HBCU) Record – Rickwood Field, Birm-

ingham, Alabama — 5/22/2005 and 5/23/2005 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Southern University Jaguars 6 Prairie View A&M University Panthers 0 in 2:37, then Southern 6 Prairie View A&M 5 in 5:25 and 15 innings, 0:30 gunfire delay bottom 15th, suspended after 5:15 and 14½ innings — 314 fans for first game, 187 fans for second game — 2nd game suspended at 11:10 P.M., finished at 8:10 A.M. on 5/23.

13—New Russia and European Championships Records—Chocen, Czech—7/10/2005—Sweden 3 Russia 2.

28 — Equaled All-Time 1–0 and Amateur 1–0 Records — Vic Kapsner Memorial Park, Lastrup, Minnesota — 7/23/2005 — Town Team League — Lastrup Lakers 1 Pierz Brewers 0 in 5:50—100 fans; 300 fans at end —finished at 7:25 P.M.

9 – New Aruba, Netherlands Antilles, and US Virgin Islands Records – Paul E. Joseph Stadium, Frederiksted, St. Croix, US Virgin Islands – 7/29/2005 – Caribbean Little League Tournament – Bonaire (Netherlands Antilles) 4 Aruba 2 in 5:00; then Curacao 5 Dominican 1.

15 — New Chinese Record — Tian He Stadium — ?/??/2005?.

14 — New Montana and Montana American Legion Records — Heroes Park, Bozeman — 8/3/2005 — American Legion Class AA State Championships — Billings Scarlets 6 Missoula Mavericks 4 in 3:00 and 11 innings, then Billings Royals 4 Billings Scarlets 3 in 4:00 and 14 innings — 500 fans; 200 fans at end finished at 12:22 A.M. in the early morning of 8/4.

15 — New World Cup Record; Equaled Chinese Record — Stadion (Stadium) Eindhoven, Eindhoven, Netherlands — 9/3/2005 — China 6 Brazil 5 in 4:28 finished at 5:28 P.M.

21—Equaled Minor League Playoffs Continuous Record — Fieldcrest Cannon Stadium, Kannapolis, North Carolina — 9/7/2005 — South Atlantic (Sally) League playoffs — Kannapolis Intimidators 4 Charleston (Sc) RiverDogs 3 in 5:09 — 749 fans; 300 fans at end — finished at 12:14 A.M. in the early morning of 9/8.

13 — New South African Record — Stadion (Stadium) Eindhoven, Eindhoven, Netherlands — 9/11/2005 — World Cup — South Korea 4 South Africa 3 in 3:42 — finished at 4:42 P.M.

14 — New Austria Record — Spenadelwiese, Vienna — 10/15/2005 and 10/16/2005 — National Championships — Vienna Wanderers 7 Vienna Metrostars 4 in 4:30 in 2nd game, suspended after 4:00 and $13/_{2}$ innings, then Metrostars 3 Wanderers 2 in 2:30 in 3rd game of weekend; Wanderers 6 Metrostars 5 in 2:30 in 1st game — 250 fans on 10/15; 250 fans on 10/16 — suspended at 7:00 P.M. on 10/15; finished at 12:30 P.M. on 10/16.

18 — New Major League Playoffs, National League Playoffs, Major League Division Series, National League Division Series, and Playoffs 18-Inning Records — Minute Maid Park, Houston, Texas — 10/9/2005 — Astros 7 Braves 6 in 5:50 — 43,413 fans — finished at 5:55 P.M.

14 — Equaled World Series Record — Minute Maid Park, Houston, Texas —10/25/2005 — White Sox 7 Astros 5 in 5:41—42,848 fans —finished at 1:21 A.M. in the early morning of 10/26.

9 — New World Classic and World Classic-in-Japan Records — Big Egg, Tokyo, Japan — 3/3/2006 — Korea 2 Taiwan 0 in 3:19 — 5193 fans — finished at 2:49 P.M.

8 — New Shortened World Classic and Shortened World Classic-in-Japan Records — Big Egg, Tokyo, Japan — 3/3/2006 — Japan 18 China 2 in 3:04 — 15,869 fans — finished at 9:34 P.M.

9 — New World Classic-in-USA Record — Ballpark at Disney's Wide World of Sports Complex, Lake Buena Vista, Florida — 3/7/2006 — Dominican 11 Venezuela 5 in 3:16 — 10,645 fans — finished at 4:27 P.M.

9 – New World Classic-in-Puerto Rico Record – Estadio (Stadium) Hiram Bithorn, San Juan – 3/7/ 2006 – Puerto Rico 2 Panama 1 in 2:47–19,043 fans – finished at 9:47 P.M.

7 – New Shortened World Classic-in-USA Record – Ballpark at Disney's Wide World of Sports Complex, Lake Buena Vista, Florida – 3/7/2006 – Italy 10 Australia 0 in 2:16 – 8099 fans – finished at 9:16 P.M.

11— New World Classic and World Classic-in-Puerto Rico Records — Estadio (Stadium) Hiram Bithorn, San Juan — 3/8/2006 — Cuba 8 Panama 6 in 4:11— 6129 fans — finished at 5:11 P.M.

7 – New Shortened World Classic-in-Puerto Rico Record – Estadio (Stadium) Hiram Bithorn, San Juan - 3/10/2006 – Netherlands 10 Panama 0 in 2:18 – 6337 fans – finished at 3:18 P.M.

7 — Equaled Shortened World Classic-in-Puerto Rico Record — Estadio (Stadium) Hiram Bithorn, San Juan — 3/10/2006 — Puerto Rico 12 Cuba 2 in 3:01— 19,736 fans — finished at 10:31 P.M.

13 — New Montana College and Montana 2-Year College Records — Elks Memorial Stadium, Ontario, Oregon — 3/17/2006 — National Junior Collegiate Athletic Association — Miles Community College Pioneers 8 Treasure Valley Community College Chukars 7 in 3:14 — 50 fans.

17 - Equaled Inter-League Record - McAfee Coliseum, Oakland, California - 6/17/2006 - NL atAL - Athletics 5 Dodgers 4 in 5:02 - 35,077 fans finished at 12:07 A.M. in the early morning of 6/18.

11— New Northern Mariana Islands Record — Francisco Palacios Field, Saipan — 6/27/2006 — Sixth Micronesian Games — Kosrae 10 Pohnpai 9.

6 – New Honduras Record – Guatemala City, Guatemala – 7/9/2006 – Little League Latin American Regional Tournament – Las Acacias Little League/ Panama City (Panama) 7 Marinera Little League/San Pedro de Sula (Honduras) 5.

6 – New El Salvador and Guatemala Records – Guatemala City, Guatemala – 7/9/2006 – Little League Latin American Regional Tournament – Fesa Little League/Soyapango (El Salvador) 1 Pequena Little League/Guatemala City (Guatemala) 0.

6 – New Jordan and Poland Records – Miejska Gorka, Poland – 7/11/2006 – Senior Little League European Regional Tournament – Vilnius Little League (Lithuania) 16 Amman Little League (Jordan) 6.

6 – New Indonesia Record – Disneyland Field B, Hong Kong, China – 7/23/2006 – Little League Pacific Regional Tournament – Jakarta Little League (Indonesia) 18 Illam Central Little League/Makati City (Philippines) 17.

6 – New Jamaica Record – Vega Baja, Puerto Rico – 7/23/2006 – Little League Caribbean Regional Tournament – Aruba North Little League/Oranjestad (Aruba) 26 Bayside Little League/Kingston (Jamaica) 0.

6 – New Saint Maarten Record – Vega Baja, Puerto Rico – 7/23/2006 – Little League Caribbean Regional Tournament – Antonio Concepcion Little League/Moca (Dominican) 14 Saint Maarten Little League/Philipsburg (Saint Maarten) 5.

6 – New Thailand Record – Disneyland Field A, Hong Kong, China – 7/24/2006 – Little League Asia Regional Tournament – Huangpu Little League/ Guangzhou (China) 6 Sanuk Little League/Chiang Mai (Thailand) 3.

6 – New United Arab Emirates Record – Field One, Kutno, Poland – 7/27/2006 – Little League Trans-Atlantic Regional Tournament Third Place Game – Dubai Little League (Uae) 9 Shape-Waterloo Little League/Brussels (Belgium) 6.

6 – New Saudi Arabia Record – Field One, Kutno, Poland – 7/27/2006 – Little League Trans-Atlantic Regional Tournament Championship Game – Arabian-American Little League/Dhahran (Saudi Arabia) 8 London Area Youth Little League (England) 1.

6 – New Georgia and Slovenia Records – Field One, Kutno, Poland – 8/2/2006 – Little League European Regional Tournament – Ljubljana Little League (Slovenia) 7 Georgia Ymca Little League/Tbilisi (Georgia) 3.

6 – New Bulgaria and Moldova Records – Field One, Kutno, Poland – 8/3/2006 – Little League European Regional Tournament – Kvint Little League/Triaspol (Moldova) 4 Doupnitza Little League (Bulgaria) 3.

6 – New Belarus Record – Field One, Kutno, Poland – 8/4/2006 – Little League European Regional Tournament – Georgia Ymca Little League/Tbilisi (Georgia) 10 Brest Zubrs Little League (Belarus) 6.

10—New Bahamas Record — Estadio (Stadium) Latinoamericano, Havana, Cuba — 8/??/2006 — Third World University Championships — Czech 9 Bahamas 6.

7 – New Olympics Qualifier, Olympics Qualifier 7-Inning, Americas Olympics Qualifier, and Americas Olympics Qualifier 7-Inning Records – Estadio (Stadium) Latinoamericano, Havana, Cuba – 8/25/ 2006 – Cuba 14 Colombia 0 in 2:33 – 6000 fans – finished at 11:33 P.M.

9 – New Olympics Qualifier, Olympics Qualifier 9-Inning, Americas Olympics Qualifier, and Americas Olympics Qualifier 9-Inning Records – Estadio (Stadium) Santiago Mederos, Havana, Cuba – 8/26/ 2006 – Nicaragua 11 Ecuador 1 in 2:45 –1200 fans – finished at 12:45 P.M.

9 — Equaled Olympics Qualifier, Olympics Qualifier 9-Inning, Americas Olympics Qualifier, and Americas Olympics Qualifier 9-Inning Records — Estadio (Stadium) Santiago Mederos, Havana, Cuba — 8/26/2006 — Mexico 2 Brazil 1 in 2:50—1200 fans finished at 4:50 P.M.

9 — Equaled New Olympics Qualifier, Olympics Qualifier 9-Inning, Americas Olympics Qualifier, and Americas Olympics Qualifier 9-Inning Records — Estadio (Stadium) Latinoamericano, Havana, Cuba — 8/26/2006 — Panama 3 Dominican 2 in 2:52 —1000 fans — finished at 4:52 P.M.

11— New Olympics Qualifier, Olympics Qualifier 11-Inning. Americas Olympics Qualifer, and Americas Olympics Qualifier 11-Inning Records — Estadio (Stadium) Nelson Fernandez, Havana, Cuba — 8/26/ 2006 — Venezuela 2 Puerto Rico 1 in 3:35 — 1200 fans — finished at 5:35 P.M.

11—Equaled Olympics Qualifier, Olympics Qualifier 11-Inning, Americas Olympics Qualifer, and Americas Olympics Qualifier 11-Inning Records — Estadio (Stadium) Nelson Fernandez, Havana, Cuba — 8/30/2006 — Venezuela 12 USA 9 in 4:26 — 1000 fans — finished at 6:26 P.M.

2 – New Dream Catchers Indoors Record – Minot State University (Msu) Dome, Minot, North Dakota –11/9/2006 – Disabled Youth Dream Catchers League – Dream Catchers Team A vs. Dream Catchers Team B.

18 — New Caribbean Series Record — Estadio (Stadium) Roberto Clemente Walker, Carolina, Puerto Rico — 2/2/2007 — Aguilas Cibaenas (Dominican) 4 Aragua Tigres (Tigers) (Venezuela) 3 in 6:13; then Carolina Giantes (Giants) (Puerto Rico) 11 Hermosillo Naranjeros (Orange Growers) (Mexico) 1 in 3:15 — 2nd game finished at 2:05 A.M. in the early morning of 2/3.

11—New Montana 4-Year College Record — CitiBank Ballpark, Midland, Texas — 3/5/2007 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Montana State University-Billings Yellowjackets 6 University of Texas-Permian Basin Falcons 5 in 3:30, then Montana State-Billings 9 Texas-Permian Basin 0 in 1:30 and 7 innings — 55 fans — 1st game finished at 7:30 P.M.; 2nd game finished at 9:30 P.M.

12 — New Montana 4-Year College Record — Roden Field, Odessa, Texas — 3/6/2007 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Montana State University-Billings Yellowjackets 4 University of Texas-Permian Basin Falcons 3 in 3:31, then Montana State-Billings 7 Texas-Permian Basin 2 in 2:00 and 5 innings — 45 fans —1st game finished at 4:31 P.M.; 2nd game finished at 6:45 P.M.

11— New Slovenia Record — Varazdin Srednjoskolac (Middle School), Varazdin, Croatia — 4/21/2007 — Croatia/Serbia/Slovenia Interliga Tournament — Ljubljana Jezica (Slovenia) 9 Beograd 96 (Serbia) 8.

9 – New Serbia Record – Ada Ciganlija, Beograd – 4/28/2007 – Beograd-96 11 Vojvode 3.

14 — New South Dakota High School Record — Lead — 5/5/2007 — High School League — Hot Springs High School Bison 7 Lead-Deadwood High School Golddiggers 6 in 4:58 — finished at 9:58 P.M.

11— New Croatia Record — Varazdin Srednjoskolac (Middle School), Varazdin — 5/19/2007 — Vindija Varazdin 4 Nada Sm Split 3.

7 – New Israeli Professional Record – Yarkon Sports Complex, Petah Tikva – 6/24/2007 – Modi'in Miracle 9 Petah Tikva Pioneers 1 in 2:14 – 3112 fans – finished at 8:29 P.M.

8 — New Israeli Professional Record — Yarkon Field, Petah Tikva — 6/26/2007 — Ra'naana Express 1 Modi'in Miracle 0 in 1:32 —175 fans —finished at 7:32 P.M.

13 — New All-Time Tiebreaker, Professional Tiebreaker, Major League Tiebreaker, and National League Tiebreaker Records — Coors Field, Denver, Colorado — 10/1/2007 — Rockies 8 Padres 7 in 4:40— 48,404 fans — finished at 11:45 P.M.

10— New Final Olympics Qualifier Record — Intercontinental Stadium, Taichung, Taiwan — 3/10/2008 — Canada 6 Taiwan 5 in 3:30—finished at 10:00 P.M.

15 — Equaled South Korean Record — unknown location — 7/6/2008 — Korean Organization — Samsung Lions vs. Kia Tigers.

15—Equaled Major League All-Star Game Record—Yankee Stadium, New York, New York— 7/15/2008—American League 4 National League 3 in 4:50—55,632 fans—finished at 1:37 A.M. in the early morning of 7/16.

12 — New China Olympics Medal Sport Record — Wukesong Baseball Field Two, Beijing — 8/15/2008 — China 8 Taiwan 7 in 4:20—1600 fans —finished at 2:50 P.M.

12—Equaled China Olympics Medal Sport Record—Wukesong Baseball Field Two, Beijing— 8/20/2008—Taiwan 6 Canada 5 in 3:47—1530 fans—finished at 9:47 P.M.

18 — New South Korean Record — Jamsil Yagu-jang (Stadium), Seoul — 9/3/2008 — Korean Organization — Doosan Bears 1 Hanwha Eagles 0 in 5:51— 7273 fans; 1000 fans at end —finished at 12:22 A.M. in the early morning of 9/4.

18 — New Dutch Record — Sportpark Schenkel, Capelle aan den Ijssel, Netherlands — 9/20/2008 — Promotion/Relegation Playoff— Ado 2 Euro Stars 1 in 5:01— 200 fans — finished at 7:01 P.M.

Doubleheaders and Other Multiple-Game Situations (141)

34¹/₂ Innings (1)

League Park, Raleigh and Hanes Field, Durham, North Carolina -7/5/1915 – North Carolina State League – Raleigh Capitals 3 Durham Bulls 2 in 3:05 and 14 innings in A.M. game at Raleigh; Raleigh 2 Durham 2 in 3:11 and 20½ innings in P.M. game at Durham, called due to darkness with Durham batting in bottom of 21st -700 fans for A.M. game; 1500 fans for P.M. game.

34 Innings (0)

No doubleheader, thus far, has been identified as having gone 34 innings.

33 Innings (1)

Dallas, Texas -4/17/1957 – Texas High School League – Adamson High School Leopards 3 Sunset High School Bison 2 in 20 innings; then Hillcrest High School Panthers 3 Thomas Jefferson High School Patriots 2 in 13 innings – 2nd game finished at 11:59 P.M.

32 Innings (2)

Royal Athletic Park, Victoria, Province of British Columbia, Canada — 5/5/1951— Western International League — Salem Senators 1 Victoria Athletics 0 in 4:36 and 23 innings in afternoon game, then Salem 3 Victoria 1 in 2:01 in evening game — 1200 fans for afternoon game; 2800 fans for evening game — afternoon game finished at 7:06 P.M.

Shea Stadium, New York, New York - 5/31/1964 -National League - Giants 5 Mets 3 in 2:29, then Giants 8 Mets 6 in 7:23 and 23 innings - 57,037fans, 8000 fans at end - 2nd game finished at 11:25 P.M.

31 Innings (3)

Oakland Baseball (later Oaks) Park, Emeryville, California – 5/6/1928 – Pacific Coast League – Sacramento Senators 5 Oakland Oaks 2 in 1:45 in A.M. game, then Oakland 7 Sacramento 6 in 4:00 and 22 innings in P.M. game.

Fairgrounds (later Cardinal) Stadium, Louisville, Kentucky – 7/4/1959 – American Association – Louisville Colonels 3 Dallas Rangers 2 in 2:44 and 12 innings, then Louisville 3 Dallas 2 in 4:56 and 19 innings – 4883 fans – 2nd game finished at 9:50 P.M.

Flamingo Park, Miami Beach, Florida — 4/23/1970 — Florida High School League playoffs — Miami High School Stingarees 1 Hialeah High School Thoroughbreds 0 in 5:16 and 24 innings, then Miami Coral Park High School Rams 9 Miami High School 0 in 2:44 and 7 innings — 250 fans; 500 fans at end of 1st game —1st game finished at 7:46 P.M.; 2nd game finished at 11:44 P.M.

30 Innings (4)

Estadio (Stadium) 11 de Noviembre (November 11th), Cartagena, Colombia –1/13/1957 – Winter League – Willard 7 Vanytor 4, then Indios 4 Kola Roman 3 in 21 innings.

Clark Field, Lafayette, Louisiana — 3/27/1971— National Collegiate Athletic Association — University of Southwestern Louisiana (now University of Louisiana-Lafayette) Ragin' Cajuns 6 McNeese State University Cowboys 5 in 5:03 and 23 innings, then McNeese State 13 Southwestern Louisiana 10 in 2:30 and 7 innings — 1st game finished at 6:33 P.M., 2nd game finished at 10:03 P.M.

San Diego (later Jack Murphy, then Qualcomm) Stadium, San Diego, California -9/24/1971- National League - Astros 2 Padres 1 in 5:25 and 21 innings, then Padres 5 Astros 4 in 2:14, fog delay 0:14 bottom 9th -6339 fans, 100 fans at the end - 2nd game finished at 2:29 A.M. in the early morning of 9/25.

Waterloo Stadium, Waterloo, Iowa — 5/30/1976 — Midwest League — Burlington Bees 4 Waterloo Royals 3 in 5:33 and 22 innings, then Burlington 4 Waterloo 3 in 2:09 and 8 innings — 603 fans — 2nd game finished at 11:12 P.M.

29 Innings (11)

Huntington Grounds, Boston, Massachusetts — 7/4/1905 — American League — Athletics 5 Americans (later Red Sox) 2 in 1:52 in A.M. game, then Athletics 4 Americans 2 in 3:31 and 20 innings in P.M. game — 8707 fans for A.M. game, 12,666 fans for P.M. game.

Pitman, New Jersey – 7/4/1906 – Amateur – Camden West End 2 Pitman 1 in 20 innings in A.M. game; Camden West End 7 Pitman 1 in P.M. game.

Chadwick Park, Albany, New York — 5/30/1924 — Eastern League — Pittsfield Hillies 6 Albany Empires 0 in A.M. game, then Pittsfield 9 Albany 8 in 20 innings in P.M. game — 5000 fans.

Swarthmore Grounds, Swarthmore, Pennsylvania – 9/7/1936 – Amateur – Swarthmore Hornets 9 Linwood F.C. 8 in A.M. game; then Lenni 2 Swarthmore Hornets 2 in 20 innings in P.M. game.

Lucky Beaver Stadium, Portland, Oregon — 4/24/ 1955 — Pacific Coast League — Portland Beavers 9 San Diego Padres 5 in 2:06, then Portland 3 San Diego 2 in 4:14 and 20 innings — 4760 fans.

McCormick Field, Asheville, North Carolina — ?/??/between 1960 and 1966 — South Atlantic (Sally) League — Knoxville Smokies vs. Asheville Tourists in 15 innings, then Knoxville defeated Asheville in 14 innings — 2nd game finished at 2:50 A.M. in the early morning of ?/??.

Yankee Stadium (I), New York, New York - 8/29/1967 – American League – Red Sox 2 Yankees 1 in 2:10, then Yankees 4 Red Sox 3 in 6:09 and 20 innings - 40,314 fans - 2nd game finished at 1:57 A.M. in the early morning of 8/30. Cleveland Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio and R.F.K. Stadium, Washington, D.C. -9/14/1971 and 9/20/1971 American League – Indians 3 Senators 1 in 1:54, then Senators 8 Indians 6 in 6:15 and 20 innings, suspended after 5:00 and 16 innings in Cleveland, completed 9/20 in Washington – 2639 fans on 9/14 in Cleveland, 100 fans at suspension, 1743 fans on 9/20 in Washington, 333 fans top 17th – 2nd game suspended at 1:00 A.M. in the early morning of 9/15.

Estadio (Stadium) Manuel "Ciclon" Echeverria, Navojoa, State of Sonora, Mexico —1/2/1979 — Mexican Pacific League — Mexicali Aguilas (Eagles) vs. Navojoa Mayos; then Navojoa 1 Mexicali 0 in 5:20 and 20 innings.

Thunderbird Park, Cedar City, Utah -5/2/1981-National Association of Intercollegiate Athletics – Mesa State College Mavericks 9 New Mexico Highlands University Cowboys 8 in 5:20 and 20 innings, then Southern Utah State College Thunderbirds 5 Mesa State College Mavericks 4.

Pilot Stadium (later Joe Etzel Field), Portland, Oregon — 4/6/2003 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Gonzaga University Bulldogs 9 University of Portland Pilots 6 in 4:37 and 16 innings, then Portland 4 Gonzaga 3 in 3:13 and 13 innings — 2nd game finished at 7:35 P.M.

28 Innings (12)

Louisiana Street Park, Evansville, Indiana — 7/4/ 1907 — Central League — Terre Haute Hottentots vs. Evansville River Rats, then Evansville 2 Terre Haute 0 in 3:30 and 19 innings.

Rock Island Park, Owatonna, Minnesota — 7/25/ 1915 — Semipro — Mankato vs. Owatonna Gray Sox in 1:15 and 7 innings; then Mankato 1 Owatonna 1 in 3:57 and 21 innings — 2nd game called at 5:57 P.M.

Oakland Baseball (later Oaks) Park, Emeryville and New Recreation Park, San Francisco, California — 6/4/1916 — Pacific Coast League — Oakland Oaks 1 San Francisco Seals 0 in 18 innings in A.M. game in Oakland, then Oakland 4 San Francisco 3 in 2:07 and 10 innings in P.M. game in San Francisco.

Marsh Field, Muskegon, Michigan —????/1949 — All-American Girls' League — Muskegon Lassies 1 Rockford Peaches 0 in 3:02 and 22 innings, then Rockford 3 Muskegon 1 in 6 innings.

Shibe Park (later Connie Mack Stadium), Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 9/15/1950 — National League — Phils 2 Reds 1 in 1:46, then Phils 8 Reds 7 in 4:42 and 19 innings — 20,673 fans, 200 fans at end — 2nd game finished at 12:58 A.M. in the early morning of 9/16.

Cleveland Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio - 6/14/1963 - American League - Senators 5 Indians 2 in 2:12, then Indians 3 Senators 2 in 4:33 and 19 innings -12,377 fans, 1000 fans at end - 2nd game finished at 1:03 A.M. in the early morning of 6/15.

Tiger Statium, Detroit, Michigan – 6/17/1967 – American League – Tigers 7 Athletics 6 in 3:25, then Athletics 6 Tigers 5 in 5:40 and 19 innings –14,871 fans, 200 fans at end - 2nd game finished at 12:17 A.M. in the early morning of 6/18.

Yankee Stadium (I), New York, New York — 8/23/ 1968 — American League — Yankees 2 Tigers 1 in 2:23, then Tigers 3 Yankees 3 in 5:04 and 19 innings — 33,880 fans — 2nd game finished at 1:07 A.M. in the early morning of 8/24.

Diamond, Richmond, Virginia — 8/7/1989 — International League — Toledo Mud Hens 4 Richmond Braves 1 in 5:01 and 21 innings, then Richmond 3 Toledo 0 in 2:23 and 7 innings —100 fans at end — 2nd game finished at 1:57 A.M. in the early morning of 8/8.

Tiger Field (later Doug Kingsmore Stadium), Clemson, South Carolina — 4/21/1996 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Georgia Southern University Eagles 8 Clemson University Tigers 6 in 2:57 and 10 innings, then Georgia Southern 9 Clemson 7 in 5:47 and 18 innings — 2356 fans, 500 fans at end — 2nd game finished at 9:20 P.M.

Philip B. Elfstrom Stadium, Geneva, Illinois – 4/9/ 2003 – Midwest League – Kane County Cougars 3 Burlington Bees 2 in 3:49 and 13 innings, then Kane County 2 Burlington 1 in 3:32 and 15 innings –1469 fans, 14 fans at end – 2nd game finished at 11:25 P.M.

In den Fliesen (Sportsarea), Saarlouis, Germany – 6/19/2004 and 7/10/2004 – Bundesliga Sud (South German League) – Furth Pirates 10 Saarlouis Hornets 4 in 3:04 – finished at 4:04 P.M.; then Saarlouis 2 Furth 1 in 4:31 and 19 innings, suspended after 4:16 and 18 innings – 250 fans on both days – suspended at 8:50 P.M.

27 Innings (30)

Wilkes-Barre and Scranton, Pennsylvania — 5/31/ 1909 — New York State League — Scranton Miners vs. Wilkes-Barre Barons at Wilkes-Barre, then Scranton 1 Wilkes-Barre 0 in 18 innings at Scranton.

Strouthers Park, Mansfield, Ohio — 7/14/1910 — Ohio-Pennsylvania League — Canton Deubers vs. Mansfield Reformers, then Mansfield 3 Canton 2 in 18 innings.

Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois — 6/28/1916 — National League — Pirates 3 Cubs 2 in 1:30, then Pirates 3 Cubs 2 in 3:30 and 18 innings — 6500 fans — 2nd game finished at 7:00 P.M.

Navin Field (later Briggs Stadium, then Tiger Stadium), Detroit, Michigan – 8/4/1918 – American League – Senators 7 Tigers 0, then Tigers 7 Senators 6 in 18 innings.

Lincoln Diamond Park, Galesburg, Illinois -7/4/1925 – Western Illinois/Eastern Iowa Sandlot League – Galesburg Indies 5 Bartonville Bartons 2, then Bartonville 3 Galesburg 2 in 18 innings.

Polo Grounds (V), New York, New York – 7/2/ 1933 – National League – Giants 1 Cardinals 0 in 4:03 in 18 innings, then Giants 1 Cardinals 0 in 1:25 – 50,000 fans – 2nd game finished at 8:00 P.M.

Griffith Stadium, Washington, D.C. – 6/15/1945 – American League – Red Sox 6 Senators 5 in 3:25 and 14 innings, then Red Sox 4 Senators 4 in 2:42 and 13 innings – 21,093 fans – 2nd game finished at 1:02 A.M. in the early morning of 6/16.

Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois — 6/8/1947 — American League — Senators 1 White Sox 0 in 3:30 in 18 innings, then White Sox 8 Senators 2 in 2:00— 29,629 fans.

Triplets (later Johnson) Field, Johnson City, New York – 5/18/1952 – Eastern League – Binghamton Triplets 4 Scranton Miners 3 in 5:10 and 20 innings, then Scranton 4 Binghamton 0 in 7 innings.

Parichy Stadium, Chicago, Illinois -9/14/1954 – National Girls League – Bluebirds 6 Bloomer Girls 4 in 4:30 and 20 innings, then Queens 5 Jewels 0 in 7 innings – 2nd game finished at 1:00 A.M.

Jets (later Franklin County) Stadium, Columbus, Ohio – 5/8/1955 – International League – Montreal Royals 6 Columbus Jets 4 in 2:14, then Montreal 5 Columbus 3 in 4:10 and 18 innings – 4588 fans, 1000 fans at end – finished at 8:18 P.M.

Sicks' Stadium, Seattle, Washington — 5/26/1957 — Pacific Coast League — Vancouver Mounties 7 Seattle Rainiers 2 in 2:20, then Vancouver 6 Seattle 4 in 4:30 and 18 innings — 3915 fans — 2nd game finished at 8:40 P.M.

Watt Powell Park, Charleston, West Virginia — 7/21/1957 — American Association — Charleston Senators 6 Wichita Braves 5 in 1:47 and 7 innings, then Wichita 8 Charleston 6 in 4:10 and 20 innings —1943 fans —finished at 12:27 A.M. in the early morning of 7/22.

Shea Stadium, New York, New York -10/2/1965 -National League – Phillies 6 Mets 0 in 2:31, then Phillies 0 Mets 0 in 4:29 and 18 innings -10,371fans – 2nd game finished at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 10/3.

Yankee Stadium (I), New York, New York — 7/26/1967 — American League — Yankees 6 Twins 1 in 2:38, then Twins 3 Yankees 2 in 4:24 and 18 innings — 21,927 fans — 2nd game finished at 12:44 A.M. in the early morning of 7/27.

Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California - 8/24/1969 - American League - Athletics 9 Orioles 0 in 2:31, then Athletics 9 Orioles 8 in 5:08 and 18 innings - 24,970 fans - 2nd game finished at 9:14 P.M.

Ray Winder Field, Little Rock, Arkansas — 8/7/ 1971— Dixie Association — Jacksonville Suns 4 Arkansas Travelers 2 in 3:58 and 16 innings, then Arkansas 3 Jacksonville 2 in 3:16 and 11 innings — 2638 fans — 2nd game finished at 1:45 A.M. in the early morning of 8/8.

Coleman Field (now Goss Stadium at Coleman Field), Corvallis, Oregon -5/6/1972 – National Collegiate Athletic Association – University of Washington Huskies 2 Oregon State University Beavers 1 in 4:38 and 20 innings, then Oregon State 7 Washington 1 in 1:45 and 7 innings – 250 fans.

San Diego (later Jack Murphy, then Qualcomm) Stadium, San Diego, California -6/7/1972 - Na-tional League - Pirates 12 Padres 5 in 2:49, then Pirates 1 Padres 0 in 4:27 and 18 innings - 7371 fans finished at 1:39 A.M. in the early morning of 6/8.

Shea Stadium, New York, New York – 8/1/1972 – National League – Mets 3 Phillies 2 in 4:28 in 18 innings, then Phillies 4 Mets 1 in 1:45 – 31,846 fans; 3912 Banner Night fans carried 2716 banners around the field between games – 2nd game finished at 12:45 A.M. in the early morning of 8/2.

Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois – 6/27/1973 and 6/28/1973 – National League – Cubs 6 Expos 1 in 2:22, then Expos 5 Cubs 4 in 4:50 and 18 innings, suspended after 3:21 and 12 innings, completed 6/28 – 32,238 fans – 2nd game suspended at 6:59 P.M.

Parc (Park) Jarry, Montreal, Province of Quebec, Canada - 6/28/1974 – National League – Cubs 8 Expos 7 in 4:55 and 18 innings, then Expos 15 Cubs 0 in 2:22 – 20,098 fans, 8000 fans at end – 2nd game finished at 1:56 A.M. in the early morning of 6/29.

Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan - 6/9/1982 and 9/24/1982 - American League - Tigers 2 Indians 1 in 2:27, rain delay 0:45 at start of 2nd game, then Tigers 4 Indians 3 in 4:54 and 18 innings, suspended after 3:38 and 14 innings - 32,213 fans on 6/9, 7226 fans on 9/24 - 2nd game suspended at 1:04 A.M. in the early morning of 6/10.

Three Rivers Stadium, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 7/13/1984 — National League — Pirates 8 Giants 2 in 2:37, then Pirates 4 Giants 3 in 5:11 and 18 innings, fireworks show started at 1:45 A.M. — 22,167 fans, 10,000 fans at end — 2nd game finished at 1:32 A.M. in the early morning of 7/14.

Keehi Lagoon Park, Honolulu, Hawaii — 4/13/1990 — National Association of Intercollegiate Athletics — Hawaii Pacific University Sea Warriors 5 College of Idaho (later Albertson College) Coyotes 4 in 20 innings in 2nd game, Hawaii Pacific 3 Idaho 0 in 7 innings in 1st game.

McCord Field, Lawton, Oklahoma -4/8/2000-National Collegiate Athletic Association – Abilene Christian University Wildcats 3 Cameron University Aggies 1 in 3:00 and 10 innings, then Abilene Christian 10 Cameron 9 in 4:00 and 17 innings -100 fans; 30 fans at end -2nd game finished at 7:30 P.M.

Franklin Covey Field, Salt Lake City, Utah -3/27/2004 – National Collegiate Athletic Association – rain delay 1:00 at start, Brigham Young University Cougars 5 University of Utah Utes 4 in 4:16 and 17 innings, 2nd rain delay 0:30 bottom 8th, then Brigham Young 11 Utah 10 in 3:46 and 10 innings – 606 fans – 2nd game finished at 10:18 P.M.

Richmond County Bank Ballpark at St. George, New York, New York—7/16/2004 and 8/2/2004— New York-Pennsylvania League—Staten Island Yankees 4 New Jersey Cardinals 3 in 4:43 and 17 innings, then New Jersey 3 Staten Island 0 in 2:53 and 10 innings, suspended after 1:38 and 6 innings, resumed on 8/2 after regularly scheduled game New Jersey 10 Staten Island 5 in 2:53 – 3909 fans on 7/16, 350 fans at start of 2nd game, 150 fans at suspension, 300 fans top 7th on 8/2, 175 fans at end – suspended at 1:14 A.M. in the early morning of 7/17, finished at 11:55 P.M. on 8/2.

Reiterstadion (later Circle Wood Stadium), Koln (Cologne), Germany — 4/6/2005 — Bundesliga Nord (North German League) — Bonn Capitals 9 Koln (Cologne) Cardinals 7 in 5:50; then Bonn 4 Cologne 0 in 2:05 and 7 innings, rain delay 0:13 — 600 fans; 500 fans at end of 1st game; 250 fans at end of 2nd game —1st game finished at 6:50 P.M.; 2nd game finished at 9:38 P.M.

Estadio (Stadium) Roberto Clemente Walker, Carolina, Puerto Rico – 2/2/2007 – Caribbean Series – Aguilas Cibaenas (Dominican) 4 Aragua Tigres (Tigers) (Venezuela) 3 in 6:13 and 18 innings; then Carolina Giantes (Giants) (Puerto Rico) 11 Hermosillo Naranjeros (Orange Growers) (Mexico) 1 in 3:15 – 2nd game finished at 2:05 A.M. in the early morning of 2/3.

26 Innings (38)

Huntingdon Grounds (I), Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 5/30/1892 — National League — Phillies 7 Colonels 6 in 12 innings in A.M. game — 2643 fans; Phillies 3 Colonels 2 in 14 innings in P.M. game — 7000 fans.

Fairgrounds (later Cardinal) Stadium, Louisville, Kentucky — 7/4/1959 — American Association — Louisville Colonels 3 Dallas Rangers 2 in 2:44 and 12 innings, then Louisville 3 Dallas 2 in 4:56 and 19 innings — 4883 fans — 2nd game finished at 9:50 P.M.

Baker Bowl, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 5/30/ 1910 — National League — Giants 2 Phillies 1 in 2:07 and 10 innings in morning game, then Giants 5 Phillies 4 in 3:17 and 16 innings in afternoon game —14,000 fans for P.M. game.

Polo Grounds (V), New York, New York — 7/17/ 1915 — National League — Giants 5 Cardinals 4 in 3:45 in 16 innings, then Giants 2 Cardinals 0 in 1:36 and 10 innings — 18,500 fans — 2nd game finished at 7:21 P.M.

Redland (later Crosley) Field, Cincinnati, Ohio – 7/8/1924 – National League – Phillies 3 Reds 1 in 1:51 and 10 innings, then Reds 2 Phillies 1 in 3:00 and 16 innings.

Forbes Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 5/30/1938 — National League — Pirates 5 Cardinals 4 in 4:19 and 17 innings, then Cardinals 9 Pirates 6 in 2:15 — 20,352 fans.

Lucky Beaver Stadium, Portland, Oregon — 5/9/ 1943 — Pacific Coast League — Los Angeles Angels 7 Portland Beavers 6 in 4:32 and 19 innings, then Los Angeles 2 Portland 1 in 1:38 and 7 innings.

Carey Municipal Park (later Hobart Detter Field), Hutchinson, Kansas – 6/30/1947 – Western Association – Hutchinson Cubs 3 Leavenworth Braves 2 in 17 innings, then Leavenworth 5 Hutchinson 4.

Bulkeley Stadium, Hartford, Connecticut - 5/11/

1948 — Eastern League — Hartford Chiefs 5 Elmira Pioneers 4, then Hartford 5 Elmira 4 in 17 innings.

Ironwood, Michigan — 7/30/1950 — Upper Peninsula American Legion Championship — Escanaba 6 Ironwood 5 in 3:45 and 14 innings, then Escanaba 3 Ironwood 2 in 2:30 and 12 innings.

Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois — 7/12/1951— American League — Red Sox 3 White Sox 2 in 2:18, then Red Sox 5 White Sox 4 in 4:01 and 17 innings — 52,592 fans, 2000 fans at end — 2nd game finished at 1:00 A.M. in the early morning of 7/13.

Shibe Park (later Connie Mack Stadium), Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 7/22/1951 and 8/21/1951— National League — Cubs 8 Phillies 7 in 3:28 and 14 innings, then Phillies 3 Cubs 2 in 2:45 and 12 innings, suspended after 1:32 and 7 innings, completed 8/21— 13,877 fans on 7/22, 7683 fans on 8/21— 2nd game suspended at 7:00 P.M.

Mission Stadium, San Antonio, Texas — 8/11/1952 — Texas League — Oklahoma City Indians 6 San Antonio Missions 2 in 1:55 and 7 innings, then San Antonio 5 Oklahoma City 4 in 5:00 and 19 innings — 3143fans — 2nd game finished at 2:10 A.M. in the early morning of 8/12.

Shibe Park (later Connie Mack Stadium), Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 9/6/1952 and 9/7/1952 — National League — Phillies 7 Braves 6 in 3:50 and 17 innings, then Braves 3 Phillies 1 in 2:02, suspended after 1:47 and 7½ innings —12,474 fans on 9/6, 6011 fans on 9/7 — 2nd game suspended at 11:59 P.M. on 9/6, completed at 12:45 P.M. on 9/7.

Ponce, Puerto Rico —1/18/1953 — Winter League — Caguas Criollos (Natives) 2 Ponce Leones (Lions) 1 in 17 innings, then Ponce 6 Caguas 4.

Ponce de Leon Park, Atlanta, Georgia — 7/23/1958 — Southern Association — Atlanta Crackers 11 Mobile Bears 10 in 4:31 and 19 innings, then Mobile vs. Atlanta in 7 innings.

Mission Stadium, San Antonio, Texas — 6/19/1961— Texas League — Amarillo Gold Sox 2 San Antonio Missions 0 in 1:41 and 7 innings, then Amarillo 2 San Antonio 1 in 4:59 and 19 innings —1237 fans — finished at 1:30 A.M. in the early morning of 6/20.

Memorial Stadium, Baltimore, Maryland – 6/30/1963 – American League – Athletics 3 Orioles 1 in 3:33 in 14 innings, rain delay 0:15 start of 2nd game, then Orioles 4 Athletics 3 in 2:57 and 12 innings – 9840 fans – 2nd game finished at 8:25 P.M.

Forbes Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 8/9/1963 — National League — rain delay 1:00 at start, Colt .45's (later Astros) 7 Pirates 6 in 3:58 and 15 innings, then Pirates 7 Colt .45's 6 in 3:10 and 11 innings — 9420 fans, 300 fans at end — 2nd game finished at 2:30 A.M. in the early morning of 8/10 — author and his father sat in second deck behind third base.

Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois — 6/21/1964 — American League — Yankees 2 White Sox 0 in 2:10, then Yankees 2 White Sox 1 in 4:32 and 17 innings — 39,316 fans — 2nd game finished at 8:30 P.M. Mayaguez or San Juan, Puerto Rico —11/29/1964 — Puerto Rican Winter League — Mayaguez Indians 6 San Juan Senators 5 in 17 innings, then San Juan 5 Mayaguez 2.

City Stadium, Lynchburg, Virginia — 8/8/1966 — Carolina League — Kinston Eagles 6 Lynchburg White Sox 0 in 1:33 and 7 innings, then Lynchburg 4 Kinston 3 in 3:48 and 19 innings — 428 fans — 2nd game finished at 11:56 P.M.

Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois — 8/28/1966 — American League — White Sox 4 Twins 3 in 4:30 and 15 innings, then White Sox 7 Twins 6 in 3:03 and 11 innings — 21,576 fans — 2nd game finished at 9:08 P.M.

Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan — 8/6/1968 and 8/7/1968 — American League — Tigers 2 Indians 1 in 4:28 and 17 innings, then Tigers 5 Indians 2 in 2:33, suspended after 2:25 and 8 innings — 48,413 fans on 8/6; 30,402 fans on 8/7 — 2nd game suspended at 1:13 A.M.

Memorial Stadium, Baltimore, Maryland – 9/11/ 1974 – American League – Orioles 3 Yankees 2 in 4:12 in 17 innings, then Yankees 5 Orioles 1 in 2:11–28,923 fans – 2nd game finished at 12:23 A.M. in the early morning of 9/12.

Cleveland Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio – 6/8/1975 – American League – Indians 3 Rangers 2 in 2:08, then Rangers 7 Indians 6 in 4:45 and 17 innings –15,146 fans.

Headid Park, Sioux City, Iowa — 5/6/1977 — NCAA at NCAA (later NAIA) — Morningside College Mustangs 2 University of Nebraska at Omaha Mavericks 1 in 19 innings, then Nebraska at Omaha 5 Morningside 4 in 7 innings — 200 fans.

Tinker Field (II), Orlando, Florida — 5/22/1980— Southern League — Orlando Twins 3 Memphis Chicks 2 in 4:07 and 19 innings, then Memphis 6 Orlando 0 in 1:50 and 7 innings — 2nd game finished at 1:06 A.M. in the early morning of 5/23.

Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts —10/4/1980— American League — Blue Jays 7 Red Sox 6 in 4:38 and 17 innings, then Blue Jays 3 Red Sox 1 in 2:10—14,179 fans — 2nd game finished at 8:23 P.M.

Municipal Stadium, Greenville, South Carolina — 7/13/1984 and 7/14/1984 — Southern League — Memphis Chicks 3 Greenville Braves 2 in 6:02 and 19 innings, then Greenville 6 Memphis 5 in 2:11 and 7 innings, suspended after 2 innings, completed 7/14 — 3044 fans on 7/13, 250 fans at suspension, 4456 fans on 7/14 — 2nd game suspended at 1:07 A.M. in the early morning of 7/14.

Joe Davis Stadium, Huntsville, Alabama – 6/10/ 1990 – Southern League – Huntsville Stars 3 Knoxville Blue Jays 2 in 5:35 and 19 innings, then Huntsville 2 Knoxville 0 in 2:05 and 7 innings – 2nd game finished at 2:10 A.M. in the early morning of 6/11.

Astrodome, Houston, Texas -7/8/1995 – National League – Astros 3 Padres 2 in 4:29 and 17 innings, then Astros 4 Padres 1 in 2:18 – 25,008 fans – 2nd game finished at 9:22 P.M. Simmons Field, Kenosha, Wisconsin — 6/17/1998 — Northwoods League — Austin Southern Minny Stars vs. Kenosha Kroakers, then Austin vs. Kenosha in 17 innings.

Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York— 7/20/1998—American League—Tigers 4 Yankees 3 in 5:50 and 17 innings, then Yankees 4 Tigers 3 in 2:45—36,285 fans—2nd game finished at 1:17 A.M. in the early morning of 7/21.

Cap Timm Field, Ames, Iowa -4/18/1999 - National Collegiate Athletic Association – Iowa State University Cyclones 6 University of Nebraska Cornhuskers 5 in 4:40 and 16 innings, then Nebraska 9 Iowa State 6 in 2:50 and 10 innings – 669 fans for 1st game; 442 fans for 2nd game –1st game finished at 4:43 P.M., 2nd game finished at 8:00 P.M.

Ed Smith Stadium, Sarasota, Florida – 8/8/2005 and 8/25/2005 – Florida State League – rain delay 0:55 at start, Sarasota Reds 5 Lakeland Tigers 1 in 3:51 and 15 innings, then Lakeland 3 Sarasota 1 in 2:57 and 11 innings, suspended after 2:38 and 10 innings – 293 fans on 8/8 – 2nd game suspended at 12:59 A.M. in the early morning of 8/9; finished at 5:19 P.M. on 8/25.

John Kurtz Field, Milledgeville, Georgia – 3/4/ 2006 – National Collegiate Athletic Association – Georgia College and State University (Gcsu) Bobcats 2 Shippensburg University Red Raiders 1 in 2:26, then Gcsu 6 Shippensburg 5 in 5:20 and 17 innings – 582 fans; 175 fans at beginning of 2nd game –1st game finished at 3:26 P.M.; 2nd game finished at 9:35 P.M.

Optimist Park, Litchfield, Minnesota — 5/2/2006 — Litchfield High School Dragons 5 Dassel-Cokato High School Chargers 4 in 1:45 and 7 innings, then Dassel-Cokato 4 Litchfield 3 in 5:00 and 19 innings — 165 fans; 75 fans at end —finished at 11:30 P.M.

25 Innings (40)

League Park, Pittsburg, Kansas — 7/7/1903 — Missouri Valley League — Pittsburg Coal Diggers 5 Joplin Miners 4 in 21 innings; then Joplin vs. Pittsburg, called after 4 innings.

Expo Park (III), Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 7/25/ 1914 — Federal League — Pittsburgh Rebels 2 Indianapolis Hoosier-Feds 1 in 13 innings, then Pittsburgh 6 Indianapolis 5 in 12 innings.

Braves Field, Boston, Massachusetts — 5/30/1921— National League — Braves 9 Dodgers 3 in 1:48 in A.M. game, then Braves 6 Dodgers 5 in 3:05 and 16 innings in P.M. game.

Baker Bowl, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 9/4/1922 — National League — Phillies 5 Robins 4 in 1:55, rain delay 0:03 top 4th, then Phillies 7 Robins 6 in 3:15 and 16 innings —10,000 fans — 2nd game finished at 7:05 P.M.

Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois — 7/21/1928 — National League — Cubs 2 Giants 1 in 3:05 and 15 innings, then Cubs 5 Giants 4 in 2:07 and 10 innings — 35,000 fans — 2nd game finished at 7:12 P.M.

Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois - 8/19/1930 - Na-

tional League — Phillies 9 Cubs 8 in 2:09, then Phillies 6 Cubs 6 in 3:38 and 16 innings — 36,000 fans — 2nd game called off at 7:40 P.M.

Shibe Park (later Connie Mack Stadium), Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 6/1/1932 — American League — Athletics 8 Yankees 7 in 3:45 and 16 innings, then Athletics 7 Yankees 6 in 1:50—31,000 fans — 2nd game finished at 7:30 P.M.

La Grave Field (I), Fort Worth, Texas -7/4/1932 -Texas League - Longview Cannibals 7 Fort Worth Cats 6 in 3:25 and 18 innings, then Longview 2 Fort Worth 1 in 1:35 and 7 innings -2000 fans -2nd game finished at 1:10 A.M. in the early morning of 7/5.

Jacksonville, Florida — 8/31/1934 — Negro League — Pennsylvania Red Caps of New York 3 Jacksonville Red Caps 1 in 18 innings, then Pennsylvania 0 Jacksonville 0 in 7 innings.

Crosley Field, Cincinnati, Ohio — 6/22/1941— National League — Dodgers 2 Reds 1 in 3:36 and 16 innings, then Dodgers 3 Reds 2 in 2:08 — 35,792 fans — 2nd game finished at 7:42 P.M.

Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois – 5/7/1944 – National League – Pirates 6 Cubs 5 in 3:03 and 14 innings, then Pirates 3 Cubs 2 in 2:14 and 11 innings – 19,067 fans – 2nd game finished at 7:17 P.M.

Shibe Park (later Connie Mack Stadium), Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 9/24/1944 — National League — Cardinals 4 Phils 3 in 2:59 and 16 innings, then Cardinals 1 Phils 0 in 1:47 — 13,480 fans.

Shibe Park (later Connie Mack Stadium), Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 9/12/1945 — American League — Tigers 7 Athletics 4 in 1:52, then Athletics 3 Tigers 2 in 3:09 and 16 innings —12,051 fans.

Legion Park, Eastman, Georgia – 5/27/1952 – Georgia State League – Eastman Dodgers 6 Jesup Bees 5 in 21 innings, 2nd game called after 4 innings.

Lane Field, San Diego, California – 7/26/1953 – Pacific Coast League – San Diego Padres 2 Seattle Rainiers 0, then Seattle 3 San Diego 2 in 16 innings.

Miami Stadium, Miami, Florida – 4/22/1956 – International League – Rochester Red Wings 10 Miami Marlins 6 in 5:16 and 18 innings, then Miami 3 Rochester 2 in 2:03 and 7 innings – 3486 fans – finished at 9:06 P.M.

Forbes Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania – 5/30/1956 – National League – Pirates 5 Giants 4 in 2:53 and 10 innings, then Giants 5 Pirates 3 in 4:22 and 15 innings, rain delay 1:16 bottom 3rd – 27,680 fans; 10,000 fans at end – 2nd game finished at 10:00 P.M.

Connie Mack Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 9/13/1956 — National League — Braves 3 Phillies 2 in 3:16 and 13 innings, then Braves 4 Phillies 3 in 2:46 and 12 innings — 23,826 fans — finished at 12:47 A.M. in the early morning of 9/14.

Seals Stadium, San Francisco, California — 9/1/1958 — National League — Giants 8 Dodgers 6 in 2:34, then Giants 6 Dodgers 5 in 4:35 and 16 innings — 14,121 fans for A.M. game; 19,096 fans for P.M. game — 2nd game finished at 7:05 P.M. Yankee Stadium (I), New York, New York— 8/9/1959—American League—Yankees 4 Athletics 3 in 4:17 and 14 innings, then Yankees 3 Athletics 2 in 2:39 and 11 innings—23,406 fans—2nd game finished at 8:26 P.M.

Memorial Stadium, Baltimore, Maryland – 9/11/ 1959 – American League – Orioles 3 White Sox 0 in 1:45, then Orioles 1 White Sox 0 in 3:40 and 16 innings – 22,305 fans.

Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 8/30/1960— American League — Red Sox 5 Tigers 4 in 4:06 and 15 innings, then Red Sox 3 Tigers 2 in 2:50 and 10 innings — 27,176 fans — 2nd game finished at 1:21 A.M. in the early morning of 8/31.

Sherman Field, Lincoln, Nebraska — 8/19/1961— Illinois-Indiana-Iowa (3-I) League — Lincoln Chiefs vs. Fox Cities Foxes, then Lincoln 6 Fox Cities 3 in 16 innings finished at 1:35 A.M. in the early morning of 8/20.

County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin — 5/30/ 1962 — National League — Braves 4 Reds 3 in 2:47, then Reds 4 Braves 3 in 4:42 and 16 innings — 14,449 fans — 2nd game finished at 8:59 P.M.

Yankee Stadium (I), New York, New York – 9/9/ 1962 – American League – Red Sox 9 Yankees 3 in 2:37, then Red Sox 5 Yankees 4 in 4:33 and 16 innings – 38,081 fans – 2nd game finished at 9:40 P.M.

Forbes Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania - 6/29/1965 – National League – Pirates 2 Reds 1 in 4:19 and 16 innings, then Reds 7 Pirates 5 in 2:42 – 28,589 fans – 2nd game finished at 1:45 A.M. in the early morning of 6/30.

City Island Park, Daytona Beach, Florida – 6/21/ 1966 – Florida State League – Daytona Beach Islanders 1 Deerfield Beach Sun Sox 0 in 18 innings, then Deerfield Beach 11 Daytona Beach 3 in 7 innings.

Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois — 4/16/1967 — American League — White Sox 7 Senators 3 in 2:25, then White Sox 4 Senators 3 in 4:08 and 16 innings — 9189 fans — 2nd game finished at 8:08 P.M.

Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois – 7/25/1967 – American League – White Sox 3 Indians 1 in 2:55, then White Sox 6 Indians 5 in 4:47 and 16 innings – 18,152 fans – 2nd game finished at 2:15 A.M.

Municipal Stadium, Kansas City, Missouri— 6/16/1969—American League—Athletics 7 Royals 5 in 3:37 and 13 innings, then Royals 3 Athletics 2 in 2:50 and 12 innings—15,603 fans—2nd game finished at 12:57 A.M. in the early morning of 6/17.

City Island Park, Daytona Beach or Miami Stadium, Miami, Florida – 8/18/1970 – Florida State League – Daytona Beach Dodgers vs. Miami Marlins, then Miami 4 Daytona Beach 3 in 4:00 and 16 innings.

Yankee Stadium (I), New York, New York— 8/27/1972—American League—Yankees 7 Royals 6 in 2:38, rain delay 0:19 bottom 5th, then Yankees 9 Royals 8 in 4:50 and 16 innings—25,801 fans—2nd game finished at 9:17 P.M.

Candlestick Park (later 3Com Park), San Francisco, California — 5/2/1976 — National League — Cubs 6 Giants 5 in 3:47 and 14 innings, then Cubs 6 Giants 5 in 3:19 and 11 innings -17,005 fans - 2nd game finished at 8:36 P.M.

Riverside, California —?/??/1977 or 1978 — National Association of Intercollegiate Athletics — United States International University Gulls vs. Cal Baptist University Lancers in 13 innings, then in 12 innings, final scores were 1–0 and 3–2.

Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates) Coliseum, Oakland, California — 4/11/1982 — American League — Mariners 6 Athletics 3 in 5:18 and 16 innings, rain delay 1:12 bottom 10th, then Athletics 3 Mariners 1 in 2:32 —19,003 fans, 800 fans at end — 2nd game finished at 10:37 P.M.

Pete Beiden Field, Fresno, California — 2/10/2001— National Collegiate Athletic Association — Fresno State University Bulldogs 8 University of Santa Clara Broncos 5 in 2:57, then Fresno State 11 Santa Clara 10 in 5:33 and 16 innings — 2601 fans — 2nd game finished at 10:01 P.M.

Knights Castle, Fort Mill, South Carolina — 8/15/ 2003 — International League — Charlotte Knights 4 Indianapolis Indians 3 in 6:20 and 18 innings, then Charlotte 5 Indianapolis 1 in 1:54 and 7 innings — 5275 fans, 100 fans at start of second game, 36 fans at end plus 250 Girl Scouts asleep in Home Run Café ballpark restaurant who were to have camped out in the outfield after the games — 2nd game finished at 2:55 A.M. in the early morning of 8/16.

Bond Field, Forest Grove, Oregon — 3/28/2004 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Lewis and Clark College Pioneers 8 Pacific University Boxers 7 in 5:00 and 16 innings, then Pacific 11 Lewis and Clark 5 in 2:53 and 9 innings — 80 fans, 20 fans at end — 2nd game finished at 8:23 P.M.

Copeland Park, La Crosse, Wisconsin -8/4/2004- Northwoods League - Wisconsin Woodchucks at La Crosse Loggers, then Wisconsin at La Crosse in 4:42 and 16 innings.

Heroes Park, Bozeman, Montana - 8/3/2005 -American Legion Class AA State Championships – Billings Scarlets 6 Missoula Mavericks 4 in 3:00 and 11 innings, then Billings Royals 4 Billings Scarlets 3 in 4:00 and 14 innings - 500 fans; 200 fans at end – finished at 12:22 A.M. in the early morning of 8/4.

Tripleheaders by Innings (59)

32 Innings (1)

One Team Suspended – Charlotte County Stadium Field #1, Port Charlotte, Florida – 3/23/2006 and 3/24/2006 – National Collegiate Athletic Association – Bates College Bobcats 12 Elms College Blazers 2 in 2:29 and 7 innings, suspended after 0:15 and 1 inning; Bates 1 Western Connecticut State University Colonials 0 in 4:35 and 16 innings, then Western Connecticut State 9 Bates 8 in 3:32 and 10 innings –101 fans for 1st game; 109 fans for 2nd game; 102 fans for 2nd game —1st game suspended 3:45 P.M., finished at 11:54 A.M.; 2nd game finished at 5:00 P.M., 3rd game finished at 9:15 P.M.

31 Innings (0)

No tripleheader, thus far, has been identified as having gone 31 innings.

30 Innings (1)

Two Teams Continuous – Ripon, Wisconsin – 4/28/1976 – National Collegiate Athletic Association – Ripon College Redmen (later Red Hawks) 6 Lawrence College Vikings 5 in 16 innings; then Lawrence 5 Ripon 1 in 7 innings; then Lawrence 5 Ripon 4 in 7 innings.

29 Innings (0)

No tripleheader, thus far, has been identified as having gone 29 innings.

28 Innings (1)

One Team Continuous – Salem Memorial Stadium, Salem, Virginia – 5/25/2003 – National Collegiate Athletic Association – Georgia Institute of Technology Ramblin' Wreck 10 University of North Carolina Tar Heels 6 in 2:59, then Georgia Tech 10 Florida State University Seminoles 7 in 3:07, then Georgia Tech 6 North Carolina State University Wolfpack 5 in 3:41 and 10 innings – 2090 fans for 2nd game, 2002 fans for 3rd game – 3rd game finished at 8:54 P.M.

27¹/₂ Innings (1)

Two Teams Suspended — Moose Jaw, Province of Saskatchewan, Canada — 6/12/1957 and 6/15/1957 — Western Canada League — Lloydminster Meridians 5 Moose Jaw Mallards 3 on 6/15; Moose Jaw 3 Lloydminster 2 in 12 innings, suspended after 9 innings on 6/12, completed on 6/15; Lloydminster 4 Moose Jaw 1 on forfeit in 7th inning on 6/15.

27 Innings (13)

One Team Continuous — Athletic Park (II), Minneapolis, Minnesota — 8/25/1890 — Western Association — Minneapolis Millers 3 Lincoln Prohibitionists 0, then Minneapolis 9 St. Paul Apostles 3, then Minneapolis 14 St. Paul 7.

Two Teams Continuous — Washington Park (II), Brooklyn, New York — 9/1/1890 — National League — Brooklyn Bridegrooms (later Dodgers) 10 Pittsburgh Alleghenys (later Pirates) 9 in 1:31, then Bridegrooms 3 Alleghenys 2 in 1:32, then Bridegrooms 8 Alleghenys 4 in 1:44.

Two Teams Continuous – Newport, Rhode Island or Taunton, Massachusetts – 9/4/1899 – New England League – Newport Colts 4 Taunton Herrings 0, then Newport 12 Taunton 4, then Newport 11 Taunton 1. One Team Continuous — Peekskill, New York — 9/7/1903 — Hudson River League — Peekskill defeated Poughkeepsie in A.M. game, then Peekskill defeated Catskill twice in P.M. games.

Two Teams Continuous — Oklahoma City, Oklahoma or Leavenworth, Kansas — 9/3/1906 — Western Association — Oklahoma City Mets vs. Leavenworth Old Soldiers in one A.M. game and two P.M. games.

Two Teams Continuous — Boulevard Park, Worcester, Massachusetts — 9/5/1910 — New England League — Worcester Busters 12 Haverhill Hustlers 1, then Haverhill 2 Worcester 1, then Haverhill 4 Worcester 2.

Two Teams Continuous — Flint or Lansing, Michigan — 9/25/1910 — Southern Michigan Association — Lansing Senators defeated Flint Vehics, then Lansing defeated Flint a 2nd time, then Lansing defeated Flint a 3rd time.

Two Teams Continuous – Scranton or Wilkes-Barre, Pennsylvania – 9/3/1917 – New York State League – Wilkes-Barre Barons defeated Scranton Miners in A.M. game; Wilkes-Barre defeated Scranton in first P.M. game; Wilkes-Barre defeated Scranton in exhibition second P.M. game.

Two Teams Continuous — Bartlesville, Oklahoma — 5/31/1931— Western Association — Bartlesville Bronchos 6 Independence Producers 5 in 2:55 and 12 innings in 1st day game, then Bartlesville 1 Independence 0 in 1:20 and 6 innings in 2nd day game, then Independence 12 Bartlesville 1 in 1:55 in night game.

One Team Continuous — Syracuse, Binghamton, or Rochester, New York — 5/10/1987 — National Junior Collegiate Athletic Association — Onondaga Community College Braves 8 Broome Community College Hornets 4, then Onondaga 12 Monroe Community College Tribunes 7, then Onondaga 10 Monroe 8.

One Team Continuous — Don Provance Field and Glendale High School Field, Springfield, Missouri — 5/11/1996 — National Association of Intercollegiate Athletics — rain delays, Benedictine College Ravens 6 Missouri Valley College Vikings 4 in 2:30 at Don Provance Field, then Benedictine 4 Evangel University Crusaders 3 in 3:00 at Glendale Field, then Benedictine 5 Evangel 4 in 3:40 at Glendale Field — finished at 2:30 A.M. in the early morning of 5/12.

One Team Continuous – Florida Memorial Field, Hialeah, Florida –1/30/2004 – National Collegiate Athletic Association – Savannah State University Tigers 8 Morris Brown College Wolverines 4, then Florida Memorial College Lions 8 Morris Brown 4, then Albany State University Golden Rams 4 Morris Brown 2.

One Team Continuous — Dan Law Field, Lubbock, Texas — 3/6/2004 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Harvard University Crimson 25 Air Force Academy Falcons 20 in 3:57, then Texas Tech University Red Raiders 18 Harvard 6 in 3:13, then Texas Tech 30 Harvard 8 in 3:10—2427 fans — 3rd game finished at 11:47 P.M.

26 Innings (1)

Two Teams Continuous — Oriole Park (III), Baltimore, Maryland — 9/7/1896 — National League — Baltimore Orioles 4 Louisville Colonels 3 in 2:20, then Orioles 9 Colonels 1 in 1:45, then Orioles 12 Colonels 1 in 1:30 and 8 innings.

25½ Innings (1)

Two Teams Continuous — Spokane or Tacoma, Washington — 9/27/1908 — Northwestern League — Tacoma Tigers 4 Spokane Indians 1 in A.M. game; Tacoma 7 Spokane 0 in first P.M. game; Tacoma 7 Spokane 3 in 7½ innings in second P.M. game.

25 Innings (5)

Two Teams Continuous – Court House Square, Denver, Colorado – 4/26/1862 – Colorado Base Ball Club Huff's Team A 20 Colorado Base Ball Club Team B 7; Team A 9 Team B 8; Team A vs. Team B in 7 innings.

9/22/1902 — American Association — Indianapolis Indians defeated St. Paul Apostles in 1:10, then Indianapolis defeated St. Paul a second time in 1:12, then Indianapolis defeated St. Paul a third time in 0:50 and 7 innings.

Two Teams Continuous — Pekin, Illinois — 8/26/ 1909 — Illinois-Missouri League — Beardstown Infants 6 Pekin Celestials 0; then Pekin 4 Beardstown 1 in 7 innings; then Pekin 1 Beardstown 0.

Two Teams Continuous — Lawrence and Lowell, Massachusetts — 9/5/1910 — New England League — Lowell Tigers 3 Lawrence Colts 1 at Lawrence in A.M. game, then Lowell 4 Lawrence 1 in 1st P.M. game at Lowell, then Lawrence 4 Lowell 4 in 7 innings in 2nd P.M. game at Lowell.

Two Teams Continuous — Labatt Park, London, Province of Ontario, Canada — 9/7/1914 — Canadian League — London Tecumsehs 4 St. Thomas Saints 1, then London 8 St. Thomas 5, then London 9 St. Thomas 2 in 7 innings.

24½ Innings (1)

Two Teams Suspended — Goss Stadium at Coleman Field, Corvallis, Oregon — 3/31/2006 and 4/1/2006 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Oregon State University Beavers 5 University of Texas-Pan American Broncs 4 in 3:05 and 10 innings, rain delay top 4th, suspended after 0:47 and $3\frac{1}{2}$ innings, completed next day, 2nd rain delay 0:50 bottom 7th, then Oregon State 9 Texas-Pan American 1 in 2:43, then Oregon State 14 Texas-Pan American 1 in 3:23 — 478 fans on 3/31; 666 fans on 4/1—1st game ended 2:42 P.M., 2nd game ended 6:05 P.M., 3rd game ended 10:07 P.M.

24 Innings (1)

Two Teams Continuous — Forbes Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania —10/2/1920 — National League — Reds 13 Pirates 4 in 2:03, then Reds 7 Pirates 3 in 1:56, then Pirates 6 Reds 0 in 1:01 and 6 innings – 3rd game finished at 6:00 P.M.

23¹/₂ Innings (1)

Two Teams Suspended – Harry Grove Stadium, Frederick, Maryland – 7/29/1996 and 8/1/1996 – Carolina League – Frederick Keys 1 Salem Avalanche 0, suspended after $1\frac{1}{2}$ innings, completed on 8/1 in 7 innings; then Frederick 5 Salem 3 in 7 innings; then Salem 11 Frederick 5 in 11 innings – finished at 11:35 P.M.

23 Innings (3)

Two Teams Continuous — Liberty Park, Sedalia, Missouri — 7/4/1903 — Missouri Valley League — Sedalia Gold Bugs 2 Nevada Champs 1 in 1:10; then Sedalia 4 Nevada 1 in 1:15; then Sedalia 4 Nevada 2 in 0:50 and 5 innings — 400 fans at 1st game in a.m.; 1500 fans at 2nd and 3rd games in p.m.—1st game finished at 11:10 A.M.

One Team Continuous — Christie Pits, Toronto, Province of Ontario, Canada — 6/29/2001— prelim tournament before Women's World Series I — Australia vs. unknown; Australia vs. unknown; Australia 6 Waterbury Diamonds 3 in 2:00 and 5 innings —12 fans —1st game began at 9:00 A.M.; 2nd game began at 8:30 P.M. — 3rd game finished at 3:00 A.M. in the early morning of 6/30.

Two Teams Continuous — Esposito Stadium, Miami Gardens, Florida —1/29/2005 — National Association of Intercollegiate Athletics — Lee University Flames 12 St. Thomas University Bobcats 0 in 2:35, then St. Thomas 4 Lee 2 in 2:40 and 7 innings, then Lee 13 St. Thomas 0 in 2:30 and 7 innings — 3rd game finished at 7:00 P.M.

22 Innings (5)

Two Teams Suspended — Tingley Field, Albuquerque, New Mexico — 9/3/1956 and 7/10/1956 — Western League — Pueblo Dodgers 8 Albuquerque Dukes 6 in 2:25 on September 3; then Albuquerque 10 Pueblo 1 in 1:55 and 7 innings, game replayed from the top of the 2nd inning on after successful Albuquerque protest of July 10 game so one inning played July 10 and six innings played September 3; then Albuquerque 8 Pueblo 1 in 1:31 and 7 innings on September 3 — 470 fans for 1st game; 1109 fans for 2nd and 3rd games —1st game finished at 3:25 P.M.; 2nd game finished at 7:06 P.M.; 3rd game finished at 8:57 P.M.

Two Teams Continuous — Old College (later Kobs) Field, East Lansing, Michigan — 4/29/1961— National Collegiate Athletic Association — University of Michigan Wolverines 5 Michigan State University Spartans 1 in 1:35 and 7 innings, then Michigan 6 Michigan State 4 in 2:06 and 7 innings, then Michigan 4 Michigan State 3 in 2:12 and 8 innings — 3rd game finished at 5:53 P.M.

Two Teams Suspended - Sims Legion Park, Gas-

tonia, North Carolina — 8/??/1990 and 8/??/1990— South Atlantic (Sally) League — Gastonia Rangers vs. Fayetteville Generals, suspended, completed next afternoon, then Gastonia vs. Fayetteville in twi-night doubleheader.

Two Teams Suspended – Bill Davis Stadium, Columbus, Ohio – 3/29/2002 and 3/30/2002 – National Collegiate Athletic Association – Ohio State University Buckeyes 8 Northwestern University Wildcats 5 in 2:28 and 9 innings, 0:30 rain delay top 2nd, suspended after 0:15 and 1 inning, completed next day, then Ohio State 6 Northwestern 5 in 2:00 and 7 innings, then Northwestern 11 Ohio State 8 in 2:29 and 7 innings –1455 fans on 3/30—1st game ended 3:43 P.M., 2nd game ended 6:17 P.M., 3rd game ended 9:09 P.M.

Two Teams Continuous – Ronken Field, Sioux Falls, South Dakota – 3/26/2005 – National Collegiate Athletic Association – Augustana College Vikings 3 Bemidji State University Beavers 1 in 2:10 and 7 innings, then Augustana 5 Bemidji State 4 in 2:35 and 8 innings, then Augustana 4 Bemidji State 3 in 2:00 and 7 innings – 65 fans 1st game, 75 fans 2nd and 3rd games – 3rd game finished at 6:40 P.M.

21 Innings (6)

Two Teams Continuous — San Jose, California — 5/11/1974 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — San Jose State University Spartans 5 University of Pacific Tigers 2 in 7 innings, then San Jose State 7 Pacific 2 in 7 innings, then San Jose State 2 Pacific 0 in 7 innings.

Two Teams Suspended — Fisher Field, Ann Arbor, Michigan — 4/9/1999 and 4/10/1999 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Ohio State University Buckeyes 7 University of Michigan Wolverines 4, suspended after 2 innings, then Ohio State 13 Michigan 6 in 7 innings, then Michigan 7 Ohio State 4 in 7 innings.

Two Teams Suspended – Snowflake Field, La Grande, Oregon – 3/26/2005 and 3/27/2005 – Canadian Interuniversity Baseball Association at National Collegiate Athletic Association – University of British Columbia Thunderbirds 10 Eastern Oregon University Mountaineers 0 in 1:52 and 7 innings, suspended – 20 fans; British Columbia 4 Eastern Oregon 3 in 2:00 and 7 innings – 40 fans; British Columbia 12 Eastern Oregon 2 in 2:03 and 7 innings – 35 fans.

Two Teams Continuous – Logger Field, Tacoma, Washington – 4/4/2005 – National Collegiate Athletic Association – University of Puget Sound Loggers 4 Pacific University Boxers 3 in 1:40 and 7 innings, then Pacific 6 Puget Sound 2 in 2:00 and 7 innings, then Pacific 7 Puget Sound 6 in 2:30 and 7 innings – 88 fans, 27 fans at end – 3rd game finished at 5:25 P.M.

Two Teams Continuous – Sylvester Field, West Palm Beach, Florida – 4/28/2006 – National Association of Intercollegiate Athletics – Northwood University Seahawks 9 Florida Memorial College Lions 1 in 7 innings, then Northwood 5 Florida Memorial 1 in 7 innings, then Northwood 5 Florida Memorial 2 in 7 innings.

Two Teams Continuous – Alumni Field, Claremont, California – 2/23/2008 – National Collegiate Athletic Association – Pacific University Boxers 5 Pomona-Pitzer College Sagehens 2 in 2:10 and 7 innings, then Pomona-Pitzer 7 Pacific 4 in 2:00 and 7 innings, then Pomona-Pitzer 7 Pacific 5 in 2:00 and 7 innings.

20 Innings (4)

One Team Continuous — Johns Hill, Missouri — 7/15/1928 — Amateur — Johns Hill Athletics 8 Decatur Stars 1 in 5 innings; then Athletics 16 Cleveland Stars 4 in 8 innings; then Athletics 9 Decatur Indies 2 in 7 innings.

Two Teams Suspended — Tinker Field, Orlando and Exhibition Stadium, Cocoa Beach, Florida — 8/12/ 1972 and 8/13/1972 — Florida State League — Cocoa Astros 5 Orlando Twins 0 in 7 innings, rain delay top 2nd, suspended after 1 inning in Orlando, completed next day in Cocoa, then Cocoa 2 Orlando 0 in 7 innings, then Cocoa 4 Orlando 3 in 7 innings.

Two Teams Suspended – Engel Stadium, Chattanooga, Tennessee – 7/22/1984 and 7/23/1984 – Southern League – Chattanooga Lookouts 3 Jacksonville Suns 2 in 7 innings in 2nd game of 7/22, suspended after 1 inning, completed 7/23, then Chattanooga 3 Jacksonville 1 in 7 innings, then Jacksonville 8 Chattanooga 0 in 1:40 and 7 innings.

Two Teams Suspended — Camaguey or Las Villas, Cuba — 3/2/1988 and 3/3/1988 — Cuban League — Camaguey defeated Las Villas, suspended after 7 innings; then Camaguey defeated Las Villas; then Camaguey defeated Las Villas.

19 Innings (4)

Two Teams Suspended — Salt Lake City, Utah or Vancouver, Province of British Columbia, Canada — 4/20/1958 and 7/25/1958 — Pacific Coast League — Vancouver Mounties defeated Salt Lake City Bees, suspended after 6 innings; then Vancouver defeated Salt Lake City; then Salt Lake City defeated Vancouver in 7 innings.

Two Teams Continuous — Fayetteville, Arkansas — 4/17/1976 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — University of Arkansas Razorbacks 4 Rice University Owls 1 in 7 innings, then Arkansas 4 Rice 1 in 7 innings, then Arkansas 1 Rice 0 in 5 innings — 3000 fans.

Two Teams Suspended — Municipal Stadium, Greenville, South Carolina — 7/13/1984 and 7/14/1984 — Southern League — Greenville Braves 6 Memphis Chicks 5 in 2:11 and 7 innings in 2nd game of 7/13, suspended at 1:07 A.M. in the early morning of 7/14 after 2 innings, completed 7/14, Memphis vs. Greenville in 7 innings, Memphis vs. Greenville in 7 innings, Memphis 3 Greenville 2 in 6:02 and 19 innings in 1st game of 7/13 – 3044 fans on 7/13, 250 fans at suspension, 4456 fans on 7/14.

Two Teams Continuous — Tiedemann Field, Oshkosh, Wisconsin — 5/4/1990 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — University of Wisconsin-Oshkosh Titans 4 University of Wisconsin-Platteville Pioneers 0 in 7 innings, Wisconsin-Oshkosh 12 Wisconsin-Platteville 0 in 5 innings, Wisconsin-Platteville 7 Wisconsin-Oshkosh 5 in 7 innings.

18 Innings (6)

Two Teams Continuous – Nicollet Park, Minneapolis, Minnesota – 9/22/1902 – American Association – Louisville Colonels 9 Minneapolis Millers 0, forfeited to Colonels because Millers showed up late, then Louisville 4 Minneapolis 0, then Louisville 4 Minneapolis 3.

Two Teams Continuous — Redbird Stadium, Columbus, Ohio or Nicollet Park, Minneapolis, Minnesota — 6/21/1931— American Association — Columbus Redbirds vs. Minneapolis Millers; Minneapolis 9 Columbus 0, forfeited to Millers because Colonels argued with umpire; then Columbus vs. Minneapolis third game later thrown out.

Two Teams Suspended – Lake Wales, Florida – 3/17/2002 and 4/??/2002 – National Association of Intercollegiate Athletics – Northwood University Seahawks 7 Warner Southern College Royals 0, suspended after 5 innings, last 4 innings completed on 4/??, then Northwood 9 Warner Southern 6 in 7 innings, then Northwood 5 Warner Southern 0 in 7 innings.

One Team Suspended — San Diego, California — ?/??/2003 and ?/??/2003 — Lions High School League — Crawford High School 14 San Dieguito High School 1 in 5 innings, suspended after 2 innings, completed next day, then Crawford High School 13 Fallbrook High School 1 in 5 innings, then Crawford High School 5 Valhalla High School 4 in 10 innings.

Two Teams Suspended — Eagle Field, Tallahassee, Florida — 3/3/2003 and 3/5/2003 — National Junior Collegiate Athletic Association — Tallahassee Community College Eagles 9 Grand Rapids Community College Raiders 4 in 7 innings, rain delay 1:00 top 2nd, suspended after 0:15 and 1 inning, completed 3/5, then Tallahassee 12 Grand Rapids 1 in 5 innings, then Tallahassee 7 Grand Rapids 5 in 7 innings — 175 fans on 3/3; 225 fans on 3/5 — 1st game suspended at 6:15 P.M. on 3/3; 3rd game finished at 10:00 P.M. on 3/5.

One Team Continuous — Field of Dreams, Manteca, California — 4/1/2007 — Usssa Age 11 and 12 — Danville Diablos 7 Brentwood Blast 2 in 2:21 and 7 innings, then Danville 4 Walnut Creek Bulldawgs 3 in 2:03 and 5 innings, then All American Baseball Academy 8 Danville 1 in 1:50 and 6 innings —1st game finished at 10:51 A.M.; 2nd game finished at 4:53 P.M.; 3rd game finished at 7:05 P.M.— 55 fans; 90 fans at end.

17¹/₂ Innings (1)

Two Teams Suspended – Bill Davis Stadium, Columbus, Ohio – 4/26/2002 and 4/27/2002 – National Collegiate Athletic Association – Purdue University Boilermakers 10 Ohio State University Buckeyes 7 in 2:23 and 7 innings, 2:05 rain delay bottom 4th, suspended after 0:57 and $3\frac{1}{2}$ innings, completed next day, then Ohio State 8 Purdue 0 in 2:11 and 7 innings, then Ohio State 3 Purdue 1 in 2:11 and 7 innings – 3432 fans on 4/26, 1379 fans on 4/27 –1st game ended 12:30 P.M., 2nd game ended 3:06 P.M., 3rd game ended 5:49 P.M.

16 to 17 Innings (0)

No tripleheader, thus far, has been identified as having gone 16 or 17 innings.

15 Innings (1)

Three Teams Continuous — Astrodome, Houston, Texas — 4/2/1971 — AL and AL at NL spring training — Astros +3 Twins +1 Yankees -4: Astros 2 Yankees 1 in 1:05 and 5 innings; Twins 4 Yankees 1 in 1:18 and 5 innings; Astros 5 Twins 3 in 5 innings — 8088 fans.

13 to 14 Innings (0)

No tripleheader, thus far, has been identified as having gone 13 or 14 innings.

12¹/₂ Innings (1)

Two Teams Continuous — Houston, Texas — 9/5/ 1910 — Texas League — Galveston Sand Crabs 2 Houston Buffaloes 1 in 5 innings, then Houston 4 Galveston 1 in 5 innings, then Houston 9 Galveston 0 in 2½ innings, forfeit due to riot in top 3rd.

12 or Less Innings (0)

No tripleheader, thus far, has been identified as having gone 12 or less innings.

Unknown Number of Innings (1)

Two Teams Continuous — Boston Common Parade Grounds, Boston, Massachusetts — 6/29/1857 — Sharon Massapoags 25 Olympics of Boston 21 in 0:55; Massapoags 25 Olympics 24 in 0:55; Massapoags 25 Olympics 19 in 0:55 — 2000 fans.

Quadrupleheaders by Innings (11)

36 Innings (1)

Two Teams Continuous — Hudson or Poughkeepsie, New York — 9/20/1903 — Hudson River League — Hudson Marines 2 Poughkeepsie Colts 1, then Hudson 6 Poughkeepsie 4, then Hudson 3 Poughkeepsie 1, then Hudson 4 Poughkeepsie 2.

34 to 35 Innings (0)

No quadrupleheader, thus far, has been identified as having gone more than 33 innings and less than 36 innings.

33 Innings (1)

One Team Continuous – Rosetown first game; Cairns Field second, third, and fourth games, Saskatoon, Province of Saskatchewan, Canada – 8/22/ 1954 – Western Canada League – Rosetown Phillies 6 Saskatoon Gems (split squad) 5 in 10 innings; Saskatoon Gems (split squad) 2 Indian Head Rockets 1 in 7 innings, then Saskatoon (split squad) 2 Indian Head 2 in 7 innings, then Saskatoon 11 Rosetown 4 in 9 innings.

30 to 32 Innings (0)

No quadrupleheader, thus far, has been identified as having gone more than 29 innings and less than 33 innings.

29 Innings (1)

Two Teams Continuous – Demske Sports Complex, Buffalo, New York – 3/29/1998 – National Collegiate Athletic Association – Siena College Saints 6 Canisius College Golden Griffins 3 in 1:45 and 7 innings, then Canisius 9 Siena 4 in 1:49 and 7 innings, then Canisius 9 Siena 6 in 2:25 and 7 innings, then Canisius 11 Siena 10 in 3:09 and 8 innings –125 fans, 25 fans at end – 4th game finished at 10:02 P.M.

28 Innings (4)

One Team Continuous – North Park College Field, Chicago, Illinois – 5/18/1970 – National Collegiate Athletic Association – Carthage College Redmen 5 North Park College (now University) Vikings 0 in 7 innings, then Carthage 2 North Park 0 in 7 innings, intermission between games 0:25, then Carthage 12 Illinois Wesleyan University Titans 3 in 7 innings, then Carthage 6 Illinois Wesleyan 5 in 7 innings – 4th game finished at 7:30 P.M.

One Team Continuous —first two games at Kenosha, Wisconsin; last two games at Milwaukee, Wisconsin — 5/10/1973 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Carthage College Redmen 11 Carroll College Pioneers 3 in 7 innings, then Carthage 6 Carroll 0 in 7 innings, then University of Wisconsin-Milwaukee Panthers 4 Carthage 3 in 7 innings, then Wisconsin-Milwaukee 6 Carthage 5 in 7 innings.

One Team Continuous —first two games at Fort Worth, Texas; last two games at Plano, Texas — 5/23/ 1976 — National Collegiate Athletic Association at National Association of Intercollegiate Athletics — Carthage College Redmen 7 Texas Wesleyan University Rams 0 in 7 innings, then Carthage 8 Texas Wesleyan 2 in 7 innings, then Plano University 5 Carthage 0 in 7 innings, then Plano 3 Carthage 0 in 7 innings.

One Team Continuous — UIC (later Les Miller) Field, Chicago, Illinois — 5/6/1984 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Southwest Missouri State (later Missouri State) University Bears 6 Western Illinois University Leathernecks 1 in 1:59 and 7 innings; Southwest Missouri State 1 Eastern Illinois University Panthers 0 in 1:53 and 9 innings; Southwest Missouri State 7 University of Northern Iowa Panthers 2 in 1:32 and 7 innings; Southwest Missouri State 17 Northern Iowa 0 in 1:26 and 5 innings—125 fans—4th game finished at 5:33 P.M.

27 Innings (1)

One Team Continuous — Milton-Freewater, Washington — 3/24/1977 — Washington High School League — La Grande High School Tigers 8 Mac-Hi High School Pioneers 3 in 7 innings, then Mac-Hi 4 La Grande 1 in 7 innings, then Molalla High School Indians 14 Mac-Hi 12 in 8 innings, then Mac-Hi 3 Molalla 1 in 5 innings — all four games elapsed time 9:00 — 4th game finished at 7:00 P.M.

26 Innings (0)

No quadrupleheader, thus far, has been identified as having gone 26 innings.

25½ Innings (1)

One Team Continuous — first two games in Tishamingo, Oklahoma; last two games at Perrin Air Force Base Field, Grayson, Texas — 4/6/1972 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Carthage College Redmen 8 Murray State College 3 in 7 innings, then Carthage 11 Murray State 5 in 7 innings, intermission between games 1:30, then Carthage 12 Grayson County College Vikings 5 in 7 innings, then Grayson County 3 Carthage 2 in 4½ innings — 4th game called due to curfew at 11:00 P.M.

23 to 25 Innings (0)

No quadrupleheader, thus far, has been identified as having gone more than 22 innings and less than 25¹/₂ innings.

22 Innings (2)

Two Teams Continuous — Sioux City, Iowa — 9/ 15/1889 — Western Association — Sioux City Corn Huskers 6 St. Joseph Clay Eaters 1 in 1:10 and 5 innings in 1st A.M. game, then Sioux City 15 St. Joseph 7 in 1:15 and 5 innings in 2nd A.M. game, then Sioux City 12 St. Joseph 5 in 1:15 and 5 innings in 1st P.M. game, then Sioux City 7 St. Joseph 4 in 1:20 and 7 innings in 2nd P.M. game.

One Team Continuous – Northfield, Minnesota – 5/20/1949 – Minnesota High School League – Lakeville High School Panthers 1 Hanley Falls High School Cyclones 0 in 5 innings; Lakeville vs. ??? in 5 innings; Lakeville vs. ??? in 5 innings; Lakeville 4 Kenyon High School 3 in 7 innings.

21 or Less Innings (0)

No quadrupleheader, thus far, has been identified as having gone 21 or less innings.

Quintupleheader by Innings (1)

19 Innings (1)

One Team Continuous – Fairgrounds, Moose Jaw first, second, and third games; Cairns Field, Saskatoon fourth and fifth games; Province of Saskatchewan, Canada – 8/23/1954 – Saskatoon (split squad) 11 Moose Jaw Mallards 8 in one-inning continuation of previous 7-inning 8–8 tie, Saskatoon (split squad) 8 Moose Jaw 4 in one-inning continuation of previous 7-inning 4–4 tie, then Saskatoon (split squad) 13 Moose Jaw 8 in 7 innings; Indian Head Rockets 4 Saskatoon Gems (split squad) 2 in one-inning continuation of previous day's 7-inning 2–2 tie, then Saskatoon (split squad) 6 Indian Head 5 in 1:33 and 9 innings.

Sextupleheader by Innings (1)

47 Innings (1)

Two Teams Continuous — Manchester, New Hampshire — 9/4/1899 — New England League — Manchesters 14 Portland Phenoms 7 in 1st A.M. game, then Manchesters 12 Portland 8 in 2nd A.M. game, then Manchesters 12 Portland 2 in 1st P.M. game, then Manchesters 8 Portland 4 in 2nd P.M. game, then Manchesters 9 Portland 1 in 3rd P.M. game, then Manchesters 9 Portland 0 in 2 innings in 4th P.M. game, forfeited to Manchesters when Portland walked off the field after the 2nd inning to protest the ejection of one of their players.

46 or Less Innings (0)

No sextupleheader, thus far, has been identified as having gone 46 or less innings.

Planned Games of 20 Innings or More, Chronological by Decade (32)

1910's (1)

??—Indiana, Pennsylvania—6/11/1913—Amateur—Rossiter Lower Section 112 Rossiter Upper Section 98 in 5:00—finished at 3:30 P.M.

1920's (1)

??—Soldiers Home Park, Danville, Illinois—3/??/ 1929—Illinois-Indiana-Iowa (3-I) League/Danville Veterans/St. Louis Cardinals Baseball School—Team A vs. Team B in 9:00—finished at 6:00 P.M.—lasted this long so Branch Rickey could see every last one of the 316 prospects at the Cardinals Baseball School play at least a few innings.

1930's (2)

25 - Stockton, California -1/31/1935 - Cincinnati

Reds Tryout Camp — Team A vs. Team B — scheduled so long so all those trying out could be evaluated properly.

44 – Town Field, Richford, Vermont – 9/17/1939 – Amateur – Richford Rabbits North 40 Richford Rabbits South 33 in 4:30.

1940's (1)

22 — Charleroi Stadium, Charleroi, Pennsylvania — 7/23/1949 — Pittsburgh Pirates Tryout Camp run by Hall of Famer Pie Traynor — Team A vs. Team B scheduled so long so all 125 people trying out could be evaluated properly.

1960's (2)

102 — Civic Stadium (later PGE Park), Portland, Oregon — early 1960's — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Portland State University Vikings Team A vs. Portland State University Vikings Team B in 23:30.

127 – Basking Ridge, New Jersey – 6/18/1965 and 6/19/1965 – High School – Basking Ridge High School Seniors Team A 166 Basking Ridge High School Seniors Team B 155 in 24:22.

1970's (4)

401— unknown location — prior to 6/??/1971— Amateur — fundraiser for National Cystic Fibrosis Research Foundation.

320—Echo Park, Burlington, Wisconsin— 6/10/1972 and 6/11/1972—Amateur—Researchers 341 Mist Tents 334 in 32:15 innings—fundraiser for National Cystic Fibrosis Research Foundation—finished at 3:00 P.M. on 6/11.

325 — Telulah Park, Appleton, Wisconsin — 8/18/1972 and 8/19/1972 and 8/20/1972 — Amateur — Dan Felton's Follies 154 Randy Haak's Hawks 142 in 30:30 — fundraiser for National Cystic Fibrosis Research Foundation organized by Appleton High School West Key Kiwanis Youth Club — finished at 12:30 A.M. in the early morning of 8/20.

55 — Cambridge Park, Buffalo Grove, Illinois — 9/5/1977 — Neighborhood Amateur — Team A 97 Team B 91 in 15:00—finished at 8:00 P.M. — 3 players on each team.

1980's (2)

105 — Jennings Stadium or Lake Olmstead Stadium, Augusta, Georgia; Pacer Field, Aiken, South Carolina; and Citizens' Field, Aiken, South Carolina — 9/23/ 1980 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Augusta College (later Augusta State University) Jaguars 52 University of South Carolina-Aiken Pacers 46 in 14:21, first group of players played from 7:34 A.M. to 12:00 Noon at Jennings Stadium or Lake Olmstead Stadium in Augusta, second group of players played from 12:00 Noon to 5:00 P.M. at Pacer Field in Aiken, first group of players played again from 5:00 P.M. to 9:55 P.M. at Citizens' Field in Aiken —finished at 9:55 P.M.

100—Silver Spring, Maryland—??/??/1988—Maryland High School League—Springbrook High School Blue Devils Varsity vs. Junior Varsity in 24:00.

1990's (4)

100—White Plains High School Field, White Plains, New York—Saturday before Easter, 1995— New York High School League—White Plains High School Tigers defeated Archbishop Stepinac High School Crusaders in 8:00—25 fans.

100—White Plains High School Field, White Plains, New York—Saturday before Easter, 1996— New York High School League—Archbishop Stepinac High School Crusaders defeated White Plains High School Tigers in 8:00—25 fans.

100—White Plains High School Field, White Plains, New York—Saturday before Easter, 1998— New York High School League—White Plains High School Tigers defeated Archbishop Stepinac High School Crusaders in 8:00—25 fans.

100—Fort Sheridan, Illinois—9/??/1999 and 9/??/1999—Illinois High School League—Green Sox vs. Snappers in 24:00.

2000's (16)

100—Chatsworth, California—6/??/2002— Chatsworth Junior League—Visitors 61 Home 32.

26—Cairns Field, Saskatoon, Province of Saskatchewan, Canada—?/??/2002—Saskatoon Baseball Council Age 15/16—Athletics 26 Reds 25 in 8:23—finished at 4:53 P.M.

79 — Bishop Carroll High School Field, Wichita, Kansas — 10/5/2003 — National Association of Interscholastic Athletics — Red Team 15 Black Team 14 in 8:00 — Friends University Falcons intrasquad game — 50 fans — finished at 6:30 P.M.

65 — Tucson Electric Park, Tucson, Arizona — 10/18/2003 and 10/19/2003 — American Women's League — African Gray Birds 127 Red-Eyed Nites 110 in 24:12 — 100 fans at start, 50 fans at 6 P.M., 25 fans at Midnight, 0 fans at 6 A.M., 12 fans at end — finished at 12:20 P.M. on 10/19.

??—Beckwith Recreational Complex, Mississippi Mills, Province of Ontario, Canada—10/18/2003 and 10/19/2003 in 25:00.

101-Kelly Field, Hyde Park, Massachusetts-4/17/2004 and 4/18/2004-Boston Men's Adult League — Gehrig's Stamina 100 Schilling's Endurance 51 in 33:00 – 35 fans — finished at 6:00 P.M. on 4/18.

100—Bishop Carroll High School Field and Love Field, Wichita, Kansas—10/10/2004 and 10/12/2004—National Association of Interscholastic Athletics—Red Team 20 Black Team 17 in 8:30, suspended due to rain after 5:00 and 64 innings—Friends University Falcons intrasquad game—40 fans—suspended at 3:30 P.M. on 10/10 at Bishop Carroll High School Field, finished at 7:00 P.M. on 10/12 at Love Field.

100—Campanelli Stadium, Brockton, Massachusetts — 4/16/2005 and 4/17/2005 — Boston Men's Adult League — Team Marciano 88 Team Hagler 79 in 31:30—35 fans — finished at 4:30 P.M. on 4/17.

57 — Bower Shankland Field, Alliance, Nebraska — 9/17/2005 and 9/18/2005 — Amateur — Alliance Times-Herald Dragons 126 Westco Knights 121 in 24:16 — 350 fans —finished at 10:16 A.M. on 9/18.

100—Fitton Field, Worcester, Massachusetts— 4/22/2006 and 4/23/2006—Boston Men's Adult League—Team Stamina 69 Team Endurance 66 in 31:00—finished at 4:00 P.M. on 4/23.

84 — Bower Shankland Field, Alliance, Nebraska — 9/2/2006 and 9/3/2006 — Amateur — Alliance Times-Herald Dragons 120 Westco Knights 114 in 30:05:27 — 225 fans — finished at 4:05 P.M. on 9/3.

100—Adams Field, Quincy, Massachusetts— 5/27/2007 and 5/28/2007—Boston Men's Adult League—Team Endurance 99 Team Stamina 72 in 29:15—finished at 2:45 P.M. on 5/28.

92 – T.R. Hughes Ballpark, O'fallon, Missouri – 10/13/2007 and 10/14/2007 – Amateur –1944 American League Champion St. Louis Browns 119 1928 Negro National League Champion St. Louis Stars 81 in 32:29:25 – finished at 4:29:25 P.M. on 10/14.

99 — Burns Park, Massapequa, New York — 5/24/2008 and 5/25/2008 — Long Island Mountain Division Men's Senior Baseball League Age 45 and Older — New York Giants 155 Brooklyn Dodgers 135 in 33:15 - 50 fans; 20 fans in the middle; 50 fans at end —finished at 12:15 A.M. in the early morning of 5/26.

100—Carmel, Indiana—6/9/2008—Indiana Bulls U-18 Intra-Squad Game—in ??:??.

100—Adams Field, Quincy, Massachusetts— 8/30/2008 and 8/31/2008—Boston Men's Adult League—Team Knights 91 Team Daze 78 in 30:10 finished at 3:10 P.M. on 8/31.

Longest Games by Time

I. HIGHLIGHTS AND CONCLUSIONS

On August 14, 2005, I attended my first marathon lasting more than six hours. The New York–Penn League Auburn Doubledays beat the Batavia Muckdogs 6–5 in 6:34 and 22 innings at Falcon Park in Auburn, NY. The game began July 7, and had been suspended after 6:02 and 20 innings.

Rewriting the Record Book

This research has uncovered two records in two different record books for time of game, albeit not of the type that the current work focuses upon.

Since 1916, the minor league record for shortest game by time had been recorded as 31 minutes for a Winston-Salem Twins at Asheville Tourists August 30, 1916, North Carolina State League game. But the record properly belongs to the 26-minute-long California League Los Angeles Angels vs. San Francisco Missions game played in December 1921.

And since 1919, the major league record for shortest full-length game by time had been recorded as the 51-minute game played as the first game of a doubleheader September 28, 1919, at the Polo Grounds between the Phillies and Giants. However, the record correctly belongs to the 50-minute game played more than eight years earlier, on April 12, 1911, also at the Polo Grounds between the Phillies and Giants.

How Many Marathons Are There?

A very rough guess for the number of baseball games that have ever been played is 16 million. So far, I have discovered only 140 games lasting six hours or more; and only 585 games lasting five hours or more. This indicates only one game in roughly every 114,000 takes six hours or more; and that only one game in roughly every 27,000 lasts five hours or more.

Longest Planned Marathon – 33:15 in Massapequa, NY

The longest that baseball has been continuously played in one game is 33 hours 15 minutes for a

planned marathon at Burns Park in Massapequa, New York, May 24–25, 2008. The New York Giants defeated the Brooklyn Dodgers 155–135 in a 99-inning game sponsored by the Long Island Mountain Age 45 and Older Division of the Men's Senior League.

Longest Massachusetts Rules Marathon – 21:50 in Worcester, MA

A Nineteenth Century game played under Massachusetts Rules established a record for time of game which has never been equaled for a non-planned marathon. However, this record must be considered differently than other records, since one inning was defined not by three outs, but rather by one out.

On September 25, 1860, at the Agricultural Grounds in Worcester, Massachusetts, the Upton Excelsiors and Medway Unions played a game that lasted 172 innings over seven days! Play continued through September 26, 27, 28; October 1, 4, and 5 until finally it was called a complete game with the score Upton 50 Medway 29 after a time of game of 21 hours 50 minutes. Total elapsed time also set an all-time record of more than 25 hours, including a dinner delay, lunch delay, and four rain delays.

The game was to have continued until one team scored 100 runs, but after canceling a planned venue change to Springfield, Massachusetts, for October 1, and after rain prevented further play on October 4 and 5 in Worcester, it was called a complete game.

Mystery Marathon #1—10:00 in Piedras Negras, Mexico, at Black Rock

Our first "mystery" is the 10-hour long July 18, 1926, game played in Piedras Negras, Mexico. This is the longest time of game ever for a "normal" game, that is, not a planned marathon, and not a Massachusetts Rules game. The July 20, 1926, *Eagle Pass Guide* (TX) states that the San Luisito team from Eagle Pass defeated Piedras Negras 29–19 Sunday in a "scrap" which began at 9:00 A.M. and was called due to darkness in the sixth inning at 7:00 P.M. The July 24 *San Antonio Express* (TX) and the July 25 *Lima Sunday News* (OH) say the game lasted from 9:00 A.M. to 7:00 P.M., and San Luista defeated Piedras Legras Negras from across the border 129–119, with shortstop Mircles committing 24 errors in the 3rd inning (and only 30 or 31 for the entire game).

The August 20 *Lincoln Star* (NE) and August 25 *Los Angeles Times* (CA) state the Mexican team won 129–119, with one player making 24 errors in the 3rd inning. And the June 18, 1938, *Lowell Sun* (MA) says San Luista defeated visiting Piedras Legras of Mexico 129–119 in a game beginning at 10:00 A.M. with the losing team making 23 errors in the 3rd inning.

The Mexican town of Piedras Negras (Black Rock) is just across the Rio Grande from Eagle Pass, Texas. San Luisito (not San Luista) is a neighborhood in Eagle Pass. But who won? Was the score 29–19 or 129–119? Did the shortstop make 24 errors, or did the entire team make 23 errors in the 3rd? And more importantly, how could it have taken 10 entire hours to play only 5½ innings? Two Japanese teams managed to play 45 innings in only 8 hours and 19 minutes. We may never know the answer. Some answers will remain forever shrouded in the fog of the past.

Seventy-two (72) years before this game, First Lieutenant Abner Doubleday of the U.S. Army Field Artillery was sent to Eagle Pass at Fort Duncan. He was stationed there in 1854–55. His wife, who was petrified of mice, arranged for a mice-protection net to be built around their bed. Whatever Doubleday may have done for his country in Eagle Pass, Alexander Cartwright was the real inventor of baseball.

Mystery Marathon #2 – 8:30 in Pottsville, PA

Our second "mystery" is how a game between two unnamed Pottsville teams July 8, 1902, could have taken eight and a half hours to play. The final score was 38–36. The local paper relates the game began at 9 A.M., and finished at 5:30 P.M., with no break for dinner.

So OK, it was high scoring. But how could it have taken almost an hour to play each inning? Assuming the game took 9 innings, which we don't know for sure, it would have taken 57 minutes per inning. That is high, but not a record. The Piedras Negras game took 109 minutes per inning.

But that's nothing if we count elapsed time. The Tigers and Yankees struggled through two long rain delays at Yankee Stadium in the first game of a scheduled doubleheader August 9, 1991, and took 5 hours 41 minutes to play just two innings before the umpires finally called it a night at 10:16 P.M. This works out to 170.5 minutes, or almost three hours, per inning! Woops, I almost forgot the critical fact to remember: the Tigers led 1–0 when the game was called off.

Longest Minor League Marathon – 8:25 in Pawtucket, RI

At 4:07 A.M. on Easter morning, April 19, 1981, just 51 minutes before sunrise, 17 freezing and very fortunate souls huddled in the 28-degree pre-dawn chill of Pawtucket, Rhode Island's McCoy Stadium. Their beloved Paw Sox had just failed to break a 2–2 tie with the Rochester Red Wings in the bottom of the 32nd. When the umpires suspended the game, these brave 17 fans looked back on 8 hours 7 minutes of baseball, preceded by a half-hour power failure delay.

The game resumed June 23 with McCoy packed to capacity, and the mercury all the way up to 80. The Paw Sox won 3–2 in the 33rd on Dave Koza's bases-loaded single. The final totals of 8 hours 55 minutes elapsed time and 8 hours 25 minutes game time are modern baseball records.

Longest Japanese Marathon – 8:19 in Mito

When play began September 20, 1983, in the title game of the 38th annual Emperor's Cup Nan-shiki Tournament in Mito, Japan, nobody had the least idea what lay ahead! The game between Light Manufacturing of Tokyo and Tanaka Hospital of Miyazaki began at 8:50 A.M. The local Mito Band was to be ready at 11 A.M. to play at the post-game award ceremony.

The game finally ended at 5:15 P.M. after Light Manufacturing scored in the top of the 45th to win 2–1 after 8 hours 19 minutes of baseball. Including a 6minute delay in the 26th, the game lasted 8 hours 25 minutes. The Mito Band finally got to play, after waiting for over six hours.

Longest American League Marathon – 8:06 in Comiskey Park

At old Comiskey Park on May 8–9, 1984, the White Sox downed the Brewers 7–6 in 25 innings and 8 hours 6 minutes, the major league record for game time. Suspended after 17 innings at 1:05 A.M. by the AL curfew, the game was won the next evening in the 25th by Harold Baines' homer which just barely cleared the bullpen fence in center.

The White Sox scored two in the 9th, and three in the 21st to keep the game tied, and would have won in the 23rd except that Dave Stegman was ruled out for coach's interference when third base coach Jim Leyland helped him to his feet after Stegman tripped rounding third.

Mystery Marathon #3 – 8:00 in Carrollton, KY

This is our third "mystery" marathon. Ghent defeated Carrollton 179–70 on July 4, 1868. According to Mr. Stonecroft's personal notes from the Carrollton newspaper, the game began at 9 A.M., and was called off in the sixth inning due to darkness at 10 P.M. The time of game was only 8 hours though, because the players and the umpire took a 5-hour break for dinner. However, according to the August 9, 1931, *Los Angeles Times*, the game began at 10 A.M. and was called due to darkness in the seventh inning at 6 P.M.

Questions are numerous. Why did it take 8 hours to play less than six innings? That's almost an hour and a half per inning. How could they play until 10 P.M. without lights? Why did they take 5 hours to eat dinner? That's almost 15 minutes per bite. Did they use Massachusetts Rules? Why did they score so many runs? And why is the only original source of information on this game Mr. Stonecroft's personal notes from the Carrollton newspaper?

Longest 2-Year College Marathon – 7:30 in Bradenton, FL

On April 4, 1987, at Wynn Field, the Hillsborough Hawks defeated the Manatee Lancers 6–4. The original crowd of 200 had dwindled to just 45 loyal fans when the end came at 9:30 P.M.

Longest National League Marathon – 7:23 in Shea Stadium

In the nightcap of a doubleheader May 31, 1964, the Giants beat the Mets 8–6 in 23 innings as Willie Mays played center field *and* shortstop for the Giants. 8000 Mets fans from the original crowd of 57,037 stayed until the bitter end at 11:25 P.M.

Longest High School Marathon – 7:20 in Downey, CA

On May 13, 2008, at Yanez Field, it took seven hours and 20 minutes for the Downey HS Vikings to defeat the Harvard-Westlake Upper School Wolverines 3–2 in 20 innings in a high school sectional wildcard game. When it all started at 3:15 P.M., there were 200 fans. When the game ended at 10:35 P.M., only 125 fans were still present. Tommy LaSorda was one of the loyal remaining fans, still there at the very end.

Longest 4-Year College Marathon – 6:45 in Sauget, IL

On February 21, 1999, at Cougar Field in Houston, the Baylor Bears beat the Houston Cougars 8–2 in 22 innings in the longest Division I game ever played — 6 hours 43 minutes. On May 26, 2008, at GCS Ballpark in Sauget, IL, just across the river from St. Louis during Division II playoffs, the Sonoma State Seawolves took two minutes longer to beat the Central Missouri Mules 6-5 in 19 innings in the longest fouryear college game ever played -6 hours 45 minutes.

Longest Minor League Playoff – 6:25 in Nashville, TN

It was 3:50 A.M. when the Omaha Royals finally defeated the hometown Nashville Sounds 8–7 in 20 innings on the evening/morning of September 7/8, 1990, in an American Association playoff game. The crowd of 14,482 shrank to 500 during a long 106-minute rain delay in the bottom of the 11th, and only 300 loyal fans remained until the very end.

Longest American Legion Marathon – 6:06 in Midwest City, OK

In July 1973, Post 170 of Midwest City defeated Post 170 of Choctaw 2–1 in 24 innings at Regional Park. Of the original 50 fans, only 15 remained until the end at 2:06 A.M.

Longest Major League Playoff – 5:50 in Minute Maid Park

Down 6–1 to Atlanta on October 9, 2005, the Astros rallied to win 7–6 with an 8th inning grand slam by Lance Berkman, Brad Ausmus' game-tying homer with two outs in the bottom of the 9th that hit just inches above (maybe) the yellow home run stripe on the left field wall, and Chris Burke's walk-off homer in the bottom of the 18th. The game broke by one minute the old 5:49 record set when the Red Sox and David Ortiz defeated the Yankees 5–4 in 14 innings October 18, 2004.

Longest Doubleheader – 9:52 in Shea Stadium

The longest doubleheader took almost ten hours to play May 31, 1964, as the Giants swept the Mets, 5–3 in the opener and 8–6 in the nightcap in 23 innings. New York's WOR-TV broadcast all 32 innings, in the process attracting the highest number of viewers in the station's history. Elapsed time was 10:20, from 1:05 P.M. to 11:25 P.M., which is *not* a record. The Phils and Padres split in 12:05 on the evening/morning of July 2/3, 1993, beginning at 4:35 P.M., struggling through three rain delays, and ending at 4:40 A.M.

Longest Tripleheader – 10:20 in Lubbock, TX

On March 6, 2004, Harvard beat Air Force 25–20, before dropping a pair to Texas Tech, 18–6 and 30–8.

Elapsed time was 11:15, from 12:32 P.M. to 11:47 P.M., which is *not* a record. Georgia Tech's Ramblin' Wreck swept NC, Florida State, and NC State in 11:20 May 25, 2003, in the ACC tournament, beginning at 9:34 A.M. and finishing at 8:54 P.M.

Longest Quadrupleheader – 9:08 in Buffalo, NY

On March 29, 1998, Siena beat Canisius 6–3, and then Canisius swept three games, 9–4, 9–6, and 11–10. All games were scheduled for 7 innings. In the last game, Siena scored 3 in the top of the 7th to take a 4– run lead, but Canisius stormed back with 4 to tie, and won it in the 8th, so the entire day took 29 innings. Elapsed time was 10:08, from 11:54 A.M. to 10:02 P.M., which is also a record.

Longest Elapsed Time Marathon – 15:00 in Lubbock, TX, and Jal, NM

The Hereford High School Whitefaces defeated the Andrews HS Mustangs 9–1 at Hays Field in Lubbock, Texas in the rain-delayed first game of their bestof-three state playoffs series on a Friday night in the middle of May 1986. Knowing that torrential rains would make playing their second game the next day there at 1 P.M. and an "if-necessary" third game at 7 P.M. totally impossible, both teams, along with coaches, fans, and umpires set out at 7 A.M. Saturday morning on what would become a 510-mile long Odyssey from Lubbock to New Mexico in search of a dry field.

Fields were found in Artesia, NM, where they

waited two hours, and Hobbs, NM, where they waited two and a half hours, but both fields were too wet, and it was raining in both places. In Hobbs, they ran into two other Texas high school teams, Pecos and Canyon, also in search of a dry field. When told that Eunice, NM had a dry field, a wild race began between the Pecos/Canyon and Hereford/Andrews caravans.

The Pecos/Canyon caravan won the race, and proceeded to begin their second game. Canyon had won their first game the night before, so when Canyon got way ahead early in the second game, Hereford and Andrews decided to wait and play afterwards, since there would be no need for a third game if Canyon won. But Pecos staged a big comeback to win, forcing a deciding third game, leaving Hereford and Andrews still looking for a dry field.

Then they heard there was an old field in Jal, NM that hadn't been used in two years, so off they went. Flickering light standards were fixed by taping two wires together with black electrical tape. The outfield had knee-high weeds, but that was no problem; the state playoffs had to be decided! Foul lines were chalked using an old shoe box.

Finally, after a 12-hour long change-of-field delay, they began their game, scheduled for 1 P.M. in Lubbock, Texas, at 12:00 Midnight New Mexico time, 1:00 A.M. Texas time. Having won the night before in Lubbock, Hereford wrapped up the series with a 4–3 win over Andrews. But naturally, the game went into extra innings! The scheduled 7-inning game lasted exactly three hours, and went 8 innings. Fifty fans, including Hereford mascot "Red," stayed awake until the very end, which came at exactly 3:00 A.M. New Mexico time; 4:00 A.M. Texas time. And then everyone drove back home to Texas!

II. GAME RECORDS

Games Lasting 5 Hours or More by Game Time

10 to 11 Hours (1)

10:00 – Piedras Negras, State of Coahuila, Mexico – 7/18/1926 – Amateur – San Luisito 29 Piedras Negras (Black Rock) Internationals 19 in 5½ innings – finished at 7:00 P.M.

9 to 10 Hours (0)

No game, thus far, has been identified as having a game time of more than 9 and less than 10 hours.

8 to 9 Hours (7)

8:30 – Pottsville, Pennsylvania – 7/8/1902 – Amateur – Delanco 38 Pottsville Athletics 36 – finished at 5:30 P.M.

8:25-McCoy Stadium, Pawtucket, Rhode Is-

land — 4/18/1981 and 6/23/1981—International League — power failure delay 0:30 at start, Pawtucket Paw Sox 3 Rochester Red Wings 2 in 33 innings, suspended after 8:07 and 32 innings —1740 fans, 150 fans Midnight, 100 fans top 21st, 60 fans 1 A.M., 27 fans top 27th, 19 fans at suspension, 5756 fans on 6/23 — suspended at 4:07 A.M. in the early morning of 4/19, dawn was at 5:00 A.M., finished at 6:18 P.M. on 6/23.

8:19 – Ibaraki-Mito Kenei (Prefectural) Kyujyo (Stadium), Mito, Japan – 9/20/1983 – Amateur Industrial Emperor's Cup Nan-shiki Tournament – Tokyo Raito (Light) Kogyo (Manufacturing Company) 2 Miyazaki Tanaka Byouin (Hospital) 1 in 45 innings, umpire snack break delay 0:06 top 26th, players refused 0:30 break top 26th –100 fans at end – finished at 5:15 P.M.

8:15 - Burlington Athletic Stadium, Burlington,

North Carolina — 6/24/1988 — Appalachian League — Bluefield Orioles 3 Burlington Indians 2 in 27 innings — 2204 fans, 84 fans at end — finished at 3:27 A.M. in the early morning of 6/25.

8:07 - Greer Stadium, Nashville, Tennessee - 5/5/2006 and 5/6/2006 - Pacific Coast League - New Orleans Zephyrs 5 Nashville Sounds 4 in 4 innings, suspended after 6:23 and 18 innings - 9124 fans on 5/5, 300 fans at suspension; 10,016 fans on 5/6 - suspended at 1:25 A.M. in the early morning of 5/6; finished at 7:44 P.M. on 5/6.

8:06 — Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois — 5/ 8/1984 and 5/9/1984 — American League — White Sox 7 Brewers 6 in 25 innings, suspended after 5:29 and 17 innings —14,754 fans on 5/8, 17,715 fans on 5/9 suspended at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 5/9.

8:00—Carrollton Commons, Carrollton, Kentucky—7/4/1868—Amateur—Ghent 179 Carrollton 70 in 7 innings, dinner delay 5:00—started at 9:00 A.M.; called off at 10:00 P.M.

7 to 8 Hours (18)

7:55 – Estadio (Stadium) Ojinaga, Ojinaga, State of Chihuahua, Mexico – 8/13/2006 – Amateur – Madera Venados (Deer) 11 Ojinaga Soles (Suns) 9 in 21 innings –finished at 6:58 P.M.

7:47 — FirstEnergy Park, Lakewood, New Jersey — 4/26/2006 and 5/7/2006 — South Atlantic (Sally) League — Lakewood BlueClaws 8 Hagerstown Suns 7 in 22 innings, suspended after 17 innings and 6:03 — 5487 fans on 4/26, 150 fans top 12th, 31 fans top 17th; 7449 fans on 5/7 — suspended at 12:42 A.M. in the early morning of 4/27, finished at 2:49 P.M. on 5/7.

7:37 — Waterloo Stadium, Waterloo, Iowa and Riverview Stadium (later Alliant Energy Field), Clinton, Iowa — 7/6/1989 and 8/17/1989 — Midwest League — Waterloo Diamonds 4 Clinton Giants 3 in 25 innings, suspended after 5:46 and 19 innings in Waterloo, completed 8/17 in Clinton — 876 fans on 7/6 in Waterloo, 809 fans on 8/17 in Clinton — suspended at 12:51 A.M. in the early morning of 7/7.

7:30—Robert C. Wynn Field, Bradenton, Florida—4/4/1987—National Junior Collegiate Athletic Association—Hillsborough Community College Hawks 6 Manatee Community College Lancers 4 in 32 innings—200 fans, 45 fans at end—finished at 9:30 P.M.

7:23 – Shea Stadium, New York, New York – 5/31/ 1964 – National League – Giants 8 Mets 6 in 23 innings in 2nd game, Giants 5 Mets 3 in 2:29 in 1st game – 57,037 fans, 8000 fans at end –finished at 11:25 P.M.

7:23 – V.J. Keefe Stadium, San Antonio, Texas – 7/14/1988 and 7/16/1988 – Texas League – San Antonio Missions 1 Jackson Mets 0 in 26 innings, suspended after 7:10 and 25 innings – 3792 fans on 7/14, 3260 fans on 7/16 – suspended at 2:15 A.M. in the early morning of 7/15.

7:20-Yanez Field, Downey, California-5/13/

2008–California Interscholastic Federation (CIF) Southern Section Division III Playoffs Wildcard Round – Downey High School Vikings 3 Harvard-Westlake Upper School Wolverines 2 in 20 innings – 200 fans including Tommy Lasorda; 125 fans at end – finished at 10:35 P.M.

7:15 — Byron High School Field, Byron and Eckstein Field, Plainview, Minnesota — 6/22/2003 and 7/6/2003 — Twin Rivers League — Byron Braves 4 Plainview Bucks 3 in 21 innings, suspended after 5:00 and 15 innings on 6/22 in Byron, resumed 7/6 in Plainview —15 fans in Byron, 20 fans in Plainview suspended at 6:00 P.M. on 6/22, finished at 9:45 P.M. on 7/6.

7:14—Estadio (Stadium) Emilio Ibarra, Los Mochis, State of Sinaloa, Mexico—11/26/1988—Mexican Pacific League—Los Mochis Caneros (Sugar Cane Growers) 4 Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2 in 21 innings—finished at 2:44 A.M. in the early morning of 11/27.

7:14 — Astrodome, Houston, Texas — 6/3/1989 — National League — Astros 5 Dodgers 4 in 22 innings — 34,425 fans — finished at 2:50 A.M. in the early morning of 6/4.

7:13 — Memorial Stadium, Everett, Washington and Civic Stadium, Eugene, Oregon — 8/18/1989 and 8/ 24/1989 — Northwest League — Eugene Emeralds 6 Everett Giants 5 in 25 innings, suspended after 5:50 and 19 innings in Everett, completed 8/24 in Eugene — 2998 fans on 8/24 — suspended at 12:50 A.M. in the early morning of 8/19.

7:07 — MacArthur Stadium, Syracuse, New York — 6/19/1985 and 6/20/1985 and 6/21/1985 — International League — Pawtucket Paw Sox 3 Syracuse Chiefs 1 in 27 innings, suspended after 5:36 and 22 innings, continued 6/20, rain delay 0:13 top 23rd, 2nd rain delay 0:50 bottom 24th, suspended again after 6:07 and 23½ innings, finally completed 6/21—1233 fans on 6/19; 200 fans when suspended after 22 innings; 3020 fans on 6/21— suspended at 1:12 A.M. in the early morning of 6/20, suspended again at 9:05 P.M. on 6/20, finished at 7:31 P.M. on 6/21.

7:07 — Al Lang Field (II), St. Petersburg, Florida — 4/14/1994 — Florida State League — St. Petersburg Cardinals 8 Lakeland Tigers 7 in 20 innings —1021 fans — finished at 2:42 A.M. in the early morning of 4/15.

7:04 — Shea Stadium, New York, New York — 9/11/1974 — National League — Cardinals 4 Mets 3 in 25 innings — 13,460 fans, 1000 fans at end including Commissioner Bowie Kuhn — finished at 3:13 A.M. in the early morning of 9/12.

7:02 — Estadio (Stadium) Teodoro Mariscal, Mazatlan, State of Sinaloa, Mexico — 10/26/1993 — Mexican Pacific League — Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2 Guasave Algodoneros (Cotton Pickers) 1 in 22 innings — finished at 2:32 A.M. in the early morning of 10/27.

7:00-Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan-6/

24/1962 — American League — Yankees 9 Tigers 7 in 22 innings — 35,638 fans, 20,000 fans at end —fin-ished at 8:30 P.M.

7:00—Recreation Park, Visalia, California—6/19 /1971 and 6/20/1971—California League—Visalia Mets 11 Bakersfield Dodgers 9 in 22 innings, suspended after 4:50 and 15 innings, called a tie, however league president later reversed tie game ruling and ordered game to be continued—867 fans on 6/19, 449 fans on 6/20—suspended at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 6/20.

7:00 – Legion Field, Downers Grove, Illinois – 4/28/1995 and 5/3/1995 and 5/8/1995 and 5/12/ 1995 – Illinois High School League – Downers Grove North High School Trojans 12 Elmhurst York High School Dukes 11 in 23 innings, suspended after 3:00 and 8 innings, suspended a 2nd time after 6:00 and 20 innings – 75 fans on 4/28, 75 fans on 5/3, 250 fans on 5/12 – suspended at 7:15 P.M. at 4/28, suspended 2nd time at 7:15 P.M. on 5/3, rained out on 5/8, finished at 5:15 P.M. on 5/12.

6 to 7 Hours (103)

6:59 — Al Lang Field (I), St. Petersburg, Florida — 6/14/1966 — Florida State League — Miami Marlins 4 St. Petersburg Cardinals 3 in 29 innings — 740 fans, 175 fans at end —finished at 2:29 A.M. in the early morning of 6/15.

6:58 — Matsue Kyujyo (Stadium), Matsue, Japan — 7/20/1935 and 7/21/1935 — Japan Junior High School League — Oota Chu 2 Matsue Chu (later Matsue Kita Koto-gakko) 1 in 35 innings, suspended after 4:48 and 23 innings.

6:55 – Estadio (Stadium) Teodoro Mariscal, Mazatlan; State of Sinaloa, Mexico –10/19/1997 – Mexican Pacific League – Culiacan Tomateros (Tomato Growers) 5 Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2 in 22 innings –finished at 2:25 A.M. in the early morning of 10/20.

6:46 — Estadio (Stadium) Teodoro Mariscal, Mazatlan; State of Sinaloa, Mexico — 10/31/2008 — Mexican Pacific League — Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 4 Culiacan Tomateros (Tomato Growers) 2 in 17 innings — 7980 fans — finished at 2:46 A.M. in the early morning of 11/1.

6:45 – Providence, Rhode Island – 6/17/1978 – Sunset League – Mooseup Valley 4 Sports Enterprises 2 in 29 innings; 2nd game cancelled.

6:45 — Estadio (Stadium) Chihuahua, Chihuahua, State of Chihuahua, Mexico —?/??/2003 — Amateur — Chihuahua Dorados 8 Delicias Algondoneros (Cotton Pickers) 7 in 17 innings.

6:45 - GCS Ballpark, Sauget, Illinois -5/26/2008 – National Collegiate Athletic Association Division II playoffs – Sonoma State University Seawolves 6 University of Central Missouri Mules 5 in 19 innings – 665 fans – finished at 2:53 A.M. in the early morning of 5/27.

6:44 - Capital City Park, Columbia, South Car-

olina — 7/4/2003 — South Atlantic (Sally) League — Asheville Tourists 7 Capital City Bombers 5 in 19 innings — 5800 fans, 550 fans at end — finished at 1:40 A.M. in the early morning of 7/5.

6:43 — Cougar Field, Houston, Texas — 2/21/ 1999 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Baylor University Bears 8 University of Houston Cougars 2 in 22 innings —1225 fans — finished at 10:48 P.M.

6:41—Estadio (Stadium) Tetelo Vargas, San Pedro de Marcoris, Dominican—10/19/2002—Winter League—Orientales Estrellas (Oriental Stars) 4 Escogido Leones Rojos (Red Lions) 3 in 20 innings finished at 3:17 A.M. in the early morning of 10/20.

6:40 — Wolff Stadium, San Antonio, Texas — 8/ 14/2004 — Texas League — Midland RockHounds 7 San Antonio Missions 5 in 21 innings — 4286 fans, 90 fans at end — finished at 1:46 A.M. in the early morning of 8/15.

6:40—KeySpan Park, Brooklyn, New York—7/20/ 2006—New York–Pennsylvania League—Oneonta Tigers 6 Brooklyn Cyclones 1 in 26 innings—9004 fans; 190 fans at end—finished at 6:45 P.M.

6:39 — Smith-Wills Stadium, Jackson, Mississippi — 7/6/1982 — Texas League — Tulsa Drillers 11 Jackson Mets 7 in 23 innings — 1105 fans, 200 fans at end — finished at 2:09 A.M. in the early morning of 7/7.

6:39 — Municipal Stadium, Phoenix, Arizona — 6/23/1990 — Pacific Coast League — Calgary Cannons 12 Phoenix Firebirds 9 in 20 innings — finished at 1:49 A.M. in the early morning of 6/24.

6:39 — Mulcahy Stadium, Anchorage, Alaska — 6/23/1992 — Alaska League — Anchorage Glacier Pilots defeated Kamloops in 21 innings —12 fans at end finished at 2:15 A.M. in the early morning of 6/24.

6:38 - D.C. (later R.F.K.) Stadium, Washington, D.C. - 6/12/1967 - American League - Senators 6White Sox 5 in 22 innings - 7236 fans, 2000 fans at end -finished at 2:44 A.M. in the early morning of 6/13.

6:38 — Estadio (Stadium) Tomas Oroz Gaytan, Ciudad Obregon, State of Sonora, Mexico —12/30/ 1984 — Mexican Pacific League — Guaymas Ostioneros (Oyster Growers) 6 Obregon Yaquis 4 in 15 innings finished at 2:08 A.M. in the early morning of 12/31.

6:37 – All-Sports Stadium, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma – 5/28/1970 and 5/29/1970 – American Association – Indianapolis Indians 10 Oklahoma City 89'ers 7 in 23 innings, suspended after 4:53 and 17 innings – 3118 fans on 5/28, 2836 fans on 5/29 – suspended at 12:53 A.M. in the early morning of 5/29.

6:37 — Hoover Met Stadium, Hoover, Alabama — 6/2/1989 — Southern League — Birmingham Barons 5 Huntsville Stars 4 in 18 innings — 7034 fans — finished at 1:42 A.M. in the early morning of 6/3.

6:37 – Dust Devils Stadium, Pasco, Washington – 8/16/2004 and 8/17/2004 – Northwest League – Spokane Indians 2 Tri-City Dust Devils 1 in 23 innings, suspended after 5:46 and 20 innings – 919 fans on 8/16 – suspended at 12:52 A.M. in the early morning of 8/17, finished at 6:53 P.M. on 8/17.

6:36 — Jacobs Field, Cleveland, Ohio — 5/7/1995 — American League — Indians 10 Twins 9 in 17 innings — 39,431 fans — finished at 7:41 P.M.

6:35 – Ballpark (later Ameriquest Field) in Arlington, Arlington, Texas – 8/25/2001– American League – Rangers 8 Red Sox 7 in 18 innings – 43,775 fans, 8000 fans at end –finished at 1:41 A.M. in the early morning of 8/26.

6:35 — Scott Park, Toledo, Ohio — 5/19/2002 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Central Michigan University Chippewas 16 University of Toledo Rockets 15 in 18 innings — 101 fans, 60 fans at end —finished at 8:35 P.M.

6:34 — Falcon Park, Auburn, New York — 7/7/2005 and 8/14/2005 — New York—Pennsylvania League — Auburn Doubledays 6 Batavia Muckdogs 5 in 22 innings, suspended after 6:02 and 20 innings — 3242 fans on 7/7, 250 fans left at suspension, 1871 fans on 8/14 — suspended at 1:09 A.M. in the early morning of 7/8, finished at 5:35 P.M. on 8/14 — author sat behind first base for the last two innings.

6:32 — Tim McCarver Stadium, Memphis, Tennessee — 6/17/1991 and 6/18/1991 — Southern League — Huntsville Stars 9 Memphis Chicks 7 in 20 innings, suspended after 5:33 and 16 innings — 6845 fans on 6/17, 2349 fans on 6/18 — suspended at 1:12 A.M. in the early morning of 6/18, finished at 7:40 P.M. on 6/18.

6:30—St. Louis or Tenbrook, Missouri—5/??/ 1934—Amateur—St. Louis Red Sox vs. Tenbrook Athletic Club in 23 innings.

6:30—Estadio (Stadium) de Maracaibo, Maracaibo, Venezuela—6/5/1938—Venezuelan League—Pastora 1 Gavilanes 0 in 20 innings.

6:30—Estadio (Stadium) Nacional (later Estadio Dennis Martinez), Managua, Nicaragua—7/10/ 1949—First Division Amateur League—Navarro Cubs 4 Escuelas Internacionales 3 in 26 innings finished at 4:30 P.M.

6:30—Kentucky Wesleyan Field (now Panther Park), Owensboro, Kentucky—4/20/1964—National Collegiate Athletic Association—Kentucky Wesleyan College Panthers 8 Oakland City College Mighty Oaks 7 in 22 innings, 2nd game postponed—200 fans—finished at 11:30 P.M.

6:30—Estadio (Stadium) Cordoba, Cordoba, State of Veracruz, Mexico—4/28/1977—Mexican League— Aguascalientes Rieleros (Railroadmen) 6 Cordoba Cafeteros (Coffee Growers) 2 in 23 innings—4000 fans, 800 fans at end—finished at 3:00 A.M. in the early morning of 4/29.

6:30—Cleveland Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio— 4/11/1992—American League—Red Sox 7 Indians 5 in 19 innings—65,813 fans, 30,000 fans at end finished at 8:05 P.M. 6:30—Estadio (Stadium) Roberto Clemente, Carolina, Puerto Rico—11/4/2001—Winter League— Carolina Gigantes (Giants) 2 Caguas Criollos (Natives) 1 in 22 innings—finished at 12:30 A.M.

6:29 — Ed Smith Stadium, Sarasota, Florida and Dunedin Stadium at Grant Field (later Knology Park), Dunedin, Florida — 4/24/1989 and 5/17/1989 — Florida State League — Dunedin Blue Jays 8 Sarasota White Sox 3 in 21 innings, suspended after 5:48 and 20 innings — 525 fans on 4/24, 45 fans at suspension, 307 fans on 5/17 — suspended at 12:48 A.M. in the early morning of 4/25.

6:29 — Ed Smith Stadium, Sarasota, Florida — 5/5/2001— Florida State League — Vero Beach Dodgers 11 Sarasota Red Sox 7 in 19 innings — finished at 1:29 A.M. in the early morning of 5/6.

6:28 — Royals Stadium, Kansas City, Missouri — 6/6/1991— American League — Royals 4 Rangers 3 in 18 innings — 38,523 fans — finished at 8:03 P.M.

6:28 — Frank Myers Field at Tointon Family Stadium, Manhattan, Kansas — 4/9/2004 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — University of Texas Longhorns 10 Kansas State University Wildcats 6 in 20 innings — 874 fans — finished at 1:35 A.M. in the early morning of 4/10.

6:26 — Municipal Stadium, Greenville, South Carolina — 8/6/1998 and 8/7/1998 — Southern League — Greenville Braves 10 Huntsville Stars 7 in 23 innings, suspended after 5:25 and 20 innings — 4098 fans suspended at 12:13 A.M. in the early morning of 8/7, finished at 6:01 P.M. on 8/7.

6:25 — Greer Stadium, Nashville, Tennessee — 9/7/1990 — American Association playoffs — Omaha Royals 8 Nashville Sounds 7 in 20 innings, rain delay 1:46 bottom 11th —14,482 fans, 500 fans top 12th, 300 fans at end —finished at 3:50 A.M. in the early morning of 9/8.

6:25 – Estadio (Stadium) Jimenez, Jimenez, State of Chihuahua, Mexico –?/??/2003 – Amateur – Juarez Indios 4 Jimenez Rojos 3 in 17 innings.

6:24 — Dunn Field, Elmira, New York — 5/8/1965 — Eastern League — Elmira Pioneers 2 Springfield Giants 1 in 27 innings — 386 fans, 400 fans at end finished at 9:24 P.M.

6:23 — Estadio (Stadium) Alberto Hoeffer, Nogales, State of Sonora, Mexico — 7/29/1973 — Liga (League) Norte de Sonora — Cananea Mineros (Miners) 4 Nogales 2 in 23 innings —1800 fans — finished at 1:53 A.M. in the early morning of 7/30.

6:23 – Judy Johnson Field at Frawley Stadium, Wilmington, Delaware – 7/5/1998 – Carolina League – Wilmington Blue Rocks 3 Danville 97's 2 in 21 innings – 3441 fans – finished at 8:28 P.M.

6:22 – Estadio (Stadium) Angel Flores, Culiacan, State of Sinaloa, Mexico –10/22/1967 – Mexican Pacific League – Obregon Yaquis 3 Culiacan Tomateros (Tomato Growers) 1 in 21 innings – 5000 fans – finished at 11:22 P.M.

6:22 – Estadio (Stadium) Isidoro "Cholo" Garcia,

Mayaguez, Puerto Rico –12/22/1995 and 12/23/1995 and 1/19/1996 – Puerto Rican Winter League – Mayaguez Indios (Indians) 2 San Juan Senadores (Senators) 1 in 21 innings, suspended, suspended a second time.

6:21—Estadio (Stadium) Jesus Carranza, Guasave, State of Sinaloa, Mexico—11/26/2006—Mexican Pacific League—Guasave Algodoneros (Cotton Pickers) 9 Mochis Caneros (Sugarcane Pickers) 7 in 16 innings—finished at 11:45 P.M.

6:20—Billy Hebert Field, Stockton, California— 9/5/1990 and 9/6/1990—California League playoffs— Bakersfield Dodgers 5 Stockton Ports 4 in 22 innings, suspended after 5:53 and 21 innings—1497 fans on 9/5; 175 fans when suspended; 1559 fans on 9/6—suspended at 1:27 A.M. in the early morning of 9/6; finished at 6:25 P.M. on 9/6.

6:20—Evans High School Field, Augusta, Georgia—5/21/1993—Georgia High School League—Augusta Evans High School Knights 3 Marietta Sprayberry High School Yellow Jackets 2 in 17 innings —1500 fans—finished at 11:20 P.M.

6:20—Dodd Stadium, Norwich, Connecticut— 7/13/2000—Eastern League—Altoona Curve 6 Norwich Navigators 5 in 19 innings—2774 fans, 60 fans at end—finished at 1:25 A.M. in the early morning of 7/14.

6:20—Shizuoka Kyujyo (Stadium), Shizuoka, Japan—4/14/2002—Shizuoka Industrial League— Osaka Gas 6 Nissan Motors 5 in 17 innings.

6:20— Knights Castle, Fort Mill, South Carolina — 8/15/2003 — International League — Charlotte Knights 4 Indianapolis Indians 3 in 18 innings, then Charlotte 5 Indianapolis 1 in 1:54 and 7 innings, 2nd game began at 1:01 A.M. — 5275 fans, 100 fans at beginning of second game, 36 fans at end plus 250 Girl Scouts asleep in Home Run Café ballpark restaurant who were to have camped out in the outfield after the games finished at 2:55 A.M. in the early morning of 8/16.

6:20— Citibank Park, Central Islip, New York— 9/12/2006— Atlantic League— Camden Riversharks 8 Long Island Ducks 7 in 18 innings— 5234 fans; 30 fans at end—finished at 1:26 A.M. in the early morning of 9/13.

6:19 — Riverside Sports Complex, Riverside, California — 5/22/1988 — California League — San Jose Giants 8 Riverside Red Wave 5 in 21 innings — finished at 1:19 A.M. in the early morning of 5/23.

6:19 – Shimonoseki Kyujyo (Stadium), Shimonoseki, Japan – 9/8/1996 – Central League – Yakult Swallows 6 Yokohama BayStars 5 in 14 innings – finished at 12:19 A.M. in the early morning of 9/9.

6:19 – U.S. Cellular Field, Chicago, Illinois – 7/9/2006 – American League – White Sox 6 Red Sox 5 in 19 innings – 39,335 fans – finished at 7:24 P.M.

6:19 – Estadio (Stadium) Quisqueya, Santo Domingo, Dominican –12/2/2008 – Winter League – Tigres (Tigers) del Licey 10 Gigantes (Giants) del Cibao 9 in 18 innings, rain delay 1:02 —finished at 2:51 A.M. in the early morning of 12/3.

6:17 — San Diego (later Jack Murphy, then Qualcomm) Stadium, San Diego, California — 8/15/1980 — National League — Astros 3 Padres 1 in 20 innings — 14,177 fans — finished at 1:26 A.M. in the early morning of 8/16.

6:17 — Hubert H. Humphrey Metrodome, Minneapolis, Minnesota — 8/31/1993 — American League

- Twins 5 Indians 4 in 22 innings -17,968 fans, 1500 fans at end - finished at 1:22 A.M. in the early morning of 9/1.

6:17 — Oakes Oval, Lismore, State of New South Wales, Australia — 12/31/1994 — AAA Asian Under 19 Series — Australia 9 Chinese Taipei 8 in 20 innings, 2nd game postponed — 300 fans, 300 fans at end finished at 9:47 P.M.

6:16 - Petco Park, San Diego, California - 4/17/2008 - National League - Rockies 2 Padres 1 in 22innings - 25,984 fans - finished at 1:21 A.M. in theearly morning of 4/18.

6:15 — Sioux Falls Stadium (later Howard Wood Field), Sioux Falls, South Dakota — 8/3/1965 — Basin League — Pierre Cowboys 5 Sioux Falls Packers 3 in 24 innings — 421 fans — finished at 1:45 A.M. in the early morning of 8/4.

6:15 — Delano High School Diamond #4 and Delano High School Varsity Field, Delano, California — 3/23/1967 — California High School League — Fresno McLane High School Highlanders 3 Fresno High School Warriors 2 in 21 innings, diamond switch delay from Diamond #4 to Varsity Field 0:15 top 8th finished at 10:30 P.M.

6:15 — Cleveland Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio and R.F.K. Stadium, Washington, D.C. — 9/14/1971 and 9/20/1971— American League — Indians 3 Senators 1 in 1:54, then Senators 8 Indians 6 in 20 innings, suspended after 5:00 and 16 innings in Cleveland, completed 9/20 in Washington — 2639 fans on 9/14 in Cleveland, 100 fans at suspension, 1743 fans on 9/20 in Washington, 333 fans top 17th — suspended at 1:00 A.M. in the early morning of 9/15.

6:15 - Mayo Field, Rochester, Minnesota - 5/10/1986 and 5/20/1986 - Minnesota High School League - Rochester Mayo High School Spartans 3 Mankato East High School Cougars 2 in 20 innings, rain delay 1:30 bottom 10th, suspended after 3:00 and $9\frac{1}{2}$ innings, then Rochester Mayo 11 Mankato East 10 in 2:30 and 7 innings -125 fans on 5/10 – suspended at 3:30 P.M. on 5/10, 1st game finished at 8:15 P.M. on 5/20; 2nd game finished at 11:15 P.M. on 5/20.

6:15 — Citizens Bank Park, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 7/2/2004 — American League at National League — Orioles 7 Phillies 6 in 16 innings — 44,390 fans — finished at 1:23 A.M. in the early morning of 7/3.

6:15 – Wilson Field, Georgetown, Kentucky – 4/29/2005 – National Association of Intercollegiate Athletics – Lambuth University Eagles 8 Pikeville College Bears 5 in 22 innings – 200 fans, 150 fans at end – finished at 4:45 P.M.

6:14 — Nishi-Kyogoku Kyujyo (Stadium), Kyoto, Japan — 5/2/1959 — Kyoto Industrial League — Nippon Shinyaku (Pharmaceuticals) Company 2 Kurashiki Reiyon (Rayon) Company (later Kuraray Company) 1 in 29 innings.

6:14 — Grayson Stadium, Savannah, Georgia — 4/ 14/1973 — Southern League — Columbus Astros 10 Savannah Braves 4 in 23 innings, 2nd game postponed — 827 fans — finished at 12:45 A.M. in the early morning of 4/15, post-game fireworks finished at 1:10 A.M.

6:14 — Stade Olympique (Olympic Stadium), Montreal, Province of Quebec, Canada — 8/23/1989 — National League — Dodgers 1 Expos 0 in 22 innings — 21,742 fans — finished at 1:25 A.M. in the early morning of 8/24.

6:14 — Commerce Bank Park, Bridgewater, New Jersey — 8/16/2000 — Atlantic League — Somerset Patriots 8 Newark Bears 7 in 17 innings — 5552 fans, 20 fans at end —finished at 1:27 A.M. in the early morning of 8/17.

6:13 — Managua, Nicaragua — late 1940s — Nicaragua Second Division Amateur League — Manta Nica defeated Schumann in 27 innings.

6:13 — College Stadium (later Russell Diethrich Park), Jamestown, New York — 8/14/1965 — New York—Pennsylvania League — Binghamton Triplets 4 Jamestown Tigers 4 in 21 innings, 2nd game postponed — 386 fans — finished at 12:43 A.M. in the early morning of 8/15.

6:13 — Municipal Stadium, Waterbury, Connecticut -7/31/1966 — Eastern League — Waterbury Giants 9 York White Roses 8 in 22 innings — finished at 12:46 A.M. in the early morning of 8/1.

6:13 — Fukuyama Kyujyo (Stadium), Fukuyama, Japan — 8/9/1998 — Central League — Yokohama BayStars 14 Hiroshima Carp 6 in 15 innings —finished at 12:13 A.M. in the early morning of 8/10.

6:13 — Estadio (Stadium) Roberto Clemente, Carolina, Puerto Rico — 2/2/2007 — Caribbean Series — Aguilas Cibaenas (Dominican) 4 Aragua Tigres (Tigers) (Venezuela) 3 in 18 innings; then Carolina Giantes (Giants) (Puerto Rico) 11 Hermosillo Naranjeros (Orange Growers) (Mexico) 1 in 3:15 — 2nd game finished at 2:05 A.M. in the early morning of $\frac{3}{2}$.

6:12 — Honolulu Stadium (later Termite Palace), Honolulu, Hawaii — 3/25/1967 — Hawaii High School League — Kamehameha High School Warriors 9 Mc-Kinley High School Tigers 7 in 25 innings.

6:12 — San Diego (later Jack Murphy, then Qualcomm) Stadium, San Diego, California — 8/25/1979 — National League — Pirates 4 Padres 3 in 19 innings — 14,607 fans; 5000 fans at end —finished at 1:20 A.M. in the early morning of 8/26.

6:10—Ohiopyle, Pennsylvania—7/16/1967—Fay-West (Fayette County-Westmoreland County) League — Ohiopyle 11 Breakneck 10 in 20 innings—finished at 8:10 P.M. 6:10—Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois—8/17/1982 and 8/18/1982—National League—Dodgers 2 Cubs 1 in 21 innings, suspended after 5:10 and 17 innings— 26,576 fans on 8/17, 27,429 fans on 8/18—suspended at 6:45 P.M. on 8/17, finished at 12:05 P.M. on 8/18.

6:10—Atlanta-Fulton County Stadium, Atlanta, Georgia — 7/4/1985 — National League — rain delay 1:24 at start, Mets 16 Braves 13 in 19 innings, 2nd rain delay 0:41 bottom 3rd, 4th of July fireworks show began 4:01 A.M., ended 4:12 A.M. — 44,947 fans, 8000 fans at end —finished at 3:55 A.M. in the early morning of 7/5.

6:10—Owen Fish Park, Fairfield, Connecticut— 8/14/1992 and 8/15/1992—Northeast Regionals, National Amateur League—New Rochelle Robins 2 Worcester Warriors 1 in 24 innings, suspended after 10 innings.

6:10— Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania—7/7/1993— National League— Phillies 7 Dodgers 6 in 20 innings—41,730 fans—finished at 1:47 A.M. in the early morning of 7/8.

6:09 — Yankee Stadium (I), New York, New York — 8/29/1967 — American League — Yankees 4 Red Sox 3 in 20 innings in 2nd game, Red Sox 2 Yankees 1 in 2:10 in 1st game — 40,314 fans — finished at 1:57 A.M. in the early morning of 8/30.

6:09 — Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois — 4/20/1986 and 8/11/1986 — National League — Pirates 10 Cubs 8 in 17 innings, suspended after 4:48 and 13 innings — 18,508 fans on 4/20; 20,636 fans on 8/11— suspended at 6:18 P.M.

6:09 — Whataburger Field, Corpus Christi, Texas — 6/1/2005 — Texas League — Wichita Wranglers 7 Corpus Christi Hooks 2 in 20 innings — 6609 fans, 325 fans at end — finished at 1:19 A.M. in the early morning of 6/2.

6:07 - Disch-Falk Field, Austin, Texas - 5/15/1981and $5/16/1981 - \text{National Collegiate Athletic Associa$ tion - University of Texas Longhorns 7 Rice University Owls 6 in 20 innings, rain delay 2:00 top 13th,suspended after 3:10 and 12 innings <math>- 4700 fans on 5/15, 300 fans at suspension, 3000 fans on $5/16 - \text{sus$ $pended}$ at 1:15 A.M. in the early morning of 5/16, finished at 3:02 P.M. on 5/16.

6:07 — Dick Howser Field, Tallahassee, Florida — 4/7/2000— National Collegiate Athletic Association — Florida State University Seminoles 14 University of Miami Hurricanes 13 in 17 innings — 4626 fans finished at 1:09 A.M. in the early morning of 4/8.

6:07 – Pro Player Stadium, Miami, Florida – 4/27/2003 – National League – Cardinals 7 Marlins 6 in 20 innings –10,075 fans – finished at 7:12 P.M.

6:06 — Astrodome, Houston, Texas — 4/15/1968 — National League — Astros 1 Mets 0 in 24 innings — 14,219 fans, 3000 fans at end —finished at 1:37 A.M. in the early morning of 4/16.

6:06 — Regional Park, Midwest City, Oklahoma — 7/??/1973 — American Legion — Post 170 Midwest City 2 Post 170 Choctaw 1 in 24 innings — 50 fans, 15 fans at end — finished at 2:06 A.M. in the early morning of 7/??.

6:06 — Municipal Qiuchang (Stadium), Taipei, Taiwan — 9/15/1979 — Taiwan University League — Weichuan Foods/Chinese Culture University 1 Putaowang (Grape King) Biotechnology/Fu Jen Catholic University 0 in 21 innings — finished at 10:11 P.M.

6:06 — Anaheim Stadium (later Edison International Field, then Angels Stadium), Anaheim, California — 4/13/1982 and 4/14/1982 — American League — Angels 4 Mariners 3 in 20 innings, suspended after 5:24 and 17 innings — 33,574 fans on 4/13, 23,905 fans on 4/14 — suspended at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 4/14.

6:06 — Hanover Insurance Park at Fitton Field, Worcester, Massachusetts — 6/26/2008 — Canadian American (CanAm) League — New Jersey Jackals 5 Worcester Tornadoes 4 in 20 innings —1434 fans finished at 12:11 A.M. in the early morning of 6/27.

6:06 — Joker Marchant Stadium, Lakeland, Florida — 6/29/2008 — Florida State League — Lakeland Flying Tigers 3 Daytona Cubs 2 in 20 innings — 469 fans — finished at 12:06 A.M. in the early morning of 6/30.

6:05 — County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin — 5/1/1991 — American League — Brewers 10 White Sox 9 in 19 innings —13,973 fans — finished at 7:35 P.M.

6:04 – V.J. Keefe Stadium, San Antonio, Texas – 5/21/1987 – Texas League – Shreveport Captains 4 San Antonio Dodgers 3 in 21 innings –1144 fans – finished at 1:04 A.M. in the early morning of 5/22.

6:03 – Shively Field, Lexington, Kentucky – 6/3/1970 – Kentucky High School League – Madisonville High School Maroons 12 Lexington Lafayette High School Generals 11 in 22 innings.

6:03 — Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois — 5/26/1973 and 5/27/1973 and 5/28/1973 — American League — White Sox 6 Indians 3 in 21 innings, rain delay 0:17 top 14th, suspended after 4:39 and 16 innings, rained out 5/27 — 19,486 fans on 5/26, 17,419 fans on 5/28 — suspended at 1:01 A.M. in the early morning of 5/27.

6:02 — Del Webb Field, Modesto, California — 6/19/1970 — California League — Modesto Reds 9 Reno Silver Sox 8 in 19 innings —1275 fans, 400 fans at end —finished at 1:57 A.M. in the early morning of 6/20.

6:02 — Municipal Stadium, Greenville, South Carolina — 7/13/1984 and 7/14/1984 — Southern League — Memphis Chicks 3 Greenville Braves 2 in 19 innings, then Greenville 6 Memphis 5 in 2:11 and 7 innings, suspended after 2 innings, completed 7/14 as 1st game of tripleheader — 3044 fans on 7/13, 250 fans at suspension, 4456 fans on 7/14 — suspended at 1:07 A.M. in the early morning of 7/14.

6:02 — Koshien Kyujyo (Stadium), Osaka, Japan — 5/24/2000 — Central League — Chunichi Dragons 3 Hanshin Tigers 2 in 15 innings —finished at 12:02 A.M. in the early morning of 5/25.

6:01—Fairground Park, Fond du Lac, Wisconsin— 7/31/1963—Fox River Valley League—Little Chute-Kimberly Papermakers 11 Fond du Lac 5 in 21 innings—finished at 2:01 A.M. in the early morning of 8/1.

6:01—Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts— 9/3/1981 and 9/4/1981—American League—Mariners 8 Red Sox 7 in 20 innings, suspended after 5:39 and 19 innings—13,355 fans on 9/3, 1000 fans at suspension, 20,836 fans on 9/4—suspended at 1:16 A.M. in the early morning of 9/4.

6:01— Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York — 9/11/1988 — American League — Yankees 5 Tigers 4 in 18 innings — 39,008 fans — finished at 7:31 P.M.

6:01— Hiroshima Kyujyo (Stadium), Hiroshima, Japan—10/1/1992—Central League—Hiroshima Carp 8 Yakult Swallows 7 in 13 innings.

6:01—Estadio (Stadium) Angel Flores, Culiacan, State of Sinaloa, Mexico—10/27/1995—Mexican Pacific League—Culiacan Tomateros (Tomato Growers) 3 Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2 in 20 innings finished at 1:31 A.M. in the early morning of 10/28.

6:00—Lawrence Hardball Park, Lodi, California— 8/31/1966—California League—Reno Silver Sox 6 Lodi Crushers 5 in 23 innings—502 fans, 20 fans at end—finished at 2:00 A.M. in the early morning of 9/1.

6:00—Knowles Field, Martinez, California— 5/9/1968—California High School League—Alhambra High School Bulldogs 4 San Ramon Valley High School Wolves 3 in 21 innings—finished at 9:30 P.M.

6:00—Bom Retiro (Good Place to Rest) Stadium, Sao Paulo, Brazil—9/7/1971—National Championships—Sul-Brasil 6 Presidente Venceslau 5 in 20 innings—2000 fans—finished at 5:00 P.M.

6:00— Heart of Florida Medical Regional Center Field, Babson Park, Florida — 2/19/1999 and 2/20/ 1999 — National Association of Intercollegiate Athletics — Nova Southeastern University Knights 9 Webber College (now Webber International University) Warriors 5 in 21 innings, suspended after 3:43 and 13 innings — 50 fans — suspended at 6:28 P.M., finished at 1:17 P.M.

6:00—Parade Stadium, Minneapolis, Minnesota— 8/1 or 8/2/2002—Park National League—Minneapolis Angels 4 Lyons Pub Warriors 3 in 17 innings—40 fans; 250 fans at end—finished at 4:00 P.M.

6:00—Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York - 8/9/2002—American League—Athletics 3 Yankees 2 in 16 innings—54,316 fans, 10,000 fans at end -finished at 1:09 A.M. in the early morning of 8/ 10.

6:00—Fukuoka Dome, Fukuoka, Japan—10/26/ 2002—Kyushu University League—Nihon Bunri University 2 Kyushu Kyoritsu University 1 in 23 innings.

6:00— Estadio (Stadium) 20 de Noviembre (November 20), San Luis Potosi, State of San Luis Potosi, Mexico — 4/15/2006 — Mexican League — Saltillo Saraperos (Blanket Makers) 7 San Luis Potosi Tuneros

(Prickle Pear Growers) 5 in 16 innings –1758 fans – finished at 1:00 A.M. in the early morning of 4/16.

5 to 6 Hours (445)

5:59 — Al Lang Field (II), St. Petersburg, Florida and Holman Stadium, Vero Beach, Florida — 4/29/ 1988 and 5/28/1988 — Florida State League — Vero Beach Dodgers 6 St. Petersburg Cardinals 5 in 20 innings, suspended after 5:29 and 18 innings, completed in Vero Beach — suspended at 1:04 A.M. in the early morning of 4/30.

5:59 — Charlotte County Stadium, Port Charlotte, Florida — 8/3/1990 and 8/6/1990 — Florida State League — Charlotte Rangers 4 Sarasota White Sox 3 in 16 innings, rain delay 0:50 bottom 2nd, suspended after 5:05 and 14 innings —1665 fans on 8/3, 3026 fans on 8/6 suspended at 1:00 A.M. in the early morning of 8/4.

5:58 – V.J. Keefe Stadium, San Antonio, Texas – 5/3/1989 – Texas League – Midland Angels 5 San Antonio Missions 3 in 19 innings –1296 fans, 24 fans at end –finished at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 5/4.

5:58 — Owen Bush Stadium, Indianapolis, Indiana — 6/30/1994 — American Association — Nashville Sounds 9 Indianapolis Indians 7 in 19 innings — 2047 fans, 50 fans at end — finished at 1:13 A.M. in the early morning of 7/1.

5:57 — Olsen Field, College Station, Texas — 5/5/1989 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — University of Arkansas Razorbacks 11 Texas Agricultural and Mechanical (A&M) University Aggies 9 in 16 innings — 5388 fans, 3000 fans at end.

5:57 — SkyDome (later Rogers Centre), Toronto, Province of Ontario, Canada — 4/19/2001— American League — Yankees 6 Blue Jays 5 in 17 innings — 24,684 fans, 1500 fans at end —finished at 1:06 A.M. in the early morning of 4/20.

5:57 — Petco Park, San Diego, California — 5/25/ 2008 — National League — Padres 12 Reds 9 in 18 innings — 36,508 fans — finished at 7:02 P.M.

5:56 — Sicks' Stadium, Seattle, Washington — 5/8/1959 — Pacific Coast League — Seattle Rainiers 6 Phoenix Giants 5 in 21 innings, 2nd game cancelled — 1787 fans — finished at 12:56 A.M. in the early morning of 5/9.

5:56 — Ray Winder Field, Little Rock, Arkansas — 7/21/1971— Dixie Association — Arkansas Travelers 5 Dallas-Fort Worth Spurs 4 in 22 innings — 7030 fans, 600 fans at end — finished at 1:26 A.M. in the early morning of 7/22.

5:56 — Municipal Stadium, San Jose, California — 5/12/1995 and 5/13/1995 — California League — San Bernardino Spirit 1 San Jose Giants 0 in 21 innings, three rain delays, suspended after 11½ innings — suspended at 11:16 P.M.

5:56 — Le Lacheur Park, Lowell, Massachusetts — 7/29/2002 — New York-Pennsylvania League — Hudson Valley Renegades 13 Lowell Spinners 9 in 18 innings — 5000 fans — finished at 1:01 A.M. in the early morning of 7/30. 5:55 — MacArthur Stadium, Syracuse, New York — 7/30/1980 — International League — Richmond Braves 12 Syracuse Chiefs 6 in 22 innings — 3117 fans, 1000 fans at end —finished at 1:28 A.M. in the early morning of 7/31.

5:55 — Osceola County Stadium, Kissimmee, Florida — 8/31/1985 — Florida State League — Osceola Astros 6 Fort Lauderdale Yankees 4 in 19 innings finished at 1:25 A.M. in the early morning of 9/1.

5:53 — Pac Bell (later SBC, then At&T) Park, San Francisco, California — 5/29/2001— National League — Diamondbacks 1 Giants 0 in 18 innings — 39,709 fans — finished at 1:10 A.M. in the early morning of 5/30.

5:53 — Dick Putz Field, St. Cloud, Minnesota — 8/3/2004 — Northwoods League — Madison Mallards 9 St. Cloud River Bats 5 in 18 innings — 2145 fans finished at 1:00 A.M. in the early morning of 8/4.

5:52 — Sicks' Stadium, Seattle, Washington — 7/27/1969 — American League — Red Sox 5 Pilots 3 in 20 innings — 9670 fans.

5:52 — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 6/5/2001— American League — Red Sox 4 Tigers 3 in 18 innings — 32,814 fans — finished at 12:57 A.M. in the early morning of 6/6.

5:52 — Eldredge Park, Orleans, Massachusetts — 8/4/2003 — Cape Cod League — Harwich Mariners 3 Orleans Cardinals 2 in 20 innings; umpire crew chief called it a tie game after 17 innings a little after Midnight, but both managers and players from both teams successfully changed his mind to allow the game to continue — 4615 fans, 125 fans at end —finished at 12:58 A.M. in the early morning of 8/5.

5:51- Jamsil Yagu-jang (Stadium), Seoul, South Korea - 9/3/2008 - Korean Organization - Doosan Bears 1 Hanwha Eagles 0 in 18 innings - 7273 fans; 1000 fans at end - finished at 12:22 A.M. in the early morning of 9/4.

5:50—Mr. Howard's Lands off Railroad Avenue, Elkton, Maryland — 7/17/1866 — Amateur — Elkton Eclipses 62 St. Georges of Delaware 37 — finished at 6:50 P.M.

5:50—Dorchester Franklin Field Diamond #5, Boston, Massachusetts—6/8/1907—Boston Grammar School League—Henry L. Pierce Grammar School of Dorchester 4 Bennet Grammar School of Brighton 3 in 28 innings—finished at 3:50 P.M.

5:50—Brookside Park, Cleveland, Ohio—7/4/ 1907—Amateur—Brooklyn Athletic Club 4 East End All Stars 1 in 30 innings.

5:50—Yankee Stadium (I), New York, New York — 4/16/1967 — American League — Yankees 7 Red Sox 6 in 18 innings —19,290 fans —finished at 6:23 P.M.

5:50- Frank Lawrence Stadium, Portsmouth, Virginia - 4/18/1967 - Carolina League - Kinston Eagles 5 Tidewater Tides 5 in 20 innings - 526 fans, 25 fans at end - finished at 1:21 A.M. in the early morning of 4/19.

5:50-Blue Valley District Activity Center, Over-

land Park, Kansas — 5/20/1997 — Kansas High School League — Blue Valley Northwest High School Huskies 1 Shawnee Mission North High School Mustangs 0 in 21 innings — finished at 10:50 P.M.

5:50—Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York—7/20/1998—American League—Tigers 4 Yankees 3 in 17 innings, then Yankees 4 Tigers 3 in 2:45— 36,285 fans—finished at 1:17 A.M. in the early morning of 7/21.

5:50—Stadio Renato Reatini, Anzio, Italy— 6/12/2004—Serie Nazionale (Italian A1 League)— Parma 8 Anzio 7 in 5:50 and 16 innings—finished at 2:50 A.M. in the early morning of 6/13.

5:50— Reiterstadion (later Koln Ballpark), Koln (Cologne), Germany—4/6/2005—Bundesliga Nord (North German League)—Bonn Capitals 9 Koln (Cologne) Cardinals 7 in 20 innings—finished at 6:50 P.M.; then Bonn 4 Cologne 0 in 2:05 and 7 innings, rain delay 0:13—finished at 9:38 P.M.

5:50— Fieldcrest Cannon Stadium, Kannapolis, North Carolina — 5/20/2005 — South Atlantic (Sally) League — Delmarva Shorebirds 7 Kannapolis Intimidators 6 in 18 innings — 2899 fans, 250 fans at end including 200 Girl Scouts waiting to camp out in the outfield after the game — finished at 1:06 A.M. in the early morning of 5/21.

5:50—Vic Kapsner Memorial Park, Lastrup, Minnesota — 7/23/2005 — Minnesota Town Team League — Lastrup Lakers 1 Pierz Brewers 0 in 28 innings — 100 fans; 300 fans at end — finished at 7:25 P.M.

5:50—Minute Maid Park, Houston, Texas— 10/9/2005—National League Division Series—Astros 7 Braves 6 in 18 innings—43,413 fans—finished at 5:55 P.M.

5:49 — Koshien Kyujyo (Stadium), Osaka, Japan — 9/11/1992 — Central League — Yakult Swallows 3 Hanshin Tigers 3 in 15 innings, rhubarb delay 0:37 finished at 12:26 A.M. in the early morning of 9/12.

5:49 – Camden Yards, Baltimore, Maryland – 6/19/1998 – American League – Orioles 7 Blue Jays 4 in 15 innings – 47,012 fans.

5:49 — John O'donnell Stadium, Davenport, Iowa — 5/19/1999 — Midwest League — Clinton Lumber Kings 3 Quad-City River Bandits 2 in 21 innings.

5:49 – Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts – 10/18/2004 – American League Championship Series – Red Sox 5 Yankees 4 in 14 innings – 35,120 fans – finished at 11:00 P.M.

5:49—PNC Park, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania— 5/27/2006—National League—Pirates 8 Astros 7 in 18 innings—31,878 fans—finished at 12:54 A.M. in the early morning of 5/28.

5:48 — Union Field, West Deptford, New Jersey — 7/28/2002 — American Legion District 4 Tournament — Post 372 Cherry Hill 14 Post 458 North Trenton 13 in 18 innings — 200 fans — finished at 11:48 P.M.

5:48 – Dwyer Stadium, Batavia, New York – 7/9/2003 – New York-Pennsylvania League – Staten

Island Yankees 5 Batavia Muckdogs 2 in 21 innings – 1073 fans – finished at 12:58 A.M. in the early morning of 7/10.

5:48 — CanWest Global Park, Winnipeg, Province of Manitoba, Canada — 8/10/2003 — Northern League — Joliet JackHammers 6 Winnipeg Goldeyes 3 in 17 innings — 7718 fans — finished at 7:24 P.M.

5:48 — Toro Field, Carson, California — 2/27/2005 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Sonoma State University Seawolves 11 California State University at Dominguez Hills Toros 10 in 16 innings — 89 fans — finished at 4:56 P.M.

5:47 – New York, New York –?/??/1954 – City Youth Federation Semi-Final Game – Hudson Guild Neighborhood House 3 Immaculate Conception of the Bronx 2 in 20 innings.

5:47 — Shikoku Kyujo (Stadium), Shikoku, Japan — 4/28/1958 — Japan High School League — Takamatsu-shogyo 2 Tokushima-shogyo 0 in 25 innings.

5:47 — Oiler (later McNulty) Park, Tulsa, Oklahoma — 5/31/1963 — Texas League — Tulsa Oilers 9 Albuquerque Dukes 8 in 17 innings — 2088 fans finished at 1:30 A.M. in the early morning of 6/1.

5:47 — Ernie Shore Field, Winston-Salem, North Carolina — 8/14/1967 — Carolina League — Winston-Salem Red Sox 13 Greensboro Yankees 12 in 19 innings —1708 fans —finished at 1:47 A.M. in the early morning of 8/15.

5:47 — Metropolitan Stadium, Bloomington, Minnesota — 5/12/1972 and 5/13/1972 — American League — Brewers 4 Twins 3 in 22 innings, suspended after 5:35 and 21 innings — 8628 fans on 5/12, 7871 fans on 5/13 — suspended at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 5/13.

5:47 — American Legion Ballfield, Mobridge, South Dakota — 8/4/1987 — South Dakota Amateur Association — Mobridge 7 Redfield Merchants (later Pheasants, then Dairy Queen) 6 in 22 innings.

5:47 - Tiger Field (later Doug Kingsmore Stadium), Clemson, South Carolina - 4/21/1996 - National Collegiate Athletic Association - Georgia Southern University Eagles 9 Clemson University Tigers 7 in 18 innings in 2nd game, Georgia Southern 8 Clemson 6 in 2:57 and 10 innings in 1st game - 2356 fans, 500 fans at end - 2nd game finished at 9:20 P.M.

5:47 — Ameriquest Field, Arlington, Texas — 6/24/ 2004 — American League — Rangers 9 Mariners 7 in 18 innings — 26,266 fans — finished at 7:22 P.M.

5:47 – Wade Stadium, Duluth, Minnesota – 7/19/2005 – Northwoods League – St. Cloud River Bats at Duluth Huskies in 18 innings.

5:46 — Memorial Stadium, Baltimore, Maryland — 6/4/1988 — American League — Orioles 7 Yankees 6 in 14 innings — 36,499 fans.

5:46 — Shea Stadium, New York, New York — 10/17/1999 — National League Championship Series — Mets 4 Braves 3 in 15 innings — 55,723 fans — finished at 9:55 P.M. 5:45 — Tokyo, Japan — 8/30/1951 — Junior High School League — Takefu Junior High School 0 Kohama Junior High School 0 in 30 innings —finished at 2:45 P.M.

5:45 — Greenwood, South Carolina — 7/15/1959 — American Legion — Clinton 5 Post 20 Greenwood 3 in 20 innings.

5:45 – Boysen Park, Anaheim, California – 4/26/1968 – California High School League – Santa Ana High School Saints 6 Anaheim High School Colonists 6 in 19 innings, automatic sprinklers delay 0:45 top 20th –100 fans, 25 fans at end – called off at 1:30 A.M. because automated sprinklers which had come on at 12:45 A.M. could not be turned off.

5:45 — Parque Deportivo del Seguro Social (Social Security Stadium), Mexico City, Distrito Federal (Federal District) or Guadalajara, Mexico — 6/24/1970— Mexican League — Mexico City Diablos Rojos (Red Devils) 10 Jalisco Charros 9 in 18 innings — finished at 1:15 A.M. in the early morning of 6/25.

5:45 — San Marino Stadium, San Marino, San Marino, Europe — 9/16/1986 — European Confederation Playoffs — Biemme Fortitudo Bologna 12 Chesterfield San Marino 10 in 17 innings — finished at 2:45 A.M. in the early morning of 9/17.

5:45 – Candlestick Park, San Francisco, California – 9/28/1986 – National League – Giants 6 Dodgers 5 in 16 innings – 28,603 fans.

5:45 — Jack Kane Sports Centre, Edinburgh, Scotland — 8/4/1996 — Edinburgh Reivers (later Diamond Devils) 13 Glasgow Comets 12 in 12 innings — ended at 7:45 P.M.

5:45 – Busch Stadium (II), St. Louis, Missouri – 5/24/1998 – National League – Giants 9 Cardinals 6 in 17 innings – 45,864 fans – finished at 6:50 P.M.

5:45 – Jamsil Olympic Yagu-jang (Stadium), Seoul, South Korea – 5/6/2001– Korean Organization – LG (Lucky Goldstar) Twins 3 Doosan Bears 3 in 15 innings – finished at 7:45 P.M.

5:45 — Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York -5/17/2002 — American League — Yankees 13 Twins 12 in 14 innings -39,470 fans — Jason Giambi is only the 24th player to ever hit a walk-off grand slam home run in extra innings with his team trailing by three runs, and the first to ever do so in the pouring rain —finished at 12:50 A.M. in the early morning of 5/18.

5:45 — Duvall-Rosier Field, Fairmont, West Virginia — 3/22/2005 — Naia at NCAA — Fairmont State University Falcons 7 Seton Hill College Griffins 6 in 17 innings, then Fairmont State 5 Seton Hill 2 in 2:01 and 7 innings — 56 fans, 25 fans at end — 2nd game finished at 10:16 P.M.

5:45 — Kungsbacka Arena, Oskarshamn, Sweden — 5/22/2005 — Oskarshamn Lost Boys 11 Goteborg Sharks 10 in 15 innings; then Oskersham 11 Goteborg 5 in 3:25 — 1st game finished at 6:45 P.M.; 2nd game finished at 10:30 P.M.

5:45 – Klein Field, Stockton, California – 4/29/

2007 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Long Beach State University DirtBags 14 University of the Pacific Tigers 9 in 14 innings — 760 fans finished at 6:45 P.M.

5:44 — Community Field (II), Burlington, Iowa — 8/10/1983 and 8/11/1983 — Midwest League — Burlington Rangers 7 Clinton Giants 6 in 21 innings, rain delay 0:06 bottom 11th, 2nd rain delay 0:01 bottom 18th, suspended after 4:54 and 17½ innings — suspended at 12:35 A.M. in the early morning of 8/11.

5:44 — Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan — 4/27/ 1984 — American League — Indians 8 Tigers 4 in 19 innings — 34,112 fans, 7000 fans at end — finished at 1:22 A.M. in the early morning of 4/28.

5:44 — Pro Player (later Dolphin) Stadium, Miami, Florida — 8/20/1999 — National League — Astros 6 Marlins 4 in 16 innings —19,845 fans —finished at 12:49 A.M. in the early morning of 8/21.

5:44 — Jack Horenberger Field, Bloomington, Illinois — 7/30/2002 — Central Illinois Collegiate League — Decatur Blues 11 Twin City Stars 4 in 20 innings — 259 fans — finished at 10:44 P.M.

5:44 — Rent One Park, Marion, Illinois — 7/13/ 2007 — Frontier League — Southern Illinois Miners 4 Florence Freedom 3 in 18 innings — 5443 fans finished at 12:49 A.M. in the early morning of 7/14.

5:43 — V.J. Keefe Stadium, San Antonio, Texas — 5/8/1971— Dixie Association — San Antonio Missions 6 Birmingham Athletics 5 in 19 innings — 3574 fans finished at 1:28 A.M. in the early morning of 5/9.

5:43 — Estadio (Stadium) Angel Flores, Culiacan, State of Sinaloa, Mexico — 11/16/2005 — Mexican Pacific League — Culiacan Tomateros (Tomato Growers) 4 Los Mochis Caneros (Sugar Cane Growers) 3 in 14 innings —finished at 1:13 A.M. in the early morning of 11/17.

5:43—Blair Field, Long Beach, California— 3/24/2007—National Collegiate Athletic Association—Long Beach State University DirtBags 4 California State University at Fullerton Titans 3 in 14 innings—2402 fans.

5:42 — Mission Stadium, San Antonio, Texas — 4/29/1960 — Texas League — Rio Grande Valley Giants 4 San Antonio Missions 2 in 24 innings, scoreboard fire delay bottom 23rd — 820 fans — finished at 1:27 A.M. in the early morning of 4/30.

5:42 — Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California — 5/24/1973 — National League — Mets 7 Dodgers 3 in 19 innings — 27,580 fans — finished at 1:45 A.M. in the early morning of 5/25.

5:42 — Three Rivers Stadium, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 8/6/1989 — National League — Pirates 5 Cubs 4 in 18 innings, rain delay 0:45 bottom 10th — 24,716 fans — finished at 7:32 P.M. — author sat in lower deck behind home plate.

5:42 — Hiroshima Kyujo (Stadium), Hiroshima or Tokyo Dome, Tokyo, Japan — 8/20/2004 — Central League — Hiroshima Toyo Carp 7 Yomiuri Giants 6 in 12 innings —finished at 11:42 P.M. 5:42 — Riley Ballpark, Charleston, South Carolina — 5/20/2006 — South Atlantic (Sally) League — Charleston RiverDogs 7 Rome Braves 6 in 18 innings — 4794 fans — finished at 12:47 A.M. in the early morning of 5/21.

5:42 — Roger Dean Stadium, Jupiter, Florida — 6/15/2006 — Florida State League — Palm Beach Cardinals 4 Jupiter Hammerheads 1 in 17 innings —1627 fans; 30 fans at end —finished at 4:47 P.M.

5:41—Sicks' Stadium, Seattle, Washington — 7/19/ 1969 and 7/20/1969 — American League — Twins 11 Pilots 7 in 18 innings, suspended after 5:01 and 16 innings, moon landing delay 0:20 bottom 17th —12,067 fans on 7/19, 8287 fans on 7/20—suspended at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 7/20.

5:41—Camden Yards, Baltimore, Maryland— 6/27/2003—NL at AL—Phillies 4 Orioles 2 in 17 innings—46,405 fans—finished at 12:46 A.M. in the early morning of 6/28.

5:41— Minute Maid Park, Houston, Texas -10/25/2005 — AL at NL World Series — White Sox 7 Astros 5 in 14 innings -42,848 fans — finished at 1:20 A.M. in the early morning of 10/26.

5:41—Arrowhead Credit Union Park, San Bernardino, California — 4/7/2008 and 4/8/2008 — California League — Lancaster JetHawks 6 Inland Empire 66ers 3 in 18 innings, suspended after 4:41 and 15 innings —1993 fans on 4/7; 60 fans at suspension; 1130 fans on 4/8 — suspended at 11:50 P.M., finished at 6:57 P.M.

5:41—Hadlock Field, Portland, Maine—4/16/ 2008—Eastern League—Portland Sea Dogs 8 Connecticut Defenders 7 in 17 innings—3822 fans.

5:40—Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan—6/17/ 1967—American League—Tigers 7 Athletics 6 in 3:25, rain delay 0:15 top 7th, then Athletics 6 Tigers 5 in 19 innings—14,871 fans, 200 fans at end including Commissioner William Eckert—finished at 12:17 A.M. in the early morning of 6/18.

5:40 — Metropolitan Stadium, Bloomington, Minnesota — 8/9/1967 — American League — Senators 9 Twins 7 in 20 innings — 16,901 fans, 4000 fans at end — finished at 1:44 A.M. in the early morning of 8/10.

5:40—Crosley Field, Cincinnati, Ohio—9/1/1967 — National League—Giants 1 Reds 0 in 21 innings— 13,745 fans, 200 fans at end—finished at 1:45 A.M. in the early morning of 9/2.

5:40—Estadio (Stadium) Quisqueya, Santo Domingo, Dominican —1/12/1981—Winter League — Orientales Estrellas (Oriental Stars) 4 Licey Tigres (Tigers) 3 in 22 innings—finished at 3:30 A.M. in the early morning of 1/13.

5:40—Busch Stadium (II), St. Louis, Missouri— 5/14/1988—National League—Braves 7 Cardinals 5 in 19 innings—47,887 fans—finished at 1:15 A.M. in the early morning of 5/15.

5:40— Jacobs Field, Cleveland, Ohio — 7/20/1994 — American League — rain delay 0:33 at start, Rangers 13 Indians 11 in 14 innings – 40,280 fans – finished at 1:18 A.M. in the early morning of 7/21.

5:40—Fair Grounds Field, Shreveport, Louisiana — 7/3/2001—Texas League — Tulsa Drillers 4 Shreveport Swamp Dragons 2 in 18 innings — 634 fans finished at 12:46 A.M. in the early morning of 7/4.

5:40—Rosenblatt Stadium, Omaha, Nebraska— 6/18/2007—National Collegiate Athletic Association—University of California at Irvine Anteaters 5 California State University at Fullerton Titans 4 in 13 innings—16,451 fans—finished at 6:47 P.M.

5:39 - Rox Park, St. Cloud, Minnesota -7/25/1966 and 8/28/1966 - Northern League - HuronPhillies 8 St. Cloud Rox 2 in 21 innings, suspended after 4:20 and 16 innings, originally decided to play entire game over, but then decided to complete game from point of suspension -951 fans on 7/25, 343 fans on 8/28 - suspended at 11:50 P.M. on 7/25.

5:39 — County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin — 5/16/2000 — National League — Brewers 6 Astros 5 in 16 innings — 9239 fans — finished at 12:44 A.M. in the early morning of 5/17.

5:38 — Russwood Park, Memphis, Tennessee — 6/21/1959 — Southern Association — Memphis Chicks 6 Chattanooga Lookouts 5 in 21 innings — finished at 7:10 P.M.

5:38 — Parque Deportivo del Seguro Social (Social Security Stadium), Mexico City, Distrito Federal (Federal District), Mexico — 7/14/1969 — Mexican League — Reynosa Broncos 5 Mexico City Diablos Rojos (Red Devils) 3 in 22 innings — 3895 fans finished at 1:08 A.M. in the early morning of 7/15.

5:38 — Cooper Stadium, Columbus, Ohio — 8/6/ 1997 — International League — Columbus Clippers 4 Richmond Braves 3 in 18 innings —13,115 fans.

5:37 — Centennial Field, Burlington, Vermont — 8/23/1984 and 8/24/1984 — Eastern League — Albany-Colonie Athletics 9 Vermont Reds 7 in 17 innings, automatic sprinkler malfunction delay 0:17 bottom 17th, suspended after 5:12 and 16½ innings when outfield sprinklers could not be turned off— 2909 fans on 8/23, 250 fans at suspension, 2194 fans on 8/24 — suspended at 1:06 A.M. in the early morning of 8/24.

5:37 — Cooper Stadium, Columbus, Ohio — 6/10/1985 and 6/11/1985 and 6/12/1985 — International League — Columbus Clippers 8 Syracuse Chiefs 7 in 21 innings, suspended after 5:18 and 20 innings, rained out 6/11, finally completed 6/12 —12,616 fans on 6/10, 400 fans at suspension, 2000 fans on 6/12 — suspended at 12:53 A.M. in the early morning of 6/11.

5:37 — County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin — 5/27/1991— American League — Tigers 15 Brewers 9 in 14 innings — 27,667 fans — finished at 7:12 P.M.

5:36 – Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York – 7/11/1987 – American League – White Sox 5 Yankees 2 in 15 innings – 45,528 fans.

5:36 — Citibank Ballpark, Midland, Texas — 7/12/ 2006 — Texas League — Midland RockHounds 11 Wichita Wranglers 10 in 15 innings — 2726 fans — finished at 12:41 A.M. in the early morning of 7/13.

5:36 — Minute Maid Park, Houston, Texas — 8/15/2006 — National League — Cubs 8 Astros 6 in 18 innings — 41,531 fans — finished at 12:41 A.M. in the early morning of 8/16.

5:35 – Municipal Stadium, West Palm Beach, Florida – 8/8/1967 – Florida State League – West Palm Beach Braves 3 Leesburg Athletics 2 in 25 innings, 2nd game postponed – finished at 11:35 P.M.

5:35 – Danville Stadium, Danville, Illinois – 6/4/1974 – Midwest League – Waterloo Royals 7 Danville Warriors 5 in 21 innings – 722 fans, 94 fans at end – finished at 1:10 A.M. in the early morning of 6/5.

5:35 — Astrodome, Houston, Texas — 4/12/1980— National League — Dodgers 6 Astros 5 in 17 innings — 24,609 fans.

5:35 — Owen Bush Stadium, Indianapolis, Indiana — 8/17/1986 — American Association — Buffalo Bisons 6 Indianapolis Indians 5 in 20 innings —1507 fans — finished at 12:05 A.M. in the early morning of 8/18.

5:35 - Parry Field, Belmont, State of Western Australia, Australia - 3/17/1989 - Western Australia Grand Series Final - Melville Braves 6 Morley Eagles 2 in 22 innings -1500 fans - finished at 12:50 A.M. in the early morning of 3/18.

5:35 – Joe Davis Stadium, Huntsville, Alabama – 6/10/1990 – Southern League – Huntsville Stars 3 Knoxville Blue Jays 2 in 19 innings, then Huntsville 2 Knoxville 0 in 2:05 and 7 innings – finished at 2:10 A.M. in the early morning of 6/11.

5:35 — Municipal Memorial (later GPU, then FirstEnergy) Stadium, Reading, Pennsylvania — 6/14/1998 — Eastern League — Reading Phillies 6 Trenton Thunder 5 in 19 innings — 7043 fans finished at 12:40 A.M. in the early morning of 6/15.

5:35 — Simmons Field, Kenosha, Wisconsin — 6/17/1998 — Northwoods League — Austin Southern Minny Stars at Kenosha Kroakers, then Austin at Kenosha in 17 innings.

5:35 — Jackie Robinson Stadium, Los Angeles, California — 2/27/2008 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — University of California at Los Angeles Bruins 5 University of California at Santa Barbara Gauchos 4 in 13 innings — 437 fans — finished at 11:40 P.M.

5:35 — Turner Field, Atlanta, Georgia — 7/6/2008 — National League — rain delay 1:50 at start, Braves 7 Astros 6 in 17 innings — 24,169 fans — finished at 9:00 P.M.

5:35 – Estadio (Stadium) Tetelo Vargas, San Pedro de Marcoris, Dominican –10/29/2008 – Winter League – Gigantes (Giants) del Cibao 11 Orientales Estrellas (Oriental Stars) 7 in 13 innings.

5:35 – Estadio (Stadium) Tetelo Vargas, San Pedro de Marcoris, Dominican –11/16/2008 – Winter League – Orientales Estrellas (Oriental Stars) 7 Escogido Leones Rojos (Red Lions) 6 in 10 innings. 5:34 — Camden Yards, Baltimore, Maryland — 5/22/1993 — American League — Orioles 5 Brewers 4 in 14 innings — 46,177 fans — finished at 1:09 A.M. in the early morning of 5/2.

5:34 — Camden Yards, Baltimore, Maryland — 5/1/1996 — American League — Yankees 11 Orioles 6 in 15 innings — 47,472 fans — finished at 1:09 A.M. in the early morning of 5/2.

5:34 — Safeco Field, Seattle, Washington — 8/1/ 2000 — American League — Mariners 5 Red Sox 4 in 19 innings — 37,391 fans — finished at 12:39 A.M. in the early morning of 8/2.

5:34 — Municipal Stadium, Greenville, South Carolina — 8/19/2003 — Southern League — Carolina Mudcats 6 Greenville Braves 5 in 15 innings.

5:33 – Dunn Field, Elmira, New York – 6/25/1965– Eastern League – Pittsfield Red Sox 1 Elmira Pioneers 1 in 21 innings – called off at 1:03 A.M. in the early morning of 6/26, then rhubarb delay top 22nd, Pioneers owner argued there was no curfew rule, by the time the league president told the umpires the owner was correct and the game should continue, all the players had showered and gone home, called off at 1:xx A.M. for the second time – 530 fans – finished at 1:03 A.M. in the early morning of 6/26.

5:33 — Waterloo Stadium, Waterloo, Iowa — 5/30/ 1976 — Midwest League — Burlington Bees 4 Waterloo Royals 3 in 22 innings, then Burlington 4 Waterloo 3 in 2:09 and 8 innings — 603 fans —1st game finished at 8:33 P.M., 2nd game finished at 11:12 P.M.

5:33 – Stade Olympique (Olympic Stadium), Montreal, Province of Quebec, Canada – 5/21/1977 – National League – Padres 11 Expos 8 in 21 innings – 16,892 fans, 8000 fans at end –finished at 1:15 A.M. in the early morning of 5/22.

5:33 — Labatt's Park (III), London, Province of Ontario, Canada —?/??/1999 — Frontier League — London Werewolves 31 Dubois County Dragons 6 in 17 innings.

5:33 – Blacktown Olympic Park, Sydney, State of New South Wales, Australia – 4/19/2003 – New South Wales Under 23 Tournament – Queensland 4 New South Wales/Victoria/Capital Territory Combined Academy 3 in 22 innings –120 fans, 200 fans at end – finished at 8:33 P.M.

5:33 – Progressive Field, Cleveland, Ohio – 7/30/2008 – American League – Tigers 14 Indians 12 in 13 innings – 26,596 fans – finished at 12:43 A.M. in the early morning of 7/31.

5:32 — Engel Stadium, Chattanooga, Tennessee — 7/29/1978 — Southern League — Chattanooga Lookouts 3 Savannah Braves 2 in 21 innings.

5:32 — Fort Lauderdale Stadium, Fort Lauderdale, Florida — 5/24/1981 and 5/25/1981— Florida State League — Fort Lauderdale Yankees 1 Tampa Tarpons 0 in 23 innings, suspended after 5:23 and 22 innings — 717 fans, 200 fans at suspension — suspended at 12:53 A.M. in the early morning of 5/25.

5:32 - Royals Stadium, Kansas City, Missouri -

7/17/1991— American League — Royals 9 Orioles 8 in 15 innings — 21,821 fans — finished at 1:07 A.M. in the early morning of 7/18.

5:32 — Busch Stadium (II), St. Louis, Missouri — 4/26/2001— National League — Expos 4 Cardinals 3 in 15 innings — 42,373 fans — finished at 6:37 P.M.

5:31— Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California—8/10/1972 and 8/11/1972— American League—Athletics 5 White Sox 3 in 19 innings, suspended after 5:04 and 17 innings—11,818 fans on 8/10, 16,065 fans on 8/11—suspended at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 8/11.

5:31— Three Rivers Stadium, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania—7/6/1980— National League—Pirates 5 Cubs 4 in 20 innings—25,994 fans—finished at 6:36 P.M.

5:31— Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois — 5/13/ 1981— American League — Indians 4 White Sox 3 in 16 innings — 10,463 fans — finished at 1:08 A.M. in the early morning of 5/14.

5:31—Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California—4/8/1982—American League —Angels 8 Athletics 6 in 16 innings—17,806 fans; 1000 fans at end—finished at 1:09 A.M. in the early morning of 4/9.

5:31— County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin — 7/6/1990 — American League — Angels 9 Brewers 8 in 16 innings — 25,244 fans — finished at 1:06 A.M. in the early morning of 7/7.

5:31—Kingdome, Seattle, Washington — 5/5/1991 — American League — Mariners 5 Yankees 4 in 16 innings — 24,391 fans — finished at 10:36 P.M.

5:31— County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin— 6/30/2000— National League— Cubs 7 Brewers 4 in 15 innings— 30,216 fans—finished at 12:36 A.M. in the early morning of 7/1.

5:31— Wolff Stadium, San Antonio, Texas — 5/26/2001— Texas League — Round Rock Express 5 San Antonio Missions 2 in 17 innings — 4751 fans — finished at 12:36 A.M. in the early morning of 5/27.

5:31— Tainan Stadium, Tainan, Taiwan — 7/1/2007 — Chinese League — Chinatrust Whales 9 Uni-President Lions 9 in 12 innings — 2006 fans — finished at 10:36 P.M.

5:31— Centennial Field, Burlington, Vermont — 7/28/2008 — New York-Pennsylvania League — Vermont Lake Monsters 5 Lowell Spinners 4 in 18 innings — 3113 fans — finished at 12:36 A.M. in the early morning of 7/29.

5:30 – Minster, Ohio – 7/18/1956 – American Legion – St. Mary's 4 Lima 3 in 21 innings.

5:30—Goodland Field, Appleton, Wisconsin— 5/2/1969—Midwest League—Appleton Foxes 8 Decatur Giants 7 in 17 innings—finished at 1:30 A.M. in the early morning of 5/3.

5:30—Barney Tadsen Field, Brownton, Minnesota — 9/9/1971—Minnesota Town Team League — Hector Flyers 4 Stark (later Stark Longhorns) 2 in 20 innings, rain delay 0:20 at start — 200 fans, 150 fans at end — finished at 11:50 P.M.

5:30— Newtown, Pennsylvania — 6/3/1973 — Pennsbury/Bucks County Senior Babe Ruth League — Newtown Lions 2 South Bristol Hawks 1 in 23 innings finished at 7:30 P.M.

5:30— Fairfax City, Virginia — 4/8/1977 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Brockport State College (later State University of New York — Brockport) Golden Eagles 2 George Mason University Patriots 2 in 20 innings, umpires Warner and Madeiros walked off the field at the end because they were too cold (it was 40 degrees), without even telling the coaches, who might have told them umpires did not walk off the field due to cold weather during baseball games played 3/25/1960 at the North Pole and 1/1/1997 at McMurdo Sound in Antarctica — 0 fans at end in stands, but 50 fans at end in cars with heaters on —finished at 8:50 P.M.

5:30—Parc (Park) Victor Gadbois, Montreal, Province of Quebec, Canada—8/30/1981—Ligue Montreal Junior (Montreal Junior League)—St. Leonard Cougars 2 Sud-Ouest (Southwest) 1 in 22 innings finished at 7:30 P.M.

5:30—Arlington Stadium, Arlington, Texas—9/10/ 1988—American League—Rangers 3 Angels 2 in 17 innings—22,972 fans—finished at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 9/11.

5:30—Fair Grounds Field, Shreveport, Louisiana— 5/26/1992—Texas League—Shreveport Captains 3 Wichita Wranglers 2 in 17 innings—5023 fans finished at 7:05 P.M.

5:30- Mercer County Waterfront Park, Trenton, New Jersey - 6/3/1995 - Eastern League - Binghamton Mets 9 Trenton Thunder 8 in 13 innings, rain delay - 7187 fans - finished at 12:39 A.M. in the early morning of 6/4.

5:30—Secaucus or Jersey City, New Jersey — 7/??/ 2001—Little League 10-Year Old District 7 First Round Playoffs—Secaucus 8 Jersey City Lincoln Park 7 in 15 innings.

5:30—Hadlock Field, Portland, Maine—7/2/2006 — Eastern League—Portland Sea Dogs 14 Trenton Thunder 13 in 14 innings—7386 fans—finished at 6:30 P.M.

5:30—Habana, Cuba — 3/27/2007 — Cuban League Playoffs — Sancti Spiritus 2 La Habana Province 1 in 17 innings.

5:29 — Yuanshan Qiuchang (Stadium), Taipei, Taiwan — 7/28/1941— Jiayi Agriculture and Forestry Institute (Jianong) 2 Taipei Industrial School 1 in 25 innings.

5:29 – Candlestick Park, San Francisco, California – 5/23/1970 – National League – Padres 17 Giants 16 in 15 innings –15,536 fans.

5:29 – Astrodome, Houston, Texas – 7/20/1986 – National League – Astros 9 Mets 8 in 15 innings – 23,900 fans.

5:28 – Hook Ball Park, Paducah, Kentucky – 7/8/

1938 — Kentucky-Illinois-Tennessee (Kitty) League — Fulton Eagles 14 Paducah Indians 9 in 20 innings, rhubarb delay top 15th when Fulton Manager Ray Clonts unsuccessfully requested umpires to allow 15minute delay so players could eat some steaks for strength, vote delay top 19th when Paducah Manager Pete Mondino successfully asked umpires to have remaining fans vote whether the game should continue or not — fans voted unanimously that game should continue —finished at 1:45 A.M. in the early morning of 7/9.

5:28 — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 9/1/1993 — American League — Rangers 9 Red Sox 7 in 12 innings — 27,396 fans.

5:28 – Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts – 6/1/ 1997 – American League – Yankees 11 Red Sox 6 in 15 innings – 31,798 fans – finished at 6:33 P.M.

5:28 — Municipal Memorial (later GPU, then FirstEnergy) Stadium, Reading, Pennsylvania — 5/28/1999 — Eastern League — Reading Phillies 15 New Britain Rock Cats 14 in 13 innings — finished at 1:07 A.M. in the early morning of 5/29.

5:27 — Korakuen Kyujo (Stadium), Tokyo, Japan — 7/29/1962 — Tokyo Industrial League — Nippon Beer Company 1 Denden Kinki Company 0 in 22 innings.

5:27 — Memorial Stadium, Baltimore, Maryland — 8/25/1968 — American League — Orioles 3 Red Sox 2 in 18 innings —12,714 fans — finished at 12:57 A.M. in the early morning of 8/26.

5:27 — Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York — 8/25/1976 — American League — Yankees 5 Twins 4 in 19 innings — 24,351 fans — finished at 1:36 A.M. in the early morning of 8/26.

5:27 — Tropicana Field, St. Petersburg, Florida — 10/11/2008 — American League Championship Series — Rays 9 Red Sox 8 in 11 innings — 34,904 fans finished at 1:35 A.M. in the early morning of 10/12.

5:26 — Cleveland Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio — 9/21/1989 — American League — Indians 5 Angels 4 in 17 innings — 4735 fans — finished at 1:01 A.M. in the early morning of 9/22.

5:26 — Whataburger Field, Corpus Christi, Texas — 4/26/2007 — Texas League — Corpus Christi Hooks 7 Midland RockHounds 6 in 18 innings — 6729 fans — finished at 12:31 A.M. in the early morning of 4/27.

5:26 — Newman Outdoor Field, Fargo, North Dakota — 4/12/2008 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — 3:40 rain delay at start, Southern Utah University Thunderbirds 12 North Dakota State University Bison 5 in 17 innings in 1st game, 2nd game canceled —181 fans —finished at 10:06 P.M.

5:26 – War Memorial Stadium, Hampton, Virginia – 6/7/2008 – Coastal Plain League – Edenton Steamers 11 Peninsula Pilots 10 in 14 innings – 1489 fans – finished at 12:31 A.M. in the early morning of 6/8.

5:25 – Henderson Stadium (I), Lethbridge, Province of Alberta, Canada – 7/25/1964 – Western Canada League – Saskatoon Blues 6 Lethbridge Cardinals 5 in 20 innings –150 fans. 5:25 – V.J. Keefe Stadium, San Antonio, Texas – 7/3/1971– Dixie Association – Arkansas Travelers 12 San Antonio Missions 9 in 19 innings –1074 fans – finished at 1:25 A.M. in the early morning of 7/4.

5:25 — San Diego (later Jack Murphy, then Qualcomm) Stadium, San Diego, California — 9/24/1971— National League — Astros 2 Padres 1 in 21 innings, then Padres 5 Astros 4 in 2:14, fog delay 0:14 bottom 9th — 6339 fans, 100 fans at end —finished at 2:29 A.M. in the early morning of 9/25.

5:25 – Bringhurst Field, Alexandria, Louisiana – 4/28/1973 – Texas League – Memphis Blues 12 Alexandria Aces 9 in 19 innings –1520 fans – finished at 12:55 A.M. in the early morning of 4/29.

5:25 — Smith-Wills Stadium, Jackson, Mississippi — 6/28/1985 — Texas League — Jackson Mets 3 Tulsa Drillers 2 in 16 innings —1822 fans — finished at 12:55 A.M. in the early morning of 6/29.

5:25 — Rickwood Field, Birmingham, Alabama — 5/22/2005 and 5/23/2005 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Southern University Jaguars 6 Prairie View A&M University Panthers 5 in 15 innings in 2nd game, 0:45 gunfire delay bottom 15th, suspended after 5:15 and 14½ innings; Southern 6 Prairie View A&M 0 in 2:37 in 1st game — 314 fans for first game; 187 fans for second game — 2nd game suspended at 11:25 P.M.; finished at 8:10 A.M. on 5/23.

5:25 — Petersburg Sports Complex, Petersburg, Virginia — 7/11/2007 — Coastal Plain League — Peninsula Pilots 9 Petersburg Generals 5 in 17 innings —120 fans —finished at 2:20 A.M. in the early morning of 7/12.

5:24 — Harbor Yard, Bridgeport, Connecticut — 6/8/2004 — Atlantic League — Camden Riversharks 7 Bridgeport Bluefish 6 in 17 innings — finished at 12:29 A.M. in the early morning of 6/9.

5:23 — Paterson Field, Montgomery, Alabama — 7/31/1965 — Southern League — Columbus Confederate Yankees 6 Montgomery Rebels 6 in 19 innings finished at 1:23 A.M. in the early morning of 8/1.

5:23 — Estadio (Stadium) Teodoro Mariscal, Mazatlan, Mexico — 2/?/1989 — Caribbean World Series — Zulia Aguilas (Eagles) (Venezuela) defeated Escogido Leones Rojos (Red Lions) (Dominican) in 16 innings.

5:23 — Memorial Stadium, Baltimore, Maryland — 8/12/1989 — American League — Red Sox 10 Orioles 8 in 13 innings — 50,865 fans — finished at 12:58 A.M. in the early morning of 8/13.

5:23 — Cleveland Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio — 9/ 9/1989 — American League — Blue Jays 7 Indians 5 in 16 innings — 15,154 fans — finished at 12:58 A.M. in the early morning of 9/10.

5:23 — Anaheim Stadium (later Edison International Field, then Angel Stadium), Anaheim, California — 8/9/1992 — American League — White Sox 12 Angels 8 in 14 innings — 25,401 fans — finished at 6:28 P.M.

5:23 – KingDome, Seattle, Washington – 7/30/ 1998 – American League – Indians 9 Mariners 8 in 17 innings – 31,081 fans – finished at 12:28 A.M. in the early morning of 7/31.

5:23 – USA Stadium, Millington, Tennessee – 5/26/2001– National Junior Collegiate Athletic Association – Bevill State Community College Bears 6 Iowa Central Community College Tritons 5 in 17 innings – 296 fans – finished at 12:53 A.M. in the early morning of 5/27.

5:23 – Louisville Slugger Field, Louisville, Kentucky – 6/6/2003 – International League – rain delay 2:15 at start, Louisville Bats 4 Richmond Braves 3 in 18 innings – 9892 fans, 500 fans at end – finished at 2:53 A.M. in the early morning of 6/7.

5:22 – Fans Field, Decatur, Illinois – 8/20/1968 – Midwest League – Burlington Bees 9 Decatur Commodores 6 in 18 innings.

5:22 – Stade (Stadium) Olympique (Olympic), Montreal, Province of Quebec, Canada – 4/19/1986 – National League – Cardinals 9 Expos 6 in 17 innings –14,188 fans – finished at 6:57 P.M.

5:22 — J.P. Riddle Stadium, Fayetteville, North Carolina — 7/10/1988 — South Atlantic (Sally) League — Charleston (WV) Wheelers 7 Fayetteville Generals 5 in 21 innings — 843 fans — finished at 12:52 A.M. in the early morning of 7/11.

5:22 — Cheney Stadium, Tacoma, Washington — 4/28/1989 — Pacific Coast League — Tacoma Tigers 4 Las Vegas Stars 3 in 19 innings — 3693 fans —finished at 1:00 A.M. in the early morning of 4/29.

5:22 – Shea Stadium, New York, New York –10/ 7/2000 – National League Division Series – Mets 3 Giants 2 in 13 innings – 56,270 fans.

5:22 — Northcut Field at Westgate Park, Dothan, Alabama — 3/1/2003 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Troy State University Trojans 8 Kansas State University Wildcats 7 in 18 innings, rain delay 1:40 - 273 fans, 50 fans at end —finished at 2:42 A.M. in the early morning of 3/2.

5:22 – Miller Park, Milwaukee, Wisconsin – 4/22/ 2004 – National League – Diamondbacks 11 Brewers 9 in 15 innings –13,879 fans – finished at 6:27 P.M.

5:22 — Shea Stadium, New York, New York — 5/ 23/2006 — National League — Mets 9 Phillies 8 in 16 innings — 28,958 fans — finished at 12:27 A.M. in the early morning of 5/24.

5:22 — Baseball Grounds, Jacksonville, Florida — 8/12/2006 and 8/13/2006 — Southern League — Jacksonville Suns 5 West Tennessee Diamond Jaxx 2 in 20 innings, rain delay, 2nd rain delay top 4th, suspended after 0:55 top 4th; then West Tennessee 4 Jacksonville 1 in 1:44 and 7 innings — 6280 fans on 8/12; 2907 fans on 8/13 — finished at 7:32 P.M.; 2nd game finished at 9:46 P.M.

5:22 — Mokdong Yagu-jang (Stadium), Seoul, South Korea — 6/12/2008 — Korean Organization — Woori Heroes 2 Kia Tigers 1 in 14 innings, 0:55 rain delay — 6900 fans; 900 fans at end —finished at 12:49 A.M. in the early morning of 6/13.

5:21-Shea Stadium, New York, New York-

4/28/1985 — National League — Mets 5 Pirates 4 in 18 innings — 36,423 fans.

5:21—Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California— 6/27/1989—National League—Padres 5 Dodgers 3 in 17 innings—37,385 fans—finished at 12:56 A.M. in the early morning of 6/28.

5:21— Taejon Yagu-jang (Stadium), Taejon, South Korea — 4/12/1997 — Korean Organization — Ob (Oriental Brewing) Bears 4 Hanhwa Eagles 2 in 13 innings—finished at 11:51 P.M.

5:21—Estadio (Stadium) Monterrey, Monterrey, State of Monterrey, Mexico — 6/22/2006 — Mexican League — Laguna Vaqueros (Cowboys) 6 Monterrey Sultanes (Sultans) 4 in 16 innings, rain delay 2:16 at start —15,635 fans; only 100 fans at end —finished at 3:53 A.M. in the early morning of 6/23.

5:21—Coors Field, Denver, Colorado — 8/15/2006 — National League — Diamondbacks 2 Rockies 1 in 18 innings — 22,076 fans —finished at 12:26 A.M. in the early morning of 8/16.

5:20— Estadio (Stadium) Manuel "Ciclon" Echeverria, Navojoa, State of Baja California, Mexico — 1/2/1979 — Mexican Pacific League — Navojoa Mayos 1 Mexicali Aguilas (Eagles) 0 in 20 innings in 2nd game; Mexicali vs. Navojoa in 1st game.

5:20—Thunderbird Park, Cedar City, Utah— 5/2/1981—National Association of Intercollegiate Athletics—Mesa State College Mavericks 9 New Mexico Highlands University Cowboys 8 in 20 innings, then Southern Utah State College Thunderbirds 5 Mesa State 4.

5:20—Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California— 9/13/1982—National League—Dodgers 4 Padres 3 in 16 innings—37,512 fans.

5:20—Fair Grounds Field, Shreveport, Louisiana— 4/22/1986—Texas League—Shreveport Captains 7 Tulsa Drillers 5 in 17 innings—1683 fans—finished at 12:50 A.M. in the early morning of 4/23.

5:20 – Exhibition Stadium, Toronto, Province of Ontario, Canada – 5/17/1988 – American League – Rangers 7 Blue Jays 6 in 14 innings – 25,170 fans.

5:20—County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin— 7/8/2000—AL at NL—Tigers 4 Brewers 2 in 15 innings—23,872 fans—finished at 12:25 A.M. in the early morning of 7/9.

5:20—John Kurtz Field, Milledgeville, Georgia 3/4/2006—National Collegiate Athletic Association—Georgia College and State University (gcsu) Bobcats 2 Shippensburg University Red Raiders 1 in 2:26, then gcsu 6 Shippensburg 5 in 17 innings—407 fans; 175 fans at beginning of 2nd game—1st game finished at 3:26 P.M.; 2nd game finished at 9:35 P.M.

5:20— Melalucha Field, Idaho Falls, Idaho — 6/23/ 2007 — Pioneer League — Idaho Falls Chukars 5 Orem Owlz 4 in 17 innings — 300 fans at end —finished at 12:36 A.M. in the early morning of 6/24.

5:20—Hawks Field, Lincoln, Nebraska — 5/9/2008 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Texas Agricultural and Mechanical (A&M) University Aggies 6 University of Nebraska Cornhuskers 3 – 8708 fans – game finished at 12:00 Midnight.

5:19 — Bee Hive (later Braves Field), Boston, Massachusetts — 7/5/1940 — National League — Dodgers 6 Bees (later Braves) 2 in 20 innings.

5:19 – R.F.K. Stadium, Washington, D.C. – 6/4/ 1971 – American League – rain delay 0:17 at start, Athletics 6 Senators 3 in 21 innings – 6159 fans – finished at 1:36 A.M. in the early morning of 6/5.

5:19 — Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California — 7/3/1983 — American League

Rangers 16 Athletics 4 in 15 innings – 20,697 fans.
5:19 – Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois – 7/14/1997
National League – Astros 9 Cubs 7 in 15 innings – 27,803 fans – finished at 12:24 A.M. in the early morning of 7/15.

5:19 — Frank Sancet Field, Tucson, Arizona — 4/5/ 2002 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Stanford University Cardinal 5 University of Arizona Wildcats 4 in 18 innings.

5:19 — Turner Field, Atlanta, Georgia — 5/7/2002 — National League — Dodgers 6 Braves 5 in 16 innings — 26,914 fans — finished at 12:24 A.M. in the early morning of 5/8.

5:19 — Riverside Stadium, Harrisburg, Pennsylvania — 6/1/2004 — Eastern League — Trenton Thunder 6 Harrisburg Senators 4 in 16 innings, rain delay 0:20 top 2nd —1927 fans; 100 fans at end —finished at 12:14 A.M. in the early morning of 6/2.

5:19 — Patriots Point Field, Charleston, South Carolina — 2/26/2006 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — College of Charleston Cougars 7 University of Virginia Cavaliers 6 in 17 innings — 616 fans — finished at 7:20 P.M.

5:19 — Estadio (Stadium) Kulkucan, Merida, State of Yucatan, Mexico — 8/27/2006 — Mexican League — Monterry Sultanes (Sultans) 2 Yucatan Leones (Lions) in 14 innings — finished at 1:19 A.M. in the early morning of 8/28.

5:19 – Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts – 10/5/2008 – American League Division Series – Angels 5 Red Sox 4 in 12 innings – 39,067 fans – finished at 12:48 A.M. in the early morning of 10/6.

5:18 — Memorial Stadium, Baltimore, Maryland — 6/4/1967 — American League — Orioles 7 Senators 5 in 19 innings —12,612 fans —finished at 6:23 P.M.

5:18 — Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California — 4/11/1982 — American League — Mariners 6 Athletics 3 in 16 innings, rain delay 1:12 bottom 10th, then Athletics 3 Mariners 1 in 2:32 — 19,003 fans — 1st game finished at 7:35 P.M.; 2nd game finished at 10:37 P.M.

5:18 — Beehive Stadium, New Britain, Connecticut — 5/26/1988 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Clemson University Tigers 3 Fordham University Rams 2 in 19 innings — 404 fans — finished at 5:18 P.M.

5:18 - Buck Shaw Stadium, Santa Clara, Califor-

nia — 4/27/2004 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Stanford University Cardinal 12 Santa Clara University Broncos 8 in 14 innings — 426 fans finished at 11:21 P.M.

5:17 — Disch Field, Austin, Texas — 5/22/1961 — Texas League — Amarillo Gold Sox 8 Austin Senators 7 in 16 innings — 508 fans — finished at 1:31 A.M. in the early morning of 5/23.

5:17 — Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California — 9/6/1969 — American League — Twins 8 Athletics 6 in 18 innings —17,599 fans finished at 6:22 P.M.

5:17 — Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan — 5/26/ 1979 — American League — Orioles 7 Tigers 5 in 16 innings —14,583 fans.

5:17 – Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois – 5/10/1979 and 7/23/1979 – National League – Cubs 9 Reds 8 in 18 innings, suspended after 3:11 and 9 innings so Cubs could catch 6:05 P.M. flight to Houston, which caused riot among Cubs fans in stands requiring 7 police cars and 3 paddywagons – 9164 fans on 5/10; 36,993 fans on 7/23 – suspended at 4:49 P.M.

5:17 — Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California — 5/23/1983 — American League — Athletics 5 Brewers 4 in 17 innings — 24,029 fans.

5:17 – Jacobs Field, Cleveland, Ohio – 9/3/2000 – American League – Indians 12 Orioles 11 in 13 innings – 42,630 fans – finished at 6:22 P.M.

5:17 — George Page Stadium, Los Angeles; Benedetti Diamond, San Francisco, California — 3/24/2002and 5/10/2002 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — University of San Francisco Dons 25 Loyola Marymount University Lions 21 in 10 innings; suspended after 5:10 and 9½ innings in Los Angeles on 3/24; completed in San Francisco on 5/10— 498 fans on 3/24; 376 fans on 5/10— suspended at 6:10 P.M. on 3/24; finished at 2:07 P.M. on 5/10.

5:17 - Wolff Stadium, San Antonio, Texas -9/1/2002 - Texas League - Round Rock Express 12 San Antonio Missions 5 in 18 innings - 5002 fans finished at 12:22 A.M. in the early morning of 9/2.

5:17 — Citizens Bank Park, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 8/26/2004 — National League — Phillies 8 Mets 7 in 13 innings — 45,204 fans — finished at 12:22 A.M. in the early morning of 8/27.

5:16 — Miami Stadium, Miami, Florida — 4/22/ 1956 — International League — Rochester Red Wings 10 Miami Marlins 6 in 18 innings, then Miami 3 Rochester 2 in 2:03 and 7 innings — 3486 fans — 2nd game finished at 9:06 P.M.

5:16 – Flamingo Park, Miami Beach, Florida – 4/23/1970 – Florida High School League – Miami High School Stingarees 1 Hialeah High School Thoroughbreds 0 in 24 innings; then Miami Coral Park High School Rams 9 Miami High School 0 in 2:44 and 7 innings – 500 fans; 1000 fans at end –1st game finished at 8:16 P.M.; 2nd game finished at 11:44 P.M. 5:16 — Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 5/4/1973 — National League — Phillies 5 Braves 4 in 20 innings —10,158 fans — finished at 12:51 A.M. in the early morning of 5/5.

5:16 — Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California — 9/6/1987 — National League — Dodgers 3 Mets 2 in 16 innings — 29,600 fans — finished at 6:51 P.M.

5:16 — Candlestick (later 3-Com) Park, San Francisco, California — 5/2/1995 — National League — Giants 4 Dodgers 3 in 15 innings —16,099 fans —finished at 6:21 P.M.

5:16 — Tropicana Field, St. Petersburg, Florida — 8/4/2000 — American League — Orioles 10 Devil Rays 9 in 15 innings —15,590 fans —finished at 12:21 A.M. in the early morning of 8/5.

5:16 - L.P. Frans Stadium, Hickory, North Carolina - 8/13/2000 - South Atlantic (Sally) League - Asheville Tourists 4 Hickory Crawdads 3 in 20 innings -1959 fans -finished at 12:16 A.M. in the early morning of 8/14.

5:16 — Qualcomm Stadium, San Diego, California — 6/19/2001— National League — Padres 4 Giants 3 in 15 innings — 23,033 fans — finished at 12:21 A.M. in the early morning of 6/20.

5:16 – Smokies Park, Sevierville, Tennessee – 5/23/2006 – Southern League – Chattanooga Lookouts 9 Tennessee Smokies 5 in 16 innings – 2687 fans.

5:16 — Estadio (Stadium) Angel Flores, Culiacan, State of Sinaloa, Mexico —11/26/2006 — Mexican Pacific League — Culiacan Tomateros (Tomato Growers) 4 Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 3 in 17 innings; then Culican 7 Mazatlan 0 in 1:58 and 7 innings.

5:16 — Jubilee Field, Yorkton, Province of Saskatchewan, Canada — 6/19/2008 and 6/22/2008 — Western Major League — Sherwood Park Dukes 5 Yorkton Cardinals 3 in 20 innings, rain delay 0:20 top 12th, suspended after 3:13 and 11 innings — 475 fans on 6/19; 225 fans when suspended; 316 fans on 6/22 — suspended at 10:38 P.M.; finished at 4:08 P.M.

5:15 — Dugdale Park, Seattle, Washington — 6/6/ 1924 — Pacific Coast League — Seattle Indians 5 Vernon Tigers 4 in 19 innings.

5:15 – East Hartford, Connecticut – 5/14/1933 – Amateur – East Hartford Red Sox 5 New Britain Ramblers 4 in 20 innings.

5:15 — Clintonville, Wisconsin — 6/15/1939 — Northern State League — Clintonville Four Wheel Drive Truckers 1 Two Rivers Polar Bears 0 in 21 innings — finished at 1:45 A.M. in the early morning of 6/16.

5:15 — Bee Hive (later Braves Field), Boston, Massachusetts — 6/27/1939 — National League — Dodgers 2 Bees (later Braves) 2 in 23 innings — 2457 fans.

5:15 — Municipal Park, Sanford, Florida — 5/27/ 1948 — Florida State League — Sanford Giants 8 Palatka Azaleas 7 in 21 innings — finished at 1:15 A.M. in the early morning of 5/28.

5:15 — Red Wing (later Silver) Stadium, Rochester, New York — 8/13/1950 — International League — Rochester Red Wings 3 Jersey City Giants 2 in 22 innings – 5863 fans – finished at 6:45 P.M.

5:15 — Municipal Stadium, Jamestown or Maple City Park, Hornell, New York — 5/23/1956 — New York-Pennsylvania League — Jamestown Falcons 25 Hornell Dodgers 21 in extra innings — finished at 1:15 A.M. in the early morning of 5/24.

5:15 — John Euless Park, Fresno, California — 9/1/1965 — California League — Fresno Giants 10 Bakersfield Bears 9 in 18 innings — 296 fans, 75 fans at end —finished at 1:00 A.M. in the early morning of 9/2.

5:15 — Municipal Memorial (later Gpu, then FirstEnergy) Stadium, Reading, Pennsylvania — 9/4/1968 — Eastern League — Reading Phillies 8 Binghamton Triplets 7 in 19 innings — finished at 1:15 A.M. in the early morning of 9/5.

5:15 – Jack Murphy (later Qualcomm) Stadium, San Diego, California – 8/15/1990 – National League – Expos 5 Padres 3 in 17 innings –14,271 fans – finished at 12:50 A.M. in the early morning of 8/16.

5:15 — Eagle Field, Tallahassee, Florida — 3/17/ 1999 — National Junior Collegiate Athletic Association — Tallahassee Community College Eagles 4 Okaloosa-Walton Community College Raiders 3 in 18 innings — 225 fans — finished at 10:15 P.M.

5:15 — Tropicana Field, St. Petersburg, Florida — 4/1/2003 — American League — Red Sox 9 Devil Rays 8 in 16 innings —11,524 fans — finished at 12:20 A.M. in the early morning of 4/2.

5:15 — Regional Park, Pine Bluff, Arkansas — 4/8/2004 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Prairie View Agricultural and Mechanical (A&M) University Panthers at University of Arkansas at Pine Bluff Golden Lions; then Pine Bluff 13 Prairie View A&M 12 in 14 innings — 85 fans — finished at 9:30 P.M.

5:15 — Shea Stadium, New York, New York — 9/11/ 2004 — National League — Phillies 11 Mets 9 in 13 innings — 21,718 fans.

5:15 — Dickey-Stephens Park, North Little Rock, Arkansas — 6/13/2008 — Texas League — Tulsa Oilers 5 Arkansas Travelers 4 in 16 innings — 5621 fans — finished at 12:25 A.M. in the early morning of 6/14.

5:14 - D.C. (later Robert F. Kennedy) Stadium, Washington, D.C. - 8/17/1967 - American League - Indians 8 Senators 3 in 16 innings <math>-12,488 fans; 2000 fans at end -finished at 1:21 A.M. in the early morning of 8/18.

5:14 — County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin — 7/13/1979 — American League — Brewers 4 Indians 3 in 17 innings —18,524 fans — finished at 12:49 A.M. in the early morning of 7/14.

5:14 — Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois — 9/2/1986 and 9/3/1986 — National League — Astros 8 Cubs 7 in 18 innings, suspended after 14½ innings —10,501 fans on 9/2; 7051 fans on 9/3.

5:14 — Smith-Wills Stadium, Jackson, Mississippi — 5/17/1989 — Texas League — San Antonio Missions 2 Jackson Mets 1 in 16 innings –1043 fans – finished at 12:19 A.M. in the early morning of 5/18.

5:14 — Jack Murphy (later Qualcomm) Stadium, San Diego, California — 6/22/1996 — National League — Cubs 9 Padres 6 in 16 innings — 51,917 fans finished at 12:19 A.M. in the early morning of 6/23.

5:14 — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 6/26/ 1996 — American League — Red Sox 6 Indians 4 in 15 innings — 33,727 fans — finished at 12:19 A.M. in the early morning of 6/27.

5:14 — Bank One Ballpark (later Chase Field), Phoenix, Arizona — 4/13/1999 — National League — Diamondbacks 7 Dodgers 6 in 16 innings — 31,197 fans — finished at 12:19 A.M. in the early morning of 4/14.

5:14 — Hawkinson Ford Field, Crestwood, Illinois — 8/21/2000 — Frontier League — Cook County Cheetahs (later Windy City ThunderBolts) 6 Evansville Otters 5 in 17 innings —1137 fans —finished at 12:19 A.M. in the early morning of 8/22.

5:14 — Kauffman Stadium (II), Kansas City, Missouri — 6/10/2002 — NL at AL — Marlins 15 Royals 8 in 14 innings — 13,493 fans — finished at 12:19 A.M. in the early morning of 6/11.

5:14 — Wolff Stadium, San Antonio, Texas — 6/18/ 2005 — Texas League — San Antonio Missions 2 Midland RockHounds 1 in 17 innings — 4783 fans finished at 12:19 A.M. in the early morning of 6/19.

5:14 — Legends Field, Tampa, Florida — 4/17/2007 — Florida State League — Clearwater Threshers 4 Tampa Yankees 1 in 20 innings — 706 fans — ended at 12:14 A.M. in the early morning of 4/18.

5:14 — Zephyr Field, Metairie, Louisiana — 5/13/ 2008 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Louisiana State University Tigers 7 University of New Orleans Privateers 6 in 15 innings — 5626 fans finished at 12:14 A.M.

5:14 — Estadio (Stadium) Tetelo Vargas, San Pedro de Marcoris, Dominican —11/9/2008 — Winter League — Gigantes (Giants) del Cibao 5 Orientales Estrellas (Oriental Stars) 2 in extra innings.

5:13 — Golden Park, Columbus, Georgia — 4/24/ 1954 — South Atlantic (Sally) League — Macon Peaches 7 Columbus Cardinals 5 in 20 innings finished at 1:13 A.M. in the early morning of 4/25.

5:13 — Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois — 5/2/1956 — National League — Giants 6 Cubs 5 in 17 innings — 2389 fans.

5:13 — Colt Stadium, Houston, Texas — 4/25/1962 — National League — Cardinals 5 Colt .45's (later Astros) 5 in 17 innings —17,265 fans — finished at 1:15 A.M. in the early morning of 4/26.

5:13 — Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California — 9/19/1964 — National League — Dodgers 4 Phillies 3 in 16 innings — 27,146 fans — finished at 1:15 A.M. in the early morning of 9/20.

5:13 — Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 8/21/1980 — National League — Phillies 9 Padres 8 in 17 innings — 36,201 fans — finished at 6:48 P.M. 5:13 — Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois — 5/23/1987 — National League — Cubs 7 Braves 6 in 16 innings — 33,225 fans —finished at 6:33 P.M.

5:13 — Memorial Stadium, Fort Wayne, Indiana — 4/7/1995 — Midwest League — Fort Wayne Wizards 5 Michigan Battle Cats 4 in 18 innings — 3260 fans; 100 fans at end — finished at 12:21 A.M. in the early morning of 4/8.

5:13 — Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York — 10/4/1995 — American League Division Series — Yankees 7 Mariners 5 in 15 innings — 57,126 fans finished at 1:20 A.M. in the early morning of 10/5.

5:13 — Dunn Tire Park, Buffalo, New York — 9/9/ 2001–International League playoff semifinals — Scranton/Wilkes-Barre Red Barons 6 Buffalo Bisons 2 in 19 innings — 2788 fans — finished at 11:17 P.M.

5:13 – Busch Stadium (II), St. Louis, Missouri – 8/23/2002 – National League – Phillies 5 Cardinals 4 in 14 innings – 35,724 fans.

5:13 — Samuel L. Plumeri Sr. Field at Mercer County Waterfront Park, Trenton, New Jersey — 6/7/2007 — Eastern League — Trenton Thunder 5 Binghamton Mets 4 in 14 innings — 6345 fans; 75 fans at end —finished at 12:22 A.M. in the early morning of 6/8.

5:12 — Arlington Stadium, Arlington, Texas — 9/17/ 1977 — American League — Rangers 5 Twins 4 in 17 innings —13,163 fans —finished at 12:47 A.M. in the early morning of 9/18.

5:12 - Dudley Field, El Paso, Texas - 8/14/1979 - Texas League - El Paso Diablos 11 Midland Cubs 10 in 18 innings, rain delay 0:44, 2nd rain delay 0:46 - 1664 fans - finished at 2:20 A.M. in the early morning of 8/15.

5:12 — Astrodome, Houston, Texas — 7/7/1985 — National League — Expos 6 Astros 3 in 19 innings — 14,493 fans — finished at 12:47 A.M. in the early morning of 7/8.

5:12 – V.J. Keefe Stadium, San Antonio, Texas – 7/6/1989 – Texas League – San Antonio Missions 2 Tulsa Drillers 1 in 16 innings – 3129 fans – finished at 12:17 A.M. in the early morning of 7/7.

5:12 — SkyDome, Toronto, Province of Ontario, Canada — 8/8/1991 — American League — Tigers 4 Blue Jays 0 in 14 innings — 50,307 fans — finished at 12:17 A.M. in the early morning of 8/9.

5:11—Shibe Park (later Connie Mack Stadium), Philadelphia, Pennsylvania—6/28/1961—National League—Giants 7 Phillies 7 in 15 innings—11,597 fans—finished at 1:15 A.M. in the early morning of 6/29.

5:11—Connecticut—6/7/1964—Connecticut High School Class A playoffs—Waterbury Crosby High School Old Ivy (later Bulldogs) 6 West Haven Notre Dame High School Green Knights 5 in 19 innings.

5:11—Shea Stadium, New York, New York and Metropolitan Stadium, Bloomington, Minnesota — 7/12/1975 and 7/13/1975 and 7/19/1975 — American League — Yankees 8 Twins 7 in 16 innings, rain delay 0:30 bottom 5th, suspended after 13½ innings in New York, rained out 7/13 in New York, finally completed 7/19 in Bloomington —13,573 fans on 7/12 in New York, 6000 fans at suspension, 37,602 fans on 7/19 in Bloomington — suspended at 1:06 A.M. in the early morning of 7/13.

5:11— Three Rivers Stadium, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania -7/13/1984 — National League — Pirates 8 Giants 2 in 2:37, then Pirates 4 Giants 3 in 18 innings, fireworks show started at 1:45 A.M. — 22,167 fans, 10,000 fans at end — finished at 1:32 A.M. in the early morning of 7/14.

5:11—Al Lang Field (II), St. Petersburg, Florida — 6/8/1993 — Florida State League — St. Petersburg Cardinals 4 Lakeland Tigers 3 in 20 innings —1229 fans finished at 12:46 A.M. in the early morning of 6/9.

5:11—County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin— 8/24/1993—American League—Brewers 9 Athletics 2 in 3:01, then Brewers 7 Athletics 6 in 13 innings, brawl delay 0:10 top 10th—16,570 fans—finished at 1:55 A.M. in the early morning of 8/25.

5:10—Triplets (later Johnson) Field, Johnson City, New York—5/18/1952—Eastern League—Binghamton Triplets 4 Scranton Miners 3 in 20 innings, then Scranton 4 Binghamton 0.

5:10—Sioux Falls Stadium (later Howard Wood Field), Sioux Falls, South Dakota—7/22/1964—Basin League—Sioux Falls Packers 3 Pierre Cowboys 2 in 19 innings—777 fans—finished at 12:40 A.M. in the early morning of 7/23.

5:10—Turnpike (later Arlington) Stadium, Arlington, Texas—6/17/1965—Texas League—Austin Braves 2 Dallas-Fort Worth Spurs 1 in 25 innings— 2546 fans—finished at 12:40 A.M. in the early morning of 6/18.

5:10—Ray Winder Field, Little Rock, Arkansas— 4/19/1968—Texas League—Arkansas Travelers 13 Memphis Blues 2 in 2:12 and 7 innings, then Memphis 6 Arkansas 3 in 16 innings—875 fans—finished at 2:22 A.M. in the early morning of 4/20.

5:10-Barney Tadsen Field, Brownton, Minnesota -7/31/1969 – Town Team League – Brownton 6 New Ulm Kaiserhoff 5 in 18 innings – finished at 1:10 A.M. in the early morning of 8/1.

5:10—University Field, Amherst, Massachusetts— 5/13/1972—National Collegiate Athletic Association—University of Connecticut Huskies 9 University of Massachusetts Minutemen 3 in 20 innings.

5:10—Candlestick (later 3Com) Park, San Francisco, California—6/21/1983—National League— Reds 6 Giants 5 in 16 innings—8943 fans—finished at 1:25 A.M. in the early morning of 6/22.

5:10—Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois—8/11/1992 — National League—Expos 3 Cubs 2 in 17 innings— 31,528 fans—finished at 6:45 P.M.

5:10—Mercer County Waterfront Park, Trenton, New Jersey—8/18/1995—Eastern League—Trenton Thunder 6 New Haven Ravens 5 in 17 innings.

5:10-Busch Stadium (II), St. Louis, Missouri-

6/6/1998 — National League — Giants 5 Cardinals 4 in 14 innings — 47,333 fans.

5:10—Clear Channel Stadium, Lancaster, California—7/31/2002—California League—Lancaster Jethawks 15 San Bernardino Stampede 14 in 15 innings finished at 12:15 A.M. in the early morning of 8/1.

5:10—Comerica Park, Detroit, Michigan—6/1/ 2003—American League—Yankees 10 Tigers 9 in 17 innings—44,095 fans—finished at 6:15 P.M.

5:10—Hank Aaron Stadium, Mobile, Alabama— 7/20/2005—Southern League—Mobile BayBears 2 Huntsville Stars 1 in 19 innings—1918 fans.

5:10—Wolff Stadium, San Antonio, Texas — 4/17/2008 — Texas League — San Antonio Missions 7 Midland RockHounds 6 in 14 innings — 4974 fans finished at 12:15 A.M. in the early morning of 4/18.

5:09 — Arlington Stadium, Arlington, Texas — 7/1/ 1979 — American League — Athletics 13 Rangers 12 in 15 innings — 16,819 fans — finished at 12:44 A.M. in the early morning of 7/2.

5:09 — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 4/27/1989 — American League — White Sox 3 Red Sox 1 in 16 innings — 23,830 fans — finished at 12:14 A.M. in the early morning of 4/28.

5:09 – US Cellular Field, Chicago, Illinois – 8/16/2005 – American League – Twins 9 White Sox 4 in 16 innings – 34,533 fans – finished at 12:14 A.M. in the early morning of 8/17.

5:09 - Fieldcrest Cannon Stadium, Kannapolis, North Carolina - 9/7/2005 - South Atlantic (Sally) League playoffs - Kannapolis Intimidators 4 Charleston (Sc) RiverDogs 3 in 21 innings - 749 fans; 300 fans at end - finished at 12:14 A.M. in the early morning of 9/8.

5:09 — Goss Stadium at Coleman Field, Corvallis, Oregon — 4/25/2006 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Portland University Pilots 20 Oregon State University Beavers 13 in 12 innings —1066 fans finished at 9:14 P.M.

5:09 — Minute Maid Park, Houston, Texas — 7/7/ 2007 — National League — Mets 5 Astros 3 in 17 innings — 41,596 fans — finished at 11:14 P.M.

5:09 — Shea Stadium, New York, New York — 7/26/2008 — National League — Cardinals 10 Mets 8 in 14 innings — 53,799 fans — finished at 12:19 A.M. in the early morning of 7/27.

5:08 — Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California — 8/24/1969 — American League — Athletics 9 Orioles 0 in 2:31, then Athletics 9 Orioles 8 in 18 innings — 24,970 fans — 2nd game finished at 9:14 P.M.

5:08 — Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 9/23/1990 — National League — Phillies 2 Expos 1 in 16 innings — 25,717 fans — finished at 6:43 P.M.

5:08 — Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California — 6/12/1992 — American League — Athletics 6 Rangers 5 in 14 innings — 43,200 fans finished at 12:13 A.M. in the early morning of 6/13. 5:08 — Arlington Stadium, Arlington, Texas — 9/25/1992 — American League — Mariners 4 Rangers 3 in 16 innings —19,822 fans — finished at 12:13 A.M. in the early morning of 9/26.

5:08 — Ballpark (later Ameriquest Field) in Arlington, Arlington, Texas — 9/27/1996 — American League

- Angels 4 Rangers 3 in 15 innings - 46,764 fans - finished at 12:13 A.M. in the early morning of 9/28.

5:08 — Angel Stadium, Anaheim, California — 6/ 13/2004 — NL at AL — Cubs 6 Angels 5 in 15 innings — 43,812 fans — finished at 6:13 P.M.

5:08 — Nat Bailey Stadium, Vancouver, Province of British Columbia, Canada — 7/13/2008 — Northwest League — Spokane Indians 10 Vancouver Canadians 8 in 14 innings — 4372 fans — finished at 6:13 P.M.

5:07 — Parque (Park) Almendares, Havana, Cuba — 12/8/1957 — Winter League — Marianao Tigers 12 Almendares 9 in 14 innings, 2nd game called after 3 innings.

5:07 — Royals Stadium, Kansas City, Missouri — 4/12/1989 — American League — Orioles 5 Royals 4 in 15 innings — 20,261 fans — finished at 12:42 A.M. in the early morning of 4/13.

5:07 — Dunn Tire Park, Buffalo, New York — 7/16/2004 — International League — Buffalo Bisons 11 Scranton/Wilkes-Barre Red Barons 1 in 2:01 and 7 innings, then Scranton/Wilkes-Barre 8 Buffalo 3 in 16 innings — 14,143 fans — finished at 1:47 A.M. in the early morning of 7/17.

5:07 — Anaheim Stadium (later Edison International Field, then Angels Stadium), Anaheim, California — 7/22/1989 — American League — Angels 5 Tigers 4 in 16 innings — 48,766 fans — finished at 12:42 A.M. in the early morning of 7/23.

5:07 — Diamond, Richmond, Virginia — 5/12/1994 — International League — Richmond Braves 2 Scranton/Wilkes-Barre Red Barons 1 in 17 innings, then Richmond 4 Scranton-Wilkes-Barre 2 in 1:31 and 7 innings — 4486 fans — finished at 1:08 A.M. in the early morning of 5/13.

5:07 — Commerce Bank Park, Bridgewater, New Jersey — 10/2/2000 — Northern League playoffs — Nashua Pride 6 Somerset Patriots 5 in 14 innings — 2837 fans — finished at 12:12 A.M. in the early morning of 10/3.

5:07 — Schott Stadium, Santa Clara, California — 5/9/2006 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Stanford University Cardinal 8 Santa Clara University Broncos 4 in 15 innings — 876 fans finished at 11:14 P.M.

5:07 — Chase Field, Phoenix, Arizona — 9/16/2006 — National League — Diamondbacks 7 Rockies 6 in 16 innings — 27,822 fans — finished at 12:12 A.M. in the early morning of 9/17.

5:07 — Raymond C. Hand Park, Clarksville, Tennessee — 4/22/2007 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Southeast Missouri State University Redhawks 16 Austin Peay University Governors 14 in 12 innings — 310 fans — finished at 6:09 P.M. 5:06 — Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California — 5/1/1962 — National League — Dodgers 6 Cubs 5 in 16 innings — 20,069 fans; 200 fans at end — finished at 1:08 A.M. in the early morning of 5/2.

5:06 – Crosley Field, Cincinnati, Ohio – 7/8/1962 – National League – Reds 12 Colt .45's 11 in 13 innings in 2nd game, rain delay 0:59 at start; Reds 12 Colt .45's 8 in 3:01 in 1st game –18,322 fans – 2nd game finished at 10:40 P.M.

5:06 – Busch Stadium (II), St. Louis, Missouri – 4/25/1992 – National League – Cardinals 2 Expos 1 in 17 innings – 24,849 fans – finished at 12:41 A.M. in the early morning of 4/26.

5:06 — Three Rivers Stadium, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 5/6/1992 — National League — Pirates 4 Braves 3 in 16 innings —18,686 fans — finished at 12:11 A.M. in the early morning of 5/7.

5:06 — Pro Player (later Dolphin) Stadium, Miami, Florida — 6/8/1998 — AL at NL — Marlins 4 Blue Jays 3 in 17 innings —17,414 fans; 300 fans at end —finished at 12:12 A.M. in the early morning of 6/9.

5:06 — Edison International Field (later Angel Stadium), Anaheim, California — 4/28/2002 — American League — Angels 8 Blue Jays 5 in 14 innings — 25,073 fans — finished at 6:11 P.M.

5:06 — Chase Field, Phoenix, Arizona — 8/25/2006 — National League — Diamondbacks 9 Dodgers 7 in 15 innings — 26,276 fans — finished at 12:11 A.M. in the early morning of 8/26.

5:05 — Swepsonville, North Carolina — 6/27/1957 — Junior League — Eli Whitney 10 Swepsonville 8 in 16 innings —finished at 8:55 P.M.

5:05 – Keene, New Hampshire – week before 9/14/ 1963 – American Legion – Greensboro (NC) 8 Orangeburg (Sc) 6 in 17 innings.

5:05 – Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California – 7/9/1971– American League – Athletics 1 Angels 0 in 20 innings – 22,938 fans – finished at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 7/10.

5:05 — MacArthur Stadium, Syracuse, New York — 7/19/1992 — International League — Syracuse Chiefs 8 Pawtucket PawSox 7 in 15 innings, then Syracuse 4 Pawtucket 3 in 2:16 and 7 innings —14,143 fans; 200 fans at end — finished at 1:54 A.M. in the early morning of 7/20.

5:05 – Shea Stadium, New York, New York – 8/10/ 1992 – National League – Pirates 4 Mets 2 in 16 innings – 25,387 fans – finished at 12:40 A.M. in the early morning of 8/11.

5:05 — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 8/ 7/1994 — American League — Indians 15 Red Sox 10 in 12 innings in 2nd game; Red Sox 4 Indians 1 in 3:08 in 1st game — 34,523 fans — 2nd game finished at 9:48 P.M.

5:05 — Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California — 8/3/1996 — National League — Braves 5 Dodgers 3 in 18 innings — 42,575 fans — finished at 6:10 P.M.

5:05 - Stadio Roberto Jannella, Grosseto, Italy -

4/20/2001—Serie Nazionale (Italian Al League)— Nettuno 5 Grosseto 2 in 14 innings—finished at 2:05 A.M. in the early morning of 4/21.

5:05 — Estadio (Stadium) Hiram Bithorn, San Juan, Puerto Rico — 6/5/2003 — AL at NL — Expos 8 Angels 7 in 14 innings — 10,598 fans — finished at 12:10 A.M. in the early morning of 6/6.

5:05 – New Market or Staunton, Virginia – 6/22/ 2004 – Valley League – Staunton Braves defeated New Market Rebels in 15 innings.

5:05 — Stadio Europeo, Parma, Italy — 5/26/2005 — Serie Nazionale (Italian A1 League) — Italeri Bologna 6 Cantine Ceci Negri Parma 5 in 15 innings — finished at 1:35 A.M. in the early morning of 5/27.

5:05 – Dr. Pepper Ballpark, Frisco, Texas – 6/11/2006 – Texas League – Frisco RoughRiders 12 Midland RockHounds 11 in 16 innings – 7291 fans – finished at 12:19 A.M. in the early morning of 6/19.

5:05 — Nash Park, Kenosha, Wisconsin — 4/24/2007 — Wisconsin State High School League — Kenosha Tremper High School Trojans 3 Racine Horlick High School Rebels 2 in 20 innings — 65 fans; 20 fans at end — finished at 9:35 P.M.

5:05 — Capital City Stadium, Columbia, South Carolina — 6/18/2008 — Coastal Plain League — Columbia Blowfish 9 Wilmington Sharks 8 in 14 innings — 1162 fans — finished at 12:10 A.M. in the early morning of 6/19.

5:04 — Lane Field, San Diego, California — 7/2/ 1958 — Pacific Coast League — San Diego Padres 12 Salt Lake City Bees 11 in 16 innings — 5309 fans finished at 1:04 A.M. in the early morning of 7/3.

5:04 — Honolulu Stadium (later Termite Palace), Honolulu, Hawaii — 5/23/1967 — Pacific Coast League — Portland Beavers 7 Hawaii Islanders 4 in 16 innings, rain delay 7th, brawl delay top 8th, 2nd rain delay 11th, 3rd rain delay 13th — finished at 1:22 A.M. in the early morning of 5/24.

5:04 — Yankee Stadium (I), New York, New York — 8/23/1968 — American League — Yankees 2 Tigers 1 in 2:23, then Tigers 3 Yankees 3 in 19 innings — 33,880 fans — finished at 1:07 A.M. in the early morning of 8/24.

5:04 – Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California – 6/20/1969 – American League

- Athletics 3 Twins 2 in 14 innings - 20,691 fans.

5:04 — Memorial Stadium, Baltimore, Maryland — 6/4/1985 — American League — Angels 6 Orioles 5 in 15 innings —17,237 fans —finished at 12:39 A.M. in the early morning of 6/5.

5:04 — County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin — 9/23/1988 — American League — Athletics 9 Brewers 8 in 14 innings — 24,163 fans — finished at 12:39 A.M. in the early morning of 9/24.

5:04 – Community Field (II), Burlington, Iowa – 5/15/1989 – Midwest League – Rockford Expos 4 Burlington Braves 2 in 20 innings.

5:04 – Toro Field, Carson, California – 5/5/1992

— National Collegiate Athletic Association — California State University at Dominguez Hills Toros 11 California Polytechnic University at Pomona Broncos 10 in 15 innings — 36 fans — finished at 6:04 P.M.

5:04 — Candlestick (later 3-Com) Park, San Francisco, California — 9/8/1992 — National League — Giants 6 Padres 5 in 16 innings — 7731 fans — finished at 12:39 A.M. in the early morning of 9/9.

5:04 — Safeco Field, Seattle, Washington — 7/29/ 2000 — American League — Mariners 6 Blue Jays 5 in 13 innings — 45,264 fans — finished at 6:09 P.M.

5:04 – Jackie Robinson Stadium, Los Angeles, California – 4/23/2006 – National Collegiate Athletic Association – University of California at Los Angeles Bruins 11 Arizona State University Sun Devils 10 in 10 innings – 979 fans – finished at 6:12 P.M.

5:04 — Busch Stadium (III), St. Louis, Missouri — 6/2/2006 — National League — Cubs 5 Cardinals 4 in 14 innings — 45,799 fans — finished at 12:09 A.M. in the early morning of 6/3.

5:04 — AutoZone Park, Memphis, Tennessee — 7/30/2006 — Pacific Coast League — Memphis Redbirds 9 Colorado Springs SkySox 8 in 16 innings — 8095 fans — finished at 7:14 P.M.

5:04 – J.C. Love Field, Ruston, Louisiana – 3/29/2008 – National Collegiate Athletic Association – Louisiana Tech University Bulldogs 12 San Jose State University Spartans 11 in 14 innings in 2nd game – 988 fans – finished at 9:50 P.M.; Louisiana Tech 7 San Jose State 2 in 2:47 in 1st game.

5:03 — Cleveland Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio — 6/27/1965 — American League — Indians 10 Athletics 7 in 15 innings, then Indians 11 Athletics 7 in 3:01— 17,829 fans — 2nd game finished at 9:34 P.M.

5:03 — Clark Field, Lafayette, Louisiana — 3/27/ 1971— National Collegiate Athletic Association — University of Southwestern Louisiana (now University of Louisiana-Lafayette) Ragin' Cajuns 6 McNeese State University Cowboys 5 in 23 innings, then McNeese State 13 Southwestern Louisiana 10 in 2:30 and 7 innings — 1st game finished at 6:33 P.M., 2nd game finished at 10:03 P.M.

5:03 — Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California — 4/20/1982 — American League — Angels 4 Twins 3 in 16 innings —12,488 fans finished at 12:38 A.M. in the early morning of 4/21.

5:03 – Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois – 8/1/1985 – National League – Cubs 9 Cardinals 8 in 14 innings – 36,164 fans.

5:03 — Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 4/12/1986 — National League — Phillies 9 Mets 8 in 14 innings — 22,737 fans.

5:03 – Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California – 7/27/1990 – National League – Dodgers 5 Braves 4 in 12 innings – 40,907 fans.

5:03 – Jack Murphy (later Qualcomm) Stadium, San Diego, California – 6/8/1996 – National League – Pirates 9 Padres 8 in 14 innings – 41,378 fans. 5:03 – SkySox Stadium, Colorado Springs, Colorado – 6/23/1996 – Pacific Coast League – Colorado Springs SkySox 9 Las Vegas Stars 8 in 15 innings – 3006 fans – finished at 6:40 P.M.

5:03 — Winnipeg Stadium, Winnipeg, Province of Manitoba, Canada — 5/30/1997 and 5/31/1997 — Northern League — Winnipeg Goldeyes 12 Sioux City Explorers 10 in 14 innings, suspended after 13 innings — 6491 fans — suspended at 12:05 A.M. in the early morning of 5/31.

5:03 — Anaheim Stadium (later Edison International Field, then Angels Stadium), Anaheim, California — 6/13/1997 — NL at AL — Padres 8 Angels 7 in 14 innings — 24,664 fans — finished at 12:08 A.M. in the early morning of 6/14.

5:03 – Hawkinson Ford Field, Crestwood, Illinois – 6/13/2000 – Frontier League – Cook County Cheetahs (later Windy City ThunderBolts) 3 Evansville Otters 2 in 16 innings –1164 fans – finished at 12:08 A.M. in the early morning of 6/14.

5:02 — Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California — 5/14/1978 — National League — Cubs 10 Dodgers 7 in 15 innings — 31,698 fans — finished at 6:37 P.M.

5:02 – Memorial Stadium, Baltimore, Maryland – 5/2/1984 – American League – Indians 9 Orioles 7 in 16 innings –12,968 fans –finished at 6:37 P.M.

5:02 — Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York — 5/11/1984 — American League — Mariners 4 Yankees 3 in 17 innings —15,716 fans — finished at 1:08 A.M. in the early morning of 5/12.

5:02 — Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California — 9/6/1984 — National League — Braves 3 Dodgers 2 in 18 innings — 28,169 fans — finished at 12:37 A.M. in the early morning of 9/7.

5:02 — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 6/19/1987 — American League — Yankees 10 Red Sox 5 in 13 innings — 33,835 fans — finished at 12:37 A.M. in the early morning of 6/20.

5:02 — Exhibition Stadium, Toronto, Province of Ontario, Canada — 7/3/1988 — American League — Athletics 9 Blue Jays 8 in 16 innings — 32,329 fans finished at 6:37 P.M.

5:02 — Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan — 9/7/ 1997 — American League — Angels 5 Tigers 4 in 15 innings — 25,602 fans — finished at 6:07 P.M.

5:02 — Croydon, Surrey, England — 4/26/2003 — Rawlings National League — Croydon Pirates 14 Menwith Hill Patriots 13 in 13 innings.

5:02 — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 10/ 17/2004 — American League Championship Series — Red Sox 6 Yankees 4 in 12 innings — 34,826 fans finished at 1:22 A.M. in the early morning of 10/18.

5:02 — Hammond Stadium, Fort Myers, Florida — 4/13/2006 — Florida State League — Clearwater Threshers 4 Fort Myers Miracle 3 in 20 innings —1544 fans; 94 fans at end —finished at 12:07 A.M. in the early morning of 4/14.

5:02 – Hooks Stadium, Winston-Salem, North Carolina – 5/6/2006 – National Collegiate Athletic Association — Florida State University Seminoles 4 Wake Forest University Demon Deacons 3 in 20 innings —1711 fans; 850 fans at end —finished at 6:05 P.M.

5:02 — Prince George's Stadium, Bowie, Maryland — 5/8/2006 — Eastern League — New Britain Rock Cats 9 Bowie Baysox 7 in 16 innings —1312 fans —finished at 12:07 A.M. in the early morning of 5/9.

5:02 — McAfee Coliseum, Oakland, California — 6/17/2006 — NL at AL — Athletics 5 Dodgers 4 in 17 innings — 35,077 fans — finished at 12:07 A.M. in the early morning of 6/18.

5:02 — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 9/10/2008 — American League — Rays 4 Red Sox 2 in 14 innings — 38,114 fans — finished at 12:07 A.M. in the early morning of 9/11.

5:01- Disch Field, Austin, Texas -9/7/1956-Texas League - Austin Senators 4 Dallas Eagles 3 in 20 innings -2157 fans - finished at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 9/8.

5:01—Miami Stadium, Miami, Florida—9/20/ 1957—International League—Miami Marlins 3 Buffalo Bisons 2 in 18 innings—5273 fans—finished at 1:01 A.M. in the early morning of 9/21.

5:01—Jacksonville Ball Park (later Municipal Stadium, then Wolfson Park), Jacksonville, Florida — 4/22/1959 — South Atlantic (Sally) League — Jacksonville Braves 3 Knoxville Smokies 2 in 21 innings —1814 fans, 200 fans at end —finished at 1:01 A.M. in the early morning of 4/23.

5:01—Sturgis or Valentine, South Dakota—week before 8/12/1964—Basin League—Valentine Hearts 6 Sturgis Titans 5 in 18 innings—finished at 1:01 A.M. in the early morning of 8/13.

5:01—Shea Stadium, New York, New York—8/26/ 1980—National League—Padres 8 Mets 6 in 18 innings—9844 fans—finished at 6:36 P.M.

5:01- Diamond, Richmond, Virginia - 8/7/1989- International League - Toledo Mud Hens 4 Richmond Braves 1 in 21 innings, then Richmond 3 Toledo 0 in 2:23 and 7 innings - 100 fans at end - finished at 1:57 A.M. in the early morning of 8/8.

5:01— Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 7/31/ 1991— American League — Red Sox 11 Athletics 10 in 14 innings — 34,218 fans —finished at 12:36 A.M. in the early morning of 8/1.

5:01—Jack Murphy (later Qualcomm) Stadium, San Diego, California—4/24/1992—National League —Reds 7 Padres 6 in 16 innings—22,956 fans finished at 12:36 A.M. in the early morning of 4/25.

5:01—Riverfront Stadium (later Cinergy Field), Cincinnati, Ohio—8/8/1992—National League— Reds 4 Giants 3 in 16 innings—36,100 fans—finished at 12:36 A.M. in the early morning of 8/9.

5:01—Jacobs Field, Cleveland, Ohio —10/3/1995 — American League Division Series — rain delay 0:39 at start, Indians 5 Red Sox 4 in 13 innings, 2nd rain delay 0:23 top 8th — 44,218 fans —finished at 2:08 A.M. in the early morning of 10/4. 5:01—Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York — 9/30/2001—American League — Orioles 1 Yankees 1 in 15 innings, rain delay 0:37 bottom 15th — 55,351 fans — called at 6:43 P.M.

5:01— Camden Yards, Baltimore, Maryland — 9/5/ 2003 — American League — Mariners 6 Orioles 4 in 13 innings — 27,417 fans — finished at 12:06 A.M. in the early morning of 9/6.

5:01—Banner Island Ballpark, Stockton, California - 9/2/2006 — California League — San Jose Giants 7 Stockton Ports 3 in 16 innings - 3717 fans finished at 12:06 A.M. in the early morning of 9/3.

5:01— Sportpark Schenkel, Capelle aan den Ijssel, Netherlands — 9/20/2008 — Promotion/Relegation Playoff— Ado 2 Euro Stars 1 in 18 innings — 200 fans — finished at 7:01 P.M.

5:00—Old Fair Grounds Park, Springfield, Missouri—7/19/1902—Missouri Valley League—Springfield Reds 2 Nevada Lunatics 1 in 20 innings—3500 fans, 3500 fans at end—finished at 8:30 P.M.

5:00—Gilmore Ground, Gilmore City, Iowa— 6/26/1907—Amateur—Humboldt Colts 1 Gilmore City Midgets 0 in 21 innings—finished at 8:05 P.M.— Humboldt batter Arch Wilder singled in top of 21st, stole second, was safe at third when comebacker to pitcher was thrown to third even though throw beat him by six feet, then stole home and was called safe even though throw beat him by eight feet; umpire Harve Clark was from Humboldt.

5:00 – Danville, Ohio – 7/10/1910 – Amateur – Amity 6 Danville 6 in 20 innings.

5:00—Baltimore, Maryland — 7/26/1913 — Amateur — White Lilies 4 Locust Point Junior All-Stars 2 in 24 innings—finished at 3:00 P.M.

5:00—Pacific Junction, Iowa—8/14/1926—Amateur—Folsom 7 Pleasant Valley 4 in 25 innings.

5:00— South Side Playgrounds, San Francisco, California—10/12/1929— Amateur— Regulars 9 Yannigans 8 in 29 innings—finished at 6:00 P.M.

5:00—Kansas City, Missouri—7/30/1933—Amateur—Kansas City 48th Street Merchants 16 St. Joseph Bottling Works 10 in 23 innings.

5:00—Brownsville, Pennsylvania—8/23/1938— Amateur—Melrose 3 West Bend 2 in 21 innings.

5:00— McKeta Field, Van Voorhis, Pennsylvania — 6/22/1947 — Pigeon Creek League — Bentleyville 4 Van Voorhis 4 in 21 innings —finished at 7:00 P.M.

5:00—Riverside Park, Shakopee, Minnesota — 8/13/1950—Minnesota River League — Shakopee Indians 4 St. Peter Saints 3 in 24 innings —finished at 7:30 P.M.

5:00- Mission Stadium, San Antonio, Texas – 8/11/1952 – Texas League – Oklahoma City Indians 6 San Antonio Missions 2 in 1:55 and 7 innings, then San Antonio 5 Oklahoma City 4 in 19 innings – 3143 fans – 2nd game finished at 2:10 A.M. in the early morning of 8/12.

5:00 – Placitas, New Mexico – 7/3/1956 – Bernalillo County SemiPro League – Los Ranchos de Albuquerque 5 Placitas 3 in 20 innings. 5:00—Jacksonville Ball Park (later Municipal Stadium, then Wolfson Park), Jacksonville, Florida— 5/21/1958—South Atlantic (Sally) League—Savannah Redlegs 6 Jacksonville Braves 6 in 20 innings —902 fans—finished at 1:00 A.M. in the early morning of 5/22.

5:00—North Maine Street Park, Fallon, Nevada 3/30/1961—National Collegiate Athletic Association—University of Nevada (later University of Nevada-Reno) Wolf Pack 16 Notre Dame University Fighting Irish 15 in 10 innings—finished at 12:30 A.M. in the early morning of 3/31.

5:00—Pony-Colt Stadium, Galveston, Texas— 7/27/1963—Colt League—Galena Park 6 Beaumont 5 in 20 innings.

5:00—Red Wing (later Silver) Stadium, Rochester, New York—5/29/1964—International League— Toronto Maple Leafs 8 Rochester Red Wings 4 in 19 innings—4070 fans—finished at 1:00 A.M. in the early morning of 5/30.

5:00—Glenmont, Ohio—7/4/1965—Triple Counties League—Glenmont 8 Loudonville 7 in 22 innings.

5:00—Crosley Field, Cincinnati, Ohio—8/27/ 1965—National League—Cardinals 6 Reds 5 in 14 innings—23,595 fans.

5:00—Riverside, California—3/20/1967—National Collegiate Athletic Association—University of California Riverside Highlanders 5 Ohio State Buckeyes 5 in 14 innings—called at 12 Midnight.

5:00—Field Park, Mukwonago, Wisconsin—5/15/ 1969—Wisconsin High School League—Mukwonago High School Indians 5 Burlington High School Demons 4 in 21 innings—65 fans—finished at 9:30 P.M.

5:00—Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts— 6/25/1970—American League—Orioles 13 Red Sox 8 in 14 innings—20,548 fans—finished at 6:30 P.M.

5:00—Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York — 8/2/1978 and 8/3/1978—American League—Red Sox 7 Yankees 5 in 17 innings, rain delay 0:35 top 8th, 2nd rain delay 0:17 bottom 12th, suspended after 14 innings—52,701 fans on 8/2, 20,000 fans at suspension, 53,379 fans on 8/3—suspended at 1:16 A.M. in the early morning of 8/3.

5:00—Astrodome, Houston, Texas—6/18/1979— National League—Astros 3 Mets 2 in 18 innings— 14,076 fans—finished at 12:35 A.M. in the early morning of 6/19.

5:00— Rosenblatt Stadium, Omaha, Nebraska— 6/5/1981— National Collegiate Athletic Association College World Series— Oklahoma State University Cowboys 11 Arizona State University Sun Devils 10 in 13 innings.

5:00—Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California—8/15/1981—American League —Athletics 8 Angels 7 in 13 innings—20,101 fans finished at 6:35 P.M. 5:00—Candlestick (later 3-Com) Park, San Francisco, California—6/26/1982—National League— Padres 7 Giants 6 in 15 innings—8612 fans—finished at 6:35 P.M.

5:00 — Mark Light Stadium, Coral Gables, Florida — 5/23/1986 — National Collegiate Athletic Association Atlantic Regionals — Georgia Technical Institute Yellow Jackets 9 US Naval Academy Midshipmen 8 in 14 innings.

5:00— Riverfront Stadium (later Cinergy Field), Cincinnati, Ohio—7/22/1986—National League— Mets 6 Reds 3 in 14 innings—23,707 fans—finished at 12:35 A.M. in the early morning of 7/23.

5:00— Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois—4/30/ 1990— American League— White Sox 5 Rangers 4 in 13 innings—8406 fans—finished at 12:35 A.M. in the early morning of 5/1.

5:00—Hammond Stadium, Fort Myers, Florida — 4/8/1995 — Florida State League — Fort Myers Miracle 5 Charlotte Rangers 0 in 1:26 and 7 innings, then Fort Myers 4 Charlotte 3 in 17 innings — 2411 fans; 50 fans at end —1st game finished at 7:37 P.M.; 2nd game finished at 1:08 A.M. in the early morning of 4/9.

5:00—Guildford, Surrey, England—6/??/1995— Guildford Mavericks 28 Bracknell Blazers 27.

5:00— Five County Stadium, Zebulon, North Carolina — 8/12/1995 — Southern League — Carolina Mudcats 12 Port City Roosters 11 in 17 innings.

5:00—Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California— 4/7/1997—National League—Dodgers 3 Mets 2 in 15 innings—27,547 fans—finished at 12:05 A.M. in the early morning of 4/8.

5:00—Carson Center Field, Evansville, Indiana— 3/7/1999—National Collegiate Athletic Association— University of Memphis Tigers 4 University of Evansville Purple Aces 4 in 21 innings—205 fans, 75 fans at end—finished at 4:00 P.M.

5:00—Grovehill Park, Hemel Hempstead, Hertfordshire, England—?/??/2000—Milton Keynes Rebels at Hertfordshire Falcons.

5:00— Jhu Baseball Field, Baltimore, Maryland — 4/13/2002 — National Club Baseball Association at National Collegiate Athletic Association — Ncba (Club) George Washington University Colonials 22 NCAA Johns Hopkins University Junior Varsity (Jv) Blue Jays 21 in 7 innings; then Johns Hopkins Jv defeated George Washington Club by several runs in 2:45 and 7 innings — 30 fans; 8632 fans next door at Homewood Field for Johns Hopkins' 9–8 lacrosse overtime win over Maryland —finished at 8:15 P.M.

5:00—Cashman Field, Las Vegas, Nevada—4/29/ 2002—Pacific Coast League—Colorado Springs SkySox 17 Las Vegas 51's 16 in 14 innings—1680 fans finished at 12:10 A.M. in the early morning of 4/30.

5:00—Hubert H. Humphrey Metrodome, Minneapolis, Minnesota—4/6/2004—American League —Twins 7 Indians 6 in 15 innings—19,832 fans finished at 12:05 A.M. in the early morning of 4/7.

5:00—Armin-Wolf-Arena, Regensburg, Germany

- 8/3/2004 - European B-Pool Championships -Ireland 8 Austria 2 in 11 innings - finished at 12:00 Midnight.

5:00—Plote Field, Lake in the Hills, Illinois—7/ 24/2005—American Legion—St. Charles Post 342 22 Crystal Lake Post 171 14.

5:00—Paul E. Joseph Stadium, Frederiksted, St. Croix, US Virgin Islands—7/29/2005—Caribbean Little League Tournament—Bonaire (Netherlands Antilles) 4 Aruba 2 in 9 innings; then Curacao 5 Dominican 1.

5:00— Isotopes Park, Albuquerque, New Mexico— 7/16/2006— Pacific Coast League— Iowa Cubs 5 Albuquerque Isotopes 4 in 17 innings— 9019 fans finished at 11:05 P.M.

5:00–Villa Clara, Cuba–2/18/2007–Cuba League–Industriales 11 Villa Clara 8 in 11 innings.

5:00—Hanceville, Alabama—5/12/2008—National Junior Collegiate Athletic Association—Chattahoochee Valley Community College Pirates 6 Alabama Southern Community College Eagles 4 in 15 innings.

5:00 – Nationals Park, Washington, D.C. – 9/19/2008 – National League – Padres 11 Nationals 6 in 14 innings – 28,600 fans; 1250 fans at end –finished at 12:36 A.M. in the morning of 9/20.

Longest Games by Game Time, by Decade

1860's (2)

5:50—Mr. Howard's Lands off Railroad Avenue, Elkton, Maryland — 7/17/1866 — Amateur — Elkton Eclipses 62 St. Georges of Delaware 37 —finished at 6:50 P.M.

8:00—Carrollton Commons, Carrollton, Kentucky—7/4/1868—Amateur—Ghent 179 Carrollton 70 in 7 innings, dinner delay 5:00—started at 9:00 A.M.; called off at 10:00 P.M.

1870's Through 1890's (0)

No game, thus far, has been identified from the 1870's through the 1890's as having a game time of 5 or more hours.

1900's (6)

8:30 – Pottsville, Pennsylvania – 7/8/1902 – Amateur – Pottsville Amateur Team A 38 Pottsville Amateur Team B 36 – finished at 5:30 P.M.

5:00—Old Fair Grounds Park, Springfield, Missouri—7/19/1902—Missouri Valley League— Springfield Reds 2 Nevada Lunatics 1 in 20 innings— 3500 fans, 3500 fans at end—finished at 8:30 P.M.

5:50—Dorchester Franklin Field Diamond #5, Boston, Massachusetts—6/8/1907—Boston Grammar School League—Henry L. Pierce Grammar School of Dorchester 4 Bennet Grammar School of Brighton 3 in 28 innings—finished at 3:50 P.M. 5:00—Gilmore Ground, Gilmore City, Iowa— 6/26/1907—Amateur—Humboldt Colts 1 Gilmore City Midgets 0 in 21 innings—finished at 8:05 P.M.— Humboldt batter Arch Wilder singled in top of 21st, stole second, was safe at third when comebacker to pitcher was thrown to third even though throw beat him by six feet, then stole home and was called safe even though throw beat him by eight feet; umpire Harve Clark was from Humboldt.

5:50—Brookside Park, Cleveland, Ohio—7/4/ 1907—Amateur—Brooklyn Athletic Club 4 East End All Stars 1 in 30 innings.

5:20—Hawks Field, Lincoln, Nebraska—5/9/ 2008—National Collegiate Athletic Association— Texas Agricultural and Mining (A&M) University Aggies 6 University of Nebraska Cornhuskers 3—8708 fans—game finished at 12:00 Midnight.

1910's (2)

5:00 – Danville, Ohio – 7/10/1910 – Amateur – Amity 6 Danville 6 in 20 innings.

5:00—Baltimore, Maryland — 7/26/1913 — Amateur — White Lilies 4 Locust Point Junior All-Stars 2 in 24 innings — finished at 3:00 P.M.

1920's (4)

5:15 – Dugdale Park, Seattle, Washington – 6/6/ 1924 – Pacific Coast League – Seattle Indians 5 Vernon Tigers 4 in 19 innings.

10:00 — Piedras Negras, State of Coahuila, Mexico — 7/18/1926 — Amateur — San Luisito 29 Piedras Negras (Black Rock) Internationals 19 in 5½ innings finished at 7:00 P.M.

5:00—Pacific Junction, Iowa—8/14/1926—Amateur—Folsom 7 Pleasant Valley 4 in 25 innings.

5:00— South Side Playgrounds, San Francisco, California—10/12/1929— Amateur— Regulars 9 Yannigans 8 in 29 innings—finished at 6:00 P.M.

1930's (9)

5:15 — East Hartford, Connecticut — 5/14/1933 — Amateur — East Hartford Red Sox 5 New Britain Ramblers 4 in 20 innings.

5:00—Kansas City, Missouri—7/30/1933—Amateur—Kansas City 48th Street Merchants 16 St. Joseph Bottling Works 10 in 23 innings.

6:30—St. Louis or Tenbrook, Missouri — 5/??/1934 — Amateur — St. Louis Red Sox vs. Tenbrook Athletic Club in 23 innings.

6:58 — Matsue Kyujyo (Stadium), Matsue, Japan — 7/20/1935 and 7/21/1935 — Japan Junior High School League — Oota Chu 2 Matsue Chu (later Matsue Kita Koto-gakko) 1 in 35 innings, suspended after 4:48 and 23 innings.

6:30 – Estadio (Stadium) de Maracaibo, Maracaibo, Venezuela – 6/5/1938 – Venezuelan League – Pastora 1 Gavilanes 0 in 20 innings.

5:28 – Hook Ball Park, Paducah, Kentucky – 7/8/1938 – Kentucky-Illinois-Tennessee (Kitty) League — Fulton Eagles 14 Paducah Indians 9 in 20 innings, rhubarb delay top 15th when Fulton Manager Ray Clonts unsuccessfully requested umpires to allow 15-minute delay so players could eat some steaks for strength, vote delay top 19th when Paducah Manager Pete Mondino successfully asked umpires to have remaining fans vote whether the game should continue or not — fans voted unanimously that game should continue — finished at 1:45 A.M. in the early morning of 7/9.

5:00—Brownsville, Pennsylvania — 8/23/1938 — Amateur — Melrose 3 West Bend 2 in 21 innings.

5:15 — Clintonville, Wisconsin — 6/15/1939 — Northern State League — Clintonville Four Wheel Drive Truckers 1 Two Rivers Polar Bears 0 in 21 innings — finished at 1:45 A.M. in the early morning of 6/16.

5:15 — Bee Hive (later Braves Field), Boston, Massachusetts — 6/27/1939 — National League — Dodgers 2 Bees (later Braves) 2 in 23 innings — 2457 fans.

1940's (6)

5:19 — Bee Hive (later Braves Field), Boston, Massachusetts — 7/5/1940 — National League — Dodgers 6 Bees (later Braves) 2 in 20 innings.

5:29 — Yuanshan Qiuchang (Stadium), Taipei, Taiwan — 7/28/1941 — Jiayi Agriculture and Forestry Institute (Jianong) 2 Taipei Industrial School 1 in 25 innings.

5:00— McKeta Field, Van Voorhis, Pennsylvania — 6/22/1947 — Pigeon Creek League — Bentleyville 4 Van Voorhis 4 in 21 innings —finished at 7:00 P.M.

6:13 — Managua, Nicaragua — late 1940's — Nicaragua Second Division Amateur League — Manta Nica defeated Schumann in 27 innings.

5:15 — Municipal Park, Sanford, Florida — 5/27/ 1948 — Florida State League — Sanford Giants 8 Palatka Azaleas 7 in 21 innings — finished at 1:15 A.M. in the early morning of 5/28.

6:30—Estadio (Stadium) Nacional (later Estadio Dennis Martinez), Managua, Nicaragua — 7/10/1949 — Nicaragua First Division Amateur League — Navarro Cubs 4 Escuelas Internacionales 3 in 26 innings — finished at 4:30 P.M.

1950's (24)

5:15 — Red Wing (later Silver) Stadium, Rochester, New York — 8/13/1950 — International League — Rochester Red Wings 3 Jersey City Giants 2 in 22 innings — 5863 fans — finished at 6:45 P.M.

5:00—Riverside Park, Shakopee, Minnesota— 8/13/1950—Minnesota River League—Shakopee Indians 4 St. Peter Saints 3 in 24 innings—finished at 7:30 P.M.

5:45 — Tokyo, Japan — 8/30/1951 — Junior High School League — Takefu Junior High School 0 Kohama Junior High School 0 in 30 innings — finished at 2:45 P.M.

5:10— Triplets (later Johnson) Field, Johnson City, New York—5/18/1952—Eastern League—Binghamton Triplets 4 Scranton Miners 3 in 20 innings, then Scranton 4 Binghamton 0.

5:00—Mission Stadium, San Antonio, Texas— 8/11/1952—Texas League—Oklahoma City Indians 6 San Antonio Missions 2 in 1:55 and 7 innings, then San Antonio 5 Oklahoma City 4 in 19 innings—3143 fans—2nd game finished at 2:10 A.M. in the early morning of 8/12.

5:13 — Golden Park, Columbus, Georgia — 4/24/ 1954 — South Atlantic (Sally) League — Macon Peaches 7 Columbus Cardinals 5 in 20 innings — finished at 1:13 A.M. in the early morning of 4/25.

5:47 — New York, New York —?/??/1954 — City Youth Federation Semi-Final Game — Hudson Guild Neighborhood House 3 Immaculate Conception of the Bronx 2 in 20 innings.

5:16 — Miami Stadium, Miami, Florida — 4/22/ 1956 — International League — Rochester Red Wings 10 Miami Marlins 6 in 18 innings, then Miami 3 Rochester 2 in 2:03 and 7 innings — 3486 fans — 2nd game finished at 9:06 P.M.

5:13 — Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois — 5/2/1956 — National League — Giants 6 Cubs 5 in 17 innings — 2389 fans.

5:15 — Municipal Stadium, Jamestown or Maple City Park, Hornell, New York — 5/23/1956 — New York-Pennsylvania League — Jamestown Falcons 25 Hornell Dodgers 21 in extra innings —finished at 1:15 A.M. in the early morning of 5/24.

5:00 – Placitas, New Mexico – 7/3/1956 – Bernalillo County SemiPro League – Los Ranchos de Albuquerque 5 Placitas 3 in 20 innings.

5:30 – Minster, Ohio – 7/18/1956 – American Legion – St. Mary's 4 Lima 3 in 21 innings.

5:01- Disch Field, Austin, Texas - 9/7/1956 -Texas League - Austin Senators 4 Dallas Eagles 3 in 20 innings - 2157 fans - finished at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 9/8.

5:05 — Swepsonville, North Carolina — 6/27/1957 — Junior League — Eli Whitney 10 Swepsonville 8 in 16 innings —finished at 8:55 P.M.

5:01— Miami Stadium, Miami, Florida — 9/20/ 1957 — International League — Miami Marlins 3 Buffalo Bisons 2 in 18 innings — 5273 fans — finished at 1:01 A.M. in the early morning of 9/21.

5:07 — Parque (Park) Almendares, Havana, Cuba — 12/8/1957 — Winter League — Marianao Tigers 12 Almendares 9 in 14 innings, 2nd game called after 3 innings.

5:47 — Shikoku Kyujo (Stadium), Shikoku, Japan — 4/28/1958 — Japan High School League — Takamatsushogyo 2 Tokushima-shogyo 0 in 25 innings.

5:00—Jacksonville Ball Park (later Municipal Stadium, then Wolfson Park), Jacksonville, Florida— 5/21/1958—South Atlantic (Sally) League—Savannah Redlegs 6 Jacksonville Braves 6 in 20 innings —902 fans—finished at 1:00 A.M. in the early morning of 5/22.

5:04 – Lane Field, San Diego, California – 7/2/

1958 — Pacific Coast League — San Diego Padres 12 Salt Lake City Bees 11 in 16 innings — 5309 fans finished at 1:04 A.M. in the early morning of 7/3.

5:01—Jacksonville Ball Park (later Municipal Stadium, then Wolfson Park), Jacksonville, Florida— 4/22/1959—South Atlantic (Sally) League—Jacksonville Braves 3 Knoxville Smokies 2 in 21 innings —1814 fans, 200 fans at end—finished at 1:01 A.M. in the early morning of 4/23.

6:14 — Nishi-Kyogoku Kyujyo (Stadium), Kyoto, Japan — 5/2/1959 — Kyoto Industrial League — Nippon Shinyaku (Pharmaceuticals) Company 2 Kurashiki Reiyon (Rayon) Company (later Kuraray Company) 1 in 29 innings.

5:56 — Sicks' Stadium, Seattle, Washington — 5/8/1959 — Pacific Coast League — Seattle Rainiers 6 Phoenix Giants 5 in 21 innings, 2nd game cancelled — 1787 fans — finished at 12:56 A.M. in the early morning of 5/9.

5:38 – Russwood Park, Memphis, Tennessee – 6/21/1959 – Southern Association – Memphis Chicks 6 Chattanooga Lookouts 5 in 21 innings – finished at 7:10 P.M.

5:45 — Greenwood, South Carolina — 7/15/1959 — American Legion — Clinton 5 Post 20 Greenwood 3 in 20 innings.

1960's (69)

5:42 — Mission Stadium, San Antonio, Texas — 4/29/1960 — Texas League — Rio Grande Valley Giants 4 San Antonio Missions 2 in 24 innings, scoreboard fire delay bottom 23rd — 820 fans — finished at 1:27 A.M. in the early morning of 4/30.

5:00—North Maine Street Park, Fallon, Nevada 3/30/1961—National Collegiate Athletic Association—University of Nevada (later University of Nevada-Reno) Wolf Pack 16 Notre Dame University Fighting Irish 15 in 10 innings—finished at 12:30 A.M. in the early morning of 3/31.

5:17 — Disch Field, Austin, Texas — 5/22/1961 — Texas League — Amarillo Gold Sox 8 Austin Senators 7 in 16 innings — 508 fans — finished at 1:31 A.M. in the early morning of 5/23.

5:11—Shibe Park (later Connie Mack Stadium), Philadelphia, Pennsylvania—6/28/1961—National League—Giants 7 Phillies 7 in 15 innings—11,597 fans—finished at 1:15 A.M. in the early morning of 6/29.

5:13 – Colt Stadium, Houston, Texas – 4/25/1962 – National League – Cardinals 5 Colt .45's (later Astros) 5 in 17 innings –17,265 fans – finished at 1:15 A.M. in the early morning of 4/26.

5:06 — Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California — 5/1/1962 — National League — Dodgers 6 Cubs 5 in 16 innings — 20,069 fans; 200 fans at end — finished at 1:08 A.M. in the early morning of 5/2.

7:00 – Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan – 6/24/ 1962 – American League – Yankees 9 Tigers 7 in 22 innings – 35,638 fans, 20,000 fans at end –finished at 8:30 P.M.— this 7-hour extra inning game happened before there had ever been a modern professional extra inning game in the US lasting between 6 and 7 hours.

5:06 — Crosley Field, Cincinnati, Ohio — 7/8/1962 — National League — Reds 12 Colt .45's 11 in 13 innings in 2nd game, rain delay 0:59 at start; Reds 12 Colt .45's 8 in 3:01 in 1st game — 18,322 fans — 2nd game finished at 10:40 P.M.

5:27 — Korakuen Kyujo (Stadium), Tokyo, Japan — 7/29/1962 — Tokyo Industrial League — Nippon Beer Company 1 Denden Kinki Company 0 in 22 innings.

5:47 – Oiler (later McNulty) Park, Tulsa, Oklahoma – 5/31/1963 – Texas League – Tulsa Oilers 9 Albuquerque Dukes 8 in 17 innings – 2088 fans – finished at 1:30 A.M. in the early morning of 6/1.

5:00— Pony-Colt Stadium, Galveston, Texas— 7/27/1963— Colt League — Galena Park 6 Beaumont 5 in 20 innings.

6:01—Fairground Park, Fond du Lac, Wisconsin— 7/31/1963—Fox River Valley League—Little Chute-Kimberly Papermakers 11 Fond du Lac 5 in 21 innings—finished at 2:01 A.M. in the early morning of 8/1.

5:05 – Keene, New Hampshire – week before 9/14/1963 – American Legion – Greensboro (NC) 8 Orangeburg (Sc) 6 in 17 innings.

6:30—Kentucky Wesleyan Field (now Panther Park), Owensboro, Kentucky—4/20/1964—National Collegiate Athletic Association—Kentucky Wesleyan College Panthers 8 Oakland City College Mighty Oaks 7 in 22 innings, 2nd game postponed—200 fans—finished at 11:30 P.M.

5:00- Red Wing (later Silver) Stadium, Rochester, New York -5/29/1964- International League -Toronto Maple Leafs 8 Rochester Red Wings 4 in 19 innings -4070 fans -finished at 1:00 A.M. in the early morning of 5/30.

7:23 — Shea Stadium, New York, New York — 5/ 31/1964 — National League — Giants 8 Mets 6 in 23 innings in 2nd game, Giants 5 Mets 3 in 2:29 in 1st game — 57,037 fans, 8000 fans at end — finished at 11:25 P.M.

5:11—Connecticut—6/7/1964—Connecticut High School Class A playoffs—Waterbury Crosby High School Old Ivy (later Bulldogs) 6 West Haven Notre Dame High School Green Knights 5 in 19 innings.

5:10—Sioux Falls Stadium (later Howard Wood Field), Sioux Falls, South Dakota — 7/22/1964 — Basin League — Sioux Falls Packers 3 Pierre Cowboys 2 in 19 innings — 777 fans —finished at 12:40 A.M. in the early morning of 7/23.

5:25 – Henderson Stadium (I), Lethbridge, Province of Alberta, Canada – 7/25/1964 – Western Canada League – Saskatoon Blues 6 Lethbridge Cardinals 5 in 20 innings – 150 fans.

5:01—Sturgis or Valentine, South Dakota—week before 8/12/1964—Basin League—Valentine Hearts 6 Sturgis Titans 5 in 18 innings—finished at 1:01 A.M. in the early morning of 8/13.

5:13 - Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California -

9/19/1964 — National League — Dodgers 4 Phillies 3 in 16 innings — 27,146 fans — finished at 1:15 A.M. in the early morning of 9/20.

6:24 – Dunn Field, Elmira, New York – 5/8/1965 – Eastern League – Elmira Pioneers 2 Springfield Giants 1 in 27 innings – 386 fans, 400 fans at end – finished at 9:24 P.M.

5:10—Turnpike (later Arlington) Stadium, Arlington, Texas—6/17/1965—Texas League—Austin Braves 2 Dallas-Fort Worth Spurs 1 in 25 innings—2546 fans—finished at 12:40 A.M. in the early morning of 6/18.

5:33 — Dunn Field, Elmira, New York — 6/25/1965— Eastern League — Pittsfield Red Sox 1 Elmira Pioneers 1 in 21 innings — called off at 1:03 A.M. in the early morning of 6/26, then rhubarb delay top 22nd, Pioneers owner argued there was no curfew rule, by the time the league president told the umpires the owner was correct and the game should continue, all the players had showered and gone home, called off at 1:xx A.M. for the second time — 530 fans — finished at 1:03 A.M. in the early morning of 6/26.

5:03 — Cleveland Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio — 6/27/1965 — American League — Indians 10 Athletics 7 in 15 innings, then Indians 11 Athletics 7 in 3:01— 17,829 fans — 2nd game finished at 9:34 P.M.

5:00—Glenmont, Ohio—7/4/1965—Triple Counties League—Glenmont 8 Loudonville 7 in 22 innings.

5:23 — Paterson Field, Montgomery, Alabama — 7/31/1965 — Southern League — Columbus Confederate Yankees 6 Montgomery Rebels 6 in 19 innings finished at 1:23 A.M. in the early morning of 8/1.

6:15 — Sioux Falls Stadium (later Howard Wood Field), Sioux Falls, South Dakota — 8/3/1965 — Basin League — Pierre Cowboys 5 Sioux Falls Packers 3 in 24 innings — 421 fans — finished at 1:45 A.M. in the early morning of 8/4.

6:13 — College Stadium (later Russell Diethrich Park), Jamestown, New York — 8/14/1965 — New York-Pennsylvania League — Binghamton Triplets 4 Jamestown Tigers 4 in 21 innings, 2nd game postponed — 386 fans — finished at 12:43 A.M. in the early morning of 8/15.

5:00—Crosley Field, Cincinnati, Ohio—8/27/ 1965—National League—Cardinals 6 Reds 5 in 14 innings—23,595 fans.

5:15 — John Euless Park, Fresno, California — 9/1/1965 — California League — Fresno Giants 10 Bakersfield Bears 9 in 18 innings — 296 fans, 75 fans at end —finished at 1:00 A.M. in the early morning of 9/2.

6:59 — Al Lang Field (I), St. Petersburg, Florida — 6/14/1966 — Florida State League — Miami Marlins 4 St. Petersburg Cardinals 3 in 29 innings — 740 fans, 175 fans at end —finished at 2:29 A.M. in the early morning of 6/15.

6:13 – Municipal Stadium, Waterbury, Connecticut – 7/31/1966 – Eastern League – Waterbury Giants 9 York White Roses 8 in 22 innings —finished at 12:46 A.M. in the early morning of 8/1.

5:39 – Rox Park, St. Cloud, Minnesota – 7/25/1966 and 8/28/1966 – Northern League – Huron Phillies 8 St. Cloud Rox 2 in 21 innings, suspended after 4:20 and 16 innings, originally decided to play entire game over, but then decided to complete game from point of suspension – 951 fans on 7/25, 343 fans on 8/28 – suspended at 11:50 P.M. on 7/25.

6:00— Lawrence Hardball Park, Lodi, California— 8/31/1966— California League— Reno Silver Sox 6 Lodi Crushers 5 in 23 innings— 502 fans, 20 fans at end—finished at 2:00 A.M. in the early morning of 9/1.

5:00—Riverside, California—3/20/1967—National Collegiate Athletic Association—University of California Riverside Highlanders 5 Ohio State Buckeyes 5 in 14 innings—called at 12 Midnight.

6:15 — Delano High School Diamond #4 and Delano High School Varsity Field, Delano, California — 3/23/1967 — California High School League — Fresno McLane High School Highlanders 3 Fresno High School Warriors 2 in 21 innings, diamond switch delay from Diamond #4 to Varsity Field 0:15 top 8th finished at 10:30 P.M.

6:12 — Honolulu Stadium (later Termite Palace), Honolulu, Hawaii — 3/25/1967 — Hawaii High School League — Kamehameha High School Warriors 9 McKinley High School Tigers 7 in 25 innings.

5:50 — Yankee Stadium (I), New York, New York — 4/16/1967 — American League — Yankees 7 Red Sox 6 in 18 innings —19,290 fans —finished at 6:23 P.M.

5:50—Frank Lawrence Stadium, Portsmouth, Virginia — 4/18/1967 — Carolina League — Kinston Eagles 5 Tidewater Tides 5 in 20 innings — 526 fans, 25 fans at end —finished at 1:21 A.M. in the early morning of 4/19.

5:04 — Honolulu Stadium (later Termite Palace), Honolulu, Hawaii — 5/23/1967 — Pacific Coast League — Portland Beavers 7 Hawaii Islanders 4 in 16 innings, rain delay 7th, brawl delay top 8th, 2nd rain delay 11th, 3rd rain delay 13th —finished at 1:22 A.M. in the early morning of 5/24.

5:18 — Memorial Stadium, Baltimore, Maryland — 6/4/1967 — American League — Orioles 7 Senators 5 in 19 innings —12,612 fans — finished at 6:23 P.M.

6:38 - D.C. (later R.F.K.) Stadium, Washington, D.C. - 6/12/1967 - American League - Senators 6 White Sox 5 in 22 innings - 7236 fans, 2000 fans at end --finished at 2:44 A.M. in the early morning of 6/13.

5:40—Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan—6/17/ 1967—American League—Tigers 7 Athletics 6 in 3:25, rain delay 0:15 top 7th, then Athletics 6 Tigers 5 in 19 innings—14,871 fans, 200 fans at end including Commissioner William Eckert—finished at 12:17 A.M. in the early morning of 6/18.

6:10— Ohiopyle, Pennsylvania — 7/16/1967 — Fay-West (Fayette County-Westmoreland County) League - Ohiopyle 11 Breakneck 10 in 20 innings – finished at 8:10 P.M.

5:35 – Municipal Stadium, West Palm Beach, Florida – 8/8/1967 – Florida State League – West Palm Beach Braves 3 Leesburg Athletics 2 in 25 innings, 2nd game postponed – finished at 11:35 P.M.

5:40—Metropolitan Stadium, Bloomington, Minnesota — 8/9/1967 — American League — Senators 9 Twins 7 in 20 innings —16,901 fans, 4000 fans at end —finished at 1:44 A.M. in the early morning of 8/10.

5:47 — Ernie Shore Field, Winston-Salem, North Carolina — 8/14/1967 — Carolina League — Winston-Salem Red Sox 13 Greensboro Yankees 12 in 19 innings —1708 fans —finished at 1:47 A.M. in the early morning of 8/15.

5:14 – D.C. (later Robert F. Kennedy) Stadium, Washington, D.C. – 8/17/1967 – American League – Indians 8 Senators 3 in 16 innings –12,488 fans; 2000 fans at end –finished at 1:21 A.M. in the early morning of 8/18.

6:09 — Yankee Stadium (I), New York, New York — 8/29/1967 — American League — Yankees 4 Red Sox 3 in 20 innings in 2nd game, Red Sox 2 Yankees 1 in 2:10 in 1st game — 40,314 fans — finished at 1:57 A.M. in the early morning of 8/30.

5:40—Crosley Field, Cincinnati, Ohio—9/1/1967 — National League—Giants 1 Reds 0 in 21 innings— 13,745 fans, 200 fans at end—finished at 1:45 A.M. in the early morning of 9/2.

6:22 – Estadio (Stadium) Angel Flores, Culiacan, State of Sinaloa, Mexico –10/22/1967 – Mexican Pacific League – Obregon Yaquis 3 Culiacan Tomateros (Tomato Growers) 1 in 21 innings – 5000 fans – finished at 11:22 P.M.

6:06 — Astrodome, Houston, Texas — 4/15/1968 — National League — Astros 1 Mets 0 in 24 innings — 14,219 fans, 3000 fans at end —finished at 1:37 A.M. in the early morning of 4/16.

5:10—Ray Winder Field, Little Rock, Arkansas— 4/19/1968—Texas League—Arkansas Travelers 13 Memphis Blues 2 in 2:12 and 7 innings, then Memphis 6 Arkansas 3 in 16 innings—875 fans—finished at 2:22 A.M. in the early morning of 4/20.

5:45 — Boysen Park, Anaheim, California — 4/26/ 1968 — California High School League — Santa Ana High School Saints 6 Anaheim High School Colonists 6 in 19 innings, automatic sprinkers delay 0:45 top 20th — 100 fans, 25 fans at end — called off at 1:30 A.M. because automated sprinklers which had come on at 12:45 A.M. could not be turned off.

6:00—Knowles Field, Martinez, California— 5/9/1968—California High School League—Alhambra High School Bulldogs 4 San Ramon Valley High School Wolves 3 in 21 innings—finished at 9:30 P.M.

5:22 – Fans Field, Decatur, Illinois – 8/20/1968 – Midwest League – Burlington Bees 9 Decatur Commodores 6 in 18 innings.

5:04 — Yankee Stadium (I), New York, New York — 8/23/1968 — American League — Yankees 2 Tigers 1 in 2:23, then Tigers 3 Yankees 3 in 19 innings – 33,880 fans – finished at 1:07 A.M. in the early morning of 8/24.

5:27 — Memorial Stadium, Baltimore, Maryland — 8/25/1968 — American League — Orioles 3 Red Sox 2 in 18 innings —12,714 fans — finished at 12:57 A.M. in the early morning of 8/26.

5:15 — Municipal Memorial (later Gpu, then FirstEnergy) Stadium, Reading, Pennsylvania — 9/4/ 1968 — Eastern League — Reading Phillies 8 Binghamton Triplets 7 in 19 innings — finished at 1:15 A.M. in the early morning of 9/5.

5:30—Goodland Field, Appleton, Wisconsin— 5/2/1969—Midwest League—Appleton Foxes 8 Decatur Giants 7 in 17 innings—finished at 1:30 A.M. in the early morning of 5/3.

5:00—Field Park, Mukwonago, Wisconsin— 5/15/1969—Wisconsin High School League—Mukwonago High School Indians 5 Burlington High School Demons 4 in 21 innings—65 fans—finished at 9:30 P.M.

5:04 — Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California — 6/20/1969 — American League — Athletics 3 Twins 2 in 14 innings — 20,691 fans.

5:38 — Parque Deportivo del Seguro Social (Social Security Stadium), Mexico City, Distrito Federal (Federal District), Mexico — 7/14/1969 — Mexican League — Reynosa Broncos 5 Mexico City Diablos Rojos (Red Devils) 3 in 22 innings — 3895 fans — finished at 1:08 A.M. in the early morning of 7/15.

5:41—Sicks' Stadium, Seattle, Washington — 7/19/ 1969 and 7/20/1969 — American League — Twins 11 Pilots 7 in 18 innings, suspended after 5:01 and 16 innings, moon landing delay 0:20 bottom 17th —12,067 fans on 7/19, 8287 fans on 7/20—suspended at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 7/20.

5:52 – Sicks' Stadium, Seattle, Washington – 7/27/ 1969 – American League – Red Sox 5 Pilots 3 in 20 innings – 9670 fans.

5:10-Barney Tadsen Field, Brownton, Minnesota -7/31/1969 – Town Team League – Brownton 6 New Ulm Kaiserhoff 5 in 18 innings – finished at 1:10 A.M. in the early morning of 8/1.

5:25 — Saskatoon, Province of Saskatchewan or Lethbridge, Province of Alberta, Canada — 7/25/1964 — Western Canada League — Saskatoon Blues 6 Lethbridge Cardinals 5 in 20 innings.

5:08 — Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California — 8/24/1969 — American League — Athletics 9 Orioles 0 in 2:31, then Athletics 9 Orioles 8 in 18 innings — 24,970 fans — 2nd game finished at 9:14 P.M.

5:17 — Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California — 9/6/1969 — American League — Twins 8 Athletics 6 in 18 innings —17,599 fans finished at 6:22 P.M.

1970's (51)

5:16 — Flamingo Park, Miami Beach, Florida — 4/23/1970 — Florida High School League — Miami High School Stingarees 1 Hialeah High School Thoroughbreds 0 in 24 innings; then Miami Coral Park High School Rams 9 Miami High School 0 in 2:44 and 7 innings — 500 fans; 1000 fans at end —1st game finished at 8:16 P.M.; 2nd game finished at 11:44 P.M.

5:29 – Candlestick Park, San Francisco, California – 5/23/1970 – National League – Padres 17 Giants 16 in 15 innings –15,536 fans.

6:37 — All-Sports Stadium, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma — 5/28/1970 and 5/29/1970 — American Association — Indianapolis Indians 10 Oklahoma City 89'ers 7 in 23 innings, suspended after 4:53 and 17 innings — 3118 fans on 5/28, 2836 fans on 5/29 — suspended at 12:53 A.M. in the early morning of 5/29.

6:03 — Shively Field, Lexington, Kentucky — 6/3/ 1970 — Kentucky High School League — Madisonville High School Maroons 12 Lexington Lafayette High School Generals 11 in 22 innings.

6:02 – Del Webb Field, Modesto, California – 6/19/1970 – California League – Modesto Reds 9 Reno Silver Sox 8 in 19 innings –1275 fans, 400 fans at end –finished at 1:57 A.M. in the early morning of 6/20.

5:45 — Parque Deportivo del Seguro Social (Social Security Stadium), Mexico City, Distrito Federal (Federal District) or Guadalajara, Mexico — 6/24/1970 — Mexican League — Mexico City Diablos Rojos (Red Devils) 10 Jalisco Charros 9 in 18 innings — finished at 1:15 A.M. in the early morning of 6/25.

5:00—Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts— 6/25/1970—American League—Orioles 13 Red Sox 8 in 14 innings—20,548 fans—finished at 6:30 P.M.

5:03 — Clark Field, Lafayette, Louisiana — 3/27/ 1971 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — University of Southwestern Louisiana (now University of Louisiana-Lafayette) Ragin' Cajuns 6 McNeese State University Cowboys 5 in 23 innings, then McNeese State 13 Southwestern Louisiana 10 in 2:30 and 7 innings —1st game finished at 6:33 P.M., 2nd game finished at 10:03 P.M.

5:43 – V.J. Keefe Stadium, San Antonio, Texas – 5/8/1971 – Dixie Association – San Antonio Missions 6 Birmingham Athletics 5 in 19 innings – 3574 fans – finished at 1:28 A.M. in the early morning of 5/9.

5:19 – R.F.K. Stadium, Washington, D.C. – 6/4/ 1971– American League – rain delay 0:17 at start, Athletics 6 Senators 3 in 21 innings – 6159 fans – finished at 1:36 A.M. in the early morning of 6/5.

7:00 — Recreation Park, Visalia, California — 6/19/ 1971 and 6/20/1971 — California League — Visalia Mets 11 Bakersfield Dodgers 9 in 22 innings, suspended after 4:50 and 15 innings, called a tie, however league president later reversed tie game ruling and ordered game to be continued — 867 fans on 6/19, 449 fans on 6/20 — suspended at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 6/20. 5:25 – V.J. Keefe Stadium, San Antonio, Texas – 7/3/1971– Dixie Association – Arkansas Travelers 12 San Antonio Missions 9 in 19 innings –1074 fans – finished at 1:25 A.M. in the early morning of 7/4.

5:05 — Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California — 7/9/1971 — American League — Athletics 1 Angels 0 in 20 innings — 22,938 fans finished at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 7/10.

5:56 — Ray Winder Field, Little Rock, Arkansas — 7/21/1971— Dixie Association — Arkansas Travelers 5 Dallas-Fort Worth Spurs 4 in 22 innings — 7030 fans, 600 fans at end —finished at 1:26 A.M. in the early morning of 7/22.

6:00—Bom Retiro (Good Place to Rest) Stadium, Sao Paulo, Brazil—9/7/1971—National Championships—Sul-Brasil 6 Presidente Venceslau 5 in 20 innings—2000 fans—finished at 5 P.M.

5:30—Barney Tadsen Field, Brownton, Minnesota — 9/9/1971—Minnesota Town Team League — Hector Flyers 4 Stark (later Stark Longhorns) 2 in 20 innings, rain delay 0:20 at start — 200 fans, 150 fans at end finished at 11:50 P.M.

6:15 — Cleveland Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio and R.F.K. Stadium, Washington, D.C. — 9/14/1971 and 9/20/1971— American League — Indians 3 Senators 1 in 1:54, then Senators 8 Indians 6 in 20 innings, suspended after 5:00 and 16 innings in Cleveland, completed 9/20 in Washington — 2639 fans on 9/14 in Cleveland, 100 fans at suspension, 1743 fans on 9/20 in Washington, 333 fans top 17th — suspended at 1:00 A.M. in the early morning of 9/15.

5:25 — San Diego (later Jack Murphy, then Qualcomm) Stadium, San Diego, California — 9/24/1971— National League — Astros 2 Padres 1 in 21 innings, then Padres 5 Astros 4 in 2:14, fog delay 0:14 bottom 9th — 6339 fans, 100 fans at end —finished at 2:29 A.M. in the early morning of 9/25.

5:47 — Metropolitan Stadium, Bloomington, Minnesota — 5/12/1972 and 5/13/1972 — American League — Brewers 4 Twins 3 in 22 innings, suspended after 5:35 and 21 innings — 8628 fans on 5/12, 7871 fans on 5/13 — suspended at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 5/13.

5:10—University Field, Amherst, Massachusetts— 5/13/1972—National Collegiate Athletic Association—University of Connecticut Huskies 9 University of Massachusetts Minutemen 3 in 20 innings.

5:31—Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California—8/10/1972 and 8/11/1972— American League—Athletics 5 White Sox 3 in 19 innings, suspended after 5:04 and 17 innings—11,818 fans on 8/10, 16,065 fans on 8/11—suspended at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 8/11.

6:14 — Grayson Stadium, Savannah, Georgia — 4/14/1973 — Southern League — Columbus Astros 10 Savannah Braves 4 in 23 innings, 2nd game postponed — 827 fans — finished at 12:45 A.M. in the early morning of 4/15, post-game fireworks finished at 1:10 A.M.

5:25 – Bringhurst Field, Alexandria, Louisiana – 4/28/1973 – Texas League – Memphis Blues 12 Alexandria Aces 9 in 19 innings –1520 fans – finished at 12:55 A.M. in the early morning of 4/29.

5:16 — Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 5/4/1973 — National League — Phillies 5 Braves 4 in 20 innings —10,158 fans — finished at 12:51 A.M. in the early morning of 5/5.

5:42 — Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California — 5/24/1973 — National League — Mets 7 Dodgers 3 in 19 innings — 27,580 fans —finished at 1:45 A.M. in the early morning of 5/25.

6:03 — Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois — 5/26/1973 and 5/27/1973 and 5/28/1973 — American League — White Sox 6 Indians 3 in 21 innings, rain delay 0:17 top 14th, suspended after 4:39 and 16 innings, rained out 5/27 — 19,486 fans on 5/26, 17,419 fans on 5/28 — suspended at 1:01 A.M. in the early morning of 5/27.

5:30—Newtown, Pennsylvania—6/3/1973—Pennsbury/Bucks County Senior Babe Ruth League—Newtown Lions 2 South Bristol Hawks 1 in 23 innings finished at 7:30 P.M.

6:06 — Regional Park, Midwest City, Oklahoma — 7/??/1973 — American Legion — Post 170 Midwest City 2 Post 170 Choctaw 1 in 24 innings — 50 fans, 15 fans at end — finished at 2:06 A.M. in the early morning of 7/??.

6:23 — Estadio (Stadium) Alberto Hoeffer, Nogales, State of Sonora, Mexico — 7/29/1973 — Liga (League) Norte de Sonora — Cananea Mineros (Miners) 4 Nogales 2 in 23 innings —1800 fans —finished at 1:53 A.M. in the early morning of 7/30.

5:35 — Danville Stadium, Danville, Illinois — 6/4/ 1974 — Midwest League — Waterloo Royals 7 Danville Warriors 5 in 21 innings — 722 fans, 94 fans at end finished at 1:10 A.M. in the early morning of 6/5.

7:04 — Shea Stadium, New York, New York — 9/11/1974 — National League — Cardinals 4 Mets 3 in 25 innings —13,460 fans, 1000 fans at end including Commissioner Bowie Kuhn —finished at 3:13 A.M. in the early morning of 9/12.

5:11—Shea Stadium, New York, New York and Metropolitan Stadium, Bloomington, Minnesota — 7/12/1975 and 7/13/1975 and 7/19/1975 — American League — Yankees 8 Twins 7 in 16 innings, rain delay 0:30 bottom 5th, suspended after 13½ innings in New York, rained out 7/13 in New York, finally completed 7/19 in Bloomington —13,573 fans on 7/12 in New York, 6000 fans at suspension, 37,602 fans on 7/19 in Bloomington — suspended at 1:06 A.M. in the early morning of 7/13.

5:33 — Waterloo Stadium, Waterloo, Iowa — 5/30/ 1976 — Midwest League — Burlington Bees 4 Waterloo Royals 3 in 22 innings, then Burlington 4 Waterloo 3 in 2:09 and 8 innings — 603 fans —1st game finished at 8:33 P.M., 2nd game finished at 11:12 P.M. 5:27 — Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York — 8/25/1976 — American League — Yankees 5 Twins 4 in 19 innings — 24,351 fans — finished at 1:36 A.M. in the early morning of 8/26.

5:30— Fairfax City, Virginia — 4/8/1977 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Brockport State College (later State University of New York — Brockport) Golden Eagles 2 George Mason University Patriots 2 in 20 innings, umpires Warner and Madeiros walked off the field at the end because they were too cold (it was 40 degrees), without even telling the coaches, who might have told them umpires did not walk off the field due to cold weather during baseball games played 3/25/1960 at the North Pole and 1/1/1997 at McMurdo Sound in Antarctica —0 fans at end in stands, but 50 fans at end in cars with heaters on —finished at 8:50 P.M.

6:30-Estadio (Stadium) Cordoba, Cordoba, State of Veracruz, Mexico – 4/28/1977 – Mexican League – Aguascalientes Rieleros (Railroadmen) 6 Cordoba Cafeteros (Coffee Growers) 2 in 23 innings – 4000 fans, 800 fans at end – finished at 3:00 A.M. in the early morning of 4/29.

5:33 — Stade Olympique (Olympic Stadium), Montreal, Province of Quebec, Canada — 5/21/1977 — National League — Padres 11 Expos 8 in 21 innings — 16,892 fans, 8000 fans at end —finished at 1:15 A.M. in the early morning of 5/22.

5:12 — Arlington Stadium, Arlington, Texas — 9/17/ 1977 — American League — Rangers 5 Twins 4 in 17 innings — 13,163 fans — finished at 12:47 A.M. in the early morning of 9/18.

5:02 – Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California – 5/14/1978 – National League – Cubs 10 Dodgers 7 in 15 innings – 31,698 fans – finished at 6:37 P.M.

6:45 — Providence, Rhode Island — 6/17/1978 — Sunset League — Mooseup Valley 4 Sports Enterprises 2 in 29 innings; 2nd game cancelled.

5:32 — Engel Stadium, Chattanooga, Tennessee — 7/29/1978 — Southern League — Chattanooga Lookouts 3 Savannah Braves 2 in 21 innings.

5:00- Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York - 8/2/1978 and 8/3/1978- American League- Red Sox 7 Yankees 5 in 17 innings, rain delay 0:35 top 8th, 2nd rain delay 0:17 bottom 12th, suspended after 14 innings - 52,701 fans on 8/2, 20,000 fans at suspension, 53,379 fans on 8/3- suspended at 1:16 A.M. in the early morning of 8/3.

5:20— Estadio (Stadium) Manuel "Ciclon" Echeverria, Navojoa, State of Baja California, Mexico — 1/2/1979 — Mexican Pacific League — Navojoa Mayos 1 Mexicali Aguilas (Eagles) 0 in 20 innings in 2nd game; Mexicali vs. Navojoa in 1st game.

5:17 — Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan — 5/26/ 1979 — American League — Orioles 7 Tigers 5 in 16 innings —14,583 fans.

5:00— Astrodome, Houston, Texas — 6/18/1979 — National League — Astros 3 Mets 2 in 18 innings — 14,076 fans — finished at 12:35 A.M. in the early morning of 6/19.

5:09 — Arlington Stadium, Arlington, Texas — 7/1/ 1979 — American League — Athletics 13 Rangers 12 in 15 innings — 16,819 fans — finished at 12:44 A.M. in the early morning of 7/2.

5:14 — County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin — 7/13/1979 — American League — Brewers 4 Indians 3 in 17 innings —18,524 fans — finished at 12:49 A.M. in the early morning of 7/14.

5:17 — Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois — 5/10/1979 and 7/23/1979 — National League — Cubs 9 Reds 8 in 18 innings, suspended after 3:11 and 9 innings so Cubs could catch 6:05 P.M. flight to Houston, which caused riot among Cubs fans in stands requiring 7 police cars and 3 paddywagons — 9164 fans on 5/10; 36,993 fans on 7/23 — suspended at 4:49 P.M.

5:12 — Dudley Field, El Paso, Texas — 8/14/1979 — Texas League — El Paso Diablos 11 Midland Cubs 10 in 18 innings, rain delay 0:44, 2nd rain delay 0:46 — 1664 fans — finished at 2:20 A.M. in the early morning of 8/15.

6:12 — San Diego (later Jack Murphy, then Qualcomm) Stadium, San Diego, California — 8/25/1979 — National League — Pirates 4 Padres 3 in 19 innings — 14,607 fans; 5000 fans at end — finished at 1:20 A.M. in the early morning of 8/26.

6:06 — Municipal Qiuchang (Stadium), Taipei, Taiwan — 9/15/1979 — Taiwan University League — Weichuan Foods/Chinese Culture University 1 Putaowang (Grape King) Biotechnology/Fu Jen Catholic University 0 in 21 innings — finished at 10:11 P.M.

1980's (103)

5:35 — Astrodome, Houston, Texas — 4/12/1980 — National League — Dodgers 6 Astros 5 in 17 innings — 24,609 fans.

5:31— Three Rivers Stadium, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania—7/6/1980— National League— Pirates 5 Cubs 4 in 20 innings—25,994 fans—finished at 6:36 P.M.

5:55 — MacArthur Stadium, Syracuse, New York — 7/30/1980 — International League — Richmond Braves 12 Syracuse Chiefs 6 in 22 innings — 3117 fans, 1000 fans at end —finished at 1:28 A.M. in the early morning of 7/31.

6:17 — San Diego (later Jack Murphy, then Qualcomm) Stadium, San Diego, California — 8/15/1980 — National League — Astros 3 Padres 1 in 20 innings — 14,177 fans — finished at 1:26 A.M. in the early morning of 8/16.

5:13 — Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 8/21/1980 — National League — Phillies 9 Padres 8 in 17 innings — 36,201 fans — finished at 6:48 P.M.

5:01— Shea Stadium, New York, New York — 8/26/ 1980— National League — Padres 8 Mets 6 in 18 innings — 9844 fans — finished at 6:36 P.M.

5:40—Estadio (Stadium) Quisqueya, Santo Domingo, Dominican—1/12/1981—Winter League— Orientales Estrellas (Oriental Stars) 4 Licey Tigres (Tigers) 3 in 22 innings—finished at 3:30 A.M. in the early morning of 1/13. 5:20—Thunderbird Park, Cedar City, Utah— 5/2/1981—National Association of Intercollegiate Athletics—Mesa State College Mavericks 9 New Mexico Highlands University Cowboys 8 in 20 innings, then Southern Utah State College Thunderbirds 5 Mesa State 4.

5:31— Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois — 5/13/ 1981— American League — Indians 4 White Sox 3 in 16 innings —10,463 fans —finished at 1:08 A.M. in the early morning of 5/14.

5:32 — Fort Lauderdale Stadium, Fort Lauderdale, Florida — 5/24/1981 and 5/25/1981— Florida State League — Fort Lauderdale Yankees 1 Tampa Tarpons 0 in 23 innings, suspended after 5:23 and 22 innings — 717 fans, 200 fans at suspension — suspended at 12:53 A.M. in the early morning of 5/25.

5:00—Rosenblatt Stadium, Omaha, Nebraska— 6/5/1981—National Collegiate Athletic Association College World Series—Oklahoma State University Cowboys 11 Arizona State University Sun Devils 10 in 13 innings.

8:25 — McCoy Stadium, Pawtucket, Rhode Island — 4/18/1981 and 6/23/1981— International League — power failure delay 0:30 at start, Pawtucket Paw Sox 3 Rochester Red Wings 2 in 33 innings, suspended after 8:07 and 32 innings —1740 fans, 150 fans Midnight, 100 fans top 21st, 60 fans 1 A.M., 27 fans top 27th, 19 fans at suspension, 5756 fans on 6/23 — suspended at 4:07 A.M. in the early morning of 4/19, dawn was at 5:00 A.M., finished at 6:18 P.M. on 6/23.

6:07 - Disch-Falk Field, Austin, Texas - 5/15/1981and $5/16/1981 - \text{National Collegiate Athletic Associa$ tion - University of Texas Longhorns 7 Rice University Owls 6 in 20 innings, rain delay 2:00 top 13th,suspended after 3:10 and 12 innings <math>- 4700 fans on 5/15, 300 fans at suspension, 3000 fans on $5/16 - \text{sus$ $pended}$ at 1:15 A.M. in the early morning of 5/16, finished at 3:02 P.M. on 5/16.

5:00—Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California—8/15/1981—American League —Athletics 8 Angels 7 in 13 innings—20,101 fans finished at 6:35 P.M.

5:30—Parc (Park) Victor Gadbois, Montreal, Province of Quebec, Canada — 8/30/1981—Ligue Montreal Junior (Montreal Junior League)—St. Leonard Cougars 2 Sud-Ouest (Southwest) 1 in 22 innings finished at 7:30 P.M.

6:01—Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts— 9/3/1981 and 9/4/1981—American League—Mariners 8 Red Sox 7 in 20 innings, suspended after 5:39 and 19 innings—13,355 fans on 9/3, 1000 fans at suspension, 20,836 fans on 9/4—suspended at 1:16 A.M. in the early morning of 9/4.

5:31—Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California—4/8/1982—American League —Angels 8 Athletics 6 in 16 innings—17,806 fans; 1000 fans at end—finished at 1:09 A.M. in the early morning of 4/9. 5:18 — Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California — 4/11/1982 — American League — Mariners 6 Athletics 3 in 16 innings, rain delay 1:12 bottom 10th, then Athletics 3 Mariners 1 in 2:32 — 19,003 fans —1st game finished at 7:35 P.M.; 2nd game finished at 10:37 P.M.

6:06 — Anaheim Stadium (later Edison International Field, then Angels Stadium), Anaheim, California — 4/13/1982 and 4/14/1982 — American League — Angels 4 Mariners 3 in 20 innings, suspended after 5:24 and 17 innings — 33,574 fans on 4/13, 23,905 fans on 4/14 — suspended at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 4/14.

5:03 — Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California — 4/20/1982 — Angels 4 Twins 3 in 16 innings —12,488 fans — finished at 12:38 A.M. in the early morning of 4/21.

5:00— Candlestick (later 3-Com) Park, San Francisco, California— 6/26/1982— National League— Padres 7 Giants 6 in 15 innings— 8612 fans—finished at 6:35 P.M.

6:39 — Smith-Wills Stadium, Jackson, Mississippi — 7/6/1982 — Texas League — Tulsa Drillers 11 Jackson Mets 7 in 23 innings —1105 fans, 200 fans at end —finished at 2:09 A.M. in the early morning of 7/7.

6:10—Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois—8/17/1982 and 8/18/1982—National League—Dodgers 2 Cubs 1 in 21 innings, suspended after 5:10 and 17 innings— 26,576 fans on 8/17, 27,429 fans on 8/18—suspended at 6:45 P.M. on 8/17, finished at 12:05 P.M. on 8/18.

5:20 – Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California – 9/13/1982 – National League – Dodgers 4 Padres 3 in 16 innings – 37,512 fans.

5:17 — Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California — 5/23/1983 — American League — Athletics 5 Brewers 4 in 17 innings — 24,029 fans.

5:10—Candlestick (later 3Com) Park, San Francisco, California—6/21/1983—National League— Reds 6 Giants 5 in 16 innings—8943 fans—finished at 1:25 A.M. in the early morning of 6/22.

5:19 — Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California — 7/3/1983 — American League — Rangers 16 Athletics 4 in 15 innings — 20,697 fans.

5:44 – Community Field (II), Burlington, Iowa – 8/10/1983 and 8/11/1983 – Midwest League – Burlington Rangers 7 Clinton Giants 6 in 21 innings, rain delay 0:06 bottom 11th, 2nd rain delay 0:01 bottom 18th, suspended after 4:54 and 17½ innings – suspended at 12:35 A.M. in the early morning of 8/11.

8:19 – Ibaraki-Mito Kenei (Prefectural) Kyujyo (Stadium), Mito, Japan – 9/20/1983 – Amateur Industrial Emperor's Cup Nan-shiki Tournament – Tokyo Raito (Light) Kogyo (Manufacturing Company) 2 Miyazaki Tanaka Byouin (Hospital) 1 in 45 innings, umpire snack break delay 0:06 top 26th, players refused 0:30 break top 26th—100 fans at end finished at 5:15 P.M.

5:44 — Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan — 4/27/ 1984 — American League — Indians 8 Tigers 4 in 19 innings — 34,112 fans, 7000 fans at end —finished at 1:22 A.M. in the early morning of 4/28.

5:02 — Memorial Stadium, Baltimore, Maryland — 5/2/1984 — American League — Indians 9 Orioles 7 in 16 innings —12,968 fans —finished at 6:37 P.M.

8:06 – Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois – 5/8/1984 and 5/9/1984 – American League – White Sox 7 Brewers 6 in 25 innings, suspended after 5:29 and 17 innings –14,754 fans on 5/8, 17,715 fans on 5/9 – suspended at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 5/9.

5:02 — Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York — 5/11/1984 — American League — Mariners 4 Yankees 3 in 17 innings —15,716 fans — finished at 1:08 A.M. in the early morning of 5/12.

5:11— Three Rivers Stadium, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 7/13/1984 — National League — Pirates 8 Giants 2 in 2:37, then Pirates 4 Giants 3 in 18 innings, fireworks show started at 1:45 A.M. — 22,167 fans, 10,000 fans at end —finished at 1:32 A.M. in the early morning of 7/14.

6:02 — Municipal Stadium, Greenville, South Carolina — 7/13/1984 and 7/14/1984 — Southern League — Memphis Chicks 3 Greenville Braves 2 in 19 innings, then Greenville 6 Memphis 5 in 2:11 and 7 innings, suspended after 2 innings, completed 7/14 as 1st game of tripleheader — 3044 fans on 7/13, 250 fans at suspension, 4456 fans on 7/14 — suspended at 1:07 A.M. in the early morning of 7/14.

5:37 — Centennial Field, Burlington, Vermont — 8/ 23/1984 and 8/24/1984 — Eastern League — Albany-Colonie Athletics 9 Vermont Reds 7 in 17 innings, automatic sprinkler malfunction delay 0:17 bottom 17th, suspended after 5:12 and 16½ innings when outfield sprinklers could not be turned off—2909 fans on 8/23, 250 fans at suspension, 2194 fans on 8/24 — suspended at 1:06 A.M. in the early morning of 8/24.

5:02 — Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California — 9/6/1984 — National League — Braves 3 Dodgers 2 in 18 innings — 28,169 fans — finished at 12:37 A.M. in the early morning of 9/7.

6:38 — Estadio (Stadium) Tomas Oroz Gaytan, Ciudad Obregon, State of Sonora, Mexico —12/30/ 1984 — Mexican Pacific League — Guaymas Ostioneros (Oyster Growers) 6 Obregon Yaquis 4 in 15 innings finished at 2:08 A.M. in the early morning of 12/31.

5:21— Shea Stadium, New York, New York — 4/28/ 1985 — National League — Mets 5 Pirates 4 in 18 innings — 36,423 fans.

5:04 — Memorial Stadium, Baltimore, Maryland — 6/4/1985 — American League — Angels 6 Orioles 5 in 15 innings —17,237 fans — finished at 12:39 A.M. in the early morning of 6/5.

5:37 – Cooper Stadium, Columbus, Ohio – 6/10/

1985 and 6/11/1985 and 6/12/1985 — International League — Columbus Clippers 8 Syracuse Chiefs 7 in 21 innings, suspended after 5:18 and 20 innings, rained out 6/11, finally completed 6/12 —12,616 fans on 6/10, 400 fans at suspension, 2000 fans on 6/12 — suspended at 12:53 A.M. in the early morning of 6/11.

7:07 — MacArthur Stadium, Syracuse, New York — 6/19/1985 and 6/20/1985 and 6/21/1985 — International League — Pawtucket Paw Sox 3 Syracuse Chiefs 1 in 27 innings, suspended after 5:36 and 22 innings, continued 6/20, rain delay 0:13 top 23rd, 2nd rain delay 0:50 bottom 24th, suspended again after 6:07 and 23½ innings, finally completed 6/21—1233 fans on 6/19; 200 fans when suspended after 22 innings; 3020 fans on 6/21— suspended at 1:12 A.M. in the early morning of 6/20, suspended again at 9:05 P.M. on 6/20, finished at 7:31 P.M. on 6/21.

5:25 — Smith-Wills Stadium, Jackson, Mississippi — 6/28/1985 — Texas League — Jackson Mets 3 Tulsa Drillers 2 in 16 innings —1822 fans — finished at 12:55 A.M. in the early morning of 6/29.

6:10—Atlanta-Fulton County Stadium, Atlanta, Georgia — 7/4/1985 — National League — rain delay 1:24 at start, Mets 16 Braves 13 in 19 innings, 2nd rain delay 0:41 bottom 3rd, 4th of July fireworks show began 4:01 A.M., ended 4:12 A.M. — 44,947 fans, 8000 fans at end — finished at 3:55 A.M. in the early morning of 7/5.

5:12 — Astrodome, Houston, Texas — 7/7/1985 — National League — Expos 6 Astros 3 in 19 innings — 14,493 fans — finished at 12:47 A.M. in the early morning of 7/8.

5:03 – Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois – 8/1/1985 – National League – Cubs 9 Cardinals 8 in 14 innings – 36,164 fans.

5:55 — Osceola County Stadium, Kissimmee, Florida — 8/31/1985 — Florida State League — Osceola Astros 6 Fort Lauderdale Yankees 4 in 19 innings finished at 1:25 A.M. in the early morning of 9/1.

5:03 — Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 4/12/1986 — National League — Phillies 9 Mets 8 in 14 innings — 22,737 fans.

5:22 – Stade (Stadium) Olympique (Olympic), Montreal, Province of Quebec, Canada – 4/19/1986 – National League – Cardinals 9 Expos 6 in 17 innings –14,188 fans – finished at 6:57 P.M.

5:20—Fair Grounds Field, Shreveport, Louisiana— 4/22/1986—Texas League—Shreveport Captains 7 Tulsa Drillers 5 in 17 innings—1683 fans—finished at 12:50 A.M. in the early morning of 4/23.

6:15 — Mayo Field, Rochester, Minnesota — 5/10/ 1986 and 5/20/1986 — Minnesota High School League — Rochester Mayo High School Spartans 3 Mankato East High School Cougars 2 in 20 innings, rain delay 1:30 bottom 10th, suspended after 3:00 and 9½ innings, then Rochester Mayo 11 Mankato East 10 in 2:30 and 7 innings —125 fans on 5/10— suspended at 3:30 P.M. on 5/10, 1st game finished at 8:15 P.M. on 5/20; 2nd game finished at 11:15 P.M. on 5/20. 5:00 – Mark Light Stadium, Coral Gables, Florida – 5/23/1986 – National Collegiate Athletic Association Atlantic Regionals – Georgia Technical Institute Yellow Jackets 9 US Naval Academy Midshipmen 8 in 14 innings.

5:29 — Astrodome, Houston, Texas — 7/20/1986 — National League — Astros 9 Mets 8 in 15 innings — 23,900 fans.

5:00— Riverfront Stadium (later Cinergy Field), Cincinnati, Ohio—7/22/1986— National League— Mets 6 Reds 3 in 14 innings—23,707 fans—finished at 12:35 A.M. in the early morning of 7/23.

6:09 — Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois — 4/20/1986 and 8/11/1986 — National League — Pirates 10 Cubs 8 in 17 innings, suspended after 4:48 and 13 innings — 18,508 fans on 4/20; 20,636 fans on 8/11— suspended at 6:18 P.M.

5:35 — Owen Bush Stadium, Indianapolis, Indiana — 8/17/1986 — American Association — Buffalo Bisons 6 Indianapolis Indians 5 in 20 innings —1507 fans —finished at 12:05 A.M. in the early morning of 8/18.

5:14 — Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois — 9/2/1986and 9/3/1986 — National League — Astros 8 Cubs 7 in 18 innings, suspended after $14\frac{1}{2}$ innings — 10,501fans on 9/2; 7051 fans on 9/3.

5:45 — San Marino Stadium, San Marino, San Marino, Europe — 9/16/1986 — European Confederation Playoffs — Biemme Fortitudo Bologna 12 Chesterfield San Marino 10 in 17 innings — finished at 2:45 A.M. in the early morning of 9/17.

5:45 — Candlestick Park, San Francisco, California — 9/28/1986 — National League — Giants 6 Dodgers 5 in 16 innings — 28,603 fans.

7:30—Robert C. Wynn Field, Bradenton, Florida— 4/4/1987—National Junior Collegiate Athletic Association—Hillsborough Community College Hawks 6 Manatee Community College Lancers 4 in 32 innings—200 fans, 45 fans at end—finished at 9:30 P.M.

6:04 – V.J. Keefe Stadium, San Antonio, Texas – 5/21/1987 – Texas League – Shreveport Captains 4 San Antonio Dodgers 3 in 21 innings –1144 fans – finished at 1:04 A.M. in the early morning of 5/22.

5:13 — Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois — 5/23/1987 — National League — Cubs 7 Braves 6 in 16 innings — 33,225 fans —finished at 6:33 P.M.

5:02 — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 6/19/1987 — American League — Yankees 10 Red Sox 5 in 13 innings — 33,835 fans — finished at 12:37 A.M. in the early morning of 6/20.

5:36 — Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York -7/11/1987 — American League — White Sox 5 Yankees 2 in 15 innings — 45,528 fans.

5:47 — American Legion Ballfield, Mobridge, South Dakota — 8/4/1987 — South Dakota Amateur Association — Mobridge 7 Redfield Merchants (later Pheasants, then Dairy Queen) 6 in 22 innings.

5:16 – Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California –

9/6/1987 — National League — Dodgers 3 Mets 2 in 16 innings — 29,600 fans — finished at 6:51 P.M.

5:40—Busch Stadium (II), St. Louis, Missouri— 5/14/1988—National League—Braves 7 Cardinals 5 in 19 innings—47,887 fans—finished at 1:15 A.M. in the early morning of 5/15.

5:20—Exhibition Stadium, Toronto, Province of Ontario, Canada—5/17/1988—American League— Rangers 7 Blue Jays 6 in 14 innings—25,170 fans.

6:19 — Riverside Sports Complex, Riverside, California — 5/22/1988 — California League — San Jose Giants 8 Riverside Red Wave 5 in 21 innings — finished at 1:19 A.M. in the early morning of 5/23.

5:18 — Beehive Stadium, New Britain, Connecticut — 5/26/1988 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Clemson University Tigers 3 Fordham University Rams 2 in 19 innings — 404 fans — finished at 5:18 P.M.

5:59 — Al Lang Field (II), St. Petersburg, Florida and Holman Stadium, Vero Beach, Florida — 4/29/ 1988 and 5/28/1988 — Florida State League — Vero Beach Dodgers 6 St. Petersburg Cardinals 5 in 20 innings, suspended after 5:29 and 18 innings, completed in Vero Beach — suspended at 1:04 A.M. in the early morning of 4/30.

5:46 — Memorial Stadium, Baltimore, Maryland — 6/4/1988 — American League — Orioles 7 Yankees 6 in 14 innings — 36,499 fans.

8:15 — Burlington Athletic Stadium, Burlington, North Carolina — 6/24/1988 — Appalachian League — Bluefield Orioles 3 Burlington Indians 2 in 27 innings — 2204 fans, 84 fans at end —finished at 3:27 A.M. in the early morning of 6/25.

5:02 — Exhibition Stadium, Toronto, Province of Ontario, Canada — 7/3/1988 — American League — Athletics 9 Blue Jays 8 in 16 innings — 32,329 fans finished at 6:37 P.M.

5:22 — J.P. Riddle Stadium, Fayetteville, North Carolina — 7/10/1988 — South Atlantic (Sally) League — Charleston (Wv) Wheelers 7 Fayetteville Generals 5 in 21 innings — 843 fans — finished at 12:52 A.M. in the early morning of 7/11.

7:23 – V.J. Keefe Stadium, San Antonio, Texas – 7/14/1988 and 7/16/1988 – Texas League – San Antonio Missions 1 Jackson Mets 0 in 26 innings, suspended after 7:10 and 25 innings – 3792 fans on 7/14, 3260 fans on 7/16 – suspended at 2:15 A.M. in the early morning of 7/15.

5:30—Arlington Stadium, Arlington, Texas—9/10/ 1988—American League—Rangers 3 Angels 2 in 17 innings—22,972 fans—finished at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 9/11.

6:01—Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York— 9/11/1988—American League—Yankees 5 Tigers 4 in 18 innings—39,008 fans—finished at 7:31 P.M.

5:04 — County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin — 9/23/1988 — American League — Athletics 9 Brewers 8 in 14 innings — 24,163 fans — finished at 12:39 A.M. in the early morning of 9/24. 7:14—Estadio (Stadium) Emilio Ibarra, Los Mochis, State of Sinaloa, Mexico—11/26/1988—Mexican Pacific League—Los Mochis Caneros (Sugar Cane Growers) 4 Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2 in 21 innings—finished at 2:44 A.M. in the early morning of 11/27.

5:23 — Estadio (Stadium) Teodoro Mariscal, Mazatlan, Mexico — 2/?/1989 — Caribbean World Series — Zulia Aguilas (Eagles) (Venezuela) defeated Escogido Leones Rojos (Red Lions) (Dominican) in 16 innings.

5:35 — Parry Field, Belmont, State of Western Australia, Australia — 3/17/1989 — Western Australia Grand Series Final — Melville Braves 6 Morley Eagles 2 in 22 innings —1500 fans — finished at 12:50 A.M. in the early morning of 3/18.

5:07 — Royals Stadium, Kansas City, Missouri — 4/12/1989 — American League — Orioles 5 Royals 4 in 15 innings — 20,261 fans — finished at 12:42 A.M. in the early morning of 4/13.

5:09 — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 4/27/1989 — American League — White Sox 3 Red Sox 1 in 16 innings — 23,830 fans — finished at 12:14 A.M. in the early morning of 4/28.

5:22 — Cheney Stadium, Tacoma, Washington — 4/28/1989 — Pacific Coast League — Tacoma Tigers 4 Las Vegas Stars 3 in 19 innings — 3693 fans — finished at 1:00 A.M. in the early morning of 4/29.

5:58 - V.J. Keefe Stadium, San Antonio, Texas – 5/3/1989 - Texas League – Midland Angels 5 San Antonio Missions 3 in 19 innings –1296 fans, 24 fans at end –finished at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 5/4.

5:57 — Olsen Field, College Station, Texas — 5/5/ 1989 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — University of Arkansas Razorbacks 11 Texas Agricultural and Mechanical (A&M) University Aggies 9 in 16 innings — 5388 fans, 3000 fans at end.

5:04 — Community Field (II), Burlington, Iowa — 5/15/1989 — Midwest League — Rockford Expos 4 Burlington Braves 2 in 20 innings.

6:29 — Ed Smith Stadium, Sarasota, Florida and Dunedin Stadium at Grant Field (later Knology Park), Dunedin, Florida — 4/24/1989 and 5/17/1989 — Florida State League — Dunedin Blue Jays 8 Sarasota White Sox 3 in 21 innings, suspended after 5:48 and 20 innings — 525 fans on 4/24, 45 fans at suspension, 307 fans on 5/17 — suspended at 12:48 A.M. in the early morning of 4/25.

5:14 — Smith-Wills Stadium, Jackson, Mississippi — 5/17/1989 — Texas League — San Antonio Missions 2 Jackson Mets 1 in 16 innings — 1043 fans — finished at 12:19 A.M. in the early morning of 5/18.

6:37 — Hoover Met Stadium, Hoover, Alabama — 6/2/1989 — Southern League — Birmingham Barons 5 Huntsville Stars 4 in 18 innings — 7034 fans — finished at 1:42 A.M. in the early morning of 6/3.

7:14 — Astrodome, Houston, Texas — 6/3/1989 — National League — Astros 5 Dodgers 4 in 22 innings — 34,425 fans — finished at 2:50 A.M. in the early morning of 6/4.

5:21—Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California— 6/27/1989—National League—Padres 5 Dodgers 3 in 17 innings—37,385 fans—finished at 12:56 A.M. in the early morning of 6/28.

5:12 – V.J. Keefe Stadium, San Antonio, Texas – 7/6/1989 – Texas League – San Antonio Missions 2 Tulsa Drillers 1 in 16 innings – 3129 fans – finished at 12:17 A.M. in the early morning of 7/7.

5:07 — Anaheim Stadium (later Edison International Field, then Angels Stadium), Anaheim, California — 7/22/1989 — American League — Angels 5 Tigers 4 in 16 innings — 48,766 fans —finished at 12:42 A.M. in the early morning of 7/23.

5:42 — Three Rivers Stadium, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 8/6/1989 — National League — Pirates 5 Cubs 4 in 18 innings, rain delay 0:45 bottom 10th — 24,716 fans — finished at 7:32 P.M. — author sat in lower deck behind home plate.

5:01—Diamond, Richmond, Virginia — 8/7/1989 — International League — Toledo Mud Hens 4 Richmond Braves 1 in 21 innings, then Richmond 3 Toledo 0 in 2:23 and 7 innings —100 fans at end —finished at 1:57 A.M. in the early morning of 8/8.

5:23 — Memorial Stadium, Baltimore, Maryland — 8/12/1989 — American League — Red Sox 10 Orioles 8 in 13 innings — 50,865 fans — finished at 12:58 A.M. in the early morning of 8/13.

7:37 — Waterloo Stadium, Waterloo, Iowa and Riverview Stadium (later Alliant Energy Field), Clinton, Iowa — 7/6/1989 and 8/17/1989 — Midwest League — Waterloo Diamonds 4 Clinton Giants 3 in 25 innings, suspended after 5:46 and 19 innings in Waterloo, completed 8/17 in Clinton — 876 fans on 7/6 in Waterloo, 809 fans on 8/17 in Clinton — suspended at 12:51 A.M. in the early morning of 7/7.

7:13 — Memorial Stadium, Everett, Washington and Civic Stadium, Eugene, Oregon — 8/18/1989 and 8/24/1989 — Northwest League — Eugene Emeralds 6 Everett Giants 5 in 25 innings, suspended after 5:50 and 19 innings in Everett, completed 8/24 in Eugene — 2998 fans on 8/24 — suspended at 12:50 A.M. in the early morning of 8/19.

6:14 — Stade Olympique (Olympic Stadium), Montreal, Province of Quebec, Canada — 8/23/1989 — National League — Dodgers 1 Expos 0 in 22 innings — 21,742 fans — finished at 1:25 A.M. in the early morning of 8/24.

5:23 — Cleveland Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio — 9/9/1989 — American League — Blue Jays 7 Indians 5 in 16 innings —15,154 fans — finished at 12:58 A.M. in the early morning of 9/10.

5:26 — Cleveland Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio — 9/21/1989 — American League — Indians 5 Angels 4 in 17 innings — 4735 fans — finished at 1:01 A.M. in the early morning of 9/22.

1990's (105)

5:00—Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois— 4/30/1990—American League—White Sox 5 Rangers 4 in 13 innings—8406 fans—finished at 12:35 A.M. in the early morning of 5/1.

5:35 – Joe Davis Stadium, Huntsville, Alabama – 6/10/1990 – Southern League – Huntsville Stars 3 Knoxville Blue Jays 2 in 19 innings, then Huntsville 2 Knoxville 0 in 2:05 and 7 innings – finished at 2:10 A.M. in the early morning of 6/11.

6:39 — Municipal Stadium, Phoenix, Arizona — 6/23/1990 — Pacific Coast League — Calgary Cannons 12 Phoenix Firebirds 9 in 20 innings — finished at 1:49 A.M. in the early morning of 6/24.

5:31— County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin— 7/6/1990— American League — Angels 9 Brewers 8 in 16 innings — 25,244 fans — finished at 1:06 A.M. in the early morning of 7/7.

5:03 – Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California – 7/27/1990 – National League – Dodgers 5 Braves 4 in 12 innings – 40,907 fans.

5:59 — Charlotte County Stadium, Port Charlotte, Florida — 8/3/1990 and 8/6/1990 — Florida State League — Charlotte Rangers 4 Sarasota White Sox 3 in 16 innings, rain delay 0:50 bottom 2nd, suspended after 5:05 and 14 innings —1665 fans on 8/3, 3026 fans on 8/6 — suspended at 1:00 A.M. in the early morning of 8/4.

5:15 — Jack Murphy (later Qualcomm) Stadium, San Diego, California — 8/15/1990 — National League — Expos 5 Padres 3 in 17 innings —14,271 fans finished at 12:50 A.M. in the early morning of 8/16.

6:20—Billy Hebert Field, Stockton, California— 9/5/1990 and 9/6/1990—California League playoffs— Bakersfield Dodgers 5 Stockton Ports 4 in 22 innings, suspended after 5:53 and 21 innings—1497 fans on 9/5; 175 fans when suspended; 1559 fans on 9/6—suspended at 1:27 A.M. in the early morning of 9/6; finished at 6:25 P.M. on 9/6.

6:25 — Greer Stadium, Nashville, Tennessee — 9/7/1990 — American Association playoffs — Omaha Royals 8 Nashville Sounds 7 in 20 innings, rain delay 1:46 bottom 11th —14,482 fans, 500 fans top 12th, 300 fans at end — finished at 3:50 A.M. in the early morning of 9/8.

5:08 — Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 9/23/1990 — National League — Phillies 2 Expos 1 in 16 innings — 25,717 fans — finished at 6:43 P.M.

6:05 — County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin — 5/1/1991—American League — Brewers 10 White Sox 9 in 19 innings —13,973 fans —finished at 7:35 P.M.

5:31— Kingdome, Seattle, Washington — 5/5/1991 — American League — Mariners 5 Yankees 4 in 16 innings — 24,391 fans — finished at 10:36 P.M.

5:37 — County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin — 5/27/1991— American League — Tigers 15 Brewers 9 in 14 innings — 27,667 fans — finished at 7:12 P.M.

6:28 – Royals Stadium, Kansas City, Missouri –

6/6/1991—American League—Royals 4 Rangers 3 in 18 innings—38,523 fans—finished at 8:03 P.M.

6:32 - Tim McCarver Stadium, Memphis, Tennessee - 6/17/1991 and 6/18/1991 - Southern League - Huntsville Stars 9 Memphis Chicks 7 in 20 innings, suspended after 5:33 and 16 innings - 6845 fans on 6/17, 2349 fans on 6/18 - suspended at 1:12 A.M. in the early morning of 6/18, finished at 7:40 P.M. on 6/18.

5:32 — Royals Stadium, Kansas City, Missouri — 7/17/1991— American League — Royals 9 Orioles 8 in 15 innings — 21,821 fans — finished at 1:07 A.M. in the early morning of 7/18.

5:01—Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts—7/31/ 1991—American League—Red Sox 11 Athletics 10 in 14 innings—34,218 fans—finished at 12:36 A.M. in the early morning of 8/1.

5:12 — SkyDome, Toronto, Province of Ontario, Canada — 8/8/1991 — American League — Tigers 4 Blue Jays 0 in 14 innings — 50,307 fans — finished at 12:17 A.M. in the early morning of 8/9.

6:30—Cleveland Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio— 4/11/1992—American League—Red Sox 7 Indians 5 in 19 innings—65,813 fans; 30,000 fans at end finished at 8:05 P.M.

5:01—Jack Murphy (later Qualcomm) Stadium, San Diego, California—4/24/1992—National League —Reds 7 Padres 6 in 16 innings—22,956 fans finished at 12:36 A.M. in the early morning of 4/25.

5:06 – Busch Stadium (II), St. Louis, Missouri – 4/25/1992 – National League – Cardinals 2 Expos 1 in 17 innings – 24,849 fans – finished at 12:41 A.M. in the early morning of 4/26.

5:04 — Toro Field, Carson, California — 5/5/1992 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — California State University at Dominguez Hills Toros 11 California Polytechnic University at Pomona Broncos 10 in 15 innings — 36 fans — finished at 6:04 P.M.

5:06 — Three Rivers Stadium, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 5/6/1992 — National League — Pirates 4 Braves 3 in 16 innings —18,686 fans — finished at 12:11 A.M. in the early morning of 5/7.

5:30—Fair Grounds Field, Shreveport, Louisiana— 5/26/1992—Texas League—Shreveport Captains 3 Wichita Wranglers 2 in 17 innings—5023 fans finished at 7:05 P.M.

5:08 — Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California — 6/12/1992 — American League — Athletics 6 Rangers 5 in 14 innings — 43,200 fans finished at 12:13 A.M. in the early morning of 6/13.

6:39 — Mulcahy Stadium, Anchorage — 6/23/1992 — Alaska League — Anchorage Glacier Pilots defeated Kamloops in 21 innings —12 fans at end —finished at 2:15 A.M. in the early morning of 6/24.

5:05 — MacArthur Stadium, Syracuse, New York — 7/19/1992 — International League — Syracuse Chiefs 8 Pawtucket PawSox 7 in 15 innings, then Syracuse 4 Pawtucket 3 in 2:16 and 7 innings —14,143 fans; 200 fans at end —finished at 1:54 A.M. in the early morning of 7/20.

5:01—Riverfront Stadium (later Cinergy Field), Cincinnati, Ohio—8/8/1992—National League— Reds 4 Giants 3 in 16 innings—36,100 fans—finished at 12:36 A.M. in the early morning of 8/9.

5:23 — Anaheim Stadium (later Edison International Field, then Angel Stadium), Anaheim, California — 8/9/1992 — American League — White Sox 12 Angels 8 in 14 innings — 25,401 fans — finished at 6:28 P.M.

5:05 – Shea Stadium, New York, New York – 8/ 10/1992 – National League – Pirates 4 Mets 2 in 16 innings – 25,387 fans – finished at 12:40 A.M. in the early morning of 8/11.

5:10—Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois—8/11/1992 — National League—Expos 3 Cubs 2 in 17 innings— 31,528 fans—finished at 6:45 P.M.

6:10—Owen Fish Park, Fairfield, Connecticut— 8/14/1992 and 8/15/1992—Northeast Regionals, National Amateur League—New Rochelle Robins 2 Worcester Warriors 1 in 24 innings, suspended after 10 innings.

5:04 — Candlestick (later 3-Com) Park, San Francisco, California — 9/8/1992 — National League — Giants 6 Padres 5 in 16 innings — 7731 fans — finished at 12:39 A.M. in the early morning of 9/9.

5:49 — Koshien Kyujyo (Stadium), Osaka, Japan — 9/11/1992 — Central League — Yakult Swallows 3 Hanshin Tigers 3 in 15 innings, rhubarb delay 0:37 finished at 12:26 A.M. in the early morning of 9/12.

5:08 — Arlington Stadium, Arlington, Texas — 9/25/1992 — American League — Mariners 4 Rangers 3 in 16 innings —19,822 fans — finished at 12:13 A.M. in the early morning of 9/26.

6:01—Hiroshima Kyujyo (Stadium), Hiroshima, Japan—10/1/1992—Central League—Hiroshima Carp 8 Yakult Swallows 7 in 13 innings.

6:20—Evans High School Field, Augusta, Georgia—5/21/1993—Georgia High School League—Augusta Evans High School Knights 3 Marietta Sprayberry High School Yellow Jackets 2 in 17 innings —1500 fans—finished at 11:20 P.M.

5:34 — Camden Yards, Baltimore, Maryland — 5/22/1993 — American League — Orioles 5 Brewers 4 in 14 innings — 46,177 fans — finished at 1:09 A.M. in the early morning of 5/2.

5:11—Al Lang Field (II), St. Petersburg, Florida — 6/8/1993 — Florida State League — St. Petersburg Cardinals 4 Lakeland Tigers 3 in 20 innings —1229 fans finished at 12:46 A.M. in the early morning of 6/9.

6:10—Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania—7/7/1993—National League—Phillies 7 Dodgers 6 in 20 innings—41,730 fans—finished at 1:47 A.M. in the early morning of 7/8.

5:11—County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin— 8/24/1993—American League—Brewers 9 Athletics 2 in 3:01, then Brewers 7 Athletics 6 in 13 innings, brawl delay 0:10 top 10th—16,570 fans—finished at 1:55 A.M. in the early morning of 8/25. 6:17 — Hubert H. Humphrey Metrodome, Minneapolis, Minnesota — 8/31/1993 — American League — Twins 5 Indians 4 in 22 innings —17,968 fans, 1500 fans at end —finished at 1:22 A.M. in the early morning of 9/1.

5:28 — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 9/1/ 1993 — American League — Rangers 9 Red Sox 7 in 12 innings — 27,396 fans.

7:02 — Estadio (Stadium) Teodoro Mariscal, Mazatlan, State of Sinaloa, Mexico — 10/26/1993 — Mexican Pacific League — Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2 Guasave Algodoneros (Cotton Pickers) 1 in 22 innings — finished at 2:32 A.M. in the early morning of 10/27.

7:07 — Al Lang Field (II), St. Petersburg, Florida — 4/14/1994 — Florida State League — St. Petersburg Cardinals 8 Lakeland Tigers 7 in 20 innings —1021 fans —finished at 2:42 A.M. in the early morning of 4/15.

5:07 — Diamond, Richmond, Virginia — 5/12/1994 — International League — Richmond Braves 2 Scranton/Wilkes-Barre Red Barons 1 in 17 innings, then Richmond 4 Scranton-Wilkes-Barre 2 in 1:31 and 7 innings — 4486 fans — finished at 1:08 A.M. in the early morning of 5/13.

5:58 — Owen Bush Stadium, Indianapolis, Indiana — 6/30/1994 — American Association — Nashville Sounds 9 Indianapolis Indians 7 in 19 innings — 2047 fans, 50 fans at end —finished at 1:13 A.M. in the early morning of 7/1.

5:40—Jacobs Field, Cleveland, Ohio — 7/20/1994 —American League — rain delay 0:33 at start, Rangers 13 Indians 11 in 14 innings — 40,280 fans — finished at 1:18 A.M. in the early morning of 7/21.

5:05 — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 8/7/ 1994 — American League — Indians 15 Red Sox 10 in 12 innings in 2nd game; Red Sox 4 Indians 1 in 3:08 in 1st game — 34,523 fans — 2nd game finished at 9:48 P.M.

6:17 — Oakes Oval, Lismore, State of New South Wales, Australia — 12/31/1994 — AAA Asian Under 19 Series — Australia 9 Chinese Taipei 8 in 20 innings, 2nd game postponed — 300 fans, 300 fans at end finished at 9:47 P.M.

5:13 — Memorial Stadium, Fort Wayne, Indiana — 4/7/1995 — Midwest League — Fort Wayne Wizards 5 Michigan Battle Cats 4 in 18 innings — 3260 fans; 100 fans at end —finished at 12:21 A.M. in the early morning of 4/8.

5:00— Hammond Stadium, Fort Myers, Florida— 4/8/1995— Florida State League— Fort Myers Miracle 5 Charlotte Rangers 0 in 1:26 and 7 innings, then Fort Myers 4 Charlotte 3 in 17 innings— 2411 fans; 50 fans at end—1st game finished at 7:37 P.M.; 2nd game finished at 1:08 A.M. in the early morning of 4/9.

5:16 — Candlestick (later 3-Com) Park, San Francisco, California — 5/2/1995 — National League — Giants 4 Dodgers 3 in 15 innings —16,099 fans — finished at 6:21 P.M. 6:36 — Jacobs Field, Cleveland, Ohio — 5/7/1995 — American League — Indians 10 Twins 9 in 17 innings — 39,431 fans — finished at 7:41 P.M.

7:00—Legion Field, Downers Grove, Illinois— 4/28/1995 and 5/3/1995 and 5/8/1995 and 5/12/1995 —Illinois High School League—Downers Grove North High School Trojans 12 Elmhurst York High School Dukes 11 in 23 innings, suspended after 3:00 and 8 innings, suspended a 2nd time after 6:00 and 20 innings—75 fans on 4/28, 75 fans on 5/3, 250 fans on 5/12—suspended at 7:15 P.M. at 4/28, suspended 2nd time at 7:15 P.M. on 5/3, rained out on 5/8, finished at 5:15 P.M. on 5/12.

5:56 — Municipal Stadium, San Jose, California — 5/12/1995 and 5/13/1995 — California League — San Bernardino Spirit 1 San Jose Giants 0 in 21 innings, three rain delays, suspended after 11½ innings — suspended at 11:16 P.M.

5:30—Mercer County Waterfront Park, Trenton, New Jersey—6/3/1995—Eastern League—Binghamton Mets 9 Trenton Thunder 8 in 13 innings, rain delay—7187 fans—finished at 12:39 A.M. in the early morning of 6/4.

5:00—Guildford, Surrey, England—6/??/1995—Guildford Mavericks 28 Bracknell Blazers 27.

5:00—Five County Stadium, Zebulon, North Carolina—8/12/1995—Southern League—Carolina Mudcats 12 Port City Roosters 11 in 17 innings.

5:10—Mercer County Waterfront Park, Trenton, New Jersey—8/18/1995—Eastern League—Trenton Thunder 6 New Haven Ravens 5 in 17 innings.

5:01—Jacobs Field, Cleveland, Ohio—10/3/1995— American League Division Series—rain delay 0:39 at start, Indians 5 Red Sox 4 in 13 innings, 2nd rain delay 0:23 top 8th—44,218 fans—finished at 2:08 A.M. in the early morning of 10/4.

5:13 — Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York — 10/4/1995 — American League Division Series — Yankees 7 Mariners 5 in 15 innings — 57,126 fans finished at 1:20 A.M. in the early morning of 10/5.

6:01—Estadio (Stadium) Angel Flores, Culiacan, State of Sinaloa, Mexico—10/27/1995—Mexican Pacific League—Culiacan Tomateros (Tomato Growers) 3 Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2 in 20 innings finished at 1:31 A.M. in the early morning of 10/28.

6:22 – Estadio (Stadium) Isidoro "Cholo" Garcia, Mayaguez, Puerto Rico –12/22/1995 and 12/23/1995 and 1/19/1996 – Puerto Rican Winter League – Mayaguez Indios (Indians) 2 San Juan Senadores (Senators) 1 in 21 innings, suspended, suspended a second time.

5:47 — Tiger Field (later Doug Kingsmore Stadium), Clemson, South Carolina — 4/21/1996 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Georgia Southern University Eagles 9 Clemson University Tigers 7 in 18 innings in 2nd game, Georgia Southern 8 Clemson 6 in 2:57 and 10 innings in 1st game — 2356 fans, 500 fans at end — 2nd game finished at 9:20 P.M.

5:34 — Camden Yards, Baltimore, Maryland — 5/1/1996 — American League — Yankees 11 Orioles 6 in 15 innings -47,472 fans - finished at 1:09 A.M. in the early morning of 5/2.

5:03 – Jack Murphy (later Qualcomm) Stadium, San Diego, California – 6/8/1996 – National League – Pirates 9 Padres 8 in 14 innings – 41,378 fans.

5:14 – Jack Murphy (later Qualcomm) Stadium, San Diego, California – 6/22/1996 – National League – Cubs 9 Padres 6 in 16 innings – 51,917 fans – finished at 12:19 A.M. in the early morning of 6/23.

5:03 — SkySox Stadium, Colorado Springs, Colorado — 6/23/1996 — Pacific Coast League — Colorado Springs SkySox 9 Las Vegas Stars 8 in 15 innings — 3006 fans — finished at 6:40 P.M.

5:14 – Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts – 6/26/1996 – American League – Red Sox 6 Indians 4 in 15 innings – 33,727 fans – finished at 12:19 A.M. in the early morning of 6/27.

5:05 — Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California — 8/3/1996 — National League — Braves 5 Dodgers 3 in 18 innings — 42,575 fans — finished at 6:10 P.M.

5:45 — Jack Kane Sports Centre, Edinburgh, Scotland — 8/4/1996 — Edinburgh Reivers (later Diamond Devils) 13 Glasgow Comets 12 in 12 innings — ended at 7:45 P.M.

6:19 — Shimonoseki Kyujyo (Stadium), Shimonoseki, Japan — 9/8/1996 — Central League — Yakult Swallows 6 Yokohama BayStars 5 in 14 innings finished at 12:19 A.M. in the early morning of 9/9.

5:08 — Ballpark (later Ameriquest Field) in Arlington, Arlington, Texas — 9/27/1996 — American League — Angels 4 Rangers 3 in 15 innings — 46,764 fans finished at 12:13 A.M. in the early morning of 9/28.

5:00—Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California— 4/7/1997—National League—Dodgers 3 Mets 2 in 15 innings—27,547 fans—finished at 12:05 A.M. in the early morning of 4/8.

5:21—Taejon Yagu-jang (Stadium), Taejon, South Korea—4/12/1997—Korean Organization—Ob (Oriental Brewing) Bears 4 Hanhwa Eagles 2 in 13 innings—finished at 11:51 P.M.

5:50— Blue Valley District Activity Center, Overland Park, Kansas — 5/20/1997 — Kansas High School League — Blue Valley Northwest High School Huskies 1 Shawnee Mission North High School Mustangs 0 in 21 innings — finished at 10:50 P.M.

5:03 — Winnipeg Stadium, Winnipeg, Province of Manitoba, Canada — 5/30/1997 and 5/31/1997 — Northern League — Winnipeg Goldeyes 12 Sioux City Explorers 10 in 14 innings, suspended after 13 innings — 6491 fans — suspended at 12:05 A.M. in the early morning of 5/31.

5:28 — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 6/1/ 1997 — American League — Yankees 11 Red Sox 6 in 15 innings — 31,798 fans — finished at 6:33 P.M.

5:03 — Anaheim Stadium (later Edison International Field, then Angels Stadium), Anaheim, California — 6/13/1997 — NL at AL — Padres 8 Angels 7 in 14 innings — 24,664 fans — finished at 12:08 A.M. in the early morning of 6/14. 5:19 — Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois — 7/14/1997 — National League — Astros 9 Cubs 7 in 15 innings — 27,803 fans — finished at 12:24 A.M. in the early morning of 7/15.

5:38 – Cooper Stadium, Columbus, Ohio – 8/6/ 1997 – International League – Columbus Clippers 4 Richmond Braves 3 in 18 innings –13,115 fans.

5:02 — Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan — 9/7/ 1997 — American League — Angels 5 Tigers 4 in 15 innings — 25,602 fans — finished at 6:07 P.M.

6:55 — Estadio (Stadium) Teodoro Mariscal, Mazatlan; State of Sinaloa, Mexico — 10/19/1997 — Mexican Pacific League — Culiacan Tomateros (Tomato Growers) 5 Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2 in 22 innings — finished at 2:25 A.M. in the early morning of 10/20.

5:45 — Busch Stadium (II), St. Louis, Missouri — 5/24/1998 — National League — Giants 9 Cardinals 6 in 17 innings — 45,864 fans — finished at 6:50 P.M.

5:10—Busch Stadium (II), St. Louis, Missouri— 6/6/1998—National League—Giants 5 Cardinals 4 in 14 innings—47,333 fans.

5:06 — Pro Player (later Dolphin) Stadium, Miami, Florida — 6/8/1998 — AL at NL — Marlins 4 Blue Jays 3 in 17 innings —17,414 fans; 300 fans at end —finished at 12:12 A.M. in the early morning of 6/9.

5:35 – Municipal Memorial (later Gpu, then FirstEnergy) Stadium, Reading, Pennsylvania – 6/14/ 1998 – Eastern League – Reading Phillies 6 Trenton Thunder 5 in 19 innings – 7043 fans – finished at 12:40 A.M. in the early morning of 6/15.

5:35 — Simmons Field, Kenosha, Wisconsin — 6/17/1998 — Northwoods League — Austin Southern Minny Stars at Kenosha Kroakers, then Austin at Kenosha in 17 innings.

5:49 — Camden Yards, Baltimore, Maryland — 6/19/1998 — American League — Orioles 7 Blue Jays 4 in 15 innings — 47,012 fans.

6:23 — Judy Johnson Field at Frawley Stadium, Wilmington, Delaware — 7/5/1998 — Carolina League — Wilmington Blue Rocks 3 Danville 97's 2 in 21 innings — 3441 fans — finished at 8:28 P.M.

5:50—Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York —7/20/1998—American League—Tigers 4 Yankees 3 in 17 innings, then Yankees 4 Tigers 3 in 2:45— 36,285 fans—finished at 1:17 A.M. in the early morning of 7/21.

5:23 — KingDome, Seattle, Washington — 7/30/ 1998 — American League — Indians 9 Mariners 8 in 17 innings — 31,081 fans — finished at 12:28 A.M. in the early morning of 7/31.

6:26 — Municipal Stadium, Greenville, South Carolina — 8/6/1998 and 8/7/1998 — Southern League — Greenville Braves 10 Huntsville Stars 7 in 23 innings, suspended after 5:25 and 20 innings — 4098 fans suspended at 12:13 A.M. in the early morning of 8/7, finished at 6:01 P.M. on 8/7.

6:13 — Fukuyama Kyujyo (Stadium), Fukuyama, Japan — 8/9/1998 — Central League — Yokohama BayStars 14 Hiroshima Carp 6 in 15 innings—finished at 12:13 A.M. in the early morning of 8/10.

6:00— Heart of Florida Medical Regional Center Field, Babson Park, Florida — 2/19/1999 and 2/20/ 1999 — National Association of Intercollegiate Athletics — Nova Southeastern University Knights 9 Webber College (now Webber International University) Warriors 5 in 21 innings, suspended after 3:43 and 13 innings — 50 fans — suspended at 6:28 P.M., finished at 1:17 P.M.

6:43 — Cougar Field, Houston, Texas — 2/21/1999 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Baylor University Bears 8 University of Houston Cougars 2 in 22 innings —1225 fans —finished at 10:48 P.M.

5:00— Carson Center Field, Evansville, Indiana— 3/7/1999— National Collegiate Athletic Association— University of Memphis Tigers 4 University of Evansville Purple Aces 4 in 21 innings— 205 fans, 75 fans at end—finished at 4:00 P.M.

5:15 — Eagle Field, Tallahassee, Florida — 3/17/1999 — National Junior Collegiate Athletic Association — Tallahassee Community College Eagles 4 Okaloosa-Walton Community College Raiders 3 in 18 innings — 225 fans — finished at 10:15 P.M.

5:14—Bank One Ballpark (later Chase Field), Phoenix, Arizona—4/13/1999—National League— Diamondbacks 7 Dodgers 6 in 16 innings—31,197 fans—finished at 12:19 A.M. in the early morning of 4/14.

5:49 — John O'donnell Stadium, Davenport, Iowa — 5/19/1999 — Midwest League — Clinton Lumber Kings 3 Quad-City River Bandits 2 in 21 innings.

5:28 – Municipal Memorial (later Gpu, then First-Energy) Stadium, Reading, Pennsylvania – 5/28/ 1999 – Eastern League – Reading Phillies 15 New Britain Rock Cats 14 in 13 innings – finished at 1:07 A.M. in the early morning of 5/29.

5:33 — Labatt's Park (III), London, Province of Ontario, Canada —?/??/1999 — Frontier League — London Werewolves 31 Dubois County Dragons 6 in 17 innings.

5:44 — Pro Player (later Dolphin) Stadium, Miami, Florida — 8/20/1999 — National League — Astros 6 Marlins 4 in 16 innings — 19,845 fans — finished at 12:49 A.M. in the early morning of 8/21.

5:46 – Shea Stadium, New York, New York – 10/17/1999 – National League – Mets 4 Braves 3 in 15 innings – 55,723 fans – finished at 9:55 P.M.

2000's (201)

5:00—Grovehill Park, Hemel Hempstead, Hertfordshire, England —?/??/2000—Milton Keynes Rebels at Hertfordshire Falcons.

6:07 — Dick Howser Field, Tallahassee, Florida — 4/7/2000 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Florida State University Seminoles 14 University of Miami Hurricanes 13 in 17 innings — 4626 fans finished at 1:09 A.M. in the early morning of 4/8.

5:39 - County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin -

5/16/2000 — National League — Brewers 6 Astros 5 in 16 innings — 9239 fans — finished at 12:44 A.M. in the early morning of 5/17.

6:02 — Koshien Kyujyo (Stadium), Osaka, Japan — 5/24/2000 — Central League — Chunichi Dragons 3 Hanshin Tigers 2 in 15 innings — finished at 12:02 A.M. in the early morning of 5/25.

5:03 — Hawkinson Ford Field, Crestwood, Illinois — 6/13/2000 — Frontier League — Cook County Cheetahs (later Windy City ThunderBolts) 3 Evansville Otters 2 in 16 innings —1164 fans —finished at 12:08 A.M. in the early morning of 6/14.

5:31— County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin— 6/30/2000— National League — Cubs 7 Brewers 4 in 15 innings — 30,216 fans — finished at 12:36 A.M. in the early morning of 7/1.

5:20—County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin— 7/8/2000—AL at NL—Tigers 4 Brewers 2 in 15 innings—23,872 fans—finished at 12:25 A.M. in the early morning of 7/9.

6:20—Dodd Stadium, Norwich, Connecticut— 7/13/2000—Eastern League—Altoona Curve 6 Norwich Navigators 5 in 19 innings—2774 fans, 60 fans at end—finished at 1:25 A.M. in the early morning of 7/14.

5:04 — Safeco Field, Seattle, Washington — 7/29/ 2000 — American League — Mariners 6 Blue Jays 5 in 13 innings — 45,264 fans — finished at 6:09 P.M.

5:34 — Safeco Field, Seattle, Washington — 8/1/ 2000 — American League — Mariners 5 Red Sox 4 in 19 innings — 37,391 fans — finished at 12:39 A.M. in the early morning of 8/2.

5:16 — Tropicana Field, St. Petersburg, Florida — 8/4/2000 — American League — Orioles 10 Devil Rays 9 in 15 innings —15,590 fans — finished at 12:21 A.M. in the early morning of 8/5.

5:16 – L.P. Frans Stadium, Hickory, North Carolina – 8/13/2000 – South Atlantic (Sally) League – Asheville Tourists 4 Hickory Crawdads 3 in 20 innings –1959 fans – finished at 12:16 A.M. in the early morning of 8/14.

6:14 — Commerce Bank Park, Bridgewater, New Jersey — 8/16/2000 — Atlantic League — Somerset Patriots 8 Newark Bears 7 in 17 innings — 5552 fans, 20 fans at end —finished at 1:27 A.M. in the early morning of 8/17.

5:14 — Hawkinson Ford Field, Crestwood, Illinois — 8/21/2000 — Frontier League — Cook County Cheetahs (later Windy City ThunderBolts) 6 Evansville Otters 5 in 17 innings —1137 fans —finished at 12:19 A.M. in the early morning of 8/22.

5:17 – Jacobs Field, Cleveland, Ohio – 9/3/2000 – American League – Indians 12 Orioles 11 in 13 innings – 42,630 fans – finished at 6:22 P.M.

5:07 — Commerce Bank Park, Bridgewater, New Jersey — 10/2/2000 — Northern League playoffs — Nashua Pride 6 Somerset Patriots 5 in 14 innings — 2837 fans — finished at 12:12 A.M. in the early morning of 10/3. 5:22 – Shea Stadium, New York, New York –10/7/ 2000 – National League Division Series – Mets 3 Giants 2 in 13 innings – 56,270 fans.

5:57 — SkyDome (later Rogers Centre), Toronto, Province of Ontario, Canada — 4/19/2001 — American League — Yankees 6 Blue Jays 5 in 17 innings — 24,684fans, 1500 fans at end —finished at 1:06 A.M. in the early morning of 4/20.

5:05 — Stadio Roberto Jannella, Grosseto, Italy — 4/20/2001— Serie Nazionale (Italian Al League)— Nettuno 5 Grosseto 2 in 14 innings—finished at 2:05 A.M. in the early morning of 4/21.

5:32 – Busch Stadium (II), St. Louis, Missouri – 4/26/2001– National League – Expos 4 Cardinals 3 in 15 innings – 42,373 fans – finished at 6:37 P.M.

6:29 — Ed Smith Stadium, Sarasota, Florida — 5/5/2001— Florida State League — Vero Beach Dodgers 11 Sarasota Red Sox 7 in 19 innings — finished at 1:29 A.M. in the early morning of 5/6.

5:45 – Jamsil Olympic Yagu-jang (Stadium), Seoul, South Korea – 5/6/2001– Korean Organization – Lg (Lucky Goldstar) Twins 3 Doosan Bears 3 in 15 innings – finished at 7:45 P.M.

5:23 – USA Stadium, Millington, Tennessee – 5/26/2001– National Junior Collegiate Athletic Association – Bevill State Community College Bears 6 Iowa Central Community College Tritons 5 in 17 innings – 296 fans – finished at 12:53 A.M. in the early morning of 5/27.

5:31—Wolff Stadium, San Antonio, Texas — 5/26/2001—Texas League — Round Rock Express 5 San Antonio Missions 2 in 17 innings — 4751 fans — finished at 12:36 A.M. in the early morning of 5/27.

5:53 — Pac Bell (later Sbc, then at&T) Park, San Francisco, California — 5/29/2001— National League — Diamondbacks 1 Giants 0 in 18 innings — 39,709 fans — finished at 1:10 A.M. in the early morning of 5/30.

5:52 — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 6/5/2001— American League — Red Sox 4 Tigers 3 in 18 innings — 32,814 fans — finished at 12:57 A.M. in the early morning of 6/6.

5:16 — Qualcomm Stadium, San Diego, California — 6/19/2001— National League — Padres 4 Giants 3 in 15 innings — 23,033 fans — finished at 12:21 A.M. in the early morning of 6/20.

5:40—Fair Grounds Field, Shreveport, Louisiana— 7/3/2001—Texas League—Tulsa Drillers 4 Shreveport Swamp Dragons 2 in 18 innings—634 fans finished at 12:46 A.M. in the early morning of 7/4.

5:30—Secaucus or Jersey City, New Jersey— 7/??/2001—Little League 10-Year Old District 7 First Round Playoffs—Secaucus 8 Jersey City Lincoln Park 7 in 15 innings.

6:35 — Ballpark (later Ameriquest Field) in Arlington, Arlington, Texas — 8/25/2001— American League — Rangers 8 Red Sox 7 in 18 innings — 43,775 fans, 8000 fans at end —finished at 1:41 A.M. in the early morning of 8/26.

5:13 — Dunn Tire Park, Buffalo, New York — 9/9/ 2001–International League playoff semifinals — Scranton/Wilkes-Barre Red Barons 6 Buffalo Bisons 2 in 19 innings — 2788 fans — finished at 11:17 P.M.

5:01—Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York — 9/30/2001—American League — Orioles 1 Yankees 1 in 15 innings, rain delay 0:37 bottom 15th — 55,351 fans — called at 6:43 P.M.

6:30—Estadio (Stadium) Roberto Clemente, Carolina, Puerto Rico—11/4/2001—Winter League— Carolina Gigantes (Giants) 2 Caguas Criollos (Natives) 1 in 22 innings—finished at 12:30 A.M.

5:19 – Frank Sancet Field, Tucson, Arizona – 4/5/2002 – National Collegiate Athletic Association – Stanford University Cardinal 5 University of Arizona Wildcats 4 in 18 innings.

5:00—Jhu Baseball Field, Baltimore, Maryland— 4/13/2002—National Club Baseball Association at National Collegiate Athletic Association—Ncba (Club) George Washington University Colonials 22 NCAA Johns Hopkins University Junior Varsity (Jv) Blue Jays 21 in 7 innings; then Johns Hopkins Jv defeated George Washington Club by several runs in 2:45 and 7 innings—30 fans; 8632 fans next door at Homewood Field for Johns Hopkins' 9–8 lacrosse overtime win over Maryland—finished at 8:15 P.M.

6:20— Shizuoka Kyujyo (Stadium), Shizuoka, Japan — 4/14/2002 — Shizuoka Industrial League — Osaka Gas 6 Nissan Motors 5 in 17 innings.

5:06 — Edison International Field (later Angel Stadium), Anaheim, California — 4/28/2002 — American League — Angels 8 Blue Jays 5 in 14 innings — 25,073 fans — finished at 6:11 P.M.

5:00 — Cashman Field, Las Vegas, Nevada — 4/29/2002 — Pacific Coast League — Colorado Springs SkySox 17 Las Vegas 51's 16 in 14 innings — 1680 fans — finished at 12:10 A.M. in the early morning of 4/30.

5:19 — Turner Field, Atlanta, Georgia — 5/7/2002— National League — Dodgers 6 Braves 5 in 16 innings — 26,914 fans — finished at 12:24 A.M. in the early morning of 5/8.

5:17 — George Page Stadium, Los Angeles; Benedetti Diamond, San Francisco, California — 3/24/2002and 5/10/2002 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — University of San Francisco Dons 25 Loyola Marymount University Lions 21 in 10 innings; suspended after 5:10 and 9½ innings in Los Angeles on 3/24; completed in San Francisco on 5/10—498 fans on 3/24; 376 fans on 5/10— suspended at 6:10 P.M. on 3/24; finished at 2:07 P.M. on 5/10.

5:45 — Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York — 5/17/2002 — American League — Yankees 13 Twins 12 in 14 innings — 39,470 fans — Jason Giambi is only the 24th player to ever hit a walk-off grand slam home run in extra innings with his team trailing by three runs, and the first to ever do so in the pouring rain finished at 12:50 A.M. in the early morning of 5/18.

6:35 - Scott Park, Toledo, Ohio -5/19/2002 -National Collegiate Athletic Association – Central Michigan University Chippewas 16 University of Toledo Rockets 15 in 18 innings—101 fans, 60 fans at end—finished at 8:35 P.M.

5:14 — Kauffman Stadium (II), Kansas City, Missouri — 6/10/2002 — NL at AL — Marlins 15 Royals 8 in 14 innings —13,493 fans —finished at 12:19 A.M. in the early morning of 6/11.

5:48 — Union Field, West Deptford, New Jersey — 7/28/2002 — American Legion District 4 Tournament — Post 372 Cherry Hill 14 Post 458 North Trenton 13 in 18 innings — 200 fans — finished at 11:48 P.M.

5:56 – Le Lacheur Park, Lowell, Massachusetts – 7/29/2002 – New York-Pennsylvania League – Hudson Valley Renegades 13 Lowell Spinners 9 in 18 innings – 5000 fans – finished at 1:01 A.M. in the early morning of 7/30.

5:44 – Jack Horenberger Field, Bloomington, Illinois – 7/30/2002 – Central Illinois Collegiate League – Decatur Blues 11 Twin City Stars 4 in 20 innings – 259 fans – finished at 10:44 P.M.

5:10—Clear Channel Stadium, Lancaster, California—7/31/2002—California League—Lancaster Jethawks 15 San Bernardino Stampede 14 in 15 innings finished at 12:15 A.M. in the early morning of 8/1.

6:00—Parade Stadium, Minneapolis, Minnesota— 8/1 or 8/2/2002—Park National League—Minneapolis Angels 4 Lyons Pub Warriors 3 in 17 innings—40 fans; 250 fans at end—finished at 4:00 P.M.

6:00—Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York — 8/9/2002—American League—Athletics 3 Yankees 2 in 16 innings—54,316 fans, 10,000 fans at end—finished at 1:09 A.M. in the early morning of 8/10.

5:13 – Busch Stadium (II), St. Louis, Missouri – 8/23/2002 – National League – Phillies 5 Cardinals 4 in 14 innings – 35,724 fans.

5:17 — Wolff Stadium, San Antonio, Texas — 9/1/ 2002 — Texas League — Round Rock Express 12 San Antonio Missions 5 in 18 innings — 5002 fans finished at 12:22 A.M. in the early morning of 9/2.

6:41—Estadio (Stadium) Tetelo Vargas, San Pedro de Marcoris, Dominican—10/19/2002—Winter League—Orientales Estrellas (Oriental Stars) 4 Escogido Leones Rojos (Red Lions) 3 in 20 innings finished at 3:17 A.M. in the early morning of 10/20.

6:00—Fukuoka Dome, Fukuoka, Japan—10/26/ 2002—Kyushu University League—Nihon Bunri University 2 Kyushu Kyoritsu University 1 in 23 innings.

6:25 – Estadio (Stadium) Jimenez, Jimenez, State of Chihuahua, Mexico –?/??/2003 – Amateur – Juarez Indios 4 Jimenez Rojos 3 in 17 innings.

6:45 — Estadio (Stadium) Chihuahua, Chihuahua, State of Chihuahua, Mexico —?/??/2003 — Amateur — Chihuahua Dorados 8 Delicias Algondoneros (Cotton Pickers) 7 in 17 innings.

5:22 – Northcut Field at Westgate Park, Dothan, Alabama – 3/1/2003 – National Collegiate Athletic Association – Troy State University Trojans 8 Kansas State University Wildcats 7 in 18 innings, rain delay 1:40–273 fans, 50 fans at end —finished at 2:42 A.M. in the early morning of 3/2.

5:15 — Tropicana Field, St. Petersburg, Florida — 4/1/2003 — American League — Red Sox 9 Devil Rays 8 in 16 innings —11,524 fans — finished at 12:20 A.M. in the early morning of 4/2.

5:33 – Blacktown Olympic Park, Sydney, State of New South Wales, Australia – 4/19/2003 – New South Wales Under 23 Tournament – Queensland 4 New South Wales/Victoria/Capital Territory Combined Academy 3 in 22 innings –120 fans, 200 fans at end –finished at 8:33 P.M.

5:02 — Croydon, Surrey, England — 4/26/2003 — Rawlings National League — Croydon Pirates 14 Menwith Hill Patriots 13 in 13 innings.

6:07 — Pro Player Stadium, Miami, Florida — 4/27/ 2003 — National League — Cardinals 7 Marlins 6 in 20 innings —10,075 fans —finished at 7:12 P.M.

5:10—Comerica Park, Detroit, Michigan—6/1/ 2003—American League—Yankees 10 Tigers 9 in 17 innings—44,095 fans—finished at 6:15 P.M.

5:05 — Estadio (Stadium) Hiram Bithorn, San Juan, Puerto Rico — 6/5/2003 — AL at NL — Expos 8 Angels 7 in 14 innings —10,598 fans —finished at 12:10 A.M. in the early morning of 6/6.

5:23 — Louisville Slugger Field, Louisville, Kentucky — 6/6/2003 — International League — rain delay 2:15 at start, Louisville Bats 4 Richmond Braves 3 in 18 innings — 9892 fans, 500 fans at end —finished at 2:53 A.M. in the early morning of 6/7.

5:41- Camden Yards, Baltimore, Maryland - 6/27/2003 - NL at AL - Phillies 4 Orioles 2 in 17 innings - 46,405 fans - finished at 12:46 A.M. in the early morning of 6/28.

6:44 — Capital City Park, Columbia, South Carolina — 7/4/2003 — South Atlantic (Sally) League — Asheville Tourists 7 Capital City Bombers 5 in 19 innings — 5800 fans, 550 fans at end —finished at 1:40 A.M. in the early morning of 7/5.

7:15 — Byron High School Field, Byron and Eckstein Field, Plainview, Minnesota — 6/22/2003 and 7/6/2003 — Twin Rivers League — Byron Braves 4 Plainview Bucks 3 in 21 innings, suspended after 5:00 and 15 innings on 6/22 in Byron, resumed 7/6 in Plainview —15 fans in Byron, 20 fans in Plainview suspended at 6:00 P.M. on 6/22, finished at 9:45 P.M. on 7/6.

5:48 — Dwyer Stadium, Batavia, New York — 7/9/ 2003 — New York-Pennsylvania League — Staten Island Yankees 5 Batavia Muckdogs 2 in 21 innings — 1073 fans — finished at 12:58 A.M. in the early morning of 7/10.

5:52 — Eldredge Park, Orleans, Massachusetts — 8/4/2003 — Cape Cod League — Harwich Mariners 3 Orleans Cardinals 2 in 20 innings; umpire crew chief called it a tie game after 17 innings a little after Midnight, but both managers and players from both teams successfully changed his mind to allow the game to continue — 4615 fans, 125 fans at end —finished at 12:58 A.M. in the early morning of 8/5.

5:48 — CanWest Global Park, Winnipeg, Province of Manitoba, Canada — 8/10/2003 — Northern League — Joliet JackHammers 6 Winnipeg Goldeyes 3 in 17 innings — 7718 fans — finished at 7:24 P.M.

6:20—Knights Castle, Fort Mill, South Carolina— 8/15/2003—International League—Charlotte Knights 4 Indianapolis Indians 3 in 18 innings, then Charlotte 5 Indianapolis 1 in 1:54 and 7 innings, 2nd game began at 1:01 A.M.—5275 fans, 100 fans at beginning of second game, 36 fans at end plus 250 Girl Scouts asleep in Home Run Café ballpark restaurant who were to have camped out in the outfield after the games finished at 2:55 A.M. in the early morning of 8/16.

5:34 — Municipal Stadium, Greenville, South Carolina — 8/19/2003 — Southern League — Carolina Mudcats 6 Greenville Braves 5 in 15 innings.

5:01—Camden Yards, Baltimore, Maryland — 9/5/ 2003 — American League — Mariners 6 Orioles 4 in 13 innings — 27,417 fans — finished at 12:06 A.M. in the early morning of 9/6.

5:00—Hubert H. Humphrey Metrodome, Minneapolis, Minnesota—4/6/2004—American League —Twins 7 Indians 6 in 15 innings—19,832 fans finished at 12:05 A.M. in the early morning of 4/7.

5:15 — Regional Park, Pine Bluff, Arkansas — 4/8/ 2004 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Prairie View Agricultural and Mechanical (A&M) University Panthers at University of Arkansas at Pine Bluff Golden Lions; then Pine Bluff 13 Prairie View A&M 12 in 14 innings — 85 fans — finished at 9:30 P.M.

6:28 — Frank Myers Field at Tointon Family Stadium, Manhattan, Kansas — 4/9/2004 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — University of Texas Longhorns 10 Kansas State University Wildcats 6 in 20 innings — 874 fans — finished at 1:35 A.M. in the early morning of 4/10.

5:22 — Miller Park, Milwaukee, Wisconsin — 4/22/ 2004 — National League — Diamondbacks 11 Brewers 9 in 15 innings —13,879 fans — finished at 6:27 P.M.

5:18 — Buck Shaw Stadium, Santa Clara, California — 4/27/2004 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Stanford University Cardinal 12 Santa Clara University Broncos 8 in 14 innings — 426 fans finished at 11:21 P.M.

5:19 — Riverside Stadium, Harrisburg, Pennsylvania — 6/1/2004 — Eastern League — Trenton Thunder 6 Harrisburg Senators 4 in 16 innings, rain delay 0:20 top 2nd —1927 fans; 100 fans at end —finished at 12:14 A.M. in the early morning of 6/2.

5:24 — Harbor Yard, Bridgeport, Connecticut — 6/8/2004 — Atlantic League — Camden Riversharks 7 Bridgeport Bluefish 6 in 17 innings —finished at 12:29 A.M. in the early morning of 6/9.

5:50—Stadio Renato Reatini, Anzio, Italy—6/12/ 2004—Serie Nazionale (Italian Al League)—Parma 8 Anzio 7 in 5:50 and 16 innings—finished at 2:50 A.M. in the early morning of 6/13. 5:08 – Angel Stadium, Anaheim, California – 6/13/2004 – NL at AL – Cubs 6 Angels 5 in 15 innings – 43,812 fans – finished at 6:13 P.M.

5:05 – New Market or Staunton, Virginia – 6/22/ 2004 – Valley League – Staunton Braves defeated New Market Rebels in 15 innings.

5:47 — Ameriquest Field, Arlington, Texas — 6/24/ 2004 — American League — Rangers 9 Mariners 7 in 18 innings — 26,266 fans — finished at 7:22 P.M.

6:15 — Citizens Bank Park, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 7/2/2004 — American League at National League — Orioles 7 Phillies 6 in 16 innings — 44,390 fans — finished at 1:23 A.M. in the early morning of 7/3.

5:07 — Dunn Tire Park, Buffalo, New York — 7/16/2004 — International League — Buffalo Bisons 11 Scranton/Wilkes-Barre Red Barons 1 in 2:01 and 7 innings, then Scranton/Wilkes-Barre 8 Buffalo 3 in 16 innings — 14,143 fans — finished at 1:47 A.M. in the early morning of 7/17.

5:00—Armin-Wolf-Arena, Regensburg, Germany—8/3/2004—European B-Pool Championships—Ireland 8 Austria 2 in 11 innings—finished at 12:00 Midnight.

5:53 — Dick Putz Field, St. Cloud, Minnesota — 8/3/2004 — Northwoods League — Madison Mallards 9 St. Cloud River Bats 5 in 18 innings — 2145 fans finished at 1:00 A.M. in the early morning of 8/4.

6:40—Wolff Stadium, San Antonio, Texas— 8/14/2004—Texas League—Midland RockHounds 7 San Antonio Missions 5 in 21 innings—4286 fans, 90 fans at end—finished at 1:46 A.M. in the early morning of 8/15.

6:37 – Dust Devils Stadium, Pasco, Washington – 8/16/2004 and 8/17/2004 – Northwest League – Spokane Indians 2 Tri-City Dust Devils 1 in 23 innings, suspended after 5:46 and 20 innings – 919 fans on 8/16 – suspended at 12:52 A.M. in the early morning of 8/17, finished at 6:53 P.M. on 8/17.

5:42 — Hiroshima Kyujo (Stadium), Hiroshima or Tokyo Dome, Tokyo, Japan — 8/20/2004 — Central League — Hiroshima Toyo Carp 7 Yomiuri Giants 6 in 12 innings —finished at 11:42 P.M.

5:15 — Shea Stadium, New York, New York — 9/11/ 2004 — National League — Phillies 11 Mets 9 in 13 innings — 21,718 fans.

5:02 — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 10/17/2004 — American League Championship Series — Red Sox 6 Yankees 4 in 12 innings — 34,826 fans finished at 1:22 A.M. in the early morning of 10/18.

5:49 — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 10/18/2004 — American League Championship Series — Red Sox 5 Yankees 4 in 14 innings — 35,120 fans — finished at 11:00 P.M.

5:48 — Toro Field, Carson, California — 2/27/2005 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Sonoma State University Seawolves 11 California State University at Dominguez Hills Toros 10 in 16 innings — 89 fans — finished at 4:56 P.M.

5:45 — Duvall-Rosier Field, Fairmont, West Virginia — 3/22/2005 — Naia at NCAA — Fairmont State University Falcons 7 Seton Hill College Griffins 6 in 17 innings, then Fairmont State 5 Seton Hill 2 in 2:01 and 7 innings — 56 fans, 25 fans at end — 2nd game finished at 10:16 P.M.

5:50— Reiterstadion (later Koln Ballpark), Koln (Cologne), Germany—4/6/2005— Bundesliga Nord (North German League)— Bonn Capitals 9 Koln (Cologne) Cardinals 7 in 20 innings—finished at 6:50 P.M.; then Bonn 4 Cologne 0 in 2:05 and 7 innings, rain delay 0:13—finished at 9:38 P.M.

6:15 – Wilson Field, Georgetown, Kentucky – 4/29/2005 – National Association of Intercollegiate Athletics – Lambuth University Eagles 8 Pikeville College Bears 5 in 22 innings – 200 fans, 150 fans at end – finished at 4:45 P.M.

5:50—Fieldcrest Cannon Stadium, Kannapolis, North Carolina — 5/20/2005 — South Atlantic (Sally) League — Delmarva Shorebirds 7 Kannapolis Intimidators 6 in 18 innings — 2899 fans, 250 fans at end including 200 Girl Scouts waiting to camp out in the outfield after the game — finished at 1:06 A.M. in the early morning of 5/21.

5:45 — Kungsbacka Arena, Oskarshamn, Sweden — 5/22/2005 — Oskarshamn Lost Boys 11 Goteborg Sharks 10 in 15 innings; then Oskersham 11 Goteborg 5 in 3:25 — 1st game finished at 6:45 P.M.; 2nd game finished at 10:30 P.M.

5:25 — Rickwood Field, Birmingham, Alabama — 5/22/2005 and 5/23/2005 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Southern University Jaguars 6 Prairie View A&M University Panthers 5 in 15 innings in 2nd game, 0:45 gunfire delay bottom 15th, suspended after 5:15 and 14½ innings; Southern 6 Prairie View A&M 0 in 2:37 in 1st game — 314 fans for first game; 187 fans for second game — 2nd game suspended at 11:25 P.M.; finished at 8:10 A.M. on 5/23.

5:05 — Stadio Europeo, Parma, Italy — 5/26/2005 — Serie Nazionale (Italian Al League) — Italeri Bologna 6 Cantine Ceci Negri Parma 5 in 15 innings — finished at 1:35 A.M. in the early morning of 5/27.

6:09 — Whataburger Field, Corpus Christi, Texas — 6/1/2005 — Texas League — Wichita Wranglers 7 Corpus Christi Hooks 2 in 20 innings — 6609 fans, 325 fans at end —finished at 1:19 A.M. in the early morning of 6/2.

5:14 — Wolff Stadium, San Antonio, Texas — 6/18/2005 — Texas League — San Antonio Missions 2 Midland RockHounds 1 in 17 innings — 4783 fans — finished at 12:19 A.M. in the early morning of 6/19.

5:47 — Wade Stadium, Duluth, Minnesota — 7/19/ 2005 — Northwoods League — St. Cloud River Bats at Duluth Huskies in 18 innings.

5:10—Hank Aaron Stadium, Mobile, Alabama— 7/20/2005—Southern League—Mobile BayBears 2 Huntsville Stars 1 in 19 innings—1918 fans.

5:50—Vic Kapsner Memorial Park, Lastrup, Minnesota — 7/23/2005 — Minnesota Town Team League - Lastrup Lakers 1 Pierz Brewers 0 in 28 innings - 100 fans; 300 fans at end - finished at 7:25 P.M.

5:00—Plote Field, Lake in the Hills, Illinois— 7/24/2005—American Legion—St. Charles Post 342 22 Crystal Lake Post 171 14.

5:00—Paul E. Joseph Stadium, Frederiksted, St. Croix, US Virgin Islands—7/29/2005—Caribbean Little League Tournament—Bonaire (Netherlands Antilles) 4 Aruba 2 in 9 innings; then Curacao 5 Dominican 1.

6:34 - Falcon Park, Auburn, New York - 7/7/2005and 8/14/2005 - New York-Pennsylvania League - Auburn Doubledays 6 Batavia Muckdogs 5 in 22 innings, suspended after 6:02 and 20 innings - 3242fans on 7/7, 250 fans left at suspension, 1871 fans on<math>8/14 - suspended at 1:09 A.M. in the early morning of 7/8, finished at 5:35 P.M. on 8/14 - author sat behind first base for the last two innings.

5:09 – US Cellular Field, Chicago, Illinois – 8/16/2005 – American League – Twins 9 White Sox 4 in 16 innings – 34,533 fans – finished at 12:14 A.M. in the early morning of 8/17.

5:09 — Fieldcrest Cannon Stadium, Kannapolis, North Carolina — 9/7/2005 — South Atlantic (Sally) League playoffs — Kannapolis Intimidators 4 Charleston (SC) RiverDogs 3 in 21 innings — 749 fans; 300 fans at end — finished at 12:14 A.M. in the early morning of 9/8.

5:50— Minute Maid Park, Houston, Texas—10/9/ 2005— National League Division Series— Astros 7 Braves 6 in 18 innings— 43,413 fans—finished at 5:55 P.M.

5:41— Minute Maid Park, Houston, Texas —10/25/ 2005—AL at NL World Series— White Sox 7 Astros 5 in 14 innings—42,848 fans—finished at 1:20 A.M. in the early morning of 10/26.

5:43 — Estadio (Stadium) Angel Flores, Culiacan, State of Sinaloa, Mexico —11/16/2005 — Mexican Pacific League — Culiacan Tomateros (Tomato Growers) 4 Los Mochis Caneros (Sugar Cane Growers) 3 in 5:43 and 14 innings —finished at 1:13 A.M. in the early morning of 11/17.

5:19 — Patriots Point Field, Charleston, South Carolina — 2/26/2006 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — College of Charleston Cougars 7 University of Virginia Cavaliers 6 in 17 innings — 616 fans — finished at 7:20 P.M.

5:20—John Kurtz Field, Milledgeville, Georgia 3/4/2006—National Collegiate Athletic Association—Georgia College and State University (GCSU) Bobcats 2 Shippensburg University Red Raiders 1 in 2:26, then GCSU 6 Shippensburg 5 in 17 innings— 407 fans; 175 fans at beginning of 2nd game—1st game finished at 3:26 P.M.; 2nd game finished at 9:35 P.M.

5:02 — Hammond Stadium, Fort Myers, Florida — 4/13/2006 — Florida State League — Clearwater Threshers 4 Fort Myers Miracle 3 in 20 innings —1544 fans; 94 fans at end —finished at 12:07 A.M. in the early morning of 4/14. 6:00—Estadio (Stadium) 20 de Noviembre (November 20), San Luis Potosi, State of San Luis Potosi, Mexico—4/15/2006—Mexican League—Saltillo Saraperos (Blanket Makers) 7 San Luis Potosi Tuneros (Prickle Pear Growers) 5 in 16 innings—1758 fans finished at 1:00 A.M. in the early morning of 4/16.

5:04 — Jackie Robinson Stadium, Los Àngeles, California — 4/23/2006 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — University of California at Los Angeles Bruins 11 Arizona State University Sun Devils 10 in 10 innings — 979 fans — finished at 6:12 P.M.

5:09 — Goss Stadium at Coleman Field, Corvallis, Oregon — 4/25/2006 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Portland University Pilots 20 Oregon State University Beavers 13 in 12 innings —1066 fans finished at 9:14 P.M.

5:02 — Hooks Stadium, Winston-Salem, North Carolina — 5/6/2006 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Florida State University Seminoles 4 Wake Forest University Demon Deacons 3 in 20 innings —1711 fans; 850 fans at end —finished at 6:05 P.M.

8:07 — Greer Stadium, Nashville, Tennessee — 5/5/2006 and 5/6/2006 — Pacific Coast League — New Orleans Zephyrs 5 Nashville Sounds 4 in 24 innings, suspended after 6:23 and 18 innings — 9124 fans on 5/5, 300 fans at suspension; 10,016 fans on 5/6 suspended at 1:25 A.M. in the early morning of 5/6; finished at 7:44 P.M. on 5/6.

7:47 — FirstEnergy Park, Lakewood, New Jersey — 4/26/2006 and 5/7/2006 — South Atlantic (Sally) League — Lakewood BlueClaws 8 Hagerstown Suns 7 in 22 innings, suspended after 17 innings and 6:03 — 5487 fans on 4/26, 150 fans top 12th, 31 fans top 17th; 7449 fans on 5/7 — suspended at 12:42 A.M. in the early morning of 4/27, finished at 2:49 P.M. on 5/7.

5:02 — Prince George's Stadium, Bowie, Maryland -5/8/2006 — Eastern League — New Britain Rock Cats 9 Bowie Baysox 7 in 16 innings -1312fans — finished at 12:07 A.M. in the early morning of 5/9.

5:07 — Schott Stadium, Santa Clara, California — 5/9/2006 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Stanford University Cardinal 8 Santa Clara University Broncos 4 in 15 innings — 876 fans finished at 11:14 P.M.

5:42 — Riley Ballpark, Charleston, South Carolina — 5/20/2006 — South Atlantic (Sally) League — Charleston RiverDogs 7 Rome Braves 6 in 18 innings — 4794 fans — finished at 12:47 A.M. in the early morning of 5/21.

5:16 – Smokies Park, Sevierville, Tennessee – 5/23/2006 – Southern League – Chattanooga Lookouts 9 Tennessee Smokies 5 in 16 innings – 2687 fans.

5:22 – Shea Stadium, New York, New York – 5/23/2006 – National League – Mets 9 Phillies 8 in 16 innings – 28,958 fans – finished at 12:27 A.M. in the early morning of 5/24.

5:49-PNC Park, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania-

5/27/2006 — National League — Pirates 8 Astros 7 in 18 innings — 31,878 fans — finished at 12:54 A.M. in the early morning of 5/28.

5:04 — Busch Stadium (III), St. Louis, Missouri — 6/2/2006 — National League — Cubs 5 Cardinals 4 in 14 innings — 45,799 fans — finished at 12:09 A.M. in the early morning of 6/3.

5:05 – Dr. Pepper Ballpark, Frisco, Texas – 6/11/ 2006 – Texas League – Frisco RoughRiders 12 Midland RockHounds 11 in 16 innings – 7291 fans – finished at 12:19 A.M. in the early morning of 6/19.

5:42 — Roger Dean Stadium, Jupiter, Florida — 6/15/2006 — Florida State League — Palm Beach Cardinals 4 Jupiter Hammerheads 1 in 17 innings —1627 fans; 30 fans at end —finished at 4:47 P.M.

5:02 — McAfee Coliseum, Oakland, California — 6/17/2006 — NL at AL — Athletics 5 Dodgers 4 in 17 innings — 35,077 fans —finished at 12:07 A.M. in the early morning of 6/18.

5:21-Estadio (Stadium) Monterrey, Monterrey, State of Monterrey, Mexico -6/22/2006-Mexican League -Laguna Vaqueros (Cowboys) 6 Monterrey Sultanes (Sultans) 4 in 16 innings, rain delay 2:16 at start -15,635 fans; only 100 fans at end -finished at 3:53 A.M. in the early morning of 6/23.

5:30—Hadlock Field, Portland, Maine—7/2/2006 —Eastern League—Portland Sea Dogs 14 Trenton Thunder 13 in 14 innings—7386 fans—finished at 6:30 P.M.

6:19 – U.S. Cellular Field, Chicago, Illinois – 7/9/2006 – American League – White Sox 6 Red Sox 5 in 19 innings – 39,335 fans – finished at 7:24 P.M.

5:36 — Citibank Ballpark, Midland, Texas — 7/12/ 2006 — Texas League — Midland RockHounds 11 Wichita Wranglers 10 in 15 innings — 2726 fans — finished at 12:41 A.M. in the early morning of 7/13.

5:00— Isotopes Park, Albuquerque, New Mexico— 7/16/2006— Pacific Coast League— Iowa Cubs 5 Albuquerque Isotopes 4 in 17 innings— 9019 fans finished at 11:05 P.M.

6:40—KeySpan Park, Brooklyn, New York—7/20/ 2006—New York-Pennsylvania League—Oneonta Tigers 6 Brooklyn Cyclones 1 in 26 innings—9004 fans; 190 fans at end—finished at 6:45 P.M.

5:04 — AutoZone Park, Memphis, Tennessee — 7/30/2006 — Pacific Coast League — Memphis Redbirds 9 Colorado Springs SkySox 8 in 16 innings — 8095 fans — finished at 7:14 P.M.

5:22 — Baseball Grounds, Jacksonville, Florida — 8/12/2006 and 8/13/2006 — Southern League — Jacksonville Suns 5 West Tennessee Diamond Jaxx 2 in 20 innings, rain delay, 2nd rain delay top 4th, suspended after 0:55 top 4th; then West Tennessee 4 Jacksonville 1 in 1:44 and 7 innings — 6280 fans on 8/12; 2907 fans on 8/13 — finished at 7:32 P.M.; 2nd game finished at 9:46 P.M.

7:55 — Estadio (Stadium) Ojinaga, Ojinaga, State of Chihuahua, Mexico — 8/13/2006 — Amateur — Madera Venados (Deer) 11 Ojinaga Soles (Suns) 9 in 21 innings—finished at 6:58 P.M.

5:36 — Minute Maid Park, Houston, Texas — 8/15/ 2006 — National League — Cubs 8 Astros 6 in 18 innings — 41,531 fans — finished at 12:41 A.M. in the early morning of 8/16.

5:21—Coors Field, Denver, Colorado — 8/15/2006 — National League — Diamondbacks 2 Rockies 1 in 18 innings — 22,076 fans — finished at 12:26 A.M. in the early morning of 8/16.

5:06 — Chase Field, Phoenix, Arizona — 8/25/2006 — National League — Diamondbacks 9 Dodgers 7 in 15 innings — 26,276 fans — finished at 12:11 A.M. in the early morning of 8/26.

5:19 — Estadio (Stadium) Kulkucan, Merida, State of Yucatan, Mexico — 8/27/2006 — Mexican League — Monterry Sultanes (Sultans) 2 Yucatan Leones (Lions) in 14 innings — finished at 1:19 A.M. in the early morning of 8/28.

5:01— Banner Island Ballpark, Stockton, California — 9/2/2006 — California League — San Jose Giants 7 Stockton Ports 3 in 16 innings — 3717 fans finished at 12:06 A.M. in the early morning of 9/3.

6:20—Citibank Park, Central Islip, New York— 9/12/2006—Atlantic League—Camden Riversharks 8 Long Island Ducks 7 in 18 innings—5234 fans; 30 fans at end—finished at 1:26 A.M. in the early morning of 9/13.

5:07 — Chase Field, Phoenix, Arizona — 9/16/2006 — National League — Diamondbacks 7 Rockies 6 in 16 innings — 27,822 fans — finished at 12:12 A.M. in the early morning of 9/17.

6:21—Estadio (Stadium) Jesus Carranza, Guasave, State of Sinaloa, Mexico—11/26/2006—Mexican Pacific League—Guasave Algodoneros (Cotton Pickers) 9 Mochis Caneros (Sugarcane Pickers) 7 in 16 innings—finished at 11:45 P.M.

5:16 — Estadio (Stadium) Angel Flores, Culiacan, State of Sinaloa, Mexico — 11/26/2006 — Mexican Pacific League — Culiacan Tomateros (Tomato Growers) 4 Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 3 in 17 innings; then Culican 7 Mazatlan 0 in 1:58 and 7 innings.

6:13 – Estadio (Stadium) Roberto Clemente, Carolina, Puerto Rico – 2/2/2007 – Caribbean Series – Aguilas Cibaenas (Dominican) 4 Aragua Tigres (Tigers) (Venezuela) 3 in 18 innings; then Carolina Giantes (Giants) (Puerto Rico) 11 Hermosillo Naranjeros (Orange Growers) (Mexico) 1 in 3:15 – 2nd game finished at 2:05 A.M. in the early morning of 2/3.

5:00–Villa Clara, Cuba–2/18/2007–Cuba League–Industriales 11 Villa Clara 8 in 11 innings.

5:43—Blair Field, Long Beach, California— 3/24/2007—National Collegiate Athletic Association—Long Beach State University DirtBags 4 California State University at Fullerton Titans 3 in 14 innings—2402 fans.

5:30—Habana, Cuba—3/27/2007—Cuban League Playoffs—Sancti Spiritus 2 La Habana Province 1 in 17 innings. 5:14 — Legends Field, Tampa, Florida — 4/17/2007 — Florida State League — Clearwater Threshers 4 Tampa Yankees 1 in 20 innings — 706 fans — ended at 12:14 A.M. in the early morning of 4/18.

5:07 — Raymond C. Hand Park, Clarksville, Tennessee — 4/22/2007 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Southeast Missouri State University Redhawks 16 Austin Peay University Governors 14 in 12 innings — 310 fans — finished at 6:09 P.M.

5:05 — Nash Park, Kenosha, Wisconsin — 4/24/ 2007 — Wisconsin State High School League — Kenosha Tremper High School Trojans 3 Racine Horlick High School Rebels 2 in 20 innings — 65 fans; 20 fans at end — finished at 9:35 P.M.

5:26 – Whataburger Field, Corpus Christi, Texas – 4/26/2007 – Texas League – Corpus Christi Hooks 7 Midland RockHounds 6 in 18 innings – 6729 fans – finished at 12:31 A.M. in the early morning of 4/27.

5:45 — Klein Field, Stockton, California — 4/29/ 2007 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Long Beach State University DirtBags 14 University of the Pacific Tigers 9 in 14 innings — 760 fans finished at 6:45 P.M.

5:13 – Samuel L. Plumeri Sr. Field at Mercer County Waterfront Park, Trenton, New Jersey – 6/7/2007 – Eastern League – Trenton Thunder 5 Binghamton Mets 4 in 14 innings – 6345 fans; 75 fans – finished at 12:22 A.M. in the early morning of 6/8.

5:40—Rosenblatt Stadium, Omaha, Nebraska— 6/18/2007—National Collegiate Athletic Association—University of California at Irvine Anteaters 5 California State University at Fullerton Titans 4 in 13 innings—16,451 fans—finished at 6:47 P.M.

5:20—Melalucha Field, Idaho Falls, Idaho— 6/23/2007—Pioneer League—Idaho Falls Chukars 5 Orem Owlz 4 in 17 innings—300 fans at end finished at 12:36 A.M. in the early morning of 6/24.

5:31—Tainan Stadium, Tainan, Taiwan — 7/1/2007— Chinese League — Chinatrust Whales 9 Uni-President Lions 9 in 12 innings — 2006 fans — finished at 10:36 P.M.

5:09 — Minute Maid Park, Houston, Texas — 7/7/ 2007 — National League — Mets 5 Astros 3 in 17 innings — 41,596 fans — finished at 11:14 P.M.

5:25 – Petersburg Sports Complex, Petersburg, Virginia – 7/11/2007 – Coastal Plain League – Peninsula Pilots 9 Petersburg Generals 5 in 17 innings –120 fans – finished at 2:20 A.M. in the early morning of 7/12.

5:44 — Rent One Park, Marion, Illinois — 7/13/ 2007 — Frontier League — Southern Illinois Miners 4 Florence Freedom 3 in 18 innings — 5443 fans finished at 12:49 A.M. in the early morning of 7/14.

5:35 – Jackie Robinson Stadium, Los Angeles, California – 2/27/2008 – National Collegiate Athletic Association – University of California at Los Angeles Bruins 5 University of California at Santa Barbara Gauchos 4 in 13 innings — 437 fans — finished at 11:40 P.M.

5:04 — J.C. Love Field, Ruston, Louisiana — 3/29/ 2008 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Louisiana Tech University Bulldogs 12 San Jose State University Spartans 11 in 14 innings in 2nd game — 988 fans — finished at 9:50 P.M.; Louisiana Tech 7 San Jose State 2 in 2:47 in 1st game.

5:41—Arrowhead Credit Union Park, San Bernardino, California — 4/7/2008 and 4/8/2008 — California League — Lancaster JetHawks 6 Inland Empire 66'ers 3 in 18 innings, suspended after 4:41 and 15 innings —1993 fans on 4/7; 60 fans at suspension; 1130 fans on 4/8 — suspended at 11:50 P.M., finished at 6:57 P.M.

5:26 — Newman Outdoor Field, Fargo, North Dakota — 4/12/2008 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — 3:40 rain delay at start, Southern Utah University Thunderbirds 12 North Dakota State University Bison 5 in 17 innings in 1st game, 2nd game canceled — 181 fans — finished at 10:06 P.M.

5:41—Hadlock Field, Portland, Maine—4/16/2008 —Eastern League—Portland Sea Dogs 8 Connecticut Defenders 7 in 17 innings—3822 fans.

5:10—Wolff Stadium, San Antonio, Texas—4/17/ 2008—Texas League—San Antonio Missions 7 Midland RockHounds 6 in 14 innings—4974 fans finished at 12:15 A.M. in the early morning of 4/18.

6:16 — Petco Park, San Diego, California — 4/17/2008 — National League — Rockies 2 Padres 1 in 22 innings — 25,984 fans — finished at 1:21 A.M. in the early morning of 4/18.

5:20—Hawks Field, Lincoln, Nebraska—5/9/ 2008—National Collegiate Athletic Association— Texas Agricultural and Mechanical (A&M) University Aggies 6 University of Nebraska Cornhuskers 3— 8708 fans—game finished at 12:00 Midnight.

5:00—Hanceville, Alabama—5/12/2008—National Junior Collegiate Athletic Association—Chattahoochee Valley Community College Pirates 6 Alabama Southern Community College Eagles 4 in 15 innings.

5:14 — Zephyr Field, Metairie, Louisiana — 5/13/ 2008 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Louisiana State University Tigers 7 University of New Orleans Privateers 6 in 15 innings — 5626 fans finished at 12:14 A.M.

7:20—Yanez Field, Downey, California—5/13/ 2008—California Interscholastic Federation (CIF) Southern Section Division III Playoffs Wildcard Round—Downey High School Vikings 3 Harvard-Westlake Upper School Wolverines 2 in 20 innings— 200 fans including Tommy Lasorda; 125 fans at end finished at 10:35 P.M.

5:57 — Petco Park, San Diego, California — 5/25/ 2008 — National League — Padres 12 Reds 9 in 18 innings — 36,508 fans — finished at 7:02 P.M.

6:45 – GCS Ballpark, Sauget, Illinois – 5/26/2008 – National Collegiate Athletic Association Divison II playoffs — Sonoma State University Seawolves 6 University of Central Missouri Mules 5 in 19 innings — 665 fans — finished at 2:53 A.M. in the early morning of 5/27.

5:26 — War Memorial Stadium, Hampton, Virginia — 6/7/2008 — Coastal Plain League — Edenton Steamers 11 Peninsula Pilots 10 in 14 innings — 1489 fans — finished at 12:31 A.M. in the early morning of 6/8.

5:22 - Mokdong Yagu-jang (Stadium), Seoul, South Korea - 6/12/2008 - Korean Organization - Woori Heroes 2 Kia Tigers 1 in 14 innings, 0:55 rain delay - 6900 fans; 900 fans at end - finished at 12:49 A.M. in the early morning of 6/13.

5:15 – Dickey-Stephens Park, North Little Rock, Arkansas – 6/13/2008 – Texas League – Tulsa Oilers 5 Arkansas Travelers 4 in 16 innings – 5621 fans – finished at 12:25 A.M. in the early morning of 6/14.

5:05 – Capital City Stadium, Columbia, South Carolina – 6/18/2008 – Coastal Plain League – Columbia Blowfish 9 Wilmington Sharks 8 in 14 innings –1162 fans – finished at 12:10 A.M. in the early morning of 6/19.

5:16 — Jubilee Field, Yorkton, Province of Saskatchewan, Canada — 6/19/2008 and 6/22/2008 — Western Major League — Sherwood Park Dukes 5 Yorkton Cardinals 3 in 20 innings, rain delay 0:20 top 12th, suspended after 3:13 and 11 innings — 475 fans on 6/19; 225 fans when suspended; 316 fans on 6/22 — suspended at 10:38 P.M.; finished at 4:08 P.M.

6:06 – Hanover Insurance Park at Fitton Field, Worcester, Massachusetts – 6/26/2008 – Canadian American (CanAm) League – New Jersey Jackals 5 Worcester Tornadoes 4 in 20 innings –1434 fans – finished at 12:11 A.M. in the early morning of 6/27.

5:35 — Turner Field, Atlanta, Georgia — 7/6/2008 — National League — rain delay 1:50 at start, Braves 7 Astros 6 in 17 innings — 24,169 fans — finished at 9:00 P.M.

5:08 — Nat Bailey Stadium, Vancouver, Province of British Columbia, Canada — 7/13/2008 — Northwest League — Spokane Indians 10 Vancouver Canadians 8 in 14 innings — 4372 fans — finished at 6:13 P.M.

5:09 — Shea Štadium, New York, New York — 7/ 26/2008 — National League — Cardinals 10 Mets 8 in 14 innings — 53,799 fans — finished at 12:19 A.M. in the early morning of 7/27.

5:31—Centennial Field, Burlington, Vermont — 7/28/2008 — New York-Pennsylvania League — Vermont Lake Monsters 5 Lowell Spinners 4 in 18 innings — 3113 fans —finished at 12:36 A.M. in the early morning of 7/29.

5:33 — Progressive Field, Cleveland, Ohio — 7/30/ 2008 — American League — Tigers 14 Indians 12 in 13 innings — 26,596 fans — finished at 12:43 A.M. in the early morning of 7/31.

5:17 — Citizens Bank Park, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 8/26/2008 — National League — Phillies 8 Mets 7 in 13 innings — 45,204 fans — finished at 12:22 A.M. in the early morning of 8/27. 5:51— Jamsil Yagu-jang (Stadium), Seoul, South Korea — 9/3/2008 — Korean Organization — Doosan Bears 1 Hanwha Eagles 0 in 18 innings — 7273 fans; 1000 fans at end —finished at 12:22 A.M. in the early morning of 9/4.

5:02 — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 9/ 10/2008 — American League — Rays 4 Red Sox 2 in 14 innings — 38,114 fans — finished at 12:07 A.M. in the early morning of 9/11.

5:00- Nationals Park, Washington, D.C. -9/19/2008 - National League - Padres 11 Nationals 6 in 14 innings -28,600 fans; 1250 fans at end - finished at 12:36 A.M. in the morning of 9/20.

5:01—Sportpark Schenkel, Capelle aan den Ijssel, Netherlands — 9/20/2008 — Promotion/Relegation Playoff—Ado 2 Euro Stars 1 in 18 innings — 200 fans —finished at 7:01 P.M.

5:19 – Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts – 10/5/ 2008 – American League Division Series – Angels 5 Red Sox 4 in 12 innings – 39,067 fans – finished at 12:48 A.M. in the early morning of 10/6.

5:27 — Tropicana Field, St. Petersburg, Florida — 10/11/2008 — American League Championship Series — Rays 9 Red Sox 8 in 11 innings — 34,904 fans finished at 1:35 A.M. in the early morning of 10/12.

5:35 — Estadio (Stadium) Tetelo Vargas, San Pedro de Marcoris, Dominican —10/29/2008 — Winter League — Gigantes (Giants) del Cibao 11 Orientales Estrellas (Oriental Stars) 7 in 13 innings.

6:46 — Estadio (Stadium) Teodoro Mariscal, Mazatlan; State of Sinaloa, Mexico — 10/31/2008 — Mexican Pacific League — Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 4 Culiacan Tomateros (Tomato Growers) 2 in 17 innings — 7980 fans — finished at 2:46 A.M. in the early morning of 11/1.

5:14 — Estadio (Stadium) Tetelo Vargas, San Pedro de Marcoris, Dominican —11/9/2008 — Winter League — Gigantes (Giants) del Cibao 5 Orientales Estrellas (Oriental Stars) 2 in extra innings.

5:35 — Estadio (Stadium) Tetelo Vargas, San Pedro de Marcoris, Dominican —11/16/2008 — Winter League — Orientales Estrellas (Oriental Stars) 7 Escogido Leones Rojos (Red Lions) 6 in 10 innings.

6:19 — Estadio (Stadium) Quisqueya, Santo Domingo, Dominican —12/2/2008 — Winter League — Tigres (Tigers) del Licey 10 Gigantes (Giants) del Cibao 9 in 18 innings, rain delay 1:02 —finished at 2:51 A.M. in the early morning of 12/3.

Longest U.S. Amateur Games, by State

Note: Games within each state are arranged in chronological order.

Alaska (1)

6:39 — Mulcahy Stadium, Anchorage — 6/23/1992 — Alaska League — Anchorage Glacier Pilots defeated Kamloops in 21 innings —12 fans at end —finished at 2:15 A.M. in the early morning of 6/24.

California (1)

5:00—South Side Playgrounds, San Francisco— 10/12/1929—Regulars 9 Yannigans 8 in 29 innings finished at 6:00 P.M.

Connecticut (2)

5:15 – East Hartford – 5/14/1933 – Amateur – East Hartford Red Sox 5 New Britain Ramblers 4 in 20 innings.

6:10—Owen Fish Park, Fairfield—8/14/1992 and 8/15/1992—Northeast Regionals, National Amateur League—New Rochelle Robins 2 Worcester Warriors 1 in 24 innings, suspended after 10 innings.

Illinois (2)

5:44 — Jack Horenberger Field, Bloomington — 7/30/2002 — Central Illinois Collegiate League — Decatur Blues 11 Twin City Stars 4 in 20 innings — 259 fans — finished at 10:44 P.M.

5:00—Plote Field, Lake in the Hills—7/24/2005— American Legion—St. Charles Post 342 22 Crystal Lake Post 171 14.

Iowa (2)

5:00-Gilmore Ground, Gilmore City -6/26/1907-Amateur - Humboldt Colts 1 Gilmore City Midgets 0 in 21 innings - finished at 8:05 P.M. -Humboldt batter Arch Wilder singled in top of 21st, stole second, was safe at third when comebacker to pitcher was thrown to third even though throw beat him by six feet, then stole home and was called safe even though throw beat him by eight feet; umpire Harve Clark was from Humboldt.

5:00—Pacific Junction—8/14/1926—Folsom 7 Pleasant Valley 4 in 25 innings.

Kentucky (1)

8:00-Carrollton Commons, Carrollton -7/4/1868 – Ghent 179 Carrollton 70 in 7 innings, dinner delay 5:00-started at 9:00 A.M.; called off at 10:00 P.M.

Maryland (2)

5:50—Mr. Howard's Lands off Railroad Avenue, Elkton — 7/17/1866 — Elkton Eclipses 62 St. Georges of Delaware 37 — finished at 6:50 P.M.

5:00—Baltimore—7/26/1913—White Lilies 4 Locust Point Junior All-Stars 2 in 24 innings—finished at 3:00 P.M.

Massachusetts (1)

5:52 — Eldredge Park, Orleans — 8/4/2003 — Cape Cod League — Harwich Mariners 3 Orleans Cardinals 2 in 20 innings; umpire crew chief called it a tie game after 17 innings a little after Midnight, but both managers and players from both teams successfully changed his mind to allow the game to continue — 4615 fans, 125 fans at end —finished at 12:58 A.M. in the early morning of 8/5.

Minnesota (6)

5:00—Riverside Park, Shakopee—8/13/1950— Minnesota River League—Shakopee Indians 4 St. Peter Saints 3 in 24 innings—finished at 7:30 P.M.

5:10—Barney Tadsen Field, Brownton — 7/31/1969 — Town Team League — Brownton 6 New Ulm Kaiserhoff 5 in 18 innings —finished at 1:10 A.M. in the early morning of 8/1.

5:30- Barney Tadsen Field, Brownton -9/9/1971- Town Team League - Hector Flyers 4 Stark (later Stark Longhorns) 2 in 20 innings, rain delay 0:20 at start - 200 fans, 150 fans at end - finished at 11:50 P.M.

6:00—Parade Stadium, Minneapolis—8/1 or 8/2/ 2002—Park National League—Minneapolis Angels 4 Lyons Pub Warriors 3 in 17 innings—40 fans; 250 fans at end—finished at 4:00 P.M.

7:15 — Byron High School Field, Byron and Eckstein Field, Plainview — 6/22/2003 and 7/6/2003 — Twin Rivers League — Byron Braves 4 Plainview Bucks 3 in 21 innings, suspended after 5:00 and 15 innings on 6/22 in Byron, resumed 7/6 in Plainview —15 fans in Byron, 20 fans in Plainview — suspended at 6:00 P.M. on 6/22, finished at 9:45 P.M. on 7/6.

5:50—Vic Kapsner Memorial Park, Lastrup— 7/23/2005—Town Team League—Lastrup Lakers 1 Pierz Brewers 0 in 28 innings—100 fans; 300 fans at end—finished at 7:25 P.M.

Missouri (2)

5:00—Kansas City—7/30/1933—Kansas City 48th Street Merchants 16 St. Joseph Bottling Works 10 in 23 innings.

6:30-St. Louis or Tenbrook - 5/??/1934 - St. Louis Red Sox vs. Tenbrook Athletic Club in 23 innings.

New Hampshire (1)

5:05 – Keene – week before 9/14/1963 – American Legion – Greensboro (NC) 8 Orangeburg (Sc) 6 in 17 innings.

New Jersey (2)

5:30— Secaucus or Jersey City — 7/??/2001— Little League 10-Year Old District 7 First Round Playoffs — Secaucus 8 Jersey City Lincoln Park 7 in 15 innings.

5:48 — Union Field, West Deptford — 7/28/2002 — American Legion District 4 Tournament — Post 372 Cherry Hill 14 Post 458 North Trenton 13 in 18 innings — 200 fans — finished at 11:48 P.M.

New Mexico (1)

5:00—Placitas—7/3/1956—Bernalillo County SemiPro League—Los Ranchos de Albuquerque 5 Placitas 3 in 20 innings.

New York (1)

5:47 – New York –?/??/1954 – City Youth Federation Semi-Final Game – Hudson Guild Neighborhood House 3 Immaculate Conception of the Bronx 2 in 20 innings.

North Carolina (1)

5:05 — Swepsonville — 6/27/1957 — Junior League — Eli Whitney 10 Swepsonville 8 in 16 innings — finished at 8:55 P.M.

Ohio (4)

5:50—Brookside Park, Cleveland — 7/4/1907 — Brooklyn Athletic Club 4 East End All Stars 1 in 30 innings.

5:00 – Danville – 7/10/1910 – Amity 6 Danville 6 in 20 innings.

5:30 – Minster – 7/18/1956 – American Legion – St. Mary's 4 Lima 3 in 21 innings.

5:00 – Glenmont – 7/4/1965 – Triple Counties League – Glenmont 8 Loudonville 7 in 22 innings.

Oklahoma (1)

6:06 — Regional Park, Midwest City — 7/??/1973 — American Legion — Post 170 Midwest City 2 Post 170 Choctaw 1 in 24 innings — 50 fans, 15 fans at end — finished at 2:06 A.M. in the early morning of 7/??.

Pennsylvania (5)

8:30–Pottsville – 7/8/1902 – Pottsville Team A 38 Pottsville Team B 36 – finished at 5:30 P.M.

5:00 – Brownsville – 8/23/1938 – Melrose 3 West Bend 2 in 21 innings.

5:00 – McKeta Field, Van Voorhis – 6/22/1947 – Pigeon Creek League – Bentleyville 4 Van Voorhis 4 in 21 innings – finished at 7:00 P.M.

6:10—Ohiopyle—7/16/1967—Fay-West (Fayette County-Westmoreland County) League—Ohiopyle 11 Breakneck 10 in 20 innings—finished at 8:10 P.M.

5:30 – Newtown – 6/3/1973 – Pennsbury/Bucks County Senior Babe Ruth League – Newtown Lions 2 South Bristol Hawks 1 in 23 innings – finished at 7:30 P.M.

Rhode Island (1)

6:45 — Providence — 6/17/1978 — Sunset League — Mooseup Valley 4 Sports Enterprises 2 in 29 innings; 2nd game cancelled.

South Carolina (2)

5:45 – Greenwood – 7/15/1959 – American Legion – Clinton 5 Post 20 Greenwood 3 in 20 innings. 5:05 – Capital City Stadium, Columbia – 6/18/

2008 — Coastal Plain League — Columbia Blowfish 9 Wilmington Sharks 8 in 14 innings —1162 fans finished at 12:10 A.M. in the early morning of 6/19.

South Dakota (1)

5:47 – American Legion Ballfield, Mobridge – 8/4/1987 – South Dakota Amateur Association – Mobridge 7 Redfield Merchants (later Pheasants, then Dairy Queen) 6 in 22 innings.

Texas (1)

5:00—Pony-Colt Stadium, Galveston—7/27/1963 — Colt League—Galena Park 6 Beaumont 5 in 20 innings.

Virginia (3)

5:05 — New Market or Staunton — 6/22/2004 — Valley League — Staunton Braves defeated New Market Rebels in 15 innings.

5:25 – Petersburg Sports Complex, Petersburg – 7/11/2007 – Coastal Plain League – Peninsula Pilots 9 Petersburg Generals 5 in 17 innings –120 fans – finished at 2:20 A.M. in the early morning of 7/12.

5:26 — War Memorial Stadium, Hampton — 6/7/ 2008 — Coastal Plain League — Edenton Steamers 11 Peninsula Pilots 10 in 14 innings —1489 fans — finished at 12:31 A.M. in the early morning of 6/8.

Wisconsin (2)

5:15 — Clintonville — 6/15/1939 — Northern State League — Clintonville Four Wheel Drive Truckers 1 Two Rivers Polar Bears 0 in 21 innings —finished at 1:45 A.M. in the early morning of 6/16.

6:01— Fairground Park, Fond du Lac -7/31/1963 — Fox River Valley League — Little Chute-Kimberly Papermakers 11 Fond du Lac 5 in 21 innings finished at 2:01 A.M. in the early morning of 8/1— this was the first game to ever last between 6 and 7 hours, and it happened only after there had already been five prior games lasting 7 hours or more.

Scholastic Divisions, Worldwide (65)

Grammar School (1)

5:50—Dorchester Franklin Field Diamond #5, Boston, Massachusetts—6/8/1907—Henry L. Pierce Grammar School of Dorchester 4 Bennet Grammar School of Brighton 3 in 28 innings—finished at 3:50 P.M.

Junior High School (2)

6:58 — Matsue Kyujyo (Stadium), Matsue, Japan — 7/20/1935 and 7/21/1935 — Oota Chu 2 Matsue Chu (later Matsue Kita Koto-gakko) 1 in 35 innings, suspended after 4:48 and 23 innings.

5:45 — Tokyo, Japan — 8/30/1951 — Takefu Junior High School 0 Kohama Junior High School 0 in 30 innings — finished at 2:45 P.M.

High School (16)

5:29 — Yuanshan Qiuchang (Stadium), Taipei, Taiwan — 7/28/1941 — Jiayi Agriculture and Forestry Institute (Jianong) 2 Taipei Industrial School 1 in 25 innings.

5:47 — Shikoku Kyujo (Stadium), Shikoku, Japan — 4/28/1958 — Takamatsu-shogyo 2 Tokushima-shogyo 0 in 25 innings. 5:11—Connecticut—6/7/1964—Class A playoffs— Waterbury Crosby High School Old Ivy (later Bulldogs) 6 West Haven Notre Dame High School Green Knights 5 in 19 innings.

6:15 — Delano High School Diamond #4 and Delano High School Varsity Field, Delano, California — 3/23/1967 — Fresno McLane High School Highlanders 3 Fresno High School Warriors 2 in 21 innings, diamond switch delay from Diamond #4 to Varsity Field 0:15 top 8th — finished at 10:30 P.M.

6:12 — Honolulu Stadium (later Termite Palace), Honolulu, Hawaii — 3/25/1967 — Kamehameha High School Warriors 9 McKinley High School Tigers 7 in 25 innings.

5:45 – Boysen Park, Anaheim, California – 4/ 26/1968 – Santa Ana High School Saints 6 Anaheim High School Colonists 6 in 19 innings, automatic sprinkers delay 0:45 top 20th –100 fans, 25 fans at end – called off at 1:30 A.M. because automated sprinklers which had come on at 12:45 A.M. could not be turned off.

6:00— Knowles Field, Martinez, California — 5/9/ 1968 — Alhambra High School Bulldogs 4 San Ramon Valley High School Wolves 3 in 21 innings —finished at 9:30 P.M.

5:00—Field Park, Mukwonago, Wisconsin—5/15/ 1969—Mukwonago High School Indians 5 Burlington High School Demons 4 in 21 innings—65 fans finished at 9:30 P.M.

5:16 — Flamingo Park, Miami Beach, Florida — 4/23/1970 — Miami High School Stingarees 1 Hialeah High School Thoroughbreds 0 in 24 innings; then Miami Coral Park High School Rams 9 Miami High School 0 in 2:44 and 7 innings — 500 fans; 1000 fans at end —1st game finished at 8:16 P.M.; 2nd game finished at 11:44 P.M.

6:03 – Shively Field, Lexington, Kentucky – 6/3/ 1970 – Madisonville High School Maroons 12 Lexington Lafayette High School Generals 11 in 22 innings.

6:15 — Mayo Field, Rochester, Minnesota — 5/10/ 1986 and 5/20/1986 — Rochester Mayo High School Spartans 3 Mankato East High School Cougars 2 in 20 innings, rain delay 1:30 bottom 10th, suspended after 3:00 and 9½ innings, then Rochester Mayo 11 Mankato East 10 in 2:30 and 7 innings —125 fans on 5/10— suspended at 3:30 P.M. on 5/10, 1st game finished at 8:15 P.M. on 5/20; 2nd game finished at 11:15 P.M. on 5/ 20.

6:20—Evans High School Field, Augusta, Georgia—5/21/1993—Augusta Evans High School Knights 3 Marietta Sprayberry High School Yellow Jackets 2 in 17 innings—1500 fans—finished at 11:20 P.M.

7:00—Legion Field, Downers Grove, Illinois— 4/28/1995 and 5/3/1995 and 5/8/1995 and 5/12/1995 —Downers Grove North High School Trojans 12 Elmhurst York High School Dukes 11 in 23 innings, suspended after 3:00 and 8 innings, suspended a 2nd time after 6:00 and 20 innings—75 fans on 4/28, 75 fans on 5/3, 250 fans on 5/12 — suspended at 7:15 P.M. at 4/28, suspended 2nd time at 7:15 P.M. on 5/3, rained out on 5/8, finished at 5:15 P.M. on 5/12.

5:50—Blue Valley District Activity Center, Overland Park, Kansas—5/20/1997—Blue Valley Northwest High School Huskies 1 Shawnee Mission North High School Mustangs 0 in 21 innings—finished at 10:50 P.M.

5:05 – Nash Park, Kenosha, Wisconsin – 4/24/ 2007 – Kenosha Tremper High School Trojans 3 Racine Horlick High School Rebels 2 in 20 innings – 65 fans; 20 fans at end – finished at 9:35 P.M.

7:20—Yanez Field, Downey, California—5/13/ 2008—California Interscholastic Federation (CIF) Southern Section Division III Playoffs Wildcard Round—Downey High School Vikings 3 Harvard-Westlake Upper School Wolverines 2 in 20 innings— 200 fans including Tommy Lasorda; 125 fans at end finished at 10:35 P.M.

College

National Club Association (NCBA) (1)

5:00—JHU Baseball Field, Baltimore, Maryland — 4/13/2002 — National Club Baseball Association at National Collegiate Athletic Association —NCBA (Club) George Washington University Colonials 22 NCAA Johns Hopkins University Junior Varsity (Jv) Blue Jays 21 in 7 innings; then Johns Hopkins Jv defeated George Washington Club by several runs in 2:45 and 7 innings — 30 fans; 8632 fans next door at Homewood Field for Johns Hopkins' 9–8 lacrosse overtime win over Maryland —finished at 8:15 P.M.

National Association of Intercollegiate Athletics (NAIA) (4)

5:20—Thunderbird Park, Cedar City, Utah— 5/2/1981—Mesa State College Mavericks 9 New Mexico Highlands University Cowboys 8 in 20 innings, then Southern Utah State College Thunderbirds 5 Mesa State 4.

6:00— Heart of Florida Medical Regional Center Field, Babson Park, Florida — 2/19/1999 and 2/20/ 1999 — Nova Southeastern University Knights 9 Webber College (now Webber International University) Warriors 5 in 21 innings, suspended after 3:43 and 13 innings — 50 fans — suspended at 6:28 P.M., finished at 1:17 P.M.

5:45 — Duvall-Rosier Field, Fairmont, West Virginia — 3/22/2005 — Naia at NCAA — Fairmont State University Falcons 7 Seton Hill College Griffins 6 in 17 innings, then Fairmont State 5 Seton Hill 2 in 2:01 and 7 innings — 56 fans, 25 fans at end — 2nd game finished at 10:16 P.M.

6:15 – Wilson Field, Georgetown, Kentucky – 4/29/2005 – Lambuth University Eagles 8 Pikeville College Bears 5 in 22 innings – 200 fans, 150 fans at end – finished at 4:45 P.M.

National Collegiate Athletic Association (NCAA) (43)

5:00—North Maine Street Park, Fallon, Nevada — 3/30/1961—University of Nevada (later University of Nevada–Reno) Wolf Pack 16 Notre Dame University Fighting Irish 15 in 10 innings—finished at 12:30 A.M. in the early morning of 3/31.

6:30—Kentucky Wesleyan Field (now Panther Park), Owensboro, Kentucky—4/20/1964—Kentucky Wesleyan College Panthers 8 Oakland City College Mighty Oaks 7 in 22 innings, 2nd game postponed—200 fans—finished at 11:30 P.M.

5:00 – Riverside, California – 3/20/1967 – University of California Riverside Highlanders 5 Ohio State Buckeyes 5 in 14 innings – called at 12 Midnight.

5:03 – Clark Field, Lafayette, Louisiana – 3/27/1971 – University of Southwestern Louisiana (now University of Louisiana-Lafayette) Ragin' Cajuns 6 McNeese State University Cowboys 5 in 23 innings, then McNeese State 13 Southwestern Louisiana 10 in 2:30 and 7 innings –1st game finished at 6:33 P.M., 2nd game finished at 10:03 P.M.

5:10—University Field, Amherst, Massachusetts — 5/13/1972 — University of Connecticut Huskies 9 University of Massachusetts Minutemen 3 in 20 innings.

5:30—Fairfax City, Virginia—4/8/1977—Brockport State College (later State University of New York—Brockport) Golden Eagles 2 George Mason University Patriots 2 in 20 innings, umpires Warner and Madeiros walked off the field at the end because they were too cold (it was 40 degrees), without even telling the coaches, who might have told them umpires did not walk off the field due to cold weather during baseball games played 3/25/1960 at the North Pole and 1/1/1997 at McMurdo Sound in Antarctica— 0 fans at end in stands, but 50 fans at end in cars with heaters on—finished at 8:50 P.M.

6:07 - Disch-Falk Field, Austin, Texas - 5/15/1981and 5/16/1981 - University of Texas Longhorns 7 Rice University Owls 6 in 20 innings, rain delay 2:00 top 13th, suspended after 3:10 and 12 innings - 4700 fans on 5/15, 300 fans at suspension, 3000 fans on 5/16 suspended at 1:15 A.M. in the early morning of 5/16, finished at 3:02 P.M. on 5/16.

5:00—Rosenblatt Stadium, Omaha, Nebraska— 6/5/1981—College World Series—Oklahoma State University Cowboys 11 Arizona State University Sun Devils 10 in 13 innings.

5:00— Mark Light Stadium, Coral Gables, Florida — 5/23/1986— Atlantic Regionals— Georgia Technical Institute Yellow Jackets 9 US Naval Academy Midshipmen 8 in 14 innings.

5:18 — Beehive Stadium, New Britain, Connecticut — 5/26/1988 — Clemson University Tigers 3 Fordham University Rams 2 in 19 innings — 404 fans finished at 5:18 P.M.

5:57 – Olsen Field, College Station, Texas – 5/5/ 1989 – University of Arkansas Razorbacks 11 Texas Agricultural and Mechanical (A&M) University Aggies 9 in 16 innings – 5388 fans, 3000 fans at end.

5:04 — Toro Field, Carson, California — 5/5/1992 — California State University at Dominguez Hills Toros 11 California Polytechnic University at Pomona Broncos 10 in 15 innings — 36 fans — finished at 6:04 P.M.

5:47 — Tiger Field (later Doug Kingsmore Stadium), Clemson, South Carolina — 4/21/1996 — Georgia Southern University Eagles 9 Clemson University Tigers 7 in 18 innings in 2nd game, Georgia Southern 8 Clemson 6 in 2:57 and 10 innings in 1st game — 2356 fans, 500 fans at end — 2nd game finished at 9:20 P.M.

6:43 — Cougar Field, Houston, Texas — 2/21/1999 — Baylor University Bears 8 University of Houston Cougars 2 in 22 innings—1225 fans—finished at 10:48 P.M.

5:00—Carson Center Field, Evansville, Indiana— 3/7/1999—University of Memphis Tigers 4 University of Evansville Purple Aces 4 in 21 innings—205 fans, 75 fans at end—finished at 4:00 P.M.

6:07 — Dick Howser Field, Tallahassee, Florida — 4/7/2000 — Florida State University Seminoles 14 University of Miami Hurricanes 13 in 17 innings — 4626 fans — finished at 1:09 A.M. in the early morning of 4/8.

5:19—Frank Sancet Field, Tucson, Arizona— 4/5/2002—Stanford University Cardinal 5 University of Arizona Wildcats 4 in 18 innings.

5:00—Jhu Baseball Field, Baltimore, Maryland— 4/13/2002—National Club Baseball Association at National Collegiate Athletic Association—Ncba (Club) George Washington University Colonials 22 NCAA Johns Hopkins University Junior Varsity (Jv) Blue Jays 21 in 7 innings; then Johns Hopkins Jv defeated George Washington Club by several runs in 2:45 and 7 innings—30 fans; 8632 fans next door at Homewood Field for Johns Hopkins' 9–8 lacrosse overtime win over Maryland—finished at 8:15 P.M.

5:17 — George Page Stadium, Los Angeles; Benedetti Diamond, San Francisco, California — 3/24/2002and 5/10/2002 — University of San Francisco Dons 25 Loyola Marymount University Lions 21 in 10 innings; suspended after 5:10 and 9½ innings in Los Angeles on 3/24; completed in San Francisco on 5/10—498 fans on 3/24; 376 fans on 5/10— suspended at 6:10 P.M. on 3/24; finished at 2:07 P.M. on 5/10.

6:35 - Scott Park, Toledo, Ohio - 5/19/2002 -Central Michigan University Chippewas 16 University of Toledo Rockets 15 in 18 innings -101 fans, 60 fans at end -finished at 8:35 P.M.

5:22 — Northcut Field at Westgate Park, Dothan, Alabama — 3/1/2003 — Troy State University Trojans 8 Kansas State University Wildcats 7 in 18 innings, rain delay 1:40—273 fans, 50 fans at end —finished at 2:42 A.M. in the early morning of 3/2.

5:15 – Regional Park, Pine Bluff, Arkansas – 4/8/ 2004 – Prairie View Agricultural and Mechanical (A&M) University Panthers at University of Arkansas at Pine Bluff Golden Lions; then Pine Bluff 13 Prairie View A&M 12 in 14 innings – 85 fans – finished at 9:30 P.M.

6:28 — Frank Myers Field at Tointon Family Stadium, Manhattan, Kansas — 4/9/2004 — University of Texas Longhorns 10 Kansas State University Wildcats 6 in 20 innings — 874 fans — finished at 1:35 A.M. in the early morning of 4/10.

5:18 — Buck Shaw Stadium, Santa Clara, California — 4/27/2004 — Stanford University Cardinal 12 Santa Clara University Broncos 8 in 14 innings — 426 fans — finished at 11:21 P.M.

5:48 — Toro Field, Carson, California — 2/27/2005 — Sonoma State University Seawolves 11 California State University at Dominguez Hills Toros 10 in 16 innings — 89 fans — finished at 4:56 P.M.

5:45 — Duvall-Rosier Field, Fairmont, West Virginia — 3/22/2005 — Naia at NCAA — Fairmont State University Falcons 7 Seton Hill College Griffins 6 in 17 innings, then Fairmont State 5 Seton Hill 2 in 2:01 and 7 innings — 56 fans, 25 fans at end — 2nd game finished at 10:16 P.M.

5:25 – Rickwood Field, Birmingham, Alabama – 5/22/2005 and 5/23/2005 – Southern University Jaguars 6 Prairie View A&M University Panthers 5 in 15 innings in 2nd game, 0:45 gunfire delay bottom 15th, suspended after 5:15 and 14½ innings; Southern 6 Prairie View A&M 0 in 2:37 in 1st game – 314 fans for first game; 187 fans for second game – 2nd game suspended at 11:25 P.M.; finished at 8:10 A.M. on 5/23.

5:19 — Patriots Point Field, Charleston, South Carolina — 2/26/2006 — College of Charleston Cougars 7 University of Virginia Cavaliers 6 in 17 innings — 616 fans — finished at 7:20 P.M.

5:20—John Kurtz Field, Milledgeville, Georgia 3/4/2006—Georgia College and State University (Gcsu) Bobcats 2 Shippensburg University Red Raiders 1 in 2:26, then Gcsu 6 Shippensburg 5 in 17 innings—407 fans; 175 fans at beginning of 2nd game—1st game finished at 3:26 P.M.; 2nd game finished at 9:35 P.M.

5:04 — Jackie Robinson Stadium, Los Angeles, California — 4/23/2006 — University of California at Los Angeles Bruins 11 Arizona State University Sun Devils 10 in 10 innings — 979 fans —finished at 6:12 P.M.

5:09 — Goss Stadium at Coleman Field, Corvallis, Oregon — 4/25/2006 — Portland University Pilots 20 Oregon State University Beavers 13 in 12 innings — 1066 fans — finished at 9:14 P.M.

5:02 — Hooks Stadium, Winston-Salem, North Carolina — 5/6/2006 — Florida State University Seminoles 4 Wake Forest University Demon Deacons 3 in 20 innings —1711 fans; 850 fans at end —finished at 6:05 P.M.

5:07 — Schott Stadium, Santa Clara, California — 5/9/2006 — Stanford University Cardinal 8 Santa Clara University Broncos 4 in 15 innings — 876 fans finished at 11:14 P.M.

5:43 – Blair Field, Long Beach, California – 3/24/

2007 — Long Beach State University DirtBags 4 California State University at Fullerton Titans 3 in 14 innings — 2402 fans.

5:07 — Raymond C. Hand Park, Clarksville, Tennessee — 4/22/2007 — Southeast Missouri State University Redhawks 16 Austin Peay University Governors 14 in 12 innings — 310 fans — finished at 6:09 P.M.

5:45 — Klein Field, Stockton, California — 4/29/ 2007 — Long Beach State University DirtBags 14 University of the Pacific Tigers 9 in 14 innings — 760 fans — finished at 6:45 P.M.

5:40—Rosenblatt Stadium, Omaha, Nebraska— 6/18/2007—University of California at Irvine Anteaters 5 California State University at Fullerton Titans 4 in 13 innings—16,451 fans—finished at 6:47 P.M.

5:35 — Jackie Robinson Stadium, Los Angeles, California — 2/27/2008 — University of California at Los Angeles Bruins 5 University of California at Santa Barbara Gauchos 4 in 13 innings — 437 fans — finished at 11:40 P.M.

5:04 - J.C. Love Field, Ruston, Louisiana - 3/29/2008 - Louisiana Tech University Bulldogs 12 San Jose State University Spartans 11 in 14 innings in 2nd game - 988 fans - finished at 9:50 P.M.; Louisiana Tech 7 San Jose State 2 in 2:47 in 1st game.

5:26 — Newman Outdoor Field, Fargo, North Dakota — 4/12/2008 — 3:40 rain delay at start, Southern Utah University Thunderbirds 12 North Dakota State University Bison 5 in 17 innings in 1st game, 2nd game canceled — 181 fans — finished at 10:06 P.M.

5:20—Hawks Field, Lincoln, Nebraska—5/9/2008 — Texas Agricultural and Mechanical (A&M) University Aggies 6 University of Nebraska Cornhuskers 3 in 16 innings—8708 fans—game finished at 12:00 Midnight.

5:14 — Zephyr Field, Metairie, Louisiana — 5/13/ 2008 — Louisiana State University Tigers 7 University of New Orleans Privateers 6 in 15 innings — 5626 fans — finished at 12:14 A.M.

6:45—GCS Ballpark, Sauget, Illinois—5/26/2008 — Divison II playoffs—Sonoma State University Seawolves 6 University of Central Missouri Mules 5 in 19 innings—665 fans—finished at 2:53 A.M. in the early morning of 5/27.

National Junior Collegiate Athletic Association (NJCAA) (4)

7:30—Robert C. Wynn Field, Bradenton, Florida— 4/4/1987—Hillsborough Community College Hawks 6 Manatee Community College Lancers 4 in 32 innings—200 fans, 45 fans at end—finished at 9:30 P.M.

5:15 — Eagle Field, Tallahassee, Florida — 3/17/1999 — Tallahassee Community College Eagles 4 Okaloosa-Walton Community College Raiders 3 in 18 innings — 225 fans — finished at 10:15 P.M.

5:23 – USA Stadium, Millington, Tennessee – 5/26/2001 – Bevill State Community College Bears 6 Iowa Central Community College Tritons 5 in 17 innings – 296 fans – finished at 12:53 A.M. in the early morning of 5/27.

5:00— Hanceville, Alabama — 5/12/2008 — Chattahoochee Valley Community College Pirates 6 Alabama Southern Community College Eagles 4 in 15 innings.

Taiwan (1)

6:06 — Municipal Qiuchang (Stadium), Taipei — 9/15/1979 — University League — Weichuan Foods/Chinese Culture University 1 Putaowang (Grape King) Biotechnology/Fu Jen Catholic University 0 in 21 innings — finished at 10:11 P.M.

Longest Games, by Country

Aruba (1)

5:00—Paul E. Joseph Stadium, Frederiksted, St. Croix, US Virgin Islands—7/29/2005—Caribbean Little League Tournament—Bonaire (Netherlands Antilles) 4 Aruba 2 in 9 innings; then Curacao 5 Dominican 1.

Australia (3)

5:35 — Parry Field, Belmont, State of Western Australia — 3/17/1989 — Western Australia Grand Series Final — Melville Braves 6 Morley Eagles 2 in 22 innings — 1500 fans — finished at 12:50 A.M. in the early morning of 3/18.

6:17 — Oakes Oval, Lismore, State of New South Wales — 12/31/1994 — AAA Asian Under 19 Series — Australia 9 Chinese Taipei 8 in 20 innings, 2nd game postponed — 300 fans, 300 fans at end —finished at 9:47 P.M.

5:33 — Blacktown Olympic Park, Sydney, State of New South Wales — 4/19/2003 — New South Wales Under 23 Tournament — Queensland 4 New South Wales/Victoria/Capital Territory Combined Academy 3 in 22 innings —120 fans, 200 fans at end —finished at 8:33 P.M.

Austria (1)

5:00—Armin-Wolf-Arena, Regensburg, Germany — 8/3/2004—European B-Pool Championships— Ireland 8 Austria 2 in 11 innings—finished at 12:00 Midnight.

Brazil (1)

6:00—Bom Retiro (Good Place to Rest) Stadium, Sao Paulo—9/7/1971—National Championships— Sul-Brasil 6 Presidente Venceslau 5 in 20 innings— 2000 fans—finished at 5 P.M.

Canada (10)

5:25 — Henderson Stadium (I), Lethbridge, Province of Alberta — 7/25/1964 — Western Canada League — Saskatoon Blues 6 Lethbridge Cardinals 5 in 20 innings — 150 fans. 5:33 — Stade Olympique (Olympic Stadium), Montreal, Province of Quebec — 5/21/1977 — National League — Padres 11 Expos 8 in 21 innings — 16,892 fans, 8000 fans at end — finished at 1:15 A.M. in the early morning of 5/22.

5:30—Parc (Park) Victor Gadbois, Montreal, Province of Quebec—8/30/1981—Ligue Montreal Junior (Montreal Junior League)—St. Leonard Cougars 2 Sud-Ouest (Southwest) 1 in 22 innings—finished at 7:30 P.M.

5:20—Exhibition Stadium, Toronto, Province of Ontario—5/17/1988—American League—Rangers 7 Blue Jays 6 in 14 innings—25,170 fans.

5:02 — Exhibition Stadium, Toronto, Province of Ontario, Canada — 7/3/1988 — Athletics 9 Blue Jays 8 in 16 innings — 32,329 fans — finished at 6:37 P.M.

6:14 — Stade Olympique (Olympic Stadium), Montreal, Province of Quebec — 8/23/1989 — National League — Dodgers 1 Expos 0 in 22 innings — 21,742 fans — finished at 1:25 A.M. in the early morning of 8/24.

5:12 -SkyDome, Toronto, Province of Ontario, Canada - 8/8/1991 -Tigers 4 Blue Jays 0 in 14 innings - 50,307 fans -finished at 12:17 A.M. in the early morning of 8/9.

5:57 — SkyDome (later Rogers Centre), Toronto, Province of Ontario — 4/19/2001— American League — Yankees 6 Blue Jays 5 in 17 innings — 24,684 fans, 1500 fans at end —finished at 1:06 A.M. in the early morning of 4/20.

5:48 — CanWest Global Park, Winnipeg, Province of Manitoba — 8/10/2003 — Northern League — Joliet JackHammers at Winnipeg Goldeyes in 17 innings.

5:16 — Jubilee Field, Yorkton, Province of Saskatchewan — 6/19/2008 and 6/22/2008 — Western Major League — Sherwood Park Dukes 5 Yorkton Cardinals 3 in 20 innings, rain delay 0:20 top 12th, suspended after 3:13 and 11 innings — 475 fans on 6/19; 225 fans when suspended; 316 fans on 6/22 — suspended at 10:38 P.M.; finished at 4:08 P.M.

Cuba (3)

5:07 — Parque (Park) Almendares, Havana — 12/8/ 1957 — Winter League — Marianao Tigers 12 Almendares 9 in 14 innings, 2nd game called after 3 innings.

5:00—Villa Clara — 2/18/2007 — Cuba League — Industriales 11 Villa Clara 8 in 11 innings.

5:30 – Habana – 3/27/2007 – Cuban League Playoffs – Sancti Spiritus 2 La Habana Province 1 in 17 innings.

Dominican (7)

5:40—Estadio (Stadium) Quisqueya, Santo Domingo —1/12/1981—Winter League — Orientales Estrellas (Oriental Stars) 4 Licey Tigres (Tigers) 3 in 22 innings—finished at 3:30 A.M. in the early morning of 1/13.

5:23 – Estadio (Stadium) Teodoro Mariscal, Mazatlan, Mexico – 2/?/1989 – Caribbean World Series – Zulia Aguilas (Eagles) (Venezuela) defeated Escogido Leones Rojos (Red Lions) (Dominican) in 16 innings.

6:41— Estadio (Stadium) Tetelo Vargas, San Pedro de Marcoris—10/19/2002—Winter League—Orientales Estrellas (Oriental Stars) 4 Escogido Leones Rojos (Red Lions) 3 in 20 innings—finished at 3:17 A.M. in the early morning of 10/20.

5:35 — Estadio (Stadium) Tetelo Vargas, San Pedro de Marcoris — 10/29/2008 — Winter League — Gigantes (Giants) del Cibao 11 Orientales Estrellas (Oriental Stars) 7 in 13 innings.

5:14 — Estadio (Stadium) Tetelo Vargas, San Pedro de Marcoris —11/9/2008 — Winter League — Gigantes (Giants) del Cibao 5 Orientales Estrellas (Oriental Stars) 2 in extra innings.

5:35 — Estadio (Stadium) Tetelo Vargas, San Pedro de Marcoris —11/16/2008 — Winter League — Orientales Estrellas (Oriental Stars) 7 Escogido Leones Rojos (Red Lions) 6 in 10 innings.

6:19 — Estadio (Stadium) Quisqueya, Santo Domingo, Dominican —12/2/2008 — Winter League — Tigres (Tigers) del Licey 10 Gigantes (Giants) del Cibao 9 in 18 innings, rain delay 1:02 —finished at 2:51 A.M. in the early morning of 12/3.

England (3)

5:00— Guildford, Surrey— 6/??/1995— Guildford Mavericks 28 Bracknell Blazers 27.

5:00—Grovehill Park, Hemel Hempstead, Hertfordshire—?/??/2000—Milton Keynes Rebels at Hertfordshire Falcons.

5:02 — Croydon, Surrey — 4/26/2003 — Rawlings National League — Croydon Pirates 14 Menwith Hill Patriots 13 in 13 innings.

Germany (2)

5:00—Armin-Wolf-Arena, Regensburg, Germany — 8/3/2004—European B-Pool Championships— Ireland 8 Austria 2 in 11 innings—finished at 12:00 Midnight.

5:50—Reiterstadion (later Koln Ballpark), Koln (Cologne)—4/6/2005—Bundesliga Nord (North German League)—Bonn Capitals 9 Koln (Cologne) Cardinals 7 in 20 innings—finished at 6:50 P.M.; then Bonn 4 Cologne 0 in 2:05 and 7 innings, rain delay 0:13—finished at 9:38 P.M.

Ireland (1)

5:00—Armin-Wolf-Arena, Regensburg, Germany—8/3/2004—European B-Pool Championships—Ireland 8 Austria 2 in 11 innings—finished at 12:00 Midnight.

Italy (4)

5:45 — San Marino Stadium, San Marino, San Marino — 9/16/1986 — European Confederation Playoffs — Biemme Fortitudo Bologna 12 Chesterfield San Marino 10 in 17 innings — finished at 2:45 A.M. in the early morning of 9/17. 5:05 – Stadio Roberto Jannella, Grosseto – 4/20/ 2001– Serie Nazionale (Italian A1 League) – Nettuno 5 Grosseto 2 in 14 innings – finished at 2:05 A.M. in the early morning of 4/21.

5:50—Stadio Renato Reatini, Anzio—6/12/2004 —Serie Nazionale (Italian Al League)—Parma 8 Anzio 7 in 5:50 and 16 innings—finished at 2:50 A.M. in the early morning of 6/13.

5:05 – Stadio Europeo, Parma – 5/26/2005 – Serie Nazionale (Italian A1 League) – Italeri Bologna 6 Cantine Ceci Negri Parma 5 in 15 innings – finished at 1:35 A.M. in the early morning of 5/27.

Japan (14)

6:58 — Matsue Kyujo (Stadium), Matsue — 7/20/ 1935 and 7/21/1935 — Junior High School League — Oota Chu 2 Matsue Chu (later Matsue Kita Kotogakko) 1 in 35 innings, suspended after 4:48 and 23 innings.

5:45 — Tokyo — 8/30/1951 — Junior High School League — Takefu Junior High School 0 Kohama Junior High School 0 in 30 innings — finished at 2:45 P.M.

5:47 — Shikoku Kyujo (Stadium), Shikoku — 4/28/1958 — High School League — Takamatsushogyo 2 Tokushima-shogyo 0 in 25 innings.

6:14 — Nishi-Kyogoku Kyujo (Stadium), Kyoto — 5/2/1959 — Kyoto Industrial League — Nippon Shinyaku (Pharmaceuticals) Company 2 Kurashiki Reiyon (Rayon) Company (later Kuraray Company) 1 in 29 innings.

5:27 — Korakuen Kyujo (Stadium), Tokyo — 7/29/1962 — Tokyo Industrial League — Nippon Beer Company 1 Denden Kinki Company 0 in 22 innings.

8:19 – Ibaraki-Mito Kenei (Prefectural) Kyujo (Stadium), Mito – 9/20/1983 – Amateur Industrial Emperor's Cup Nan-shiki Tournament – Tokyo Raito (Light) Kogyo (Manufacturing Company) 2 Miyazaki Tanaka Byouin (Hospital) 1 in 45 innings, umpire snack break delay 0:06 top 26th, players refused 0:30 break top 26th – 100 fans at end – finished at 5:15 P.M.

5:49 — Koshien Kyujo (Stadium), Osaka — 9/11/ 1992 — Central League — Yakult Swallows 3 Hanshin Tigers 3 in 15 innings, rhubarb delay 0:37 — finished at 12:26 A.M. in the early morning of 9/12.

6:01— Hiroshima Kyujo (Stadium), Hiroshima— 10/1/1992—Central League—Hiroshima Carp 8 Yakult Swallows 7 in 13 innings.

6:19 — Shimonoseki Kyujo (Stadium), Shimonoseki — 9/8/1996 — Central League — Yakult Swallows 6 Yokohama BayStars 5 in 14 innings —finished at 12:19 A.M. in the early morning of 9/9.

6:13 — Fukuyama Kyujo (Stadium), Fukuyama — 8/9/1998 — Central League — Yokohama BayStars 14 Hiroshima Carp 6 in 15 innings —finished at 12:13 A.M. in the early morning of 8/10.

6:02 – Koshien Kyujo (Stadium), Osaka – 5/24/ 2000 – Central League – Chunichi Dragons 3 Hanshin Tigers 2 in 15 innings —finished at 12:02 A.M. in the early morning of 5/25.

6:20— Shizuoka Kyujo (Stadium), Shizuoka — 4/14/2002 — Shizuoka Industrial League — Osaka Gas 6 Nissan Motors 5 in 17 innings.

6:00 – Fukuoka Dome, Fukuoka – 10/26/2002 – Kyushu University League – Nihon Bunri University 2 Kyushu Kyoritsu University 1 in 23 innings.

5:42 — Hiroshima Kyujo (Stadium), Hiroshima or Tokyo Dome, Tokyo — 8/20/2004 — Central League — Hiroshima Toyo Carp 7 Yomiuri Giants 6 in 12 innings — finished at 11:42 P.M.

Mexico (23)

10:00 — Piedras Negras, State of Coahuila — 7/18/ 1926 — Amateur — San Luisito 29 Piedras Negras (Black Rock) Internationals 19 in 5½ innings — finished at 7:00 P.M.

6:22 – Estadio (Stadium) Angel Flores, Culiacan, State of Sinaloa –10/22/1967 – Mexican Pacific League – Obregon Yaquis 3 Culiacan Tomateros (Tomato Growers) 1 in 21 innings – 5000 fans – finished at 11:22 P.M.

5:38 — Parque Deportivo del Seguro Social (Social Security Stadium), Mexico City, Distrito Federal (Federal District) — 7/14/1969 — Mexican League — Reynosa Broncos 5 Mexico City Diablos Rojos (Red Devils) 3 in 22 innings — 3895 fans — finished at 1:08 A.M. in the early morning of 7/15.

5:45 — Parque Deportivo del Seguro Social (Social Security Stadium), Mexico City, Distrito Federal (Federal District) or Guadalajara — 6/24/1970 — Mexican League — Mexico City Diablos Rojos (Red Devils) 10 Jalisco Charros 9 in 18 innings — finished at 1:15 A.M. in the early morning of 6/25.

6:23 — Estadio (Stadium) Alberto Hoeffer, Nogales, State of Sonora — 7/29/1973 — Liga (League) Norte de Sonora — Cananea Mineros (Miners) 4 Nogales 2 in 23 innings —1800 fans —finished at 1:53 A.M. in the early morning of 7/30.

6:30— Estadio (Stadium) Cordoba, Cordoba, State of Veracruz — 4/28/1977 — Mexican League — Aguascalientes Rieleros (Railroadmen) 6 Cordoba Cafeteros (Coffee Growers) 2 in 23 innings — 4000 fans, 800 fans at end — finished at 3:00 A.M. in the early morning of 4/29.

5:20—Estadio (Stadium) Manuel "Ciclon" Echeverria, Navojoa, State of Baja California—1/2/1979— Mexican Pacific League—Navojoa Mayos 1 Mexicali Aguilas (Eagles) 0 in 20 innings in 2nd game; Mexicali vs. Navojoa in 1st game.

6:38 — Estadio (Stadium) Tomaz Oroz, Ciudad Obregon, State of Sonora —12/30/1984 — Mexican Pacific League — Guaymas Ostioneros (Oyster Growers) 6 Obregon Yaquis 4 in 15 innings —finished at 2:08 A.M. in the early morning of 12/31.

7:14—Estadio (Stadium) Emilio Ibarra, Los Mochis, State of Sinaloa—11/26/1988—Mexican Pacific League—Los Mochis Caneros (Sugar Cane Growers) 4 Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2 in 21 innings – finished at 2:44 A.M. in the early morning of 11/27.

5:23—Estadio (Stadium) Teodoro Mariscal, Mazatlan—2/?/1989—Caribbean World Series— Zulia Aguilas (Eagles) (Venezuela) defeated Escogido Leones Rojos (Red Lions) (Dominican) in 16 innings.

7:02 — Estadio (Stadium) Teodoro Mariscal, Mazatlan, State of Sinaloa — 10/26/1993 — Mexican Pacific League — Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2 Guasave Algodoneros (Cotton Pickers) 1 in 22 innings — finished at 2:32 A.M. in the early morning of 10/27.

6:01— Estadio (Stadium) Angel Flores, Culiacan, State of Sinaloa—10/27/1995— Mexican Pacific League — Culiacan Tomateros (Tomato Growers) 3 Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2 in 20 innings—finished at 1:31 A.M. in the early morning of 10/28.

6:55 — Estadio (Stadium) Teodoro Mariscal, Mazatlan; State of Sinaloa — 10/19/1997 — Mexican Pacific League — Culiacan Tomateros (Tomato Growers) 5 Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2 in 22 innings finished at 2:25 A.M. in the early morning of 10/20.

6:25 – Estadio (Stadium) Jimenez, Jimenez, State of Chihuahua –?/??/2003 – Amateur – Juarez Indios 4 Jimenez Rojos 3 in 17 innings.

6:45 – Estadio (Stadium) Chihuahua, Chihuahua, State of Chihuahua –?/??/2003 – Amateur – Chihuahua Dorados 8 Delicias Algondoneros (Cotton Pickers) 7 in 17 innings.

5:43 — Estadio (Stadium) Angel Flores, Culiacan, State of Sinaloa —11/16/2005 — Mexican Pacific League — Culiacan Tomateros (Tomato Growers) 4 Los Mochis Caneros (Sugar Cane Growers) 3 in 5:43 and 14 innings —finished at 1:13 A.M. in the early morning of 11/17.

6:00—Estadio (Stadium) 20 de Noviembre (November 20), San Luis Potosi, State of San Luis Potosi – 4/15/2006 – Mexican League – Saltillo Saraperos (Blanket Makers) 7 San Luis Potosi Tuneros (Prickle Pear Growers) 5 in 16 innings –1758 fans – finished at 1:00 A.M. in the early morning of 4/16.

5:21—Estadio (Stadium) Monterrey, Monterrey, State of Monterrey — 6/22/2006 — Mexican League — Laguna Vaqueros (Cowboys) 6 Monterrey Sultanes (Sultanes) 4 in 16 innings, rain delay 2:16 at start — 15,635 fans; only 100 fans at end —finished at 3:53 A.M. in the early morning of 6/23.

7:55 — Estadio (Stadium) Ojinaga, Ojinaga, State of Chihuahua — 8/13/2006 — Amateur — Madera Venados (Deer) 11 Ojinaga Soles (Suns) 9 in 21 innings finished at 6:58 P.M.

5:19 — Estadio (Stadium) Kulkucan, Merida, State of Yucatan — 8/27/2006 — Mexican League — Monterrey Sultanes (Sultans) 2 Yucatan Leones (Lions) in 14 innings — finished at 1:19 A.M. in the early morning of 8/28.

6:21—Estadio (Stadium) Jesus Carranza, Guasave, State of Sinaloa —11/26/2006 — Mexican Pacific League — Guasave Algodoneros (Cotton Pickers) 9 Mochis Caneros (Sugarcane Pickers) 7 in 16 innings — finished at 11:45 P.M.

5:16 — Estadio (Stadium) Angel Flores, Culiacan, State of Sinaloa — 11/26/2006 — Mexican Pacific League — Culiacan (Tomato Growers) 4 Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 3 in 17 innings; then Culican 7 Mazatlan 0 in 1:58 and 7 innings.

6:46 – Estadio (Stadium) Teodoro Mariscal, Mazatlan; State of Sinaloa – 10/31/2008 – Mexican Pacific League – Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 4 Culiacan Tomateros (Tomato Growers) 2 in 17 innings – 7980 fans – finished at 2:46 A.M. in the early morning of 11/1.

Netherlands (1)

5:01—Sportpark Schenkel, Capelle aan den Ijssel— 9/20/2008—Promotion/Relegation Playoff—Ado 2 Euro Stars 1 in 18 innings—finished at 7:01 P.M.

Netherlands Antilles (1)

5:00—Paul E. Joseph Stadium, Frederiksted, St. Croix, US Virgin Islands—7/29/2005—Caribbean Little League Tournament—Bonaire (Netherlands Antilles) 4 Aruba 2 in 9 innings; then Curacao 5 Dominican 1.

Nicaragua (2)

6:13 — Managua — late 1940's — Second Division Amateur League — Manta Nica defeated Schumann in 27 innings.

6:30—Estadio (Stadium) Nacional (later Estadio Dennis Martinez), Managua — 7/10/1949 — First Division Amateur League — Navarro Cubs 4 Escuelas Internacionales 3 in 26 innings — finished at 4:30 P.M.

Puerto Rico (4)

6:22 — Estadio (Stadium) Isidoro "Cholo" Garcia, Mayaguez — 12/22/1995 and 12/23/1995 and 1/19/1996 — Winter League — Mayaguez Indios (Indians) 2 San Juan Senadores (Senators) 1 in 21 innings, suspended, suspended a second time.

6:30—Estadio (Stadium) Roberto Clemente, Carolina —11/4/2001—Winter League—Carolina Gigantes (Giants) 2 Caguas Criollos (Natives) 1 in 22 innings—finished at 12:30 A.M.

5:05 — Estadio (Stadium) Hiram Bithorn, San Juan — 6/5/2003 — AL at NL — Expos 8 Angels 7 in 14 innings —10,598 fans.

6:13 - Estadio (Stadium) Roberto Clemente, Carolina - 2/2/2007 - Caribbean Series - Aguilas Cibaenas (Dominican) 4 Aragua Tigres (Tigers) (Venezuela)3 in 18 innings; then Carolina Giantes (Giants) (PuertoRico) 11 Hermosillo Naranjeros (Orange Growers)(Mexico) 1 in 3:15 - 2nd game finished at 2:05 A.M. inthe early morning of 2/3.

San Marino (1)

5:45 — San Marino Stadium, San Marino — 9/16/ 1986 — European Confederation Playoffs — Biemme Fortitudo Bologna 12 Chesterfield San Marino 10 in 17 innings—finished at 2:45 A.M. in the early morning of 9/17.

Scotland (1)

5:45 — Jack Kane Sports Centre, Edinburgh — 8/4/1996 — Edinburgh Reivers (later Diamond Devils) 13 Glasgow Comets 12 in 12 innings — ended at 7:45 P.M.

South Korea (4)

5:21—Taejon Yagu-jang (Stadium), Taejon — 4/12/ 1997 — Korean Organization — Ob (Oriental Brewing) Bears 4 Hanhwa Eagles 2 in 13 innings — finished at 11:51 P.M.

5:45 – Jamsil Olympic Yagu-jang (Stadium), Seoul – 5/6/2001–Korean Organization–Lg (Lucky Goldstar) Twins 3 Doosan Bears 3 in 15 innings– finished at 7:45 P.M.

5:22 — Mokdong Yagu-jang (Stadium), Seoul — 6/12/2008 — Korean Organization — Woori Heroes 2 Kia Tigers 1 in 14 innings, 0:55 rain delay — 6900 fans; 900 fans at end —finished at 12:49 A.M. in the early morning of 6/13.

5:51- Jamsil Yagu-jang (Stadium), Seoul -9/3/2008 - Korean Organization - Doosan Bears 1 Hanwha Eagles 0 in 18 innings - 7273 fans; 1000 fans at end - finished at 12:22 A.M. in the early morning of 9/4.

Sweden (1)

5:45 — Kungsbacka Arena, Oskarshamn — 5/22/2005 — Oskarshamn Lost Boys 11 Goteborg Sharks 10 in 15 innings; then Oskersham 11 Goteborg 5 in 3:25—1st game finished at 6:45 P.M.; 2nd game finished at 10:30 P.M.

Taiwan (4)

5:29 — Yuanshan Qiuchang (Stadium), Taipei — 7/28/1941— Jiayi Agriculture and Forestry Institute (Jianong) 2 Taipei Industrial School 1 in 25 innings.

6:06 — Municipal Qiuchang (Stadium), Taipei — 9/15/1979 — Taiwan University League — Weichuan Foods/Chinese Culture University 1 Putaowang (Grape King) Biotechnology/Fu Jen Catholic University 0 in 21 innings — finished at 10:11 P.M.

6:17 — Oaks Oval, Lismore, State of New South Wales, Australia — 12/31/1994 — AAA Asian Under 19 Series — Australia 9 Chinese Taipei 8 in 20 innings, 2nd game postponed — 300 fans, 300 fans at end finished at 9:47 P.M.

5:31— Tainan Stadium, Tainan — 7/1/2007 — Chinese League — Chinatrust Whales 9 Uni-President Lions 9 in 12 innings — 2006 fans — finished at 10:36 P.M.

U.S. Virgin Islands (1)

5:00—Paul E. Joseph Stadium, Frederiksted, St. Croix—7/29/2005—Caribbean Little League Tournament—Bonaire (Netherlands Antilles) 4 Aruba 2 in 9 innings; then Curacao 5 Dominican 1.

Venezuela (2)

6:30—Estadio (Stadium) de Maracaibo, Maracaibo—6/5/1938—Pastora 1 Gavilanes 0 in 20 innings.

5:23 — Estadio (Stadium) Teodoro Mariscal, Mazatlan, Mexico — 2/?/1989 — Caribbean World Series — Zulia Aguilas (Eagles) (Venezuela) defeated Escogido Leones Rojos (Red Lions) (Dominican) in 16 innings.

Minor League Games, by League

American Association (4)

6:37 — All-Sports Stadium, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma — 5/28/1970 and 5/29/1970— Indianapolis Indians 10 Oklahoma City 89'ers 7 in 23 innings, suspended after 4:53 and 17 innings — 3118 fans on 5/28, 2836 fans on 5/29 — suspended at 12:53 A.M. in the early morning of 5/29.

5:35 — Owen Bush Stadium, Indianapolis, Indiana - 8/17/1986 — Buffalo Bisons 6 Indianapolis Indians 5 in 20 innings -1507 fans — finished at 12:05 A.M. in the early morning of 8/18.

6:25 — Greer Stadium, Nashville, Tennessee — 9/7/1990 — Omaha Royals 8 Nashville Sounds 7 in 20 innings, rain delay 1:46 bottom 11th —14,482 fans, 500 fans top 12th, 300 fans at end —finished at 3:50 A.M. in the early morning of 9/8.

5:58 — Owen Bush Stadium, Indianapolis, Indiana — 6/30/1994 — Nashville Sounds 9 Indianapolis Indians 7 in 19 innings — 2047 fans, 50 fans at end finished at 1:13 A.M. in the early morning of 7/1.

Appalachian League (1)

8:15 — Burlington Athletic Stadium, Burlington, North Carolina — 6/24/1988 — Bluefield Orioles 3 Burlington Indians 2 in 27 innings — 2204 fans, 84 fans at end — finished at 3:27 A.M. in the early morning of 6/25.

Atlantic League (4)

6:14 – Commerce Bank Park, Bridgewater, New Jersey – 8/16/2000 – Somerset Patriots 8 Newark Bears 7 in 17 innings – 5552 fans, 20 fans at end – finished at 1:27 A.M. in the early morning of 8/17.

5:07 — Commerce Bank Park, Bridgewater, New Jersey —10/2/2000 — playoffs — Nashua Pride 6 Somerset Patriots 5 in 14 innings — 2837 fans — finished at 12:12 A.M. in the early morning of 10/3.

5:24 — Harbor Yard, Bridgeport, Connecticut — 6/8/2004 — Camden Riversharks 7 Bridgeport Bluefish 6 in 17 innings —finished at 12:29 A.M. in the early morning of 6/9.

6:20— Citibank Park, Central Islip, New York— 9/12/2006— Camden Riversharks 8 Long Island Ducks 7 in 18 innings— 5234 fans; 30 fans at end finished at 1:26 A.M. in the early morning of 9/13.

Basin League (3)

5:10—Sioux Falls Stadium (later Howard Wood Field), Sioux Falls, South Dakota—7/22/1964— Sioux Falls Packers 3 Pierre Cowboys 2 in 19 innings— 777 fans—finished at 12:40 A.M. in the early morning of 7/23.

5:01—Sturgis or Valentine, South Dakota—week before 8/12/1964—Valentine Hearts 6 Sturgis Titans 5 in 18 innings—finished at 1:01 A.M. in the early morning of 8/13.

6:15 — Sioux Falls Stadium (later Howard Wood Field), Sioux Falls, South Dakota — 8/3/1965 — Pierre Cowboys 5 Sioux Falls Packers 3 in 24 innings — 421fans — finished at 1:45 A.M. in the early morning of 8/4.

California League (10)

5:15 - John Euless Park, Fresno, California - 9/1/1965 - Fresno Giants 10 Bakersfield Bears 9 in 18 innings - 296 fans, 75 fans at end -finished at 1:00 A.M. in the early morning of 9/2.

6:00— Lawrence Hardball Park, Lodi, California— 8/31/1966— Reno Silver Sox 6 Lodi Crushers 5 in 23 innings— 502 fans, 20 fans at end—finished at 2:00 A.M. in the early morning of 9/1.

6:02 – Del Webb Field, Modesto, California – 6/19/1970 – Modesto Reds 9 Reno Silver Sox 8 in 19 innings –1275 fans, 400 fans at end –finished at 1:57 A.M. in the early morning of 6/20.

7:00—Recreation Park, Visalia, California— 6/19/1971 and 6/20/1971—Visalia Mets 11 Bakersfield Dodgers 9 in 22 innings, suspended after 4:50 and 15 innings, called a tie, however league president later reversed tie game ruling and ordered game to be continued—867 fans on 6/19, 449 fans on 6/20—suspended at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 6/20.

6:19 — Riverside Sports Complex, Riverside, California — 5/22/1988 — San Jose Giants 8 Riverside Red Wave 5 in 21 innings — finished at 1:19 A.M. in the early morning of 5/23.

6:20—Billy Hebert Field, Stockton, California— 9/5/1990 and 9/6/1990—Bakersfield Dodgers 5 Stockton Ports 4 in 22 innings, suspended after 5:53 and 21 innings—1497 fans on 9/5; 175 fans when suspended; 1559 fans on 9/6—suspended at 1:27 A.M. in the early morning of 9/6; finished at 6:25 P.M. on 9/6.

5:56 — Municipal Stadium, San Jose, California — 5/12/1995 and 5/13/1995 — San Bernardino Spirit 1 San Jose Giants 0 in 21 innings, three rain delays, suspended after 11½ innings — suspended at 11:16 P.M.

5:10- Clear Channel Stadium, Lancaster, California-7/31/2002- Lancaster Jethawks 15 San Bernardino Stampede 14 in 15 innings-finished at 12:15 A.M. in the early morning of 8/1.

5:01- Banner Island Ballpark, Stockton, California - 9/2/2006 - San Jose Giants 7 Stockton Ports 3 in 16 innings - 3717 fans - finished at 12:06 A.M. in the early morning of 9/3.

5:41-Arrowhead Credit Union Park, San Bernar-

dino, California — 4/7/2008 and 4/8/2008 — Lancaster JetHawks 6 Inland Empire 66ers 3 in 18 innings, suspended after 4:41 and 15 innings —1993 fans on 4/7; 60 fans at suspension; 1130 fans on 4/8 — suspended at 11:50 P.M., finished at 6:57 P.M.

Canadian American (CanAm) League (1)

6:06 — Hanover Insurance Park at Fitton Field, Worcester, Massachusetts — 6/26/2008 — New Jersey Jackals 5 Worcester Tornadoes 4 in 20 innings — 1434 fans — finished at 12:11 A.M. in the early morning of 6/27.

Carolina League (3)

5:50—Frank Lawrence Stadium, Portsmouth, Virginia—4/18/1967—Kinston Eagles 5 Tidewater Tides 5 in 20 innings—526 fans, 25 fans at end—finished at 1:21 A.M. in the early morning of 4/19.

5:47 — Ernie Shore Field, Winston-Salem, North Carolina — 8/14/1967 — Winston-Salem Red Sox 13 Greensboro Yankees 12 in 19 innings —1708 fans finished at 1:47 A.M. in the early morning of 8/15.

6:23 — Judy Johnson Field at Frawley Stadium, Wilmington, Delaware — 7/5/1998 — Wilmington Blue Rocks 3 Danville 97's 2 in 21 innings — 3441 fans — finished at 8:28 P.M.

Dixie Association (3)

5:43 – V.J. Keefe Stadium, San Antonio, Texas – 5/8/1971– San Antonio Missions 6 Birmingham Athletics 5 in 19 innings – 3574 fans – finished at 1:28 A.M. in the early morning of 5/9.

5:25 – V.J. Keefe Stadium, San Antonio, Texas – 7/3/1971– Arkansas Travelers 12 San Antonio Missions 9 in 19 innings –1074 fans –finished at 1:25 A.M. in the early morning of 7/4.

5:56 — Ray Winder Field, Little Rock, Arkansas — 7/21/1971— Arkansas Travelers 5 Dallas-Fort Worth Spurs 4 in 22 innings — 7030 fans, 600 fans at end finished at 1:26 A.M. in the early morning of 7/22.

Eastern League (16)

5:10- Triplets (later Johnson) Field, Johnson City, New York - 5/18/1952 - Binghamton Triplets 4 Scranton Miners 3 in 20 innings, then Scranton 4 Binghamton 0.

6:24 — Dunn Field, Elmira, New York — 5/8/1965 — Elmira Pioneers 2 Springfield Giants 1 in 27 innings — 386 fans, 400 fans at end — finished at 9:24 P.M.

5:33 – Dunn Field, Elmira, New York – 6/25/1965– Pittsfield Red Sox 1 Elmira Pioneers 1 in 21 innings – called off at 1:03 A.M. in the early morning of 6/26, then rhubarb delay top 22nd, Pioneers owner argued there was no curfew rule, by the time the league president told the umpires the owner was correct and the game should continue, all the players had showered and gone home, called off at 1:xx A.M. for the second time – 530 fans – finished at 1:03 A.M. in the early morning of 6/26. 6:13 — Municipal Stadium, Waterbury, Connecticut -7/31/1966 — Waterbury Giants 9 York White Roses 8 in 22 innings — finished at 12:46 A.M. in the early morning of 8/1.

5:15 — Municipal Memorial (later Gpu, then First-Energy) Stadium, Reading, Pennsylvania — 9/4/1968

- Reading Phillies 8 Binghamton Triplets 7 in 19 innings—finished at 1:15 A.M. in the early morning of 9/5.

5:37 — Centennial Field, Burlington, Vermont — 8/23/1984 and 8/24/1984 — Albany-Colonie Athletics 9 Vermont Reds 7 in 17 innings, automatic sprinkler malfunction delay 0:17 bottom 17th, suspended after 5:12 and 16½ innings when outfield sprinklers could not be turned off— 2909 fans on 8/23, 250 fans at suspension, 2194 fans on 8/24 — suspended at 1:06 A.M. in the early morning of 8/24.

5:30- Mercer County Waterfront Park, Trenton, New Jersey - 6/3/1995 - Binghamton Mets 9 Trenton Thunder 8 in 13 innings, rain delay - 7187 fans finished at 12:39 A.M. in the early morning of 6/4.

5:10—Mercer County Waterfront Park, Trenton, New Jersey—8/18/1995—Trenton Thunder 6 New Haven Ravens 5 in 17 innings.

5:35 — Municipal Memorial (later Gpu, then FirstEnergy) Stadium, Reading, Pennsylvania — 6/14/1998 — Reading Phillies 6 Trenton Thunder 5 in 19 innings — 7043 fans — finished at 12:40 A.M. in the early morning of 6/15.

5:28 — Municipal Memorial (later Gpu, then First-Energy) Stadium, Reading, Pennsylvania — 5/28/ 1999 — Reading Phillies 15 New Britain Rock Cats 14 in 13 innings — finished at 1:07 A.M. in the early morning of 5/29.

6:20 – Dodd Stadium, Norwich, Connecticut – 7/13/2000 – Altoona Curve 6 Norwich Navigators 5 in 19 innings – 2774 fans, 60 fans at end –finished at 1:25 A.M. in the early morning of 7/14.

5:19 — Riverside Stadium, Harrisburg, Pennsylvania — 6/1/2004 — Trenton Thunder 6 Harrisburg Senators 4 in 16 innings, rain delay 0:20 top 2nd —1927 fans; 100 fans at end —finished at 12:14 A.M. in the early morning of 6/2.

5:02 — Prince George's Stadium, Bowie, Maryland — 5/8/2006 — New Britain Rock Cats 9 Bowie Baysox 7 in 16 innings —1312 fans —finished at 12:07 A.M. in the early morning of 5/9.

5:30—Hadlock Field, Portland, Maine—7/2/2006 — Portland Sea Dogs 14 Trenton Thunder 13 in 14 innings—7386 fans—finished at 6:30 P.M.

5:13 – Samuel L. Plumeri Sr. Field at Mercer County Waterfront Park, Trenton, New Jersey – 6/7/2007 – Trenton Thunder 5 Binghamton Mets 4 in 14 innings – 6345 fans; 75 fans at end –finished at 12:22 A.M. in the early morning of 6/8.

5:41—Hadlock Field, Portland, Maine—4/16/2008 —Eastern League—Portland Sea Dogs 8 Connecticut Defenders 7 in 17 innings—3822 fans.

Florida State League (16)

5:15 — Municipal Park, Sanford, Florida — 5/27/ 1948 — Sanford Giants 8 Palatka Azaleas 7 in 21 innings —finished at 1:15 A.M. in the early morning of 5/28.

6:59 – Al Lang Field (I), St. Petersburg, Florida – 6/14/1966 – Miami Marlins 4 St. Petersburg Cardinals 3 in 29 innings – 740 fans, 175 fans at end – finished at 2:29 A.M. in the early morning of 6/15.

5:35 — Municipal Stadium, West Palm Beach, Florida — 8/8/1967 — West Palm Beach Braves 3 Leesburg Athletics 2 in 25 innings, 2nd game postponed finished at 11:35 P.M.

5:32 — Fort Lauderdale Stadium, Fort Lauderdale, Florida — 5/24/1981 and 5/25/1981— Fort Lauderdale Yankees 1 Tampa Tarpons 0 in 23 innings, suspended after 5:23 and 22 innings — 717 fans, 200 fans at suspension — suspended at 12:53 A.M. in the early morning of 5/25.

5:55 — Osceola County Stadium, Kissimmee, Florida — 8/31/1985 — Osceola Astros 6 Fort Lauderdale Yankees 4 in 19 innings — finished at 1:25 A.M. in the early morning of 9/1.

5:59 — Al Lang Field (II), St. Petersburg, Florida and Holman Stadium, Vero Beach, Florida — 4/29/1988 and 5/28/1988 — Vero Beach Dodgers 6 St. Petersburg Cardinals 5 in 20 innings, suspended after 5:29 and 18 innings, completed in Vero Beach — suspended at 1:04 A.M. in the early morning of 4/30.

6:29 - Ed Smith Stadium, Sarasota, Florida and Dunedin Stadium at Grant Field (later Knology Park), Dunedin, Florida -4/24/1989 and 5/17/1989 -Dunedin Blue Jays 8 Sarasota White Sox 3 in 21 innings, suspended after 5:48 and 20 innings -525 fans on 4/24, 45 fans at suspension, 307 fans on 5/17 suspended at 12:48 A.M. in the early morning of 4/25.

5:59 — Charlotte County Stadium, Port Charlotte, Florida — 8/3/1990 and 8/6/1990 — Charlotte Rangers 4 Sarasota White Sox 3 in 16 innings, rain delay 0:50 bottom 2nd, suspended after 5:05 and 14 innings — 1665 fans on 8/3, 3026 fans on 8/6 — suspended at 1:00 A.M. in the early morning of 8/4.

5:11—Al Lang Field (II), St. Petersburg, Florida — 6/8/1993 — St. Petersburg Cardinals 4 Lakeland Tigers 3 in 20 innings —1229 fans —finished at 12:46 A.M. in the early morning of 6/9.

7:07 — Al Lang Field (II), St. Petersburg, Florida — 4/14/1994 — St. Petersburg Cardinals 8 Lakeland Tigers 7 in 20 innings —1021 fans —finished at 2:42 A.M. in the early morning of 4/15.

5:00—Hammond Stadium, Fort Myers, Florida— 4/8/1995—Fort Myers Miracle 5 Charlotte Rangers 0 in 1:26 and 7 innings, then Fort Myers 4 Charlotte 3 in 17 innings—2411 fans; 50 fans at end—1st game finished at 7:37 P.M.; 2nd game finished at 1:08 A.M. in the early morning of 4/9.

6:29 — Ed Smith Stadium, Sarasota, Florida — 5/5/2001— Vero Beach Dodgers 11 Sarasota Red Sox 7 in 19 innings — finished at 1:29 A.M. in the early morning of 5/6.

5:02 — Hammond Stadium, Fort Myers, Florida — 4/13/2006 — Clearwater Threshers 4 Fort Myers Miracle 3 in 20 innings —1544 fans; 94 fans at end finished at 12:07 A.M. in the early morning of 4/14.

5:42 — Roger Dean Stadium, Jupiter, Florida — 6/15/2006 — Palm Beach Cardinals 4 Jupiter Hammerheads 1 in 17 innings —1627 fans; 30 fans at end finished at 4:47 P.M.

5:14 — Legends Field, Tampa, Florida — 4/17/2007 — Clearwater Threshers 4 Tampa Yankees 1 in 20 innings — 706 fans — ended at 12:14 A.M. in the early morning of 4/18.

6:06 – Joker Marchant Stadium, Lakeland, Florida – 6/29/2008 – Lakeland Flying Tigers 3 Daytona Cubs 2 in 20 innings – 469 fans – finished at 12:06 A.M. in the early morning of 6/30.

Frontier League (4)

5:33 – Labatt's Park (III), London, Province of Ontario, Canada –?/??/1999 – London Werewolves 31 Dubois County Dragons 6 in 17 innings.

5:03 — Hawkinson Ford Field, Crestwood, Illinois — 6/13/2000 — Cook County Cheetahs (later Windy City ThunderBolts) 3 Evansville Otters 2 in 16 innings — 1164 fans — finished at 12:08 A.M. in the early morning of 6/14.

5:14 — Hawkinson Ford Field, Crestwood, Illinois — 8/21/2000 — Cook County Cheetahs (later Windy City ThunderBolts) 6 Evansville Otters 5 in 17 innings —1137 fans —finished at 12:19 A.M. in the early morning of 8/22.

5:44 — Rent One Park, Marion, Illinois — 7/13/ 2007 — Southern Illinois Miners 4 Florence Freedom 3 in 18 innings — 5443 fans — finished at 12:49 A.M. in the early morning of 7/14.

International League (16)

5:15 — Red Wing (later Silver) Stadium, Rochester, New York — 8/13/1950 — Rochester Red Wings 3 Jersey City Giants 2 in 22 innings — 5863 fans — finished at 6:45 P.M.

5:16 — Miami Stadium, Miami, Florida — 4/22/ 1956 — Rochester Red Wings 10 Miami Marlins 6 in 18 innings, then Miami 3 Rochester 2 in 2:03 and 7 innings — 3486 fans — 2nd game finished at 9:06 P.M.

5:01—Miami Stadium, Miami, Florida—9/20/ 1957—Miami Marlins 3 Buffalo Bisons 2 in 18 innings—5273 fans—finished at 1:01 A.M. in the early morning of 9/21.

5:00—Red Wing (later Silver) Stadium, Rochester, New York—5/29/1964—Toronto Maple Leafs 8 Rochester Red Wings 4 in 19 innings—4070 fans finished at 1:00 A.M. in the early morning of 5/30.

5:55 — MacArthur Stadium, Syracuse, New York — 7/30/1980 — Richmond Braves 12 Syracuse Chiefs 6 in 22 innings — 3117 fans, 1000 fans at end — finished at 1:28 A.M. in the early morning of 7/31.

8:25 - McCoy Stadium, Pawtucket, Rhode Island $- \frac{4}{18}/1981$ and $\frac{6}{23}/1981 - power failure delay 0:30$

at start, Pawtucket Paw Sox 3 Rochester Red Wings 2 in 33 innings, suspended after 8:07 and 32 innings — 1740 fans, 150 fans Midnight, 100 fans top 21st, 60 fans 1 A.M., 27 fans top 27th, 19 fans at suspension, 5756 fans on 6/23 — suspended at 4:07 A.M. in the early morning of 4/19, dawn was at 5:00 A.M., finished at 6:18 P.M. on 6/23.

5:37 — Cooper Stadium, Columbus, Ohio — 6/10/ 1985 and 6/11/1985 and 6/12/1985 — Columbus Clippers 8 Syracuse Chiefs 7 in 21 innings, suspended after 5:18 and 20 innings, rained out 6/11, finally completed 6/12—12,616 fans on 6/10, 400 fans at suspension, 2000 fans on 6/12—suspended at 12:53 A.M. in the early morning of 6/11.

7:07 — MacArthur Stadium, Syracuse, New York — 6/19/1985 and 6/20/1985 and 6/21/1985 — Pawtucket Paw Sox 3 Syracuse Chiefs 1 in 27 innings, suspended after 5:36 and 22 innings, continued 6/20, rain delay 0:13 top 23rd, 2nd rain delay 0:50 bottom 24th, suspended again after 6:07 and 23½ innings, finally completed 6/21—1233 fans on 6/19; 200 fans when suspended after 22 innings; 3020 fans on 6/21 suspended at 1:12 A.M. in the early morning of 6/20, suspended again at 9:05 P.M. on 6/20, finished at 7:31 P.M. on 6/21.

5:01—Diamond, Richmond, Virginia—8/7/1989 — Toledo Mud Hens 4 Richmond Braves 1 in 21 innings, then Richmond 3 Toledo 0 in 2:23 and 7 innings—100 fans at end—finished at 1:57 A.M. in the early morning of 8/8.

5:05 — MacArthur Stadium, Syracuse, New York — 7/19/1992 — Syracuse Chiefs 8 Pawtucket PawSox 7 in 15 innings, then Syracuse 4 Pawtucket 3 in 2:16 and 7 innings —14,143 fans; 200 fans at end —finished at 1:54 A.M. in the early morning of 7/20.

5:07 — Diamond, Richmond, Virginia — 5/12/1994 — Richmond Braves 2 Scranton/Wilkes-Barre Red Barons 1 in 17 innings, then Richmond 4 Scranton-Wilkes-Barre 2 in 1:31 and 7 innings — 4486 fans finished at 1:08 A.M. in the early morning of 5/13.

5:38 — Cooper Stadium, Columbus, Ohio — 8/6/ 1997 — Columbus Clippers 4 Richmond Braves 3 in 18 innings —13,115 fans.

5:13 — Dunn Tire Park, Buffalo, New York — 9/9/ 2001— playoff semifinals — Scranton/Wilkes-Barre Red Barons 6 Buffalo Bisons 2 in 19 innings — 2788 fans — finished at 11:17 P.M.

5:23 — Louisville Slugger Field, Louisville, Kentucky — 6/6/2003 — rain delay 2:15 at start, Louisville Bats 4 Richmond Braves 3 in 18 innings — 9892 fans, 500 fans at end — finished at 2:53 A.M. in the early morning of 6/7.

6:20—Knights Castle, Fort Mill, South Carolina— 8/15/2003—Charlotte Knights 4 Indianapolis Indians 3 in 18 innings, then Charlotte 5 Indianapolis 1 in 1:54 and 7 innings, 2nd game began at 1:01 A.M.— 5275 fans, 100 fans at beginning of second game, 36 fans at end plus 250 Girl Scouts asleep in Home Run Café ballpark restaurant who were to have camped out in the outfield after the games —finished at 2:55 A.M. in the early morning of 8/16.

5:07 — Dunn Tire Park, Buffalo, New York — 7/16/2004 — Buffalo Bisons 11 Scranton/Wilkes-Barre Red Barons 1 in 2:01 and 7 innings, then Scranton/ Wilkes-Barre 8 Buffalo 3 in 16 innings —14,143 fans finished at 1:47 A.M. in the early morning of 7/17.

Kentucky-Illinois-Tennessee (Kitty) League (1)

5:28 — Hook Ball Park, Paducah, Kentucky — 7/8/1938 — Fulton Eagles 14 Paducah Indians 9 in 20 innings, rhubarb delay top 15th when Fulton Manager Ray Clonts unsuccessfully requested umpires to allow 15-minute delay so players could eat some steaks for strength, vote delay top 19th when Paducah Manager Pete Mondino successfully asked umpires to have remaining fans vote whether the game should continue or not — fans voted unanimously that game should continue —finished at 1:45 A.M. in the early morning of 7/9.

Mexican League (6)

5:38 — Parque Deportivo del Seguro Social (Social Security Stadium), Mexico City, Distrito Federal (Federal District), Mexico — 7/14/1969 — Reynosa Broncos 5 Mexico City Diablos Rojos (Red Devils) 3 in 22 innings — 3895 fans — finished at 1:08 A.M. in the early morning of 7/15.

5:45 — Parque Deportivo del Seguro Social (Social Security Stadium), Mexico City, Distrito Federal (Federal District) or Guadalajara, Mexico — 6/24/1970— Mexico City Diablos Rojos (Red Devils) 10 Jalisco Charros 9 in 18 innings — finished at 1:15 A.M. in the early morning of 6/25.

6:30—Estadio (Stadium) Cordoba, Cordoba, State of Veracruz, Mexico — 4/28/1977 — Aguascalientes Rieleros (Railroadmen) 6 Cordoba Cafeteros (Coffee Growers) 2 in 23 innings — 4000 fans, 800 fans at end —finished at 3:00 A.M. in the early morning of 4/29.

6:00-Estadio (Stadium) 20 de Noviembre (November 20), San Luis Potosi, State of San Luis Potosi, Mexico -4/15/2006-Saltillo Saraperos (Blanket Makers) 7 San Luis Potosi Tuneros (Prickle Pear Growers) 5 in 16 innings -1758 fans -finished at 1:00 A.M. in the early morning of 4/16.

5:21—Estadio (Stadium) Monterrey, Monterrey, State of Monterrey, Mexico — 6/22/2006 — Laguna Vaqueros (Cowboys) 6 Monterrey Sultanes (Sultans) 4 in 16 innings, rain delay 2:16 at start —15,635 fans; only 100 fans at end —finished at 3:53 A.M. in the early morning of 6/23.

5:19 — Estadio (Stadium) Kulkucan, Merida, State of Yucatan, Mexico — 8/27/2006 — Monterry Sultanes (Sultans) 2 Yucatan Leones (Lions) in 14 innings finished at 1:19 A.M. in the early morning of 8/28.

Mexican Pacific League (11)

6:22-Estadio (Stadium) Angel Flores, Culiacan,

State of Sinaloa, Mexico –10/22/1967 – Obregon Yaquis 3 Culiacan Tomateros (Tomato Growers) 1 in 21 innings – 5000 fans – finished at 11:22 P.M.

5:20 — Estadio (Stadium) Manuel "Ciclon" Echeverria, Navojoa, State of Baja California, Mexico — 1/2/1979 — Navojoa Mayos 1 Mexicali Aguilas (Eagles) 0 in 20 innings in 2nd game; Mexicali vs. Navojoa in 1st game.

6:38 — Estadio (Stadium) Tomas Oroz Gaytan, Ciudad Obregon, State of Sonora, Mexico —12/30/ 1984 — Guaymas Ostioneros (Oyster Growers) 6 Obregon Yaquis 4 in 15 innings —finished at 2:08 A.M. in the early morning of 12/31.

7:14 – Estadio (Stadium) Emilio Ibarra, Los Mochis, State of Sinaloa, Mexico –11/26/1988 – Los Mochis Caneros (Sugar Cane Growers) 4 Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2 in 21 innings –finished at 2:44 A.M. in the early morning of 11/27.

7:02 — Estadio (Stadium) Teodoro Mariscal, Mazatlan, State of Sinaloa, Mexico -10/26/1993 — Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2 Guasave Algodoneros (Cotton Pickers) 1 in 22 innings —finished at 2:32 A.M. in the early morning of 10/27.

6:01— Éstadio (Stadium) Angel Flores, Culiacan, State of Sinaloa, Mexico—10/27/1995— Culiacan Tomateros (Tomato Growers) 3 Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2 in 20 innings—finished at 1:31 A.M. in the early morning of 10/28.

6:55 — Estadio (Stadium) Teodoro Mariscal, Mazatlan; State of Sinaloa, Mexico —10/19/1997 — Mexican Pacific League — Culiacan Tomateros (Tomato Growers) 5 Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2 in 22 innings —finished at 2:25 A.M. in the early morning of 10/20.

5:43 — Estadio (Stadium) Angel Flores, Culiacan, State of Sinaloa, Mexico — 11/16/2005 — Culiacan Tomateros (Tomato Growers) 4 Los Mochis Caneros (Sugar Cane Growers) 3 in 5:43 and 14 innings finished at 1:13 A.M. in the early morning of 11/17.

6:21—Estadio (Stadium) Jesus Carranza, Guasave, State of Sinaloa, Mexico —11/26/2006 — Guasave Algodoneros (Cotton Pickers) 9 Mochis Caneros (Sugarcane Pickers) 7 in 16 innings —finished at 11:45 P.M.

5:16 — Estadio (Stadium) Angel Flores, Culiacan, State of Sinaloa, Mexico —11/26/2006 — Culiacan Tomateros (Tomato Growers) 4 Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 3 in 17 innings; then Culican 7 Mazatlan 0 in 1:58 and 7 innings.

6:46 – Estadio (Stadium) Teodoro Mariscal, Mazatlan; State of Sinaloa, Mexico –10/31/2008 – Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 4 Culiacan Tomateros (Tomato Growers) 2 in 17 innings – 7980 fans – finished at 2:46 A.M. in the early morning of 11/1.

Midwest League (9)

5:22 – Fans Field, Decatur, Illinois – 8/20/1968 – Burlington Bees 9 Decatur Commodores 6 in 18 innings.

5:30-Goodland Field, Appleton, Wisconsin-

5/2/1969 — Appleton Foxes 8 Decatur Giants 7 in 17 innings — finished at 1:30 A.M. in the early morning of 5/3.

5:35 — Danville Stadium, Danville, Illinois — 6/4/ 1974 — Waterloo Royals 7 Danville Warriors 5 in 21 innings — 722 fans, 94 fans at end —finished at 1:10 A.M. in the early morning of 6/5.

5:33 — Waterloo Stadium, Waterloo, Iowa — 5/30/ 1976 — Burlington Bees 4 Waterloo Royals 3 in 22 innings, then Burlington 4 Waterloo 3 in 2:09 and 8 innings — 603 fans — 1st game finished at 8:33 P.M., 2nd game finished at 11:12 P.M.

5:44 — Community Field (II), Burlington, Iowa — 8/10/1983 and 8/11/1983 — Burlington Rangers 7 Clinton Giants 6 in 21 innings, rain delay 0:06 bottom 11th, 2nd rain delay 0:01 bottom 18th, suspended after 4:54 and 17½ innings — suspended at 12:35 A.M. in the early morning of 8/11.

5:04 — Community Field (II), Burlington, Iowa — 5/15/1989 — Rockford Expos 4 Burlington Braves 2 in 20 innings.

7:37 — Waterloo Stadium, Waterloo, Iowa and Riverview Stadium (later Alliant Energy Field), Clinton, Iowa — 7/6/1989 and 8/17/1989 — Waterloo Diamonds 4 Clinton Giants 3 in 25 innings, suspended after 5:46 and 19 innings in Waterloo, completed 8/17 in Clinton — 876 fans on 7/6 in Waterloo; 809 fans on 8/17 in Clinton — suspended at 12:51 A.M. in the early morning of 7/7.

5:13 — Memorial Stadium, Fort Wayne, Indiana — 4/7/1995 — Fort Wayne Wizards 5 Michigan Battle Cats 4 in 18 innings — 3260 fans; 100 fans at end finished at 12:21 A.M. in the early morning of 4/8.

5:49 — John O'donnell Stadium, Davenport, Iowa — 5/19/1999 — Clinton Lumber Kings 3 Quad-City River Bandits 2 in 21 innings.

Missouri Valley League (1)

5:00- Old Fair Grounds Park, Springfield, Missouri -7/19/1902 - Springfield Reds 2 Nevada Lunatics 1 in 20 innings -3500 fans, 3500 fans at end - finished at 8:30 P.M.

New York-Pennsylvania League (7)

5:15 — Municipal Stadium, Jamestown or Maple City Park, Hornell, New York — 5/23/1956 — Jamestown Falcons 25 Hornell Dodgers 21 in extra innings —finished at 1:15 A.M. in the early morning of 5/24.

6:13 — College Stadium (later Russell Diethrich Park), Jamestown, New York — 8/14/1965 — Binghamton Triplets 4 Jamestown Tigers 4 in 21 innings, 2nd game postponed — 386 fans — finished at 12:43 A.M. in the early morning of 8/15.

5:56 — Le Lacheur Park, Lowell, Massachusetts — 7/29/2002 — Hudson Valley Renegades 13 Lowell Spinners 9 in 18 innings — 5000 fans — finished at 1:01 A.M. in the early morning of 7/30.

5:48 – Dwyer Stadium, Batavia, New York – 7/9/ 2003 – Staten Island Yankees 5 Batavia Muckdogs 2 in 21 innings -1073 fans -finished at 12:58 A.M. in the early morning of 7/10.

6:34 - Falcon Park, Auburn, New York -7/7/2005and 8/14/2005 - Auburn Doubledays 6 Batavia Muckdogs 5 in 22 innings, suspended after 6:02 and 20 innings -3242 fans on 7/7, 250 fans left at suspension, 1871 fans on 8/14 - suspended at 1:09 A.M. in the early morning of 7/8, finished at 5:35 P.M. on 8/14 - author sat behind first base for the last two innings.

6:40— KeySpan Park, Brooklyn, New York—7/20/ 2006— Oneonta Tigers 6 Brooklyn Cyclones 1 in 26 innings—9004 fans; 190 fans at end—finished at 6:45 P.M.

5:31—Centennial Field, Burlington, Vermont — 7/28/2008 — Vermont Lake Monsters 5 Lowell Spinners 4 in 18 innings — 3113 fans —finished at 12:36 A.M. in the early morning of 7/29.

Northern League (3)

5:39 — Rox Park, St. Cloud, Minnesota — 7/25/1966 and 8/28/1966 — Huron Phillies 8 St. Cloud Rox 2 in 21 innings, suspended after 4:20 and 16 innings, originally decided to play entire game over, but then decided to complete game from point of suspension — 951 fans on 7/25, 343 fans on 8/28 — suspended at 11:50 P.M. on 7/25.

5:03 — Winnipeg Stadium, Winnipeg, Province of Manitoba, Canada — 5/30/1997 and 5/31/1997 — Winnipeg Goldeyes 12 Sioux City Explorers 10 in 14 innings, suspended after 13 innings — 6491 fans — suspended at 12:05 A.M. in the early morning of 5/31.

5:48 — CanWest Global Park, Winnipeg, Province of Manitoba, Canada — 8/10/2003 — Joliet JackHammers 6 Winnipeg Goldeyes 3 in 17 innings — 7718 fans — finished at 7:24 P.M.

Northwest League (3)

7:13 — Memorial Stadium, Everett, Washington and Civic Stadium, Eugene, Oregon — 8/18/1989 and 8/24/1989 — Eugene Emeralds 6 Everett Giants 5 in 25 innings, suspended after 5:50 and 19 innings in Everett, completed 8/24 in Eugene — 2998 fans on 8/24 — suspended at 12:50 A.M. in the early morning of 8/19.

6:37 — Dust Devils Stadium, Pasco, Washington — 8/16/2004 and 8/17/2004 — Spokane Indians 2 Tri-City Dust Devils 1 in 23 innings, suspended after 5:46 and 20 innings — 919 fans on 8/16 — suspended at 12:52 A.M. in the early morning of 8/17, finished at 6:53 P.M. on 8/17.

5:08 — Nat Bailey Stadium, Vancouver, Province of British Columbia, Canada — 7/13/2008 — Spokane Indians 10 Vancouver Canadians 8 in 14 innings — 4372 fans — finished at 6:13 P.M.

Northwoods League (3)

5:35 – Simmons Field, Kenosha, Wisconsin – 6/17/ 1998 – Austin Southern Minny Stars at Kenosha Kroakers, then Austin at Kenosha in 17 innings. 5:53 — Dick Putz Field, St. Cloud, Minnesota — 8/3/2004 — Madison Mallards 9 St. Cloud River Bats 5 in 18 innings — 2145 fans — finished at 1:00 A.M. in the early morning of 8/4.

5:47 — Wade Stadium, Duluth, Minnesota — 7/19/2005 — St. Cloud River Bats at Duluth Huskies in 18 innings.

Pacific Coast League (11)

5:15 — Dugdale Park, Seattle, Washington — 6/6/ 1924 — Seattle Indians 5 Vernon Tigers 4 in 19 innings.

5:04 — Lane Field, San Diego, California — 7/2/1958 — San Diego Padres 12 Salt Lake City Bees 11 in 16 innings — 5309 fans — finished at 1:04 A.M. in the early morning of 7/3.

5:56 — Sicks' Stadium, Seattle, Washington — 5/8/ 1959 — Seattle Rainiers 6 Phoenix Giants 5 in 21 innings, 2nd game cancelled —1787 fans —finished at 12:56 A.M. in the early morning of 5/9.

5:04 — Honolulu Stadium (later Termite Palace), Honolulu, Hawaii — 5/23/1967 — Portland Beavers 7 Hawaii Islanders 4 in 16 innings, rain delay 7th, brawl delay top 8th, 2nd rain delay 11th, 3rd rain delay 13th — finished at 1:22 A.M. in the early morning of 5/24.

5:22 — Cheney Stadium, Tacoma, Washington — 4/28/1989 — Tacoma Tigers 4 Las Vegas Stars 3 in 19 innings — 3693 fans — finished at 1:00 A.M. in the early morning of 4/29.

6:39 — Municipal Stadium, Phoenix, Arizona — 6/23/1990 — Calgary Cannons 12 Phoenix Firebirds 9 in 20 innings — finished at 1:49 A.M. in the early morning of 6/24.

5:03 — SkySox Stadium, Colorado Springs, Colorado — 6/23/1996 — Colorado Springs SkySox 9 Las Vegas Stars 8 in 15 innings — 3006 fans — finished at 6:40 P.M.

5:00—Cashman Field, Las Vegas, Nevada—4/29/ 2002—Colorado Springs SkySox 17 Las Vegas 51's 16 in 14 innings—1680 fans—finished at 12:10 A.M. in the early morning of 4/30.

8:07 — Greer Stadium, Nashville, Tennessee — 5/5/ 2006 and 5/6/2006 — New Orleans Zephyrs 5 Nashville Sounds 4 in 24 innings, suspended after 6:23 and 18 innings — 9124 fans on 5/5, 300 fans at suspension; 10,016 fans on 5/6 — suspended at 1:25 A.M. in the early morning of 5/6; finished at 7:44 P.M. on 5/6.

5:00— Isotopes Park, Albuquerque, New Mexico— 7/16/2006— Iowa Cubs 5 Albuquerque Isotopes 4 in 17 innings— 9019 fans—finished at 11:05 P.M.

5:04 — AutoZone Park, Memphis, Tennessee — 7/30/ 2006 — Memphis Redbirds 9 Colorado Springs SkySox 8 in 16 innings — 8095 fans — finished at 7:14 P.M.

Pioneer League (1)

5:20— Melalucha Field, Idaho Falls, Idaho — 6/23/ 2007 — Idaho Falls Chukars 5 Orem Owlz 4 in 17 innings — 300 fans at end — finished at 12:36 A.M. in the early morning of 6/24.

South Atlantic (Sally) League (10)

5:13 — Golden Park, Columbus, Georgia — 4/24/ 1954 — Macon Peaches 7 Columbus Cardinals 5 in 20 innings —finished at 1:13 A.M. in the early morning of 4/25.

5:00—Jacksonville Ball Park (later Municipal Stadium, then Wolfson Park), Jacksonville, Florida—5/ 21/1958—Savannah Redlegs 6 Jacksonville Braves 6 in 20 innings—902 fans—finished at 1:00 A.M. in the early morning of 5/22.

5:01—Jacksonville Ball Park (later Municipal Stadium, then Wolfson Park), Jacksonville, Florida — 4/22/1959 — Jacksonville Braves 3 Knoxville Smokies 2 in 21 innings —1814 fans, 200 fans at end —finished at 1:01 A.M. in the early morning of 4/23.

5:22 – J.P. Riddle Stadium, Fayetteville, North Carolina – 7/10/1988 – Charleston (Wv) Wheelers 7 Fayetteville Generals 5 in 21 innings – 843 fans – finished at 12:52 A.M. in the early morning of 7/11.

5:16 – L.P. Frans Stadium, Hickory, North Carolina – 8/13/2000 – Asheville Tourists 4 Hickory Crawdads 3 in 20 innings –1959 fans –finished at 12:16 A.M. in the early morning of 8/14.

6:44 — Capital City Park, Columbia, South Carolina — 7/4/2003 — Asheville Tourists 7 Capital City Bombers 5 in 19 innings — 5800 fans, 550 fans at end — finished at 1:40 A.M. in the early morning of 7/5.

5:50—Fieldcrest Cannon Stadium, Kannapolis, North Carolina — 5/20/2005 — Delmarva Shorebirds 7 Kannapolis Intimidators 6 in 18 innings — 2899 fans, 250 fans at end including 200 Girl Scouts waiting to camp out in the outfield after the game —finished at 1:06 A.M. in the early morning of 5/21.

5:09 - Fieldcrest Cannon Stadium, Kannapolis, North Carolina - 9/7/2005 - playoffs - Kannapolis Intimidators 4 Charleston (Sc) RiverDogs 3 in 21 innings - 749 fans; 300 fans at end - finished at 12:14 A.M. in the early morning of 9/8.

7:47 — FirstEnergy Park, Lakewood, New Jersey — 4/26/2006 and 5/7/2006 — Lakewood BlueClaws 8 Hagerstown Suns 7 in 22 innings, suspended after 17 innings and 6:03 — 5487 fans on 4/26, 150 fans top 12th, 31 fans top 17th; 7449 fans on 5/7 — suspended at 12:42 A.M. in the early morning of 4/27, finished at 2:49 P.M. on 5/7.

5:42 — Riley Ballpark, Charleston, South Carolina — 5/20/2006 — Charleston RiverDogs 7 Rome Braves 6 in 18 innings — 4794 fans — finished at 12:47 A.M. in the early morning of 5/21.

Southern Association (1)

5:38 – Russwood Park, Memphis, Tennessee – 6/21/1959 – Memphis Chicks 6 Chattanooga Lookouts 5 in 21 innings – finished at 7:10 P.M.

Southern League (13)

5:23 — Paterson Field, Montgomery, Alabama — 7/31/1965 — Columbus Confederate Yankees 6 Mont-

gomery Rebels 6 in 19 innings — finished at 1:23 A.M. in the early morning of 8/1.

6:14 — Grayson Stadium, Savannah, Georgia — 4/ 14/1973 — Columbus Astros 10 Savannah Braves 4 in 23 innings, 2nd game postponed — 827 fans — finished at 12:45 A.M. in the early morning of 4/15, post-game fireworks finished at 1:10 A.M.

5:32 – Engel Stadium, Chattanooga, Tennessee – 7/29/1978 – Chattanooga Lookouts 3 Savannah Braves 2 in 21 innings.

6:02 — Municipal Stadium, Greenville, South Carolina — 7/13/1984 and 7/14/1984 — Memphis Chicks 3 Greenville Braves 2 in 19 innings, then Greenville 6 Memphis 5 in 2:11 and 7 innings, suspended after 2 innings, completed 7/14 as 1st game of tripleheader — 3044 fans on 7/13, 250 fans at suspension, 4456 fans on 7/14 — suspended at 1:07 A.M. in the early morning of 7/14.

6:37 — Hoover Met Stadium, Hoover, Alabama — 6/2/1989 — Birmingham Barons 5 Huntsville Stars 4 in 18 innings — 7034 fans — finished at 1:42 A.M. in the early morning of 6/3.

5:35 — Joe Davis Stadium, Huntsville, Alabama — 6/10/1990 — Huntsville Stars 3 Knoxville Blue Jays 2 in 19 innings, then Huntsville 2 Knoxville 0 in 2:05 and 7 innings — finished at 2:10 A.M. in the early morning of 6/11.

6:32 — Tim McCarver Stadium, Memphis, Tennessee — 6/17/1991 and 6/18/1991— Huntsville Stars 9 Memphis Chicks 7 in 20 innings, suspended after 5:33 and 16 innings — 6845 fans on 6/17, 2349 fans on 6/18 — suspended at 1:12 A.M. in the early morning of 6/18, finished at 7:40 P.M. on 6/18.

5:00— Five County Stadium, Zebulon, North Carolina — 8/12/1995 — Carolina Mudcats 12 Port City Roosters 11 in 17 innings.

6:26 — Municipal Stadium, Greenville, South Carolina — 8/6/1998 and 8/7/1998 — Greenville Braves 10 Huntsville Stars 7 in 23 innings, suspended after 5:25 and 20 innings — 4098 fans — suspended at 12:13 A.M. in the early morning of 8/7, finished at 6:01 P.M. on 8/7.

5:34 — Municipal Stadium, Greenville, South Carolina — 8/19/2003 — Carolina Mudcats 6 Greenville Braves 5 in 15 innings.

5:10—Hank Aaron Stadium, Mobile, Alabama— 7/20/2005—Mobile BayBears 2 Huntsville Stars 1 in 19 innings—1918 fans.

5:16 — Smokies Park, Sevierville, Tennessee — 5/23/ 2006 — Chattanooga Lookouts 9 Tennessee Smokies 5 in 16 innings — 2687 fans.

5:22 – Baseball Grounds, Jacksonville, Florida – 8/12/2006 and 8/13/2006 – Jacksonville Suns 5 West Tennessee Diamond Jaxx 2 in 20 innings, rain delay, 2nd rain delay top 4th, suspended after 0:55 top 4th; then West Tennessee 4 Jacksonville 1 in 1:44 and 7 innings – 6280 fans on 8/12; 2907 fans on 8/13 – finished at 7:32 P.M.; 2nd game finished at 9:46 P.M. Texas League (29)

5:00—Mission Stadium, San Antonio, Texas— 8/11/1952—Oklahoma City Indians 6 San Antonio Missions 2 in 1:55 and 7 innings, then San Antonio 5 Oklahoma City 4 in 19 innings—3143 fans—2nd game finished at 2:10 A.M. in the early morning of 8/12.

5:01—Disch Field, Austin, Texas—9/7/1956— Austin Senators 4 Dallas Eagles 3 in 20 innings—2157 fans—finished at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 9/8.

5:42 — Mission Stadium, San Antonio, Texas — 4/29/1960 — Rio Grande Valley Giants 4 San Antonio Missions 2 in 24 innings, scoreboard fire delay bottom 23rd — 820 fans — finished at 1:27 A.M. in the early morning of 4/30.

5:17 — Disch Field, Austin, Texas — 5/22/1961— Amarillo Gold Sox 8 Austin Senators 7 in 16 innings — 508 fans — finished at 1:31 A.M. in the early morning of 5/23.

5:47 — Oiler Park, Tulsa, Oklahoma — 5/31/1963 — Tulsa Oilers 9 Albuquerque Dukes 8 in 17 innings — 2088 fans — finished at 1:30 A.M. in the early morning of 6/1.

5:10—Turnpike (later Arlington) Stadium, Arlington, Texas—6/17/1965—Austin Braves 2 Dallas-Fort Worth Spurs 1 in 25 innings—2546 fans—finished at 12:40 A.M. in the early morning of 6/18.

5:10—Ray Winder Field, Little Rock, Arkansas— 4/19/1968—Arkansas Travelers 13 Memphis Blues 2 in 2:12 and 7 innings, then Memphis 6 Arkansas 3 in 16 innings—875 fans—finished at 2:22 A.M. in the early morning of 4/20.

5:25 – Bringhurst Field, Alexandria, Louisiana – 4/28/1973 – Memphis Blues 12 Alexandria Aces 9 in 19 innings –1520 fans – finished at 12:55 A.M. in the early morning of 4/29.

5:12 — Dudley Field, El Paso, Texas — 8/14/1979 — El Paso Diablos 11 Midland Cubs 10 in 18 innings, rain delay 0:44, 2nd rain delay 0:46 — 1664 fans — finished at 2:20 A.M. in the early morning of 8/15.

6:39 — Smith-Wills Stadium, Jackson, Mississippi — 7/6/1982 — Tulsa Drillers 11 Jackson Mets 7 in 23 innings — 1105 fans, 200 fans at end — finished at 2:09 A.M. in the early morning of 7/7.

5:25 — Smith-Wills Stadium, Jackson, Mississippi — 6/28/1985 — Jackson Mets 3 Tulsa Drillers 2 in 16 innings —1822 fans — finished at 12:55 A.M. in the early morning of 6/29.

5:20—Fair Grounds Field, Shreveport, Louisiana— 4/22/1986—Shreveport Captains 7 Tulsa Drillers 5 in 17 innings—1683 fans—finished at 12:50 A.M. in the early morning of 4/23.

6:04 – V.J. Keefe Stadium, San Antonio, Texas – 5/21/1987 – Shreveport Captains 4 San Antonio Dodgers 3 in 21 innings –1144 fans – finished at 1:04 A.M. in the early morning of 5/22.

7:23 – V.J. Keefe Stadium, San Antonio, Texas – 7/14/1988 and 7/16/1988 – San Antonio Missions 1 Jackson Mets 0 in 26 innings, suspended after 7:10 and 25 innings – 3792 fans on 7/14, 3260 fans on 7/16 — suspended at 2:15 A.M. in the early morning of 7/15.

5:58 – V.J. Keefe Stadium, San Antonio, Texas – 5/3/1989 – Midland Angels 5 San Antonio Missions 3 in 19 innings –1296 fans, 24 fans at end –finished at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 5/4.

5:14 — Smith-Wills Stadium, Jackson, Mississippi — 5/17/1989 — San Antonio Missions 2 Jackson Mets 1 in 16 innings —1043 fans — finished at 12:19 A.M. in the early morning of 5/18.

5:12 – V.J. Keefe Stadium, San Antonio, Texas – 7/6/1989 – San Antonio Missions 2 Tulsa Drillers 1 in 16 innings – 3129 fans – finished at 12:17 A.M. in the early morning of 7/7.

5:30—Fair Grounds Field, Shreveport, Louisiana— 5/26/1992—Shreveport Captains 3 Wichita Wranglers 2 in 17 innings—5023 fans—finished at 7:05 P.M.

5:31— Wolff Stadium, San Antonio, Texas — 5/26/2001— Round Rock Express 5 San Antonio Missions 2 in 17 innings — 4751 fans —finished at 12:36 A.M. in the early morning of 5/27.

5:40—Fair Grounds Field, Shreveport, Louisiana— 7/3/2001—Tulsa Drillers 4 Shreveport Swamp Dragons 2 in 18 innings—634 fans—finished at 12:46 A.M. in the early morning of 7/4.

5:17 — Wolff Stadium, San Antonio, Texas — 9/1/2002 — Round Rock Express 12 San Antonio Missions 5 in 18 innings — 5002 fans — finished at 12:22 A.M. in the early morning of 9/2.

6:40 – Wolff Stadium, San Antonio, Texas – 8/14/ 2004 – Midland RockHounds 7 San Antonio Missions 5 in 21 innings – 4286 fans, 90 fans at end – finished at 1:46 A.M. in the early morning of 8/15.

6:09 — Whataburger Field, Corpus Christi, Texas — 6/1/2005 — Wichita Wranglers 7 Corpus Christi Hooks 2 in 20 innings — 6609 fans, 325 fans at end — finished at 1:19 A.M. in the early morning of 6/2.

5:14 — Wolff Stadium, San Antonio, Texas — 6/18/ 2005 — San Antonio Missions 2 Midland Rock-Hounds 1 in 17 innings — 4783 fans — finished at 12:19 A.M. in the early morning of 6/19.

5:05 – Dr. Pepper Ballpark, Frisco, Texas – 6/11/ 2006 – Frisco RoughRiders 12 Midland RockHounds 11 in 16 innings – 7291 fans – finished at 12:19 A.M. in the early morning of 6/19.

5:36 — Citibank Ballpark, Midland, Texas — 7/12/ 2006 — Midland RockHounds 11 Wichita Wranglers 10 in 15 innings — 2726 fans — finished at 12:41 A.M. in the early morning of 7/13.

5:26 — Whataburger Field, Corpus Christi, Texas — 4/26/2007 — Corpus Christi Hooks 7 Midland Rock-Hounds 6 in 18 innings — 6729 fans — finished at 12:31 A.M. in the early morning of 4/27.

5:10— Wolff Stadium, San Antonio, Texas — 4/17/2008— San Antonio Missions 7 Midland Rock-Hounds 6 in 14 innings — 4974 fans —finished at 12:15 A.M. in the early morning of 4/18.

5:15 - Dickey-Stephens Park, North Little Rock,

Arkansas — 6/13/2008 — Tulsa Oilers 5 Arkansas Travelers 4 in 16 innings — 5621 fans — finished at 12:25 A.M. in the early morning of 6/14.

Major League Games, by League and Team

American League (117)

Baltimore Orioles (11)

5:18 — Memorial Stadium, Baltimore, Maryland — 6/4/1967 — Orioles 7 Senators 5 in 19 innings —12,612 fans — finished at 6:23 P.M.

5:27 — Memorial Stadium, Baltimore, Maryland — 8/25/1968 — Orioles 3 Red Sox 2 in 18 innings — 12,714 fans — finished at 12:57 A.M. in the early morning of 8/26.

5:02 — Memorial Stadium, Baltimore, Maryland — 5/2/1984 — Indians 9 Orioles 7 in 16 innings —12,968 fans — finished at 6:37 P.M.

5:04 — Memorial Stadium, Baltimore, Maryland — 6/4/1985 — Angels 6 Orioles 5 in 15 innings —17,237 fans —finished at 12:39 A.M. in the early morning of 6/5.

5:46 — Memorial Stadium, Baltimore, Maryland — 6/4/1988 — Orioles 7 Yankees 6 in 14 innings — 36,499 fans.

5:23 — Memorial Stadium, Baltimore, Maryland — 8/12/1989 — Red Sox 10 Orioles 8 in 13 innings — 50,865 fans — finished at 12:58 A.M. in the early morning of 8/13.

5:34 — Camden Yards, Baltimore, Maryland — 5/ 22/1993 — Orioles 5 Brewers 4 in 14 innings — 46,177 fans — finished at 1:09 A.M. in the early morning of 5/2.

5:34 — Camden Yards, Baltimore, Maryland — 5/1/1996 — Yankees 11 Orioles 6 in 15 innings — 47,472fans — finished at 1:09 A.M. in the early morning of 5/2.

5:49 — Camden Yards, Baltimore, Maryland — 6/ 19/1998 — Orioles 7 Blue Jays 4 in 15 innings — 47,012 fans.

5:41- Camden Yards, Baltimore, Maryland -6/27/2003 - NL at AL - Phillies 4 Orioles 2 in 17 innings -46,405 fans - finished at 12:46 A.M. in the early morning of 6/28.

5:01- Camden Yards, Baltimore, Maryland -9/5/2003 - Mariners 6 Orioles 4 in 13 innings -27,417fans - finished at 12:06 A.M. in the early morning of 9/6.

Boston Red Sox (14)

5:00- Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts -6/25/1970- Orioles 13 Red Sox 8 in 14 innings -20,548 fans - finished at 6:30 P.M.

6:01—Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 9/3/1981 and 9/4/1981—Mariners 8 Red Sox 7 in 20 innings, suspended after 5:39 and 19 innings —13,355 fans on 9/3, 1000 fans at suspension, 20,836 fans on 9/4 — suspended at 1:16 A.M. in the early morning of 9/4.

5:02 — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 6/19/1987 — Yankees 10 Red Sox 5 in 13 innings — 33,835 fans — finished at 12:37 A.M. in the early morning of 6/20.

5:09 — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 4/27/1989 — White Sox 3 Red Sox 1 in 16 innings — 23,830 fans — finished at 12:14 A.M. in the early morning of 4/28.

5:01— Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 7/31/ 1991— Red Sox 11 Athletics 10 in 14 innings — 34,218 fans — finished at 12:36 A.M. in the early morning of 8/1.

5:28 — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 9/1/ 1993 — Rangers 9 Red Sox 7 in 12 innings — 27,396 fans.

5:05 – Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts – 8/7/ 1994 – Indians 15 Red Sox 10 in 12 innings in 2nd game; Red Sox 4 Indians 1 in 3:08 in 1st game – 34,523 fans – 2nd game finished at 9:48 P.M.

5:14 — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 6/26/1996 — Red Sox 6 Indians 4 in 15 innings — 33,727fans — finished at 12:19 A.M. in the early morning of 6/27.

5:28 — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 6/1/ 1997 — Yankees 11 Red Sox 6 in 15 innings — 31,798 fans — finished at 6:33 P.M.

5:52 — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 6/5/2001 — Red Sox 4 Tigers 3 in 18 innings — 32,814 fans — finished at 12:57 A.M. in the early morning of 6/6.

5:02 — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts —10/ 17/2004 — Championship Series — Red Sox 6 Yankees 4 in 12 innings — 34,826 fans —finished at 1:22 A.M. in the early morning of 10/18.

5:49 — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts —10/ 18/2004 — Championship Series — Red Sox 5 Yankees 4 in 14 innings — 35,120 fans —finished at 11:00 P.M.

5:02 — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 9/10/ 2008 — Rays 4 Red Sox 2 in 14 innings — 38,114 fans —finished at 12:07 A.M. in the early morning of 9/11.

5:19 — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts —10/5/ 2008 — Division Series — Angels 5 Red Sox 4 in 12 innings — 39,067 fans —finished at 12:48 A.M. in the early morning of 10/6.

Chicago White Sox (6)

6:03 — Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois — 5/26/1973 and 5/27/1973 and 5/28/1973 — White Sox 6 Indians 3 in 21 innings, rain delay 0:17 top 14th, suspended after 4:39 and 16 innings, rained out 5/27 — 19,486 fans on 5/26, 17,419 fans on 5/28 — suspended at 1:01 A.M. in the early morning of 5/27.

5:31- Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois -5/13/1981- Indians 4 White Sox 3 in 16 innings -10,463fans -finished at 1:08 A.M. in the early morning of 5/14.

8:06 – Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois – 5/8/

1984 and 5/9/1984 — White Sox 7 Brewers 6 in 25 innings, suspended after 5:29 and 17 innings —14,754 fans on 5/8, 17,715 fans on 5/9 — suspended at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 5/9.

5:00— Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois— 4/30/ 1990— White Sox 5 Rangers 4 in 13 innings— 8406 fans—finished at 12:35 A.M. in the early morning of 5/1.

5:09 – US Cellular Field, Chicago, Illinois – 8/16/ 2005 – Twins 9 White Sox 4 in 16 innings – 34,533 fans – finished at 12:14 A.M. in the early morning of 8/17.

6:19 – U.S. Cellular Field, Chicago, Illinois – 7/9/ 2006 – White Sox 6 Red Sox 5 in 19 innings – 39,335 fans – finished at 7:24 P.M.

Cleveland Indians (10)

5:03 — Cleveland Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio — 6/ 27/1965 — Indians 10 Kansas City Athletics 7 in 15 innings, then Indians 11 Athletics 7 in 3:01—17,829 fans — 2nd game finished at 9:34 P.M.

6:15 — Cleveland Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio and R.F.K. Stadium, Washington, D.C. — 9/14/1971 and 9/20/1971— Indians 3 Senators 1 in 1:54, then Senators 8 Indians 6 in 20 innings, suspended after 5:00 and 16 innings in Cleveland, completed 9/20 in Washington — 2639 fans on 9/14 in Cleveland, 100 fans at suspension, 1743 fans on 9/20 in Washington, 333 fans top 17th — suspended at 1:00 A.M. in the early morning of 9/15.

5:23 — Cleveland Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio — 9/9/1989 — Blue Jays 7 Indians 5 in 16 innings — 15,154 fans — finished at 12:58 A.M. in the early morning of 9/10.

5:26 – Cleveland Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio – 9/21/1989 – Indians 5 Angels 4 in 17 innings – 4735 fans – finished at 1:01 A.M. in the early morning of 9/22.

6:30—Cleveland Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio—4/11/ 1992—Red Sox 7 Indians 5 in 19 innings—65,813 fans, 30,000 fans at end—finished at 8:05 P.M.

5:40— Jacobs Field, Cleveland, Ohio — 7/20/1994 — rain delay 0:33 at start, Rangers 13 Indians 11 in 14 innings — 40,280 fans — finished at 1:18 A.M. in the early morning of 7/21.

6:36 - Jacobs Field, Cleveland, Ohio -5/7/1995 - Indians 10 Twins 9 in 17 innings -39,431 fans - finished at 7:41 P.M.

5:01—Jacobs Field, Cleveland, Ohio—10/3/1995— Division Series—rain delay 0:39 at start, Indians 5 Red Sox 4 in 13 innings, 2nd rain delay 0:23 top 8th— 44,218 fans—finished at 2:08 A.M. in the early morning of 10/4.

5:17 – Jacobs Field, Cleveland, Ohio – 9/3/2000 – Indians 12 Orioles 11 in 13 innings – 42,630 fans – finished at 6:22 P.M.

5:33 - Progressive Field, Cleveland, Ohio -7/30/2008 - Tigers 14 Indians 12 in 13 innings -26,596fans - finished at 12:43 A.M. in the early morning of 7/31.

Detroit Tigers (6)

7:00 – Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan – 6/24/1962 – Yankees 9 Tigers 7 in 22 innings – 35,638 fans, 20,000 fans at end –finished at 8:30 P.M. – this 7 hour extra inning game happened before there had ever been an extra inning game lasting more than 6 hours.

5:40—Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan—6/17/ 1967—Tigers 7 Athletics 6 in 3:25, rain delay 0:15 top 7th, then Athletics 6 Tigers 5 in 19 innings— 14,871 fans, 200 fans at end including Commissioner William Eckert—finished at 12:17 A.M. in the early morning of 6/18.

5:17 – Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan – 5/26/ 1979 – Orioles 7 Tigers 5 in 16 innings –14,583 fans.

5:44 — Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan — 4/27/1984 — Indians 8 Tigers 4 in 19 innings — 34,112 fans, 7000 fans at end —finished at 1:22 A.M. in the early morning of 4/28.

5:02 – Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan – 9/7/ 1997 – Angels 5 Tigers 4 in 15 innings – 25,602 fans –finished at 6:07 P.M.

5:10—Comerica Park, Detroit, Michigan— 6/1/2003—Yankees 10 Tigers 9 in 17 innings—44,095 fans—finished at 6:15 P.M.

Kansas City Royals (4)

5:07 — Royals Stadium, Kansas City, Missouri — 4/12/1989 — Orioles 5 Royals 4 in 15 innings — 20,261 fans — finished at 12:42 A.M. in the early morning of 4/13.

6:28 — Royals Stadium, Kansas City, Missouri — 6/6/1991— Royals 4 Rangers 3 in 18 innings — 38,523 fans — finished at 8:03 P.M.

5:32 — Royals Stadium, Kansas City, Missouri — 7/17/1991— Royals 9 Orioles 8 in 15 innings — 21,821 fans — finished at 1:07 A.M. in the early morning of 7/18.

5:14 — Kauffman Stadium (II), Kansas City, Missouri — 6/10/2002 — NL at AL — Marlins 15 Royals 8 in 14 innings — 13,493 fans — finished at 12:19 A.M. in the early morning of 6/11.

Los Angeles/California/Anaheim/Los Angeles of Anaheim Angels (6)

6:06 — Anaheim Stadium (later Edison International Field, then Angels Stadium), Anaheim, California — 4/13/1982 and 4/14/1982 — Angels 4 Mariners 3 in 20 innings, suspended after 5:24 and 17 innings — 33,574 fans on 4/13, 23,905 fans on 4/14 — suspended at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 4/14.

5:07 — Anaheim Stadium (later Edison International Field, then Angels Stadium), Anaheim, California — 7/22/1989 — Angels 5 Tigers 4 in 16 innings — 48,766 fans — finished at 12:42 A.M. in the early morning of 7/23.

5:23 — Anaheim Stadium (later Edison International Field, then Angel Stadium), Anaheim, California — 8/9/1992 — White Sox 12 Angels 8 in 14 innings — 25,401 fans — finished at 6:28 P.M. 5:03 — Anaheim Stadium (later Edison International Field, then Angels Stadium), Anaheim, California — 6/13/1997 — NL at AL — Padres 8 Angels 7 in 14 innings — 24,664 fans — finished at 12:08 A.M. in the early morning of 6/14.

5:06 — Edison International Field (later Angel Stadium), Anaheim, California — 4/28/2002 — Angels 8 Blue Jays 5 in 14 innings — 25,073 fans — finished at 6:11 P.M.

5:08 – Angel Stadium, Anaheim, California – 6/13/2004 – NL at AL – Cubs 6 Angels 5 in 15 innings – 43,812 fans – finished at 6:13 P.M.

Milwaukee Brewers (6)

5:14 — County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin — 7/13/1979 — Brewers 4 Indians 3 in 17 innings — 18,524 fans — finished at 12:49 A.M. in the early morning of 7/14.

5:04 — County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin — 9/23/1988 — Athletics 9 Brewers 8 in 14 innings — 24,163 fans — finished at 12:39 A.M. in the early morning of 9/24.

5:31—County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin— 7/6/1990—Angels 9 Brewers 8 in 16 innings—25,244 fans—finished at 1:06 A.M. in the early morning of 7/7.

6:05 – County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin – 5/1/1991– Brewers 10 White Sox 9 in 19 innings – 13,973 fans – finished at 7:35 P.M.

5:37 — County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin — 5/27/1991— Tigers 15 Brewers 9 in 14 innings — 27,667 fans — finished at 7:12 P.M.

5:11—County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin— 8/24/1993—Brewers 9 Athletics 2 in 3:01, then Brewers 7 Athletics 6 in 13 innings, brawl delay 0:10 top 10th—16,570 fans—finished at 1:55 A.M. in the early morning of 8/25.

Minnesota Twins (4)

5:40 — Metropolitan Stadium, Bloomington, Minnesota — 8/9/1967 — Senators 9 Twins 7 in 20 innings —16,901 fans, 4000 fans at end —finished at 1:44 A.M. in the early morning of 8/10.

5:47 — Metropolitan Stadium, Bloomington, Minnesota — 5/12/1972 and 5/13/1972 — Brewers 4 Twins 3 in 22 innings, suspended after 5:35 and 21 innings — 8628 fans on 5/12, 7871 fans on 5/13 — suspended at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 5/13.

6:17 — Hubert H. Humphrey Metrodome, Minneapolis, Minnesota — 8/31/1993 — Twins 5 Indians 4 in 22 innings —17,968 fans, 1500 fans at end —finished at 1:22 A.M. in the early morning of 9/1.

5:00 — Hubert H. Humphrey Metrodome, Minneapolis, Minnesota — 4/6/2004 — Twins 7 Indians 6 in 15 innings —19,832 fans —finished at 12:05 A.M. in the early morning of 4/7.

New York Yankees (14)

5:50-Yankee Stadium (I), New York, New York-

4/16/1967—Yankees 7 Red Sox 6 in 18 innings— 19,290 fans—finished at 6:23 Р.М.

6:09 — Yankee Stadium (I), New York, New York — 8/29/1967 — Yankees 4 Red Sox 3 in 20 innings in 2nd game, Red Sox 2 Yankees 1 in 2:10 in 1st game — 40,314 fans — finished at 1:57 A.M. in the early morning of 8/30.

5:04 — Yankee Stadium (I), New York, New York — 8/23/1968 — Yankees 2 Tigers 1 in 2:23, then Tigers 3 Yankees 3 in 19 innings — 33,880 fans — finished at 1:07 A.M. in the early morning of 8/24.

5:11—Shea Stadium, New York, New York and Metropolitan Stadium, Bloomington, Minnesota— 7/12/1975 and 7/13/1975 and 7/19/1975—Yankees 8 Twins 7 in 16 innings, rain delay 0:30 bottom 5th, suspended after 13½ innings in New York, rained out 7/13 in New York, finally completed 7/19 in Bloomington—13,573 fans on 7/12 in New York, 6000 fans at suspension, 37,602 fans on 7/19 in Bloomington suspended at 1:06 A.M. in the early morning of 7/13.

5:27 — Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York — 8/25/1976 — Yankees 5 Twins 4 in 19 innings — 24,351 fans — finished at 1:36 A.M. in the early morning of 8/26.

5:00—Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York — 8/2/1978 and 8/3/1978—Red Sox 7 Yankees 5 in 17 innings, rain delay 0:35 top 8th, 2nd rain delay 0:17 bottom 12th, suspended after 14 innings—52,701 fans on 8/2, 20,000 fans at suspension, 53,379 fans on 8/3—suspended at 1:16 A.M. in the early morning of 8/3.

5:02 — Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York — 5/11/1984 — Mariners 4 Yankees 3 in 17 innings — 15,716 fans — finished at 1:08 A.M. in the early morning of 5/12.

5:36 — Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York — 7/11/1987 — White Sox 5 Yankees 2 in 15 innings — 45,528 fans.

6:01—Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York— 9/11/1988—Yankees 5 Tigers 4 in 18 innings—39,008 fans—finished at 7:31 P.M.

5:13 — Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York — 10/4/1995 — Division Series — Yankees 7 Mariners 5 in 15 innings — 57,126 fans —finished at 1:20 A.M. in the early morning of 10/5.

5:50—Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York — 7/20/1998 — Tigers 4 Yankees 3 in 17 innings, then Yankees 4 Tigers 3 in 2:45 — 36,285 fans — finished at 1:17 A.M. in the early morning of 7/21.

5:01—Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York — 9/30/2001—Orioles 1 Yankees 1 in 15 innings, rain delay 0:37 bottom 15th — 55,351 fans — called at 6:43 P.M.

5:45 — Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York -5/17/2002 — Yankees 13 Twins 12 in 14 innings — 39,470 fans — Jason Giambi is only the 24th player to ever hit a walk-off grand slam home run in extra innings with his team trailing by three runs, and the first to ever do so in the pouring rain —finished at 12:50 A.M. in the early morning of 5/18. 6:00—Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York — 8/9/2002—Athletics 3 Yankees 2 in 16 innings— 54,316 fans; 10,000 fans at end—finished at 1:09 A.M. in the early morning of 8/10.

Oakland Athletics (13)

5:04 — Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California — 6/20/1969 — Athletics 3 Twins 2 in 14 innings — 20,691 fans.

5:08 — Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California — 8/24/1969 — Athletics 9 Orioles 0 in 2:31, then Athletics 9 Orioles 8 in 18 innings — 24,970 fans — 2nd game finished at 9:14 P.M.

5:17 — Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California — 9/6/1969 — Twins 8 Athletics 6 in 18 innings — 17,599 fans — finished at 6:22 P.M.

5:05 — Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California — 7/9/1971 — Athletics 1 Angels 0 in 20 innings — 22,938 fans — finished at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 7/10.

5:31—Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California—8/10/1972 and 8/11/1972—Athletics 5 White Sox 3 in 19 innings, suspended after 5:04 and 17 innings—11,818 fans on 8/10, 16,065 fans on 8/11—suspended at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 8/11.

5:00— Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California— 8/15/1981— Athletics 8 Angels 7 in 13 innings— 20,101 fans—finished at 6:35 P.M.

5:31—Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California—4/8/1982—Angels 8 Athletics 6 in 16 innings—17,806 fans; 1000 fans at end finished at 1:09 A.M. in the early morning of 4/9.

5:18 — Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California — 4/11/1982 — American League — Mariners 6 Athletics 3 in 16 innings, rain delay 1:12 bottom 10th, then Athletics 3 Mariners 1 in 2:32 — 19,003 fans —1st game finished at 7:35 P.M.; 2nd game finished at 10:37 P.M.

5:03 — Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California — 4/20/1982 — Angels 4 Twins 3 in 16 innings —12,488 fans — finished at 12:38 A.M. in the early morning of 4/21.

5:17 — Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California — 5/23/1983 — Athletics 5 Brewers 4 in 17 innings — 24,029 fans.

5:19 – Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum,

Oakland, California – 7/3/1983 – Rangers 16 Athletics 4 in 15 innings – 20,697 fans.

5:08 — Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California — 6/12/1992 — Athletics 6 Rangers 5 in 14 innings — 43,200 fans — finished at 12:13 A.M. in the early morning of 6/13.

5:02 — McAfee Coliseum, Oakland, California — 6/17/2006 — NL at AL — Athletics 5 Dodgers 4 in 17 innings — 35,077 fans — finished at 12:07 A.M. in the early morning of 6/18.

Seattle Mariners (4)

5:31— Kingdome, Seattle, Washington — 5/5/1991 — Mariners 5 Yankees 4 in 16 innings — 24,391 fans finished at 10:36 P.M.

5:23 – KingDome, Seattle, Washington – 7/30/1998 – Indians 9 Mariners 8 in 17 innings – 31,081 fans – finished at 12:28 A.M. in the early morning of 7/31.

5:04 — Safeco Field, Seattle, Washington — 7/29/ 2000 — Mariners 6 Blue Jays 5 in 13 innings — 45,264 fans — finished at 6:09 P.M.

5:34 — Safeco Field, Seattle, Washington — 8/1/2000 — Mariners 5 Red Sox 4 in 19 innings — 37,391 fans — finished at 12:39 A.M. in the early morning of 8/2.

Seattle Pilots (2)

5:41— Sicks' Stadium, Seattle, Washington — 7/19/ 1969 and 7/20/1969 — Twins 11 Pilots 7 in 18 innings, suspended after 5:01 and 16 innings, moon landing delay 0:20 bottom 17th —12,067 fans on 7/19, 8287 fans on 7/20— suspended at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 7/20.

5:52 – Sicks' Stadium, Seattle, Washington – 7/27/ 1969 – Red Sox 5 Pilots 3 in 20 innings – 9670 fans.

Tampa Bay Devil Rays/Rays (3)

5:16 — Tropicana Field, St. Petersburg, Florida — 8/4/2000 — Orioles 10 Devil Rays 9 in 15 innings — 15,590 fans — finished at 12:21 A.M. in the early morning of 8/5.

5:15 — Tropicana Field, St. Petersburg, Florida — 4/1/2003 — Red Sox 9 Devil Rays 8 in 16 innings — 11,524 fans — finished at 12:20 A.M. in the early morning of 4/2.

5:27 — Tropicana Field, St. Petersburg, Florida — 10/11/2008 — League Championship Series — Rays 9 Red Sox 8 in 11 innings — 34,904 fans — finished at 1:35 A.M. in the early morning of 10/12.

Texas Rangers (7)

5:12 — Arlington Stadium, Arlington, Texas — 9/17/ 1977 — Rangers 5 Twins 4 in 17 innings —13,163 fans —finished at 12:47 A.M. in the early morning of 9/18.

5:09 — Arlington Stadium, Arlington, Texas — 7/1/ 1979 — Athletics 13 Rangers 12 in 15 innings — 16,819 fans — finished at 12:44 A.M. in the early morning of 7/2. 5:30—Arlington Stadium, Arlington, Texas—9/10/ 1988—Rangers 3 Angels 2 in 17 innings—22,972 fans—finished at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 9/11.

5:08 — Arlington Stadium, Arlington, Texas — 9/ 25/1992 — Mariners 4 Rangers 3 in 16 innings — 19,822 fans — finished at 12:13 A.M. in the early morning of 9/26.

5:08 — Ballpark (later Ameriquest Field) in Arlington, Arlington, Texas — 9/27/1996 — Angels 4 Rangers 3 in 15 innings — 46,764 fans — finished at 12:13 A.M. in the early morning of 9/28.

6:35 — Ballpark (later Ameriquest Field) in Arlington, Arlington, Texas — 8/25/2001— Rangers 8 Red Sox 7 in 18 innings — 43,775 fans, 8000 fans at end finished at 1:41 A.M. in the early morning of 8/26.

5:47 — Ameriquest Field, Arlington, Texas — 6/24/ 2004 — Rangers 9 Mariners 7 in 18 innings — 26,266 fans — finished at 7:22 P.M.

Toronto Blue Jays (4)

5:20—Exhibition Stadium, Toronto, Province of Ontario, Canada—5/17/1988—Rangers 7 Blue Jays 6 in 14 innings—25,170 fans.

5:02 — Exhibition Stadium, Toronto, Province of Ontario, Canada — 7/3/1988 — Athletics 9 Blue Jays 8 in 16 innings — 32,329 fans — finished at 6:37 P.M.

5:12 – SkyDome, Toronto, Province of Ontario, Canada – 8/8/1991 – Tigers 4 Blue Jays 0 in 14 innings – 50,307 fans – finished at 12:17 A.M. in the early morning of 8/9.

5:57 — SkyDome (later Rogers Centre), Toronto, Province of Ontario, Canada — 4/19/2001— Yankees 6 Blue Jays 5 in 17 innings — 24,684 fans, 1500 fans at end —finished at 1:06 A.M. in the early morning of 4/20.

Washington Senators I/II (3)

6:38 - D.C. (later R.F.K.) Stadium, Washington, D.C. - 6/12/1967 - Senators 6 White Sox 5 in 22 innings - 7236 fans, 2000 fans at end -finished at 2:44 A.M. in the early morning of 6/13.

5:14 – D.C. (later Robert F. Kennedy) Stadium, Washington, D.C. – 8/17/1967 – Indians 8 Senators 3 in 16 innings –12,488 fans; 2000 fans at end – finished at 1:21 A.M. in the early morning of 8/18.

5:19 - R.F.K. Stadium, Washington, D.C.-6/4/1971-rain delay 0:17 at start, Athletics 6 Senators 3 in 21 innings - 6159 fans - finished at 1:36 A.M. in the early morning of 6/5.

Note: five home interleague games

NL San Diego Padres at AL Anaheim Angels on 6/13/1997

NL Florida Marlins at AL Kansas City Royals on 6/10/2002

NL Philadelphia Phillies at AL Baltimore Orioles on 6/27/2003

NL Chicago Cubs at AL Anaheim Angels on 6/13/ 2004 NL Los Angeles Dodgers at AL Oakland Athletics on 6/17/2006

National League (105)

Arizona Diamondbacks (3)

5:14—Bank One Ballpark (later Chase Field), Phoenix, Arizona—4/13/1999—Diamondbacks 7 Dodgers 6 in 16 innings—31,197 fans—finished at 12:19 A.M. in the early morning of 4/14.

5:06 – Chase Field, Phoenix, Arizona – 8/25/ 2006 – Diamondbacks 9 Dodgers 7 in 15 innings – 26,276 fans – finished at 12:11 A.M. in the early morning of 8/26.

5:07 — Chase Field, Phoenix, Arizona — 9/16/2006 –Diamondbacks 7 Rockies 6 in 16 innings — 27,822 fans —finished at 12:12 A.M. in the early morning of 9/17.

Atlanta Braves (3)

6:10—Atlanta-Fulton County Stadium, Atlanta, Georgia—7/4/1985—rain delay 1:24 at start, Mets 16 Braves 13 in 19 innings, 2nd rain delay 0:41 bottom 3rd, 4th of July fireworks show began 4:01 A.M., ended 4:12 A.M.—44,947 fans, 8000 fans at end—finished at 3:55 A.M. in the early morning of 7/5.

5:19 — Turner Field, Atlanta, Georgia — 5/7/2002 — Dodgers 6 Braves 5 in 16 innings — 26,914 fans finished at 12:24 A.M. in the early morning of 5/8.

5:35 — Turner Field, Atlanta, Georgia — 7/6/2008 — rain delay 1:50 at start, Braves 7 Astros 6 in 17 innings — 24,169 fans — finished at 9:00 P.M.

Boston Braves/Bees (2)

5:15 — Bee Hive (later Braves Field), Boston, Massachusetts — 6/27/1939 — Dodgers 2 Bees (later Braves) 2 in 23 innings — 2457 fans.

5:19 — Bee Hive (later Braves Field), Boston, Massachusetts — 7/5/1940 — Dodgers 6 Bees (later Braves) 2 in 20 innings.

Chicago Cubs (9)

5:13 — Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois — 5/2/1956 — Giants 6 Cubs 5 in 17 innings — 2389 fans.

5:17 - Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois - 5/10/1979and 7/23/1979 - Cubs 9 Reds 8 in 18 innings, suspended after 3:11 and 9 innings so Cubs could catch 6:05 P.M. flight to Houston, which caused riot among Cubs fans in stands requiring 7 police cars and 3 paddywagons to quell - 9164 fans on 5/10; 36,993 fans on 7/23 - suspended at 4:49 P.M.

6:10—Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois—8/17/1982 and 8/18/1982—Dodgers 2 Cubs 1 in 21 innings, suspended after 5:10 and 17 innings—26,576 fans on 8/17; 27,429 fans on 8/18—suspended at 6:45 P.M. on 8/17, finished at 12:05 P.M. on 8/18.

5:03 — Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois — 8/1/1985 – Cubs 9 Cardinals 8 in 14 innings — 36,164 fans.

6:09 – Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois – 4/20/1986

and 8/11/1986 — Pirates 10 Cubs 8 in 17 innings, suspended after 4:48 and 13 innings —18,508 fans on 4/20; 20,636 fans on 8/11— suspended at 6:18 P.M.

5:14 — Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois — 9/2/1986and 9/3/1986 — Astros 8 Cubs 7 in 18 innings, suspended after $14\frac{1}{2}$ innings — 10,501 fans on 9/2; 7051 fans on 9/3.

5:13 – Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois – 5/23/1987 – Cubs 7 Braves 6 in 16 innings – 33,225 fans – finished at 6:33 P.M.

5:10-Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois – 8/11/1992 – Expos 3 Cubs 2 in 17 innings – 31,528 fans – finished at 6:45 P.M.

5:19 — Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois — 7/14/1997 — Astros 9 Cubs 7 in 15 innings — 27,803 fans finished at 12:24 A.M. in the early morning of 7/15.

Cincinnati Reds (5)

5:06 — Crosley Field, Cincinnati, Ohio — 7/8/1962 — Reds 12 Colt .45's 11 in 13 innings in 2nd game, rain delay 0:59 at start; Reds 12 Colt .45's 8 in 3:01 in 1st game —18,322 fans — 2nd game finished at 10:40 P.M.

5:00—Crosley Field, Cincinnati, Ohio—8/27/1965 —Cardinals 6 Reds 5 in 14 innings—23,595 fans.

5:40 — Crosley Field, Cincinnati, Ohio — 9/1/1967— Giants 1 Reds 0 in 21 innings — 13,745 fans, 200 fans at end — finished at 1:45 A.M. in the early morning of 9/2.

5:00- Riverfront Stadium (later Cinergy Field), Cincinnati, Ohio-7/22/1986- Mets 6 Reds 3 in 14 innings-23,707 fans- finished at 12:35 A.M. in the early morning of 7/23.

5:01—Riverfront Stadium (later Cinergy Field), Cincinnati, Ohio — 8/8/1992 — Reds 4 Giants 3 in 16 innings — 36,100 fans —finished at 12:36 A.M. in the early morning of 8/9.

Colorado Rockies (1)

5:21—Coors Field, Denver, Colorado — 8/15/2006 — Diamondbacks 2 Rockies 1 in 18 innings — 22,076 fans—finished at 12:26 A.M. in the early morning of 8/16.

Florida Marlins (3)

5:06 — Pro Player (later Dolphin) Stadium, Miami, Florida — 6/8/1998 — AL at NL — Marlins 4 Blue Jays 3 in 17 innings —17,414 fans; 300 fans at end —finished at 12:12 A.M. in the early morning of 6/9.

5:44 — Pro Player (later Dolphin) Stadium, Miami, Florida — 8/20/1999 — Astros 6 Marlins 4 in 16 innings —19,845 fans —finished at 12:49 A.M. in the early morning of 8/21.

6:07 — Pro Player Stadium, Miami, Florida — 4/27/2003 — Cardinals 7 Marlins 6 in 20 innings — 10,075 fans — finished at 7:12 P.M.

Houston Colt .45s/Astros (12)

5:13 – Colt Stadium, Houston, Texas – 4/25/1962 – Cardinals 5 Colt .45's (later Astros) 5 in 17 innings —17,265 fans —finished at 1:15 A.M. in the early morning of 4/26.

6:06 — Astrodome, Houston, Texas — 4/15/1968 — Astros 1 Mets 0 in 24 innings — 14,219 fans, 3000 fans at end — finished at 1:37 A.M. in the early morning of 4/16.

5:00— Astrodome, Houston, Texas — 6/18/1979 — Astros 3 Mets 2 in 18 innings — 14,076 fans — finished at 12:35 A.M. in the early morning of 6/19.

5:35 — Astrodome, Houston, Texas — 4/12/1980— Dodgers 6 Astros 5 in 17 innings — 24,609 fans.

5:12 — Astrodome, Houston, Texas — 7/7/1985 — Expos 6 Astros 3 in 19 innings — 14,493 fans — finished at 12:47 A.M. in the early morning of 7/8.

5:29 — Astrodome, Houston, Texas — 7/20/1986 — Astros 9 Mets 8 in 15 innings — 23,900 fans.

7:14 — Astrodome, Houston, Texas — 6/3/1989 — Astros 5 Dodgers 4 in 22 innings — 34,425 fans — finished at 2:50 A.M. in the early morning of 6/4.

5:50—Minute Maid Park, Houston, Texas— 10/9/2005—Division Series—Astros 7 Braves 6 in 18 innings—43,413 fans—finished at 5:55 P.M.

5:41— Minute Maid Park, Houston, Texas—10/25/ 2005—AL at NL World Series—White Sox 7 Astros 5 in 14 innings—42,848 fans—finished at 1:20 A.M. in the early morning of 10/26.

5:36 — Minute Maid Park, Houston, Texas — 8/15/ 2006 — Cubs 8 Astros 6 in 18 innings — 41,531 fans finished at 12:41 A.M. in the early morning of 8/16.

5:09 — Minute Maid Park, Houston, Texas — 7/7/2007 — Mets 5 Astros 3 in 17 innings — 41,596 fans — finished at 11:14 P.M.

5:35 — Turner Field, Atlanta, Georgia — 7/6/2008 — rain delay 1:50 at start, Braves 7 Astros 6 in 17 innings — 24,169 fans — finished at 8:30 P.M.

Los Angeles Dodgers (11)

5:06 – Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California – 5/1/1962 – Dodgers 6 Cubs 5 in 16 innings – 20,069 fans; 200 fans at end – finished at 1:08 A.M. in the early morning of 5/2.

5:13 – Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California – 9/19/1964 – Dodgers 4 Phillies 3 in 16 innings – 27,146 fans – finished at 1:15 A.M. in the early morning of 9/20.

5:42 – Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California – 5/24/1973 – Mets 7 Dodgers 3 in 19 innings – 27,580 fans – finished at 1:45 A.M. in the early morning of 5/25.

5:02 — Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California — 5/14/1978 — Cubs 10 Dodgers 7 in 15 innings — 31,698 fans — finished at 6:37 P.M.

5:20 – Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California – 9/13/1982 – Dodgers 4 Padres 3 in 16 innings – 37,512 fans.

5:02 — Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California — 9/6/1984 — Braves 3 Dodgers 2 in 18 innings — 28,169 fans — finished at 12:37 A.M. in the early morning of 9/7.

5:16 – Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California – 9/6/1987 – Dodgers 3 Mets 2 in 16 innings – 29,600 fans – finished at 6:51 P.M.

5:21—Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California— 6/27/1989—Padres 5 Dodgers 3 in 17 innings— 37,385 fans—finished at 12:56 A.M. in the early morning of 6/28.

5:03 – Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California – 7/27/1990 – Dodgers 5 Braves 4 in 12 innings – 40,907 fans.

5:05 — Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California — 8/3/1996 — Braves 5 Dodgers 3 in 18 innings — 42,575 fans — finished at 6:10 P.M.

5:00- Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California – 4/7/1997- Dodgers 3 Mets 2 in 15 innings – 27,547 fans – finished at 12:05 A.M. in the early morning of 4/8.

Milwaukee Brewers (4)

5:39 — County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin — 5/16/2000 — Brewers 6 Astros 5 in 16 innings — 9239 fans — finished at 12:44 A.M. in the early morning of 5/17.

5:31—County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin— 6/30/2000—Cubs 7 Brewers 4 in 15 innings—30,216 fans—finished at 12:36 A.M. in the early morning of 7/1.

5:20—County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin— 7/8/2000—AL at NL—Tigers 4 Brewers 2 in 15 innings—23,872 fans—finished at 12:25 A.M. in the early morning of 7/9.

5:22 – Miller Park, Milwaukee, Wisconsin – 4/22/2004 – Diamondbacks 11 Brewers 9 in 15 innings –13,879 fans – finished at 6:27 P.M.

Montreal Expos (4)

5:33 — Stade Olympique (Olympic Stadium), Montreal, Province of Quebec — 5/21/1977 — Padres 11 Expos 8 in 21 innings — 16,892 fans, 8000 fans at end — finished at 1:15 A.M. in the early morning of 5/22.

5:22 — Stade Olympique (Olympic Stadium), Montreal, Province of Quebec, Canada — 4/19/1986 — Cardinals 9 Expos 6 in 17 innings — 14,188 fans — finished at 6:57 P.M.

6:14 — Stade Olympique (Olympic Stadium), Montreal, Province of Quebec, Canada — 8/23/1989 — Dodgers 1 Expos 0 in 22 innings — 21,742 fans finished at 1:25 A.M. in the early morning of 8/24.

5:05 — Estadio (Stadium) Hiram Bithorn, San Juan, Puerto Rico — 6/5/2003 — AL at NL — Expos 8 Angels 7 in 14 innings —10,598 fans —finished at 12:10 A.M. in the early morning of 6/6.

New York Mets (10)

7:23 — Shea Stadium, New York, New York — 5/31/1964 — Giants 8 Mets 6 in 23 innings in 2nd game, Giants 5 Mets 3 in 2:29 in 1st game — 57,037 fans, 8000 fans at end — finished at 11:25 P.M.

7:04-Shea Stadium, New York, New York-

9/11/1974 — Cardinals 4 Mets 3 in 25 innings —13,460 fans, 1000 fans at end including Commissioner Bowie Kuhn —finished at 3:13 A.M. in the early morning of 9/12.

5:01—Shea Stadium, New York, New York—8/26/ 1980—Padres 8 Mets 6 in 18 innings—9844 fans finished at 6:36 P.M.

5:21— Shea Stadium, New York, New York — 4/28/ 1985 — Mets 5 Pirates 4 in 18 innings — 36,423 fans.

5:05 — Shea Stadium, New York, New York — 8/10/ 1992 — Pirates 4 Mets 2 in 16 innings — 25,387 fans finished at 12:40 A.M. in the early morning of 8/11.

5:46 — Shea Stadium, New York, New York — 10/17/1999 — Mets 4 Braves 3 in 15 innings — 55,723 fans — finished at 9:55 P.M.

5:22 – Shea Stadium, New York, New York –10/7/ 2000 – Division Series – Mets 3 Giants 2 in 13 innings – 56,270 fans.

5:15 — Shea Stadium, New York, New York — 9/11/ 2004 — Phillies 11 Mets 9 in 13 innings — 21,718 fans.

5:22 — Shea Stadium, New York, New York — 5/23/2006 — Mets 9 Phillies 8 in 16 innings — 28,958 fans — finished at 12:27 A.M. in the early morning of 5/24.

5:09 — Shea Stadium, New York, New York — 7/ 26/2008–Cardinals 10 Mets 8 in 14 innings — 53,799 fans — finished at 12:19 A.M. in the early morning of 7/27.

Philadelphia Phillies (8)

5:11—Shibe Park (later Connie Mack Stadium), Philadelphia, Pennsylvania—6/28/1961—Giants 7 Phillies 7 in 15 innings—11,597 fans—finished at 1:15 A.M. in the early morning of 6/29.

5:16 — Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 5/4/1973 — Phillies 5 Braves 4 in 20 innings — 10,158 fans — finished at 12:51 A.M. in the early morning of 5/5.

5:13 – Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania – 8/21/1980 – Phillies 9 Padres 8 in 17 innings – 36,201 fans – finished at 6:48 P.M.

5:03 – Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania – 4/12/1986 – Phillies 9 Mets 8 in 14 innings – 22,737 fans.

5:08 — Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 9/23/1990 — Phillies 2 Expos 1 in 16 innings — 25,717 fans — finished at 6:43 P.M.

6:10—Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania—7/7/1993—Phillies 7 Dodgers 6 in 20 innings— 41,730 fans—finished at 1:47 A.M. in the early morning of 7/8.

6:15 — Citizens Bank Park, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 7/2/2004 — AL at NL — Orioles 7 Phillies 6 in 16 innings — 44,390 fans — finished at 1:23 A.M. in the early morning of 7/3.

5:17 — Citizens Bank Park, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 8/26/2004 — Phillies 8 Mets 7 in 13 innings — 45,204 fans — finished at 12:22 A.M. in the early morning of 8/27.

Pittsburgh Pirates (5)

5:31— Three Rivers Stadium, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania—7/6/1980— Pirates 5 Cubs 4 in 20 innings— 25,994 fans—finished at 6:36 P.M.

5:11— Three Rivers Stadium, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 7/13/1984 — Pirates 8 Giants 2 in 2:37, then Pirates 4 Giants 3 in 18 innings, fireworks show started at 1:45 A.M.— 22,167 fans, 10,000 fans at end finished at 1:32 A.M. in the early morning of 7/14.

5:42 — Three Rivers Stadium, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 8/6/1989 — Pirates 5 Cubs 4 in 18 innings, rain delay 0:45 bottom 10th — 24,716 fans — finished at 7:32 P.M. — author sat in lower deck behind home plate.

5:06 — Three Rivers Stadium, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 5/6/1992 — Pirates 4 Braves 3 in 16 innings — 18,686 fans — finished at 12:11 A.M. in the early morning of 5/7.

5:49 – PNC Park, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania – 5/27/ 2006 – Pirates 8 Astros 7 in 18 innings – 31,878 fans – finished at 12:54 A.M. in the early morning of 5/28.

St. Louis Cardinals (7)

5:40—Busch Stadium (II), St. Louis, Missouri— 5/14/1988—Braves 7 Cardinals 5 in 19 innings— 47,887 fans—finished at 1:15 A.M. in the early morning of 5/15.

5:06 — Busch Stadium (II), St. Louis, Missouri — 4/25/1992 — Cardinals 2 Expos 1 in 14 innings — 24,849 fans — finished at 12:41 A.M. in the early morning of 4/26.

5:45 – Busch Stadium (II), St. Louis, Missouri – 5/24/1998 – Giants 9 Cardinals 6 in 17 innings – 45,864 fans – finished at 6:50 P.M.

5:10-Busch Stadium (II), St. Louis, Missouri-6/6/1998-Giants 5 Cardinals 4 in 14 innings-47,333 fans.

5:32 – Busch Stadium (II), St. Louis, Missouri – 4/26/2001– Expos 4 Cardinals 3 in 15 innings – 42,373 fans – finished at 6:37 P.M.

5:13 – Busch Stadium (II), St. Louis, Missouri – 8/23/2002 – Phillies 5 Cardinals 4 in 14 innings – 35,724 fans.

5:04 — Busch Stadium (III), St. Louis, Missouri — 6/2/2006 — Cubs 5 Cardinals 4 in 14 innings — 45,799 fans — finished at 12:09 A.M. in the early morning of 6/3.

San Diego Padres (10)

5:25 — San Diego (later Jack Murphy, then Qualcomm) Stadium, San Diego, California — 9/24/1971— Astros 2 Padres 1 in 21 innings, then Padres 5 Astros 4 in 2:14, fog delay 0:14 bottom 9th — 6339 fans, 100 fans at end —finished at 2:29 A.M. in the early morning of 9/25.

6:12 — San Diego (later Jack Murphy, then Qualcomm) Stadium, San Diego, California — 8/25/1979 — Pirates 4 Padres 3 in 19 innings —14,607 fans; 5000 fans at end —finished at 1:20 A.M. in the early morning of 8/26. 6:17 — San Diego (later Jack Murphy, then Qualcomm) Stadium, San Diego, California — 8/15/1980 — Astros 3 Padres 1 in 20 innings —14,177 fans — finished at 1:26 A.M. in the early morning of 8/16.

5:15 — Jack Murphy (later Qualcomm) Stadium, San Diego, California — 8/15/1990 — Expos 5 Padres 3 in 17 innings — 14,271 fans — finished at 12:50 A.M. in the early morning of 8/16.

5:01—Jack Murphy (later Qualcomm) Stadium, San Diego, California—4/24/1992—Reds 7 Padres 6 in 16 innings—22,956 fans—finished at 12:36 A.M. in the early morning of 4/25.

5:03 – Jack Murphy (later Qualcomm) Stadium, San Diego, California – 6/8/1996 – Pirates 9 Padres 8 in 14 innings – 41,378 fans.

5:14 - Jack Murphy (later Qualcomm) Stadium, San Diego, California - 6/22/1996 - Cubs 9 Padres 6 in 16 innings - 51,917 fans - finished at 12:19 A.M. in the early morning of 6/23.

5:16 — Qualcomm Stadium, San Diego, California — 6/19/2001— Padres 4 Giants 3 in 15 innings — 23,033 fans — finished at 12:21 A.M. in the early morning of 6/20.

6:16 – Petco Park, San Diego, California – 4/17/ 2008 – Rockies 2 Padres 1 in 22 innings – 25,984 fans – finished at 1:21 A.M. in the early morning of 4/18.

5:57 — Petco Park, San Diego, California — 5/25/ 2008 — Padres 12 Reds 9 in 18 innings — 36,508 fans — finished at 7:02 P.M.

San Francisco Giants (7)

5:29 — Candlestick Park, San Francisco, California — 5/23/1970 — Padres 17 Giants 16 in 15 innings — 15,536 fans.

5:00—Candlestick (later 3-Com) Park, San Francisco, California—6/26/1982—Padres 7 Giants 6 in 15 innings—8612 fans—finished at 6:35 P.M.

5:10—Candlestick (later 3Com) Park, San Francisco, California—6/21/1983—Reds 6 Giants 5 in 16 innings—8943 fans—finished at 1:25 A.M. in the early morning of 6/22.

5:45 — Candlestick Park, San Francisco, California — 9/28/1986 — Giants 6 Dodgers 5 in 16 innings — 28,603 fans.

5:04 — Candlestick (later 3-Com) Park, San Francisco, California — 9/8/1992 — Giants 6 Padres 5 in 16 innings — 7731 fans — finished at 12:39 A.M. in the early morning of 9/9.

5:16 – Candlestick (later 3-Com) Park, San Francisco, California – 5/2/1995 – Giants 4 Dodgers 3 in 15 innings –16,099 fans – finished at 6:21 P.M.

5:53 — Pac Bell (later Sbc, then at&T) Park, San Francisco, California — 5/29/2001— Diamondbacks 1 Giants 0 in 18 innings — 39,709 fans — finished at 1:10 A.M. in the early morning of 5/30.

Washington Nationals (1)

5:00— Nationals Park, Washington, D.C.— 9/19/ 2008— Padres 11 Nationals 6 in 14 innings— 28,600 fans; 1250 fans at end —finished at 12:36 A.M. in the morning of 9/20.

Note: five home interleague games

AL Toronto Blue Jays at NL Florida Marlins on 6/8/1998

AL Detroit Tigers at NL Milwaukee Brewers on 7/8/2000

AL Anaheim Angels at NL Montreal Expos at San Juan, Puerto Rico on 6/5/2003

AL Baltimore Orioles at NL Philadelphia Phillies on 7/2/2004

AL Chicago White Sox at NL Houston Astros on 10/25/2005

Evolution of Records for Game Time

3:00—New Massachusetts Rules Record — Boston Common, Boston, Massachusetts — 5/14/1856 — Boston Olympics 100 Green Mountain Boys 98.

3:28 — New Massachusetts Rules Record — Boston Common, Boston, Massachusetts — 5/31/1858 — amateur — Holliston Winthrops 100 Boston Olympics 27 in 33 innings — 2500 fans — finished at 5:30 P.M.

6:00— New Massachusetts Rules Record — Foxboro, Massachusetts — 6/19/1858 — amateur — South Walpole Rough and Readys 99 Foxboro 99 in 64 innings —100 Rule called for the team that scored 100 runs first to be declared the winner, there was only one out for each team in an inning, called when the Rough and Ready catcher was knocked unconscious by a bat swung by a Foxboro batter —finished at 7:30 P.M.

3:30 – New College Massachusetts Rules and Aca Records – Young Ladies Institute Town Lot, Pittsfield, Massachusetts – 7/1/1859 – American Collegiate Association – Amherst College Lord Jeffs 73 Williams College Ephs 32 in 26 innings –150 fans – finished at 2:30 P.M. – Massachusetts Rules called for 13 players on each team, and the team that scored 65 runs first to be declared the winner.

14:10— New Massachusetts Rules Record — Stone Park, Ashland, Massachusetts — 7/28/1859 and 7/29/ 1859 — Amateur — Unions of Medway 100 Excelsiors of Upton 78 in 105½ innings, dinner delay 0:20, suspended after 10:10 and 85 innings —100 Rule called for the team that scored 100 runs first to be declared the winner, there was only one out for each team in an inning, Medway scored its 100 th run in the top of the 106 th inning and under rules then in effect Upton did not get a chance to even the score in the bottom of the 106 th, so the game lasted 105½ innings rather than 106 innings — 7000 fans on 7/28 — on 7/28 play began at 9:00 A.M., dinner delay began 12:00 Noon, play began again at 12:20 P.M., suspended at 7:30 P.M., on 7/29 play began again 8:00 A.M., finished 12:00 Noon.

?:?? – New College and ACA Records – Cincinnati, Ohio or New York, New York –11/3/1859 – American Collegiate Association – Xavier University Musketeers vs. Fordham University Rams – first college game with nine players on each team. 3:40— New College Massachusetts Rules and ACA Records — Moseley's Horse Track Park, Westfield, Massachusetts — 7/4/1860— Inter-Collegiate Association — Amherst College Lord Jeffs 70 Williams College Ephs 40 in 31 innings — finished at 1:00 P.M. rules called for team that scored 65 runs first to be declared the winner.

21:50-New Massachusetts Rules Record-Agricultural Grounds, Worcester, Massachusetts - 9/25/ 1860 and 9/26/1860 and 9/27/1860 and 9/28/1860 and 10/1/1860 and 10/4/1860 and 10/5/1860 - Amateur -Excelsiors of Upton 50 Union of Medway 29 in 172 innings, dinner and rain delay 0:20 bottom 13th on 9/25, suspended on 9/25 after 2:40 and 121/2 innings with the score Upton 5 Medway 4, rain delay 2:30 bottom 13th on 9/26, suspended on 9/26 after 5:40 and 34¹/₂ innings with the score Upton 8 Medway 7, lunch delay 0:20 on 9/27, suspended on 9/27 after 12:50 and 831/2 innings with the score Upton 23 Medway 15, suspended on 9/28 after 17:20 and 1361/2 innings with the score Upton 38 Medway 25, scheduled to resume on 10/1 in Springfield, Massachusetts but then decided to resume instead on 10/4 in Worcester, rain delay top 173rd on 10/4, suspended on 10/4 after 21:50 and 172 innings with the score Upton 50 Medway 29, rain delay top 173rd on 10/5, game called after 21:50 and 172 innings -100 Rule called for the team that scored 100 runs first to be declared the winner but after five days of play and two days of postponements and much rain the game was finally declared over with the winner having scored only 50, there was only one out for each team in an inning – 4000 fans on 9/26 – on 9/25 play began 10:00 A.M., dinner/rain delay began 12:40 P.M., suspended 1:00 P.M.; on 9/26 rain delay began 10:30 A.M., play began 1:00 P.M., suspended 4:00 P.M.; on 9/27 play began 9:30 A.M., lunch delay began 12:40 P.M., play began again 1:00 P.M., suspended 5:00 P.M.; on 9/28 play began 11:30 A.M., suspended 4:00 P.M.; on 10/1 play scheduled to resume in Springfield but never did; on 10/4 play began 8:30 A.M., suspended by rain 12:00 Noon; on 10/5 play scheduled to resume but never did because of rain.

?:??—New Ice Record — Ice Pond, Union Springs, New York — one week or two weeks after 12/21/1860— Syracuse vs. Union Springs — game played on ice with each player on ice skates.

4:00— New All-Time and Amateur Records — Morrisania or Greenpoint, New York — 7/30/1862 — Morrisania Unions vs. Greenpoint Eckfords.

4:30—New All-Time and Amateur Records— Hunter Street Park, Atlanta, Georgia—?/??/1866— Gate City Nine 127 Atlantas 29.

5:50— New All-Time and Amateur Records — Mr. Howard's Lands off Railroad Avenue, Elkton, Maryland — 7/17/1866 — Elkton Eclipses 62 St. Georges of Delaware 37 in 9 innings — finished at 6:50 P.M.

4:30—New Semi-Pro Record — St. Louis, Missouri —7/22/1867—Washington Nationals 113 St. Louis Unions 26. ?:??—New Negro World Series Record — Satellite Grounds, Brooklyn, New York —10/3/1867 — Philadelphia Excelsiors 42 Brooklyn Uniques 37 in 7 innings.

8:00— New All-Time, All-Time 5½-Inning, Amateur, and Amateur 5½-Inning Records— Carrollton Commons, Carrollton, Kentucky—7/4/1868— Ghent 179 Carrollton 70 in 5½ innings, dinner delay 5:00 called off at 10:00 P.M.

?:??— New Amateur Record — Buffalo, New York — 6/8/1869 — Niagaras 209 Columbians 10.

?:??—New Professional Record—Capitoline Grounds, Brooklyn, New York or Philadelphia, Pennsylvania—7/5/1869—Brooklyn Atlantics 51 Philadelphia Athletics 48—15,000 fans.

3:20— New Connecticut Record — Litchfield — 8/ 6/1869 — Washington Nine 71 Woodbury Club 15.

2:10—New Professional Record—Capitoline Grounds, Brooklyn, New York—8/24/1870—Mutuals 16 Forest City 15—2000 fans—finished at 5:30 P.M.

2:00— New Major League, National Association, All-Time 9-Inning, Professional 9-Inning, Major League 9-Inning, and National Association 9-Inning Records — Grand Duchess, Fort Wayne, Indiana — 5/4/1871— Fort Wayne Kekiongas 2 Cleveland Forest Citys 0— 200 fans.

2:15 — New Professional, Major League, National Association, All-Time 9-Inning, Professional 9-Inning, Major League 9-Inning, and National Association 9-Inning Records — South End Grounds (I), Boston, Massachusetts — 7/20/1872 — Troy Haymakers 17 Boston Red Stockings 10 — 2500 fans.

12:00— New Spoof Record — Portland, Oregon — ?/??/1873 — Amateur — Bulletin Printers 1 Oregonian Printers 0 in 39 innings, dinner delay 0:30 from 7:00 P.M. to 7:30 P.M.—finished at 1:00 A.M.

?:?? – New European and English Records – Liverpool – 7/30/1874 – National Association exhibition – Philadelphia Athletics 14 Boston Red Stockings 11 in 10 innings.

?:?? – New European and Irish Records – Landsdown Road Cricket Grounds, Dublin – 8/24/1874 – National Association exhibition – Philadelphia Athletics 15 Boston Red Stockings 4.

2:30— New Professional, Major League, National Association, All-Time 9-Inning, Professional 9-Inning, Major League 9-Inning, and National Association 9-Inning Records — Jefferson Street Grounds (I), Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 9/25/1874 — Philadelphia Athletics 14 Hartford Dark Blues 13 — 1000 fans.

2:45 — New Women's Record — Springfield, Illinois — 9/11/1875 — Blondes 42 Brunettes 33.

2:05 — New National League and National League 9-Inning Records — Jefferson Street Grounds, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 4/22/1876 — Red Caps (later Braves) 6 Athletics 5 — 3000 fans.

2:15 - New National League and National League

9-Inning Records — Jefferson Street Grounds, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 4/24/1876 — Athletics 20 Red Caps (later Braves) 3.

2:20— New National League and National League 9-Inning Records — Lincoln Park Grounds, Cincinnati, Ohio — 4/27/1876 — Red Stockings (later Reds) 5 Brown Stockings (later Browns) 2.

3:10—New Professional, Major League, National League, All-Time 10-Inning, Professional 10-Inning, Major League 10-Inning, and National League 10-Inning Records—South End Grounds (I), Boston, Massachusetts—4/29/1876—Hartford Dark Blues 3 Boston Red Caps (later Braves) 2 in 10 innings.

2:50—New All-Time 12-Inning, Professional 12-Inning, Major League 12-Inning, and National League 12-Inning Records—Union Grounds, Brooklyn, New York—5/2/1876—New York Mutuals 3 Philadelphia Athletics 2 in 12 innings.

3:30—New All-Time 0–0, Professional vs. Amateur 0–0, All-Time 24-Inning, and Professional vs. Amateur 24-Inning Records; Equaled College Record—Holmes Field, Cambridge, Massachusetts— 5/11/1877—International Association at American Collegiate Association—Manchester Professionals 0 Harvard College Crimson 0 in 24 innings.

3:00— New Minor League and 17-Inning Records — Pittsburg (later Pittsburgh), Pennsylvania—6/20/ 1877— League Alliance at International Association— Indianapolis 2 Allegheny 2 in 17 innings.

4:00— New Amateur vs. High School, All-Time 21-Inning, and Amateur vs. High School 21-Inning Records— Girard Field, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania— 6/29/1878— Yeager 10 Girard College High School Orphans (later Cavaliers) 7 in 21 innings.

2:45 — New Professional 9-Inning, Major League 9-Inning, and National League 9-Inning Records — Messer Street Grounds, Providence, Rhode Island — 8/10/1878 — Indianapolis Blues 6 Providence Grays 5.

1:45 — New Ice Record — Ice Lake, Prospect Park, Brooklyn, New York —12/31/1878 — Barnie's Side 26 Denham's Side 21 in 8 innings — game played on the ice with each player on ice skates.

2:40—New All-Time 1–0, Amateur 1–0, All-Time 15-Inning, and Amateur 15-Inning Records—Campello Grounds, Brockton, Massachusetts—5/28/1879— Brockton Campellos 1 Maldens 0 in 15 innings.

3:00— New All-Time 10-Inning and Amateur 10-Inning Records — Providence, Rhode Island — 5/28/ 1879 — State Championship — Atlantics 14 Wangskucks 10 in 10 innings.

unknown — New African-American vs. Caucasian-American Record — Cambridge, Massachusetts — 5/28/1879 — Boston Resolutes 30 Cambridge Brown Stockings 3.

2:20— New Amateur 9-Inning, College 9-Inning, and ACA 9-Inning Records — Jasper Oval, New York, New York — 4/14/1881— Princeton College Tigers 9 Manhattan College Jaspers 1—1000 fans. 3:00— New State Legislature Record — Riverside Park, Albany, New York — 6/29/1881— Democrats 58 Stalwarts 26 in 7 innings.

2:45 — New Caribbean, Cuban, and Cuban League Records — 3/5/1882 — Fe 10 Almendares 9 in 10 innings.

2:20—Equaled Amateur 9-Inning, College 9-Inning, and ACA 9-Inning Records—Providence, Rhode Island—6/12/1882—Harvard College Crimson 17 Brown College Bears 13—1000 fans.

2:45 — New All-Time 14-Inning, Professional 14-Inning, Major League 14-Inning, and National League 14-Inning Records — Lake Park (II), Chicago, Illinois — 7/4/1882 — Chicago 9 Troy 5 in 14 innings in 2nd (p.m.) game — 8000 fans.

2:40—Equaled All-Time 1–0 Record; New Professional 1–0, Major League 1–0, National League 1–0, All-Time 18-Inning, Professional 18-Inning, Major League 18-Inning, and National League 18-Inning Records—Messer Street Grounds, Providence, Rhode Island—8/17/1882—Providence Grays 1 Detroit Wolverines 0 in 18 innings.

1:40—New Inter-League, World Series, Inter-League 9-Inning, and Playoffs 9-Inning Records— Bank Street Grounds, Cincinnati, Ohio—10/6/1882— National League at American Association—Cincinnati Reds AA 4 Chicago White Stockings NL 0.

2:30— New Minor League and Minor League 14-Inning Records — Anthracite Park, Pottsville, Pennsylvania — 7/??/1883 — Interstate Association — Camden Merritts 7 Pottsville Anthracite Coal Crackers 6 in 14 innings.

2:12 – New Union Association Record – Dartmouth Grounds, Boston, Massachusetts – 5/5/1884 – Boston Reds 13 Philadelphia Keystones 5.

2:55 — New Amateur 9-Inning, College 9-Inning, and Aca 9-Inning Records — Providence, Rhode Island — 5/17/1884 — Brown College Freshmen Bears 7 Yale College Freshmen Eli 6.

2:50—New Union Association and Union Association 9-Inning Records—Bank Street Grounds, Cincinnati, Ohio—5/17/1884—Cincinnati Outlaw Reds 13 Boston Reds 3—1000 fans.

1:55 — New Inter-League, World Series, Inter-League 9-Inning, and Playoffs 9-Inning Records — Polo Grounds (I) Southeast Diamond, New York, New York — 10/23/1884 — National League at American Association — Providence Grays NL 6 New York Metropolitans AA 0 — 2500 fans.

?:??— New Men vs. Women Record — Wright Street Park, Milwaukee, Wisconsin — 8/??/1885 — Women at Western League — Milwaukee Brewers defeated Blondes and Brunettes — 2800 fans.

2:00—New Inter-League, World Series, Inter-League 9-Inning, and Playoffs 9-Inning Records— West Side Park (I), Chicago, Illinois—10/14/1885— American Association at National League—St. Louis Browns AA 5 Chicago White Stockings NL 5 in 8 innings—2000 fans. 2:05 — New Inter-League, World Series, Inter-League 9-Inning, and Playoffs 9-Inning Records — Sportsman's Park (II), St. Louis, Missouri — 10/17/1885 — National League at American Association — St. Louis Browns AA 3 Chicago White Stockings NL 2 - 3000 fans.

3:00—New Minor League, All-Time 9-Inning, Professional 9-Inning, and Minor League 9-Inning Records—Charleston, South Carolina—5/4/1886— Southern League—Charleston 16 Nashville 14.

2:10 — New Inter-League, World Series, All-Time 8-Inning, Professional 8-Inning, Major League 8-Inning, and Playoffs 8-Inning Records — West Side Park (I), Chicago, Illinois —10/20/1886 — American Association at National League — Chicago White Stockings NL 11 St. Louis Browns AA 4 in 8 innings — 6000 fans.

2:15 — New Inter-League, World Series, Inter-League 10-Inning, and Playoffs 10-Inning Records — Sportsman's Park (II), St. Louis, Missouri —10/23/ 1886 — National League at American Association — St. Louis Browns AA 4 Chicago White Stockings NL 3 in 10 innings — 8000 fans.

?:??— New Native American Record —?/??/1887 — Prison Ballfield, Fort Sill, Oklahoma — Geronimo's Apaches defeated U.S. Army Prison Guards.

2:45 — New All-Time 13-Inning, Professional 13-Inning, Major League 13-Inning, and National League 13-Inning Records — Pittsburg (later Pittsburgh), Pennsylvania — 8/19/1887 — Pittsburg Pirates 6 Chicago White Stockings 5 in 13 innings — 6000 fans.

2:50— New Inter-League, World Series, All-Time 13-Inning, Professional 13-Inning, Major League 13-Inning, Inter-League 13-Inning, and Playoffs 13-Inning Records — Recreation Park, Detroit, Michigan — 10/12/1887 — American Association at National League — Detroit Wolverines NL 2 St. Louis Browns AA 1 in 13 innings — 4509 fans.

2:50 – Equaled Major League 9-Inning Record; New National League 9-Inning Record – West Side Park (I), Chicago, Illinois – 7/28/1888 – Chicago White Stockings 21 Detroit Wolverines 17 – 3500 fans.

?:??—New New Zealand Record—Auckland Domain, Auckland—12/10/1888—Chicago White Stockings vs. US All-Stars.

2:20— New Major League Exhibition 9-Inning Record — Monitor Grounds, Weehawken, New Jersey — 4/14/1889 — Negro League at Professional — New York Mets 12 New York Cuban Giants 7 — 3100 fans.

3:00— Equaled Professional, Minor League, All-Time 9-Inning, Professional 9-Inning, and Minor League 9-Inning Records— Haight Street Grounds, San Francisco, California—4/10/1890— California League— Oakland Colonels 23 Stockton River Pirates 21.

3:35 — New Professional, Minor League, All-Time 22-Inning, Professional 22-Inning, and Minor League

22-Inning Records —11th Street Grounds, Tacoma, Washington — 5/16/1891— Pacific Northwest League — Tacoma Daisies 6 Seattle Blues 5 in 22 innings — 900 fans —finished at 7:05 P.M.

4:10— New All-Time 0–0, Amateur 0–0, All-Time 25-Inning, and Amateur 25-Inning Records — North Dakota State Militia Training Grounds, Devils Lake, North Dakota — 7/18/1891— Red River Valley League — Grand Forks Black Stockings 0 Fargo Red Stockings 0 in 25 innings — finished at 8:10 P.M.

3:20—New Major League, All-Time 20-Inning, Professional 20-Inning, Major League 20-Inning, and National League 20-Inning Records—League Park (I), Cincinnati, Ohio—6/30/1892—Colts (later Cubs) 7 Reds 7 in 20 innings—1300 fans.

?:??— New Men vs. Women Record — Athletic Park, Milwaukee, Wisconsin — 8/??/1893 — Women vs. Men — James Morgan Cream City's 12 Rose Royal's Females 10— 500 fans.

3:00— New Major League 9-Inning and National League 9-Inning Records; Equaled All-Time 9-Inning and Professional 9-Inning Records — Sportsman's Park (III), St. Louis, Missouri — 7/11/1894 — Browns 13 Phillies 12 — 2000 fans.

3:20— New All-Time Spring Training, Professional Spring Training, and Minor League vs. Major League 20-Inning Records; Equaled All-Time 20-Inning and Professional 20-Inning Records — Sportsman's Park (III), St. Louis, Missouri — 4/10/1898 — Western League at National League — St. Louis Browns 12 Milwaukee Brewers 11 in 20 innings.

4:00—Equaled All-Time 21-Inning Record; New Professional 21-Inning and Minor League 21-Inning Records—Lake View Park, Peoria, Illinois—6/26/ 1898—Peoria Blackbirds 8 St. Joseph Saints 4 in 21 innings.

3:15 — New Amateur 9-Inning, College 9-Inning, and ACA 9-Inning Records — Polo Grounds (IV), New York, New York — 7/1/1899 — Harvard University Crimson 13 Yale University Eli 13 — 7000 fans.

3:10— New American League-as-A-Minor League, All-Time 17-Inning, Professional 17-Inning, American League 17-Inning, and Minor League 17-Inning Records — South Side Park (III), Chicago, Illinois — 8/19/1900 — Milwaukee Brewers 3 Chicago White Stockings 2 in 17 innings, then Milwaukee 1 Chicago 0 in 0:55 and 5 innings —10,500 fans.

1:30— New American League-as-A-Major League and American League 9-Inning Records — South Side Park (III), Chicago, Illinois — 4/24/1901— White Sox 8 Indians 2 — 9000 fans.

1:50— New American League-as-A-Major League and American League 9-Inning Records — South Side Park (III), Chicago, Illinois — 4/25/1901— White Sox 7 Indians 3 — 2000 fans.

2:35 — New American League-as-A-Major League and American League 9-Inning Records — Bennett Park, Detroit, Michigan — 4/25/1901— Tigers 14 Brewers 13 — 8000 fans. 2:20 — New American League 10-Inning Record — Columbia Park, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 4/30/ 1901— Americans (later Red Sox) 8 Athletics 6 in 10 innings — 2998 fans.

2:45 — New All-Time 7-Inning, Amateur 7-Inning, College 7-Inning, and Aca 7-Inning Records — Ohio Field, New York, New York — 5/3/1901— Cornell University Big Red 26 New York University Violets 6 in 7 innings.

2:20— New All-Time 11-Inning, Professional 11-Inning, Major League 11-Inning, and National League 11-Inning Records — Baker Bowl, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 6/20/1901— Phillies 6 Cardinals 5 in 11 innings; then Cardinals 4 Phillies 2 in 2:15.

3:05 — New All-Time 1–0, Professional 1–0, Major League 1–0, National League 1–0, All-Time 17-Inning, Professional 17-Inning, Major League 17-Inning, and National League 17-Inning Records — West Side Grounds, Chicago, Illinois — 9/21/1901— Cubs 1 Braves 0 in 17 innings —1800 fans.

3:22 — New Major League, American League, All-Time 17-Inning, Professional 17-Inning, Major League 17-Inning, and American League 17-Inning Records — South Side Park (III), Chicago, Illinois — 5/18/1902 — Browns 2 White Sox 2 in 17 innings —15,819 fans; 10,000 fans at end.

3:35 — Equaled Minor League Record; New All-Time 19-Inning, Professional 19-Inning, and Minor League 19-Inning Records — Oakland, California — 5/21/1902 — Pacific Coast League — Sacramento Senators 4 Oakland Oaks 4 in 19 innings.

3:07 — New Major League 19-Inning and National League 19-Inning Records — West Side Park (II), Chicago, Illinois — 6/22/1902 — Colts (later Cubs) 3 Pirates 2 in 19 innings —10,000 fans — finished at 5:07 P.M.

3:20— New All-Time 16-Inning, Professional 16-Inning, and Minor League 16-Inning Records— Recreation Park, San Francisco, California—7/3/1902 — Pacific Coast League— Oakland Oaks 3 San Francisco Seals 3 in 16 innings.

8:30— New Amateur Record — Pottsville, Pennsylvania — 7/8/1902 — Delanco 38 Pottsville Athletics 36 — finished at 5:30 P.M.

5:00— New Professional, Minor League, All-Time 20-Inning, Professional 20-Inning, and Minor League 20-Inning Records — Old Fair Grounds Park, Springfield, Missouri — 7/19/1902 — Missouri Valley League — Springfield Reds 2 Nevada Lunatics 1 in 20 innings — 3500 fans, 3500 fans at end — finished at 8:30 P.M.

3:30—New Major League, National League, All-Time 18-Inning, Professional 18-Inning, Major League 18-Inning, and National League 18-Inning Records — Sportsman's Park (III), St. Louis, Missouri — 8/17/1902 — Superbas (later Dodgers) 7 Cardinals 7 in 18 innings —11,700 fans.

3:45 — New Major League, American League, All-Time 18-Inning, Professional 18-Inning, Major League 18-Inning, and American League 18-Inning Records — South Side Park (III), Chicago, Illinois — 6/25/1903 — Highlanders (later Yankees) 6 White Sox 6 in 18 innings —finished at 7:15 P.M.

2:20 – New Amateur 13-Inning Record – Woonsocket, Massachusetts – 6/27/1903 – Gyms 4 Blackstone 3 in 13 innings – 2000 fans.

1:40— New All-Time 9-Inning 0–0, Professional 9-Inning 0–0, Major League 9-Inning 0–0, and National League 9-Inning 0–0 Records — South End Grounds (III), Boston, Massachusetts — 6/29/1903 — Chicago Cubs 0 Boston Braves 0—1094 fans — finished at 6:03 P.M.

2:40 – New All-Time 15-Inning, Professional 15-Inning, Major League 15-Inning, and American League 15-Inning Records – Hilltop Park, New York, New York – 7/15/1904 – Highlanders (later Yankees) 3 Naps (later Indians) 2 in 15 innings – 3441 fans.

2:25 — New National League 17-Inning Record — Washington Park (III), Brooklyn, New York — 8/11/ 1904 — Cardinals 4 Superbas (later Dodgers) 3 in 17 innings — 2500 fans.

?:?? — New Olympics, Olympics Demonstration Sport, and USA Olympics Demonstration Sport Records — Francis Field, St. Louis, Missouri — 5/18/ 1904 — Louisiana Purchase Exposition / Olympic Intercollegiate Competition — Indiana University Hoosiers at Washington University in St. Louis Bears — started at 3:00 P.M.

?:??—New Olympics, Olympics Demonstration Sport, and USA Olympics Demonstration Sport Records—Francis Field, St. Louis, Missouri—6/5-??/1904—Louisiana Purchase Exposition /Olympic Amateur Competition—each of 12 teams to play six games each.

?:??— New Korean Record — Ymca Woondong-jang (Stadium), Seoul —?/??/1905 — Rev. Gilbert Gillette's Ymca League.

3:45 – New All-Time 19-Inning, Professional 19-Inning, and Minor League 19-Inning Records – Lynn, Massachusetts – 5/27/1905 – New England League – Nashua 2 Lynn 1 in 19 innings.

3:26 — New All-Time 1–0, Professional 1–0, Minor League 1–0, All-Time 23-Inning, Professional 23-Inning, and Minor League 23-Inning Records — Goodwater Grove (later Oak Park, then Billy Hebert Field), Stockton, California — 7/2/1905 — California State League — Stockton Millers 1 Lodi Crushers 0 in 23 innings.

3:31—New American League Decision, Major League 20-Inning, and American League 20-Inning Records — Huntington Grounds, Boston, Massachusetts — 7/4/1905 — Athletics 4 Americans (later Red Sox) 2 in 20 innings in P.M. game, Athletics 5 Americans 2 in 1:52 in a.m. game — 12,666 fans for P.M. game, 8797 fans for a.m. game.

4:00- New Major League, National League, Major League 20-Inning, and National League 20-Inning Records — Huntingdon Street Grounds (later National League Park (III), then Baker Bowl), Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 8/24/1905 — Cubs 2 Phillies 1 in 20 innings — 5457 fans.

3:00—New High School Record—Stoneham, Massachusetts—5/18/1906—Saugus High School 8 Stoneham High School 5 in 16 innings.

2:50— New All-Time 0–0, Professional 0–0, and Minor League 0–0 Records— Haines Park, Fort Worth, Texas—7/23/1906— Texas League— Cleburne Railroaders 0 Fort Worth Panthers 0 in 19 innings.

4:47 — New Major League, American League, All-Time 24-Inning, Professional 24-Inning, Major League 24-Inning, and American League 24-Inning Records — Huntington Grounds, Boston, Massachusetts — 9/1/1906 — Athletics 4 Americans (later Red Sox) 1 in 24 innings, 2nd game postponed —18,084 fans — finished at 6:47 P.M.

2:45 — New Major League 0–0 and National League 0–0 Records — Exposition Park (III), Pittsburg, Pennsylvania — 9/11/1906 — Reds 0 Pirates 0 in 15 innings.

3:18 — New Amateur 21-Inning Record — Millerville, Massachusetts — 5/25/1907 — Woonsocket Mill League — Taft-Pierce Mill of Woonsocket 4 Alice Mill of Woonsocket 2 in 21 innings.

5:50—New Grammar School, All-Time 28-Inning, Amateur 28-Inning, and Grammar School 28-Inning Records — Dorchester Franklin Field Diamond #5, Boston, Massachusetts — 6/8/1907 — Henry L. Pierce Grammar School of Dorchester 4 Bennet Grammar School of Brighton 3 in 28 innings —finished at 3:50 P.M.

2:44 — New Minor League vs. Major League in-Season Exhibition Record — Rocky Point Park, Warwick, Rhode Island — 6/13/1907 — American League at Eastern League — Providence Grays 3 Boston Red Sox 2 in 16 innings — 3075 fans.

5:00— New All-Time 1–0, Amateur 1–0, All-Time 21-Inning, and Amateur 21-Inning Records — Gilmore Ground, Gilmore City, Iowa — 6/26/1907 — Humboldt Colts 1 Gilmore City Midgets 0 in 21 innings finished at 8:05 P.M.— Humboldt batter Arch Wilder singled in top of 21st, stole second, was safe at third when comebacker to pitcher was thrown to third even though throw beat him by six feet, then stole home and was called safe even though throw beat him by eight feet; umpire Harve Clark was from Humboldt.

5:50—Equaled All-Time and Amateur Records; New All-Time 30-Inning and Amateur 30-Inning Records—Brookside Park, Cleveland, Ohio—7/4/ 1907—Brooklyn Athletic Club 4 East End All Stars 1 in 30 innings.

3:50— New All-Time 36-Inning and Amateur 36-Inning Records — Recreation Park (I), Columbus, Ohio — 7/5/1907 — Heintz Victors 2 Columbus Selects 2 in 36 innings.

4:05 – New All-Time 23-Inning, Professional 23-Inning, and Minor League 23-Inning Records – Green Bay, Wisconsin –7/14/1907 – Wisconsin Association – Green Bay Orphans 2 La Crosse Badgers 1 in 23 innings –1800 fans.

3:07 – New All-Time 16-Inning, Professional 16-Inning, Major League 16-Inning, and American League 16-Inning Records – Sportsman's Park (IV), St. Louis, Missouri – 7/15/1907 – Red Sox 5 Browns 2 in 16 innings.

3:10— New Amateur 22-Inning Record — Cooperstown Diamond, Cooperstown, North Dakota — 7/19/ 1907 — Hannaford 2 Binford 1 in 22 innings.

3:00—New Amateur and Amateur 20-Inning Records—Arcadia, California—3/15/1908—Southern California State League—Santa Anita 4 Arcadia Eagles 3 in 20 innings.

3:45 — New Amateur, High School, Amateur 22-Inning, and High School 22-Inning Records — Greenwood, South Carolina — 4/26/1908 — Anderson Boy's High School Yellowjackets 5 Greenwood High School Eagles 4 in 22 innings — finished at 7:15 P.M.

3:00— New High School 20-Inning Records; Tied New Amateur 20-Inning Record — School Playgrounds, Lawrenceville, New Jersey — 5/29/1908 — Mid-Atlantic Prep League — Lawrenceville School Big Red 3 Mercersburg Academy Blue Storm 2 in 20 innings.

3:50— New Amateur 23-Inning Record — North Corry Fairgrounds, Corry, Pennsylvania — 7/25/1908 — Semi-Pro — Falconer (NY) 3 Corry (PA) 1 in 23 innings — 1000 fans.

4:20—New All-Time 26-Inning, Professional 26-Inning, and Minor League 26-Inning Records— Bloomington Grounds, Bloomington, Illinois— 5/31/1909—Illinois-Indiana-Iowa (Three-I) League —Decatur Commodores 2 Bloomington Bloomers 1 in 26 innings, rain delay 0:15 bottom 5th, 2nd game postponed—1200 fans—finished at 6:35 P.M.

3:35 — New All-Time 1–0, Professional 1–0, Minor League 1–0, and Minor League 24-Inning Records — Freeman's Park, San Francisco, California — 6/8/1909 — Pacific Coast League — San Francisco Seals 1 Oakland Oaks 0 in 24 innings.

4:00— New Amateur 26-Inning Record — Athletic Park, Dixon, Illinois — 6/25/1909 — Semi-Pro League — Dixon Browns 3 Muscatine Independents 2 in 26 innings —150 fans, 1000 fans at end —finished at 7:20 P.M.

3:15 – New Major League 0–0 and American League 0–0 Records – Bennett Park, Detroit, Michigan – 7/16/1909 – Senators 0 Tigers 0 in 18 innings.

3:08 — New Canadian 22-Inning Record — Recreation Park, Vancouver, Province of British Columbia, Canada — 7/31/1909 — Northwestern League — Portland Colts 3 Vancouver Beavers 0 in 22 innings.

3:05 — New Asian and Japanese Records — Keio Kyujyo (Grounds), Tokyo — 9/26/1909 — Keio University 2 University of Wisconsin Badgers 1 in 19 innings — 7000 fans.

4:14 – New All-Time 23-Inning, Professional 23-Inning, and Minor League 23-Inning Records – League Park, San Antonio, Texas – 7/5/1910 – Texas League — Waco Navigators 1 San Antonio Bronchos 1 in 23 innings.

5:00—Equaled All-Time 20-Inning Record; New Amateur 20-Inning Record—Amity or Danville, Ohio—7/10/1910—Amateur—Amity 6 Danville 6 in 20 innings.

3:35 – New Professional 21-Inning and Minor League 21-Inning Records – Springbrook (later Playland) Park, South Bend, Indiana – 7/13/1910 – Central League – South Bend Bronchos 1 Zanesville Potters 0 in 21 innings, 2nd game postponed.

2:45 — New All-Time 11-Inning, Professional 11-Inning, Major League 11-Inning, and National League 11-Inning Records — West Side Grounds, Chicago, Illinois — 4/12/1911— Cardinals 3 Cubs 3 in 11 innings — 18,000 fans.

2:45 – New College vs. High School Record – Mercer Park on Tattnall Square, Macon, Georgia – 4/15/1911 – College at High School – Hall's School 4 Georgia-Alabama Business College 3 in 20 innings.

3:00—Equaled Professional 9-Inning, Major League 9-Inning, and National League 9-Inning Records—Washington Park (III), Brooklyn, New York—5/3/1911—Giants 3 Superbas (later Dodgers) 0—2000 fans.

2:55 – New All-Time 15-Inning, Professional 15-Inning, Major League 15-Inning, and National League 15-Inning Records – South End Grounds (III), Boston, Massachusetts – 5/10/1911– Reds 8 Rustlers (later Braves) 7 in 15 innings.

3:45 — New All-Time 16-Inning, Professional 16-Inning, Major League 16-Inning, and National League 16-Inning Records — Baker Bowl, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 5/13/1911— Phillies 5 Reds 4 in 16 innings.

2:50—New All-Time 11-Inning, Professional 11-Inning, Major League 11-Inning, and National League 11-Inning Records—Robison Field, St. Louis, Missouri—5/27/1911—Cubs 7 Cardinals 6 in 11 innings.

2:15 – New Japanese 9-Inning Record – Bronx Oval, New York, New York – 5/28/1911 – University of Keio 11 Fordham University Rams 6 – 5000 fans.

3:03 — New All-Time 12-Inning, Professional 12-Inning, Major League 12-Inning, and National League 12-Inning Records — West Side Grounds, Chicago, Illinois — 6/13/1911—Cubs 5 Rustlers (later Braves) 4 in 12 innings.

2:18 – New National League 13-Inning Record – West Side Grounds, Chicago, Illinois – 6/17/1911– Cubs 4 Phillies 3 in 13 innings.

4:00— New All-Time 1–0, Amateur 1–0, and Amateur 24-Inning Records — Sanatoga (later Tumbling Run) Park, Pottsville, Pennsylvania — 6/18/1911— Reading Ruth Athletic Club 1 Pottsville Alerts 0 in 24 innings.

3:00—New All-Time 15-Inning, Professional 15-Inning, Major League 15-Inning, and National League 15-Inning Records—Washington Park (III), Brooklyn, New York—6/21/1911—Phillies 2 Superbas 1 in 15 innings. 1:20— New All-Time 6-Inning, Professional 6-Inning, Major League 6-Inning, and National League 6-Inning Records — Washington Park (III), Brooklyn, New York — 6/22/1911— Phillies 2 Dodgers 2 in 6 innings, rain delay 0:30 bottom 6th — 2000 fans.

1:40—New Professional 7-Inning, Major League 7-Inning, and National League 7-Inning Records— Baker Bowl, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania—6/27/1911— Phillies 6 Rustlers (later Braves) 3 in 7 innings, rain delay 0:25 6th.

2:55 — New All-Time 11-Inning, Professional 11-Inning, Major League 11-Inning, and National League 11-Inning Records — Baker Bowl, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 7/1/1911 — Phillies 8 Superbas (later Dodgers) 7 in 11 innings.

3:22 — New All-Time 12-Inning, Professional 12-Inning, Major League 12-Inning, and National League 12-Inning Records — South End Grounds (III), Boston, Massachusetts — 7/6/1911— Reds 12 Rustlers (later Braves) 11 in 12 innings.

2:50— New National League 13-Inning Record; Equaled All-Time 13-Inning, Professional 13-Inning, and Major League 13-Inning Records — South End Grounds (III), Boston, Massachusetts — 7/20/1911— Pirates 6 Rustlers (later Braves) 3 in 13 innings; then Pirates 9 Rustlers 5 in 1:55 and 8 innings.

1:55 – New National League 8-Inning Record – South End Grounds (III), Boston, Massachusetts – 7/20/1911– Pirates 9 Rustlers (later Braves) 5 in 8 innings in 2nd game.

1:30 — New All-Time 6-Inning, Professional 6-Inning, Major League 6-Inning, and National League 6-Inning Records — Polo Grounds (V), New York, New York — 8/14/1911 — Giants 5 Phillies 4 in 5½ innings in 2nd game; Giants 3 Phillies 2 in 3:00 and 12 innings in 1st game — 25,000 fans.

1:35 — New All-Time 6-Inning, Professional 6-Inning, Major League 6-Inning, and National League 6-Inning Records — South End Grounds (III), Boston, Massachusetts — 8/18/1911— Braves 5 Cubs 2 in 6 innings.

2:55 — New All-Time 14-Inning, Professional 14-Inning, Major League 14-Inning, and National League 14-Inning Records — Baker Bowl, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 8/24/1911— Reds 4 Phillies 1 in 14 innings.

3:45 — New Minor League 24-Inning Record — Buffalo Park, Sacramento, California — 9/10/1911 — Pacific Coast League — Portland Beavers 1 Sacramento Sacts 1 in 24 innings.

2:55 — Equaled All-Time 11-Inning, Professional 11-Inning, Major League 11-Inning, and National League 11-Inning Records — Robison Field, St. Louis, Missouri — 9/14/1911 — Cardinals 6 Reds 5 in 11 innings in 1st game.

1:20— New All-Time 5-Inning, Professional 5-Inning, Major League 5-Inning, and National League 5-Inning Records— Robison Field, St. Louis, Missouri—9/14/1911— Reds 5 Cardinals 5 in 5 innings in 2nd game. 1:45 — New Professional 7-Inning, Major League 7-Inning, and National League 7-Inning Records — West Side Grounds, Chicago, Illinois — 9/20/1911— Phillies 4 Cubs 0 in 7 innings in 2nd game; Cubs 1 Phillies 0 in 1:52 in 1st game.

3:05 — New All-Time 15-Inning, Professional 15-Inning, Major League 15-Inning, and National League 15-Inning Records — Palace of the Fans, Cincinnati, Ohio — 9/21/1911 — Reds 4 Superbas (later Dodgers) 3 in 15 innings, then Superbas 4 Reds 0 in 0:50.

3:00—New College and College 20-Inning Records —Norman, Oklahoma—4/25/1912—Oklahoma A&M College (later University) Aggies (later Tigers, then Cowboys) 1 University of Oklahoma Sooners 1 in 20 innings.

2:15 — New Congressional Game Record — American League Park (II), Washington, DC — 6/22/1912 — Democrats 21 Republicans 20 in 5 innings.

?:?? – New Olympics, Olympics Demonstration Sport, and Swedish Olympics Demonstration Sport Records – Ostermalm Athletic Grounds, Stockholm – 7/15/1912 – USA Track 13 Sweden Vesturas 3 in 5½ innings.

?:??—New Olympics, Olympics Demonstration Sport and Swedish Olympics Demonstration Sport Records—Ostermalm Athletic Grounds, Stockholm—7/16/1912—USA East 6 USA West 3.

3:52 — New All-Time 19-Inning, Professional 19-Inning, Major League 19-Inning, and National League 19-Inning Records — South End Grounds (III), Boston, Massachusetts — 7/31/1912 — Pirates 7 Braves 6 in 19 innings.

3:10—New Military and U.S. Navy Records— Wellington Park, Newport, Rhode Island—8/4/1912 —Newport Trojans 5 Uss Nebraska 4 in 19 innings.

4:02 – New All-Time 19-Inning, Professional 19-Inning, Major League 19-Inning, and American League 19-Inning Records – Shibe Park, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania – 9/27/1912 – Senators 5 Athletics 4 in 19 innings, 2nd game cancelled.

2:50— New Major League Spring Training and Inter-League Spring Training Records — Baker Bowl, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 4/5/1913 — American League at National League — Athletics 2 Phillies 2 in 18 innings.

5:00— New All-Time 24-Inning and Amateur 24-Inning Records — Baltimore, Maryland — 7/26/1913 — White Lilies 4 Locust Point Junior All-Stars 2 in 24 innings — finished at 3:00 P.M.

5:00— New Planned Marathon Record — Indiana, Pennsylvania — 6/11/1913 — Amateur — Rossiter Lower Section 112 Rossiter Upper Section 98 — finished at 3:30 P.M.

1:00—New Hong Kong 5-Inning Record—Happy Valley Recreation Grounds, Hong Kong—12/14/1913 —New York Giants 7 Chicago White Sox 4 in 5 innings.

2:32 — New Federal League and Federal League 9-Inning Records — Terrapin Park (later Oriole Park (II)) — 4/13/1914 — Baltimore Terrapins 3 Buffalo Blues 2.

2:43 — New Federal League and Federal League 13-Inning Records — Gordon and Koppel Field, Kansas City, Missouri — 4/17/1914 — Kansas City Packers 4 Chicago Whales 3 in 13 innings.

3:15 — New Federal League, All-Time 15-Inning, Professional 15-Inning, Major League 15-Inning, and Federal League 15-Inning Records — Gordon and Koppel Field, Kansas City, Missouri — 4/19/1914 — Kansas City Packers 7 Chicago Whales 6 in 15 innings.

4:20—New Amateur, High School, Amateur 20-Inning, and High School 20-Inning Records— Bertram Field, Salem, Massachusetts—6/10/1914— Salem High School Witches 6 Haverhill High School Hillies 5 in 20 innings—finished at 7:40 P.M.

3:42 — New Professional 21-Inning, Major League 21-Inning, and National League 21-Inning Records — Forbes Field, Pittsburg (later Pittsburgh), Pennsylvania — 7/17/1914 — Giants 3 Pirates 1 in 21 innings game ends with Giant outfielder Red Murray being knocked unconscious by lightning as he caught a fly ball for the final out.

4:48 — New All-Time 22-Inning, Professional 22-Inning, and Minor League 22-Inning Records — Riverside Park, Sioux City, Iowa — 7/19/1914 — Western League — Wichita Wolves 3 Sioux City Indians 2 in 22 innings.

4:01— New Federal League, All-Time 18-Inning, Professional 18-Inning, Major League 18-Inning, and Federal League 18-Inning Records — Washington Park (IV), Brooklyn, New York — 7/28/1914 — Brooklyn Tip-Tops 4 St. Louis Slou-Feds 3 in 18 innings.

3:06 — New Inter-League, World Series, Inter-League 12-Inning, and Playoffs 12-Inning Records — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts —10/12/1914 — AL at NL — Boston Braves NL 5 Philadelphia Athletics AL 4 in 12 innings — 35,520 fans.

3:50—New Professional 0–0 and Minor League 0–0 Records—Athletic Park, Burlington, Iowa—6/ 27/1915—Keokuk Indians 0 Burlington Pathfinders 0 in 22 innings—finished at 6:10 P.M.

3:05 — New All-Time 14-Inning, Professional 14-Inning, and Minor League 14-Inning Records — League Park, Raleigh, North Carolina — 7/5/1915 — North Carolina State League — Raleigh Capitals 3 Durham Bulls 2 in 14 innings in a.m. game — 700 fans.

3:11— New All-Time 20½-Inning, Professional 20½-Inning, and Minor League 20½-Inning Records — Hanes Field, Durham, North Carolina — 7/5/1915 — North Carolina State League — Raleigh Capitals 2 Durham Bulls 2 in 20½ innings in P.M. game, called due to darkness with Durham batting in bottom of 21st —1500 fans.

2:07 — New Minor League 10-Inning Record — New Recreation Park, San Francisco, California — 6/4/1916 — Oakland Oaks 4 San Francisco Seals 3 in 10 innings in P.M. game; Oakland 1 San Francisco 0 in 18 innings in a.m. game at Oakland Baseball (later Oaks) Park, Emeryville.

3:55 – New Minor League 18-Inning Record – Martinsburg, West Virginia –?/??/1917 – Blue Ridge League – Martinsburg Mountaineers 11 Hanover Raiders 10 in 18 innings.

3:38 — New Minor League 21-Inning Record — Antelope Park, Lincoln, Nebraska — 8/12/1917 — Western League — Lincoln Links 2 Joplin Miners 1 in 21 innings.

4:15 – New National League, Major League 22-Inning, and National League 22-Inning Records – Ebbets Field, Brooklyn, New York – 8/22/1917 – Robins (later Dodgers) 6 Pirates 5 in 22 innings, Pirates 0 Robins 0 in 2 innings, called off—1st game finished at 5:45 P.M.

3:10—Equaled U.S. Military and U.S. Navy Records—Goat (later Yerba Buena) Island, San Francisco, California—9/15/1917—Amateur—Oakland Naval Training Station Sailors 1 Oakland Vampires 0 in 20 innings.

2:30 – New High School Record – Groton, Connecticut – 4/20/1918 – Worcester South High School 9 Groton School 7 in 15 innings.

2:47 — Equaled Major League 1–0 Record; New American League 1–0 Record — National Park (IV) (later Clark Griffith Park, then Griffith Stadium), Washington, DC — 5/15/1918 — Senators 1 White Sox 0 in 18 innings.

4:30 — New National League, All-Time 19-Inning, Professional 19-Inning, Major League 19-Inning, and National League 19-Inning Records — Baker Bowl, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 6/13/1918 — Cardinals 8 Phillies 8 in 19 innings — finished at 8:00 P.M.

4:00— New Professional 21-Inning, Major League 21-Inning, and National League 21-Inning Records — Weeghman Park (later Cubs' Park, then Wrigley Field), Chicago, Illinois — 7/17/1918 — Cubs 2 Phillies 1 in 21 innings — finished at 7:00 P.M.

4:00—Equaled Major League 20-Inning and National League 20-Inning Records—National League Park (III) (later Baker Bowl), Philadelphia, Pennsylvania—4/30/1919—National League—Robins (later Dodgers) 9 Phillies 9 in 20 innings.

3:50— New Major League 26-Inning and National League 26-Inning Records — Braves (later Nickerson) Field, Boston, Massachusetts — 5/1/1920 — National League — Robins (later Dodgers) 1 Braves 1 in 26 innings — 4000 fans — finished at 6:50 P.M.

3:05 — New Major League 14-Inning and American League 14-Inning Records; Equaled All-Time 14-Inning and Professional 14-Inning Records — Polo Grounds (V), New York, New York — 5/8/1921 — Athletics 5 Yankees 4 in 14 innings — 30,000 fans.

1:35 — Equaled All-Time 6-Inning, Professional 6-Inning, Major League 6-Inning, and National League 6-Inning Records — Polo Grounds (V), New York, New York — 5/13/1921 — Giants 5 Cardinals 1, rain delay 0:25 bottom 6th. 4:05 — New Canadian 20-Inning Record — Hanlan's Point (III), Toronto, Province of Ontario — 6/2/ 1921— International League — Buffalo Bisons 3 Toronto Maple Leafs 2 in 20 innings.

2:46 — New National League 17-Inning Record — Forbes Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 6/16/1921— Pirates 6 Dodgers 5 in 17 innings.

2:54 — New All-Time 13-Inning, Professional 13-Inning, Major League 13-Inning, and National League 13-Inning Records — Cubs Park (later Wrigley Field), Chicago, Illinois — 6/16/1921—Cubs 5 Giants 4 in 13 innings — 6000 fans.

3:00— New All-Time 8-Inning, Professional 8-Inning, Major League 8-Inning, and National League 8-Inning Records— Baker Bowl, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania—7/11/1921— Phillies 9 Cardinals 8.

3:15 — New All-Time 14-Inning, Professional 14-Inning, Major League 14-Inning, and National League 14-Inning Records — Polo Grounds (V), New York, New York — 7/4/1922 — Robins (later Dodgers) 5 Giants 5 in 14 innings.

4:19 — New National League, All-Time 18-Inning, Professional 18-Inning, Major League 18-Inning, and National League 18-Inning Records — Forbes Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 7/7/1922 — Giants 9 Pirates 8 in 18 innings — 4000 fans.

3:35 — New All-Time 15-Inning, Professional 15-Inning, Major League 15-Inning, and National League 15-Inning Records — Baker Bowl, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 8/2/1922 — Cubs 7 Phillies 7 in 15 innings.

3:38 — New Negro National League, Professional 1–0, Major League 1–0, Negro National League 1–0, and Negro National League 20-Inning Records — American Giants Park, Chicago, Illinois — 8/16/1922 — Chicago American Giants 1 Atlantic City Bacharach Giants 0 in 20 innings.

3:01— New Professional 9-Inning, Major League 9-Inning, and National League 9-Inning Records — Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois — 8/25/1922 — Cubs 26 Phillies 23 — 7100 fans.

5:15 — New Professional, Minor League, All-Time 19-Inning, Professional 19-Inning, and Minor League 19-Inning Records — Seattle, Washington — 6/6/1924 — Pacific Coast League — Seattle Indians 5 Vernon Tigers 4 in 19 innings.

4:05 — New College, College 1–0, NCAA, NCAA 1–0, College 20-Inning, and NCAA 20-Inning Records; Equaled All-Time 1–0 and Amateur 1–0 Records — Andrews Field, Providence, Rhode Island — 6/7/1924 — Providence College Friars 1 Brown University Bears 0 in 20 innings.

3:45 — New All-Time 17-Inning, Professional 17-Inning, Major League 17-Inning, and National League 17-Inning Records — Redland Field, Cincinnati, Ohio — 8/18/1924 — Reds 8 Giants 7 in 17 innings — 4500 fans.

2:05 — New Junior World Series, Minor League 13-Inning, and Playoffs 13-Inning Records — Oriole Park (III), Baltimore, Maryland —10/4/1924 — American Association at International League — Baltimore Orioles (IL) 6 St. Paul Saints (AA) 6 in 13 innings – 4919 fans.

3:07 — New Interleague, World Series, Interleague 12-Inning, and Playoffs 12-Inning Records — Griffith Stadium, Washington, D.C.—10/4/1924 — NL at AL — New York Giants NL 4 Washington Senators AL 3 in 12 innings — 35,760 fans.

3:00- New All-Time World Series U.S. Presidentin-Attendance, Professional World Series U.S. President-in-Attendance, and Major League World Series U.S. President-in-Attendance Records – Griffith Stadium, Washington, DC –10/10/1924 – NL at AL – Senators 4 Giants 3 in 12 innings in deciding seventh game – 31,667 fans including future 31st President Herbert Hoover, then Secretary of Commerce.

2:46 — New American League 9-Inning Record — Sportsman's Park (V), St. Louis, Missouri — 4/14/1925 — Indians 21 Browns 14 — 21,000 fans.

1:35 — Equaled All-Time 6-Inning, Professional 6-Inning, and Major League 6-Inning Records; New American League 6-Inning Record — Yankee Stadium (I), New York, New York — 4/15/1925 — rain delay 0:55 at start, Senators 5 Yankees 2, 2nd rain delay top 3rd, 3rd rain delay top 5th, 4th rain delay top 7th, four rain delays totaled 1:35 — finished at 6:40 P.M.

1:25 — New All-Time 5-Inning, Professional 5-Inning, Major League 5-Inning, and American League 5-Inning Records — Shibe Park (later Connie Mack Stadium), Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 4/17/1925 — Red Sox 4 Athletics 3 in 5 innings.

4:00—New All-Time 15-Inning, Professional 15-Inning, Major League 15-Inning, and American League 15-Inning Records — Navin Field (later Briggs Stadium, then Tiger Stadium), Detroit, Michigan — 4/20/1925 — Indians 5 Tigers 4 in 15 innings.

2:21—New American League 11-Inning Record — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 4/22/1925 — Athletics 6 Red Sox 5 in 11 innings.

2:49 — New American League 10-Inning Record — League Park (IV), Cleveland, Ohio — 5/1/1925 — Indians 8 Tigers 7 in 10 innings.

2:55 – New American League 11-Inning Record; Equaled All-Time 11-Inning, Professional 11-Inning, and Major League 11-Inning Records – League Park (IV), Cleveland, Ohio – 5/2/1925 – Indians 8 Tigers 7 in 11 innings.

2:25 — New Professional 7-Inning, Major League 7-Inning, and American League 7-Inning Records — League Park (IV), Cleveland, Ohio — 5/3/1925 — Tigers 6 Indians 6 in 7 innings, rain delay 0:20 top 8th.

3:11— New Amateur 17-Inning and College 17-Inning Records — South Field, New York, New York — 5/7/1925 — University of Virginia Cavaliers 5 Colombia University Lions 4 in 17 innings.

3:08 – New American League 12-Inning Record – Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois – 5/10/1925 – White Sox 10 Senators 8 in 12 innings – 40,100 fans.

2:31— New American League 8-Inning Record — Navin Field (later Briggs Stadium, then Tiger Stadium), Detroit, Michigan — 5/16/1925 — Yankees 12 Tigers 3, rain delay 0:10 bottom 9th.

3:08 — Equaled American League 12-Inning Record — Yankee Stadium (I), New York, New York — 5/31/ 1925 — Red Sox 9 Yankees 6 in 12 innings — 20,000 fans.

3:00— New American League 9-Inning Record — Shibe Park, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 6/15/1925 — Athletics 17 Indians 15.

3:14 — New All-Time 13-Inning, Professional 13-Inning, Major League 13-Inning, and American League 13-Inning Records — Sportsman's Park (V), St. Louis, Missouri — 7/5/1925 — Browns 6 Tigers 5 in 13 innings — 9000 fans.

2:32 – New American League 8-Inning Record – Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois – 5/16/1925 – White Sox 12 Tigers 5.

3:00 — Equaled American League 9-Inning Record — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 4/13/1926 — Yankees 12 Red Sox 11—12,000 fans.

3:01— New All-Time 11-Inning, Professional 11-Inning, Major League 11-Inning, and National League 11-Inning Records — Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois — 4/30/1926 — Cubs 10 Cardinals 9 in 11 innings.

3:07 — New All-Time 11-Inning, Professional 11-Inning, Major League 11-Inning, and American League 11-Inning Records — Yankee Stadium (I), New York, New York — 5/7/1926 — Yankees 7 Tigers 6 in 11 innings.

10:00 – New All-Time Shortened, Amateur Shortened, Central American Shortened, Mexican Shortened, All-Time 5½-Inning, and Amateur 5½-Inning Records – Piedras Negras, State of Coahuila, Mexico – 7/18/1926 – San Luisito 29 Piedras Negras (Black Rock) Internationals 19 in 5½ innings – finished at 7:00 P.M.

5:00— New All-Time 25-Inning and Amateur 25-Inning Records— Pacific Junction, Iowa— 8/14/1926 — Folsom 7 Pleasant Valley 4 in 25 innings.

1:40—New All-Time 5-Inning, Professional 5-Inning, Major League 5-Inning, and American League 5-Inning Records — Yankee Stadium (I), New York, New York — 8/17/1926 — White Sox 5 Yankees 3 in 5 innings, rain delay 0:35 top 6th.

3:35 — New All-Time 13-Inning, Professional 13-Inning, Major League 13-Inning, and National League 13-Inning Records — Crosley Field, Cincinnati, Ohio — 8/21/1926 — Dodgers 2 Reds 2 in 13 innings.

3:00— New College vs. High School 21-Inning Record — Prepatera Diamond, Fullerton, California — 4/9/1927 — National Collegiate Athletic Association at California High School League — Pomona College Sagehens 4 Fullerton High School Indians 3 in 21 innings.

4:00— New US Military and US Army Records — Gowdy Field, Fort Benning, Georgia — 7/30/1927 — Fort Benning Army League — 24th Infantry Blues 3 Ist Battalion 29th Infantry 2 in 20 innings.

4:20-New All-Time 18-Inning, Professional 18-

Inning, Major League 18-Inning, and American League 18-Inning Records — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 9/5/1927 — Red Sox 12 Yankees 11 in 18 innings, then Yankees 5 Red Sox 0 in 0:55 and 5 innings — 36,000 fans.

9:00— New All-Time Exhibition, Professional Exhibition, Minor League Exhibition, and Planned Marathon Records— Soldiers Home Park, Danville, Illinois— 3/?/1929— Illinois-Indiana-Iowa (3-I) League/Danville Veterans/St. Louis Cardinals Baseball School— Team A vs. Team B—finished at 6:00 P.M.— lasted nine hours so that Branch Rickey could see every last one of the 316 prospects at the Cardinals Baseball School play at least a few innings.

3:31— New American League 21-Inning Record — Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois — 5/24/1929 — American League — Tigers 6 White Sox 5 in 21 innings.

3:25 – New All-Time 17-Inning, Professional 17-Inning, Major League 17-Inning, and American League 17-Inning Records – League Park (IV), Cleveland, Ohio – 8/14/1929 – Athletics 5 Indians 3 in 17 innings – 36,000 fans.

5:00— New All-Time 29-Inning and Amateur 29-Inning Records — South Side Playgrounds, San Francisco, California —10/12/1929 — Regulars 9 Yannigans 8 in 29 innings — finished at 6:00 P.M.

3:00 — Equaled American League 9-Inning Record — Shibe Park, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 5/22/ 1930 — Yankees 20 Athletics 13 in 2nd game; Yankees 10 Athletics 1 in 1:50 in 1st game — 23,000 fans.

3:30 – New College 21-Inning and NCAA 21-Inning Records – Miami Athletic Field, Oxford, Ohio – 5/30/1930 – National Collegiate Athletic Association – Miami University Big Reds (later Redskins, then RedHawks) 2 University of Cincinnati Bearcats 1 in 21 innings.

4:10— New Major League 20-Inning and National League 20-Inning Records — Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois — 8/28/1930 — National League — Cardinals 8 Cubs 7 in 20 innings.

4:45 — New All-Time 16-Inning, Professional 16-Inning, and Minor League 16-Inning Records — Wrigley Field, Los Angeles, California — 5/15/1931— Pacific Coast League — Los Angeles Angels 10 Portland Ducks 9 in 16 innings — 4500 fans, 3100 fans at end finished at 1:20 A.M. in the early morning of 5/16.

4:00— New Playoffs and Amateur Playoffs Records — Daisytown, Pennsylvania — 9/20/1931— Monongahela Valley League playoffs — California Eagles 3 Daisytown Moose 1 in 20½ innings — after a long fly ball hit by a California Eagle batter down the left field foul line was ruled by the umpire to be a 2-run homer in the top of the 21st, the Daisytown Moose team vehemently protested the call and then walked off the field — the umpire awarded the game (and the league championship with it) to California 3–1.

3:45 — Equaled Major League 16-Inning Record; New American League 16-Inning Record — Shibe Park (later Connie Mack Stadium), Philadelphia, Pennsylvania -6/1/1932 – Athletics 8 Yankees 7 in 16 innings, then Athletics 7 Yankees 6 in 1:50 – 31,000 fans – 2nd game finished at 7:30 P.M.

3:30 – New Congressional Game Record – Griffith Stadium, Washington, DC – 6/4/1932 – Republicans 19 Democrats 5 in 9 innings –13,500 fans.

3:25 — New Minor League 18-Inning Record — La Grave Field (I), Fort Worth, Texas — 7/4/1932 — Texas League — Longview Cannibals 7 Fort Worth Cats 6 in 18 innings, then Longview 2 Fort Worth 1 in 1:35 and 7 innings — 2000 fans — finished at 1:10 A.M. in the early morning of 7/5.

4:03 — New All-Time 1–0, Professional 1–0, Major League 1–0, and National League 1–0 Records — Polo Grounds (V), New York, New York — 7/2/1933 — Giants 1 Cardinals 0 in 18 innings, then Giants 1 Cardinals 0 in 1:25 — 50,000 fans — 2nd game finished at 8:00 P.M.

2:07 — New Major League All-Star Record — Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois — 7/6/1933 — NL at AL — American League All-Stars 4 National League All-Stars 2 — 49,200 fans — finished at 3:22 P.M.

5:00—New All-Time 23-Inning and Amateur 23-Inning Records—Kansas City, Missouri—7/30/1933 —Kansas City 48th Street Merchants 16 St. Joseph Bottling Works 10 in 23 innings.

4:55 – New Asian, Japanese, High School, All-Time 1–0, Amateur 1–0, Japanese 1–0, High School 1–0, High School 25-Inning, and Japanese 25-Inning Records – Koshien Kyujyo (Stadium), Osaka, Japan – 8/19/1933 – Chukyo-shogyo 1 Akashi-chugaku 0 in 25 innings.

6:30— New All-Time, Amateur, All-Time 23-Inning, and Amateur 23-Inning Records — St. Louis or Tenbrook, Missouri — 5/??/1934 — St. Louis Red Sox vs. Tenbrook Athletic Club in 23 innings.

4:26 — New All-Time 18-Inning, Professional 18-Inning, Major League 18-Inning, and National League 18-Inning Records — Crosley Field, Cincinnati, Ohio — 7/1/1934 — Cardinals 8 Reds 6 in 18 innings, then Cardinals 2 Reds 2 in 1:13 and 5 innings — 12,000 fans.

 $2{:}44$ — New Major League All-Star Record — Polo Grounds (V), New York, New York — 7/10/1934 — AL at NL — American League All-Stars 9 National League All-Stars 7 — 48,363 fans.

?:??— New Japanese-American Record — Fresno, California — 8/5/1934 — Fresno Athletic Club 22 unknown opponent 22.

4:05 – New Caribbean, Cuban, and Cuban 18-Inning Records – Parque (Park) Almendares, Almendares –?????1934 – Winter League – Havana 4 Almendares 4 in 18 innings.

3:50— New Minor League 21-Inning Record— Tech Field, San Antonio, Texas—6/2/1935— Texas League— San Antonio Missions 4 Dallas Steers 3 in 21 innings in 1st game, 2nd game called after 2 innings.

2:36 — New Amateur 13-Inning and College 13-Inning Records — New Haven, Connecticut — 6/18/1935 Harvard University Crimson 5 Yale University Eli
 4 in 13 innings – 6000 fans.

6:58 — New All-Time, Amateur, Asian, Japanese, Junior High School, Japanese Junior High School, All-Time 35-Inning, Amateur 35-Inning, and Japanese 35-Inning Records — Matsue Kyujyo (Stadium), Matsue, Japan — 7/20/1935 and 7/21/1935 — Japan Junior High School League — Oota Chu 2 Matsue Chu (later Matsue Kita Koto-gakko) 1 in 35 innings, suspended after 4:48 and 23 innings.

3:58 — New Major League 16-Inning and American League 16-Inning Records — League Park (IV), Cleveland, Ohio — 4/26/1936 — Indians 8 Browns 7 in 16 innings.

3:41—New All-Time 17-Inning, Professional 17-Inning, Major League 17-Inning, and National League 17-Inning Records—Sportsman's Park (V), St. Louis, Missouri—4/29/1936—Cardinals 3 Giants 2 in 17 innings—4500 fans.

?:? — New Olympics, Olympic Demonstration Sport, and German Olympics Demonstration Sport Records — Olympic Stadium, Berlin — 8/12/1936 — World Champions 6 U.S. Olympics 5 in 7 innings — 1000 fans at start; 125,000 fans at end, mostly there to see the track and field events.

2:49 — New Inter-League 9-Inning and World Series 9-Inning Records — Polo Grounds (V), New York, New York —10/2/1936 — Yankees 18 Giants 4 — 43,543 fans.

3:25 — New Dixie Series Record — Rickwood Field, Birmingham, Alabama — 10/5/1936 — Texas League at Southern Association — Tulsa Oilers (Tl) 6 Birmingham Barons (Sa) 4 in 14 innings — 3000 fans.

4:55 – New Hawaiian and 25-Inning Records – Hoolulu Park (later Wong Stadium), Hilo – 2/20/ 1938 – Hawaii Japanese League – Papaikou Paps 5 Shinmachi Shins 5 in 25 innings.

4:19 — New All-Time 17-Inning, Professional 17-Inning, Major League 17-Inning, and National League 17-Inning Records — Forbes Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 5/30/1938 — Pirates 5 Cardinals 4 in 17 innings, then Cardinals 9 Pirates 6 in 2:15 — 20,352 fans.

6:30— New Professional, South American, Venezuelan, All-Time 1–0, Professional 1–0, Venezuelan 1–0, All-Time 20-Inning, Professional 20-Inning, and Venezuelan 20-Inning Records — Estadio (Stadium) de Maracaibo, Maracaibo — 6/5/1938 — Venezuelan League — Pastora 1 Gavilanes 0 in 20 innings.

3:40—New Minor League 18-Inning Record— MacArthur Stadium, Syracuse, New York—6/24/1938 —International League—Syracuse Chiefs 3 Newark Bears 2 in 18 innings.

4:45 — New Canadian and Canadian 20-Inning Records — Municipal Stadium, Trois-Rivieres, Province of Quebec, Canada — 7/5/1938 — Provincial League — Three Rivers 4 Quebec City Athletiques 3 in 20 innings — finished at 2:15 A.M. in the early morning of 7/6. 5:28 – New Minor League and Minor League 20-Inning Records – Hook Ball Park, Paducah, Kentucky – 7/8/1938 – Kentucky-Illinois-Tennessee (Kitty) League – Fulton Eagles 14 Paducah Indians 9 in 20 innings, rhubarb delay top 15th when Fulton Manager Ray Clonts unsuccessfully requested umpires to allow 15-minute delay so players could eat some steaks for strength, vote delay top 19th when Paducah Manager Pete Mondino successfully asked umpires to have remaining fans vote whether the game should continue or not – fans voted unanimously that game should continue –finished at 1:45 A.M. in the early morning of 7/9.

4:35 — New All-Time 0–0, Professional 0–0, and Minor League 0–0 Records — Memorial Park, Moultrie, Georgia — 7/27/1938 — Georgia-Florida League — Thomasville Orioles 0 Moultrie Packers 0 in 16 innings — 750 fans — finished at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 7/28.

5:00—Equaled Amateur 21-Inning Record — Brownsville, Pennsylvania — 8/23/1938 — Melrose 3 West Bend 2 in 21 innings.

3:08 — New 11-Inning Record — Sportsman's Park (V) (later Busch Stadium (I)), St. Louis, Missouri — 8/25/1938 — Giants 8 Cardinals 7 in 11 innings — 4511 fans.

4:00— New Puerto Rican, All-Time 9-Inning, Professional 9-Inning, and Puerto Rican 9-Inning Records — Estadio (Stadium) Sixto Escobar, San Juan —1/8/ 1939—Winter League—Grises Humacao 2 San Juan Senadores (Senators) 1.

3:25 – New American League 14-Inning Record – Briggs (later Tiger) Stadium, Detroit, Michigan – 4/20/1939 – Tigers 8 White Sox 7 in 14 innings – 7300 fans.

3:22 — New All-Time 11-Inning, Professional 11-Inning, Major League 11-Inning, and National League 11-Inning Records — Shibe Park (later Connie Mack Stadium), Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 4/21/1939 — Dodgers 2 Phillies 2 in 11 innings — 2500 fans.

2:53 — New American League 10-Inning Record — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 4/24/1939 — Senators 10 Red Sox 9 in 10 innings.

3:02 — New Major League 9-Inning and National League 9-Inning Records — Ebbets Field, Brooklyn, New York — 5/1/1939 — Dodgers 13 Phillies 12 — 8062 fans.

3:16 — New All-Time 10-Inning, Professional 10-Inning, Major League 10-Inning, and American League 10-Inning Records — League Park (IV), Cleveland, Ohio — 5/4/1939 — Yankees 10 Indians 6 in 10 innings —12,000 fans.

3:05 — New Major League 9-Inning and National League 9-Inning Records — Polo Grounds (V), New York, New York — 5/9/1939 — Cubs 11 Giants 7 — 6026 fans.

4:41— New All-Time 19-Inning, Professional 19-Inning, Major League 19-Inning, and National League 19-Inning Records — Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois — 5/17/1939 — Dodgers 9 Cubs 9 in 19 innings — 4580 fans; 2500 fans at end.

3:38 — New All-Time 14-Inning, Professional 14-Inning, Major League 14-Inning, and National League 14-Inning Records — Ebbets Field, Brooklyn, New York — 6/1/1939 — Dodgers 3 Cubs 2 in 14 innings — 32,574 fans.

1:58 — New All-Time 6-Inning, Professional 6-Inning, Major League 6-Inning, and National League 6-Inning Records — Bee Hive (later Braves Field), Boston, Massachusetts — 6/11/1939 — Cubs 5 Bees 3 in 6 innings in 2nd game; Bees 4 Cubs 3 in 2:25 in 1st game — 23,856 fans.

5:15 — New All-Time 21-Inning and Amateur 21-Inning Records — Clintonville, Wisconsin — 6/15/1939 — Northern State League — Clintonville Four Wheel Drive Truckers 1 Two Rivers Polar Bears 0 in 21 innings —finished at 1:45 A.M. in the early morning of 6/16.

3:35 — New Major League 9-Inning and National League 9-Inning Records — Forbes Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 6/22/1939 — Pirates 8 Giants 7, rain delay 1:10 2nd — 7428 fans.

5:15 — New Major League, National League, Professional 23-Inning, Major League 23-Inning, and National League 23-Inning Records — Bee Hive (later Braves Field), Boston, Massachusetts — 6/27/1939 — Dodgers 2 Bees (later Braves) 2 in 23 innings — 2457 fans.

2:09 — New All-Time 6-Inning, Professional 6-Inning, Major League 6-Inning, and National League 6-Inning Records — Forbes Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 8/20/1939 — Pirates 5 Cubs 0 in 6 innings in 2nd game, rain delay; Cubs 9 Pirates 5 in 2:20 in 1st game — 13,076 fans.

2:01— New National League 7-Inning Record — Crosley Field, Cincinnati, Ohio — 9/15/1939 — Giants 4 Reds 3 in 7 innings in 2nd game; Reds 10 Giants 6 in 2:23 in 1st game — 9878 fans.

4:30—New Planned Marathon Record — Town Field, Richford, Vermont — 9/17/1939 — Amateur — Richford Rabbits North 40 Richford Rabbits South 33 in 44 innings.

1:21— New National League 5-Inning Record — Polo Grounds (V), New York, New York — 9/24/1939 — Bees 5 Giants 3 in 5 innings in 2nd game; Giants 5 Bees 4 in 2:05 in 1st game —13.970 fans.

5:19 — New Major League, National League, Major League 20-Inning, and National League 20-Inning Records — Bee Hive (later Braves Field), Boston, Massachusetts — 7/5/1940 — Dodgers 6 Bees (later Braves) 2 in 20 innings.

3:58 — New Minor League 21-Inning Record — Texas League (later Holland) Park, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma — 9/5/1940 — Texas League — Dallas Rebels 2 Oklahoma City Indians 1 in 21 innings — finished at 12:13 A.M. in the early morning of 9/6.

4:00— New Major League Spring Training and Inter-League Spring Training Records — Tucson, Arizona — 4/1/1941 — NL at AL — Cubs 7 Athletics 7 in 17 innings.

3:20 – New American League 12-Inning Record – Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts – 4/16/1941– Red Sox 8 Senators 7 in 12 innings – 5200 fans.

3:20— New All-Time 8-Inning, Professional 8-Inning, Major League 8-Inning, and American League 8-Inning Records — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 5/17/1941— Indians 12 Red Sox 9, rain delay 0:45 — 20,000 fans.

3:24 — New All-Time 12-Inning, Professional 12-Inning, Major League 12-Inning, and National League 12-Inning Records — Shibe Park (later Connie Mack Stadium), Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 5/28/1941— Dodgers 6 Phillies 5 in 12 innings — 10,666 fans.

3:11—New National League 10-Inning Record — Ebbets Field, Brooklyn, New York — 7/1/1941— Phillies 6 Dodgers 4 in 10 innings — 3339 fans.

2:43 — New Japanese Professional and Japanese 20-Inning Records — 7/13/1941 — Japanese Federation — Taiyo 1 Hanshin 0 in 20 innings.

4:05 – New American League 17-Inning Record – 7/20/1941–Briggs (later Tiger) Stadium, Detroit, Michigan–Yankees 12 Tigers 6 in 17 innings– 28,099 fans.

5:29 — New Taiwan High School and Taiwan Records — Yuanshan Qiuchang (Stadium), Taipei, Taiwan — 7/28/1941 — Jiayi Agriculture and Forestry Institute (Jianong) 2 Taipei Industrial School 1 in 25 innings.

3:31— New All-Time 12-Inning, Professional 12-Inning, Major League 12-Inning, and National League 12-Inning Records — Sportsman's Park (V) (later Busch Stadium (I)), St. Louis, Missouri — 7/29/1941— rain delay 0:45 at start, Dodgers 7 Cardinals 7 in 12 innings — 16,033 fans — finished at 8:20 P.M.

3:11—New American League 9-Inning Record — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts -7/31/1941— Browns 16 Red Sox 11, then Red Sox 4 Browns 1 in 1:35 and 7½ innings -25,000 fans.

3:18 — New American League 13-Inning Record — Yankee Stadium (I), New York, New York — 7/31/1941 — Yankees 6 Tigers 3 in 13 innings, then Yankees 5 Tigers 0 in 1:35 and 7½ innings — 14,795 fans.

3:40— New All-Time 13-Inning, Professional 13-Inning, Major League 13-Inning, and American League 13-Inning Records— League Park (II), Cleveland, Ohio—8/7/1941— Tigers 4 Indians 3 in 13 innings—5000 fans.

3:30— New American League 14-Inning Record — Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois — 8/12/1941— Browns 6 White Sox 6 in 14 innings —1794 fans.

3:12 — New American League 11-Inning Record — Shibe Park (later Connie Mack Stadium), Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 8/14/1941 — Red Sox 11 Athletics 8 in 11 innings; then Athletics 10 Red Sox 8 in 2:13 — 22,493 fans.

4:17 — New All-Time 15-Inning, Professional 15-Inning, Major League 15-Inning, and National League 15-Inning Records – Ebbets Field, Brooklyn, New York – 9/1/1941– Dodgers 6 Bees (later Braves) 5 in 15 innings; then Bees 2 Dodgers 2 in 1:25 and 6 innings – 27,516 fans.

2:37 — New All-Time 1–0 9-Inning, Professional 1–0 9-Inning, Major League 1–0 9-Inning, and National League 1–0 9-Inning Records — Sportsman's Park (V) (later Busch Stadium (I)), St. Louis, Missouri — 9/13/1941— Dodgers 1 Cardinals 0–32,691 fans.

2:54 — New Inter-League 9-Inning and World Series 9-Inning Records — Ebbets Field, Brooklyn, New York —10/5/1941— Yankees 7 Dodgers 4—33,813 fans.

3:47 — New Japanese Professional, Professional 28-Inning, and Japanese 28-Inning Records — Korakuen Kyujyo (Stadium), Tokyo — 5/24/1942 — Japanese Federation — Taiyo 4 Nagoya 4 in 28 innings.

2:07 — New Northern Ireland and US Army-in-Northern Ireland Records — Soccer Stadium, Belfast — 7/4/1942 — US Army Northern Ireland Force (Usanif) — Mid-West Giants/34th Infantry Division 3 Kentucky Wildcats/1st Armored Division 2 — 7600 fans.

3:51— New Minor League 18-Inning Record — Tech Field, San Antonio, Texas — 7/7/1942 — Texas League — Roosevelt Night pre-game program delay 1:24 at start, Shreveport Captains 4 San Antonio Missions 2 in 18 innings — 3569 fans —finished at 1:00 A.M. in the early morning of 7/8.

3:42 — New All-Time 13-Inning, Professional 13-Inning, Major League 13-Inning, and American League 13-Inning Records — Municipal (later Cleveland) Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio — 7/25/1942 — Senators 10 Indians 6 in 13 innings — 2500 fans.

3:55 – New All-Time 10-Inning, Professional 10-Inning, Major League 10-Inning, and American League 10-Inning Records – Sportsman's Park (V) (later Busch Stadium (I)), St. Louis, Missouri – 7/25/1942 – Red Sox 9 Browns 8 in 10 innings – 2435 fans.

2:09 — New National League 7-Inning Record — Ebbets Field, Brooklyn, New York — 7/29/1942 — Dodgers 4 Cardinals 3 in 6½ innings, called due to dim-out — 26,682 fans.

4:58 — New All-Time 18-Inning, Professional 18-Inning, Major League 18-Inning, and National League 18-Inning Records — Crosley Field, Cincinnati, Ohio -8/9/1942 — Cubs 10 Reds 8 in 18 innings, rain delay 1:00 top 13th, Reds announced that both games were being postponed in top 13th but fans refused to go home so Reds agreed to continue the game when the rain ended, then Reds 2 Cubs 1 in 1:01 and $4\frac{1}{2}$ innings —15,326 fans.

4:21—New Minor League 19-Inning Record— Newark, New Jersey—8/10/1942—Newark Bears 3 Jersey Giants 2 in 19 innings—3000 fans.

1:36 – New National League 5-Inning Record – Ebbets Field, Brooklyn, New York – 8/23/1942 – Dodgers 7 Giants 5 in 5 innings in 2nd game; Dodgers 6 Giants 4 in 3:04 in 1st game – 34,022 fans.

4:32 — New Minor League 19-Inning Record — Lucky Beaver Stadium, Portland, Oregon — 5/9/1943 — Los Angeles Angels 7 Portland Beavers 6 in 19 innings, then Los Angeles 2 Portland 1 in 1:38 and 7 innings.

3:12 — Equaled American League 11-Inning Record — Municipal (later Cleveland) Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio — 6/12/1943 — Browns 7 Indians 6 in 11 innings — 8000 fans.

3:38 — New All-Time 14-Inning, Professional 14-Inning, Major League 14-Inning, and American League 14-Inning Records — League Park (IV), Cleveland, Ohio — 8/18/1943 — Indians 7 Yankees 5 in 14 innings in P.M. game, Indians 9 Yankees 8 in 2:16 in a.m. game — 5673 fans for a.m. game; 7500 fans for P.M. game.

1:36 — New American League 6-Inning Record — Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan — 9/4/1943 — Browns 12 Tigers 5 in 6 innings — 3250 fans.

4:25 – New Caribbean, Cuban, and Cuban 20-Inning Records—Estadio (Stadium) Gran Cerveceria Tropical, Havana—12/2/1943—Winter League— Cienfuegos Elefantes (Elephants) 6 Marianao Frailes Grises (Gray Friars) 5 in 20 innings.

3:45 — Equaled Major League 16-Inning and American League 16-Inning Records — Shibe Park (later Connie Mack Stadium), Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 5/11/1944 — White Sox 4 Athletics 2 in 16 innings — 4690 fans.

3:13 – New National League 10-Inning Record – Ebbets Field, Brooklyn, New York – 6/4/1944 – Cubs 8 Dodgers 8 in 10 innings in 2nd game; Cubs 6 Dodgers 5 in 2:20 in 1st game – 24,293 fans.

4:02 — New All-Time 14-Inning, Professional 14-Inning, Major League 14-Inning, and National League 14-Inning Records — Forbes Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 6/23/1944 — Cardinals 5 Pirates 5 in 14 innings — 12,086 fans.

2:05 — New Three-Sided Record — Polo Grounds (V), New York, New York — 6/26/1944 — AL and NL at NL — Dodgers 5 Yankees 1 Giants 0 — 50,000 fans.

2:25 – New Junior World Series Record – Parkway Field, Louisville, Kentucky –10/8/1944 – International League at American Association – Baltimore Orioles (IL) 7 Louisville Colonels (AA) 4 in 14 innings –12,065 fans.

3:35 — New All-Time 12-Inning, Professional 12-Inning, Major League 12-Inning, and National League 12-Inning Records — Braves Field, Boston, Massachusetts — 6/16/1945 — Braves 6 Dodgers 5 in 12 innings — 4859 fans.

4:48 — New American League, Professional 24-Inning, Major League 24-Inning, and American League 24-Inning Records — Shibe Park (later Connie Mack Stadium), Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 7/21/1945 — Tigers 1 Athletics 1 in 24 innings — 4526 fans.

3:20-New American League 11-Inning Record-

Sportsman's Park (V) (later Busch Stadium (I)), St. Louis, Missouri – 8/10/1945 – Browns 14 Athletics 13 in 11 innings in 2nd game; Browns 2 Athletics 1 in 1:24 in 1st game – 3365 fans.

3:28 — New Inter-League, World Series, Inter-League 12-Inning, and Playoffs 12-Inning Records — Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois — 10/8/1945 — AL at NL — Cubs 8 Tigers 7 in 12 innings — 41,708 fans.

3:45 — New All-Time Spring Training, Professional Spring Training, Major League Spring Training, and National League Spring Training Records — Miami, Florida — 3/3/1946 — Braves 4 Giants 4 in 17 innings — 4668 fans.

4:18 — New All-Time 9-Inning, Professional 9-Inning, and Minor League 9-Inning Records — Brewton, Oklahoma — 4/27/1946 — Oklahoma State League — Brewton 30 Ozark 29.

4:00—Equaled American League 15-Inning Record — Shibe Park (later Connie Mack Stadium), Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 5/10/1946 — Senators 5 Athletics 5 in 15 innings — 29,477 fans —finished at 12:30 A.M. in the early morning of 5/11.

4:35 — New Professional 21-Inning and Minor League 21-Inning Records — Artillery Park, Wilkes-Barre, Pennsylvania — 5/10/1946 — Eastern League — Binghamton Triplets 5 Wilkes-Barre Barons 4 in 21 innings —finished at 12:20 A.M. in the early morning of 5/11.

?:??—New Japanese 9-Inning Record — Nishinomiya Kyujo (Stadium), Nishinomiya — 6/2/1946 — Japanese League — Tokyo Senators 15 Chubu Nihon 14.

3:30 – New All-Time 11-Inning, Professional 11-Inning, Major League 11-Inning, and National League 11-Inning Records – Forbes Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania – 6/4/1946 – Dodgers 7 Pirates 6 in 11 innings in 2nd game; Pirates 4 Dodgers 3 in 2:22 in 1st game –11,521 fans.

3:29 — New American League 12-Inning Record — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 6/5/1946 — Browns 8 Red Sox 8 in 12 innings, rain delay 1:01 top 9th —10,672 fans.

3:28 — New American League 9-Inning Record — Griffith Stadium, Washington, D.C. — 6/8/1946 — Senators 7 White Sox 6 — 10,672 fans.

3:35 — Equaled National League 13-Inning Record — Ebbets Field, Brooklyn, New York — 6/24/1946 — Dodgers 6 Reds 5 in 13 innings —18,422 fans.

3:28 — Equaled American League 9-Inning Record — Yankee Stadium (I), New York, New York — 8/11/ 1946 — Red Sox 7 Yankees 5, then Yankees 9 Red Sox in 1:43 and 6½ innings — 72,320 fans.

3:20—New Women's and Women's 19-Inning Records—Peoria, Illinois—8/20/1946—All-American Girls' League—Racine Belles 1 Peoria Redwings 1 in 19 innings—called at 11:30 P.M.

4:40— New All-Time 0–0, Professional 0–0, Major League 0–0, and National League 0–0 Records— Ebbets Field, Brooklyn, New York—9/11/1946— Reds 0 Dodgers 0 in 19 innings—15,078 fans. 3:14 — New Women's Playoffs, Women's 17-Inning, and Playoffs 17-Inning Records — Horlick Athletic Field, Racine, Wisconsin — 9/??/1946 — All-American Girls' League — Racine Belles 3 South Bend Blue Sox 2 in 17 innings.

2:00— New American League 6-Inning Record — Yankee Stadium (I), New York, New York — 9/22/ 1946 — Yankees 7 Athletics 4 in 5½ innings in 2nd game; Yankees 4 Athletics 3 in 2:12 in 1st game — 24,051 fans.

3:37 — New Major League 9-Inning and National League 9-Inning Records — Ebbets Field, Brooklyn, New York — 9/25/1946 — Phillies 11 Dodgers 9 — 22,965 fans — finished at 6:07 P.M.

3:46 — New Major League 16-Inning and National League 16-Inning Records — Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois — 9/25/1946 — Pirates 6 Cubs 5 in 16 innings — 3339 fans.

2:48 — New All-Time Tiebreaker, Professional Tiebreaker, Major League Tiebreaker, National League Tiebreaker, All-Time Tiebreaker 9-Inning, Professional Tiebreaker 9-Inning, Major League Tiebreaker 9-Inning, and National League Tiebreaker 9-Inning Records — Sportsman's Park (V) (later Busch Stadium (I)), St. Louis, Missouri — 10/1/1946 — Cardinals 4 Dodgers 2 — 26,012 fans.

4:13 — New Central American Full-Length, Mexican Full-Length, and Mexican 20-Inning Records — Empalme or Santa Ana, State of Sonora — 5/18/1947 — Liga (League) de Sonora — Empalme Rieleros (Railroadmen) 2 Santa Ana Santos (Saints) 1 in 20 innings — 854 fans.

3:30— New American League 1–0 Record — Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois — 6/8/1947 — Senators 1 White Sox 0 in 18 innings, then White Sox 8 Senators 2 in 2:00—29,629 fans.

4:20 – New All-Time 15-Inning, Professional 15-Inning, Major League 15-Inning, and American League 15-Inning Records – Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts – 6/18/1947 – Red Sox 6 Browns 5 in 15 innings – 34,462 fans.

3:44 – New All-Time 13-Inning, Professional 13-Inning, Major League 13-Inning, and National League 13-Inning Records – Forbes Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania – 6/22/1947 – Phillies 4 Pirates 3 in 13 innings; then Phillies 8 Pirates 6 in 4 innings, called – 25,000 innings.

3:33 — New All-Time 11-Inning, Professional 11-Inning, Major League 11-Inning, and National League 11-Inning Records — Sportsman's Park (V) (later Busch Stadium (I)), St. Louis, Missouri — 6/27/1947 — Cardinals 6 Reds 5 in 11 innings —14,709 fans.

3:06 — New National League 8-Inning Record — Ebbets Field, Brooklyn, New York — 7/4/1947 — Dodgers 16 Giants 7 in a.m. game, called due to 1 P.M. curfew — 20,565 fans; Dodgers 4 Giants 3 in 2:14 in P.M. game — 32,332 fans.

2:23 – New American League 1–0 9-Inning Record – Municipal (later Cleveland) Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio — 7/14/1947 — Red Sox 1 Indians 0 — 20,789 fans.

3:34 — New National League 10-Inning Record — Sportsman's Park (V) (later Busch Stadium (I)), St. Louis, Missouri — 7/30/1947 — Dodgers 11 Cardinals 10 in 10 innings — 31,709 fans.

4:30— New Women's and Women's 22-Inning Records — Horlick Athletic Field, Racine, Wisconsin — 7/31/1947 — All-American Girls' League — South Bend Blue Sox 4 Racine Belles 3 in 22 innings.

3:55 — New American League 14-Inning Record — Yankee Stadium (I), New York, New York — 8/2/ 1947 — Yankees 3 Indians 2 in 14 innings in 1st game; then Yankees 3 Indians 0 in 1:34 and 7½ innings — 62,537 fans.

4:00— New Major League 16-Inning and National League 16-Inning Records — Braves Field, Boston, Massachusetts — 8/28/1947 — Braves 8 Reds 7 in 16 innings, then Braves 3 Reds 2 in 1:23 and 5½ innings — 13,784 fans.

4:50—New Playoffs and Canadian 20-Inning Records—Thetford Mines, Province of Quebec, Canada—9/7/1947—Quebec Eastern Townships Independent Intermediate League—Drummondville Forestiers Catholiques (Catholic Foresters) 3 St-Maurice de Thetford Mines Mineurs (Miners) 3 in 20 innings—finished at 7:20 P.M.

3:05 — New Inter-League, World Series 9-Inning, Inter-League 9-Inning, and Playoffs 9-Inning Records — Ebbets Field, Brooklyn, New York —10/2/1947 — AL at NL — Dodgers 9 Yankees 8 — 33,098 fans.

3:19 — New Inter-League, World Series 9-Inning, Inter-League 9-Inning, and Playoffs 9-Inning Records — Yankee Stadium (I), New York, New York —10/5/ 1947 — NL at AL — Dodgers 8 Yankees 6 — 74,065 fans.

4:02 — New All-Time Spring Training, Professional Spring Training, Major League Spring Training, and American League Spring Training Records — Al Lang Field, St. Petersburg, Florida — 3/29/1948 — Grapefruit League — Red Sox 2 Yankees 2 in 17 innings.

4:20—New All-Time 14-Inning, Professional 14-Inning, Major League 14-Inning, and American League 14-Inning Records—Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois—4/26/1948—Indians 12 White Sox 11 in 14 innings—5965 fans.

5:15 — Equaled All-Time 21-Inning Record; New Professional 21-Inning and Minor League 21-Inning Records — Municipal Park, Sanford, Florida — 5/27/ 1948 — Florida State League — Sanford Giants 8 Palatka Azaleas 7 in 21 innings — finished at 1:15 A.M. in the early morning of 5/28.

3:27 — New American League 11-Inning Record — Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois — 6/15/1948 — White Sox 9 Yankees 8 in 11 innings — 25,442 fans.

3:44 — New All-Time 11-Inning, Professional 11-Inning, Major League 11-Inning, and American League 11-Inning Records — Shibe Park (later Connie Mack Stadium), Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 7/18/1948 — White Sox 12 Athletics 11 in 11 innings; then Athletics 6 White Sox 1 in 1:10 and 5 innings –17,296 fans.

3:32 — New American League 12-Inning Record — Shibe Park (later Connie Mack Stadium), Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 7/22/1948 — Athletics 8 Browns 7 in 12 innings — 7807 fans.

6:13 — New Central American Full-Length, Nicaraguan, All-Time 27-Inning, Amateur 27-Inning, and Nicaraguan 27-Inning Records — Managua — late 1940's — Second Division Amateur League — Manta Nica defeated Schumann in 27 innings.

2:24 – New American League Tiebreaker and American League Tiebreaker 9-Inning Records – Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts –10/4/1948 – Indians 8 Red Sox 3 – 33,957 fans.

4:24 — New All-Time Spring Training, Professional Spring Training, Major League Spring Training, American League Spring Training, All-Time 17-Inning, Professional 17-Inning, Major League 17-Inning, and American League 17-Inning Records — Al Lang Field (I), St. Petersburg, Florida — 3/17/1949 — Tigers 2 Yankees 2 in 17 innings — 4516 fans.

3:59 — New All-Time 13-Inning, Professional 13-Inning, Major League 13-Inning, and American League 13-Inning Records — Briggs (later Tiger) Stadium, Detroit, Michigan — 5/3/1949 — Red Sox 14 Tigers 14 in 13 innings —18,502 fans.

2:05 – New American League 6-Inning Record – Shibe Park (later Connie Mack Stadium), Philadelphia, Pennsylvania – 5/15/1949 – Athletics 7 Yankees 6 in 6 innings in 2nd game; Athletics 8 Yankees 7 in 2:52 in 11 innings in 1st game – 35,004 fans.

3:28 — Equaled American League 9-Inning Record — Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois — 6/3/1949 — Yankees 9 White Sox 7 — 31,560 fans.

4:16 — New Major League 16-Inning and National League 16-Inning Records — Shibe Park (later Connie Mack Stadium), Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 7/8/ 1949 — Braves 4 Phillies 3 in 16 innings, stretcher delay 0:15 top 13th —11,238 fans — finished at 1:01 A.M. in the early morning of 7/9.

6:30 — Equaled Professional Record; New Central American Full-Length, Nicaraguan, All-Time 26-Inning, Amateur 26-Inning, and Nicaraguan 26-Inning Records — Estadio (Stadium) Nacional (later Estadio Dennis Martinez), Managua — 7/10/1949 — First Division Amateur League — Navarro Cubs 4 Escuelas Internacionales 3 in 26 innings — finished at 4:30 P.M.

3:04 — New Major League All-Star Record — Ebbets Field, Brooklyn, New York, New York — 7/12/ 1949 — AL at NL — American League All-Stars 11 National League All-Stars 7 — 32,577 fans.

4:04 — New All-Time 13-Inning, Professional 13-Inning, Major League 13-Inning, and National League 13-Inning Records — Crosley Field, Cincinnati, Ohio — 7/27/1949 — Braves 9 Reds 7 in 13 innings -3401 fans.

3:45 – New All-Time 12-Inning, Professional 12-Inning, Major League 12-Inning, and American League 12-Inning Records – Municipal (later Cleveland) Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio — 8/11/1949 — Indians 6 White Sox 5 in 12 innings —17,500 fans.

4:25 — New Minor League 23-Inning Record — Municipal Stadium, Hagerstown, Maryland — 9/3/ 1949 — Connecticut/ Delaware/ Maryland/ New Jersey/ Pennsylvania (Inter-State) League — York White Roses 3 Hagerstown Owls 2 in 23 innings, 2nd game postponed — 560 fans.

4:20—Equaled All-Time 15-Inning, Professional 15-Inning, and Major League 15-Inning Records; New National League 15-Inning Record — Sportsman's Park (V) (later Busch Stadium (I)), St. Louis, Missouri — 9/3/1949—Reds 9 Cardinals 9—20,786 fans finished at 12:50 A.M. in the early morning of 9/4.

2:14 — New National League 7-Inning Record — Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois — 9/4/1949 — Cubs 11 Pirates 7 in 6½ innings, called due to rain —18,082 fans.

3:28 — Equaled American League 9-Inning Record — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 4/18/1950— Yankees 15 Red Sox 10—31,822 fans.

3:39 — New Major League 9-Inning and National League 9-Inning Records — Polo Grounds (V), New York, New York — 4/28/1950 — Dodgers 5 Giants 3 — 39,090 fans.

3:28 — Equaled American League 9-Inning Record — Municipal (later Cleveland) Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio — 6/17/1950 — Indians 8 Athletics 7 — 9232 fans.

3:19 — New Major League All-Star and Inter-League 14-Inning Records — Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois — 7/11/1950 — NL at AL — NL All-Stars 4 AL All-Stars 3 in 14 innings — 46,127 fans — finished at 4:49 P.M.

2:39 — New All-Time 1–0 9-Inning, Professional 1–0 9-Inning, Major League 1–0 9-Inning, and American League 1–0 9-Inning Records — Municipal (later Cleveland) Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio — 8/4/1950— Yankees 1 Indians 0— 66,743 fans.

5:15 — New All-Time 22-Inning, Professional 22-Inning, and Minor League 22-Inning Records — Red Wing (later Silver) Stadium, Rochester, New York — 8/13/1950 — International League — Rochester Red Wings 3 Jersey City Giants 2 in 22 innings — 5863 fans — finished at 6:45 P.M.

5:00—Equaled All-Time 24-Inning and Amateur 24-Inning Records—Riverside Park, Shakopee, Minnesota—8/13/1950—Minnesota River League— Shakopee Indians 4 St. Peter Saints 3 in 24 innings finished at 7:30 P.M.

4:42 — New All-Time 19-Inning, Professional 19-Inning, Major League 19-Inning, and National League 19-Inning Records — Shibe Park (later Connie Mack Stadium), Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 9/15/1950— Phillies 2 Reds 1 in 1:46, then Phillies 8 Reds 7 in 19 innings — 20,673 fans, 200 fans at end — 2nd game finished at 12:58 A.M. in the early morning of 9/16.

3:39 — New National League 10-Inning Record — Braves Field, Boston, Massachusetts — 4/19/1951— Braves 13 Giants 12 in 10 innings in 2nd game; Giants 4 Braves 2 in 2:36 in 1st game —12,682 fans. 2:10— New All-Time 6-Inning, Professional 6-Inning, Major League 6-Inning, and American League 6-Inning Records — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 4/22/1951— Red Sox 7 Athletics 4 in 5½ innings in 2nd game; Red Sox 6 Athletics 5 in 2:24 in 1st game — 30,026 fans; only 9000 fans at end finished at 6:30 P.M.

3:30— New American League 9-Inning Record — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 4/26/1951— Red Sox 13 Yankees 7 —19,120 fans —finished at 5:30 P.M.

4:18 — New All-Time 13-Inning, Professional 13-Inning, Major League 13-Inning, and American League 13-Inning Records — Shibe Park (later Connie Mack Stadium), Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 4/29/ 1951— Red Sox 12 Athletics 8 in 13 innings; then Red Sox 5 Athletics 0 in 2 innings, called —14,572 fans.

4:36 — New Minor League 23-Inning and Canadian 23-Inning Records — Royal Athletic Park, Victoria, Province of British Columbia, Canada — 5/5/ 1951— Western International League — Salem Senators 1 Victoria Athletics 0 in 23 innings in afternoon game, then Salem 3 Victoria 1 in 2:01 in evening game —1200 fans for afternoon game; 2800 fans for evening game — afternoon game finished at 7:06 P.M.

4:27 — New All-Time 12-Inning, Professional 12-Inning, Major League 12-Inning, and American League 12-Inning Records — Briggs (later Tiger) Stadium, Detroit, Michigan — 6/2/1951—Yankees 8 Tigers 7 in 12 innings — 22,047 fans.

4:47 — New All-Time 19-Inning, Professional 19-Inning, Major League 19-Inning, and American League 19-Inning Records — Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois — 7/13/1951 — White Sox 5 Red Sox 4 in 19 innings — 25,211 fans — finished at 1:17 A.M. in the early morning of 7/14.

4:12 — New American League 16-Inning Record — 7/28/1951— Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — Red Sox 8 Indians 4 in 16 innings — 23,199 fans.

2:34 — New Professional 7-Inning, Major League 7-Inning, and American League 7-Inning Records — Shibe Park (later Connie Mack Stadium), Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 8/12/1951— Athletics 7 Yankees 4 in 7 innings in 2nd game; Athletics 9 Yankees 5 in 2:25 in 1st game — 19,796 fans.

5:45 — New Junior High School League, All-Time 0–0, All-Time Amateur 0–0, Junior High School 30-Inning, and Japanese 30-Inning Records — Tokyo — 8/30/1951— Junior High School League — Takefu Junior High School 0 Kohama Junior High School 0 in 30 innings — finished at 2:45 P.M.

4:30 – New All-Time 14-Inning, Professional 14-Inning, Major League 14-Inning, and National League 14-Inning Records – Shibe Park (later Connie Mack Stadium), Philadelphia, Pennsylvania – 9/30/1951– Dodgers 9 Phillies 8 in 14 innings – 31,755 fans.

3:25 — New All-Time Tiebreaker, Professional Tiebreaker, Major League Tiebreaker, National League Tiebreaker, All-Time Tiebreaker 9-Inning, Professional Tiebreaker 9-Inning, Major League Tiebreaker 9-Inning, and National League Tiebreaker 9-Inning Records — Polo Grounds (V), New York, New York — 10/2/1951— Dodgers 10 Giants 0 — 38,609 fans.

3:10—New Venezuelan Winter League, Caribbean Winter League, and Venezuelan 18-Inning Records— 2/14/1952—Magallanes 3 Cerveceria Caracas 3 in 18 innings.

3:50—New National League 12-Inning Record — 4/18/1952—Ebbets Field, Brooklyn, New York — Dodgers 7 Giants 6 in 12 innings — 31,032 fans.

4:00— New All-Time 11-Inning, Professional 11-Inning, Major League 11-Inning, and American League 11-Inning Records — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 4/24/1952 — Red Sox 3 Yankees 2 in 11 innings — 18,014 fans.

3:32 — New American League 9-Inning Record — 5/4/1952 — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — Indians 9 Red Sox 6 — 32,571 fans.

4:27 — New Major League 16-Inning and American League 16-Inning Records — 5/9/1952 — Briggs (later Tiger) Stadium, Detroit, Michigan — White Sox 8 Tigers 5 in 16 innings — 2857 fans.

4:55 — Equaled High School Record; New U.S. High School and High School 20-Inning Records — Bourne Dormitory Field, Pomfret, Connecticut — 5/10/1952 — Pomfret School Mannymen (later Griffins) 4 St. George's School Dragons 3 in 20 innings.

3:35 — New American League 9-Inning Record — Yankee Stadium (I), New York, New York — 5/10/ 1952 — Yankees 18 Red Sox 3 — 30,769 fans.

4:06 — New All-Time 11-Inning, Professional 11-Inning, Major League 11-Inning, and American League 11-Inning Records — Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois — 6/20/1952 — White Sox 8 Yankees 5 in 11 innings — 39,444 fans.

4:34 — New American League 18-Inning Record — Sportsman's Park (V), St. Louis, Missouri — 6/20/ 1952 — Senators 5 Browns 5 in 18 innings — 7931 fans — finished at 1:07 A.M. in the early morning of 6/21.

1:37 — New National League 5-Inning Record — Forbes Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 6/29/1952 — Pirates 2 Cardinals 1 in 5 innings in 1st game; 2nd game postponed by rain —14,870 fans.

4:49 — New American League, All-Time 19-Inning, Professional 19-Inning, Major League 19-Inning, and American League 19-Inning Records — Municipal (later Cleveland) Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio — 7/1/1952 — Indians 4 Browns 3 in 19 innings — 19,855 fans — finished at 1:04 A.M. in the early morning of 7/2.

4:30— New All-Star, Japanese Professional, Japanese All-Star, and Japanese 21-Inning Records — Nishinomiya Kyujyo (Stadium), Nishinomiya — 7/3/1952 — Central League All-Stars 2 Pacific League All-Stars 2 in 21 innings.

3:56 – New All-Time 10-Inning, Professional 10-Inning, Major League 10-Inning, and National League 10-Inning Records — Sportsman's Park (V), St. Louis, Missouri — 7/16/1952 — Giants 8 Cardinals 7 in 10 innings —15,326 fans.

4:18 — Equaled All-Time 13-Inning, Professional 13-Inning, Major League 13-Inning, and American League 13-Inning Records — Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois — 7/22/1952 — Red Sox 4 White Sox 2 in 13 innings — 40,786 fans.

1:00—New Olympics, Olympic Demonstration Sport, and Finnish Olympics Demonstration Sport Records—Olympic Stadium, Helsinki—7/31/1952— Finnish Pesapallo (Baseball) League 8 Workers' Athletic Federation 4—19,309 fans—finished at 7:00 P.M.

?:??—New Olympics, Olympic Demonstration Sport, and Finnish Olympic Demonstration Sport Records—Helsinki Football Stadium, Helsinki— 8/?/1952—USA 14 Venezuela 4, then USA 19 Finland 1—4000 fans.

2:20— New All-Time 6-Inning, Professional 6-Inning, Major League 6-Inning, and National League 6-Inning Records— Polo Grounds (V), New York, New York— 8/3/1952— Pirates 10 Giants 8 in 6 innings in 2nd game; Pirates 7 Giants 0 in 2:40 in 1st game—17,965 fans.

2:20— New All-Time 6-Inning, Professional 6-Inning, Major League 6-Inning, and National League 6-Inning Records— Polo Grounds (V), New York, New York— 8/3/1952— Pirates 10 Giants 8 in 6 innings in 2nd game; Pirates 7 Giants 0 in 2:40 in 1st game—17,965 fans.

4:59 — New All-Time 15-Inning, Professional 15-Inning, Major League 15-Inning, and National League 15-Inning Records — Polo Grounds (V), New York, New York — 8/5/1952 — Giants 7 Dodgers 6 in 15 innings — 43,373 fans — finished at 1:31 A.M. in the early morning of 8/6.

5:00— New All-Time 19-Inning, Professional 19-Inning, and Minor League 19-Inning Records — Mission Stadium, San Antonio, Texas — 8/11/1952 — Texas League — Oklahoma City Indians 6 San Antonio Missions 2 in 1:55 and 7 innings, then San Antonio 5 Oklahoma City 4 in 19 innings — 3143 fans — 2nd game finished at 2:10 A.M. in the early morning of 8/12.

4:45 — Equaled All-Time 16-Inning and Professional 16-Inning Records; New Major League 16-Inning and American League 16-Inning Records — 8/24/ 1952 — Griffith Stadium, Washington, D.C. — Senators 9 Indians 8 in 16 innings — 26,076 fans.

1:41— New All-Time 5-Inning, Professional 5-Inning, Major League 5-Inning, and American League 5-Inning Records — Sportsman's Park (V), St. Louis, Missouri — 9/1/1952 — Browns 2 Indians 1 in 5 innings in 2nd game; Indians 9 Browns 3 in 2:04 in 1st game —11,082 fans.

3:13 — New Japanese 20-Inning Record — Nishi-Kyogoku Kyujyo, Kyoto, Japan — 9/7/1952 — Central League — Shochiku 2 Taiyo 1 in 20 innings.

4:40- New All-Time 17-Inning, Professional 17-Inning, Major League 17-Inning, and American League 17-Inning Records — 9/14/1952 — Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois — White Sox 4 Red Sox 3, then White Sox 3 Red Sox 0 in 4 innings, called — 24,842 fans.

2:50 — New All-Time 1–0 9-Inning, Professional 1–0 9-Inning, Major League 1–0 9-Inning, and American League 1–0 9-Inning Records — Yankee Stadium (I), New York, New York — 9/21/1952 — Yankees 1 Athletics 0—47,362 fans.

3:52 — New Professional 9-Inning, Major League 9-Inning, and American League 9-Inning Records — Yankee Stadium (I), New York, New York — 5/25/ 1953 — Red Sox 14 Yankees 10 — 28,371 fans — finished at 12:23 A.M. in the early morning of 5/26.

4:23 – New American League 15-Inning Record – Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois – 5/27/1953 – Tigers 2 White Sox 2 in 15 innings – 34,462 fans.

4:28 — New American League 14-Inning Record — Briggs (later Tiger) Stadium, Detroit, Michigan — 6/2/1953 — Athletics 7 Tigers 7 in 14 innings —11,971 fans — finished at 12:58 A.M. in the early morning of 6/3.

2:18 — New National League 7-Inning Record — Polo Grounds (V), New York, New York — 6/7/1953 — Cubs 5 Giants 2 in 7 innings in 2nd game; Cubs 10 Giants 5 in 2:35 in 1st game —12,184 fans.

4:33 – New Japanese 22-Inning Record – Korakuen Kyujyo, Tokyo, Japan – 6/25/1953 – Pacific League – Daiei 4 Kintetsu 4 in 22 innings.

4:40—New U.S. Military 20-Inning Record— Memorial Ball Park, Atwater, California—8/4/1953— National Congress—Fort Ord Warriors 2 San Diego Naval Air Station Skyraiders 1 in 20 innings—3100 fans—finished at 12:55 A.M. in the early morning of 8/5.

4:46 — New Japanese Professional and Japanese 20-Inning Records — Korakuen Kyujyo, Tokyo — 8/9/ 1953 — Pacific League — Kintetsu 5 Toei 4 in 20 innings.

3:43 – New National League 9-Inning Record – Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois – 4/17/1954 – Cubs 23 Cardinals 13 – 14,609 fans.

4:13 — New National League 13-Inning Record — Forbes Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 4/23/1954 — Dodgers 6 Pirates 5 in 13 innings —10,574 fans.

4:31— New All-Time 11-Inning, Professional 11-Inning, Major League 11-Inning, and National League 11-Inning Records — Sportsman's Park (V) (later Busch Stadium (I)), St. Louis, Missouri — 5/4/1954 — Phillies 14 Cardinals 10 in 11 innings — 8009 fans.

3:55 — New National League 12-Inning Record — 5/31/1954 — Shibe Park (later Connie Mack Stadium), Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — Dodgers 5 Phillies 4 in 12 innings — 22,386 fans.

2:14 — New All-Time 5-Inning, Professional 5-Inning, Major League 5-Inning, and National League 5-Inning Records — County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin — 6/2/1954 — Dodgers 7 Braves 6 in 5 innings, two rain delays totaling 1:31— 37,044 fans — called at 12:18 A.M. in the early morning of 6/3.

4:58 — New American League, All-Time 17-Inning, Professional 17-Inning, Major League 17-Inning, and American League 17-Inning Records — Memorial Stadium, Baltimore, Maryland — 6/23/1954 — Orioles 8 Red Sox 7 in 17 innings — 24,843 fans — finished at 12:58 A.M. in the early morning of 6/24.

3:10— New Major League All-Star 9-Inning Record — Municipal (later Cleveland) Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio — 7/13/1954 — NL at AL — American League All-Stars 11 National League All-Stars 9 — 69,751 fans.

2:39 — New Professional 7-Inning, Major League 7-Inning, and American League 7-Inning Records — Shibe Park (later Connie Mack Stadium), Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 7/18/1954 — White Sox 4 Athletics 3 in 7 innings in 2nd game; White Sox 10 Athletics 2 in 2:55 in 1st game — 5496 fans.

5:47 — New Amateur 20-Inning Record — Macomb's Dam Park, New York, New York — 8/9/1954 — City Youth Federation Semi-Final Game — Hudson Guild Neighborhood House 3 Immaculate Conception of the Bronx 2 in 20 innings.

3:55 — Equaled National League 12-Inning Record — 9/6/1954 — Ebbets Field, Brooklyn, New York — Pirates 9 Dodgers 6 in 12 innings, then Pirates 9 Dodgers 7 in 2:27 — 21,561 fans.

4:30— Equaled Women's Record; New Women's 20-Inning Record — Parichy Stadium, Chicago, Illinois — 9/14/1954 — National Girls League — Bluebirds 6 Bloomer Girls 4 in 20 innings, then Queens 5 Jewels 0 in 7 innings — 2nd game finished at 1:00 A.M.

4:31— New American League 15-Inning Record — Griffith Stadium, Washington, D.C. — 9/18/1954 — Senators 8 Red Sox 7 in 15 innings — 3876 fans.

4:30 – New Japanese 23-Inning Record – Osaka Kyujyo, Osaka –10/10/1954 – Pacific League – Kintetsu 1 Toei 0 in 23 innings.

4:39 — New All-Time 14-Inning, Professional 14-Inning, Major League 14-Inning, and National League 14-Inning Records — Sportsman's Park (V) (later Busch Stadium (I)), St. Louis, Missouri — 4/16/1955 — Cardinals 12 Cubs 11 in 14 innings — 9075 fans.

4:29 — New American League 11-Inning Record — Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois — 5/1/1955 — Orioles 9 White Sox 8 in 11 innings; then White Sox 6 Orioles 3 in 2:28 — 19,083 fans.

4:10— New Minor League 18-Inning Record — Jets (later Franklin County) Stadium, Columbus, Ohio — 5/8/1955 — Montreal Royals 5 Columbus Jets 3 in 18 innings in 2nd game; Montreal 6 Columbus 4 in 2:14 in 1st game — 4588 fans, 1000 fans at end —finished at 8:18 P.M.

4:35 — New Playoffs and High School 21-Inning Records — Clemons, Iowa — 5/10/1955 — Roland High School Rockets 3 Clemons High School 2 in 21 innings.

4:44 — New National League 19-Inning Record — Forbes Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 7/19/1955 — Pirates 4 Braves 3 in 19 innings — 7953 fans — finished at 1:01 A.M. in the early morning of 7/20. 4:10—New American Legion, Montana, and Montana Amateur Records—Billings—8/15/1955— American Legion Far West Regional—Billings Post 1 Lewis-Clark Post (Lewiston, Idaho) 0 in 19 innings— 1400 fans—finished at 12:00 Midnight.

3:59 — New All-Time 10-Inning, Professional 10-Inning, Major League 10-Inning, and American League 10-Inning Records — Yankee Stadium (I), New York, New York — 9/10/1955 — White Sox 9 Yankees 8 in 10 innings — 31,846 fans.

5:16 — New All-Time 18-Inning, Professional 18-Inning, and Minor League 18-Inning Records — Miami Stadium, Miami, Florida — 4/22/1956 — International League — Rochester Red Wings 10 Miami Marlins 6 in 18 innings, then Miami 3 Rochester 2 in 2:03 and 7 innings — 3486 fans — 2nd game finished at 9:06 P.M.

4:35 – New All-Time 13-Inning, Professional 13-Inning, and Minor League 13-Inning Records – Columbus or Macon, Georgia – 4/23/1956 – South Atlantic (Sally) League – Macon Dodgers 9 Columbus Foxes 8 in 13 innings.

5:13 — New All-Time 17-Inning, Professional 17-Inning, Major League 17-Inning, and National League 17-Inning Records — Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois — 5/2/1956 — Giants 6 Cubs 5 in 17 innings — 2389 fans.

1:44 — New American League 5-Inning Record — Cleveland Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio — 5/11/1956 — Indians 4 Athletics 1— 8622 fans.

2:39 — New Professional 7-Inning, Major League 7-Inning, and National League 7-Inning Records — Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois — 5/13/1956 — Cardinals 14 Cubs 7 in 7 innings in 2nd game; Cardinals 3 Cubs 2 in 2:42 in 1st game — 22,622 fans.

4:52 — New Mexican Full-Length, All-Time 16-Inning, Professional 16-Inning, Minor League 16-Inning, and Mexican 16-Inning Records — Mexico City — 5/13/1956 — Mexican League — Mexico City Reds 15 Mexico City Tigers 14 in 16 innings.

4:52 – New American League 15-Inning Record – Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois – 5/27/1956 – White Sox 5 Indians 4 in 15 innings, then Indians 4 White Sox 2 in 2:22 – 25,856 fans; 1900 fans at end – 2nd game finished at 9:08 P.M.

2:11— New American League 6-Inning Record — Griffith Stadium, Washington, D.C. -7/4/1956 — Orioles 7 Senators 4 in 6 innings in 2nd game, rain delay top 6th, 2nd rain delay bottom 7th; Senators 10 Orioles 8 in 2:56 in 1st game -7580 fans.

5:30—New American Legion, All-Time 21-Inning, and Amateur 21-Inning Records — Minster, Ohio — 7/18/1956 — St. Mary's 4 Lima 3 in 21 innings.

4:47 — New All-Time 14-Inning, Professional 14-Inning, Major League 14-Inning, and American League 14-Inning Records — Municipal Stadium, Kansas City, Missouri — 7/27/1956 — Yankees 10 Athletics 9 in 14 innings — 30,034 fans — finished at 12:47 A.M. in the early morning of 7/28. 4:10—New National League 12-Inning Record — 8/3/1956 — Ebbets Field, Brooklyn, New York — Cardinals 11 Dodgers 8 in 12 innings —17,029 fans.

4:22 — New Major League 13-Inning and American League 13-Inning Records — Yankee Stadium (I), New York, New York — 9/29/1956 — Red Sox 7 Yankees 5 in 13 innings —15,844 fans.

3:26 — New Inter-League 9-Inning and World Series 9-Inning Records — Ebbets Field, Brooklyn, New York —10/5/1956 — AL at NL — Dodgers 13 Yankees 8 — 36,217 fans.

?:??—New Olympics, Olympics Demonstration Sport, and Australian Olympics Demonstration Sport Records — Olympic Stadium, Melbourne —12/1/1956 — US Military Far East Command 11 Australia 5 in 6 innings — 2000 fans at start; 114,000 fans at end, mostly there to see the track and field events.

4:36 — New National League 16-Inning Record — Shibe Park (later Connie Mack Stadium), Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 5/1/1957 — Reds 8 Phillies 6 in 16 innings — 8606 fans.

4:54 — New All-Time 16-Inning, Professional 16-Inning, Major League 16-Inning, and National League 16-Inning Records — Ebbets Field, Brooklyn, New York — 5/2/1957 — Cardinals 3 Dodgers 2 in 16 innings — 8811 fans — finished at 12:54 A.M. in the early morning of 5/3.

4:59 — Equaled All-Time 15-Inning, Professional 15-Inning, Major League 15-Inning, and National League 15-Inning Records — Polo Grounds (V), New York, New York — 5/11/1957 — Giants 6 Dodgers 5 in 15 innings — 7424 fans.

3:17 — New Minor League 14-Inning Record — Parker Field (later Diamond), Richmond, Virginia — 6/6/1957 — Toronto Maple Leafs 4 Richmond Virginians 3 in 14 innings, then Richmond 5 Toronto 4 in 2:55 — 6932 fans, 1500 fans at end —finished at 1:00 A.M. in the early morning of 6/7.

5:05 – New Amateur 16-Inning Record – Swepsonville, North Carolina – 6/27/1957 – Junior League – Eli Whitney 10 Swepsonville 8 in 16 innings – finished at 8:55 P.M.

4:23 — New Major League 13-Inning and American League 13-Inning Records — Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois — 7/7/1957 — White Sox 9 Indians 8 in 13 innings, then White Sox 7 Indians 2 in 2:27 — 28,612 fans.

4:26 – New Minor League 15-Inning Record – Municipal (later Rosenblatt) Stadium, Omaha, Nebraska – 8/16/1957 – American Association – Wichita Braves 10 Omaha Cardinals 7 in 15 innings – 3771 fans – finished at 1:03 A.M. in the early morning of 8/17.

5:07 — New Caribbean, Cuban, All-Time 14-Inning, Professional 14-Inning, and Cuban 14-Inning Records — Parque (Park) Almendares, Havana —12/8/1957 — Winter League — Marianao Tigers 12 Almendares 9 in 14 innings, 2nd game called after 3 innings.

4:04 - New All-Time Spring Training, Professional

Spring Training, Major League Spring Training, and
Interleague Spring Training Records — Cactus League
Scottsdale Stadium, Scottsdale, Arizona — 3/8/1958
Cubs 6 Orioles 5 in 14 innings — 3617 fans.

4:05 — New All-Time Spring Training, Professional Spring Training, Major League Spring Training, and Interleague Spring Training Records — Grapefruit League — Al Lopez Field, Tampa, Florida — 3/22/1958 — Phillies 6 White Sox 5 in 16 innings —1065 fans.

4:23 — New All-Time Spring Training, Professional Spring Training, Major League Spring Training, and Interleague Spring Training Records — American League at National League — County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin — 4/12/1958 — Tigers 4 Braves 3 in 15 innings.

5:47 — New High School, Japanese High School, All-Time 25-Inning, Amateur 25-Inning, High School 25-Inning, and Japanese 25-Inning Records — Shikoku Kyujyo (Stadium), Shikoku — 4/28/1958 — Takamatsu-shogyo 2 Tokushima-shogyo 0 in 25 innings.

5:04 — New All-Time 16-Inning, Professional 16-Inning, and Minor League 16-Inning Records — Lane Field, San Diego, California — 7/2/1958 — Pacific Coast League — San Diego Padres 12 Salt Lake City Bees 11 in 16 innings — 5309 fans — finished at 1:04 A.M. in the early morning of 7/3.

4:22 — New Minor League 17-Inning Record — Sherman Field, Lincoln, Nebraska — 4/30/1959 — Illinois-Indiana-Iowa (Three-I) League — Lincoln Chiefs 8 Fox Cities Foxes 7 in 17 innings — 274 fans finished at 12:22 A.M. in the early morning of 5/1.

6:14 — New Japanese Amateur, All-Time 29-Inning, Amateur 29-Inning, and Japanese 29-Inning Records — Nishi-Kyogoku Kyujyo (Stadium), Kyoto — 5/2/1959 — Kyoto Industrial League — Nippon Shinyaku (Pharmaceuticals) Company 2 Kurashiki Reiyon (Rayon) Company (later Kuraray Company) 1 in 29 innings.

5:56 — New Minor League, All-Time 21-Inning, Professional 21-Inning, and Minor League 21-Inning Records — Sicks' Stadium, Seattle, Washington — 5/8/ 1959 — Pacific Coast League — Seattle Rainiers 6 Phoenix Giants 5 in 21 innings, 2nd game cancelled — 1787 fans —finished at 12:56 A.M. in the early morning of 5/9.

4:56 – New College, NJCAA, College 16-Inning, and NJCAA 16-Inning Records – Lincoln Park Stadium (later Stocker Stadium, then Sam Suplizio Field), Grand Junction, Colorado – 5/23/1959 – Phoenix College Bears 6 Paducah Junior (now West Kentucky Community and Technical) College Indians 5 in 16 innings – finished at 7:56 P.M.

5:45 — New American Legion 20-Inning Record — Greenwood, South Carolina — 7/15/1959 — Clinton 5 Post 20 Greenwood 3 in 20 innings.

3:50— New National League 9-Inning Record — Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois — 8/13/1959 — Cubs 20 Giants 9 —17,963 fans. 4:06 – New All-Time Tiebreaker, Professional Tiebreaker, Major League Tiebreaker, National League Tiebreaker, and Tiebreaker 12-Inning Records – Memorial Coliseum, Los Angeles, California – 9/29/ 1959 – Dodgers 6 Braves 5 in 12 innings – 36,853 fans.

23:30—New Planned Marathon Record—Civic Stadium (later Pge Park), Portland, Oregon—early 1960's—National Collegiate Athletic Association— Portland State University Vikings Team A vs. Portland State University Vikings Team B in 102 innings.

?:??— New North Pole Record — North Pole, Arctic Ocean — 3/25/1960—USS *Seadragon* Nuclear Submarine Team A vs. USS *Seadragon* Nuclear Submarine Team B.

4:54 — New American League 15-Inning Record — Cleveland Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio — 4/19/1960— Tigers 4 Indians 2 in 15 innings — 52,756 fans.

5:42 — New Minor League, All-Time 24-Inning, Professional 24-Inning, and Minor League 24-Inning Records — Mission Stadium, San Antonio, Texas — 4/29/1960 — Texas League — Rio Grande Valley Giants 4 San Antonio Missions 2 in 24 innings, scoreboard fire delay bottom 23rd — 820 fans — finished at 1:27 A.M. in the early morning of 4/30.

1:51—New American League 5-Inning Record— Cleveland Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio—5/22/1960— Orioles 7 Indians 6 in 5 innings in 1st game, rain delay 1:17 top 6th; 2nd game postponed—12,268 fans.

3:52 — Equaled Major League 9-Inning Record; New National League 9-Inning Record — Candlestick (later 3Com, then Monster) Park, San Francisco, California — 6/12/1960 — Giants 16 Braves 7 — 39,148 fans.

3:30— New Amateur 12-Inning Record — Point Stadium, Johnstown, Pennsylvania — 8/19/1960— previous tournament action delay at start, Baltimore Leone's Restaurant 5 Pittsburgh Beechview 3 in 12 innings — finished at 3:15 A.M. in the early morning of 8/20.

4:43 — New American Legion Tournament and Amateur 17-Inning Records — week before 9/14/ 1960 — Staunton (Va) 4 Savannah (Ga) 3 in 17 innings.

4:54 — New Major League 14-Inning and National League 14-Inning Records — Memorial Coliseum, Los Angeles, California — 10/1/1960 — Cubs 10 Dodgers 8 in 14 innings — 18,817 fans.

5:00—New College, NCAA, All-Time 10-Inning, Amateur 10-Inning, College 10-Inning, and NCAA 10-Inning Records—North Maine Street Park, Fallon, Nevada—3/30/1961—University of Nevada (later University of Nevada-Reno) Wolf Pack 16 Notre Dame University Fighting Irish 15 in 10 innings finished at 12:30 A.M. in the early morning of 3/31.

4:10-New American League Spring Training Record – Hi Corbett Field, Tucson, Arizona – 4/6/ 1961–Cactus League – Indians 6 Angels 5 in 12 innings.

4:02 - New Professional 10-Inning, Major League

10-Inning, and American League 10-Inning Records — Municipal Stadium, Kansas City, Missouri — 4/24/ 1961 — Twins 10 Athletics 6 in 10 innings — 6541 fans.

5:17 — New All-Time 16-Inning, Professional 16-Inning, and Minor League 16-Inning Records — Disch Field, Austin, Texas — 5/22/1961— Texas League — Amarillo Gold Sox 8 Austin Senators 7 in 16 innings — 508 fans — finished at 1:31 A.M. in the early morning of 5/23.

5:11— New All-Time 15-Inning, Professional 15-Inning, Major League 15-Inning, and National League 15-Inning Records — Shibe Park (later Connie Mack Stadium), Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 6/28/1961— Giants 7 Phillies 7 in 15 innings —11,597 fans finished at 1:15 A.M. in the early morning of 6/29.

3:11—New National League 8-Inning Record — Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois — 7/9/1961—Cubs 8 Phillies 5 in 2nd game; Cubs 9 Phillies 8 in 2:55 in 1st game — 20,556 fans.

3:54 — New Major League 9-Inning and American League 9-Inning Records — Municipal Stadium, Kansas City, Missouri — 7/23/1961— Tigers 17 Athletics 14 in 2nd game, Tigers 6 Athletics 3 in 2:56 in 1st game — 17,852 fans.

4:20— New National League 13-Inning Record — Memorial Coliseum, Los Angeles, California — 8/5/ 1961— Dodgers 7 Cubs 6 in 13 innings — 43,247 fans.

4:20 – New National League 12-Inning Record – 8/27/1961 – Shibe Park (later Connie Mack Stadium), Philadelphia, Pennsylvania – Braves 11 Phillies 10 in 12 innings, then Phillies 3 Braves 0 in 2:35 – 9263 fans.

4:00— New Hawaiian 20-Inning Record — Hoolulu Park (later Wong Stadium), Hilo, Hawaii — 4/15/1962 — Hawaii High School League — Ka'u High School Trojans 3 St. Joseph High School Cardinals 2 in 20 innings.

5:13 — Equaled All-Time 17-Inning, Professional 17-Inning, Major League 17-Inning, and National League 17-Inning Records — Colt Stadium, Houston, Texas — 4/25/1962 — Cardinals 5 Colt .45's (later Astros) 5 in 17 innings —17,265 fans — finished at 1:15 A.M. in the early morning of 4/26.

5:06 — New Major League 16-Inning and National League 16-Inning Records — Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California — 5/1/1962 — Dodgers 6 Cubs 5 in 16 innings — 20,069 fans; 200 fans at end — finished at 1:08 A.M. in the early morning of 5/2.

4:56 — New All-Time 12-Inning, Professional 12-Inning, Major League 12-Inning, and National League 12-Inning Records — Shibe Park (later Connie Mack Stadium), Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 5/6/1962 — Mets 7 Phillies 5 in 12 innings — 28,215 fans.

4:54 — New All-Time 13-Inning, Professional 13-Inning, Major League 13-Inning, and National League 13-Inning Records — Polo Grounds (V), New York, New York — 5/15/1962 — Mets 6 Cubs 5 in 13 innings — 8463 fans.

4:48 - New American League 13-Inning Record -

Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts – 6/8/1962 – Indians 15 Red Sox 9 in 13 innings –19,341 fans.

3:32 — New Amateur 15-Inning, College 15-Inning, NCAA 15-Inning, and College World Series Records — Rosenblatt Stadium, Omaha, Nebraska — 6/16/ 1962 — University of Michigan Wolverines 5 University of Santa Clara Broncos 4 in 15 innings — 7395 fans.

4:02 – New Major League 9-Inning and National League 9-Inning Records – Candlestick (later 3Com, then Monster) Park, San Francisco, California – 6/22/1962 – Braves 11 Giants 9 – 20,513 fans.

7:00— New Professional, Major League, American League, All-Time 22-Inning, Professional 22-Inning, Major League 22-Inning, and American League 22-Inning Records — Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan — 6/24/1962 — Yankees 9 Tigers 7 in 22 innings — 35,638 fans, 20,000 fans at end —finished at 8:30 P.M.— this 7-hour game happened before there had ever been a modern US professional game lasting more than 6 hours.

5:06 — New All-Time 13-Inning, Professional 13-Inning, Major League 13-Inning, and National League 13-Inning Records — Crosley Field, Cincinnati, Ohio — 7/8/1962 — Reds 12 Colt .45's 11 in 13 innings in 2nd game, rain delay 0:59 at start; Reds 12 Colt .45's 8 in 3:01 in 1st game — 18,322 fans — 2nd game finished at 10:40 P.M.

3:30 – New Amateur 11-Inning Record – Legion Field, Claremore, Oklahoma – 7/23/1962 – American Legion – previous tournament action delay 3:30 at start, Bartlesville Philnines 8 Claremore Merchants 6 in 3:30 and 11 innings –100 fans, 12 fans at end – finished at 3:00 A.M. in the early morning of 7/24.

5:27 — New Amateur 22-Inning and Japanese 22-Inning Records — Korakuen Kyujyo (Stadium), Tokyo, Japan — 7/29/1962 — Tokyo Industrial League — Nippon Beer Company 1 Denden Kinki Company 0 in 22 innings.

4:18 — Equaled All-Time 9-Inning and Professional 9-Inning Records; New All-Time Tiebreaker, Professional Tiebreaker, Major League Tiebreaker, National League Tiebreaker, Major League 9-Inning, National League 9-Inning, All-Time Tiebreaker 9-Inning, Professional Tiebreaker 9-Inning, Major League Tiebreaker 9-Inning, and National League Tiebreaker 9-Inning Records — Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California —10/2/1962 — Dodgers 8 Giants 7 — 25,321 fans — finished at 5:18 P.M.

4:24 — New Puerto Rican and Puerto Rican 16-Inning Records — 1/20/1963 — Winter League — Caguas or San Juan — Caguas Criollos 6 San Juan 4 in 16 innings.

2:01— New American League 5-Inning Record — Municipal Stadium, Kansas City, Missouri — 5/4/ 1963 — rain delay 1:21 at start, Athletics 14 Red Sox 3 in 5 innings, 2nd rain delay bottom 5th —13,973 fans.

5:47 — New All-Time 17-Inning, Professional 17-Inning, and Minor League 17-Inning Records — Oiler (later McNulty) Park, Tulsa, Oklahoma — 5/31/1963 — Texas League — Tulsa Oilers 9 Albuquerque Dukes 8 in 17 innings — 2088 fans — finished at 1:30 A.M. in the early morning of 6/1.

4:10—New Professional 1–0, Major League 1–0, and National League 1–0 Records — Candlestick (later 3Com, then Monster) Park, San Francisco, California — 7/2/1963 — Giants 1 Braves 0 in 16 innings — 15,921 fans — finished at 12:25 A.M. in the early morning of 7/3.

5:00— New Colt League Record — Pony-Colt Stadium, Galveston, Texas — 7/27/1963 — Galena Park 6 Beaumont 5 in 20 innings.

6:01— New All-Time 21-Inning and Amateur 21-Inning Records — Fairground Park, Fond du Lac, Wisconsin — 7/31/1963 — Fox River Valley League — Little Chute-Kimberly Papermakers 11 Fond du Lac 5 in 21 innings — finished at 2:01 A.M. in the early morning of 8/1.

5:05 – New American Legion Tournament and Amateur 17-Inning Records – Keene, New Hampshire – week before 9/14/1963 – Greensboro (NC) 8 Orangeburg (Sc) 6 in 17 innings.

4:32 — New Panamanian Non-Decision and Panamanian 16-Inning Records — Novatos or Panalit — 1/13/1964 — Winter League — Novatos 6 Panalit 6 in 16 innings.

6:30—New College, NCAA Division II, Amateur 22-Inning, College 22-Inning, and NCAA 22-Inning Records—Kentucky Wesleyan Field (now Panther Park), Owensboro, Kentucky—4/20/1964—Kentucky Wesleyan College Panthers 8 Oakland City College Mighty Oaks 7 in 22 innings, 2nd game postponed—200 fans—finished at 11:30 P.M.

7:23 — New Professional, Major League, National League, All-Time 23-Inning, Professional 23-Inning, Major League 23-Inning, and National League 23-Inning Records — Shea Stadium, New York, New York — 5/31/1964 — Giants 8 Mets 6 in 23 innings in 2nd game, Giants 5 Mets 3 in 2:29 in 1st game — 57,037 fans, 8000 fans at end —finished at 11:25 P.M.

5:11— New High School, All-Time 19-Inning, Amateur 19-Inning, and High School 19-Inning Records — Connecticut — 6/7/1964 — Class A playoffs — Waterbury Crosby High School Old Ivy (later Bulldogs) 6 West Haven Notre Dame High School Green Knights 5 in 19 innings.

5:10—New Professional 19-Inning and Minor League 19-Inning Records — Sioux Falls Stadium (later Howard Wood Field), Sioux Falls, South Dakota — 7/22/1964 — Basin League — Sioux Falls Packers 3 Pierre Cowboys 2 in 19 innings — 777 fans — finished at 12:40 A.M. in the early morning of 7/23.

3:58 — New National League 10-Inning Record — County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin — 7/23/1964 — Phillies 13 Braves 10 in 10 innings —10,507 fans.

5:25 – New Canadian and Canadian 20-Inning Records – Henderson Stadium (I), Lethbridge, Province of Alberta, Canada – 7/25/1964 – Western Canada League — Saskatoon Blues 6 Lethbridge Cardinals 5 in 20 innings — 150 fans.

5:13 — New Major League 16-Inning and National League 16-Inning Records — Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California — 9/19/1964 — Dodgers 4 Phillies 3 in 16 innings — 27,146 fans — finished at 1:15 A.M. in the early morning of 9/20.

?:??—New Olympics, Olympics Demonstration Sport, and Japanese Olympics Demonstration Sport Records—Korakuen Kyujyo (Stadium), Tokyo— 10/11/1964—USA College All-Stars 6 Japan Amateur All-Stars 2—51,000 fans.

4:44 – New Nicaraguan Professional Record – Boer –1/13/1965 – Winter League – Boer 7 Leon 4 in ?? innings.

2:34 — New All-Time Indoor, Professional Indoor, Major League Indoor, National League Indoor, and President-in-Attendance Indoor Records — Astrodome, Houston, Texas — 4/12/1965 — Exhibition — Astros 2 Yankees 1—47,876 fans.

2:34 — Equaled All-Time Indoor, Professional Indoor, Major League Indoor, and National League Indoor Records — Astrodome, Houston, Texas — 4/12/ 1965 — Phillies 2 Astros 0— 42,652 fans.

3:35 — New All-Time Indoor, Professional Indoor, Major League Indoor, and National League Indoor Records — Astrodome, Houston, Texas — 4/23/1965 — Astros 4 Pirates 3 in 12 innings — 25,399 fans.

4:04 — New All-Time Indoor, Professional Indoor, Major League Indoor, and National League Indoor Records — Astrodome, Houston, Texas — 5/19/1965 — Dodgers 4 Astros 2 in 14 innings — 30,885 fans.

6:24 — New Minor League, All-Time 27-Inning, Professional 27-Inning, and Minor League 27-Inning Records — Dunn Field, Elmira, New York — 5/8/1965 — Eastern League — Elmira Pioneers 2 Springfield Giants 1 in 27 innings — 386 fans, 400 fans at end finished at 9:24 P.M. — this was the first game to ever last between 6 and 7 hours, and it happened only after there had already been two prior games lasting 7 hours or more.

4:04 — New All-Time Indoor, Professional Indoor, Major League Indoor, and National League Indoor Records — Astrodome, Houston, Texas — 5/19/1965 — Dodgers 4 Astros 2 in 14 innings — 30,885 fans.

5:10- New Professional 25-Inning and Minor League 25-Inning Records – Turnpike (later Arlington) Stadium, Arlington, Texas – 6/17/1965- Texas League – Austin Braves 2 Dallas-Fort Worth Spurs 1 in 25 innings – 2546 fans – finished at 12:40 A.M. in the early morning of 6/18.

24:22 — New Planned Marathon Record — Basking Ridge, New Jersey — 6/18/1965 and 6/19/1965 — High School — Basking Ridge High School Seniors Team A 166 Basking Ridge High School Seniors Team B 155 in 127 innings.

5:03 – New American League 15-Inning Record – Cleveland Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio – 6/27/1965 – Indians 10 Athletics 7 in 15 innings, then Indians 11 Athletics 7 in 3:01—17,829 fans — 2nd game finished at 9:34 P.M.

5:23 — New Minor League 19-Inning Records — Paterson Field, Montgomery, Alabama — 7/31/1965 — Southern League — Columbus Confederate Yankees 6 Montgomery Rebels 6 in 19 innings — finished at 1:23 A.M. in the early morning of 8/1.

6:15 — New All-Time 24-Inning, Professional 24-Inning, and Minor League 24-Inning Records — Sioux Falls Stadium (later Howard Wood Field), Sioux Falls, South Dakota — 8/3/1965 — Basin League — Pierre Cowboys 5 Sioux Falls Packers 3 in 24 innings — 421 fans — finished at 1:45 A.M. in the early morning of 8/4.

6:13 — New Minor League Non-Decision, All-Time 21-Inning, Professional 21-Inning, and Minor League 21-Inning Records — College Stadium (later Russell Diethrich Park), Jamestown, New York — 8/14/1965 — New York-Pennsylvania League — Binghamton Triplets 4 Jamestown Tigers 4 in 21 innings, 2nd game postponed — 386 fans — finished at 12:43 A.M. in the early morning of 8/15.

5:00— New Major League 14-Inning and National League 14-Inning Records — Crosley Field, Cincinnati, Ohio — 8/27/1965 — Cardinals 6 Reds 5 in 14 innings — 23,595 fans.

4:58 — New American League 14-Inning Record — Cleveland Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio — 9/20/1965 — Indians 5 Tigers 4 in 14 innings —1831 fans.

4:41— New American League 12-Inning Record — Cleveland Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio — 4/15/1966 — Indians 8 Red Sox 7 in 12 innings — 33,198 fans.

2:51— New All-Time 1–0 9-Inning, Professional 1–0 9-Inning, Major League 1–0 9-Inning, and American League 1–0 9-Inning Records — Cleveland Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio — 5/1/1966 — Indians 1 White Sox 0— 9655 fans.

4:58 — Equaled American League 17-Inning Record — 5/31/1966 — Anaheim Stadium, Anaheim, California — Indians 7 Angels 5 — 14,255 fans — finished at 12:58 A.M. in the early morning of 6/1.

6:59 — New Minor League, All-Time 29-Inning, Professional 29-Inning, and Minor League 29-Inning Records — Al Lang Field (I), St. Petersburg, Florida — 6/14/1966 — Florida State League — Miami Marlins 4 St. Petersburg Cardinals 3 in 29 innings — 740 fans, 175 fans at end —finished at 2:29 A.M. in the early morning of 6/15.

2:46 — New National League 1–0 9-Inning Record — Shea Stadium, New York, New York — 6/30/1966 — Phillies 1 Mets 0—19,895 fans.

6:00—New Minor League 23-Inning Record— Lawrence Hardball Park, Lodi, California—8/31/1966 — California League—Reno Silver Sox 6 Lodi Crushers 5 in 23 innings—502 fans, 20 fans at end finished at 2:00 A.M. in the early morning of 9/1.

6:15 — New High School, All-Time 21-Inning, Amateur 21-Inning, and High School 21-Inning Records — Delano High School Diamond #4 and Delano High School Varsity Field, Delano, California — 3/23/1967 — California High School League — Fresno McLane High School Highlanders 3 Fresno High School Warriors 2 in 21 innings, diamond switch delay from Diamond #4 to Varsity Field 0:15 top 8th —finished at 10:30 P.M.

6:12 — New Hawaiian, All-Time 25-Inning, and High School 25-Inning Records — Honolulu Stadium (later Termite Palace), Honolulu, Hawaii — 3/25/1967 — Hawaii High School League — Kamehameha High School Warriors 9 McKinley High School Tigers 7 in 25 innings.

5:50— New All-Time 18-Inning, Professional 18-Inning, Major League 18-Inning, and American League 18-Inning Records — Yankee Stadium (I), New York, New York — 4/16/1967 — Yankees 7 Red Sox 6 in 18 innings —19,290 fans — finished at 6:23 P.M.

5:50—New Minor League 20-Inning Record— Frank Lawrence Stadium, Portsmouth, Virginia— 4/18/1967—Carolina League—Kinston Eagles 5 Tidewater Tides 5 in 20 innings—526 fans, 25 fans at end—finished at 1:21 A.M. in the early morning of 4/19.

4:17 – New NCAA Division I, Amateur 15-Inning, College 15-Inning, and NCAA 15-Inning Records – Municipal Stadium, Phoenix, Arizona – 5/22/1967 – Arizona State University Sun Devils 3 University of Arizona Wildcats 2 in 15 innings – 8314 fans – finished at 12:17 A.M. in the early morning of 5/23.

5:04 — New Hawaiian 16-Inning Record — Honolulu Stadium, Honolulu, Hawaii — 5/23/1967 — Pacific Coast League — Portland Beavers 7 Hawaii Islanders 4 in 16 innings, rain delay 7th, brawl delay top 8th, 2nd rain delay 11th, 3rd rain delay 13th —finished at 1:22 A.M. in the early morning of 5/24.

5:18 — New All-Time 19-Inning, Professional 19-Inning, Major League 19-Inning, and American League 19-Inning Records — Memorial Stadium, Baltimore, Maryland — 6/4/1967 — Orioles 7 Senators 5 in 19 innings —12,612 fans — finished at 6:23 P.M.

5:40—New Major League Commissioner-in-Attendance, All-Time 19-Inning, Professional 19-Inning, Major League 19-Inning, and American League 19-Inning Records — Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan — 6/17/1967 — Tigers 7 Athletics 6 in 3:25, rain delay 0:15 top 7th, then Athletics 6 Tigers 5 in 19 innings — 14,871 fans, 200 fans at end including 4th Commissioner of Baseball William Eckert —finished at 12:17 A.M. in the early morning of 6/18.

3:41— New Major League All-Star and Interleague 15-Inning Records — Anaheim Stadium (later Edison International Field, then Angels Stadium), Anaheim, California — 7/11/1967 — NL at AL — National League All-Stars 2 American League All-Stars 1 in 15 innings — 46,309 fans — finished at 7:56 P.M.

4:47 — New American League 16-Inning Record — 7/25/1967 — Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois — White Sox 6 Indians 5 in 16 innings in 2nd game,— White Sox 3 Indians 1 in 2:55 in 1st game —18,152 fans -2nd game finished at 2:15 A.M. in the early morning of 7/26.

5:35 — New Professional 25-Inning and Minor League 25-Inning Records — Municipal Stadium, West Palm Beach, Florida — 8/8/1967 — Florida State League — West Palm Beach Braves 3 Leesburg Athletics 2 in 25 innings, 2nd game postponed — finished at 11:35 P.M.

5:40— New Major League 20-Inning, American League 20-Inning, — Metropolitan Stadium, Bloomington, Minnesota — 8/9/1967 — Senators 9 Twins 7 in 20 innings — 16,901 fans, 4000 fans at end — finished at 1:44 A.M. in the early morning of 8/10.

3:45 — New VFW Teener Record — Fisher Field, Easton, Pennsylvania — 8/11/1967 — West Allis (WI) 6 Lebanon Valley (PA) 2 in 16 innings — 200 fans.

5:47 — New All-Time 19-Inning, Professional 19-Inning, and Minor League 19-Inning Records — Ernie Shore Field, Winston-Salem, North Carolina — 8/14/ 1967 — Carolina League — Winston-Salem Red Sox 13 Greensboro Yankees 12 in 19 innings —1708 fans finished at 1:47 A.M. in the early morning of 8/15.

5:14 — New Major League 16-Inning and American League 16-Inning Records — 8/17/1967 — D.C. (later Robert F. Kennedy) Stadium, Washington, D.C. — Indians 8 Senators 3 in 16 innings —12,488 fans; 2000 fans at end —finished at 1:21 A.M. in the early morning of 8/18.

6:09 — New Major League 20-Inning and American League 20-Inning Records — Yankee Stadium (I), New York, New York — 8/29/1967 — Yankees 4 Red Sox 3 in 20 innings in 2nd game, Red Sox 2 Yankees 1 in 2:10 in 1st game — 40,314 fans — finished at 1:57 A.M. in the early morning of 8/30.

4:18 — New Professional 10-Inning, Major League 10-Inning, and American League 10-Inning Records — Municipal Stadium, Kansas City, Missouri — 8/29/ 1967 — Indians 9 Athletics 8 in 10 innings — 4326 fans.

5:40—New All-Time 1–0, Professional 1–0, Major League 1–0, National League 1–0, Major League 21-Inning, and National League 21-Inning Records — Crosley Field, Cincinnati, Ohio — 9/1/1967 — Giants 1 Reds 0 in 21 innings —13,745 fans, 200 fans at end finished at 1:45 A.M. in the early morning of 9/2.

4:32 – New American League 1–0 Record – Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois – 9/13/1967 – White Sox 1 Indians 0 in 17 innings – 9929 fans.

6:22 – New Mexican Full-Length, All-Time 21-Inning, Professional 21-Inning, Minor League 21-Inning, and Mexican 21-Inning Records – Estadio (Stadium) Angel Flores, Culiacan, State of Sinaloa – 10/ 22/1967 – Mexican Pacific League – Obregon Yaquis 3 Culiacan Tomateros (Tomato Growers) 1 in 21 innings – 5000 fans – finished at 11:22 P.M.

6:06 – New All-Time 1–0, Professional 1–0, Major League 1–0, National League 1–0, All-Time Indoor, Professional Indoor, Major League Indoor, National League Indoor, Major League 24-Inning, and National League 24-Inning Records – Astrodome, Houston, Texas -4/15/1968 – Astros 1 Mets 0 in 24 innings -14,219 fans, 3000 fans at end -finished at 1:37 A.M. in the early morning of 4/16.

5:45 — New Amateur 19-Inning and High School 19-Inning Records — Boysen Park, Anaheim, California — 4/26/1968 — Santa Ana High School Saints 6 Anaheim High School Colonists 6 in 19 innings, automatic sprinkers delay 0:45 top 20th —100 fans, 25 fans at end — called off at 1:30 A.M. because automated sprinklers which had come on at 12:45 A.M. could not be turned off.

2:50 — New All-Time 6-Inning, Professional 6-Inning, Major League 6-Inning, and National League 6-Inning Records — Atlanta-Fulton County Stadium, Atlanta, Georgia — 5/26/1968 — rain delay 1:10 at start, Braves 2 Mets 1 in 6 innings, 2nd rain delay 0:30 top 7th —16,599 fans.

2:44 — New Professional 7-Inning, Major League 7-Inning, and National League 7-Inning Records — Crosley Field, Cincinnati, Ohio — 5/26/1968 — Pirates 8 Reds 8 in 7 innings, called due to rain — 9672 fans.

5:04 — New Major League 14-Inning and American League 14-Inning Records — Oakland Coliseum, Oakland, California — 6/20/1969 — Athletics 3 Twins 2 in 14 innings — 20,691 fans.

5:38 — New Minor League 22-Inning and Mexican 22-Inning Records — Parque Deportivo del Seguro Social (Social Security Stadium), Mexico City, Distrito Federal (Federal District), Mexico — 7/14/ 1969 — Mexican League — Reynosa Broncos 5 Mexico City Diablos Rojos (Red Devils) 3 in 22 innings — 3895 fans — finished at 1:08 A.M. in the early morning of 7/15.

5:10— New Amateur 18-Inning Record — Barney Tadsen Field, Brownton, Minnesota — 7/31/1969 — Town Team League — Brownton 6 New Ulm Kaiserhoff 5 in 18 innings — finished at 1:10 A.M. in the early morning of 8/1.

4:27 – New Japanese Minor League and Japanese 19-Inning Records – Fujiidera Kyujyo (Stadium), Fujiidera – 8/2/1969 – Western League – Kintetsu Buffaloes 3 Chunichi Dragons 2 in 19 innings.

4:06 — New Tennessee American Amateur Congress/Stan Musial Division State Tournament Record — Shelby Park, Nashville — 8/23/1969 — Tennessee Pride Eggs 1 Nashville Sporting Goods 0 in 17 innings — finished at 2:06 P.M.

2:37 — New All-Time Playoffs, Professional Playoffs, Major League Playoffs, National League Playoffs, Major League Championship Series; All-Time Playoffs 9-Innings, Professional Playoffs 9-Innings, Major League Championship Series 9-Inning, and National League Championship Series 9-Inning Records — Atlanta Stadium, Atlanta, Georgia —10/4/1969 — Mets 9 Braves 5 — 50,122 fans.

3:29 — New All-Time Playoffs, Professional Playoffs, Major League Playoffs, American League Playoffs, Major League Championship Series, and American League Championship Series Records — Memorial Stadium, Baltimore, Maryland —10/4/1969 — Orioles 4 Twins 3 in 12 innings — 39,324 fans.

3:10—New National League Playoffs, National League Championship Series, All-Time Playoffs 9-Inning, Professional Playoffs 9-Inning, Major League Playoffs 9-Inning, National League Playoffs 9-Inning, Major League Championship Series 9-Inning, and National League Championship Series 9-Inning Records—Atlanta Stadium, Atlanta, Georgia— 10/5/1969—Mets 11 Braves 6 — 50,270 fans.

2:48 — American League Playoffs 9-Inning and American League Championship Series 9-Inning Records — Metropolitan Stadium, Bloomington, Minnesota — 10/6/1969 — Orioles 11 Twins 2 — 32,735fans.

5:16 — New High School 1–0, Amateur 24-Inning, and High School 24-Inning Records — Flamingo Park, Miami Beach, Florida — 4/23/1970 — Miami High School Stingarees 1 Hialeah High School Thoroughbreds 0 in 24 innings; then Miami Coral Park High School Rams 9 Miami High School 0 in 2:44 and 7 innings — 500 fans; 1000 fans at end —1st game finished at 8:16 P.M.; 2nd game finished at 11:44 P.M.

4:58 — Equaled American League 17-Inning Record — 5/2/1970 — Municipal Stadium, Kansas City, Missouri — Royals 4 Indians 3 — 8016 fans — finished at 12:58 A.M. in the early morning of 5/3.

4:35 — New High School 17-Inning and High School 0–0 Records — Alhambra, California — 5/19/ 1970 — Aaaa playoffs — Alhambra Keppel High School Aztecs 0 Anaheim Western High School Pioneers 0 in 17 innings.

5:29 – New All-Time 15-Inning, Professional 15-Inning, Major League 15-Inning, and National League 15-Inning Records – Candlestick Park, San Francisco, California – 5/23/1970 – Padres 17 Giants 16 in 15 innings –15,536 fans.

6:37 — New Minor League 23-Inning Record — All-Sports Stadium, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma — 5/28/1970 and 5/29/1970 — American Association — Indianapolis Indians 10 Oklahoma City 89'ers 7 in 23 innings, suspended after 4:53 and 17 innings — 3118 fans on 5/28, 2836 fans on 5/29 — suspended at 12:53 A.M. in the early morning of 5/29.

6:03 – New High School 22-Inning Record – Shively Field, Lexington, Kentucky – 6/3/1970 – Madisonville High School Maroons 12 Lexington Lafayette High School Generals 11 in 22 innings.

3:56 — New Minor League 11-Inning Record — Danville Stadium, Danville, Illinois — 6/15/1970 rain delay 3:16 at start, Quad City Angels 11 Danville Warriors 7 in 3:56 and 11 innings — 505 fans, 175 fans at end —finished at 1:42 A.M. in the early morning of 6/16.

3:56 – New NCAA College World Series Record – Rosenblatt Stadium, Omaha, Nebraska – 6/19/1970 – University of Southern California Trojans 2 Florida State University Seminoles 1 in 15 innings. 6:02 — New All-Time 19-Inning, Professional 19-Inning, and Minor League 19-Inning Records — Del Webb Field, Modesto, California — 6/19/1970 — California League — Modesto Reds 9 Reno Silver Sox 8 in 19 innings —1275 fans, 400 fans at end —finished at 1:57 A.M. in the early morning of 6/20.

4:54 – New College 20-Inning and Japanese 20-Inning Records – Meiji Jingu Kyujyo (Stadium), Tokyo, Japan – 6/24/1970 – All-Japan University League – Kansai University 3 Hosei University 2 in 20 innings.

5:45 — New Minor League 18-Inning and Mexican 18-Inning Records — Parque Deportivo del Seguro Social (Social Security Stadium), Mexico City, Distrito Federal (Federal District) or Guadalajara, Mexico — 6/24/1970 — Mexican League — Mexico City Diablos Rojos (Red Devils) 10 Jalisco Charros 9 in 18 innings finished at 1:15 A.M. in the early morning of 6/25.

4:00—New All-Time 7-Inning, Amateur 7-Inning, and High School 7-Inning Records — Tiger Field, New London, Iowa — 7/6/1970—Iowa High School League — Lone Tree High School Lions 25 New London High School Tigers 17 in 7 innings.

2:23 – New Playoffs 10-Inning Record – Three Rivers Stadium, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania – 10/3/ 1970 – Reds 3 Pirates 0 in 10 innings – 31,530 fans.

2:59 — New American League Playoffs 9-Inning and American League Championship Series 9-Inning Records — Metropolitan Stadium, Bloomington, Minnesota — 10/4/1970 — Orioles 11 Twins 3 — 27,490 fans.

5:03 – New Amateur 23-Inning, College 23-Inning, and NCAA 23-Inning Records – Clark Field, Lafayette, Louisiana – 3/27/1971– University of Southwestern Louisiana (now University of Louisiana-Lafayette) Ragin' Cajuns 6 McNeese State University Cowboys 5 in 23 innings, then McNeese State 13 Southwestern Louisiana 10 in 2:30 and 7 innings –1st game finished at 6:33 P.M., 2nd game finished at 10:03 P.M.

4:15 — New Pony League Record — Mount Prospect, Illinois — 5/31/1971 — Mount Prospect Pony A League — Braves 6 Orioles 5 in 20 innings.

5:19 — New American League 21-Inning Record — R.F.K. Stadium, Washington, D.C. — 6/4/1971 — rain delay 0:17 at start, Athletics 6 Senators 3 in 21 innings — 6159 fans —finished at 1:36 A.M. in the early morning of 6/5.

7:00—New Minor League and Minor League 22-Inning Records; Equaled All-Time 22-Inning and Professional 22-Inning Records—Recreation Park, Visalia, California—6/19/1971 and 6/20/1971—California League—Visalia Mets 11 Bakersfield Dodgers 9 in 22 innings, suspended after 4:50 and 15 innings, called a tie, however league president later reversed tie game ruling and ordered game to be continued—867 fans on 6/19, 449 fans on 6/20—suspended at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 6/20.

5:05 — New American League 1–0 Record — Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California – 7/9/1971— Athletics 1 Angels 0 in 20 innings – 22,938 fans – finished at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 7/10.

2:51—New Little League World Series Record — Lamade Stadium, Williamsport, Pennsylvania — 8/??/ 1971—Gary (Indiana) vs. Tainan (Taiwan) in 9 innings.

6:00—New Brazilian, Amateur 20-Inning, and Brazilian 20-Inning Records—Bom Retiro (Good Place to Rest) Stadium, Sao Paulo—9/7/1971—National Championships—Sul-Brasil 6 Presidente Venceslau 5 in 20 innings—2000 fans—finished at 5 P.M.

6:15 – New Major League 20-Inning, American League 20-Inning, and One State/One District Records – Cleveland Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio and R.F.K. Stadium, Washington, D.C. – 9/14/1971 and 9/20/1971– Senators 8 Indians 6 in 20 innings in 2nd game, suspended after 5:00 and 16 innings in Cleveland, completed 9/20 in Washington; Indians 3 Senators 1 in 1:54 in 1st game – 2639 fans on 9/14 in Cleveland, 100 fans at suspension, 1743 fans on 9/20 in Washington, 333 fans top 17th – suspended at 1:00 A.M. in the early morning of 9/15.

3:23 — New National League Playoffs, National League Championship Series, National League Playoffs 9-Inning, and National League Championship Series 9-Inning Records — Candlestick Park, San Francisco, California — 10/3/1971 — Pirates 9 Giants 4 — 42,562 fans.

3:30— New Oceania, Australian, and Australian 19-Inning Records — Norwood Oval, Adelaide, State of South Australia — 3/15/1972 — South Australian League — Port Adelaide Magpies 4 Goodwood Indians 2 in 19 innings — finished at 11:40 P.M.

4:35 – New U.S. College 20-Inning and NCAA 20-Inning Records – Perry Field (later McKethan Stadium at Perry Field), Gainesville, Florida – 4/22/1972 – Auburn University Tigers 7 University of Florida Gators 6 in 20 innings – 350 fans.

4:38 — New U.S. College 20-Inning and NCAA 20-Inning Records — Coleman Field (now Goss Stadium at Coleman Field), Corvallis, Oregon — 5/6/ 1972 — University of Washington Huskies 2 Oregon State University Beavers 1 in 20 innings, then Oregon State 7 Washington 1 in 1:45 and 7 innings — 250 fans.

5:10— New College 20-Inning and NCAA 20-Inning Records — University Field, Amherst, Massachusetts — 5/13/1972 — University of Connecticut Huskies 9 University of Massachusetts Minutemen 3 in 20 innings.

32:15 — New Planned Marathon Record — Echo Park, Burlington, Wisconsin — 6/10/1972 and 6/11/ 1972 — Amateur — Researchers 341 Mist Tents 334 in 320 innings — fundraiser for National Cystic Fibrosis Research Foundation — finished at 3:00 P.M. on 6/11.

30:30 – New 3-Day Planned Marathon Record – Telulah Park, Appleton, Wisconsin – 8/18/1972 and 8/19/1972 and 8/20/1972 — Amateur — Dan Felton's Follies 154 Randy Haak's Hawks 142 in 325 innings fundraiser for National Cystic Fibrosis Research Foundation organized by Appleton High School West Key Kiwanis Youth Club — finished at 12:30 A.M. in the early morning of 8/20.

4:12 – New American League Spring Training Record – Fort Lauderdale Stadium, Fort Lauderdale, Florida – 3/23/1973 – Grapefruit League – Yankees 3 Rangers 2 in 16 innings – 3665 fans.

4:05 — New High School 0–0 Record — Mt. Olive, Illinois — 5/23/1973 — Staunton High School Bulldogs 0 Mt. Olive High School Wildcats 0 in 21 innings, scheduled to resume 5/29 but instead they decided to play a new game — finished at 8:05 P.M.

5:42 — New Major League 19-Inning and National League 19-Inning Records — Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California — 5/24/1973 — Mets 7 Dodgers 3 in 19 innings — 27,580 fans — finished at 1:45 A.M. in the early morning of 5/25.

6:03 — New Major League 21-Inning and American League 21-Inning Records — Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois — 5/26/1973 and 5/28/1973 — American League — White Sox 6 Indians 3 in 21 innings, rain delay 0:17 top 14th, suspended after 4:39 and 16 innings —19,486 fans on 5/26, 17,419 fans on 5/28 suspended at 1:01 A.M. in the early morning of 5/27.

6:06 — New American Legion and Amateur 24-Inning Records — Regional Park, Midwest City, Oklahoma — 7/??/1973 — Post 170 Midwest City 2 Post 170 Choctaw 1 in 24 innings — 50 fans, 15 fans at end finished at 2:06 A.M. in the early morning of 7/??.

6:23 — New Mexican Full-Length, Amateur 23-Inning, and Mexican 23-Inning Records — Estadio (Stadium) Alberto Hoeffer, Nogales, State of Sonora, Mexico — 7/29/1973 — Liga (League) Norte de Sonora — Cananea Mineros (Miners) 4 Nogales 2 in 23 innings —1800 fans — finished at 1:53 A.M. in the early morning of 7/30.

4:13 – New Inter-League, World Series, Inter-League 12-Inning, and Playoffs 12-Inning Records – Oakland-Alameda County Coliseum, Oakland, California –10/14/1973 – NL at AL – Mets 10 Athletics 7 in 12 innings – 49,151 fans.

7:04 — New All-Time 25-Inning, Professional 25-Inning, Major League 25-Inning, National League 25-Inning, and Major League Commissioner-in-Attendance Records — Shea Stadium, New York, New York — 9/11/1974 — Cardinals 4 Mets 3 in 25 innings — 13,460 fans, 1000 fans at end including 5th Commissioner of Baseball Bowie Kuhn — finished at 3:13 A.M. in the early morning of 9/12.

4:28 — New Professional 1–0, Major League 1–0, and American League 1–0 Records — Memorial Stadium, Baltimore, Maryland — 9/27/1974 — Orioles 1 Brewers 0 in 17 innings —17,695 fans — finished at 11:58 P.M.

4:36 — New Japanese Minor League Record — Korakuen Kyujyo (Stadium), Tokyo — 6/9/1975 and 6/10/ 1975 – Eastern League – Taiyo Whales 4 Nippon Ham Fighters 3 in 17 innings, suspended after 4:04 and 15 innings –1500 fans on 6/9, 200 fans on 6/10.

3:35 – New Major League All-Star Record – County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin – 7/15/1975 – AL at NL – National League All-Stars 6 American League All-Stars 3 – 51,480 fans.

4:00— New Puerto Rican and Puerto Rican 21-Inning Records — Estadio (Stadium) Hiram Bithorn, San Juan, Puerto Rico —12/26/1975 — Winter League — Santurce Cangrejeros (Crabbers) 5 Bayamon Vaqueros (Cowboys) 2 in 21 innings — finished at 2:00 A.M. in the early morning of 12/27.

2:15 — New American League 6-Inning Record — County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin — 8/5/1976— Brewers 9 Yankees 3 in 6 innings, rain delay 0:30 top 7th — 27,156 fans.

3:00—New American League Playoffs 9-Inning and American League Championship Series 9-Inning Records—Yankee Stadium, New York, New York— 10/12/1976—Yankees 5 Royals 3—56,808 fans.

3:13 — New American League Playoffs 9-Inning and American League Championship Series 9-Inning Records — Yankee Stadium, New York, New York — 10/14/1976 — Yankees 7 Royals 6 — 56,821 fans.

2:40—New American League Indoor Record— KingDome, Seattle, Washington—4/6/1977—Angels 7 Mariners 0—57,762 fans.

3:04 — New American League Indoor Record — KingDome, Seattle, Washington — 4/7/1977 — Angels 2 Mariners 0—10,144 fans.

3:57 — New American League 9-Inning Record — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 4/10/1977 — Indians 19 Red Sox 9 — 14,931 fans.

4:10—New High School 0–0 Record—Fort Wayne, Indiana—4/10/1977—Bishop Dwenger High School Saints 22 Adams Central High School 22.

3:44 — New American League Indoor Record — KingDome, Seattle, Washington — 4/13/1977 — Mariners 3 Twins 2 in 13 innings —11,635 fans.

6:30— New Mexican Full-Length and Mexican 23-Inning Records; Equaled Central American Record — Estadio (Stadium) Cordoba, Cordoba, State of Veracruz — 4/28/1977 — Mexican League — Aguascalientes Rieleros (Railroadmen) 6 Cordoba Cafeteros (Coffee Growers) 2 in 23 innings — 4000 fans, 800 fans at end —finished at 3:00 A.M. in the early morning of 4/29.

5:33 — New Canadian 21-Inning Record — Stade Olympique (Olympic Stadium), Montreal, Province of Quebec, Canada — 5/21/1977 — National League — Padres 11 Expos 8 in 21 innings —16,892 fans, 8000 fans at end —finished at 1:15 A.M. in the early morning of 5/22.

3:02 — New All-Time 1–0 9-Inning, Professional 1–0 9-Inning, Major League 1–0 9-Inning, and American League 1–0 9-Inning Records — Metropolitan Stadium, Bloomington, Minnesota — 6/29/1977 — Brewers 1 Twins 0–13,713 fans. 17:00— New Planned Marathon Record — Buffalo Grove, Illinois — 9/5/1977 — Neighborhood Amateur — Team A 97 Team B 91 in 55 innings — finished at 8:00 P.M.

5:12 — New American League 17-Inning Record — Arlington Stadium, Arlington, Texas — 9/17/1977 –Rangers 5 Twins 4 in 17 innings —13,163 fans.

3:16 — New Two-City 9-Inning Record — 7/20/ 1978; 7/28/1978 — Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois; Candlestick Park, San Francisco, California — Giants 9 Cubs 8, rain delay 0:30 top 5th, 2nd rain delay 0:41 top 5th, 3rd rain delay 0:57 bottom 7th, suspended top 8th — 20,025 fans on 7/20 in Chicago; 25,908 fans on 7/28 in San Francisco — suspended at 6:27 P.M. on 7/20.

2:52 - New Major League Division Tiebreaker, Major League Division Tiebreaker 9-Inning, American League Division Tiebreaker, and American League Division Tiebreaker 9-Inning Records – Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts –10/2/1978 – Yankees 5 Red Sox 4 – 32,925 fans.

5:20—New Mexican 1–0 and Mexican 20-Inning Records—Estadio (Stadium) Manuel "Ciclon" Echeverria, Navojoa, State of Baja California, Mexico— 1/2/1979—Mexican Pacific League—Navojoa Mayos 1 Mexicali Aguilas (Eagles) 0 in 20 innings in 2nd game; Mexicali vs. Navojoa in 1st game.

4:30—New All-Time 9-Inning, Amateur 9-Inning, College 9-Inning, and NCAA Division I 9-Inning Records—Perry Field, Gainesville, Florida—3/6/1979 —Temple University Owls 19 University of Florida Gators 17.

4:03 — New National League 10-Inning Record — Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois — 5/17/1979 — Phillies 23 Cubs 22 in 10 innings —14,952 fans —finished at 5:23 P.M.

5:17 — Equaled All-Time 16-Inning and Professional 16-Inning Records; New Major League 16-Inning and American League 16-Inning Records — 5/26/1979 — Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan — Orioles 7 Tigers 5 in 16 innings —14,583 fans.

5:09 — New American League 15-Inning Record — Arlington Stadium, Arlington, Texas — 7/1/1979 — Athletics 13 Rangers 12 in 15 innings —16,819 fans.

5:14 — New Major League 17-Inning and American League 17-Inning Records — County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin — 7/13/1979 — Brewers 4 Indians 3 in 17 innings —18,524 fans.

5:17 — New National League 18-Inning Record — Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois — 5/10/1979 and 7/23/ 1979 — Cubs 9 Reds 8 in 18 innings, suspended after 3:11 and 9 innings so Cubs could catch 6:05 P.M. flight to Houston, which caused riot among Cubs fans in stands requiring 7 police cars and 3 paddywagons — 9164 fans on 5/10; 36,993 fans on 7/23 — suspended at 4:49 P.M.

6:12 — New All-Time 19-Inning, Professional 19-Inning, Major League 19-Inning, and National League 19-Inning Records — San Diego (later Jack Murphy, then Qualcomm) Stadium, San Diego, California – 8/25/1979 – Pirates 4 Padres 3 in 19 innings –14,607 fans; 5000 fans at end —finished at 1:20 A.M. in the early morning of 8/26.

6:06 — New Taiwan, Taiwan College, College 21-Inning, and Taiwan 21-Inning Records — Municipal Qiuchang (Stadium), Taipei — 9/15/1979 — University League — Weichuan Foods/Chinese Culture University 1 Putaowang (Grape King) Biotechnology/Fu Jen Catholic University 0 in 21 innings —finished at 10:11 P.M.

3:24 — New National League Playoffs and National League Championship Series Records — Riverfront Stadium, Cincinnati, Ohio —10/3/1979 — Pirates 3 Reds 2 in 10 innings — 55,000 fans.

3:48 — New Inter-League 9-Inning and World Series 9-Inning Records — Three Rivers Stadium, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania —10/13/1979 — AL at NL — Orioles 9 Pirates 6 — 50,883 fans.

5:35 — New Major League 17-Inning and National League 17-Inning Records — Astrodome, Houston, Texas — 4/12/1980 — Dodgers 6 Astros 5 in 17 innings — 24,609 fans.

3:27 — New Iowa High School State Tournament Record — High School Field, Marshalltown — 7/26/ 1980—1A State Championship Game — Lansing Kee High School Hawks 4 Bancroft St. John's High School Johnnies 3 in 13 innings; then Des Moines East High School Scarlet 4 Charles City 2 High School Comets in 8 innings in 2A State Championship Game — 2300 fans —1st game finished at 3:27 P.M.

4:20 – New NCAA Division I, College World Series, Amateur 11-Inning, College 11-Inning, and NCAA Division I 9-Inning Records – Rosenblatt Stadium, Omaha, Nebraska – 6/1/1980 – University of Michigan Wolverines 9 University of California Golden Bears 8 in 11 innings.

5:31— New National League 20-Inning Record — Three Rivers Stadium, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 7/6/1980— Pirates 5 Cubs 4 in 20 innings — 25,994 fans — finished at 6:36 P.M.

6:17 — New Major League 20-Inning and National League 20-Inning Records — San Diego (later Jack Murphy, then Qualcomm) Stadium, San Diego, California — 8/15/1980 — National League — Astros 3 Padres 1 in 20 innings — 14,177 fans — finished at 1:26 A.M. in the early morning of 8/16.

14:21— New College Planned Marathon Record — Jennings Stadium or Lake Olmstead Stadium, Augusta, Georgia; Pacer Field, Aiken, South Carolina; and Citizens' Field, Aiken, South Carolina — 9/23/1980— NCAA — Augusta College (later Augusta State University) Jaguars 52 University of South Carolina-Aiken Pacers 46 in 105 innings, first group of players played from 7:34 A.M. to 12:00 Noon at Jennings Stadium or Lake Olmstead Stadium in Augusta, second group of players played from 12:00 Noon to 5:00 P.M. at Pacer Field in Aiken, first group of players played again from 5:00 P.M. to 9:55 P.M. at Citizens' Field in Aiken—finished at 9:55 P.M.— planned marathon.

3:10—New Major League Division Tiebreaker, Major League Division Tiebreaker 9-Inning, National League Division Tiebreaker, and National League Division Tiebreaker 9-Inning Records — Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California —10/6/1980 — Astros 7 Dodgers 1—51,127 fans.

3:34 — New All-Time Playoffs, Professional Playoffs, Major League Playoffs, Major League Championship Series, and National League Championship Series Records — Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 10/8/1980 — Astros 7 Phillies 4 in 10 innings — 65,476 fans.

3:55 — New All-Time Playoffs, Professional Playoffs, Major League Playoffs, Major League Championship Series, and National League Championship Series Records — Astrodome, Houston, Texas —10/11/ 1980 — Phillies 5 Astros 3 in 10 innings — 44,952 fans.

5:40— New Caribbean, Dominican, and Dominican 22-Inning Records — Estadio (Stadium) Quisqueya, Santo Domingo —1/12/1981— Winter League — Orientales Estrellas (Oriental Stars) 4 Licey Tigres (Tigers) 3 in 22 innings —finished at 3:30 A.M. in the early morning of 1/13.

8:07 — New All-Time Extra-Innings Continuous, Professional Continuous, and Minor League Continuous Records — McCoy Stadium, Pawtucket, Rhode Island — 4/18/1981— International League — power failure delay 0:30 at start, Pawtucket Paw Sox 3 Rochester Red Wings 2 in 33 innings, suspended after 8:07 and 32 innings —1740 fans, 100 fans top 21st, 27 fans top 27th, 19 fans at suspension, 5756 fans on 6/23 — suspended at 4:07 A.M. in the early morning of 4/19, dawn was at 5:00 A.M., finished at 6:18 P.M. on 6/23.

5:20— New NAIA Playoffs, College 20-Inning, and Naia 20-Inning Records — Thunderbird Park, Cedar City, Utah — 5/2/1981— Mesa State College Mavericks 9 New Mexico Highlands University Cowboys 8 in 20 innings, then Southern Utah State College Thunderbirds 5 Mesa State 4.

5:31—New All-Time 16-Inning, Professional 16-Inning, Major League 16-Inning, and American League 16-Inning Records—Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois—5/13/1981—Indians 4 White Sox 3 in 16 innings—10,463 fans—finished at 1:08 A.M. in the early morning of 5/14.

6:07 — New Amateur 20-Inning, College 20-Inning, and NCAA 20-Inning Records — Disch-Falk Field, Austin, Texas — 5/15/1981 and 5/16/1981— University of Texas Longhorns 7 Rice University Owls 6 in 20 innings, rain delay 2:00 top 13th, suspended after 3:10 and 12 innings — 4700 fans on 5/15, 300 fans at suspension, 3000 fans on 5/16 — suspended at 1:15 A.M. in the early morning of 5/16, finished at 3:02 P.M. on 5/16.

4:25 — New NCAA Division III 9-Inning Record — Marietta, Ohio — 6/1/1981— Marietta College Pioneers 14 Ithaca College Bombers 12 —1000 fans. 5:00— New College World Series Record — Rosenblatt Stadium, Omaha, Nebraska — 6/5/1981— National Collegiate Athletic Association — Oklahoma State University Cowboys 11 Arizona State University Sun Devils 10 in 13 innings.

3:58 — New College World Series 9-Inning Record — Rosenblatt Stadium, Omaha, Nebraska — 6/7/1981 — Arizona State University Sun Devils 12 University of Texas Longhorns 3.

8:25 — New All-Time Extra-Innings, Professional, Minor League, All-Time 33-Inning, Professional 33-Inning, and Minor League 33-Inning Records — McCoy Stadium, Pawtucket, Rhode Island — 4/18/1981 and 6/23/1981—International League power failure delay 0:30 at start, Pawtucket Paw Sox 3 Rochester Red Wings 2 in 33 innings, suspended after 8:07 and 32 innings —1740 fans, 150 fans Midnight, 100 fans top 21st, 60 fans 1 A.M., 27 fans top 27th, 19 fans at suspension, 5756 fans on 6/23 — suspended at 4:07 A.M. in the early morning of 4/19, dawn was at 5:00 A.M., finished at 6:18 P.M. on 6/23.

4:41— New Minor League 14-Inning Record — Four Mile Run Park, Arlington, Virginia — 8/17/1981— Carolina League — Alexandria Dukes 12 Winston-Salem Red Sox 11 in 14 innings — 551 fans — finished at 12:11 A.M. in the early morning of 8/18.

5:30— New Canadian 22-Inning Record — Parc (Park) Victor Gadbois, Montreal, Province of Quebec — 8/30/1981— Ligue Montreal Junior (Montreal Junior League)— St. Leonard Cougars 2 Sud-Ouest (Southwest) 1 in 22 innings—finished at 7:30 P.M.

2:35 — New Major League Division Series, American League Division Series, Major League Division Series 9-Inning, and American League Division Series 9-Inning Records — Royals Stadium, Kansas City, Missouri — 10/6/1981 — Athletics 4 Royals 0 — 40,592 fans.

2:22 — New National League Division Series and National League Division Series 9-Inning Records — Astrodome, Houston, Texas —10/6/1981—Astros 3 Dodgers 1—44,836 fans.

2:30—New National League Division Series and National League Division Series 9-Inning Records— Stade Olympique, Montreal, Province of Quebec, Canada—10/7/1981—Expos 3 Phillies 1—34,237 fans.

2:50— New Major League Division Series, American League Division Series, Major League Division Series 9-Inning, and American League Division Series 9-Inning Records — Royals Stadium, Kansas City, Missouri — 10/7/1981— Athletics 2 Royals 1—40,274 fans.

2:57 — New Major League Division Series, American League Division Series, Major League Division Series 9-Inning, and American League Division Series 9-Inning Records — County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin —10/7/1981—Yankees 5 Brewers 3 — 35,064 fans.

3:39 – New Major League Division Series and National League Division Series Records – Astrodome, Houston, Texas -10/7/1981 - Astros 1 Dodgers 0 in 11 innings -42,398 fans.

2:59 — New American League Division Series and American League Division Series 9-Inning Records — Oakland-Alameda County Coliseum — 10/9/1981— Athletics 4 Royals 1— 40,002 fans.

2:52 — New National League Division Series 9-Inning Record — Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California — 10/11/1981 — Dodgers 4 Astros 0 — 55,979 fans.

3:19 – New American League Championship Series 9-Inning Record – Oakland-Alameda County Coliseum –10/15/1981–Yankees 4 Athletics 0– 47,302 fans.

?:?? — New Korean Professional Record — Dongdae-Mun (East Great Gate) Yagu-jang (Stadium), Seoul — 3/27/1982 — Korean Organization — Mbc (Munhwa (Culture) Broadcasting Company) Blue Dragons defeated Samsung Lions in 10 innings.

5:31— Equaled All-Time 16-Inning, Professional 16-Inning, Major League 16-Inning, and American League 16-Inning Records — Oakland Coliseum, Oakland, California — 4/8/1982 — Angels 8 Athletics 6 in 16 innings —17,806 fans; 1000 fans at end —finished at 1:09 A.M. in the early morning of 4/9.

6:39 — New Minor League 23-Inning Record — Smith-Wills Stadium, Jackson, Mississippi — 7/6/ 1982 — Texas League — Tulsa Drillers 11 Jackson Mets 7 in 23 innings —1105 fans, 200 fans at end —finished at 2:09 A.M. in the early morning of 7/7.

6:10— New Major League 21-Inning and National League 21-Inning Records — Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois — 8/17/1982 and 8/18/1982 — Dodgers 2 Cubs 1 in 21 innings, suspended after 5:10 and 17 innings — 26,576 fans on 8/17, 27,429 fans on 8/18 — suspended at 6:45 P.M. on 8/17, finished at 12:05 P.M. on 8/18.

5:20— New National League 16-Inning Record — Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California — 9/13/1982 — Dodgers 4 Padres 3 in 16 innings — 37,512 fans.

5:17 – New American League 17-Inning Record – Oakland Coliseum, Oakland, California – 5/23/1983 – Athletics 5 Brewers 4 – 24,029 fans.

3:22 — New NCAA Division III 9-Inning Record — Pioneer Park, Marietta, Ohio — 6/2/1983 — Eastern Connecticut State College (now University) Warriors 6 Montclair State College (now University) Red Hawks 5, rain delay 2:45 — 150 fans — finished at 4:07 P.M.

4:42 — New NAIA and NAIA 10-Inning Records — Chaparral Stadium (later Hays Field), Lubbock, Texas — 6/2/1983 — Lewis-Clark State College Warriors 18 Lubbock Christian College Chaparrals 17 in 10 innings — finished at 12:42 A.M. in the early morning of 6/3.

4:00— New NCAA Division III 9-Inning Two-Day Record — Pioneer Park, Marietta, Ohio — 6/3/1983 and 6/4/1983 — Marietta College Pioneers 13 California State College (now University) at Stanislaus Warriors 12, rain delay 0:37, suspended —150 fans — suspended at 5:22 P.M. on 6/3, finished at 3:20 P.M. on 6/4.

5:19 – New American League 15-Inning Record – Oakland Coliseum, Oakland, California – 7/3/1983

Rangers 16 Athletics 4 in 15 innings – 20,697 fans.
4:11- New American League 9-Inning Record –
Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois – 7/10/1983 –
Brewers 12 White Sox 9 – 28,988 fans.

3:45 — New Congressional Game Record — Four Mile Run Park, Arlington, Virginia — 7/27/1983 — Democrats 17 Republicans 17 in 8½ innings; preceded by Lynchburg Mets at Alexandria Dukes South Atlantic (Sally) League game at 4 P.M.—finished at 11:15 P.M.

3:53 — New South Korean, Taiwanese 11-Inning, and South Korean 11-Inning Records — Chamsil Yagujang (Stadium), Seoul, South Korea — 9/13/1983 — Asian Championship — Taiwan 3 South Korea 2 in 11 innings, then Taiwan 1 Japan 0 in 2:44 — 2nd game finished at 10:12 P.M.

2:52 — New Professional 7-Inning, Major League 7-Inning, and American League 7-Inning Records — Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois — 9/15/1983 — White Sox 12 Mariners 0 in 6½ innings — 30,328 fans.

8:19 – New Amateur, Asian, Japanese, All-Time Extra-Innings Continuous, All-Time 45-Inning, Amateur 45-Inning, and Japanese 45-Inning Records – Ibaraki-Mito Kenei (Prefectural) Kyujyo (Stadium), Mito – 9/20/1983 – Industrial Emperor's Cup Nanshiki Tournament – Tokyo Raito (Light) Kogyo (Manufacturing Company) 2 Miyazaki Tanaka Byouin (Hospital) 1 in 45 innings, umpire snack break delay 0:06 top 26th, players refused 0:30 break top 26th –100 fans at end –finished at 5:15 P.M.

4:16 – New National League 10-Inning Record – Cinergy Field, Cincinnati, Ohio – 9/26/1983 – Dodgers 12 Reds 9 in 10 innings – 8891 fans.

3:41— New American League Championship Series and Playoffs 10-Inning Records — Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois —10/8/1983 — Orioles 3 White Sox 0 in 10 innings — 45,477 fans.

4:20—New Minor League 11-Inning Record— Davis Ford Park (later G. Richard Pfitzner Stadium), Woodbridge, Virginia—4/25/1984—Carolina League —Salem Redbirds 5 Prince William Pirates 2 in 2:40 and 9 innings, then Prince William 8 Salem 7 in 11 innings—1588 fans—finished at 2:00 A.M. in the early morning of 4/26.

5:44 — New American League 19-Inning Record — Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan — 4/27/1984 — Indians 8 Tigers 4 in 19 innings — 34,112 fans, 7000 fans at end —finished at 1:22 A.M. in the early morning of 4/28.

8:06 – New Major League, American League, All-Time 25-Inning, Professional 25-Inning, Major League 25-Inning, and American League 25-Inning Records – Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois – 5/8/1984 and 5/9/1984 – White Sox 7 Brewers 6 in 25 innings, suspended after 5:29 and 17 innings –14,754 fans on 5/8, 17,715 fans on 5/9 — suspended at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 5/9.

4:01- New College World Series 9-Inning Record

Rosenblatt Stadium, Omaha, Nebraska – 6/5/1984
 Arizona State University Sun Devils 23 Oklahoma State University Cowboys 12.

6:02 — Equaled Minor League 19-Inning Record — Municipal Stadium, Greenville, South Carolina — 7/13/1984 and 7/14/1984 — Southern League — Memphis Chicks 3 Greenville Braves 2 in 19 innings, then Greenville 6 Memphis 5 in 2:11 and 7 innings, suspended after 2 innings, completed 7/14 as 1st game of tripleheader — 3044 fans on 7/13, 250 fans at suspension, 4456 fans on 7/14 — suspended at 1:07 A.M. in the early morning of 7/14.

3:00— New Olympics, Olympics 9-Inning, Olympics Demonstration Sport, and USA Olympics Demonstration Sport Records — Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California — 7/31/1984 — Italy 10 Dominican 7, then USA 2 Taiwan 1 in 2:19 — 52,319 fans — 1st game finished at 7:00 P.M.; 2nd game finished at 10:04 P.M.

3:02 – New Olympics, Olympics 12-Inning, Olympics Demonstration Sport, and USA Olympics Demonstration Sport Records – Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California – 8/1/1984 – Nicaragua 4 Canada 3 in 12 innings; then Japan 2 South Korea 0 in 2:48 – 39,120 fans —1st game finished at 7:02 P.M.; 2nd game finished at 10:35 P.M.

3:05 — New Olympics, Olympics 9-Inning, Olympics Demonstration Sport, and USA Olympics Demonstration Sport Records — Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California — 8/5/1984 — South Korea 7 Nicaragua 6 in 2nd game; Canada 6 Japan 4 in 2:29 in 1st game — 48,656 fans —1st game finished at 7:05 P.M.; 2nd game finished at 10:19 P.M.

2:47 — New Olympics 10-Inning and USA Olympics Demonstration Sport 10-Inning Records — Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California — 8/6/1984 — Japan 2 Taiwan 1 in 10 innings, then United States of America 5 South Korea 2 in 2:54 — 54,521 fans — 1st game finished at 6:47 P.M.; 2nd game finished at 10:24 P.M.

3:41—New Olympics, Olympics 14-Inning, Olympics Demonstration Sport, USA Olympics Demonstration Sport, USA Olympics Demonstration Sport 14-Inning, and Amateur 14-Inning Records— Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California— 8/7/1984—Taiwan 3 South Korea 0 in 14 innings, then Japan 6 United States of America 3 in 2:45— 55,235 fans—1st game finished at 7:41 P.M., 2nd game finished at 11:11 P.M.

3:37 — New American League Playoffs, American League Championship Series, and Playoffs 11-Inning Records — Royals Stadium, Kansas City, Missouri — 10/3/1984 — Tigers 5 Royals 3 in 11 innings — 42,019 fans.

6:38 – New Central American Full-Length, Mexican Full-Length, All-Time 15-Inning, Professional 15-Inning, Minor League 15-Inning, and Mexican 15-Inning Records – Estadio (Stadium) Tomas Oroz Gaytan, Ciudad Obregon, State of Sonora, Mexico – 12/30/1984 – Mexican Pacific League – Guaymas Ostioneros (Oyster Growers) 6 Obregon Yaquis 4 in 15 innings – finished at 2:08 A.M. in the early morning of 12/31.

4:54 — New NAIA, U.S. College 21-Inning, and Naia vs. NCAA 21-Inning Records — J.C. Love Field, Ruston, Louisiana — 2/16/1985 — NAIA at NCAA — Louisiana Tech University Bulldogs 2 Southern Arkansas University Muleriders 1 in 21 innings —150 fans; 75 fans at end —finished at 6:24 P.M.

5:21— New National League 18-Inning Record — Shea Stadium, New York, New York — 4/28/1985 — Mets 5 Pirates 4 in 18 innings — 36,423 fans.

4:30 – New NCAA Division III Playoffs, Amateur 11-Inning, College 11-Inning, and NCAA 11-Inning Records – Marietta, Ohio – 6/1/1985 – Marietta College Pioneers 14 Ithaca College Bombers 10 in 11 innings –1350 fans.

7:07 — New All-Time 27-Inning, Professional 27-Inning, and Minor League 27-Inning Records — MacArthur Stadium, Syracuse, New York — 6/19/1985 and 6/20/1985 and 6/21/1985 — International League — Pawtucket Paw Sox 3 Syracuse Chiefs 1 in 27 innings, suspended after 5:36 and 22 innings, continued 6/20, rain delay 0:13 top 23rd, 2nd rain delay 0:50 bottom 24th, suspended again after 6:07 and 23½ innings, finally completed 6/21—1233 fans on 6/19; 200 fans when suspended after 22 innings; 3020 fans on 6/21— suspended at 1:12 A.M. in the early morning of 6/20, suspended again at 9:05 P.M. on 6/20, finished at 7:31 P.M. on 6/21.

5:03 – New National League 14-Inning Record – Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois – 8/1/1985 – Cubs 9 Cardinals 8 in 14 innings – 36,164 fans.

3:39 — New Canadian Playoffs 10-Inning Record — Exhibition Stadium, Toronto, Province of Ontario, Canada — 10/9/1985 — Blue Jays 6 Royals 5 in 10 innings, rain delay bottom 6th — 34,029 fans.

3:32 — New Major League Championship Series 9-Inning and National League Championship Series 9-Inning Records — Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California — 10/16/1985 — Cardinals 7 Dodgers 5 — 55,208 fans.

5:03 — Equaled National League 14-Inning Record — Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 4/12/1986 — Phillies 9 Mets 8 in 14 innings — 22,737 fans.

6:15 — Equaled High School Record; New Amateur 20-Inning and High School 20-Inning Records — Mayo Field, Rochester, Minnesota — 5/10/1986 and 5/20/1986 — Minnesota High School League — Rochester Mayo High School Spartans 3 Mankato East High School Cougars 2 in 20 innings, rain delay 1:30 bottom 10th, suspended after 3:00 and 9½ innings, then Rochester Mayo 11 Mankato East 10 in 2:30 and 7 innings —125 fans on 5/10 — suspended at 3:30 P.M. on 5/10, 1st game finished at 8:15 P.M. on 5/20; 2nd game finished at 11:15 P.M. on 5/20. 4:16 — New American League 9-Inning Record — Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York — 6/8/1986 — Orioles 18 Yankees 9, rain delay 0:40 4th — 52,021 fans — ended at 7:56 P.M.

4:20—New Professional 10-Inning, Major League 10-Inning, and American League 10-Inning Records— Humphrey Metrodome, Minneapolis, Minnesota— 6/18/1986—Twins 10 White Sox 9 in 10 innings— 13,123 fans.

5:29 - Equaled Major League 15-Inning and National League 15-Inning Records - Astrodome, Houston, Texas - 7/20/1986 - Astros 9 Mets 8 in 15 innings - 23,900 fans.

6:09 — New All-Time 17-Inning, Professional 17-Inning, Major League 17-Inning, and National League 17-Inning Records — Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois — 4/20/1986 and 8/11/1986 — Pirates 10 Cubs 8 in 17 innings, suspended after 4:48 and 13 innings — 18,508 fans on 4/20; 20,636 fans on 8/11— suspended at 6:18 P.M.

5:45 — New European, San Marinoan, Italian, Amateur 17-Inning, European 17-Inning, San Marinoan 17-Inning, and Italian 17-Inning Records — San Marino Stadium, San Marino, San Marino, Europe — 9/16/1986 — European Confederation Playoffs — Biemme Fortitudo Bologna 12 Chesterfield San Marino 10 in 17 innings —finished at 2:45 A.M. in the early morning of 9/17.

5:45 — New All-Time 16-Inning, Professional 16-Inning, Major League 16-Inning, and National League 16-Inning Records — Candlestick Park, San Francisco, California — 9/28/1986 — Giants 6 Dodgers 5 in 16 innings — 28,603 fans.

3:50— New American League Playoffs, American League Championship Series, and Playoffs 11-Inning Records — Anaheim Stadium, Anaheim, California — 10/11/1986 — Angels 4 Red Sox 3 in 11 innings — 64,223 fans.

3:54 — New American League Playoffs, American League Championship Series, and Playoffs 11-Inning Records — Anaheim Stadium, Anaheim, California — 10/12/1986 — Red Sox 7 Angels 6 in 11 innings — 64,223 fans.

3:23 — New American League Championship Series 9-Inning Record — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts —10/14/1986 — Red Sox 10 Angels 4 — 32,998 fans.

4:42 — New All-Time Playoffs, Professional Playoffs, Major League Playoffs, National League Playoffs, Major League Championship Series, National League Championship Series, and Playoffs 16-Inning Records — Astrodome, Houston, Texas —10/15/1986 — Mets 7 Astros 6 in 16 innings — 45,718 fans.

7:30—New College, NJCAA, All-Time 32-Inning, Amateur 32-Inning, College 32-Inning, and NJCAA 32-Inning Records—Robert C. Wynn Field, Bradenton, Florida—4/4/1987—Hillsborough Community College Hawks 6 Manatee Community College Lancers 4 in 32 innings—200 fans, 45 fans at end finished at 9:30 P.M. 4:20—Equaled Professional 10-Inning, Major League 10-Inning, and American League 10-Inning Records—Yankee Stadium, New York, New York— 6/26/1987—Yankees 12 Red Sox 11 in 10 innings— 45,123 fans.

5:36 — New Major League 15-Inning and American League 15-Inning Records — Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York — 7/11/1987 — White Sox 5 Yankees 2 in 15 innings — 45,528 fans.

3:29 – New American League Championship Series 9-Inning Record – Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan –10/10/1987 – Tigers 7 Twins 6 – 49,730 fans.

5:20—New All-Time 14-Inning, Professional 14-Inning, Major League 14-Inning, American League 14-Inning, and Canadian 14-Inning Records—Exhibition Stadium, Toronto, Province of Ontario, Canada — 5/17/1988—Rangers 7 Blue Jays 6 in 14 innings— 25,170 fans.

3:07 — New All-Time 1–0 9-Inning, Professional 1–0 9-Inning, Major League 1–0 9-Inning, and National League 1–0 9-Inning Records – Jack Murphy (later Qualcomm) Stadium, San Diego, California – 5/17/1988 – Mets 1 Padres 0–12,035 fans.

5:18 – New College 19-Inning and NCAA 19-Inning Records – Beehive Stadium, New Britain, Connecticut – 5/26/1988 – Clemson University Tigers 3 Fordham University Rams 2 in 19 innings – 404 fans – finished at 5:18 P.M.

5:46 — New All-Time 14-Inning, Professional 14-Inning, Major League 14-Inning, and American League 14-Inning Records — Memorial Stadium, Baltimore, Maryland — 6/4/1988 — Orioles 7 Yankees 6 in 14 innings — 36,499 fans.

8:15 — New Professional Decision, Minor League Decision, All-Time 27-Inning, Professional 27-Inning, and Minor League 27-Inning Records — Burlington Athletic Stadium, Burlington, North Carolina — 6/24/1988 — Appalachian League — Bluefield Orioles 3 Burlington Indians 2 in 27 innings — 2204 fans, 84 fans at end —finished at 3:27 A.M. in the early morning of 6/25.

7:23 — New All-Time 1–0, Professional 1–0, Minor League 1–0, All-Time 26-Inning, Professional 26-Inning, and Minor League 26-Inning Records — V.J. Keefe Stadium, San Antonio, Texas — 7/14/1988 and 7/16/1988 — San Antonio Missions 1 Jackson Mets 0 in 26 innings, suspended after 7:10 and 25 innings — 3792 fans on 7/14, 3260 fans on 7/16 — suspended at 2:15 A.M. in the early morning of 7/15.

3:49 – New World Cup, World Cup 11-Inning, and Italian World Cup Records – 8/26/1988 – Rimini, Italy – South Korea 2 Italy 1 in 11 innings – finished at 12:49 A.M. in the early morning of 8/28.

5:30— New American League 17-Inning Record — Arlington Stadium, Arlington, Texas — 9/10/1988 — Rangers 3 Angels 2 in 17 innings — 22,972 fans finished at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 9/11.

6:01-New All-Time 18-Inning, Professional 18-

Inning, Major League 18-Inning, and American League 18-Inning Records — Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York — 9/11/1988 — Yankees 5 Tigers 4 in 18 innings — 39,008 fans — finished at 7:31 P.M.

?:?? — New South Korean Olympics Demonstration Sport 9-Inning Record — 9/20/1988 — Chamshil — Netherlands 6 Taiwan 1.

?:??—New South Korean Olympics Demonstration Sport and South Korean Olympics Demonstration Sport 12-Innings Records—9/22/1988—Chamshil— Japan 4 Taiwan 3 in 12 innings.

3:44 — New Major League Championship Series 9-Inning and National League Championship Series 9-Inning Records — Shea Stadium, New York, New York — 10/8/1988 — Mets 8 Dodgers 4 — 44,672 fans.

7:14 — New Central American Full-Length, Mexican Full-Length, Mexican Professional, All-Time 21-Inning, Professional 21-Inning, Minor League 21-Inning, and Mexican 21-Inning Records — Estadio (Stadium) Emilio Ibarra, Los Mochis, State of Sinaloa — 11/26/1988 — Mexican Pacific League — Los Mochis Caneros (Sugar Cane Growers) 4 Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2 in 21 innings — finished at 2:44 A.M. in the early morning of 11/27.

5:23 — New Caribbean World Series, Dominican 16-Inning, and Venezuelan 16-Inning Records — Estadio (Stadium) Teodoro Mariscal, Mazatlan, Mexico — 2/?/1989 — Zulia Aguilas (Eagles) (Venezuela) defeated Escogido Leones Rojos (Red Lions) (Dominican) in 16 innings.

5:23 — New Oceania, Australian, and Australian 22-Inning Records — Parry Field, Perth, State of Western Australia — 3/17/1989 — Western Australia League Grand Final Series — Melville Braves 6 Morley 2 in 22 innings — finished at 12:50 A.M. in the early morning of 3/18.

5:57 — New Amateur 16-Inning, College 16-Inning, and NCAA 16-Inning Records — Olsen Field, College Station, Texas — 5/5/1989 — University of Arkansas Razorbacks 11 Texas Agricultural and Mechanical (A&M) University Aggies 9 in 16 innings — 5388 fans, 3000 fans at end.

6:29 — New Two-Site Record — Ed Smith Stadium, Sarasota, Florida and Dunedin Stadium at Grant Field (later Knology Park), Dunedin, Florida — 4/24/1989 and 5/17/1989 — Florida State League — Dunedin Blue Jays 8 Sarasota White Sox 3 in 21 innings, suspended after 5:48 and 20 innings — 525 fans on 4/24, 45 fans at suspension, 307 fans on 5/17 — suspended at 12:48 A.M. in the early morning of 4/25.

6:37 — New All-Time 18-Inning, Professional 18-Inning, and Minor League 18-Inning Records — Hoover Met Stadium, Hoover, Alabama — 6/2/1989 — Southern League — Birmingham Barons 5 Huntsville Stars 4 in 18 innings — 7034 fans — finished at 1:42 A.M. in the early morning of 6/3.

7:14 – New All-Time Indoor, Professional Indoor, Major League Indoor, National League Indoor, All-Time 22-Inning, Professional 22-Inning, Major League 22-Inning, and National League 22-Inning Records — Astrodome, Houston, Texas — 6/3/1989 — Astros 5 Dodgers 4 in 22 innings — 34,425 fans finished at 2:50 A.M. in the early morning of 6/4.

4:27 — New College Regular Season 13-Inning and NCAA Regular Season 13-Inning Records — Nichols Field, Bristol, Connecticut — 6/4/1989 — North Carolina Wesleyan College Battling Bishops 8 California State University Stanislaus Warriors 7 in 13 innings in 2nd game; North Carolina Wesleyan 3 Cal State Stanislaus 0 in 2:54 in 1st game — 800 fans for 1st game, 500 fans for 2nd game.

7:37 — New Minor League 25-Inning and Two-Site Records — Waterloo Stadium, Waterloo, Iowa and Riverview Stadium (later Alliant Energy Field), Clinton, Iowa — 7/6/1989 and 8/17/1989 — Midwest League — Waterloo Diamonds 4 Clinton Giants 3 in 25 innings, suspended after 5:46 and 19 innings in Waterloo, completed 8/17 in Clinton — 876 fans on 7/6 in Waterloo, 809 fans on 8/17 in Clinton — suspended at 12:51 A.M. in the early morning of 7/7.

5:42 — New National League 18-Inning Record — Three Rivers Stadium, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 8/6/1989 — Pirates 5 Cubs 4 in 18 innings, rain delay 0:45 bottom 10th — 24,716 fans.

5:23 — New All-Time 13-Inning, Professional 13-Inning, Major League 13-Inning, and American League 13-Inning Records — Memorial Stadium, Baltimore, Maryland — 8/12/1989 — Red Sox 10 Orioles 8 in 13 innings — 50,865 fans.

6:14 — New Canadian, Major League 1–0, National League 1–0, and Canadian 22-Inning Records — Stade Olympique (Olympic Stadium), Montreal, Province of Quebec — 8/23/1989 — Dodgers 1 Expos 0 in 22 innings — 21,742 fans — finished at 1:25 A.M. in the early morning of 8/24.

2:34 — New American League 6-Inning Record — Yankee Stadium, New York, New York — 9/16/1989 — Yankees 4 Mariners 1 in 6 innings — 22,922 fans, only 9000 fans at end.

1:56 — New Ukraine Record — Dynamo Stadium, Kiev, Ukraine — 9/24/1989 — USA Eastern League All-Stars 13 Ukraine 0.

2:30 – New Russia Record – Central Republican Stadium, Kiev, Ukraine – 9/25/1989 – USA Eastern League All-Stars 20 Soviet Union 0 in 1st game.

3:05 – New Russia Record – Central Republican Stadium, Kiev, Ukraine – 9/25/1989 – USA Eastern League All-Stars 20 Soviet Union 2 in 2nd game.

3:29 — Equaled American League Championship Series 9-Inning Record — SkyDome, Toronto, Province of Ontario, Canada — 10/7/1989 — Athletics 6 Blue Jays 5 — 50,076 fans.

4:50— New All-Time 11-Inning, Professional 11-Inning, Major League 11-Inning, and National League 11-Inning Records — Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California — 5/19/1990— Phillies 15 Dodgers 12 in 11 innings — 44,703 fans.

6:39 - New All-Time 20-Inning, Professional 20-

Inning, and Minor League 20-Inning Records – Municipal Stadium, Phoenix, Arizona – 6/23/1990 – Pacific Coast League – Calgary Cannons 12 Phoenix Firebirds 9 in 20 innings – finished at 1:49 A.M. in the early morning of 6/24.

5:31— Equaled American League 16-Inning Record — County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin—7/6/ 1990— Angels 9 Brewers 8 in 16 innings—25,244 fans —finished at 1:06 A.M. in the early morning of 7/7.

5:03 — New All-Time 12-Inning, Professional 12-Inning, Major League 12-Inning, and National League 12-Inning Records — Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California — 7/27/1990 — Dodgers 5 Braves 4 in 12 innings — 40,907 fans.

4:32 – New American League 11-Inning Record – Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois – 7/29/1990– Brewers 9 White Sox 8 in 11 innings – 33,353 fans.

5:59 – New All-Time 16-Inning, Professional 16-Inning, and Minor League 16-Inning Records – Charlotte County Stadium, Port Charlotte, Florida – 8/3/1990 and 8/6/1990 – Florida State League – Charlotte Rangers 4 Sarasota White Sox 3 in 16 innings, rain delay 0:50 bottom 2nd, suspended after 5:05 and 14 innings –1665 fans on 8/3, 3026 fans on 8/6 – suspended at 1:00 A.M. in the early morning of 8/4.

3:30—New World Cup 10-Inning and Canadian World Cup Records—Fry Park, Edmonton—8/5/ 1990—Netherlands 9 Venezuela 8 in 10 innings finished at 5:30 P.M.

6:20—New Playoffs, Professional Playoffs, Minor League Playoffs, and Playoffs 22-Inning Records— Billy Hebert Field, Stockton, California—9/5/1990 and 9/6/1990—California League—Bakersfield Dodgers 5 Stockton Ports 4 in 22 innings, suspended after 5:53 and 21 innings—1497 fans on 9/5; 175 fans when suspended; 1559 fans on 9/6—suspended at 1:27 A.M. in the early morning of 9/6; finished at 6:25 P.M. on 9/6.

6:25 – New Playoffs, Professional Playoffs, Minor League Playoffs, and Playoffs 20-Inning Records – Greer Stadium, Nashville, Tennessee – 9/7/1990– American Association – Omaha Royals 8 Nashville Sounds 7 in 20 innings, rain delay 1:46 bottom 11th – 14,482 fans, 500 fans top 12th, 300 fans at end – finished at 3:50 A.M. in the early morning of 9/8.

4:51— New Professional 10-Inning, Major League 10-Inning, and National League 10-Inning Records — Shea Stadium, New York, New York — 4/10/1991— Phillies 8 Mets 7 in 10 innings — 22,841 fans.

6:05 — New American League 19-Inning Record — County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin — 5/1/1991— Brewers 10 White Sox 9 in 19 innings —13,973 fans finished at 7:35 P.M.

5:31— Equaled American League 16-Inning Record — Kingdome, Seattle, Washington — 5/5/1991— Mariners 5 Yankees 4 in 16 innings — 24,391 fans — finished at 10:36 P.M.

6:28 – New Major League 18-Inning and American League 18-Inning Records – Royals Stadium, Kansas City, Missouri – 6/6/1991 – Royals 4 Rangers 3 in 18 innings – 38,523 fans – finished at 8:03 P.M.

4:51— New American League 10-Inning Record; Equaled All-Time 10-Inning, Professional 10-Inning, and Major League 10-Inning Records — Network Associates Coliseum, Oakland, California — 8/31/1991— Athletics 9 Tigers 8 in 10 innings — 43,726 fans.

4:42 — New American League 12-Inning Record — Comiskey Park (II), Chicago, Illinois — 10/3/1991— White Sox 13 Twins 12 in 12 innings in 2nd game; White Sox 3 Twins 2 in 3:06 and 10 innings in 1st game — 31,022 fans — 2nd game finished at 9:23 P.M.

6:30—New All-Time 19-Inning, Professional 19-Inning, Major League 19-Inning, and American League 19-Inning Records—Cleveland Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio—4/11/1992—Red Sox 7 Indians 5 in 19 innings—65,813 fans; 30,000 fans at end finished at 8:05 P.M.

4:10— New NJCAA 9-Inning Record — College Stadium (later Diethrick Park), Jamestown, New York — 5/25/1992 — previous tournament action delay 2:15 at start, Gloucester County College Roadrunners 14 Columbus State Community College Cougars 8 — 225 fans, 35 fans at end —finished at 1:55 A.M. in the early morning of 5/26.

6:39 – New NBC, Amateur 21-Inning, Alaska, and Alaska 21-Inning Records – Mulcahy Stadium, Anchorage, Alaska – 6/23/1992 – Alaska League – Anchorage Glacier Pilots defeated Kamloops in 21 innings –12 fans at end –finished at 2:15 A.M. in the early morning of 6/24.

2:40—New Olympics Medal Sport, Spain Olympics Medal Sport, and Spain Olympics Medal Sport 9-Inning Records—L'Hospitalet Baseball Stadium, Barcelona, Spain—7/26/1992—Taiwan 8 Italy 2—finished at 1:10 P.M.

3:11— New Olympics 9-Inning, Olympics Medal Sport, Olympics Medal Sport 9-Inning, Spain Olympics Medal Sport, and Spain Olympics Medal Sport 9-Inning Records — L'Hospitalet Baseball Stadium, Barcelona, Spain — 7/26/1992 — USA 4 Spain 1—finished at 9:11 P.M.

3:13 — New Olympics 9-Inning, Olympics Medal Sport, Spain Olympics Medal Sport, and Spain Olympics Medal Sport 9-Inning Records — Viladecans Baseball Stadium, Barcelona, Spain — 7/26/1992 — Japan 9 Puerto Rico 0—finished at 9:13 P.M.

2:45 — New Spain Olympics Medal Sport 8-Inning Record — Viladecans Baseball Stadium, Barcelona, Spain — 7/27/1992 — Cuba 18 Italy 1—finished at 5:45 P.M.

3:40—New Olympics 9-Inning, Olympics Medal Sport, Spain Olympics Medal Sport, and Spain Olympics Medal Sport 9-Inning Records — L'Hospitalet Baseball Stadium, Barcelona, Spain — 7/27/ 1992 — USA 10 Taiwan 9 —finished at 6:40 P.M.

2:10—New Spain Olympics Medal Sport 7-Inning Record — Viladecans Baseball Stadium, Barcelona, Spain - 7/27/1992 - Japan 12 Spain 1-finished at 11:10 P.M.

2:45 — New Spain Olympics Medal Sport 7-Inning Record — L'Hospitalet Baseball Stadium, Barcelona, Spain — 7/29/1992 — Japan 17 Dominican 0—finished at 5:45 P.M.

4:00—New Olympics, Olympics 9-Inning, Olympics Medal Sport, Spain Olympics Medal Sport, and Spain Olympics Medal Sport 9-Inning Records — L'Hospitalet Baseball Stadium, Barcelona, Spain — 7/29/1992 — Cuba 9 USA 6 —finished at 1:00 A.M. in the morning of 7/30.

2:45 — Equaled Spain Olympics Medal Sport 7-Inning Record — L'Hospitalet Baseball Stadium, Barcelona, Spain — 8/1/1992 — Italy 14 Spain 4 — finished at 11:45 p.M.

3:05 — New Olympics 10-Inning and Spain Olympics Medal Sport 10-Inning Records — L'Hospitalet Baseball Stadium, Barcelona, Spain — 8/2/1992 — Dominican 7 Italy 5 in 10 innings —finished at 6:05 P.M.

6:10—New National Amateur League Record— Owen Fish Park, Fairfield, Connecticut—8/14/1992 and 8/15/1992—Northeast Regionals—New Rochelle Robins 2 Worcester Warriors 1 in 24 innings, suspended after 10 innings.

5:49 — New Japanese Professional Record — Koshien Kyujyo (Stadium), Osaka — 9/11/1992 — Central League — Yakult Swallows 3 Hanshin Tigers 3 in 15 innings, rhubarb delay 0:37 — finished at 12:26 A.M. in the early morning of 9/12.

6:01— New All-Time 13-Inning, Professional 13-Inning, Japanese Professional, and Japanese 13-Inning Records — Hiroshima Kyujyo (Stadium), Hiroshima, Japan — 10/1/1992 — Central League — Hiroshima Carp 8 Yakult Swallows 7 in 13 innings.

3:40— New American League Championship Series 9-Inning Record — Oakland-Alameda County Coliseum, Oakland, California —10/10/1992 — Blue Jays 7 Athletics 5 — 46,911 fans.

4:25 — New American League Playoffs, American League Championship Series, and Playoffs 11-Inning Records — Oakland-Alameda County Coliseum, Oakland, California —10/11/1992 — Blue Jays 7 Athletics 6 in 11 innings — 47,732 fans.

?:??— New Japanese 14-Inning Record — Meiji Jingu Kyujo (Stadium), Tokyo, Japan — 5/19/1993 — Central League — Yakult Swallows 17 Hiroshima Carp 16 in 14 innings.

6:20—New High School, All-Time 17-Inning, Amateur 17-Inning, and High School 17-Inning Records —Evans High School Field, Augusta, Georgia— 5/21/1993—Augusta Evans High School Knights 3 Marietta Sprayberry High School Yellow Jackets 2 in 17 innings—1500 fans—finished at 11:20 P.M.

4:38 — New Babe Ruth/13 World Series and Amateur 14-Inning Records — Clifton Park, New York — 8/??/1993 — Taylorsville (Utah) vs. Longview (Washington) in 14 innings. 4:43 — New American League 12-Inning Record — Camden Yards, Baltimore, Maryland — 8/21/1993 — Orioles 6 Rangers 5 in 12 innings — 46,397 fans.

4:26 — New Taiwan, Taiwan 0–0, Taiwan Professional, and Taiwan 12-Inning Records — Municipal Stadium, Taipei — 8/29/1993 — Chinese League — Jungo Bears 0 Mercuries Tigers 0 in 12 innings — 6092 fans — finished at 10:26 P.M.

6:17 — New American League Indoor Record — Hubert H. Humphrey Metrodome, Minneapolis, Minnesota — 8/31/1993 — Twins 5 Indians 4 in 22 innings —17,968 fans, 1500 fans at end —finished at 1:22 A.M. in the early morning of 9/1.

5:28 — New All-Time 12-Inning, Professional 12-Inning, Major League 12-Inning, and American League 12-Inning Records — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 9/1/1993 — Rangers 9 Red Sox 7 in 12 innings — 27,396 fans.

4:14 — New Inter-League, World Series, World Series 9-Inning, and Inter-League 9-Inning Records — Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 10/ 20/1993 — AL at NL — Blue Jays 15 Phillies 14 — 62,731 fans.

7:02 — New Minor League 22-Inning and Mexican 22-Inning Records — Estadio (Stadium) Teodoro Mariscal, Mazatlan, State of Sinaloa, Mexico — 10/26/1993 — Mexican Pacific League — Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2 Guasave Algodoneros (Cotton Pickers) 1 in 22 innings — finished at 2:32 A.M. in the early morning of 10/27.

7:07 — New All-Time 20-Inning, Professional 20-Inning, and Minor League 20-Inning Records — Al Lang Field (II), St. Petersburg, Florida — 4/14/1994 — Florida State League — St. Petersburg Cardinals 8 Lakeland Tigers 7 in 20 innings —1021 fans —finished at 2:42 A.M. in the early morning of 4/15.

6:17 — New Oceania, Australian, Taiwanese, Amateur 20-Inning, Australian 20-Inning, and Taiwanese 20-Inning Records — Records — Oakes Oval, Lismore, State of New South Wales —12/31/1994 — AAA Asian Under 19 Series — Australia 9 Chinese Taipei 8 in 20 innings, 2nd game postponed — 300 fans, 300 fans at end —finished at 9:47 P.M.

7:00—New High School, Amateur 23-Inning, and High School 23-Inning Records—Legion Field, Downers Grove, Illinois—4/28/1995 and 5/3/1995 and 5/8/1995 and 5/12/1995—Downers Grove North High School Trojans 12 Elmhurst York High School Dukes 11 in 23 innings, suspended after 3:00 and 8 innings, suspended a 2nd time after 6:00 and 20 innings—75 fans on 4/28, 75 fans on 5/3, 250 fans on 5/12—suspended at 7:15 P.M. at 4/28, suspended 2nd time at 7:15 P.M. on 5/3, rained out on 5/8, finished at 5:15 P.M. on 5/12.

6:36 — New All-Time 17-Inning, Professional 17-Inning, Major League 17-Inning, and American League 17-Inning Records — Jacobs Field, Cleveland, Ohio — 5/7/1995 — Indians 10 Twins 9 in 17 innings — 39,431 fans — finished at 7:41 P.M. 4:50—New Belgian and Belgian 16-Inning Records —?/??/1995—Sportpark Brasschaaat, Antwerp— Brasschaat Braves 5 Royal Greys 4 in 16 innings—200 fans—finished at 8:20 P.M.

5:00— New English, All-Time 9-Inning, Amateur 9-Inning, and English 9-Inning Records — Guildford, Surrey, England — 6/??/1995 — Guildford Mavericks 28 Bracknell Blazers 27.

3:35 — New All-Time U.S. President-and-U.S. Vice-President-Both-in-Attendance Record — Camden Yards, Baltimore, Maryland — 9/6/1995 — Orioles 4 Angels 2 — Cal Ripken Jr. played in his 2,131st consecutive game — 46,272 fans including 42nd President Bill Clinton and 45th Vice President Al Gore.

2:38 — New American League 6-Inning Record — Camden Yards, Baltimore, Maryland — 9/16/1995 — Yankees 6 Orioles 5 in 6 innings, rain delay 1:10 top 7th — 46,891 fans.

4:51— New All-Time 11-Inning, Professional 11-Inning, Major League 11-Inning, and National League 11-Inning Records — Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois — 9/28/1995 — Cubs 12 Astros 11 in 11 innings —14,075 fans.

5:01—New Major League Playoffs, American League Playoffs, Major League Division Series, American League Division Series, Playoffs 13-Inning Records — Jacobs Field, Cleveland, Ohio —10/3/1995 — rain delay 0:39 at start, Indians 5 Red Sox 4 in 13 innings, 2nd rain delay 0:23 top 8th — 44,218 fans finished at 2:08 A.M. in the early morning of 10/4.

5:13 — New Major League Playoffs, American League Playoffs, Major League Division Series, American League Division Series, and Playoffs 15-Inning Records — Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York — 10/4/1995 — Yankees 7 Mariners 5 in 15 innings — 57,126 fans — finished at 1:20 A.M. in the early morning of 10/5.

3:16 — New National League Division Series Record — Atlanta-Fulton County Stadium, Atlanta, Georgia — 10/6/1995 — Rockies 7 Braves 5 in 10 innings — 51,300 fans.

4:08 — Major League Division Series 9-Inning and American League Division Series 9-Inning Records — Kingdome, Seattle, Washington —10/7/1995 — Mariners 11 Yankees 8 — 57,180 fans.

4:38 — New Japan Series Record — Meiji Jingu Kyujyo (Stadium), Tokyo —10/25/1995 — Orix Blue Wave 2 Yakult Swallows 1 in 12 innings — 32,911 fans.

6:01— New Mexican 20-Inning Record — Estadio (Stadium) Angel Flores, Culiacan, State of Sinaloa, Mexico — 10/27/1995 — Mexican Pacific League — Culiacan Tomateros (Tomato Growers) 3 Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2 in 20 innings — finished at 1:31 A.M. in the early morning of 10/28.

4:15 — New Men's Senior League Record — Tempe Diablo Stadium, Tempe, Arizona —10/??/1995 — 28+ Championship Game — Southern California Blue Jays 13 Arizona Angels 12 in 13 innings.

6:22 - New Caribbean, Puerto Rican, and Puerto

Rican 21-Inning Records — Estadio (Stadium) Isidoro "Cholo" Garcia, Mayaguez —12/22/1995 and 12/23/ 1995 and 1/19/1996 — Winter League — Mayaguez Indios (Indians) 2 San Juan Senadores (Senators) 1 in 21 innings, suspended, suspended a second time.

4:47 — New Major League Neutral Site and American League Neutral Site Records — Cashman Field, Las Vegas, Nevada — 4/4/1996 — Tigers 10 Athletics 9 in 15 innings — 8346 fans — finished at 6:22 P.M.

4:42 — New American League 11-Inning Record — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 4/14/1996 — Indians 7 Red Sox 6 in 11 innings — 31,796 fans.

5:47 — New Amateur 18-Inning, College 18-Inning, and NCAA 18-Inning Records — Tiger Field (later Doug Kingsmore Stadium), Clemson, South Carolina — 4/21/1996 — Georgia Southern University Eagles 9 Clemson University Tigers 7 in 18 innings in 2nd game, Georgia Southern 8 Clemson 6 in 2:57 and 10 innings in 1st game — 2356 fans, 500 fans at end — 2nd game finished at 9:20 P.M.

4:21— New Professional 9-Inning, Major League 9-Inning, and American League 9-Inning Records — Camden Yards, Baltimore, Maryland — 4/30/1996 — Yankees 13 Orioles 10—43,117 fans, 20,000 fans at end —finished at 11:57 P.M.

5:03 – Equaled National League 14-Inning Record – Jack Murphy (later Qualcomm) Stadium, San Diego, California – 6/8/1996 – Pirates 9 Padres 8 in 14 innings – 41,378 fans.

4:20 – New National League 9-Inning Record – Coors Field, Denver, Colorado – 6/30/1996 – Rockies 16 Dodgers 15 – 48,103 fans.

2:44 — New Japan Minor League All-Star Game Record — Kumamoto Fujisakidai Kyujyo (Stadium) — 7/19/1996 — Western League 9 Eastern League 0 — 11,000 fans.

3:00— New USA Olympics Medal Sport and USA Olympics Medal Sport 9-Inning Records — Atlanta-Fulton County Stadium, Atlanta, Georgia — 7/20/ 1996 — USA 4 Nicaragua 1— 30,000 fans — finished at 1:30 P.M.

3:24 — New Olympics 8-Inning, USA Olympics Medal Sport, and USA Olympics Medal Sport 8-Inning Records — Atlanta-Fulton County Stadium, Atlanta, Georgia — 7/20/1996 — Cuba 19 Australia 8 in 8 innings — finished at 6:24 P.M.

2:37 — New USA Olympics Medal Sport 7-Inning Records — Atlanta-Fulton County Stadium, Atlanta, Georgia — 7/20/1996 — Japan 12 Netherlands 2 in 7 innings — finished at 12:22 A.M. in the morning of 7/21.

3:32 — New Olympics 10-Inning, USA Olympics Medal Sport, and USA Olympics Medal Sport 10-Inning Records — Atlanta-Fulton County Stadium, Atlanta, Georgia — 7/21/1996 — Cuba 8 Japan 7 in 10 innings — finished at 11:32 P.M.

3:07 — New USA Olympics Medal Sport 9-Inning Record — Atlanta-Fulton County Stadium, Atlanta, Georgia — 7/23/1996 — Nicaragua 8 South Korea 3 finished at 6:07 P.M. 2:39 — New USA Olympics Medal Sport 7-Inning Record — Atlanta-Fulton County Stadium, Atlanta, Georgia — 7/24/1996 — USA 15 Italy 3 in 7 innings finished at 10:39 P.M.

4:04 — New Olympics, USA Olympics Medal Sport, and USA Olympics Medal Sport 9-Inning Records — Atlanta-Fulton County Stadium, Atlanta, Georgia — 7/24/1996 — Cuba 14 South Korea 11 finished at 12:04 A.M. in the morning of 7/25.

?:??— New USA Olympics Medal Sport 6-Inning Record — Atlanta-Fulton County Stadium, Atlanta, Georgia — 7/25/1996 — Nicaragua 5 Netherlands 0 in 6 innings — 21,132 fans — in 10:00 A.M. game.

5:45 — New Scotland, All-Time 12-Inning, Amateur 12-Inning, and Scotland 12-Inning Records — Jack Kane Sports Centre, Edinburgh — 8/4/1996 — Edinburgh Reivers (later Diamond Devils) 13 Glasgow Comets 12 in 12 innings — ended at 7:45 P.M.

3:14 – New Major-Leagues-in-Mexico and National League Neutral Site Records – Estadio (Stadium) Monterrey, Monterrey, Mexico – 8/16/1996 – Padres 15 Mets 10 – 23,699 fans.

6:19 — New All-Time 14-Inning, Professional 14-Inning, Japanese Professional, and Japanese 14-Inning Records — Shimonoseki Kyujyo (Stadium), Shimonoseki — 9/8/1996 — Central League — Yakult Swallows 6 Yokohama BayStars 5 in 14 innings — finished at 12:19 A.M. in the early morning of 9/9.

3:19 — New National League Division Series 9-Inning Record — Atlanta-Fulton County Stadium, Atlanta, Georgia —10/5/1996 — Braves 5 Dodgers 2 — 52,529 fans.

3:32 — New National League Division Series 9-Inning Record — Jack Murphy Stadium, San Diego, California —10/5/1996 — Cardinals 7 Padres 5 — 53,899 fans.

4:13 — Major League Championship Series 9-Inning and American League Championship Series 9-Inning Records — Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York — 10/10/1996 — Orioles 5 Yankees 3 — 58,432 fans.

3:42 — New Japan Series and Japan 10-Inning Records — Big Egg, Tokyo —10/19/1996 — Orix Blue Wave 4 Yomiuri Giants 3 in 10 innings — 45,121 fans.

4:17 — New Inter-League, World Series, Interleague 10-Inning, and Playoffs 10-Inning Records — Atlanta-Fulton County Stadium, Atlanta, Georgia — 10/23/ 1996 — AL at NL — Yankees 8 Braves 6 in 10 innings — 51,881 fans.

5:21— New South Korean and South Korean 13-Inning Records — Taejon Yagu-jang (Stadium), Taejon — 4/12/1997 — Korean Organization — Ob (Oriental Brewing) Bears 4 Hanhwa Eagles 2 in 13 innings — finished at 11:51 P.M.

2:36 — New Major-Leagues-in-Hawaii Record — Aloha Stadium, Honolulu, Hawaii — 4/19/1997 — Cardinals 1 Padres 0; then Cardinals 2 Padres 1 in 2:34 - 37,382 fans.

2:53 - New Major-Leagues-in-Hawaii Record -

Aloha Stadium, Honolulu, Hawaii — 4/20/1997 — Padres 8 Cardinals 2 — 40,050 fans.

3:12 — New College 12-Inning and NCAA 12-Inning Records — Hunnicutt Field, Princeton, West Virginia — 5/4/1997 — rain delays in previous tournament action, West Virginia State College Yellow Jackets 7 Shepherd College (now University) Rams 6 in 12 innings — finished at 2:52 A.M. in the early morning of 5/5.

3:20— New All-Time 1–0 9-Inning, Professional 1–0 9-Inning, Major League 1–0 9-Inning, and American League 1–0 9-Inning Records — County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin — 5/7/1997 — Brewers 1 Athletics 0—10,044 fans.

5:50— New High School 1–0 Record — Blue Valley District Activity Center, Overland Park, Kansas — 5/20/1997 — Blue Valley Northwest High School Huskies 1 Shawnee Mission North High School Mustangs 0 in 21 innings — finished at 10:50 P.M.

5:30— New Minor League 14-Inning Record — Winnipeg Stadium, Winnipeg, Province of Manitoba, Canada — 5/30/1997 — Northern League — Winnipeg Goldeyes 12 Sioux City Explorers 10 in 14 innings — 6491 fans.

5:03 — New Inter-League Record — Anaheim Stadium (later Edison International Field, then Angels Stadium), Anaheim, California — 6/13/1997 — NL at AL — Padres 8 Angels 7 in 14 innings — 24,664 fans finished at 12:08 A.M. in the early morning of 6/14.

4:19 – New Taiwan 10-Inning Record – Chiayi City Stadium, Chiayi City –7/3/1997 – Chinese League – Uni-President Lions 8 Wei Chuan Dragons 8 in 10 innings.

4:46 — New American League 11-Inning Record — Kingdome, Seattle, Washington — 8/23/1997 — Yankees 10 Mariners 8 in 11 innings — 57,282 fans.

4:21—New Taiwan 11-Inning Record — Taichung Stadium, Taichung, Taiwan — 8/30/1997 — Chinese League — Sinon Bulls 6 Brother Elephants 5 in 11 innings.

4:22 — New Professional 9-Inning, Major League 9-Inning, and American League 9-Inning Records — Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York — 9/5/1997 — Orioles 13 Yankees 9 — 46,568 fans finished at 12:00 A.M. in the early morning of 9/6.

4:51— New Major League Championship Series and American League Championship Series Records — Jacobs Field, Cleveland, Ohio —10/11/1997 — Indians 2 Orioles 1 in 12 innings — 45,057 fans.

4:45 — New Japan Series and Japan 10-Inning Records — Seibu Lions Kyujyo (Stadium), Tokorozawa — 10/19/1997 — Seibu Lions 6 Yakult Swallows 5 in 10 innings — 31,397 fans.

3:34 — New African, Cameroun, and Cameroun 9-Inning Records — Omnisports Stade (Stadium) Annexe #3, Yaounde —????/1998 — Yaounde Mfandena Sky tied Douala Atlantic Warriors in 9 innings —125 fans.

3:59 – New NCAA College World Series 9-Inning

Record — Rosenblatt Stadium, Omaha, Nebraska — 6/6/1998 — University of Southern California Trojans 21 Arizona State University Sun Devils 14.

5:10—New National League 14-Inning Record— Busch Stadium (II), St. Louis, Missouri—6/6/1998— Giants 5 Cardinals 4 in 14 innings—47,333 fans.

5:06 — New Inter-League Record — Pro Player (later Dolphin) Stadium, Miami, Florida — 6/8/1998 — AL at NL — Marlins 4 Blue Jays 3 in 17 innings — 17,414 fans; 300 fans at end —finished at 12:12 A.M. in the early morning of 6/9.

5:49 — New Major League 15-Inning and American League 15-Inning Records — Camden Yards, Baltimore, Maryland — 6/19/1998 — Orioles 7 Blue Jays 4 in 15 innings — 47,012 fans.

3:38 — New Major League All-Star Record — Coors Field, Denver, Colorado — 7/7/1998 — AL at NL — American League All-Stars 13 National League All-Stars 8 — 51,267 fans.

3:40— New Each-Team-Scored-in-Each-Extra-Inning-at-Bat Record — Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 7/24/1998 — Phillies 7 Marlins 6 in 12 innings in 2nd game, Phillies 6 Marlins 4 in 3:21 and 12 innings in 1st game — 30,622 fans — 2nd game finished at 12:36 A.M. in the early morning of 7/25.

6:13 — New Japanese 15-Inning Record — Fukuyama Kyujyo (Stadium), Fukuyama — 8/9/1998 — Central League — Yokohama BayStars 14 Hiroshima Carp 6 in 15 innings —finished at 12:13 A.M. in the early morning of 8/10.

3:11—New Little League World Series Record — Lamade Stadium, Williamsport, Pennsylvania — 8/23/ 1998 — Toms River (New Jersey) 13 Jenison (Michigan) 9 in 11 innings —13,800 fans.

4:24 – New Taiwanese 9-Inning Record – Taichung Stadium, Taichung – 8/30/1998 – Chinese League – Mercuries Tigers 13 Brother Elephants 11.

3:41— New National League Wild Card Tiebreaker 9-Inning Record — Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois — 9/28/1998 — Cubs 5 Giants 3 — 39,556 fans — author sat in the lower deck down the right field foul line.

6:00—New NAIA, U.S. College 21-Inning, and NAIA 21-Inning Records—Heart of Florida Medical Regional Center Field, Babson Park, Florida— 2/19/1999 and 2/20/1999—Nova Southeastern University Knights 9 Webber College (now Webber International University) Warriors 5 in 21 innings, suspended after 3:43 and 13 innings—50 fans—suspended at 6:28 P.M., finished at 1:17 P.M.

6:43 — New NCAA Division I, Amateur 22-Inning, College 22-Inning, and NCAA 22-Inning Records — Cougar Field, Houston, Texas — 2/21/1999 — Baylor University Bears 8 University of Houston Cougars 2 in 22 innings —1225 fans —finished at 10:48 P.M.

5:00— New NCAA 21-Inning Record — Carson Center Field, Evansville, Indiana — 3/7/1999 — University of Memphis Tigers 4 University of Evansville Purple Aces 4 in 21 innings — 205 fans, 75 fans at end finished at 4:00 P.M. 4:42 — New Australian 13-Inning Record — Oriole Stadium, Auburn, State of New South Wales — 3/1?/1999 — 1st Grade New South Wales Major League Grand Final Series — Cronulla-Sutherland Sharks 4 Ryde-Eastwood Hawks 3 in 13 innings, rain delay 1:15 bottom 7th — 250 fans; 150 fans at end — winning run called safe despite fact that runner did not slide, catcher was standing on home plate with ball waiting for him to arrive, and in ensuing collision catcher did not drop ball —finished at 1:27 A.M. in the early morning.

2:57 — New Professional 7-Inning, Major League 7-Inning, and American League 7-Inning Records — Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York — 4/9/ 1999 — Yankees 12 Tigers 3 in 7 innings — 56,583 fans.

5:14 — New Arizona Professional Record — Bank One Ballpark (later Chase Field), Phoenix, Arizona — 4/13/1999 — National League — Arizona Diamondbacks 7 Los Angeles Dodgers 6 in 16 innings — 31,197 fans — finished at 12:19 A.M. in the early morning of 4/14.

3:28 – New Babe Ruth World Series Record – Clifton Park, New York – 8/??/1999 – Taylorsville (Utah) vs. Peabody (Massachusetts) in 11 innings.

4:19 — New National League Division Series and Playoffs 12-Inning Records — Astrodome, Houston, Texas — 10/8/1999 — Braves 5 Astros 3 in 12 innings — 48,625 fans.

5:46 — New Major League Playoffs, National League Playoffs, Major League Championship Series, National League Championship Series, and Playoffs 15-Inning Records — Shea Stadium, New York, New York —10/17/1999 — Mets 4 Braves 3 in 15 innings — 55,723 fans — finished at 9:55 P.M.

4:25 — Equaled Playoffs 11-Inning Record — Turner Field, Atlanta, Georgia — 10/19/1999 — Braves 10 Mets 9 in 11 innings — 52,335 fans.

4:08 – New All-Time 8-Inning, Amateur 8-Inning, College 8-Inning, and NCAA Division I 8-Inning Records – Homestead Complex, Homestead, Florida – 2/28/2000 – St. Bonaventure University Bonnies 19 Villanova University Wildcats 15 in 8 innings – 150 fans – finished at 6:08 P.M.

3:26 – New Major-Leagues-in-Japan and National League Neutral Site Records – Big Egg, Tokyo, Japan – 3/29/2000 – Cubs 5 Mets 3 – 55,000 fans.

3:55 — New Major-Leagues-in-Japan and Japanese 11-Inning Records — Big Egg, Tokyo, Japan — 3/30/ 2000 — Mets 5 Cubs 1 in 11 innings — 55,000 fans.

6:07 – New College 17-Inning and NCAA 17-Inning Records – Dick Howser Field, Tallahassee, Florida – 4/7/2000 – Florida State University Seminoles 14 University of Miami Hurricanes 13 in 17 innings – 4626 fans – finished at 1:09 A.M. in the early morning of 4/8.

4:22 — New National League 9-Inning Record; Equaled Professional 9-Inning and Major League 9-Inning Records — Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois — 5/11/2000 — Brewers 14 Cubs 8 — 21,995 fans. 5:00—Equaled English Record — Grovehill Park, Hemel Hempstead, Hertfordshire —?/??/2000—Hertfordshire Falcons vs. Milton Keynes Rebels.

5:31—New National League 15-Inning Record — County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin — 6/30/ 2000—Cubs 7 Brewers 4 in 15 innings — 30,216 fans.

5:20— New Inter-League Record — County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin — 7/8/2000—AL at NL — Tigers 4 Brewers 2 in 15 innings — 23,872 fans — finished at 12:25 A.M. in the early morning of 7/9.

6:20 – New Minor League 19-Inning Record – Dodd Stadium, Norwich, Connecticut – 7/13/2000– Eastern League – Altoona Curve 6 Norwich Navigators 5 in 19 innings – 2774 fans, 60 fans at end – finished at 1:25 A.M. in the early morning of 7/14.

4:30— Equaled U.S. Amateur 9-Inning Record — Erv Locke and Paul Karst Field, Groton, South Dakota — 7/31/2000 — Britton 32 Mobridge-Selby Lakers 30—100 fans; 15 fans at end —finished at 12:30 A.M. in the early morning of 8/1.

6:14 — New Minor League 17-Inning Record — Commerce Bank Park, Bridgewater, New Jersey — 8/16/2000 — Atlantic League — Somerset Patriots 8 Newark Bears 7 in 17 innings — 5552 fans, 20 fans at end — finished at 1:27 A.M. in the early morning of 8/17.

3:25 — New Scotland 9-Inning Record — Commonwealth Stadium, Meadowbank Sports Centre, Edinburgh — 9/9/2000 — England 13 Scotland 11— 3000 fans.

2:15 — New Australian Olympics Medal Sport 7-Inning and Australian Olympics Medal Sport Records — Blacktown Olympic Baseball Stadium, Sydney — 9/17/2000 — Cuba 16 South Africa 0 in 7 innings — 3082 fans — finished at 1:45 P.M.

3:33 — New Olympics 13-Inning and Australian Olympics Medal Sport Records — Sydney Olympic Park Baseball Stadium, Sydney — 9/17/2000 — USA 4 Japan 2 in 13 innings —13,404 fans — finished at 4:03 P.M.

3:38 — New Olympics 9-Inning and Australian Olympics Medal Sport Records — Baseball Stadium, Sydney — 9/18/2000 — Australia 5 South Korea 3 — 13,281 fans — finished at 4:08 P.M.

3:47 — New Olympics 10-Inning and Australian Olympics Medal Sport Records — Baseball Stadium, Sydney — 9/23/2000 — South Korea 7 Japan 6 in 10 innings —13,970 fans — finished at 4:17 P.M.

4:25 – New Olympics, Olympics 12-Inning, Olympics Medal Sport, and Australian Olympics Medal Sport Records – Baseball Stadium, Sydney – 9/23/2000 – Italy 8 Australia 7 in 12 innings – 3562 fans – finished at 10:55 P.M.

3:34 — New National League Division Series 9-Inning Record — Busch Stadium (II), St. Louis, Missouri — 10/3/2000 — Cardinals 7 Braves 5 — 52,378 fans.

5:22 – New Major League Division Series, National League Division Series, and Playoffs 13-Inning Records — Shea Stadium, New York, New York — 10/7/2000 — Mets 3 Giants 2 in 13 innings — 56,270 fans.

3:59 — New National League Championship Series 9-Inning Record — Busch Stadium (II), St. Louis, Missouri — 10/12/2000 — Mets 6 Cardinals 5 — 52,250 fans.

4:14 — New Major League Championship Series 9-Inning and American League Championship Series 9-Inning Records — Safeco Field, Seattle, Washington — 10/15/2000 — Mariners 6 Yankees 2 — 47,802 fans.

4:51— New Inter-League, World Series, and Playoffs 12-Inning Records — Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York —10/21/2000— NL at AL — Yankees 4 Mets 3 in 12 innings — 55,913 fans —finished at 1:04 A.M. in the early morning of 10/22.

3:14 — New Major-Leagues-in-Puerto-Rico Record — Estadio (Stadium) Hiram Bithorn — 4/1/2001— Blue Jays 8 Rangers 1—19,891 fans —finished at 5:19 P.M.

5:05 — New Italian 14-Inning Record — Stadio Roberto Jannella, Grosseto — 4/20/2001— Serie Nazionale (Italian Al League) — Nettuno 5 Grosseto 2 in 14 innings — finished at 2:05 A.M. in the early morning of 4/21.

5:32 – New National League 15-Inning Record – Busch Stadium (II), St. Louis, Missouri – 4/26/2001 – Expos 4 Cardinals 3 in 15 innings – 42,373 fans.

6:29 — New Minor League 19-Inning Record — Ed Smith Stadium, Sarasota, Florida — 5/5/2001— Florida State League — Vero Beach Dodgers 11 Sarasota Red Sox 7 in 19 innings — finished at 1:29 A.M. in the early morning of 5/6.

5:45 – New South Korean and South Korean 15-Inning Records – Jamsil Olympic Yagu-jang (Stadium), Seoul – 5/6/2001– Korean Organization – LG (Lucky Goldstar) Twins 3 Doosan Bears 3 in 15 innings – finished at 7:45 P.M.

5:23 — New NJCAA Division II World Series and NJCAA 17-Inning Records — USA Stadium, Millington, Tennessee — 5/26/2001— Bevill State Community College Bears 6 Iowa Central Community College Tritons 5 in 17 innings — 296 fans — finished at 12:53 A.M. in the early morning of 5/27.

5:53 — New National League 18-Inning Record — Pac Bell (later Sbc) Park, San Francisco, California — 5/29/2001— Diamondbacks 1 Giants 0 in 18 innings — 39,709 fans — finished at 1:10 A.M. in the early morning of 5/30.

4:18 — New NCAA College World Series 9-Inning Record — Rosenblatt Stadium, Omaha, Nebraska — 6/8/2001— Stanford University Cardinal 13 Tulane University Green Wave 11.

3:16 — New All-Time 1–0 9-Inning, Professional 1–0 9-Inning, Major League 1–0 9-Inning, and Inter-League 1–0 9-Inning Records — Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California — 6/8/2001— AL at NL — Angels 1 Dodgers 0 — 37,449 fans.

4:21-New NCAA College World Series 9-Inning

Record – Rosenblatt Stadium, Omaha, Nebraska – 6/9/2001– University of Miami Hurricanes 21 University of Tennessee Volunteers 13 – 23,994 fans – finished at 11:01 P.M.

4:59 — New Dutch, Cuban, Dutch 17-Inning, and Cuban 17-Inning Records — Neptunus Family Stadion (Stadium), Rotterdam, Holland — 7/6/2001— World Port Tournament — Cuba 5 Netherlands 4 in 17 innings, rhubarb delay 0:06 top 7th — 5000 fans, 4250 fans at end — finished at 12:35 A.M. in the early morning of 7/7.

5:30— New Little League and Little League 15-Inning Records — Secaucus or Jersey City, New Jersey — 7/??/2001— Little League 10-Year Old District 7 First Round Playoffs — Secaucus 8 Jersey City Lincoln Park 7 in 15 innings.

6:35 — New Major League 18-Inning and American League 18-Inning Records — Ballpark (later Ameriquest Field) in Arlington, Arlington, Texas — 8/25/2001— Rangers 8 Red Sox 7 in 18 innings — 43,775 fans, 8000 fans at end —finished at 1:41 A.M. in the early morning of 8/26.

4:27 — New Professional 9-Inning, Major League 9-Inning, and National League 9-Inning Records — Pac Bell (later SBC) Park, San Francisco, California — 10/5/2001— Dodgers 11 Giants 10—41,730 fans finished at 12:02 A.M. in the early morning of 10/6.

3:36 — New National League Division Series 9-Inning Record — Busch Stadium (II), St. Louis, Missouri —10/12/2001— Diamondbacks 5 Cardinals 3 — 52,273 fans.

4:13 – New Major League Division Series 9-Inning and American League Division Series 9-Inning Records – Network Associates Coliseum, Oakland, California –10/14/2001–Yankees 9 Athletics 2– 43,681 fans.

4:55 – New Canadian College, Amateur 15-Inning, College 15-Inning, and Canadian 15-Inning Records – Lynx Stadium, Ottawa and Hamilton Yard, Nepean, Province of Ontario –10/21/2001– Canadian Interuniversity Baseball Association – rain delay 4:00 at start, game shifted from Lynx Stadium to Hamilton Yard during the delay, Laval University Rouge et Or (Red and Gold) 10 University of New Brunswick Cougars 6 in 15 innings, 2nd rain delay 0:20 top 5th – 100 fans –finished at 11:15 P.M.

6:30—New Caribbean, Puerto Rican, and Puerto Rican 22-Inning Records — Estadio (Stadium) Roberto Clemente, Carolina —11/4/2001—Winter League — Carolina Gigantes (Giants) 2 Caguas Criollos (Natives) 1 in 22 innings —finished at 12:30 A.M.

4:50—New College 9-Inning and NCAA Division III 9-Inning Records—War Memorial Stadium, Greensboro, North Carolina—2/14/2002—Greensboro College Pride 6 Guilford College Quakers 5—39 fans—finished at 6:50 P.M.

4:43 – New NCAA Division I 9-Inning Record – Lobo Field, Albuquerque, New Mexico – 3/8/2002 – Ohio State University Buckeyes 38 University of Toledo Rockets 15—100 fans—game finished at 5:40 P.M.

5:00—New All-Time 7-Inning, Amateur 7-Inning, College 7-Inning, NCBA, and NCBA 7-Inning Records—JHU Baseball Field, Baltimore, Maryland— 4/13/2002—National Club Baseball Association at National Collegiate Athletic Association—NCBA (Club) George Washington University Colonials 22 NCAA Johns Hopkins University Junior Varsity (JV) Blue Jays 21 in 7 innings; then Johns Hopkins JV defeated George Washington Club by several runs in 2:45 and 7 innings—30 fans; 8632 fans next door at Homewood Field for Johns Hopkins' 9–8 lacrosse overtime win over Maryland—finished at 8:15 P.M.

6:20— Equaled Amateur 17-Inning Record; New Japanese 17-Inning Record — Shizuoka Kyujyo (Stadium), Shizuoka, Japan — 4/14/2002 — Shizuoka Industrial League — Osaka Gas 6 Nissan Motors 5 in 17 innings.

4:50—New American League 11-Inning Record — Safeco Field, Seattle, Washington — 5/9/2002 — Mariners 8 Blue Jays 7 in 11 innings — 37,734 fans.

5:17 — New All-Time 10-Inning, Amateur 10-Inning, College 10-Inning, and NCAA 10-Ininng Records — George Page Stadium, Los Angeles; Benedetti Diamond, San Francisco, California — 3/24/2002 and 5/10/2002 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — University of San Francisco Dons 25 Loyola Marymount University Lions 21 in 10 innings; suspended after 5:10 and 9½ innings in Los Angeles on 3/24; completed in San Francisco on 5/10—498 fans on 3/24; 376 fans on 5/10— suspended at 6:10 P.M. on 3/24; finished at 2:07 P.M. on 5/10.

4:00—New NJCAA 10-Inning Record—Evans Sports Complex, Riverside, California—5/11/2002— Riverside Community College Tigers 8 Saddleback College Gauchos 6 in 10 innings in 2nd game; Saddleback 10 Riverside 3 in 3:30 in 1st game—2nd game finished at 8:00 P.M.

3:08 — New Japanese-Professional-Game-in-Taiwan Record — Taipei Municipal Tianmu Stadium, Taipei — 5/14/2002 — Pacific League — Daiei Hawks 5 Orix Blue Wave 4 —11,000 fans —finished at 8:59 P.M.

3:37 — New Japanese-Professional-Game-in-Taiwan Record — Taipei Municipal Tianmu Stadium, Taipei — 5/15/2002 — Pacific League — Orix Blue Wave 8 Daiei Hawks 7, delay 0:02 — 12,000 fans finished at 9:24 P.M.

6:35 — New Amateur 18-Inning, College 18-Inning, and NCAA 18-Inning Records — Scott Park, Toledo, Ohio — 5/19/2002 — Central Michigan University Chippewas 16 University of Toledo Rockets 15 in 18 innings — 101 fans, 60 fans at end — finished at 8:35 P.M.

8:23 – New Canadian Planned Marathon Record – Cairns Field, Saskatoon, Province of Saskatchewan –?/??/2002 – Saskatoon Baseball Council Age 15/16 – Athletics 26 Reds 25 in 26 innings – finished at 4:53 P.M. 3:29 — New Major League All-Star and Commissioner-in-Attendance All-Star Records — Miller Park, Milwaukee, Wisconsin — 7/9/2002 — American League 7 National League 7 in 11 innings, 0:10 managers/commissioner discussion delay bottom 11th — 41,871 fans including 9th Commissioner of Baseball Bud Selig.

6:00 – New All-Time 16-Inning, Professional 16-Inning, Major League 16-Inning, and American League 16-Inning Records – Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York – 8/9/2002 – Athletics 3 Yankees 2 in 16 innings – 54,316 fans, 10,000 fans at end – finished at 1:09 A.M. in the early morning of 8/10.

?:??—New Little League World Series Record— Lamade Stadium, Williamsport, Pennsylvania— 8/21/2002—Louisville 2 Fort Worth 1 in 11 innings.

5:13 – New National League 14-Inning Record – Busch Stadium (II), St. Louis, Missouri – 8/23/2002

Phillies 5 Cardinals 4 in 14 innings — 35,724 fans.
 3:47 — New National League Division Series 9-Inning Record — Turner Field, Atlanta, Georgia — 10/7/2002 — Giants 3 Braves 1— 52,273 fans.

6:41—New Caribbean, Dominican, and Dominican 20-Inning Records—Estadio (Stadium) Tetelo Vargas, San Pedro de Marcoris—10/19/2002—Winter League—Orientales Estrellas (Oriental Stars) 4 Escogido Leones Rojos (Red Lions) 3 in 20 innings finished at 3:17 A.M. in the early morning of 10/20.

6:00—New Japanese College, Japanese Indoor, College 23-Inning, and Japanese 23-Inning Records — Fukuoka Dome, Fukuoka —10/26/2002 — Kyushu University League — Nihon Bunri University 2 Kyushu Kyoritsu University 1 in 23 innings.

5:33 — New Australian 22-Inning Record — Blacktown Olympic Park, Sydney, State of New South Wales — 4/19/2003 — New South Wales Under 23 Tournament — Queensland 4 New South Wales/Victoria/Capital Territory Combined Academy 3 in 22 innings —120 fans, 200 fans at end —finished at 8:33 P.M.

5:02 — New English, Amateur 13-Inning, and English 13-Inning Records — Croydon, Surrey — 4/26/ 2003 — Rawlings National League — Croydon Pirates 14 Menwith Hill Patriots 13 in 13 innings.

4:40— New Czech and Czech 15-Inning Records — Strawberry Fields, Blansko — 5/10/2003 — Arrows Ostrava 5 Olympia Blansko 4 in 15 innings — finished at 5:40 P.M.

5:05 — New Major-Leagues-in-Puerto-Rico and Puerto Rican 14-Inning Records — Estadio (Stadium) Hiram Bithorn, San Juan — 6/5/2003 — Expos 8 Angels 7 in 14 innings —10,598 fans.

5:41—New Inter-League Record — Camden Yards, Baltimore, Maryland — 6/27/2003 — NL at AL — Phillies 4 Orioles 2 in 17 innings — 46,405 fans finished at 12:46 A.M. in the early morning of 6/28.

7:15 – New All-Time 21-Inning, Amateur 21-Inning, and High School Two-Site Records – Byron High School Field, Byron and Eckstein Field, Plainview, Minnesota — 6/22/2003 and 7/6/2003 — Twin Rivers League — Byron Braves 4 Plainview Bucks 3 in 21 innings, suspended after 5:00 and 15 innings on 6/22 in Byron, resumed 7/6 in Plainview —15 fans in Byron, 20 fans in Plainview — suspended at 6:00 P.M. on 6/22, finished at 9:45 P.M. on 7/6.

6:44 — New All-Time 19-Inning, Professional 19-Inning, and Minor League 19-Inning Records — Capital City Park, Columbia, South Carolina — 7/4/2003 — South Atlantic (Sally) League — Asheville Tourists 7 Capital City Bombers 5 in 19 innings — 5800 fans, 550 fans at end — finished at 1:40 A.M. in the early morning of 7/5.

3:40— New Chinese 11-Inning and French 11-Inning Records — Estadio (Stadium) Guillermon Moncada, Santiago, Cuba — 10/13/2003 — China 6 France 5 in 11 innings — finished at 11:40 P.M.

24:12 — New Women's Planned Marathon Record — Tucson Electric Park, Tucson, Arizona —10/18/2003 and 10/19/2003 — American Women's League — African Gray Birds 127 Red-Eyed Nites 110 in 65 innings —100 fans at start, 50 fans at 6 P.M., 25 fans at Midnight, 0 fans at 6 A.M., 12 fans at end —finished at 12:20 P.M. on 10/19.

25:00—New Planned Marathon and Canadian Planned Marathon Records—Beckwith Recreational Complex, Mississippi Mills, Province of Ontario— 10/18/2003 and 10/19/2003.

5:15 — New Historically Black Colleges and Universities (HBCU), Amateur 14-Inning, College 14-Inning, and NCAA 14-Inning Records — Regional Park, Pine Bluff, Arkansas — 4/8/2004 — Prairie View Agricultural and Mechanical (A&M) University Panthers at University of Arkansas at Pine Bluff Golden Lions; then Pine Bluff 13 Prairie View A&M 12 in 14 innings — 85 fans — finished at 9:30 P.M.

33:00— New Planned Marathon Record — Kelly Field, Hyde Park, Massachusetts — 4/17/2004 and 4/18/2004 — Boston Men's Adult League — Gehrig's Stamina 100 Schilling's Endurance 51 in 101 innings — 35 fans — finished at 6:00 P.M. on 4/18.

6:28 — New Amateur 20-Inning, College 20-Inning, and NCAA 20-Inning Records — Frank Myers Field at Tointon Family Stadium, Manhattan, Kansas — 4/9/2004 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — University of Texas Longhorns 10 Kansas State University Wildcats 6 in 20 innings — 874 fans finished at 1:35 A.M. in the early morning of 4/10.

4:30 – New NAIA 9-Inning Record – North Georgia Field, Dahlonega, Georgia – 4/23/2004 – Faulkner University Eagles 19 Georgia Southwestern State University Hurricanes 12 – finished at 1:30 A.M.

5:50— New European, Italian, and Italian 16-Inning Records — Stadio Renato Reatini, Anzio — 6/12/ 2004 — Serie Nazionale (Italian Al League) — Parma 8 Anzio 7 in 5:50 and 16 innings — finished at 2:50 A.M. in the early morning of 6/13.

4:31—New German and German 19-Inning Records —In den Fliesen (Sportsarea), Saarlouis—6/19/2004 and 7/10/2004 — Bundesliga Sud (South German League) — Furth Pirates 10 Saarlouis Hornets 4 in 3:04 — finished at 4:04 P.M.; then Saarlouis 2 Furth 1 in 19 innings, suspended after 4:16 and 18 innings — 250 fans on both days — suspended at 8:50 P.M.

4:00— New Israeli and Israeli 9-Inning Records — Yarkon Sports Complex, Petach Tikva — 6/28/2004 — National League — Kibbutz Kezer Dg Tech-Gezer 12 Israeli Junior National Team 11 in 9 innings — finished at 11:00 P.M.

6:15 — New Inter-League, All-Time 16-Inning, Professional 16-Inning, and Major League 16-Inning Records — Citizens Bank Park, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 7/2/2004 — AL at NL — Orioles 7 Phillies 6 in 16 innings — 44,390 fans — finished at 1:23 A.M. in the early morning of 7/3.

2:34 – New Women's World Cup and Women's World Cup 7-Inning Record – Telus Field, Edmonton, Province of Alberta, Canada – 7/30/2004 – Australia 7 Taiwan 5 in 7 innings – finished at 5:34 P.M.

3:09 — New Women's World Cup and Women's World Cup 8-Inning Record — Telus Field, Edmonton, Province of Alberta, Canada — 7/30/2004 — Japan 10 Canada 8 in 8 innings — finished at 10:39 P.M.

2:28 – New Women's World Cup 9-Inning Record – Telus Field, Edmonton, Province of Alberta, Canada – 7/31/2004 – Japan 5 Taiwan 4 in 9 innings – finished at 5:28 P.M.

2:35 – New Women's World Cup 9-Inning Record

- Telus Field, Edmonton, Province of Alberta, Canada - 8/1/2004 - USA 5 Japan 4 in 9 innings - finished at 10:05 P.M.

5:00— New Austria, Germany, and Ireland Records — Armin-Wolf-Arena, Regensburg, Germany — 8/3/ 2004 — European B-Pool Championships — Ireland 8 Austria 2 in 11 innings —finished at 12:00 Midnight.

2:41— New Women's World Cup 7-Inning Record — Telus Field, Edmonton, Province of Alberta, Canada — 8/4/2004 — Canada 3 Taiwan 2 in 7 innings finished at 5:34 P.M.

2:04 – New Women's World Cup 6-Inning Record – Telus Field, Edmonton, Province of Alberta, Canada – 8/7/2004 – USA 12 Australia 2 in 6 innings – finished at 5:04 P.M.

2:33 — New Greek Olympics Medal Sport and Greek Olympics Medal Sport 9-Inning Records — Helliniko Olympic Complex Field Two, Athens — 8/15/2004 — Cuba 4 Australia 1—1549 fans — finished at 1:03 P.M.

2:15 — New Greek Olympics Medal Sport 7-Inning Record — Helliniko Olympic Complex Field One, Athens — 8/15/2004 — Japan 12 Italy 0—1693 fans finished at 1:45 P.M.

2:34 — New Greek Olympics Medal Sport and Greek Olympics Medal Sport 9-Inning Records — Helliniko Olympic Complex Field Two, Athens — 8/15/2004 — Canada 7 Taiwan 0—1082 fans finished at 9:04 P.M.

2:45-New Greek Olympics Medal Sport and

Greek Olympics Medal Sport 9-Inning Records — Helliniko Olympic Complex Field One, Athens — 8/16/2004 — Canada 9 Italy 3 —1206 fans — finished at 2:15 P.M.

3:28 – New Greek Olympics Medal Sport and Greek Olympics Medal Sport 9-Inning Records – Helliniko Olympic Complex Field Two, Athens – 8/16/2004 – Japan 8 Netherlands 3 – 1610 fans – finished at 9:58 P.M.

5:42 — New Japanese 12-Inning Record — Hiroshima Kyujo (Stadium), Hiroshima or Tokyo Dome, Tokyo — 8/20/2004 — Central League — Hiroshima Toyo Carp 7 Yomiuri Giants 6 in 12 innings — finished at 11:42 P.M.

3:03 – New Greek Olympics Medal Sport 10-Inning Record – Helliniko Olympic Complex Field Two, Athens – 8/21/2004 – Japan 4 Taiwan 3 in 10 innings – 2088 fans – finished at 1:33 P.M.

3:33 – New Greek Olympics Medal Sport and Greek Olympics Medal Sport 9-Inning Records – Helliniko Olympic Complex Field One, Athens – 8/24/2004 – Cuba 8 Canada 5 in Semifinal Game – 6033 fans – finished at 11:03 P.M.

3:50— New Little League World Series Record — Lamade Stadium, South Williamsport, Pennsylvania — 8/26/2004 — Little League World Series — Guadalupe/Nuevo Leon (Mexico) 6 Corundu/Panama City (Panama) 2 in 10 innings.

5:15 — New National League Regular Season 13-Inning Record — Shea Stadium, New York, New York — 9/11/2004 — Phillies 11 Mets 9 in 13 innings — 21,718 fans.

3:15 — New Iranian and Iranian 12-Inning Records — Takhti Stadium, Isfahan — 9/17/2004 — Isfahan 10 Tehran 9 in 12 innings.

4:20—New Playoffs 9-Inning, Major League Playoffs 9-Inning, American League Playoffs 9-Inning, Major League Championship Series 9-Inning, and American League Championship Series 9-Inning Records—Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts— 10/16/2004—Yankees 19 Red Sox 8—35,126 fans.

5:02 — New American League Championship Series and Playoffs 12-Inning Records — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 10/17/2004 — Red Sox 6 Yankees 4 in 12 innings — 34,826 fans — finished at 1:22 A.M. in the early morning of 10/18.

5:49 — New Major League Playoffs, American League Playoffs, Major League Championship Series, American League Championship Series, Major League 14-Inning, American League 14-Inning, and Playoffs 14-Inning Records — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 10/18/2004 — Red Sox 5 Yankees 4 in 14 innings — 35,120 fans — finished at 11:00 P.M.

4:09 — New U.S. College 15-Inning and NCAA 15-Inning Records — Henley Field, Lakeland, Florida — 3/12/2005 — Florida Southern College Moccasins 4 Barry University Buccaneers 3 in 15 innings in 2nd game, Florida Southern 11 Barry 7 in 3:37 in 1st game —171 fans — 2nd game finished at 9:39 P.M. 5:45 — New NAIA vs. NCAA 17-Inning Record — Duvall-Rosier Field, Fairmont, West Virginia — 3/22/2005 — NAIA at NCAA — Fairmont State University Falcons 7 Seton Hill College Griffins 6 in 17 innings, then Fairmont State 5 Seton Hill 2 in 2:01 and 7 innings — 56 fans, 25 fans at end — 2nd game finished at 10:16 P.M.

5:50—New German and German 20-Inning Records; Equaled European Record — Reiterstadion (later Koln Ballpark), Koln (Cologne) — 4/6/2005 — Bundesliga Nord (North German League) — Bonn Capitals 9 Koln (Cologne) Cardinals 7 in 20 innings finished at 6:50 P.M.; then Bonn 4 Cologne 0 in 2:05 and 7 innings, rain delay 0:13 —finished at 9:38 P.M.

4:55 – New Missouri High School Record – Springfield or Webb City – 4/16/2005 – Parkview High School Vikings vs. Webb City High School Cardinals in 16 innings.

6:15 — New NAIA and NAIA 22-Inning Records — Wilson Field, Georgetown, Kentucky — 4/29/2005 — Lambuth University Eagles 8 Pikeville College Bears 5 in 22 innings — 200 fans, 150 fans at end —finished at 4:45 P.M.

4:45 — New College 12-Inning and NCAA 12-Inning Records — Nettleton Stadium, Chico, California — 5/14/2005 — University of California San Diego Tritons 7 Chico State University Wildcats 6 in 12 innings in 2nd game; Cal San Diego 5 Chico State 4 in 11 innings in 1st game — 902 fans — finished at 9:45 P.M.

4:23 – New Minor League 9-Inning Record – Raley Field, Sacramento, California – 5/16/2005 – New Orleans Zephyrs 11 Sacramento River Cats 8.

5:45 — New Swedish and Swedish 15-Inning Records — Kungsbacka Arena, Oskarshamn — 5/22/2005 — Oskarshamn Lost Boys 11 Goteborg Sharks 10 in 15 innings; then another game between two other teams in 3:30—1st game finished at 6:45 P.M.; 2nd game finished at 10:30 P.M.

5:25 — New Historically Black Colleges and Universities (HBCU), Amateur 15-Inning, College 15-Inning, and NCAA 15-Inning Records — Rickwood Field, Birmingham, Alabama — 5/22/2005 and 5/23/2005 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Southern University Jaguars 6 Prairie View A&M University Panthers 5 in 15 innings in 2nd game, 0:45 gunfire delay bottom 15th, suspended after 5:15 and 14½ innings; Southern 6 Prairie View A&M 0 in 2:37 in 1st game — 314 fans for first game; 187 fans for second game — 2nd game suspended at 11:25 P.M.; finished at 8:10 A.M. on 5/23.

5:05 — New Italian 15-Inning Record — Stadio Europeo, Parma — 5/26/2005 — Serie Nazionale (Italian Al League) — Italeri Bologna 6 Cantine Ceci Negri Parma 5 in 15 innings —finished at 1:35 A.M. in the early morning of 5/27.

3:24 – New Taiwanese 9-Inning Record – Hualien County Stadium, Hualien – 6/26/2005 – Chinese League – Brother Elephants 2 China Trust Whales 1 in 3:24, rain delay 0:20 top 4th, 2nd rain delay 2:50 bottom 4th — 4326 fans — finished at 11:40 P.M.

4:20— New Japanese 9-Inning and Pacific League 9-Inning Records — Miyagi Fullcast Kyujyo (Stadium), Sendai, Japan — 7/2/2005 — Tohoku Rakuten Golden Eagles 7 Hokkaido Nippon-Ham Fighters 6 — 19,083 fans.

3:59 — New Japanese 10-Inning and Pacific League 10-Inning Records — Big Egg, Tokyo, Japan — 7/4/ 2005 — Chiba Lotte Marines 6 Hokkaido Nippon-Ham Fighters 3.

5:50—Equaled All-Time 28-Inning and Amateur 28-Inning Records—Vic Kapsner Memorial Park, Lastrup, Minnesota—7/23/2005—Minnesota Town Team League—Lastrup Lakers 1 Pierz Brewers 0 in 28 innings—100 fans; 300 fans at end—finished at 7:25 P.M.

5:00— Equaled All-Time 9-Inning Record; New American Legion 9-Inning Record — Plote Field, Lake in the Hills, Illinois — 7/24/2005 — St. Charles Post 342 22 Crystal Lake Post 171 14.

5:00— New Little League, Aruba, Netherlands Antilles, and US Virgin Islands Records — Paul E. Joseph Stadium, Frederiksted, St. Croix, US Virgin Islands — 7/29/2005 — Caribbean Tournament — Bonaire (Netherlands Antilles) 4 Aruba 2 in 9 innings.

4:00— New Montana, Montana American Legion, and Montana 14-Inning Records — Heroes Park, Bozeman — 8/3/2005 — American Legion Class AA State Championships — Billings Scarlets 6 Missoula Mavericks 4 in 3:00 and 11 innings, then Billings Royals 4 Billings Scarlets 3 in 4:00 and 14 innings — 2000 fans — finished at 12:00 Midnight.

4:28 — New Brazilian, Chinese, World Cup, Chinese 15-Inning, and Brazilian 15-Inning Records — Stadion (Stadium) Eindhoven, Eindhoven, Netherlands — 9/3/2005 — China 6 Brazil 5 in 15 innings —finished at 5:28 P.M.

5:09 — New Playoffs 21-Inning Record — Fieldcrest Cannon Stadium, Kannapolis, North Carolina — 9/7/2005 — South Atlantic (Sally) League playoffs — Kannapolis Intimidators 4 Charleston (Sc) RiverDogs 3 in 21 innings — 749 fans; 300 fans at end —finished at 12:14 A.M. in the early morning of 9/8.

3:42 — New African, South African, and South African 13-Inning Records — Stadion (Stadium) Eindhoven, Eindhoven, Netherlands — 9/11/2005 — World Cup — South Korea 4 South Africa 3 in 13 innings finished at 4:42 P.M.

5:50—New Major League Playoffs, National League Playoffs, Major League Division Series, National League Division Series, and Playoffs 18-Inning Records—Minute Maid Park, Houston, Texas— 10/9/2005—Astros 7 Braves 6 in 18 innings—43,413 fans—finished at 5:55 P.M.

3:49 – New Mexican 9-Inning Record – Hermosillo –10/11/2005 – Mexican Pacific League – Mexicali 18 Hermosillo 12.

3:55-New Mexican 9-Inning Record-Obre-

gon —10/14/2005 — Mexican Pacific League — Obregon 9 Mazatlan 8.

5:41— New Inter-League, World Series, and Inter-League 14-Inning Records — Minute Maid Park, Houston, Texas —10/25/2005 — AL at NL — White Sox 7 Astros 5 in 14 innings — 42,848 fans — finished at 1:20 A.M. in the early morning of 10/26.

4:08 – New Mexican 9-Inning Record – Navojoa – 10/29/2005 – Mexican Pacific League – Navojoa 9 Los Mochis 6 – 5298 fans.

5:43 — New Minor League 14-Inning and Mexican 14-Inning Records — Estadio (Stadium) Angel Flores, Culiacan, State of Sinaloa — 11/16/2005 — Culiacan Tomateros (Tomato Growers) 4 Los Mochis Caneros (Sugar Cane Growers) 3 in 5:43 and 14 innings finished at 1:13 A.M. in the early morning of 11/17.

4:13 – New Mexican 9-Inning Record – Navojoa – 11/19/2005 – Mexican Pacific League – Mazatlan 9 Navojoa 6 – 8579 fans.

4:05 – New Venezuelan 9-Inning Record – Margarita Island –11/20/2005 – Winter League – Margarita 13 Caribes 2 –finished at 8:35 P.M.

4:23 – New Mexican 9-Inning Record – Los Mochis –12/11/2005 – Mexican Pacific League – Mazatlan 9 Los Mochis 6 –1000 fans.

4:43 – New Mexican 9-Inning Record – Los Mochis –1/6/2006 – Mexican Pacific League – Guasave 5 Los Mochis 4 – 3000 fans.

3:47 — New Caribbean World Series 9-Inning Record — Estadio (Stadium) Jose Bernardo Perez, Valencia, Venezuela — 2/4/2006 — Venezuela 11 Dominican 9 — 14,638 fans.

3:19 — New World Classic, World Classic-in-Japan, World Classic 9-Inning, World Classic-in-Japan 9-Inning, and Korean 9-Inning Records — Big Egg, Tokyo, Japan — 3/3/2006 — Korea 2 Taiwan 0 — 5193 fans — finished at 2:49 P.M.

3:04 — New World Classic 8-Inning and World Classic-in-Japan 8-Inning Records — Big Egg, Tokyo, Japan — 3/3/2006 — Japan 18 China 2 in 8 innings — 15,869 fans — finished at 9:34 P.M.

3:10—New World Classic 7-Inning and World Classic-in-Japan 7-Inning Records — Big Egg, Tokyo, Japan — 3/4/2006 — Japan 14 Taiwan 3 in 7 innings — 31,047 fans —finished at 9:10 P.M.

3:31— New World Classic, World Classic-in-Japan, World Classic 9-Inning, World Classic-in-Japan 9-Inning, Taiwanese 9-Inning, and Chinese 9-Inning Records — Big Egg, Tokyo, Japan — 3/5/ 2006 — Taiwan 12 China 3 — 4577 fans — finished at 2:31 P.M.

3:16 – New World Classic-in-USA and World Classic-in-USA 9-Inning Records – Ballpark at Disney's Wide World of Sports Complex, Lake Buena Vista, Florida – 3/7/2006 – Dominican 11 Venezuela 5–10,645 fans – finished at 4:27 P.M.

2:47 — New World Classic-in-Puerto Rico and World Classic-in-Puerto Rico 9-Inning Records — Estadio (Stadium) Hiram Bithorn, San Juan — 3/7/2006 - Puerto Rico 2 Panama 1-19,043 fans - finished at 9:47 P.M.

3:38 — New World Classic, World Classic-in-USA, World Classic 9-Inning, World Classic-in-USA 9-Inning, Canadian 9-Inning, and South African 9-Inning Records — Scottsdale Stadium, Scottsdale, Arizona — 3/7/2006 — Canada 11 South Africa 8 — 5829 fans — finished at 10:38 P.M.

4:11— New World Classic, World Classic-in-Puerto Rico, World Classic 11-Inning, World Classic-in-Puerto Rico 11-Inning, Cuban 11-Inning, and Panamanian 11-Inning Records — Estadio (Stadium) Hiram Bithorn, San Juan — 3/8/2006 — Cuba 8 Panama 6 in 11 innings — 6129 fans — finished at 5:11 P.M.

3:29 — New World Classic-in-Puerto Rico 9-Inning Record — Estadio (Stadium) Hiram Bithorn, San Juan — 3/8/2006 — Puerto Rico 8 Netherlands 3 — 15,570 fans — finished at 10:59 P.M.

2:18 — New World Classic-in-Puerto Rico 7-Inning Record — Estadio (Stadium) Hiram Bithorn, San Juan — 3/10/2006 — Netherlands 10 Panama 0 in 7 innings — 6337 fans — finished at 3:18 P.M.

1:47 — New World Classic-in-USA 5-Inning Record — Scottsdale Stadium, Scottsdale, Arizona — 3/10/ 2006 — USA 17 South Africa 0 in 5 innings —11,975 fans —finished at 2:47 P.M.

3:01— New World Classic-in-Puerto Rico 7-Inning Record — Estadio (Stadium) Hiram Bithorn, San Juan — 3/10/2006 — Puerto Rico 12 Cuba 2 in 7 innings — 19,736 fans — finished at 10:31 P.M.

3:48 – New World Classic 9-Inning, World Classic-in-Puerto Rico 9-Inning, Dominican 9-Inning, and Cuban 9-Inning Records – Estadio (Stadium) Hiram Bithorn, San Juan – 3/13/2006 – Dominican 7 Cuba 3 – 6594 fans – finished at 4:48 P.M.

3:56 — New World Classic 9-Inning, World Classic-in-Puerto Rico 9-Inning, and Cuban 9-Inning Records — Estadio (Stadium) Hiram Bithorn, San Juan — 3/15/2006 — Cuba 4 Puerto Rico 3 — 19,773 fans — finished at 10:56 P.M.

3:14 – New Montana College, Montana 2-Year College, and Montana 13-Inning Records – Elks Memorial Stadium, Ontario, Oregon – 3/17/2006 – National Junior Collegiate Athletic Association – Miles Community College Pioneers 8 Treasure Valley Community College Chukars 7 in 13 innings – 50 fans.

3:42 — New World Classic-in-USA and World Classic-in-USA 9-Inning Records — Petco Park, San Diego, California — 3/18/2006 — Cuba 3 Dominican 1—41,268 fans — finished at 3:42 P.M.

4:05 — New Montana, Montana College, Montana 2-Year College, and Montana 12-Inning Records — Denton Field, Miles City — 4/6/2006 — National Junior Collegiate Athletic Association — Miles Community College Pioneers 7 Dawson Community College Buccaneers 6 in 12 innings — 50 fans.

3:25 – New Montana 4-Year College and Montana 4-Year College 9-Inning Records – Cobb Field, Billings — 4/11/2006 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Central Washington University Wildcats 17 Montana State University-Billings Yellowjackets 12 — 117 fans — finished at 2:25 P.M.

2:30— New Turkish Record — Raven's Nest, Tulln, Austria — 4/16/2006 — Dominican Ravens (Austria) 9 Turkish National Senior Team 5 in 7 innings — 250 fans — finished at 6:00 P.M.

8:07 — New All-Time 24-Inning, Professional 24-Inning, and Minor League 24-Inning Records — Greer Stadium, Nashville, Tennessee — 5/5/2006 and 5/6/ 2006 — Pacific Coast League — New Orleans Zephyrs 5 Nashville Sounds 4 in 24 innings, suspended after 6:23 and 18 innings — 9124 fans on 5/5, 300 fans at suspension; 10,016 fans on 5/6 — suspended at 1:25 A.M. in the early morning of 5/6; finished at 7:44 P.M. on 5/6.

7:47 — New All-Time 22-Inning, Professional 22-Inning, and Minor League 22-Inning Records — FirstEnergy Park, Lakewood, New Jersey — 4/26/2006 and 5/7/2006 — South Atlantic (Sally) League — Lakewood BlueClaws 8 Hagerstown Suns 7 in 22 innings, suspended after 17 innings and 6:03 — 5487 fans on 4/26, 150 fans top 12th, 31 fans top 17th; 7449 fans on 5/7 — suspended at 12:42 A.M. in the early morning of 4/27, finished at 2:49 P.M. on 5/7.

4:24 – New Minor League 10-Inning Record – Cooper Stadium, Columbus, Ohio – 5/29/2006 – International League – Buffalo Bisons 12 Columbus Clippers 9 in 10 innings –10,501 fans.

4:10—Equaled NJCAA 9-Inning Record — Suplizio Field, Grand Junction, Colorado — 5/30/2006 — San Jacinto College-North Gators 18 Broward Community College Seahawks 17 — 3016 fans — finished at 7:10 P.M.

5:21- New Mexican 16-Inning Record – Estadio (Stadium) Monterrey, Monterrey, State of Monterrey, Mexico – 6/22/2006- Mexican League – Laguna Vaqueros (Cowboys) 6 Monterrey Sultans 4 in 16 innings, rain delay 2:16 at start –15,635 fans; only 100 fans at end –finished at 3:53 A.M. in the early morning of 6/23.

7:55 — New Central American Full-Length, Mexican Full-Length, All-Time 21-Inning, Amateur 21-Inning, and Mexican Amateur 21-Inning Records — Estadio (Stadium) Ojinaga, Ojinaga, State of Chihuahua — 8/13/2006 — Madera Venados (Deer) 11 Ojinaga Soles (Suns) 9 in 21 innings — finished at 6:58 P.M.

4:45 — New Professional 9-Inning, Major League 9-Inning, and American League 9-Inning Records — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 8/18/2006 — Yankees 14 Red Sox 11 in night game — 36,071 fans finished at 12:55 A.M. in the early morning of 8/19.

2:33 — New Olympics Qualifier, Olympics Qualifier 7-Inning, Americas Olympics Qualifier, and Americas Olympics Qualifier 7-Inning Records — Estadio (Stadium) Latinoamericano, Havana, Cuba — 8/25/2006 — Cuba 14 Colombia 0 in 7 innings — 6000 fans — finished at 11:33 P.M. 2:45 — New Olympics Qualifier, Olympics Qualifier 9-Inning, Americas Olympics Qualifier, and Americas Olympics Qualifier 9-Inning Records — Estadio (Stadium) Santiago Mederos, Havana, Cuba — 8/26/2006 — Nicaragua 11 Ecuador 1—1200 fans finished at 12:45 P.M.

2:50— New Olympics Qualifier, Olympics Qualifier 9-Inning, Americas Olympics Qualifier, and Americas Olympics Qualifier 9-Inning Records — Estadio (Stadium) Santiago Mederos, Havana, Cuba — 8/26/2006 — Mexico 2 Brazil 1—1200 fans — finished at 4:50 P.M.

2:52 — New Olympics Qualifier, Olympics Qualifier 9-Inning, Americas Olympics Qualifier, and Americas Olympics Qualifier 9-Inning Records — Estadio (Stadium) Latinoamericano, Havana, Cuba — 8/26/2006 — Panama 3 Dominican 2 —1000 fans finished at 4:52 P.M.

3:35 — New Olympics Qualifier, Olympics Qualifier 11-Inning. Americas Olympics Qualifer, and Americas Olympics Qualifier 11-Inning Records — Estadio (Stadium) Nelson Fernandez, Havana, Cuba — 8/26/2006 — Venezuela 2 Puerto Rico 1 in 11 innings — 1200 fans — finished at 5:35 P.M.

2:54 — New Olympics Qualifier 9-Inning and Americas Olympics Qualifier 9-Inning Records — Estadio (Stadium) Latinoamericano, Havana, Cuba — 8/26/2006 — USA 9 Canada 3 — 2500 fans — finished at 10:54 P.M.

2:35 — New Olympics Qualifier 7-Inning and Americas Olympics Qualifier 7-Inning Records — Estadio (Stadium) Nelson Fernandez, Havana, Cuba — 8/27/2006 — Dominican 13 Ecuador 1 in 7 innings — 200 fans — finished at 12:35 P.M.

3:00—New Olympics Qualifier 9-Inning and Americas Olympics Qualifier 9-Inning Records — Estadio (Stadium) Latinoamericano, Havana, Cuba — 8/27/2006—Cuba 7 Panama 6—10,000 fans finished at 1:00 P.M.

3:02 — New Olympics Qualifier 9-Inning and Americas Olympics Qualifier 9-Inning Records — Estadio (Stadium) Santiago Mederos, Havana, Cuba — 8/27/2006 — Canada 6 Puerto Rico 5 —1000 fans finished at 5:02 P.M.

3:33 — New Olympics Qualifier 9-Inning and Americas Olympics Qualifier 9-Inning Records — Estadio (Stadium) Nelson Fernandez, Havana, Cuba — 8/27/2006 — Mexico 5 Venezuela 4 — 200 fans finished at 1:33 P.M.

3:30—New Olympics Qualifier 10-Inning and Americas Olympics Qualifier 10-Inning Records—Estadio (Stadium) Latinoamericano, Havana, Cuba— 8/27/2006—USA 8 Brazil 7 in 10 innings—2000 fans—finished at 5:30 P.M.

3:40—New Olympics Qualifier, Olympics Qualifier 10-Inning, Americas Olympics Qualifier, and Americas Olympics Qualifier 10-Inning Records—Estadio (Stadium) Latinoamericano, Havana, Cuba— 8/28/2006—Canada 7 Venezuela 5 in 10 innings— 2000 fans—finished at 1:40 P.M. 2:55 – New Olympics Qualifier 7-Inning and Americas Olympics Qualifier 7-Inning Records – Estadio (Stadium) Latinoamericano, Havana, Cuba – 8/28/2006 – Cuba 17 Dominican 3 in 7 innings – 12,500 fans – finished at 4:55 P.M.

2:50—New Olympics Qualifier 8-Inning and Americas Olympics Qualifier 8-Inning Records—Estadio (Stadium) Nelson Fernandez, Havana, Cuba— 8/28/2006—USA 15 Mexico 3 in 8 innings—1000 fans—finished at 4:50 P.M.

3:09 — New Olympics Qualifier 8-Inning and Americas Olympics Qualifier 8-Inning Records — Estadio (Stadium) Santiago Mederos, Havana, Cuba — 8/29/2006 — Panama 15 Ecuador 3 in 8 innings — 500 fans — finished at 1:09 P.M.

3:38 – New Olympics Qualifier 9-Inning and Americas Olympics Qualifier 9-Inning Records – Estadio (Stadium) Latinoamericano, Havana, Cuba – 8/29/2006 – Brazil 10 Venezuela 5 – 300 fans – finished at 5:38 P.M.

4:26 – New Olympics Qualifier, Olympics Qualifier 11-Inning. Americas Olympics Qualifer, and Americas Olympics Qualifier 11-Inning Records – Estadio (Stadium) Nelson Fernandez, Havana, Cuba – 8/30/2006 – Venezuela 12 USA 9 in 11 innings –1000 fans – finished at 6:26 P.M.

3:38 — Equaled Olympics Qualifier 9-Inning and Americas Olympics Qualifier 9-Inning Records — Estadio (Stadium) Santiago Mederos, Havana, Cuba — 9/1/2006 — Canada 15 Panama 12—1200 fans finished at 5:38 P.M.

3:54 — New Olympics Qualifier 9-Inning and Americas Olympics Qualifier 9-Inning Records — Estadio (Stadium) Latinoamericano, Havana, Cuba — 9/1/2006 — Cuba 10 Venezuela 1—8000 fans finished at 11:54 P.M.

4:59 — New U.S. Minor League 14-Inning Record — Whataburger Field, Corpus Christi, Texas — 9/15/ 2006 — Texas League playoffs — Corpus Christi Hooks 8 Wichita Wranglers 7 in 14 innings — 8394 fans.

3:07 — New Minor League World Series/Bricktown Showdown 9-Inning Record — at & T Bricktown Ballpark, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma — 9/19/2006 — Tucson Sidewinders 5 Toledo Mud Hens 2—12,572 fans.

3:51— New National League Division Series 9-Inning Record — Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California — 10/7/2006 — Mets 9 Dodgers 5 — 56,293 fans.

3:55 – New Japan Series 9-Inning Record – Nagoya Dome, Nagoya, Japan –10/22/2006 – Hokkaido Nippon Ham Fighters 5 Chunichi Dragons 2 – 38,095 fans.

6:13 – New Caribbean Series Record – Estadio (Stadium) Roberto Clemente Walker, Carolina, Puerto Rico – 2/2/2007 – Aguilas Cibaenas (Dominican) 4 Aragua Tigres (Tigers) (Venezuela) 3 in 18 innings; then Carolina Giantes (Giants) (Puerto Rico) 11 Hermosillo Naranjeros (Orange Growers) (Mexico) 1 in 3:15 - 2nd game finished at 2:05 A.M. in the early morning of 2/3.

3:38 — New Australian 14-Inning Record — Eagle Park at Lockleys Oval, Adelaide — 2/18/2007 — West Torrens Eagles 2 Port Adelaide Magpies 1 in 1:45 and 7 innings, then Port Adelaide 6 West Torrens 4 in 14 innings — 200 fans —1st game finished at 2:13 P.M.; 2nd game finished at 6:28 P.M.

3:30 – New Montana 4-Year College Record – CitiBank Ballpark, Midland, Texas – 3/5/2007 – National Collegiate Athletic Association – Montana State University-Billings Yellowjackets 6 University of Texas-Permian Basin Falcons 5 in 11 innings, then Montana State-Billings 9 Texas-Permian Basin 0 in 1:30 and 7 innings – 55 fans –1st game finished at 7:30 P.M.; 2nd game finished at 9:30 P.M.

3:31— New Montana 4-Year College Record — Roden Field, Odessa, Texas — 3/6/2007 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Montana State University-Billings Yellowjackets 4 University of Texas-Permian Basin Falcons 3 in 12 innings, then Montana State-Billings 7 Texas-Permian Basin 2 in 2:00 and 5 innings — 45 fans —1st game finished at 4:31 P.M.; 2nd game finished at 6:45 P.M.

4:30—New Taiwan and Taiwan 9-Inning Record — Tainan Stadium, Tainan — 3/20/2007 — Chinese League — Chinatrust Whales 9 Uni-President Lions 7—1820 fans.

4:37 — New Taiwan and Taiwan 9-Inning Record — Hsinchuang (Taipei County) Stadium, Taipei — 4/4/2007 — Chinese League — Uni-President Lions 9 Chinatrust Whales 8 — 618 fans — finished at 11:11 P.M.

4:52 — New Taiwan, Professional 9-Inning, and Taiwan 9-Inning Records — Tainan Stadium, Tainan -4/5/2007 — Chinese League — Brother Elephants 11 Uni-President Lions 10 — 6525 fans — finished at 11:26 P.M.

4:00 – New High School 9-Inning Record – St. Luke's High School Field 3/Lower Field, New Canaan, Connecticut – 4/22/2007 – Connecticut High School League – Choate Rosemary Hall High School Wild Boars 28 St. Luke's High School 23 – finished at 5:00 P.M.

4:58 — New South Dakota High School Record — Lead — 5/5/2007 — High School League — Hot Springs High School Bison 7 Lead-Deadwood High School Golddiggers 6 in 14 innings — finished at 9:58 P.M.

4:15 – New Italian 15-Inning Record – Stadio Roberto Jannella, Grosseto, Italy – 6/7/2007 – Serie Nazionale (Italian A1 League) – MontePaschi Grosseto 4 Cariparma 3 in 15 innings – finished at 1:15 A.M. in the early morning of 6/8.

5:40— New College World Series Record — Rosenblatt Stadium, Omaha, Nebraska — 6/18/2007 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — University of California at Irvine Anteaters 5 California State University at Fullerton Titans 4 in 13 innings — 16,451 fans — finished at 6:47 P.M. 2:14 — New Israeli Professional Record — Yarkon Sports Complex, Petah Tikva — 6/24/2007 — Modi'in Miracle 9 Petah Tikva Pioneers 1 in 7 innings — 3112 fans — finished at 8:29 P.M.

2:37 — New Israeli Professional Record — Yarkon Sports Complex, Petah Tikva — 6/25/2007 — Tel Aviv Lightning 10 Ra'anana Express 4 in 7 innings — 273 fans — finished at 8:07 P.M.

2:56 — New Israeli Professional Record — Gezer Field, Kibbutz Gezer — 7/1/2007 — Bet Shemesh Blue Sox 10 Netanya Tigers 6 in 7 innings — 45 fans.

5:31— New Taiwan and Taiwan 12-Inning Records — Tainan Stadium, Tainan — 7/1/2007 — Chinese League — Chinatrust Whales 9 Uni-President Lions 9 in 12 innings — 2006 fans — finished at 10:36 P.M.

4:40—New All-Time Tiebreaker, Professional Tiebreaker, Major League Tiebreaker, and National League Tiebreaker Records—Coors Field, Denver, Colorado—10/1/2007—Rockies 8 Padres 7 in 13 innings—48,404 fans—finished at 11:45 P.M.

2:55 — New Major-Leagues-Exhibition-in-China Record — Wukesong Baseball Main Field, Beijing, China — 3/15/2008 — Padres 3 Dodgers 3 in 9 innings, called a tie — 12,242 fans — finished at 5:02 P.M. (5:02 A.M. in New York City).

3:39 — New Japanese 10-Inning Record — Big Egg, Tokyo, Japan — 3/25/2008 — Red Sox 6 Athletics 5 in 10 innings — 44,628 fans — finished at 10:44 P.M. (9:44 A.M. in New York City).

5:30— New Cuban and Cuban Playoffs Records — Habana — 3/27/2007 — Sancti Spiritus 2 La Habana Province 1 in 17 innings.

7:20— New High School, Playoffs, High School Playoffs, 20-Inning, 20-Inning Playoffs, and High School 20-Inning Records — Yanez Field, Downey, California — 5/13/2008—California Interscholastic Federation (CIF) Southern Section Division III Playoffs Wildcard Round — Downey High School Vikings 3 Harvard-Westlake Upper School Wolverines 2 in 20 innings — 200 fans including Tommy Lasorda; 125 fans at end —finished at 10:35 P.M.

2:40— New Final Olympics Qualifier 9-Inning Record — Intercontinental Stadium, Taichung, Taiwan — 3/7/2008 — South Korea 5 South Africa 0 finished at 3:10 P.M.

3:38 — New Final Olympics Qualifier 9-Inning Record — Douliou Stadium, Taichung, Taiwan — 3/7/ 2008 — Canada 15 Mexico 10—finished at 4:08 P.M.

2:54 — New Final Olympics Qualifier 7-Inning Record — Intercontinental Stadium, Taichung, Taiwan -3/7/2008 — Taiwan 13 Spain 3 — finished at 9:54 P.M.

3:40— New Final Olympics Qualifier 9-Inning Record — Douliou Stadium, Taichung, Taiwan — 3/10/ 2008 — South Korea 14 Spain 5 — finished at 4:10 P.M.

3:30— New Final Olympics Qualifier 10-Inning Record — Intercontinental Stadium, Taichung, Taiwan — 3/10/2008 — Canada 6 Taiwan 5 — finished at 10:00 P.M. 3:14 — New Olympics Qualifier 7-Inning and Final Olympics Qualifier 7-Inning Records — Intercontinental Stadium, Taichung, Taiwan — 3/12/2008 — South Korea 12 Germany 1—finished at 3:44 P.M.

3:35 — New Australian and South African 9-Inning Records — Intercontinental Stadium, Taichung, Taiwan — 3/14/2008 — Final Olympics Qualifier — Australia 13 South Africa 11—finished at 4:05 P.M.

7:20— New High School and 20-Inning High School Records — Downey, California — 5/13/2008 — Southern California High School Playoffs — Downey High School Vikings 3 Harvard-Westlake Wolverines 2 in 20 innings — finished at 10:35 P.M.

6:45 — New College and College 19-Inning Records — Gcs Ballpark, Sauget, Illinois — 5/26/2008 — National Collegiate Athletic Association Divison II playoffs — Sonoma State University Seawolves 6 University of Central Missouri Mules 5 in 19 innings — 201 fans — finished at 2:53 A.M. in the early morning of 5/27.

4:13 — New Japanese 10-Inning Record — Chiba Marine Stadium, Chiba, Japan — 5/20/2008 — Central League at Pacific League — Yomiuri Giants (Central League) 12 Chiba Lotte Marines (Pacific League) 11 in 10 innings — 25,815 fans.

33:15 — New Planned Marathon Record — Burns Park, Massapequa, New York — 5/24/2008 and 5/25/2008 — Long Island Mountain Division Men's Senior Baseball League Age 45 and Older — New York Giants 155 Brooklyn Dodgers 135 in 99 innings — 50 fans; 20 fans in the middle; 50 fans at end — finished at 12:15 A.M. in the early morning of 5/26.

4:14 — New Japanese 10-Inning Record — Sapporo Dome, Sapporo, Tokyo, Japan — 6/1/2008 — Central League at Pacific League — Hanshin Tigers (Central League) 5 Hokkaido Nippon-Ham Fighters (Pacific League) 4 in 10 innings — 42,126 fans.

4:35 — New Japanese 12-Inning Record — Yahoo Dome, Fukuoka, Japan — 6/1/2008 — Central League at Pacific League — Fukuoka Softbank Hawks (Pacific League) 5 Yomiuri Giants (Central League) 4 in 12 innings — 34,199 fans.

5:22 — New Korea 14-Inning Record — Mokdong Yagu-jang (Stadium), Seoul — 6/12/2008 — Korean Organization — Woori Heroes 2 Kia Tigers 1 in 14 innings, 0:55 rain delay — 6900 fans; 900 fans at end finished at 12:49 A.M. in the early morning of 6/13.

3:50— New Russian Record — Ciudade Deportiva, Abrantes, Portugal — 7/10/2008 — European Championships — Russia 5 Ireland 4 in 10 innings —195 fans — finished at 2:50 P.M.

4:50—New Major League All-Star Game Record — Yankee Stadium, New York, New York — 7/15/2008 — American League 4 National League 3 in 15 innings — 55,632 fans — finished at 1:37 A.M. in the early morning of 7/16.

2:17 – New China Olympics Medal Sport and China Olympics Medal Sport 9-Inning Records – Wukesong Baseball Field Two, Beijing – 8/13/2008 – Taiwan 5 Netherlands 0—1510 fans—finished at 12:47 P.M.

2:41—New China Olympics Medal Sport and China Olympics Medal Sport 8-Inning Records — Wukesong Baseball Main Field, Beijing — 8/13/2008 — Canada 10 China 0 in 8 innings — 7105 fans —finished at 2:11 P.M.

3:19 — New China Olympics Medal Sport and China Olympics Medal Sport 9-Inning Records — Wukesong Baseball Field Two, Beijing — 8/13/2008 — South Korea 8 USA 7 — 1100 fans — finished at 9:19 P.M.

2:52 — New China Olympics Medal Sport 8½-Inning Record — Wukesong Baseball Field Two, Beijing — 8/14/2008 — USA 7 Netherlands 0 in 8½ innings; rain delay 1:35 top 8th and 2nd rain delay 1:30 bottom 9th — 996 fans — called off at 4:27 P.M.

4:20—New China Olympics Medal Sport and China Olympics Medal Sport 12-Inning Records— Wukesong Baseball Field Two, Beijing—8/15/2008— China 8 Taiwan 7 in 12 innings—1600 fans—finished at 2:50 P.M.

3:43 — New China Olympics Medal Sport 11-Inning Record — Wukesong Baseball Main Field, Beijing — 8/15/2008 — Cuba 5 USA 4 in 11 innings — 6665 fans — finished at 3:13 P.M.

3:29 — New China Olympics Medal Sport 9-Inning Record — Wukesong Baseball Main Field, Beijing — 8/16/2008 — South Korea 5 Japan 3 — 8124 fans — finished at 9:29 P.M.

3:39 — New China Olympics Medal Sport 9-Inning Record — Wukesong Baseball Main Field, Beijing — 8/18/2008 — South Korea 9 Taiwan 8 — 7000 fans — finished at 3:09 P.M.

2:54 – New China Olympics Medal Sport 8-Inning Record – Wukesong Baseball Field Two, Beijing – 8/18/2008 – Cuba 14 Netherlands 3 in 8 innings – 1689 fans – finished at 8:54 P.M.

2:11— New China Olympics Medal Sport 7-Inning Record — Wukesong Baseball Field Two, Beijing — 8/19/2008 — Japan 10 China 0 in 7 innings —1680 fans — finished at 8:11 P.M.

2:19 — New China Olympics Medal Sport 7-Inning Record — Wukesong Baseball Field Two, Beijing — 8/20/2008 — Cuba 17 China 1 in 7 innings —1390 fans — finished at 12:49 P.M.

5:51— New South Korean Record — Jamsil Yagujang (Stadium), Seoul — 9/3/2008 — Korean Organization — Doosan Bears 1 Hanwha Eagles 0 in 18 innings — 7273 fans; 1000 fans at end — finished at 12:22 A.M. in the early morning of 9/4.

5:01—New Dutch Record — Sportpark Schenkel, Capelle aan den Ijssel, Netherlands — 9/20/2008 — Promotion/Relegation Playoff—Ado 2 Euro Stars 1 in 18 innings — 200 fans — finished at 7:01 P.M.

2:41— New Cricket Team vs. Baseball Team Record — Somerset County Cricket Club Ground, Taunton, England —10/4/2008 — Great Britain National Baseball Team 21 Marcus Trescothick's Bangers Cricket Team 1 in 8 innings -1000 fans -finished at 5:00 P.M.

5:19 – New American League Division Series Record – Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts – 10/5/2008 – Angels 5 Red Sox 4 in 12 innings – 39,067 fans – finished at 12:48 A.M. in the early morning of 10/6.

3:28 = 2:10 + 1:18 — New World Series Suspended Game Record — Citizens Bank Park, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 10/27/2008 and 10/29/2008 — Phillies 4 Rays 3; rain delay 0:30 bottom 6th and then suspended after 5½ innings; snowed out on 10/28; finished on 10/29 - 45,940 fans on 10/27; 45,904 fans on 10/29 — suspended at 11:10 P.M. on 10/27; finished at 9:58 P.M. on 10/29.

Games Lasting Seven Hours or More by Elapsed Time (66)

15 to 16 Hours (1)

15:00 = 3:00 game + 12:00 change-of-field delay -Hays Field, Lubbock, Texas; Ferguson Field, Jal, New Mexico - 5/1?/1986 - Texas High School League 4A best two-out-of-three playoffs - knowing that torrential rains made playing their second game of the best two-out-of-three series at Hays Field in Lubbock Texas at 1 P.M. and "if-necessary" third game at 7 P.M. totally impossible, both teams along with coaches, fans, and umpires set out at 7 A.M. on what ended up being a 510-mile long Odyssey from Lubbock, Texas to New Mexico in search of a dry field, fields were found in Artesia (2:00 wait) and Hobbs (2:30 wait) but the fields were too wet and it was raining in both places, in Hobbs they ran into two other Texas high schools, Pecos and Canyon, who were also in search of a dry field, when told that Eunice had a dry field the race was on between the Pecos/Canyon caravan and the Hereford/Andrews caravan, Pecos and Canyon won the race, and proceeded to begin their second game, Canyon had won their first game the night before so when Canyon got way ahead early in the second game, Hereford and Andrews decided to wait and play afterwards since there would be no need for a third game if Canyon won, but Pecos staged a big comeback to win, forcing a deciding third game, and leaving Hereford and Andrews still looking for a dry field, then they heard there was an old field in Jal that had not been used in two years, flickering light standards were fixed by taping two wires together with black electrical tape, outfield had knee-high weeds, foul lines were chalked using an old shoe box, finally after a 12-hour long change-of-field delay, they began play at 12:00 Midnight New Mexico time, 1:00 A.M. Texas time, Hereford High School Whitefaces 4 Andrews High School Mustangs 3 in 3:00 and 8 innings - 50 fans including Hereford mascot Red finished at 3:00 A.M. New Mexico time; 4:00 A.M. Texas time.

13 to 15 hours (0)

12 to 13 Hours (1)

12:01 = 3:07 game + 8:54 rain delay — Hunnicutt Field, Princeton, West Virginia — 5/7/2006 — National Collegiate Athletic Administration — Ohio Valley University Fighting Scots 10 West Virginia State University Yellow Jackets 9 in 3:07, rain delay 8:54 top 7th, then Ohio Valley University Fighting Scots 14 Concord University Mountain Lions 5 in 2:49 — 250 fans, 75 fans top 7th, 350 fans at end; 200 fans at end of 2nd game — 1st game ended at 10:01 P.M.; 2nd game ended at 1:27 A.M. in the early morning of 5/8.

11 to 12 Hours (0)

10 to 11 Hours (3)

10:50 = 3:07 game + 6:40 rain delays + 1:03 rain and lightning delay — Turchin Stadium, New Orleans, Louisiana — 6/5/2005 and 6/6/2005 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — rain delay 0:42 at start on 6/5, postponed, rain delay 5:58 at start on 6/6, Tulane University Green Wave 7 University of Alabama Crimson Tide 4 in 3:07, 1:03 rain and lightning delay bottom 7th — 4125 fans — postponed at 8:32 P.M. on 6/5, finished at 11:17 P.M. on 6/6.

10:02 = 1:50 game + 8:12 rain delay — MacKenzie Field, Holyoke, Massachusetts — 5/24/1978 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — University of Delaware Blue Hens 1 Harvard College Crimson 0 in 1:50 and 6 innings, rain delay 8:12 top 7th — 125 fans — finished at 10:02 P.M.

10:00—Piedras Negras, State of Coahuila, Mexico — 7/18/1926 — Amateur — San Luisito 29 Piedras Negras (Black Rock) Internationals 19 in $5\frac{1}{2}$ innings finished at 7:00 P.M.

9 to 10 Hours (5)

9:56 = 2:50 game + 7:06 rain delay — Yogi Berra Stadium, Little Falls, New Jersey — 8/14/2000 — Northern League — rain delay 7:06 at start, Catskill Cougars 6 New Jersey Jackals 1 in 2:50—finished at 11:06 P.M.

9:30 = 3:30 game + 6:00 rain delay — West Valley College Sunken Diamond, Saratoga; Skyline College Field, San Bruno, California — 5/21/2006 — National Junior College Athletic Association playoffs — Sierra College Wolverines 7 Santa Rosa Junior College Bear Cubs 6 in 3:30, rain delay 0:40 top 5th, change of ballfield delay 5:20 top 5th, 2nd game postponed — 200 fans at Saratoga; 150 fans at San Bruno — began at 10:00 A.M., delayed at 11:15 A.M., suspended and decision made to change ballfields at 12:50 A.M., resumed at 5:15 P.M., finished at 7:30 P.M.

9:15 = 4:55 game + 4:20 two rain delays — Lynx Stadium, Ottawa and Hamilton Yard, Nepean, Province of Ontario, Canada — 10/21/2001 — Canadian Interuniversity Baseball Association — rain delay 4:00 at start, game shifted from Lynx Stadium to Hamilton Yard during the delay, Laval University Rouge et Or (Red and Gold) 10 University of New Brunswick Cougars 6 in 4:55 and 15 innings, 2nd rain delay 0:20 top 5th --100 fans -- finished at 11:15 P.M.

9:06 = 5:26 game + 3:40 rain delay — Newman Outdoor Field, Fargo, North Dakota — 4/12/2008 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — 3:40 rain delay at start, Southern Utah University Thunderbirds 12 North Dakota State Bison 5 in 17 innings in 1st game, 2nd game canceled —181 fans — finished at 10:06 P.M.

9:01 = 3:57 game + 5:04 two rain delays — Camden Yards, Baltimore, Maryland — 9/19/2000 — American League — rain delay 2:43 at start, Athletics 7 Orioles 4 in 3:57 in day game, 2nd rain delay 2:21 top 8th, night game postponed — 30,166 fans — finished at 10:36 P.M.

8 to 9 Hours (16)

8:55 = 8:25 game + 0:30 power failure delay — Mc-Coy Stadium, Pawtucket, Rhode Island — 4/18/1981 and 6/23/1981— International League — power failure delay 0:30 at start, Pawtucket Paw Sox 3 Rochester Red Wings 2 in 8:25 and 33 innings, suspended after 8:07 and 32 innings —1740 fans, 150 fans Midnight, 100 fans top 21st, 60 fans 1 A.M., 27 fans top 27th, 19 fans at suspension, 5756 fans on 6/23 — suspended at 4:07 A.M. in the early morning of 4/19, dawn was at 5:00 A.M., finished at 6:18 P.M. on 6/23.

8:30—Pottsville, Pennsylvania—7/8/1902—Amateur—Delanco 38 Pottsville Athletics 36—finished at 5:30 P.M.

8:29 = 3:06 game + 5:23 rain delay — Sarge Fry Field, Columbia, South Carolina — 2/14/2004 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — University of South Carolina Gamecocks 38 Charleston Southern University Buccaneers 0 in 3:06, rain delay 5:23 at start — 216 fans — finished at 9:59 P.M.

8:28 = 2:34 game + 5:54 three rain delays — Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 7/2/1993 — National League — rain delay 1:10 at start, Padres 5 Phillies 2 in 2:34, 2nd rain delay 1:56 bottom 4th, 3rd rain delay 2:48 top 6th, 1st game ended at 1:03 A.M., then Phillies 6 Padres 5 in 3:12 and 10 innings, 2nd game began at 1:28 A.M., post-game 4th of July fireworks show postponed — 54,617 fans, 6000 fans at start of 2nd game, 4000 fans at end — finished at 4:40 A.M. in the early morning of 7/3.

8:25 = 8:19 game + 0:06 umpire snack delay — Ibaraki-Mito Kenei (Prefectural) Kyujyo (Stadium), Mito, Japan — 9/20/1983 — Amateur Industrial Emperor's Cup Nan-shiki Tournament — Tokyo Raito (Light) Kogyo (Manufacturing Company) 2 Miyazaki Tanaka Byouin (Hospital) 1 in 45 innings, umpire snack break delay 0:06 top 26th, players refused 0:30 break top 26th —100 fans at end —finished at 5:15 P.M.

8:23 = 6:07 game + 2:16 rain delay — Estadio (Stadium) Monterrey, Monterrey, State of Monterrey, Mexico — 6/22/2006 — Mexican League — Laguna Vaqueros (Cowboys) 6 Monterrey Sultans 4 in 16 innings, rain delay 2:16 at start —15,635 fans; only 100 fans at end —finished at 3:53 A.M. in the early morning of 6/23.

8:21 = 2:36 game + 5:45 rain delay — County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin — 10/3/1999 — National League — rain delay 5:45 at start, Reds 7 Brewers 1 in 2:36 — 55,992 fans, 200 fans top 1st —finished at 11:26 P.M.

8:15 = 6:10 game + 2:05 two rain delays — Atlanta-Fulton County Stadium, Atlanta, Georgia — 7/4/1985 — National League — rain delay 1:24 at start, Mets 16 Braves 13 in 6:10 and 19 innings, 2nd rain delay 0:41 bottom 3rd, 4th of July fireworks show began 4:01 A.M., ended 4:12 A.M. — 44,947 fans, 8000 fans at end —finished at 3:55 A.M. in the early morning of 7/5.

8:15 — Burlington Athletic Stadium, Burlington, North Carolina — 6/24/1988 — Appalachian League — Bluefield Orioles 3 Burlington Indians 2 in 27 innings — 2204 fans, 84 fans at end — finished at 3:27 A.M. in the early morning of 6/25.

8:12 – 3:25 game + 4:47 rain delay – Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts – 6/10/2006 – American League – Rangers 7 Red Sox 4 in 3:25, rain delay 4:47 at start, night game postponed – 36,920 fans – finished at 9:37 P.M.

8:11 = 6:25 game + 1:46 rain delay — Greer Stadium, Nashville, Tennessee — 9/7/1990 — American Association playoffs — Omaha Royals 8 Nashville Sounds 7 in 20 innings, rain delay 1:46 bottom 11th —14,482 fans, 500 fans top 12th, 300 fans at end —finished at 3:50 A.M. in the early morning of 9/8.

8:10 = 7:07 game + 1:03 two rain delays – Mac-Arthur Stadium, Syracuse, New York – 6/19/1985 and 6/20/1985 and 6/21/1985 – International League – Pawtucket Paw Sox 3 Syracuse Chiefs 1 in 7:07 and 27 innings, suspended after 5:36 and 22 innings, continued 6/20, rain delay 0:13 top 23rd, 2nd rain delay 0:50 bottom 24th, suspended again after 6:07 and 23½ innings, finally completed 6/21–1233 fans on 6/19; 200 fans when suspended after 22 innings; 3020 fans on 6/21– suspended at 1:12 A.M. in the early morning of 6/20, suspended again at 9:05 P.M. on 6/20, finished at 7:31 P.M. on 6/21.

8:07 – 6:07 game + 2:00 rain delay – Disch-Falk Field, Austin, Texas – 5/15/1981 and 5/16/1981 – National Collegiate Athletic Association – University of Texas Longhorns 7 Rice University Owls 6 in 6:07 and 20 innings, rain delay 2:00 top 13th, suspended after 3:10 and 12 innings – 4700 fans on 5/15, 300 fans at suspension, 3000 fans on 5/16 – suspended at 1:15 A.M. in the early morning of 5/16, finished at 3:02 P.M. on 5/16.

8:07 — Greer Stadium, Nashville, Tennessee — 5/5/2006 and 5/6/2006 — Pacific Coast League — New Orleans Zephyrs 5 Nashville Sounds 4 in 24 innings, suspended after 6:23 and 18 innings — 9124 fans on 5/5, 300 fans at suspension; 10,016 fans on 5/6 — suspended at 1:25 A.M. in the early morning of 5/6; finished at 7:44 P.M. on 5/6.

8:06 – Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois – 5/8/1984 and 5/9/1984 – American League – White Sox 7 Brewers 6 in 25 innings, suspended after 5:29 and 17 innings –14,754 fans on 5/8, 17,715 fans on 5/9 – suspended at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 5/9.

8:00 = 3:15 game + 4:45 snow/change-of-field delay Fuller (later Hays) Field, Lubbock and Angels (later Christensen) Stadium, Midland, Texas - 5/17/1986 -Texas High School League 5A playoff championship best two-out-of-three series - Amarillo High School Golden Sandies 7 Abilene Cooper High School Cougars 4 in 3:00 and 8 innings in Lubbock – 400 fans - 80 degrees; second and third games moved from Texas Tech University ballfield 2 P.M. start in Lubbock to Lubbock Christian College ballfield 4 P.M. start in Lubbock, then to minor league ballfield 6:45 P.M. start in Midland, change-of-field/Blue Norther 2-feet of snow blizzard delay 4:45 at start, then Abilene Cooper 15 Amarillo 6 in 3:00 and 7 innings, intermission 0:15 between games, then Abilene Cooper 11 Amarillo 4 in 3:00 and 7 innings – 700 fans; 700 fans at end – 2nd game started at 38 degrees, 3rd game finished at 28 degrees —1st game started at 7:30 P.M. and finished at 10:30 P.M. in Lubbock on 5/16; 2nd game scheduled to start at 2:00 P.M. on 5/17 in Lubbock but actually started at 6:45 P.M. and finished at 10:00 P.M. in Midland; 3rd game started at 10:15 P.M. on 5/17 and finished at 1:15 A.M. in the early morning of 5/18.

7 to 8 Hours (40)

7:53 = 3:30 game + 4:23 rain delay – Reckling Park, Houston, Texas – 5/26/2001– National Collegiate Athletic Association – Baylor University Bears 11 Rice University Owls 10 in 3:30, rain delay 4:23 bottom 1st – 3785 fans, 2000 fans at end –finished at 11:00 P.M.

7:51 = 2:40 game + 5:11 three rain delays — Joe Hargis Field, Rockport, Indiana — 8/22/1984 — American Legion — Midland 5 Racine 0 in 2:40, three rain delays 5:11—finished at 5:51 P.M.

7:47 = 2:52 game + 4:55 three rain delays - 6/24/2000 – National League – Busch Stadium (II), St. Louis, Missouri – rain delay 1:06 at start, Cardinals 6 Dodgers 1 in 2:52, 2nd rain delay 0:33 bottom 1st, 3rd rain delay 3:16 top 3rd - 47,071 fans; 30,000 fans at end – finished at 8:02 P.M.

7:47 — FirstEnergy Park, Lakewood, New Jersey — 4/26/2006 and 5/7/2006 — South Atlantic (Sally) League — Lakewood BlueClaws 8 Hagerstown Suns 7 in 22 innings, suspended after 17 innings and 6:03 — 5487 fans on 4/26, 150 fans top 12th, 31 fans top 17th; 7449 fans on 5/7 — suspended at 12:42 A.M. in the early morning of 4/27, finished at 2:49 P.M. on 5/7.

7:46 = 3:51 game + 0:45 network television scheduling delay + 3:10 rain delay – Stade Olympique (Olympic Stadium), Montreal, Province of Quebec, Canada –10/4/1980 – National League – network television scheduling delay 0:45 at start, rain delay 3:10 at start, Phillies 6 Expos 4 in 3:51 and 11 innings – 50,794 fans, 35,000 at end –finished at 9:16 P.M.

7:45 = 6:15 game + 1:30 rain delay — Mayo Field, Rochester, Minnesota — 5/10/1986 and 5/20/1986 — Minnesota High School League — Rochester Mayo High School Spartans 3 Mankato East High School Cougars 2 in 20 innings, rain delay 1:30 bottom 10th, suspended after 3:00 and 9½ innings, then Rochester Mayo 11 Mankato East 10 in 2:30 and 7 innings —125 fans on 5/10—suspended at 3:30 P.M. on 5/10, 1st game finished at 8:15 P.M. on 5/20; 2nd game finished at 11:00 P.M. on 5/20.

7:40 = 4:36 game + 3:04 rain delay — Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois — 8/1/2003 — National League — Cubs 4 Diamondbacks 3 in 4:36 and 14 innings, rain delay 3:04 top 7th — 38,738 fans, 200 fans at end finished at 10:03 P.M.

7:38 = 5:23 game + 2:15 rain delay – Louisville Slugger Field, Louisville, Kentucky – 6/6/2003 – International League – rain delay 2:15 at start, Louisville River Bats 4 Richmond Braves 3 in 5:23 and 18 innings – 9892 fans, 500 fans at end – finished at 2:53 A.M. in the early morning of 6/7.

7:37 — Waterloo Stadium, Waterloo, Iowa and Riverview Stadium, Clinton, Iowa — 7/6/1989 and 8/17/1989 — Midwest League — Waterloo Diamonds 4 Clinton Giants 3 in 25 innings, suspended after 5:46 and 19 innings in Waterloo, completed 8/17 in Clinton — 876 fans on 7/6 — suspended at 12:51 A.M. in the early morning of 7/7.

7:36 = 2:36 game + 5:00 two rain delays — Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 6/9/1980 — National League — Giants 3 Phillies 1 in 2:36, rain delay 1:28 bottom 4th, 2nd rain delay 3:32 also bottom 4th, — 28,702 fans, 200 fans at end —finished at 3:11 A.M. in the early morning of 6/10.

7:34 = 4:09 game + 3:25 rain delay – UT-Tyler Field, Tyler, Texas – 3/18/2006 – National Collegiate Athletic Association – University of Texas–Tyler Patriots 6 Austin College Kangaroos 5 in 4:09 and 10 innings, rain delay 3:25 top 4th – 213 fans.

7:33 = 4:19 game + 3:14 three rain delays – Pro Player Stadium, Miami, Florida – 9/8/1999 – National League – three rain delays totaling 3:14 – Marlins 5 Dodgers 4 in 4:19 and 13 innings – 9615 fans, 200 fans at end – finished at 11:38 P.M.

7:31 = 3:00 game + 4:31 rain delay — Paducah, Kentucky — 5/26/2004 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Jacksonville State University Gamecocks 15 Eastern Kentucky University Colonels 0 in 3:00, rain delay 4:31.

7:30 – Robert C. Wynn Field, Bradenton, Florida – 4/4/1987 – National Junior Collegiate Athletic Association – Hillsborough Community College Hawks 6 Manatee Community College Lancers 4 in 32 innings – finished at 9:30 P.M.

7:30 = 3:00 + 4:30 rain delay – Ken Dugan Field,

Nashville, Tennessee — 4/2/2006 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Lipscomb University Bison 9 Kennesaw State College Owls 8 in 3:00; rain delay 4:30 top 3rd — 202 fans — finished at 8:30 P.M.

7:25 = 5:35 game + 1:50 rain delay — Turner Field, Atlanta, Georgia — 7/6/2008 — National League rain delay 1:50 at start; Braves 7 Astros 6 in 17 innings — 24,169 fans — finished at 9:00 P.M.

7:23 — Shea Stadium, New York, New York — 5/31/1964 — National League — Giants 8 Mets 6 in 23 innings in 2nd game, Giants 5 Mets 3 in 2:29 in 1st game — 57,037 fans, 8000 fans at end —finished at 11:25 P.M.

7:23 – V.J. Keefe Stadium, San Antonio, Texas – 7/14/1988 and 7/16/1988 – Texas League – San Antonio Missions 1 Jackson Mets 0 in 26 innings, suspended after 7:10 and 25 innings – 3792 fans on 7/14, 3260 fans on 7/16 – suspended at 2:15 A.M. in the early morning of 7/15.

7:23 – Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois – 8/12/1990 – American League – rain delay 7:23 at start on 8/12, game finally called off and rescheduled for 8/17in Arlington, Rangers 1 White Sox 0 in 3:22 and 13 innings, brawl delay bottom 5th, then White Sox 4 Rangers 2 in 2:52 – 30,500 fans on 8/12 in Chicago, 500 fans when called off, 37,432 fans on 8/17 in Arlington – called off at 8:58 P.M. on 8/12.

 $\overline{7}$:20 = 1:50 game + 5:30 rain delay — Riverfront Stadium, Waterloo, Iowa — 5/20/2004 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — University of Northern Iowa Panthers 3 Southern Illinois University Salukis 2 in 1:50 and 7 innings, rain delay 5:30 bottom 4th.

7:20 – Downey, California – 5/13/2008 – Southern California High School Playoffs – Downey High School Vikings 3 Harvard-Westlake Upper School Wolverines 2 in 20 innings – finished at 10:35 P.M.

7:19 = 4:19 game + 3:00 rain delay — Yogi Berra Stadium, Little Falls, New Jersey —?/??/2001— Northern League — rain delay 3:00 at start, ????? ????? at New Jersey Jackals in 4:19 and 14 innings — finished at 6:19 P.M.

7:16 = 2:42 game + 4:34 two rain delays – Ferris Field, Cleveland, Mississippi – 5/13/2004 and 5/14/ 2004 and 5/15/2004 – National Collegiate Athletic Association – Southern Arkansas University Muleriders 10 St. Mary's University Rattlers 7 in 2:42, rain delay 1:30 bottom 2nd on 5/13, 2nd rain delay 3:04 bottom 2nd on 5/14 – 516 fans – suspended at 5:15 P.M. on 5/13, rained out on 5/14, finished at 1:07 P.M. on 5/15.

7:15 = 2:58 game + 4:17 rain delay — Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois — 9/1/2003 — National League — Cubs 7 Cardinals 0 in 2:58, rain delay 4:17 at start — 38,410 fans; 19,000 fans at start —finished at 10:20 P.M.

7:15 — 4:25 game + 2:50 rain delay — Citizens Bank Park, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 7/6/2008 — National League — Mets 4 Phillies 2 in 4:25 and 12 innings; rain delay 2:50 bottom 8th — 45,203 fans; 9000 fans at end — finished at 8:53 P.M. 7:14—Estadio (Stadium) Emilio Ibarra, Los Mochis, State of Sinaloa, Mexico—11/26/1988—Mexican Pacific League—Los Mochis Caneros (Sugar Cane Growers) 4 Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2 in 21 innings—finished at 2:44 A.M. in the early morning of 11/27.

7:14 — Astrodome, Houston, Texas — 6/3/1989 — National League — Astros 5 Dodgers 4 in 22 innings — 34,425 fans — finished at 2:50 A.M. in the early morning of 6/4.

7:13 — Memorial Stadium, Everett, Washington and Civic Stadium, Eugene, Oregon — 8/18/1989 and 8/ 24/1989 — Northwest League — Eugene Emeralds 6 Everett Giants 5 in 25 innings, suspended after 5:50 and 19 innings in Everett, completed 8/24 in Eugene — 2998 fans on 8/24 — suspended at 12:50 A.M. in the early morning of 8/19.

7:12 = 3:56 game + 3:16 rain delay — Danville Stadium, Danville, Illinois — 6/15/1970 — Midwest League — rain delay 3:16 at start, Quad City Angels 11 Danville Warriors 7 in 3:56 and 11 innings — 505 fans, 175 fans at end — finished at 1:42 A.M. in the early morning of 6/16.

7:07 — Al Lang Field, St. Petersburg, Florida — 4/14/1994 — Florida State League — St. Petersburg Cardinals 8 Lakeland Tigers 7 in 20 innings —1021 fans — finished at 2:42 A.M. in the early morning of 4/15.

7:05 = 4:03 game + 3:02 rain delay — Samuel J. Plumeri, Sr. Field at Mercer County Waterfront Park, Trenton, New Jersey — 7/16/2000 — Eastern League rain delay 3:02 at start, Reading Phillies 6 Trenton Thunder 2 in 4:03 and 15 innings — 6932 fans finished at 8:10 P.M.

7:04 — Shea Stadium, New York, New York — 9/11/ 1974 — National League — Cardinals 4 Mets 3 in 25 innings —13,460 fans, 1000 fans at end including Commissioner Bowie Kuhn —finished at 3:13 A.M. in the early morning of 9/12.

7:03 = 2:51 game + 4:12 rain and lightning delay — Henley Field, Lakeland, Florida — 5/17/2003 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — University of Tampa Spartans 10 Florida Southern College Moccasins 4 in 2:51, rain and lightning delay 4:12 bottom 3rd — finished at 11:33 P.M.

7:02 — Estadio (Stadium) Teodoro Mariscal, Mazatlan, State of Sinaloa, Mexico — 10/26/1993 — Mexican Pacific League — Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2 Guasave Algodoneros (Cotton Pickers) 1 in 22 innings — finished at 2:32 A.M. in the early morning of 10/27.

7:02 = 5:22 game + 1:40 rain delay — Northcut Field at Westgate Park, Dothan, Alabama — 3/1/2003 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Troy State University Trojans 8 Kansas State University Wildcats 7 in 5:22 and 18 innings, rain delay 1:40 — 273 fans, 50 fans at end —finished at 2:42 A.M. in the early morning of 3/2.

7:02 = 2:34 game + 4:28 rain delay - Sarge Frye

Field, Columbia, South Carolina — 6/12/2004 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — University of South Carolina Gamecocks 4 East Carolina University Pirates 2 in 2:34, rain delay 4:28 top 6th — 5577 fans — finished at 8:02 P.M.

7:01 = 3:20 game + 3:41 two rain delays — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 5/3/1996 and 5/4/1996 — American League — rain delay 2:43 at start, Red Sox 8 Blue Jays 7 in 3:20, 2nd rain delay 0:58 top 3rd, suspended after 2:20 and 6 innings — 25,507 fans on 5/3, 2000 fans top 1st, 29,785 fans on 5/4 — suspended at 1:06 A.M. in the early morning of 5/4.

7:00—Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan—6/24/ 1962—American League—Yankees 9 Tigers 7 in 22 innings—35,638 fans, 20,000 fans at end—finished at 8:30 P.M.

7:00 — Recreation Park, Visalia, California — 6/19/1971 and 6/20/1971 — California League — Visalia Mets 11 Bakersfield Dodgers 9 in 22 innings, suspended after 4:50 and 15 innings, called a tie, however league president later reversed tie game ruling and ordered game to be continued — 867 fans on 6/19, 449 fans on 6/20 — suspended at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 6/20.

7:00—Legion Field, Downers Grove, Illinois — 4/ 28/1995 and 5/3/1995 and 5/8/1995 and 5/12/1995 — Illinois High School League — Downers Grove North High School Trojans 12 Elmhurst York High School Dukes 11 in 23 innings, suspended after 3:00 and 8 innings, suspended a 2nd time after 6:00 and 20 innings — 75 fans on 4/28, 75 fans on 5/3, 250 fans on 5/12 — suspended at 7:15 P.M. at 4/28, suspended 2nd time at 7:15 P.M. on 5/3, rained out on 5/8, finished at 5:15 P.M. on 5/12.

Doubleheaders Taking Seven Hours or More by Game Time (127)

9 to 10 Hours (5)

9:52 — Shea Stadium, New York, New York — 5/31/ 1964 — National League — Giants 5 Mets 3 in 2:29, then Giants 8 Mets 6 in 7:23 and 23 innings — 57,037 fans, 8000 fans at end — 2nd game finished at 11:25 P.M.

9:28 — Estadio (Stadium) Roberto Clemente Walker, Carolina, Puerto Rico — 2/2/2007 — Caribbean Series — Aguilas Cibaenas (Dominican) 4 Aragua Tigres (Tigers) (Venezuela) 3 in 6:13 and 18 innings; then Carolina Giantes (Giants) (Puerto Rico) 11 Hermosillo Naranjeros (Orange Growers) (Mexico) 1 in 3:15 — 2nd game finished at 2:05 A.M. in the early morning of 2/3.

9:10—Oskarshamn Arena, Oskarshamn, Sweden— 5/22/2005—Oskarshamn Lost Boys 11 Goteborg Sharks 10 in 5:45; then Oskarshamn 11 Goteborg 5 in 3:25—1st game finished at 6:45 P.M.; 2nd game finished at 10:30 P.M.

9:05 – Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan – 6/17/

1967 — American League — Tigers 7 Athletics 6 in 3:25, 0:15 rain delay top 7th, then Athletics 6 Tigers 5 in 5:40 and 19 innings —14,871 fans, 200 fans at end including Commissioner William Eckert — 2nd game finished at 12:17 A.M. in the early morning of 6/18.

9:01—Nettleton Stadium, Chico, California— 5/14/2005—National Collegiate Athletic Association—University of California at San Diego Tritons 5 Chico State University Wildcats 4 in 4:16 and 11 innings, then Cal San Diego 7 Chico State 6 in 4:45 and 12 innings—902 fans—2nd game finished at 9:45 P.M.

8 to 9 Hours (19)

8:44 — Tiger Field (later Doug Kingsmore Stadium), Clemson, South Carolina — 4/21/1996 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Georgia Southern University Eagles 8 Clemson University Tigers 6 in 2:57 and 10 innings, then Georgia Southern 9 Clemson 7 in 5:47 and 18 innings — 2356 fans, 500 fans at end — 2nd game finished at 9:20 P.M.

8:40—Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts— 8/18/2006—American League—Yankees 12 Red Sox 4 in 3:55 in day game; Yankees 14 Red Sox 11 in 4:45 in night game—36,325 fans for day game; 36,071 fans for night game—day game finished at 5:05 P.M.; night game finished at 12:52 A.M. in the early morning of 8/19.

8:35 — Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York — 7/20/1998 — American League — Tigers 4 Yankees 3 in 5:50 and 17 innings, then Yankees 4 Tigers 3 in 2:45 — 36,285 fans — 2nd game finished at 1:17 A.M. in the early morning of 7/21.

8:30—Pete Beiden Field, Fresno, California— 2/10/2001—National Collegiate Athletic Association—Fresno State University Bulldogs 8 University of Santa Clara Broncos 5 in 2:57, then Fresno State 11 Santa Clara 10 in 5:33 and 16 innings—2601 fans— 2nd game finished at 10:01 P.M.

8:28 – Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts – 7/27/1991 – American League – White Sox 10 Red Sox 8 in 4:50 and 14 innings, then White Sox 7 Red Sox 4 in 3:38 – 33,461 fans for day game; 24,673 fans for night game.

8:19 — Yankee Stadium (I), New York, New York — 8/29/1967 — American League — Red Sox 2 Yankees 1 in 2:10, then Yankees 4 Red Sox 3 in 6:09 and 20 innings — 40,314 fans — 2nd game finished at 1:57 A.M. in the early morning of 8/30.

8:16 — Camden Yards, Baltimore, Maryland — 6/12/2004 — National League at American League — Giants 9 Orioles 6 in 3:56 and 11 innings, then Orioles 5 Giants 4 in 4:20 and 12 innings — 48,869 fans at day game; 40,434 fans at night game.

8:14 — Knights Castle, Fort Mill, South Carolina — 8/15/2003 — International League — Charlotte Knights 4 Indianapolis Indians 3 in 6:20 and 18 innings, then Charlotte 5 Indianapolis 1 in 1:54 and 7 innings — 5275 fans, 100 fans at start of second game, 36 fans at end plus 250 Girl Scouts asleep in Home Run Café ballpark restaurant who were to have camped out in the outfield after the games — 2nd game finished at 2:55 A.M. in the early morning of 8/16.

8:13 — Municipal Stadium, Greenville, South Carolina — 7/13/1984 and 7/14/1984 — Southern League — Memphis Chicks 3 Greenville Braves 2 in 6:02 and 19 innings, then Greenville 6 Memphis 5 in 2:11 and 7 innings, suspended after 2 innings, completed 7/14 — 3044 fans on 7/13, 250 fans at suspension, 4456 fans on 7/14 — 2nd game suspended at 1:07 A.M. in the early morning of 7/14.

8:13 – Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts – 8/7/ 1994 – American League – Red Sox 4 Indians 1 in 3:08, then Indians 15 Red Sox 10 in 5:05 and 12 innings – 34,523 fans – 2nd game finished at 9:48 P.M.

8:12 — County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin — 8/24/1993 — American League — Brewers 9 Athletics 2 in 3:01, then Brewers 7 Athletics 6 in 5:11 and 13 innings, brawl delay 0:10 top 10th —16,570 fans — 2nd game finished at 1:55 A.M. in the early morning of 8/25.

8:11—Royals Stadium, Kansas City, Missouri— 6/23/1991—American League—Orioles 11 Royals 8 in 3:44 and 10 innings, then Orioles 9 Royals 8 in 4:27 and 12 innings, brawl delay 0:10 top 10th—30,018 fans—2nd game finished at 9:46 P.M.

8:09 -Cleveland Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio and R.F.K. Stadium, Washington, D.C. -9/14/1971 and 9/20/1971 -American League -Indians 3 Senators 1 in 1:54, then Senators 8 Indians 6 in 6:15 and 20 innings, suspended after 5:00 and 16 innings in Cleveland, completed 9/20 in Washington - 2639 fans on 9/14 in Cleveland, 100 fans at suspension, 1743 fans on 9/20 in Washington, 333 fans top 17th - suspended at 1:00 A.M. in the early morning of 9/15.

8:07 — Crosley Field, Cincinnati, Ohio — 7/8/1962 — National League — Reds 12 Colt .45's (later Astros) 8 in 3:01, then Reds 12 Colt .45's 11 in 5:06 and 13 innings, rain delay 0:59 at start — 18,322 fans — 2nd game finished at 10:40 P.M.

8:05 – Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California – 8/14/1966 – Dodgers 4 Cubs 3 in 4:27 and 14 innings, then Cubs 12 Dodgers 10 in 3:38 and 10 innings – 34,076 fans – 2nd game ended at 9:40 P.M.

8:04 — Cleveland Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio — 6/27/1965 — American League — Indians 10 Athletics 7 in 5:03 and 15 innings, then Indians 11 Athletics 7 in 3:01—17,829 fans — 2nd game finished at 9:34 P.M.

8:02 - Franklin Covey Field, Salt Lake City, Utah - 3/27/2004 - National Collegiate Athletic Association - rain delay 1:04 at start, Brigham Young University Cougars 5 University of Utah Utes 4 in 4:16 and 17 innings, 2nd rain delay 0:30 bottom 8th, then Brigham Young 11 Utah 10 in 3:46 and 10 innings - 606 fans - 2nd game finished at 10:18 P.M.

8:02 — Rickwood Field, Birmingham, Alabama — 5/22/2005 and 5/23/2005 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Southern University Jaguars 6 Prairie View A&M University Panthers 0 in 2:37, then Southern 6 Prairie View A&M 5 in 5:25 and 15 innings, 0:45 gunfire delay bottom 15th, suspended after 5:15 and $14\frac{1}{2}$ innings — 314 fans for first game; 187 fans for second game — 2nd game suspended at 11:25 P.M., finished at 8:09 A.M. on 5/23.

8:00—Flamingo Park, Miami Beach, Florida— 4/23/1970—Florida High School League playoffs— Miami High School Stingarees 1 Hialeah High School Thoroughbreds 0 in 5:16 and 24 innings, then Miami Coral Park High School Rams 9 Miami High School 0 in 2:44 and 7 innings—250 fans; 500 fans at end of 1st game—1st game finished at 7:46 P.M.; 2nd game finished at 11:44 P.M.

7 to 8 Hours (103)

7:58 — Yankee Stadium (I), New York, New York — 8/14/1960 — American League — Senators 5 Yankees 4 in 3:32, then Senators 6 Yankees 3 in 4:26 and 15 innings — 29,970 fans — 2nd game finished at 10:29 P.M.

7:56 — Connie Mack Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 5/12/1963 — National League — Phillies 4 Braves 3 in 3:51 and 11 innings, then Phillies 6 Braves 5 in 4:05 and 12 innings — 9836 fans — 2nd game finished at 9:26 P.M.

7:55 — Reiterstadion (later Circle Wood Stadium), Koln (Cologne), Germany — 4/6/2005 — Bundesliga Nord (North German League) — Bonn Capitals 9 Koln (Cologne) Cardinals 7 in 5:50; then Bonn 4 Cologne 0 in 2:05 and 7 innings, rain delay 0:13 — 600 fans; 500 fans at end of 1st game; 250 fans at end of 2nd game —1st game finished at 6:50 P.M.; 2nd game finished at 9:38 P.M.

7:53 — Bond Field, Forest Grove, Oregon — 3/28/ 2004 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Lewis and Clark College Pioneers 8 Pacific University Boxers 7 in 5:00 and 16 innings, then Pacific 11 Lewis and Clark 5 in 2:53 and 9 innings — 80 fans, 20 fans at end — 2nd game finished at 8:23 P.M.

7:51—J.C. Love Field, Ruston, Louisiana—3/29/ 2008—National Collegiate Athletic Association— Louisiana Tech 7 University Bulldogs San Jose State University Spartans 2 in 2:47; then Louisiana Tech 12 San Jose State 11 in 5:04 and 14 innings—988 fans finished at 9:50 P.M.

7:50 — Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California — 4/11/1982 — American League — Mariners 6 Athletics 3 in 5:18 and 16 innings, rain delay 1:12 bottom 10th, then Athletics 3 Mariners 1 in 2:32 —19,003 fans; 800 fans at end —1st game finished at 7:35 P.M.; 2nd game finished at 10:37 P.M.

7:50—Pilot Stadium (later Joe Etzel Field), Portland, Oregon — 4/6/2003 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Gonzaga University Bulldogs 9 University of Portland Pilots 6 in 4:37 and 16 innings, then Portland 4 Gonzaga 3 in 3:13 and 13 innings — 2nd game finished at 7:35 P.M.

7:49 - Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts - 9/

28/1993 — American League — Red Sox 11 Tigers 6 in 3:18, then Tigers 7 Red Sox 6 in 4:31 and 11 innings — 24,446 fans — 2nd game finished at 1:23 A.M. in the early morning of 9/29.

7:48 — Polo Grounds (V), New York, New York — 8/15/1962 — National League — Phillies 9 Mets 3 in 3:07, then Phillies 8 Mets 7 in 4:41 and 13 innings — 9573 fans — 2nd game finished at 9:50 P.M.

7:48 — Three Rivers Stadium, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 7/13/1984 — National League — Pirates 8 Giants 2 in 2:37, then Pirates 4 Giants 3 in 5:11 and 18 innings, fireworks show started at 1:45 A.M. — 22,167 fans, 10,000 fans at end — 2nd game finished at 1:32 A.M. in the early morning of 7/14.

7:48 — Comiskey Park (II), Chicago, Illinois — 10/3/1991— American League — White Sox 3 Twins 2 in 3:06 and 10 innings, then White Sox 13 Twins 12 in 4:42 and 12 innings — 31,022 fans — 2nd game finished at 9:23 P.M.

7:48 — Hubert H. Humphrey Metrodome, Minneapolis, Minnesota — 5/26/2001— American League — Athletics 5 Twins 4 in 3:45 and 10 innings, then Twins 7 Athletics 6 in 4:03 and 10 innings — 38,047 fans — 2nd game finished at 9:23 P.M.

7:46 — Henley Field, Lakeland, Florida — 3/12/ 2005 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Florida Southern College Moccasins 11 Barry University Buccaneers 7 in 3:37, then Florida Southern 4 Barry 3 in 4:09 and 15 innings —171 fans — 2nd game finished at 9:39 P.M.

7:46 – Duvall-Rosier Field, Fairmont, West Virginia – 3/22/2005 – NAIA at NCAA – Fairmont State University Falcons 7 Seton Hill College Griffins 6 in 5:45 and 17 innings, then Fairmont State 5 Seton Hill 2 in 2:01 and 7 innings – 56 fans, 25 fans at end – 2nd game finished at 10:16 P.M.

7:46 – John Kurtz Field, Milledgeville, Georgia – 3/4/2006 – National Collegiate Athletic Association – Georgia College and State University (GCSU) Bobcats 2 Shippensburg University Red Raiders 1 in 2:26, then GCSU 6 Shippensburg 5 in 5:20 and 17 innings – 582 fans; 175 fans at beginning of 2nd game —1st game finished at 3:26 P.M.; 2nd game finished at 9:35 P.M.

7:45 – JHU Baseball Field, Baltimore, Maryland – 4/13/2002 – National Club Baseball Association at National Collegiate Athletic Association – NCBA (Club) George Washington University Colonials 22 NCAA Johns Hopkins University Junior Varsity (JV) Blue Jays 21 in 5:00 and 7 innings; then Johns Hopkins JV defeated George Washington Club by several runs in 2:45 and 7 innings – 30 fans; 8632 fans next door at Homewood Field for Johns Hopkins' 9–8 lacrosse overtime win over Maryland – finished at 8:15 P.M.

7:42 – Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois – 7/25/1967 – American League – White Sox 3 Indians 1 in 2:55, then White Sox 6 Indians 5 in 4:47 and 16 innings –18,152 fans – 2nd game finished at 2:15 A.M. 7:42 — Waterloo Stadium, Waterloo, Iowa — 5/30/ 1976 — Midwest League — Burlington Bees 4 Waterloo Royals 3 in 5:33 and 22 innings, then Burlington 4 Waterloo 3 in 2:09 and 8 innings — 603 fans — 2nd game finished at 11:12 P.M.

7:41—Busch Stadium (II), St. Louis, Missouri— 6/8/1992—National League—Cubs 5 Cardinals 2 in 4:21 and 13 innings, then Cubs 6 Cardinals 4 in 3:20— 38,572 fans—2nd game finished at 1:46 A.M. in the early morning of 6/9.

7:40— Fairgrounds (later Cardinal) Stadium, Louisville, Kentucky—7/4/1959— American Association— Louisville Colonels 3 Dallas Rangers 2 in 2:44 and 12 innings, then Louisville 3 Dallas 2 in 4:56 and 19 innings—4883 fans—2nd game finished at 9:50 P.M.

7:40—Joe Davis Stadium, Huntsville, Alabama— 6/10/1990—Southern League—Huntsville Stars 3 Knoxville Blue Jays 2 in 5:35 and 19 innings, then Huntsville 2 Knoxville 0 in 2:05 and 7 innings—2nd game finished at 2:10 A.M. in the early morning of 6/11.

7:40—Estadio (Stadium) Hiram Bithorn, San Juan, Puerto Rico — 3/8/2006 — World Classic — Cuba 8 Panama 6 in 4:11 and 11 innings — 6129 fans — finished at 5:11 P.M.; then Puerto Rico 8 Netherlands 3 in 3:29—15,570 fans — finished at 10:59 P.M.

7:39 — Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California — 8/24/1969 — American League — Athletics 9 Orioles 0 in 2:31, then Athletics 9 Orioles 8 in 5:08 and 18 innings — 24,970 fans — 2nd game finished at 9:14 P.M.

7:39 — San Diego (later Jack Murphy, then Qualcomm) Stadium, San Diego, California — 9/24/1971— National League — Astros 2 Padres 1 in 5:25 and 21 innings, then Padres 5 Astros 4 in 2:14, fog delay 0:14 bottom 9th — 6339 fans — 2nd game finished at 2:29 A.M. in the early morning of 9/25.

7:39 — Comiskey Park (II) (later U.S. Cellular Field), Chicago, Illinois — 5/24/1995 — American League — White Sox 10 Rangers 8 in 4:01, then Rangers 13 White Sox 6 in 3:38 — 19,368 fans — 2nd game finished at 9:14 P.M.

7:38 — Three Rivers Stadium, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 8/15/1995 — National League — Pirates 13 Marlins 7 in 3:07, then Pirates 7 Marlins 6 in 4:35 and 13 innings —13,598 fans — 2nd game finished at 1:42 A.M. in the early morning of 7/14.

7:37 — Reagan Field, Murray, Kentucky — 3/25/ 2005 and 3/26/2005 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Murray State University Thoroughbreds 7 Southeast Missouri State University Redhawks 6 in 4:08 and 13 innings, then Southeast Missouri State 15 Murray State 10 in 3:29, suspended after 1:04 and 3 innings — 215 fans on 3/25; 185 fans on 3/26 — 1st game finished at 4:13 P.M., 2nd game suspended at 5:52 P.M.

7:36 — Richmond County Bank Ballpark at St. George, New York, New York — 7/16/2004 and 8/2/ 2004 — New York-Pennsylvania League — Staten Island Yankees 4 New Jersey Cardinals 3 in 4:43 and 17 innings, then New Jersey 3 Staten Island 0 in 2:53 and 10 innings, suspended after 1:38 and 6 innings, resumed on 8/2 after regularly scheduled game New Jersey 10 Staten Island 5 in 2:53 – 3909 fans on 7/16, 350 fans at start of 2nd game, 150 fans at suspension, 300 fans top 7th on 8/2, 175 fans at end – suspended at 1:14 A.M. in the early morning of 7/17, finished at 11:55 P.M. on 8/2.

7:35 — Municipal Stadium, Kansas City, Missouri — 9/13/1970 — American League — Royals 8 Athletics 7 in 3:40 and 11 innings, then Royals 8 Athletics 7 in 3:55 and 12 innings — 9824 fans — 2nd game finished at 9:05 P.M.

7:35 — In den Fliesen (Sportsarea), Saarlouis, Germany — 6/19/2004 andn 7/10/2004 — Bundesliga Sud (South German League) — Furth Pirates 10 Saarlouis Hornets 4 in 3:04 — finished at 4:04 P.M.; then Saarlouis 2 Furth 1 in 4:31 and 19 innings, suspended after 4:16 and 18 innings — 250 fans on both days — suspended at 8:50 P.M.

7:33 – Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois – 8/ 28/1966 – American League – White Sox 4 Twins 3 in 4:30 and 15 innings, then White Sox 7 Twins 6 in 3:03 and 11 innings – 21,576 fans – 2nd game finished at 9:08 P.M.

7:33 — Clark Field, Lafayette, Louisiana — 3/27/ 1971 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — University of Southwestern Louisiana (now University of Louisiana-Lafayette) Ragin' Cajuns 6 McNeese State University Cowboys 5 in 5:03 and 23 innings, then McNeese State 13 Southwestern Louisiana 10 in 2:30 and 7 innings — 2nd game finished at 10:03 P.M.

7:31— Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois — 8/26/ 1979 — American League — Orioles 12 White Sox 7 in 2:48, then Orioles 4 White Sox 3 in 4:43 and 13 innings — 25,605 fans — 2nd game finished at 9:01 P.M.

7:30—Yankee Stadium (I), New York, New York — 8/2/1960—American League — Yankees 3 Tigers 2 in 4:21 and 14 innings, then Yankees 3 Tigers 2 in 3:09 and 10 innings—19,729 fans for day game; 15,054 fans for night game.

7:30 – Cap Timm Field, Ames, Iowa – 4/18/1999 – National Collegiate Athletic Association – Iowa State University Cyclones 6 University of Nebraska Cornhuskers 5 in 4:40 and 16 innings, then Nebraska 9 Iowa State 6 in 2:50 and 10 innings –1st game finished at 4:43 P.M., 2nd game finished at 8:00 P.M.– 669 fans for 1st game; 442 fans for 2nd game.

7:30 — Evans Sports Complex, Riverside, California — 5/11/2002 — National Junior Collegiate Athletic Association — Saddleback College Gauchos 10 Riverside Community College Tigers 3 in 3:30, then Riverside 8 Saddleback 6 in 4:00 and 10 innings — 2nd game finished at 8:00 P.M.

7:29 — County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin — 5/30/1962 — National League — Braves 4 Reds 3 in 2:47, then Reds 4 Braves 3 in 4:42 and 16 innings — 14,449 fans — 2nd game finished at 8:59 P.M.

7:28 - Yankee Stadium (I), New York, New York -

8/27/1972 — American League — Yankees 7 Royals 6 in 2:38, rain delay 0:19 bottom 5th, then Yankees 9 Royals 8 in 4:50 and 16 innings — 25,801 fans — 2nd game finished at 9:17 P.M.

7:27 — Yankee Stadium (I), New York, New York — 8/23/1968 — American League — Yankees 2 Tigers 1 in 2:23, then Tigers 3 Yankees 3 in 5:04 and 19 innings — 33,880 fans — 2nd game finished at 1:07 A.M. in the early morning of 8/24.

7:26 – P&C (later Alliance Bank) Stadium, Syracuse, New York – 4/10/1997 – International League – Charlotte Knights 3 Syracuse SkyChiefs 1 in 1:59 and 7 innings; then Charlotte 11 Syracuse 8 in 5:27 and 15 innings – 3822 fans; 100 fans at start; 50 fans at end – 2nd game finished at 9:01 P.M.

7:26 — Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois — 9/2/2003— National League — Cubs 4 Cardinals 2 in 4:47 and 15 innings, then Cardinals 2 Cubs 0 in 2:39 — 31,990 fans at day game; 39,290 fans at night game.

7:24 — Busch Stadium (I), St. Louis, Missouri — 6/8/1958 — National League — Cardinals 6 Phils 5 in 3:45 and 10 innings, then Phils 6 Cardinals 4 in 3:39 and 14 innings — 22,022 fans — 2nd game finished at 9:54 P.M.

7:24 — Diamond, Richmond, Virginia — 8/7/1989 — International League — Toledo Mud Hens 4 Richmond Braves 1 in 5:01 and 21 innings, then Richmond 3 Toledo 0 in 2:23 and 7 innings —100 fans at end — 2nd game finished at 1:57 A.M. in the early morning of 8/8.

7:23 — Le Lacheur Park, Lowell, Massachusetts — 3/31/1999 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — State University of New York (SUNY) at Albany Great Danes 15 University of Massachusetts-Lowell River Hawks 14 in 4:01 and 10 innings, then Albany 8 Massachusetts-Lowell 6 in 3:22 and 11 innings —153 fans — 2nd game finished at 8:52 P.M.

7:22 — Ray Winder Field, Little Rock, Arkansas — 4/19/1968 — Texas League — Arkansas Travelers 13 Memphis Blues 2 in 2:12 and 7 innings, then Memphis 6 Arkansas 3 in 5:10 and 16 innings — 875 fans finished at 2:22 A.M. in the early morning of 4/20.

7:21—Parc (Park) Jarry, Montreal, Province of Quebec, Canada—9/7/1973—National League—Mets 1 Expos 0 in 2:43, blinding sunlight delay 0:16, then Mets 4 Expos 2 in 4:38 and 15 innings—24,167 fans —2nd game finished at 2:12 A.M.

7:21—Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan—6/9/1982 and 9/24/1982—American League—Tigers 2 Indians 1 in 2:27, rain delay 0:45 at start of 2nd game, then Tigers 4 Indians 3 in 4:54 and 18 innings, suspended after 3:38 and 14 innings—32,213 fans on 6/9, 7226 fans on 9/24—2nd game suspended at 1:04 A.M. in the early morning of 6/10.

7:21— Three Rivers Stadium, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 6/20/1983 — National League — Pirates 5 Cubs 4 in 3:18 and 10 innings, then Pirates 6 Cubs 5 in 4:03 and 13 innings — 5839 fans — finished at 1:56 A.M. in the early morning of 6/21. 7:21—Nichols Field, Bristol, Connecticut—6/4/ 1989—National Collegiate Athletic Association— North Carolina Wesleyan College Battling Bishops 3 California State University Stanislaus Warriors 0 in 2:54, then North Carolina Wesleyan 8 Cal State Stanislaus 7 in 4:27 and 13 innings—800 fans for 1st game, 500 fans for 2nd game.

7:21— MacArthur Stadium, Syracuse, New York— 7/19/1992— International League— Syracuse Chiefs 8 Pawtucket PawSox 7 in 5:05 and 15 innings, then Syracuse 4 Pawtucket 3 in 2:16 and 7 innings—14,143 fans; 200 fans at end— 2nd game finished at 1:54 A.M. in the early morning of 7/20.

7:21—3Com Park, San Francisco, California— 7/27/1997—National League—Giants 6 Pirates 5 in 4:03 and 13 innings, then Pirates 10 Giants 7 in 3:18— 38,866 fans—2nd game finished at 8:56 P.M.

7:21—Coors Field, Denver, Colorado — 9/6/1997 — National League — Cardinals 10 Rockies 7 in 4:06 and 13 innings, then Rockies 7 Cardinals 6 in 3:15 — 48,017 fans for day game; 44,288 fans for night game.

7:21—Philip B. Elfstrom Stadium, Geneva, Illinois – 4/9/2003 – Midwest League – Kane County Cougars 3 Burlington Bees 2 in 3:49 and 13 innings, then Kane County 2 Burlington 1 in 3:32 and 15 innings –1469 fans, 14 fans at end – 2nd game finished at 11:25 P.M.

7:21—Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York — 9/16/2006 — American League — Red Sox 5 Yankees 2 in 3:42 in day game, then Yankees 7 Red Sox 5 in 3:39 in night game — 55,091 fans; 55,167 fans.

7:20—Nettleton Stadium, Chico, California— 5/11/2002—National Collegiate Athletic Association—California State University at San Bernardino Coyotes 13 University of California at Davis Aggies 12 in 4:10 and 10 innings, then Cal State San Bernardino 11 Cal Davis 9 in 3:10—213 fans—2nd game finished at 8:05 P.M.

7:19 – Miami Stadium, Miami, Florida – 4/22/1956 – International League – Rochester Red Wings 10 Miami Marlins 6 in 5:16 and 18 innings, then Miami 3 Rochester 2 in 2:03 and 7 innings – 3486 fans – 2nd game finished at 9:06 P.M.

7:18 – Cleveland Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio – 6/6/ 1973 – American League – Twins 7 Indians 3 in 4:14 and 15 innings, then Twins 13 Indians 9 in 3:04 – 2033 fans – 2nd game finished at 8:53 P.M.

7:18 — Coors Field, Denver, Colorado — 7/17/2000 — American League at National League — Athletics 11 Rockies 10 in 3:23, then Rockies 10 Athletics 9 in 3:55 and 10 innings — 40,120 fans for day game; 40,276 fans for night game.

7:17 — Yankee Stadium (I), New York, New York — 8/13/1952 — American League — Senators 12 Yankees 4 in 3:16, then Yankees 10 Senators 9 in 4:01 and 13 innings —17,513 fans, 4000 fans at end — 2nd game finished at 9:16 P.M.

7:17 — Memorial Stadium, Baltimore, Maryland — 6/30/1967 and 7/1/1967 — Indians 6 Orioles 5 in 4:53 and 14 innings, then Orioles 8 Indians 1 in 2:20, suspended after 5 innings, completed 7/1–14,290 fans.

7:17 — Parc (Park) Jarry, Montreal, Province of Quebec, Canada — 6/28/1974 — National League — Cubs 8 Expos 7 in 4:55 and 18 innings, then Expos 15 Cubs 0 in 2:22 — 20,098 fans, 8000 fans at end — 2nd game finished at 1:56 A.M. in the early morning of 6/29.

7:16 — San Diego (later Jack Murphy, then Qualcomm) Stadium, San Diego, California — 6/7/1972 — Pirates 12 Padres 5 in 2:49, then Pirates 1 Padres 0 in 4:27 and 18 innings — 7371 fans — finished at 1:39 A.M. in the early morning of 6/8.

7:15 – Forbes Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania – 5/30/1956 – National League – Pirates 5 Giants 4 in 2:53 and 10 innings, then Giants 5 Pirates 3 in 4:22 and 15 innings, rain delay 1:16 bottom 3rd - 27,680 fans, 10,000 fans at end – 2nd game finished at 10:00 P.M.

7:15 – Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California – 7/8/1992 – National League – Dodgers 1 Expos 0 in 4:29 and 11 innings, then Expos 4 Dodgers 1 in 2:46 – 27,601 fans – 2nd game finished at 8:50 P.M.

7:15 — Shea Stadium, New York, New York — 8/31/1992 — National League — Braves 8 Mets 6 in 4:18 and 14 innings, then Braves 7 Mets 5 in 2:57 — 24,392 fans — 2nd game finished at 12:55 A.M. in the early morning of 9/1.

7:14 – Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois – 5/27/1956 – American League – White Sox 5 Indians 4 in 4:52 and 15 innings, then Indians 4 White Sox 2 in 2:22 – 25,856 fans; 1900 fans at end – 2nd game finished at 9:08 P.M.

7:14 — Yankee Stadium (I), New York, New York — 6/21/1959 — American League — Indians 4 Yankees 2 in 2:56, then Indians 5 Yankees 4 in 4:18 and 14 innings — 68,680 fans — 2nd game finished at 8:44 P.M.

7:14 — Ray Winder Field, Little Rock, Arkansas — 8/7/1971 — Dixie Association — Jacksonville Suns 4 Arkansas Travelers 2 in 3:58 and 16 innings, then Arkansas 3 Jacksonville 2 in 3:16 and 11 innings — 2638 fans — 2nd game finished at 1:45 A.M. in the early morning of 8/8.

7:14 — Memorial Stadium, Baltimore, Maryland — 8/13/1991— American League — Orioles 4 Rangers 3 in 3:58 and 12 innings, then Orioles 8 Rangers 7 in 3:16 — 32,241 fans — finished at 12:49 A.M. in the early morning of 8/14.

7:14 — Estadio (Stadium) Angel Flores, Culiacan, State of Sinaloa, Mexico —11/26/2006 — Mexican Pacific League — Culiacan (Tomato Growers) 4 Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 3 in 5:16 and 17 innings; then Culican 7 Mazatlan 0 in 1:58 and 7 innings.

7:13 — Memorial Stadium, Baltimore, Maryland — 6/30/1967 and 7/1/1967 — American League — Indians 6 Orioles 5 in 4:53 and 14 innings, then Orioles 8 Indians 1 in 2:20, suspended after 5 innings —14,290 fans.

7:13 – Cinergy Field, Cincinnati, Ohio – 9/21/ 2002 – National League – Phillies 5 Reds 3 in 3:32 and 10 innings, then Phillies 5 Reds 4 in 3:41 and 11 innings — 36,940 fans in day game; 40,804 fans in night game.

7:12 — Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois — 6/27/1973 and 6/28/1973 — National League — Cubs 6 Expos 1 in 2:22, then Expos 5 Cubs 4 in 4:50 and 18 innings, suspended after 3:21 and 12 innings, completed 6/28 — 32,238 fans — 2nd game suspended at 6:59 P.M.

7:12 — Astrodome, Houston, Texas — 9/15/1998 — National League — Astros 6 Mets 5 in 3:53 and 12 innings, then Mets 8 Astros 4 in 3:19 — 40,835 fans — 2nd game finished at 8:47 P.M.

7:12 — Coors Field, Denver, Colorado — 4/16/2000 — National League — Cardinals 9 Rockies 3 in 2:53, then Rockies 14 Cardinals 13 in 4:19 — 43,029 fans for day game; 35,095 fans for night game.

7:10—Yankee Stadium (I), New York, New York — 9/9/1962 — American League — Red Sox 9 Yankees 3 in 2:37, then Red Sox 5 Yankees 4 in 4:33 and 16 innings — 38,081 fans — 2nd game finished at 9:40 P.M.

7:10—Metropolitan Stadium, Bloomington, Minnesota — 8/10/1979 — American League — Athletics 6 Twins 5 in 3:14 and 11 innings, then Twins 3 Athletics 2 in 3:56 and 12 innings —13,742 fans — 2nd game finished at 8:40 P.M.

7:10—Candlestick Park (later 3Com Park), San Francisco, California—7/26/1988—Dodgers 7 Giants 3 in 2:57, then Dodgers 6 Giants 5 in 4:13 and 11 innings and foggy weather—49,209 fans—2nd game finished at 1:15 A.M.

7:09 — Seals Stadium, San Francisco, California — 9/1/1958 — National League — Giants 8 Dodgers 6 in 2:34, then Giants 6 Dodgers 5 in 4:35 and 16 innings — 14,121 fans for a.m. game; 19,096 fans for P.M. game — 2nd game finished at 7:05 P.M.

7:08 — Dunn Tire Park, Buffalo, New York — 7/16/ 2004 — International League — Buffalo Bisons 11 Scranton/Wilkes-Barre Red Barons 1 in 2:01 and 7 innings, then Scranton/Wilkes-Barre 8 Buffalo 3 in 5:07 and 16 innings — 14,143 fans — 2nd game finished at 1:47 A.M. in the early morning of 7/17.

7:08 — Forbes Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 8/9/1963 — National League — rain delay 1:00 at start, Colt .45's (later Astros) 7 Pirates 6 in 3:58 and 15 innings, then Pirates 7 Colt .45's 6 in 3:10 and 11 innings — 9420 fans, 300 fans at end —finished at 2:30 A.M. in the early morning of 8/10.

7:08 — Candlestick (later 3Com) Park, San Francisco, California — 5/3/1970 — National League — Phillies 8 Giants 6 in 4:05 and 13 innings, then Phillies 13 Giants 6 in 3:03 — 17,153 fans — 2nd game finished at 8:38 P.M.

7:08 — Mile High Stadium, Denver, Colorado — 6/28/1994 — National League — Rockies 10 Padres 9 in 3:34, then Padres 11 Rockies 3 in 3:34 and 11 innings — 55,021 fans — 2nd game finished at 12:43 A.M. in the early morning of 6/29.

7:08 — Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois — 7/4/1994 — National League — Cubs 4 Rockies 3 in 2:36, Rockies 4 Cubs 2 in 4:32 and 15 innings, rain delay 0:34 6th, 2nd rain delay 0:59 top 14th, 3rd rain delay 0:52 top 15th — 37,167 fans; 1000 fans at end — 2nd game finished at 10:15 P.M.

7:07 — Astrodome, Houston, Texas — 7/30/1972 — National League — Padres 10 Astros 7 in 4:30 and 14 innings, then Astros 4 Padres 3 in 2:37 and 10 innings — 27,388 fans — 2nd game finished at 8:42 P.M.

7:06 — Polo Grounds (V), New York, New York — 8/4/1962 — National League — Mets 9 Reds 1 in 2:46, rain delay 0:38 top 4th, then Mets 3 Reds 2 in 4:20 and 14 innings —12,562 fans; 10,000 fans at end — 2nd game finished at 9:35 P.M.

7:06 — Candlestick Park (later 3Com Park), San Francisco, California — 5/2/1976 — National League — Cubs 6 Giants 5 in 3:47 and 14 innings, then Cubs 6 Giants 5 in 3:19 and 11 innings —17,005 fans — 2nd game finished at 8:36 P.M.

7:06 — Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan — 4/13/ 1997 — American League — White Sox 11 Tigers 8 in 4:17 and 12 innings, then Tigers 4 White Sox 2 in 2:49 —10,818 fans — 2nd game finished at 8:41 P.M.

7:04 — Municipal Stadium, Kansas City, Missouri — 9/14/1958 — American League — Yankees 5 Athletics 3 in 2:45, then Yankees 12 Athletics 7 in 4:19 and 14 innings — 31,013 fans.

7:04 — Shea Stadium, New York, New York — 9/ 26/1991— National League — Pirates 4 Mets 3 in 4:20 and 15 innings, then Mets 2 Pirates 1 in 2:44 — 14,451 fans — 2nd game finished at 12:59 A.M. in the early morning of 9/27.

7:04 — Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York — 9/17/2006 — American League — Red Sox 6 Yankees 3 in 3:19 in day game, then Red Sox 5 Yankees 4 in 3:45 in night game — 55,002 fans; 55,221 fans.

7:02 — Yankee Stadium (I), New York, New York — 7/26/1967 — American League — Yankees 6 Twins 1 in 2:38, then Twins 3 Yankees 2 in 4:24 and 18 innings — 21,927 fans — 2nd game finished at 12:44 A.M. in the early morning of 7/27.

7:02 – Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York – 8/11/1991– American League – Yankees 12 Tigers 6 in 3:05, then Yankees 10 Tigers 8 in 3:57 and 10 innings – 34,733 fans – 2nd game finished at 8:37 P.M.

7:01—Forbes Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania— 6/29/1965—National League—Pirates 2 Reds 1 in 4:19 and 16 innings, then Reds 7 Pirates 5 in 2:42— 28,589 fans—2nd game finished at 1:45 A.M. in the early morning of 6/30.

7:01—Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan—8/6/1968 and 8/7/1968—American League—Tigers 2 Indians 1 in 4:28 and 17 innings, then Tigers 5 Indians 2 in 2:33, suspended after 2:25 and 8 innings—48,413fans on 8/6; 30,402 fans on 8/7—2nd game suspended at 1:13 A.M.

7:01—Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania -7/24/1998—National League — Phillies 6 Marlins 4 in 3:21 and 12 innings, then Phillies 7 Marlins 6 in 3:40 and 12 innings — 30,622 fans — 2nd game finished at 12:36 A.M. in the early morning of 7/25. 7:00—Sportman's Park (V) (later Busch Stadium (I)), St. Louis, Missouri—7/4/1951—American League —Indians 6 Browns 5 in 2:41, then Indians 4 Browns 3 in 4:19 and 15 innings—10,770 fans—finished at 8:30 P.M.

7:00— Shea Stadium, New York, New York —10/2/ 1965 — National League — Phillies 6 Mets 0 in 2:31, then Phillies 0 Mets 0 in 4:29 and 18 innings —10,371 fans — 2nd game finished at 1:05 A.M. in the early morning of 10/3.

7:00—Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan—8/11/ 1968—American League—Tigers 5 Red Sox 4 in 4:23 and 14 innings, then Tigers 6 Red Sox 5 in 2:37— 49,087 fans—2nd game finished at 8:35 P.M.

7:00—?/??/1983 — Asian Championship — Taiwan vs. South Korea; Taiwan vs. Japan.

7:00—Davis Ford Park (later G. Richard Pfitzner Stadium), Woodbridge, Virginia—4/25/1984—Carolina League—Salem Redbirds 5 Prince William Pirates 2 in 2:40 and 9 innings, then Prince William 8 Salem 7 in 4:20 and 11 innings—1588 fans—finished at 2:00 A.M. in the early morning of 4/26.

7:00—McCord Field, Lawton, Oklahoma—4/8/ 2000—National Collegiate Athletic Association— Abilene Christian University Wildcats 3 Cameron University Aggies 1 in 3:00 and 10 innings, then Abilene Christian 10 Cameron 9 in 4:00 and 17 innings— 100 fans; 30 fans at end—2nd game finished at 7:30 P.M.

7:00—Heroes Park, Bozeman, Montana—8/3/ 2005—American Legion Class AA State Championships—Billings Scarlets 6 Missoula Mavericks 4 in 3:00 and 11 innings, then Billings Royals 4 Billings Scarlets 3 in 4:00 and 14 innings—500 fans; 200 fans at end—finished at 12:22 A.M. in the early morning of 8/4.

7:00—Spenadelwiese, Vienna, Austria—10/15/2005 and 10/16/2005—National Championships—Vienna Wanderers 6 Vienna Metrostars 5 in 2:30; then Wanderers 7 Metrostars 4 in 4:30, suspended after 4:00 and 13½ innings—250 fans on 10/15; 250 fans on 10/16—suspended at 7:00 P.M. on 10/15; finished at 12:30 P.M. on 10/16.

Doubleheaders Taking Eight Hours or More by Elapsed Time (91)

15 to 16 Hours (1)

15:27 — Hunnicutt Field, Princeton, West Virginia — 5/7/2006 — National Collegiate Athletic Administration — Ohio Valley University Fighting Scots 10 West Virginia State University Yellow Jackets 9 in 3:07, rain delay 8:54 top 7th; intermission 0:37; then Ohio Valley University Fighting Scots 14 Concord University Mountain Lions 5 in 2:49 — 250 fans, 75 fans top 7th, 350 fans at end; 200 fans at end of 2nd game —1st game ended at 10:01 P.M.; 2nd game ended at 1:27 A.M. in the early morning of 5/8.

13 to 15 Hours (0)

No doubleheader, thus far, has been identified as having an elapsed time of between 13 and 15 hours.

12 to 13 Hours (2)

12:51— Frontier Field, Rochester, New York — 8/9/ 2005 — International League — Rochester Red Wings 7 Ottawa Lynx 3 in 2:24 in morning game; intermission 7:02 between games; then Rochester 7 Ottawa 4 in 3:25 and 11 innings in night game — 7487 fans for morning game; 5631 fans for evening game — morning game finished at 12:05 P.M.; evening game finished at 10:32 P.M.

12:05 — Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 7/2/1993 — National League — rain delay 1:10 at start, Padres 5 Phillies 2 in 2:34, 2nd rain delay 1:56 bottom 4th, 3rd rain delay 2:48 top 6th, intermission 0:25 between games, then Phillies 6 Padres 5 in 3:12 and 10 innings — 54,617 fans, 6000 fans at start of 2nd game, 4000 fans at end — 2nd game finished at 4:40 A.M. in the early morning of 7/3.

11 to 12 Hours (1)

11:15 — Fuller (later Hays) Field, Lubbock and Angels (later Christensen) Stadium, Midland, Texas-5/17/1986 – Texas High School League 5A playoff championship best two-out-of-three series - Amarillo High School Golden Sandies 7 Abilene Cooper High School Cougars 4 in 3:00 and 8 innings in Lubbock – 400 fans – 80 degrees; second and third games moved from Texas Tech University ballfield 2 P.M. start in Lubbock to Lubbock Christian College ballfield 4 P.M. start in Lubbock, then to minor league ballfield 6:45 P.M. start in Midland, change-of-field/Blue Norther 2-feet of snow blizzard delay 4:45 at start, then Abilene Cooper 15 Amarillo 6 in 3:00 and 7 innings, intermission 0:30 between games, then Abilene Cooper 11 Amarillo 4 in 3:00 and 7 innings - 700 fans; 700 fans at end – 2nd game started at 38 degrees, 3rd game finished at 28 degrees-1st game started at 7:30 P.M. and finished at 10:30 P.M. in Lubbock on 5/16; 2nd game scheduled to start at 2:00 P.M. on 5/17 in Lubbock but actually started at 6:45 P.M. and finished at 9:45 P.M. in Midland; 3rd game started at 10:15 P.M. on 5/17 and finished at 1:15 A.M. in the early morning of 5/18.

10 to 11 Hours (4)

10:20—Shea Stadium, New York, New York—5/31/1964—National League—Giants 5 Mets 3 in 2:29, intermission 0:28 between games, then Giants 8 Mets 6 in 7:23 and 23 innings—57,037 fans, 8000 fans at end—2nd game finished at 11:25 P.M.

10:18 — Franklin Covey Field, Salt Lake City, Utah — 3/27/2004 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — rain delay 1:04 at start, Brigham Young University Cougars 5 University of Utah Utes 4 in 4:16 and 17 innings, 2nd rain delay 0:30 bottom 8th, intermission 0:42 between games, then Brigham Young 11 Utah 10 in 3:46 and 10 innings – 606 fans – 2nd game finished at 10:18 P.M.

10:16 — Three Rivers Stadium, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 7/22/1979 — National League — Pirates 5 Braves 4 in 2:24, rain delay 1:20 bottom 6th, 2nd rain delay 2:49 bottom 6th, intermission 0:30 between games, then Pirates 3 Braves 2 in 2:44, 3rd rain delay 0:29 top 4th — 29,533 fans — finished at 11:21 P.M.

10:10 – Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois – 7/4/1994 – National League – Cubs 4 Rockies 3 in 2:36, Rockies 4 Cubs 2 in 4:32 and 15 innings, rain delay 0:34 6th, 2nd rain delay 0:59 top 14th, 3rd rain delay 0:52 top 15th – 37,167 fans; 1000 fans at end – 2nd game finished at 10:15 P.M.

9 to 10 Hours (19)

9:58 — Estadio (Stadium) Roberto Clemente Walker, Carolina, Puerto Rico -2/2/2007 — Caribbean Series — Aguilas Cibaenas (Dominican) 4 Aragua Tigres (Tigers) (Venezuela) 3 in 6:13 and 18 innings; intermission 0:30 between games; then Carolina Giantes (Giants) (Puerto Rico) 11 Hermosillo Naranjeros (Orange Growers) (Mexico) 1 in 3:15 — 2nd game finished at 2:05 A.M. in the early morning of 2/3.

9:56 – Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan – 6/17/ 1967 – American League – Tigers 7 Athletics 6 in 3:25, 0:15 rain delay top 7th, intermission 0:36 between games, then Athletics 6 Tigers 5 in 5:40 and 19 innings –14,871 fans, 200 fans at end including Commissioner William Eckert – 2nd game finished at 12:17 A.M. in the early morning of 6/18.

9:48 — Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 8/10/1977 — National League — rain delay 1:03 at start, Phillies 6 Expos 1 in 2:11, 2nd rain delay 2:27 bottom 3rd, intermission 0:34 between games, then Phillies 6 Expos 1 in 2:07, 3rd rain delay 1:26 top 2nd — 46,664 fans, 15,000 fans at start of 2nd game, 5000 fans at end — 2nd game finished at 3:23 A.M. in the early morning of 8/11.

9:45 – Nettleton Stadium, Chico, California – 5/14/2005 – National Collegiate Athletic Association – University of California at San Diego Tritons 5 Chico State University Wildcats 4 in 4:16 and 11 innings, intermission 0:44 between games, then Cal San Diego 7 Chico State 6 in 4:45 and 12 innings – 902 fans – 2nd game finished at 9:45 P.M.

9:40—Crosley Field, Cincinnati, Ohio—7/8/1962 —National League—Reds 12 Colt .45's (later Astros) 8 in 3:01, intermission 0:34 between games, then Reds 12 Colt .45's 11 in 5:06 and 13 innings, rain delay 0:59 at start—18,322 fans—2nd game finished at 10:40 P.M.

9:40 — Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 9/26/1975 — National League — Phillies 4 Mets 3 in 3:48 and 12 innings, rain delay 0:24 top 2nd, 2nd rain delay 0:27 bottom 9th, intermission 0:36 between games, then Mets 3 Phillies 2 in 3:08 and 12 innings, 3rd rain delay 1:17 top 3rd — 20,189 fans, 200 fans at end — 2nd game finished at 3:15 A.M. in the early morning of 9/27. 9:32 — Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California — 4/11/1982 — American League — Mariners 6 Athletics 3 in 5:18 and 16 innings, rain delay 1:12 bottom 10th, intermission 0:30 between games, then Athletics 3 Mariners 1 in 2:32—19,003 fans; 800 fans at end —1st game finished at 7:35 P.M.; 2nd game finished at 10:37 P.M.

 $9:\overline{3}1$ — American Legion Post 325 Field, Danville, Virginia — 8/2/2000— Appalachian League — rain delay 2:30 at start, Princeton Devil Rays 7 Danville Braves 3 in 1:59 and 7 innings, intermission 0:24 between games, then Princeton 6 Danville 3 in 4:38 and 17 innings — 706 fans, 20 fans at end —finished at 3:01 A.M. in the early morning of 8/3.

9:30—Oskarshamn Arena, Oskarshamn, Sweden— 5/22/2005—Oskarshamn Lost Boys 11 Goteborg Sharks 10 in 5:45; intermission 0:20 between games; then Oskarshamn 11 Goteborg 5 in 3:25—1st game finished at 6:45 P.M.; 2nd game finished at 10:30 P.M.

9:26 — Busch Stadium (II), St. Louis, Missouri — 7/7/1987 — National League — rain delay 2:22 at start, Cardinals 5 Dodgers 4 in 2:51, intermission 0:27 between games, then Cardinals 5 Dodgers 4 in 3:46 and 10 innings — 39,236 fans, 2000 fans at end — 2nd game finished at 3:01 A.M. in the early morning of 7/8.

9:21—Rickwood Field, Birmingham, Alabama— 5/22/2005 and 5/23/2005 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Southern University Jaguars 6 Prairie View A&M University Panthers 0 in 2:37, intermission 0:34 between games, then Southern 6 Prairie View A&M 5 in 5:25 and 15 innings, 0:45 gunfire delay bottom 15th, suspended after 5:15 and 14½ innings — 314 fans for first game; 187 fans for second game — 2nd game suspended at 11:25 P.M., finished at 8:10 A.M. on 5/23.

9:16 – Comiskey Park (II), Chicago, Illinois – 9/14/2008 – American League – rain delay 3:11 at start, White Sox 4 Tigers 2 in 2:17, intermission 0:32 between games, then White Sox 11 Tigers 7 in 3:16 – 28,238 fans; 200 fans after rain delay at start of first game; 20,000 fans at start of second game; 14,000 fans at end of second game – 2nd game finished at 10:21 P.M.

9:15 – Tiger Field (later Doug Kingsmore Stadium), Clemson, South Carolina – 4/21/1996 – National Collegiate Athletic Association – Georgia Southern University Eagles 8 Clemson University Tigers 6 in 2:57 and 10 innings, intermission 0:31 between games, then Georgia Southern 9 Clemson 7 in 5:47 and 18 innings – 2356 fans, 500 fans at end – 2nd game finished at 9:20 P.M.

9:14 — Flamingo Park, Miami Beach, Florida — 4/23/1970 — Florida High School League playoffs — Miami High School Stingarees 1 Hialeah High School Thoroughbreds 0 in 5:16 and 24 innings; intermission 1:14 between games; then Miami Coral Park High School Rams 9 Miami High School 0 in 2:44 and 7 innings — 250 fans; 500 fans at end of 1st game —1st game finished at 7:46 P.M.; 2nd game finished at 11:44 P.M.

9:12 — Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York — 7/20/1998 — American League — Tigers 4 Yankees 3 in 5:50 and 17 innings, intermission 0:37 between games, then Yankees 4 Tigers 3 in 2:45 — 36,285 fans — 2nd game finished at 1:17 A.M. in the early morning of 7/21.

9:11— Cunningham Stadium; Tony Gwynn Stadium, San Diego, California — 2/23/2008 — University of San Diego Toreros 17 San Diego State University Aztecs 11 in 3:51—1200 fans — finished at 4:54; then San Diego State 15 San Diego 2 in 3:08—1417 fans — finished at 10:14 P.M.

9:08 – Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York -9/22/1992 – American League – Yankees 6 Tigers 5 in 4:05 and 12 innings, intermission 0:30 between games, rain delay 1:56 at start of 2nd game, then Yankees 7 Tigers 4 in 2:37 –13,001 fans, 200 fans at end – 2nd game finished at 1:08 A.M. in the early morning of 9/23.

9:07 — Camden Yards, Baltimore, Maryland — 9/ 19/2000 — American League — rain delay 2:43 at start, Athletics 7 Orioles 4 in 3:57 in day game, 2nd rain delay 2:21 top 8th, day game finished at 10:36 P.M. and the PA announcer told the crowd the night game would begin promptly in 20 minutes at 10:56 P.M., but six minutes later at 10:42 P.M. he announced the night game had been postponed — 30,166 fans.

9:00- Forbes Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania – 5/30/1956- National League – Pirates 5 Giants 4 in 2:53 and 10 innings, intermission 0:29 between games, then Giants 5 Pirates 3 in 4:22 and 15 innings, rain delay 1:16 bottom 3rd – 27,680 fans, 20,000 fans at end – 2nd game finished at 10:00 P.M.

8 to 9 Hours (64)

8:56 — Pete Beiden Field, Fresno, California — 2/10/2001 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Fresno State University Bulldogs 8 University of Santa Clara Broncos 5 in 2:57, intermission 0:26 between games, then Fresno State 11 Santa Clara 10 in 5:33 and 16 innings — 2601 fans — 2nd game finished at 10:01 P.M.

8:55 – Red Wing (later Silver) Stadium, Rochester, New York – 7/15/1979 – International League – Columbus Clippers 5 Rochester Red Wings 4 in 2:35 in day game, 3:00 rain delay 9th, intermission 0:55 between games, then Columbus 6 Rochester 5 in 2:25 in night game –1682 fans for day game; 2557 fans for night game –finished at 9:55 P.M. – scheduled as double-admission doubleheader, but when day game lasted so long, Red Wings invited fans from day game to stay for soon-to-start night game as well, turning it into single-admission doubleheader.

8:52 – County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin – 8/24/1993 – American League – Brewers 9 Athletics 2 in 3:01, intermission 0:30 between games, then Brewers 7 Athletics 6 in 5:11 and 13 innings, brawl delay 0:10 top 10th -16,570 fans -2nd game finished at 1:55 A.M. in the early morning of 8/25.

8:51—Royals Stadium, Kansas City, Missouri— 6/23/1991—American League—Orioles 11 Royals 8 in 3:44 and 10 innings, intermission 0:30 between games, then Orioles 9 Royals 8 in 4:27 and 12 innings, brawl delay 0:10 top 10th—30,018 fans—2nd game finished at 9:46 P.M.

8:50— Knights Castle, Fort Mill, South Carolina — 8/15/2003 — International League — Charlotte Knights 4 Indianapolis Indians 3 in 6:20 and 18 innings, intermission 0:36 between games, then Charlotte 5 Indianapolis 1 in 1:54 and 7 innings — 5275 fans, 100 fans at start of 2nd game, 36 fans at end plus 250 Girl Scouts asleep in Home Run Café ballpark restaurant who were to have camped out in the outfield after the games — 2nd game finished at 2:55 A.M. in the early morning of 8/16.

8:49 — Yankee Stadium (I), New York, New York — 8/29/1967 — American League — Red Sox 2 Yankees 1 in 2:10, intermission 0:30 between games, then Yankees 4 Red Sox 3 in 6:09 and 20 innings — 40,314 fans — 2nd game finished at 1:57 A.M. in the early morning of 8/30.

8:46 — Hammond Stadium, Fort Myers, Florida — 6/8/2002 — Florida State League — rain delay 4:07 at start, Vero Beach Dodgers 5 Fort Myers Miracle 1 in 2:00 and 7 innings, intermission 0:30 between games, then Fort Myers 2 Vero Beach 1 in 2:09 and 8 innings — 912 fans, 30 fans at end — 2nd game finished at 1:46 A.M. in the early morning of 6/9.

8:43 — Municipal Stadium, Greenville, South Carolina — 7/13/1984 and 7/14/1984 — Southern League — Memphis Chicks 3 Greenville Braves 2 in 6:02 and 19 innings, intermission 0:30 between games, then Greenville 6 Memphis 5 in 2:11 and 7 innings, suspended after 2 innings, completed 7/14 — 3044 fans on 7/13, 250 fans at suspension, 4456 fans on 7/14 — 2nd game suspended at 1:07 A.M. in the early morning of 7/14.

8:43 — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 8/7/ 1994 — American League — Red Sox 4 Indians 1 in 3:08, intermission 0:30 between games, then Indians 15 Red Sox 10 in 5:05 and 12 innings — 34,523 fans — 2nd game finished at 9:48 P.M.

8:42 — Bush Stadium, Indianapolis, Indiana — 9/9/1989 — International League at American Association in Junior World Series — Indianapolis Indians 4 Richmond Braves 3 in 2:26, rain delay 2:15 bottom 1st; intermission 0:30 between games; 2nd rain delay 0:40 at start, then Indianapolis 4 Richmond 3 in 2:51—3011 fans —1st game finished at 8:11 P.M.; 2nd game finished at 12:12 A.M. in the early morning of 9/10.

8:39 — Cleveland Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio and R.F.K. Stadium, Washington, D.C. — 9/14/1971 and 9/20/1971— American League — Indians 3 Senators 1 in 1:54, intermission 0:30 between games, then Senators 8 Indians 6 in 6:15 and 20 innings, suspended after 5:00 and 16 innings in Cleveland, completed 9/20 in Washington — 2639 fans on 9/14 in Cleveland, 100 fans at suspension, 1743 fans on 9/20 in Washington, 333 fans top 17th — 2nd game suspended at 1:00 A.M. in the early morning of 9/15.

8:39 — Henley Field, Lakeland, Florida — 3/12/ 2005 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Florida Southern College Moccasins 11 Barry University Buccaneers 7 in 3:37, intermission 0:53 between games, then Florida Southern 4 Barry 3 in 4:09 and 15 innings —171 fans — 2nd game finished at 9:39 P.M.

8:38 — Reiterstadion (later Circle Wood Stadium), Koln (Cologne), Germany — 4/6/2005 — Bundesliga Nord (North German League) — Bonn Capitals 9 Koln (Cologne) Cardinals 7 in 5:50; then Bonn 4 Cologne 0 in 2:05 and 7 innings, rain delay 0:13 — 600 fans; 500 fans at end of 1st game; 250 fans at end of 2nd game —1st game finished at 6:50 P.M.; 2nd game finished at 9:38 P.M.

8:36 - Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan - 6/9/1982 and 9/24/1982 - American League - Tigers 2 Indians 1 in 2:27, intermission 0:30 between games, rain delay 0:45 at start of 2nd game, then Tigers 4 Indians 3 in 4:54 and 18 innings, suspended after 3:38 and 14 innings - 32,213 fans on 6/9, 7226 fans on 9/24 - 2nd game suspended at 1:04 A.M. in the early morning of 6/10.

8:35 – Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California – 8/14/1966 – National League – Dodgers 4 Cubs 3 in 4:27 and 14 innings, intermission 0:30 between games, then Cubs 12 Dodgers 10 in 3:38 and 10 innings – 34,076 fans – 2nd game ended at 9:40 P.M.

8:35 — John Kurtz Field, Milledgeville, Georgia — 3/4/2006 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Georgia College and State University (GCSU) Bobcats 2 Shippensburg University Red Raiders 1 in 2:26, intermission 0:49 between games, then GCSU 6 Shippensburg 5 in 5:20 and 17 innings — 582 fans; 175 fans at beginning of 2nd game — 1st game finished at 3:26 P.M.; 2nd game finished at 9:35 P.M.

8:34 — Cleveland Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio — 6/27/1965 — American League — Indians 10 Athletics 7 in 5:03 and 15 innings, intermission 0:30 between games, then Indians 11 Athletics 7 in 3:01—17,829 fans — 2nd game finished at 9:34 P.M.

8:33 — Clark Field, Lafayette, Louisiana — 3/27/ 1971— National Collegiate Athletic Association — University of Southwestern Louisiana (now University of Louisiana-Lafayette) Ragin' Cajuns 6 McNeese State University Cowboys 5 in 5:03 and 23 innings, intermission 1:00 between games, then McNeese State 13 Southwestern Louisiana 10 in 2:30 and 7 innings — 2nd game finished at 10:03 P.M.

8:31—Polo Grounds (V), New York, New York— 8/4/1962—National League—Mets 9 Reds 1 in 2:46, rain delay 0:38 top 4th, intermission 0:47 between games, then Mets 3 Reds 2 in 4:20 and 14 innings— 12,562 fans; 10,000 fans at end—2nd game finished at 9:35 P.M. 8:31— Duvall-Rosier Field, Fairmont, West Virginia — 3/22/2005—NAIA at NCAA — Fairmont State University Falcons 7 Seton Hill College Griffins 6 in 5:45 and 17 innings, intermission 0:45 between games, then Fairmont State 5 Seton Hill 2 in 2:01 and 7 innings — 56 fans, 25 fans at end — 2nd game finished at 10:16 P.M.

8:30 – Forbes Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania – 8/9/1963 – National League – rain delay 1:00 at start, Colt .45's (later Astros) 7 Pirates 6 in 3:58 and 15 innings, intermission 0:22 between games, then Pirates 7 Colt .45's 6 in 3:10 and 11 innings – 9420 fans, 300 fans at end – finished at 2:30 A.M. in the early morning of 8/10.

8:29 — Yankee Stadium (I), New York, New York — 8/14/1960 — American League — Senators 5 Yankees 4 in 3:32, intermission 0:31 between games, then Senators 6 Yankees 3 in 4:26 and 15 innings — 29,970 fans — 2nd game finished at 10:29 P.M.

8:28 — Three Rivers Stadium, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 8/3/1975 — National League — rain delay 1:15 at start, Pirates 5 Mets 4 in 4:07 and 15 innings, 2nd rain delay 0:20 top 3rd, intermission 0:30 between games, then Pirates 4 Mets 3 in 2:16 — 30,070 fans — 2nd game finished at 9:28 P.M.

8:26 — Connie Mack Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 5/12/1963 — National League — Phillies 4 Braves 3 in 3:51 and 11 innings, intermission 0:30 between games, then Phillies 6 Braves 5 in 4:05 and 12 innings — 9836 fans — 2nd game finished at 9:26 P.M.

8:23 — Municipal Stadium, Kansas City, Missouri — 5/30/1969 — American League — Yankees 6 Royals 2 in 2:05, intermission 0:36 between games, then Yankees 5 Royals 4 in 4:24 and 15 innings, rain delay 1:18 bottom 3rd — 22,335 fans — 2nd game finished at 9:53 P.M.

8:23 – San Diego (later Jack Murphy, then Qualcomm) Stadium, San Diego, California – 9/24/1971– National League – Astros 2 Padres 1 in 5:25 and 21 innings, intermission 0:30 between games, then Padres 5 Astros 4 in 2:14, fog delay 0:14 bottom 9th – 6339 fans – 2nd game finished at 2:29 A.M. in the early morning of 9/25.

8:23 — Bond Field, Forest Grove, Oregon — 3/28/2004 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Lewis and Clark College Pioneers 8 Pacific University Boxers 7 in 5:00 and 16 innings, intermission 0:30 between games, then Pacific 11 Lewis and Clark 5 in 2:53 and 9 innings — 80 fans, 20 fans at end — 2nd game finished at 8:23 P.M.

8:20—Fairgrounds (later Cardinal) Stadium, Louisville, Kentucky—7/4/1959—American Association— Louisville Colonels 3 Dallas Rangers 2 in 2:44 and 12 innings, intermission 0:40 between games, then Louisville 3 Dallas 2 in 4:56 and 19 innings—4883 fans—2nd game finished at 9:50 P.M.

8:20—Polo Grounds (V), New York, New York— 8/15/1962—National League—Phillies 9 Mets 3 in 3:07, intermission 0:32 between games, then Phillies 8 Mets 7 in 4:41 and 13 innings – 9573 fans – 2nd game finished at 9:50 P.M.

8:20—Pilot Stadium (later Joe Etzel Field), Portland, Oregon — 4/6/2003 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Gonzaga University Bulldogs 9 University of Portland Pilots 6 in 4:37 and 16 innings, intermission 0:30 between games, then Portland 4 Gonzaga 3 in 3:13 and 13 innings — 2nd game finished at 7:35 P.M.

8:20—J.C. Love Field, Ruston, Louisiana—3/29/ 2008—National Collegiate Athletic Association— Louisiana Tech University Bulldogs 7 San Jose State University Spartans 2 in 2:47; intermission 0:29 between games, then Louisiana Tech 12 San Jose State 11 in 5:04 and 14 innings—988 fans—2nd game finished at 9:50 P.M.

8:19 - Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania - 8/10/1979 - National League - rain delay 0:29 at start, Phillies 4 Pirates 3 in 3:14 and 12 innings, 2nd rain delay 0:44 bottom 1st, 3rd rain delay 0:19 top 11th, intermission 0:30 between games, then Pirates 3 Phillies 2 in 3:03 - 63,346 fans, 20,000 fans at end -2nd game finished at 2:03 A.M. in the early morning of 8/11.

8:18 — Three Rivers Stadium, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 7/13/1984 — National League — Pirates 8 Giants 2 in 2:37, intermission 0:39 between games, then Pirates 4 Giants 3 in 5:11 and 18 innings, fireworks show started at 1:45 A.M. — 22,167 fans, 10,000 fans at end — 2nd game finished at 1:32 A.M. in the early morning of 7/14.

8:18 – Comiskey Park (II), Chicago, Illinois – 10/3/1991 – American League – White Sox 3 Twins 2 in 3:06 and 10 innings, intermission 0:30 between games, then White Sox 13 Twins 12 in 4:42 and 12 innings – 31,022 fans – 2nd game finished at 9:23 P.M.

8:18 — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 9/28/ 1993 — American League — Red Sox 11 Tigers 6 in 3:18, intermission 0:29 between games, then Tigers 7 Red Sox 6 in 4:31 and 11 innings — 24,446 fans — 2nd game finished at 1:23 A.M. in the early morning of 9/29.

8:18 — Hubert H. Humphrey Metrodome, Minneapolis, Minnesota — 5/26/2001— American League — Athletics 5 Twins 4 in 3:45 and 10 innings, intermission 0:30 between games, then Twins 7 Athletics 6 in 4:03 and 10 innings — 38,047 fans — 2nd game finished at 9:23 P.M.

8:17 — Yankee Stadium (I), New York, New York — 8/27/1972 — American League — Yankees 7 Royals 6 in 2:38, rain delay 0:19 bottom 5th, intermission 0:30 between games, then Yankees 9 Royals 8 in 4:50 and 16 innings — 25,801 fans — 2nd game finished at 9:17 P.M.

8:17 — Royals Stadium, Kansas City, Missouri — 7/5/1992 — American League — rain delay 0:58 at start, Brewers 2 Royals 1 in 3:27 and 12 innings, 2nd rain delay 0:28 top 5th, intermission 0:30 between games, then Brewers 9 Royals 7 in 2:54 — 25,835 fans — 2nd game finished at 9:22 P.M.

8:15 — County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin — 8/18/1957 — National League — Cardinals 8 Braves 6 in 3:27 and 10 innings, rain delay 1:30 bottom 2nd, 2nd rain delay 0:44 top 5th, intermission 0:18 between games, then Cardinals 6 Braves 0 in 2:16 — 45,207 fans, 2000 fans at end — 2nd game finished at 9:48 P.M.

8:15 – JHU Baseball Field, Baltimore, Maryland – 4/13/2002 – National Club Baseball Association at National Collegiate Athletic Association – NCBA (Club) George Washington University Colonials 22 NCAA Johns Hopkins University Junior Varsity (JV) Blue Jays 21 in 5:00 and 7 innings; intermission 0:30 between games, then Johns Hopkins JV defeated George Washington Club by several runs in 2:45 and 7 innings – 30 fans; 8632 fans next door at Homewood Field for Johns Hopkins' 9–8 lacrosse overtime win over Maryland –finished at 8:15 P.M.

8:14 — Ernie Shore Field, Winston-Salem, North Carolina — 6/8/1992 — Carolina League — Winston-Salem Spirits 5 Frederick Keys 4 in 2:19 and 7 innings, rain delay 1:14 bottom 1st, 2nd rain delay 2:44 bottom 6th, intermission 0:24 between games, then Winston-Salem 3 Frederick 0 in 1:33 and 7 innings — 4 fans at end — 2nd game finished at 2:29 A.M. in the early morning of 6/9.

8:13 – Ed Šmith Stadium, Sarasota, Florida – 8/8/ 2005 and 8/25/2005 – Florida State League – rain delay 0:55 at start, Sarasota Reds 5 Lakeland Tigers 1 in 3:51 and 15 innings, intermission 0:30 between games, then Lakeland 3 Sarasota 1 in 2:57 and 11 innings, suspended after 2:38 and 10 innings – 293 fans on 8/8 – 2nd game suspended at 12:59 A.M. in the early morning of 8/9; finished at 5:19 P.M. on 8/25.

8:12 — Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois — 7/25/ 1967 — American League — White Sox 3 Indians 1 in 2:55, intermission 0:28 between games, then White Sox 6 Indians 5 in 4:47 and 16 innings —18,152 fans — 2nd game finished at 2:15 A.M.

8:12 — Waterloo Stadium, Waterloo, Iowa — 5/30/ 1976 — Midwest League — Burlington Bees 4 Waterloo Royals 3 in 5:33 and 22 innings, intermission 0:30 between games, then Burlington 4 Waterloo 3 in 2:09 and 8 innings — 603 fans — 2nd game finished at 11:12 P.M.

8:12 — Reagan Field, Murray, Kentucky -3/25/2005 and 3/26/2005 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Murray State University Thoroughbreds 7 Southeast Missouri State University Redhawks 6 in 4:08 and 13 innings, intermission 0:35 between games, then Southeast Missouri State 15 Murray State 10 in 3:29, suspended after 1:04 and 3 innings -215 fans on 3/25; 185 fans on 3/26 —1st game finished at 4:13 P.M., 2nd game suspended at 5:52 P.M.

8:11—Busch Stadium (II), St. Louis, Missouri— 6/8/1992—National League—Cubs 5 Cardinals 2 in 4:21 and 13 innings, intermission 0:30 between games, then Cubs 6 Cardinals 4 in 3:20—38,572 fans—2nd game finished at 1:46 A.M. in the early morning of 6/9. 8:11—Louisville Slugger Field, Louisville, Kentucky — 7/6/2004 — International League — Ottawa Lynx 7 Louisville Bats 6 in 2:23, rain delay 3:08 bottom 2nd, intermission 0:30 between games, 2nd rain delay 0:26 at start, then Ottawa 1 Louisville 0 in 1:44—5967 fans — 2nd game finished at 12:26 A.M. in the early morning of 7/7.

8:10—Joe Davis Stadium, Huntsville, Alabama— 6/10/1990—Southern League—Huntsville Stars 3 Knoxville Blue Jays 2 in 5:35 and 19 innings, intermission 0:30 between games, then Huntsville 2 Knoxville 0 in 2:05 and 7 innings—2nd game finished at 2:10 A.M. in the early morning of 6/11.

8:09 — Busch Stadium (I), St. Louis, Missouri — 4/22/1962 — National League — rain delay 0:23 at start, Cubs 11 Cardinals 5 in 2:58, 2nd rain delay 0:10 bottom 1st, 3rd rain delay 0:44 bottom 7th, 4th rain delay 0:10 top 9th, then Cubs 5 Cardinals 1 in 2:26, 5th rain delay 0:44 top 4th, 6th rain delay 0:14 top 9th — 14,847 fans; 200 fans at end — 2nd game finished at 9:09 P.M.

8:09 — Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California — 8/24/1969 — American League — Athletics 9 Orioles 0 in 2:31, intermission 0:30 between games, then Athletics 9 Orioles 8 in 5:08 and 18 innings — 24,970 fans — 2nd game finished at 9:14 P.M.

8:09 — Comiskey Park (II) (later U.S. Cellular Field), Chicago, Illinois — 5/24/1995 — American League — White Sox 10 Rangers 8 in 4:01, intermission 0:30 between games, then Rangers 13 White Sox 6 in 3:38 — 19,368 fans — 2nd game finished at 9:14 P.M.

8:07 — Parc (Park) Jarry, Montreal, Province of Quebec, Canada — 9/7/1973 — National League — Mets 1 Expos 0 in 2:43, blinding sunlight delay 0:16, intermission 0:30 between games, then Mets 4 Expos 2 in 4:38 and 15 innings — 24,167 fans — 2nd game finished at 2:12 A.M.

8:07 — Three Rivers Stadium, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 8/15/1995 — National League — Pirates 13 Marlins 7 in 3:07, intermission 0:29 between games, then Pirates 7 Marlins 6 in 4:35 and 13 innings — 13,598 fans — 2nd game finished at 1:42 A.M. in the early morning of 7/14.

8:06 — Richmond County Bank Ballpark at St. George, New York, New York — 7/16/2004 and 8/2/ 2004 — New York-Pennsylvania League — Staten Island Yankees 4 New Jersey Cardinals 3 in 4:43 and 17 innings, intermission 0:30 between games, then New Jersey 3 Staten Island 0 in 2:53 and 10 innings, suspended after 1:38 and 6 innings, resumed on 8/2 after regularly scheduled game New Jersey 10 Staten Island 5 in 2:53 — 3909 fans on 7/16, 350 fans at start of 2nd game, 150 fans at suspension, 300 fans top 7th on 8/2, 175 fans at end — 2nd game suspended at 1:14 A.M. in the early morning of 7/17, finished at 11:55 P.M. on 8/2.

8:05-Municipal Stadium, Kansas City, Mis-

souri — 9/13/1970 — American League — Royals 8 Athletics 7 in 3:40 and 11 innings, intermission 0:30 between games, then Royals 8 Athletics 7 in 3:55 and 12 innings — 9824 fans — 2nd game finished at 9:05 P.M.

8:05 – In den Fliesen (Sportsarea), Saarlouis, Germany – 6/19/2004 and 7/10/2004 – Bundesliga Sud (South German League) – Furth Pirates 10 Saarlouis Hornets 4 in 3:04 – finished at 4:04 P.M.; intermission 0:30 between games; then Saarlouis 2 Furth 1 in 4:31 and 19 innings, suspended after 4:16 and 18 innings – 250 fans on both days – finished at 8:50 P.M.

8:04 – Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois – 7/19/ 1970 – American League – Orioles 8 White Sox 2 in 2:21, Aparicio Day intermission 1:50 between games, then White Sox 7 Orioles 3 in 2:53, rain delay 1:00 top 7th –18,587 fans.

8:03 – Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois – 8/28/ 1966 – American League – White Sox 4 Twins 3 in 4:30 and 15 innings, intermission 0:30 between games, then White Sox 7 Twins 6 in 3:03 and 11 innings – 21,576 fans – 2nd game finished at 9:08 P.M.

8:01— Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois— 8/26/ 1979— American League— Orioles 12 White Sox 7 in 2:48, intermission 0:30 between games, then Orioles 4 White Sox 3 in 4:43 and 13 innings— 25,605 fans— 2nd game finished at 9:01 P.M.

8:00—P&C (later Alliance Bank) Stadium, Syracuse, New York—4/10/1997—International League— Charlotte Knights 3 Syracuse SkyChiefs 1 in 1:59 and 7 innings; intermission 0:34 between games; then Charlotte 11 Syracuse 8 in 5:27 and 15 innings – 3822 fans; 100 fans at start; 50 fans at end – 2nd game finished at 9:01 P.M.

8:00- Coastal Federal Field, Myrtle Beach, South Carolina -7/27/2001- Carolina League - rain delay 2:58 at start, Myrtle Beach Pelicans 9 Salem Avalanche 3 in 2:30 and 7 innings, intermission 0:22 between games, then Myrtle Beach 3 Salem 2 in 2:10 and 7 innings - 2nd game finished at 2:00 A.M. in the early morning of 7/28.

8:00—Evans Sports Complex, Riverside, California—5/11/2002—National Junior Collegiate Athletic Association—Saddleback College Gauchos 10 Riverside Community College Tigers 3 in 3:30, intermission 0:30 between games, then Riverside 8 Saddleback 6 in 4:00 and 10 innings—2nd game finished at 8:00 P.M.

8:00—Nettleton Stadium, Chico, California— 5/11/2002—National Collegiate Athletic Association—California State University at San Bernardino Coyotes 13 University of California at Davis Aggies 12 in 4:10 and 10 innings, intermission 0:40 between games, then Cal State San Bernardino 11 Cal Davis 9 in 3:10—213 fans—2nd game finished at 8:05 P.M.

8:00—Heroes Park, Bozeman, Montana—8/3/ 2005—American Legion Class AA State Championships—Billings Scarlets 6 Missoula Mavericks 4 in 3:00 and 11 innings, intermission 1:00 between games, then Billings Royals 4 Billings Scarlets 3 in 4:00 and 14 innings—500 fans; 200 fans at end—finished at 12:22 A.M. in the early morning of 8/4.

Latest Games by Finish Time

I. HIGHLIGHTS AND ANALYSIS

4:40 A.M. and Rain

The current major league baseball latest finish record, 4:40 A.M., was set on the evening of July 2, 1993, at Veterans Stadium in Philadelphia. The Padres were in town for a twi-night doubleheader against the Phillies, and the threat of rain did not deter a sellout crowd of 54,617 from attending, attracted in part by a Fourth of July fireworks show when the games were done. However, there were three rain delays in the first game, 70 minutes at the start, two hours 34 minutes in the bottom of the 4th, and two hours 48 minutes in the top of the 6th, for a total of 6 hours 32 minutes of rain delays. At Midnight, when the last SEPTA commuter train left the Stadium, there were only 10,000 fans left, and when the Padres finally won the opener 5-2 at 1:03 A.M., there were only 6000 fans left. When it was announced the fireworks show was going to be postponed, the crowd dwindled to 3000 before the second game began at 1:28 A.M. But when the bars closed at 2 A.M., and people heard the Phils were still playing, the crowd built back up to 3500 at 2:30 A.M. and 4000 at 4:40 A.M., when the Phillies finally won 6-5 in the bottom of the tenth on relief pitcher Mitch Williams' single.

3:55 A.M. and Rain

The previous major league baseball lateness record, 3:55 A.M. (precisely 3:44:45 A.M.), was set eight years earlier, on the evening of July 4, 1985, at Atlanta-Fulton County Stadium. In a twice rain-delayed 19-inning thriller, the New York Mets outlasted the Atlanta Braves 16–13. The Braves twice tied the game on home runs while only one perilous strike away from defeat.

In one of the absolutely weirdest moments in baseball's entire history, Braves pitcher Rick Camp, batting .060 lifetime with 0 career home runs, and hitting only because the Braves had no pinch-hitters left, crushed an 0-2 forkball for a homer to left over a drawn-in outfield to tie the game at 11–11 with two outs in the bottom of the 18th, thus enabling the game to break the previous major league lateness record of 3:23 A.M. set by the Expos and Phillies in Philadelphia on August 10, 1977. Terry Harper had earlier lined a two-run, two-out, two-strike homer off the left field foul pole to tie the score at 10–10 in the 13th. When Camp, again representing the tying run in the 19th with 2 runners aboard, finally struck out to end the game at 3:55 A.M., a new major league record for elapsed time of 8 hours 15 minutes had also been set, including 6 hours 10 minutes of baseball action and 2 hours 5 minutes of rain delays.

The remaining 8000 fans of an original crowd of 44,947 then settled back for the rainy evening's finale, the 4th (5th?) of July fireworks extravaganza which lit up the "Night the Lights Didn't Go Out in Georgia" from 4:01 A.M. to 4:12 A.M. The fireworks show was faithfully carried live back to New York by the Mets WOR-TV broadcast team, which included Tim McCarver, whose lack of lightning speed at 3:15 A.M. on the evening of September 26, 1975, had allowed Mets right fielder Rusty Staub to throw him out at the plate, thus ending another game that was threatening to go until dawn.

Now, ten years older and wiser and grayer, Staub was still winning post–3 A.M. marathons. He was intentionally walked as a pinch-hitter for winning pitcher Tom Gorman, and later scored during the Mets 5-run winning rally in the top of the 19th. Besides McCarver and Staub, the other marathon veteran present in Atlanta was Braves coach Bobby Wine, who had been a Phillies coach at the 3:23 A.M. Expos-Phils game.

Although they won the game, the Mets lost the two major arguments of the evening. Mets manager Davey Johnson officially protested the game after a rain delay in the third because he was not permitted to change his batting order after replacing Dwight Gooden with a relief pitcher, and was later ejected with Darryl Strawberry in the 17th after an unpleasant discussion with plate umpire Terry Tata concerning the size of post–3 A.M. strike zones.

4:09 A.M. on Easter Morning

At 4:09 A.M. on Easter morning, April 19, 1981, just 51 minutes before sunrise, 17 freezing and very fortunate souls huddled in the 28 degree pre-dawn chill of Pawtucket, Rhode Island's McCoy Stadium, having watched their beloved Paw Sox fail to break a 2–2 tie against the Rochester Red Wings in the bottom of the 32nd. After the umpires suspended the game, these 17 brave fans could look back on 8 hours 7 minutes of baseball, preceded by a 32-minute power failure delay, and claim to have witnessed the latest local time conclusion ever to a professional baseball game. At that time, the 4:09 A.M. ending exceeded the previous minor league and major league records by 100 and 14 minutes respectively.

When the game resumed two months later on June 23, the mercury had risen to 80 degrees, and McCoy was packed to capacity as the Paw Sox won 3–2 in the 33rd inning on Dave Koza's bases-loaded single. The final totals, 33 innings, 8 hours 25 minutes game time, and 8 hours 57 minutes elapsed time, are still all-time professional baseball records. Momentoes of this historic game are now buried in a time capsule beneath the field, where they join the five-ton truck that in 1942 sank without a trace into the swampy outfield while McCoy was being built by President Franklin Delano Roosevelt's Works Progress Administration (WPA).

Strange Baseball Events After 1 A.M.

Detailed research into late-ending games has revealed that at least 498 baseball games have ended after 1 A.M., including 186 major league games. The most frequent cause is extra innings. Other frequent causes include rain, the Alaskan Midnight Sun, fog, automatic tarpaulin malfunction, scoreboard fire, blinding sunlight, power failure, need for a stretcher, and an automatic sprinkler system which could not be turned off.

Strange things can occur when games venture beyond 1 A.M. One such event led indirectly to the 1978 AL East playoff between the Red Sox and Yankees. In the 17th inning of a rain-delayed 1:16 A.M. contest on August 3 at Yankee Stadium, Dwight Evans' long fly ball into the right field corner curved foul and landed in the seats, eluding Reggie Jackson's grasp. Jackson was only halfway back to his normal playing position when Yankee pitcher Ken Clay inexplicably delivered the next pitch. Evans lined a single to right that would have been caught had Clay waited until Jackson was in position. The hit led to two runs and a 7–5 Red Sox victory, without which Bucky Dent might never have broken millions of hearts in New England with one momentous bloop over the Green Monster.

Critical early morning mistakes twice cost victory in the last inning of 1:15 A.M. games which ended as ties due to curfew in 1961. On June 8, after his 11th-inning triple at Fenway tied the score, Gary Geiger failed to score later on what should have been Carl Yastrzemski's game-winning sacrifice fly. Geiger, thinking his triple had just won the game, jubilantly dashed into the dugout where, rather than being mobbed by his teammates, he was tagged out by the Angels. Just 20 days later, after a routine pitch with 2 outs in the 15th inning at Connie Mack Stadium, Giant catcher Hobie Landrith's return throw to his pitcher sailed into center, allowing Tony Gonzalez to scamper home from third with the tying run for the Phils. The batter promptly grounded out to end the tie game.

1:06 A.M. and the Sprinklers

Perhaps the most bizarre ending to a post-1 A.M. game occurred August 23, 1984, at Centennial Field in Burlington, Vermont. Trailing the Albany A's 9-6 going into the bottom of the 17th, the Vermont Reds came to the plate needing three to tie. At 12:51 A.M., with a 1-0 count on Vermont leadoff batter Ron Little, an automatic timer turned on the six outfield sprinklers, one of which was located right between Albany center fielder David Wilder's two feet. After a 15-minute laughter delay, during which man's best efforts to turn off the mechanical beast proved unsuccessful, the game was suspended at 1:06 A.M. The next evening, Vermont managed to eke out only one run, and Albany won 9-7. After much deliberation, the University of Vermont, which owns the ballpark, has decided to tempt fate; the sprinkler system's automatic timer has not been adjusted.

Records Come, and Records Go

Ever since night baseball began, the latest ending record has been getting progressively later, despite the fact that starting times have become earlier. Typical starting times have regressed from 9 P.M. in the 1930s to 8:30 P.M. in the 1940s to 8 P.M. in the 1960s to 7:35 P.M. in the 1980s to 7:05 P.M. in the 2000s.

The very first known post–1 A.M. major league game took place June 15, 1945, at Griffith Stadium in Washington. In the nightcap of a long 27-inning twi-night doubleheader, Nats' hurler Johnny Niggeling went the distance as the Red Sox and Senators struggled to a 13-inning 4–4 tie at 1:02 A.M. after Boston had won the opening game 6–5 in 14 innings.

The next known post–1 A.M. major league game was literally carried into the wee hours on a stretcher. With two out in the bottom of the 9th on July 8, 1949, at Shibe Park, Phils second sacker Granny Hamner doubled to center scoring Richie Ashburn to knot the contest at 1-all. After both teams scored twice in the 11th, Boston shortstop Alvin Dark was knocked unconscious while running the bases by a ball thrown by Hamner in the 13th. Dark was carried off the field on a stretcher and taken to Temple University Hospital where he was listed in satisfactory condition. Del Crandall's 16th-inning sacrifice fly to center off Schoolboy Rowe later gave the Braves a 4–3 victory at 1:01 A.M.

Two years later, on June 22, 1951, the Dodgers-Pirates

8:30 P.M. start was delayed 2 hours 14 minutes when power failure knocked out Forbes Field's four outfield light towers. Further delayed by rain for 36 minutes in the 6th, the proceedings did not conclude until 1:56 A.M., as 10,000 of the original crowd of 24,966 stuck around to witness the tired Dodgers walk off with an 8–4 victory, keyed by Jackie Robinson's home run into the Greenburg Gardens Short Porch in left.

The 1:56 A.M. mark lasted a little over 12 years; the scene was again Forbes Field. On August 9, 1963, after rain delayed start of the twi-night doubleheader for 60 minutes, the Houston Colt .45's struggled to a 15-inning 7–6 win in the opener. By the time Roberto Clemente lined a bases-loaded single in the 11th to enable the Bucs to claim the nightcap by an identical score, only 300 of the original 9420 fans remained, and the large Longines clock atop the scoreboard in left read 2:30 A.M. One of those remaining 300 fans, who sat throughout the long rainy evening in the left field bleachers with his father, was later inspired to write this book.

All Day and Night

On May 31, 1964, at Shea, the Mets and Giants struggled mightily to break the latest finish record, but could not overcome the handicap of an early afternoon start, as San Francisco took both ends of a twinbill, winning the nightcap 8-6 in 23 innings. Del Crandall, still going strong 15 years after having won that 1:01 A.M. game back in 1949, hit the game-winning RBI in the 23rd inning, scoring Jim Davenport from third. Joe Christopher of the Mets tied the game 6-6 in the 7th with a 3-run homer that bounced off Willie Mays' glove and over the 8-foot fence in right center. The game time of the second game was 7 hours 23 minutes. Including the intermission between games, the twinbill lasted 10 hours 17 minutes. Only 8000 of the sellout crowd of 57,037 stuck around for the bitter end at 11:25 P.M.

Because the National League twi-nighter curfew was no longer in effect in 1964, had this been a 6 P.M. twi-nighter rather that a 1 P.M. daylight doubleheader, an all-time professional record would have been set at that time, since the end would have come at 4:25 A.M. rather than 11:25 P.M. A new mark for latest ending day games was however set, one which prevailed until June 17, 1967, when the current day game record was set at a Tigers-A's doubleheader in Detroit. It lasted from 2:15 P.M. to 12:17 A.M. There was a rain delay, and the second game went 19 innings, as the original crowd of 14,871 dwindled to just 200 fans at the end, including Commissioner William Eckert.

"More! More!"

On June 14, 1966, a minor league lateness record was set at Al Lang Field in St. Petersburg, Florida. Managed by later Tiger skipper Sparky Anderson, the host St. Pete Cards lost a 4–3 squeaker to Miami Marlins in 29 innings as the clock struck 2:29 A.M. A 2 A.M. announcement by umpires and managers that the game would not continue beyond the 30th inning had been met with jeers and cries of "More! More!" from the 150 night owls who remained from the original crowd of 740. This minor league record would stand for 15 years until broken at Pawtucket in 1981.

Japan Rhubarbs

During World War II, games in Japan were all played during daylight. On May 24, 1942, Taiyo and Nagoya of the Japanese Professional Federation struggled to a 4–4 tie in Korakuen Stadium, Tokyo, ending at 6:27 P.M. Because of early evening starting times, normally 6 P.M., and frequent rulings that no game can go beyond 10 P.M. so that fans can catch the last subway train home, no game in Japan has yet ever gone past 1 A.M.

A Japanese record finish was set in a Central League twi-nighter between the Yomiuri Giants and the Kokutetsu Swallows September 7, 1961, again at Tokyo's Korakuen Stadium. Although Japanese baseball is noted for its lack of disputes between players and umpires, in the top of the 11th inning of the second game, a furious argument raged for 1 hour 52 minutes, the longest known rhubarb in baseball history. The argument focused on whether or not Giant third baseman Nagashima was guilty of fielder's interference on Swallows baserunner Tsuchiya in a rundown play between third base and home plate. Tsuchiya was finally ruled safe at the plate, with what proved to be the winning run in a 3–2 Swallow victory, ending at 12:11 A.M.

The current Japanese latest finish record stands at 12:26 A.M. It happened at Koshien Stadium in Osaka on September 11, 1992. The Yakult Swallows and the hometown Hanshin Tigers played to a 15-inning tie in five hours 49 minutes, with a 37-minute long rhubarb thrown in for good measure.

D.C. Curfew

The Forbes Field 2:30 A.M. major league mark was broken June 12, 1967, as Washington downed the White Sox 6 to 5 on Paul Casanova's bases-loaded single in the 22nd. Only 1500 of the original 7236 fans remained in D.C. Stadium until the end at 2:44 A.M., which still stands as the AL lateness record. Since this was a weeknight game, D.C.'s Saturday evening curfew was not applicable. There is considerable confusion concerning the exact time of this former Saturday night curfew back in the Senators era. According to then Owner Calvin R. Griffith, the curfew required both teams to be off the field by 2:00 A.M.

But according to Edward L. Curry, then Assistant

Corporation Counsel for the District of Columbia, the statute involved is Title 19 D.C. Municipal Regulations Section 1302.1, and since 1933 it has listed the official curfew as 3:00 A.M. Regardless of whether it is 2 A.M. or 3 A.M., this D.C. regulation was baseball's latest curfew ever, and maintains to this day its unique distinction as the only curfew which was never enforced. The latest that the current National League Nationals have played in the nation's capital city is 2:07 A.M., downing the Phils 3–1 September 28, 2006, after a four-hour 27-minute rain delay before the game started.

Earliest Start

Way back in the late 1930s, the record for the earliest starting game had been set in a Negro National League game between the Homestead Grays and the Pittsburgh Crawfords at Gus Greenlee Field in Pittsburgh's Hill District. A Pennsylvania state law prevented Sunday games from continuing past 6:59 P.M. Angered that this "Blue Law" prevented him from scheduling profitable Sunday evening games, Crawfords owner Gus Greenlee scheduled a Monday morning game to begin at one minutes after the stroke of Midnight. Unfortunately, as is the case with all other Negro League contests, we have no record of the ending time.

2:29 A.M. and Fog

At San Diego Stadium on September 24, 1971, after dropping the lidlifter of a twi-nighter to Houston in 21 innings, the Padres took the field for the nightcap just a little too late, and the teams had to settle for tying the Grays-Craws 12:01 A.M. earliest-start record as the 12:00 midnight early start barrier remained secure by 60 seconds. The morning was not without further excitement, however. Tied in the bottom of the 9th, with one aboard, San Diego's Nate Colbert lifted a high fly ball right to Astro center fielder Cesar Cedeno, who lost the ball in a fog bank. With two men on, the Padres and their remaining 100 fans now stood poised for victory, but play was halted at 2:15 A.M. After a 14-minute fog delay, during which it became apparent the swirling soupy fog enveloping Mission Valley was not about to lift anytime soon, play was illogically resumed. On the first pitch, Ollie Brown promptly brought an end to the evening's festivities at 2:29 A.M. with an RBI single to right. Astros right fielder Jim Wynn not only couldn't see the ball, but he had trouble even seeing his own infielders.

Radio listeners in Houston couldn't believe their ears, but could take solace in the fact that they had just broken the 4:15 A.M. all-time record for latest local time radio broadcast endings, since it was then 4:29 A.M. back in Texas. The current broadcast record of 4:45 A.M. was set by New York listeners who tuned in to the Mets 19-inning 7–3 victory in Dodger Stadium May 24, 1973. This is the only sunrise service in baseball history. Mets radio broadcast listeners near a window watched dawn break in New York City at 4:31 A.M., 14 minutes before the game ended in Los Angeles at 1:45 A.M.

The 3 A.M. Barrier

The 3 A.M. barrier for professional baseball was finally smashed September 11, 1974, at Shea. Ken Reitz's 2-run homer for St. Louis, with 2 outs in the 9th, tied up the Mets at 3-3. Then the pitchers took total control for 15 innings. Only a hardy thousand of the original crowd of 13,460 remained to see Bake McBride score all the way from 1st base in the 25th when Mets pitcher Hank Webb's pickoff throw to 1st was wild, and the relay to the plate from the outfield was dropped by catcher Ron Hodges to give the Cards a 4-3 win. As home plate umpire Ed Sudol ruled the sliding McBride safe at the plate, he couldn't help remembering that he had also been behind the plate during the two other Mets marathon losses: 23 innings to the Giants in 1964 and 24 innings to the Astros in 1968. At the end, after 7 hours 4 minutes of baseball, the huge right center field scoreboard read 3:13 A.M. Amazingly, the 1st base umpire had called a balk on the wild pickoff. Under a rule that had been revoked just several years earlier, McBride would have been required to return to 2nd. He might never have scored, and the game might never have ended.

A year later, the Mets again collaborated to push back the lateness barrier. On September 26, 1975, in the first of what would be three rainy post–3 A.M. baseball evenings in six years in Philadelphia's Veterans Stadium, the Mets and Phils traded 12-inning wins. In the nightcap, the third rain delay of the evening halted play for 77 minutes in the third. In the bottom of the 12th, Tim McCarver was thrown out at the plate, Rusty Staub to Felix Millan to Jerry Grote, giving the Mets a 3–2 win at 3:15 A.M. History records neither McCarver's fleetness of foot at that late hour, nor how many of the 200 remaining fans were awake.

The Vet seemed to love early morning marathons. Of seven documented major league post–3 A.M. games, four were at the Vet. The Vet hosted 12 post–1 A.M. games, but that only gives it second place for the most by a ballpark. Fenway Park has hosted 14 such games. Philadelphia does hold the record for most such games for a city, though: 19, with four at Shibe Park and three at Citizens Bank Park in addition to the Vet's twelve.

Beginning in 1914, beautiful Wrigley Field's Friendly Confines in Chicago faithfully served the Federal League Whales and National League Cubs for 91½ years without a post–1 A.M. game. Its first and only such game arrived July 26, 2005, when a long rain delay and 11 innings carried the Giants and Cubs to a 1:16 A.M. finish. The minor league record for longest time with no post–1 A.M. game is held by Birmingham's Rickwood Field, the minor leagues' oldest and most pleasant ballpark, and still used by the Birmingham Barons once every summer. Rickwood opened in 1910, and has never seen a post–1 A.M. game.

The Phils and Expos set a new record August 10, 1977. Again there was rain at the Vet, as the start of the opener was delayed 63 minutes when the heavens opened up during the playing of "O Canada." In the third, a second rain delay lasted 2 hours 27 minutes, during which the tarpaulin was unrolled and rolled up again four times as the rain played games with the grounds crew. Beginning at 8:42 P.M., hundreds of kids played "slide" on the wet tarp. The nightcap began at 11:50 P.M. with only a third of the original crowd of 46,664 still present, and was halted in the second for 1 hour 26 minutes by the evening's third rain delay. As rain continued to delay activities in the Vet at 12:26 A.M., Pennsylvania's early-ending game of the evening was just ending across the state in Three Rivers Stadium as Pirate fans celebrated an 18-inning 2-1 victory over the Cubs. Back in Philadelphia, the rain finally stopped and the Phils eventually won both games by identical scores of 6-1. Five thousand fans remained until the very end at 3:23 A.M. Propelled by three rain delays totaling 4 hours 56 minutes, this remained the major league lateness record for eight years.

But it had to withstand another rainy early morning challenge at the Vet. On June 9, 1980, Steve Carlton was hurling a no-hitter against San Francisco as the Phils went to bat in the fourth. Two separate rain delays, totaling 5 hours 0 minutes, occurred in the bottom of the 4th. The second of the two delays lasted 3 hours 32 minutes, the fourteenth-longest known major league rain delay ever; the longest was when the White Sox and Rangers waited 7 hours 23 minutes for rain to stop August 12, 1990.

As Carlton threw the first pitch of the top of the 5th, 5 hours 9 minutes had elapsed since his last pitch of the top of the 4th, and he set the all-time record for time between pitches for a pitcher in one game. With only 200 of the original 28,702 fans still on hand, the Giants emerged victorious 3 to 1 after a record 9-inning elapsed time of 7 hours 26 minutes at 3:11 A.M., only 12 minutes shy of the 3:23 A.M. lateness record, and just 41 minutes after the Reds and Padres had battled to a 6-6 tie the same evening at Riverfront in a game finally called off at 2:30 A.M. in the bottom of the 11th after the last of four rain delays. The Phils took their marathon act to Montreal later in the season, clinching the National League East pennant on the next-to-the-last day of the 1980 season with an 11-inning 6-4 victory over the Expos that lasted 7 hours 46 minutes due to a 45-minute network television scheduling delay and a 3-hour 10-minute rain delay.

At Comiskey Park on May 8 and 9, 1984, the White Sox defeated the Brewers 7–6 in 25 innings and 8 hours 6 minutes, a new major league record for game time. Suspended at 1:05 A.M. by the AL curfew after 17 innings, the game was decided the next evening in the 25th by Harold Baines' homer, which just cleared the center field bullpen fence. The White Sox scored twice in the 9th and three times in the 21st to keep the game tied, and would have won in the 23rd except that Dave Stegman was ruled out for coach's interference when third base coach Jim Leyland helped Stegman to his feet after he tripped rounding third.

This game is rich in "might-have-beens": Had it been played during either of the two periods between 1910–1948 or 1976–1980, when Comiskey Park had no inner fence in center field, Baines' drive would have been easily caught, and the two teams might have broken the major league record for innings, set way back on May 1, 1920, at Braves Field when the Dodgers and Braves battled to a 1–1 tie in 26 innings. But best of all, if the game had been the nightcap of that foggy Astros-Padres twi-nighter back in 1971 which began at 12:01 A.M., it would have finished at 8:07 A.M., and the last few innings could have been covered live by Bryant Gumbel and Jane Pauley on NBC's "Today" show.

Confusion in Claremore, OK: 3 A.M. or 4 A.M. ?

On July 23, 1962, an American Legion tournament game at Legion Field in Claremore, Oklahoma, set an amateur record by lasting until 3:00 A.M., but an unusual combination of daylight savings confusion and newspaper error combined to make it appear as if the game had ended at 4:00 A.M. The scheduled 8:00 P.M. start of the Bartlesville Philnines-Claremore Merchants game was delayed until 11:30 P.M. by previous tournament games. According to the July 24, 1962, edition of the *Bartlesville Examiner-Enterprise*, the Philnines' 11-inning 8–6 victory "was completed at 4 A.M. CST Tuesday." The article was headlined "Philnines Stay Awake; Beat Claremore at 4."

But according to Durand Lugar of Tulsa, the official scorer of the game, "For some wild and crazy reason, Bartlesville went on daylight savings time for the summer of 1962, the only town in Oklahoma to do so; it sure was confusing." Daylight time being an hour later, Merle Bird, the Bartlesville sportswriter, felt the game ended at 4 A.M. because his watch was set to Bartlesville daylight time. But that would have been 4 A.M. CDT; when the paper said 4 A.M. CST, it was wrong. Claremore time was 3 A.M. CST, and since Claremore was the venue of the game, 3 A.M. was the official ending time of the game.

4:30 A.M. in Bartlesville, OK

Another amateur record was set in Oklahoma, this time on July 4, 1976, in Bartlesville, during the 17th annual American Legion Glen Winger Memorial Tournament. Two straight days of rainouts forced scheduling of eight 7-inning games in one day. Bartlesville's Bill Doenges Ford Injuns downed Oklahoma City Grant-SE 5–0 in a game which began at 2:40 A.M. and did not conclude until 4:30 A.M. A capacity crowd of 1500 fans remained until the very end as they observed the nation's 200th birthday.

2:08 A.M., the Midnight Sun, and Snatching Victory from the Jaws of Defeat

Another unusual post–1 A.M. amateur contest took place June 21, 1984, in Fairbanks, Alaska during the 79th annual Midnight Sun Game. This game begins each year around 11 P.M. to commemorate the June Summer Solstice, the longest day of the year. It involves a different opponent selected each year for the host Fairbanks club, and features the emotional singing of the Alaska Flag Song during the first change of sides after Midnight. Trailing 2–1 in the eighth inning, the host Alaska Goldpanners of Fairbanks snatched victory from the jaws of defeat with a 9–0 forfeit win over the Chinese Taipei Olympic Team of Taiwan at 2:08 A.M. when Taiwan refused to send a batter to the plate.

Early in the game, with clouds hiding the sun, and hordes of mosquitoes invading the diamond from the banks of the nearby Chena River, Growden Memorial Park had been shrouded in bug spray mist and relative darkness, but the traditions of the Midnight Sun Game do not allow lights to be used. The umpires told the visitors' manager that if they would just continue playing, the game would be called after 7 innings if it was still somewhat dark. The Chinese, who later that Summer won the Bronze Medal at the Summer Olympic Games in Los Angeles, scored twice in the 7th to take a 2–1 lead. But they adamantly refused to bat in the 8th, even when ordered to do so by the umpires, who pointed out that the clouds had moved and the Midnight Sun was now shining. And thus, the Goldpanners snatched a 9–0 forfeit win from the jaws of a 2–1 defeat.

9:05 A.M. in the Desert

Amateur tournaments frequently end up going long into the night when delays squeeze the schedule. The latest that any such tournament has ever ended was at Tempe Diablo Stadium, in Tempe, Arizona, when games scheduled for November 4, 2000, in the Men's Senior League Tournament experienced long rain delays. Tournament games continued throughout the night, and the final game ended at 9:05 A.M. with the Kansas City Monarchs defeating the San Jose All-Stars 2–1 in the Age 38 and Older Championship Game, which had begun at 6:30 A.M.

II. GAME RECORDS

Games Finished After 1 A.M. (498)

Between 9:00 A.M. and 9:59 A.M. (1)

9:05 A.M.— Tempe Diablo Stadium, Tempe, Arizona—11/4/2000— Men's Senior League 38+ Championship Game—rain delays, Kansas City Monarchs 2 San Jose All-Stars 1 in 2:35.

Between 8:00 A.M. and 8:59 A.M. (1)

8:42 A.M.— Lawrence-Dumont Stadium, Wichita, Kansas — 8/6/2005 — National Congress — Southern California Fire 8 Park City Cowboys 4 in 2:53.

Between 7:00 A.M. and 7:59 A.M. (2)

7:30 A.M.— Hoglund Ballpark, Lawrence, Kansas; cancelled due to snow and moved to Hubert H. Humphrey Metrodome, Minneapolis, Minnesota— 2/10/2007 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — South Dakota State University Jackrabbits 6 Kansas University Jayhawks 5 in 2:51; then Kansas 3 South Dakota State 2 in 2:47, suspended after 2:27 and 7 innings — 33 fans; 22 fans at beginning of 2nd game — Ist game began at 1:42 A.M. on 2/10 and ended at 4:33 A.M.; 2nd game began at 5:03 A.M., was suspended at 7:30 A.M. on 2/10, begun again at 3:30 A.M. and completed at 3:54 A.M. on 2/11.

7:15 A.M. – Engel Stadium, Chattanooga, Tennessee – 5/3/1985 – National Christian Collegiate Athletic Association – rain delay previous tournament action at start, Marion College (now Indiana Wesleyan University) Wildcats 11 King's College Purple Knights 1 in 2:15 and 5 innings –14 fans, 2 fans at end.

Between 6:00 A.M. and 6:59 A.M. (3)

6:57 A.M.— Hoglund Ballpark, Lawrence, Kansas; cancelled due to snow and moved to Hubert H. Humphrey Metrodome, Minneapolis, Minnesota— 2/11/2007—National Collegiate Athletic Association—Kansas University Jayhawks 4 South Dakota State University Jackrabbits 1 in 2:37—26 fans began at 4:20 A.M. on 2/11.

6:35 A.M.—Pink Hill Park, Blue Springs, Missouri—7/8/1994—American Legion—rain delay at start of 3rd prior game, previous tournament action delay 2:35 at start, Fike Post 499 Blue Springs 8 Post 210 Fulton 0 in 2:00—dawn was at 6:00 A.M., 35 minutes before the game ended.

6:30 A.M.— Hidden Valley Park or Pink Hill Park, Blue Springs, Missouri—7/9/1994—American Legion — previous tournament action delay 3:30 at start, Post 259 Minnetonka defeated Post 21 Independence in 2:00— dawn was at 6:00 A.M., 30 minutes before the game ended.

Between 5:00 A.M. and 5:59 A.M. (1)

5:09 A.M.— Lawrence-Dumont Stadium, Wichita, Kansas—8/6/2005—National Congress—Santa Barbara Foresters 9 Parkville Sluggers 7 in 2:23.

Between 4:00 A.M. and 4:59 A.M. (15)

4:59 A.M.— House Field, Corbin, Kentucky—5/9/ 1996— National Association of Intercollegiate Athletics—rain delays in previous tournament action, Lindsey Wilson College Blue Raiders 8 Pikeville College Bears 5.

4:55 A.M.— Joe Hargis Field, Rockport, Indiana— 8/22/1984 — American Legion — three rain delays 5:11 at start of 3rd prior game, previous tournament action delay 1:53 at start, Jenkins Post 254 Rockport 6 Hanscom Post 167 Willmar 4 in 2:51—1500 fans, 500 fans at end.

4:45 A.M.— Engel Stadium, Chattanooga, Tennessee — 5/3/1985 — National Christian Collegiate Athletic Association — rain delay previous tournament action at start, Tennessee Temple University Crusaders 11 LeTourneau College Fighting Yellowjackets 8 in 2:15 and 7 innings.

4:40 A.M.— Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 7/2/1993 — National League — rain delay 1:10 at start, Padres 5 Phillies 2 in 2:34, 2nd rain delay 1:56 bottom 4th, 3rd rain delay 2:48 top 6th, then Phillies 6 Padres 5 in 3:12 and 10 innings, post-game 4th of July fireworks show postponed — 54,617 fans, 10,000 fans at Midnight after last SEPTA train left, 6000 fans at 1:03 A.M. at end of 1st game, 3000 fans at 1:28 A.M. at start of 2nd game, 3500 fans at 2:30 A.M. as people started to arrive after the bars closed at 2 A.M., 4000 fans at end.

4:37 A.M. – Lawrence-Dumont Stadium, Wichita, Kansas – 8/5/2005 – National Congress – Wichita Titans 7 Wichita Gators 4 in 2:41.

4:35 A.M. – Hubert H. Humphrey Metrodome, Minneapolis, Minnesota – 3/7/2004 – National Collegiate Athletic Association – Dickinson State University Bluehawks 9 Hamline University Pipers 3 in 1:35 and 5 innings – 25 fans.

4:33 A.M.— Hoglund Ballpark, Lawrence, Kansas; cancelled due to snow and moved to Hubert H. Humphrey Metrodome, Minneapolis, Minnesota— 2/10/2007—National Collegiate Athletic Association—South Dakota State University Jackrabbits 6 Kansas University Jayhawks 5 in 2:51; then Kansas 3 South Dakota State 2 in 2:47, suspended after 2:27 and 7 innings—33 fans; 22 fans at beginning of 2nd game—Ist game began at 1:42 A.M. on 2/10 and ended at 4:33 A.M.; 2nd game began at 5:03 A.M., was suspended at 7:30 A.M. on 2/10, begun again at 3:30 A.M. and completed at 3:54 A.M. on 2/11. 4:30 A.M.— Cadwell Park, Mitchell, South Dakota - 8/??/1990— Amateur — rain delay and previous tournament action delay 5:45 at start, Sioux Falls Silver Bullets 5 Sioux Falls Shop-n-Cart 2 in 2:45 — 50 fans, 25 fans at end.

4:30 A.M.— Illinois — 8/??/1990s — American Legion — previous tournament action delay at start, Wilmer vs. unknown opponent in 3:00.

4:24 A.M.— Coveleski Stadium, South Bend, Indiana — 5/19/1989 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — rain delay 2:30 at start of 2nd prior game, rain delay 1:35 bottom 11th of 2nd prior game, rain delay 3:15 at start of prior game, University of Notre Dame Fighting Irish 20 University of Dayton Flyers 4 in 2:46 — 150 fans at start, 200 fans in bottom 3rd, 25 fans at end.

4:20 A.M.— Camp Jordan, East Ridge, Tennessee 7/14/2002 — Dizzy Dean League AA U13 World Series — rain delays, Baton Rouge Hurricane 6 Woodstock Wolves 5 in 2:10 and 7 innings — 50 fans, 45 fans at end.

4:09 A.M.— Lawrence-Dumont Stadium, Wichita, Kansas — 8/4/2005 — National Congress — Southern California Fire 8 Greenwood Vikings 0 in 2:17.

4:07 A.M. — McCoy Stadium, Pawtucket, Rhode Island — 4/18/1981 and 6/23/1981— International League — power failure delay 0:30 at start, Pawtucket Paw Sox 3 Rochester Red Wings 2 in 8:25 and 33 innings, suspended after 8:07 and 32 innings, dawn was at 5:00 A.M., completed 6/23 at 6:18 P.M. —1740 fans on 4/18, 150 fans Midnight, 100 fans top 21st, 60 fans 1 A.M., 27 fans top 27th, 19 fans at suspension, 5756 fans on 6/23.

4:00 A.M.— Hidden Valley Park or Pink Hill Park, Blue Springs, Missouri—7/8/1994—American Legion—previous tournament action delay at start, Post 499 Blue Springs Auxiliary Athletics vs. Elkhorn.

4:00 A.M.— Hidden Valley Park or Pink Hill Park, Blue Springs, Missouri—7/8/1994—American Legion—previous tournament action delay at start, Post 340 Independence Hi-Boy Drive-In defeated unknown opponent.

Between 3:00 A.M. and 3:59 A.M. (28)

3:55 A.M.—Atlanta-Fulton County Stadium, Atlanta, Georgia—7/4/1985—National League—rain delay 1:24 at start, Mets 16 Braves 13 in 6:10 and 19 innings, 2nd rain delay 0:41 bottom 3rd, 4th of July fireworks show began at 4:01 A.M., ended at 4:12 A.M.—44,947 fans, 8000 fans at end.

3:54 A.M.—Hoglund Ballpark, Lawrence, Kansas; cancelled due to snow and moved to Hubert H. Humphrey Metrodome, Minneapolis, Minnesota— 2/11/2007—National Collegiate Athletic Association—South Dakota State University Jackrabbits 6 Kansas University Jayhawks 5 in 2:51; then Kansas 3 South Dakota State 2 in 2:47, suspended after 2:27 and 7 innings—33 fans; 22 fans at beginning of 2nd game—Ist game began at 1:42 A.M. on 2/10 and ended at 4:33 A.M.; 2nd game began at 5:03 A.M., was suspended at 7:30 A.M. on 2/10, begun again at 3:30 A.M. and completed at 3:54 A.M. on 2/11.

3:53 A.M.— Estadio (Stadium) Monterrey, Monterrey, State of Nuevo Leon, Mexico—6/22/2006— Mexican League—Laguna Vaqueros (Cowboys) 6 Monterrey Sultanes (Sultans) 4 in 5:21 and 16 innings, rain delay 2:16 at start—15,635 fans; only 100 fans at end.

3:50 A.M.— Greer Stadium, Nashville, Tennessee — 9/7/1990— American Association — Omaha Royals 8 Nashville Sounds 7 in 6:25 and 20 innings, rain delay 1:46 bottom 11th —14,482 fans, 500 fans top 12th, 300 fans at end.

3:45 A.M.— Bloch Park (later Terry Leach Field), Selma, Alabama—8/12/1980—Dizzy Dean League World Series—previous tournament action rain delays 5:00 at start, Brent 6 Selma 5 in 2:45 and 7 innings—4000 fans.

3:42 A.M.— Robertson Field, Wichita, Kansas— 8/6/2005—National Congress—San Diego Stars 14 Crestwood Panthers 0 in 1:18 and 5 innings.

3:30 A.M.— Estadio (Stadium) Quisqueya, Santo Domingo, Dominican—1/12/1981—Winter League— Orientales Estrellas (Oriental Stars) 4 Licey Tigres (Tigers) 3 in 5:40 and 22 innings.

3:30 A.M.—Al Lang Field (II), St. Petersburg, Florida—9/3/2002—American Women's League/ Women's World Series II—rain/hurricane delay 5:00 in prior game, Australia 12 Canada 2 in 2:30.

3:27 A.M.— Burlington Athletic Stadium, Burlington, North Carolina—6/24/1988—Appalachian League — Bluefield Orioles 3 Burlington Indians 2 in 8:15 and 27 innings—2204 fans, 84 fans at end.

3:23 A.M.— Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 8/10/1977 — National League — rain delay 1:03 at start, Phillies 6 Expos 1 in 2:11, 2nd rain delay 2:27 bottom 3rd, then Phillies 6 Expos 1 in 2:07, 3rd rain delay 1:26 top 2nd, dawn was at 5:09 A.M.— 46,664 fans, 15,000 fans at start of 2nd game, 5000 fans at end.

3:17 A.M.— Estadio (Stadium) Tetelo Vargas, San Pedro de Marcoris, Dominican—10/19/2002—Dominican Winter League—Orientales Estrellas (Oriental Stars) 4 Escogido Leones Rojos (Red Lions) 3 in 6:41 and 20 innings.

3:15 A.M.— Point Stadium, Johnstown, Pennsylvania — 8/19/1960 — All-American Amateur Association — previous tournament action delay at start, Baltimore Leone's Restaurant 5 Pittsburgh Beechview 3 in 3:30 and 12 innings.

3:15 A.M.— Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 9/26/1975 — National League — Phillies 4 Mets 3 in 3:48 and 12 innings, rain delay 0:24 top 2nd, 2nd rain delay 0:27 bottom 9th, then Mets 3 Phillies 2 in 3:08 and 12 innings, 3rd rain delay 1:17 top 3rd — 20,189 fans, 200 fans at end.

3:15 A.M.— Watt Powell Park, Charleston, West Virginia—5/6/early 1980s—National Association of Intercollegiate Athletics – rain delays in previous tournament action, West Virginia State College Yellow Jackets 6 Davis and Elkins College Senators 5.

3:13 A.M. — Shea Stadium, New York, New York — 9/11/1974 — National League — Cardinals 4 Mets 3 in 7:04 and 25 innings —13,460 fans, 1000 fans at end including Commissioner Bowie Kuhn.

3:11 A.M.— Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 6/9/1980— National League — Giants 3 Phillies 1 in 2:36, rain delay 1:28 bottom 4th, 2nd rain delay 3:32 also bottom 4th — 28,702 fans, 500 fans top 5th, 200 fans at end.

3:10 A.M.— City of Palms Stadium, Fort Myers, Florida—11/6/1993— Roy Hobbs Senior League rain delay 5:20 at start of prior games, Texas Stars 8 Norfolk Drillers 2 in 1:50 and 7 innings—100 fans.

3:06 A.M.— Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks, Alaska—6/22/1985—Amateur—Alaska Goldpanners 8 Moraga Marauders 0 in 4:36, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay—1825 fans, 1100 fans at end.

3:02 A.M.— Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks, Alaska — 6/20/1981— Amateur — Alaska Goldpanners 11 Intermountain Badgers 4 in 3:08, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay — 3000 fans.

3:01 A.M.— Busch Stadium (II), St. Louis, Missouri — 7/7/1987 — National League — rain delay 2:22 at start, Cardinals 5 Dodgers 4 in 2:51, then Cardinals 5 Dodgers 4 in 3:46 and 10 innings — 39,236 fans, 2000 fans at end.

3:01 A.M.—American Legion Post 325 Field, Danville, Virginia—8/2/2000—Appalachian League —rain delay 2:30 at start, Princeton Devil Rays 7 Danville Braves 3 in 1:59 and 7 innings, then Princeton 6 Danville 3 in 4:38 and 17 innings—706 fans, 20 fans at end.

3:00 A.M.— Legion Field, Claremore, Oklahoma— 7/23/1962 — American Legion — previous tournament action delay 3:30 at start, Bartlesville Philnines 8 Claremore Merchants 6 in 3:30 and 11 innings—100 fans, 12 fans at end.

3:00 A.M.— Estadio (Stadium) Cordoba, Cordoba, State of Veracruz, Mexico — 4/28/1977 — Mexican League — Aguascalientes Rieleros (Railroadmen) 6 Cordoba Cafeteros (Coffee Growers) 2 in 6:30 and 23 innings — 4000 fans, 800 fans at end.

3:00 A.M.—Estadio (Stadium) Luis Rodriguez Olmo, Arecibo, Puerto Rico—12/6/1984—Winter League—Arecibo Lobos (Wolves) 4 Ponce Leones (Lions) 1, then Ponce 5 Arecibo 2, rain delays.

3:00 A.M. New Mexico time; 4:00 A.M. Texas time — Hays Field, Lubbock, Texas; Ferguson Field, Jal, New Mexico — 5/1?/1986 — Texas High School League 4A best two-out-of-three playoffs — knowing that torrential rains made playing second game at 1 P.M. and "if-necessary" third game at 7 P.M. totally impossible, both teams along with coaches, fans, and umpires set out at 7 A.M. on what ended up being a

510-mile long Odyssey from Lubbock, Texas to New Mexico in search of a dry field, fields were found in Artesia (2:00 wait) and Hobbs (2:30 wait) but the fields were too wet and it was raining in both places, in Hobbs they ran into two other Texas high schools, Pecos and Canyon, who were also in search of a dry field, when told that Eunice had a dry field the race was on between the Pecos/Canyon caravan and the Hereford/Andrews caravan, Pecos and Canyon won the race, and proceeded to begin their second game, Canyon had won their first game the night before so when Canyon got way ahead early in the second game, Hereford and Andrews decided to wait and play afterwards since there would be no need for a third game if Canyon won, but Pecos staged a big comeback to win, forcing a deciding third game, leaving Hereford and Andrews still looking for a dry field, and then they heard there was an old field in Jal that had not been used in two years, flickering light standards were fixed by taping two wires together with black electrical tape, outfield had knee-high weeds, foul lines were chalked using an old shoe box, finally after a 12-hour long change-of-field delay, they began play at 12:00 Midnight New Mexico time, 1:00 A.M. Texas time, Hereford High School Whitefaces 4 Andrews High School Mustangs 3 in 3:00 and 8 innings - 50 fans including Hereford mascot Red.

3:00 A.M.— Christie Pits, Toronto, Province of Ontario, Canada—6/29/2001— prelim tournament before Women's World Series I—Australia vs. unknown; Australia vs. unknown; Australia 6 Waterbury Diamonds 3 in 2:00 and 5 innings—12 fans—1st game began at 9:00 A.M.; 2nd game began at 8:30 P.M.; 3rd game began at 1:00 A.M.

3:00 A.M.— Estadio (Stadium) Isidoro "Cholo" Garcia, Mayaguez, Puerto Rico—11/?/2002 and 12/8/2002 — Winter League — Mayaguez Indios (Indians) 3 Carolina Gigantes (Giants) 1 in 17 innings, rain delays, suspended.

3:00 A.M. — Hubert H. Humphrey Metrodome, Minneapolis, Minnesota — 3/5/2004 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — St. Thomas University Tommies vs. University of South Dakota Coyotes, then St. Thomas 8 South Dakota 7 in 2:30.

Between 2:00 A.M. and 2:59 A.M. Local Time (104)

2:55 A.M.— Riverfront Stadium (later Cinergy Field), Cincinnati, Ohio-7/12/1979— National League—rain delay 2:16 at start, Cubs 10 Reds 8 in 3:23, 2nd rain delay 1:11 top 9th—21,804 fans, 300 fans at end.

2:55 A.M.—Knights Castle, Fort Mill, South Carolina—8/15/2003—International League—Charlotte Knights 4 Indianapolis Indians 3 in 6:20 and 18 innings, then Charlotte 5 Indianapolis 1 in 1:54 and 7 innings, 2nd game began at 1:01 A.M.—5275 fans, 100 fans at start of second game, 36 fans at end plus 250 Girl Scouts asleep in Home Run Café ballpark restaurant who were to have camped out in the outfield after the games.

2:53 A.M.—Louisville Slugger Field, Louisville, Kentucky—6/6/2003—International League—rain delay 2:15 at start, Louisville Bats 4 Richmond Braves 3 in 5:23 and 18 innings—9892 fans, 500 fans at end.

2:53 A.M.—GCS Ballpark, Sauget, Illinois— 5/26/2008—National Collegiate Athletic Assocition Divison II playoffs—Sonoma State University Seawolves 6 University of Central Missouri Mules 5 in 19 innings—201 fans—finished at 2:53 A.M. in the early morning of 5/27.

2:52 A.M.— Hunnicutt Field, Princeton, West Virginia—5/4/1997—National Association of Intercollegiate Athletics—rain delays in previous tournament action, West Virginia State College Yellow Jackets 7 Shepherd College (now University) Rams 6 in 3:12 and 12 innings.

2:51 A.M.— Estadio (Stadium) Quisqueya, Santo Domingo, Dominican—12/2/2008— Winter League — Tigres (Tigers) del Licey 10 Gigantes (Giants) del Cibao 9 in 6:19 and 18 innings, rain delay 1:02.

2:50 A.M.— McCormick Field, Asheville, North Carolina—?/??/between 1960 and 1966—South Atlantic (Sally) League—Knoxville Smokies vs. Asheville Tourists in 15 innings, then Knoxville defeated Asheville in 14 innings.

2:50 A.M.— Astrodome, Houston, Texas — 6/3/1989 — National League — Astros 5 Dodgers 4 in 7:14 and 22 innings — 34,425 fans.

2:50 A.M.—Hubert H. Humphrey Metrodome, Minneapolis, Minnesota — 3/6/1996 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — University of Wisconsin River Falls Falcons vs. St. Thomas University Tommies, then Wisconsin River Falls 4 St. Thomas 2 in 8 innings.

2:50 A.M.— Stadio Renato Reatini, Anzio, Italy— 6/12/2004 — Serie Nazionale (Italian Al League)— Parma 8 Anzio 7 in 5:50 and 16 innings.

2:46 A.M.— Estadio (Stadium) Teodoro Mariscal, Mazatlan; State of Sinaloa, Mexico—10/31/2008— Mexican Pacific League— Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 4 Culiacan Tomateros (Tomato Growers) 2 in 6:46 and 17 innings—7980 fans.

2:45 A.M.— Barney Tadsen Field, Brownton, Minnesota — 9/9/1971— Town Team League — previous tournament action delay 3:40 at start, Delano Athletics 6 Lake Henry 4 in 2:35.

2:45 A.M.— Serravalle Stadium, Serravalle, San Marino—9/16/1986—Serie Nazionale (Italian A1 League)— Biemme Fortitudo Bologna 12 Chesterfield San Marino 10 in 5:45 and 17 innings—800 fans, 100 fans at end.

2:45 A.M. – Hubert H. Humphrey Metrodome, Minneapolis, Minnesota – 3/7/2004 – National Collegiate Athletic Association – Dickinson State University Bluehawks 13 Hamline University Pipers 3 in 1:45 and 6 innings – 75 fans.

2:44 A.M. - D.C. (later R.F.K.) Stadium, Washing-

ton, D.C. – 6/12/1967 – American League – Senators 6 White Sox 5 in 6:38 and 22 innings – 7236 fans, 2000 fans at end.

2:44 A.M.— Estadio (Stadium) Emilio Ibarra, Los Mochis, State of Sinaloa, Mexico —11/26/1988 — Mexican Pacific League — Los Mochis Caneros (Sugar Cane Growers) 4 Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2 in 7:14 and 21 innings.

2:44 A.M.— Lawrence-Dumont Stadium, Wichita, Kansas — 8/4/2004 — National Congress — Mat-Su Miners 6 Cape Girardeau 2 in 2:03.

2:42 A.M.—Al Lang Field (II), St. Petersburg, Florida — 4/14/1994 — Florida State League — St. Petersburg Cardinals 8 Lakeland Tigers 7 in 7:07 and 20 innings —1021 fans.

2:42 A.M.— Northcut Field at Westgate Park, Dothan, Alabama — 3/1/2003 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Troy State University Trojans 8 Kansas State University Wildcats 7 in 5:22 and 18 innings, rain delay 1:40—273 fans, 50 fans at end.

2:38 A.M.— Lawrence-Dumont Stadium, Wichita, Kansas — 8/7/2005 — National Congress — Park City Cowboys 5 Dodge City Desperados 4 in 2:19.

2:35 A.M.— Tiger Park, Belle Plaine, Minnesota— 9/5/1992— Town Team League— previous tournament action delay 4:33 at start, Delano Athletics 11 New Ulm Kaiserhoff 9 in 3:02.

2:34 A.M.— Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks, Alaska—6/21/1964—Amateur—Grand Junction Eagles 10 Alaska Goldpanners 5 in 3:34, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay— 2500 fans.

2:34 A.M.— Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks, Alaska — 6/21/1994 — Amateur — Alaska Goldpanners 15 San Diego Stars 6 in 3:16, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay.

2:32 A.M.— Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan— 8/5/1988—American League—Tigers 3 Red Sox 1 in 2:51, rain delay 1:39 top 3rd, 2nd rain delay 1:06 bottom 5th, then Tigers 3 Red Sox 2 in 2:49—44,334 fans.

2:32 A.M.— Estadio (Stadium) Teodoro Mariscal, Mazatlan, State of Sinaloa, Mexico —10/26/1993 — Mexican Pacific League — Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2 Guasave Algodoneros (Cotton Pickers) 1 in 7:02 and 22 innings.

2:30 A.M.— Forbes Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 8/9/1963 — National League — rain delay 1:00 at start, Colt .45's (later Astros) 7 Pirates 6 in 3:58 and 15 innings, then Pirates 7 Colt .45's 6 in 3:10 and 11 innings — 9420 fans, 300 fans at end — author and his father sat in second deck behind third base.

2:30 A.M.— Riverfront Stadium (later Cinergy Field), Cincinnati, Ohio — 6/9/1980— National League — rain delay 0:07 at start, Reds 6 Padres 6 in 2:59 and 10½ innings, 2nd rain delay 0:19 bottom 2nd, 3rd rain delay 1:39 bottom 8th, 4th rain delay 1:21 bottom 11th, called a tie —19,688 fans, 300 fans after 3rd rain delay, 150 fans at end. 2:30 A.M.— Enum Claw, Washington — 6/??/1987 — State High School Tournament — previous tournament action delay at start, Burlington-Edison High School Tigers 3 North Kitsap High School Vikings 2 in 4:00 and 10 innings.

2:30 A.M.— Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks, Alaska—6/22/1991—Amateur—Alaska Goldpanners 9 South Lake Tahoe Stars 8 in 4:00, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay—2500 fans.

2:30 A.M.— Pohlman Field, Beloit, Wisconsin— 4/20/1996—National Collegiate Athletic Association—Beloit College Buccaneers 9 Ripon College Red Hawks 8, then Ripon 9 Beloit 7.

2:30 A.M.— Don Provance Field, Springfield, Missouri — 5/11/1996 — National Association of Intercollegiate Athletics — rain delays in previous tournament action, Benedictine College Ravens 5 Evangel University Crusaders 4 in 2:45.

2:30 A.M.— League Stadium, Huntingburg, Indiana — 8/2?/2001— Frontier League — rain delay 2:00 at start, Dubois County Dragons vs. River City Rascals in 2:40, then Dubois County 7 River City 2 in 2:xx and 6½ innings, fog delay 0:30 top 5th, 2nd fog delay 0:15 top 7th — 37 fans at end.

2:29 A.M.—Al Lang Field (I), St. Petersburg, Florida — 6/14/1966 — Florida State League — Miami Marlins 4 St. Petersburg Cardinals 3 in 6:59 and 29 innings — 740 fans, 175 fans at end.

2:29 A.M.— San Diego (later Jack Murphy, then Qualcomm) Stadium, San Diego, California—9/24/ 1971—National League—Astros 2 Padres 1 in 5:25 and 21 innings, then Padres 5 Astros 4 in 2:14, fog delay 0:14 bottom 9th—6339 fans, 100 fans at end.

2:29 A.M.—Ernie Shore Field, Winston-Salem, North Carolina—6/8/1992—Carolina League— Winston-Salem Spirits 5 Frederick Keys 4 in 2:19 and 7 innings, rain delay 1:14 bottom 1st, 2nd rain delay 2:44 bottom 6th, then Winston-Salem 3 Frederick 0 in 1:33 and 7 innings—4 fans at end.

2:28 A.M.— Salem Memorial Stadium, Salem, Virginia — 5/23/1998 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — rain delays in prior games 3:43 at start, Montclair State University Red Hawks 8 North Carolina Wesleyan College Bishops 3 in 2:45 — 250 fans, 50 fans at end.

2:26 A.M. – Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts – 8/24/1977 – American League – Rangers 3 Red Sox 0 in 2:26, rain delay 2:22 top 6th, then Rangers 6 Red Sox 3 in 3:01–31,784 fans, 4000 fans at end.

2:25 A.M. — Estadio (Stadium) Angel Flores, Culiacan or Estadio (Stadium) Teodoro Mariscal, Mazatlan; State of Sinaloa, Mexico — 10/19/1997 — Mexican Pacific League — Culiacan Tomateros (Tomato Growers) 5 Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2 in 6:55 and 22 innings.

2:22 A.M.— Ray Winder Field, Little Rock, Arkansas — 4/19/1968 — Texas League — Arkansas Travelers 13 Memphis Blues 2 in 2:12 and 7 innings, then Memphis 6 Arkansas 3 in 5:10 and 16 innings — 875 fans. 2:22 A.M.— Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 6/19/1979 — American League — Tigers 10 Red Sox 4 in 4:35 and 14 innings, rain delay 2:12 — 34,153 fans.

2:20 A.M. – Dudley Field, El Paso, Texas – 8/14/1979 – Texas League – El Paso Diablos 11 Midland Cubs 10 in 5:12 and 18 innings, rain delay 0:44, 2nd rain delay 0:46 – 1664 fans.

2:20 A.M.— Petersburg Sports Complex, Petersburg, Virginia—7/11/2007—Coastal Plain League—Peninsula Pilots 9 Petersburg Generals 5 in 5:25 and 17 innings—120 fans.

2:17 A.M.— Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 9/5/1985 — American League — Red Sox 13 Indians 6 in 3:10, rain delay 0:30, then Indians 9 Red Sox 5 in 3:05, 2nd rain delay 1:25 bottom 6th —16,989 fans.

2:16 A.M.—Tiger Field, Wolfforth, Texas— 3/5/2004—Texas High School League—Frenship High School Tigers 7 Amarillo River Road High School Wildcats 4 in 2:21 and 7 innings—100 fans, 75 fans at end.

2:15 A.M.—Municipal Stadium, Three Rivers, Province of Quebec, Canada—7/5/1938—Provincial League—Three Rivers Renards (Foxes) 4 Quebec City Athletiques 3 in 4:45 and 20 innings.

2:15 A.M.—Lincoln Park Stadium (later Stocker Stadium, then Sam Suplizio Field), Grand Junction, Colorado — 5/23/1959 — National Junior Collegiate Athletic Association — Phoenix College Bears 6 Wilmington Junior College (now University of North Carolina-Wilmington) Seahawks 3.

2:15 A.M.— Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois— 7/25/1967—American League—White Sox 3 Indians 1 in 2:55, then White Sox 6 Indians 5 in 4:47 and 16 innings—18,152 fans.

2:15 A.M.—Engel Stadium, Chattanooga, Tennessee — 5/3/1985 — National Christian Collegiate Athletic Association — rain delay previous tournament action at start, Alabama Christian College (later Faulkner University) Eagles 10 Marion College (later Indiana Wesleyan University) Wildcats 0 in 2:00 and 6 innings.

2:15 A.M.—V.J. Keefe Stadium, San Antonio, Texas -7/14/1988 and 7/16/1988—Texas League—San Antonio Missions 1 Jackson Mets 0 in 7:23 and 26 innings, suspended after 7:10 and 25 innings, completed 7/16-3792 fans on 7/14, 3260 fans on 7/16.

2:15 A.M. — Mulcahy Stadium, Anchorage, Alaska — ?/??/1990's — Alaska League — Fairbanks Goldpanners vs. Anchorage Bucs in 16 innings.

2:15 A.M.— Mulcahy Stadium, Anchorage, Alaska— 6/23/1992—Alaska League—Anchorage Glacier Pilots defeated Kamloops in 6:39 and 21 innings—12 fans at end.

2:15 A.M. – Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks, Alaska – 6/20/1998 – Amateur – Alaska Goldpanners 14 Kelowna Grizzlies 12 in 3:45, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay.

2:15 A.M.— Hubert H. Humphrey Metrodome, Minneapolis, Minnesota — 3/8/2001— National Collegiate Athletic Association — Upper Iowa University Peacocks vs. St. Thomas University Tommies, then St. Thomas 6 Upper Iowa 0 in 2:00.

2:13 A.M.— Forbes Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania— 9/11/1968— National League— Phillies 8 Pirates 6 in 3:42 and 12 innings, then Pirates 6 Phillies 4 in 2:50, rain delay 0:56 bottom 2nd—2789 fans.

2:13 A.M.— Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 7/26/1988 — National League — rain delay 1:17 at start, Mets 7 Phillies 5 in 3:12, 2nd rain delay 2:08 top 2nd — 34,192 fans.

2:13 A.M.—Camden Yards, Baltimore, Maryland— 9/6/1996—American League—rain delay 2:20 at start, Tigers 5 Orioles 4 in 4:18 and 12 innings— 46,708 fans.

2:12 A.M.—Atlanta-Fulton County Stadium, Atlanta, Georgia—9/10/1971—National League—Braves 7 Giants 5 in 3:41 and 11 innings, rain delay 2:19 bottom 11th—8403 fans, 150 fans at end.

2:12 A.M.— Parc (Park) Jarry, Montreal, Province of Quebec, Canada—9/7/1973—National League— Mets 1 Expos 0 in 2:43, blinding sunlight delay 0:16, then Mets 4 Expos 2 in 4:38 and 15 innings—24,167 fans.

2:11 A.M. — Colt Stadium, Houston, Texas — 5/23/ 1964 — National League — rain delay 1:05 at start, Colt .45's 8 Mets 4 in 2:42, 2nd rain delay 1:20 top 6th, then Colt .45's 4 Mets 0 in 2:04 — 9457 fans.

2:11 A.M.— Three Rivers Stadium, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 8/20/1979 — National League — Pirates 6 Giants 5 in 2:54, rain delay 3:42 top 6th —18,714 fans.

2:11 A.M.— Dan Daniel Park, Danville, Virginia— 4/19/2002— National Collegiate Athletic Association— previous tournament action delay, Averett University Cougars 5 Greensboro College Pride 0 in 2:11—150 fans.

2:10 A.M. — Mission Stadium, San Antonio, Texas — 8/11/1952 — Texas League — Oklahoma City Indians 6 San Antonio Missions 2 in 1:55 and 7 innings, then San Antonio 5 Oklahoma City 4 in 5:00 and 19 innings — 3143 fans.

2:10 A.M.—Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks, Alaska—6/20/1980—NCAA at Amateur—Alaska Goldpanners 16 University of Wisconsin Badgers 5, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay—2600 fans.

2:10 A.M.— Joe Davis Stadium, Huntsville, Alabama — 6/10/1990 — Southern League — Huntsville Stars 3 Knoxville Blue Jays 2 in 5:35 and 19 innings, then Huntsville 2 Knoxville 0 in 2:05 and 7 innings.

2:09 A.M.— Smith-Wills Stadium, Jackson, Mississippi — 7/6/1982 — Texas League — Tulsa Drillers 11 Jackson Mets 7 in 6:39 and 23 innings —1105 fans, 200 fans at end.

2:09 A.M. — Dothan, Alabama —?/??/2002 — American Legion — Fulton vs. Dothan in 4:30, injury delay 1:10, automatic sprinkler delay 0:24.

2:08 A.M.— Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks, Alaska — 6/21/1984 — Amateur — Alaska Goldpanners 9 Republic of China-Taipei Olympic Team 0 in 2:24 and 7 innings, rain delay 0:44 at start, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay, after 7 innings the score was Taiwan 2 Alaska 1, but Taiwan refused to bat in top 8th due to misunderstanding over whether game was to be 7 or 9 innings long and whether it was too dark, Alaska won by forfeit — 3000 fans, 1000 fans at end.

2:08 A.M. — Estadio (Stadium) Tomaz Oroz, Ciudad Obregon, State of Sonora, Mexico —12/30/1984 — Mexican Pacific League — Guaymas Ostioneros (Oyster Growers) 6 Obregon Yaquis 4 in 6:38 and 15 innings.

2:08 A.M.— Jacobs Field, Cleveland, Ohio —10/3/ 1995 — American League — rain delay 0:39 at start, Indians 5 Red Sox 4 in 5:01 and 13 innings, 2nd rain delay 0:23 top 8th — 44,218 fans.

2:07 A.M.—RFK Stadium, Washington, DC— 9/28/2006—National League—rain delay 4:27 at start, Nationals 3 Phillies 1 in 2:35—18,324 fans; 3200 fans at start; 3600 fans at end.

2:06 A.M.— Regional Park, Midwest City, Oklahoma—7/??/1973—American Legion—Post 170 Midwest City 2 Post 170 Choctaw 1 in 6:06 and 24 innings—50 fans, 15 fans at end.

2:06 A.M.— Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 9/13/1974 — National League — Cardinals 7 Phillies 3 in 4:47 and 17 innings, rain delay 1:41 top 17th — 35,290 fans, 200 fans at end.

2:06 A.M.— Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 6/12/2000— National League — rain delay 0:59 at start, Marlins 5 Phillies 2 in 2:57, 2nd rain delay 2:35 bottom 3rd —11,926 fans, 150 fans after 2nd rain delay.

2:06 A.M.— Lawrence-Dumont Stadium, Wichita, Kansas — 8/6/2005 — National Congress — El Dorado Broncos 11 Oklahoma Athletics 3 in 2:39.

2:06 A.M.— Chain of Lakes Park, Winter Haven, Florida — 5/10/2008 — National Junior Collegiate Athletic Association (NJCAA) State Junior College (JUCO) Tournament — Manatee Community College Lancers 13 Pensacola Junior College Pirates 9, previous game delay 2:06 at start; broken water pipe behind pitcher's mound delay 0:53.

2:06 A.M.— Joe Riley Park, Charleston, South Carolina — 5/21/2008 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — conference tournament — Georgia Southern University Eagles 21 University of North Carolina at Greensboro Spartans 9 in 3:51—522 fans.

2:05 A.M.— Barney Tadsen Field, Brownton, Minnesota—8/27/1980— Town Team League—rain delay 3:00 at start, New Ulm Kaiserhoff 13 Maple Lake 6 in 3:05.

2:05 A.M.— Stadio Roberto Jannella, Grosseto, Italy—4/20/2001—Serie Nazionale (Italian A1 League)—Nettuno 5 Grosseto 2 in 5:05 and 14 innings.

2:05 A.M.— Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks, Alaska — 6/21/2001— Amateur — Alaska Goldpanners 2 Oceanside Waves 1 in 3:35 and 13 innings, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay top 7th – 3500 fans, 200 fans at end.

2:05 A.M.— Lawrence-Dumont Stadium, Wichita, Kansas — 8/2/2005 — National Congress — Colorado Sox 7 Rock City Red Sox 6 in 2:23.

2:05 A.M.—Fox Cities Stadium, Grand Chute, Wisconsin—6/2?/2006—Wisconsin High School Division 2 Playoffs Semi-Final—Waupun High School vs. West De Pere High School in 2:35.

2:05 A.M.— Estadio (Stadium) Roberto Clemente Walker, Carolina, Puerto Rico — 2/2/2007 — Caribbean Series — Aguilas Cibaenas (Dominican) 4 Aragua Tigres (Tigers) (Venezuela) 3 in 6:13 and 18 innings; intermission 0:30 between games; then Carolina Giantes (Giants) (Puerto Rico) 11 Hermosillo Naranjeros (Orange Growers) (Mexico) 1 in 3:15.

2:03 A.M.— Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 8/10/1979 — National League — rain delay 0:29 at start, Phillies 4 Pirates 3 in 3:14 and 12 innings, 2nd rain delay 0:44 bottom 1st, 3rd rain delay 0:19 top 11th, then Pirates 3 Phillies 2 in 3:03 — 63,346 fans, 20,000 fans at end.

2:03 A.M.— Citizens Bank Park, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 6/14/2004 — National League — Phillies 10 Reds 7 in 3:04 and 8 innings, rain delay 2:18 bottom 3rd, 2nd rain delay 1:05 bottom 7th, 3rd rain delay 0:31 top 9th — 44,710 fans, 2000 fans at end.

2:01 A.M. — Fairground Park, Fond du Lac, Wisconsin — 7/31/1963 — Fox River Valley League — Little Chute-Kimberly Papermakers 11 Fond du Lac 5 in 6:01 and 21 innings.

2:01 A.M.— Shelby State Community College Field, Memphis, Tennessee — 3/23/1985 — National Junior Collegiate Athletic Association — rain delay 4:00 2nd previous game, Shelby State Community College 6 Waubonsee Community College Chiefs 4 in 2:51, fog delay 0:03 top 3rd, 2nd fog delay 0:05 bottom 4th, 3rd fog delay 0:02 top 6th — 24 fans.

2:01 A.M.— Fayetteville, Arkansas — 5/18/1993 — Arkansas High School League — rain delay prior tournament action at start, Bryant High School Hornets 10 Bentonville High School Tigers 9.

2:00 A.M.—Gus Greenlee Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania—?/??/1930's—Negro National League— Homestead Grays at Pittsburgh Crawfords—scheduled at 12:01 A.M. on a Monday morning to protest the 6:59 P.M. Pennsylvania curfew on Sundays.

2:00 A.M.— Platte, South Dakota — 7/19/1948 — Amateur — Bonesteel 1 Platte 5-Milers (later Killer Tomatoes) 1 in 15 innings — 2000 fans.

2:00 A.M.—Ranger Field, Fairbanks, Alaska— 6/21/1959—Amateur—Anchorage Sales and Service 16 Ladd Air Force Base Flyers 6, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay.

2:00 A.M.—Crosley Field, Cincinnati, Ohio— 8/31/1965—National League—rain delay 0:24 at start, Braves 5 Reds 3 in 3:00, 2nd rain delay 2:08 bottom 5th, then Reds 4 Braves 1 in 1:36 and 3 innings, 3rd rain delay 0:45 top 4th, called off—19,645 fans.

2:00 A.M.— Lawrence Hardball Park, Lodi, California — 8/31/1966 — California League — Reno Silver Sox 6 Lodi Crushers 5 in 6:00 and 23 innings — 502 fans, 20 fans at end.

2:00 A.M.—Riverside, California—3/29/1973— National Collegiate Athletic Association—previous tournament action delay at start, University of Southern California Trojans 9 Washington State University Cougars 2.

2:00 A.M.— Estadio (Stadium) Hiram Bithorn, San Juan, Puerto Rico—12/26/1975 — Winter League — Santurce Cangrejeros (Crabbers) 5 Bayamon Vaqueros (Cowboys) 2 in 4:00 and 21 innings.

2:00 A.M. — Smith Field, San Diego, California — 3/26/1982 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — previous tournament action delay at start, United States International University Gulls 6 California State University at Los Angeles Golden Eagles 4 in 2:30 — 30 fans, 10 fans at end.

2:00 A.M.— Davis Ford Park (later G. Richard Pfitzner Stadium), Woodbridge, Virginia—4/25/1984 — Carolina League—Salem Redbirds 5 Prince William Pirates 2 in 2:40 and 9 innings, then Prince William 8 Salem 7 in 4:20 and 11 innings—1588 fans.

2:00 A.M.— Fayetteville, Arkansas— 8/??/1993 or 1994—American Legion—final score 20-3, suspended due to rain, completed next morning.

2:00 A.M.—Hubert H. Humphrey Metrodome, Minneapolis, Minnesota -3/1/2001—National Collegiate Athletic Association — College of St. Scholastica Saints vs. St. Thomas University Tommies, then St. Thomas 12 St. Scholastica 5 in 2:00.

2:00 A.M.— Coastal Federal Field, Myrtle Beach, South Carolina—7/27/2001—Carolina League—rain delay 2:58 at start, Myrtle Beach Pelicans 9 Salem Avalanche 3 in 2:30 and 7 innings, then Myrtle Beach 3 Salem 2 in 2:10 and 7 innings.

2:00 A.M.—AUM Baseball Complex, Montgomery, Alabama—5/13/2004—National Association of Intercollegiate Athletics—previous tournament action rain delays at start, Faulkner University Eagles 11 Auburn University Montgomery Senators 1 in 3:30—100 fans.

2:00 A.M.—Estadio (Stadium) Teodoro Mariscal, Mazatlan, State of Sinaloa, Mexico—2/6/2005— Caribbean World Series title game—rain delay at start, Mazatlan (Mexico) 4 Aguilas (Dominican) 3 in 3:05.

Between 1:00 A.M. and 1:59 A.M. Local Time (346)

1:59 A.M.— Parc (Park) Jarry, Montreal, Province of Quebec, Canada—9/17/1973—National League— Expos 5 Cardinals 4 in 2:47, then Cardinals 5 Expos 3 in 3:25 and 12 innings, 1:12 rain delay top 12th— 20,160 fans; 200 fans at end.

1:58 A.M.— Marietta, Georgia—8/??/2005—World Wood Bat Association—Floriday Bombers 12 Orlando Scorpions 9. 1:58 A.M. — Whitehouse Field, Harwich, Massachusetts — 5/16/2007 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — previous tournament action delay 2:15 at start, Wheaton College Lyons 7 Curry College Colonels 6 in 4:10 and 16 innings — 225 fans, 35 fans at end.

1:57 A.M.— Yankee Stadium (I), New York, New York—8/29/1967—American League—Red Sox 2 Yankees 1 in 2:10, then Yankees 4 Red Sox 3 in 6:09 and 20 innings—40,314 fans.

1:57 A.M.— Del Webb Field, Modesto, California— 6/19/1970— California League— Modesto Reds 9 Reno Silver Sox 8 in 6:02 and 19 innings—1275 fans, 400 fans at end.

1:57 A.M.— Diamond, Richmond, Virginia—8/7/ 1989—International League—Toledo Mud Hens 4 Richmond Braves 1 in 5:01 and 21 innings, then Richmond 3 Toledo 0 in 2:23 and 7 innings—100 fans at end.

1:56 A.M.—Forbes Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania— 6/22/1951—National League—power failure delay 2:14 at start, Dodgers 8 Pirates 4 in 2:36, rain delay 0:36 top 6th—24,966 fans, 10,000 fans at end.

1:56 A.M.— Parc (Park) Jarry, Montreal, Province of Quebec, Canada—6/28/1974—National League— Cubs 8 Expos 7 in 4:55 and 18 innings, then Expos 15 Cubs 0 in 2:22—20,098 fans, 8000 fans at end.

1:56 A.M.— Three Rivers Stadium, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania—6/20/1983—National League—Pirates 5 Cubs 4 in 3:18 and 10 innings, then Pirates 6 Cubs 5 in 4:03 and 13 innings—5839 fans.

1:56 A.M.— Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 7/22/1994 — National League — Phillies 4 Padres 3 in 2:23, then Padres 7 Phillies 4 in 3:18, rain delay 0:38 bottom 4th, 2nd rain delay 1:14 bottom 4th, 3rd rain delay 0:42 bottom 6th — 38,423 fans.

1:55 A.M.— College Stadium (later Diethrick Park), Jamestown, New York — 5/25/1992 — National Junior Collegiate Athletic Association — previous tournament action delay 2:15 at start, Gloucester County College Roadrunners 14 Columbus State Community College Cougars 8 in 4:10—225 fans, 35 fans at end.

1:55 A.M.— County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin—8/24/1993—American League—Brewers 9 Athletics 2 in 3:01, then Brewers 7 Athletics 6 in 5:11 and 13 innings, brawl delay 0:10 top 10th—16,570 fans.

1:55 A.M. — Whitehouse Field, Harwich, Massachusetts — 5/16/2007 — National Collegiate Athletic Association Division III New England Regional — Wheaton College Lyons 7 Curry College Colonels 6 in 4:40 and 16 innings —157 fans.

1:54 A.M.—Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks, Alaska — 6/21/1977 — Amateur — Alaska Goldpanners 12 Red Deer M&K Generals 11, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay — 4000 fans.

1:54 A.M.— MacArthur Stadium, Syracuse, New York—7/19/1992—International League—Syracuse Chiefs 8 Pawtucket PawSox 7 in 5:05 and 15 innings, then Syracuse 4 Pawtucket 3 in 2:16 and 7 innings – 14,143 fans; 200 fans at end.

1:54 A.M.— Regions Park, Hoover, Alabama— 5/21/2008—National Collegiate Athletic Association—conference tournament—University of Kentucky Xxxx 9 University of Alabama Crimson Tide 3 in 3:04—11,967 fans.

1:53 A.M. — Estadio (Stadium) Alberto Hoeffer, Nogales, State of Sonora, Mexico — 7/29/1973 — Liga (League) Norte de Sonora — Cananea Mineros (Miners) 4 Nogales 2 in 6:23 and 23 innings —1800 fans.

1:52 A.M.— Forbes Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania— 6/6/1963 — National League — rain delay 1:39 followed immediately by automatic tarpaulin malfunction delay 0:30 at start, Reds 7 Pirates 5 in 2:39, then Reds 10 Pirates 5 in 2:36—12,309 fans, 1000 fans at end.

1:50 A.M.— Pioneer Park, Marietta, Ohio—5/7/ 1996—National Collegiate Athletic Association— Bethany College Bison 6 Marietta College Pioneers 0, rain delay 0:30 at start, 2nd rain delay 2:00 top 2nd, then Bethany 5 Marietta 2.

1:49 A.M.— Joe Hargis Field, Rockport, Indiana— 8/22/1984 — American Legion — three rain delays 5:11 at start of 2nd prior game, previous tournament action delay at start, Steubenville Argonne Post 33 defeated Indianapolis Atkins Post 355.

1:49 A.M.— Municipal Stadium, Phoenix, Arizona— 6/23/1990— Pacific Coast League— Calgary Cannons 12 Phoenix Firebirds 9 in 6:39 and 20 innings.

1:47 A.M.—Ernie Shore Field, Winston-Salem, North Carolina—8/14/1967—Carolina League— Winston-Salem Red Sox 13 Greensboro Yankees 12 in 5:47 and 19 innings—1708 fans.

1:47 A.M. — Stade Olympique (Olympic Stadium), Montreal, Province of Quebec, Canada — 6/2/1980 — National League — Expos 8 Cubs 7 in 4:43 and 13 innings, rain delay 1:30 at start —15,271 fans.

1:47 A.M.— Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania—7/7/1993—National League—Phillies 7 Dodgers 6 in 6:10 and 20 innings—41,730 fans.

1:47 A.M. — Dunn Tire Park, Buffalo, New York — 7/16/2004 — International League — Buffalo Bisons 11 Scranton/Wilkes-Barre Red Barons 1 in 2:01 and 7 innings, then Scranton/Wilkes-Barre 8 Buffalo 3 in 5:07 and 16 innings —14,143 fans.

1:47 A.M. — Citizens Bank Park, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania —10/25/2008 — World Series AL at NL — rain delay 1:31 at start, Phillies 5 Rays 4 in 3:41—45,900 fans.

1:46 A.M.— Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 9/8/1987 — American League — Red Sox 8 Yankees 6 in 3:15, rain delay 2:24 top 4th, 2nd rain delay 0:30 bottom 6th — 29,468 fans.

1:46 A.M.— Busch Stadium (II), St. Louis, Missouri—6/8/1992—National League—Cubs 5 Cardinals 2 in 4:21 and 13 innings, then Cubs 6 Cardinals 4 in 3:20—38,572 fans.

1:46 A.M.— Hammond Stadium, Fort Myers, Florida — 6/8/2002 — Florida State League — rain delay 4:07 at start, Vero Beach Dodgers 5 Fort Myers Miracle 1 in 2:00 and 7 innings, then Fort Myers 2 Vero Beach 1 in 2:09 and 8 innings – 912 fans, 30 fans at end.

1:46 A.M.—Wolff Stadium, San Antonio, Texas— 8/14/2004—Texas League—Midland RockHounds 7 San Antonio Missions 5 in 6:40 and 21 innings— 4286 fans, 90 fans at end.

1:45 A.M. — Hook Ball Park, Paducah, Kentucky — 7/8/1938 — Kentucky-Illinois-Tennessee (Kitty) League — Fulton Eagles 14 Paducah Indians 9 in 5:28 and 20 innings, rhubarb delay top 15th when Fulton Manager Ray Clonts unsuccessfully requested umpires to allow 15-minute delay so players could eat some steaks for strength, vote delay top 19th when Paducah Manager Pete Mondino successfully asked umpires to have remaining fans vote whether the game should continue or not, fans voted unanimously that game should continue.

1:45 A.M. — Clintonville, Wisconsin — 6/15/1939 — Northern State League — Clintonville Four Wheel Drive Truckers 1 Two Rivers Polar Bears 0 in 5:15 and 21 innings.

1:45 A.M.— Forbes Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania— 6/29/1965— National League— Pirates 2 Reds 1 in 4:19 and 16 innings, then Reds 7 Pirates 5 in 2:42— 28,589 fans.

1:45 A.M.—Sioux Falls Stadium (later Howard Wood Field), Sioux Falls, South Dakota—8/3/1965— Basin League—Pierre Cowboys 5 Sioux Falls Packers 3 in 6:15 and 24 innings—421 fans.

1:45 A.M.—Crosley Field, Cincinnati, Ohio— 9/1/1967—National League—Giants 1 Reds 0 in 5:40 and 21 innings—13,745 fans, 200 fans at end.

1:45 A.M.— Ray Winder Field, Little Rock, Arkansas—8/7/1971—Dixie Association—Jacksonville Suns 4 Arkansas Travelers 2 in 3:58 and 16 innings, then Arkansas 3 Jacksonville 2 in 3:16 and 11 innings— 2638 fans.

1:45 A.M.— Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California—5/24/1973—National League—Mets 7 Dodgers 3 in 5:42 and 19 innings—27,580 fans; 1000 fans at end.

1:45 A.M.— Stade (Stadium) Municipal (later Fernand-Bedard), Trois Rivieres (Three Rivers), Province of Quebec, Canada — 7/30/1976 — Eastern League — West Haven Yankees 5 Trois Rivieres Aigles (Eagles) 0 in 16 innings.

1:45 A.M.— C.O. Brown Stadium, Battle Creek, Michigan—5/27/1990—National Collegiate Athletic Association—previous tournament action delay at start, Aurora University Spartans 12 North Carolina Wesleyan College Bishops 9 in 4:30—1 fan at end.

1:45 A.M.— Stadio dei Pirati, Rimini, Italy—6/4/ 2004— Serie Nazionale (Italian A1 League)— Rimini 5 Paterno 4 in 4:45 and 14 innings.

1:45 A.M. — Fox Cities Stadium, Grand Chute, Wisconsin — 5/27/2005 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — University of Wisconsin — Whitewater Warhawks 8 Trinity College Bantams 3 in 2:35 — 1306 fans — finished at 12:41 P.M.; Chapman University Panthers 8 Wartburg College Knights 1 in 2:20—1481 fans — finished at 4:16 P.M.; Rowan University Profs 10 Hampden-Sydney College Tigers 0 in 2:10—1678 fans — finished at 9:57 P.M.; College of Wooster Fighting Scots 7 State University of New York — Cortland Red Dragons 6 in 2:53—1713 fans.

1:45 A.M.— Mulcahy Stadium, Anchorage, Alaska — 7/15/2007 — Alaska League — rain delay 3:25 at start, Athletes in Action (AIA) Fire 7 Anchorage Bucs 4 in 3:20 and 10 innings.

1:44 A.M.— Metropolitan Stadium, Bloomington, Minnesota—8/9/1967—American League—Senators 9 Twins 7 in 5:40 and 20 innings—16,901 fans, 4000 fans at end.

1:44 A.M.— Lawrence-Dumont Stadium, Wichita, Kansas—8/11/2005—National Congress—Clarinda Athletics 8 El Dorado Broncos 1 in 2:17.

1:43 A.M.— Crosley Field, Cincinnati, Ohio — 8/9/ 1969 — National League — Reds 4 Phillies 2 in 3:08 and 12 innings, tornado/rain delay 2:35 top 2nd, Phillies dugout was flooded with 3 feet of water so they had to sit out on the field for the last 11 innings — 19,239 fans.

1:43 A.M. – Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks, Alaska – 6/20/1987 – Amateur – Mat-Su Miners 2 Alaska Goldpanners 1 in 3:13, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay – 3350 fans.

1:43 A.M.— Bell Park, Clovis, New Mexico — 6/11/1997 — New Mexico High School League — rain delay at start of 5th prior game, Sandia High School Matadors 14 Clovis High School Wildcats 12 in 2:53 and 8 innings — 300 fans, 125 fans at end.

1:43 A.M.— Robertson Field, Wichita, Kansas— 8/6/2005—National Congress—Wichita Titans 4 Greenwood Vikings 2 in 2:05.

1:42 A.M.— Danville Stadium, Danville, Illinois— 6/15/1970— Midwest League — rain delay 3:16 at start, Quad City Angels 11 Danville Warriors 7 in 3:56 and 11 innings—505 fans, 175 fans at end.

1:42 A.M.— Stade Olympique (Olympic Stadium), Montreal, Province of Quebec, Canada — 9/18/1979 — National League — Pirates 5 Expos 3 in 3:04 and 11 innings — rain delay 0:09 bottom 5th, 2nd rain delay 2:54 top 6th — 56,976 fans.

1:42 A.M.— Hoover Met Stadium, Hoover, Alabama — 6/2/1989 — Southern League — Birmingham Barons 5 Huntsville Stars 4 in 6:37 and 18 innings — 7034 fans.

1:42 A.M.— Three Rivers Stadium, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania— 8/18/1995— National League— Pirates 13 Marlins 7 in 3:07, then Pirates 7 Marlins 6 in 4:35 and 13 innings—13,598 fans.

1:42 A.M.— Robert F. Kennedy Stadium, Washington, DC—5/12/2007—National League—Nationals 7 Marlins 3 in 2:59—rain delay 2:51 top 5th, 2nd rain delay 0:47 bottom 9th—19,278 fans; 50 fans at end.

1:41 A.M.— Joe Davis Stadium, Huntsville, Alabama — 5/21/1987 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — rain delay 2:40 at start, University of Arkansas Razorbacks 10 Middle Tennessee University Blue Raiders 7 in 3:01—535 fans.

1:41 A.M.— Ballpark (later Ameriquest Field) in Arlington, Arlington, Texas—8/25/2001—American League—Rangers 8 Red Sox 7 in 6:35 and 18 innings—43,775 fans, 8000 fans at end.

1:41 A.M. — Joe Riley Park, Charleston, South Carolina — 5/22/2008 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — conference tournament — Elon College Phoenix 16 Georgia Southern University Eagles 6 in 3:39 — 723 fans.

1:40 A.M.— Griffin Field, Fairbanks, Alaska—6/21/ 1955—Amateur—Fairbanks All-Stars 12 Military All-Stars 8 in 3:10, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay.

1:40 A.M.—Oaks Oval, Lismore, State of New South Wales, Australia—?/??/1992—Claxton Shield Australian National Championship Series—Queensland vs. Victoria, unknown final score, rain delay in 1st game, then 22–2 in 2nd game in 2:00.

1:40 A.M.— Capital City Park, Columbia, South Carolina—7/4/2003—South Atlantic (Sally) League —Asheville Tourists 7 Capital City Bombers 5 in 6:44 and 19 innings—5800 fans, 550 fans at end.

1:40 A.M.—Veterans Memorial Stadium, Cedar Rapids, Iowa—8/18/2006—American Legion World Series—rain delay 3:44 at start; Sumter (Sc) 7 Lincoln (NE) 5; Midlothian (Va) 8 Las Vegas (Nv) 2; Terre Haute (in) 6 Metairie (La) 3; Milton (Ma) 14 Lawrence (Ks) 4 in 2:40 and 8 innings.

1:39 A.M.— San Diego (later Jack Murphy, then Qualcomm) Stadium, San Diego, California— 6/7/1972—National League—Pirates 12 Padres 5 in 2:49, then Pirates 1 Padres 0 in 4:27 and 18 innings— 7371 fans.

1:39 A.M.—Estadio (Stadium) Monterrey, Monterrey, State of Nuevo Leon, Mexico—8/22/2006— Mexican League Championship Series—rain delay 2:03 at start, Monterrey Sultanes (Sultans) 5 Yucatan Leones (Lions) 4 in 3:36—27,500 fans.

1:37 A.M.—Astrodome, Houston, Texas—4/15/ 1968—National League—Astros 1 Mets 0 in 6:06 and 24 innings—14,219 fans, 3000 fans at end.

1:37 A.M.—PNC Park, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania— 6/20/2003—American League at National League rain delay 0:24 at start, Pirates 5 Indians 4 in 4:32 and 15 innings, 2nd rain delay 1:36 top 10th—26,305 fans, 400 fans at end.

1:37 A.M.— Yankee Stadium, New York, New York — 7/15/2008 — All-Star Game — American League 4 National League 3 in 4:50 and 15 innings — 55,632 fans.

1:36 A.M.—R.F.K. Stadium, Washington, D.C.— 6/4/1971—American League—rain delay 0:17 at start, Athletics 6 Senators 3 in 5:19 and 21 innings—6159 fans.

1:36 A.M.— Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York—8/25/1976—American League—Yankees 5 Twins 4 in 5:27 and 19 innings—24,351 fans. 1:36 A.M. — County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin — 6/11/1999 — American League at National League — rain delay 3:11 at start, Twins 9 Brewers 7 in 3:20— 30,344 fans.

1:36 A.M.— Salem Memorial Stadium, Salem, Virginia — 5/26/2004 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — previous tournament action delay 3:02 at start, Florida State University Seminoles 6 North Carolina State University Wolfpack 5 in 2:34 — 3573 fans.

1:35 A.M.— Sherman Field, Lincoln, Nebraska— 8/19/1961— Illinois-Indiana-Iowa (3-I) League— Lincoln Chiefs vs. Fox Cities Foxes, then Lincoln 6 Fox Cities 3 in 16 innings.

1:35 A.M.— Fraser Field, Lynn, Massachusetts—6/9/ 1981—Eastern League—Bristol Red Sox 5 Lynn Sailors 1 in 4:20 and 15 innings, then Lynn 4 Bristol 2 in 1:45 and 7 innings.

1:35 A.M.— Frank Myers Field at Tointon Family Stadium, Manhattan, Kansas—4/9/2004— National Collegiate Athletic Association— University of Texas Longhorns 10 Kansas State University Wildcats 6 in 6:28 and 20 innings—874 fans.

1:35 A.M.— Stadio Europeo, Parma, Italy—5/26/ 2005— Serie Nazionale (Italian Al League)— Italeri Bologna 6 Cantine Ceci Negri Parma 5 in 5:05 and 15 innings.

1:35 A.M. — Fox Cities Stadium, Grand Chute, Wisconsin — 5/29/2005 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — State University of New York — Cortland Red Dragons 15 Chapman University Panthers 12 in 3:39; rain delay 0:48 6th; 2nd rain delay 0:47 7th — 1364 fans — finished at 5:05 P.M.; Wartburg College Knights 8 Rowan University Profs 6 in 3:40 and 16 innings — 1668 fans — finished at 9:44 P.M.; University of Wisconsin — Whitewater Warhawks 10 College of Wooster Fighting Scots 7 in 3:01—1985 fans.

1:35 A.M.— Tropicana Field, St. Petersburg, Florida —10/11/2008—American League Championship Series—Rays 9 Red Sox 8 in 5:27 and 11 innings— 34,904 fans.

1:33 A.M.— Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks, Alaska — 6/20/1982 — Amateur — Alaska Goldpanners 9 San Francisco Senators 3 in 2:48, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay —1500 fans.

1:32 A.M. — Griffin Field, Fairbanks, Alaska — 6/21/ 1956 — Amateur — Air Force All-Stars 8 Civilian All-Stars 5 in 3:02, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay.

1:32 A.M.— Three Rivers Stadium, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 7/13/1984 — National League — Pirates 8 Giants 2 in 2:37, then Pirates 4 Giants 3 in 5:11 and 18 innings, fireworks show started at 1:45 A.M.— 22,167 fans, 10,000 fans at end.

1:31 A.M.— Polo Grounds (V), New York, New York — 8/5/1952 — National League — Giants 7 Dodgers 6 in 4:59 and 15 innings — 43,373 fans.

1:31 A.M. — Disch Field, Austin, Texas — 5/22/1961 — Texas League — Amarillo Gold Sox 8 Austin Senators 7 in 5:17 and 16 innings — 508 fans. 1:31 A.M. — Estadio (Stadium) Angel Flores, Culiacan, State of Sinaloa, Mexico —10/27/1995 — Mexican Pacific League — Culiacan Tomateros (Tomato Growers) 3 Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2 in 6:01 and 20 innings.

1:30 A.M.— Hartwell Field, Mobile, Alabama— 8/8/1946—Southern Association—Atlanta Crackers 4 Mobile Bears 4 in 4:30 and 21 innings.

1:30 A.M.— Mabel, Minnesota—8/10/1952—Fillmore County League—Spring Grove Grovers 13 Mabel 9 in 20 innings.

1:30 A.M. — El Gran Estadio del Cerro (later Estadio Latinoamericano), Havana, Cuba — 7/25/1959 and 6/7/1959 — International League — Havana Sugar Kings 1 Rochester Red Wings 0 in 2:10, completion of game begun back on 6/7 which had been suspended after 7 innings, then Rochester 4 Havana 4 in 3:22 and 11 innings, 26th of July Cuban Revolution Celebration National Anthem and gunfire delay bottom 11th, 2nd gunfire delay bottom 11th, 3rd gunfire delay bottom 11th, 4th gunfire delay 1:00 top 12th after Red Wing 3B Coach Frank Verdi and Sugar King SS Leo Cardenas both injured by bullets, game finally suspended, but never completed — 2572 fans on 7/25; 40,000 fans when called off.

1:30 A.M. — Mission Stadium, San Antonio, Texas — 6/19/1961— Texas League — Amarillo Gold Sox 2 San Antonio Missions 0 in 1:41 and 7 innings, then Amarillo 2 San Antonio 1 in 4:59 and 19 innings —1237 fans.

1:30 A.M.— Oiler Park, Tulsa, Oklahoma — 5/31/ 1963 — Texas League — Tulsa Oilers 9 Albuquerque Dukes 8 in 5:47 and 17 innings — 2088 fans.

1:30 A.M.— Boysen Park, Anaheim, California— 4/26/1968— California High School League— Santa Ana High School Saints 6 Anaheim High School Colonists 6 in 5:45 and 19 innings, automatic sprinkers delay 0:45 top 20th, called a tie—100 fans, 25 fans at end— called off at 1:30 A.M. because automated sprinklers which had come on at 12:45 A.M. could not be turned off.

1:30 A.M.—Goodland Field, Appleton, Wisconsin— 5/2/1969—Midwest League—Appleton Foxes 8 Decatur Giants 7 in 5:30 and 17 innings.

1:30 A.M. — Ray Winder Field, Little Rock, Arkansas -7/21/1977 — Texas League — El Paso Diablos 10 Arkansas Travelers 2 in 2:12 and 7 innings, then Arkansas 2 El Paso 1 in 4:14 and 17 innings -2474 fans.

1:30 A.M.— Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks, Alaska — 6/21/1979 — NCAA at Amateur — Alaska Goldpanners 8 University of North Carolina Tar Heels 2, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay — 4000 fans.

1:30 A.M.— Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks, Alaska — 6/19/1983 — Amateur — Alaska Goldpanners 7 Cook Inlet Bucs 2 in 2:25, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay — 2600 fans.

1:30 A.M.—Riley Park, Sumter, South Carolina— 8/14/1991—American Legion—rain delay 0:50 prior game, Post 15 Sumter P-15's 10 Post 34 Tuscaloosa 1 in 2:20, power failure delay 0:20 top 1st, 2nd rain delay 1:45 bottom 2nd.

1:30 A.M.— Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks, Alaska — 6/21/1999 — Amateur — Alaska Goldpanners 7 Oceanside Waves 1 in 2:54, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay — 3000 fans.

1:30 A.M. – North Georgia College Field, Dahlonega, Georgia – 4/23/2004 – National Association of Intercollegiate Athletics – Faulkner University Eagles 19 Georgia Southwestern State University Hurricanes 12 in 4:30–100 fans.

1:29 A.M. — Ed Smith Stadium, Sarasota, Florida — 5/5/2001— Florida State League — Vero Beach Dodgers 11 Sarasota Red Sox 7 in 6:29 and 19 innings.

1:29 A.M.—U.S. Cellular Field, Chicago, Illinois— 7/17/2003—American League—rain delay 3:06 at start, Tigers 10 White Sox 9 in 3:18—17,060 fans, 200 fans at end.

1:28 A.M.—V.J. Keefe Stadium, San Antonio, Texas — 5/8/1971—Dixie Association — San Antonio Missions 6 Birmingham Athletics 5 in 5:43 and 19 innings — 3574 fans.

1:28 A.M. — MacArthur Stadium, Syracuse, New York — 7/30/1980 — International League — Richmond Braves 12 Syracuse Chiefs 6 in 5:55 and 22 innings — 3117 fans, 1000 fans at end.

1:27 A.M.— Mission Stadium, San Antonio, Texas 4/29/1960— Texas League— Rio Grande Valley Giants 4 San Antonio Missions 2 in 5:42 and 24 innings, scoreboard fire delay bottom 23rd—820 fans.

1:27 A.M.— Billy Hebert Field, Stockton, California — 9/5/1990 and 9/6/1990— California League — Bakersfield Dodgers 5 Stockton Ports 4 in 6:20 and 22 innings, suspended after 5:53 and 21 innings —1497 fans on 9/5; 175 fans when suspended; 1559 fans on 9/6—finished at 6:25 P.M. on 9/6.

1:27 A.M.— Oriole Stadium, Auburn, State of New South Wales, Australia — 3/1?/1999 —1st Grade New South Wales Major League Grand Final Series — Cronulla-Sutherland Sharks 4 Ryde-Eastwood Hawks 3 in 4:42 and 13 innings, rain delay 1:15 bottom 7th — 250 fans; 150 fans at end — winning run called safe despite fact that runner did not slide, catcher was standing on home plate with ball waiting for him to arrive, and in ensuing collision catcher did not drop ball.

1:27 A.M.— Commerce Bank Park, Bridgewater, New Jersey—8/16/2000—Atlantic League—Somerset Patriots 8 Newark Bears 7 in 6:14 and 17 innings— 5552 fans, 20 fans at end.

1:27 A.M.—Lawrence-Dumont Stadium, Wichita, Kansas—8/8/2005—National Congress—Santa Barbara Foresters 7 Clarinda Athletics 4 in 2:47.

1:27 A.M.— Lawrence-Dumont Stadium, Wichita, Kansas—8/10/2005—National Congress—El Dorado Broncos 3 Pueblo Chieftains 1 in 2:03.

1:27 A.M.— Hunnicutt Field, Princeton, West Virginia—5/7/2006—National Collegiate Athletic Administration—Ohio Valley University Fighting Scots 10 West Virginia State University Yellow Jackets 9 in 3:07, rain delay 8:54 top 7th, then Ohio Valley University Fighting Scots 14 Concord University Mountain Lions 5 in 2:49 - 250 fans, 75 fans top 7th, 350 fans at end; 200 fans at end of 2nd game.

1:27 A.M.— Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 8/20/2006 — American League — Yankees 8 Red Sox 5 in 4:17 and 10 innings, rain delay 0:57 top 3rd — 36,155 fans.

1:26 A.M.—Ray Winder Field, Little Rock, Arkansas —7/21/1971—Dixie Association—Arkansas Travelers 5 Dallas-Fort Worth Spurs 4 in 5:56 and 22 innings— 7030 fans, 600 fans at end.

1:26 A.M.—San Diego (later Jack Murphy, then Qualcomm) Stadium, San Diego, California— 8/15/1980—National League—Astros 3 Padres 1 in 6:17 and 20 innings—14,177 fans.

1:26 A.M.— Ballpark in Arlington, Arlington, Texas —10/2/1998 — American League Division Series — Yankees 4 Rangers 0 in 2:58, 3:16 rain delay bottom 6th — 49,450 fans.

1:26 A.M. — Sewell-Thomas Stadium, Tuscaloosa, Alabama — 3/14/2003 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — rain delay 0:42 at start, University of Alabama Crimson Tide 8 University of Georgia Bulldogs 7 in 3:32, 2nd rain delay 2:02 bottom 4th — 5197 fans.

1:26 A.M.— Citibank Park, Central Islip, New York — 9/12/2006—Atlantic League—Camden Riversharks 8 Long Island Ducks 7 in 6:20 and 18 innings—5234 fans; 30 fans at end.

1:26 A.M.— Baseball Grounds, Jacksonville, Florida — 5/21/2008 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — conference tournament — University of Virginia Cavaliers 8 University of North Carolina Tar Heels 7 in 3:40 and 11 innings — 9668 fans.

1:25 A.M.–V.J. Keefe Stadium, San Antonio, Texas–7/3/1971–Dixie Association–Arkansas Travelers 12 San Antonio Missions 9 in 5:25 and 19 innings–1074 fans.

1:25 A.M.—Candlestick (later 3Com) Park, San Francisco, California—6/21/1983—National League —Reds 6 Giants 5 in 5:10 and 16 innings—8943 fans.

1:25 A.M.— Osceola County Stadium, Kissimmee, Florida—8/31/1985—Florida State League—Osceola Astros 6 Fort Lauderdale Yankees 4 in 5:55 and 19 innings.

1:25 A.M.— Shea Stadium, New York, New York— 6/15/1989— National League— Mets 4 Cubs 3 in 3:44 and 12 innings, rain delay 0:58 bottom 3rd, 2nd rain delay 0:33 top 4th—24,689 fans; 100 fans at end.

1:25 A.M.— Stade Olympique (Olympic Stadium), Montreal, Province of Quebec, Canada—8/23/1989 — National League—Dodgers 1 Expos 0 in 6:14 and 22 innings—21,742 fans.

1:25 A.M.— Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 8/17/1993 — American League — rain delay 3:02 at start, White Sox 3 Red Sox 2 in 2:48 — 32,744 fans, 5000 fans at end. 1:25 A.M.— Camden Yards, Baltimore, Maryland — 6/19/1998 — American League — Orioles 7 Blue Jays 4 in 5:49 and 15 innings — 47,012 fans, 2000 fans at end.

1:25 A.M. — Osceola County Stadium, Kissimmee, Florida — 5/7/1999 — National Junior Collegiate Athletic Association — rain delay 3:00 in prior game, Palm Beach Community College Panthers 24 Miami Dade Community College (later Miami Dade College) Sharks 7 in 2:40 and 7 innings — 200 fans, 50 fans at end.

1:25 A.M.— Dodd Stadium, Norwich, Connecticut — 7/13/2000— Eastern League — Altoona Curve 6 Norwich Navigators 5 in 6:20 and 19 innings — 2774 fans, 60 fans at end.

1:25 A.M. — Turner Field, Atlanta, Georgia — 6/28/ 2004 — National League — rain delay 3:20 at start, Braves 6 Marlins 1 in 2:30 — 31,969 fans, 5000 fans at start, 2000 fans at end.

1:25 A.M. — Greer Stadium, Nashville, Tennessee — 5/5/2006 and 5/6/2006 — Pacific Coast League — New Orleans Zephyrs 5 Nashville Sounds 4 in 8:07 and 24 innings, suspended after 6:23 and 18 innings — 9124 fans on 5/5, 300 fans at suspension; 10,016 fans on 5/6 — suspended at 1:25 A.M. in the early morning of 5/6; finished at 7:44 P.M. on 5/6.

1:24 A.M.— Connie Mack Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 8/18/1964 — National League — Cubs 4 Phillies 3 in 4:46 and 16 innings, rain delay 0:37 top 10th —18,401 fans.

1:23 A.M. — Paterson Field, Montgomery, Alabama — 7/31/1965 — Southern League — Columbus Confederate Yankees 6 Montgomery Rebels 6 in 5:23 and 19 innings.

1:23 A.M.— Riverfront Stadium (later Cinergy Field), Cincinnati, Ohio—8/28/1978—National League rain delay 2:46 at start, Pirates 3 Reds 1 in 2:32— 23,612 fans, 7000 fans at end.

1:23 A.M. – Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts – 9/28/1993 – American League – Red Sox 11 Tigers 6 in 3:18, then Tigers 7 Red Sox 6 in 4:31 and 11 innings – 24,446 fans.

1:23 A.M.—Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York—5/11/2004—American League—Yankees 8 Angels 7 in 3:57 and 10 innings, rain delay 0:30 top 4th, 2nd rain delay 1:48 bottom 4th—36,706 fans, 5000 fans at end—author sat in lower deck behind home plate for the last three innings.

1:23 A.M. — Citizens Bank Park, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 7/2/2004 — American League at National League — Orioles 7 Phillies 6 in 6:15 and 16 innings — 44,390 fans.

1:22 A.M.— Honolulu Stadium, Honolulu, Hawai'i — 5/23/1967 — Pacific Coast League — Portland Beavers 7 Hawai'i Islanders 4 in 5:04 and 16 innings, rain delay 7th, brawl delay top 8th, 2nd rain delay 11th, 3rd rain delay 13th.

1:22 A.M.— Smith-Wills Stadium, Jackson, Mississippi — 5/19/1981— Texas League — Jackson Mets 6 El Paso Diablos 4 in 1:47 and 7 innings, then El Paso 5 Jackson 2 in 4:35 and 17 innings —1534 fans.

1:22 A.M.— Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan— 4/27/1984— American League— Indians 8 Tigers 4 in 5:44 and 19 innings— 34,112 fans, 7000 fans at end.

1:22 A.M.— Memorial Stadium, Baltimore, Maryland—6/4/1988—American League—Orioles 7 Yankees 6 in 5:46 and 14 innings—36,499 fans.

1:22 A.M.—Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks, Alaska—6/21/1990—Amateur—Alaska Goldpanners 8 San Bernardino Tribe 3 in 2:59, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay—3000 fans.

1:22 A.M.— Hubert H. Humphrey Metrodome, Minneapolis, Minnesota—8/31/1993—American League—Twins 5 Indians 4 in 6:17 and 22 innings— 17,968 fans, 1500 fans at end.

1:22 A.M. — UMAX (later Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California — 4/6/1998 and 4/8/1998 — American League — rain delay 1:46 at start, Indians 6 Athletics 5 in 3:07, 2nd rain delay 1:44 top 5th, suspended after 2:47 and 8 innings — 6963 fans on 4/6, 200 fans at suspension, 8361 fans on 4/8.

1:22 A.M.— Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts— 10/17/2004—American League—Red Sox 6 Yankees 4 in 5:02 and 12 innings—34,826 fans.

1:21 A.M.— Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts— 8/30/1960— American League— Red Sox 5 Tigers 4 in 4:06 and 15 innings, then Red Sox 3 Tigers 2 in 2:50 and 10 innings, stretcher delay bottom 7th—27,175 fans.

1:21 A.M.— Frank Lawrence Stadium, Portsmouth, Virginia — 4/18/1967 — Carolina League — Kinston Eagles 5 Tidewater Tides 5 in 5:50 and 20 innings — 526 fans, 25 fans at end.

1:21 A.M.— D.C. (later R.F.K.) Stadium, Washington, D.C.— 8/17/1967 — American League — Indians 8 Senators 3 in 5:14 and 16 innings —12,488 fans, 2000 fans at end.

1:21 A.M.— Riverfront Stadium (later Cinergy Field), Cincinnati, Ohio — 7/3/1973 — National League rain delay 2:25 at start, Reds 6 Giants 3 in 2:51— 26,269 fans.

1:21 A.M. — Arlington Stadium, Arlington, Texas — 4/28/1989 and 4/29/1989 — American League — Rangers 7 Red Sox 6 in 4:06 and 12 innings, rain delay 2:02 bottom 9th, suspended after 3:43 and 10 innings, continued on 4/29 — 35,440 fans on 4/28, 41,050 fans on 4/29.

1:21 A.M.—Municipal Stadium, Greenville, South Carolina—5/19/1993—National Collegiate Athletic Association—Clemson University Tigers 11 North Carolina State University Wolfpack 7 in 3:09.

1:21 A.M. — Minute Maid Park, Houston, Texas — 10/25/2005 — American League at National League — White Sox 7 Astros 5 in 5:41 and 14 innings — 42,848 fans.

1:21 A.M.— Petco Park, San Diego, California— 4/17/2008— National League— Rockies 2 Padres 1 in 6:16 and 22 innings— 25,984 fans. 1:20 A.M. — Wrigley Field, Los Angeles, California — 5/15/1931— Pacific Coast League — Los Angeles Angels 10 Portland Ducks 9 in 4:45 and 16 innings — 4500 fans, 3100 fans at end.

1:20 A.M.— San Diego (later Jack Murphy, then Qualcomm) Stadium, San Diego, California—8/25/ 1979—National League—Pirates 4 Padres 3 in 6:12 and 19 innings—14,607 fans; 5000 fans at end.

1:20 A.M. – Camden Yards, Baltimore, Maryland – 9/22/1992 – American League – rain delay 2:42 at start, Blue Jays 4 Orioles 3 in 3:03 – 45,104 fans.

1:20 A.M. – Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York –10/4/1995 – American League – Yankees 7 Mariners 5 in 5:13 and 15 innings – 57,126 fans.

1:20 A.M.— Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 5/12/1998 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Fordham University Rams 3 Virginia Polytechnic Institute Hokies 1 in 2:30—321 fans, 30 fans at end.

1:20 A.M. — Stadio Steno Borghese, Nettuno, Italy — 5/31/2002 — Serie Nazionale (Italian Al League) — Rimini 4 Nettuno 1 in 4:20 and 14 innings.

1:20 A.M.— Fifth Third Field, Toledo, Ohio - 8/4/2003 — International League — rain delay 2:05 at start, Durham Bulls 5 Toledo Mud Hens 4 in 4:08 and 15 innings - 6129 fans.

1:20 A.M. – Progressive Field, Cleveland, Ohio – 6/13/2008 – National League at American League – Indians 9 Padres 5 in 3:32, rain delay 2:43 bottom 1st - 31,399 fans.

1:19 A.M.— Forbes Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 7/13/1964 — National League — Cardinals 5 Pirates 4 in 3:34 and 12 innings, then Cardinals 12 Pirates 5 in 3:00—14,773 fans.

1:19 A.M.— Three Rivers Stadium, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania—7/18/1970— National League—rain delay 1:05 at start, Reds 3 Pirates 1 in 2:46 and 10 innings, 2nd rain delay 1:23 top 5th—27,906 fans.

1:19 A.M.—Ray Winder Field, Little Rock, Arkansas —7/17/1982 — Texas League — Arkansas Travelers 3 San Antonio Dodgers 2 in 4:46 and 16 innings, then San Antonio 3 Arkansas 0 in 2:03 and 7 innings — 4649 fans, 100 fans at end.

1:19 A.M.— Riverside Sports Complex, Riverside, California — 5/22/1988 — California League — San Jose Giants 8 Riverside Red Wave 5 in 6:19 and 21 innings.

1:19 A.M.— Lawrence-Dumont Stadium, Wichita, Kansas—8/12/2004—National Congress—Mat-Su Miners 4 Pueblo Chieftains 3 in 2:06.

1:19 A.M.— Whataburger Field, Corpus Christi, Texas - 6/1/2005— Texas League— Wichita Wranglers 7 Corpus Christi Hooks 2 in 6:09 and 20 innings— 6609 fans, 325 fans at end.

1:19 A.M.—Estadio (Stadium) Kulkucan, Merida, State of Yucatan, Mexico-8/27/2006—Mexican League—Monterrey Sultanes (Sultans) 2 Yucatan Leones (Lions) 1 in 5:19 and 14 innings.

1:18 A.M. - Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks,

Alaska — 6/21/1974 — NCAA at Amateur — Alaska Goldpanners 7 Washington State University Cougars 6, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay — 4473 fans.

1:18 A.M.—Jacobs Field, Cleveland, Ohio—7/20/ 1994—American League—rain delay 0:33 at start, Rangers 13 Indians 11 in 5:40 and 14 innings—40,280 fans.

1:18 A.M.— Dell Diamond, Round Rock, Texas — 8/13/2003 — Texas League — rain delay 3:08 at start, Tulsa Drillers 4 Round Rock Express 1 in 2:35, 2nd rain delay 0:30 top 1st —10,878 fans, 200 fans at end.

1:17 A.M.— Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois— 7/13/1951— American League— White Sox 5 Red Sox 4 in 4:47 and 19 innings—25,211 fans.

1:17 A.M.—Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks, Alaska—6/20/1989—Amateur—Alaska Goldpanners 7 San Diego Sea World Killer Whales 3 in 2:42, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay—2250 fans.

1:17 A.M.— Perry Field, Gainesville, Florida— 5/23/1991— National Collegiate Athletic Association— rain delay, University of Florida Gators 2 Furman University Paladins 0 in 2:17—3517 fans, 3000 fans at end.

1:17 A.M.— Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York—7/20/1998—American League—Tigers 4 Yankees 3 in 5:50 and 17 innings, then Yankees 4 Tigers 3 in 2:45—36,285 fans.

1:17 A.M.— Ballpark (later Ameriquest Field) in Arlington, Arlington, Texas — 5/22/2002 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — previous tournament action delay 2:37 at start, Texas Agricultural and Mechanical (A&M) University Aggies 8 University of Texas Longhorns 4 in 2:40—13,641 fans.

1:17 A.M. – Estadio (Stadium) Nelson Barrera, Campeche, State of Campeche, Mexico – 7/21/2004 – Mexican League – rain delay 2:14 at start, Mexico City Diablos Rojos (Red Devils) 9 Campeche Piratas (Pirates) 7 in 3:33 – 8000 fans.

1:17 A.M.— Lawrence-Dumont Stadium, Wichita, Kansas—8/5/2005—National Congress—Maxim Yankees 4 Plaza Tire Capahas 3 in 2:19.

1:16 A.M.—Memorial Stadium, Baltimore, Maryland—8/14/1976—American League—Orioles 8 White Sox 6 in 3:00, rain delay 1:35 top 2nd, then Orioles 6 White Sox 5 in 2:48—16,514 fans.

1:16 A.M. — Three Rivers Stadium, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 6/26/1978 and 4/23/1978 — National League — Pirates 5 Cardinals 4 in 3:16, completion of 2nd game begun back on 4/23 which had been suspended after 1:59 and 6 innings to allow Cardinals to catch a flight to Montreal, rain delay 0:38, 2nd rain delay 1:37, then Pirates 11 Cardinals 8 in 3:01— 5045 fans, 10,008 fans back on 4/23.

1:16 A.M.— Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York—8/2/1978 and 8/3/1978—American League— Red Sox 7 Yankees 5 in 5:00 and 17 innings, rain delay 0:35 top 8th, 2nd rain delay 0:17 bottom 12th, suspended after 14 innings – 52,701 fans on 8/2, 20,000 fans at suspension, 53,379 fans on 8/3.

1:16 A.M.— Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts— 9/3/1981 and 9/4/1981— American League— Mariners 8 Red Sox 7 in 6:01 and 20 innings, suspended after 5:39 and 19 innings—13,355 fans on 9/3, 1000 fans at suspension, 20,836 fans on 9/4.

1:16 A.M.—Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois—7/26/ 2005—National League—Giants 3 Cubs 2 in 3:28 and 11 innings, rain delay 2:43 at start—39,002 fans; 25,000 fans at start; 7000 fans at end.

1:15 A.M.— Municipal Park, Sanford, Florida— 5/27/1948— Florida State League— Sanford Giants 8 Palatka Azaleas 7 in 5:15 and 21 innings.

1:15 A.M.— Municipal Stadium, Jamestown or Maple City Park, Hornell, New York—5/23/1956— New York-Pennsylvania League—Jamestown Falcons 25 Hornell Dodgers 21 in 5:15 and extra innings.

1:15 A.M.— Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts— 6/8/1961— American League— Red Sox 6 Angels 5 in 2:35, then Angels 4 Red Sox 4 in 3:21 and 11 innings, rain delay 0:47 top 12th, called a tie—11,042 fans.

1:15 A.M.—Connie Mack Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania—6/28/1961—National League—Giants 7 Phillies 7 in 5:11 and 15 innings—11,597 fans.

1:15 A.M. — Colt Stadium, Houston, Texas — 4/25/ 1962 — National League — Cardinals 5 Colt .45's (later Astros) 5 in 5:13 and 17 innings —17,265 fans.

1:15 A.M. — Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California — 9/19/1964 — National League — Dodgers 4 Phillies 3 in 5:13 and 16 innings — 27,146 fans.

1:15 A.M. — Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan — 8/8/1967 — American League — Tigers 2 White Sox 1 in 2:53 and 10 innings, then White Sox 6 Tigers 4 in 3:30 and 10 innings — 44,295 fans, 15,000 fans at end.

1:15 A.M. — Municipal Memorial (later Gpu, then FirstEnergy) Stadium, Reading, Pennsylvania — 9/4/1968 — Eastern League — Reading Phillies 8 Binghamton Triplets 7 in 5:15 and 19 innings.

1:15 A.M.— Parque Deportivo del Seguro Social (Social Security Stadium), Mexico City, Distrito Federal (Federal District) or Guadalajara, Mexico— 6/24/1970— Mexican League— Mexico City Diablos Rojos (Red Devils) 10 Jalisco Charros 9 in 5:45 and 18 innings.

1:15 A.M.— Stade Olympique (Olympic Stadium), Montreal, Province of Quebec, Canada—5/21/1977— National League—Padres 11 Expos 8 in 5:33 and 21 innings—16,892 fans, 8000 fans at end.

1:15 A.M. — Metropolitan Stadium, Bloomington, Minnesota — 8/10/1979 — American League — Athletics 6 Twins 5 in 3:14 and 11 innings, then Twins 3 Athletics 2 in 3:56 and 12 innings —13,742 fans.

1:15 A.M.— Disch-Falk Field, Austin, Texas— 5/15/1981 and 5/16/1981— National Collegiate Athletic Association— University of Texas Longhorns 7 Rice University Owls 6 in 6:07 and 20 innings, rain delay 2:00 top 13th, suspended after 3:10 and 12 innings4700 fans on 5/15, 300 fans at suspension, 3000 fans on 5/16—finished at 3:02 P.M. on 5/16.

1:15 A.M. — Hays Field, Lubbock and Angels (later Christensen) Stadium, Midland, Texas — 5/17/1986 — Texas High School League 5A playoff championship game — moved from Lubbock ballfield to Midland ballfield, change-of-field/Blue Norther 2-feet of snow blizzard delay 6:45 at start, then Abilene Cooper High School Cougars 15 Amarillo High School Sandies 6 in 3:15 and 7 innings, intermission 0:15 between games, then Abilene Cooper 11 Amarillo 4 in 3:00 and 7 innings — 700 fans; 700 fans at end —1st game started at 38 degrees, 2nd game finished at 28 degrees.

1:15 A.M.—Busch Stadium (II), St. Louis, Missouri — 5/14/1988 — National League — Braves 7 Cardinals 5 in 5:40 and 19 innings — 47,887 fans.

1:15 A.M.— Candlestick Park (later 3Com Park), San Francisco, California—7/26/1988—National League — Dodgers 7 Giants 3 in 2:57, then Dodgers 6 Giants 5 in 4:13 and 11 innings and foggy weather—49,209 fans.

1:15 A.M.— Springer Park, Cold Spring, Minnesota — 8/27/1993 — Town Team League — Marble Mallards 7 Sartell Muskies 6 in 4:45 and 17 innings.

1:15 A.M.— House Field, Corbin, Kentucky—4/24 /1998—National Association of Intercollegiate Athletics—rain delays in previous tournament action, Lindsey Wilson College Blue Raiders 15 Berea College Mountaineers 6 in 2:15.

1:15 A.M.— Baseball Grounds, Jacksonville, Florida — 5/24/2007 — National Collegiate Athletic Association conference tournament — rain delay 1:40 at start, University of North Carolina Tar Heels 14 North Carolina State University Wolfpack 5 in 3:05 — 6132 fans.

1:15 A.M.— Stadio Roberto Jannella, Grosseto, Italy — 6/7/2007 — Serie Nazionale (Italian A1 League)— MontePaschi Grosseto 4 Cariparma 3 in 4:15 and 15 innings.

1:14 A.M. — Coveleski Stadium, South Bend, Indiana — 5/19/1989 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — rain delay 2:30 at start of prior game, rain delay 1:35 bottom 11th of prior game, rain delay 3:15 at start, University of Detroit Titans 3 University of Evansville Purple Aces 2 in 10 innings.

1:14 A.M. — Richmond County Bank Ballpark at St. George, New York, New York — 7/16/2004 — New York-Pennsylvania League — Staten Island Yankees 4 New Jersey Cardinals 3 in 4:43 and 17 innings, then New Jersey 3 Staten Island 0 in 2:53 and 10 innings, suspended after 1:38 and 6 innings, resumed on 8/2 after regularly scheduled game New Jersey 10 Staten Island 5 in 2:53 — 3909 fans on 7/16, 350 fans at start of 2nd game, 150 fans at suspension; 5324 fans on 8/2 for regularly scheduled game, 300 fans top 7th, 175 fans at end —finished at 11:55 P.M. on 8/2.

1:13 A.M.—Golden Park, Columbus, Georgia— 4/24/1954—South Atlantic (Sally) League—Macon Peaches 7 Columbus Cardinals 5 in 5:13 and 20 innings. 1:13 A.M. — Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan — 8/6/1968 and 8/7/1968 — American League — Tigers 2 Indians 1 in 4:28 and 17 innings, then Tigers 5 Indians 2 in 2:33, suspended after 2:25 and 8 innings — 48,413 fans on 8/6; 30,402 fans on 8/7.

1:13 A.M.— Memorial Stadium, Baltimore, Maryland — 9/13/1974 — American League — Orioles 3 Indians 2 in 2:08, then Orioles 8 Indians 6 in 3:00, rain delay 1:48 top 7th, 2nd rain delay 0:19 also top 7th, suspended after 8 innings —16,283 fans on 9/13, 11,715 fans on 9/14.

1:13 A.M.— Owen Bush Stadium, Indianapolis, Indiana—6/30/1994—American Association—Nashville Sounds 9 Indianapolis Indians 7 in 5:58 and 19 innings—2047 fans, 50 fans at end.

1:13 A.M.— Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks, Alaska — 6/21/2004 — Amateur — Alaska Goldpanners 9 Kenai Peninsula Oilers 1 in 2:43, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay — 3500 fans.

1:13 A.M.— Estadio (Stadium) Angel Flores, Culiacan, State of Sinaloa, Mexico—11/16/2005— Mexican Pacific League— Culiacan Tomateros (Tomato Growers) 4 Los Mochis Caneros (Sugar Cane Growers) 3 in 5:43 and 14 innings.

1:12 A.M.— Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan— 7/16/1965—American League—rain delay 1:50 at start, Orioles 2 Tigers 1 in 3:22 and 11 innings—15,327 fans.

1:12 A.M.— MacArthur Stadium, Syracuse, New York—6/19/1985 and 6/20/1985 and 6/21/1985—International League—Pawtucket Paw Sox 3 Syracuse Chiefs 1 in 7:07 and 27 innings, suspended after 5:36 and 22 innings, continued 6/20, rain delay 0:13 top 23rd, 2nd rain delay 0:50 bottom 24th, suspended again after 6:07 and 23½ innings at 9:05 P.M. on 6/20, finally finished at 7:31 P.M. on 6/21—1233 fans on 6/19; 200 fans when suspended after 22 innings; 3020 fans on 6/21.

1:12 A.M.— Tim McCarver Stadium, Memphis, Tennessee — 6/17/1991 and 6/18/1991— Southern League — Huntsville Stars 9 Memphis Chicks 7 in 6:32 and 20 innings, suspended after 5:33 and 16 innings — 6845 fans on 6/17, 2349 fans on 6/18.

1:12 A.M. — Coors Field, Denver, Colorado — 8/18/ 1995 — National League — Cubs 26 Rockies 7 in 3:22, rain delay 2:45 top 4th — 48,082 fans, 500 fans at end.

1:12 A.M.—Lawrence-Dumont Stadium, Wichita, Kansas—8/4/2005—National Congress—rain delay 1:02 at start, Havasu Heata 8 Crestwood Panthers 0 in 2:22, 2nd rain delay 2:18 top 5th.

1:11 A.M.— County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin—8/31/1973—American League—Brewers 3 Red Sox 2 in 2:33, then Brewers 5 Red Sox 4 in 4:08 and 13 innings—22,198 fans.

1:11 A.M.— Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania–8/4/1975— National League— Cubs 3 Phillies 2 in 2:52, rain delay 0:21 4th, 2nd rain delay 2:18—16,285 fans. 1:11 A.M.— Royals Stadium, Kansas City, Missouri— 5/4/1981— American League — rain delay 2:16 at start, Red Sox 8 Royals 7 in 4:04 and 12 innings, suspended after 3:20 and 10 innings — 25,688 fans on 5/4, 21,708 fans on 5/5 — finished at 7:50 P.M. on 5/5.

1:11 A.M. — Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan — 7/29/1983 and 7/30/1983 — American League — Tigers 10 Royals 1 in 2:33, rain delay 3:02 bottom 3rd, suspended after 8 innings — 39,357 fans on 7/29, 35,100 fans on 7/30.

1:11 A.M.— Lawrence-Dumont Stadium, Wichita, Kansas— 8/3/2005 — National Congress — Park City Cowboys 6 Fairbanks Goldpanners 5 in 2:22.

1:10 A.M.—La Grave Field (I), Fort Worth, Texas — 7/4/1932 — Texas League — Longview Cannibals 7 Fort Worth Cats 6 in 3:25 and 18 innings, then Longview 2 Fort Worth 1 in 1:35 and 7 innings — 2000 fans.

1:10 A.M. — Gilmore Field, Hollywood, California — 5/12/1954 — Pacific Coast League — Oakland Oaks 5 Hollywood Stars 1 in 4:52 and 21 innings — 2559 fans.

1:10 A.M.—Crosley Field, Cincinnati, Ohio— 6/24/1958—National League—Dodgers 13 Reds 10 in 3:39 and 10 innings, then Dodgers 7 Reds 2 in 3:11 and 11 innings—20,635 fans.

1:10 A.M.—Crosley Field, Cincinnati, Ohio— 8/27/1965—National League—Cardinals 6 Reds 5 in 5:00 and 14 innings—23,595 fans.

1:10 A.M.—Barney Tadsen Field, Brownton, Minnesota — 7/31/1969 — Town Team League — Brownton 6 New Ulm Kaiserhoff 5 in 5:10 and 18 innings.

1:10 A.M.—Danville Stadium, Danville, Illinois— 6/4/1974—Midwest League—Waterloo Royals 7 Danville Warriors 5 in 5:35 and 21 innings—722 fans, 94 fans at end.

1:10 A.M.— Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks, Alaska — 6/21/2000—Amateur—Alaska Goldpanners 3 Santa Barbara Foresters 2 in 2:40, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay bottom 7th — 3300 fans.

1:10 A.M.— Pac Bell (later SBC) Park, San Francisco, California — 5/29/2001— National League — Diamondbacks 1 Giants 0 in 5:53 and 18 innings — 39,709 fans.

1:10 A.M.— Fox Cities Stadium, Grand Chute, Wisconsin — 6/10/2003 — Wisconsin High School League — rain delay 3:00 at start of 3rd prior game, Milwaukee Rufus King High School Generals 6 Bay Port High School Pirates 3 in 2:55 and 8 innings — 350 fans.

1:10 A.M.— U.S. Cellular Field, Chicago, Illinois— 4/2/2006—American League—White Sox 10 Indians 4 in 2:59, rain delay 2:57 bottom 4th—38,802 fans; 9500 fans bottom 4th; 2500 fans at end.

1:10 A.M.—PNC Park, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania— 7/8/2008—National League—Pirates 4 Astros 3 in 2:58, rain delay 2:39 top 4th, 2nd rain delay 0:28 bottom 6th—17,867 fans; 500 fans at end.

1:09 A.M. – Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks, Alaska – 6/21/1973 – NCAA at Amateur – Brigham Young University Cougars 8 Alaska Goldpanners 5, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay – 4300 fans.

1:09 A.M.— Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California—4/8/1982—American League—Angels 8 Athletics 6 in 5:31 and 16 innings— 17,806 fans, 1000 fans at end.

1:09 A.M.— Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois— 9/10/1983— American League— White Sox 7 Angels 6 in 4:01 and 12 innings, rain delay 1:33 bottom 9th— 43,097 fans.

1:09 A.M. — Camden Yards, Baltimore, Maryland — 5/22/1993 — American League — Orioles 5 Brewers 4 in 5:34 and 14 innings — 46,177 fans.

1:09 A.M. — Camden Yards, Baltimore, Maryland — 5/1/1996 — American League — Yankees 11 Orioles 6 in 5:34 and 15 innings — 47,472 fans.

1:09 A.M. — Dick Howser Field, Tallahassee, Florida — 4/7/2000— National Collegiate Athletic Association — Florida State University Seminoles 14 University of Miami Hurricanes 13 in 6:07 and 17 innings — 4626 fans.

1:09 A.M.—Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York—8/9/2002—American League—Athletics 3 Yankees 2 in 6:00 and 16 innings—54,316 fans, 10,000 fans at end.

1:09 A.M. — Falcon Park, Auburn, New York — 7/7/ 2005 and 8/14/2005 — New York-Pennsylvania League — Auburn Doubledays 6 Batavia Muckdogs 5 in 6:34 and 22 innings, suspended after 6:02 and 20 innings — 3242 fans on 7/7, 250 fans left at suspension, 1871 fans on 8/14 — finished at 5:35 P.M. on 8/14 — author present for last two innings.

1:08 A.M.— Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California—5/1/1962—National League—Dodgers 6 Cubs 5 in 5:06 and 16 innings—20,069 fans; 200 fans at end.

1:08 A.M. — Parque Deportivo del Seguro Social (Social Security Stadium), Mexico City, Distrito Federal (Federal District), Mexico — 7/14/1969 — Mexican League — Reynosa Broncos 5 Mexico City Diablos Rojos (Red Devils) 3 in 5:38 and 22 innings — 3895 fans.

1:08 A.M.— Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois— 5/13/1981— American League — Indians 4 White Sox 3 in 5:31 and 16 innings—10,463 fans.

1:08 A.M.—Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York—5/11/1984—American League—Mariners 4 Yankees 3 in 5:02 and 17 innings—15,716 fans.

1:08 A.M.—Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York—9/22/1992—American League—Yankees 6 Tigers 5 in 4:05 and 12 innings, rain delay 1:56 at start of 2nd game, then Yankees 7 Tigers 4 in 2:37—13,001 fans, 200 fans at end.

1:08 A.M. — Diamond, Richmond, Virginia — 5/12/ 1994 — International League — Richmond Braves 2 Scranton/Wilkes-Barre Red Barons 1 in 5:07 and 17 innings, then Richmond 4 Scranton-Wilkes-Barre 2 in 1:31 and 7 innings — 4486 fans. 1:08 A.M. — Hammond Stadium, Fort Myers, Florida — 4/8/1995 — Florida State League — Fort Myers Miracle 5 Charlotte Rangers 0 in 1:26 and 7 innings, then Fort Myers 4 Charlotte 3 in 5:00 and 17 innings — 2411 fans; 50 fans at end —1st game finished at 7:37 P.M.

1:08 A.M.— Turner Field, Atlanta, Georgia—4/5/ 1997 and 4/6/1997—National League—Braves 11 Cubs 5 in 2:47, rain delay 3:55 bottom 7th, suspended after 2:08 in bottom 7th—45,698 fans on 4/5; 41,318 fans on 4/6.

1:07 A.M.— Exposition Park, Fairbanks, Alaska— 6/21/1912 — Amateur — Van Dycks 20 Eagles 5 in 2:07, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay — 667 fans.

1:07 A.M.— Sportsman's Park (V) (later Busch Stadium (I)), St. Louis, Missouri—6/20/1952—American League—Senators 5 Browns 5 in 4:34 and 18 innings—7931 fans.

1:07 A.M.— Forbes Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 6/5/1962 and 6/6/1962 — National League — rain delay 1:19 at start, Dodgers 3 Pirates 2 in 2:52, then Dodgers 8 Pirates 3 in 2:50, suspended after 2:34 and 8 innings —18,579 fans on 6/5, 13,667 fans on 6/6.

1:07 A.M.— Yankee Stadium (I), New York, New York—8/23/1968—American League—Yankees 2 Tigers 1 in 2:23, then Tigers 3 Yankees 3 in 5:04 and 19 innings—33,880 fans.

1:07 A.M.—Municipal Stadium, Greenville, South Carolina—7/13/1984—Southern League—Memphis Chicks 3 Greenville Braves 2 in 6:02 and 19 innings, then Greenville 6 Memphis 5 in 2:11 and 7 innings, suspended after 0:35 and 2 innings, completed 7/14 as 1st game of tripleheader—3044 fans on 7/13, 250 fans at suspension, 4456 fans on 7/14.

1:07 A.M.— Clairemont High School Chieftains Field, San Diego, California—6/23/1988—American Diamond Adult Association—previous tournament action delay 2:03 at start, Giant Jewelry Gems 4 Action Video Tigers 1 in 2:04—40 fans, 12 fans at end—author managed and played center field for the Gems.

1:07 A.M.— Braves Stadium, Greenville, South Carolina — 5/14/1991— National Collegiate Athletic Association — previous tournament action delay at start, Clemson University Tigers 24 Georgia Technical Institute Rambling Wreck 8.

1:07 A.M.—Royals Stadium, Kansas City, Missouri—7/17/1991—American League—Royals 9 Orioles 8 in 5:32 and 15 innings—21,821 fans.

1:07 A.M.— Municipal Memorial (later Gpu, then FirstEnergy) Stadium, Reading, Pennsylvania—5/28/ 1999—Eastern League—Reading Phillies 15 New Britain Rock Cats 14 in 5:28 and 13 innings.

1:06 A.M. — Nicollet Park, Minneapolis, Minnesota — 9/1/1955 — American Association — Minneapolis Millers 6 Denver Bears 5 in 2:37, then Denver 6 Minneapolis 6 in 3:20 and 11 innings — 5077 fans.

1:06 A.M.- Wahconah Park (II), Pittsfield, Massa-

chusetts -6/19/1965 – Eastern League – Elmira Pioneers 8 Pittsfield Red Sox 7 in 2:11 and 7 innings, three delays 1:13, once for rain and twice for blinding sunlight above the center field fence, then Elmira 9 Pittsfield 7 in 2:59 and 9 innings, fog delay bottom 6th -863 fans.

1:06 A.M.—Atlanta-Fulton County Stadium, Atlanta, Georgia—8/15/1969—National League—Braves 8 Cardinals 2 in 2:06, rain delay 3:00 bottom 1st— 23,336 fans.

1:06 A.M.—Atlanta-Fulton County Stadium, Atlanta, Georgia—9/5/1970—National League—Braves 5 Giants 2 in 2:38, rain delay 1:00 bottom 2nd; 2nd and 3rd rain delays 0:39 and 0:34 in middle innings, then Braves 5 Giants 3 in 2:10—13,820 fans.

1:06 A.M.— Arlington Stadium, Arlington, Texas — 5/14/1975 and 5/15/1975 — American League — rain delay 1:13 at start, Brewers 3 Rangers 2 in 4:12 and 15 innings, suspended after 3:53 and 14 innings —12,090 fans on 5/14, 22,823 fans on 5/15.

1:06 A.M.— Shea Stadium, New York, New York and Metropolitan Stadium, Bloomington, Minnesota— 7/12/1975 and 7/13/1975 and 7/19/1975—American League—Yankees 8 Twins 7 in 5:11 and 16 innings, rain delay 0:30 bottom 5th, suspended after 13½ innings in New York, rained out 7/13 in New York, finally completed 7/19 in Bloomington—13,573 fans on 7/12 in New York, 6000 fans at suspension, 37,602 fans on 7/19 in Bloomington.

1:06 A.M.— Tinker Field (II), Orlando, Florida— 5/22/1980—Southern League—Orlando Twins 3 Memphis Chicks 2 in 4:07 and 19 innings, then Memphis 6 Orlando 0 in 1:50 and 7 innings.

1:06 A.M.— Centennial Field, Burlington, Vermont — 8/23/1984 and 8/24/1984 — Eastern League — Albany-Colonie Athletics 9 Vermont Reds 7 in 5:37 and 17 innings, automatic sprinkler malfunction delay 0:17 bottom 17th, suspended after 5:12 and 16½ innings when outfield sprinklers could not be turned off—2909 fans on 8/23, 250 fans at suspension, 2194 fans on 8/24.

1:06 A.M. — Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks, Alaska — 6/20/1986 — Amateur — Alaska Goldpanners 8 San Francisco Senators 1 in 2:36, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay — 4000 fans.

1:06 A.M. – County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin – 7/6/1990 – American League – Angels 9 Brewers 8 in 5:31 and 16 innings – 25,244 fans.

1:06 A.M.— Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 5/3/1996 and 5/4/1996 — American League — rain delay 2:43 at start, Red Sox 8 Blue Jays 7 in 3:20, 2nd rain delay 1:00 top 3rd, suspended after 2:18 and 6 innings — 25,507 fans on 5/3, 2000 fans top 1st, 29,785 fans on 5/4 — finished at 1:08 P.M. on 5/4.

1:06 A.M.—Sky Dome (later Rogers Centre), Toronto, Province of Ontario, Canada—4/19/2001— American League—Yankees 6 Blue Jays 5 in 5:57 and 17 innings—24,684 fans, 1500 fans at end. 1:06 A.M.— Fieldcrest Cannon Stadium, Kannapolis, North Carolina — 5/20/2005 — South Atlantic (Sally) League — Delmarva Shorebirds 7 Kannapolis Intimidators 6 in 5:50 and 18 innings — 2899 fans, 250 fans at end including 200 Girl Scouts waiting to camp out in the outfield after the game.

1:05 A.M.— Imperial Park, Fairbanks, Alaska—6/21/ 1907—Amateur—Tanana Commercial Club 2 Eagles 1 in 2:25—Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay.

1:05 A.M.— Memorial Park, Moultrie, Georgia— 7/27/1938 — Georgia-Florida League — Thomasville Orioles 0 Moultrie Packers 0 in 4:35 and 16 innings — 750 fans.

1:05 A.M.—Minster, Ohio—7/18/1956—American Legion—St. Mary's 4 Lima 3 in 5:30 and 21 innings.

1:05 A.M.— Disch Field, Austin, Texas — 9/7/1956— Texas League — Austin Senators 4 Dallas Eagles 3 in 5:01 and 20 innings — 2157 fans.

1:05 A.M.— Breadon Field (later Max Hess Stadium), Allentown, Pennsylvania-6/4/1960— Eastern League—Allentown Red Sox 2 Binghamton Triplets 1 in 13 innings, then Binghamton 16 Allentown 16 in 7 innings.

1:05 A.M.— Connie Mack Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania—6/21/1960—National League—Phillies 7 Cubs 6 in 4:06 and 13 innings, then Phillies 7 Cubs 6 in 2:34, suspended after 2:24 and 8 innings— 26,233 fans on 6/21, 9342 fans on 6/22.

1:05 A.M.— Shea Stadium, New York, New York— 10/2/1965— National League— Phillies 6 Mets 0 in 2:31, then Phillies 0 Mets 0 in 4:29 and 18 innings— 10,371 fans.

1:05 A.M. — Sicks' Stadium, Seattle, Washington — 7/19/1969 and 7/20/1969 — American League — Twins 11 Pilots 7 in 5:41 and 18 innings, suspended after 5:01 and 16 innings, moon landing delay 0:20 bottom 17th —12,067 fans on 7/19, 8287 fans on 7/20.

1:05 A.M.— Recreation Park, Visalia, California— 6/19/1971 and 6/20/1971— California League— Visalia Mets 11 Bakersfield Dodgers 9 in 7:00 and 22 innings, suspended after 4:50 and 15 innings, called a tie, however league president later reversed tie game ruling and ordered game to be continued— 867 fans on 6/19, 449 fans on 6/20.

1:05 A.M.—Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California—7/9/1971—American League— Athletics 1 Angels 0 in 5:05 and 20 innings—22,938 fans.

1:05 A.M.— Metropolitan Stadium, Bloomington, Minnesota — 5/12/1972 and 5/13/1972 — American League — Brewers 4 Twins 3 in 5:47 and 22 innings, suspended after 5:35 and 21 innings — 8628 fans on 5/12, 7871 fans on 5/13.

1:05 A.M.— Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California—8/10/1972 and 8/11/1972— American League—Athletics 5 White Sox 3 in 5:31 and 19 innings, suspended after 5:04 and 17 innings — 11,818 fans on 8/10, 16,065 fans on 8/11.

1:05 A.M. — Anaheim Stadium (later Edison International Field, then Angels Stadium), Anaheim, California — 4/13/1982 — American League — Angels 4 Mariners 3 in 6:06 and 20 innings, suspended after 5:24 and 17 innings — 33,574 fans on 4/13, 23,905 fans on 4/14.

1:05 A.M.— Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois— 5/8/1984 and 5/9/1984—American League—White Sox 7 Brewers 6 in 8:06 and 25 innings, suspended after 5:29 and 17 innings—14,754 fans on 5/8, 17,715 fans on 5/9.

1:05 A.M. — Arlington Stadium, Arlington, Texas — 9/10/1988 — American League — Rangers 3 Angels 2 in 5:30 and 17 innings — 22,972 fans.

1:05 A.M.— V.J. Keefe Stadium, San Antonio, Texas — 5/3/1989 — Texas League — Midland Angels 5 San Antonio Missions 3 in 5:58 and 19 innings —1296 fans, 24 fans at end.

1:05 A.M.— Olsen Field, College Station, Texas— 5/5/1989 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — University of Arkansas Razorbacks 11 Texas Agricultural and Mechanical (A&M) University Aggies 9 in 5:57 and 16 innings — 5388 fans, 3000 fans at end.

1:05 A.M.— City of Palms Stadium, Fort Myers, Florida—11/6/1993— Roy Hobbs Senior League rain delay 5:20 at start of prior games, Asheville Sox 6 New Jersey All-Stars 5 in 2:05 and 7 innings—150 fans.

1:05 A.M. – Cougar Field, Houston, Texas – 5/29/ 1999 – National Collegiate Athletic Association – rain delay 4:00 in prior game, University of Houston Cougars 8 University of Texas Longhorns 5 in 2:59.

1:05 A.M.— Canal Park, Akron, Ohio — 8/17/2005 — Eastern League — Akron Aeros 3 Altoona Curve 2 in 4:01 and 14 innings, then Akron 9 Altoona 3 in 2:04 — 7747 fans.

1:04 A.M.— Municipal (later Cleveland) Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio—7/1/1952—American League—Indians 4 Browns 3 in 4:49 and 19 innings—19,855 fans.

1:04 A.M.— Lane Field, San Diego, California— 7/2/1958—Pacific Coast League—San Diego Padres 12 Salt Lake City Bees 11 in 5:04 and 16 innings— 5309 fans.

1:04 A.M.— Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California—6/20/1969—American League — Athletics 3 Twins 2 in 5:04 and 14 innings—20,691 fans.

1:04 A.M.—Riverfront Stadium (later Cinergy Field), Cincinnati, Ohio—8/8/1972—National League —Reds 2 Dodgers 1 in 4:17 and 19 innings, rain delay 0:43 bottom 1st—24,453 fans.

1:04 A.M.— Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan— 6/9/1982 and 9/24/1982 — American League — Tigers 2 Indians 1 in 2:27, rain delay 0:45 at start of 2nd game, then Tigers 4 Indians 3 in 4:54 and 18 innings, suspended after 3:38 and 14 innings — 32,213 fans on 6/9, 7226 fans on 9/24 — author, his wife, and their five-week old son sat in lower deck behind third base for the first game and the first 14 innings of the second game.

1:04 A.M.—Riverfront Stadium (later Cinergy Field), Cincinnati, Ohio—8/10/1984—National League —Reds 5 Astros 4 in 3:31 and 12 innings, then Astros

11 Reds 7 in 2:58 –14,558 fans.

1:04 A.M.— V.J. Keefe Stadium, San Antonio, Texas — 5/21/1987 — Texas League — Shreveport Captains 4 San Antonio Dodgers 3 in 6:04 and 21 innings —1144 fans.

1:04 A.M. — Al Lang Field (II), St. Petersburg, Florida and Holman Stadium, Vero Beach, Florida — 4/29/ 1988 and 5/28/1988 — Florida State League — Vero Beach Dodgers 6 St. Petersburg Cardinals 5 in 5:59 and 20 innings, suspended after 5:29 and 18 innings, completed in Vero Beach — suspended at 1:04 A.M. in the early morning of 4/30.

1:04 A.M.— Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 9/1/1993 — American League — Rangers 9 Red Sox 7 in 5:28 and 12 innings — 27,396 fans.

1:04 A.M.— Frontier Field, Rochester, New York— 8/22/1997 — International League — rain delay 2:54 at start, Rochester Red Wings 11 Toledo Mud Hens 10 in 2:55 — 9174 fans.

1:04 A.M.—Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York—10/21/2000—National League at American League—Yankees 4 Mets 3 in 4:51 and 12 innings— 55,913 fans.

1:04 A.M.— Bricktown Ballpark, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma—5/23/2007—National Collegiate Athletic Association—Baylor University Bears 3 Oklahoma State University Cowboys 1 in 2:24—6309 fans; 2500 fans at start; 2000 fans at end.

1:03 A.M.—Municipal (later Rosenblatt) Stadium, Omaha, Nebraska—8/16/1957—American Association—Wichita Braves 10 Omaha Cardinals 7 in 4:26 and 15 innings—3771 fans.

1:03 A.M. — Cleveland Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio — 6/14/1963 — American League — Senators 5 Indians 2 in 2:12, then Indians 3 Senators 2 in 4:33 and 19 innings —12,377 fans, 1000 fans at end.

1:03 A.M. — Crosley Field, Cincinnati, Ohio — 5/28/ 1964 — National League — Dodgers 2 Reds 2 in 4:58 and 17 innings — 7772 fans.

1:03 A.M. — Dunn Field, Elmira, New York — 6/25/1965 — Eastern League — Pittsfield Red Sox 1 Elmira Pioneers 1 in 5:33 and 21 innings — called off at 1:03 A.M. in the early morning of 6/26, then rhubarb delay 0:xx top 22nd, Pioneers owner argued there was no curfew rule, by the time the league president told the umpires the owner was correct and the game should continue, all the players had showered and gone home, called off at 1:xx A.M. for the second time — 530 fans.

1:03 A.M. – Cleveland Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio – 9/20/1965 – American League – Indians 5 Tigers 4 in 4:58 and 14 innings –1831 fans.

1:03 A.M. - Cleveland Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio -

7/31/1979 — American League — Indians 11 Red Sox 10 in 3:30 and 11 innings, rain delay 0:59 at start of 2nd game, then Indians 3 Red Sox 0 in 2:38 — 39,384 fans.

1:03 A.M. — Russ Chandler Stadium, Atlanta, Georgia — 5/30/1993 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — rain delay 3:31 at start, Wichita State University Shockers 5 Ohio State University Buckeyes 3 in 2:32.

1:03 A.M.— Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 7/2/1993 — National League — rain delay 1:10 at start, Padres 5 Phillies 2 in 2:34, 2nd rain delay 1:56 bottom 4th, 3rd rain delay 2:48 top 6th, 1st game ended at 1:03 A.M., then Phillies 6 Padres 5 in 3:12 and 10 innings, 2nd game ended at 4:40 A.M.— 54,617 fans.

1:03 A.M.— Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 8/23/2000— American League — rain delay 3:01 at start, Red Sox 3 Angels 1 in 2:57 — 32,958 fans.

1:03 A.M.— Salem Memorial Stadium, Salem, Virginia — 5/27/2004 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — previous tournament action delay 2:31 at start, Florida State University Seminoles 6 Duke University Blue Devils 3 in 2:32 — 2015 fans.

1:03 A.M.— Lawrence-Dumont Stadium, Wichita, Kansas—8/9/2005—National Congress—Prairie Gravel 4 Wichita Braves 3 in 2:29.

1:02 A.M.— Griffith Stadium, Washington, D.C.— 6/15/1945 — American League — Red Sox 6 Senators 5 in 3:25 and 14 innings, then Red Sox 4 Senators 4 in 2:42 and 13 innings — 21,093 fans.

1:02 A.M.— Memorial Stadium, Baltimore, Maryland—8/3/1984—American League—Blue Jays 5 Orioles 2 in 2:45, rain delay 2:07 top 4th—37,219 fans.

1:02 A.M.— Exhibition Stadium, Toronto, Province of Ontario, Canada—9/26/1985—American League — rain delay 3:18 at start, Red Sox 4 Blue Jays 1 in 2:09—30,443 fans, 2500 fans at start.

1:02 A.M.— Memorial Stadium, Baltimore, Maryland - 6/20/1987 — American League — rain delay at start, Orioles 9 Tigers 5 in 3:12, 2nd rain delay bottom 1st, two rain delays totaled 2:23, suspended after 3:04 and 8 innings — 27,420 fans on 6/20, 28,845 fans on 6/21.

1:01 A.M.— Shibe Park (later Connie Mack Stadium), Philadelphia, Pennsylvania—7/8/1949—National League—Braves 4 Phillies 3 in 4:16 and 16 innings, stretcher delay 0:15 top 13th—11,238 fans.

1:01 A.M.— Forbes Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 7/19/1955 — National League — Pirates 4 Braves 3 in 4:44 and 19 innings — 7953 fans.

1:01 A.M.— Miami Stadium, Miami, Florida — 9/20/ 1957 — International League — Miami Marlins 3 Buffalo Bisons 2 in 5:01 and 18 innings — 5273 fans.

1:01 A.M.—Jacksonville Ball Park (later Municipal Stadium, then Wolfson Park), Jacksonville, Florida— 4/22/1959—South Atlantic (Sally) League—Jacksonville Braves 3 Knoxville Smokies 2 in 5:01 and 21 innings—1814 fans, 200 fans at end. 1:01 A.M.— Sturgis or Valentine, South Dakota week before 8/12/1964—Basin League—Valentine Hearts 6 Sturgis Titans 5 in 5:01 and 18 innings.

1:01 A.M. – Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois – 5/26/1973 and 5/28/1973 – American League – White Sox 6 Indians 3 in 6:03 and 21 innings, rain delay 0:17 top 14th, suspended after 4:39 and 16 innings –19,486 fans on 5/26, 17,419 fans on 5/28.

1:01 A.M.— Memorial Stadium, Baltimore, Maryland—5/6/1989—American League—Mariners 2 Orioles 1 in 2:44, rain delay 1:28 top 4th, then Mariners 6 Orioles 5 in 3:09—19,975 fans.

1:01 A.M.—Le Lacheur Park, Lowell, Massachusetts — 7/29/2002 — New York-Pennsylvania League — Hudson Valley Renegades 13 Lowell Spinners 9 in 5:56 and 18 innings — 5000 fans.

1:00 A.M.— Exposition Park, Fairbanks, Alaska— 6/21/1914 — Amateur — Van Dycks 12 Marquettes 8 in 2:00, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay.

1:00 A.M.— Exposition Park, Fairbanks, Alaska— 6/21/1915 — Amateur — Vans 11 Marks 9 in 2:15, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay — 247 fans.

1:00 A.M.— Forbes Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 6/18/1941— National League — Giants 2 Pirates 2 in 2:43 and 11 innings, Billy Conn-Joe Louis heavyweight title fight radio broadcast delay 0:56 bottom 4th — 24,738 fans.

1:00 A.M. — Tech Field, San Antonio, Texas — 7/7/ 1942 — Texas League — Roosevelt Night pre-game program delay 1:24 at start, Shreveport Captains 4 San Antonio Missions 2 in 3:51 and 18 innings — 3569 fans.

1:00 A.M.— Swayne Field, Toledo, Öhio — 7/11/1942 — American Association — Louisville Colonels 6 Toledo Mud Hens 6 in 4:25 and 20 innings.

1:00 A.M. — Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois — 7/12/1951— American League — Red Sox 3 White Sox 2 in 2:18, then Red Sox 5 White Sox 4 in 4:01 and 17 innings — 52,592 fans, 2000 fans at end.

1:00 A.M.— Honolulu Stadium, Honolulu, Hawai'i —11/15/1951— Major League All-Stars vs. Military/ Semi-Pro—airplane trouble delay 3:00 at start because the plane carrying Joe and Dom DiMaggio, Ed Lopat, Mel Parnell, and Ferris Fain was late; Military/Hawai'ian Semi-Pro Team 8 Lefty O'Doul's All-Star Team 6 in 2:00—15,000 fans.

1:00 A.M.— Parichy Stadium, Chicago, Illinois— 9/14/1954—National Girls League—Bluebirds 6 Bloomer Girls 4 in 4:30 and 20 innings, then Queens 5 Jewels 0 in 7 innings.

1:00 A.M.—Ebbets Field, Brooklyn, New York— 5/2/1957—National League—Cardinals 3 Dodgers 2 in 4:54 and 16 innings—8811 fans.

1:00 A.M.— Parker Field (later Diamond), Richmond, Virginia — 6/6/1957 — International League — Toronto Maple Leafs 4 Richmond Virginians 3 in 3:17 and 14 innings, then Richmond 5 Toronto 4 in 2:55 — 6932 fans, 1500 fans at end. 1:00 A.M.— Jacksonville Ball Park (later Municipal Stadium, then Wolfson Park), Jacksonville, Florida— 5/21/1958— South Atlantic (Sally) League— Savannah Redlegs 6 Jacksonville Braves 6 in 5:00 and 20 innings— 902 fans.

1:00 A.M.—Red Wing (later Silver) Stadium, Rochester, New York—5/29/1964—International League —Toronto Maple Leafs 8 Rochester Red Wings 4 in 5:00 and 19 innings—4070 fans.

1:00 A.M.— MacArthur Stadium, Syracuse, New York—5/30/1964—International League—Buffalo Bisons vs. Syracuse Chiefs, then Buffalo vs. Syracuse.

1:00 A.M. — John Euless Park, Fresno, California — 9/1/1965 — California League — Fresno Giants 10 Bakersfield Bears 9 in 5:15 and 18 innings — 296 fans, 75 fans at end.

1:00 A.M.— Cleveland Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio and R.F.K. Stadium, Washington, D.C.— 9/14/1971 and 9/20/1971— American League — Indians 3 Senators 1 in 1:54, then Senators 8 Indians 6 in 6:15 and 20 innings, suspended after 5:00 and 16 innings in Cleveland, completed 9/20 in Washington — 2639 fans on 9/14 in Cleveland, 100 fans at suspension, 1743 fans on 9/20 in Washington, 333 fans top 17th.

1:00 A.M.— Kimble Field, Wyoming, Michigan— 5/16/1974 — National Association of Intercollegiate Athletics — Aquinas College Saints 7 Ferris State University Bulldogs 6 in 13 innings, two rain delays—100 fans at end.

1:00 A.M. — Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan — 6/11/1975 and 6/12/1975 — American League — Angels 14 Tigers 7 in 2:52, rain delay 0:30 top 3rd, rhubarb delay 0:20 top 4th, 2nd rain delay 0:34, then Tigers 5 Angels 3 in 2:13, suspended after 8 innings — 22,835 fans on 6/11; 14,490 fans on 6/12.

1:00 A.M. — Arlington Stadium, Arlington, Texas — 5/26/1976 and 5/27/1976 — American League — rain delay 0:30 at start, Royals 14 Rangers 2 in 2:54, then Rangers 5 Royals 4 in 3:07 and 10 innings, suspended after 9 innings —16,510 fans on 5/26, 14,755 fans on 5/27.

1:00 A.M. — Breslin Field, Lyndhurst, New Jersey — 8/19/1988 — American Legion — Boyertown 10 Glen Allen 7 in 4:23 and 14 innings.

1:00 A.M. – Cheney Stadium, Tacoma, Washington – 4/28/1989 – Pacific Coast League – Tacoma Tigers

4 Las Vegas Stars 3 in 5:22 and 19 innings — 3693 fans. 1:00 A.M. — Memorial Stadium, Baltimore, Maryland — 8/12/1989 — American League — Red Sox 10 Orioles 8 in 5:23 and 13 innings — 50,865 fans.

1:00 A.M.— Charlotte County Stadium, Port Charlotte, Florida — 8/3/1990 and 8/6/1990— Florida State League — Charlotte Rangers 4 Sarasota White Sox 3 in 5:59 and 16 innings, rain delay 0:50 bottom 2nd, suspended after 5:05 and 14 innings—1665 fans on 8/3, 3026 fans on 8/6.

1:00 A.M.—L'Hospitalet Baseball Stadium, Barcelona, Spain—7/29/1992—Olympics—Cuba 9 USA 6 in 4:00. 1:00 A.M.— Pioneer Park, Marietta, Ohio — 5/11/ 1995 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Bethany College Bison 5 Marietta College Pioneers 4 in 2:45, rain delay 3:15 top 2nd.

1:00 A.M. — Ed Smith Stadium, Sarasota, Florida — 6/28/2003 and 6/29/2003 — Florida State League — Sarasota Red Sox 3 Palm Beach Cardinals 2 in 4:48 and 17 innings, rain delay, 2nd rain delay, suspended top 13th — 850 fans.

1:00 A.M.— Delta Company Desperados Field 'Afar, Tell 'Afar, Iraq—10/20/2003— United States Army 101st Airborne Division League— Hunter Marshall's Team vs. Adam Kamann's Team.

1:00 A.M.— Dick Putz Field, St. Cloud, Minnesota — 8/3/2004 — Northwoods League — Madison Mallards 9 St. Cloud River Bats 5 in 5:53 and 18 innings — 2145 fans.

1:00 A.M.— Margarita Island, Venezuela—11/19/ 2005 — Winter League — Margarita defeated Caribes in 3:00 and 7 innings, 1:30 power failure delay top 1st; then Margarita defeated Caribes in 2:30 and 7 innings.

1:00 A.M.— Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks, Alaska—6/21/2005—Alaska Goldpanners 3 Omaha Strike Zone 1 in 2:30, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay—4000 fans.

1:00 A.M.— Estadio (Stadium) 20 de Noviembre (November 20), San Luis Potosi, State of San Luis Potosi, Mexico — 4/15/2006 — Mexican League — Saltillo Saraperos (Blanket Makers) 7 San Luis Potosi Tuneros (Prickle Pear Growers) 5 in 6:00 and 16 innings —1758 fans.

Finishes After 1 A.M., by Decade (498)

1900's or Earlier (0)

No game, thus far, has been identified from the 1900's or earlier as having finished after 1:00 A.M. local time.

1910's (4)

1:05 A.M.— Imperial Park, Fairbanks, Alaska— 6/21/1907 — Amateur — Tanana Commercial Club 2 Eagles 1 in 2:25 — Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay.

1:07 A.M.— Exposition Park, Fairbanks, Alaska— 6/21/1912 — Amateur — Van Dycks 20 Eagles 5 in 2:07, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay — 667 fans.

1:00 A.M.— Exposition Park, Fairbanks, Alaska— 6/21/1914 — Amateur — Van Dycks 12 Marquettes 8 in 2:00, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay.

1:00 A.M.— Exposition Park, Fairbanks, Alaska— 6/21/1915 — Amateur — Vans 11 Marks 9 in 2:15, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay — 247 fans.

1920's (0)

No game, thus far, has been identified from the 1920's as having finished after 1:00 A.M. local time.

1930's (6)

1:20 A.M. — Wrigley Field, Los Angeles, California — 5/15/1931— Pacific Coast League — Los Angeles Angels 10 Portland Ducks 9 in 4:45 and 16 innings — 4500 fans, 3100 fans at end.

1:10 A.M.— La Grave Field (I), Fort Worth, Texas— 7/4/1932— Texas League—Longview Cannibals 7 Fort Worth Cats 6 in 3:25 and 18 innings, then Longview 2 Fort Worth 1 in 1:35 and 7 innings—2000 fans.

2:00 A.M.—Gus Greenlee Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania—?/??/1930's—Negro National League— Homestead Grays at Pittsburgh Crawfords—scheduled at 12:01 A.M. on a Monday morning to protest the 6:59 P.M. Pennsylvania curfew on Sundays.

2:15 A.M.— Municipal Stadium, Three Rivers, Province of Quebec, Canada—7/5/1938—Provincial League—Three Rivers Renards (Foxes) 4 Quebec City Athletiques 3 in 4:45 and 20 innings.

1:45 A.M.— Hook Ball Park, Paducah, Kentucky— 7/8/1938 — Kentucky-Illinois-Tennessee (Kitty) League — Fulton Eagles 14 Paducah Indians 9 in 5:28 and 20 innings, rhubarb delay top 15th when Fulton Manager Ray Clonts unsuccessfully requested umpires to allow 15-minute delay so players could eat some steaks for strength, vote delay top 19th when Paducah Manager Pete Mondino successfully asked umpires to have remaining fans vote whether the game should continue or not, fans voted unanimously that game should continue.

1:05 A.M.— Memorial Park, Moultrie, Georgia — 7/27/1938 — Georgia-Florida League — Thomasville Orioles 0 Moultrie Packers 0 in 4:35 and 16 innings — 750 fans.

1:45 A.M. — Clintonville, Wisconsin — 6/15/1939 — Northern State League — Clintonville Four Wheel Drive Truckers 1 Two Rivers Polar Bears 0 in 5:15 and 21 innings.

1940's (8)

1:00 A.M.— Forbes Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania— 6/18/1941— National League—Giants 2 Pirates 2 in 2:43 and 11 innings, Billy Conn-Joe Louis heavyweight title fight radio broadcast delay 0:56 bottom 4th— 24,738 fans.

1:00 A.M.— Tech Field, San Antonio, Texas — 7/7/ 1942 — Texas League — Roosevelt Night pre-game program delay 1:24 at start, Shreveport Captains 4 San Antonio Missions 2 in 3:51 and 18 innings — 3569 fans.

1:00 A.M.— Swayne Field, Toledo, Ohio — 7/11/1942 — American Association — Louisville Colonels 6 Toledo Mud Hens 6 in 4:25 and 20 innings.

1:02 A.M. – Griffith Stadium, Washington, D.C. – 6/15/1945 – American League – Red Sox 6 Senators 5 in 3:25 and 14 innings, then Red Sox 4 Senators 4 in 2:42 and 13 innings – 21,093 fans.

1:30 A.M.— Hartwell Field, Mobile, Alabama—8/8/ 1946—Southern Association—Atlanta Crackers 4 Mobile Bears 4 in 4:30 and 21 innings.

1:15 A.M.— Municipal Park, Sanford, Florida— 5/27/1948— Florida State League— Sanford Giants 8 Palatka Azaleas 7 in 5:15 and 21 innings.

2:00 A.M.— Platte, South Dakota — 7/19/1948 — Amateur — Bonesteel 1 Platte 5-Milers (later Killer Tomatoes) 1 in 15 innings — 2000 fans.

1:01 A.M.— Shibe Park (later Connie Mack Stadium), Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 7/8/1949 — National League — Braves 4 Phillies 3 in 4:16 and 16 innings, stretcher delay 0:15 top 13th —11,238 fans.

1950's (30)

1:56 A.M. — Forbes Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 6/22/1951 — National League — power failure delay 2:14 at start, Dodgers 8 Pirates 4 in 2:36, rain delay 0:36 top 6th — 24,966 fans, 10,000 fans at end.

1:00 A.M.—Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois— 7/12/1951—American League—Red Sox 3 White Sox 2 in 2:18, then Red Sox 5 White Sox 4 in 4:01 and 17 innings—52,592 fans, 2000 fans at end.

1:17 A.M.— Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois— 7/13/1951— American League— White Sox 5 Red Sox 4 in 4:47 and 19 innings—25,211 fans.

1:00 A.M.— Honolulu Stadium, Honolulu, Hawai'i —11/15/1951— Major League All-Stars vs. Military/ Semi-Pro—airplane trouble delay 3:00 at start because the plane carrying Joe and Dom DiMaggio, Ed Lopat, Mel Parnell, and Ferris Fain was late; Military/Hawai'ian Semi-Pro Team 8 Lefty O'Doul's All-Star Team 6 in 2:00—15,000 fans.

1:07 A.M.— Sportsman's Park (V) (later Busch Stadium (I)), St. Louis, Missouri—6/20/1952—American League—Senators 5 Browns 5 in 4:34 and 18 innings—7931 fans.

1:04 A.M.— Municipal (later Cleveland) Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio—7/1/1952—American League—Indians 4 Browns 3 in 4:49 and 19 innings—19,855 fans.

1:31 A.M.— Polo Grounds (V), New York, New York — 8/5/1952 — National League — Giants 7 Dodgers 6 in 4:59 and 15 innings — 43,373 fans.

1:30 A.M.— Mabel, Minnesota — 8/10/1952 — Fillmore County League — Spring Grove Grovers 13 Mabel 9 in 20 innings.

2:10 A.M. — Mission Stadium, San Antonio, Texas — 8/11/1952 — Texas League — Oklahoma City Indians 6 San Antonio Missions 2 in 1:55 and 7 innings, then San Antonio 5 Oklahoma City 4 in 5:00 and 19 innings — 3143 fans.

1:13 A.M.— Golden Park, Columbus, Georgia — 4/24/1954 — South Atlantic (Sally) League — Macon Peaches 7 Columbus Cardinals 5 in 5:13 and 20 innings.

1:10 A.M.— Gilmore Field, Hollywood, California— 5/12/1954 — Pacific Coast League — Oakland Oaks 5 Hollywood Stars 1 in 4:52 and 21 innings — 2559 fans. 1:00 A.M.— Parichy Stadium, Chicago, Illinois— 9/14/1954— National Girls League— Bluebirds 6 Bloomer Girls 4 in 4:30 and 20 innings, then Queens 5 Jewels 0 in 7 innings.

1:40 A.M.— Griffin Field, Fairbanks, Alaska—6/21/ 1955—Amateur—Fairbanks All-Stars 12 Military All-Stars 8 in 3:10, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay.

1:01 A.M.— Forbes Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 7/19/1955 — National League — Pirates 4 Braves 3 in 4:44 and 19 innings — 7953 fans.

1:06 A.M. — Nicollet Park, Minneapolis, Minnesota — 9/1/1955 — American Association — Minneapolis Millers 6 Denver Bears 5 in 2:37, then Denver 6 Minneapolis 6 in 3:20 and 11 innings — 5077 fans.

1:15 A.M.— Municipal Stadium, Jamestown or Maple City Park, Hornell, New York—5/23/1956— New York-Pennsylvania League—Jamestown Falcons 25 Hornell Dodgers 21 in 5:15 and extra innings.

1:32 A.M. — Griffin Field, Fairbanks, Alaska — 6/21/ 1956 — Amateur — Air Force All-Stars 8 Civilian All-Stars 5 in 3:02, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay.

1:05 A.M.— Minster, Ohio — 7/18/1956 — American Legion — St. Mary's 4 Lima 3 in 5:30 and 21 innings.

1:05 A.M.— Disch Field, Austin, Texas—9/7/1956— Texas League—Austin Senators 4 Dallas Eagles 3 in 5:01 and 20 innings—2157 fans.

1:00 A.M.— Ebbets Field, Brooklyn, New York— 5/2/1957 — National League — Cardinals 3 Dodgers 2 in 4:54 and 16 innings — 8811 fans.

1:00 A.M.— Parker Field (later Diamond), Richmond, Virginia — 6/6/1957 — International League — Toronto Maple Leafs 4 Richmond Virginians 3 in 3:17 and 14 innings, then Richmond 5 Toronto 4 in 2:55 — 6932 fans, 1500 fans at end.

1:03 A.M.— Municipal (later Rosenblatt) Stadium, Omaha, Nebraska—8/16/1957—American Association—Wichita Braves 10 Omaha Cardinals 7 in 4:26 and 15 innings—3771 fans.

1:01 A.M.— Miami Stadium, Miami, Florida— 9/20/1957 — International League — Miami Marlins 3 Buffalo Bisons 2 in 5:01 and 18 innings — 5273 fans.

1:00 A.M.— Jacksonville Ball Park (later Municipal Stadium, then Wolfson Park), Jacksonville, Florida — 5/21/1958 — South Atlantic (Sally) League — Savannah Redlegs 6 Jacksonville Braves 6 in 5:00 and 20 innings — 902 fans.

1:10 A.M.— Crosley Field, Cincinnati, Ohio — 6/24/ 1958 — National League — Dodgers 13 Reds 10 in 3:39 and 10 innings, then Dodgers 7 Reds 2 in 3:11 and 11 innings — 20,635 fans.

1:04 A.M.— Lane Field, San Diego, California— 7/2/1958—Pacific Coast League—San Diego Padres 12 Salt Lake City Bees 11 in 5:04 and 16 innings— 5309 fans.

1:01 A.M.— Jacksonville Ball Park (later Municipal Stadium, then Wolfson Park), Jacksonville, Florida — 4/22/1959 — South Atlantic (Sally) League — Jacksonville Braves 3 Knoxville Smokies 2 in 5:01 and 21 innings —1814 fans, 200 fans at end.

2:15 A.M. — Lincoln Park Stadium (later Stocker Stadium, then Sam Suplizio Field), Grand Junction, Colorado — 5/23/1959 — National Junior Collegiate Athletic Association — Phoenix College Bears 6 Wilmington Junior College (now University of North Carolina-Wilmington) Seahawks 3.

2:00 A.M.— Ranger Field, Fairbanks, Alaska — 6/21/ 1959 — Amateur — Anchorage Sales and Service 16 Ladd Air Force Base Flyers 6, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay.

1:30 A.M. — El Gran Estadio del Cerro (later Estadio Latinoamericano), Havana, Cuba — 7/25/1959 and 6/7/1959 — International League — Havana Sugar Kings 1 Rochester Red Wings 0 in 2:10, completion of game begun back on 6/7 which had been suspended after 7 innings, then Rochester 4 Havana 4 in 3:22 and 11 innings, 26th of July Cuban Revolution Celebration National Anthem and gunfire delay bottom 11th, 2nd gunfire delay bottom 11th, 3rd gunfire delay bottom 11th, 4th gunfire delay 1:00 top 12th after Red Wing 3B Coach Frank Verdi and Sugar King SS Leo Cardenas both injured by bullets, game finally suspended, but never completed — 2572 fans on 7/25; 40,000 fans when called off.

1960's (66)

2:50 A.M.— McCormick Field, Asheville, North Carolina —?/??/between 1960 and 1966 — South Atlantic (Sally) League — Knoxville Smokies vs. Asheville Tourists in 15 innings, then Knoxville defeated Asheville in 14 innings.

1:27 A.M. — Mission Stadium, San Antonio, Texas — 4/29/1960 — Texas League — Rio Grande Valley Giants 4 San Antonio Missions 2 in 5:42 and 24 innings, scoreboard fire delay bottom 23rd — 820 fans.

1:05 A.M.— Breadon Field (later Max Hess Stadium), Allentown, Pennsylvania—6/4/1960—Eastern League—Allentown Red Sox 2 Binghamton Triplets 1 in 13 innings, then Binghamton 16 Allentown 16 in 7 innings.

1:05 A.M.— Connie Mack Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania—6/21/1960—National League—Phillies 7 Cubs 6 in 4:06 and 13 innings, then Phillies 7 Cubs 6 in 2:34, suspended after 2:24 and 8 innings— 26,233 fans on 6/21, 9342 fans on 6/22.

3:15 A.M.— Point Stadium, Johnstown, Pennsylvania — 8/19/1960 — All-American Amateur Association — previous tournament action delay at start, Baltimore Leone's Restaurant 5 Pittsburgh Beechview 3 in 3:30 and 12 innings.

1:21 A.M.— Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts— 8/30/1960— American League— Red Sox 5 Tigers 4 in 4:06 and 15 innings, then Red Sox 3 Tigers 2 in 2:50 and 10 innings, stretcher delay bottom 7th—27,175 fans.

1:31 A.M.— Disch Field, Austin, Texas — 5/22/1961 — Texas League — Amarillo Gold Sox 8 Austin Senators 7 in 5:17 and 16 innings — 508 fans. 1:15 A.M.— Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts— 6/8/1961— American League— Red Sox 6 Angels 5 in 2:35, then Angels 4 Red Sox 4 in 3:21 and 11 innings, rain delay 0:47 top 12th—11,042 fans.

1:30 A.M. — Mission Stadium, San Antonio, Texas — 6/19/1961— Texas League — Amarillo Gold Sox 2 San Antonio Missions 0 in 1:41 and 7 innings, then Amarillo 2 San Antonio 1 in 4:59 and 19 innings —1237 fans.

1:15 A.M.—Connie Mack Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania—6/28/1961—National League—Giants 7 Phillies 7 in 5:11 and 15 innings—11,597 fans.

1:35 A.M.— Sherman Field, Lincoln, Nebraska— 8/19/1961—Illinois-Indiana-Iowa (3-I) League—Lincoln Chiefs vs. Fox Cities Foxes, then Lincoln 6 Fox Cities 3 in 16 innings.

1:15 A.M.— Colt Stadium, Houston, Texas—4/25/ 1962—National League—Cardinals 5 Colt .45's (later Astros) 5 in 5:13 and 17 innings—17,265 fans.

1:08 A.M.— Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California—5/1/1962—National League—Dodgers 6 Cubs 5 in 5:06 and 16 innings—20,069 fans; 200 fans at end.

1:07 A.M.— Forbes Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 6/5/1962 and 6/6/1962 — National League — rain delay 1:19 at start, Dodgers 3 Pirates 2 in 2:52, then Dodgers 8 Pirates 3 in 2:50, suspended after 2:34 and 8 innings —18,579 fans on 6/5, 13,667 fans on 6/6.

3:00 A.M. – Legion Field, Claremore, Oklahoma – 7/23/1962 – American Legion – previous tournament action delay 3:30 at start, Bartlesville Philnines 8 Claremore Merchants 6 in 3:30 and 11 innings –100 fans, 12 fans at end.

1:30 A.M.— Oiler Park, Tulsa, Oklahoma — 5/31/ 1963 — Texas League — Tulsa Oilers 9 Albuquerque Dukes 8 in 5:47 and 17 innings — 2088 fans.

1:52 A.M. — Forbes Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 6/6/1963 — National League — rain delay 1:39 followed immediately by automatic tarpaulin malfunction delay 0:30 at start, Reds 7 Pirates 5 in 2:39, then Reds 10 Pirates 5 in 2:36 —12,309 fans, 1000 fans at end.

1:03 A.M.— Cleveland Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio — 6/14/1963 — American League — Senators 5 Indians 2 in 2:12, then Indians 3 Senators 2 in 4:33 and 19 innings —12,377 fans, 1000 fans at end.

2:01 A.M.— Fairground Park, Fond du Lac, Wisconsin — 7/31/1963 — Fox River Valley League — Little Chute-Kimberly Papermakers 11 Fond du Lac 5 in 6:01 and 21 innings.

2:30 A.M. – Forbes Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania – 8/9/1963 – National League – rain delay 1:00 at start, Colt .45's (later Astros) 7 Pirates 6 in 3:58 and 15 innings, then Pirates 7 Colt .45's 6 in 3:10 and 11 innings – 9420 fans, 300 fans at end – author and his father sat in second deck behind third base.

2:11 A.M. — Colt Stadium, Houston, Texas — 5/23/ 1964 — National League — rain delay 1:05 at start, Colt .45's 8 Mets 4 in 2:42, 2nd rain delay 1:20 top 6th, then Colt .45's 4 Mets 0 in 2:04 — 9457 fans.

1:03 A.M. – Crosley Field, Cincinnati, Ohio – 5/28/

1964 — National League — Dodgers 2 Reds 2 in 4:58 and 17 innings — 7772 fans.

1:00 A.M.— Red Wing (later Silver) Stadium, Rochester, New York—5/29/1964—International League — Toronto Maple Leafs 8 Rochester Red Wings 4 in 5:00 and 19 innings—4070 fans.

1:00 A.M.—MacArthur Stadium, Syracuse, New York—5/30/1964—International League—Buffalo Bisons vs. Syracuse Chiefs, then Buffalo vs. Syracuse.

2:34 A.M.—Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks, Alaska—6/21/1964—Amateur—Grand Junction Eagles 10 Alaska Goldpanners 5 in 3:34, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay— 2500 fans.

1:19 A.M.— Forbes Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 7/13/1964 — National League — Cardinals 5 Pirates 4 in 3:34 and 12 innings, then Cardinals 12 Pirates 5 in 3:00—14,773 fans.

1:01 A.M.— Sturgis or Valentine, South Dakota week before 8/12/1964—Basin League—Valentine Hearts 6 Sturgis Titans 5 in 5:01 and 18 innings.

1:24 A.M.— Connie Mack Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 8/18/1964 — National League — Cubs 4 Phillies 3 in 4:46 and 16 innings, rain delay 0:37 top 10th —18,401 fans.

1:15 A.M.— Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California—9/19/1964—National League—Dodgers 4 Phillies 3 in 5:13 and 16 innings—27,146 fans.

1:06 A.M.— Wahconah Park (II), Pittsfield, Massachusetts—6/19/1965—Eastern League—Elmira Pioneers 8 Pittsfield Red Sox 7 in 2:11 and 7 innings, three delays 1:13, once for rain and twice for blinding sunlight above the center field fence, then Elmira 9 Pittsfield 7 in 2:59 and 9 innings, fog delay bottom 6th—863 fans.

1:03 A.M. — Dunn Field, Elmira, New York — 6/25/1965 — Eastern League — Pittsfield Red Sox 1 Elmira Pioneers 1 in 5:33 and 21 innings — called off at 1:03 A.M. in the early morning of 6/26, then rhubarb delay top 22nd, Pioneers owner argued there was no curfew rule, by the time the league president told the umpires the owner was correct and the game should continue, all the players had showered and gone home, called off at 1:xx A.M. for the second time — 530 fans.

1:45 A.M.— Forbes Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 6/29/1965 — National League — Pirates 2 Reds 1 in 4:19 and 16 innings, then Reds 7 Pirates 5 in 2:42 — 28,589 fans.

1:12 A.M.— Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan— 7/16/1965— American League— rain delay 1:50 at start, Orioles 2 Tigers 1 in 3:22 and 11 innings—15,327 fans.

1:23 A.M. — Paterson Field, Montgomery, Alabama — 7/31/1965 — Southern League — Columbus Confederate Yankees 6 Montgomery Rebels 6 in 5:23 and 19 innings.

1:45 A.M.—Sioux Falls Stadium (later Howard Wood Field), Sioux Falls, South Dakota—8/3/1965— Basin League—Pierre Cowboys 5 Sioux Falls Packers 3 in 6:15 and 24 innings—421 fans. 1:10 A.M.— Crosley Field, Cincinnati, Ohio — 8/27/ 1965 — National League — Cardinals 6 Reds 5 in 5:00 and 14 innings — 23,595 fans.

2:00 A.M.— Crosley Field, Cincinnati, Ohio — 8/31/ 1965 — National League — rain delay 0:24 at start, Braves 5 Reds 3 in 3:00, 2nd rain delay 2:08 bottom 5th, then Reds 4 Braves 1 in 1:36 and 3 innings, 3rd rain delay 0:45 top 4th, called off—19,645 fans.

1:00 A.M. — John Euless Park, Fresno, California — 9/1/1965 — California League — Fresno Giants 10 Bakersfield Bears 9 in 5:15 and 18 innings — 296 fans, 75 fans at end.

1:03 A.M. — Cleveland Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio — 9/20/1965 — American League — Indians 5 Tigers 4 in 4:58 and 14 innings —1831 fans.

1:05 A.M.— Shea Stadium, New York, New York— 10/2/1965— National League— Phillies 6 Mets 0 in 2:31, then Phillies 0 Mets 0 in 4:29 and 18 innings— 10,371 fans.

2:29 A.M.— Al Lang Field (I), St. Petersburg, Florida — 6/14/1966 — Florida State League — Miami Marlins 4 St. Petersburg Cardinals 3 in 6:59 and 29 innings — 740 fans, 175 fans at end.

2:00 A.M.— Lawrence Hardball Park, Lodi, California — 8/31/1966 — California League — Reno Silver Sox 6 Lodi Crushers 5 in 6:00 and 23 innings — 502 fans, 20 fans at end.

1:21 A.M.— Frank Lawrence Stadium, Portsmouth, Virginia — 4/18/1967 — Carolina League — Kinston Eagles 5 Tidewater Tides 5 in 5:50 and 20 innings — 526 fans, 25 fans at end.

1:22 A.M. — Honolulu Stadium, Honolulu, Hawai'i — 5/23/1967 — Pacific Coast League — Portland Beavers 7 Hawai'i Islanders 4 in 5:04 and 16 innings, rain delay 7th, brawl delay top 8th, 2nd rain delay 11th, 3rd rain delay 13th.

2:44 A.M.—D.C. (later R.F.K.) Stadium, Washington, D.C.—6/12/1967—American League—Senators 6 White Sox 5 in 6:38 and 22 innings—7236 fans, 2000 fans at end.

2:15 A.M.— Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois— 7/25/1967— American League— White Sox 3 Indians 1 in 2:55, then White Sox 6 Indians 5 in 4:47 and 16 innings—18,152 fans.

1:15 A.M.— Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan— 8/8/1967—American League—Tigers 2 White Sox 1 in 2:53 and 10 innings, then White Sox 6 Tigers 4 in 3:30 and 10 innings—44,295 fans, 15,000 fans at end.

1:44 A.M.— Metropolitan Stadium, Bloomington, Minnesota—8/9/1967— American League— Senators 9 Twins 7 in 5:40 and 20 innings—16,901 fans, 4000 fans at end.

1:47 A.M.—Ernie Shore Field, Winston-Salem, North Carolina—8/14/1967—Carolina League— Winston-Salem Red Sox 13 Greensboro Yankees 12 in 5:47 and 19 innings—1708 fans.

1:21 A.M.— D.C. (later R.F.K.) Stadium, Washington, D.C.— 8/17/1967 — American League — Indians 8 Senators 3 in 5:14 and 16 innings —12,488 fans, 2000 fans at end.

1:57 A.M.— Yankee Stadium (I), New York, New York—8/29/1967—American League—Red Sox 2 Yankees 1 in 2:10, then Yankees 4 Red Sox 3 in 6:09 and 20 innings—40,314 fans.

1:45 A.M.—Crosley Field, Cincinnati, Ohio— 9/1/1967—National League—Giants 1 Reds 0 in 5:40 and 21 innings—13,745 fans, 200 fans at end.

1:37 A.M.— Astrodome, Houston, Texas—4/15/ 1968—National League—Astros 1 Mets 0 in 6:06 and 24 innings—14,219 fans, 3000 fans at end.

2:22 A.M. — Ray Winder Field, Little Rock, Arkansas — 4/19/1968 — Texas League — Arkansas Travelers 13 Memphis Blues 2 in 2:12 and 7 innings, then Memphis 6 Arkansas 3 in 5:10 and 16 innings — 875 fans.

1:30 A.M.— Boysen Park, Anaheim, California— 4/26/1968— California High School League— Santa Ana High School Saints 6 Anaheim High School Colonists 6 in 5:45 and 19 innings, automatic sprinkers delay 0:45 top 20th, called a tie—100 fans, 25 fans at end— called off at 1:30 A.M. because automated sprinklers which had come on at 12:45 A.M. could not be turned off.

1:13 A.M. — Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan — 8/6/1968 and 8/7/1968 — American League — Tigers 2 Indians 1 in 4:28 and 17 innings, then Tigers 5 Indians 2 in 2:33, suspended after 2:25 and 8 innings — 48,413 fans on 8/6; 30,402 fans on 8/7.

1:07 A.M.—Yankee Stadium (I), New York, New York—8/23/1968—American League—Yankees 2 Tigers 1 in 2:23, then Tigers 3 Yankees 3 in 5:04 and 19 innings—33,880 fans.

1:15 A.M.—Municipal Memorial (later Gpu, then FirstEnergy) Stadium, Reading, Pennsylvania—9/4/ 1968—Eastern League—Reading Phillies 8 Binghamton Triplets 7 in 5:15 and 19 innings.

2:13 A.M.— Forbes Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania— 9/11/1968— National League— Phillies 8 Pirates 6 in 3:42 and 12 innings, then Pirates 6 Phillies 4 in 2:50, rain delay 0:56 bottom 2nd—2789 fans.

1:30 A.M.— Goodland Field, Appleton, Wisconsin — 5/2/1969 — Midwest League — Appleton Foxes 8 Decatur Giants 7 in 5:30 and 17 innings.

1:04 A.M.— Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California—6/20/1969— American League—Athletics 3 Twins 2 in 5:04 and 14 innings— 20,691 fans.

1:08 A.M. — Parque Deportivo del Seguro Social (Social Security Stadium), Mexico City, Distrito Federal (Federal District), Mexico — 7/14/1969 — Mexican League — Reynosa Broncos 5 Mexico City Diablos Rojos (Red Devils) 3 in 5:38 and 22 innings — 3895 fans.

1:05 A.M. — Sicks' Stadium, Seattle, Washington — 7/19/1969 and 7/20/1969 — American League — Twins 11 Pilots 7 in 5:41 and 18 innings, suspended after 5:01 and 16 innings, moon landing delay 0:20 bottom 17th —12,067 fans on 7/19, 8287 fans on 7/20. 1:10 A.M.— Barney Tadsen Field, Brownton, Minnesota — 7/31/1969 — Town Team League — Brownton 6 New Ulm Kaiserhoff 5 in 5:10 and 18 innings.

1:43 A.M.—Crosley Field, Cincinnati, Ohio— 8/9/1969—National League—Reds 4 Phillies 2 in 3:08 and 12 innings, tornado/rain delay 2:35 top 2nd, Phillies dugout was flooded with 3 feet of water so they had to sit out on the field for the last 11 innings— 19,239 fans.

1:06 A.M. – Atlanta-Fulton County Stadium, Atlanta, Georgia – 8/15/1969 – National League – Braves 8 Cardinals 2 in 2:06, rain delay 3:00 bottom 1st – 23,336 fans.

1970's (66)

1:42 A.M.— Danville Stadium, Danville, Illinois— 6/15/1970— Midwest League—rain delay 3:16 at start, Quad City Angels 11 Danville Warriors 7 in 3:56 and 11 innings—505 fans, 175 fans at end.

1:57 A.M.— Del Webb Field, Modesto, California — 6/19/1970— California League — Modesto Reds 9 Reno Silver Sox 8 in 6:02 and 19 innings —1275 fans, 400 fans at end.

1:15 A.M.— Parque Deportivo del Seguro Social (Social Security Stadium), Mexico City, Distrito Federal (Federal District) or Guadalajara, Mexico-6/24/1970— Mexican League — Mexico City Diablos Rojos (Red Devils) 10 Jalisco Charros 9 in 5:45 and 18 innings.

1:19 A.M.— Three Rivers Stadium, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania—7/18/1970— National League—rain delay 1:05 at start, Reds 3 Pirates 1 in 2:46 and 10 innings, 2nd rain delay 1:23 top 5th—27,906 fans.

1:06 A.M. – Atlanta-Fulton County Stadium, Atlanta, Georgia – 9/5/1970 – National League – Braves 5 Giants 2 in 2:38, rain delay 1:00 bottom 2nd; 2nd and 3rd rain delays 0:39 and 0:34 in middle innings, then Braves 5 Giants 3 in 2:10–13,820 fans.

1:28 A.M.—V.J. Keefe Stadium, San Antonio, Texas — 5/8/1971—Dixie Association — San Antonio Missions 6 Birmingham Athletics 5 in 5:43 and 19 innings — 3574 fans.

1:36 A.M.— R.F.K. Stadium, Washington, D.C.— 6/4/1971—American League—rain delay 0:17 at start, Athletics 6 Senators 3 in 5:19 and 21 innings—6159 fans.

1:05 A.M.— Recreation Park, Visalia, California— 6/19/1971 and 6/20/1971— California League— Visalia Mets 11 Bakersfield Dodgers 9 in 7:00 and 22 innings, suspended after 4:50 and 15 innings, called a tie, however league president later reversed tie game ruling and ordered game to be continued— 867 fans on 6/19, 449 fans on 6/20.

1:25 A.M.— V.J. Keefe Stadium, San Antonio, Texas — 7/3/1971— Dixie Association — Arkansas Travelers 12 San Antonio Missions 9 in 5:25 and 19 innings — 1074 fans.

1:05 A.M.— Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum,

Oakland, California — 7/9/1971 — American League — Athletics 1 Angels 0 in 5:05 and 20 innings — 22,938 fans.

1:26 A.M.—Ray Winder Field, Little Rock, Arkansas—7/21/1971—Dixie Association—Arkansas Travelers 5 Dallas-Fort Worth Spurs 4 in 5:56 and 22 innings—7030 fans, 600 fans at end.

1:45 A.M.— Ray Winder Field, Little Rock, Arkansas — 8/7/1971— Dixie Association — Jacksonville Suns 4 Arkansas Travelers 2 in 3:58 and 16 innings, then Arkansas 3 Jacksonville 2 in 3:16 and 11 innings — 2638 fans.

2:45 A.M.— Barney Tadsen Field, Brownton, Minnesota — 9/9/1971— Town Team League — previous tournament action delay 3:40 at start, Delano Athletics 6 Lake Henry 4 in 2:35.

2:12 A.M.—Atlanta-Fulton County Stadium, Atlanta, Georgia—9/10/1971—National League—Braves 7 Giants 5 in 3:41 and 11 innings, rain delay 2:19 bottom 11th—8403 fans, 150 fans at end.

1:00 A.M.— Cleveland Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio and R.F.K. Stadium, Washington, D.C.— 9/14/1971 and 9/20/1971— American League — Indians 3 Senators 1 in 1:54, then Senators 8 Indians 6 in 6:15 and 20 innings, suspended after 5:00 and 16 innings in Cleveland, completed 9/20 in Washington— 2639 fans on 9/14 in Cleveland, 100 fans at suspension, 1743 fans on 9/20 in Washington, 333 fans top 17th.

2:29 A.M.— San Diego (later Jack Murphy, then Qualcomm) Stadium, San Diego, California— 9/24/1971— National League— Astros 2 Padres 1 in 5:25 and 21 innings, then Padres 5 Astros 4 in 2:14, fog delay 0:14 bottom 9th— 6339 fans, 100 fans at end.

1:05 A.M.— Metropolitan Stadium, Bloomington, Minnesota — 5/12/1972 and 5/13/1972 — American League — Brewers 4 Twins 3 in 5:47 and 22 innings, suspended after 5:35 and 21 innings — 8628 fans on 5/12, 7871 fans on 5/13.

1:39 A.M.—San Diego (later Jack Murphy, then Qualcomm) Stadium, San Diego, California—6/7/ 1972—National League—Pirates 12 Padres 5 in 2:49, then Pirates 1 Padres 0 in 4:27 and 18 innings—7371 fans.

1:04 A.M.— Riverfront Stadium (later Cinergy Field), Cincinnati, Ohio—8/8/1972—National League— Reds 2 Dodgers 1 in 4:17 and 19 innings, rain delay 0:43 bottom lst—24,453 fans.

1:05 A.M.— Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California — 8/10/1972 and 8/11/1972 — American League — Athletics 5 White Sox 3 in 5:31 and 19 innings, suspended after 5:04 and 17 innings — 11,818 fans on 8/10, 16,065 fans on 8/11.

2:00 A.M.— Riverside, California— 3/29/1973— National Collegiate Athletic Association— previous tournament action delay at start, University of Southern California Trojans 9 Washington State University Cougars 2. 1:45 A.M.— Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California—5/24/1973—National League—Mets 7 Dodgers 3 in 5:42 and 19 innings—27,580 fans; 1000 fans at end.

1:01 A.M. — Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois — 5/26/1973 and 5/28/1973 — American League — White Sox 6 Indians 3 in 6:03 and 21 innings, rain delay 0:17 top 14th, suspended after 4:39 and 16 innings —19,486 fans on 5/26, 17,419 fans on 5/28.

1:09 A.M.— Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks, Alaska — 6/21/1973 — NCAA at Amateur — Brigham Young University Cougars 8 Alaska Goldpanners 5, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay — 4300 fans.

1:21 A.M.— Riverfront Stadium (later Cinergy Field), Cincinnati, Ohio—7/3/1973— National League rain delay 2:25 at start, Reds 6 Giants 3 in 2:51— 26,269 fans.

2:06 A.M.— Regional Park, Midwest City, Oklahoma—7/??/1973—American Legion—Post 170 Midwest City 2 Post 170 Choctaw 1 in 6:06 and 24 innings—50 fans, 15 fans at end.

1:53 A.M. — Estadio (Stadium) Alberto Hoeffer, Nogales, State of Sonora, Mexico — 7/29/1973 — Liga (League) Norte de Sonora — Cananea Mineros (Miners) 4 Nogales 2 in 6:23 and 23 innings —1800 fans.

1:11 A.M.— County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin — 8/31/1973 — American League — Brewers 3 Red Sox 2 in 2:33, then Brewers 5 Red Sox 4 in 4:08 and 13 innings — 22,198 fans.

2:12 A.M.— Parc (Park) Jarry, Montreal, Province of Quebec, Canada—9/7/1973—National League— Mets 1 Expos 0 in 2:43, blinding sunlight delay 0:16, then Mets 4 Expos 2 in 4:38 and 15 innings—24,167 fans.

1:59 A.M.— Parc (Park) Jarry, Montreal, Province of Quebec, Canada—9/17/1973—National League— Expos 5 Cardinals 4 in 2:47, then Cardinals 5 Expos 3 in 3:25 and 12 innings, 1:12 rain delay top 12th— 20,160 fans; 200 fans at end.

1:00 A.M. — Kimble Field, Wyoming, Michigan — 5/16/1974 — National Association of Intercollegiate Athletics — Aquinas College Saints 7 Ferris State University Bulldogs 6 in 13 innings, two rain delays —100 fans at end.

1:10 A.M. — Danville Stadium, Danville, Illinois — 6/4/1974 — Midwest League — Waterloo Royals 7 Danville Warriors 5 in 5:35 and 21 innings — 722 fans, 94 fans at end.

1:18 A.M.—Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks, Alaska—6/21/1974—NCAA at Amateur—Alaska Goldpanners 7 Washington State University Cougars 6, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay—4473 fans.

1:56 A.M.— Parc (Park) Jarry, Montreal, Province of Quebec, Canada—6/28/1974—National League— Cubs 8 Expos 7 in 4:55 and 18 innings, then Expos 15 Cubs 0 in 2:22—20,098 fans, 8000 fans at end.

3:13 A.M. - Shea Stadium, New York, New York -

9/11/1974 — National League — Cardinals 4 Mets 3 in 7:04 and 25 innings —13,460 fans, 1000 fans at end including Commissioner Bowie Kuhn.

1:13 A.M. — Memorial Stadium, Baltimore, Maryland — 9/13/1974 — American League — Orioles 3 Indians 2 in 2:08, then Orioles 8 Indians 6 in 3:00, rain delay 1:48 top 7th, 2nd rain delay 0:19 also top 7th, suspended after 8 innings —16,283 fans on 9/13, 11,715 fans on 9/14.

2:06 A.M.— Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania—9/13/1974— National League— Cardinals 7 Phillies 3 in 4:47 and 17 innings, rain delay 1:41 top 17th—35,290 fans, 200 fans at end.

1:06 A.M. — Arlington Stadium, Arlington, Texas — 5/14/1975 and 5/15/1975 — American League — rain delay 1:13 at start, Brewers 3 Rangers 2 in 4:12 and 15 innings, suspended after 3:53 and 14 innings —12,090 fans on 5/14, 22,823 fans on 5/15.

1:00 A.M.— Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan— 6/11/1975 and 6/12/1975 — American League — Angels 14 Tigers 7 in 2:52, rain delay 0:30 top 3rd, rhubarb delay 0:20 top 4th, 2nd rain delay 0:34, then Tigers 5 Angels 3 in 2:13, suspended after 8 innings — 22,835 fans on 6/11; 14,490 fans on 6/12.

1:06 A.M. — Shea Stadium, New York, New York and Metropolitan Stadium, Bloomington, Minnesota — 7/12/1975 and 7/13/1975 and 7/19/1975 — American League — Yankees 8 Twins 7 in 5:11 and 16 innings, rain delay 0:30 bottom 5th, suspended after 13½ innings in New York, rained out 7/13 in New York, finally completed 7/19 in Bloomington —13,573 fans on 7/12 in New York, 6000 fans at suspension, 37,602 fans on 7/19 in Bloomington.

1:11 A.M.— Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania–8/4/1975—National League—Cubs 3 Phillies 2 in 2:52, rain delay 0:21 4th, 2nd rain delay 2:18—16,285 fans.

3:15 A.M.— Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 9/26/1975 — National League — Phillies 4 Mets 3 in 3:48 and 12 innings, rain delay 0:24 top 2nd, 2nd rain delay 0:27 bottom 9th, then Mets 3 Phillies 2 in 3:08 and 12 innings, 3rd rain delay 1:17 top 3rd — 20,189 fans, 200 fans at end.

2:00 A.M.— Estadio (Stadium) Hiram Bithorn, San Juan, Puerto Rico—12/26/1975 — Winter League — Santurce Cangrejeros (Crabbers) 5 Bayamon Vaqueros (Cowboys) 2 in 4:00 and 21 innings.

1:00 A.M. — Arlington Stadium, Arlington, Texas — 5/26/1976 and 5/27/1976 — American League — rain delay 0:30 at start, Royals 14 Rangers 2 in 2:54, then Rangers 5 Royals 4 in 3:07 and 10 innings, suspended after 9 innings —16,510 fans on 5/26, 14,755 fans on 5/27.

1:45 A.M.— Stade (Stadium) Municipal (later Fernand-Bedard), Trois Rivieres (Three Rivers), Province of Quebec, Canada — 7/30/1976 — Eastern League — West Haven Yankees 5 Trois Rivieres Aigles (Eagles) 0 in 16 innings.

1:16 A.M.-Memorial Stadium, Baltimore, Mary-

land – 8/14/1976 – American League – Orioles 8 White Sox 6 in 3:00, rain delay 1:35 top 2nd, then Orioles 6 White Sox 5 in 2:48 –16,514 fans.

1:36 A.M.— Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York—8/25/1976—American League—Yankees 5 Twins 4 in 5:27 and 19 innings—24,351 fans.

3:00 A.M.— Estadio (Stadium) Cordoba, Cordoba, State of Veracruz, Mexico—4/28/1977—Mexican League—Aguascalientes Rieleros (Railroadmen) 6 Cordoba Cafeteros (Coffee Growers) 2 in 6:30 and 23 innings—4000 fans, 800 fans at end.

1:15 A.M.— Stade Olympique (Olympic Stadium), Montreal, Province of Quebec, Canada—5/21/1977— National League—Padres 11 Expos 8 in 5:33 and 21 innings—16,892 fans, 8000 fans at end.

1:54 A.M. — Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks, Alaska — 6/21/1977 — Amateur — Alaska Goldpanners 12 Red Deer M&K Generals 11, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay — 4000 fans.

1:30 A.M.—Ray Winder Field, Little Rock, Arkansas —7/21/1977 — Texas League — El Paso Diablos 10 Arkansas Travelers 2 in 2:12 and 7 innings, then Arkansas 2 El Paso 1 in 4:14 and 17 innings — 2474 fans.

3:23 A.M. — Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 8/10/1977 — National League — rain delay 1:03 at start, Phillies 6 Expos 1 in 2:11, 2nd rain delay 2:27 bottom 3rd, then Phillies 6 Expos 1 in 2:07, 3rd rain delay 1:26 top 2nd, dawn was at 5:09 A.M. — 46,664 fans, 15,000 fans at start of 2nd game, 5000 fans at end.

2:26 A.M. – Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts – 8/24/1977 – American League – Rangers 3 Red Sox 0 in 2:26, rain delay 2:22 top 6th, then Rangers 6 Red Sox 3 in 3:01–31,784 fans, 4000 fans at end.

1:16 A.M. — Three Rivers Stadium, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 6/26/1978 and 4/23/1978 — National League — Pirates 5 Cardinals 4 in 3:16, completion of 2nd game begun back on 4/23 which had been suspended after 1:59 and 6 innings to allow Cardinals to catch a flight to Montreal, rain delay 0:38, 2nd rain delay 1:37, then Pirates 11 Cardinals 8 in 3:01—5045 fans on 6/26, 10,008 fans back on 4/23.

1:16 A.M.— Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York— 8/2/1978 and 8/3/1978—American League— Red Sox 7 Yankees 5 in 5:00 and 17 innings, rain delay 0:35 top 8th, 2nd rain delay 0:17 bottom 12th, suspended after 14 innings—52,701 fans on 8/2, 20,000 fans at suspension, 53,379 fans on 8/3.

1:23 A.M. — Riverfront Stadium (later Cinergy Field), Cincinnati, Ohio — 8/28/1978 — National League rain delay 2:46 at start, Pirates 3 Reds 1 in 2:32 — 23,612 fans, 7000 fans at end.

2:22 A.M.— Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts— 6/19/1979— American League— Tigers 10 Red Sox 4 in 4:35 and 14 innings, rain delay 2:12—34,153 fans.

1:30 A.M. – Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks, Alaska – 6/21/1979 – NCAA at Amateur – Alaska Goldpanners 8 University of North Carolina Tar Heels Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay – 4000 fans.

2:55 A.M.— Riverfront Stadium (later Cinergy Field), Cincinnati, Ohio—7/12/1979—National League rain delay 2:16 at start, Cubs 10 Reds 8 in 3:23, 2nd rain delay 1:11 top 9th—21,804 fans, 300 fans at end.

1:03 A.M.— Cleveland Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio— 7/31/1979— American League— Indians 11 Red Sox 10 in 3:30 and 11 innings, rain delay 0:59 at start of 2nd game, then Indians 3 Red Sox 0 in 2:38—39,384 fans.

2:03 A.M. — Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 8/10/1979 — National League — rain delay 0:29 at start, Phillies 4 Pirates 3 in 3:14 and 12 innings, 2nd rain delay 0:44 bottom 1st, 3rd rain delay 0:19 top 11th, then Pirates 3 Phillies 2 in 3:03 — 63,346 fans; 20,000 fans at end.

1:15 A.M.— Metropolitan Stadium, Bloomington, Minnesota—8/10/1979—American League—Athletics 6 Twins 5 in 3:14 and 11 innings, then Twins 3 Athletics 2 in 3:56 and 12 innings—13,742 fans.

2:20 A.M.— Dudley Field, El Paso, Texas — 8/14/ 1979 — Texas League — El Paso Diablos 11 Midland Cubs 10 in 5:12 and 18 innings, rain delay 0:44, 2nd rain delay 0:46 — 1664 fans.

2:11 A.M.— Three Rivers Stadium, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 8/20/1979 — National League — Pirates 6 Giants 5 in 2:54, rain delay 3:42 top 6th —18,714 fans.

1:20 A.M.—San Diego (later Jack Murphy, then Qualcomm) Stadium, San Diego, California—8/25/ 1979—National League—Pirates 4 Padres 3 in 6:12 and 19 innings—14,607 fans; 5000 fans at end.

1:42 A.M.— Stade Olympique (Olympic Stadium), Montreal, Province of Quebec, Canada — 9/18/1979 — National League — Pirates 5 Expos 3 in 3:04 and 11 innings, rain delay 0:09 bottom 5th, 2nd rain delay 2:54 top 6th — 56,976 fans.

1980's (93)

3:15 A.M.— Watt Powell Park, Charleston, West Virginia — 5/6/early 1980's — National Association of Intercollegiate Athletics — rain delays in previous tournament action, West Virginia State College Yellow Jackets 6 Davis and Elkins College Senators 5.

1:06 A.M. — Tinker Field (II), Orlando, Florida — 5/22/1980 — Southern League — Orlando Twins 3 Memphis Chicks 2 in 4:07 and 19 innings, then Memphis 6 Orlando 0 in 1:50 and 7 innings.

1:47 A.M.— Stade Olympique (Olympic Stadium), Montreal, Province of Quebec, Canada—6/2/1980— National League—Expos 8 Cubs 7 in 4:43 and 13 innings, rain delay 1:30 at start—15,271 fans.

2:30 A.M.— Riverfront Stadium (later Cinergy Field), Cincinnati, Ohio — 6/9/1980 — National League — rain delay 0:07 at start, Reds 6 Padres 6 in 2:59 and 10½ innings, 2nd rain delay 0:19 bottom 2nd, 3rd rain delay 1:39 bottom 8th, 4th rain delay 1:21 bottom 11th — 19,688 fans, 300 fans after 3rd rain delay, 150 fans at end. 3:11 A.M.— Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 6/9/1980— National League — Giants 3 Phillies 1 in 2:36, rain delay 1:28 bottom 4th, 2nd rain delay 3:32 also bottom 4th — 28,702 fans, 500 fans top 5th, 200 fans at end.

2:10 A.M.— Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks, Alaska—6/20/1980—NCAA at Amateur—Alaska Goldpanners 16 University of Wisconsin Badgers 5, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay—2600 fans.

1:28 A.M.— MacArthur Stadium, Syracuse, New York—7/30/1980—International League—Richmond Braves 12 Syracuse Chiefs 6 in 5:55 and 22 innings—3117 fans, 1000 fans at end.

3:45 A.M.—Bloch Park (later Terry Leach Field), Selma, Alabama—8/12/1980—Dizzy Dean League World Series—previous tournament action rain delays 5:00 at start, Brent 6 Selma 5 in 2:45 and 7 innings—4000 fans.

1:26 A.M.— San Diego (later Jack Murphy, then Qualcomm) Stadium, San Diego, California — 8/15/ 1980— National League — Astros 3 Padres 1 in 6:17 and 20 innings — 14,177 fans.

2:05 A.M.— Barney Tadsen Field, Brownton, Minnesota—8/27/1980— Town Team League—rain delay 3:00 at start, New Ulm Kaiserhoff 13 Maple Lake 6 in 3:05.

3:30 A.M.— Estadio (Stadium) Quisqueya, Santo Domingo, Dominican—1/12/1981—Winter League— Orientales Estrellas (Oriental Stars) 4 Licey Tigres (Tigers) 3 in 5:40 and 22 innings.

4:07 A.M. — McCoy Stadium, Pawtucket, Rhode Island — 4/18/1981 and 6/23/1981— International League — power failure delay 0:30 at start, Pawtucket Paw Sox 3 Rochester Red Wings 2 in 8:25 and 33 innings, suspended after 8:07 and 32 innings, dawn was at 5:00 A.M., completed 6/23 at 6:18 P.M. —1740 fans on 4/18, 150 fans Midnight, 100 fans top 21st, 60 fans 1 A.M., 27 fans top 27th, 19 fans at suspension, 5756 fans on 6/23.

1:11 A.M.— Royals Stadium, Kansas City, Missouri— 5/4/1981— American League — rain delay 2:16 at start, Red Sox 8 Royals 7 in 4:04 and 12 innings, suspended after 3:20 and 10 innings — 25,688 fans on 5/4, 21,708 fans on 5/5 — finished at 7:50 P.M. on 5/5.

1:08 A.M.— Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois — 5/13/1981— American League — Indians 4 White Sox 3 in 5:31 and 16 innings —10,463 fans.

1:15 A.M.— Disch-Falk Field, Austin, Texas— 5/15/1981 and 5/16/1981— National Collegiate Athletic Association— University of Texas Longhorns 7 Rice University Owls 6 in 6:07 and 20 innings, rain delay 2:00 top 13th, suspended after 3:10 and 12 innings— 4700 fans on 5/15, 300 fans at suspension, 3000 fans on 5/16—finished at 3:02 P.M. on 5/16.

1:22 A.M. — Smith-Wills Stadium, Jackson, Mississippi — 5/19/1981— Texas League — Jackson Mets 6 El Paso Diablos 4 in 1:47 and 7 innings, then El Paso 5 Jackson 2 in 4:35 and 17 innings—1534 fans. 1:35 A.M.— Fraser Field, Lynn, Massachusetts— 6/9/1981— Eastern League — Bristol Red Sox 5 Lynn Sailors 1 in 4:20 and 15 innings, then Lynn 4 Bristol 2 in 1:45 and 7 innings.

3:02 A.M.— Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks, Alaska — 6/20/1981— Amateur — Alaska Goldpanners 11 Intermountain Badgers 4 in 3:08, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay — 3000 fans.

1:16 A.M.— Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts— 9/3/1981 and 9/4/1981— American League — Mariners 8 Red Sox 7 in 6:01 and 20 innings, suspended after 5:39 and 19 innings—13,355 fans on 9/3, 1000 fans at suspension, 20,836 fans on 9/4.

2:00 A.M.— Smith Field, San Diego, California— 3/26/1982— National Collegiate Athletic Association— previous tournament action delay at start, United States International University Gulls 6 California State University at Los Angeles Golden Eagles 4 in 2:30— 30 fans, 10 fans at end.

1:09 A.M.— Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California—4/8/1982—American League—Angels 8 Athletics 6 in 5:31 and 16 innings— 17,806 fans, 1000 fans at end.

1:05 A.M. — Anaheim Stadium (later Edison International Field, then Angels Stadium), Anaheim, California — 4/13/1982 — American League — Angels 4 Mariners 3 in 6:06 and 20 innings, suspended after 5:24 and 17 innings — 33,574 fans on 4/13, 23,905 fans on 4/14.

1:04 A.M.— Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan— 6/9/1982 and 9/24/1982 — American League — Tigers 2 Indians 1 in 2:27, rain delay 0:45 at start of 2nd game, then Tigers 4 Indians 3 in 4:54 and 18 innings, suspended after 3:38 and 14 innings — 32,213 fans on 6/9, 7226 fans on 9/24 — author, his wife, and their five-week old son sat in lower deck behind third base for the first game and the first 14 innings of the second game.

1:33 A.M.— Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks, Alaska—6/20/1982—Alaska Goldpanners 9 San Francisco Senators 3 in 2:48, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay—1500 fans.

2:09 A.M.— Smith-Wills Stadium, Jackson, Mississippi — 7/6/1982 — Texas League — Tulsa Drillers 11 Jackson Mets 7 in 6:39 and 23 innings —1105 fans, 200 fans at end.

1:19 A.M.— Ray Winder Field, Little Rock, Arkansas — 7/17/1982 — Texas League — Arkansas Travelers 3 San Antonio Dodgers 2 in 4:46 and 16 innings, then San Antonio 3 Arkansas 0 in 2:03 and 7 innings — 4649 fans, 100 fans at end.

1:30 A.M.— Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks, Alaska — 6/19/1983 — Amateur — Alaska Goldpanners 7 Cook Inlet Bucs 2 in 2:25, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay — 2600 fans.

1:56 A.M.— Three Rivers Stadium, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania—6/20/1983— National League— Pirates 5 Cubs 4 in 3:18 and 10 innings, then Pirates 6 Cubs 5 in 4:03 and 13 innings – 5839 fans.

1:25 A.M.— Candlestick (later 3Com) Park, San Francisco, California—6/21/1983—National League — Reds 6 Giants 5 in 5:10 and 16 innings—8943 fans.

1:11 A.M. — Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan — 7/29/1983 and 7/30/1983 — American League — Tigers 10 Royals 1 in 2:33, rain delay 3:02 bottom 3rd, suspended after 8 innings — 39,357 fans on 7/29, 35,100 fans on 7/30.

1:09 A.M. — Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois — 9/10/1983 — American League — White Sox 7 Angels 6 in 4:01 and 12 innings, rain delay 1:33 bottom 9th — 43,097 fans.

2:00 A.M.— Davis Ford Park (later G. Richard Pfitzner Stadium), Woodbridge, Virginia—4/25/1984— Carolina League—Salem Redbirds 5 Prince William Pirates 2 in 2:40 and 9 innings, then Prince William 8 Salem 7 in 4:20 and 11 innings—1588 fans.

1:22 A.M.— Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan— 4/27/1984—American League—Indians 8 Tigers 4 in 5:44 and 19 innings—34,112 fans, 7000 fans at end.

1:05 A.M.— Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois— 5/8/1984 and 5/9/1984—American League—White Sox 7 Brewers 6 in 8:06 and 25 innings, suspended after 5:29 and 17 innings—14,754 fans on 5/8, 17,715 fans on 5/9.

1:08 A.M.— Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York—5/11/1984—American League—Mariners 4 Yankees 3 in 5:02 and 17 innings—15,716 fans.

2:08 A.M. — Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks, Alaska — 6/21/1984 — Amateur — Alaska Goldpanners 9 Republic of China-Taipei Olympic Team 0 in 2:24 and 7 innings, rain delay 0:44 at start, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay, after 7 innings the score was China-Taipei 2 Alaska 1, but China-Taipei refused to bat in top 8th due to misunderstanding over whether game was to be 7 or 9 innings long and whether it was too dark, Alaska won by forfeit — 3000 fans, 1000 fans at end.

1:07 A.M.— Municipal Stadium, Greenville, South Carolina—7/13/1984—Southern League—Memphis Chicks 3 Greenville Braves 2 in 6:02 and 19 innings, then Greenville 6 Memphis 5 in 2:11 and 7 innings, suspended after 0:35 and 2 innings, completed 7/14 as 1st game of tripleheader—3044 fans on 7/13, 250 fans at suspension, 4456 fans on 7/14.

1:32 A.M.— Three Rivers Stadium, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania—7/13/1984—National League—Pirates 8 Giants 2 in 2:37, then Pirates 4 Giants 3 in 5:11 and 18 innings, fireworks show started at 1:45 A.M.—22,167 fans, 10,000 fans at end.

1:02 A.M.— Memorial Stadium, Baltimore, Maryland — 8/3/1984 — American League — Blue Jays 5 Orioles 2 in 2:45, rain delay 2:07 top 4th — 37,219 fans.

1:04 A.M.— Riverfront Stadium (later Cinergy Field), Cincinnati, Ohio—8/10/1984—National League— Reds 5 Astros 4 in 3:31 and 12 innings, then Astros 11 Reds 7 in 2:58—14,558 fans. 1:49 A.M.— Joe Hargis Field, Rockport, Indiana— 8/22/1984 — American Legion — three rain delays 5:11 at start of 2nd prior game, previous tournament action delay at start, Steubenville Argonne Post 33 defeated Indianapolis Atkins Post 355.

4:55 A.M.— Joe Hargis Field, Rockport, Indiana— 8/22/1984 — American Legion — three rain delays 5:11 at start of 3rd prior game, previous tournament action delay 1:53 at start, Jenkins Post 254 Rockport 6 Hanscom Post 167 Willmar 4 in 2:51—1500 fans, 500 fans at end.

1:06 A.M.— Centennial Field, Burlington, Vermont — 8/23/1984 and 8/24/1984 — Eastern League — Albany-Colonie Athletics 9 Vermont Reds 7 in 5:37 and 17 innings, automatic sprinkler malfunction delay 0:17 bottom 17th, suspended after 5:12 and 16½ innings when outfield sprinklers could not be turned off— 2909 fans on 8/23, 250 fans at suspension, 2194 fans on 8/24.

3:00 A.M.— Estadio (Stadium) Luis Rodriguez Olmo, Arecibo, Puerto Rico—12/6/1984—Winter League—Arecibo Lobos (Wolves) 4 Ponce Leones (Lions) 1, then Ponce 5 Arecibo 2, rain delays.

2:08 A.M.— Estadio (Stadium) Tomaz Oroz, Ciudad Obregon, State of Sonora, Mexico —12/30/1984 — Mexican Pacific League — Guaymas Ostioneros (Oyster Growers) 6 Obregon Yaquis 4 in 6:38 and 15 innings.

2:01 A.M.— Shelby State Community College Field, Memphis, Tennessee — 3/23/1985 — National Junior Collegiate Athletic Association — rain delay 4:00 2nd previous game, Shelby State Community College 6 Waubonsee Community College Chiefs 4 in 2:51, fog delay 0:03 top 3rd, 2nd fog delay 0:05 bottom 4th, 3rd fog delay 0:02 top 6th — 24 fans.

2:15 A.M.—Engel Stadium, Chattanooga, Tennessee — 5/3/1985 — National Christian Collegiate Athletic Association — rain delay previous tournament action at start, Alabama Christian College (later Faulkner University) Eagles 10 Marion College (later Indiana Wesleyan University) Wildcats 0 in 2:00 and 6 innings.

4:45 A.M.—Engel Stadium, Chattanooga, Tennessee — 5/3/1985 — National Christian Collegiate Athletic Association — rain delay previous tournament action at start, Tennessee Temple University Crusaders 11 LeTourneau College Fighting Yellowjackets 8 in 2:15 and 7 innings.

7:15 A.M.—Engel Stadium, Chattanooga, Tennessee — 5/3/1985 — National Christian Collegiate Athletic Association — rain delay previous tournament action at start, Marion College (now Indiana Wesleyan University) Wildcats 11 King's College Purple Knights 1 in 2:15 and 5 innings —14 fans, 2 fans at end.

1:12 A.M.— MacArthur Stadium, Syracuse, New York—6/19/1985 and 6/20/1985 and 6/21/1985—International League—Pawtucket Paw Sox 3 Syracuse Chiefs 1 in 7:07 and 27 innings, suspended after 5:36 and 22 innings, continued 6/20, rain delay 0:13 top 23rd, 2nd rain delay 0:50 bottom 24th, suspended again after 6:07 and 23½ innings at 9:05 P.M. on 6/20, finally finished at 7:31 P.M. on 6/21—1233 fans on 6/19; 200 fans when suspended after 22 innings; 3020 fans on 6/21.

3:06 A.M.— Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks, Alaska—6/22/1985—Amateur—Alaska Goldpanners 8 Moraga Marauders 0 in 4:36, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay—1825 fans, 1100 fans at end.

3:55 A.M.— Atlanta-Fulton County Stadium, Atlanta, Georgia — 7/4/1985 — National League — rain delay 1:24 at start, Mets 16 Braves 13 in 6:10 and 19 innings, 2nd rain delay 0:41 bottom 3rd, 4th of July fireworks show began at 4:01 A.M., ended at 4:12 A.M.— 44,947 fans, 8000 fans at end.

1:25 A.M. — Osceola County Stadium, Kissimmee, Florida — 8/31/1985 — Florida State League — Osceola Astros 6 Fort Lauderdale Yankees 4 in 5:55 and 19 innings.

2:17 A.M. — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 9/5/1985 — American League — Red Sox 13 Indians 6 in 3:10, rain delay 0:30, then Indians 9 Red Sox 5 in 3:05, 2nd rain delay 1:25 bottom 6th —16,989 fans.

1:02 A.M. — Exhibition Stadium, Toronto, Province of Ontario, Canada — 9/26/1985 — American League — rain delay 3:18 at start, Red Sox 4 Blue Jays 1 in 2:09 — 30,443 fans, 2500 fans at start.

3:00 A.M. New Mexico time; 4:00 A.M. Texas time -Hays Field, Lubbock, Texas; Ferguson Field, Jal, New Mexico - 5/1?/1986 - Texas High School League 4A best two-out-of-three playoffs - knowing that torrential rains made playing second game at 1 P.M. and "if-necessary" third game at 7 P.M. totally impossible, both teams along with coaches, fans, and umpires set out at 7 A.M. on what ended up being a 510-mile long Odyssey from Lubbock, Texas to New Mexico in search of a dry field, fields were found in Artesia (2:00 wait) and Hobbs (2:30 wait) but the fields were too wet and it was raining in both places, in Hobbs they ran into two other Texas high schools, Pecos and Canyon, who were also in search of a dry field, when told that Eunice had a dry field the race was on between the Pecos/Canyon caravan and the Hereford/ Andrews caravan, Pecos and Canyon won the race, and proceeded to begin their second game, Canyon had won their first game the night before so when Canyon got way ahead early in the second game, Hereford and Andrews decided to wait and play afterwards since there would be no need for a third game if Canyon won, but Pecos staged a big comeback to win, forcing a deciding third game, leaving Hereford and Andrews still looking for a dry field, and then they heard there was an old field in Jal that had not been used in two years, flickering light standards were fixed by taping two wires together with black electrical tape, outfield had knee-high weeds, foul lines were chalked using an old shoe box, finally after a 12-hour long change-of-field delay, they began play at 12:00 Midnight New Mexico time, 1:00 A.M. Texas time, Hereford High School Whitefaces 4 Andrews High School Mustangs 3 in 3:00 and 8 innings — 50 fans including Hereford mascot Red.

1:15 A.M.— Hays Field, Lubbock and Angels (later Christensen) Stadium, Midland, Texas — 5/17/1986 — Texas High School League 5A playoff championship game — moved from Lubbock ballfield to Midland ballfield, change-of-field/Blue Norther 2-feet of snow blizzard delay 6:45 at start, then Abilene Cooper High School Cougars 15 Amarillo High School Sandies 6 in 3:15 and 7 innings, intermission 0:15 between games, then Abilene Cooper 11 Amarillo 4 in 3:00 and 7 innings — 700 fans; 700 fans at end —1st game started at 38 degrees, 2nd game finished at 28 degrees.

1:06 A.M.— Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks, Alaska—6/20/1986—Amateur—Alaska Goldpanners 8 San Francisco Senators 1 in 2:36, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay—4000 fans.

2:45 A.M.— Serravalle Stadium, Serravalle, San Marino—9/16/1986—Serie Nazionale (Italian A1 League)—Biemme Fortitudo Bologna 12 Chesterfield San Marino 10 in 5:45 and 17 innings—800 fans, 100 fans at end.

1:41 A.M.— Joe Davis Stadium, Huntsville, Alabama — 5/21/1987 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — rain delay 2:40 at start, University of Arkansas Razorbacks 10 Middle Tennessee University Blue Raiders 7 in 3:01—535 fans.

1:04 A.M.— V.J. Keefe Stadium, San Antonio, Texas — 5/21/1987 — Texas League — Shreveport Captains 4 San Antonio Dodgers 3 in 6:04 and 21 innings —1144 fans.

2:30 A.M.— Enum Claw, Washington—6/??/1987 — State High School Tournament — previous tournament action delay at start, Burlington-Edison High School Tigers 3 North Kitsap High School Vikings 2 in 4:00 and 10 innings.

1:02 A.M.— Memorial Stadium, Baltimore, Maryland — 6/20/1987 — American League — rain delay at start, Orioles 9 Tigers 5 in 3:12, 2nd rain delay bottom 1st, two rain delays totaled 2:23, suspended after 3:04 and 8 innings — 27,420 fans on 6/20, 28,845 fans on 6/21.

1:43 A.M.— Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks, Alaska — 6/20/1987 — Amateur — Mat-Su Miners 2 Alaska Goldpanners 1 in 3:13, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay — 3350 fans.

3:01 A.M.—Busch Stadium (II), St. Louis, Missouri—7/7/1987—National League—rain delay 2:22 at start, Cardinals 5 Dodgers 4 in 2:51, then Cardinals 5 Dodgers 4 in 3:46 and 10 innings—39,236 fans, 2000 fans at end.

1:46 A.M.— Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 9/8/1987 — American League — Red Sox 8 Yankees 6 in 3:15, rain delay 2:24 top 4th, 2nd rain delay 0:30 bottom 6th — 29,468 fans.

1:04 A.M. – Al Lang Field (II), St. Petersburg, Flori-

da and Holman Stadium, Vero Beach, Florida — 4/29/ 1988 and 5/28/1988 — Florida State League — Vero Beach Dodgers 6 St. Petersburg Cardinals 5 in 5:59 and 20 innings, suspended after 5:29 and 18 innings, completed in Vero Beach — suspended at 1:04 A.M. in the early morning of 4/30.

1:15 A.M.—Busch Stadium (II), St. Louis, Missouri — 5/14/1988—National League—Braves 7 Cardinals 5 in 5:40 and 19 innings—47,887 fans.

1:19 A.M.— Riverside Sports Complex, Riverside, California — 5/22/1988 — California League — San Jose Giants 8 Riverside Red Wave 5 in 6:19 and 21 innings.

1:22 A.M.— Memorial Stadium, Baltimore, Maryland—6/4/1988—American League—Orioles 7 Yankees 6 in 5:46 and 14 innings—36,499 fans.

1:07 A.M.— Clairemont High School Chieftains Field, San Diego, California—6/23/1988—American Diamond Adult Association—previous tournament action delay 2:03 at start, Giant Jewelry Gems 4 Action Video Tigers 1 in 2:04—40 fans, 12 fans at end author managed and played center field for the Gems.

3:27 A.M. – Burlington Athletic Stadium, Burlington, North Carolina – 6/24/1988 – Appalachian League – Bluefield Orioles 3 Burlington Indians 2 in 8:15 and 27 innings – 2204 fans, 84 fans at end.

2:15 A.M.—V.J. Keefe Stadium, San Antonio, Texas —7/14/1988 and 7/16/1988 — Texas League — San Antonio Missions 1 Jackson Mets 0 in 7:23 and 26 innings, suspended after 7:10 and 25 innings — 3792 fans on 7/14; 3260 fans on 7/16.

2:13 A.M.— Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 7/26/1988 — National League — rain delay 1:17 at start, Mets 7 Phillies 5 in 3:12, 2nd rain delay 2:08 top 2nd — 34,192 fans.

1:15 A.M. — Candlestick Park (later 3Com Park), San Francisco, California — 7/26/1988 — National League — Dodgers 7 Giants 3 in 2:57, then Dodgers 6 Giants 5 in 4:13 and 11 innings and fog — 49,209 fans.

2:32 A.M. — Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan — 8/5/1988 — American League — Tigers 3 Red Sox 1 in 2:51, rain delay 1:39 top 3rd, 2nd rain delay 1:06 bottom 5th, then Tigers 3 Red Sox 2 in 2:49 — 44,334 fans.

1:00 A.M.— Breslin Field, Lyndhurst, New Jersey — 8/19/1988 — American Legion — Boyertown 10 Glen Allen 7 in 4:23 and 14 innings.

1:05 A.M.— Arlington Stadium, Arlington, Texas — 9/10/1988 — American League — Rangers 3 Angels 2 in 5:30 and 17 innings — 22,972 fans.

2:44 A.M.—Estadio (Stadium) Emilio Ibarra, Los Mochis, State of Sinaloa, Mexico —11/26/1988 — Mexican Pacific League — Los Mochis Caneros (Sugar Cane Growers) 4 Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2 in 7:14 and 21 innings.

1:21 A.M. – Arlington Stadium, Arlington, Texas – 4/28/1989 and 4/29/1989 – American League – Rangers 7 Red Sox 6 in 4:06 and 12 innings, rain delay 2:02 bottom 9th, suspended after 3:43 and 10 innings – 35,440 fans on 4/28, 41,050 fans on 4/29. 1:00 A.M.— Cheney Stadium, Tacoma, Washington — 4/28/1989 — Pacific Coast League — Tacoma Tigers 4 Las Vegas Stars 3 in 5:22 and 19 innings — 3693 fans.

1:05 A.M. — V.J. Keefe Stadium, San Antonio, Texas -5/3/1989 — Texas League — Midland Angels 5 San Antonio Missions 3 in 5:58 and 19 innings —1296 fans, 24 fans at end.

1:05 A.M.— Olsen Field, College Station, Texas — 5/5/1989 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — University of Arkansas Razorbacks 11 Texas Agricultural and Mechanical (A&M) University Aggies 9 in 5:57 and 16 innings — 5388 fans, 3000 fans at end.

1:01 A.M.— Memorial Stadium, Baltimore, Maryland—5/6/1989— American League— Mariners 2 Orioles 1 in 2:44, rain delay 1:28 top 4th, then Mariners 6 Orioles 5 in 3:09—19,975 fans.

1:14 A.M.—Coveleski Stadium, South Bend, Indiana — 5/19/1989 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — rain delay 2:30 at start of prior game, rain delay 1:35 bottom 11th of prior game, rain delay 3:15 at start, University of Detroit Titans 3 University of Evansville Purple Aces 2 in 10 innings.

4:24 A.M.— Coveleski Stadium, South Bend, Indiana — 5/19/1989 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — rain delay 2:30 at start of 2nd prior game, rain delay 1:35 bottom 11th of 2nd prior game, rain delay 3:15 at start of prior game, University of Notre Dame Fighting Irish 20 University of Dayton Flyers 4 in 2:46—150 fans at start, 200 fans in bottom 3rd, 25 fans at end.

1:42 A.M.— Hoover Met Stadium, Hoover, Alabama — 6/2/1989 — Southern League — Birmingham Barons 5 Huntsville Stars 4 in 6:37 and 18 innings — 7034 fans.

2:50 A.M. — Astrodome, Houston, Texas — 6/3/1989— National League — Astros 5 Dodgers 4 in 7:14 and 22 innings — 34,425 fans.

1:25 A.M.— Shea Stadium, New York, New York— 6/15/1989 — National League — Mets 4 Cubs 3 in 3:44 and 12 innings, rain delay 0:58 bottom 3rd, 2nd rain delay 0:33 top 4th — 24,689 fans; 100 fans at end.

1:17 A.M.— Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks, Alaska — 6/20/1989 — Amateur — Alaska Goldpanners 7 San Diego Sea World Killer Whales 3 in 2:42, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay — 2250 fans.

1:57 A.M.— Diamond, Richmond, Virginia—8/7/ 1989—International League—Toledo Mud Hens 4 Richmond Braves 1 in 5:01 and 21 innings, then Richmond 3 Toledo 0 in 2:23 and 7 innings—100 fans at end.

1:00 A.M.— Memorial Stadium, Baltimore, Maryland — 8/12/1989 — American League — Red Sox 10 Orioles 8 in 5:23 and 13 innings — 50,865 fans.

1:25 A.M.— Stade Olympique (Olympic Stadium), Montreal, Province of Quebec, Canada — 8/23/1989 — National League — Dodgers 1 Expos 0 in 6:14 and 22 innings — 21,742 fans.

1990's (88)

2:15 A.M.— Mulcahy Stadium, Anchorage, Alaska — ?/??/1990's — Alaska League — Fairbanks Goldpanners vs. Anchorage Bucs in 16 innings.

1:45 A.M.—C.O. Brown Stadium, Battle Creek, Michigan—5/27/1990—National Collegiate Athletic Association—previous tournament action delay at start, Aurora University Spartans 12 North Carolina Wesleyan College Bishops 9 in 4:30—1 fan at end.

2:10 A.M.— Joe Davis Stadium, Huntsville, Alabama — 6/10/1990 — Southern League — Huntsville Stars 3 Knoxville Blue Jays 2 in 5:35 and 19 innings, then Huntsville 2 Knoxville 0 in 2:05 and 7 innings.

1:22 A.M.— Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks, Alaska—6/21/1990—Amateur—Alaska Goldpanners 8 San Bernardino Tribe 3 in 2:59, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay—3000 fans.

1:49 A.M.— Municipal Stadium, Phoenix, Arizona— 6/23/1990— Pacific Coast League— Calgary Cannons 12 Phoenix Firebirds 9 in 6:39 and 20 innings.

1:06 A.M.— County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin — 7/6/1990— American League — Angels 9 Brewers 8 in 5:31 and 16 innings — 25,244 fans.

1:00 A.M. — Charlotte County Stadium, Port Charlotte, Florida — 8/3/1990 and 8/6/1990 — Florida State League — Charlotte Rangers 4 Sarasota White Sox 3 in 5:59 and 16 innings, rain delay 0:50 bottom 2nd, suspended after 5:05 and 14 innings —1665 fans on 8/3, 3026 fans on 8/6.

4:30 A.M.— Cadwell Park, Mitchell, South Dakota - 8/?/1990— Amateur — rain delay and previous tournament action delay 5:45 at start, Sioux Falls Silver Bullets 5 Sioux Falls Shop-n-Cart 2 in 2:45 — 50 fans, 25 fans at end.

4:30 A.M.— Illinois — 8/??/1990's — American Legion — previous tournament action delay at start, Wilmer vs. unknown opponent in 3:00.

1:27 A.M.— Billy Hebert Field, Stockton, California — 9/5/1990 and 9/6/1990— California League — Bakersfield Dodgers 5 Stockton Ports 4 in 6:20 and 22 innings, suspended after 5:53 and 21 innings—1497 fans on 9/5; 175 fans when suspended; 1559 fans on 9/6—finished at 6:25 P.M. on 9/6.

3:50 A.M. — Greer Stadium, Nashville, Tennessee — 9/7/1990 — American Association — Omaha Royals 8 Nashville Sounds 7 in 6:25 and 20 innings, rain delay 1:46 bottom 11th —14,482 fans, 500 fans top 12th, 300 fans at end.

1:07 A.M. — Braves Stadium, Greenville, South Carolina — 5/14/1991 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — previous tournament action delay at start, Clemson University Tigers 24 Georgia Technical Institute Rambling Wreck 8.

1:17 A.M.— Perry Field, Gainesville, Florida — 5/23/ 1991— National Collegiate Athletic Association — rain delay, University of Florida Gators 2 Furman University Paladins 0 in 2:17 — 3517 fans, 3000 fans at end.

1:12 A.M. — Tim McCarver Stadium, Memphis, Ten-

nessee — 6/17/1991 and 6/18/1991 — Southern League — Huntsville Stars 9 Memphis Chicks 7 in 6:32 and 20 innings, suspended after 5:33 and 16 innings — 6845 fans on 6/17, 2349 fans on 6/18.

2:30 A.M.—Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks, Alaska — 6/22/1991—Amateur—Alaska Goldpanners 9 South Lake Tahoe Stars 8 in 4:00, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay—2500 fans.

1:07 A.M. — Royals Stadium, Kansas City, Missouri — 7/17/1991— American League — Royals 9 Orioles 8 in 5:32 and 15 innings — 21,821 fans.

1:30 A.M.— Riley Park, Sumter, South Carolina— 8/14/1991— American Legion— rain delay 0:50 prior game, Post 15 Sumter P-15's 10 Post 34 Tuscaloosa 1 in 2:20, power failure delay 0:20 top 1st, 2nd rain delay 1:45 bottom 2nd.

1:40 A.M.— Oaks Oval, Lismore, State of New South Wales, Australia—?/??/1992—Claxton Shield Australian National Championship Series—Queensland vs. Victoria, unknown final score, rain delay in 1st game, then 22–2 in 2nd game in 2:00.

1:55 A.M. — College Stadium (later Diethrick Park), Jamestown, New York — 5/25/1992 — National Junior Collegiate Athletic Association — previous tournament action delay 2:15 at start, Gloucester County College Roadrunners 14 Columbus State Community College Cougars 8 in 4:10—225 fans, 35 fans at end.

2:29 A.M.—Ernie Shore Field, Winston-Salem, North Carolina—6/8/1992—Carolina League— Winston-Salem Spirits 5 Frederick Keys 4 in 2:19 and 7 innings, rain delay 1:14 bottom 1st, 2nd rain delay 2:44 bottom 6th, then Winston-Salem 3 Frederick 0 in 1:33 and 7 innings—4 fans at end.

1:46 A.M.— Busch Stadium (II), St. Louis, Missouri — 6/8/1992 — National League — Cubs 5 Cardinals 2 in 4:21 and 13 innings, then Cubs 6 Cardinals 4 in 3:20—38,572 fans.

2:15 A.M. — Mulcahy Stadium, Anchorage, Alaska — 6/23/1992 — Alaska League — Anchorage Glacier Pilots defeated Kamloops in 6:39 and 21 innings —12 fans at end.

1:54 A.M.— MacArthur Stadium, Syracuse, New York—7/19/1992—International League—Syracuse Chiefs 8 Pawtucket PawSox 7 in 5:05 and 15 innings, then Syracuse 4 Pawtucket 3 in 2:16 and 7 innings— 14,143 fans; 200 fans at end.

1:00 A.M.—L'Hospitalet Baseball Stadium, Barcelona, Spain—7/29/1992—Olympics—Cuba 9 USA 6 in 4:00.

2:35 A.M.— Tiger Park, Belle Plaine, Minnesota— 9/5/1992 — Town Team League — previous tournament action delay 4:33 at start, Delano Athletics 11 New Ulm Kaiserhoff 9 in 3:02.

1:08 A.M.—Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York—9/22/1992—American League—Yankees 6 Tigers 5 in 4:05 and 12 innings, rain delay 1:56 at start of 2nd game, then Yankees 7 Tigers 4 in 2:37—13,001 fans, 200 fans at end. 1:20 A.M.— Camden Yards, Baltimore, Maryland — 9/22/1992 — American League — rain delay 2:42 at start, Blue Jays 4 Orioles 3 in 3:03 — 45,104 fans.

2:01 A.M.— Fayetteville, Arkansas — 5/18/1993 — Arkansas High School League — rain delay prior tournament action at start, Bryant High School Hornets 10 Bentonville High School Tigers 9.

1:21 A.M.—Municipal Stadium, Greenville, South Carolina—5/19/1993—National Collegiate Athletic Association—Clemson University Tigers 11 North Carolina State University Wolfpack 7 in 3:09.

1:09 A.M.— Camden Yards, Baltimore, Maryland — 5/22/1993 — American League — Orioles 5 Brewers 4 in 5:34 and 14 innings — 46,177 fans.

1:03 A.M.— Russ Chandler Stadium, Atlanta, Georgia — 5/30/1993 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — rain delay 3:31 at start, Wichita State University Shockers 5 Ohio State University Buckeyes 3 in 2:32.

1:03 A.M.— Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 7/2/1993 — National League — rain delay 1:10 at start, Padres 5 Phillies 2 in 2:34, 2nd rain delay 1:56 bottom 4th, 3rd rain delay 2:48 top 6th, 1st game ended at 1:03 A.M., then Phillies 6 Padres 5 in 3:12 and 10 innings, 2nd game ended at 4:40 A.M.— 54,617 fans.

4:40 A.M. — Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 7/2/1993 — National League — rain delay 1:10 at start, Padres 5 Phillies 2 in 2:34, 2nd rain delay 1:56 bottom 4th, 3rd rain delay 2:48 top 6th, then Phillies 6 Padres 5 in 3:12 and 10 innings, post-game 4th of July fireworks show postponed — 54,617 fans, 6000 fans at start of 2nd game, 4000 fans at end.

1:47 A.M.— Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 7/7/1993 — National League — Phillies 7 Dodgers 6 in 6:10 and 20 innings — 41,730 fans.

2:00 A.M.— Fayetteville, Arkansas— 8/??/1993 or 1994—American Legion—final score 20–3, suspended due to rain, completed next morning.

1:25 A.M.— Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 8/17/1993 — American League — rain delay 3:02 at start, White Sox 3 Red Sox 2 in 2:48 — 32,744 fans, 5000 fans at end.

1:55 A.M.— County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin—8/24/1993—American League—Brewers 9 Athletics 2 in 3:01, then Brewers 7 Athletics 6 in 5:11 and 13 innings, brawl delay 0:10 top 10th—16,570 fans.

1:15 A.M.— Springer Park, Cold Spring, Minnesota—8/27/1993—Town Team League—Marble Mallards 7 Sartell Muskies 6 in 4:45 and 17 innings.

1:22 A.M.— Hubert H. Humphrey Metrodome, Minneapolis, Minnesota—8/31/1993—American League—Twins 5 Indians 4 in 6:17 and 22 innings— 17,968 fans, 1500 fans at end.

1:04 A.M.— Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 9/1/1993 — American League — Rangers 9 Red Sox 7 in 5:28 and 12 innings — 27,396 fans.

1:23 A.M.— Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 9/28/1993 — American League — Red Sox 11 Tigers 6 in 3:18, then Tigers 7 Red Sox 6 in 4:31 and 11 innings – 24,446 fans.

2:32 A.M.— Estadio (Stadium) Teodoro Mariscal, Mazatlan, State of Sinaloa, Mexico—10/26/1993— Mexican Pacific League— Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2 Guasave Algodoneros (Cotton Pickers) 1 in 7:02 and 22 innings.

1:05 A.M.—City of Palms Stadium, Fort Myers, Florida—11/6/1993—Roy Hobbs Senior League rain delay 5:20 at start of prior games, Asheville Sox 6 New Jersey All-Stars 5 in 2:05 and 7 innings—150 fans.

3:10 A.M.—City of Palms Stadium, Fort Myers, Florida—11/6/1993—Roy Hobbs Senior League rain delay 5:20 at start of prior games, Texas Stars 8 Norfolk Drillers 2 in 1:50 and 7 innings—100 fans.

2:42 A.M.—Al Lang Field (II), St. Petersburg, Florida – 4/14/1994 – Florida State League – St. Petersburg Cardinals 8 Lakeland Tigers 7 in 7:07 and 20 innings –1021 fans.

1:08 A.M. — Diamond, Richmond, Virginia — 5/12/ 1994 — International League — Richmond Braves 2 Scranton/Wilkes-Barre Red Barons 1 in 5:07 and 17 innings, then Richmond 4 Scranton-Wilkes-Barre 2 in 1:31 and 7 innings — 4486 fans.

2:34 A.M. – Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks, Alaska – 6/21/1994 – Amateur – Alaska Goldpanners 15 San Diego Stars 6 in 3:16, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay.

1:13 A.M.— Owen Bush Stadium, Indianapolis, Indiana—6/30/1994—American Association— Nashville Sounds 9 Indianapolis Indians 7 in 5:58 and 19 innings—2047 fans, 50 fans at end.

4:00 A.M.— Hidden Valley Park or Pink Hill Park, Blue Springs, Missouri—7/8/1994—American Legion—previous tournament action delay at start, Post 499 Blue Springs Auxiliary Athletics vs. Elkhorn.

4:00 A.M.— Hidden Valley Park or Pink Hill Park, Blue Springs, Missouri—7/8/1994—American Legion—previous tournament action delay at start, Post 340 Independence Hi-Boy Drive-In defeated unknown opponent.

6:35 A.M.— Pink Hill Park, Blue Springs, Missouri — 7/8/1994 — American Legion — rain delay at start of 3rd prior game, previous tournament action delay 2:35 at start, Fike Post 499 Blue Springs 8 Post 210 Fulton 0 in 2:00— dawn was at 6:00 A.M., 35 minutes before the game ended.

6:30 A.M.— Hidden Valley Park or Pink Hill Park, Blue Springs, Missouri—7/9/1994—American Legion—previous tournament action delay 3:30 at start, Post 259 Minnetonka defeated Post 21 Independence in 2:00—dawn was at 6:00 A.M., 30 minutes before the game ended.

1:18 A.M.— Jacobs Field, Cleveland, Ohio—7/20/ 1994—American League—rain delay 0:33 at start, Rangers 13 Indians 11 in 5:40 and 14 innings—40,280 fans.

1:56 A.M.- Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Penn-

sylvania — 7/22/1994 — National League — Phillies 4 Padres 3 in 2:23, then Padres 7 Phillies 4 in 3:18, rain delay 0:38 bottom 4th, 2nd rain delay 1:14 bottom 4th, 3rd rain delay 0:42 bottom 6th — 38,423 fans.

1:08 A.M.— Hammond Stadium, Fort Myers, Florida—4/8/1995—Florida State League—Fort Myers Miracle 5 Charlotte Rangers 0 in 1:26 and 7 innings, then Fort Myers 4 Charlotte 3 in 5:00 and 17 innings—2411 fans; 50 fans at end—1st game finished at 7:37 P.M.

1:00 A.M.—Pioneer Park, Marietta, Ohio — 5/11/ 1995 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Bethany College Bison 5 Marietta College Pioneers 4 in 2:45, rain delay 3:15 top 2nd.

1:42 A.M.— Three Rivers Stadium, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 8/18/1995 — National League — Pirates 13 Marlins 7 in 3:07, then Pirates 7 Marlins 6 in 4:35 and 13 innings —13,598 fans.

1:12 A.M. — Coors Field, Denver, Colorado — 8/18/ 1995 — National League — Cubs 26 Rockies 7 in 3:22, rain delay 2:45 top 4th — 48,082 fans, 500 fans at end.

2:08 A.M.— Jacobs Field, Cleveland, Ohio —10/3/ 1995 — American League — rain delay 0:39 at start, Indians 5 Red Sox 4 in 5:01 and 13 innings, 2nd rain delay 0:23 top 8th — 44,218 fans.

1:20 A.M.—Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York—10/4/1995—American League—Yankees 7 Mariners 5 in 5:13 and 15 innings—57,126 fans.

1:31 A.M. — Estadio (Stadium) Angel Flores, Culiacan, State of Sinaloa, Mexico — 10/27/1995 — Mexican Pacific League — Culiacan Tomateros (Tomato Growers) 3 Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2 in 6:01 and 20 innings.

2:50 A.M. — Hubert H. Humphrey Metrodome, Minneapolis, Minnesota — 3/6/1996 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — University of Wisconsin River Falls Falcons vs. St. Thomas University Tommies, then Wisconsin River Falls 4 St. Thomas 2 in 8 innings.

2:30 A.M.— Pohlman Field, Beloit, Wisconsin— 4/20/1996 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Beloit College Buccaneers 9 Ripon College Red Hawks 8, then Ripon 9 Beloit 7.

1:09 A.M.— Camden Yards, Baltimore, Maryland — 5/1/1996 — American League — Yankees 11 Orioles 6 in 5:34 and 15 innings — 47,472 fans.

1:06 A.M. — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 5/3/1996 and 5/4/1996 — American League — rain delay 2:43 at start, Red Sox 8 Blue Jays 7 in 3:20, 2nd rain delay 1:00 top 3rd, suspended after 2:18 and 6 innings — 25,507 fans on 5/3, 2000 fans top 1st, 29,785 fans on 5/4 — finished at 1:08 P.M. on 5/4.

1:50 A.M.—Pioneer Park, Marietta, Ohio— 5/7/1996—National Collegiate Athletic Association— Bethany College Bison 6 Marietta College Pioneers 0, rain delay 0:30 at start, 2nd rain delay 2:00 top 2nd, then Bethany 5 Marietta 2.

4:59 A.M.— House Field, Corbin, Kentucky— 5/9/ 1996—National Association of Intercollegiate Athletics — rain delays in previous tournament action, Lindsey Wilson College Blue Raiders 8 Pikeville College Bears 5.

2:30 A.M.— Don Provance Field, Springfield, Missouri — 5/11/1996 — National Association of Intercollegiate Athletics — rain delays in previous tournament action, Benedictine College Ravens 5 Evangel University Crusaders 4 in 2:45.

2:13 A.M.—Camden Yards, Baltimore, Maryland— 9/6/1996—American League—rain delay 2:20 at start, Tigers 5 Orioles 4 in 4:18 and 12 innings— 46,708 fans.

1:08 A.M.— Turner Field, Atlanta, Georgia—4/5/ 1997 and 4/6/1997— National League—Braves 11 Cubs 5 in 2:47, rain delay 3:55 bottom 7th, suspended after 2:08 in bottom 7th—45,698 fans on 4/5; 41,318 fans on 4/6.

2:52 A.M.— Hunnicutt Field, Princeton, West Virginia—5/4/1997—National Association of Intercollegiate Athletics—rain delays in previous tournament action, West Virginia State College Yellow Jackets 7 Shepherd College (now University) Rams 6 in 3:12 and 12 innings.

1:43 A.M.— Bell Park, Clovis, New Mexico — 6/11/ 1997 — New Mexico High School League — rain delay at start of 5th prior game, Sandia High School Matadors 14 Clovis High School Wildcats 12 in 2:53 and 8 innings — 300 fans, 125 fans at end.

1:04 A.M.— Frontier Field, Rochester, New York— 8/22/1997 — International League — rain delay 2:54 at start, Rochester Red Wings 11 Toledo Mud Hens 10 in 2:55 — 9174 fans.

2:25 A.M.— Estadio (Stadium) Angel Flores, Culiacan or Estadio (Stadium) Teodoro Mariscal, Mazatlan; State of Sinaloa, Mexico—10/19/1997— Mexican Pacific League— Culiacan Tomateros (Tomato Growers) 5 Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2 in 6:55 and 22 innings.

1:22 A.M. – UMAX (later Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California – 4/6/1998 and 4/8/1998 – American League – rain delay 1:46 at start, Indians 6 Athletics 5 in 3:07, 2nd rain delay 1:44 top 5th, suspended after 2:47 and 8 innings – 6963 fans on 4/6, 200 fans at suspension, 8361 fans on 4/8.

1:15 A.M.— House Field, Corbin, Kentucky—4/24/ 1998—National Association of Intercollegiate Athletics—rain delays in previous tournament action, Lindsey Wilson College Blue Raiders 15 Berea College Mountaineers 6 in 2:15.

1:20 A.M.— Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 5/12/1998 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Fordham University Rams 3 Virginia Polytechnic Institute Hokies 1 in 2:30—321 fans, 30 fans at end.

2:28 A.M.— Salem Memorial Stadium, Salem, Virginia — 5/23/1998 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — rain delays in prior games 3:43 at start, Montclair State University Red Hawks 8 North Carolina Wesleyan College Bishops 3 in 2:45 — 250 fans, 50 fans at end. 1:25 A.M. — Camden Yards, Baltimore, Maryland — 6/19/1998 — American League — Orioles 7 Blue Jays 4 in 5:49 and 15 innings — 47,012 fans, 2000 fans at end.

2:15 A.M. – Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks, Alaska – 6/20/1998 – Amateur – Alaska Goldpanners 14 Kelowna Grizzlies 12 in 3:45, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay.

1:17 A.M.—Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York—7/20/1998—American League—Tigers 4 Yankees 3 in 5:50 and 17 innings, then Yankees 4 Tigers 3 in 2:45—36,285 fans.

1:26 A.M.— Ballpark in Arlington, Arlington, Texas —10/2/1998—American League Division Series— Yankees 4 Rangers 0 in 2:58, 3:16 rain delay bottom 6th—49,450 fans.

1:27 A.M.— Oriole Stadium, Auburn, State of New South Wales, Australia — 3/1?/1999 —1st Grade New South Wales Major League Grand Final Series — Cronulla-Sutherland Sharks 4 Ryde-Eastwood Hawks 3 in 4:42 and 13 innings, rain delay 1:15 bottom 7th — 250 fans; 150 fans at end — winning run called safe despite fact that runner did not slide, catcher was standing on home plate with ball waiting for him to arrive, and in ensuing collision catcher did not drop ball.

1:25 A.M.— Osceola County Stadium, Kissimmee, Florida — 5/7/1999 — National Junior Collegiate Athletic Association — rain delay 3:00 in prior game, Palm Beach Community College Panthers 24 Miami Dade Community College (later Miami Dade College) Sharks 7 in 2:40 and 7 innings — 200 fans, 50 fans at end.

1:07 A.M.— Municipal Memorial (later Gpu, then FirstEnergy) Stadium, Reading, Pennsylvania—5/28/ 1999—Eastern League—Reading Phillies 15 New Britain Rock Cats 14 in 5:28 and 13 innings.

1:05 A.M.— Cougar Field, Houston, Texas — 5/29/ 1999 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — rain delay 4:00 in prior game, University of Houston Cougars 8 University of Texas Longhorns 5 in 2:59.

1:36 A.M. — County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin — 6/11/1999 — AL at NL — rain delay 3:11 at start, Twins 9 Brewers 7 in 3:20 — 30,344 fans.

1:30 A.M. — Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks, Alaska — 6/21/1999 — Amateur — Alaska Goldpanners 7 Oceanside Waves 1 in 2:54, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay — 3000 fans.

2000's (137)

1:09 A.M. — Dick Howser Field, Tallahassee, Florida — 4/7/2000 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Florida State University Seminoles 14 University of Miami Hurricanes 13 in 6:07 and 17 innings — 4626 fans.

2:06 A.M.— Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 6/12/2000— National League — rain delay 0:59 at start, Marlins 5 Phillies 2 in 2:57, 2nd rain delay 2:35 bottom 3rd —11,926 fans, 150 fans after 2nd rain delay. 1:10 A.M. — Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks, Alaska — 6/21/2000 — Amateur — Alaska Goldpanners 3 Santa Barbara Foresters 2 in 2:40, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay bottom 7th — 3300 fans.

1:25 A.M.— Dodd Stadium, Norwich, Connecticut—7/13/2000—Eastern League—Altoona Curve 6 Norwich Navigators 5 in 6:20 and 19 innings—2774 fans, 60 fans at end.

3:01 A.M.—American Legion Post 325 Field, Danville, Virginia—8/2/2000—Appalachian League —rain delay 2:30 at start, Princeton Devil Rays 7 Danville Braves 3 in 1:59 and 7 innings, then Princeton 6 Danville 3 in 4:38 and 17 innings—706 fans, 20 fans at end.

1:27 A.M.— Commerce Bank Park, Bridgewater, New Jersey—8/16/2000—Atlantic League—Somerset Patriots 8 Newark Bears 7 in 6:14 and 17 innings— 5552 fans, 20 fans at end.

1:03 A.M.— Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 8/23/2000— American League — rain delay 3:01 at start, Red Sox 3 Angels 1 in 2:57 — 32,958 fans.

1:04 A.M.—Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York—10/21/2000—NL at AL World Series—Yankees 4 Mets 3 in 4:51 and 12 innings—55,913 fans.

9:05 A.M.— Tempe Diablo Stadium, Tempe, Arizona—11/4/2000— Men's Senior League 38+ Championship Game—rain delays, Kansas City Monarchs 2 San Jose All-Stars 1 in 2:35.

2:00 A.M.—Hubert H. Humphrey Metrodome, Minneapolis, Minnesota -3/1/2001—National Collegiate Athletic Association — College of St. Scholastica Saints vs. St. Thomas University Tommies, then St. Thomas 12 St. Scholastica 5 in 2:00.

2:15 A.M.—Hubert H. Humphrey Metrodome, Minneapolis, Minnesota — 3/8/2001— National Collegiate Athletic Association — Upper Iowa University Peacocks vs. St. Thomas University Tommies, then St. Thomas 6 Upper Iowa 0 in 2:00.

1:06 A.M.— SkyDome (later Rogers Centre), Toronto, Province of Ontario, Canada—4/19/2001— American League—Yankees 6 Blue Jays 5 in 5:57 and 17 innings—24,684 fans, 1500 fans at end.

2:05 A.M.— Stadio Roberto Jannella, Grosseto, Italy — 4/20/2001— Serie Nazionale (Italian Al League)— Nettuno 5 Grosseto 2 in 5:05 and 14 innings.

1:29 A.M. — Ed Smith Stadium, Sarasota, Florida — 5/5/2001— Florida State League — Vero Beach Dodgers 11 Sarasota Red Sox 7 in 6:29 and 19 innings.

1:10 A.M.— Pac Bell (later SBC) Park, San Francisco, California — 5/29/2001— National League — Diamondbacks 1 Giants 0 in 5:53 and 18 innings — 39,709 fans.

2:05 A.M.— Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks, Alaska — 6/21/2001— Amateur — Alaska Goldpanners 2 Oceanside Waves 1 in 3:35 and 13 innings, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay top 7th — 3500 fans, 200 fans at end.

3:00 A.M. - Christie Pits, Toronto, Province of On-

tario, Canada — 6/29/2001— prelim tournament before Women's World Series I — Australia vs. unknown; Australia vs. unknown; Australia 6 Waterbury Diamonds 3 in 2:00 and 5 innings —12 fans —1st game began at 9:00 A.M.; 2nd game began at 8:30 P.M.; 3rd game began at 1:00 A.M.

2:00 A.M.— Coastal Federal Field, Myrtle Beach, South Carolina—7/27/2001—Carolina League—rain delay 2:58 at start, Myrtle Beach Pelicans 9 Salem Avalanche 3 in 2:30 and 7 innings, then Myrtle Beach 3 Salem 2 in 2:10 and 7 innings.

1:41 A.M.— Ballpark (later Ameriquest Field) in Arlington, Arlington, Texas—8/25/2001—American League—Rangers 8 Red Sox 7 in 6:35 and 18 innings—43,775 fans, 8000 fans at end.

2:30 A.M.— League Stadium, Huntingburg, Indiana — 8/2?/2001— Frontier League — rain delay 2:00 at start, Dubois County Dragons vs. River City Rascals in 2:40, then Dubois County 7 River City 2 in 2:xx and $6\frac{1}{2}$ innings, fog delay 0:30 top 5th, 2nd fog delay 0:15 top 7th — 37 fans at end.

2:11 A.M.— Dan Daniel Park, Danville, Virginia— 4/19/2002— National Collegiate Athletic Association— previous tournament action delay, Averett University Cougars 5 Greensboro College Pride 0 in 2:11—150 fans.

1:17 A.M.— Ballpark (later Ameriquest Field) in Arlington, Arlington, Texas — 5/22/2002 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — previous tournament action delay 2:37 at start, Texas Agricultural and Mechanical (A&M) University Aggies 8 University of Texas Longhorns 4 in 2:40—13,641 fans.

1:20 A.M. — Stadio Steno Borghese, Nettuno, Italy — 5/31/2002 — Serie Nazionale (Italian Al League) — Rimini 4 Nettuno 1 in 4:20 and 14 innings.

1:46 A.M.— Hammond Stadium, Fort Myers, Florida—6/8/2002—Florida State League—rain delay 4:07 at start, Vero Beach Dodgers 5 Fort Myers Miracle 1 in 2:00 and 7 innings, then Fort Myers 2 Vero Beach 1 in 2:09 and 8 innings—912 fans, 30 fans at end.

2:09 A.M. — Dothan, Alabama —?/??/2002 — American Legion — Fulton vs. Dothan in 4:30, injury delay 1:10, automatic sprinkler delay 0:24.

4:20 A.M.— Camp Jordan, East Ridge, Tennessee 7/14/2002 — Dizzy Dean League AA U13 World Series — rain delays, Baton Rouge Hurricane 6 Woodstock Wolves 5 in 2:10 and 7 innings — 50 fans, 45 fans at end.

1:01 A.M.— Le Lacheur Park, Lowell, Massachusetts — 7/29/2002 — New York-Pennsylvania League — Hudson Valley Renegades 13 Lowell Spinners 9 in 5:56 and 18 innings — 5000 fans.

1:09 A.M.— Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York — 8/9/2002 — American League — Athletics 3 Yankees 2 in 6:00 and 16 innings — 54,316 fans, 10,000 fans at end.

3:30 A.M. – Al Lang Field (II), St. Petersburg, Florida – 9/3/2002 – American Women's League/ Women's World Series II — rain/hurricane delay 5:00 in prior game, Australia 12 Canada 2 in 2:30.

3:17 A.M.— Estadio (Stadium) Tetelo Vargas, San Pedro de Marcoris, Dominican—10/19/2002— Winter League— Orientales Estrellas (Oriental Stars) 4 Escogido Leones Rojos (Red Lions) 3 in 6:41 and 20 innings.

3:00 A.M.— Estadio (Stadium) Isidoro "Cholo" Garcia, Mayaguez, Puerto Rico—11/?/2002 and 12/8/ 2002—Puerto Rican Winter League— Mayaguez Indios (Indians) 3 Carolina Gigantes (Giants) 1 in 17 innings, rain delays, suspended.

2:42 A.M.—Northcut Field at Westgate Park, Dothan, Alabama—3/1/2003—National Collegiate Athletic Association—Troy State University Trojans 8 Kansas State University Wildcats 7 in 5:22 and 18 innings, rain delay 1:40—273 fans, 50 fans at end.

1:26 A.M. — Sewell-Thomas Stadium, Tuscaloosa, Alabama — 3/14/2003 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — rain delay 0:42 at start, University of Alabama Crimson Tide 8 University of Georgia Bulldogs 7 in 3:32, 2nd rain delay 2:02 bottom 4th — 5197 fans.

2:53 A.M. — Louisville Slugger Field, Louisville, Kentucky — 6/6/2003 — International League — rain delay 2:15 at start, Louisville Bats 4 Richmond Braves 3 in 5:23 and 18 innings — 9892 fans, 500 fans at end.

1:10 A.M.— Fox Cities Stadium, Grand Chute, Wisconsin — 6/10/2003 — Wisconsin High School League — rain delay 3:00 at start of 3rd prior game, Milwaukee Rufus King High School Generals 6 Bay Port High School Pirates 3 in 2:55 and 8 innings — 350 fans.

1:37 A.M.— PNC Park, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania— 6/20/2003—AL at NL—rain delay 0:24 at start, Pirates 5 Indians 4 in 4:32 and 15 innings, 2nd rain delay 1:36 top 10th—26,305 fans, 400 fans at end.

1:00 A.M. — Ed Smith Stadium, Sarasota, Florida — 6/28/2003 and 6/29/2003 — Florida State League — Sarasota Red Sox 3 Palm Beach Cardinals 2 in 4:48 and 17 innings, rain delay, 2nd rain delay, suspended top 13th — 850 fans.

1:40 A.M.— Capital City Park, Columbia, South Carolina—7/4/2003—South Atlantic (Sally) League —Asheville Tourists 7 Capital City Bombers 5 in 6:44 and 19 innings—5800 fans, 550 fans at end.

1:29 A.M.—U.S. Cellular Field, Chicago, Illinois— 7/17/2003—American League—rain delay 3:06 at start, Tigers 10 White Sox 9 in 3:18—17,060 fans, 200 fans at end.

1:20 A.M.—Fifth Third Field, Toledo, Ohio— 8/4/2003—International League—rain delay 2:05 at start, Durham Bulls 5 Toledo Mud Hens 4 in 4:08 and 15 innings—6129 fans.

1:18 A.M. – Dell Diamond, Round Rock, Texas – 8/13/2003 – Texas League – rain delay 3:08 at start, Tulsa Drillers 4 Round Rock Express 1 in 2:35, 2nd rain delay 0:30 top 1st –10,878 fans, 200 fans at end.

2:55 A.M. - Knights Castle, Fort Mill, South Car-

olina — 8/15/2003 — International League — Charlotte Knights 4 Indianapolis Indians 3 in 6:20 and 18 innings, then Charlotte 5 Indianapolis 1 in 1:54 and 7 innings, 2nd game began at 1:01 A.M.— 5275 fans, 100 fans at start of second game, 36 fans at end plus 250 Girl Scouts asleep in Home Run Café ballpark restaurant who were to have camped out in the outfield after the games.

1:00 A.M.— Delta Company Desperados Field 'Afar, Tell 'Afar, Iraq—10/20/2003— United States Army 101st Airborne Division League—Hunter Marshall's Team vs. Adam Kamann's Team.

3:00 A.M. — Hubert H. Humphrey Metrodome, Minneapolis, Minnesota — 3/5/2004 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — St. Thomas University Tommies vs. University of South Dakota Coyotes, then St. Thomas 8 South Dakota 7 in 2:30.

2:16 A.M.— Tiger Field, Wolfforth, Texas—3/5/ 2004—Texas High School League—Frenship High School Tigers 7 Amarillo River Road High School Wildcats 4 in 2:21 and 7 innings—100 fans, 75 fans at end.

2:45 A.M. – Hubert H. Humphrey Metrodome, Minneapolis, Minnesota – 3/7/2004 – National Collegiate Athletic Association – Dickinson State University Bluehawks 13 Hamline University Pipers 3 in 1:45 and 6 innings – 75 fans.

4:35 A.M.— Hubert H. Humphrey Metrodome, Minneapolis, Minnesota -3/7/2004 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Dickinson State University Bluehawks 9 Hamline University Pipers 3 in 1:35 and 5 innings -25 fans.

1:35 A.M. – Frank Myers Field at Tointon Family Stadium, Manhattan, Kansas – 4/9/2004 – National Collegiate Athletic Association – University of Texas Longhorns 10 Kansas State University Wildcats 6 in 6:28 and 20 innings – 874 fans.

1:30 A.M.— North Georgia College Field, Dahlonega, Georgia — 4/23/2004 — National Association of Intercollegiate Athletics — Faulkner University Eagles 19 Georgia Southwestern State University Hurricanes 12 in 4:30—100 fans.

1:23 A.M.— Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York.— 5/11/2004 — American League — Yankees 8 Angels 7 in 3:57 and 10 innings, rain delay 0:30 top 4th, 2nd rain delay 1:48 bottom 4th — 36,706 fans, 5000 fans at end — author sat in lower deck behind home plate for the last three innings.

2:00 A.M.—AUM Baseball Complex, Montgomery, Alabama — 5/13/2004 — National Association of Intercollegiate Athletics — previous tournament action rain delays at start, Faulkner University Eagles 11 Auburn University Montgomery Senators 1 in 3:30— 100 fans.

1:36 A.M.— Salem Memorial Stadium, Salem, Virginia — 5/26/2004 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — previous tournament action delay 3:02 at start, Florida State University Seminoles 6 North Carolina State University Wolfpack 5 in 2:34 — 3573 fans. 1:03 A.M.— Salem Memorial Stadium, Salem, Virginia—5/27/2004—National Collegiate Athletic Association—previous tournament action delay 2:31 at start, Florida State University Seminoles 6 Duke University Blue Devils 3 in 2:32—2015 fans.

1:45 A.M.— Stadio dei Pirati, Rimini, Italy—6/4/ 2004—Serie Nazionale (Italian Al League)—Rimini 5 Paterno 4 in 4:45 and 14 innings.

2:50 A.M.— Stadio Renato Reatini, Anzio, Italy— 6/12/2004 — Serie Nazionale (Italian Al League)— Parma 8 Anzio 7 in 5:50 and 16 innings.

2:03 A.M.— Citizens Bank Park, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 6/14/2004 — National League — Phillies 10 Reds 7 in 3:04 and 8 innings, rain delay 2:18 bottom 3rd, 2nd rain delay 1:05 bottom 7th, 3rd rain delay 0:31 top 9th — 44,710 fans, 2000 fans at end.

1:13 A.M.— Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks, Alaska—6/21/2004—Amateur—Alaska Goldpanners 9 Kenai Peninsula Oilers 1 in 2:43, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay—3500 fans.

1:25 A.M.— Turner Field, Atlanta, Georgia—6/28/ 2004—National League—rain delay 3:20 at start, Braves 6 Marlins 1 in 2:30—31,969 fans, 5000 fans at start, 2000 fans at end.

1:23 A.M.— Citizens Bank Park, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 7/2/2004 — AL at NL — Orioles 7 Phillies 6 in 6:15 and 16 innings — 44,390 fans.

1:14 A.M. — Richmond County Bank Ballpark at St. George, New York, New York — 7/16/2004 — New York-Pennsylvania League — Staten Island Yankees 4 New Jersey Cardinals 3 in 4:43 and 17 innings, then New Jersey 3 Staten Island 0 in 2:53 and 10 innings, suspended after 1:38 and 6 innings, resumed on 8/2 after regularly scheduled game New Jersey 10 Staten Island 5 in 2:53 — 3909 fans on 7/16, 350 fans at start of 2nd game, 150 fans at suspension; 5324 fans on 8/2 for regularly scheduled game, 300 fans top 7th, 175 fans at end —finished at 11:55 P.M. on 8/2.

1:47 A.M.— Dunn Tire Park, Buffalo, New York— 7/16/2004 — International League — Buffalo Bisons 11 Scranton/Wilkes-Barre Red Barons 1 in 2:01 and 7 innings, then Scranton/Wilkes-Barre 8 Buffalo 3 in 5:07 and 16 innings—14,143 fans.

1:17 A.M.—Estadio (Stadium) Nelson Barrera, Campeche, State of Campeche, Mexico—7/21/2004 —Mexican League—rain delay 2:14 at start, Mexico City Diablos Rojos (Red Devils) 9 Campeche Piratas (Pirates) 7 in 3:33—8000 fans.

1:00 A.M.— Dick Putz Field, St. Cloud, Minnesota — 8/3/2004 — Northwoods League — Madison Mallards 9 St. Cloud River Bats 5 in 5:53 and 18 innings — 2145 fans.

2:44 A.M.— Lawrence-Dumont Stadium, Wichita, Kansas — 8/4/2004 — National Congress — Mat-Su Miners 6 Cape Girardeau 2 in 2:03.

1:19 A.M.— Lawrence-Dumont Stadium, Wichita, Kansas — 8/12/2004 — National Congress — Mat-Su Miners 4 Pueblo Chieftains 3 in 2:06. 1:46 A.M.—Wolff Stadium, San Antonio, Texas— 8/14/2004—Texas League—Midland RockHounds 7 San Antonio Missions 5 in 6:40 and 21 innings— 4286 fans, 90 fans at end.

1:22 A.M.— Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts— 10/17/2004—American League—Red Sox 6 Yankees 4 in 5:02 and 12 innings—34,826 fans.

2:00 A.M.— Estadio (Stadium) Teodoro Mariscal, Mazatlan, State of Sinaloa, Mexico — 2/6/2005 — Caribbean World Series title game — rain delay at start, Mazatlan (Mexico) 4 Aguilas (Dominican) 3 in 3:05.

1:06 A.M.— Fieldcrest Cannon Stadium, Kannapolis, North Carolina—5/20/2005—South Atlantic (Sally) League—Delmarva Shorebirds 7 Kannapolis Intimidators 6 in 5:50 and 18 innings—2899 fans, 250 fans at end including 200 Girl Scouts waiting to camp out in the outfield after the game.

1:35 A.M.— Stadio Europeo, Parma, Italy — 5/26/ 2005 — Serie Nazionale (Italian Al League) — Italeri Bologna 6 Cantine Ceci Negri Parma 5 in 5:05 and 15 innings.

1:45 A.M. — Fox Cities Stadium, Grand Chute, Wisconsin — 5/27/2005 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — University of Wisconsin — Whitewater Warhawks 8 Trinity College Bantams 3 in 2:35 — 1306 fans — finished at 12:41 P.M.; Chapman University Panthers 8 Wartburg College Knights 1 in 2:20—1481 fans — finished at 4:16 P.M.; Rowan University Profs 10 Hampden-Sydney College Tigers 0 in 2:10—1678 fans — finished at 9:57 P.M.; College of Wooster Fighting Scots 7 State University of New York — Cortland Red Dragons 6 in 2:53 —1713 fans.

1:35 A.M. — Fox Cities Stadium, Grand Chute, Wisconsin — 5/29/2005 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — State University of New York — Cortland Red Dragons 15 Chapman University Panthers 12 in 3:39; rain delay 0:48 6th; 2nd rain delay 0:47 7th — 1364 fans — finished at 5:05 P.M.; Wartburg College Knights 8 Rowan University Profs 6 in 3:40 and 16 innings — 1668 fans — finished at 9:44 P.M.; University of Wisconsin — Whitewater Warhawks 10 College of Wooster Fighting Scots 7 in 3:01—1985 fans.

1:19 A.M.—Whataburger Field, Corpus Christi, Texas—6/1/2005—Texas League—Wichita Wranglers 7 Corpus Christi Hooks 2 in 6:09 and 20 innings—6609 fans, 325 fans at end.

1:00 A.M.— Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks, Alaska—6/21/2005—Alaska Goldpanners 3 Omaha Strike Zone 1 in 2:30, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay—4000 fans.

1:09 A.M.— Falcon Park, Auburn, New York— 7/7/2005 and 8/14/2005 — New York-Pennsylvania League — Auburn Doubledays 6 Batavia Muckdogs 5 in 6:34 and 22 innings, suspended after 6:02 and 20 innings — 3242 fans on 7/7, 250 fans left at suspension, 1871 fans on 8/14 — finished at 5:35 P.M. on 8/14 — author present for last two innings.

1:16 A.M. – Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois – 7/26/ 2005 – National League – Giants 3 Cubs 2 in 3:28 and 11 innings, rain delay 2:43 at start — 39,002 fans; 25,000 fans at start; 7000 fans at end.

1:58 A.M.— Marietta, Georgia—8/??/2005— World Wood Bat Association— Floriday Bombers 12 Orlando Scorpions 9.

2:05 A.M.— Lawrence-Dumont Stadium, Wichita, Kansas — 8/2/2005 — National Congress — Colorado Sox 7 Rock City Red Sox 6 in 2:23.

1:11 A.M.— Lawrence-Dumont Stadium, Wichita, Kansas— 8/3/2005 — National Congress — Park City Cowboys 6 Fairbanks Goldpanners 5 in 2:22.

1:12 A.M. – Lawrence-Dumont Stadium, Wichita, Kansas – 8/4/2005 – National Congress – rain delay 1:02 at start, Havasu Heata 8 Crestwood Panthers 0 in 2:22, 2nd rain delay 2:18 top 5th.

4:09 A.M.— Lawrence-Dumont Stadium, Wichita, Kansas — 8/4/2005 — National Congress — Southern California Fire 8 Greenwood Vikings 0 in 2:17.

1:17 A.M.— Lawrence-Dumont Stadium, Wichita, Kansas— 8/5/2005— National Congress— Maxim Yankees 4 Plaza Tire Capahas 3 in 2:19.

4:37 A.M.— Lawrence-Dumont Stadium, Wichita, Kansas — 8/5/2005 — National Congress — Wichita Titans 7 Wichita Gators 4 in 2:41.

1:43 A.M.— Robertson Field, Wichita, Kansas— 8/6/2005— National Congress—Wichita Titans 4 Greenwood Vikings 2 in 2:05.

2:06 A.M.— Lawrence-Dumont Stadium, Wichita, Kansas — 8/6/2005 — National Congress — El Dorado Broncos 11 Oklahoma Athletics 3 in 2:39.

3:42 A.M.— Robertson Field, Wichita, Kansas— 8/6/2005—National Congress—San Diego Stars 14 Crestwood Panthers 0 in 1:18 and 5 innings.

5:09 A.M.— Lawrence-Dumont Stadium, Wichita, Kansas — 8/6/2005 — National Congress — Santa Barbara Foresters 9 Parkville Sluggers 7 in 2:23.

8:42 A.M.— Lawrence-Dumont Stadium, Wichita, Kansas — 8/6/2005 — National Congress — Southern California Fire 8 Park City Cowboys 4 in 2:53.

2:38 A.M.— Lawrence-Dumont Stadium, Wichita, Kansas — 8/7/2005 — National Congress — Park City Cowboys 5 Dodge City Desperados 4 in 2:19.

1:27 A.M.—Lawrence-Dumont Stadium, Wichita, Kansas—8/8/2005—National Congress—Santa Barbara Foresters 7 Clarinda Athletics 4 in 2:47.

1:03 A.M.—Lawrence-Dumont Stadium, Wichita, Kansas—8/9/2005—National Congress—Prairie Gravel 4 Wichita Braves 3 in 2:29.

1:27 A.M.— Lawrence-Dumont Stadium, Wichita, Kansas — 8/10/2005 — National Congress — El Dorado Broncos 3 Pueblo Chieftains 1 in 2:03.

1:44 A.M.— Lawrence-Dumont Stadium, Wichita, Kansas — 8/11/2005 — National Congress — Clarinda Athletics 8 El Dorado Broncos 1 in 2:17.

1:05 A.M.— Canal Park, Akron, Ohio — 8/17/2005 — Eastern League — Akron Aeros 3 Altoona Curve 2 in 4:01 and 14 innings, then Akron 9 Altoona 3 in 2:04 — 7747 fans.

1:21 A.M. - Minute Maid Park, Houston, Texas -

10/25/2005 — American League at National League — White Sox 7 Astros 5 in 5:41 and 14 innings — 42,848 fans.

1:13 A.M.— Estadio (Stadium) Angel Flores, Culiacan, State of Sinaloa, Mexico—11/16/2005— Mexican Pacific League— Culiacan Tomateros (Tomato Growers) 4 Los Mochis Caneros (Sugar Cane Growers) 3 in 5:43 and 14 innings.

1:00 A.M.— Margarita Island, Venezuela—11/19/ 2005 — Winter League — Margarita defeated Caribes in 3:00 and 7 innings, 1:30 power failure delay top 1st; then Margarita defeated Caribes in 2:30 and 7 innings.

1:10 A.M. – U.S. Cellular Field, Chicago, Illinois – 4/2/2006 – American League – White Sox 10 Indians 4 in 2:59, rain delay 2:57 bottom 4th – 38,802 fans; 9500 fans bottom 4th; 2500 fans at end.

1:00 A.M.— Estadio (Stadium) 20 de Noviembre (November 20), San Luis Potosi, State of San Luis Potosi, Mexico—4/15/2006—Mexican League—Saltillo Saraperos (Blanket Makers) 7 San Luis Potosi Tuneros (Prickle Pear Growers) 5 in 6:00 and 16 innings—1758 fans.

1:25 A.M. — Greer Stadium, Nashville, Tennessee — 5/5/2006 and 5/6/2006 — Pacific Coast League — New Orleans Zephyrs 5 Nashville Sounds 4 in 8:07 and 24 innings, suspended after 6:23 and 18 innings — 9124 fans on 5/5, 300 fans at suspension; 10,016 fans on 5/6 — suspended at 1:25 A.M. in the early morning of 5/6; finished at 7:44 P.M. on 5/6.

1:27 A.M.— Hunnicutt Field, Princeton, West Virginia — 5/7/2006 — National Collegiate Athletic Administration — Ohio Valley University Fighting Scots 10 West Virginia State University Yellow Jackets 9 in 3:07, rain delay 8:54 top 7th, then Ohio Valley University Fighting Scots 14 Concord University Mountain Lions 5 in 2:49 — 250 fans, 75 fans top 7th, 350 fans at end of 1st game; 200 fans at end of 2nd game.

3:53 A.M.—Estadio (Stadium) Monterrey, Monterrey, State of Nuevo Leon, Mexico—6/22/2006— Mexican League—Laguna Vaqueros (Cowboys) 6 Monterrey Sultanes (Sultans) 4 in 5:21 and 16 innings, rain delay 2:16 at start—15,635 fans; only 100 fans at end.

2:05 A.M.— Fox Cities Stadium, Grand Chute, Wisconsin—6/2?/2006—Wisconsin High School Division 2 Playoffs Semi-Final—Waupun High School vs. West De Pere High School in 2:35.

1:40 A.M.— Veterans Memorial Stadium, Cedar Rapids, Iowa—8/18/2006—American Legion World Series—rain delay 3:44 at start; Sumter (Sc) 7 Lincoln (NE) 5; Midlothian (Va) 8 Las Vegas (Nv) 2; Terre Haute (in) 6 Metairie (La) 3; Milton (Ma) 14 Lawrence (Ks) 4 in 2:40 and 8 innings.

1:27 A.M.— Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 8/20/2006 — American League — Yankees 8 Red Sox 5 in 4:17 and 10 innings, rain delay 0:57 top 3rd — 36,155 fans.

1:39 A.M.— Estadio (Stadium) Monterrey, Monterrey, State of Nuevo Leon, Mexico—8/22/2006Mexican League Championship Series – rain delay 2:03 at start, Monterrey Sultanes (Sultans) 5 Yucatan Leones 4 (Lions) in 3:36 – 27,500 fans.

1:19 A.M.—Estadio (Stadium) Kulkucan, Merida, State of Yucatan, Mexico—8/27/2006—Mexican League—Monterrey Sultanes (Sultans) 2 Yucatan Leones (Lions) 1 in 5:19 and 14 innings.

1:26 A.M.— Citibank Park, Central Islip, New York— 9/12/2006 — Atlantic League — Camden Riversharks 8 Long Island Ducks 7 in 6:20 and 18 innings — 5234 fans; 30 fans at end.

2:07 A.M.—RFK Stadium, Washington, DC— 9/28/2006—National League—rain delay 4:27 at start, Nationals 3 Phillies 1 in 2:35—18,324 fans; 3200 fans at start; 3600 fans at end.

2:05 A.M. — Estadio (Stadium) Roberto Clemente Walker, Carolina, Puerto Rico — 2/2/2007 — Caribbean Series — Aguilas Cibaenas (Dominican) 4 Aragua Tigres (Tigers) (Venezuela) 3 in 6:13 and 18 innings; intermission 0:30 between games; then Carolina Giantes (Giants) (Puerto Rico) 11 Hermosillo Naranjeros (Orange Growers) (Mexico) 1 in 3:15.

4:33 A.M. – Hoglund Ballpark, Lawrence, Kansas; cancelled due to snow and moved to Hubert H. Humphrey Metrodome, Minneapolis, Minnesota – 2/10/2007 – National Collegiate Athletic Association – South Dakota State University Jackrabbits 6 Kansas University Jayhawks 5 in 2:51; then Kansas 3 South Dakota State 2 in 2:47, suspended after 2:27 and 7 innings – 33 fans; 22 fans at beginning of 2nd game –1st game began at 1:42 A.M. on 2/10 and ended at 4:33 A.M.; 2nd game began at 5:03 A.M., was suspended at 7:30 A.M. on 2/10, begun again at 3:30 A.M. and completed at 3:54 A.M. on 2/11.

7:30 A.M. — Hoglund Ballpark, Lawrence, Kansas; cancelled due to snow and moved to Hubert H. Humphrey Metrodome, Minneapolis, Minnesota — 2/10/2007 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — South Dakota State University Jackrabbits 6 Kansas University Jayhawks 5 in 2:51; then Kansas 3 South Dakota State 2 in 2:47, suspended after 2:27 and 7 innings — 33 fans; 22 fans at beginning of 2nd game — Ist game began at 1:42 A.M. on 2/10 and ended at 4:33 A.M.; 2nd game began at 5:03 A.M., was suspended at 7:30 A.M. on 2/10, begun again at 3:30 A.M. and completed at 3:54 A.M. on 2/11.

3:54 A.M. – Hoglund Ballpark, Lawrence, Kansas; cancelled due to snow and moved to Hubert H. Humphrey Metrodome, Minneapolis, Minnesota – 2/11/2007 – National Collegiate Athletic Association – South Dakota State University Jackrabbits 6 Kansas University Jayhawks 5 in 2:51; then Kansas 3 South Dakota State 2 in 2:47, suspended after 2:27 and 7 innings – 33 fans; 22 fans at beginning of 2nd game –1st game began at 1:42 A.M. on 2/10 and ended at 4:33 A.M.; 2nd game began at 5:03 A.M., was suspended at 7:30 A.M. on 2/10, begun again at 3:30 A.M. and completed at 3:54 A.M. on 2/11.

6:57 A.M.-Hoglund Ballpark, Lawrence, Kansas;

cancelled due to snow and moved to Hubert H. Humphrey Metrodome, Minneapolis, Minnesota — 2/11/2007 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Kansas University Jayhawks 4 South Dakota State University Jackrabbits 1 in 2:37 — 26 fans began at 4:20 A.M. on 2/11.

1:42 A.M. — Robert F. Kennedy Stadium, Washington, DC— 5/12/2007 — National League — Nationals 7 Marlins 3 in 2:59 — rain delay 2:51 top 5th, 2nd rain delay 0:47 bottom 9th—19,278 fans; 50 fans at end.

1:55 A.M.— Whitehouse Field, Harwich, Massachusetts — 5/16/2007 — National Collegiate Athletic Association Division III New England Regional — Wheaton College Lyons 7 Curry College Colonels 6 in 4:40 and 16 innings —157 fans.

1:04 A.M.— Bricktown Ballpark, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma — 5/23/2007 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Baylor University Bears 3 Oklahoma State University Cowboys 1 in 2:24 — 6309 fans; 2500 fans at start; 2000 fans at end.

1:15 A.M.— Baseball Grounds, Jacksonville, Florida — 5/24/2007 — National Collegiate Athletic Association conference tournament — rain delay 1:40 at start, University of North Carolina Tar Heels 14 North Carolina State University Wolfpack 5 in 3:05 — 6132 fans.

1:15 A.M.— Stadio Roberto Jannella, Grosseto, Italy—6/7/2007—Serie Nazionale (Italian Al League) — MontePaschi Grosseto 4 Cariparma 3 in 4:15 and 15 innings.

2:20 A.M.— Petersburg Sports Complex, Petersburg, Virginia — 7/11/2007 — Coastal Plain League — Peninsula Pilots 9 Petersburg Generals 5 in 5:25 and 17 innings — 120 fans.

1:45 A.M.— Mulcahy Stadium, Anchorage, Alaska — 7/15/2007 — Alaska League — rain delay 3:25 at start, Athletes in Action (Aia) Fire 7 Anchorage Bucs 4 in 3:20 and 10 innings.

1:21 A.M.—PETCO Park, San Diego, California— 4/17/2008—National League—Rockies 2 Padres 1 in 6:16 and 22 innings—25,984 fans.

2:06 A.M.— Chain of Lakes Park, Winter Haven, Florida — 5/10/2008 — National Junior Collegiate Athletic Association (NJCAA) State Junior College (JUCO) Tournament — Manatee Community College Lancers 13 Pensacola Junior College Pirates 9, previous game delay 2:06 at start; broken water pipe behind pitcher's mound delay 0:53.

1:26 A.M.— Baseball Grounds, Jacksonville, Florida — 5/21/2008 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — conference tournament — University of Virginia Cavaliers 8 University of North Carolina Tar Heels 7 in 3:40 and 11 innings — 9668 fans.

1:54 A.M. — Regions Park, Hoover, Alabama — 5/21/ 2008 — National Collegiate Athletic Association conference tournament — University of Kentucky Xxxx 9 University of Alabama Crimson Tide 3 in 3:04 —11,967 fans.

2:06 A.M.— Joe Riley Park, Charleston, South Carolina — 5/21/2008 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — conference tournament — Georgia Southern University Eagles 21 University of North Carolina at Greensboro Spartans 9 in 3:51—522 fans.

1:41 A.M. — Joe Riley Park, Charleston, South Carolina — 5/22/2008 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — conference tournament — Elon College Phoenix 16 Georgia Southern University Eagles 6 in 3:39 — 723 fans.

2:53 A.M.—GCS Ballpark, Sauget, Illinois—5/26/ 2008—Divison II playoffs—Sonoma State University Seawolves 6 University of Central Missouri Mules 5 in 6:45 and 19 innings—201 fans.

1:20 A.M.— Progressive Field, Cleveland, Ohio— 6/13/2008— National League at American League— Indians 9 Padres 5 in 3:32, rain delay 2:43 bottom 1st—31,399 fans.

1:10 A.M. — PNC Park, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 7/8/2008 — National League — Pirates 4 Astros 3 in 2:58, rain delay 2:39 top 4th, 2nd rain delay 0:28 bottom 6th —17,867 fans; 500 fans at end.

1:37 A.M.—Yankee Stadium, New York, New York —7/15/2008—All-Star Game—American League 4 National League 3 in 4:50 and 15 innings—55,632 fans.

1:35 A.M.— Tropicana Field, St. Petersburg, Florida —10/11/2008— American League Championship Series— Rays 9 Red Sox 8 in 5:27 and 11 innings— 34,904 fans.

1:47 A.M.— Citizens Bank Park, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania—10/25/2008 — World Series AL at NL — rain delay 1:31 at start, Phillies 5 Rays 4 in 3:41—45,900 fans.

2:46 A.M.— Estadio (Stadium) Teodoro Mariscal, Mazatlan; State of Sinaloa, Mexico—10/31/2008— Mexican Pacific League— Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 4 Culiacan Tomateros (Tomato Growers) 2 in 6:46 and 17 innings—7980 fans.

2:51 A.M.— Estadio (Stadium) Quisqueya, Santo Domingo, Dominican—12/2/2008— Winter League — Tigres (Tigers) del Licey 10 Gigantes (Giants) del Cibao 9 in 6:19 and 18 innings, rain delay 1:02.

Latest Finish, U.S. High School and College

High School (9)

1:30 A.M.— Boysen Park, Anaheim, California— 4/26/1968 — Santa Ana High School Saints 6 Anaheim High School Colonists 6 in 5:45 and 19 innings, automatic sprinkers delay 0:45 top 20th, called a tie— 100 fans, 25 fans at end— called off at 1:30 A.M. because automated sprinklers which had come on at 12:45 A.M. could not be turned off.

3:00 A.M. New Mexico time; 4:00 A.M. Texas time — Hays Field, Lubbock, Texas; Ferguson Field, Jal, New Mexico — 5/1?/1986 — 4A best two-out-of-three playoffs — knowing that torrential rains made playing second game at 1 P.M. and "if-necessary" third game at 7 P.M. totally impossible, both teams along with coaches, fans, and umpires set out at 7 A.M. on what ended up being a 510-mile long Odyssey from Lubbock, Texas to New Mexico in search of a dry field, fields were found in Artesia (2:00 wait) and Hobbs (2:30 wait) but the fields were too wet and it was raining in both places, in Hobbs they ran into two other Texas high schools, Pecos and Canyon, who were also in search of a dry field, when told that Eunice had a dry field the race was on between the Pecos/Canyon caravan and the Hereford/Andrews caravan, Pecos and Canyon won the race, and proceeded to begin their second game, Canyon had won their first game the night before so when Canyon got way ahead early in the second game, Hereford and Andrews decided to wait and play afterwards since there would be no need for a third game if Canyon won, but Pecos staged a big comeback to win, forcing a deciding third game, leaving Hereford and Andrews still looking for a dry field, and then they heard there was an old field in Jal that had not been used in two years, flickering light standards were fixed by taping two wires together with black electrical tape, outfield had knee-high weeds, foul lines were chalked using an old shoe box, finally after a 12-hour long change-of-field delay, they began play at 12:00 Midnight New Mexico time, 1:00 A.M. Texas time, Hereford High School Whitefaces 4 Andrews High School Mustangs 3 in 3:00 and 8 innings – 50 fans including Hereford mascot Red.

1:15 A.M. — Hays Field, Lubbock and Angels (later Christensen) Stadium, Midland, Texas — 5/17/1986 — 5A playoff championship game — moved from Lubbock ballfield to Midland ballfield, change-offield/Blue Norther 2-feet of snow blizzard delay 6:45 at start, then Abilene Cooper High School Cougars 15 Amarillo High School Sandies 6 in 3:15 and 7 innings, intermission 0:15 between games, then Abilene Cooper 11 Amarillo 4 in 3:00 and 7 innings — 700 fans; 700 fans at end —1st game started at 38 degrees, 2nd game finished at 28 degrees.

2:30 A.M.— Enum Claw, Washington—6/??/1987 — State Tournament—previous tournament action delay at start, Burlington-Edison High School Tigers 3 North Kitsap High School Vikings 2 in 4:00 and 10 innings.

2:01 A.M. – Fayetteville, Arkansas – 5/18/1993 – rain delay prior tournament action at start, Bryant High School Hornets 10 Bentonville High School Tigers 9.

1:43 A.M.— Bell Park, Clovis, New Mexico — 6/11/1997 — rain delay at start of 5th prior game, Sandia High School Matadors 14 Clovis High School Wildcats 12 in 2:53 and 8 innings — 300 fans, 125 fans at end.

1:10 A.M.— Fox Cities Stadium, Grand Chute, Wisconsin -6/10/2003 — rain delay 3:00 at start of 3rd prior game, Milwaukee Rufus King High School Generals 6 Bay Port High School Pirates 3 in 2:55 and 8 innings -350 fans.

2:16 A.M.— Tiger Field, Wolfforth, Texas — 3/5/ 2004 — Frenship High School Tigers 7 Amarillo River Road High School Wildcats 4 in 2:21 and 7 innings — 100 fans, 75 fans at end.

2:05 A.M.—Fox Cities Stadium, Grand Chute, Wisconsin-6/2?/2006—Division 2 Playoffs Semi-Final—Waupun High School vs. West De Pere High School in 2:35.

College (64)

National Collegiate Athletic Association (NCAA) (52)

2:00 A.M.— Riverside, California — 3/29/1973 previous tournament action delay at start, University of Southern California Trojans 9 Washington State University Cougars 2.

1:09 A.M.— Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks, Alaska—6/21/1973—NCAA at Amateur—Brigham Young University Cougars 8 Alaska Goldpanners 5, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay—4300 fans.

1:18 A.M.— Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks, Alaska — 6/21/1974 — NCAA at Amateur — Alaska Goldpanners 7 Washington State University Cougars 6, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay — 4473 fans.

1:30 A.M.— Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks, Alaska — 6/21/1979 — NCAA at Amateur — Alaska Goldpanners 8 University of North Carolina Tar Heels 2, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay — 4000 fans.

2:10 A.M.—Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks, Alaska—6/20/1980—NCAA at Amateur—Alaska Goldpanners 16 University of Wisconsin Badgers 5, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay—2600 fans.

1:15 A.M.— Disch-Falk Field, Austin, Texas — 5/15/ 1981 and 5/16/1981— University of Texas Longhorns 7 Rice University Owls 6 in 6:07 and 20 innings, rain delay 2:00 top 13th, suspended after 3:10 and 12 innings — 4700 fans on 5/15, 300 fans at suspension, 3000 fans on 5/16—finished at 3:02 P.M. on 5/16.

2:00 A.M.— Smith Field, San Diego, California— 3/26/1982 — previous tournament action delay at start, United States International University Gulls 6 California State University at Los Angeles Golden Eagles 4 in 2:30—30 fans, 10 fans at end.

1:41 A.M.— Joe Davis Stadium, Huntsville, Alabama — 5/21/1987 — rain delay 2:40 at start, University of Arkansas Razorbacks 10 Middle Tennessee University Blue Raiders 7 in 3:01—535 fans.

1:05 A.M.— Olsen Field, College Station, Texas— 5/5/1989 — University of Arkansas Razorbacks 11 Texas Agricultural and Mechanical (A&M) University Aggies 9 in 5:57 and 16 innings—5388 fans, 3000 fans at end.

1:14 A.M.-Coveleski Stadium, South Bend, Indi-

ana — 5/19/1989 — rain delay 2:30 at start of prior game, rain delay 1:35 bottom 11th of prior game, rain delay 3:15 at start, University of Detroit Titans 3 University of Evansville Purple Aces 2 in 10 innings.

4:24 A.M.— Coveleski Stadium, South Bend, Indiana — 5/19/1989 — rain delay 2:30 at start of 2nd prior game, rain delay 1:35 bottom 11th of 2nd prior game, rain delay 3:15 at start of prior game, University of Notre Dame Fighting Irish 20 University of Dayton Flyers 4 in 2:46 —150 fans at start, 200 fans in bottom 3rd, 25 fans at end.

1:45 A.M.—C.O. Brown Stadium, Battle Creek, Michigan—5/27/1990—previous tournament action delay at start, Aurora University Spartans 12 North Carolina Wesleyan College Bishops 9 in 4:30—1 fan at end.

1:07 A.M.— Braves Stadium, Greenville, South Carolina — 5/14/1991— previous tournament action delay at start, Clemson University Tigers 24 Georgia Technical Institute Rambling Wreck 8.

1:17 A.M.—Perry Field, Gainesville, Florida— 5/23/1991—rain delay, University of Florida Gators 2 Furman University Paladins 0 in 2:17—3517 fans, 3000 fans at end.

1:21 A.M.— Municipal Stadium, Greenville, South Carolina— 5/19/1993— Clemson University Tigers 11 North Carolina State University Wolfpack 7 in 3:09.

1:03 A.M. — Russ Chandler Stadium, Atlanta, Georgia — 5/30/1993 — rain delay 3:31 at start, Wichita State University Shockers 5 Ohio State University Buckeyes 3 in 2:32.

1:00 A.M.—Pioneer Park, Marietta, Ohio — 5/11/ 1995 — Bethany College Bison 5 Marietta College Pioneers 4 in 2:45, rain delay 3:15 top 2nd.

2:50 A.M.—Hubert H. Humphrey Metrodome, Minneapolis, Minnesota—3/6/1996—University of Wisconsin River Falls Falcons vs. St. Thomas University Tommies, then Wisconsin River Falls 4 St. Thomas 2 in 8 innings.

2:30 A.M.— Pohlman Field, Beloit, Wisconsin— 4/20/1996 — Beloit College Buccaneers 9 Ripon College Red Hawks 8, then Ripon 9 Beloit 7.

1:50 A.M.— Pioneer Park, Marietta, Ohio — 5/7/ 1996 — Bethany College Bison 6 Marietta College Pioneers 0, rain delay 0:30 at start, 2nd rain delay 2:00 top 2nd, then Bethany 5 Marietta 2.

1:20 A.M.— Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 5/12/1998 — Fordham University Rams 3 Virginia Polytechnic Institute Hokies 1 in 2:30—321 fans, 30 fans at end.

2:28 A.M.—Salem Memorial Stadium, Salem, Virginia—5/23/1998—rain delays in prior games 3:43 at start, Montclair State University Red Hawks 8 North Carolina Wesleyan College Bishops 3 in 2:45— 250 fans, 50 fans at end.

1:05 A.M.— Cougar Field, Houston, Texas — 5/29/ 1999 — rain delay 4:00 in prior game, University of Houston Cougars 8 University of Texas Longhorns 5 in 2:59.

1:09 A.M. — Dick Howser Field, Tallahassee, Florida

— 4/7/2000— Florida State University Seminoles 14
 University of Miami Hurricanes 13 in 6:07 and 17 innings — 4626 fans.

2:00 A.M.—Hubert H. Humphrey Metrodome, Minneapolis, Minnesota—3/1/2001—College of St. Scholastica Saints vs. St. Thomas University Tommies, then St. Thomas 12 St. Scholastica 5 in 2:00.

2:15 A.M.— Hubert H. Humphrey Metrodome, Minneapolis, Minnesota-3/8/2001— Upper Iowa University Peacocks vs. St. Thomas University Tommies, then St. Thomas 6 Upper Iowa 0 in 2:00.

2:11 A.M.— Dan Daniel Park, Danville, Virginia— 4/19/2002— previous tournament action delay, Averett University Cougars 5 Greensboro College Pride 0 in 2:11—150 fans.

1:17 A.M. — Ballpark (later Ameriquest Field) in Arlington, Arlington, Texas — 5/22/2002 — previous tournament action delay 2:37 at start, Texas Agricultural and Mechanical (A&M) University Aggies 8 University of Texas Longhorns 4 in 2:40—13,641 fans.

2:42 A.M.—Northcut Field at Westgate Park, Dothan, Alabama — 3/1/2003 — Troy State University Trojans 8 Kansas State University Wildcats 7 in 5:22 and 18 innings, rain delay 1:40—273 fans, 50 fans at end.

1:26 A.M. – Sewell-Thomas Stadium, Tuscaloosa, Alabama – 3/14/2003 – rain delay 0:42 at start, University of Alabama Crimson Tide 8 University of Georgia Bulldogs 7 in 3:32, 2nd rain delay 2:02 bottom 4th – 5197 fans.

3:00 A.M. – Hubert H. Humphrey Metrodome, Minneapolis, Minnesota – 3/5/2004 – St. Thomas University Tommies vs. University of South Dakota Coyotes, then St. Thomas 8 South Dakota 7 in 2:30.

2:45 A.M.—Hubert H. Humphrey Metrodome, Minneapolis, Minnesota—3/7/2004—Dickinson State University Bluehawks 13 Hamline University Pipers 3 in 1:45 and 6 innings—75 fans.

4:35 A.M.—Hubert H. Humphrey Metrodome, Minneapolis, Minnesota—3/7/2004—Dickinson State University Bluehawks 9 Hamline University Pipers 3 in 1:35 and 5 innings—25 fans.

1:35 A.M.— Frank Myers Field at Tointon Family Stadium, Manhattan, Kansas—4/9/2004—University of Texas Longhorns 10 Kansas State University Wildcats 6 in 6:28 and 20 innings—874 fans.

1:36 A.M.— Salem Memorial Stadium, Salem, Virginia—5/26/2004—previous tournament action delay 3:02 at start, Florida State University Seminoles 6 North Carolina State University Wolfpack 5 in 2:34—3573 fans.

1:03 A.M.— Salem Memorial Stadium, Salem, Virginia — 5/27/2004 — previous tournament action delay 2:31 at start, Florida State University Seminoles 6 Duke University Blue Devils 3 in 2:32 — 2015 fans.

1:45 A.M. — Fox Cities Stadium, Grand Chute, Wisconsin — 5/27/2005 — University of Wisconsin — Whitewater Warhawks 8 Trinity College Bantams 3 in 2:35 — 1306 fans — finished at 12:41 P.M.; Chapman University Panthers 8 Wartburg College Knights 1 in 2:20–1481 fans —finished at 4:16 P.M.; Rowan University Profs 10 Hampden-Sydney College Tigers 0 in 2:10–1678 fans —finished at 9:57 P.M.; College of Wooster Fighting Scots 7 State University of New York — Cortland Red Dragons 6 in 2:53–1713 fans.

1:35 A.M. — Fox Cities Stadium, Grand Chute, Wisconsin — 5/29/2005 — State University of New York — Cortland Red Dragons 15 Chapman University Panthers 12 in 3:39; rain delay 0:48 6th; 2nd rain delay 0:47 7th — 1364 fans — finished at 5:05 P.M.; Wartburg College Knights 8 Rowan University Profs 6 in 3:40 and 16 innings — 1668 fans — finished at 9:44 P.M.; University of Wisconsin — Whitewater Warhawks 10 College of Wooster Fighting Scots 7 in 3:01—1985 fans.

1:27 A.M.— Hunnicutt Field, Princeton, West Virginia—5/7/2006—Ohio Valley University Fighting Scots 10 West Virginia State University Yellow Jackets 9 in 3:07, rain delay 8:54 top 7th, then Ohio Valley University Fighting Scots 14 Concord University Mountain Lions 5 in 2:49—250 fans, 75 fans top 7th, 350 fans at end; 200 fans at end of 2nd game.

4:33 A.M. — Hoglund Ballpark, Lawrence, Kansas; cancelled due to snow and moved to Hubert H. Humphrey Metrodome, Minneapolis, Minnesota — 2/10/2007 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — South Dakota State University Jackrabbits 6 Kansas University Jayhawks 5 in 2:51; then Kansas 3 South Dakota State 2 in 2:47, suspended after 2:27 and 7 innings — 33 fans; 22 fans at beginning of 2nd game — 1st game began at 1:42 A.M. on 2/10 and ended at 4:33 A.M.; 2nd game began at 5:03 A.M., was suspended at 7:30 A.M. on 2/10, begun again at 3:30 A.M. and completed at 3:54 A.M. on 2/11.

7:30 A.M.— Hoglund Ballpark, Lawrence, Kansas; cancelled due to snow and moved to Hubert H. Humphrey Metrodome, Minneapolis, Minnesota— 2/10/2007—South Dakota State University Jackrabbits 6 Kansas University Jayhawks 5 in 2:51; then Kansas 3 South Dakota State 2 in 2:47, suspended after 2:27 and 7 innings—33 fans; 22 fans at beginning of 2nd game—1st game began at 1:42 A.M. on 2/10 and ended at 4:33 A.M.; 2nd game began at 5:03 A.M., was suspended at 7:30 A.M. on 2/10, begun again at 3:30 A.M. and completed at 3:54 A.M. on 2/11.

3:54 A.M. — Hoglund Ballpark, Lawrence, Kansas; cancelled due to snow and moved to Hubert H. Humphrey Metrodome, Minneapolis, Minnesota — 2/11/2007 — South Dakota State University Jackrabbits 6 Kansas University Jayhawks 5 in 2:51; then Kansas 3 South Dakota State 2 in 2:47, suspended after 2:27 and 7 innings — 33 fans; 22 fans at beginning of 2nd game — 1st game began at 1:42 A.M. on 2/10 and ended at 4:33 A.M.; 2nd game began at 5:03 A.M., was suspended at 7:30 A.M. on 2/10, begun again at 3:30 A.M. and completed at 3:54 A.M. on 2/11.

6:57 A.M.-Hoglund Ballpark, Lawrence, Kansas; cancelled due to snow and moved to Hubert H.

Humphrey Metrodome, Minneapolis, Minnesota — 2/11/2007 — Kansas University Jayhawks 4 South Dakota State University Jackrabbits 1 in 2:37 — 26 fans — began at 4:20 A.M. on 2/11.

1:55 A.M.— Whitehouse Field, Harwich, Massachusetts — 5/16/2007 — Division III New England Regional — Wheaton College Lyons 7 Curry College Colonels 6 in 4:40 and 16 innings —157 fans.

1:04 A.M.—Bricktown Ballpark, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma—5/23/2007—Baylor University Bears 3 Oklahoma State University Cowboys 1 in 2:24—6309 fans; 2500 fans at start; 2000 fans at end.

1:15 A.M.— Baseball Grounds, Jacksonville, Florida -5/24/2007—conference tournament—rain delay 1:40 at start, University of North Carolina Tar Heels 14 North Carolina State University Wolfpack 5 in 3:05—6132 fans.

1:26 A.M.— Baseball Grounds, Jacksonville, Florida — 5/21/2008—conference tournament—University of Virginia Cavaliers 8 University of North Carolina Tar Heels 7 in 3:40 and 11 innings—9668 fans.

1:54 A.M.— Regions Park, Hoover, Alabama — 5/21/ 2008 — conference tournament — University of Kentucky Xxxx 9 University of Alabama Crimson Tide 3 in 3:04 —11,967 fans.

2:06 A.M.— Joe Riley Park, Charleston, South Carolina — 5/21/2008 — conference tournament — Georgia Southern University Eagles 21 University of North Carolina at Greensboro Spartans 9 in 3:51—522 fans.

1:41 A.M. — Joe Riley Park, Charleston, South Carolina — 5/22/2008 — conference tournament — Elon College Phoenix 16 Georgia Southern University Eagles 6 in 3:39 — 723 fans.

2:53 A.M.—GCS Ballpark, Sauget, Illinois—5/ 26/2008—National Collegiate Athletic Assocition Divison II playoffs—Sonoma State University Seawolves 6 University of Central Missouri Mules 5 in 19 innings—201 fans—finished at 2:53 A.M. in the early morning of 5/27.

National Association of Intercollegiate Athletics (NAIA) (8)

1:00 A.M.— Kimble Field, Wyoming, Michigan— 5/16/1974 — Aquinas College Saints 7 Ferris State University Bulldogs 6 in 13 innings, two rain delays—100 fans at end.

3:15 A.M. — Watt Powell Park, Charleston, West Virginia — 5/6/early 1980's — rain delays in previous tournament action, West Virginia State College Yellow Jackets 6 Davis and Elkins College Senators 5.

4:59 A.M.— House Field, Corbin, Kentucky— 5/9/1996—rain delays in previous tournament action, Lindsey Wilson College Blue Raiders 8 Pikeville College Bears 5.

2:30 A.M.— Don Provance Field, Springfield, Missouri — 5/11/1996 — rain delays in previous tournament action, Benedictine College Ravens 5 Evangel University Crusaders 4 in 2:45.

2:52 A.M.- Hunnicutt Field, Princeton, West Vir-

ginia — 5/4/1997 — rain delays in previous tournament action, West Virginia State College Yellow Jackets 7 Shepherd College (now University) Rams 6 in 3:12 and 12 innings.

1:15 A.M.— House Field, Corbin, Kentucky—4/24/ 1998—rain delays in previous tournament action, Lindsey Wilson College Blue Raiders 15 Berea College Mountaineers 6 in 2:15.

1:30 A.M.— North Georgia College Field, Dahlonega, Georgia — 4/23/2004 — Faulkner University Eagles 19 Georgia Southwestern State University Hurricanes 12 in 4:30—100 fans.

2:00 A.M.—AUM Baseball Complex, Montgomery, Alabama—5/13/2004—previous tournament action rain delays at start, Faulkner University Eagles 11 Auburn University Montgomery Senators 1 in 3:30— 100 fans.

National Junior Collegiate Athletic Association (NJCAA) (5)

2:15 A.M.— Lincoln Park Stadium (later Stocker Stadium, then Sam Suplizio Field), Grand Junction, Colorado — 5/23/1959 — Phoenix College Bears 6 Wilmington Junior College (now University of North Carolina-Wilmington) Seahawks 3.

2:01 A.M. — Shelby State Community College Field, Memphis, Tennessee — 3/23/1985 — rain delay 4:00 2nd previous game, Shelby State Community College 6 Waubonsee Community College Chiefs 4 in 2:51, fog delay 0:03 top 3rd, 2nd fog delay 0:05 bottom 4th, 3rd fog delay 0:02 top 6th — 24 fans.

1:55 A.M. — College Stadium (later Diethrick Park), Jamestown, New York — 5/25/1992 — previous tournament action delay 2:15 at start, Gloucester County College Roadrunners 14 Columbus State Community College Cougars 8 in 4:10 — 225 fans, 35 fans at end.

1:25 A.M. — Osceola County Stadium, Kissimmee, Florida — 5/7/1999 — rain delay 3:00 in prior game, Palm Beach Community College Panthers 24 Miami Dade Community College (later Miami Dade College) Sharks 7 in 2:40 and 7 innings — 200 fans, 50 fans at end.

2:06 A.M.— Chain of Lakes Park, Winter Haven, Florida — 5/10/2008 — State Junior College (Juco) Tournament — Manatee Community College Lancers 13 Pensacola Junior College Pirates 9, previous game delay 2:06 at start; broken water pipe behind pitcher's mound delay 0:53.

National Christian Collegiate Athletic Association (NCCAA) (3)

2:15 A.M. — Engel Stadium, Chattanooga, Tennessee — 5/3/1985 — rain delay previous tournament action at start, Alabama Christian College (later Faulkner University) Eagles 10 Marion College (later Indiana Wesleyan University) Wildcats 0 in 2:00 and 6 innings.

4:45 A.M.—Engel Stadium, Chattanooga, Tennessee — 5/3/1985 — rain delay previous tournament action at start, Tennessee Temple University Crusaders 11 LeTourneau College Fighting Yellowjackets 8 in 2:15 and 7 innings.

7:15 A.M.— Engel Stadium, Chattanooga, Tennessee — 5/3/1985 — rain delay previous tournament action at start, Marion College (now Indiana Wesleyan University) Wildcats 11 King's College Purple Knights 1 in 2:15 and 5 innings —14 fans, 2 fans at end.

Latest Finish, by Country

Australia (3)

1:40 A.M.— Oaks Oval, Lismore, State of New South Wales —?/??/1992 — Claxton Shield National Championship Series — Queensland vs. Victoria, unknown final score, rain delay in 1st game, then 22–2 in 2nd game in 2:00.

1:27 A.M. — Oriole Stadium, Auburn, State of New South Wales — 3/1?/1999 — 1st Grade New South Wales Major League Grand Final Series — Cronulla-Sutherland Sharks 4 Ryde-Eastwood Hawks 3 in 4:42 and 13 innings, rain delay 1:15 bottom 7th — 250 fans; 150 fans at end — winning run called safe despite fact that runner did not slide, catcher was standing on home plate with ball waiting for him to arrive, and in ensuing collision catcher did not drop ball.

3:00 A.M.— Christie Pits, Toronto, Province of Ontario, Canada—6/29/2001— prelim tournament before Women's World Series I—Australia vs. unknown; Australia vs. unknown; Australia 6 Waterbury Diamonds 3 in 2:00 and 5 innings—12 fans—1st game began at 9:00 A.M.; 2nd game began at 8:30 P.M.; 3rd game began at 1:00 A.M.

Canada (9)

2:15 A.M. — Municipal Stadium, Three Rivers, Province of Quebec — 7/5/1938 — Provincial League — Three Rivers 4 Quebec City Athletiques 3 in 4:45 and 20 innings.

2:12 A.M. – Parc (Park) Jarry, Montreal, Province of Quebec – 9/7/1973 – National League – Mets 1 Expos 0 in 2:43, blinding sunlight delay 0:16, then Mets 4 Expos 2 in 4:38 and 15 innings – 24,167 fans.

1:56 A.M.—Parc (Park) Jarry, Montreal, Province of Quebec—6/28/1974—National League—Cubs 8 Expos 7 in 4:55 and 18 innings, then Expos 15 Cubs 0 in 2:22—20,098 fans, 8000 fans at end.

1:45 A.M.— Stade (Stadium) Municipal (later Fernand-Bedard), Trois Rivieres (Three Rivers), Province of Quebec—7/30/1976—Eastern League—West Haven Yankees 5 Trois Rivieres Aigles (Eagles) 0 in 16 innings.

1:15 A.M.— Stade Olympique (Olympic Stadium), Montreal, Province of Quebec — 5/21/1977 — National League — Padres 11 Expos 8 in 5:33 and 21 innings — 16,892 fans, 8000 fans at end.

1:02 A.M. - Exhibition Stadium, Toronto, Province

of Ontario — 9/26/1985 — American League — rain delay 3:18 at start, Red Sox 4 Blue Jays 1 in 2:09 — 30,443 fans, 2500 fans at start.

1:25 A.M.— Stade Olympique (Olympic Stadium), Montreal, Province of Quebec—8/23/1989—National League—Dodgers 1 Expos 0 in 6:14 and 22 innings—21,742 fans.

1:06 A.M.— Sky Dome, Toronto, Province of Ontario — 4/19/2001— American League — Yankees 6 Blue Jays 5 in 5:57 and 17 innings — 24,684 fans, 1500 fans at end.

3:00 A.M.— Christie Pits, Toronto, Province of Ontario—6/29/2001— prelim tournament before Women's World Series I—Australia vs. unknown; Australia vs. unknown; Australia 6 Waterbury Diamonds 3 in 2:00 and 5 innings—12 fans—1st game began at 9:00 A.M.; 2nd game began at 8:30 P.M.; 3rd game began at 1:00 A.M.

Cuba (1)

1:30 A.M. — El Gran Estadio del Cerro (later Estadio Latinoamericano), Havana — 7/25/1959 and 6/7/1959 — International League — Havana Sugar Kings 1 Rochester Red Wings 0 in 2:10, completion of game begun back on 6/7 which had been suspended after 7 innings, then Rochester 4 Havana 4 in 3:22 and 11 innings, 26th of July Cuban Revolution Celebration National Anthem and gunfire delay bottom 11th, 2nd gunfire delay bottom 11th, 3rd gunfire delay bottom 11th, 4th gunfire delay 1:00 top 12th after Red Wing 3B Coach Frank Verdi and Sugar King SS Leo Cardenas both injured by bullets, game finally suspended, but never completed — 2572 fans on 7/25; 40,000 fans when called off.

Dominican (3)

3:30 A.M.— Estadio (Stadium) Quisqueya, Santo Domingo —1/12/1981— Winter League — Orientales Estrellas (Oriental Stars) 4 Licey Tigres (Tigers) 3 in 5:40 and 22 innings.

3:17 A.M. – Estadio (Stadium) Tetelo Vargas, San Pedro de Marcoris –10/19/2002 – Winter League – Orientales Estrellas (Oriental Stars) 4 Escogido Leones Rojos (Red Lions) 3 in 6:41 and 20 innings.

2:51 A.M. – Estadio (Stadium) Quisqueya, Santo Domingo –12/2/2008 – Winter League – Tigres (Tigers) del Licey 10 Gigantes (Giants) del Cibao 9 in 6:19 and 18 innings, rain delay 1:02.

Iraq (1)

1:00 A.M.— Delta Company Desperados Field 'Afar, Tell 'Afar —10/20/2003 — United States Army 101st Airborne Division League — Hunter Marshall's Team vs. Adam Kamann's Team.

Italy (6)

2:05 A.M.— Stadio Roberto Jannella, Grosseto — 4/20/2001— Serie Nazionale (Italian Al League)— Nettuno 5 Grosseto 2 in 5:05 and 14 innings. 1:20 A.M.— Stadio Steno Borghese, Nettuno — 5/31/ 2002 — Serie Nazionale (Italian A1 League) — Rimini 4 Nettuno 1 in 4:20 and 14 innings.

1:45 A.M.— Stadio dei Pirati, Rimini — 6/4/2004 — Serie Nazionale (Italian Al League) — Rimini 5 Paterno 4 in 4:45 and 14 innings.

2:50 A.M.— Stadio Renato Reatini, Anzio — 6/12/ 2004 — Serie Nazionale (Italian Al League) — Parma 8 Anzio 7 in 5:50 and 16 innings.

1:35 A.M.— Stadio Europeo, Parma, Italy—5/26/ 2005— Serie Nazionale (Italian A1 League)—Italeri Bologna 6 Cantine Ceci Negri Parma 5 in 5:05 and 15 innings.

1:15 A.M.— Stadio Roberto Jannella, Grosseto— 6/7/2007 — Serie Nazionale (Italian Al League)— MontePaschi Grosseto 4 Cariparma 3 in 4:15 and 15 innings.

Mexico (17)

1:08 A.M. — Parque Deportivo del Seguro Social (Social Security Stadium), Mexico City, Distrito Federal (Federal District) — 7/14/1969 — Mexican League — Reynosa Broncos 5 Mexico City Diablos Rojos (Red Devils) 3 in 5:38 and 22 innings — 3895 fans.

1:15 A.M.— Parque Deportivo del Seguro Social (Social Security Stadium), Mexico City, Distrito Federal (Federal District) or Guadalajara—6/24/1970—Mexican League—Mexico City Diablos Rojos (Red Devils) 10 Jalisco Charros 9 in 5:45 and 18 innings.

1:53 A.M. — Estadio (Stadium) Alberto Hoeffer, Nogales, State of Sonora — 7/29/1973 — Liga (League) Norte de Sonora — Cananea Mineros (Miners) 4 Nogales 2 in 6:23 and 23 innings —1800 fans.

3:00 A.M.— Estadio (Stadium) Cordoba, Cordoba, State of Veracruz—4/28/1977—Mexican League— Aguascalientes Rieleros (Railroadmen) 6 Cordoba Cafeteros (Coffee Growers) 2 in 6:30 and 23 innings—4000 fans, 800 fans at end.

2:08 A.M.— Estadio (Stadium) Tomaz Oroz, Ciudad Obregon, State of Sonora—12/30/1984— Mexican Pacific League— Guaymas Ostioneros (Oyster Growers) 6 Obregon Yaquis 4 in 6:38 and 15 innings.

2:44 A.M.—Estadio (Stadium) Emilio Ibarra, Los Mochis, State of Sinaloa—11/26/1988—Mexican Pacific League—Los Mochis Caneros (Sugar Cane Growers) 4 Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2 in 7:14 and 21 innings.

2:32 A.M.— Estadio (Stadium) Teodoro Mariscal, Mazatlan, State of Sinaloa—10/26/1993— Mexican Pacific League— Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2 Guasave Algodoneros (Cotton Pickers) 1 in 7:02 and 22 innings.

1:31 A.M.— Estadio (Stadium) Angel Flores, Culiacan, State of Sinaloa—10/27/1995— Mexican Pacific League— Culiacan Tomateros (Tomato Growers) 3 Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2 in 6:01 and 20 innings.

2:25 A.M.— Estadio (Stadium) Angel Flores, Culiacan or Estadio (Stadium) Teodoro Mariscal, Mazatlan; State of Sinaloa —10/19/1997 — Mexican Pacific League – Culiacan Tomateros (Tomato Growers) 5 Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2 in 6:55 and 22 innings.

1:17 A.M.— Estadio (Stadium) Nelson Barrera, Campeche, State of Campeche — 7/21/2004 — Mexican League — rain delay 2:14 at start, Mexico City Diablos Rojos (Red Devils) 9 Campeche Piratas (Pirates) 7 in 3:33 — 8000 fans.

2:00 A.M.— Estadio (Stadium) Teodoro Mariscal, Mazatlan, State of Sinaloa — 2/6/2005 — Caribbean World Series title game — rain delay at start, Mazatlan (Mexico) 4 Aguilas (Dominican) 3 in 3:05.

1:13 A.M. — Estadio (Stadium) Angel Flores, Culiacan, State of Sinaloa — 11/16/2005 — Mexican Pacific League — Culiacan Tomateros (Tomato Growers) 4 Los Mochis Caneros (Sugar Cane Growers) 3 in 5:43 and 14 innings.

1:00 A.M.— Estadio (Stadium) 20 de Noviembre (November 20), San Luis Potosi, State of San Luis Potosi — 4/15/2006 — Mexican League — Saltillo Saraperos (Blanket Makers) 7 San Luis Potosi Tuneros (Prickle Pear Growers) 5 in 6:00 and 16 innings—1758 fans.

3:53 A.M.— Estadio (Stadium) Monterrey, Monterrey, State of Nuevo Leon—6/22/2006—Mexican League—Laguna Vaqueros (Cowboys) 6 Monterrey Sultanes (Sultans) 4 in 5:21 and 16 innings, rain delay 2:16 at start—15,635 fans; only 100 fans at end.

1:39 A.M. — Estadio (Stadium) Monterrey, Monterrey, State of Nuevo Leon — 8/22/2006 — Mexican League Championship Series — rain delay 2:03 at start, Monterrey Sultanes (Sultans) 5 Yucatan Leones (Lions) 4 in 3:36 — 27,500 fans.

1:19 A.M.— Estadio (Stadium) Kulkucan, Merida, State of Yucatan—8/27/2006—Mexican League— Monterrey Sultanes (Sultans) 2 Yucatan Leones (Lions) 1 in 5:19 and 14 innings.

2:46 A.M.— Estadio (Stadium) Teodoro Mariscal, Mazatlan; State of Sinaloa —10/31/2008 — Mexican Pacific League — Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 4 Culiacan Tomateros (Tomato Growers) 2 in 6:46 and 17 innings — 7980 fans.

Puerto Rico (4)

2:00 A.M.— Estadio (Stadium) Hiram Bithorn, San Juan—12/26/1975 — Winter League — Santurce Cangrejeros (Crabbers) 5 Bayamon Vaqueros (Cowboys) 2 in 4:00 and 21 innings.

3:00 A.M.—Estadio (Stadium) Luis Rodriguez Olmo, Arecibo—12/6/1984—Winter League—Arecibo Lobos (Wolves) 4 Ponce Leones (Lions) 1, then Ponce 5 Arecibo 2, rain delays.

3:00 A.M.— Estadio (Stadium) Isidoro "Cholo" Garcia, Mayaguez —11/?/2002 and 12/8/2002 — Winter League — Mayaguez Indios (Indians) 3 Carolina Gigantes (Giants) 1 in 17 innings, rain delays, suspended.

2:05 A.M.— Estadio (Stadium) Roberto Clemente Walker, Carolina — 2/2/2007 — Caribbean Series — Aguilas Cibaenas (Dominican) 4 Aragua Tigres (Tigers) (Venezuela) 3 in 6:13 and 18 innings; intermission 0:30 between games; then Carolina Giantes (Giants) (Puerto Rico) 11 Hermosillo Naranjeros (Orange Growers) (Mexico) 1 in 3:15.

San Marino (1)

2:45 A.M.— Serravalle Stadium, Serravalle — 9/16/ 1986 — Serie Nazionale (Italian Al League) — Biemme Fortitudo Bologna 12 Chesterfield San Marino 10 in 5:45 and 17 innings — 800 fans, 100 fans at end.

Spain (1)

1:00 A.M. – L'Hospitalet Baseball Stadium, Barcelona – 7/29/1992 – Olympics – Cuba 9 USA 6 in 4:00.

Venezuela (1)

1:00 A.M.— Margarita Island —11/19/2005 — Winter League — Margarita defeated Caribes in 3:00 and 7 innings, 1:30 power failure delay top 1st; then Margarita defeated Caribes in 2:30 and 7 innings.

Minor Leagues, by League

American Association (5)

1:00 A.M. — Swayne Field, Toledo, Ohio — 7/11/1942 — Louisville Colonels 6 Toledo Mud Hens 6 in 4:25 and 20 innings.

1:06 A.M.—Nicollet Park, Minneapolis, Minnesota — 9/1/1955 — Minneapolis Millers 6 Denver Bears 5 in 2:37, then Denver 6 Minneapolis 6 in 3:20 and 11 innings — 5077 fans.

1:03 A.M.—Municipal (later Rosenblatt) Stadium, Omaha, Nebraska—8/16/1957—Wichita Braves 10 Omaha Cardinals 7 in 4:26 and 15 innings—3771 fans.

3:50 A.M.— Greer Stadium, Nashville, Tennessee — 9/7/1990— Omaha Royals 8 Nashville Sounds 7 in 6:25 and 20 innings, rain delay 1:46 bottom 11th — 14,482 fans, 500 fans top 12th, 300 fans at end.

1:13 A.M.— Owen Bush Stadium, Indianapolis, Indiana—6/30/1994—Nashville Sounds 9 Indianapolis Indians 7 in 5:58 and 19 innings—2047 fans, 50 fans at end.

Appalachian League (2)

3:27 A.M.— Burlington Athletic Stadium, Burlington, North Carolina — 6/24/1988 — Bluefield Orioles 3 Burlington Indians 2 in 8:15 and 27 innings — 2204 fans, 84 fans at end.

3:01 A.M. — American Legion Post 325 Field, Danville, Virginia — 8/2/2000 — rain delay 2:30 at start, Princeton Devil Rays 7 Danville Braves 3 in 1:59 and 7 innings, then Princeton 6 Danville 3 in 4:38 and 17 innings — 706 fans, 20 fans at end.

Atlantic League (2)

1:27 A.M.— Commerce Bank Park, Bridgewater, New Jersey — 8/16/2000— Somerset Patriots 8 Newark Bears 7 in 6:14 and 17 innings — 5552 fans, 20 fans at end. 1:26 A.M.— Citibank Park, Central Islip, New York -9/12/2006 — Camden Riversharks 8 Long Island Ducks 7 in 6:20 and 18 innings -5234 fans; 30 fans at end.

Basin League (1)

1:45 A.M.—Sioux Falls Stadium (later Howard Wood Field), Sioux Falls, South Dakota—8/3/1965— Basin League—Pierre Cowboys 5 Sioux Falls Packers 3 in 6:15 and 24 innings—421 fans.

California League (6)

1:00 A.M.— John Euless Park, Fresno, California— 9/1/1965— Fresno Giants 10 Bakersfield Bears 9 in 5:15 and 18 innings—296 fans, 75 fans at end.

2:00 A.M.— Lawrence Hardball Park, Lodi, California—8/31/1966—Reno Silver Sox 6 Lodi Crushers 5 in 6:00 and 23 innings—502 fans, 20 fans at end.

1:57 A.M. — Del Webb Field, Modesto, California — 6/19/1970 — Modesto Reds 9 Reno Silver Sox 8 in 6:02 and 19 innings —1275 fans, 400 fans at end.

1:05 A.M.— Recreation Park, Visalia, California— 6/19/1971 and 6/20/1971— Visalia Mets 11 Bakersfield Dodgers 9 in 7:00 and 22 innings, suspended after 4:50 and 15 innings, called a tie, however league president later reversed tie game ruling and ordered game to be continued— 867 fans on 6/19, 449 fans on 6/ 20.

1:19 A.M. — Riverside Sports Complex, Riverside, California — 5/22/1988 — San Jose Giants 8 Riverside Red Wave 5 in 6:19 and 21 innings.

1:27 A.M.— Billy Hebert Field, Stockton, California—9/5/1990 and 9/6/1990—Bakersfield Dodgers 5 Stockton Ports 4 in 6:20 and 22 innings, suspended after 5:53 and 21 innings—1497 fans on 9/5; 175 fans when suspended; 1559 fans on 9/6—finished at 6:25 P.M. on 9/6.

Carolina League (5)

1:21 A.M. — Frank Lawrence Stadium, Portsmouth, Virginia — 4/18/1967 — Kinston Eagles 5 Tidewater Tides 5 in 5:50 and 20 innings — 526 fans, 25 fans at end.

1:47 A.M.—Ernie Shore Field, Winston-Salem, North Carolina—8/14/1967—Winston-Salem Red Sox 13 Greensboro Yankees 12 in 5:47 and 19 innings —1708 fans.

2:00 A.M. — Davis Ford Park (later G. Richard Pfitzner Stadium), Woodbridge, Virginia — 4/25/1984 — Salem Redbirds 5 Prince William Pirates 2 in 2:40 and 9 innings, then Prince William 8 Salem 7 in 4:20 and 11 innings — 1588 fans.

2:29 A.M.— Ernie Shore Field, Winston-Salem, North Carolina — 6/8/1992 — Winston-Salem Spirits 5 Frederick Keys 4 in 2:19 and 7 innings, rain delay 1:14 bottom 1st, 2nd rain delay 2:44 bottom 6th, then Winston-Salem 3 Frederick 0 in 1:33 and 7 innings — 4 fans at end. 2:00 A.M. — Coastal Federal Field, Myrtle Beach, South Carolina — 7/27/2001 — rain delay 2:58 at start, Myrtle Beach Pelicans 9 Salem Avalanche 3 in 2:30 and 7 innings, then Myrtle Beach 3 Salem 2 in 2:10 and 7 innings.

Dixie Association (4)

1:28 A.M.— V.J. Keefe Stadium, San Antonio, Texas -5/8/1971— San Antonio Missions 6 Birmingham Athletics 5 in 5:43 and 19 innings -3574 fans.

1:25 A.M. — V.J. Keefe Stadium, San Antonio, Texas — 7/3/1971 — Arkansas Travelers 12 San Antonio Missions 9 in 5:25 and 19 innings — 1074 fans.

1:26 A.M. — Ray Winder Field, Little Rock, Arkansas — 7/21/1971— Arkansas Travelers 5 Dallas-Fort Worth Spurs 4 in 5:56 and 22 innings — 7030 fans, 600 fans at end.

1:45 A.M.— Ray Winder Field, Little Rock, Arkansas — 8/7/1971— Jacksonville Suns 4 Arkansas Travelers 2 in 3:58 and 16 innings, then Arkansas 3 Jacksonville 2 in 3:16 and 11 innings— 2638 fans.

Eastern League (10)

1:05 A.M.— Breadon Field (later Max Hess Stadium), Allentown, Pennsylvania—6/4/1960—Allentown Red Sox 2 Binghamton Triplets 1 in 13 innings, then Binghamton 16 Allentown 16 in 7 innings.

1:06 A.M. — Wahconah Park (II), Pittsfield, Massachusetts — 6/19/1965 — Elmira Pioneers 8 Pittsfield Red Sox 7 in 2:11 and 7 innings, three delays 1:13, once for rain and twice for blinding sunlight above the center field fence, then Elmira 9 Pittsfield 7 in 2:59 and 9 innings, fog delay bottom 6th — 863 fans.

1:03 A.M. — Dunn Field, Elmira, New York — 6/25/1965 — Pittsfield Red Sox 2 Elmira Pioneers 2 in 5:33 and 21 innings — called off at 1:03 A.M. in the early morning of 6/26, then rhubarb delay 0:xx top 22nd, Pioneers owner argued there was no curfew rule, by the time the league president told the umpires the owner was correct and the game should continue, all the players had showered and gone home, called off at 1:xx A.M. for the second time — 530 fans.

1:15 A.M. — Municipal Memorial (later GPU, then FirstEnergy) Stadium, Reading, Pennsylvania — 9/4/1968 — Reading Phillies 8 Binghamton Triplets 7 in 5:15 and 19 innings.

1:45 A.M.— Stade (Stadium) Municipal (later Fernand-Bedard), Trois Rivieres (Three Rivers), Province of Quebec, Canada — 7/30/1976 — West Haven Yankees 5 Trois Rivieres Aigles (Eagles) 0 in 16 innings.

1:35 A.M. – Fraser Field, Lynn, Massachusetts – 6/9/1981 – Bristol Red Sox 5 Lynn Sailors 1 in 4:20 and 15 innings, then Lynn 4 Bristol 2 in 1:45 and 7 innings.

1:06 A.M. — Centennial Field, Burlington, Vermont — 8/23/1984 and 8/24/1984 — Albany-Colonie Athletics 9 Vermont Reds 7 in 5:37 and 17 innings, automatic sprinkler malfunction delay 0:17 bottom 17th, suspended after 5:12 and 16½ innings when outfield sprinklers could not be turned off—2909 fans on 8/23, 250 fans at suspension, 2194 fans on 8/24.

1:07 A.M.— Municipal Memorial (later GPU, then FirstEnergy) Stadium, Reading, Pennsylvania— 5/28/1999— Reading Phillies 15 New Britain Rock Cats 14 in 5:28 and 13 innings.

1:25 A.M.— Dodd Stadium, Norwich, Connecticut — 7/13/2000— Altoona Curve 6 Norwich Navigators 5 in 6:20 and 19 innings — 2774 fans, 60 fans at end.

1:05 A.M.— Canal Park, Akron, Ohio—8/17/2005 — Eastern League—Akron Aeros 3 Altoona Curve 2 in 4:01 and 14 innings, then Akron 9 Altoona 3 in 2:04—7747 fans.

Florida State League (10)

1:15 A.M.— Municipal Park, Sanford, Florida—5/ 27/1948—Sanford Giants 8 Palatka Azaleas 7 in 5:15 and 21 innings.

2:29 A.M.—Al Lang Field (I), St. Petersburg, Florida—6/14/1966—Miami Marlins 4 St. Petersburg Cardinals 3 in 6:59 and 29 innings—740 fans, 175 fans at end.

1:25 A.M.— Osceola County Stadium, Kissimmee, Florida—8/31/1985—Osceola Astros 6 Fort Lauderdale Yankees 4 in 5:55 and 19 innings.

1:04 A.M.—Al Lang Field (II), St. Petersburg, Florida and Holman Stadium, Vero Beach, Florida — 4/29/1988 and 5/28/1988 — Vero Beach Dodgers 6 St. Petersburg Cardinals 5 in 5:59 and 20 innings, suspended after 5:29 and 18 innings, completed in Vero Beach — suspended at 1:04 A.M. in the early morning of 4/30.

1:00 A.M. — Charlotte County Stadium, Port Charlotte, Florida — 8/3/1990 and 8/6/1990 — Charlotte Rangers 4 Sarasota White Sox 3 in 5:59 and 16 innings, rain delay 0:50 bottom 2nd, suspended after 5:05 and 14 innings —1665 fans on 8/3, 3026 fans on 8/6.

2:42 A.M.—Al Lang Field (II), St. Petersburg, Florida—4/14/1994—St. Petersburg Cardinals 8 Lakeland Tigers 7 in 7:07 and 20 innings—1021 fans.

1:08 A.M. — Hammond Stadium, Fort Myers, Florida — 4/8/1995 — Fort Myers Miracle 5 Charlotte Rangers 0 in 1:26 and 7 innings, then Fort Myers 4 Charlotte 3 in 5:00 and 17 innings — 2411 fans; 50 fans at end —1st game finished at 7:37 P.M.

1:29 A.M.— Ed Smith Stadium, Sarasota, Florida— 5/5/2001— Vero Beach Dodgers 11 Sarasota Red Sox 7 in 6:29 and 19 innings.

1:46 A.M. — Hammond Stadium, Fort Myers, Florida — 6/8/2002 — rain delay 4:07 at start, Vero Beach Dodgers 5 Fort Myers Miracle 1 in 2:00 and 7 innings, then Fort Myers 2 Vero Beach 1 in 2:09 and 8 innings — 912 fans, 30 fans at end.

1:00 A.M. — Ed Smith Stadium, Sarasota, Florida — 6/28/2003 and 6/29/2003 — Sarasota Red Sox 3 Palm Beach Cardinals 2 in 4:48 and 17 innings, rain delay, 2nd rain delay, suspended top 13th — 850 fans.

Frontier League (1)

2:30 A.M.—League Stadium, Huntingburg, Indiana - 8/2?/2001—rain delay 2:00 at start, Dubois County Dragons vs. River City Rascals in 2:40, then Dubois County 7 River City 2 in 2:xx and 6½ innings, fog delay 0:30 top 5th, 2nd fog delay 0:15 top 7th - 37 fans at end.

Georgia-Florida League (1)

1:05 A.M.— Memorial Park, Moultrie, Georgia— 7/27/1938— Thomasville Orioles 0 Moultrie Packers 0 in 4:35 and 16 innings—750 fans.

Illinois/Indiana/Iowa (3-I) League (1)

1:35 A.M.— Sherman Field, Lincoln, Nebraska— 8/19/1961—Lincoln Chiefs vs. Fox Cities Foxes, then Lincoln 6 Fox Cities 3 in 16 innings.

International League (16)

1:00 A.M.— Parker Field (later Diamond), Richmond, Virginia—6/6/1957—Toronto Maple Leafs 4 Richmond Virginians 3 in 3:17 and 14 innings, then Richmond 5 Toronto 4 in 2:55—6932 fans, 1500 fans at end.

1:01 A.M.— Miami Stadium, Miami, Florida— 9/20/1957 — Miami Marlins 3 Buffalo Bisons 2 in 5:01 and 18 innings — 5273 fans.

1:30 A.M. — El Gran Estadio del Cerro (El Cerro Stadium) (later Estadio Latinoamericano), Havana, Cuba — 7/25/1959 and 6/7/1959 — Havana Sugar Kings 1 Rochester Red Wings 0 in 2:10, completion of game begun back on 6/7 which had been suspended after 7 innings, then Rochester 4 Havana 4 in 3:22 and 11 innings, 26th of July Cuban Revolution Celebration National Anthem and gunfire delay bottom 11th, 2nd gunfire delay bottom 11th, 3rd gunfire delay bottom 11th, 4th gunfire delay 1:00 top 12th after Red Wing 3B Coach Frank Verdi and Sugar King SS Leo Cardenas both injured by bullets, game finally suspended, but never completed — 2572 fans on 7/25, 25,000 fans when called off.

1:00 A.M.—Red Wing (later Silver) Stadium, Rochester, New York—5/29/1964—Toronto Maple Leafs 8 Rochester Red Wings 4 in 5:00 and 19 innings—4070 fans.

1:00 A.M.— MacArthur Stadium, Syracuse, New York—5/30/1964—Buffalo Bisons vs. Syracuse Chiefs, then Buffalo vs. Syracuse.

1:28 A.M.—MacArthur Stadium, Syracuse, New York—7/30/1980—Richmond Braves 12 Syracuse Chiefs 6 in 5:55 and 22 innings—3117 fans, 1000 fans at end.

4:07 A.M.— McCoy Stadium, Pawtucket, Rhode Island — 4/18/1981 and 6/23/1981— power failure delay 0:30 at start, Pawtucket Paw Sox 3 Rochester Red Wings 2 in 8:25 and 33 innings, suspended after 8:07 and 32 innings, dawn was at 5:00 A.M., completed 6/23 at 6:18 P.M.—1740 fans on 4/18, 150 fans Midnight, 100 fans top 21st, 60 fans 1 A.M., 27 fans top 27th, 19 fans at suspension, 5756 fans on 6/23.

1:12 A.M. — MacArthur Stadium, Syracuse, New York — 6/19/1985 and 6/20/1985 and 6/21/1985 — Pawtucket Paw Sox 3 Syracuse Chiefs 1 in 7:07 and 27 innings, suspended after 5:36 and 22 innings, continued 6/20, rain delay 0:13 top 23rd, 2nd rain delay 0:50 bottom 24th, suspended again after 6:07 and $23/_2$ innings at 9:05 P.M. on 6/20, finally finished at 7:31 P.M. on 6/21—1233 fans on 6/19; 200 fans when suspended after 22 innings; 3020 fans on 6/21.

1:57 A.M.— Diamond, Richmond, Virginia—8/7/ 1989—Toledo Mud Hens 4 Richmond Braves 1 in 5:01 and 21 innings, then Richmond 3 Toledo 0 in 2:23 and 7 innings—100 fans at end.

1:54 A.M. — MacArthur Stadium, Syracuse, New York — 7/19/1992 — International League — Syracuse Chiefs 8 Pawtucket PawSox 7 in 5:05 and 15 innings, then Syracuse 4 Pawtucket 3 in 2:16 and 7 innings — 14,143 fans; 200 fans at end.

1:08 A.M.— Diamond, Richmond, Virginia—5/12/ 1994—Richmond Braves 2 Scranton/Wilkes-Barre Red Barons 1 in 5:07 and 17 innings, then Richmond 4 Scranton-Wilkes-Barre 2 in 1:31 and 7 innings— 4486 fans.

1:04 A.M.— Frontier Field, Rochester, New York— 8/22/1997—rain delay 2:54 at start, Rochester Red Wings 11 Toledo Mud Hens 10 in 2:55—9174 fans.

2:53 A.M.— Louisville Slugger Field, Louisville, Kentucky—6/6/2003—rain delay 2:15 at start, Louisville Bats 4 Richmond Braves 3 in 5:23 and 18 innings—9892 fans, 500 fans at end.

1:20 A.M.— Fifth Third Field, Toledo, Ohio -8/4/2003—rain delay 2:05 at start, Durham Bulls 5 Toledo Mud Hens 4 in 4:08 and 15 innings -6129fans.

2:55 A.M.—Knights Castle, Fort Mill, South Carolina—8/15/2003—Charlotte Knights 4 Indianapolis Indians 3 in 6:20 and 18 innings, then Charlotte 5 Indianapolis 1 in 1:54 and 7 innings, 2nd game began at 1:01 A.M.—5275 fans, 100 fans at start of second game, 36 fans at end plus 250 Girl Scouts asleep in Home Run Café ballpark restaurant who were to have camped out in the outfield after the games.

1:47 A.M.— Dunn Tire Park, Buffalo, New York— 7/16/2004 — Buffalo Bisons 11 Scranton/Wilkes-Barre Red Barons 1 in 2:01 and 7 innings, then Scranton/ Wilkes-Barre 8 Buffalo 3 in 5:07 and 16 innings— 14,143 fans.

Kentucky/Illinois/Tennessee (Kitty) League (1)

1:45 A.M. — Hook Ball Park, Paducah, Kentucky — 7/8/1938 — Fulton Eagles 14 Paducah Indians 9 in 5:28 and 20 innings, rhubarb delay top 15th when Fulton Manager Ray Clonts unsuccessfully requested umpires to allow 15-minute delay so players could eat some steaks for strength, vote delay top 19th when Paducah Manager Pete Mondino successfully asked umpires to have remaining fans vote whether the game should continue or not — fans voted unanimously that game should continue.

Mexican League (8)

1:08 A.M. — Parque Deportivo del Seguro Social (Social Security Stadium), Mexico City, Distrito Federal (Federal District), Mexico — 7/14/1969 — Reynosa Broncos 5 Mexico City Diablos Rojos (Red Devils) 3 in 5:38 and 22 innings — 3895 fans.

1:15 A.M.— Parque Deportivo del Seguro Social (Social Security Stadium), Mexico City, Distrito Federal (Federal District) or Guadalajara, Mexico—6/24/ 1970— Mexico City Diablos Rojos (Red Devils) 10 Jalisco Charros 9 in 5:45 and 18 innings.

3:00 A.M.— Estadio (Stadium) Cordoba, Cordoba, State of Veracruz, Mexico — 4/28/1977 — Aguascalientes Rieleros (Railroadmen) 6 Cordoba Cafeteros (Coffee Growers) 2 in 6:30 and 23 innings — 4000 fans, 800 fans at end.

1:17 A.M.—Estadio (Stadium) Nelson Barrera, Campeche, State of Campeche, Mexico—7/21/2004 — rain delay 2:14 at start, Mexico City Diablos Rojos (Red Devils) 9 Campeche Piratas (Pirates) 7 in 3:33— 8000 fans.

1:00 A.M.— Estadio (Stadium) 20 de Noviembre (November 20), San Luis Potosi, State of San Luis Potosi, Mexico—4/15/2006—Saltillo Saraperos (Blanket Makers) 7 San Luis Potosi Tuneros (Prickle Pear Growers) 5 in 6:00 and 16 innings—1758 fans.

3:53 A.M.— Estadio (Stadium) Monterrey, Monterrey, State of Nuevo Leon, Mexico — 6/22/2006 — Laguna Vaqueros (Cowboys) 6 Monterrey Sultanes (Sultans) 4 in 5:21 and 16 innings, rain delay 2:16 at start —15,635 fans; only 100 fans at end.

1:39 A.M.— Estadio (Stadium) Monterrey, Monterrey, State of Nuevo Leon, Mexico — 8/22/2006 — League Championship Series — rain delay 2:03 at start, Monterrey Sultanes (Sultans) 5 Yucatan Leones (Lions) 4 in 3:36 — 27,500 fans.

1:19 A.M.— Estadio (Stadium) Kulkucan, Merida, State of Yucatan, Mexico—8/27/2006—Monterrey Sultanes (Sultans) 2 Yucatan Leones (Lions) 1 in 5:19 and 14 innings.

Mexican Pacific League (7)

2:08 A.M.— Estadio (Stadium) Tomaz Oroz, Ciudad Obregon, State of Sonora, Mexico —12/30/1984 — Guaymas Ostioneros (Oyster Growers) 6 Obregon Yaquis 4 in 6:38 and 15 innings.

2:44 A.M.—Estadio (Stadium) Emilio Ibarra, Los Mochis, State of Sinaloa, Mexico—11/26/1988—Los Mochis Caneros (Sugar Cane Growers) 4 Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2 in 7:14 and 21 innings.

2:32 A.M.—Estadio (Stadium) Teodoro Mariscal, Mazatlan, State of Sinaloa, Mexico—10/26/1993— Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2 Guasave Algodoneros (Cotton Pickers) 1 in 7:02 and 22 innings.

1:31 A.M. - Estadio (Stadium) Angel Flores, Culia-

can, State of Sinaloa, Mexico —10/27/1995 — Culiacan Tomateros (Tomato Growers) 3 Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2 in 6:01 and 20 innings.

2:25 A.M.— Estadio (Stadium) Angel Flores, Culiacan or Estadio (Stadium) Teodoro Mariscal, Mazatlan; State of Sinaloa, Mexico—10/19/1997— Culiacan Tomateros (Tomato Growers) 5 Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 2 in 6:55 and 22 innings.

1:13 A.M.— Estadio (Stadium) Angel Flores, Culiacan, State of Sinaloa, Mexico—11/16/2005—Culiacan Tomateros (Tomato Growers) 4 Los Mochis Caneros (Sugar Cane Growers) 3 in 5:43 and 14 innings.

2:46 A.M.— Estadio (Stadium) Teodoro Mariscal, Mazatlan; State of Sinaloa, Mexico —10/31/2008 — Mazatlan Venados (Deer) 4 Culiacan Tomateros (Tomato Growers) 2 in 6:46 and 17 innings — 7980 fans.

Midwest League (3)

1:30 A.M.— Goodland Field, Appleton, Wisconsin — 5/2/1969 — Appleton Foxes 8 Decatur Giants 7 in 5:30 and 17 innings.

1:42 A.M.— Danville Stadium, Danville, Illinois— 6/15/1970— rain delay 3:16 at start, Quad City Angels 11 Danville Warriors 7 in 3:56 and 11 innings— 505 fans, 175 fans at end.

1:10 A.M. — Danville Stadium, Danville, Illinois — 6/4/1974 — Waterloo Royals 7 Danville Warriors 5 in 5:35 and 21 innings — 722 fans, 94 fans at end.

New York-Pennsylvania League (4)

1:15 A.M.— Municipal Stadium, Jamestown or Maple City Park, Hornell, New York—5/23/1956— Jamestown Falcons 25 Hornell Dodgers 21 in 5:15 and extra innings.

1:01 A.M.—Le Lacheur Park, Lowell, Massachusetts — 7/29/2002 — Hudson Valley Renegades 13 Lowell Spinners 9 in 5:56 and 18 innings — 5000 fans.

1:14 A.M. — Richmond County Bank Ballpark at St. George, New York, New York — 7/16/2004 and 8/2/2004 — Staten Island Yankees 4 New Jersey Cardinals 3 in 4:43 and 17 innings, then New Jersey 3 Staten Island 0 in 2:53 and 10 innings, suspended after 1:38 and 6 innings, resumed on 8/2 after regularly scheduled game New Jersey 10 Staten Island 5 in 2:53 — 3909 fans on 7/16, 350 fans at start of 2nd game, 150 fans at suspension; 5324 fans on 8/2 for regularly scheduled game, 300 fans top 7th, 175 fans at end —finished at 11:55 P.M. on 8/2.

1:09 A.M.—Falcon Park, Auburn, New York— 7/7/2005 and 8/14/2005—Auburn Doubledays 6 Batavia Muckdogs 5 in 6:34 and 22 innings, suspended after 6:02 and 20 innings—3242 fans on 7/7, 250 fans left at suspension, 1871 fans on 8/14—finished at 5:35 P.M. on 8/14—author present for last two innings.

Pacific Coast League (7)

1:20 A.M. - Wrigley Field, Los Angeles, California -

5/15/1931— Los Angeles Angels 10 Portland Ducks 9 in 4:45 and 16 innings— 4500 fans, 3100 fans at end.

1:10 A.M.— Gilmore Field, Hollywood, California— 5/12/1954— Oakland Oaks 5 Hollywood Stars 1 in 4:52 and 21 innings—2559 fans.

1:04 A.M.— Lane Field, San Diego, California— 7/2/1958—San Diego Padres 12 Salt Lake City Bees 11 in 5:04 and 16 innings—5309 fans.

1:22 A.M. — Honolulu Stadium, Honolulu, Hawai'i — 5/23/1967 — Portland Beavers 7 Hawai'i Islanders 4 in 5:04 and 16 innings, rain delay 7th, brawl delay top 8th, 2nd rain delay 11th, 3rd rain delay 13th.

1:00 A.M.— Cheney Stadium, Tacoma, Washington — 4/28/1989 — Tacoma Tigers 4 Las Vegas Stars 3 in 5:22 and 19 innings — 3693 fans.

1:49 A.M.—Municipal Stadium, Phoenix, Arizona—6/23/1990—Calgary Cannons 12 Phoenix Firebirds 9 in 6:39 and 20 innings.

1:25 A.M. — Greer Stadium, Nashville, Tennessee — 5/5/2006 and 5/6/2006 — Pacific Coast League — New Orleans Zephyrs 5 Nashville Sounds 4 in 8:07 and 24 innings, suspended after 6:23 and 18 innings — 9124 fans on 5/5, 300 fans at suspension; 10,016 fans on 5/6 — suspended at 1:25 A.M. in the early morning of 5/6; finished at 7:44 P.M. on 5/6.

Provincial League (1)

2:15 A.M. — Municipal Stadium, Three Rivers, Province of Quebec, Canada — 7/5/1938 — Three Rivers Renards (Foxes) 4 Quebec City Athletiques 3 in 4:45 and 20 innings.

South Atlantic (Sally) League (6)

1:13 A.M.—Golden Park, Columbus, Georgia— 4/24/1954—Macon Peaches 7 Columbus Cardinals 5 in 5:13 and 20 innings.

1:00 A.M.— Jacksonville Ball Park (later Municipal Stadium, then Wolfson Park), Jacksonville, Florida— 5/21/1958— Savannah Redlegs 6 Jacksonville Braves 6 in 5:00 and 20 innings—902 fans.

1:01 A.M.— Jacksonville Ball Park (later Municipal Stadium, then Wolfson Park), Jacksonville, Florida— 4/22/1959 — Jacksonville Braves 3 Knoxville Smokies 2 in 5:01 and 21 innings—1814 fans, 200 fans at end.

2:50 A.M. – McCormick Field, Asheville, North Carolina –?/??/between 1960 and 1966 – Knoxville Smokies vs. Asheville Tourists in 15 innings, then Knoxville defeated Asheville in 14 innings.

1:40 A.M.— Capital City Park, Columbia, South Carolina — 7/4/2003 — Asheville Tourists 7 Capital City Bombers 5 in 6:44 and 19 innings — 5800 fans, 550 fans at end.

1:06 A.M.— Fieldcrest Cannon Stadium, Kannapolis, North Carolina — 5/20/2005 — Delmarva Shorebirds 7 Kannapolis Intimidators 6 in 5:50 and 18 innings — 2899 fans, 250 fans at end including 200 Girl Scouts waiting to camp out in the outfield after the game.

Southern Association (1)

1:30 A.M.— Hartwell Field, Mobile, Alabama — 8/8/1946 — Atlanta Crackers 4 Mobile Bears 4 in 4:30 and 21 innings.

Southern League (6)

1:23 A.M.—Paterson Field, Montgomery, Alabama —7/31/1965—Columbus Confederate Yankees 6 Montgomery Rebels 6 in 5:23 and 19 innings.

1:06 A.M.— Tinker Field (II), Orlando, Florida— 5/22/1980— Orlando Twins 3 Memphis Chicks 2 in 4:07 and 19 innings, then Memphis 6 Orlando 0 in 1:50 and 7 innings.

1:07 A.M.— Municipal Stadium, Greenville, South Carolina—7/13/1984—Memphis Chicks 3 Greenville Braves 2 in 6:02 and 19 innings, then Greenville 6 Memphis 5 in 2:11 and 7 innings, suspended after 0:35 and 2 innings, completed 7/14 as 1st game of tripleheader—3044 fans on 7/13, 250 fans at suspension, 4456 fans on 7/14.

1:42 A.M.— Hoover Met Stadium, Hoover, Alabama—6/2/1989—Birmingham Barons 5 Huntsville Stars 4 in 6:37 and 18 innings—7034 fans.

2:10 A.M.— Joe Davis Stadium, Huntsville, Alabama — 6/10/1990 — Huntsville Stars 3 Knoxville Blue Jays 2 in 5:35 and 19 innings, then Huntsville 2 Knoxville 0 in 2:05 and 7 innings.

1:12 A.M.— Tim McCarver Stadium, Memphis, Tennessee — 6/17/1991 and 6/18/1991— Huntsville Stars 9 Memphis Chicks 7 in 6:32 and 20 innings, suspended after 5:33 and 16 innings — 6845 fans on 6/17, 2349 fans on 6/18.

Texas League (20)

1:10 A.M.— La Grave Field (I), Fort Worth, Texas— 7/4/1932—Longview Cannibals 7 Fort Worth Cats 6 in 3:25 and 18 innings, then Longview 2 Fort Worth 1 in 1:35 and 7 innings—2000 fans.

1:00 A.M.— Tech Field, San Antonio, Texas — 7/7/ 1942 — Roosevelt Night pre-game program delay 1:24 at start, Shreveport Captains 4 San Antonio Missions 2 in 3:51 and 18 innings — 3569 fans.

2:10 A.M. — Mission Stadium, San Antonio, Texas — 8/11/1952 — Oklahoma City Indians 6 San Antonio Missions 2 in 1:55 and 7 innings, then San Antonio 5 Oklahoma City 4 in 5:00 and 19 innings — 3143 fans.

1:05 A.M. — Disch Field, Austin, Texas — 9/7/1956 — Austin Senators 4 Dallas Eagles 3 in 5:01 and 20 innings — 2157 fans.

1:27 A.M.—Mission Stadium, San Antonio, Texas— 4/29/1960—Rio Grande Valley Giants 4 San Antonio Missions 2 in 5:42 and 24 innings, scoreboard fire delay bottom 23rd—820 fans.

1:31 A.M.— Disch Field, Austin, Texas—5/22/1961 — Amarillo Gold Sox 8 Austin Senators 7 in 5:17 and 16 innings—508 fans.

1:30 A.M. – Mission Stadium, San Antonio, Texas – 6/19/1961 – Amarillo Gold Sox 2 San Antonio Missions 0 in 1:41 and 7 innings, then Amarillo 2 San Antonio 1 in 4:59 and 19 innings –1237 fans.

1:30 A.M.—Oiler Park, Tulsa, Oklahoma—5/31/ 1963—Tulsa Oilers 9 Albuquerque Dukes 8 in 5:47 and 17 innings—2088 fans.

2:22 A.M.— Ray Winder Field, Little Rock, Arkansas — 4/19/1968 — Arkansas Travelers 13 Memphis Blues 2 in 2:12 and 7 innings, then Memphis 6 Arkansas 3 in 5:10 and 16 innings — 875 fans.

1:30 A.M.— Ray Winder Field, Little Rock, Arkansas — 7/21/1977 — El Paso Diablos 10 Arkansas Travelers 2 in 2:12 and 7 innings, then Arkansas 2 El Paso 1 in 4:14 and 17 innings — 2474 fans.

2:20 A.M.— Dudley Field, El Paso, Texas — 8/14/ 1979 — El Paso Diablos 11 Midland Cubs 10 in 5:12 and 18 innings, rain delay 0:44, 2nd rain delay 0:46 — 1664 fans.

1:22 A.M.— Smith-Wills Stadium, Jackson, Mississippi — 5/19/1981— Jackson Mets 6 El Paso Diablos 4 in 1:47 and 7 innings, then El Paso 5 Jackson 2 in 4:35 and 17 innings—1534 fans.

2:09 A.M.— Smith-Wills Stadium, Jackson, Mississippi — 7/6/1982 — Tulsa Drillers 11 Jackson Mets 7 in 6:39 and 23 innings —1105 fans, 200 fans at end.

1:19 A.M. — Ray Winder Field, Little Rock, Arkansas — 7/17/1982 — Arkansas Travelers 3 San Antonio Dodgers 2 in 4:46 and 16 innings, then San Antonio 3 Arkansas 0 in 2:03 and 7 innings — 4649 fans, 100 fans at end.

1:04 A.M. – V.J. Keefe Stadium, San Antonio, Texas – 5/21/1987 – Shreveport Captains 4 San Antonio Dodgers 3 in 6:04 and 21 innings –1144 fans.

2:15 A.M. — V.J. Keefe Stadium, San Antonio, Texas — 7/14/1988 and 7/16/1988 — San Antonio Missions 1 Jackson Mets 0 in 7:23 and 26 innings, suspended after 7:10 and 25 innings, completed 7/16 — 3792 fans on 7/14, 3260 fans on 7/16.

1:05 A.M.— V.J. Keefe Stadium, San Antonio, Texas — 5/3/1989 — Midland Angels 5 San Antonio Missions 3 in 5:58 and 19 innings—1296 fans, 24 fans at end.

1:18 A.M.— Dell Diamond, Round Rock, Texas— 8/13/2003—rain delay 3:08 at start, Tulsa Drillers 4 Round Rock Express 1 in 2:35, 2nd rain delay 0:30 top 1st—10,878 fans, 200 fans at end.

1:46 A.M. — Wolff Stadium, San Antonio, Texas — 8/ 14/2004 — Midland RockHounds 7 San Antonio Missions 5 in 6:40 and 21 innings — 4286 fans, 90 fans at end.

1:19 A.M.—Whataburger Field, Corpus Christi, Texas—6/1/2005—Wichita Wranglers 7 Corpus Christi Hooks 2 in 6:09 and 20 innings—6609 fans, 325 fans at end.

Major Leagues, by League and Team

National Girls League (1)

1:00 A.M.— Parichy Stadium, Chicago, Illinois— 9/14/1954—National Girls League—Bluebirds 6 Bloomer Girls 4 in 4:30 and 20 innings, then Queens 5 Jewels 0 in 7 innings.

Negro National League (1)

Pittsburgh Crawfords (1)

2:00 A.M.—Gus Greenlee Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania—?/??/1930's—Homestead Grays at Pittsburgh Crawfords—scheduled at 12:01 A.M. on a Monday morning to protest the 6:59 P.M. Pennsylvania curfew on Sundays.

American League (94)

All-Star Game (1)

1:37 A.M.—Yankee Stadium, New York, New York —7/15/2008—All-Star Game—American League 4 National League 3 in 4:50 and 15 innings—55,632 fans.

Baltimore Orioles (12)

1:13 A.M. — Memorial Stadium, Baltimore, Maryland — 9/13/1974 — Orioles 3 Indians 2 in 2:08, then Orioles 8 Indians 6 in 3:00, rain delay 1:48 top 7th, 2nd rain delay 0:19 also top 7th, suspended after 8 innings —16,283 fans on 9/13; 11,715 fans on 9/14.

1:16 A.M.— Memorial Stadium, Baltimore, Maryland—8/14/1976—Orioles 8 White Sox 6 in 3:00, rain delay 1:35 top 2nd, then Orioles 6 White Sox 5 in 2:48—16,514 fans.

1:02 A.M.— Memorial Stadium, Baltimore, Maryland — 8/3/1984 — Blue Jays 5 Orioles 2 in 2:45, rain delay 2:07 top 4th — 37,219 fans.

1:02 A.M. — Memorial Stadium, Baltimore, Maryland - 6/20/1987 — rain delay at start, Orioles 9 Tigers 5 in 3:12, 2nd rain delay bottom 1st, two rain delays totaled 2:23, suspended after 3:04 and 8 innings - 27,420 fans on 6/20, 28,845 fans on 6/21.

1:22 A.M.— Memorial Stadium, Baltimore, Maryland — 6/4/1988 — Orioles 7 Yankees 6 in 5:46 and 14 innings — 36,499 fans.

1:01 A.M.— Memorial Stadium, Baltimore, Maryland—5/6/1989—Mariners 2 Orioles 1 in 2:44, rain delay 1:28 top 4th, then Mariners 6 Orioles 5 in 3:09—19,975 fans.

1:00 A.M.— Memorial Stadium, Baltimore, Maryland — 8/12/1989 — Red Sox 10 Orioles 8 in 5:23 and 13 innings — 50,865 fans.

1:20 A.M. — Camden Yards, Baltimore, Maryland — 9/22/1992 — rain delay 2:42 at start, Blue Jays 4 Orioles 3 in 3:03 — 45,104 fans.

1:09 A.M. — Camden Yards, Baltimore, Maryland — 5/22/1993 — Orioles 5 Brewers 4 in 5:34 and 14 innings — 46,177 fans.

1:09 A.M. — Camden Yards, Baltimore, Maryland — 5/1/1996 — Yankees 11 Orioles 6 in 5:34 and 15 innings — 47,472 fans.

2:13 A.M. - Camden Yards, Baltimore, Maryland -

9/6/1996 — rain delay 2:20 at start, Tigers 5 Orioles 4 in 4:18 and 12 innings — 46,708 fans.

1:25 A.M.— Camden Yards, Baltimore, Maryland — 6/19/1998 — Orioles 7 Blue Jays 4 in 5:49 and 15 innings — 47,012 fans, 2000 fans at end.

Boston Red Sox (14)

1:21 A.M.— Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts— 8/30/1960— Red Sox 5 Tigers 4 in 4:06 and 15 innings, then Red Sox 3 Tigers 2 in 2:50 and 10 innings, stretcher delay bottom 7th—27,175 fans.

1:15 A.M.— Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts— 6/8/1961— Red Sox 6 Angels 5 in 2:35, then Angels 4 Red Sox 4 in 3:21 and 11 innings, rain delay 0:47 top 12th—11,042 fans.

2:26 A.M.— Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 8/24/1977 — Rangers 3 Red Sox 0 in 2:26, rain delay 2:22 top 6th, then Rangers 6 Red Sox 3 in 3:01— 31,784 fans, 4000 fans at end.

2:22 A.M. – Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts – 6/19/1979 – Tigers 10 Red Sox 4 in 4:35 and 14 innings, rain delay 2:12 – 34,153 fans.

1:16 A.M.— Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 9/3/1981 and 9/4/1981— Mariners 8 Red Sox 7 in 6:01 and 20 innings, suspended after 5:39 and 19 innings — 13,355 fans on 9/3, 1000 fans at suspension, 20,836 fans on 9/4.

2:17 A.M. – Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts – 9/5/1985 – Red Sox 13 Indians 6 in 3:10, rain delay 0:30, then Indians 9 Red Sox 5 in 3:05, 2nd rain delay 1:25 bottom 6th –16,989 fans.

1:46 A.M.— Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 9/8/1987 — Red Sox 8 Yankees 6 in 3:15, rain delay 2:24 top 4th, 2nd rain delay 0:30 bottom 6th — 29,468 fans.

1:25 A.M.— Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts— 8/17/1993— rain delay 3:02 at start, White Sox 3 Red Sox 2 in 2:48—32,744 fans, 5000 fans at end.

1:04 A.M.— Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 9/1/1993 — Rangers 9 Red Sox 7 in 5:28 and 12 innings — 27,396 fans.

1:23 A.M.— Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts— 9/28/1993— Red Sox 11 Tigers 6 in 3:18, then Tigers 7 Red Sox 6 in 4:31 and 11 innings—24,446 fans.

1:06 A.M. — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 5/3/1996 and 5/4/1996 — rain delay 2:43 at start, Red Sox 8 Blue Jays 7 in 3:20, 2nd rain delay 1:00 top 3rd, suspended after 2:18 and 6 innings — 25,507 fans on 5/3, 2000 fans top 1st, 29,785 fans on 5/4 —finished at 1:08 P.M. on 5/4.

1:03 A.M.— Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 8/23/2000— rain delay 3:01 at start, Red Sox 3 Angels 1 in 2:57 — 32,958 fans.

1:22 A.M.— Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts— 10/17/2004— League Championship Series— Red Sox 6 Yankees 4 in 5:02 and 12 innings— 34,826 fans.

1:27 A.M.— Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 8/20/2006 — Yankees 8 Red Sox 5 in 4:17 and 10 innings, rain delay 0:57 top 3rd — 36,155 fans.

Chicago White Sox (9)

1:00 A.M. — Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois — 7/12/1951 — Red Sox 3 White Sox 2 in 2:18, then Red Sox 5 White Sox 4 in 4:01 and 17 innings — 52,592 fans, 2000 fans at end.

1:17 A.M.—Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois— 7/13/1951—White Sox 5 Red Sox 4 in 4:47 and 19 innings—25,211 fans.

2:15 A.M.—Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois— 7/25/1967—White Sox 3 Indians 1 in 2:55, then White Sox 6 Indians 5 in 4:47 and 16 innings—18,152 fans.

1:01 A.M. — Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois — 5/26/1973 and 5/28/1973 — White Sox 6 Indians 3 in 6:03 and 21 innings, rain delay 0:17 top 14th, suspended after 4:39 and 16 innings —19,486 fans on 5/26, 17,419 fans on 5/28.

1:08 A.M. – Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois – 5/13/1981– Indians 4 White Sox 3 in 5:31 and 16 innings –10,463 fans.

1:09 A.M. – Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois – 9/10/1983 – White Sox 7 Angels 6 in 4:01 and 12 innings, rain delay 1:33 bottom 9th – 43,097 fans.

1:05 A.M. — Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois — 5/8/1984 and 5/9/1984 — White Sox 7 Brewers 6 in 8:06 and 25 innings, suspended after 5:29 and 17 innings —14,754 fans on 5/8, 17,715 fans on 5/9.

1:29 A.M.—U.S. Cellular Field, Chicago, Illinois— 7/17/2003—rain delay 3:06 at start, Tigers 10 White Sox 9 in 3:18—17,060 fans, 200 fans at end.

1:10 A.M.— U.S. Cellular Field, Chicago, Illinois— 4/2/2006 — White Sox 10 Indians 4 in 2:59, rain delay 2:57 bottom 4th— 38,802 fans; 9500 fans bottom 4th; 2500 fans at end.

Cleveland Indians (8)

1:04 A.M.—Municipal (later Cleveland) Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio—7/1/1952—Indians 4 Browns 3 in 4:49 and 19 innings—19,855 fans.

1:03 A.M.— Cleveland Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio — 6/14/1963 — Senators 5 Indians 2 in 2:12, then Indians 3 Senators 2 in 4:33 and 19 innings —12,377 fans, 1000 fans at end.

1:03 A.M.— Cleveland Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio— 9/20/1965—Indians 5 Tigers 4 in 4:58 and 14 innings—1831 fans.

1:00 A.M.— Cleveland Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio and R.F.K. Stadium, Washington, D.C.— 9/14/1971 and 9/20/1971— Indians 3 Senators 1 in 1:54, then Senators 8 Indians 6 in 6:15 and 20 innings, suspended after 5:00 and 16 innings in Cleveland, completed 9/20 in Washington— 2639 fans on 9/14 in Cleveland, 100 fans at suspension, 1743 fans on 9/20 in Washington, 333 fans top 17th.

1:03 A.M. — Cleveland Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio — 7/31/1979 — Indians 11 Red Sox 10 in 3:30 and 11 innings, rain delay 0:59 at start of 2nd game, then Indians 3 Red Sox 0 in 2:38 — 39,384 fans.

1:18 A.M. – Jacobs Field, Cleveland, Ohio – 7/20/

1994 — rain delay 0:33 at start, Rangers 13 Indians 11 in 5:40 and 14 innings — 40,280 fans.

2:08 A.M.—Jacobs Field, Cleveland, Ohio -10/3/1995 — Division Series — rain delay 0:39 at start, Indians 5 Red Sox 4 in 5:01 and 13 innings, 2nd rain delay 0:23 top 8th -44,218 fans.

1:20 A.M.— Progressive Field, Cleveland, Ohio— 6/13/2008— National League at American League— Indians 9 Padres 5 in 3:32, rain delay 2:43 bottom 1st—31,399 fans.

Detroit Tigers (8)

1:12 A.M.— Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan— 7/16/1965— rain delay 1:50 at start, Orioles 2 Tigers 1 in 3:22 and 11 innings—15,327 fans.

1:15 A.M. — Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan — 8/8/1967 — Tigers 2 White Sox 1 in 2:53 and 10 innings, then White Sox 6 Tigers 4 in 3:30 and 10 innings — 44,295 fans, 15,000 fans at end.

1:13 A.M. — Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan — 8/6/1968 and 8/7/1968 — Tigers 2 Indians 1 in 4:28 and 17 innings, then Tigers 5 Indians 2 in 2:33, suspended after 2:25 and 8 innings — 48,413 fans on 8/6; 30,402 fans on 8/7.

1:00 A.M. — Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan — 6/11/1975 and 6/12/1975 — Angels 14 Tigers 7 in 2:52, rain delay 0:30 top 3rd, rhubarb delay 0:20 top 4th, 2nd rain delay 0:34, then Tigers 5 Angels 3 in 2:13, suspended after 8 innings — 22,835 fans on 6/11; 14,490 fans on 6/12.

1:04 A.M. — Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan — 6/9/1982 and 9/24/1982 — Tigers 2 Indians 1 in 2:27, rain delay 0:45 at start of 2nd game, then Tigers 4 Indians 3 in 4:54 and 18 innings, suspended after 3:38 and 14 innings — 32,213 fans on 6/9, 7226 fans on 9/24 — author, his wife, and their five-week old son sat in lower deck behind third base for the first game and the first 14 innings of the second game.

1:11 A.M.— Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan— 7/29/1983 and 7/30/1983— Tigers 10 Royals 1 in 2:33, rain delay 3:02 bottom 3rd, suspended after 8 innings— 39,357 fans on 7/29, 35,100 fans on 7/30.

1:22 A.M. — Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan — 4/27/1984 — Indians 8 Tigers 4 in 5:44 and 19 innings — 34,112 fans, 7000 fans at end.

2:32 A.M.— Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan— 8/5/1988— Tigers 3 Red Sox 1 in 2:51, rain delay 1:39 top 3rd, 2nd rain delay 1:06 bottom 5th, then Tigers 3 Red Sox 2 in 2:49—44,334 fans.

Kansas City Royals (2)

1:11 A.M.— Royals Stadium, Kansas City, Missouri— 5/4/1981— rain delay 2:16 at start, Red Sox 8 Royals 7 in 4:04 and 12 innings, suspended after 3:20 and 10 innings—25,688 fans on 5/4, 21,708 fans on 5/5 finished at 7:50 P.M. on 5/5.

1:07 A.M.—Royals Stadium, Kansas City, Missouri — 7/17/1991—Royals 9 Orioles 8 in 5:32 and 15 innings — 21,821 fans.

Los Angeles/California/Anaheim/Los Angeles Angels (1)

1:05 A.M.— Anaheim Stadium (later Edison International Field, then Angels Stadium), Anaheim, California — 4/13/1982 — Angels 4 Mariners 3 in 6:06 and 20 innings, suspended after 5:24 and 17 innings — 33,574 fans on 4/13, 23,905 fans on 4/14.

Milwaukee Brewers (3)

1:11 A.M.— County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin — 8/31/1973 — Brewers 3 Red Sox 2 in 2:33, then Brewers 5 Red Sox 4 in 4:08 and 13 innings — 22,198 fans.

1:06 A.M.—County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin — 7/6/1990—Angels 9 Brewers 8 in 5:31 and 16 innings — 25,244 fans.

1:55 A.M. – County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin – 8/24/1993 – Brewers 9 Athletics 2 in 3:01, then Brewers 7 Athletics 6 in 5:11 and 13 innings, brawl delay 0:10 top 10th –16,570 fans.

Minnesota Twins (4)

1:44 A.M.— Metropolitan Stadium, Bloomington, Minnesota—8/9/1967—Senators 9 Twins 7 in 5:40 and 20 innings—16,901 fans, 4000 fans at end.

1:05 A.M.— Metropolitan Stadium, Bloomington, Minnesota — 5/12/1972 and 5/13/1972 — Brewers 4 Twins 3 in 5:47 and 22 innings, suspended after 5:35 and 21 innings — 8628 fans on 5/12, 7871 fans on 5/13.

1:15 A.M.— Metropolitan Stadium, Bloomington, Minnesota—8/10/1979—Athletics 6 Twins 5 in 3:14 and 11 innings, then Twins 3 Athletics 2 in 3:56 and 12 innings—13,742 fans.

1:22 A.M.— Hubert H. Humphrey Metrodome, Minneapolis, Minnesota—8/31/1993— Twins 5 Indians 4 in 6:17 and 22 innings—17,968 fans, 1500 fans at end.

New York Yankees (12)

1:57 A.M.— Yankee Stadium (I), New York, New York—8/29/1967—Red Sox 2 Yankees 1 in 2:10, then Yankees 4 Red Sox 3 in 6:09 and 20 innings—40,314 fans.

1:07 A.M.—Yankee Stadium (I), New York, New York—8/23/1968—Yankees 2 Tigers 1 in 2:23, then Tigers 3 Yankees 3 in 5:04 and 19 innings—33,880 fans.

1:06 A.M. — Shea Stadium, New York, New York and Metropolitan Stadium, Bloomington, Minnesota — 7/12/1975 and 7/13/1975 and 7/19/1975 — Yankees 8 Twins 7 in 5:11 and 16 innings, rain delay 0:30 bottom 5th, suspended after 13½ innings in New York, rained out 7/13 in New York, finally completed 7/19 in Bloomington —13,573 fans on 7/12 in New York, 6000 fans at suspension, 37,602 fans on 7/19 in Bloomington.

1:36 A.M.— Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York— 8/25/1976— Yankees 5 Twins 4 in 5:27 and 19 innings -24,351 fans.

1:16 A.M. — Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York — 8/2/1978 and 8/3/1978 — Red Sox 7 Yankees 5 in 5:00 and 17 innings, rain delay 0:35 top 8th, 2nd rain delay 0:17 bottom 12th, suspended after 14 innings — 52,701 fans on 8/2, 20,000 fans at suspension, 53,379 fans on 8/3.

1:08 A.M.— Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York — 5/11/1984 — Mariners 4 Yankees 3 in 5:02 and 17 innings —15,716 fans.

1:08 A.M.— Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York—9/22/1992—Yankees 6 Tigers 5 in 4:05 and 12 innings, rain delay 1:56 at start of 2nd game, then Yankees 7 Tigers 4 in 2:37—13,001 fans, 200 fans at end.

1:20 A.M.—Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York—10/4/1995—Division Series—Yankees 7 Mariners 5 in 5:13 and 15 innings—57,126 fans.

1:17 A.M.—Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York—7/20/1998—Tigers 4 Yankees 3 in 5:50 and 17 innings, then Yankees 4 Tigers 3 in 2:45—36,285 fans.

1:04 A.M.— Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York—10/21/2000— World Series— Yankees 4 Mets 3 in 4:51 and 12 innings—55,913 fans.

1:09 A.M.—Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York—8/9/2002—Athletics 3 Yankees 2 in 6:00 and 16 innings—54,316 fans, 10,000 fans at end.

1:23 A.M.—Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York. -5/11/2004 — Yankees 8 Angels 7 in 3:57 and 10 innings, rain delay 0:30 top 4th, 2nd rain delay 1:48 bottom 4th -36,706 fans, 5000 fans at end - author sat in lower deck behind home plate for the last three innings.

Oakland Athletics (5)

1:04 A.M.— Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California—6/20/1969—Athletics 3 Twins 2 in 5:04 and 14 innings—20,691 fans.

1:05 A.M.— Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California -7/9/1971— Athletics 1 Angels 0 in 5:05 and 20 innings -22,938 fans.

1:05 A.M. — Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California — 8/10/1972 and 8/11/1972 — Athletics 5 White Sox 3 in 5:31 and 19 innings, suspended after 5:04 and 17 innings —11,818 fans on 8/10, 16,065 fans on 8/11.

1:09 A.M.— Oakland-Alameda County (later UMAX, then Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California — 4/8/1982 — Angels 8 Athletics 6 in 5:31 and 16 innings —17,806 fans, 1000 fans at end.

1:22 A.M. — UMAX (later Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California — 4/6/1998 and 4/8/1998 — rain delay 1:46 at start, Indians 6 Athletics 5 in 3:07, 2nd rain delay 1:44 top 5th, suspended after 2:47 and 8 innings — 6963 fans on 4/6, 200 fans at suspension, 8361 fans on 4/8.

St. Louis Browns (1)

1:07 A.M.— Sportsman's Park (V) (later Busch Stadium (I)), St. Louis, Missouri—6/20/1952—Senators 5 Browns 5 in 4:34 and 18 innings—7931 fans.

Seattle Mariners (0)

Seattle Pilots (1)

1:05 A.M. — Sicks' Stadium, Seattle, Washington — 7/19/1969 and 7/20/1969 — Twins 11 Pilots 7 in 5:41 and 18 innings, suspended after 5:01 and 16 innings, moon landing delay 0:20 bottom 17th —12,067 fans on 7/19, 8287 fans on 7/20.

Tampa Bay Devil Rays/Rays (1)

1:35 A.M. — Tropicana Field, St. Petersburg, Florida —10/11/2008 — League Championship Series — Rays 9 Red Sox 8 in 5:27 and 11 innings — 34,904 fans.

Texas Rangers (6)

1:06 A.M. — Arlington Stadium, Arlington, Texas — 5/14/1975 and 5/15/1975 — rain delay 1:13 at start, Brewers 3 Rangers 2 in 4:12 and 15 innings, suspended after 3:53 and 14 innings —12,090 fans on 5/14, 22,823 fans on 5/15.

1:00 A.M. — Arlington Stadium, Arlington, Texas — 5/26/1976 and 5/27/1976 — rain delay 0:30 at start, Royals 14 Rangers 2 in 2:54, then Rangers 5 Royals 4 in 3:07 and 10 innings, suspended after 9 innings — 16,510 fans on 5/26, 14,755 fans on 5/27.

1:05 A.M. – Arlington Stadium, Arlington, Texas – 9/10/1988 – Rangers 3 Angels 2 in 5:30 and 17 innings – 22,972 fans.

1:21 A.M.— Arlington Stadium, Arlington, Texas— 4/28/1989 and 4/29/1989—Rangers 7 Red Sox 6 in 4:06 and 12 innings, rain delay 2:02 bottom 9th, suspended after 3:43 and 10 innings—35,440 fans on 4/28, 41,050 fans on 4/29.

1:26 A.M.— Ballpark (later Ameriquest Field) in Arlington, Arlington, Texas—10/2/1998—Division Series—Yankees 4 Rangers 0 in 2:58, 3:16 rain delay bottom 6th—49,450 fans.

1:41 A.M.— Ballpark (later Ameriquest Field) in Arlington, Arlington, Texas—8/25/2001—Rangers 8 Red Sox 7 in 6:35 and 18 innings—43,775 fans, 8000 fans at end.

Toronto Blue Jays (2)

1:02 A.M.— Exhibition Stadium, Toronto, Province of Ontario, Canada—9/26/1985—rain delay 3:18 at start, Red Sox 4 Blue Jays 1 in 2:09—30,443 fans, 2500 fans at start.

1:06 A.M.—Sky Dome (later Rogers Centre), Toronto, Province of Ontario, Canada -4/19/2001— Yankees 6 Blue Jays 5 in 5:57 and 17 innings -24,684fans, 1500 fans at end.

Washington Senators I/II (4)

1:02 A.M. - Griffith Stadium, Washington, D.C. -

6/15/1945 – Red Sox 6 Senators 5 in 3:25 and 14 innings, then Red Sox 4 Senators 4 in 2:42 and 13 innings – 21,093 fans.

2:44 A.M.— D.C. (later R.F.K.) Stadium, Washington, D.C.— 6/12/1967 — Senators 6 White Sox 5 in 6:38 and 22 innings—7236 fans, 2000 fans at end.

1:21 A.M. – D.C. (later R.F.K.) Stadium, Washington, D.C. – 8/17/1967 – Indians 8 Senators 3 in 5:14 and 16 innings –12,488 fans, 2000 fans at end.

1:36 A.M.— R.F.K. Stadium, Washington, D.C.— 6/4/1971— rain delay 0:17 at start, Athletics 6 Senators 3 in 5:19 and 21 innings—6159 fans.

Note: two home interleague games

NL New York Mets at AL New York Yankees

NL San Diego Padres at AL Cleveland Indians

National League (91)

Atlanta Braves (6)

1:06 A.M.— Atlanta-Fulton County Stadium, Atlanta, Georgia — 8/15/1969 — Braves 8 Cardinals 2 in 2:06, rain delay 3:00 bottom 1st — 23,336 fans.

1:06 A.M.—Atlanta-Fulton County Stadium, Atlanta, Georgia—9/5/1970—Braves 5 Giants 2 in 2:38, rain delay 1:00 bottom 2nd; 2nd and 3rd rain delays 0:39 and 0:34 in middle innings, then Braves 5 Giants 3 in 2:10—13,820 fans.

2:12 A.M.— Atlanta-Fulton County Stadium, Atlanta, Georgia — 9/10/1971— Braves 7 Giants 5 in 3:41 and 11 innings, rain delay 2:19 bottom 11th — 8403 fans, 150 fans at end.

3:55 A.M.—Atlanta-Fulton County Stadium, Atlanta, Georgia—7/4/1985—rain delay 1:24 at start, Mets 16 Braves 13 in 6:10 and 19 innings, 2nd rain delay 0:41 bottom 3rd, 4th of July fireworks show began at 4:01 A.M., ended at 4:12 A.M.—44,947 fans, 8000 fans at end.

1:08 A.M. — Turner Field, Atlanta, Georgia - 4/5/1997 and 4/6/1997 — Braves 11 Cubs 5 in 2:47, rain delay 3:55 bottom 7th, suspended after 2:08 in bottom 7th - 45,698 fans on 4/5; 41,318 fans on 4/6.

1:25 A.M. — Turner Field, Atlanta, Georgia — 6/28/ 2004 — rain delay 3:20 at start, Braves 6 Marlins 1 in 2:30 — 31,969 fans, 5000 fans at start, 2000 fans at end.

Brooklyn Dodgers (1)

1:00 A.M.— Ebbets Field, Brooklyn, New York— 5/2/1957—Cardinals 3 Dodgers 2 in 4:54 and 16 innings—8811 fans.

Chicago Cubs (1)

1:16 A.M.—Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois— 7/26/2005—Giants 3 Cubs 2 in 3:28 and 11 innings, rain delay 2:43 at start—39,002 fans; 25,000 fans at start; 7000 fans at end.

Cincinnati Reds (12)

1:10 A.M. – Crosley Field, Cincinnati, Ohio – 6/24/

1958 — Dodgers 13 Reds 10 in 3:39 and 10 innings, then Dodgers 7 Reds 2 in 3:11 and 11 innings — 20,635 fans.

1:03 A.M. — Crosley Field, Cincinnati, Ohio — 5/28/ 1964 — Dodgers 2 Reds 2 in 4:58 and 17 innings — 7772 fans.

1:10 A.M.— Crosley Field, Cincinnati, Ohio — 8/27/ 1965 — Cardinals 6 Reds 5 in 5:00 and 14 innings — 23,595 fans.

2:00 A.M.— Crosley Field, Cincinnati, Ohio — 8/31/ 1965 — rain delay 0:24 at start, Braves 5 Reds 3 in 3:00, 2nd rain delay 2:08 bottom 5th, then Reds 4 Braves 1 in 1:36 and 3 innings, 3rd rain delay 0:45 top 4th, called off—19,645 fans.

1:45 A.M. – Crosley Field, Cincinnati, Ohio – 9/1/ 1967 – Giants 1 Reds 0 in 5:40 and 21 innings –13,745 fans, 200 fans at end.

1:43 A.M. — Crosley Field, Cincinnati, Ohio — 8/9/1969 — Reds 4 Phillies 2 in 3:08 and 12 innings, tornado/rain delay 2:35 top 2nd, Phillies dugout was flooded with 3 feet of water so they had to sit out on the field for the last 11 innings —19,239 fans.

1:04 A.M.— Riverfront Stadium (later Cinergy Field), Cincinnati, Ohio—8/8/1972—Reds 2 Dodgers 1 in 4:17 and 19 innings, rain delay 0:43 bottom 1st— 24,453 fans.

1:21 A.M.— Riverfront Stadium (later Cinergy Field), Cincinnati, Ohio — 7/3/1973 — rain delay 2:25 at start, Reds 6 Giants 3 in 2:51—26,269 fans.

1:23 A.M.—Riverfront Stadium (later Cinergy Field), Cincinnati, Ohio—8/28/1978—rain delay 2:46 at start, Pirates 3 Reds 1 in 2:32—23,612 fans, 7000 fans at end.

2:55 A.M.— Riverfront Stadium (later Cinergy Field), Cincinnati, Ohio -7/12/1979 — rain delay 2:16 at start, Cubs 10 Reds 8 in 3:23, 2nd rain delay 1:11 top 9th -21,804 fans, 300 fans at end.

2:30 A.M.— Riverfront Stadium (later Cinergy Field), Cincinnati, Ohio — 6/9/1980— rain delay 0:07 at start, Reds 6 Padres 6 in 2:59 and 10½ innings, 2nd rain delay 0:19 bottom 2nd, 3rd rain delay 1:39 bottom 8th, 4th rain delay 1:21 bottom 11th —19,688 fans, 300 fans after 3rd rain delay, 150 fans at end.

1:04 A.M.—Riverfront Stadium (later Cinergy Field), Cincinnati, Ohio—8/10/1984—Reds 5 Astros 4 in 3:31 and 12 innings, then Astros 11 Reds 7 in 2:58—14,558 fans.

Colorado Rockies (1)

1:12 A.M. — Coors Field, Denver, Colorado — 8/18/ 1995 — Cubs 26 Rockies 7 in 3:22, rain delay 2:45 top 4th — 48,082 fans, 500 fans at end.

Houston Colt .45's/Astros (5)

1:15 A.M. — Colt Stadium, Houston, Texas — 4/25/ 1962 — Cardinals 5 Colt .45's (later Astros) 5 in 5:13 and 17 innings —17,265 fans.

2:11 A.M.— Colt Stadium, Houston, Texas — 5/23/ 1964 — rain delay 1:05 at start, Colt .45's 8 Mets 4 in 2:42, 2nd rain delay 1:20 top 6th, then Colt .45's 4 Mets 0 in 2:04 – 9457 fans.

1:37 A.M.—Astrodome, Houston, Texas—4/15/ 1968—Astros 1 Mets 0 in 6:06 and 24 innings—14,219 fans, 3000 fans at end.

2:50 A.M.—Astrodome, Houston, Texas—6/3/ 1989—Astros 5 Dodgers 4 in 7:14 and 22 innings— 34,425 fans.

1:21 A.M.— Minute Maid Park, Houston, Texas— 10/25/2005— American League at National League— White Sox 7 Astros 5 in 5:41 and 14 innings—42,848 fans.

Los Angeles Dodgers (3)

1:08 A.M. — Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California — 5/1/1962 — Dodgers 6 Cubs 5 in 5:06 and 16 innings — 20,069 fans; 200 fans at end.

1:15 A.M.— Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California—9/19/1964—Dodgers 4 Phillies 3 in 5:13 and 16 innings—27,146 fans.

1:45 A.M. — Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California — 5/24/1973 — Mets 7 Dodgers 3 in 5:42 and 19 innings — 27,580 fans; 1000 fans at end.

Milwaukee Brewers (1)

1:36 A.M. – County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin – 6/11/1999 – American League at National League – rain delay 3:11 at start, Twins 9 Brewers 7 in 3:20–30,344 fans.

Montreal Expos (7)

2:12 A.M. — Parc (Park) Jarry, Montreal, Province of Quebec, Canada — 9/7/1973 — Mets 1 Expos 0 in 2:43, blinding sunlight delay 0:16, then Mets 4 Expos 2 in 4:38 and 15 innings — 24,167 fans.

1:59 A.M.— Parc (Park) Jarry, Montreal, Province of Quebec, Canada — 9/17/1973 — Expos 5 Cardinals 4 in 2:47, then Cardinals 5 Expos 3 in 3:25 and 12 innings, 1:12 rain delay top 12th — 20,160 fans; 200 fans at end.

1:56 A.M.— Parc (Park) Jarry, Montreal, Province of Quebec, Canada—6/28/1974—Cubs 8 Expos 7 in 4:55 and 18 innings, then Expos 15 Cubs 0 in 2:22— 20,098 fans, 8000 fans at end.

1:15 A.M.— Stade Olympique (Olympic Stadium), Montreal, Province of Quebec, Canada — 5/21/1977 — Padres 11 Expos 8 in 5:33 and 21 innings —16,892 fans, 8000 fans at end.

1:42 A.M.— Stade Olympique (Olympic Stadium), Montreal, Province of Quebec, Canada — 9/18/1979 — Pirates 5 Expos 3 in 3:04 and 11 innings — rain delay 0:09 bottom 5th, 2nd rain delay 2:54 top 6th — 56,976 fans.

1:47 A.M.— Stade Olympique (Olympic Stadium), Montreal, Province of Quebec, Canada—6/2/1980— Expos 8 Cubs 7 in 4:43 and 13 innings, rain delay 1:30 at start—15,271 fans.

1:25 A.M.— Stade Olympique (Olympic Stadium), Montreal, Province of Quebec, Canada — 8/23/1989 - Dodgers 1 Expos 0 in 6:14 and 22 innings - 21,742 fans.

New York Giants (1)

1:31 A.M.—Polo Grounds (V), New York, New York-8/5/1952—Giants 7 Dodgers 6 in 4:59 and 15 innings-43,373 fans.

New York Mets (3)

1:05 A.M.— Shea Stadium, New York, New York— 10/2/1965— Phillies 6 Mets 0 in 2:31, then Phillies 0 Mets 0 in 4:29 and 18 innings—10,371 fans.

3:13 A.M. – Shea Stadium, New York, New York – 9/11/1974 – Cardinals 4 Mets 3 in 7:04 and 25 innings –13,460 fans, 1000 fans at end including Commissioner Bowie Kuhn.

1:25 A.M. — Shea Stadium, New York, New York — 6/15/1989 — Mets 4 Cubs 3 in 3:44 and 12 innings, rain delay 0:58 bottom 3rd, 2nd rain delay 0:33 top 4th — 24,689 fans; 100 fans at end.

Philadelphia Phillies (19)

1:01 A.M.— Shibe Park (later Connie Mack Stadium), Philadelphia, Pennsylvania—7/8/1949— Braves 4 Phillies 3 in 4:16 and 16 innings, stretcher delay 0:15 top 13th—11,238 fans.

1:05 A.M.—Connie Mack Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania—6/21/1960—Phillies 7 Cubs 6 in 4:06 and 13 innings, then Phillies 7 Cubs 6 in 2:34, suspended after 2:24 and 8 innings—26,233 fans on 6/21, 9342 fans on 6/22.

1:15 A.M.—Connie Mack Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania—6/28/1961—Giants 7 Phillies 7 in 5:11 and 15 innings—11,597 fans.

1:24 A.M. – Connie Mack Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania – 8/18/1964 – Cubs 4 Phillies 3 in 4:46 and 16 innings, rain delay 0:37 top 10th –18,401 fans.

2:06 A.M. – Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania – 9/13/1974 – Cardinals 7 Phillies 3 in 4:47 and 17 innings, rain delay 1:41 top 17th – 35,290 fans, 200 fans at end.

1:11 A.M.— Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania–8/4/1975— Cubs 3 Phillies 2 in 2:52, rain delay 0:21 4th, 2nd rain delay 2:18—16,285 fans.

3:15 A.M.— Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 9/26/1975 — Phillies 4 Mets 3 in 3:48 and 12 innings, rain delay 0:24 top 2nd, 2nd rain delay 0:27 bottom 9th, then Mets 3 Phillies 2 in 3:08 and 12 innings, 3rd rain delay 1:17 top 3rd — 20,189 fans, 200 fans at end.

3:23 A.M. — Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 8/10/1977 — rain delay 1:03 at start, Phillies 6 Expos 1 in 2:11, 2nd rain delay 2:27 bottom 3rd, then Phillies 6 Expos 1 in 2:07, 3rd rain delay 1:26 top 2nd, dawn was at 5:09 A.M. — 46,664 fans, 15,000 fans at start of 2nd game, 5000 fans at end.

2:03 A.M. — Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 8/10/1979 — rain delay 0:29 at start, Phillies 4 Pirates 3 in 3:14 and 12 innings, 2nd rain delay 0:44 bottom 1st, 3rd rain delay 0:19 top 11th, then Pirates 3 Phillies 2 in 3:03 – 63,346 fans, 20,000 fans at end.

3:11 A.M.— Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 6/9/1980— Giants 3 Phillies 1 in 2:36, rain delay 1:28 bottom 4th, 2nd rain delay 3:32 also bottom 4th — 28,702 fans, 500 fans top 5th, 200 fans at end.00

2:13 A.M.— Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania—7/26/1988—rain delay 1:17 at start, Mets 7 Phillies 5 in 3:12, 2nd rain delay 2:08 top 2nd— 34,192 fans.

1:03 A.M.— Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 7/2/1993 — rain delay 1:10 at start, Padres 5 Phillies 2 in 2:34, 2nd rain delay 1:56 bottom 4th, 3rd rain delay 2:48 top 6th, then Phillies 6 Padres 5 in 3:12 and 10 innings, post-game 4th of July fireworks show postponed —1st game ended at 1:03 A.M., then Phillies 6 Padres 5 in 3:12 and 10 innings, 2nd game ended at 4:40 A.M.— 54,617 fans.

4:40 A.M. — Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 7/2/1993 — rain delay 1:10 at start, Padres 5 Phillies 2 in 2:34, 2nd rain delay 1:56 bottom 4th, 3rd rain delay 2:48 top 6th, then Phillies 6 Padres 5 in 3:12 and 10 innings, post-game 4th of July fireworks show postponed — 54,617 fans, 6000 fans at start of 2nd game, 4000 fans at end.

1:47 A.M.— Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania—7/7/1993—Phillies 7 Dodgers 6 in 6:10 and 20 innings—41,730 fans.

1:56 A.M.— Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 7/22/1994 — Phillies 4 Padres 3 in 2:23, then Padres 7 Phillies 4 in 3:18, rain delay 0:38 bottom 4th, 2nd rain delay 1:14 bottom 4th, 3rd rain delay 0:42 bottom 6th — 38,423 fans.

2:06 A.M. — Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 6/12/2000 — rain delay 0:59 at start, Marlins 5 Phillies 2 in 2:57, 2nd rain delay 2:35 bottom 3rd —11,926 fans, 150 fans after 2nd rain delay.

2:03 A.M.— Citizens Bank Park, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 6/14/2004 — Phillies 10 Reds 7 in 3:04 and 8 innings, rain delay 2:18 bottom 3rd, 2nd rain delay 1:05 bottom 7th, 3rd rain delay 0:31 top 9th — 44,710 fans, 2000 fans at end.

1:23 A.M.—Citizens Bank Park, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania—7/2/2004—American League at National League—Orioles 7 Phillies 6 in 6:15 and 16 innings— 44,390 fans.

1:47 A.M.— Citizens Bank Park, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania—10/25/2008—World Series AL at NL—rain delay 1:31 at start, Phillies 5 Rays 4 in 3:41—45,900 fans.

Pittsburgh Pirates (17)

1:00 A.M.— Forbes Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 6/18/1941— Giants 2 Pirates 2 in 2:43 and 11 innings, Billy Conn-Joe Louis heavyweight title fight radio broadcast delay 0:56 bottom 4th—24,738 fans.

1:56 A.M.— Forbes Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 6/22/1951— power failure delay 2:14 at start, Dodgers 8 Pirates 4 in 2:36, rain delay 0:36 top 6th – 24,966 fans, 10,000 fans at end.

1:01 A.M.— Forbes Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania— 7/19/1955— Pirates 4 Braves 3 in 4:44 and 19 innings—7953 fans.

1:07 A.M.— Forbes Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania— 6/5/1962 and 6/6/1962—rain delay 1:19 at start, Dodgers 3 Pirates 2 in 2:52, then Dodgers 8 Pirates 3 in 2:50, suspended after 2:34 and 8 innings—18,579 fans on 6/5, 13,667 fans on 6/6.

1:52 A.M.— Forbes Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania— 6/6/1963— rain delay 1:39 followed immediately by automatic tarpaulin malfunction delay 0:30 at start, Reds 7 Pirates 5 in 2:39, then Reds 10 Pirates 5 in 2:36—12,309 fans, 1000 fans at end.

2:30 A.M.— Forbes Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 8/9/1963 — rain delay 1:00 at start, Colt .45's (later Astros) 7 Pirates 6 in 3:58 and 15 innings, then Pirates 7 Colt .45's 6 in 3:10 and 11 innings — 9420 fans, 300 fans at end — author and his father sat in second deck behind third base.

1:19 A.M.— Forbes Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 7/13/1964 — Cardinals 5 Pirates 4 in 3:34 and 12 innings, then Cardinals 12 Pirates 5 in 3:00—14,773 fans.

1:45 A.M.— Forbes Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania— 6/29/1965— Pirates 2 Reds 1 in 4:19 and 16 innings, then Reds 7 Pirates 5 in 2:42—28,589 fans.

2:13 A.M.— Forbes Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 9/11/1968 — Phillies 8 Pirates 6 in 3:42 and 12 innings, then Pirates 6 Phillies 4 in 2:50, rain delay 0:56 bottom 2nd — 2789 fans.

1:19 A.M.— Three Rivers Stadium, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 7/18/1970— rain delay 1:05 at start, Reds 3 Pirates 1 in 2:46 and 10 innings, 2nd rain delay 1:23 top 5th — 27,906 fans.

1:16 A.M.— Three Rivers Stadium, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 6/26/1978 and 4/23/1978 — Pirates 5 Cardinals 4 in 3:16, completion of 2nd game begun back on 4/23 which had been suspended after 1:59 and 6 innings to allow Cardinals to catch a flight to Montreal, rain delay 0:38, 2nd rain delay 1:37, then Pirates 11 Cardinals 8 in 3:01—5045 fans on 6/26, 10,008 fans back on 4/23.

2:11 A.M.— Three Rivers Stadium, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania—8/20/1979—Pirates 6 Giants 5 in 2:54, rain delay 3:42 top 6th—18,714 fans.

1:56 A.M.— Three Rivers Stadium, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania—6/20/1983—Pirates 5 Cubs 4 in 3:18 and 10 innings, then Pirates 6 Cubs 5 in 4:03 and 13 innings—5839 fans.

1:32 A.M.— Three Rivers Stadium, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 7/13/1984 — Pirates 8 Giants 2 in 2:37, then Pirates 4 Giants 3 in 5:11 and 18 innings, fireworks show started at 1:45 A.M.— 22,167 fans, 10,000 fans at end.

1:42 A.M.— Three Rivers Stadium, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania—8/18/1995—Pirates 13 Marlins 7 in 3:07, then Pirates 7 Marlins 6 in 4:35 and 13 innings— 13,598 fans. 1:37 A.M. — PNC Park, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 6/20/2003 — American League at National League rain delay 0:24 at start, Pirates 5 Indians 4 in 4:32 and 15 innings, 2nd rain delay 1:36 top 10th — 26,305 fans, 400 fans at end.

1:10 A.M.— PNC Park, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania— 7/8/2008— Pirates 4 Astros 3 in 2:58, rain delay 2:39 top 4th, 2nd rain delay 0:28 bottom 6th—17,867 fans; 500 fans at end.

St. Louis Cardinals (3)

3:01 A.M.— Busch Stadium (II), St. Louis, Missouri — 7/7/1987 — rain delay 2:22 at start, Cardinals 5 Dodgers 4 in 2:51, then Cardinals 5 Dodgers 4 in 3:46 and 10 innings — 39,236 fans, 2000 fans at end.

1:15 A.M.—Busch Stadium (II), St. Louis, Missouri—5/14/1988—Braves 7 Cardinals 5 in 5:40 and 19 innings—47,887 fans.

1:46 A.M.—Busch Stadium (II), St. Louis, Missouri—6/8/1992—Cubs 5 Cardinals 2 in 4:21 and 13 innings, then Cubs 6 Cardinals 4 in 3:20—38,572 fans.

San Diego Padres (5)

2:29 A.M.— San Diego (later Jack Murphy, then Qualcomm) Stadium, San Diego, California— 9/24/1971— Astros 2 Padres 1 in 5:25 and 21 innings, then Padres 5 Astros 4 in 2:14, fog delay 0:14 bottom 9th—6339 fans, 100 fans at end.

1:39 A.M.— San Diego (later Jack Murphy, then Qualcomm) Stadium, San Diego, California—6/7/ 1972—Pirates 12 Padres 5 in 2:49, then Pirates 1 Padres 0 in 4:27 and 18 innings—7371 fans.

1:20 A.M.— San Diego (later Jack Murphy, then Qualcomm) Stadium, San Diego, California—8/25/ 1979—Pirates 4 Padres 3 in 6:12 and 19 innings— 14,607 fans; 5000 fans at end.

1:26 A.M.—San Diego (later Jack Murphy, then Qualcomm) Stadium, San Diego, California—8/15/ 1980—Astros 3 Padres 1 in 6:17 and 20 innings— 14,177 fans.

1:21 A.M.—PETCO Park, San Diego, California— 4/17/2008—Rockies 2 Padres 1 in 6:16 and 22 innings—25,984 fans.

San Francisco Giants (3)

1:25 A.M.— Candlestick (later 3Com) Park, San Francisco, California—6/21/1983—Reds 6 Giants 5 in 5:10 and 16 innings—8943 fans.

1:15 A.M.— Candlestick Park (later 3Com Park), San Francisco, California — 7/26/1988 — Dodgers 7 Giants 3 in 2:57, then Dodgers 6 Giants 5 in 4:13 and 11 innings and foggy weather — 49,209 fans.

1:10 A.M.— Pac Bell (later SBC, then AT&T) Park, San Francisco, California—5/29/2001—Diamondbacks 1 Giants 0 in 5:53 and 18 innings—39,709 fans.

Washington Nationals (2)

2:07 A.M.-RFK Stadium, Washington, DC-

9/28/2006 – rain delay 4:27 at start, Nationals 3 Phillies 1 in 2:35 –18,324 fans; 3200 fans at start; 3600 fans at end.

1:42 A.M. – RFK Stadium, Washington, DC – 5/12/ 2007 – Nationals 7 Marlins 3 in 2:59 – rain delay 2:51 top 5th, 2nd rain delay 0:47 bottom 9th –19,278 fans; 50 fans at end.

Note: five home interleague games

AL Minnesota Twins at NL Milwaukee Brewers

AL Cleveland Indians at NL Pittsburgh Pirates

AL Baltimore Orioles at NL Philadelphia Phillies

AL Chicago White Sox at NL Houston Astros

AL Tampa Bay Rays at NL Philadelphia Phillies World Series

U.S. Amateur, by State (86)

Alabama (1)

3:45 A.M.—Bloch Park (later Terry Leach Field), Selma—8/12/1980—Dizzy Dean League World Series previous tournament action rain delays 5:00 at start, Brent 6 Selma 5 in 2:45 and 7 innings—4000 fans.

Alaska (33)

1:05 A.M. — Imperial Park, Fairbanks — 6/21/1907 — Tanana Commercial Club 2 Eagles 1 in 2:25 — Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay.

1:07 A.M.— Exposition Park, Fairbanks—6/21/1912 — Van Dycks 20 Eagles 5 in 2:07, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay—667 fans.

1:00 A.M. — Exposition Park, Fairbanks — 6/21/1914 — Van Dycks 12 Marquettes 8 in 2:00, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay.

1:00 A.M. — Exposition Park, Fairbanks — 6/21/1915 — Vans 11 Marks 9 in 2:15, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay — 247 fans.

1:40 A.M.— Griffin Field, Fairbanks—6/21/1955— Fairbanks All-Stars 12 Military All-Stars 8 in 3:10, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay.

1:32 A.M.— Griffin Field, Fairbanks—6/21/1956— Air Force All-Stars 8 Civilian All-Stars 5 in 3:02, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay.

2:00 A.M.— Ranger Field, Fairbanks—6/21/1959— Anchorage Sales and Service 16 Ladd Air Force Base Flyers 6, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay.

2:34 A.M. — Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks — 6/21/1964 — Grand Junction Eagles 10 Alaska Goldpanners 5 in 3:34, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay — 2500 fans.

1:09 A.M. — Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks — 6/21/1973 — NCAA at Amateur — Brigham Young University Cougars 8 Alaska Goldpanners 5, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay — 4300 fans. 1:18 A.M.—Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks— 6/21/1974—NCAA at Amateur—Alaska Goldpanners 7 Washington State University Cougars 6, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay—4473 fans.

1:54 A.M. — Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks — 6/21/1977 — Alaska Goldpanners 12 Red Deer M&K Generals 11, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay — 4000 fans.

1:30 A.M. — Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks — 6/21/1979 — NCAA at Amateur — Alaska Goldpanners 8 University of North Carolina Tar Heels 2, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay — 4000 fans.

2:10 A.M. — Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks — 6/20/1980 — NCAA at Amateur — Alaska Goldpanners 16 University of Wisconsin Badgers 5, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay — 2600 fans.

3:02 A.M. — Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks — 6/20/1981— Alaska Goldpanners 11 Intermountain Badgers 4 in 3:08, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay — 3000 fans.

1:33 A.M. — Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks — 6/20/1982 — Alaska Goldpanners 9 San Francisco Senators 3 in 2:48, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay —1500 fans.

1:30 A.M. — Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks — 6/19/1983 — Alaska Goldpanners 7 Cook Inlet Bucs 2 in 2:25, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay — 2600 fans.

2:08 A.M.— Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks— 6/21/1984—Alaska Goldpanners 9 Republic of China-Taipei Olympic Team 0 in 2:24 and 7 innings, rain delay 0:44 at start, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay, after 7 innings the score was China-Taipei 2 Alaska 1, but China-Taipei refused to bat in top 8th due to misunderstanding over whether game was to be 7 or 9 innings long and whether it was too dark, Alaska won by forfeit—3000 fans, 1000 fans at end.

3:06 A.M. — Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks — 6/22/1985 — Alaska Goldpanners 8 Moraga Marauders 0 in 4:36, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay —1825 fans, 1100 fans at end.

1:06 A.M. — Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks — 6/20/1986 — Alaska Goldpanners 8 San Francisco Senators 1 in 2:36, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay — 4000 fans.

1:43 A.M.— Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks— 6/20/1987 — Mat-Su Miners 2 Alaska Goldpanners 1 in 3:13, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay—3350 fans.

1:17 A.M.— Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks— 6/20/1989—Alaska Goldpanners 7 San Diego Sea World Killer Whales 3 in 2:42, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay—2250 fans. 2:15 A.M.— Mulcahy Stadium, Anchorage—?/??/ 1990's—Alaska League—Fairbanks Goldpanners vs. Anchorage Bucs in 16 innings.

1:22 A.M.— Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks— 6/21/1990— Alaska Goldpanners 8 San Bernardino Tribe 3 in 2:59, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay— 3000 fans.

2:30 A.M.— Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks— 6/22/1991— Alaska Goldpanners 9 South Lake Tahoe Stars 8 in 4:00, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay—2500 fans.

2:15 A.M.—Mulcahy Stadium, Anchorage—6/23/ 1992—Alaska League—Anchorage Glacier Pilots defeated Kamloops in 6:39 and 21 innings—12 fans at end.

2:34 A.M.— Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks— 6/21/1994 — Alaska Goldpanners 15 San Diego Stars 6 in 3:16, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay.

2:15 A.M.— Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks— 6/20/1998—Alaska Goldpanners 14 Kelowna Grizzlies 12 in 3:45, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay.

1:30 A.M.— Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks— 6/21/1999 — Alaska Goldpanners 7 Oceanside Waves 1 in 2:54, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay — 3000 fans.

1:10 A.M.— Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks— 6/21/2000— Alaska Goldpanners 3 Santa Barbara Foresters 2 in 2:40, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay bottom 7th—3300 fans.

2:05 A.M.— Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks— 6/21/2001— Alaska Goldpanners 2 Oceanside Waves 1 in 3:35 and 13 innings, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay top 7th—3500 fans, 200 fans at end.

1:13 A.M.—Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks— 6/21/2004—Alaska Goldpanners 9 Kenai Peninsula Oilers 1 in 2:43, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay—3500 fans.

1:45 A.M.—Mulcahy Stadium, Anchorage — 7/15/ 2007 — Alaska League — rain delay 3:25 at start, Athletes in Action (AIA) Fire 7 Anchorage Bucs 4 in 3:20 and 10 innings.

1:00 A.M.— Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks— 6/21/2005—Alaska Goldpanners 3 Omaha Strike Zone 1 in 2:30, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay—4000 fans.

Arizona (1)

9:05 A.M.— Tempe Diablo Stadium, Tempe— 11/4/2000— Men's Senior League 38+ Championship Game— rain delays, Kansas City Monarchs 2 San Jose All-Stars 1 in 2:35.

Arkansas (1)

2:00 A.M. – Fayetteville – 8/??/1993 or 1994 – American Legion – final score 20–3, suspended due to rain, completed next morning.

California (1)

1:07 A.M.— Clairemont High School Chieftains Field, San Diego—6/23/1988—previous tournament action delay 2:03 at start, Giant Jewelry Gems 4 Action Video Tigers 1 in 2:04—40 fans, 12 fans at end author managed and played center field for the Gems.

Florida (2)

1:05 A.M.— City of Palms Stadium, Fort Myers— 11/6/1993— Roy Hobbs Senior League Championships—rain delay 5:20 at start of prior games, Asheville Sox 6 New Jersey All-Stars 5 in 2:05 and 7 innings—150 fans.

3:10 A.M. — City of Palms Stadium, Fort Myers — 11/6/1993 — Roy Hobbs Senior League Championships — rain delay 5:20 at start of prior games, Texas Stars 8 Norfolk Drillers 2 in 1:50 and 7 innings —100 fans.

Georgia (1)

1:58 A.M.— Marietta — 8/??/2005 — World Wood Bat Association — Floriday Bombers 12 Orlando Scorpions 9.

Hawaii (1)

1:00 A.M.— Honolulu Stadium, Honolulu —11/15/ 1951—Major League All-Stars vs. Military/Semi-Pro-airplane trouble delay 3:00 at start because the plane carrying Joe and Dom DiMaggio, Ed Lopat, Mel Parnell, and Ferris Fain was late; Military/ Hawai'ian Semi-Pro Team 8 Lefty O'Doul's All-Star Team 6 in 2:00—15,000 fans.

Illinois (1)

4:30 A.M.— unknown location in Illinois—8/??/ 1990's—American Legion—previous tournament action delay at start, Wilmer vs. unknown opponent in 3:00.

Indiana (2)

1:49 A.M. — Joe Hargis Field, Rockport — 8/22/1984 — American Legion — three rain delays 5:11 at start of 2nd prior game, previous tournament action delay at start, Steubenville Argonne Post 33 defeated Indianapolis Atkins Post 355.

4:55 A.M.— Joe Hargis Field, Rockport — 8/22/1984 — American Legion — three rain delays 5:11 at start of 3rd prior game, previous tournament action delay 1:53 at start, Jenkins Post 254 Rockport 6 Hanscom Post 167 Willmar 4 in 2:51—1500 fans, 500 fans at end.

Kansas (18)

2:44 A.M.— Lawrence-Dumont Stadium, Wichita—8/4/2004—Mat-Su Miners 6 Cape Girardeau 2 in 2:03.

1:19 A.M.— Lawrence-Dumont Stadium, Wichita— 8/12/2004 — Mat-Su Miners 4 Pueblo Chieftains 3 in 2:06. 2:05 A.M. – Lawrence-Dumont Stadium, Wichita – 8/2/2005 – Colorado Sox 7 Rock City Red Sox 6 in 2:23.

1:11 A.M. – Lawrence-Dumont Stadium, Wichita – 8/3/2005 – Park City Cowboys 6 Fairbanks Goldpanners 5 in 2:22.

1:12 A.M.— Lawrence-Dumont Stadium, Wichita— 8/4/2005—rain delay 1:02 at start, Havasu Heata 8 Crestwood Panthers 0 in 2:22, 2nd rain delay 2:18 top 5th.

4:09 A.M.— Lawrence-Dumont Stadium, Wichita — 8/4/2005 — Southern California Fire 8 Greenwood Vikings 0 in 2:17.

1:17 A.M.— Lawrence-Dumont Stadium, Wichita— 8/5/2005— Maxim Yankees 4 Plaza Tire Capahas 3 in 2:19.

4:37 A.M. – Lawrence-Dumont Stadium, Wichita – 8/5/2005 – Wichita Titans 7 Wichita Gators 4 in 2:41.

1:43 A.M.— Robertson Field, Wichita—8/6/2005— Wichita Titans 4 Greenwood Vikings 2 in 2:05.

2:06 A.M.— Lawrence-Dumont Stadium, Wicita — 8/6/2005 — El Dorado Broncos 11 Oklahoma Athletics 3 in 2:39.

3:42 A.M.—Robertson Field, Wichita—8/6/2005 —San Diego Stars 14 Crestwood Panthers 0 in 1:18 and 5 innings.

5:09 A.M. – Lawrence-Dumont Stadium, Wichita – 8/6/2005 – Santa Barbara Foresters 9 Parkville Sluggers 7 in 2:23.

8:42 A.M. – Lawrence-Dumont Stadium, Wichita – 8/6/2005 – Southern California Fire 8 Park City Cowboys 4 in 2:53.

2:38 A.M.— Lawrence-Dumont Stadium, Wichita — 8/7/2005 — Park City Cowboys 5 Dodge City Desperados 4 in 2:19.

1:27 A.M.— Lawrence-Dumont Stadium, Wichita— 8/8/2005 — Santa Barbara Foresters 7 Clarinda Athletics 4 in 2:47.

1:03 A.M.— Lawrence-Dumont Stadium, Wichita — 8/9/2005 — Prairie Gravel 4 Wichita Braves 3 in 2:29.

1:27 A.M. — Lawrence-Dumont Stadium, Wichita — 8/10/2005 — El Dorado Broncos 3 Pueblo Chieftains 1 in 2:03.

1:44 A.M.— Lawrence-Dumont Stadium, Wichita— 8/11/2005— Clarinda Athletics 8 El Dorado Broncos 1 in 2:17.

Minnesota (7)

1:30 A.M.— Mabel — 8/10/1952 — Fillmore County League — Spring Grove Grovers 13 Mabel 9 in 20 innings.

1:10 A.M. — Barney Tadsen Field, Brownton — 7/31/ 1969 — Town Team League — Brownton 6 New Ulm Kaiserhoff 5 in 5:10 and 18 innings.

2:45 A.M. — Barney Tadsen Field, Brownton — 9/9/ 1971 — Town Team League — previous tournament action delay 3:40 at start, Delano Athletics 6 Lake Henry 4 in 2:35. 2:05 A.M.— Barney Tadsen Field, Brownton—8/27/1980—Town Team League—rain delay 3:00 at start, New Ulm Kaiserhoff 13 Maple Lake 6 in 3:05.

2:35 A.M. — Tiger Park, Belle Plaine — 9/5/1992 — Town Team League — previous tournament action delay 4:33 at start, Delano Athletics 11 New Ulm Kaiserhoff 9 in 3:02.

1:15 A.M.— Springer Park, Cold Spring—8/27/1993 — Town Team League—Marble Mallards 7 Sartell Muskies 6 in 4:45 and 17 innings.

1:00 A.M.— Dick Putz Field, Št. Cloud — 8/3/2004 — Northwoods League — Madison Mallards 9 St. Cloud River Bats 5 in 5:53 and 18 innings — 2145 fans.

Missouri (4)

4:00 A.M.— Hidden Valley Park or Pink Hill Park, Blue Springs — 7/8/1994 — American Legion — previous tournament action delay at start, Post 499 Blue Springs Auxiliary Athletics vs. Elkhorn.

4:00 A.M. — Hidden Valley Park or Pink Hill Park, Blue Springs — 7/8/1994 — American Legion — previous tournament action delay at start, Post 340 Independence Hi-Boy Drive-In defeated unknown opponent.

6:35 A.M.— Pink Hill Park, Blue Springs — 7/8/ 1994 — American Legion — rain delay at start of 3rd prior game, previous tournament action delay 2:35 at start, Fike Post 499 Blue Springs 8 Post 210 Fulton 0 in 2:00— dawn was at 6:00 A.M., 35 minutes before the game ended.

6:30 A.M.— Hidden Valley Park or Pink Hill Park, Blue Springs—7/9/1994—American Legion—previous tournament action delay 3:30 at start, Post 259 Minnetonka defeated Post 21 Independence in 2:00 dawn was at 6:00 A.M., 30 minutes before the game ended.

New Jersey (1)

1:00 A.M.— Breslin Field, Lyndhurst—8/19/1988— American Legion—Boyertown 10 Glen Allen 7 in 4:23 and 14 innings.

Ohio (1)

1:05 A.M. – Minster – 7/18/1956 – American Legion – St. Mary's 4 Lima 3 in 5:30 and 21 innings.

Oklahoma (2)

3:00 A.M.— Legion Field, Claremore — 7/23/1962 — American Legion — previous tournament action delay 3:30 at start, Bartlesville Philnines 8 Claremore Merchants 6 in 3:30 and 11 innings —100 fans, 12 fans at end.

2:06 A.M.— Regional Park, Midwest City — 7/??/ 1973 — American Legion — Post 170 Midwest City 2 Post 170 Choctaw 1 in 6:06 and 24 innings — 50 fans, 15 fans at end.

Pennsylvania (1)

3:15 A.M. – Point Stadium, Johnstown – 8/19/1960

previous tournament action delay at start, Baltimore Leone's Restaurant 5 Pittsburgh Beechview 3 in 3:30 and 12 innings.

South Carolina (1)

1:30 A.M.— Riley Park, Sumter — 8/14/1991— American Legion — rain delay 0:50 prior game, Post 15 Sumter P-15's 10 Post 34 Tuscaloosa 1 in 2:20, power failure delay 0:20 top 1st, 2nd rain delay 1:45 bottom 2nd.

South Dakota (5)

2:00 A.M. — Platte — 7/19/1948 — Bonesteel 1 Platte 5-Milers (later Killer Tomatoes) 1 in 15 innings — 2000 fans.

1:10 A.M.— Sioux Falls Stadium (later Howard Wood Field), Sioux Falls or Hyde Stadium, Pierre — week before 7/29/1964 — Basin League — Sioux Falls Packers 3 Pierre Cowboys 2 in 5:10 and 19 innings.

1:01 A.M.— Sturgis or Valentine — week before 8/12/ 1964 — Basin League — Valentine Hearts 6 Sturgis Titans 5 in 5:01 and 18 innings.

1:45 A.M.—Sioux Falls Stadium (later Howard Wood Field), Sioux Falls, South Dakota—8/3/1965— Basin League—Pierre Cowboys 5 Sioux Falls Packers 3 in 6:15 and 24 innings—421 fans.

4:30 A.M.— Cadwell Park, Mitchell — 8/?/1990— Amateur — rain delay and previous tournament action delay 5:45 at start, Sioux Falls Silver Bullets 5 Sioux Falls Shop-n-Cart 2 in 2:45 — 50 fans, 25 fans at end.

Tennessee (1)

4:20 A.M.— Camp Jordan, East Ridge—7/14/2002 — AA U13 World Series—rain delays, Baton Rouge Hurricane 6 Woodstock Wolves 5 in 2:10 and 7 innings—50 fans, 45 fans at end.

Virginia (1)

2:20 A.M. – Petersburg Sports Complex, Petersburg – 7/11/2007 – Coastal Plain League – Peninsula Pilots 9 Petersburg Generals 5 in 5:25 and 17 innings – 120 fans.

Wisconsin (2)

1:45 A.M.— Clintonville — 6/15/1939 — Northern State League — Clintonville Four Wheel Drive Truckers 1 Two Rivers Polar Bears 0 in 5:15 and 21 innings.

2:01 A.M.— Fairground Park, Fond du Lac— 7/31/1963— Fox River Valley League— Little Chute-Kimberly Papermakers 11 Fond du Lac 5 in 6:01 and 21 innings.

Evolution of Records for Latest Finish

7:30 P.M.— New Massachusetts Rules Record — Foxboro, Massachusetts — 6/19/1858 — Amateur — South Walpole Rough and Readys 99 Foxboro 99 in 6:00 and 64 innings —100 Rule called for the team that scored 100 runs first to be declared the winner, there was only one out for each team in an inning, called when the Rough and Ready catcher was knocked unconscious by a bat swung by a Foxboro batter.

?:?? P.M.— New All-Time, Amateur, All-Time 9-Inning, and Amateur 9-Inning Records—Buffalo, New York—????/1860's—Amateur—Niagara 222 Buffalo 26.

6:50 P.M.— New Massachusetts Rules 9-Inning Record — Mr. Howard's Lands off Railroad Avenue, Elkton, Maryland — 7/17/1866 — Amateur — Elkton Eclipses 62 St. Georges of Delaware 37 in 5:50 and 9 innings.

10:00 P.M.— New All-Time Shortened and Amateur Shortened Records — Carrollton Commons, Carrollton, Kentucky — 7/14/1868 — Ghent 179 Carrollton 70 in 8:00 and 7 innings, dinner delay 5:00.

?/?? P.M.— New All-Time Full-Length 9-Inning and Amateur Full-Length 9-Inning Records — Buffalo, New York — 6/8/1869 — Niagara 209 Columbus 10.

?/?? P.M.— New Professional and Professional 9-Inning Records — Capitoline Grounds, Brooklyn, New York or Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 7/5/1869 — Brooklyn Atlantics 51 Philadelphia Athletics 48 — 15,000 fans.

?:?? P.M.— New All-Time, Amateur, All-Time 9-Inning, and Amateur 9-Inning Records — Sea Foam House Lawn at Oceanside Park, Hull, Massachusetts — 9/2/1880— Jordan Marsh & Company 16 R.H. White & Company 16 in 1:30—300 fans.

5:10 P.M.— New Professional, Major League, National League, Professional 9-Inning, Major League 9-Inning, National League 9-Inning, Doubleheader, and Major League Doubleheader Records — Agricultural County Fair Grounds Race Track (I), Worcester, Massachusetts — 9/25/1882 — Worcester Ruby Legs 4 Providence Grays 3 in 1:45, then Providence 8 Worcester 6 in 1:40 and 8 innings.

?:?? P.M.— New All-Time, Amateur, All-Time 9-Inning, and Amateur 9-Inning Records — Chambersburg, Pennsylvania — 5/16/1883.

?:?? P.M.— New Minor League vs. College Shortened Record — Jailhouse Flats, Fort Wayne, Indiana — 6/2/1883 (widely reported inaccurately as 6/3/1883)— Professional at Inter-Collegiate Association — Quincy Professionals 19 Methodist (M.E.) College Nine 11 in 7 innings —1675 fans.

???? P.M.— New Minor League vs. College Record — Indianapolis, Indiana — 8/22/1888 — Northwest League vs. Inter-Collegiate Association — Indianapolis Hoosiers vs. local college team.

?:?? P.M.— New Minor League vs. Amateur Record — Indianapolis, Indiana—9/6/1888— Northwest League vs. Amateur— Indianapolis Hoosiers vs. amateur team.

?:?? P.M.— New All-Time, Amateur, All-Time 9-Inning, and Amateur 9-Inning Records — Seward Avenue Park, Auburn, New York — 8/24/1889 — New York State League — Auburn 17 Utica Pent-Ups 5 in 1:50 in day game; Auburn 7 Utica 4 in night game — 1300 fans at night game.

7:15 P.M.— New Professional and Minor League Records — New Haven, Connecticut — 5/31/1890— Atlantic Association — Baltimore Orioles 0 New Haven 0 in 2:05 and 14 innings.

?:?? P.M.— New Professional and Minor League Records — Ward Street Ground, Hartford, Connecticut — 7/23/1890 — Amateur/Atlantic Association doubleheader — Wethersfield Avenue Line of Streetcar Conductors and Drivers Reds 21 Retreat Avenue Line of Streetcar Conductors and Drivers 20 in 5 innings in morning game; Baltimore Orioles 9 Hartford Nutmeggers 2 in afternoon game; Hartford 20 Baltimore 19 in night game.

8:10 P.M.— New All-Time 0–0 and Amateur 0–0 Records — North Dakota State Militia Training Grounds, Devils Lake, North Dakota — 7/18/1891— Red River Valley League — Grand Forks Black Stockings 0 Fargo Red Stockings 0 in 4:10 and 25 innings.

?:?? P.M.— New All-Time, Professional, Minor League, All-Time 9-Inning, Professional 9-Inning, and Minor League 9-Inning Records — Chattanooga, Tennessee or West End Park, Little Rock, Arkansas — 7/3/1895 — Southern Association — Chattanooga Warriors vs. Little Rock Travelers.

?:?? P.M.— New Olympics, Olympics Demonstration Sport, and USA Olympics Demonstration Sport Records—Francis Field, St. Louis, Missouri— 9/?/1904.

12:30 A.M.— New All-Time, Amateur, and Midnight Sun Game Records — Imperial Park, Fairbanks, Alaska — 6/21/1906 — California Bar Drinks 7 Eagle Club Smokes 4 in 1:30 — Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay —1500 fans.

6:47 P.M.— New Major League and American League Records—Huntington Grounds, Boston, Massachusetts—9/1/1906—Athletics 4 Americans (later Red Sox) 1 in 4:47 and 24 innings, 2nd game postponed—18,000 fans.

1:05 A.M.— New All-Time, Amateur, and Midnight Sun Game Records; First-Ever Finish After 1 A.M.— Imperial Park, Fairbanks, Alaska — 6/21/1907 — Tanana Commercial Club 2 Eagles 1 in 2:25 — Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay.

8:05 P.M.— New All-Time 1–0 and Amateur 1–0 Records — Gilmore Ground, Gilmore City, Iowa — 6/26/1907 — Humboldt 1 Gilmore City 0 in 5:00 and 21 innings.

?:?? P.M.— New Elks and Elks 9-Inning Records — Palace of the Fans, Cincinnati, Ohio — 6/19/1909 — Amateur — Newport Elks Lodge vs. Cincinnati Elks Lodge — 3000 fans.

2127 P.M.— New Professional, Minor League, Professional 9-Inning, and Minor League 9-Inning Records — Ramona Park, Grand Rapids, Michigan — 7/7/1909 — Central League — Grand Rapids Wolverines 11 Zanesville Infants 10 in 7 innings — 4500 fans first minor league game played under temporary lights. 1:07 A.M.— New All-Time, Amateur, All-Time 9-Inning, Amateur 9-Inning, and Midnight Sun Game Records — Exposition Park, Fairbanks, Alaska — 6/21/1912 — Van Dycks 20 Eagles 5 in 2:07, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay — 667 fans.

?:?? P.M.— New Olympics, Olympics Demonstration Sport, and Swedish Olympics Demonstration Sport Records — Ostermalm Athletic Grounds, Stockholm — 7/15/1912 — USA Track 13 Sweden Vesturas 3 in 5½ innings.

?:?? P.M.— New Olympics, Olympics Demonstration Sport and Swedish Olympics Demonstration Sport Records — Ostermalm Athletic Grounds, Stockholm — 7/16/1912 — USA East 6 USA West 3.

7:40 P.M.— New High School Record — Bertram Field, Salem, Massachusetts — 6/10/1914 — Salem High School Witches 6 Haverhill High School Hillies 5 in 4:20 and 20 innings.

7:20 P.M.—New Professional Decision and Minor League Decision Records—Burlington, Iowa— 6/27/1915—Central Association—Keokuk Indians 0 Burlington Pathfinders 0 in 3:50 and 22 innings.

7:00 P.M.—New Major League, National League, Doubleheader, Major League Doubleheader, and Wrigley Field Records — Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois — 6/28/1916 — National League — Pirates 3 Cubs 2 in 1:30, then Pirates 3 Cubs 2 in 3:30 and 18 innings — 6500 fans.

6:00 P.M. – New Tripleheader and Major League Tripleheader Records – Forbes Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania –10/2/1920 – National League – Reds 13 Pirates 4 in 2:03, then Reds 7 Pirates 3 in 1:56, then Pirates 6 Reds 0 in 1:01 and 6 innings.

7:30 P.M.— New Major League, National League, Doubleheader, and Major League Doubleheader Records—Ebbets Field, Brooklyn, New York— 6/2/1926—Boston Braves 12 Brooklyn Robins 5 in 2:20, then Boston 12 Brooklyn 11 in 3:05 and 12 innings—15,000 fans—2nd game finished 7:30 P.M.

7:12 P.M.—New Wrigley Field Record—Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois—7/21/1928—National League — Cubs 2 Giants 1 in 3:05 and 15 innings, then Cubs 5 Giants 4 in 2:07 and 10 innings—35,000 fans.

?:?? P.M.— New Professional, Major League, Negro National League, Professional 9-Inning, Major League 9-Inning, and Negro National League 9-Inning Records — Dyckman Oval, New York, New York — 4/??/1930—????? vs. New York Cuban Stars West first Negro League game played under permanent lights.

?:?? P.M.— New Professional, Minor League, Professional 9-Inning, and Minor League 9-Inning Records — Producers Park, Independence, Kansas — 4/28/1930— Western Association — Muskogee Chiefs 13 Independence Producers 3 —1000 fans — second minor league game played under temporary lights.

12:00 A.M.— New Professional, Minor League, Professional 9-Inning, and Minor League 9-Inning Records — Western League Park, Des Moines, Iowa — 5/2/1930 — Western League — delay to allow NBC national radio broadcast 1:30 at start, Des Moines Demons 13 Wichita Aviators 6 in 2:30—12,000 fans first minor league game played under permanent lights.

7:40 P.M.— New Professional, Major League, National League, Doubleheader, Major League Doubleheader, and Wrigley Field Records — Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois — 8/19/1930 — Phillies 9 Cubs 8 in 2:09, then Phillies 6 Cubs 6 in 3:38 and 16 innings — 36,000 fans.

1:20 A.M.— New All-Time, Professional, Minor League, and on-Time Start Records — Wrigley Field, Los Angeles, California — 5/15/1931— Pacific Coast League — Los Angeles Angels 10 Portland Ducks 9 in 4:45 and 16 innings — 4500 fans, 3100 fans at end.

1:10 A.M.— New Doubleheader and Minor League Doubleheader Records — La Grave Field (I), Fort Worth, Texas — 7/4/1932 — Texas League — Longview Cannibals 7 Fort Worth Cats 6 in 3:25 and 18 innings, then Longview 2 Fort Worth 1 in 1:35 and 7 innings — 2000 fans.

7:05 P.M.— New American League Record — Municipal (later Cleveland) Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio — 7/10/1932 — Athletics 18 Indians 17 in 4:05 and 18 innings.

8:00 P.M.— New Major League, National League, and Major League Doubleheader Records—Polo Grounds (V), New York, New York—7/2/1933—Giants 1 Cardinals 0 in 4:03 in 18 innings, then Giants 1 Cardinals 0 in 1:25—50,000 fans.

6:05 P.M.— New Asian and Japanese Records— Koshien Kyujyo (Stadium), Osaka, Japan—8/19/ 1933—High School—Chukyo-shogyo 1 Akashichugaku 0 in 4:55 and 25 innings.

8:09 P.M.— New Major League, National League, and Major League Doubleheader Records—Crosley Field, Cincinnati, Ohio—7/1/1934—Cardinals 8 Reds 6 in 4:26 in 18 innings, then Cardinals 2 Reds 2 in 1:13 and 5 innings—12,000 fans.

2:00 A.M.— New All-Time, Professional, Major League, Negro National League, on-Time Start, All-Time 9-Inning, Professional 9-Inning, Major League 9-Inning, Negro National League 9-Inning, and on-Time Start Records; First-Ever Finish After 2 A.M.— Gus Greenlee Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — ?/??/1930's — Homestead Grays at Pittsburgh Crawfords — scheduled at 12:01 A.M. on Monday morning to protest 6:59 P.M. Pennsylvania curfew on Sundays.

10:55 P.M. — New National League and National League 9-Inning Records — Crosley Field, Cincinnati, Ohio — 5/24/1935 — Reds 2 Phillies 1 in 1:55 — 20,422 fans.

11:10 P.M.— New National League and National League 9-Inning Records — Crosley Field, Cincinnati, Ohio — 5/31/1935 — Pirates 4 Reds 1 in 2:10—19,429 fans.

11:18 P.M. - New National League and National

League 9-Inning Records – Crosley Field, Cincinnati, Ohio – 7/1/1935 – Cubs 8 Reds 4 in 2:18 – 19,516 fans.

?:?? P.M.— New Olympics, Olympic Demonstration Sport, and German Olympics Demonstration Sport Records — Olympic Stadium, Berlin — 8/12/1936 — World Champions 6 U.S. Olympics 5 in 7 innings — 1000 fans at start; 125,000 fans at end, mostly there to see the track and field events.

12:02 A.M.— New National League and National League 9-Inning Records — Crosley Field, Cincinnati, Ohio — 8/17/1937 —field events delay 0:56 at start, Cardinals 8 Reds 6 in 2:36 — game preceded by four field contests: 100-yard dash won by Cardinal Don Gutteridge, fungo batting won by Cardinal Jesse Haines, throwing accuracy from home plate to 2nd base won by Cardinal Bruce Ogrodowski, throwing accuracy from center field to home plate won by Red Kiki Cuyler —19,429 fans.

2:15 A.M.— New All-Time, Professional, Minor League, and Canadian Records — Municipal Stadium, Trois-Rivieres, Province of Quebec -7/5/1938 — Provincial League — Three Rivers Renards (Foxes) 4 Quebec City Athletiques 3 in 4:45 and 20 innings.

1:45 A.M. — New U.S. Minor League Record — Hook Ball Park, Paducah, Kentucky — 7/8/1938 — Kentucky-Illinois-Tennessee (Kitty) League — Fulton Eagles 14 Paducah Indians 9 in 5:28 and 20 innings, rhubarb delay top 15th when Fulton Manager Ray Clonts unsuccessfully requested umpires to allow 15-minute delay so players could eat some steaks for strength, vote delay top 19th when Paducah Manager Pete Mondino successfully asked umpires to have remaining fans vote whether the game should continue or not, fans voted unanimously that game should continue.

1:05 A.M.— New All-Time 0–0, Professional 0–0, and Minor League 0–0 Records — Memorial Park, Moultrie, Georgia — 7/27/1938 — Georgia-Florida League — Thomasville Orioles 0 Moultrie Packers 0 in 4:35 and 16 innings — 750 fans.

11:11 P.M.— New American League Record — Shibe Park, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 5/16/1939 — Indians 8 Athletics 3 in 2:41 and 10 innings —15,109 fans.

1:45 A.M.— New Amateur Record— Clintonville, Wisconsin— 6/15/1939— Northern State League— Clintonville Four Wheel Drive Truckers 1 Two Rivers Polar Bears 0 in 5:15 and 21 innings.

1:00 A.M. — New National League Record — Forbes Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 6/18/1941— Giants 2 Pirates 2 in 2:43 and 11 innings, Billy Conn-Joe Louis heavyweight title fight radio broadcast delay 0:56 bottom 4th — 24,738 fans.

1:00 A.M. — Latest All-Time, Professional, Major League, and National League Radio Broadcast Records — radio broadcast back to New York, New York from Forbes Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 6/18/1941— Giants 2 Pirates 2 in 2:43 and 11 innings, Billy Conn-Joe Louis heavyweight title fight radio broadcast delay 0:56 bottom 4th — 24,738 fans. 6:27 P.M.— New Asian and Japanese Records — Korakuen Kyujyo (Stadium), Tokyo, Japan — 5/24/1942 — Japanese Federation — Taiyo 4 Nagoya 4 in 3:47 and 28 innings.

11:37 P.M.— New American League Record — Shibe Park (later Connie Mack Stadium), Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 6/5/1942 — Browns 1 Athletics 0 in 3:07 and 16 innings —10,777 fans.

1:02 A.M.— New American League and Major League Doubleheader Records — Griffith Stadium, Washington, D.C.—6/15/1945 — Red Sox 6 Senators 5 in 3:25 and 14 innings, then Red Sox 4 Senators 4 in 2:42 and 13 innings — 21,093 fans.

1:02 A.M. — Latest All-Time, Professional, Major League, American League, and Major League Doubleheader Radio Broadcast Records — radio broadcast back to Boston, Massachusetts from Griffith Stadium, Washington, D.C. — 6/15/1945 — Red Sox 6 Senators 5 in 3:25 and 14 innings, then Red Sox 4 Senators 4 in 2:42 and 13 innings — 21,093 fans.

11:30 P.M.— New Women's Record — Peoria, Illinois — 8/20/1946 — All-American Girls' League — Racine Belles 1 Peoria Redwings 1 in 3:20 and 19 innings.

7:20 P.M.— New Playoffs Record — Thetford Mines, Province of Quebec, Canada — 9/7/1947 — Quebec Eastern Townships Independent Intermediate League — Drummondville Forestiers Catholiques (Catholic Foresters) 3 St-Maurice de Thetford Mines Mineurs (Miners) 3 in 4:50 and 20 innings.

2:00 A.M.— New Amateur Record — Platte, South Dakota — 7/19/1948 — Bonesteel 1 Platte 5-Milers (later Killer Tomatoes) 3 in 15 innings — 2000 fans.

?:?? P.M.—New Asian, Japanese, and Japanese 9-Inning Records—Lou Gehrig Kyujyo (Stadium), Yokohama, Japan—8/17/1948—Japanese Federation—Chunichi Dragons 3 Yomiuri Giants 2— 30,000 fans.

10:30 P.M.— New Playoffs, Canadian Playoffs, and Minor League Playoffs Records — Stade de la rue Parc, Sherbrooke; Parc Laframboise, St-Hyacinthe, Province of Quebec — 9/19/1948 — Provincial League — St-Hyacinthe Saints 7 Sherbrooke Athletiques 3 in 2:25; then Sherbrooke 15 St-Hyacinthe 2 in 2:00—1st game finished at 4:25 P.M.

10:30 P.M.— Equaled Playoffs, Canadian Playoffs, and Minor League Playoffs Records — Stade de la rue Parc, Sherbrooke; Parc Laframboise, St-Hyacinthe, Province of Quebec — 9/26/1948 — Provincial League — Sherbrooke Athletiques 9 St-Hyacinthe Saints 0 in 1:55; then Sherbrooke 9 St-Hyacinthe 4 in 2:00— 4400 fans for 1st game; 4000 fans for 2nd game — 1st game finished at 3:55 P.M.

1:01 A.M.— New National League Record — Shibe Park (later Connie Mack Stadium), Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 7/8/1949 — Braves 4 Phillies 3 in 4:16 and 16 innings, stretcher delay 0:15 top 13th —11,238 fans.

1:01 A.M. — Latest National League Radio Broadcast

Record — radio broadcast back to Boston, Massachusetts from Shibe Park (later Connie Mack Stadium), Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 7/8/1949 — Braves 4 Phillies 3 in 4:16 and 16 innings, stretcher delay 0:15 top 13th —11,238 fans.

1:56 A.M. — New National League and National League 9-Inning Records — Forbes Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 6/22/1951 — power failure delay 2:14 at start, Dodgers 8 Pirates 4 in 2:36, rain delay 0:36 top 6th — 24,966 fans, 10,000 fans at end.

1:56 A.M.— Latest All-Time, Professional, Major League, National League, All-Time 9-Inning, Professional 9-Inning, Major League 9-Inning, and National League 9-Inning Radio Broadcast Radio Broadcast Records — radio broadcast back to Brooklyn, New York from Forbes Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 6/22/1951— power failure delay 2:14 at start, Dodgers 8 Pirates 4 in 2:36, rain delay 0:36 top 6th — 24,966 fans, 10,000 fans at end.

1:00 A.M.— New American League Decision Record — Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois — 7/12/1951— Red Sox 3 White Sox 2 in 2:18, then Red Sox 5 White Sox 4 in 4:01 and 17 innings — 52,592 fans, 2000 fans at end.

2:00 A.M.— Latest All-Time, Professional, Major League, American League, and Major League Doubleheader Radio Broadcast Records — radio broadcast back to Boston, Massachusetts from Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois — 7/12/1951— Red Sox 3 White Sox 2 in 2:18, then Red Sox 5 White Sox 4 in 4:01 and 17 innings — 52,592 fans, 2000 fans at end —finished at 1:00 A.M. local time in Chicago in the early morning of 7/13.

1:17 A.M.— New American League Record — Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois — 7/13/1951— White Sox 5 Red Sox 4 in 4:47 and 19 innings — 25,211 fans.

2:17 A.M.— Latest All-Time, Professional, Major League, and American League Radio Broadcast Records—radio broadcast back to Boston, Massachusetts from Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois— 7/13/1951—White Sox 5 Red Sox 4 in 4:47 and 19 innings—25,211 fans—finished at 1:17 A.M. local time in Chicago in the early morning of 7/14.

1:00 A.M.—Latest Military Record — Honolulu Stadium, Honolulu, Hawai'i —11/15/1951—Major League All-Stars vs. Military/Semi-Pro — airplane trouble delay 3:00 at start because the plane carrying Joe and Dom DiMaggio, Ed Lopat, Mel Parnell, and Ferris Fain was late; Military/Hawai'ian Semi-Pro Team 8 Lefty O'Doul's All-Star Team 6 in 2:00—15,000 fans.

7:00 P.M. – New Olympics, Olympics Demonstration Sport, and Finnish Olympics Demonstration Sport Records – Olympic Stadium, Helsinki – 7/31/1952 – Finnish Pesapallo (Baseball) League 8 Workers' Athletic Federation 4 in 1:00–19,309 fans.

?:?? P.M.— New Olympics, Olympic Demonstration Sport, and Finnish Olympic Demonstration Sport Records— Helsinki Football Stadium, Helsinki8/?/1952 — USA 14 Venezuela 4, then USA 19 Finland 1—4000 fans.

2:10 A.M.— New U.S. Minor League, Doubleheader, and Minor League Doubleheader Records — Mission Stadium, San Antonio, Texas — 8/11/1952 — Texas League — Oklahoma City Indians 6 San Antonio Missions 2 in 1:55 and 7 innings, then San Antonio 5 Oklahoma City 4 in 5:00 and 19 innings — 3143 fans.

12:55 A.M.— New Amateur and NBC Records — Memorial Ball Park, Atwater, California — 8/4/1953 — Fort Ord Warriors 2 San Diego Naval Air Station Skyraiders 1 in 4:40 and 20 innings — 3100 fans.

1:00 A.M.— New Playoffs, Women's, and Women's Playoffs Records— Parichy Stadium, Chicago, Illinois—9/14/1954— National Girls League— Bluebirds 6 Bloomer Girls 4 in 4:30 and 20 innings, then Queens 5 Jewels 0 in 7 innings.

1:40 A.M.— New Amateur, Midnight Sun Game, and Amateur 9-Inning Records — Griffin Field, Fairbanks, Alaska — 6/21/1955 — Fairbanks All-Stars 12 Military All-Stars 8 in 3:10, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay.

1:05 A.M. – New American Legion Record – Minster, Ohio – 7/18/1956 – St. Mary's 4 Lima 3 in 5:30 and 21 innings.

?:?? P.M.— New Olympics, Olympics Demonstration Sport, and Australian Olympics Demonstration Sport Record — Olympic Stadium, Melbourne — 12/1/1956 — US Military Far East Command 11 Australia 5 in 6 innings — 2000 fans at start; 114,000 fans at end, mostly there to see the track and field events.

2:15 A.M. – Equaled All-Time Record; New Amateur, College, Playoffs, College Playoffs, NJCAA, Playoffs 9-Inning, College Playoffs 9-Inning, and NJCAA 9-Inning Records – Lincoln Park Stadium (later Stocker Stadium, then Sam Suplizio Field), Grand Junction, Colorado – 5/23/1959 – Phoenix College Bears 6 Wilmington Junior College (now University of North Carolina-Wilmington) Seahawks 3.

1:30 A.M. — New Caribbean and Cuban Records — El Gran Estadio del Cerro (later Estadio Latinoamericano), Havana — 7/25/1959 and 6/7/1959 — International League — Havana Sugar Kings 1 Rochester Red Wings 0 in 2:10, completion of game begun back on 6/7 which had been suspended after 7 innings, then Rochester 4 Havana 4 in 3:22 and 11 innings, 26th of July Cuban Revolution Celebration National Anthem and gunfire delay bottom 11th, 2nd gunfire delay bottom 11th, 3rd gunfire delay bottom 11th, 4th gunfire delay 1:00 top 12th after Red Wing 3B Coach Frank Verdi and Sugar King SS Leo Cardenas both injured by bullets, game finally suspended, but never completed — 2572 fans on 7/25; 40,000 fans when called off.

2:00 A.M.— New Midnight Sun Game Record — Ranger Field, Fairbanks, Alaska — 6/21/1959 — Anchorage Sales and Service 16 Ladd Air Force Base Flyers 6, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay. 3:15 A.M.— New All-Time and Amateur Records; First-Ever Finish After 3 A.M.— Point Stadium, Johnstown, Pennsylvania—8/19/1960—All-American Amateur Association— previous tournament action delay at start, Baltimore Leone's Restaurant 5 Pittsburgh Beechview 3 in 3:30 and 12 innings.

1:21 A.M. — New American League Record — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 8/30/1960 — Red Sox 5 Tigers 4 in 4:06 and 15 innings, then Red Sox 3 Tigers 2 in 2:50 and 10 innings, stretcher delay bottom 7th — 27,175 fans.

12:11 A.M. – New Asian and Japanese Records – Korakuen Kyujyo (Stadium), Tokyo, Japan – 9/7/1961– Central League – Kokutetsu Swallows 3 Yomiuri Giants 2 in 11 innings, rhubarb delay 1:52.

3:08 A.M.— Latest All-Time, Professional, Major League, and National League Radio Broadcast Records — radio broadcast back to Chicago, Illinois from Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California — 5/1/1962 — Dodgers 6 Cubs 5 in 5:06 and 16 innings — 20,069 fans — finished at 1:08 A.M. local time in Los Angeles in the early morning of 5/2.

2:30 A.M.— New Professional, Major League, National League, Doubleheader, and Major League Doubleheader Records — Forbes Field, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 8/9/1963 — rain delay 1:00 at start, Colt .45's (later Astros) 7 Pirates 6 in 3:58 and 15 innings, then Pirates 7 Colt .45's 6 in 3:10 and 11 innings — 9420 fans, 300 fans at end — author and his father sat in second deck behind third base.

2:34 A.M.— New Midnight Sun Game, All-Time 9-Inning, and Amateur 9-Inning Records — Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks, Alaska — 6/21/1964 — Grand Junction Eagles 10 Alaska Goldpanners 5 in 3:34, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay — 2500 fans.

4:15 A.M.— Latest All-Time, Professional, Major League, and National League Radio Broadcast Records — radio broadcast back to Philadelphia, Pennsylvania from Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California— 9/19/1964—Dodgers 4 Phillies 3 in 5:13 and 16 innings—27,146 fans—finished at 1:15 A.M. local time in Los Angeles in the early morning of 9/20.

?:?? P.M.— New Olympics, Olympics Demonstration Sport, and Japanese Olympics Demonstration Sport Records—Korakuen Kyujyo (Stadium), Tokyo—10/11/1964—USA College All-Stars 6 Japan Amateur All-Stars 2—51,000 fans.

2:15 A.M.— Equaled Minor League Record; New U.S. Minor League Record— Howard Wood Field, Sioux Falls, South Dakota—8/3/1965— Basin League — Pierre Cowboys 5 Sioux Falls Packers 3 in 6:15 and 24 innings.

2:29 A.M.— New Minor League Record — Al Lang Field (I), St. Petersburg, Florida — 6/14/1966 — Florida State League — Miami Marlins 4 St. Petersburg Cardinals 3 in 6:59 and 29 innings — 740 fans, 175 fans at end.

12:17 A.M. – New College and NCAA Records –

Municipal Stadium, Phoenix, Arizona — 5/22/1967 — Arizona State University Sun Devils 3 University of Arizona Wildcats 2 in 4:17 and 15 innings — 8314 fans.

3:22 A.M. – Latest Minor League Radio Broadcast Record – radio broadcast back to Portland, Oregon from Honolulu Stadium, Honolulu, Hawai'i – 5/23/ 1967 – Portland Beavers 7 Hawai'i Islanders 4 in 5:04 and 16 innings, rain delay 7th, brawl delay top 8th, 2nd rain delay 11th, 3rd rain delay 13th – finished at 1:22 A.M. local time in Honolulu in the early morning of 5/24.

2:44 A.M. — New Professional, Major League, and American League Records — D.C. (later R.F.K.) Stadium, Washington, D.C. — 6/12/1967 — Senators 6 White Sox 5 in 6:38 and 22 innings — 7236 fans, 2000 fans at end.

12:17 A.M. — New Major League Commissioner-in-Attendance Record — Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan — 6/17/1967 — American League — Tigers 7 Athletics 6 in 3:25, rain delay 0:15 top 7th, then Athletics 6 Tigers 5 in 5:40 and 19 innings —14,871 fans, 200 fans at end including Commissioner William Eckert.

3:15 A.M.—Latest American League and Major League Doubleheader Radio Broadcast Records radio broadcast back to Cleveland, Ohio from Comiskey Park (I), Chicago, Illinois—7/25/1967— White Sox 3 Indians 1 in 2:55, then White Sox 6 Indians 5 in 4:47 and 16 innings—18,152 fans—finished at 2:15 A.M. local time in Chicago in the early morning of 7/26.

1:37 A.M. — New All-Time Indoor, Professional Indoor, Major League Indoor, and National League Indoor Records — Astrodome, Houston, Texas — 4/15/ 1968 — Astros 1 Mets 0 in 6:06 and 24 innings —14,219 fans, 3000 fans at end.

2:22 A.M.— New Minor League Record—Ray Winder Field, Little Rock, Arkansas—4/19/1968— Texas League—Arkansas Travelers 13 Memphis Blues 2 in 2:12 and 7 innings, then Memphis 6 Arkansas 3 in 5:10 and 16 innings—875 fans.

1:30 A.M. – New High School Record – Boysen Park, Anaheim, California – 4/26/1968 – Santa Ana High School Saints 6 Anaheim High School Colonists 6 in 5:45 and 19 innings, automatic sprinkers delay 0:45 top 20th –100 fans, 25 fans at end – called off at 1:30 A.M. because automated sprinklers which had come on at 12:45 A.M. could not be turned off.

12:30 A.M. — New Canadian Record — Parc Jarry, Montreal, Province of Quebec — 8/9/1969 — rain delay 1:21 at start, Expos 5 Cubs 2 in 2:59, rhubarb delay 0:10 top 2nd when Ernie Banks homered to right through a heavy fog, but Expos right fielder Rusty Staub kicked dirt under fence and convinced umpires that ball had actually rolled under fence, Cubs manager Leo Durocher went berserk, was ejected, and protested the game —12,508 fans.

1:08 A.M. – New Central American and Mexican Records – Parque Deportivo del Seguro Social (Social Security Stadium), Mexico City, Distrito Federal (Federal District) – 7/14/1969 – Mexican League – Reynosa Broncos 5 Mexico City Diablos Rojos (Red Devils) 3 in 5:38 and 22 innings – 3895 fans.

11:44 P.M.— New High School Playoffs Record — Flamingo Park, Miami Beach, Florida — 4/23/1970 — Miami High School Stingarees 1 Hialeah High School Thoroughbreds 0 in 5:16 and 24 innings, then Miami Coral Park High School Rams 9 Miami High School 0 in 2:44 and 7 innings — 250 fans; 500 fans at end of 1st game —1st game finished at 7:46 P.M.

7:30 P.M.— New Quadrupleheader Record — North Park College Field, Chicago, Illinois — 5/18/1970— National Collegiate Athletic Association — Carthage College Redmen 5 North Park College (now University) Vikings 0 in 7 innings, then Carthage 2 North Park 0 in 7 innings, intermission between games 0:25, then Carthage 12 Illinois Wesleyan University Titans 3 in 7 innings, then Carthage 6 Illinois Wesleyan 5 in 7 innings.

1:15 A.M.— New Central American and Mexican Records — Parque Deportivo del Seguro Social (Social Security Stadium), Mexico City, Distrito Federal (Federal District) or Guadalajara—6/24/1970— Mexican League— Mexico City Diablos Rojos (Red Devils) 10 Jalisco Charros 9 in 5:45 and 18 innings.

1:00 A.M.— New One State/One District Record — Cleveland Stadium, Cleveland, Ohio and R.F.K. Stadium, Washington, D.C.— 9/14/1971 and 9/20/1971— Indians 3 Senators 1 in 1:54, then Senators 8 Indians 6 in 6:15 and 20 innings, suspended after 5:00 and 16 innings in Cleveland, completed 9/20 in Washington — 2639 fans on 9/14 in Cleveland, 100 fans at suspension, 1743 fans on 9/20 in Washington, 333 fans top 17th.

4:29 A.M.—Latest All-Time, Professional, Major League, National League, and Doubleheader Radio Broadcast Records—radio broadcast back to Houston, Texas from San Diego (later Jack Murphy, then Qualcomm) Stadium, San Diego, California— 9/24/1971—Astros 2 Padres 1 in 5:25 and 21 innings, then Padres 5 Astros 4 in 2:14, fog delay 0:14 bottom 9th—6339 fans, 100 fans at end—finished at 2:29 local time in San Diego in the early morning of 9/25.

11:03 P.M. — New World Series and World Series 9-Inning Records — Three Rivers Stadium, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania — 10/13/1971 — AL at NL — Pirates 4 Orioles 3 in 2:48 — 51,378 fans — author and his father sat in third deck behind home plate.

11:00 P.M.— New Quadrupleheader Record — first two games in Tishamingo, Oklahoma; last two games at Perrin Air Force Base Field, Grayson, Texas — 4/6/1972 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Carthage College Redmen 8 Murray State College 3 in 7 innings, then Carthage 11 Murray State 5 in 7 innings, intermission between games 1:30, then Carthage 12 Grayson County College Vikings 5 in 7 innings, then Grayson County 3 Carthage 2 in 4½ innings — 4th game called due to curfew.

4:39 A.M. – Latest All-Time, Professional, Major

League, National League, and Doubleheader Radio Broadcast Records — radio broadcast back to Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania from San Diego (later Jack Murphy, then Qualcomm) Stadium, San Diego, California — 6/7/1972 — Pirates 12 Padres 5 in 2:49, then Pirates 1 Padres 0 in 4:27 and 18 innings — 7371 fans finished at 1:39 A.M. local time in San Diego in the early morning of 6/8.

2:00 A.M.— New College, NCAA, College 9-Inning, and NCAA 9-Inning Records — Riverside, California — 3/29/1973 — University of Southern California Trojans 9 Washington State University Cougars 2.

4:45 A.M.— Latest All-Time, Professional, Major League, and National League Radio Broadcast Records — radio broadcast back to New York, New York from Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California — 5/24/1973 — Mets 7 Dodgers 3 in 5:42 and 19 innings — 27,580 fans; 1000 fans at end — finished at 1:45 A.M. local time in Los Angeles in the early morning of 5/25.

1:53 A.M.—New Central American and Mexican Records—Estadio (Stadium) Alberto Hoeffer, Nogales, State of Sonora, Mexico—7/29/1973—Liga (League) Norte de Sonora—Cananea Mineros (Miners) 4 Nogales 2 in 6:23 and 23 innings—1800 fans.

2:12 A.M. – New Canadian Professional Record – Parc (Park) Jarry, Montreal – 9/7/1973 – National League – Mets 1 Expos 0 in 2:43, blinding sunlight delay 0:16, then Mets 4 Expos 2 in 4:38 and 15 innings – 24,167 fans.

1:00 A.M.— New NAIA Record — Kimble Field, Wyoming, Michigan — 5/16/1974 — Aquinas College Saints 7 Ferris State University Bulldogs 6 in 13 innings, two rain delays — 100 fans at end.

3:13 A.M.— New Professional, Major League, National League, On-Time Start, and Major League Commissioner-in-Attendance Records — Shea Stadium, New York, New York — 9/11/1974 — Cardinals 4 Mets 3 in 7:04 and 25 innings —13,460 fans, 1000 fans at end including Commissioner Bowie Kuhn.

12:00 Midnight — New Canadian Amateur Record — Belleville, Province of Ontario — 6/7/1975 — Ontario League — St. Catherine's Jackets 8 Belleville 2 in 26 innings; then 2nd game postponed.

3:15 A.M. — Equaled All-Time Record; New Professional, Major League, National League, on-Time Start, Doubleheader, and Major League Doubleheader Records — Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 9/26/1975 — Phillies 4 Mets 3 in 3:48 and 12 innings, rain delay 0:24 top 2nd, 2nd rain delay 0:27 bottom 9th, then Mets 3 Phillies 2 in 3:08 and 12 innings, 3rd rain delay 1:17 top 3rd — 20,189 fans, 200 fans at end.

12:33 A.M.— New World Series Record — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts —10/21/1975 — NL at AL — Red Sox 7 Reds 6 in 4:01 and 12 innings — 35,205 fans.

2:00 A.M.— New Puerto Rican Record — Estadio (Stadium) Hiram Bithorn, San Juan —12/26/1975 —

Winter League – Santurce Cangrejeros (Crabbers) 5 Bayamon Vaqueros (Cowboys) 2 in 4:00 and 21 innings.

12:45 A.M.— New High School Decision Record — Georgetown County Stadium, Georgetown, South Carolina — 5/25/1976 — Myrtle Beach High School Seahawks 6 Winyah High School Gators 5 in 4:25 and 19 innings —150 fans, 30 fans at end.

10:30 P.M.— New European and English Records — Rosslyn Park, London —?/??/1976 — Croydon Bluejays vs. Sutton Braves.

3:00 A.M.— New Minor League, Central American, and Mexican Records— Estadio (Stadium) Cordoba, Cordoba, State of Veracruz—4/28/1977—Mexican League—Aguascalientes Rieleros (Railroadmen) 6 Cordoba Cafeteros (Coffee Growers) 2 in 6:30 and 23 innings—4000 fans, 800 fans at end.

3:23 A.M.— New All-Time, Professional, Major League, National League, Doubleheader, and Major League Doubleheader Records — Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 8/10/1977 — rain delay 1:03 at start, Phillies 6 Expos 1 in 2:11, 2nd rain delay 2:27 bottom 3rd, then Phillies 6 Expos 1 in 2:07, 3rd rain delay 1:26 top 2nd, dawn was at 5:09 A.M.— 46,664 fans, 15,000 fans at start of 2nd game, 5000 fans at end.

2:55 A.M.— New All-Time 9-Inning, Professional 9-Inning, Major League 9-Inning, and National League 9-Inning Records — Riverfront Stadium (later Cinergy Field), Cincinnati, Ohio — 7/12/1979 — rain delay 2:16 at start, Cubs 10 Reds 8 in 3:23, 2nd rain delay 1:11 top 9th — 21,804 fans, 300 fans at end.

3:15 A.M.— New All-Time 9-Inning, Amateur 9-Inning, College 9-Inning, and Naia 9-Inning Records — Watt Powell Park, Charleston, West Virginia — 5/6/early 1980's — rain delays, West Virginia State College Yellow Jackets 6 Davis and Elkins College Senators 5.

3:11 A.M.— New Professional 9-Inning, Major League 9-Inning, National League 9-Inning, and on-Time Start 9-Inning Records — Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 6/9/1980 — Giants 3 Phillies 1 in 2:36, rain delay 1:28 bottom 4th, 2nd rain delay 3:32 also bottom 4th — 28,702 fans, 500 fans top 5th, 200 fans at end.

3:45 A.M.— New All-Time, Amateur, and Dizzy Dean League Records — Bloch Park (later Terry Leach Field), Selma, Alabama — 8/12/1980 — previous tournament action rain delay 5:00 at start, Brent 6 Selma 5 in 2:45 and 7 innings — 4000 fans.

3:30 A.M.— New Caribbean and Dominican Records — Estadio (Stadium) Quisqueya, Santo Domingo — 1/12/1981— Winter League — Orientales Estrellas (Oriental Stars) 4 Licey Tigres (Tigers) 3 in 5:40 and 22 innings.

4:07 A.M.— New All-Time, Professional, and Minor League Records; First-Ever Finish After 4 A.M.— McCoy Stadium, Pawtucket, Rhode Island — 4/18/ 1981 and 6/23/1981— International League — power failure delay 0:30 at start, Pawtucket Paw Sox 3 Rochester Red Wings 2 in 8:25 and 33 innings, suspended after 8:07 and 32 innings, dawn was at 5:00 A.M., completed 6/23 at 6:18 P.M.—1740 fans on 4/18, 150 fans Midnight, 100 fans top 21st, 60 fans 1 A.M., 27 fans top 27th, 19 fans at suspension, 5756 fans on 6/23.

1:15 A.M. – New College Suspension and NCAA Suspension Records – Disch-Falk Field, Austin, Texas – 5/15/1981 and 5/16/1981 – University of Texas Longhorns 7 Rice University Owls 6 in 6:07 and 20 innings, rain delay 2:00 top 13th, suspended after 3:10 and 12 innings – 4700 fans on 5/15, 300 fans at suspension, 3000 fans on 5/16 – finished at 3:02 P.M. on 5/16.

3:02 A.M.— New Midnight Sun Game and NBC 9-Inning Records — Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks, Alaska — 6/20/1981— Alaska Goldpanners 11 Intermountain Badgers 4 in 3:08, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay — 3000 fans.

2:00 A.M.— Equaled NCAA and NCAA 9-Inning Records — Smith Field, San Diego, California — 3/26/ 1982 — United States International University Gulls 6 California State University at Los Angeles Golden Eagles 4 in 2:30—30 fans, 10 fans at end.

10:30 P.M.— Equaled European and English Records — Stamford Bridge, Chelsea —?/??/1982 — United Kingdom vs. United States Military in 10 innings.

12:20 A.M.— New World Series 9-Inning Record — Busch Stadium (II), St. Louis, Missouri—10/19/1982 — Cardinals 13 Brewers 1 in 2:21, rain delay 0:26 bottom 5th, 2nd rain delay 2:13 bottom 6th—53,723 fans.

11:15 P.M.— New Congressional Game Record — Four Mile Run Park, Arlington, Virginia — 7/27/1983 — Democrats 17 Republicans 17 in 3:45 and 8½ innings.

1:11 A.M. — New American League 9-Inning Record — Tiger Stadium, Detroit, Michigan — 7/29/1983 and 7/30/1983 — Tigers 10 Royals 1 in 2:33, rain delay 3:02 bottom 3rd, suspended after 8 innings — 39,357 fans on 7/29, 35,100 fans on 7/30.

10:12 P.M. – New South Korean Record – Jamsil Stadium, Seoul – 9/13/1983 – Asian Championship – Taiwan 3 South Korea 2 in 3:53 and 11 innings, intermission 0:35 between games, Taiwan 1 Japan 0 in 2:44.

10:04 P.M.— New Olympics, Olympics Demonstration Sport, and USA Olympics Demonstration Sport Records — Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California — 7/31/1984 — Italy 10 Dominican 7, then USA 2 Taiwan 1 in 2:19 — 52,319 fans — 1st game finished at 7:00 P.M.

10:35 P.M.— New Olympics, Olympics Demonstration Sport, and USA Olympics Demonstration Sport Records—Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California— 8/1/1984—Nicaragua 4 Canada 3 in 3:02 and 12 innings; then Japan 2 South Korea 0 in 2:48—39,120 fans—1st game finished at 7:02 P.M. 1:02 A.M. – New American League 9-Inning Completion Record – Memorial Stadium, Baltimore, Maryland – 8/3/1984 – Blue Jays 5 Orioles 2 in 2:45, rain delay 2:07 top 4th – 37,219 fans.

11:11 P.M. — New Olympics, Olympics Demonstration Sport, and USA Olympics Demonstration Sport Records — Dodger Stadium, Los Angeles, California — 8/7/1984 — Taiwan 3 South Korea 0 in 3:41 and 14 innings, then Japan 6 United States of America 3 in 2:45 — 55,235 fans — 1st game finished at 7:41 P.M., 2nd game finished at 11:11 P.M.

4:55 A.M.— New All-Time, Amateur, and American Legion Records — Joe Hargis Field, Rockport, Indiana — 8/22/1984 — three rain delays 5:11 at start of 3rd prior game, previous tournament action delay 1:53 at start, Jenkins Post 254 Rockport 6 Hanscom Post 167 Willmar 4 in 2:51—1500 fans, 500 fans at end.

3:00 A.M.— New Puerto Rican Record — Estadio (Stadium) Luis Rodriguez Olmo, Ponce —12/6/1984 — Puerto Rican Winter League — Arecibo 4 Ponce Leones (Lions) 1, then Ponce 5 Arecibo 2, rain delays.

2:01 A.M. — New NJCAA 9-Inning Record — Shelby State Community College Field, Memphis, Tennessee — 3/23/1985 — rain delay 4:00 2nd previous game, Shelby State Community College 6 Waubonsee Community College Chiefs 4 in 2:51, fog delay 0:03 top 3rd, fog delay 0:05 bottom 4th, fog delay 0:02 top 6th — 24 fans.

2:15 A.M.— Equaled College and College 9-Inning Records, New NCCAA and NCCAA 9-Inning Records—Engel Stadium, Chattanooga, Tennessee— 5/3/1985—rain delay, Alabama Christian College (later Faulkner University) Eagles 10 Marion College (later Indiana Wesleyan University) Wildcats 0 in 2:00 and 6 innings.

4:45 A.M.— New College, NCCAA, All-Time 9-Inning, Amateur 9-Inning, College 9-Inning, and NCCAA 9-Inning Records — Engel Stadium, Chattanooga, Tennessee — 5/3/1985 — rain delay, Tennessee Temple University Crusaders 11 LeTourneau College Fighting Yellowjackets 8 in 2:15 and 7 innings.

7:15 A.M.— New All-Time, Amateur, College, Nccaa, All-Time 9-Inning, Amateur 9-Inning, College 9-Inning, and Nccaa 9-Inning Records; First-Ever Finish After 5 A.M.; First-Ever Finish After 6 A.M.; First-Ever Finish After 7 A.M.— Engel Stadium, Chattanooga, Tennessee — 5/3/1985 — rain delay, Marion College (now Indiana Wesleyan University) Wildcats 11 King's College Purple Knights 1 in 2:15 and 5 innings — 14 fans, 2 fans at end.

3:06 A.M.— New Midnight Sun Game and NBC 9-Inning Records — Growden Memorial Park, Fairbanks, Alaska — 6/22/1985 — Alaska Goldpanners 8 Moraga Marauders 0 in 4:36, Summer Solstice Alaska Flag Song Midnight Ceremony delay —1825 fans, 1100 fans at end.

3:55 A.M.— New Professional Decision, Major League, and National League Records — Atlanta-Fulton County Stadium, Atlanta, Georgia — 7/4/1985 — rain delay 1:24 at start, Mets 16 Braves 13 in 6:10 and 19 innings, 2nd rain delay 0:41 bottom 3rd, 4th of July fireworks show began at 4:01 A.M., ended at 4:12 A.M. – 44,947 fans, 8000 fans at end.

1:02 A.M.— Equaled American League 9-Inning Completion Record; New Canadian 9-Inning Record — Exhibition Stadium, Toronto — 9/26/1985 — rain delay 3:18 at start, Red Sox 4 Blue Jays 1 in 2:09 — 30,443 fans, 2500 fans at start.

3:00 A.M. New Mexico time; 4:00 A.M. Texas time-New High School, Playoffs, and Two-State Records-Hays Field, Lubbock, Texas; Ferguson Field, Jal, New Mexico - 5/1?/1986 - Texas High School League 4A best two-out-of-three playoffs knowing that torrential rains made playing second game at 1 P.M. and "if-necessary" third game at 7 P.M. totally impossible, both teams along with coaches, fans, and umpires set out at 7 A.M. on what ended up being a 510-mile long Odyssey from Lubbock, Texas to New Mexico in search of a dry field, fields were found in Artesia (2:00 wait) and Hobbs (2:30 wait) but the fields were too wet and it was raining in both places, in Hobbs they ran into two other Texas high schools, Pecos and Canyon, who were also in search of a dry field, when told that Eunice had a dry field the race was on between the Pecos/Canyon caravan and the Hereford/Andrews caravan, Pecos and Canyon won the race, and proceeded to begin their second game, Canyon had won their first game the night before so when Canyon got way ahead early in the second game, Hereford and Andrews decided to wait and play afterwards since there would be no need for a third game if Canyon won, but Pecos staged a big comeback to win, forcing a deciding third game, leaving Hereford and Andrews still looking for a dry field, and then they heard there was an old field in Jal that had not been used in two years, flickering light standards were fixed by taping two wires together with black electrical tape, outfield had knee-high weeds, foul lines were chalked using an old shoe box, finally after a 12-hour long change-of-field delay, they began play at 12:00 Midnight New Mexico time, 1:00 A.M. Texas time, Hereford High School Whitefaces 4 Andrews High School Mustangs 3 in 3:00 and 8 innings – 50 fans including Hereford mascot Red.

1:15 A.M. — New High School Playoffs One-State Record — Hays Field, Lubbock and Angels (later Christensen) Stadium, Midland, Texas — 5/17/1986 — 5A playoff championship game — moved from Lubbock ballfield to Midland ballfield, change-offield/Blue Norther 2-feet of snow blizzard delay 6:45 at start, then Abilene Cooper High School Cougars 15 Amarillo High School Sandies 6 in 3:15 and 7 innings, intermission 0:15 between games, then Abilene Cooper 11 Amarillo 4 in 3:00 and 7 innings — 700 fans; 700 fans at end —1st game started at 38 degrees, 2nd game finished at 28 degrees.

2:45 A.M.— New European, San Marinoan, and Italian Records—Serravalle Stadium, Serravalle, San Marino — 9/16/1986 — Serie Nazionale (Italian A1 League) — Biemme Fortitudo Bologna 12 Chesterfield San Marino 10 in 5:45 and 17 innings — 800 fans, 100 fans at end.

1:46 A.M. — New American League 9-Inning Record — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts — 9/8/1987 — Red Sox 8 Yankees 6 in 3:15, rain delay 2:24 top 4th, 2nd rain delay 0:30 bottom 6th — 29,468 fans.

3:27 A.M.— New Minor League Decision and on-Time Start Records — Burlington Athletic Stadium, Burlington, North Carolina — 6/24/1988 — Appalachian League — Bluefield Orioles 3 Burlington Indians 2 in 8:15 and 27 innings — 2204 fans, 84 fans at end.

10:08 P.M. – New Wrigley Field Record – Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois – 8/9/1988 – National League – Cubs 6 Mets 4 in 3:03 – 36,399 fans.

10:09 P.M.— New Wrigley Field Record — Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois — 8/23/1988 — National League — Cubs 9 Astros 3 in 3:04 — 34,668 fans.

12:49 A.M.— New World Cup, World Cup 11-Inning, and Italian World Cup Records — 8/26/1988 — Rimini — South Korea 2 Italy 1 in 3:49 and 11 innings.

?:?? P.M.— New South Korean Olympics Demonstration Sport Record—9/20/1988—Chamshil— Netherlands 6 Taiwan 1.

?:?? P.M.— New South Korean Olympics Demonstration Sport Record—9/22/1988—Chamshil— Japan 4 Taiwan 3 in 12 innings.

12:50 A.M.— New Oceania and Australian Records — Parry Field, Perth, State of Western Australia — 3/17/1989 — Western Australia League Grand Final Series — Melville Braves 6 Morley 2 in 5:23 and 22 innings.

4:24 A.M.— New NCAA and NCAA 9-Inning Records — Coveleski Stadium, South Bend, Indiana — 5/19/1989 — rain delay 2:30 at start of 2nd prior game, rain delay 1:35 bottom 11th of 2nd prior game, rain delay 3:15 at start of prior game, University of Notre Dame Fighting Irish 20 University of Dayton Flyers 4 in 2:46 — 150 fans at start, 200 fans in bottom 3rd, 25 fans at end.

2:50 A.M.— New All-Time Indoor, Professional Indoor, Major League Indoor, and National League Indoor Records—Astrodome, Houston, Texas— 6/3/1989—Astros 5 Dodgers 4 in 7:14 and 22 innings—34,425 fans.

10:33 P.M. – New Wrigley Field Record – Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois – 6/8/1989 – National League – Cubs 5 Mets 4 in 3:28 and 10 innings – 36,358 fans.

10:37 P.M. – New Wrigley Field Record – Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois – 7/20/1989 – National League – Cubs 4 Giants 3 in 3:32 and 11 innings – 32,306 fans.

12:42 A.M.— New Minor League Playoffs and Junior World Series Records — Bush Stadium, Indianapolis, Indiana — 9/9/1989 — International League at American Association in Junior World Series — Indianapolis Indians 4 Richmond Braves 3 in 2:26, rain delay 2:15 1st; intermission 0:30 between games; 2nd rain delay 1:10 at start, then Indianapolis 4 Richmond 3 in 2:51—3011 fans—1st game finished at 8:11 P.M.

12:00 Midnight — New Major League All-Star, Wrigley Field, Major League All-Star 9-Inning, and Wrigley Field 9-Inning Records — Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois — 7/10/1990 — AL at NL — rain delay 0:17 at start, American League 2 National League 0 in 2:53, 1:08 rain delay top 7th — 39,071 fans.

1:27 A.M.—New Minor League Playoffs Record — Billy Hebert Field, Stockton, California — 9/5/1990 and 9/6/1990—California League — Bakersfield Dodgers 5 Stockton Ports 4 in 6:20 and 22 innings, suspended after 5:53 and 21 innings —1497 fans on 9/5; 175 fans when suspended; 1559 fans on 9/6—finished at 6:25 P.M. on 9/6.

3:50 A.M. — New Playoffs, Minor League Decision, Minor League on-Time Start, and Minor League Playoffs Records — Greer Stadium, Nashville, Tennessee — 9/7/1990 — American Association — Omaha Royals 8 Nashville Sounds 7 in 6:25 and 20 innings, rain delay 1:46 bottom 11th —14,482 fans, 500 fans top 12th, 300 fans at end.

3:50 A.M. — Latest Minor League Radio Broadcast Record — radio broadcast back to Omaha, Nebraska from Greer Stadium, Nashville, Tennessee — 9/7/1990 — American Association — Omaha Royals 8 Nashville Sounds 7 in 6:25 and 20 innings, rain delay 1:46 bottom 11th — 14,482 fans, 500 fans top 12th, 300 fans at end — finished at 3:50 A.M. local time in Nashville in the early morning of 9/8.

1:40 A.M.— New Oceania and Australian Records — Oaks Oval, Lismore, State of New South Wales — ???/1992 — Claxton Shield National Championship Series — Queensland vs. Victoria, unknown final score, rain delay in 1st game, 22–2 in 2nd game in 2:00.

11:10 P.M.— New Spain Olympics Medal Sport and Spain Olympics Medal Sport 9-Innings Records — Viladecans Baseball Stadium, Barcelona, Spain — 7/27/1992 — Japan 12 Spain 1 in 2:10.

1:00 A.M.— New Olympics, Spain Olympics Medal Sport, and Spain Olympics Medal Sport 9-Innings Records—L'hospitalet Baseball Stadium, Barcelona— 7/29/1992—Olympics—Cuba 9 USA 6 in 4:00.

12:26 A.M.— New Asian and Japanese Records — Koshien Kyujyo (Stadium), Osaka — 9/11/1992 — Central League — Yakult Swallows 3 Hanshin Tigers 3 in 5:49 and 15 innings, rhubarb delay 0:37.

10:56 P.M.—New Wrigley Field Regular Season Record—Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois—5/4/1993 —National League—Rockies 14 Cubs 13 in 3:51 and 11 innings—32,199 fans.

4:40 A.M. — New Professional, Major League, National League, Doubleheader, and Major League Doubleheader Records — Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 7/2/1993 — rain delay 1:10 at start, Padres 5 Phillies 2 in 2:34, 2nd rain delay 1:56 bottom 4th, 3rd rain delay 2:48 top 6th, then Phillies 6 Padres 5 in 3:12 and 10 innings, post-game 4th of July fireworks show postponed — 54,617 fans, 6000 fans at start of 2nd game, 4000 fans at end.

1:22 A.M.— New American League Indoor Record — Hubert H. Humphrey Metrodome, Minneapolis, Minnesota — 8/31/1993 — Twins 5 Indians 4 in 6:17 and 22 innings —17,968 fans, 1500 fans at end.

10:15 P.M.— New Wrigley Field Doubleheader Record — Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois — 7/4/1994 — National League — Cubs 4 Rockies 3 in 2:36, Rockies 4 Cubs 2 in 4:32 and 15 innings, rain delay 0:34 6th, 2nd rain delay 0:59 top 14th, 3rd rain delay 0:52 top 15th — 37,167 fans; 1000 fans at end — 2nd game finished at 10:15 P.M.

6:35 A.M.— New American Legion and American Legion 9-Inning Records — Pink Hill Park, Blue Springs, Missouri — 7/8/1994 — Wood Bat Tournament — rain delay at start of 3rd prior game, previous tournament action delay 2:35 at start, Fike Post 499 Blue Springs 8 Post 210 Fulton 0 in 2:00— dawn was at 6:00 A.M., 35 minutes before the game ended.

8:20 P.M.—New Belgian Record—?/??/1995— Sportpark Brasschaaat, Antwerp—Brasschaat Braves 5 Royal Greys 4 in 4:50 and 16 innings—200 fans.

2:08 A.M.— New Major League Playoffs, American League Playoffs, Major League Division Series, and American League Division Series Records — Jacobs Field, Cleveland, Ohio -10/3/1995 — rain delay 0:39 at start, Indians 5 Red Sox 4 in 5:01 and 13 innings, 2nd rain delay 0:23 top 8th -44,218 fans.

2:50 A.M. – Equaled Indoor Record – Hubert H. Humphrey Metrodome, Minneapolis, Minnesota – 3/6/1996 – University of Wisconsin River Falls Falcons vs. St. Thomas University Tommies, then Wisconsin River Falls 4 St. Thomas 2 in 8 innings.

4:59 A.M.— New NAIA and NAIA 9-Inning Records — Corbin High School, Corbin, Kentucky — 5/9/1996 — rain delays, Lindsey Wilson College Blue Raiders 8 Pikeville College Bears 5.

2:30 A.M.—New Tripleheader Record—Don Provance Field and Glendale High School Field, Springfield, Missouri—5/11/1996—National Association of Intercollegiate Athletics—rain delays, Benedictine College Ravens 6 Missouri Valley College Vikings 4 at Don Provance Field in 2:30, then Benedictine 4 Evangel University Crusaders 3 at Glendale Field in 3:00, then Benedictine 5 Evangel 4 in 3:40 at Glendale Field.

?:?? P.M.— New USA Olympics Medal Sport Record — Atlanta-Fulton County Stadium, Atlanta, Georgia — 7/20/1996 — USA 4 Nicaragua 1 in 10:00 A.M. game — 30,000 fans.

?:?? P.M.— New USA Olympics Medal Sport Record — Atlanta-Fulton County Stadium, Atlanta, Georgia — 7/20/1996 — Cuba 19 Australia 8 in 8 innings in 3:00 P.M. game.

?:?? P.M.— New USA Olympics Medal Sport Record — Atlanta-Fulton County Stadium, Atlanta, Georgia — 7/20/1996 — Japan 12 Netherlands 2 in 7 innings in 8:00 P.M. game. ?:?? P.M.— New USA Olympics Medal Sport Record — Atlanta-Fulton County Stadium, Atlanta, Georgia — 7/21/1996 — Cuba 8 Japan 7 in 10 innings in 8:00 P.M. game.

11:51 P.M.— New South Korean Record — Taejon Stadium, Taejon — 4/12/1997 — Korean Organization — OB (Oriental Brewing) Bears 4 Hanhwa Eagles 2 in 5:21 and 13 innings.

12:08 A.M.— New Interleague Record — Anaheim Stadium (later Edison International Field, then Angels Stadium), Anaheim, California — 6/13/1997 — NL at AL — Padres 8 Angels 7 in 5:03 and 14 innings — 24,664 fans.

12:24 A.M. – New Wrigley Field Record – Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois – 7/14/1997 – National League – Astros 9 Cubs 7 in 5:19 and 15 innings – 27,803 fans.

4:22 A.M.— New American League Radio Broadcast and American League Radio Broadcast 9-Inning Records — radio broadcast back to Cleveland, Ohio from UMAX (later Network Associates, then McAfee) Coliseum, Oakland, California — 4/6/1998 — rain delay 1:46 at start, Indians 6 Athletics 5 in 3:07, 2nd rain delay 1:44 top 5th, suspended after 2:47 and 8 innings — 6963 fans on 4/6, 200 fans at suspension, 8361 fans on 4/8 — suspended at 1:22 A.M. local time in Oakland in the early morning of 4/7.

12:15 A.M.— New Wrigley Field 9-Inning Record — Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois — 4/30/1998 — National League — rain delay 2:12 at start, Cubs 8 Cardinals 3 in 2:58 — 24,210 fans.

12:12 A.M.— New Interleague Record — Pro Player (later Dolphin) Stadium, Miami, Florida — 6/8/1998 — AL at NL — Marlins 4 Blue Jays 3 in 5:06 and 17 innings — 17,414 fans; 300 fans at end.

12:36 A.M.— New Each-Team-Scored-in-Each-Extra-Inning-at-Bat Record — Veterans Stadium, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania — 7/24/1998 — Phillies 7 Marlins 6 in 3:40 and 12 innings in 2nd game, Phillies 6 Marlins 4 in 3:21 and 12 innings in 1st game — 30,622 fans.

1:26 A.M.— New Playoffs 9-Inning, Major League Playoffs 9-Inning, American League Playoffs 9-Inning, Major League Division Series 9-Inning, and American League Division Series 9-Inning Records — Ballpark in Arlington, Arlington, Texas —10/2/1998 — Yankees 4 Rangers 0 in 2:58, 3:16 rain delay bottom 6th — 49,450 fans.

12:19 A.M.— New Arizona Professional Record — 4/13/1999 — National League — Bank One Ballpark (later Chase Field), Phoenix, Arizona — Arizona Diamondbacks 7 Los Angeles Dodgers 6 in 5:14 and 16 innings — 31,197 fans.

12:37 A.M.— New National League Playoffs and National League Championship Series Records — Turner Field, Atlanta, Georgia —10/19/1999 — Braves 10 Mets 9 in 4:25 and 11 innings — 52,335 fans.

12:25 A.M.— New Interleague Record — County Stadium, Milwaukee, Wisconsin — 7/8/2000 — AL at NL – Tigers 4 Brewers 2 in 5:20 and 15 innings – 23,872 fans.

?:?? P.M.— New Australian Olympic Medal Sport Record — Blacktown Olympic Baseball Stadium, Sydney — 9/17/2000 — Cuba 16 South Africa 0 in 7 innings in 11:30 A.M. game.

?:?? P.M.— New Australian Olympics Medal Sport Record — Sydney Olympic Park Baseball Stadium, Sydney — 9/17/2000— USA 4 Japan 2 in 13 innings in 12:30 P.M. game.

?:?? P.M.— New Australian Olympics Medal Sport Record — Blacktown Olympic Park Baseball Stadium, Sydney — 9/17/2000— South Korea 10 Italy 2 in 6:30 P.M. game.

?:?? P.M.— New Australian Olympics Medal Sport Record — Sydney Olympic Park Baseball Stadium — 9/17/2000— Netherlands 6 Australia 4 in 7:30 P.M. game.

4:08 P.M.— New Olympics 9-Inning, Olympics Medal Sport, and Australian Olympics Medal Sport Records — Baseball Stadium, Sydney — 9/18/2000— Australia 5 South Korea 3 in 3:38 — 13,281 fans.

4:17 P.M.— New Olympics, Olympics 10-Inning, Olympics Medal Sport, and Australian Olympics Medal Sport Records—Baseball Stadium, Sydney— 9/23/2000—South Korea 7 Japan 6 in 3:47 and 10 innings in 12:30 P.M. game—13,970 fans.

10:55 P.M. – New Olympics, Olympics 12-Inning, Olympics Medal Sport, and Australian Olympics Medal Sport Records – Baseball Stadium, Sydney – 9/23/2000 – Italy 8 Australia 7 in 4:25 and 12 innings in 6:30 P.M. game – 3562 fans.

12:35 A.M.— New Olympics, Asian, South Korean, Olympics 9-Inning, Olympics Medal Sport, and Australian Olympics Medal Sport Records—Sydney Olympic Park Baseball Stadium, Sydney— 9/26/2000—USA 3 South Korea 2 in 3:05, rain delay 2:00 8th—14,002 fans.

1:04 A.M.— New World Series Record — Yankee Stadium (II), New York, New York—10/21/2000—NL at AL—Yankees 4 Mets 3 in 4:51 and 12 innings— 55,913 fans.

9:05 A.M.— New All-Time, Amateur, Men's Senior League, All-Time 9-Inning, Amateur 9-Inning, and Men's Senior League 9-Inning Records — Tempe Diablo Stadium, Tempe, Arizona —11/4/2000—38+ Championship Game — rain delays, Kansas City Monarchs 2 San Jose All-Stars 1 in 2:35.

1:06 A.M.— New Canadian Indoor Record — Sky Dome (later Rogers Centre), Toronto, Province of Ontario — 4/19/2001— Yankees 6 Blue Jays 5 in 5:57 and 17 innings — 24,684 fans, 1500 fans at end.

3:00 A.M.— New Women's and Canadian Records — Christie Pits, Toronto, Province of Ontario — 6/29/ 2001— prelim tournament before Women's World Series I — Australia vs. unknown; Australia vs. unknown; Australia 6 Waterbury Diamonds 3 in 2:00 and 5 innings —12 fans —1st game began at 9:00 A.M.; 2nd game began at 8:30 P.M.; 3rd game began at 1:00 A.M. 12:35 A.M.— New Dutch Record — Neptunus Family Stadion (Stadium), Rotterdam — 7/6/2001— World Port Tournament — Cuba 5 Netherlands 4 in 4:59 and 17 innings, rhubarb delay 0:06 top 7th — 5000 fans, 4250 fans at end.

11:15 P.M.— New Canadian College Record — Lynx Stadium, Ottawa and Hamilton Yard, Nepean, Province of Ontario —10/21/2001— Canadian Interuniversity Baseball Association — rain delay 4:00 at start, game shifted from Lynx Stadium to Hamilton Yard during the delay, Laval University Rouge et Or (Red and Gold) 10 University of New Brunswick Cougars 6 in 5:55 and 15 innings, 2nd rain delay 0:20 top 5th —100 fans.

8:59 P.M. – New Japanese-Professional-Game-in-Taiwan Record – Taipei Municipal Tianmu Stadium, Taipei – 5/14/2002 – Pacific League – Daiei Hawks 5 Orix Blue Wave 4 in 3:08 –11,000 fans.

9:24 P.M.— New Japanese-Professional-Game-in-Taiwan Record — Taipei Municipal Tianmu Stadium, Taipei — 5/15/2002 — Pacific League — Orix Blue Wave 8 Daiei Hawks 7 in 3:37, delay 0:02 — 12,000 fans.

4:20 A.M.— New Dizzy Dean League and Dizzy Dean League 9-Inning Records — Camp Jordan, East Ridge, Tennessee — 7/14/2002 — AA U13 World Series — rain delays, Baton Rouge Hurricane 6 Woodstock Wolves 5 in 2:10 and 7 innings — 50 fans, 45 fans at end.

3:30 A.M.— New Women's and Women's 9-Inning Records—Al Lang Field (II), St. Petersburg, Florida— 9/3/2002—American Women's League/Women's World Series II—rain/hurricane delay 5:00 in prior game, Australia 12 Canada 2 in 2:30.

3:00 A.M.— Equaled Puerto Rican Record — Estadio (Stadium) Isidoro "Cholo" Garcia, Mayaguez — 11/?/2002 and 12/8/2002 — Puerto Rican Winter League — Mayaguez Indios (Indians) 3 Carolina Gigantes (Giants) 1 in 17 innings, rain delays, suspended.

12:46 A.M.— New Interleague Record — Camden Yards, Baltimore, Maryland — 6/27/2003 — NL at AL — Phillies 4 Orioles 2 in 5:41 and 17 innings — 46,405 fans.

1:18 A.M.— New Minor League 9-Inning Record — Dell Diamond, Round Rock, Texas — 8/13/2003 — Texas League — rain delay 3:08 at start, Tulsa Drillers 4 Round Rock Express 1 in 2:35, 2nd rain delay 0:30 top 1st—10,878 fans, 200 fans at end.

12:20 P.M.—New Women's Planned Marathon Record — Tucson Electric Park, Tucson, Arizona — 10/18/2003 and 10/19/2003 — American Women's League — African Gray Birds 127 Red-Eyed Nites 110 in 24:12 and 65 innings —100 fans at start, 50 fans at 6 P.M., 25 fans at Midnight, 0 fans at 6 A.M., 12 fans at end — planned marathon.

1:00 A.M.— New Asian and Iraqi Records — Delta Company Desperados Field 'Afar, Tell 'Afar —10/20/ 2003 — U.S. Army 101st Airborne Division League — Hunter Marshall's Team vs. Adam Kamann's Team. 2:16 A.M.— New High School 9-Inning Record — Tiger Field, Wolfforth, Texas — 3/5/2004 — Frenship High School Tigers 7 Amarillo River Road High School Wildcats 4 in 2:21 and 7 innings —100 fans, 75 fans at end.

3:00 A.M.— New Indoor Record — Hubert H. Humphrey Metrodome, Minneapolis, Minnesota — 3/5/2004 — St. Thomas University Tommies vs. University of South Dakota Coyotes, then St. Thomas 8 South Dakota 7 in 2:30.

4:35 A.M.— New NCAA, Indoor, NCAA 9-Inning, and Indoor 9-Inning Records — Hubert H. Humphrey Metrodome, Minneapolis, Minnesota — 3/7/2004 — Dickinson State University Bluehawks 9 Hamline University Pipers 3 in 1:35 and 5 innings — 25 fans.

4:00 P.M.— New Planned Marathon Record — Kelly Field, Hyde Park, Massachusetts — 4/17/2004 and 4/18/2004 — Boston Men's Adult League — Gehrig's Stamina 100 Schilling's Endurance 51 in 30:45 and 101 innings — 35 fans — planned marathon.

2:50 A.M.— New European and Italian Records — Stadio Renato Reatini, Anzio — 6/12/2004 — Serie Nazionale (Al League) — Parma 8 Anzio 7 in 5:50 and 16 innings.

8:50 P.M.— New German Record — In den Fliesen (Sportsarea), Saarlouis — 6/19/2004 — Bundesliga Sud (South German League) — Furth Pirates 10 Saarlouis Hornets 4 in 3:04 — finished at 4:04 P.M.; then Saarlouis 2 Furth 1 in 4:31 and 19 innings, suspended after 4:16 and 18 innings, and completed 7/10.

11:00 P.M. – New Israeli Record – Yarkon Sports Complex, Petach Tikva – 6/28/2004 – National League – Kibbutz Kezer Dg Tech-Gezer 12 Israeli Junior National Team 11 in 4:00 and 9 innings.

1:23 A.M.—New Interleague Record—Citizens Bank Park, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania—7/2/2004— AL at NL—Orioles 7 Phillies 6 in 6:15 and 16 innings—44,390 fans.

2:44 A.M.—New NBC 9-Inning Record— Lawrence-Dumont Stadium, Wichita, Kansas— 8/4/2004—Mat-Su Miners 6 Cape Girardeau 2 in 2:03.

1:03 P.M.— New Greek Olympics Medal Sport and Greek Olympics Medal Sport 9-Inning Records— Helliniko Olympic Complex Field Two, Athens, Greece—8/15/2004—Cuba 4 Australia 1 in 2:33.

1:45 P.M.— New Greek Olympics Medal Sport and Greek Olympics Medal Sport 7-Inning Records— Helliniko Olympic Complex Field One, Athens, Greece—8/15/2004—Japan 12 Italy 0 in 2:15.

9:04 P.M.—New Greek, Greek Olympics Medal Sport and Greek Olympics Medal Sport 9-Inning Records— Helliniko Olympic Complex Field Two, Athens, Greece—8/15/2004—Canada 7 Taiwan 0 in 2:34.

10:02 P.M.— New Greek, Greek Olympics Medal Sport and Greek Olympics Medal Sport 9-Inning Records— Helliniko Olympic Complex Field One, Athens, Greece— 8/15/2004— Netherlands 11 Greece 0 in 2:32. 10:47 P.M.— New Greek, Greek Olympics Medal Sport and Greek Olympics Medal Sport 9-Inning Records— Helliniko Olympic Complex Field One, Athens, Greece— 8/17/2004— Japan 6 Cuba 3 in 3:17.

1:33 P.M. — New Greek Olympics Medal Sport 10-Inning Record — Helliniko Olympic Complex Field Two, Athens, Greece — 8/21/2004 — Japan 4 Taiwan 3 in 3:03 and 10 innings.

11:03 P.M.— New Greek, Greek Olympics Medal Sport and Greek Olympics Medal Sport 9-Inning Records — Helliniko Olympic Complex Field One, Athens, Greece — 8/24/2004 — Cuba 8 Canada 5 in 3:33.

11:14 P.M.— New Greek, Greek Olympics Medal Sport and Greek Olympics Medal Sport 9-Inning Records— Helliniko Olympic Complex Field One, Athens, Greece— 8/25/2004— Cuba 6 Australia 2 in 3:14.

1:22 A.M.— New American League Championship Series Record — Fenway Park, Boston, Massachusetts —10/17/2004 — Red Sox 6 Yankees 4 in 5:02 and 12 innings — 34,826 fans.

2:00 A.M.— New Caribbean World Series Record — Estadio (Stadium) Teodoro Mariscal, Mazatlan, State of Sinaloa, Mexico — 2/6/2005 — title game — rain delay at start, Mazatlan (Mexico) 4 Aguilas (Dominican) 3 in 3:05.

9:38 P.M.— New German Record — Reiterstadion (later Koln Ballpark), Koln (Cologne)— 4/6/2005 — Bundesliga Nord (North German League)— Bonn Capitals 9 Koln (Cologne) Cardinals 7 in 5:50 and 20 innings—finished at 6:50 P.M.; then Bonn 4 Cologne 0 in 2:05 and 7 innings, rain delay 0:13.

11:10 P.M.— New Historically Black Colleges and Universities (HBCU) Record — Rickwood Field, Birmingham, Alabama — 5/22/2005 and 5/23/2005 — National Collegiate Athletic Association — Southern University Jaguars 6 Prairie View A&M University Panthers 0 in 2:37, intermission 0:34 between games, then Southern 6 Prairie View A&M 5 in 5:25 and 15 innings, 0:30 gunfire delay bottom 15th, suspended after 5:15 and 14½ innings — 314 fans for first game, 187 fans for second game — 2nd game suspended at 11:10 P.M., finished at 8:10 A.M. on 5/23.

11:40 P.M.— New Taiwanese and Taiwanese 9-Inning Records — Hualien County Stadium, Taipei — 6/26/2005 — Chinese League — Brother Elephants 2 Chinatrust Whales 1 in 3:24, rain delay 0:20 top 4th, 2nd rain delay 2:50 bottom 4th — 4326 fans.

1:16 A.M.— New Wrigley Field Record — Wrigley Field, Chicago, Illinois — 7/26/2005 — National League — Giants 3 Cubs 2 in 3:28 and 11 innings, rain delay 2:43 at start — 39,002 fans; 25,000 fans at start; 7000 fans at end.

12:22 A.M. — New Montana Record — Heroes Park, Bozeman — 8/3/2005 — American Legion Class AA State Championships — Billings Scarlets 6 Missoula Mavericks 4 in 3:00 and 11 innings, then Billings Royals 4 Billings Scarlets 3 in 4:00 and 14 innings — 500 fans; 200 fans at end. 4:09 A.M.— New NBC and NBC 9-Inning Records — Lawrence-Dumont Stadium, Wichita, Kansas— 8/4/2005 — Southern California Fire 8 Greenwood Vikings 0 in 2:17.

4:37 A.M.— New NBC and NBC 9-Inning Records — Lawrence-Dumont Stadium, Wichita, Kansas— 8/5/2005— Wichita Titans 7 Wichita Gators 4 in 2:41.

5:09 A.M.— New NBC and NBC 9-Inning Records — Lawrence-Dumont Stadium, Wichita, Kansas — 8/6/2005 — Santa Barbara Foresters 9 Parkville Sluggers 7 in 2:23.

8:42 A.M.— New NBC and NBC 9-Inning Records — Lawrence-Dumont Stadium, Wichita, Kansas— 8/6/2005— Southern California Fire 8 Park City Cowboys in 2:53.

10:32 P.M. – New Morning/Evening Doubleheader Record – Frontier Field, Rochester, New York – 8/9/ 2005 – International League – Rochester Red Wings 7 Ottawa Lynx 3 in 2:24 in morning game; intermission 7:02 between games; then Rochester 7 Ottawa 4 in 3:25 and 11 innings in night game – 7487 fans for morning game; 5631 fans for evening game – morning game finished at 12:05 P.M.

1:21 A.M.— New World Series Record — Minute Maid Park, Houston, Texas — 10/25/2005 — AL at NL — White Sox 7 Astros 5 in 5:41 and 14 innings — 42,848 fans.

1:00 A.M.— New South American and Venezuelan Records — Margarita Island —11/19/2005 — Winter League — Margarita defeated Caribes in 3:00 and 7 innings, 1:30 power failure delay top 1st; then Margarita defeated Caribes in 2:30 and 7 innings.

2:49 P.M.— New World Classic, World Classic 9-Inning, World Classic-in-Japan, and World Classicin-Japan 9-Inning Records—Big Egg, Tokyo, Japan—3/3/2006—Korea 2 Taiwan 0 in 3:19—5193 fans.

9:34 P.M.— New World Classic, World Classic 8-Inning, World Classic-in-Japan, and World Classic-in-Japan 8-Inning Records — Big Egg, Tokyo, Japan — 3/3/2006 — Japan 18 China 2 in 3:04 and 8 innings —15,869 fans.

9:10 P.M.— New World Classic 7-Inning and World Classic-in-Japan 7-Inning Records — Big Egg, Tokyo, Japan — 3/4/2006 — Japan 14 Taiwan 3 in 3:10 and 7 innings — 31,047 fans.

9:02 P.M.— New World Classic 9-Inning and World Classic-in-Japan 9-Inning Records — Big Egg, Tokyo, Japan — 3/5/2006 — South Korea 3 Japan 2 in 3:02 — 40,353 fans.

4:27 P.M.— New World Classic-in-USA and World Classic-in-USA 9-Inning Records — Ballpark at Disney's Wide World of Sports Complex, Lake Buena Vista, Florida — 3/7/2006 — Dominican 11 Venezuela 5 in 3:16 — 10,645 fans.

9:47 P.M.— New World Classic, World Classic 9-Inning, World Classic-in-Puerto Rico, and World Classic-in-Puerto Rico 9-Inning Records — Estadio (Stadium) Hiram Bithorn, San Juan — 3/7/2006 — Puerto Rico 2 Panama 1 in 2:47 — 19,043 fans.

10:38 P.M. – New World Classic, World Classic-in-USA, World Classic 9-Inning, and World Classic-in-USA 9-Inning Records – Scottsdale Stadium, Scottsdale, Arizona – 3/7/2006 – Canada 11 South Africa 8 in 3:38 – 5829 fans.

5:11 P.M.— New World Classic 11-Inning and World Classic-in-Puerto Rico 11-Inning Records—Estadio (Stadium) Hiram Bithorn, San Juan—3/8/2006—Cuba 8 Panama 6 in 4:11 and 11 innings—6129 fans.

10:59 P.M.— New World Classic and World Classic-in-Puerto Rico 9-Inning Records — Estadio (Stadium) Hiram Bithorn, San Juan — 3/8/2006 — Puerto Rico 8 Netherlands 3 in 3:29 — 15,570 fans.

3:18 P.M.— New World Classic-in-Puerto Rico 7-Inning Record — Estadio (Stadium) Hiram Bithorn, San Juan — 3/10/2006 — Netherlands 10 Panama 0 in 2:18 and 7 innings.

2:47 P.M. – New World Classic-in-USA 5-Inning Record – Scottsdale Stadium, Scottsdale, Arizona – 3/10/2006 – USA 17 South Africa 0 in 1:47 and 5 innings –11,975 fans.

10:31 P.M.— New World Classic-in-Puerto Rico 7-Inning Record — Estadio (Stadium) Hiram Bithorn, San Juan — 3/10/2006 — Puerto Rico 12 Cuba 2 in 3:01 and 7 innings —19,736 fans.

4:48 P.M.— New World Classic 9-Inning, World Classic-in-Puerto Rico 9-Inning, Dominican 9-Inning, and Cuban 9-Inning Records — Estadio (Stadium) Hiram Bithorn, San Juan — 3/13/2006 — Dominican 7 Cuba 3 in 3:48 — 6594 fans — finished at 4:48 P.M.

10:56 P.M.— New World Classic 9-Inning and World Classic-in-Puerto Rico 9-Inning Records — Estadio (Stadium) Hiram Bithorn, San Juan — 3/15/2006 — Cuba 4 Puerto Rico 3 in 3:56 — 19,773 fans.

3:42 P.M.— New World Classic-in-USA and World Classic-in-USA 9-Inning Records — Petco Park, San Diego, California — 3/18/2006 — Cuba 3 Dominican 1 in 3:42 — 41,268 fans.

10:45 P.M.— New World Classic-in-USA and World Classic-in-USA 9-Inning Records — Petco Park, San Diego, California — 3/18/2006 — Japan 6 South Korea 0 in 2:40, rain delay 0:45 top 8th — 42,639 fans.

11:55 P.M.— New World Classic, World Classic-in-USA, and World Classic-in-USA 9-Inning Records — Petco Park, San Diego, California — 3/20/2006 — Japan 10 Cuba 6 in 3:40 — 42,696 fans.

3:53 A.M.— New Central American, Mexican, and Mexican 9-Inning Records—Estadio (Stadium) Monterrey, Monterrey, State of Monterrey—6/22/2006— Mexican League—Laguna Vaqueros (Cowboys) 6 Monterrey Sultans 4 in 5:21 and 16 innings, rain delay 2:16 at start—15,635 fans; only 100 fans at end.

1:40 A.M.-New American Legion World Series

Record—Veterans Memorial Stadium, Cedar Rapids, Iowa—8/18/2006—rain delay 3:44 at start; Sumter (Sc) 7 Lincoln (NE) 5; Midlothian (Va) 8 Las Vegas (Nv) 2; Terre Haute (in) 6 Metairie (La) 3; Milton (Ma) 14 Lawrence (Ks) 4 in 2:40 and 8 innings.

11:33 P.M.— New Olympics Qualifier, Olympics Qualifier 7-Inning, Americas Olympics Qualifier, and Americas Olympics Qualifier 7-Inning Records — Estadio (Stadium) Latinoamericano, Havana, Cuba — 8/25/2006 — Cuba 14 Colombia 0 in 2:33 and 7 innings — 6000 fans.

10:54 P.M.— New Olympics Qualifier 9-Inning and Americas Olympics Qualifier 9-Inning Records — Estadio (Stadium) Latinoamericano, Havana, Cuba — 8/26/2006 — USA 9 Canada 3 in 2:54 — 2500 fans.

11:54 — New Olympics Qualifier, Olympics Qualifier 9-Inning, Americas Olympics Qualifier, and Americas Olympics Qualifier 9-Inning Records — Estadio (Stadium) Latinoamericano, Havana, Cuba — 9/1/2006 — Cuba 10 Venezuela 1 in 3:54 — 8000 fans.

2:05 A.M.— New Caribbean Series Record — Estadio (Stadium) Roberto Clemente Walker, Carolina, Puerto Rico — 2/2/2007 — Aguilas Cibaenas (Dominican) 4 Aragua Tigres (Tigers) (Venezuela) 3 in 6:13 and 18 innings; intermission 0:30 between games; then Carolina Giantes (Giants) (Puerto Rico) 11 Hermosillo Naranjeros (Orange Growers) (Mexico) 1 in 3:15.

7:30 A.M. – New College and NCAA Records – Hoglund Ballpark, Lawrence, Kansas; cancelled due to snow and moved to Hubert H. Humphrey Metrodome, Minneapolis, Minnesota – 2/10/2007 – National Collegiate Athletic Association – South Dakota State University Jackrabbits 6 Kansas University Jayhawks 5 in 2:51; then Kansas 3 South Dakota State 2 in 2:47, suspended after 2:27 and 7 innings – 33 fans; 22 fans at beginning of 2nd game –1st game began at 1:42 A.M. on 2/10 and ended at 4:33 A.M.; 2nd game began at 5:03 A.M., was suspended at 7:30 A.M. on 2/10, begun again at 3:30 A.M. and completed at 3:54 A.M. on 2/11.

12:49 A.M.— New South Korean Record — Mokdong Yagu-jang (Stadium), Seoul, South Korea — 6/12/2008 — Korean Organization — Woori Heroes 2 Kia Tigers 1 in 5:22 and 14 innings, 0:55 rain delay — 6900 fans; 900 fans at end.

1:37 A.M.— New Major League All-Star Game Record — Yankee Stadium, New York, New York — 7/15/2008 — American League 4 National League 3 in 4:50 and 15 innings — 55,632 fans.

1:35 A.M.— New American League Championship Series Record — Tropicana Field, St. Petersburg, Florida —10/11/2008 — Rays 9 Red Sox 8 in 5:27 and 11 innings — 34,904 fans.

1:47 A.M.— New World Series Record — Citizens Bank Park, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania —10/25/2008 — AL at NL — rain delay 1:31 at start, Phillies 5 Rays 4 in 3:41—45,900 fans.

Epilogue

Ed Sudol's Over 300,000 Innings and Four Decades at Shea

Of course, had Hank Webb's pickoff not been wild, or had Ron Hodges not dropped the ball, or had Ed Sudol ruled the sliding Bake McBride out at the plate, or even better, had the rules on simultaneous balks and wild pickoff throws not been changed recently and Bake McBride had been required to return to second in the top of the 25th at Shea on September 11, 1974, the Cards and Mets might still be playing! With nine hours of rest daily, five months off for winter, and three hours per nine innings, or 45 innings daily and 9,450 innings annually, they would now be in the fourth decade and well over 300,000 innings in that game. And every seven innings, the fans would still be stretching and singing:

Take me out to the ball game, Take me out with the crowd, Buy me some peanuts and Cracker Jack, I don't care if I NEVER get back. This page intentionally left blank

Bibliography

- Albert, James, and Jay Bennett. *Curve Ball: Baseball, Statistics, and the Role of Chance in the Game.* New York: Copernicus, 2001.
- Baseball Prospectus. http://www.baseballprospectus.com.
- Blahous, Charles. "The DiMaggio Streak: How Big a Deal Was It?" *Baseball Research Journal*. Cooperstown: SABR, 1994, pp. 41–43.
- Boule, Margie. "Did Portland Host the Longest Game in the History of Baseball?" *Portland Oregonian*, Aug. 29, 2004.
- Brown, Bob, and Peter Goodrich. "Calculating the Odds: DiMaggio's 56-Game Hitting Streak." *Baseball Research Journal*. Cleveland: SABR, 2003, pp. 35–40.
- Chimkin, Frank. "Runs Created." *Baseball Research Journal*. Cleveland: SABR, 2004.
- Daley, Arthur. "Baseball Marathons." New York Times, June 26, 1962.
- "Fascinating Records from the World of Baseball." Baseball Magazine, Tokyo, Japan, pp. 170–71.
- Goldman, Steven, ed. *Mind Game: How the Boston Red Sox Got Smart, Won a World Series, and Created a New Blueprint for Winning*. New York: Workman, 2005.
- Gruber, John H. "Remarkable Games of Baseball." Washington Post, Nov. 26, 1916.
- James, Bill. 1977 Baseball Abstract. Self-published, 1977.

___. Win Shares. New York: STATS, 2002.

- Johnson, Lloyd; Wolff, Miles. Encyclopedia of Minor League Baseball: The Official Record of Minor League Baseball. Durham, NC: Baseball America, 1993.
- Keller, Joseph B. "A Characterization of the Poisson Distribution and the Probability of Winning a Game." *American Statistician*, Nov. 1994, Vol. 48, No. 4, pp. 294–298.
- Krasner, Steven. The Longest Game: Paw Sox 3 Red Wings 2. East Greenwich, RI: Gorilla Productions, 1996.
- Lapides, Max. "When the Tigers 'n' A's Played 'Longest Game," Baseball Digest. Feb. 1968, pp. 50–54.
- Levin, Eugene M. "Binomial Baseball." *Two-Year College Mathematics Journal*, Sept. 1981, Vol. 12, No. 4, pp. 260–266.

- Lewis, Michael. Moneyball: The Art of Winning an Unfair Game. New York: W.W. Norton, 2003.
- Lindsey, G.R. "The Progress of the Score During a Baseball Game." *Journal of the American Statistical Association*, Sept. 1961, Vol. 56, No. 295, pp. 703– 728.
- Lowry, Philip J. "Baseball 'Til Dawn?" From the Dugout. Vol. 13, No. 1, Jan. 2004, p. 2.
 - _____. "College Marathons." *Line Drives*. National Collegiate Baseball Writers, Apr. 14, 2005.

- _____. "Long Games in Baseball Chronicled." *Collegiate Baseball*. Vol. 47, No. 8, Apr. 16, 2004, p. 3.
- Maull, David. "A Night's Journey into Morning." TV Times, Sept. 3, 1998.
- McDonald, David. "Let's Play Three." National Pastime, No. 23, 2003.
- Mosteller, Frederick. "Lessons from Sports Statistics." *American Statistician*, Nov. 1997, Vol. 51, No. 4, pp. 305–310.
- Nichols, Harman W. "Oddities from the Minors." Washington Post, July 18, 1951, p. 15.
- Rubin, Ernest. "Questions and Answers: An Analysis of Baseball Scores by Innings." *American Statistician*, April 1958, Vol. 12, No. 2, pp. 21–22.
 - _____. "Questions and Answers: The Edge of Familiarity." *American Statistician*, Feb. 1958.
- _____. "Questions and Answers: Margin for Victory: Colloquy Between Critic and Referee." *American Statistician*, Oct. 1963, Vol. 17, No. 4, pp. 28–30.
- _____. "Questions and Answers: Reader Observations and Comments on Margin for Victory." *American Statistician*. June 1963, Vol. 17, No. 3, pp. 41–42.

- Schwarz, Alan. *The Numbers Game: Baseball's Lifelong Fascination with Statistics*. New York: Thomas Dunne, 2004.
- Simons, Herbert. "40 Innings to a Decision!" *Baseball Digest*. Feb. 1968, pp. 49–57.
- Smith, David W. "The Big Bang: A Big Bust?" Newark, Delaware, Nov. 1991, pp. 1–5.
- Sumner, Benjamin. Minor League Baseball Standings: All North American Leagues Through 1999. Jefferson, NC: McFarland, 2000.

- TangoTiger. "Runs Per Inning Distribution: A Simple Formula to Generate the Runs/Inning for Any Kind of R/G Team." Tango on Baseball Website, http:// www.tangotiger.net.
- Thorn, John. Total Baseball: The Ultimate Baseball Encyclopedia, 8th edition. Toronto: Sport Media, 2004.
- Uelkes, Peter, and Ron Visco. "Coincidences." Baseball Research Journal. Cleveland: SABR, 2004.
- Vaccaro, Francis J. All Games Baseball, Vol. 1, 1871– 1908. New York, 2003.
- Woolner, Keith. "An Analytic Model for Per-Inning Scoring Distributions." Baseball Prospectus Website, March 4, 2000, http://www.baseballprospectus.com/ article.php?articleid=472, pp. 1–23.

Index

Aberdeen, WA 43, 51, 84 Abrantes, Portugal 254 Accra, Ghana 113 Adel, IA 10 Adelaide, Australia 96, 107, 233, 253 Adrian, MI 44, 53, 86 Aiken, SC 16, 131, 235 Akron, OH 44, 55, 72, 295, 315, 325 Albany, NY 44, 55, 81, 95, 120, 210 Albuquerque, NM 40, 59, 87, 127, 159, 180, 197, 247 Alexandria, LA 149, 165, 199 Alexandria, TX 91 Algiers, Algeria 104 Alhambra, CA 109, 232 Allentown, PA 294, 299, 324 Alliance, NE 16, 132 Altoona, PA 95, 107 Ames, IA 124, 262 Amherst, MA 47, 62, 76, 95, 154, 165, 186, 233 Anaheim, CA 7, 48, 64, 88, 108, 114, 116, 142, 145, 149, 155, 157, 163, 167, 170, 172, 173, 176, 178, 185, 201, 202, 230, 231, 232, 239, 244, 287, 295, 301, 305, 317, 331, 344, 349 Anchorage, AL 8, 42, 65, 68, 113, 138, 171, 182, 241, 282, 286, 309, 317, 337 Ann Arbor, MI 128 Annapolis, MD 97, 105 Antwerp, Belgium 106, 113, 243, 348 Anzio, Italy 144, 177, 189, 248, 280, 314, 322, 350 Appleton, WI 16, 109, 131, 148, 164, 196, 233, 287, 301, 327 Appomattox Courthouse, VA 92 Arapaho, OK 39, 53, 72 Arcadia, CA 43, 51, 68, 213 Arecibo, PR 279, 306, 323 Arkadelphia, AR 9, 37, 61, 75, 109 Arlington, MN 48, 63, 71 Arlington, TX 34, 60, 86, 139, 144, 148, 153, 154, 155, 162, 166, 169, 172, 173, 175, 178, 199, 203, 204, 230, 235, 239, 247, 286, 288, 289, 290, 294, 295, 297, 303, 308, 312, 313, 319, 332, 349 Arlington, VA 41, 61, 73, 109, 111, 236, 237, 346 Artesia, NM 136 Ash Fork, AZ 25

Asheville, NC 120, 133, 280, 299, 327 Ashland, MA 13, 26, 70, 90, 208 Athens, Greece 116, 249, 350, 351 Atlanta, GA 25, 33, 54, 69, 109, 114, 123, 141, 147, 151, 168, 176, 182, 204, 208, 232, 243, 244, 245, 248, 257, 258, 272, 278, 282, 289, 293, 294, 296, 302, 307, 310, 311, 314, 319, 332, 346, 348, 349, 355 Atlantic City, NJ 18 Atwater, CA 46, 58, 68, 106, 225, 343 Auburn, Australia 245, 288, 312, 321 Auburn, NY 8, 38, 67, 84, 133, 139, 179, 197, 293, 315, 327, 339 Auckland, New Zeaand 96, 113, 210 Augsburg, Germany 104 Augusta, GA 46, 58, 85, 131, 140, 172, 185, 235, 242 Aurora, IL 45, 55, 69 Austin, TX 5, 7, 19, 24, 46, 48, 59, 63, 76, 86, 141, 151, 157, 161, 167, 186, 199, 228, 236, 257, 287, 291, 299, 305, 318, 328, 346 Auxerre, France 104 Babson Park, FL 42, 66, 75, 142, 174, 185, 245 Ballarat, Australia 96 Ballinger, TX 43, 52, 73 Baltimore, MD 21, 34, 40, 53, 56, 69, 82, 93, 95, 100, 102, 109, 114, 116, 123, 125, 127, 144, 146, 147, 149, 151, 156, 157, 158, 159, 160, 163, 164, 168, 169, 170, 172, 173, 174, 176, 177, 183, 185, 186, 200, 214, 216, 226, 231, 232, 234, 239, 240, 242, 243, 245, 247, 248, 256, 260, 261, 263, 264, 267, 270, 282, 289, 289, 290, 292, 293, 296, 297, 303, 306, 307, 308, 310, 311, 312, 329, 346, 350 Bangs, TX 35, 53, 73 Barcelona, Spain 113, 116, 241, 242, 297, 309, 323, 348 Bartlesville, OK 126, 276 Basking Ridge, NJ 108, 131, 230 Batavia, NY 42, 67, 84, 144, 177, 196 Baton Rouge, LA 98 Battle Creek, MI 285, 309, 319 Beijing, China 98, 119, 254, 255

Belfast, Northern Ireland 97, 101, 103.220 Belle Plaine, MN 281, 309, 338 Belleville, Canada 33, 62, 77, 110, 345 Belleville, IL 35, 54, 69 Belmont, Australia 38, 65, 76, 112, 147, 170, 188 Beloit, WI 281, 311, 319 Beograd, Serbia 119 Berlin, Germany 103, 218, 341 Berthold, ND 44, 54, 71 Bethel, NC 47, 61, 71 Bethlehem, PA 43, 51, 72 Billings, MT 106, 226, 252 Binghamton, NY 126 Birch Hills, Canada 37, 54, 76, 101 Birmingham, AL 97, 103, 117, 149, 178, 187, 218, 250, 260, 267, 276, 351 Blansko, Czech 15, 115, 248 Bloomington, IL 33, 49, 52, 67, 69, 82, 99, 145, 176, 183, 213 Bloomington, MN 6, 18, 37, 47, 60, 62, 88, 107, 108, 144, 146, 153, 163, 165, 202, 231, 232, 233, 234, 264, 286, 291, 294, 301, 302, 303, 304, 331 Blue Lake, CA 46, 59, 69 Blue Springs, MO 277, 278, 310, 338, 348 Bluefield, WV 21 Boise, ID 92 Bonesteel, SD 12 Boston, MA 7, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, 25, 30, 32, 33, 34, 35, 37, 39, 43, 45, 48, 50, 51, 52, 53, 54, 55, 56, 64, 69, 70, 73, 75, 82, 87, 88, 90, 93, 94, 95, 97, 98, 99, 101, 102, 105, 116, 120, 123, 124, 125, 129, 142, 143, 144, 149, 151, 152, 153, 154, 155, 157, 158, 159, 160, 164, 167, 169, 170, 171, 172, 173, 175, 178, 182, 184, 200, 204, 208, 209, 210, 212, 213, 214, 215, 216, 217, 219, 220, 221, 222, 223, 224, 234, 235, 239, 242, 243, 249, 252, 255, 257, 259, 260, 261, 268, 269, 273, 275, 276, 281, 282, 285, 288, 289, 291, 294, 295, 296, 299, 300, 304, 305, 307, 310, 311, 312, 315, 316, 329, 340, 342, 343, 345, 347, 351, 355

Bowie, MD 157, 179, 193 Bozeman, MT 117, 125, 250, 265, 271, 351 Bradenton, FL 19, 32, 64, 76, 112, 135, 137, 169, 187, 239, 258 Brandy Station, NJ 92 Brewton, OK 221 Bridgeport, CT 149, 177, 192 Bridgeton, NJ 43, 52, 71 Bridgewater, NJ 141, 155, 175, 192, 246, 288, 312, 323 Bridgewater, SD 44, 54, 73, 101 Brighton, MA 14 Brisbane, Australia 100, 107 Bristol, CT 240, 263 Brockton, MA 95, 132, 209 Brooklyn, NY 14, 16, 18, 21, 33, 37, 54, 68, 84, 88, 90, 92, 93, 94, 95, 97, 101, 105, 106, 126, 138, 180, 197, 209, 212, 213, 214, 215, 219, 220, 221, 222, 223, 224, 226, 227, 296, 299, 332, 339, 340, 342 Brownsville, PA 40, 56, 72, 158, 160, 184, 219 Brownton, MN 47, 61, 71, 148, 154, 164, 165, 183, 232, 280, 283, 292, 302, 305, 338 Brunswick, GA 46, 59, 82 Brunswick, OH 42, 66, 75 Bryant, NY 45, 57, 74 Buchanan, MI 113 Buenos Aires, Argentina 106 Buffalo, NY 98, 130, 136, 153, 155, 176, 178, 195, 209, 264, 285, 314, 326, 339 Buffalo Grove, IL 131, 235 Burlington, IA 12, 20, 36, 41, 49, 53, 64, 65, 80, 83, 101, 145, 156, 167, 170, 196, 215, 340 Burlington, NC 7, 21, 33, 65, 80, 136, 169, 192, 239, 257, 279, 308, 323, 347 Burlington, VT 46, 59, 85, 146, 148, 168, 182, 193, 197, 273, 294, 306, 324 Burlington, WI 16, 131, 233 Byron, MN 42, 67, 71, 137, 177, 183, 248 Caguas, PR 34, 36, 65, 66, 79, 107, 112, 113, 229 Cairo, Egypt 96 Calcutta, India 104 Calgary, Canada 41, 63, 77 Camaguey, Cuba 36, 47, 62, 77, 110, 128 Cambridge, England 115 Cambridge, MA 94, 95, 96, 209 Camden, NJ 95 Camp Grant, AZ 93 Camp McCoy, WI 45, 56, 73 Campeche, Mexico 290, 314, 323, 326 Canistota, SD 43, 52, 73 Canton, China 16 Canton, OH 97 Capelle aan den Ijssel, Netherlands Î19, 158, 182, 191, 255 Caracas, Venezuela 106 Cardiff, Wales 97, 99, 105

Carmel, IN 132 Carolina, PR 38, 67, 79, 118, 122, 139, 141, 176, 180, 191, 247, 253, 259, 266, 283, 316, 323, 352 Carrollton, KY 134, 135, 137, 159, 183, 209, 339 Carson, CA 144, 156, 171, 178, 186, 187 Cartagena, Colombia 40, 59, 77, 107, 109, 120 Cascade, IA 10, 19 Castroville, TX 39, 51, 73 Cedar City, UT 20, 48, 63, 75, 111, 120, 150, 167, 185, 236 Cedar Rapids, IA 10, 45, 55, 83, 286, 316, 352 Central Islip, NY 140, 180, 192, 288, 316, 324 Chambersburg, PA 339 Champaign, IL 44, 53, 82 Chamshil, Korea 240, 347 Chancellorsville, VA 91 Charleroi, PA 40, 55, 72, 131 Charleston, SC 146, 151, 179, 187, 198, 210, 283, 286, 317, 320 Charleston, WV 44, 47, 53, 59, 80, 84, 121, 279, 304, 320, 345 Charlotte, NC 37, 44, 54, 56, 85 Charlotte Amalie, US Virgin Islands 97 Chatsworth, CA 132 Chattanooga, TN 35, 41, 45, 54, 56, 63, 85, 86, 113, 128, 147, 166, 198, 277, 278, 282, 306, 321, 340, 346 Chelsea, England 111, 346 Chester, PA 43, 51, 72 Chiayi City, Taiwan 244 Chiba, Japan 254 Chicago, IL 6, 7, 10, 11, 12, 14, 17, 18, 19, 24, 25, 34, 39, 41, 44, 45, 46, 54, 55, 57, 58, 62, 64, 75, 87, 88, 90, 92, 95, 97, 98, 101, 102, 103, 104, 105, 106, 111, 121, 122, 123, 124, 125, 130, 134, 137, 140, 141, 142, 148, 151, 152, 153, 154, 156, 159, 161, 165, 166, 167, 168, 169, 171, 172, 174, 179, 180, 200, 201, 204, 205, 210, 211, 212, 213, 214, 215, 216, 217, 218, 219, 220, 221, 222, 223, 224, 225, 226, 227, 228, 231, 234, 235, 236, 237, 238, 239, 241, 243, 245, 257, 258, 261, 262, 263, 264, 266, 267, 269, 270, 271, 275, 276, 282, 288, 290, 291, 292, 293, 295, 296, 298, 299, 301, 303, 305, 306, 313, 315, 316, 328, 330, 332, 340, 341, 342, 343, 344, 347, 348, 349, 351 Chico, CA 250, 260, 263, 266, 271 Chihuahua, Mexico 138, 176, 190 Chocen, Czech 117 Cincinnati, OH 6, 21, 41, 43, 50, 61, 88, 92, 95, 97, 108, 122, 124, 146, 155, 157, 158, 159, 162, 163, 169, 172, 205, 208, 209, 210, 211, 214, 216, 217, 218, 219, 220, 223, 229, 230, 231, 232, 235, 237, 260, 264, 266, 276, 280, 281, 283, 285, 286, 289, 292, 295, 299, 300, 301, 302,

303, 304, 306, 332, 333, 340, 341, 345, 356 Ciudad Obregon, Mexico 138, 168, 190, 196, 238, 251, 283, 306, 322, 326 Clare, MI 110 Claremont, CA 128 Claremore, OK 229, 276, 279, 300, 338 Clarksburg, WV 34, 52, 87 Clarksville, TN 155, 181, 187 Clemons, IA 40, 59, 74, 106, 226 Clemson, SC 121, 144, 173, 186, 243, 260, 267 Cleveland, MS 258 Cleveland, OH 6, 14, 18, 25, 32, 47, 51, 61, 72, 88, 95, 97, 99, 109, 113, 114, 120, 123, 139, 140, 143, 146, 147, 149, 151, 156, 157, 160, 162, 165, 170, 171, 172, 173, 175, 182, 184, 201, 212, 216, 217, 218, 219, 220, 221, 222, 223, 224, 226, 228, 230, 233, 241, 242, 243, 244, 260, 263, 268, 283, 290, 295, 297, 298, 300, 301, 302, 304, 310, 311, 317, 330, 341, 344, 348, 349, 355, 356 Clifton Park, NY 113, 242 Clinton, IA 34, 36, 51, 65, 82, 83, 113, 137, 170, 196, 240, 258 Clintonville, WI 5, 19, 40, 56, 73, 152, 160, 184, 219, 285, 298, 339, 341 Clovis, NM 286, 311, 318 Cocoa Beach, FL 128 Cold Spring, MN 291, 310, 338 College Park, MD 46, 57, 75 College Station, TX 143, 170, 186, 240, 295, 308, 318 Colombes, France 102 Colombo, Sri Lanka 96, 100 Colorado Springs, CO 157, 173, 197 Columbia, SC 138, 156, 177, 182, 184, 198, 248, 256, 259, 286, 313, 327 Columbus, GA 5, 46, 58, 85, 153, 161, 198, 226, 291, 298, 327 Columbus, OH 14, 15, 21, 32, 39, 42, 46, 51, 57, 64, 72, 80, 82, 94, 99, 121, 128, 129, 146, 168, 174, 195, 212, 226, 252 Connellsville, PA 25, 33, 40, 55, 56, 72 Cooperstown, ND 36, 51, 71, 213 Cooperstown, NY 19, 355 Coral Gables, FL 159, 169, 186 Corbin, KY 278, 291, 311, 320, 321, 348 Cordoba, Mexico 6, 36, 48, 62, 63, 79, 83, 139, 166, 190, 195, 234, 279, 304, 322, 326, 345 Corinto, Nicaragua 48, 63, 79 Corpus Christi, TX 8, 49, 67, 86, 104, 141, 149, 178, 181, 199, 253, 290, 315, 328 Corry, PA 35, 52, 72, 213 Corvallis, OR 47, 62, 76, 121, 127, 154, 179, 187, 233 Council Bluffs, IA 40, 56, 69 Crestwood, IL 153, 157, 175, 194

Crofton, NE 45, 56, 71 Croyden, England 115, 157, 177, 189, 248 Culiacan, Mexico 8, 41, 49, 61, 66, 78, 79, 83, 139, 142, 145, 152, 163, 173, 179, 180, 190, 191, 196, 231, 243, 251, 264, 281, 287, 292, 311, 316, 322, 323, 326, 327 Dahlonega, GA 248, 288, 314, 321 Daisytown, PA 43, 55, 72, 102, 217 Dallas, TX 33, 39, 46, 53, 55, 59, 73, 74, 119 Danville, IL 6, 41, 62, 83, 102, 131, 147, 165, 196, 217, 232, 259, 286, 292, 302, 303, 327 Danville, OH 36, 52, 72, 158, 160, 184, 213 Danville, VA 37, 54, 85, 267, 279, 282, 312, 313, 319, 323 Davenport, IA 12, 42, 66, 83, 144, 174, 196 Daytona Beach, FL 125 Decatur, IL 12, 47, 49, 60, 65, 69, 83, 150, 163, 196 Dedham, MA 12 Delano, CA 41, 60, 74, 108, 140, 163, 185, 231 Delaware City, OH 33, 53, 72, 101 Denton, TX 39, 51, 73 Denver, CO 13, 91, 102, 119, 127, 150, 180, 205, 243, 245, 254, 263, 264, 292, 311, 333, 356 Depew, NY 42, 66, 71 De Smet, SD 39, 53, 73 Des Moines, IA 10, 12, 341 Detroit, MI 25, 37, 59, 88, 91, 96, 98, 99, 108, 120, 121, 122, 123, 137, 145, 146, 151, 154, 157, 161, 163, 166, 168, 174, 177, 201, 210, 211, 213, 216, 219, 220, 221, 223, 224, 225, 229, 231, 235, 237, 239, 259 263, 265, 266, 268, 274, 281, 289, 291, 292, 295, 297, 300, 301, 303, 305, 306, 308, 330, 344, 346 Devil's Lake, ND 19, 33, 50, 71, 97, 211, 340 Dixon, IL 33, 52, 69, 99, 213 Dothan, AL 150, 176, 186, 259, 281, 282, 313, 319 Downers Grove, IL 36, 66, 74, 138, 173, 185, 242, 259 Downey, CA 50, 68, 75, 135, 137, 181, 185, 254, 258 Drummondville, Canada 46, 58, 77, 85 Dublin, Ireland 93, 97, 209 Dubuque, IA 10 Duluth, MN 144, 178, 197 Dunedin, FL 42, 65, 81, 112, 139, 170, 194, 240 Dunkirk, NY 39, 54, 71 Durham, NC 20, 42, 53, 84, 119, 215, 355 Eagle Pass, TX 133, 134 East Berlin, PA 43, 52, 72 East Greenwich, RI 355 East Hartford, CT 45, 55, 69, 152, 160, 183

East Lansing, MI 127 East Ridge, TN 278, 313, 339, 350 Eastman, GA 40, 58, 82, 124 Easton, PA 108, 231 Edgerton, IN 43, 52, 69 Edinburgh, Scotland 102, 114, 145, 173, 191, 244, 246 Edmonton, Canada 25, 113, 241, 249 Eindhoven, Netherlands 117, 250 Elkton, MD 92, 143, 159, 183, 208, 339 Elmira, NY 5, 33, 40, 41, 59, 60, 81, 108, 139, 147, 162, 193, 230, 295, 300, 324 Ellsworth, PA 40, 44, 53, 56, 72 El Paso, TX 153, 166, 199, 282, 304, 328 Elyria, OH 26, 35, 55, 72, 103 Emeryville, CA 20, 37, 55, 85, 119, 120 Empalme, Mexico 45, 57, 78, 105, 222 Enum Claw, WA 281, 307, 318 Erie, PA 94 Eugene, OR 34, 65, 84, 113, 137, 170, 197, 259 Eunice, NM 136 Evansville, IN 42, 66, 76, 120, 159, 174, 186, 245 Everett, WA 34, 65, 84, 113, 137, 170, 197, 259 Exeter, PA 44, 54, 72 Fairbanks, AK 277, 279, 281, 282, 283, 284, 286, 287, 288, 289, 290, 292, 293, 294, 296, 297, 299, 300, 303, 304, 305, 306, 307, 308, 309, 310, 312, 314, 315, 318, 336, 337, 340, 343, 346 Fairfax City, VA 48, 63, 76, 148, 166, 186 Fairfield, CT 35, 65, 69, 113, 141, 172, 183, 242 Fairmont, WV 145, 178, 185, 187, 250, 261, 269 Fallon, NV 158, 161, 186, 228 Fargo, ND 149, 181, 187, 256 Farmington, WV 92 Farwell, MI 110 Fayetteville, AR 128, 283, 284, 310, 318, 337 Fayetteville, NC 42, 65, 85, 150, 169, 198 Fayville, MA 70 Fitchburg, MA 43, 50, 70 Flint, MI 126 Florence, Italy 96 Florida, NY 45, 56, 71 Flushing, NY 90 Fond du Lac, WI 5, 35, 40, 52, 59, 73, 87, 142, 162, 184, 229, 283, 300, 339 Forest Grove, OR 125, 261, 269 Fort Benning, GA 45, 55, 69, 102, 217 Fort Duncan, TX 134 Fort Lauderdale, FL 36, 64, 81, 147, 167, 194, 234 Fort Mill, SC 113, 125, 140, 177, 195, 260, 268, 280, 313, 326 Fort Myers, FL 49, 67, 81, 157, 159,

172, 179, 194, 268, 279, 285, 293, 295, 310, 311, 313, 325, 337 Fort Sheridan, IL 16, 132 Fort Sill, OK 96, 97, 210 Fort Wayne, IN 18, 93, 153, 172, 196, 209, 234, 339 Fort Worth, TX 44, 45, 54, 56, 86, 98, 124, 130, 212, 218, 292, 298, 328, 341 Foxboro, MA 69, 90, 208, 339 Franklin, LA 92 Frederick, MD 127 Frederiksted, US Virgin Islands 117, 159, 179, 188, 191, 250 Fresno, CA 125, 152, 162, 192, 218, 260, 267, 297, 301, 324 Frisco, TX 156, 180, 199 Frostburg, MD 36, 51, 69 Fujiidera, Japan 109, 232 Fukuoka, Japan 36, 67, 76, 78, 115, 142, 176, 190, 248, 254 Fukuyama, Japan 141, 174, 189, 245 Fullerton, CA 39, 55, 74, 75, 98, 102, 217 Fulton, KY 26 Gainesville, FL 47, 62, 75, 233, 235, 290, 309, 319 Galesburg, IL 121 Galveston, TX 44, 47, 54, 59, 73, 86, 107, 158, 162, 184, 229 Gary, IN 11 Gastonia, NC 128 Geneva, IL 121, 263 Georgetown, KY 38, 67, 75, 116, 140, 178, 185, 250, 345 Gettysburg, PA 28 Ghent, KY 134 Gila River Internment Camp, AZ 104 Gilmore, PA 96 Gilmore City, IA 39, 51, 69, 99, 158, 160, 183, 212, 340 Giverny, France 44, 54, 77, 101 Glascow, Scotland 96 Glendon, PA 34, 54, 72, 101 Glenmont, OH 37, 60, 72, 158, 162, 184 Graham, TX 43, 51, 73 Grand Chute, WI 283, 285, 287, 292, 313, 315, 316, 318, 319, 320 Grand Forks, ND 19, 20 Grand Junction, CO 20, 107, 227, 252, 282, 299, 321, 343 Grand Rapids, MI 105, 114, 340 Grandview, MO 106 Grayson, TX 130, 344 Great Bend, KS 110 Green Bay, WI 33, 35, 51, 53, 73, 87, 212 Greenpoint, NY 208 Greensboro, NC 41, 64, 85, 247 Greenville, MS 12 Greenville, SC 36, 66, 86, 123, 128, 139, 142, 147, 168, 174, 177, 198, 238, 260, 268, 289, 293, 306, 309, 310, 319, 328 Greenwood, SC 36, 47, 51, 59, 73, 99, 145, 161, 184, 213, 227 Griffith, IN 11, 19

Grosseto, Italy 155, 175, 189, 246, 253, 283, 291, 312, 317, 322 Groton, CT 215 Groton, NY 35, 57, 71 Groton, SD 246 Grove, PA 95 Guadalajara, Mexico 164, 190, 233, 302, 326, 344 Guasave, Mexico 48, 49, 63, 67, 79, 83, 140, 180, 190, 196 Guatemala City, Guatemala 117 Guildford, England 159, 173, 189, 243 Hagatna, Guam 16, 40, 57, 78, 104, 114 Hagerstown, MD 35, 57, 80, 223 Hamburg, IA 45, 55, 69 Hamilton, Canada 44, 54, 77, 83 Hamlin, TX 44, 55, 74 Hammond, IN 11 Hampton, VA 16, 35, 55, 73, 102, 149, 182, 184 Hanceville, AL 159, 181, 188 Hannibal, MO 44, 53, 71, 101 Hardin, OH 39, 51, 71 Harrisburg, PA 2, 151, 177, 193 Hartford, CT 45, 56, 84, 92, 98, 100, 122, 340 Harwich, MA 284, 317, 320 Havana, Cuba 45, 48, 56, 64, 77, 94, 99, 100, 103, 104, 105, 114, 118, 148, 155, 161, 180, 188, 218, 221, 227, 252, 254, 287, 299, 322, 325, 343, 352 Hayward, CA 9, 34, 62, 74, 110 Helena, MT 19, 109 Heliopolis, Egypt 100 Helsinki, Finland 106, 115, 225, 342 Hemel Hempstead, England 159, 174, 189, 246 Henderson, KY 43, 50, 82 Henderson, TN 115 Hermosillo, Mexico 250 Hialeah, FL 126 Hickory, NC 49, 66, 85, 152, 175, 198 Highland, IN 11, 19 Highlands Ranch, CO 12 Hilo, HI 33, 47, 56, 59, 69, 74, 100, 103, 104, 218, 228 Hilton Head, SC 91 Hiroshima, Japan 142, 145, 172, 178, 189, 190, 242, 249 Hobbs, NM 136 Hoboken, NJ 16, 89, 90, 91, 94, 97 Hohenwald, TN 115 Holliston, MA 13 Hollywood, CA 40, 58, 85, 292, 298, 327 Holyoke, MA 25, 256 Homestead, FL 245 Hong Kong, China 92, 100, 118, 214 Honolulu, HI 9, 34, 44, 49, 53, 60, 65, 69, 74, 75, 93, 96, 100, 105,

108, 114, 122, 141, 156, 163, 170, 185, 197, 231, 244, 289, 296, 298, 301, 327, 337, 342, 344 Hoover, AL 138, 170, 198, 240, 285, 286, 308, 317, 320, 328 Index

Hornell, NY 152, 161, 196, 291, 299, 327 Houston, TX 6, 7, 20, 33, 34, 38, 56, 61, 65, 66, 76, 84, 89, 101, 102, 103, 108, 111, 112, 114, 117, 123, 129, 135, 137, 138, 141, 144, 146, 147, 148, 151, 153, 154, 158, 161, 163, 166, 168, 169, 174, 179, 180, 181, 186, 204, 205, 228, 230, 231, 235, 236, 237, 239, 240, 245, 250, 251, 257, 259, 264, 265, 275, 280, 282, 286, 289, 291, 295, 300, 301, 308, 312, 315, 319, 333, 344, 347, 351 Hualien, Taiwan 250 Hudson, NY 129 Hudsonville, MI 114 Hull, MA 339 Humboldt, IA 158, 160, 183, 212 Huntingburg, IN 281, 313, 325 Huntsville, AL 123, 147, 171, 198, 262, 270, 282, 286, 307, 309, 318, 328 Hutchinson, KS 35, 51, 53, 82, 87, 12.2 Hyde Park, MA 132, 248, 350 Idaho Falls, ID 150, 181, 197 Independence, KS 340 Indiana, PA 131, 214 Indianapolis, IN 18, 21, 48, 64, 80, 101, 143, 147, 169, 172, 192, 268, 292, 310, 323, 339, 347 Iowa City, IA 12 Ironwood, MI 39, 52, 70, 123 Isfahan, Iran 116, 249 Jackson, MI 43, 52, 86, 138, 167, 168 Jackson, MS 7, 36, 64, 86, 149, 152, 170, 199, 237, 282, 289, 305, 328 Jacksonville, FL 5, 40, 47, 49, 59, 68, 85, 86, 124, 150, 157, 158, 161, 180, 198, 288, 291, 296, 297, 299, 317, 320, 327 Jacksonville, IL 39, 43, 51, 52, 80, 82 Jal, NM 112, 136, 255, 279, 307, 317, 347 Jamestown, NY 41, 60, 84, 141, 152, 161, 162, 196, 230, 241, 284, 291, 299, 309, 321, 327 Janesville, WI 70, 92 Jefferson, NC 356 Jersey City, NJ 44, 53, 82, 100, 148, 175, 183, 247 Jimenez, Mexico 139, 176, 190 Johns Hill, MO 128 Johnson City, NY 46, 58, 81, 121, 154, 160, 193 Johnstown, PA 39, 51, 81, 228, 279, 299, 338, 343 Joplin, MO 43, 51, 87 Joseph City, AZ 25 Jupiter, FL 146, 180, 194 Kankakee, IL 39, 53, 82 Kannapolis, NC 42, 67, 85, 117, 144, 154, 178, 179, 198, 250, 294, 315, 327 Kansas City, MO 19, 35, 43, 53, 55, 71, 101, 111, 125, 139, 147, 153, 155,

158, 160, 170, 171, 176, 183, 201, 215, 218, 226, 228, 229, 231, 232, 236, 238, 241, 260, 262, 265, 268, 269, 270, 292, 293, 305, 309, 330 Keene, NH 107, 155, 162, 183, 229 Kenosha, WI 50, 68, 75, 124, 130, 147, 156, 174, 181, 185, 197 Keokuk, IA 12, 93 Kibbutz Gezer, Israel 254 Kiev, Ukraine 240 Kingfisher, OK 35, 51, 72, 99 Kingston, NY 43, 50, 82 Kirksville, MO 43, 52, 84 Kissimmee, FL 143, 168, 194, 288, 289, 307, 312, 321, 325 Knauertown, PA 45, 55, 72 Kobe, Japan 45, 49, 56, 66, 73, 75, 78 Koln, Germany 49, 67, 77, 116, 122, 144, 178, 189, 250, 261, 268, 351 Kufstein, Austria 115 Kutno, Poland 116, 118 Kyoto, Japan 32, 46, 49, 50, 58, 59, 66, 68, 75, 76, 78, 141, 161, 189, 225, 227 La Crosse, WI 125 Lafayette, LA 9, 36, 61, 75, 109, 120, 156, 164, 186, 233, 262, 268 La Grande, OR 128 Lake Benton, MN 43, 50, 71 Lake Buena Vista, FL 117, 251, 351 Lake-in-the-Hills, IL 159, 179, 183, 250 Lake Wales, FL 129 Lakeland, FL 50, 68, 81, 142, 194, 249, 259, 261, 268 Lakewood, NJ 38, 68, 85, 137, 179, 198, 252, 257 Lancaster, CA 154, 176, 192 Lansing, MI 126 Lastrup, MN 33, 67, 71, 117, 144, 178, 183, 250 Las Vegas, NV 114, 159, 176, 197, 243 Las Villas, Cuba 128 Laurel, NE 45, 56, 71 Lawrence, KS 277, 278, 316, 320, 352 Lawrence, MA 127 Lawrenceville, NJ 43, 52, 73, 99, 213 Lawton, OK 122, 265 Lead, SD 119, 253 Leeds, England 103 Leghorn, Italy 104 Leon, Mexico 33, 59, 78, 83, 107 Leon, Nicaragua 36, 48, 63, 64, 79 Lethbridge, Canada 47, 60, 77, 149, 162, 164, 188, 229 Lexington, KY 37, 61, 74, 102, 142, 164, 185, 232 Lima, OH 134 Lincoln, NE 38, 39, 46, 54, 58, 62, 76, 87, 125, 134, 150, 160, 181, 187, 215, 227, 287, 300, 325 Lismore, Australia 49, 66, 76, 79, 140, 172, 188, 191, 242, 286, 309, 321, 348 Litchfield, CT 209 Litchfield, MN 124 Little Big Horn, MT 94 Little Falls, NJ 24, 256, 258

Little Rock, AR 6, 37, 61, 81, 121, 143, 154, 163, 165, 193, 199, 263, 264, 281, 285, 287, 288, 290, 301, 302, 304, 305, 324, 328, 340, 344 Liverpool, England 93, 103, 209 Livorno, Italy 95 Lloydminster, Canada 47, 59, 77 Lockport, IL 90 Lodi, CA 5, 35, 60, 80, 142, 163, 192, 230, 284, 301, 324 London, Canada 127, 147, 174, 194 London, England 100, 104, 345 Londonderry, Northern Ireland 104 Long Beach, CA 47, 62, 76, 145, 180, 187 Loretto, MN 50, 68, 71 Los Angeles, CA 37, 39, 44, 52, 53, 54, 84, 85, 107, 111, 112, 134, 135, 145, 147, 150, 151, 152, 153, 155, 156, 157, 159, 161, 162, 165, 166, 167, 168, 169, 170, 171, 173, 176, 179, 181, 186, 187, 205, 206, 217, 228, 229, 230, 234, 236, 237, 238, 240, 241, 246, 247, 253, 260, 264, 268, 275, 277, 285, 290, 291, 293, 298, 300, 303, 327, 333, 341, 343, 345, 346 Los Mochis, Mexico 7, 42, 65, 79, 83, 137, 170, 190, 196, 240, 251, 259, 281, 308, 322, 326 Louisville, KY 21, 90, 94, 95, 102, 104, 119, 122, 150, 177, 195, 221, 258, 262, 269, 270, 280, 313, 326 Lowell, MA 43, 51, 84, 127, 134, 143, 176, 196, 263, 296, 313, 327 Lubbock, TX 112, 126, 135, 136, 237, 255, 257, 266, 279, 291, 307, 317, 318, 347 Lynchburg, VA 123 Lyndhurst, NJ 297, 308, 338 Lynn, MA 94, 212, 287, 305, 324 Mabel, MN 46, 58, 71, 287, 298, 338 Macon, GA 43, 52, 74, 75, 99, 213, 226 Mainz, Germany 115 Managua, Nicaragua 33, 57, 79, 105, 139, 141, 160, 191, 223 Manchester, IA 9 Manchester, NH 17, 21, 131 Manhattan, KS 8, 49, 67, 76, 139, 177, 187, 248, 287, 314, 319 Mannheim, Germany 115 Manila, Philippines 99, 100, 106 Mansfield, OH 121 Mansfield, SD 46, 58, 73 Manteca, CA 129 Maracaibo, Venezuela 45, 56, 79, 103, 139, 160, 192, 218 Marietta, GA 284, 315, 337 Marietta, OH 236, 237, 238, 285, 297, 311, 319 Marion, IL 145, 181, 194 Marion, OH 43, 51, 84 Marshalltown, IA 110, 235 Martinez, CA 41, 61, 74, 109, 142, 163, 185 Martinsburg, WV 215 Marysville, CA 44, 53, 68

Massapequa, NY 132, 133, 254 Matanzas, Cuba 48, 64, 66, 77, 92 Matsue, Japan 17, 32, 56, 73, 78, 103, 138, 160, 184, 189, 218 Mayaguez, PR 42, 66, 79, 123, 140, 173, 191, 243, 280, 313, 323, 350 Mazatlan, Mexico 8, 37, 38, 62, 66, 79, 83, 112, 137, 138, 149, 170, 172, 174, 182, 188, 190, 191, 192, 196, 240, 242, 259, 280, 281, 284, 310, 311, 315, 317, 322, 323, 326, 327, 351 McClelland, IA 34, 52, 69 McMurdo Sound, Antarctica 22, 114, 148, 186 McPherson, KS 39, 52, 82 Medford, NJ 44, 53, 71 Media, PA 44, 54, 72 Medway, MA 13, 26 Melbourne, Australia 90, 96, 100, 103, 107, 227, 343 Memphis, TN 7, 25, 40, 49, 59, 65, 86, 139, 146, 156, 161, 171, 180, 198, 283, 292, 306, 309, 321, 328, 346 Merida, Mexico 151, 180, 190, 195, 290, 316, 323, 326 Meridian, MS 48, 63, 74 Metairie, LA 153, 181, 187 Mexicali, Mexico 15 Mexico City, Mexico 6, 37, 61, 78, 83, 102, 103, 145, 146, 164, 195, 226, 232, 233, 291, 293, 301, 302, 322, 326, 344 Miami, FL 20, 49, 67, 89, 105, 114, 124, 125, 141, 145, 151, 155, 157, 161, 174, 177, 190, 194, 205, 221, 226, 245, 258, 263, 296, 299, 325, 349 Miami Beach, FL 34, 61, 74, 109, 119, 151, 164, 185, 232, 261, 267, 344 Miami Gardens, FL 127 Middletown, CT 93 Midland, TX 118, 146, 180, 199, 253, 257, 266, 291, 307, 318, 347 Midlothian, TX 39, 52, 73 Midwest City, OK 6, 34, 62, 72, 110, 135, 141, 165, 184, 234, 283, 303, 338 Miejska Gorka, Poland 118 Miles City, MT 251 Milledgeville, GA 124, 150, 179, 187, 261, 268 Millington, TN 150, 175, 187, 246 Millville, MA 39, 51, 70, 212 Milton-Freewater, WA 130 Milwaukee, WI 15, 96, 97, 98, 107, 111, 115, 125, 130, 142, 146, 148, 150, 152, 154, 156, 166, 169, 171, 172, 174, 175, 177, 202, 206, 210, 211, 225, 227, 229, 234, 235, 236, 241, 244, 246, 248, 257, 260, 262, 267, 270, 284, 287, 292, 294, 303, 309, 310, 312, 331, 333, 349 Minneapolis, MN 8, 17, 21, 38, 44, 53, 66, 79, 88, 113, 126, 129, 140, 142, 159, 172, 176, 177, 183, 202, 239, 242, 261, 269, 277, 278, 280, 282, 284, 289, 293, 299, 310, 311, 312, 314, 316, 317, 319, 320, 323, 331, 348, 350, 352

Minot, ND 118 Minster, OH 40, 59, 72, 107, 148, 161, 184, 226, 294, 299, 338, 343 Mississippi Mills, Canada 132, 248 Mitchell, SD 278, 309, 339 Mito, Japan 21, 22, 30, 31, 32, 64, 78, 111, 134, 136, 167, 189, 237, 256 Miyazaki, Japan 22, 134 Mobile, AL 40, 57, 86, 154, 178, 198, 287, 298, 328 Mobridge, SD 38, 64, 73, 144, 169, 184 Modesto, CA 142, 164, 192, 233, 284, 302, 324 Monessen, PA 43, 51, 72 Monroe, LA 98 Montello, WI 40, 59, 73 Monterrey, Mexico 103, 114, 150, 180, 190, 195, 244, 252, 256, 279, 286, 316, 323, 326, 352 Montgomery, AL 46, 59, 85, 149, 162, 198, 230, 284, 289, 300, 314, 321, 328 Montreal, Canada 6, 7, 26, 38, 41, 63, 64, 65, 77, 89, 111, 115, 122, 141, 147, 148, 150, 166, 167, 168, 170, 188, 206, 234, 236, 240, 257, 263, 264, 270, 276, 282, 284, 285, 286, 288, 291, 303, 304, 308, 321, 322, 333, 344, 345 Moose Jaw, Canada 126, 131 Morrisania, NY 208 Moultrie, GA 219, 294, 298, 325, 341 Mount Holly, NJ 35, 51, 71 Mount Olive, IL 41, 62, 74, 110, 234 Mount Prospect, IL 47, 48, 61, 63, 69, 109, 110, 233 Mount Vernon, NY 45, 56, 72 Mukwonago, WI 41, 61, 74, 109, 158, 164, 185 Munchausen, PA 14, 99 Murray, KY 262, 270 Muskegon, MI 17, 37, 57, 87, 105, 120 Myrtle Beach, SC 271, 284, 313, 324 Nagoya, Japan 22, 253 Naha, Japan 107 Naples, Italy 96 Nashville, TN 7, 8, 24, 35, 44, 49, 54, 65, 68, 80, 85, 86, 109, 114, 135, 137, 139, 171, 179, 192, 197, 232, 241, 252, 257, 258, 279, 289, 309, 316, 323, 327, 348 Natick, MA 70 Naugatuck, CT 45, 57, 74 Navojoa, Mexico 48, 63, 79, 83, 110, 120, 150, 166, 190, 196, 235, 251 Nepean, Canada 115, 247, 256, 350 Nettuno, Italy 290, 313, 322 New Bedford, MA 69 New Britain, CT 151, 169, 186, 239 New Canaan, CT 253 New Castle, PA 94 New Haven, CT 35, 39, 53, 54, 81, 92, 97, 104, 218, 340 New London, IA 233 New Market, VA 156, 178, 184 New Orleans, LA 90, 256 New Straitsville, OH 43, 52, 72 New York City, NY 6, 15, 16, 17, 18,

20, 24, 25, 34, 35, 37, 39, 46, 47, 51, 58, 60, 62, 71, 88, 89, 90, 92, 95, 96, 103, 104, 106, 108, 109, 110, 111, 112, 113, 114, 115, 119, 120, 121, 122, 124, 125, 133, 134, 135, 137, 141, 142, 143, 144, 145, 146, 149, 150, 152, 153, 154, 155, 156, 157, 158, 161, 162, 163, 165, 166, 168, 169, 172, 173, 174, 175, 176, 178, 179, 182, 183, 202, 203, 206, 208, 209, 210, 211, 212, 213, 214, 215, 216, 217, 218, 219, 220, 221, 222, 223, 224, 225, 226, 227, 228, 229, 230, 231, 234, 238, 239, 240, 241, 243, 244, 245, 246, 248, 249, 254, 258, 259, 260, 261, 262, 263, 264, 265, 266, 267, 268, 269, 270, 272, 273, 274, 275, 279, 284, 286, 287, 288, 289, 290, 291, 293, 294, 295, 298, 301, 303, 304, 306, 308, 309, 311, 312, 313, 314, 317, 327, 329, 331, 334, 340, 341, 345, 349, 352, 353, 355, 356 Newark, DE 356 Newark, NJ 220 Newark, OH 34, 35, 51, 53, 72, 84 Newport, RI 100, 126, 214 Newton, KS 43, 51, 80, 99 Newtown, NY 45, 57, 74 Newtown, PA 36, 62, 72, 148, 165, 184 Nice, France 100 Nininger, MN 90 Nishinomiya, Japan 40, 45, 56, 58, 78, 106, 221, 224 Nogales, Mexico 6, 36, 62, 79, 110, 139, 165, 190, 234, 285, 303, 322, 345 Norfolk, VA 35, 36, 54, 87 Norman, OK 43, 52, 75, 100, 214 Norridge, IL 35, 67, 75 North Balwyn, Australia 37, 59, 76, 107 North Little Rock, AR 152, 182, 199 North Pole, Arctic 22, 107, 148, 186, 228 Northampton, MA 92 Northfield, MN 130 Norwich, CT 2, 97, 140, 175, 193, 246, 289, 312, 325 Norwood, Australia 109 Nuremberg, Germany 104 Oakland, CA 6, 20, 25, 34, 47, 52, 61, 84, 88, 109, 111, 117, 121, 125, 148, 151, 154, 155, 156, 157, 158, 164, 165, 167, 171, 180, 203, 211, 232, 233, 234, 237, 241, 242, 247, 261, 262, 267, 270, 289, 293, 294, 295, 301, 302, 305, 311, 331, 349 Odessa, TX 118, 253 O'Fallon, MO 132 Ohiopyle, PA 47, 60, 72, 141, 163, 184 Ojinaga, Mexico 42, 68, 79, 137, 180, 190, 252 Oklahoma City, OK 35, 40, 56, 61, 80, 86, 126, 138, 164, 192, 219, 232, 253, 295, 317, 320 Olympia Fields, IL 48, 62, 74

Omaha, NE 24, 105, 106, 107, 108, 109, 146, 158, 167, 181, 186, 187, 227, 229, 232, 235, 236, 238, 245, 246, 247, 253, 295, 299, 323, 348 Ontario, OR 117, 251 Oranjestad, Aruba 116 Oregon City, OR 13 Orlando, FL 123, 128, 294, 304, 328 Orleans, MA 49, 67, 70, 143, 177, 183 Osaka, Japan 33, 35, 55, 58, 74, 78, 103, 106, 142, 144, 172, 175, 189, 218, 226, 242, 274, 341, 348 Oshkosh, WI 129 Oskarshamn, Sweden 116, 145, 178, 191, 250, 259, 267 Ostrava, Czech 15 Otsu, Japan 38, 66, 76, 78, 113 Ottawa, Canada 115, 247, 256, 350 Overland Park, KS 42, 66, 75, 144, 173, 185, 244 Owatonna, MN 39, 53, 71, 120 Owensboro, KY 37, 60, 75, 108, 139, 162, 186, 229 Oxford, OH 39, 55, 75, 102, 217 Oxnard, CA 39, 55, 68, 102 Ozona, TX 37, 55, 73 Pacific Junction, IA 33, 55, 69, 158, 160, 183, 217 Paducah, KY 5, 26, 45, 56, 82, 148, 160, 195, 219, 258, 285, 298, 326, 341 Palmer, IA 43, 52, 69 Panama City, Panama 115, 116 Paramus, NJ 40, 60, 71 Paris, France 96 Parkesburg, PA 44, 54, 72 Parma, Italy 110, 156, 178, 189, 250, 287, 315, 322 Pasco, WA 36, 67, 84, 138, 178, 197 Pawtucket, RI 7, 20, 21, 24, 30, 31, 32, 48, 63, 64, 82, 111, 116, 134, 136, 167, 194, 236, 256, 273, 274, 278, 305, 325, 345 Peekskill, NY 126 Pekin, IL 127 Pensacola, FL 104, 113 Peoria, IL 15, 38, 50, 87, 105, 211, 221, 342 Perth, Australia 240, 347 Petach Tikva, Israel 116, 119, 249, 254, 350 Petaluma, CA 69, 70, 90 Petersburg, VA 149, 181, 184, 282, 317, 339 Philadelphia, PA 8, 17, 18, 19, 25, 27, 34, 38, 43, 44, 48, 49, 50, 51, 54, 57, 62, 66, 72, 73, 88, 89, 92, 93, 94, 95, 97, 98, 100, 101, 104, 114, 120, 122, 123, 124, 135, 140, 141, 151, 152, 153, 154, 156, 161, 165, 166, 168, 171, 172, 178, 182, 206, 209, 211, 212, 213, 214, 215, 216, 217, 218, 219, 220, 221, 222, 223, 224, 225, 226, 227, 228, 236, 238, 242, 245, 249, 255, 256, 258, 261, 265, 266, 269, 272, 273, 275, 276, 278, 279, 282, 283,

284, 285, 289, 290, 291, 292, 294, 296, 298, 299, 300, 303, 304, 305, 308, 310, 311, 312, 314, 317, 319, 334, 341, 342, 343, 345, 348, 349, 350, 352 Phoenix, AZ 7, 46, 49, 58, 65, 85, 86, 95, 114, 138, 153, 155, 171, 174, 180, 197, 204, 231, 241, 245, 285, 309, 327, 344, 349 Piedras Negras, Mexico 133, 134, 136, 160, 190, 217, 256 Pierre, SD 339 Pinar del Rio, Cuba 38, 63, 77 Pine Bluff, AR 116, 152, 177, 186, 48 Pipestone, MN 43, 50, 71 Pitman, NJ 43, 51, 71, 120 Pittsburg, KS 38, 50, 84, 124 Pittsburgh, PA 1, 21, 25, 39, 48, 53, 63, 89, 94, 95, 98, 101, 102, 109, 122, 123, 124, 125, 127, 144, 145, 148, 154, 155, 166, 168, 170, 171, 179, 207, 209, 210, 212, 215, 216, 218, 219, 221, 222, 224, 225, 226, 233, 235, 240, 261, 262, 263, 264, 265, 266, 267, 269, 270, 274, 275, 276, 281, 282, 283, 284, 285, 286, 287, 290, 292, 293, 296, 298, 299, 300, 301, 302, 304, 305, 306, 311, 313, 317, 329, 334, 335, 340, 341, 342, 343, 344, 345 Pittsfield, MA 15, 70, 90, 208, 293, 300, 324 Placitas, NM 46, 59, 71, 158, 161, 183 Plainview, MN 42, 67, 71, 137, 177, 183, 248 Plano, TX 130 Platte, SD 12, 283, 298, 339, 342 Pomfret, CT 46, 58, 74, 224 Ponce, PR 106, 123, 346 Porlamar, Venezuela 251, 297, 316, 323, 351 Port Charlotte, FL 125, 143, 171, 194, 241, 297, 309, 325 Portland, ME 21, 92, 146, 148, 180, 181, 193 Portland, OR 13, 14, 16, 18, 43, 45, 46, 52, 57, 58, 84, 85, 107, 120, 122, 131, 209, 221, 228, 261, 269, 344, 355 Portsmouth, VA 6, 46, 47, 57, 60, 80, 85, 143, 163, 193, 231, 289, 301, 324 Pottsville, PA 34, 52, 72, 95, 99, 134, 136, 159, 184, 210, 211, 213, 256 Poughkeepsie, NY 129 Poza Rica, Mexico 106 Preston, England 97 Princeton, IN 38, 50, 82 Princeton, WV 244, 256, 265, 280, 288, 311, 316, 320 Prosperity, MO 33, 52, 71 Providence, RI 32, 36, 45, 52, 55, 63, 72, 75, 92, 94, 95, 102, 138, 166, 184, 209, 210, 216 Pueblo Nuevo, Cuba 93 Pulheim, Germany 115 Quincy, MA 132

Racine, WI 17, 37, 57, 87, 105, 222 Raleigh, NC 20, 21, 102, 119, 215 Reading, PA 147, 149, 152, 164, 174, 193, 291, 293, 301, 312, 324, 325 Regensburg, Germany 116, 159, 178, 188, 189, 249 Reggio Emilia, Italy 112 Reims, France 104 Richford, VT 103, 131, 219 Richmond, IN 43, 50, 69 Richmond, VA 42, 65, 82, 121, 155, 157, 170, 172, 195, 227, 263, 284, 293, 296, 299, 308, 310, 325, 326 Rimini, Italy 111, 112, 239, 285, 314, 322, 347 Ripon, WI 126 Rivas, Nicaragua 36, 64, 79 Riverside, CA 7, 42, 65, 80, 125, 140, 158, 163, 169, 186, 192, 247, 262, 271, 284, 290, 302, 308, 318, 324, 345 Rochester, MN 48, 64, 74, 140, 168, 185, 238, 258 Rochester, NY 20, 24, 30, 37, 57, 82, 126, 152, 158, 160, 162, 194, 223, 266, 267, 295, 297, 300, 311, 325, 326, 351 Rock Island, IL 35, 37, 54, 82, 83 Rockford, IL 17 Rockport, IN 257, 278, 285, 306, 337, 346 Rome, Italy 96 Rosetown, Canada 130 Rotterdam, Netherlands 115, 247, 350 Round Rock, TX 290, 313, 328, 350 Russellville, AR 41, 63, 74 Ruston, LA 41, 64, 75, 76, 156, 181, 187, 238, 261, 269 Rutherford, NJ 106 Ryan, IA 9, 10, 19 Saarlouis, Germany 116, 121, 248, 262, 271, 350 Sacramento, CA 14, 20, 34, 52, 84, 214, 250 Saginaw, MI 43, 45, 52, 55, 83, 86 St. Cloud, MN 39, 41, 53, 60, 71, 84, 143, 146, 163, 178, 197, 297, 314, 338 St-Hyacinthe, Canada 342 St. John's, Canada 114 St. Joseph, MO 15, 44, 54, 87 St. Louis, MO 14, 17, 35, 43, 50, 55, 71, 87, 89, 92, 94, 96, 97, 98, 101, 105, 135, 139, 145, 146, 148, 153, 154, 155, 156, 160, 169, 171, 174, 175, 176, 180, 183, 207, 208, 210, 211, 212, 213, 214, 216, 217, 218, 219, 220, 221, 222, 223, 224, 225 226, 245, 246, 247, 248, 257, 262, 263, 265, 267, 270, 279, 285, 291, 293, 298, 307, 308, 309, 332, 335, 340, 346 St. Paul, MN 21, 113, 127 St. Petersburg, FL 5, 7, 8, 20, 32, 48, 49, 60, 64, 66, 81, 105, 108,

137, 138, 143, 149, 152, 154, 162,

169, 172, 175, 177, 182, 194, 203,

222, 223, 230, 242, 259, 274,

279, 281, 287, 295, 301, 307, 310, 313, 317, 325, 332, 343, 350, 352 St. Trond, Belgium 104 Saipan, Northern Mariana Islands 117 Salem, MA 39, 44, 53, 70, 74, 215, 340 Salem, VA 126, 281, 287, 296, 311, 314, 319 Salinas, CA 45, 55, 68 Salisbury, NC 91 Salt Lake City, UT 122, 128, 260, 266 San Antonio, TX 5, 7, 8, 17, 24, 33, 34, 35, 40, 42, 48, 52, 56, 59, 63, 64, 65, 67, 86, 112, 123, 134, 137, 142, 145, 148, 149, 151, 153, 154, 158, 161, 164, 165, 169, 170, 175, 176, 178, 181, 193, 199, 213, 218, 220, 225, 228, 239, 258, 282, 285, 287, 288, 295, 296, 298, 299, 300, 302, 307, 308, 315, 324, 328, 343 San Bernardino, CA 146, 181, 192 San Bruno, CA 256 San Diego, CA 6, 8, 17, 20, 38, 41, 48, 62, 63, 68, 89, 108, 120, 122, 124, 129, 138, 140, 141, 143, 149, 152, 153, 156, 157, 161, 165, 166, 171, 173, 175, 181, 207, 227, 235, 239, 243, 244, 251, 262, 264, 267, 269, 275, 276, 281, 284, 286, 288, 289, 290, 293, 295, 299, 304, 305, 308, 317, 318, 327, 335, 337, 344, 345, 346, 352 Sandusky, OH 92 Sanford, FL 5, 40, 47, 57, 60, 81, 84, 108, 152, 160, 194, 222, 291, 298, 325 San Francisco, CA 15, 20, 32, 37, 39, 44, 54, 55, 58, 68, 85, 89, 90, 92, 99, 101, 102, 120, 124, 125, 143, 145, 148, 151, 152, 154, 156, 158, 159, 160, 164, 167, 169, 172, 175, 176, 183, 186, 207, 210, 211, 213, 215, 217, 228, 229, 232, 233, 239, 246, 247, 263, 264, 265, 288, 291, 292, 306, 308, 312, 335 San Jose, CA 36, 42, 46, 52, 57, 66, 68, 80, 128, 143, 173, 192 San Jose de las Lajas, Cuba 35, 66, 77, 113 San Juan, PR 41, 62, 79, 110, 115, 116, 117, 123, 156, 177, 191, 206, 219, 229, 234, 246, 248, 251, 262, 284, 303, 323, 345, 352 San Lorenzo, CA 9, 34, 62, 74, 110 San Luis Potosi, Mexico 142, 179, 190, 195, 297, 316, 323, 326 San Marino, San Marino 112, 145, 169, 189, 191, 239, 280, 307, 323, 347 San Mateo, CA 45, 57, 68 San Pedro de Marcoris, Dominican 8, 49, 67, 77, 138, 147, 153, 176, 182, 189, 248, 279, 313, 322 Santa Ana, CA 98 Santa Ana, Mexico 45, 57, 78, 105, 222 Santa Barbara, CA 35, 54, 68 Santa Clara, CA 151, 155, 177, 179, 187

Santa Clara, Cuba 47, 48, 60, 62, 64, 77, 108, 110 Santiago, Cuba 38, 47, 48, 60, 63, 64, 77, 106, 108, 116, 248 Santo Domingo, Dominican 7, 38, 63, 77, 106, 110, 111, 116, 140, 146, 166, 182, 188, 189, 236, 279, 280, 305, 317, 322, 345 Santurce, PR 107 Sao Paulo, Brazil 47, 61, 76, 109, 142, 165, 188, 233 Sarasota, FL 42, 49, 65, 66, 81, 112, 124, 139, 170, 175, 194, 240, 246, 270, 288, 297, 312, 313, 325 Saratoga, CA 256 Saskatoon, Canada 115, 130, 131, 132, 164, 247 Sauget, IL 135, 138, 181, 187, 254, 280, 317, 320 Savannah, GA 36, 62, 86, 141, 165, 198 Schaller, IA 36, 52, 69 Schenectady, NY 14, 18, 99 Schofield Barracks, HI 104 Scottsdale, AZ 227, 251, 352 Scranton, PA 121, 126 Seattle, WA 19, 40, 44, 47, 53, 59, 61, 84, 85, 88, 110, 121, 143, 146, 147, 148, 149, 152, 156, 160, 161, 164, 171, 174, 175, 197, 203, 216, 227, 234, 241, 243, 244, 246, 247, 294, 301, 332 Secaucus, NJ 148, 175, 183, 247 Sedalia, MO 127 Selma, AL 279, 305, 336, 345 Sendai, Japan 250 Seoul, South Korea 98, 111, 112, 115, 119, 143, 145, 150, 175, 182, 191, 212, 237, 246, 254, 255, 346, 352 Sevierville, TN 152, 179, 198 Shakopee, MN 34, 58, 71, 158, 160, 183, 223 Shawnee, OH 43, 52, 72 Sheboygan, WI 15, 39, 52, 73 Sherbrooke, Canada 342 Shikoku, Japan 33, 59, 74, 78, 107, 144, 161, 184, 189, 227 Shimonoseki, Japan 17, 140, 173, 189, 244 Shizuoka, Japan 140, 176, 190, 247 Shreveport, LA 146, 148, 150, 168, 171, 175, 199 Shullsburg, WI 40, 57, 73 Siler City, NC 47, 61, 71 Silver Spring, MD 16, 132 Sioux City, IA 36, 53, 87, 123, 130, 215 Sioux Falls, SD 5, 34, 60, 80, 93, 94, 128, 140, 154, 162, 192, 229, 230, 285, 300, 324, 339, 343 South Bend, IN 17, 39, 45, 46, 52, 57, 75, 80, 87, 90, 104, 105, 213, 278, 291, 308, 318, 319, 347 South Williamsport, PA 114, 115, 249 Spartanburg, SC 39, 53, 73 Spokane, WA 127 Springfield, IL 209 Springfield, MA 13, 44, 47, 54, 59, 81, 133, 208, 281 Springfield, MO 43, 50, 84, 116, 126,

158, 159, 196, 211, 250, 311, 320, 348 Staunton, VA 156, 178, 184 Stockholm, Sweden 100, 101, 214, 340 Stockton, CA 7, 35, 38, 50, 65, 80, 98, 103, 113, 131, 140, 145, 158, 171, 180, 181, 187, 192, 212, 241, 288, 309, 324, 348 Stoneham, MA 15, 32, 50, 70, 98, 212 Stroudsburg, PA 45, 56, 72 Stuart, FL 40, 58, 69 Sturgeon Bay, WI 40, 57, 73 Sturgis, SD 157, 162, 192, 296, 300, 339 Sumter, SC 287, 309, 339 Swarthmore, PA 45, 56, 72, 120 Swepsonville, NC 155, 161, 184, 227 Sydney, Australia 38, 67, 76, 96, 100, 113, 114, 115, 147, 177, 188, 246, 248, 349 Syracuse, NY 6, 7, 21, 33, 37, 38, 60, 63, 64, 82, 126, 137, 143, 155, 166, 168, 171, 194, 195, 218, 238, 257, 263, 271, 284, 288, 292, 297, 300, 305, 306, 309, 325, 326 Tacoma, WA 19, 36, 50, 85, 97, 127, 128, 150, 170, 197, 211, 297, 308, 327 Taejon, South Korea 114, 150, 173, 191, 244, 349 Taichung, Taiwan 119, 244, 245, 254 Tainan, Taiwan 148, 181, 191, 253, 254 Taipei, Taiwan 33, 41, 56, 63, 74, 79, 104, 110, 113, 115, 142, 148, 160, 166, 184, 188, 191, 220, 235, 242, 247, 253, 350, 351 Tallahassee, FL 129, 141, 152, 174, 186, 187, 245, 293, 312, 319 Tampa, FL 50, 68, 81, 153, 181, 194, 227 Taunton, England 255 Taunton, MA 126 Tell 'Afar, Iraq 16, 297, 314, 322, 350 Tempe, AZ 113, 114, 243, 277, 312, 337, 349 Tenbrook, MO 35, 55, 71, 139, 160, 183, 218 Thetford Mines, Canada 46, 57, 77, 105, 222, 342 Three Oaks, MI 113 Tishamingo, OK 130, 344 Tokorozawa, Japan 112, 113, 244 Tokyo, Japan 15, 17, 19, 22, 32, 33, 37, 46, 47, 56, 58, 59, 61, 73, 76, 78, 93, 99, 100, 103, 105, 106, 108, 109, 113, 114, 117, 134, 145, 149, 160, 162, 178, 184, 189, 190, 213, 220, 224, 225, 229, 230, 233, 234, 242, 243, 244, 245, 249, 250, 251, 254, 254, 274, 342, 343, 351, 355 Toledo, OH 45, 56, 80, 139, 176,

186, 247, 290, 296, 298, 313, 323, 326 Toronto, Canada 44, 54, 77, 82, 110, 127, 143, 150, 153, 157, 169, 171, 175, 188, 204, 216, 238, 239, 240, 280, 294, 296, 307, 312, 321, 322, 332, 347, 349, 356 Torreon, Mexico 48, 62, 79, 83 Trenton, NJ 148, 153, 154, 173, 181, 193, 259 Trois-Rivieres, Canada 45, 56, 77, 85, 218, 282, 285, 298, 303, 321, 324, 327, 341 Troy, NY 27, 92, 93 Tubingen, Germany 115 Tucson, AZ 16, 26, 47, 50, 61, 68, 76, 85, 116, 132, 151, 176, 186, 219, 228, 248, 350 Tulln, Austria 252 Tulsa, OK 37, 58, 86, 144, 162, 199, 229, 276, 287, 300, 328 Tuscaloosa, AL 288, 313, 319 Two Rivers, WI 19 Tyler, TX 46, 58, 80, 258 Ube City, Japan 17, 33, 62, 74, 78, 110 Union Springs, NY 91, 208 Upton, MA 13, 26 Valencia, Venezuela 251 Valentine, SD 157, 162, 192, 296, 300, 339 Vancouver, Canada 36, 52, 76, 84, 99, 128, 155, 182, 197, 213 Van Voorhis, PA 40, 57, 72, 158, 160, 184 Van Wert, OH 32, 50, 71, 98 Varazdin, Croatia 119 Vasteras, Sweden 101 Vatican City, Vatican 95, 106 Vega Baja, PR 118 Veracruz, Mexico 36, 67, 79, 83 Verdun, France 101 Vero Beach, FL 7, 48, 64, 81, 169, 194, 308 Vicksburg, MS 12, 98 Victoria, Canada 35, 58, 77, 87, 106, 119, 224 Vienna, Austria 117, 265 Villa Clara, Cuba 159, 180, 188 Vilnius, Lithuania 115 Vincennes, IL 39, 52, 81 Visalia, CA 6, 37, 61, 80, 138, 164, 192, 233, 259, 294, 302, 324 Warwick, RI 99, 212 Washington, CT 92 Washington, DC 6, 11, 14, 18, 37, 41, 44, 47, 55, 60, 61, 73, 88, 91, 92, 93, 98, 99, 101, 102, 107, 109, 120, 121, 138, 140, 151, 152, 159, 163,

164, 165, 182, 201, 204, 207, 208,

214, 215, 216, 218, 221, 225, 226, 231, 233, 260, 268, 273, 274, 275, 280, 283, 286, 289, 296, 297, 298, 301, 302, 316, 317, 330, 332, 335, 336, 342, 344, 355 Washington, PA 39, 51, 72, 110 Waterbury, CT 37, 60, 81, 92, 141, 162, 193 Waterloo, Canada 40, 58, 77 Waterloo, IA 20, 34, 38, 63, 65, 83, 113, 120, 137, 147, 165, 170, 196, 240, 258, 262, 270 Watertown, NY 39, 53, 71, 84, 101 Watertown, SD 46, 58, 73 Wauchula, FL 40, 55, 69 Wausau, WI 110 Webb City, MO 250 Weehawken, NJ 210 West Deptford, NJ 144, 176, 183 West Palm Beach, FL 34, 60, 81, 107, 128, 147, 163, 194, 231 Westfield, MA 70, 91, 208 Wheeling, WV 92 White Plains, NY 132 Whitehall, WI 45, 56, 73 Wichita, KS 16, 132, 277, 278, 279, 281, 283, 286, 288, 290, 292, 296, 314, 315, 337, 338, 350, 351 Wichita Falls, TX 33, 46, 55, 57, 73, 80 Wilkes-Barre, PA 40, 57, 81, 121, 126, 221 Williamsport, PA 103, 110, 233, 245, 248 Wilmington, DE 42, 66, 80, 139, 174, 193 Winnipeg, Canada 144, 157, 173, 177, 188, 197, 244 Winston-Salem, NC 49, 67, 76, 102, 144, 157, 163, 179, 187, 193, 231, 270, 281, 285, 301, 309, 324 Winter Haven, FL 283, 317, 321 Wolfforth, TX 282, 314, 318, 350 Woodbridge, VA 237, 265, 284, 306, 324 Woodbury, CT 92 Woonsocket, MA 212 Worcester, MA 13, 50, 68, 70, 80, 90, 91, 126, 132, 133, 142, 182, 193, 208, 339 Wyoming, MI 297, 303, 320, 345 Yaounde, Cameroun 114, 244 Yokohama, Japan 31, 342 York, PA 45, 56, 72 Yorkton, Canada 50, 68, 77, 152, 182, 188 Yorktown, VA 92 Yorkville, IL 45, 55, 69 Zebulon, NC 159, 173, 198 Zurich, Switzerland 92